University of Mississippi eGrove

Accountants' Index

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Historical Collection

1-1-1940

Accountants' index. Fifth supplement, a bibliography of accounting literature, January, 1936-December, 1939 (Inclusive)

American Institute of Accountants

Helen M. Johnstone

Follow this and additional works at: https://egrove.olemiss.edu/aicpa accind

Recommended Citation

American Institute of Accountants and Johnstone, Helen M., "Accountants' index. Fifth supplement, a bibliography of accounting literature, January, 1936-December, 1939 (Inclusive)" (1940). *Accountants' Index*. 6. https://egrove.olemiss.edu/aicpa_accind/6

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Historical Collection at eGrove. It has been accepted for inclusion in Accountants' Index by an authorized administrator of eGrove. For more information, please contact egrove@olemiss.edu.

accountants[,] 4 n d e x supplement 1936 - 1939

Accountants' Index

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

FIFTH SUPPLEMENT

A BIBLIOGRAPHY OF ACCOUNTING LITERATURE JANUARY, 1936—DECEMBER, 1939 (Inclusive)

Published for the AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS

BY THE

AMERICAN INSTITUTE PUBLISHING CO., INC. 13 East 41st St., New York, N. Y. Copyrighted, 1940, by AMERICAN INSTITUTE PUBLISHING CO., INC.

INTRODUCTORY NOTE

THIS fifth supplement to the Accountants' Index will guide the reader to practically all accounting literature in the English language published from January 1, 1936, to December 31, 1939. Names of authors, subjects, and titles have been arranged in a single alphabet, with information as to publisher, place of publication, date, and number of pages. The addresses of the publishers and periodicals will be found at the end of this volume.

It is not necessary, as some seem to believe, to possess the original *Accountants' Index* and the four earlier supplements in order to derive benefit from the fifth supplement. Each volume is complete in itself in relation to the years which it covers.

The significant changes which accounting and auditing have undergone in order to keep abreast of economic and social developments in the past four years are reflected in this volume.

The following is a list of the periods covered by the original edition and the four supplements:

Accountants' Index—Literature in print in 1912 to December 31, 1920 First Supplement—Literature from January 1, 1921, to July 1, 1923 Second Supplement—Literature from July 1, 1923, to January 1, 1928 Third Supplement—Literature from January 1, 1928, to January 1, 1932 Fourth Supplement—Literature from January 1, 1932, to January 1, 1936 Fifth Supplement—Literature from January 1, 1936, to January 1, 1940

> Helen M. Johnstone, Librarian

13 East 41st Street, New York. August, 1940.

 Λ

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

A.A.A

Relationships between modern developments in accountancy and the general standing of mem-bers with the public. Accountants' journal, Sept. in 1938, p. 88-9.

A B C of cost figuring for the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. Sieplein, W. R.

ABATTOIRS

See Butchers; Slaughtering and slaughter houses

ABBOTT, C. J. Control of inventory closely tied in with control of entire business. Controller, May 1939, p. 178, 180, 182-3.

ABBOTT, CHARLES CORTEZ

Federal corporations and corporate agencies. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 436-50.

ABBOTT, GAYTON

Sound practices in the operation of safe deposit departments. National auditgram, May 1938, p. 4-5, 14-5, 16.

ABERHART THEORY See Social credit.

ABRAMS, ERNEST R.

Future of the holding company in the non-utility field; significance of public utility act of 1935. Public utilities fortnightly, Jan. 21, 1937, p. 67-76.

Regulation of utilities or public ownership? Public utilities fortnightly, March 16, 1939, p. 334.42. Regulations of electric utilities by accounting. Commercial and financial chronicle, April 3, 1937, p. 2204-7.

ABSORPTIONS

See Consolidations.

- ACCELERATION CLAUSE ACCELERATION clause on borrowers statements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1937, p. 207-28.
- ACCELERATION clause on borrowers statements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1937, p. 207-28.

- ACCEPTANCES
 PEREIRA, FELIX de C. Trade acceptance. *Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin*, March 1937, p. 238, 254-8.
 PETO, JOHN H. Trade acceptance: its effect on accounts receivable, working capital, profits. *Credit and financial management*, April 1936, p. 10-2, 41.

ACCEPTED PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING See Accounting-Standardization.

ACCEPTED principles of accounting. Armstrong, J. E., Jr.

ACCIDENTS

JONES, R. PERCIVAL. Accident prevention in industry. Cost accountant, April 1938, p. 348-52.

ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION See Classification

ACCOUNTANCY

See also Accountants; Accountants' societies; Accounting. ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Future of profes-

- sional accountancy. (Correspondence). Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 220. APPORTIONMENT of fame—Avenues to suc-cess—Success not dependent on one factor. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936,
- p. 162-5. BENTLEY SCHOOL OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE. Special bulletin. Boston, Mass. Bentley school of accounting and finance (1937) 22p. COCHRANE,
- 22CHRANE, GEORGE. Address given at a luncheon meeting, 25th August 1938 in the Lord Nelson Hotel, Halifax . . . to the annual meeting of the Dominion association of chartered accountants. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 262-7.

- accountants. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 262-7.
 COCHRANE, GEORGE. Some observations on the profession. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 110-7.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Accountant's opinion. Banking, June 1939, p. 87.
 DYNAMIC accountancy. Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 320-2.
 KELLY, LINCOLN G. Introduction to round table discussion: Extension of accounting practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 139-40.)
 1939, (Editorial). Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 361-2.

- 1939. (Editorial). Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 361-2.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Trends in accountancy. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 41-2.
 SODHBANS, P. S. Collection of papers on ac-countancy, commerce and economics, edited by H. S. Balhaya. Lahore, India, Indian accountant, 1937, 103p.
 STAMP, JOSIAH. Future of the accountant. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939, p. 3447
- 344-7
- 344-7. STAMP, JOSIAH. Lord Stamp on the accoun-tant's future; London members' dinner. Accoun-tancy, Nov. 1938, p. 73-6. Accountant, Nov. 12, 1938, p. 674-5. (Extracts). WAR. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 217-8.
- 1939, p. 217-8. WITTY, RICHARD A. Unification of the accountancy profession. Accountant, Feb. 5, 1938, p. 177-8.

As a profession See Accountancy—Professional aspects.

- As a vocation ACCOUNTANCY and the young man; a radio broadcast. Certified public accountant, June 1938,

 - p. 2-6.
 BAERNCOPF, JOSEPH B. What is ahead for the junior accountant? 12 typewritten pages.
 BATTELLE, GORDON S. Future of the certified public accountant; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. *Papers on accounting principles and procedure*, 1938, p. 197-9.)
 BYRNES, THOMAS W. Opportunities for ac-counting students (reprinted by permission of the New York state society of certified public accountants). Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4.
 - 3-4.
 - EGLESTON, DeWITT CARL. Becoming a pub-lic accountant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1938, p. 5, 17.
 - p. 5, 17. EGGLESTON, DeWITT CARL. Opportunities in public accounting. *Certified public accountant*, June 1936, p. 330-3. INSTITUTE FOR RESEARCH. Accountancy as
 - Chicago, Ill., Institute for research,
 - a career. Chicago, Ill., Institute for research, c1936. 15p. McGLADREY, IRA B. Some historical and voca-tional notes on accountancy. 13 typewritten pages.

ACCOUNTANCY-As a vocation-(Continued)

- New 10 128. 10p.

- the occupation of the accountant. New York, National occupational conference, 1938. 10p. OPPORTUNITIES in accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 260-1. O'REILLY, HUGH S. After graduation-what? Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 9-10, 14. PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR. Accountancy, in-dispensable tool of control and administration in business and in government. New York, The author, c1938. 21p. (Occupational monographs series). series)
- series).
 PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR. I choose my occupation. New York, Pace institute, c1935. 29p. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 69-72 (excerpts).
 PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR. Public practice of accountancy; the professional work and status of the certified public accountant (C.P.A.) New York, The author, c1938, c1939. 35p. (Occupational monographs series.)
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR H. After commencement—what? Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 8-9.
- 8-9. SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W. Accountancy as a career. New York, Funk & Wagnalls co., 1939. 161p.

- cateer. New York, Funk & Wagnalls co., 1939. 161p.
 SEYBOLD, ROSCOE. Opportunities for accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 5-6. Controller, Jan. 1939, p. 34.
 THOMSON, J. C. Accountancy—a career or qualification. California certified public accoun-tant, June 1936, p. 3-4.
 TURNBURKE, H. M. Accountancy—a profes-sion for educated men; paper presented at a meeting of a student's institute on accounting held under the direction of the College of business administration of the University of Florida at Gainesville, Florida, November 11th and 12th, 1938. 22 typewritten pages. Account-ing review, Sept. 1939, p. 250-8.
 WARE, WILLIAM. Work of the C.P.A.; an interview with William Ware. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 2-8.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Shall I become a public accountant? Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 409-15.
 WINTER, C. G. Why the accounting profession?

- 1939, p. 409-15. WINTER, C. G. Why the accounting profession? Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 10, 17.

Australia

- "AUSTRALIAN accountant," Australian accoun-tant, Feb. 1936, p. 2-9, FITZGERALD, A. A. Modern tendencies in ac-counting. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 321-30.

Relainm

ACCOUNTANCY in Belgium. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939. p. 79.

Boards

See State boards of accountancy.

Canada

HAMILTON, R. W. Right to specialize. Canad-ian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 190-4.

- NORMAN, H. G. Our profession-quo vadis? Canadian chartered accountant. Nov. 1938, p. 335-42
- 335-42.
 THOMPSON, R. R. Development of the profession of accounting in Canada; paper read at the 5th international congress on accounting, Berlin, September 1938. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 171-86.
 THOMPSON, R. R. Matters affecting the accountant, profession. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongressarchiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 53-69.)

China

YU-LIN HSI. Accountants in China. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 54-5.

Education See Education

England

- CARTER, ROGER N. Accountancy in England and America. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 485-7.) PROFESSION in England. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 8-9.

- Europe
 HOGEWEG, G. P. J. Matters affecting the accountancy profession. (English translation). (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 22-36.)
 INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting. Berlin; matters affecting the accountancy profession. Indian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 43-53.

France

DAVID, L. C. Grøwth of the accounting profession in France. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 67-71, 75.

Germany

MATZ, A. Position of the German accountant. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 392-5.

- Accounting review, ber. 11.2, 1
 Great Britain
 FREEMAN, GEORGE R. Constructive accountant, ancy. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 257-77, discussion, p. 277-84. Accountant, Oct. 31, 1936, p. 589-96, discussion, p. 596-8.
 HALSEY, LAURENCE. Position of the public accountant in relation to business and government in Great Britain. Accountant, Aug. 20, 1938, p. 256-61; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 90-8; Sept. 1938, p. 171-80. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 373-86; Dec. 1938, p. 434-49.
 HOLMAN, WALTER. Accountancy in war-time. Accountant, July 10, 1937, p. 48-50. Incorporated accountancy in war-time. Accountant, July 101, 1937, p. 48-50. Incorporated accountants, journal, July 1937, p. 48-50. Incorporated accountants, journal, July 1937, p. 363-79.
 JEAL, E. F. Some reflections on the evolution of the professional practice of accountancy in Great Britain. Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 521-9.
 MAN. GEORGE O. Wider horizons. Canadian

 - Great Britain. Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 521-9.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Wider horizons. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 295-304.
 STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Developments in accountancy training and practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 275-8.
 WATERHOUSE, NICHOLAS E. Matters affecting the accountancy profession. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress.archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 155-74.)
 WATERHOUSE, NICHOLAS E. Matters affecting the profession in Great Britain and Ireland. Accountant, Oct. 15, 1938, p. 529-35. Certified accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 379-86.

History

- See also Bookkeeping—History; Names of vari-ous countries under Accountancy. "AUSTRALIAN accountant." Australian accoun-tant, Feb. 1936, p. 2-9.

ACCOUNTANCY-History-(Continued)

- BEGINNINGS of state accountancy legislation and organizations. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration,

- and organizations. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 508-16.)
 BENNETT, ROBERT J. Accounting profession in Pennsylvania. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 710-5.
 CARTER, ARTHUR H. Accountancy views its progress and looks ahead. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 9-15.
 FIFTY years of progress. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 175-6.
 FIRST C.P.A. certificate issued in each state and territory. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 521-2.)
 FIRST public discussion of accountancy legisla-

- 521-2.)
 FIRST public discussion of accountancy legislation in the United States. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 517-20.)
 FOUR C.P.A. decades. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 199-205.
 HUGHES, JAMES F. Our profession. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 5-13.
 IMPORTANT step—Brief history of progress— Struitous aids to development—What was twenty-five years ago—Spread of this influence Esprit de corps—American institute of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 393-8.
- JEAL, E. F. Some reflections on the evolution of the professional practice of accountancy in Great Britain. Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 521.9
- 521-9.
 LYBRAND, WILLIAM M. As I look back over half a century. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1938, p. 7-38.
 LYBRAND, ROSS BROTHERS AND MONT-GOMERY. Record of half a century in the accountancy profession. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937. 39p.
 McGLADREY, IRA B. Some historical and voca-tional notes on accountancy. 13 typewritten nages

- 27/2-86.)
 PERREN, A. (La) Profession d'expert-comptable aux Etats-Unis. deuxieme edition. Neuchatel et Paris, Delachaux & Niestle S. A., 1936. 120p.
 ROSS, T. EDWARD. Random recollections of an eventful half century. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 7-25. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937,
- 1937, p. 7-25. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 256-78. DURAND W. Accountancy in Mich-igan. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 703-5.
- THOMPSON, R. R. Development of the profes-sion of accounting in Canada; paper read at the 5th international congress on accounting,

- Berlin, September 1938. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 171-86.
 TRIST, H. J. Accountant, public and non-public, his place in the realm of commerce. Australiam accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 33-44.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. First certified public accountant law in history. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 6-8.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. New York C.P.A. law past and future. Certified public accountant, May 1937, p. 2-6.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Public accountant, May 1937, p. 2-6.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Public accountant, institute of accountant, Way 1937, p. 2-6.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Public accountancy in the United States. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937.) 27 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 101-19.) Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 68-74.

- India ACCOUNTANCY in India. Irish accountant and secretary, Dublin management exhibition number (April 1939) p. 27.
 SODHBANS, P. S. Development of accountancy profession in India. Indian accountant, Oct.-Nov. 1938, p. 19-27.
 SODHBANS, P. S. Matters affecting the accoun-tancy profession. (In V. intermationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 37-52.)

Treland

- eland
 BOYD, D. TILFOURD. Accountancy in relation to Irish industry and commerce. Incorporated accountants' journal, July, 1937, p. 366-72, dis-cussion, p. 372-3. Accountant, July 17, 1937, p. 89-94, discussion, p. 94-5.
 WATERHOUSE, NICHOLAS E. Matters affect-ing the profession in Great Britain and Ireland. Accountant, Oct. 15, 1938, p. 529-35. Certified accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 379-86.

Japan WATANABE, YOSHIWO. Accountancy profes-sion in Japan. (Accounting exchange) Account-ing review, Dec. 1939, p. 4 30-2.

Law

Alabama ALABAMA. Governor's no. 148, laws 1936 (House bill no. 248-XX) an act to amend section 21 of the code of Alabama of 1923. (approved, February 27, 1937.) Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 22.

Alaska ALASKA. Legislature. Chapter 65; an act estab-lishing a territorial board of accountancy and defining its powers and providing a penalty for the unlawful use of titles and degrees, and apportioning funds for the organization and maintenance of such board. (approved March 11, 1937.) Juneau, Alaska, Office of the secre-tary, 1937. 5p.

California

CALIFORNIA. Chapter 353, laws 1939 (assembly bill no. 1860) (regular session); an act to amend sections 5016, 5017, 5018 and 5044 of, and to add section 5016.3, 5016.6, 5017.3, 5017.6 to the business and professions code, relating to the practice of accounting. (approved June 2, 1939). Certified public accountant, July 1939, 212-2 p. 21-2.

Canada LaSALLE extension university. Requirements for the C.P.A. and other examinations and the practice of public accounting; a summary of the qualifications needed by candidates for ac-countancy degrees in the United States and Canada. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension univer-sity (1939). 32p. ONTARIO. Legislature. Bill; an act respecting the Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario; 2nd session, 19th legislature. Ontario, Canada

ACCOUNTANCY-Law-Canada-(Continued)

1 Edward VIII, 1936. Toronto, King's printer, 1936. 2p.

- Colorado COLORADO. H. 575; an act to specify the quali-fications of certified public accountants and reg-istered accountants; to regulate the services per-formed and the reports issued by them; provid-ing for the collection and disposition of fees; providing for the administration hereof; amend-ing or repealing all acts or parts of acts in conflict herewith, and providing penalties for the violation of this act. (approved June 1, 1937). Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 19-27.
- p. 19-27. COLORADO. State board of accountancy. Prac-tice of public accountancy in Colorado. Denver, Colo., State board of accountancy, Sept. 20, 1938. 27p.

Connecticut

CUBA. Proposed law re performance of account-ing functions, 1937. 10 mimeographed pages.

Denmark

FORENINGEN af statsautoriserede revisorer. Communication from Foreningen af statsautori-serede revisorer (Society of state-authorized accountants in Denmark). Copenhagen, Foren-ingen af statsautoriserede revisorer, 1937. 37p.

- Florida FLORIDA. State board of accountancy. Annual register, June 30, 1938. Miami, Fla., State board of accountancy, 1938. 41p. FLORIDA. State board of accountancy. Florida accountancy law, rules of the board relating to holding of examinations and issuance of cer-tificates and standards of conduct and ethical practice; alphabetical lists of holders of certifi-cates of authority as public accountants issued by this board who have registered in accordance with the law for 1936, as of June 30, 1936. Miami, Fla., State board of accountancy, 1936. 42p.
- 42p. FLORIDA accountancy law upheld. Certified pub-lic accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 17-9.

Idaho IDAHO. Senate bill no. 83; an act amending sec-tion 53-202, Idaho code annotated, relating to the qualifications of applicants for certified public accountant certificate, and providing for requirements as to experience and education of such applicants: and amending tile 53, chapter 2, Idaho code annotated, by adding a new section to be known as section 53-205, I.C.A., and providing for recognition of a college or university degree held by applicants desiring to stiffer examination. (approved Feb. 23, 1939.) sit for examination. (approved Feb. 23, 1939.) Certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 8-9.

- Illinois DECISION upholding Illinois act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 12. ELLIOTT vs. University of Illinois; before Judge Prystalski, no. 34 C 1085, Chicago, Illinois. 6

- typewriten pages. SUPREME court decisions on accountancy acts. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 20-8. TWO courts uphold accountancy acts—Illinois case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 88-93
- WISCONSIN court upholds state accountants act. Bulletin of the American institute of accoun-tants, June 1936, p. 23-5.

India AUDITORS' certificate rules, 1932. Indian ac-countant, March 1936, p. 264-5. POSITION of auditors in India. Accountant, April 24, 1937, p. 570-4.

IOWA. Board of accountancy. Annual register of practitioners of accountancy, January 1, 1938. Sioux City, Iowa, State board of accoun-tancy, 1938. 41p. Same, January 1, 1939. 42p.

Louisiana

INTERPRETATION of Louisiana accountancy law. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 21-2. Philippine accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 132-3.

Massachusetts

MASSACHUSETTS society of certified public ac-countants. Directory 1937; including a complete list of certified public accountants of the common-

MICHIGAN. State board of accountancy. An-nual register, 1936. Ann Arbor, Mich., State board of accountancy, 1936. 35p.

Mississippi MISSISSIPPI. State board of public accountancy. Act, application of sections of the law, rules and regulations governing the issuance of C.P.A. certificates, rules of professional conduct, March 1, 1938. Jackson, Miss., State board of public accountancy, 1938. 14p.

Missouri

11SSOURI. (Senate bill no. 212.) (regular ses-sion); an act to repeal section 13712 and section 13713, article 1, chapter 110, revised statutes of Missouri, 1929, relating to the State board of accountancy. . and to be known as section 13712, and declaring this to be a revision bill. (approved June 23, 1939) Certified public ac-countant, July 1939, p. 23-4. MISSOURI. (Senate bill no. 212.)

Montana

MONTANA, University of. Information concern-ing the certificate as certified public accountant, December 1937. Missoula, Montana, University of Montana, 1937. 9p.

New Hampshire NEW HAMPSHIRE. Act to create a state board of accountancy. (approved, June 2, 1937.) Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 27-31.

New Jersey ANOTHER attempt to interfere with practice-Some unanswerable arguments. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 245-6. C.P.A. requirements amended. Certified public ac-

- contant, July 1938, p. 10. PRACTICE under assumed name. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 16,
- 1936, p. 10-1.

New Mexico NEW MEXICO senate bill no. 202. (approved March 17, 1937) Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 19-20. NEW MEXICO. State board of accountancy. Register of New Mexico certified public accoun-tants who have complied with rules adopted May 14, 1936 in respect of registration and payment of fee for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1937. July 1936, 7p. Same, 1939-1940. 8p.

New York

C.P.A. legislation in New York. (Editorial). Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 193-4. HUGHES, JAMES F. Celebration of passage of the first certified public accountant law. New

ACCOUNTANCY-Law-New York-(Continued)

York certified public accountant, April 1936, p.

North Carolina NORTH CAROLINA. State board of accountancy. Information in regard to examinations for cer-tified public accountants. Raleigh, N. C., North Carolina state board of accountancy, Dec. 1, 1939. 19p.

Ohio LEGISLATIVE episode. Certified public accoun-tant, March 1937, p. 7-10.

Oklahoma OKLAHOMA. State board of accountancy. Cer-tified public accountants, state of Oklahoma, registered in accordance with rules of the board, July 1936. First national building, Oklahoma City, Okla. State board of accountancy, July 1936. 29p.

PENNSYLVANIA. State board for the exam-ination of public accountants. Information for candidates for the degree of certified public accountant, June 1, 1938. Harrisburg, Pa., De-partment of public instruction, Bureau of pro-fessional licensing, 1938. 12p.

- Philippine Islands
 BOARD of accountancy and Philippine institute of certified public accountants vigorously oppose passage of bill no. 3741. Philippine accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 164-8.
 DEPARTMENT of justice upholds constitutionality of accountancy law. Philippine accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 43-52.
 PHILIPPINE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of the special committee on legislation on pending ac-countancy bills before the national assembly. Philippine accountants' journal, April, May and June 1939, p. 83-6.
 PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. Commonwealth act no. 342; an act to amend sections one, four, eleven,
- 342; an act to amend sections one, four, eleven, twelve and sixteen of act numbered thirty-one hundred five entitled "An act regulating the practice of public accounting; creating a board hundred five entitled "An act regulating the practice of public accounting; creating a board of accountancy; providing for examination for the granting of certificates and the registration of certified public accountants; for the suspension or revocation of certificates, and for other purposes" as amended, and for other purposes, (June 23, 1938) *Philippine accountants' journal*, June 1938, p. 251.4. PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. Board of accountancy. When is a person engaged in professional ac-
- HILIPPINE ISLANDS. Board of accountancy. When is a person engaged in professional ac-countancy work? Board of accountancy resolu-tion no. 27, January 27, 1939. Philippine ac-countants' journal, April, May and June 1939,
- tants' journal, April 1938, p. 139-42. PUBLIC accountant's bill. Philippine accoun-tants' journal, April 1938, p. 139-42. TOWNS, CHARLES H. Comments on N. A. bill no. 3301. Philippine accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 169-77.

South Africa REGISTRATION of accountants in South Africa; report of the accountantcy profession commission (1934). Accountant, June 20, 1936, p. 928-35; June 27, 1936, p. 957-65. Queensland accoun-tants' and secretaries' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 274-7.

TENNESSEE. State board of accountancy. Di-rectory, certified public accountants and public accountants of Tennessee, July 1, 1936, registered in accordance with the law (code of Tennessee, 1932, section 7083-7097). Nashville, Tenn., State board of accountancy, 1936. 15p.

Texas TEXAS society of certified public accountants. Year book, 1939. 54p.

- United States AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on state legislation. Digest of answers to questionnaire regarding interstate practice of accountancy. Certified public accountant, Feb.
- b) questionarie registrating intervative particulation of the second and the second the second and the second and the second the sec

- in the United States. (In American Induced accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 517-20.) HIGH standards for the C.P.A. certificate. Bul-letin of the American institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 6-7. INTERSTATE practice. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1938, p. 141-2. LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Re-quirements for the C.P.A. and other examina-tions and the practice of public accounting; a summary of the qualifications needed by candi-dates for accountancy degrees in the United dates for accountancy degrees in the United States and Canada. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle ex-tension university (1939). 32p. MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Work for the law-makers. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, 567
- makers. C p. 567-8. SPRINGER,
- RINGER, DURAND W. Regulatory legisla-tion. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 522-31. legislation.
- 522-31. TOWNS, CHARLES H. Principles of accoun-tancy legislation. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 444-7. UNIFORMITY in accountancy legislation. (Edi-torial). Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p.
- 164-6.

Vermont VERMONT—House bill no. 211; an act to amend sections 7628, 7629 and 7635 of the public laws relating to the board of accountants and quali-fications for certified public accountants. (approved, March 25, 1937.) Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 20-1.

Washington WASHINGTON—Chapter 41, laws 1937 (House bill no. 114) an act relating to the certified pub-lic accountants and amending section 8268, Rem-ington's revised statutes, by adding three new sections to be known as sections 8268-1: 8268-2; and 8268-3. (approved, March 5, 1937.) Cer-tified public accountant, April 1937, p. 21-2.

West Virginia WEST VIRGINIA. Board of certified public ac-countants. Rules and regulations. Charleston, W. Va., Board of certified public accountants, May 13, 1936. folder.

Wisconsin ASTONISHING opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy. June 1937, p. 404-6. ILLINOIS Supreme court. Docket no. 23680-agenda 24-June, 1936; Fred Elliott et al. appel-

ACCOUNTANCY-Law-Wisconsin-(Continued)

lants, v. The university of Illinois et al. appel-

- Internet, V. The university of runnels et al. appen-lees. 9 typewritten pages.
 RESTRICTIVE act upheld. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10.
 SUPREME court decisions on accountancy acts. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 20-8.
 TWO courts uphold accountancy acts—Illinois case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 82-03.
- (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 88-93.
 WISCONSIN, Dane county circuit court. Edwin L. Wangerin, George Heiser, Jr., Ray M. Nosseck, William Sidney Schmidt, plaintiffs, vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy, et al., defendants; before Hon. A. G. Zimmerman, judge-ruling on demurrer. ... dated April 6, 1936. 5 typewritten pages.
 WISCONSIN. Supreme court. No. 103, August term-1936-State of Wisconsin: in Supreme court; Edwin L. Wangerin et al., appellant vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy et al., respondents. 5 mimeographed pages.
 WISCONSIN. Supreme court. No. 103-August term-1936. Edwin L. Wangerin et al., appellant, v. Wisconsin state board of accountancy et al., respondents. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 20-4.
 WISCONSIN accountancy law held constitutional. Philippine accountancy law constitutional. Philippine daccountant, Jan. 1938, p. 24-9.
 WISCONSIN Segulatory law constitutional. Certified public accountance.

Mexico

ALATRISTE, ROBERTO CASAS. Act in Mexico. Journal of accountancy, Accounting icv. March in Mexico. Jon 1937, p. 197-204.

New Zealand

A.A.A. Relationships between modern develop-ments in accountancy and the general standing of members with the public. Accountants' jour-nal, Sept. 1938, p. 88-9.

Philippine Islands TAX evasion bill. Philippine accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 134-8.

Practice of

- cactice of See also Accountants' office. BALSER, WILLIAM J. Extension of account-ing practice in the field of small business. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 157-8.) BLUME, A. L. Increasing hazards in the prac-tice of accountancy. (1939). 15 typewritten pages.
- pages. NISSLEY, WARREN W. Future of profes-sional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb.
- sional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 99-114. PACE, HOMER S. Public practice of accoun-tancy; the professional work and status of the certified public accountant (C.P.A.) New York. The author, c1938, c1939. 35p. (Occupational monographs series) RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Where do we go from here? Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 85-90.
- here? 85-90.

- AS:90.
 SARGENT, DOUGLAS A. Extension of services to small businesses. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 159-60.)
 SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W. What the public accountant does. (In his Accountancy as a career. 1939, p. 34-50.)
 SMITH, H. H., JR. Development of specialized types of practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 152-3.)
 TAYLOR, WILLIAM J. Accounting specialists. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 150-1.)

Professional Aspects CAREY, JOHN L. Address before the West

Virginia society of certified public accountants, Charleston, W. Va., November 4, 1938. 9

- Virginia society or certified public accountaints, Charleston, W. Va., November 4, 1938. 9 mimeographed pages. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D. Obligations im-posed by a professional status. 5 typewritten pages. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 15-6,
- 43-5. CREW, ALBERT. Characteristics and functions CREW, ALBERT, Characteristics and functions of a professional accountant. Accountants' maga-zine, Dec. 1938, p. 608-12; Feb. 1939, p. 105-9; March 1939, p. 180-4.
 CREW, ALBERT. Profession of accountancy. Certified accountants journal, June 1939, p. 175-6; July 1939, p. 209-10; Aug. 1939, p. 240-2.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Meaning of a profession as an accountant sees it. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 16-7.

- an accountant sees it. Accountant, July 7, 1900, p. 16-7. JONES, J. H. Functions and future of the accountant. Accountant, Nov. 14, 1936, p. 667-71. PROFESSIONAL classification of accountancy. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, -2022

- (Editorial) Journal of accounting, ______
 p. 323.
 RANSOM, WILLIAM L. Milestones of the professions. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 16-8.
 STEINMAN, D. B. Do you know—pertinent facts concerning the professions; Accounting. American engineer, March 1939, p.15.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Fundamental requirements if examinations and qualifications are to approach the ideal. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 706-10.
 —____Same. 11 typewritten pages.

- Relation to business APPLEY, LAWRENCE A. Business looks to the C.P.A.; address to the Pennsylvania institute in annual meeting at Skytop, Pa., June 14, 1938. Philadelphia, Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Sept. 1, 1938.

 - of certified public accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. 8 typewritten pages. BALSER, WILLIAM J. Extension of accounting practice in the field of small business. (In American institution of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 157-8.) BENSON, PHILIP A. Serving a public need; address at a dinner given by the American In-stitute of accountants and the New York state society of certified public accountants, January 30, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountants, March 1939, p. 154-60. LEVESS, HERBERT H. Your accountant is a business consultant. Photo lithographer, April, 1937.
 - 1937

 - 1937.
 SARGENT, DOUGLAS A. Extension of services to small businesses. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 159-60.)
 THOMPSON, GEORGE M. Relation of the public accountant to the small business and certain aspects of the tax laws affecting such business. (address before Arizona state society of certified public accountants at Phoenix, November 12, 1937.) 14 typewritten pages.
 WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Accountant —an expert in business requirements. Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 3-4.

Relation to public See Public relations.

- Relation to tax administration
 ACCOUNTANTS and taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 195.
 ALLEN, A. STUART. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting. Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English) Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 484-7; Nov. 5, 1938, p. 497-9. Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 3.9. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band c. thema 6, p. 1-27.)
 CHENOWETH, R. W. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In V international prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 49-71.)
 - C. thema 6, p. 49-71.)

ACCOUNTANCY-Relation to tax administration-(Continued)

- 143-64.) GRAVES.
- 143-64.) GRAVES, MARK. Contribution of the account-ing profession to tax administration. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 12-6. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 6-11. McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL. Influence of federal taxation upon accountancy. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meet-ing American institute of accountances.
- Join anniversary celebration and annual meet-ing, American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 426-39. (In American institute of accountants, Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937 p. 120-32)
- of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 120-32.) OXBORROW, HAROLD R. Auditing by and for tax authorities; a paper submitted to the Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, 1938. Certified accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 348-57. Indian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 80-97. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treu-hand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 113-42.)

Switzerland

vitzerland VERBAND Schweizerischer bücherexperten. (Der) hücherexperte in der Schweiz; fest-schrift zum 25 jährigen jubiläum des Verbandes, Schweiz, büch-erexperten. (L'expert-comptable en Suisse; ouvrage publié par l'Association suisse des ex-perts-comptables, à L'occasion due XXVme anni-versaire de sa fondation.) Zurich, Verband Schweiz bücherexperten, 1939. 167p.

Training

See Education.

- See Education.
 United States
 ALEXANDER, A. DeWITT. Future developments within the profession. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 207-9.)
 BISHOP, P. W. American institute of accountants; an impression of the annual meeting. Accountant, Dec. 3, 1938, p. 770-3.
 BLUME, A. L. Increasing hazards in the practice of accountancy. (1939) 15 typewritten pages.
 CAREY, JOHN L. Things to come. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 520-1, 563. Builterin of the American institute of accountants. Sept. 15, 1936, p. 21-3.
 CARTER, ROGER N. Accountancy in England and America. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 485-7.)

 - and America. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 485-7.)
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Report of the president. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 223-6.
 FIFTIETH anniversary celebration. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 247-9; Nov. 1937, p. 321.
 FIFTIETH anniversary of professional accountants; Join in anniversary celebration. Pace student, Oct. 1937, p. 34.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Modern tendencies in accountants. Journal. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 321-30.
 - 321-30

 - 321-30. HEATON, WILLIAM C. Profession in the United States. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 351-61. MAY, GEORGE O. Wider horizons. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 295-304. MOLEY, RAYMOND. Peace in the United States. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of ac-countants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 9 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 93-8.)

- MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. What have we done, and how? Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 333-48. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1937, p. 372-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 374-89. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 78-92.)
 MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Impending dangers. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 571-5. 1937. P. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 94-5.

- MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Impending dangers. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 571-5.
 1937. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 94-5.
 NISSLEY, WARREN W. Future of professional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 99-114. Reprinted 18p.
 NOBLE, EDWARD J. Accountancy and the nation's business. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 279-86.)
 PERREN, A. (La) Profession d'expert-comptable aux Etats-Unis. deuxieme edition. Neuchatel et Paris. Delachaux & Niestle, S. A., 1936. 120p.
 ROOSEVELT, FRANKLIN DELANO. Message from the President of the United States. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 331-2.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Recent accounting developments in the United States. Journal of accountant, April 22, 1939, p. 534-44; April 29, 1939, p. 572-9.
 STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States. (address delivered at the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel). 38 mimeographed pages.
 JALBOT, CYRIL. Increasing responsibility to and closer regulation by federal bodies. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 133-59.)
 TALBOT, CYRIL. Increasing responsibility to and closer regulation by federal bodies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accountancy principles and procedure, 1938, p. 210-5.)
 UNITY of accountancy. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, p. 320-30.
 WAGNER, EDWIN H. Problems of the profession and its current prohems. Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 15-20.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Public accountancy in the United States. 30th anniversary

- its current problems. Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 15-20. WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Public accountancy in the United States, (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American in-stitute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 27 mimeo-graphed pages. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 101-19.) Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 68-74.
- ACCOUNTANCY—a profession for educated men. Turnburke, H. M.
- ACCOUNTANCY COUNTANCY and public affairs. (Ed Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 6. (Editorial)
- ACCOUNTANCY and regulatory bodies in the United States. Stewart, Andrew.
- ACCOUNTANCY and the press (S.E.C. and ac-counting practices.) Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-7.
- ACCOUNTANCY and the young man; a radio broadcast. Certified public accountant, June 1938, a radio p. 2-6.
- ACCOUNTANCY as a career. Institute for research.
- ACCOUNTANCY as a career. Scudder, Lawrence W.

ACCOUNTANCY education. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 171-2.

- ACCOUNTANCY in Belgium. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 79.
- ACCOUNTANCY in India. Irish accountant and secretary, Dublin management exhibition num-ber (April 1939) p. 27.
- ACCOUNTANCY, indispensable tool of control and administration in business and in government. Pace, Homer St. Clair.
- ACCOUNTANCY law service. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- ACCOUNTANCY; officieel orgaan van de Vlaamsche accountsvereeniging. Lange Kievitstraat, 4 a, Antwerpen.

ACCOUNTANCY SERVICES

See Accountants' office.

- ACCOUNTANCY: the journal of incorporated ac-countants. London, Society of incorporated ac-countants and auditors.
- ACCOUNTANT (London) "AUDIT procedure in
- "AUDIT procedure in America." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 77-9. AUDIT procedure in America. (reprinted from Accountant (London). Journal of accountancy,
- Accountant (London). Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 101-3.
 ECONACON. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 103-4.
 EPISCOPUS. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 103-4.
 EPISCOPUS. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant (London), Aug. 5, 1939.) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 192-4.
 SECRET reserves. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 75-6.
 WAR. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 217-8.

- ACCOUNTANT and factory waste. Accountant, April 16, 1938, p. 518-9.
- ACCOUNTANT and legal knowledge. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 855-7.
- ACCOUNTANT and the security dealer. Williams, Frank M.
- ACCOUNTANT and the totalisator. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 550-4.
- ACCOUNTANT as a member of a profit-earning team. Harrison, R. E. W.
- ACCOUNTANT as a witness—Expert witness fees —Amount of fee is admissible in evidence. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- ACCOUNTANT, fifty years ago (extract from the issue of 15th January 1887) proposed American institute of public accountants. Accountant, Jan. 16, 1937, p. 100.
- ACCOUNTANT (grade 2, New York City) actual previous civil service problems with solutions-also questions and answers based on local tax laws. Civil service home studies, inc.

ACCOUNTANT in the hotel. Kenny, Matthew J.

ACCOUNTANT LECTURE SERIES

- Contents:
- Leake, P. D. Inflated industrial share capital (no. 43.)
 Robson, T. B. Construction of consolidated ac-counts; some points to be taken into considera-tion, (no. 44.)
 Back, W. J. Solicitors' accounts under the 1933 act. (no. 45.)
- ACCOUNTANT looks at current business. Credit executive, April 1937, p. 108-9.
- ACCOUNTANT of the future—his training and opportunities. Main, Frank Wilbur.

- ACCOUNTANT refused recovery on tax refund contract; giving opinion on interpretation of statute held practice of law. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 700.
- ACCOUNTANT student. London, Gee & co., (ltd.)
- ACCOUNTANT student and Accountants' journal. London, Gee & co. (ltd.)

ACCOUNTANTS

- CCOUNTAINS See also Accountants' office; Accountants' so-cicties; Auditors. AITKEN, J. N., JR. Future relationship of the certified public account and the public. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 2006-2007
- 200-6.) APPORTIONMENT of fame—Avenues to success—Success not dependent on one factor. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936,
- (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, march 1900, p. 162-5.
 ATTACK on the fortunate few—Great success always is conspicuous—Method and motive must determine propriety. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 87-90.
 BENSON, PHILLP A. Serving a public need, address at a dinner given by the American institute of accountants and the New York state society of certified public accountants, January 30, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 154-60.
 CIRCULAR no. 230—Canons of legal ethics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 174-5.
- 174-5.
- p. 174-5. DAVIS, O. R. Accountants in public life; address at annual meeting, Kansas society of certified public accountants, at Wichita, Sept. 8, 1939.
- at annual meeting, Kansas society of certined public accountants, at Wichita, Sept. 8, 1939.
 10 typewritten pages.
 EMINENT accountant retires. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 90-1.
 HARRISON, R. E. W. Accountant as a member of a profit-earning team; paper presented at the annual meeting of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, June 17th, 18th and 19th, 1937. 13 mimeographed pages.
 HURDMAN, G. CHARLES. Services of public accountants, June 17th, 18th and 19th, 7. 13 mimeographed pages.
 HURDMAN, G. CHARLES. Services of public accountants, Journal of accountants, to public bodies. Journal of accountant, Accounting review, March 1936, p. 63-5.
 KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. What is a certified public accountant? Louisville, Ky., Kentucky society of certified public accountants, June 15, 1939, 7p.
 LEVESS, HERBERT H. Your accountant is a business consultant. Photo kithographer, April 1937.

- 1937.
- 1937. MAIN, FRANK WILBUR. Accountant of the future, his training and opportunities. (In Penn-sylvania institute of certified public accountants-Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first account-ing clinic, 1938. p. 6-12.) MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. What have we done, and how? Journal of accountants journal, Dec. 1937, p. 333-48. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1937, p. 372-7. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Nov. 1937, p. 374-89. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebra-tion. 1937. p. 78-92.)

- tute of accountants. Fifther anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 78-92.)
 PATHOS in accountancy. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 248.
 PRACTICE before Board of tax appeals. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 7.
 PRACTICE before Securities and exchange commission. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 17-20.
 PRACTICE before Treasury department. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 1-2; Aug. 1939, p. 79.
 SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W. What the public accountant does. (In his Accountancy as a career. 1939, p. 34-50.)

ACCOUNTANTS-(Continued)

- ACCOUNTANTS-(Continued)
 SMITH, H. H., JR. Development of specialized types of practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 152-3.)
 TAYLOR, WILLIAM J. Accounting specialists. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 150-1)
 TELEPHONE listings. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 18-9; May 1938, p. 18.
 THOMPSON, GEORGE M. Relation of the public accountant to the small business and certain aspects of the tax laws affecting such business. (address before Arizona state society of certified public accountants at Phoenix, November 12, 1937.) 14 typewritten pages.
 THOSE very naughty accountants—A rather petulant critic—A business man should understand accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 235-7. Indian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 25-6.
 TREASURY department. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 118-9. (Revision of section 3 of circular 230)
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Admission to practuce. (In its Rules of practice and procedure before the United States processing tax board of review. 1936, p. 2.)
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Laws and regulations governing the recognition of agents, attorneys, and other persons representing claimants before the Treasury department and offices thereof. Washington, D. C. Treasury department, 300 supplement, section 3, as revised May 11, 1939.
 WARE, WILLIAM. Work of the C.P.A.; an interview with William Ware Certified washingtom.

 - Supplement, section 3, as revised may 11, 1753.
 WARE, WILLIAM. Work of the C.P.A.; an interview with William Ware. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 2-8.
 WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Accountant—an expert in business requirements. Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 3-4.

Appointment of

See Auditors-Appointment of.

As directors

- AUDITOR as director-Accountants as directors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1937,
- (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 243-6. BRAY, F. S. Accountant as company director. Accountancy, April 1939, p. 240-1. ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and advisory work. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English) Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 837-42; Dec. 24, 1938. p. 873-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kon-gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. p. 99-122.)

As expert witnesses See Evidence.

As receiver

s receivers DAWSON, JOHN P. Appointment of certified public accountants as receivers or auditors for receivers. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939. p. 144-5.)

As stockholders

See Accountants-Independence of.

As trustees

- s trustees BARRY, ROBERT L. Functions of the public accountant in reorganizations under chapter X of the bankruptcy act. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 161-5. DAWSON, JOHN P. Appointment of certified public accountants as receivers or auditors for receivers. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939. p. 144-5.) GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Cor-

- rection. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Corpo-rate reorganization under Chandler act. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 115.6 115-6. MOSS, OSCAR, Role of accountants in bankruptcy
- and reorganization cases. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 146-9.)

Anstralia

- ALLEN, M. R. Co-operation between the accountant, secretary and auditor. Brisbane, Accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, tant, secretary and auditor. Brisbane, Accountants, and secretaries' educational society, August, 1936. 24p. NATIONAL service for accountants. Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 291-2. ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Accountant and the eco-nomist. Australian accountant, April 1938, p.
- 186-92
- ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Accountant as economist. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1938, p. 413-9.

Benevolent associations See Pensions and benefit plans—Accountants'.

anada BROWER, J. E. Accountant and industrial and public relations. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, July 1937, p. 8-18. HAMILTON, R. W. Right to specialize. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 190-4. ILSLEY, JAMES L. Public service in a chartered accountant chartered accountant

- democracy. Canadian Nov. 1938, p. 343-51. Canadian chartered accountant,

- Cost Accountants NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Just what or who is a cost accountant? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 342.3;
 SAPP, WARREN H. Cost accountant's place in industrial progress. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1936, p. 1-2, 3-4.

- Duties and responsibilities
 See also Professional ethics.
 ACCOUNTANTS' responsibility for inventories.
 (from Journal of accountancy) Federal accountant, July 1939, p. 343-5.
 ACCOUNTING for investors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 290-2.
 ALLEGED negligence by accountants; judgment for defendants. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 805-15.

 - 805-15

 - In the tendants. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 805-15.
 ALLEGED negligence of accountants; action in the Irish Free State. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 638-41; Nov. 14, 1937, p. 675-6.
 ALLEGED negligence of accountants; an Irish Free State decision. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 137-42.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Statement by committees of American institute of accountants and New York state society of certified public accountants at a meeting with the Honorable John J. Bennett, Jan. 2009. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 206-15. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 6-16.
 - p. 6-16. Same. 23 mimeographed pages. AUDITORS and accountants; degrees of liability. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 342-5. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept.
 - 1936, p. 223-32. AUDITOR'S duty as to showroom accounts. In-corporated accountants' journal, March 1937, 203-5. AUDITORS,
 - AUDITORS, shareholders and balance sheets. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 487-90. BACAS, PAUL E. and others. Public accoun-

ACCOUNTANTS-Duties and responsibilities-(Cont.)

- ACCOUNTANTS—Duties and responsibilities—(Cont.) tant—his work. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 14-25.)
 BRADY, WILLIAM W. Accountants' liability to third parties; the Ultramares case reaffirmed. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.
 BRINK, VICTOR Z. Some comments on the Inter-state hosiery case. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 18-22, 38.
 BROOKS, COLLIN. Clashes of duty in accoun-tancy and business. Accountants' Journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 801-11, discussion, p. 811-3.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Place of accounting in the changing social order; address at the moun-tain states accounting conference, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 31, 1938. 41 typewritten pages. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 89-101.)
 CONNECTICUT. Tax commissioner. Duties and powers of independent public accounts. Hart-ford, Conn., Tax commissioner, Oct. 1939, 31p.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D. Obligations im-posed by a professional status. 5 typewritten pages. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 15-6, 43-5.

- 43.5. DISMISSAL of action against auditors. (from Manchester guardian.) Accountant, March 28, 1936, p. 480-1, 508-10. DURKEE, RODNEY S. What management ex-pects of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 21.4)

- betts of the independent admitted (in American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 21.4.)
 DUTIES of a junior taxman, by one who is. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 527-8.
 DUTIES of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 197.
 DUTIES of auditors; charges of negligence dismissed. Accountant, Feb. 27, 1937, p. 308-13.
 DUTIES of auditors; the case of In re S. P. Catterson and sons, limited. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 326-30.
 ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and advisory work. (In Fifth international congress on accounting Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English) Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 837-42; Dec. 24, 1938, p. 873-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress on accounting 1938, band D. p. 99-122.)
 FEDDE, A. S. Ambit of the duties and responsibilities of the certified public accountant. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 43-7.
 FOSTER, L. F. Rights and duties of an auditor under the companies act, 1929. Corporate accountant, Nor. 1936, p. 244-64.
 FURTHER references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Nor. 1936, p. 244-64.
 FURTHER references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Septers. 1939, p. 244-64.
 FURTHER references to auditors' procedure and other accountant's report. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accountant's procedure and other accountant's procedure and other accountant's procedure and other accountant's papers on auditing procedure and other accountant's papers on auditing procedure and other accountant's lability for angliguous or incorrect statements. (Legal notes) Journal of accountants' legal responsibility for ambiguous or incorrect statements. (Legal notes) Journal of accountant's papers inc

- ranted generalization—Accountants' legal re-sponsibility for ambiguous or incorrect state-ments. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1938. p. 251-4. HARMON, CLAUD F. Responsibility rightfully the auditor's. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. n. 130-1.) HARTWELL. JOBSON AND KIBBEE. Survey of stockholder opinion on some functions and

New York, Hart

- responsibilities of the auditor. New York, Hart-well, Jobson and Kibbee, c1939. 9p. HASKELL, JOHN. What does the investor ex-pect of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 12-6.) HOLMES,
- p. 12-6.) HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Ethics and legal re-sponsibility. (In his Auditing, principles and procedure, 1939. p. 18-28.) HOPE, J. WILLIAM. Accountants responsibility to the public; address 'at Eastern four-states accounting conference. Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 418-22. 418-22.

- New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 418-22.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 257-8.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. Texas accountant, May 1939, p. 1, 3.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. Texas accountant, May 1939, p. 1, 3.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. Texas accountant, claitorials) Conadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 397-9.
 JEAL, EDWARD F. Learned judges and the auditors; a synthesis in interpretation of jurisprudence affecting auditors. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 777-83; June 17, 1939, p. 813-20. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 178-93; Oct. 1939, p. 265-83.
 KESTER, ROY B. Practitioner's responsibilities in a program of education for the accountant. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 16-3.)
 KOHLHEPP, J. W. Liabilities of accountants. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 116.
 LIABILITIES of accountants under securities act of 1933, United States. (contributed) Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 135-6.
 LIABILITIES of auditors. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 601-4.
 McCALL, AMBROSE V. and FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney

- RECALL, AMBRUSE V. and FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, 1939. New York, Grosby press, inc., 1939. 85p. (includes proceedings) Report of conference. January 6, 1939. 6 mimeographed pages. Cer-tified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13, with
- infed public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13, with Institute reply. MCINTOSH, HERBERT W. Limits of the auditor's responsibility. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 132-3.) MacMILLAN, WILLIAM R. Sources and extent of liability of a public accountant. Chicago.Kent review, Dec. 1936, p. 1-23. Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1937, p. 417-33. Reprinted by American survey company, with: Rich, Wiley Daniel. Civil liabilities of accountants under the securities act.
- Daniel. Civil liabilities of accountants under the securities act. MATHEWS, GEORGE C. Address before the Milwaukee chapter, Wisconsin society of certi-fied public accountants, Milwaukee, Wis., Janu-arv 8, 1937. 15 mimeographed pages. MAY, GEORGE O. Position of accountants under the securities act. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 67-84.) NEGLIGENCE and breach of contract. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 392-4.
- 392-4
- NEGLIGENCE-Public accountants-Liability to

- NEGLIGENCE—Public accountants—Liability to third party for mistake in statement. Virginia law review, Ian. 1938, p. 331-2.
 NELSON, ANDREW. Liability of an accountant. (In his Introduction to auditing. 1938, p. 221-8.)
 NISSLEY, WARREN W. Future of professional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 99-114. Reprinted 18p.
 PASCUAL, JOSE P. Has the Securities and exchange commission investigatory power over certified public accountants? Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.
 PELTON, G. M. Increasing responsibilities of accountants. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin. March 1937, p. 1-2, 4.

ACCOUNTANTS—Duties and responsibilities—(Cont.)

- PERSONAL responsibility. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 194.
 PODELL, DAVID L. Certified public accountant's responsibility to third parties for financial statements to which he certified. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 31-8.
 PRACTICAL point; auditor admitting liability for negligence. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 900.
 PRINCIPAL'S liability for employee's fraud. Certified accountants journal, July 1939, p. 194.7.

- PUBLIC accountants not liable for mistakes in statement. (from Virginia law review, vol. 24, no. 3.) Philippine accountants' journal, April, May, and June 1939, p. 79-80.
 RECOGNITION of auditor's importance—Auditor's independence clearly defined—Reliance upon auditor's report. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 81-4.
 REDMOND, JOHN L. Accountants. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 38.
 REDMOND, JOHN L. Duty of the certified public accountant to the business community as distinguished from his duty to his client. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p.

- York certified public accountant, April 1937, p.
- Inc accountant to the Dusiness community as distinguished from his duty to his client. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 39-42.
 RESPONSIBILITIES of auditors and of accountants—Auditor not author of the accounts. (Editorial Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 86-8.
 RICH, WILEY DANIEL. Civil liabilities of accountants under the securities act. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 86-8.
 RICH, WILEY DANIEL. Civil liabilities of accountants under the securities act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 488-97. Accountants' magazine, July 1938, p. 441-9. Reprinted by American surety company with: MacMillan, William R. Sources and extent of liability of a public accountant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 30-2. (condensed)
 RICHMOND, CARL G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospective earnings insurance. New York, National association of cost accountants. Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 209-25.)
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Influence of recent federal regulation on industrial management and accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 5-16.)
 SCHULZ, H. CLIFF. Accountant's responsibility in connection with all insurance. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants. Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 418-9.)
 SCOTT, DR. Responsibilities of accountants in a changing economy. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 354-66.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Junior accountant, his problems, responsibility of the first institute on accounting review. Dec. 1938, p. 354-66.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Problems and responsibilities of the junior accountant. Accountant's responsibilities of the junior accountant. Accountant's responsibilities of the public. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 354-66.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Problems and responsibilities of the junior accountant. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 7-11.</li
- p. 18-23.) SIMONS, GUSTAVE. You and your accountant; pending reforms that recent incidents make neces-sary, an expert explains precautions business men should take. Christian science monitor, weekly magazine section, May 13, 1939, p. 6, 12. SMAILS, R. G. H. Legal duties and profes-sional responsibilities of the auditor. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 11-31.) SPRY, F. W. Function and obligations of the professional accountant under modern condi-tions. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1936, p. 8-15. pending reforms that recent incidents make neces-

- STATE street trust company case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov, 1938, p. 282.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Accounting in the public interest; address at Eastern four-states account-ing conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 7 mimeographed pages. Journal of ac-countancy, July 1939, p. 23-8.
 THOMSON, W. H. What does the commercial banker expect of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 27-30.)
- Con.

- American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 27-30.)
 TREMPER, EDWARD P., JR. Primary and secondary responsibility. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 134-6.)
 TUCKER, GEORGE W. Responsibility of public auditors to third parties defined by courts. Con-troller, April 1939, p. 148-9.
 UNSUCCESSFUL action against accountants. Incorporated accountants journal, April 1936, p. 242-5.
 WALTER, CEDRIC N. Training of the prac-tising accountant. Incorporated accountants. Journal, Feb. 1938, p. 174-8, discussion, p. 178-9.
 WEISBERG, CHARLES. Accountant and credit work. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 134.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. What does the Securi-ties and exchange commission expect of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting outpets. 1939. p. 1-726.)
 WILCOX, EDWARD B. Accounting in the pub-lic interest. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 151-4.

Education

See Education.

Fees

See Wages, fees, etc.-Accountants.

- See Wages, fees, etc.—Accountants.
 Great Britain
 ASHWORTH, ROBERT. Accountant's activities
 in the commercial world. Accountant, Aug. 1,
 1936, p. 160-2.
 BUBB, W. NORMAN. Accountant and the community. Accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 456-60, discussion, p. 460-1. Accountant, Aug. 19, 1939,
 p. 233-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept.
 1939, p. 259-66.
 ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and
 advisory work. (In Fifth international congress
 on accounting. Berlin, Sept. 1938, papers given
 in English) Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 837-42;
 Dec. 24; 1938, p. 87-7. (In V. internationaler
 prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongressarchiv, 1938, band D. p. 99-122.)
 FORDHAM, H. Accountant and commerce. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 171-2.
 FOX, W. H. Accountant and commerce. Corporate accountant in relation to business and government in Great Britain. Accountant, Aug. 20.
 1938, p. 373-86; Dec. 1938, p. 90-8; Sept. 1938, p.
 171-80. Canadian chartered accounting, Nov.
 1938, p. 373-86; Dec. 1938, p. 90-8; Sept. 1938, p.
 171-80. Canadian chartered accounting, Nov.
 1938, p. 373-86; Dec. 1938, p. 434-49.
 JONES, J. H. Accountant and deconomic affairs.
 Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1936, p. 17-20,
 discussion, P. 20-1.

 - Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1936, p. 17-20, discussion, p. 20-1.
 JONES, J. H. Functions and future of the accountant. Accountant, Nov. 14, 1936, p. 667-71.
 PLANT, ARNOLD. Accountant and the economist. Accountants, 1939, p. 125-6.
 TOOTHILL, PERCY. Accountants and the armaments phase. Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 412-3.

Indemnity See Insurance-Accountants.

Independence of See also Auditing-Independent audits; Auditors --Appointment of

ACCOUNTANTS-Independence of-(Continued)

- (CCOUNTANTS-Independence of -(Continued)
 INDEPENDENCE of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 409-10.
 INDEPENDENCE of accountants under securities act. Bulletin of the American institute of ac-countants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 19-21.
 RECOGNITION of auditor's importance-Auditor's independence clearly defined-Reliance upon auditors' report. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Feb. 1936, p. 81-4.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission, Accounting series, release no. 2. (in-dependence of accountants) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 6, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.

Liability

See Accountants—Duties and responsibilities; Court decisions; Fraud; Negligence.

Municipal

See Municipal accounting.

Negro

egro BLAYTON, JESSE BEE. Need for better rec-ords in negro business; an opportunity for negro accountants. Atlanta, Ga., Colored division, National youth administration, June 1, 1939. 52p. (Bulletin no. 11.)

Pensions

See Pensions-Accountants.

Oualifications

- ACCOUNTANCY and the young man; a radio broadcast. Certified public accountant, June 1938, p. 2-6. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on governmental accounting. Qualifications for public fiscal positions. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 155-6. Reprinted.
 APTITUDE tests for staff accountants; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 389-414.)
 BAERNCOPF, JOSEPH B. What is ahead for the junior accountant. 12 typewritten pages.
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Securing and holding a position. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 26-7.
 BLOUGH. CARMAN G. Relationship of the

- BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Relationship of the Securities and exchange commission to the ac-countant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p.
- countant. Journal of accounting, Jan. 23:33. COLLINS, CLEM W. Place of accounting in the changing social order; address at the Mountain states accounting conference, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 31, 1938. 41 typewritten pages. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 80-101

- Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 89-101.)
 CONWAY, EDMUND J. Staff training. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 119-26.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D. Obligations imposed by a professional status. 5 typewritten pages. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 15-6, 43-5.
 CREW, ALBERT. Characteristics and functions of a professional accountant. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 608-12; Feb. 1939, p. 105-9; March 1939, p. 180-4.
 FREDERICK, MARVIN L. Personality factor in accounting success. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 400-4.
 KNITTEL, ROGER F. Help wanted—accountants. Accountant of the future, his training and opportunities. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants. Hacountants. Accountants of the future, his training and opportunities. (In Pennsylvania clinic. 1938, p. 6-12.) Same. 13 typewritten pages, (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting proceeding of the accountant pages, (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting proceeding of the accountant of related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 21-7.)

- NISSLEY, WARREN W. Future of professional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 99-114. Reprinted. QUALIFICATIONS for public fiscal positions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939,
- p. 149. SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W. Qualifications of an accountant. (In his Accountancy as a career. 1939, p. 7-22.) SOME essential qualities of an accountant. Ac-countant student and Accountants' journal, May

- countant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 15-6. STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Developments in ac-countancy training and practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 275-8. TURNBURKE, H. M. Accountancy—a profession for educated men; paper presented at a meet-ing of a student's institute on accounting held under the direction of the College of business administration of the University of Florida at Gainesville, Florida, November 11th and 12th, 1938. 22 typewritten pages.
- WALTER, CEDRIC N. Training of the prac-tising accountant. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 174-8, discussion, p. 178-9
- 178-9. WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Fundamental require-ments if examinations and qualifications are to approach the ideal. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 706-10. Same 11 typewritten pages. WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Shall I become a pub-lic accountant? Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 409-15.
- Relation to bankers

See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with

- Relation to bar associations See Lawyers, Coöperation with
- Relation to business men See Accountancy-Relation to business.
- Relation to controllers See Corporations-Controllers
- Relation to credit men See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with
- Relation to investment bankers
- See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with
- Relation to lawyers See Lawyers, Coöperation with

Relation to public See Public relations.

Relation to Securities and exchange commission See United States. Securities and exchange

commission.

Relation to tax administration

- See Accountancy-Relation to tax administration. States
 - tates Colorado COLORADO. State board of accountancy. Direc-tory of accountants licensed to practice in Colo-rado as of September, 1938. (In its *Practice* of public accountancy in Colorado, Sept. 20, 1938, p. 19-23.)

Iowa

IOWA. Board of accountancy. Annual register of practitioners of accountancy, January 1, 1938. Sioux City, Iowa, State board of accountancy, 1938. 41p. Same, January 1, 1939. 42p.

New Mexico IEW MEXICO. State board of accountancy. Register of New Mexico certified public accoun-tants who have complied with rules adopted May 14, 1936 in respect of registration and pay-ment of fee for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1937. Santa Fe, N. M., State board of accoun-tancy, July 1936. 7p. ______Same, 1939-1940. 8p. NEW

ACCOUNTANTS-States-(Continued)

- New York SUCCESSFUL candidates at New York state C.P.A. examinations, October 1938. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 248-
- 50. SUCCESSFUL candidates at New York state C.P.A. examinations, April 1939. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 10-5.

Oklahoma

OKLAHOMA. State board of accountancy. Certi-

- Tennessee TENNESSEE. State board of accountancy. Annual register, January 1, 1938. Nashville, Tenn., State board of accountancy. 1938. 36 pages. TENNESSEE. State board of accountancy. Direc-tory, certified public accountants and public accountants of Tennessee, July 1, 1936, regis-tered in accordance with the law (code of Ten-nessee, 1932, section 7083-7097). Nashville, Tenn., State board of accountancy, 1936. 15 pages. pages.

Training See Accountants' office: Education.

- ACCOUNTANTS and depreciation. Sept. 18, 1937, p. 362-3. Accountant.
- ACCOUNTANTS and taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 195.
- ACCOUNTANTS and the budget. Accountant, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 393-4.
- ACCOUNTANTS and the S. E. C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 84-6; Aug. 1937, p. 85.
- ACCOUNTANTS and unit trusts. Accountant, Jan. 28, 1939, p. 114-5.
- ACCOUNTANTS, appraisers and the S. E. C. (Correspondence) Olson, Lyle H.
- ACCOUNTANT'S bulletin; official organ of the Puerto Rico institute of accountants. P. O. box 1343, San Juan, P. R.

ACCOUNTANTS' CERTIFICATES See Certificates-Auditors'

ACCOUNTANTS' certificates. Bell, William H.

ACCOUNTANTS' certificates. Blough, Carman G.

ACCOUNTANTS' certificates. Himmelblau, David.

ACCOUNTANTS' certificates. Johnson, Arnold W.

ACCOUNTANTS' certificates, modern requirements as interpreted by representative accounting firms. Wren, James H.

ACCOUNTANTS' charges for ta: Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 10. for tax investigation.

- ACCOUNTANTS' claim for charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 352.
- ACCOUNTANTS' claim for fees. Accountant, June 6, 1936, p. 849. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Aug. 1936, p. 121-2.
- ACCOUNTANTS in China. (Correspondence) Yu-Lin Hsi.

ACCOUNTANTS in public life. Davis, O. R.

ACCOUNTANTS' FEES

See Wages, fees, etc.-Accountants.

ACCOUNTANTS' index, fourth supplement; a bib-liography of accounting literature, January, 1932 —December, 1935 (Inclusive). American insti-tute of accountants.

ACCOUNTANTS' LIABILITY See Accountants—Duties and responsibilities; Court decisions; Fraud; Negligence.

ACCOUNTANT'S liability for negligence and fraul; comments on State street trust co. v. Ernst et al. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

ACCOUNTANTS' LIABILITY INSURANCE See Insurance, Accountants'.

ACCOUNTANTS' OFFICE

- ACCOUNTANTS' OFFICE See also Accountancy—Practice of.
 ANOTHER attempt to interfere with practice— Some unanswerable arguments. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 245-6.
 BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Atmosphere of the public accountant's office. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 26-41.)
 BALSER, WILLIAM J. Extension of accounting practice in the field of small business. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 157-8.)
 BARNES, PARRY. Office organization of an accounting practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 173-7.)
 BARNETT, F. OSWALD. Accountants' time and cost records. (from Australian accountant) Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 381-3.
 CLARKE, GEOFFREY T. Professional office. Australian accountant, Ct. 1937, p. 183-5.
 CONWAY, EDMUND J. Staff training. Journal of accountants, reprint of the accountant of accountant and secretary, Feb. 1937, p. 27-9.
 DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA INSTITUTE OF

- Inice. (ICPAINCE and Secretary, Feb. 1937, p. 27-9.
 DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Classification of accountancy services. Supplement to the Bulletin of the District of Columbia institute of certified public accountants, vol. 2, no. 1. 4 pages.
 DOLBY, CHARLES M. Organization of an accountari's office. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, Itd., 1938, 112p.
 DORGAN, VINCENT J. AND OTHERS. Clinic in accounting practice; presented at a meeting of the Connecticut society of C.P.A.'s, held March 30, 1937, at New Haven. Certified public accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 181-3.)
 DUNCOME, FRED J. Organization of work. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 188-92.)
 GOODWILL of accountant's practice. Accountant, Aug. 20, 1938, p. 270; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 307. GRACEY, ROBERT D. Staff training; address at the Fifth international congress on accounting. HARRIS, A. G. L. Valuation of goodwill in process.

ACCOUNTANTS' OFFICE-(Continued)

fessional businesses, with particular reference to public accountancy practices. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 567-8. JEAL, E. F. Some reflections on the evolution of the professional practice of accountancy in Great Britain, Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 521.0

521-9,
KNOPP, RUSSELL. Jobs and juniors. Accounting review. Dec. 1939, p. 391-6.
McGLADREY, IRA B. Training the beginner in public accounting. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 2-6. Philippine accountant, July 1938, p. 277-81.
Same. 9 typewritten pages.
MANNING, BRIAN. Internal organization of an accountant's office. Accountant student and Accountant's offices. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 93-6.

- accountants' offices. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 93-6. NISSLEY, WARREN W. Future of professional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 99-114. Reprinted 18 p. PILIE, LOUIS H. Increased internal efficiency. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 193-5.) PRACTICE under assumed name. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 10-1. RESOLUTIONS adopted by staff accountants.

- American institute of accountants, accountants, 1936, p. 10-1. RESOLUTIONS adopted by staff accountants. Certified public accountant, July 1939, p. 16-7. RESTRICTIVE covenant unenforceable. Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 421. ROOT, MORRIS J. Accounting—profession or business. Certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 201.400

- ratea accounting journal, Aug. 1937, p. 421.
 ROOT, MORRIS J. Accounting—profession or business. Certified public accounting—profession or business. Certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 391.409.
 SARGENT, DOUGLAS A. Extension of services to small businesses. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 159-60.)
 SARGENT, DOUGLAS A. Spreading the peak. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 454-9.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Problems and responsibilities of the junior accountant. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 7-11.
 SIMONS, GUSTAVE. You and your accountant; pending reforms that recent incidents make necessary; an expert explains precautions busi-ness men should take. Christian science monitor, weekly magazine section, May 13, 1939, p. 6, 12.
 STAFF training. (Editorial) Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 199-200.
 STAUB, WALTER A. Fiftieth anniversary din-ner. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1938, p. 41-7.
 STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Developments in ac-countants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 184-7.)
 THOMAS, R. C. L. Organisation of an accoun-tant's office. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 431-35. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 176-9. Ac-countant, Sept. 17, 1938, p. 402-5.
 WEEKS, BERTHA M. Filing in an accountant's office. (In her How to file and index. c1937, p. 223-8.)
 WHITE, RODNEY D. Introduction to round-table discussion; internal conduct of an accoun-tant's office. (In American institute of account-table discussion; internal conduct of an account-tant protice. (In American inst

- (HITE, RODNEY D. Introduction to round-table discussion; internal conduct of an account-ing practice. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 171-2.)
- Accounting BARNETT, F. OSWALD. Accountants' time and cost records. Australian accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 40-5. Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. p. 40 381-3
 - 381-3. DOLBY, CHARLES M. Accounts. (In his Organi-zation of an accountant's office. 1938. p. 66-72.) KRUEGER, JUDSON E. Office accounts. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 178-80.)

Cost

- ASHTON, F. R. S. Costing for public accountants' fees. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 120-2. DOLEY, CHARLES M. Costing system. (In his Organization of an accountant's office. 1938. p.
- OFFICE procedure in an accountant's office. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 476-7.
- ACCOUNTANT'S outlook upon insolvency practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 145-8
- ACCOUNTANTS' PUBLICATIONS. Civil service preparation in the field of unemployment insur-ance. New York, Accountants' publications, Civil service c1936. 46p.

ACCOUNTANT'S report. Peter, D. B.

- ACCOUNTANT'S report and certificate. Broad. Samuel J.
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports. Rawlings, A. Lee.
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports, Towns, Charles H.
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 289-90.
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports and audited accounts from an investment analyst's viewpoint. Robin-son, Dwight P., Jr.
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports and the banker. Fedde, A. S.
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports from a banker's view-point. Kimball, Charles C.
- ACCOUNTANT'S responsibilities to client, profes-sion, and public. Shallenberger, Frank A.
- ACCOUNTANTS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR INVEN-TORIES
 - See Accountants—Duties and responsibilities; Inventories—Verification.
- ACCOUNTANTS' responsibility for inventories. (from Journal of accountancy) Federal accoun-tant, July 1939, p. 343-5.
- ACCOUNTANTS responsibility in connection with all insurance. (Correspondence) Schultz, H. Cliff.
- ACCOUNTANT'S responsibility in fire and pros-pective earnings insurance. Richmond, Carl G.
- ACCOUNTANTS responsibility to the public. Hope, J. William.
- ACCOUNTANT'S right to retain documents. Ac-countancy, Dec. 1938, p. 89-90.
- ACCOUNTANTS' services to their college and university clients. Seass, A. Robert.

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES

See also Accountants' index and supplements, 1921-3, 1923-7, 1928-31, 1932-35; Accountants' diary; Accountants' and auditors' diary; Account-ing conferences; International congress on ac-

- counting. KELLY, LINCOLN G. Place of professional ac-countancy in present-day affairs; paper given at annual meeting of Montana society of certified public accountants, Oct. 13, 1939. 16 typewritten
- public accountants, occ. 25, and a pages.
 OFFICIAL recognition of accountancy institutes. Australian accountant, June 1936, p. 338-40.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. What can we do for the student? New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 19-22.
 REDUNDANT accountancy institutes. Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 250-3.
 ROSS, T. EDWARD. Record of forty years, 1898-

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—(Continued)

- 1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1938, 40th anniversary number, 57p.
 WAGNER, EDWIN H. United profession and its current problems. Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 15-20.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Three orphans—neg-lected accounting societies. New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 423-4.

- public accountant, june 1939, p. 423-4.
 Accounting research association
 ACCOUNTING research association. Annual meeting. Accountant, March 16, 1939, p. 363.
 ACCOUNTING research association. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 730-1; Dec. 5, 1936, p. 759; Dec. 19, 1937, p. 480-1; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 265-6; April 2, 1938, p. 448; July 2, 1938, p. 265-6; April 2, 1938, p. 448; July 2, 1938, p. 12. Australian accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting association. Accounting the 19th century; published on behalf of the Accounting research association, by Gee & co. (publishers), Itd. Supplement to the Accountant, June 26, 1937, 37p.

American accounting association

- June 26, 1937. 37p.
 American accounting association
 See also Accounting review (official organ)
 ACCOUNTING research association—Tentative
 statement of accounting principles underlying
 corporate financial statements, by the executive
 committee of the American accounting association. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6.
 AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION.
 Convention report; proceedings of the twenty first annual convention, Chicago. Accounting
 review, March 1937, p. 68-75.
 AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION.
 Convention report; proceedings of the twenty first annual convention Atlantic City, New
 Jersey, December 27-29, 1937. Accounting re view, March 1938, p. 91-8.
 AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION.
 Convention report; proceedings of the twenty trianual convention, Detroit, Michigan, De cember 28-30, 1938. Accounting review, March
 1939, p. 76-82.
 AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION.
 Membership list, November 1, 1936. Accounting
 review, supplement, Dec. 1937. 11p.
 Same, November 15, 1938. Accounting
 review, supplement, Dec. 1937. 11p.
 Same, November 15, 1939. Accounting
 review, supplement, Dec. 1937. 11p.
 Same, November 15, 1939. Accounting
 review, supplement, Dec. 1937. 10.
 MERICAN accounting association. Educational
 business manager and buyer, Feb. 1936, p. 21.
 Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 17-8;
 Ian. 1938, p. 18-20.
 ANNUAL meeting of American accounting association.
 KOHLER, ERIC L. Report of president of Amer ioan accounting association. Accounting review,
 Korb 1037, p. 70.

- p. 20-1.
 p. 20-1.<
- p. 17-5. STATEMENT of objectives of the American ac-counting association. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 1-4.

American association of public accountants AMERICAN institute of accountants (1887-1937) fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, October eighteenth to twenty-second. New York, Ameri-can institute of accountants, c1938. 522p.

American association of university instructors in accounting See

See also American accounting association. AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF UNIVERSITY

INSTRUCTORS IN ACCOUNTING. Conven-tion report . . proceedings of the twentieth annual convention, New York. Accounting re-view, March 1936, p. 74-7.

- American institute of accountants
 See also Certified public accountant and Journal of accountancy (official organs).
 ACCOUNTANT, fifty years ago (extract from the issue of 15th January 1887) proposed American institute of public accountants. Accountant, Jan. 16, 1937, p. 100.
 ACTIVITIES of the institute during the current year. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Jan. 15, 1936, p. 9-20.
 ACTIVITIES of the institute's staff. Certified public accountant, July 1939, p. 7-13.
 AMALGAMATION in America. Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 372.
 AMENDMENTS to by-laws. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 11-3.
- 357n. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS 1936 year book of the American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceed-ings of the annual meeting at Dallas, Texas, October 20 and 22, 1936. Minutes of council meetings, October 19 and 22, 1936. Proceedings of meeting of accountancy examiners, October 19, 1936. Minutes of meeting of American in-stitute of accountants foundation, October 22, 1936. Minutes of meeting of American institute

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—American institute of accountants—(Continued)

accountants-(Continued) benevolent fund, inc., October 22, 1936. Reports presented at council and annual meetings. List of C.P.A. examiners. Certificate of incorpora-tion. Certificate of change of name. By-laws of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants, c1937. 509p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. 1937 year book of the American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceed-

- accountants; officers, council, board of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceed-ings of the annual meeting at New York, New York, October 19, 21 and 22, 1937. Minutes of council meetings, October 18 and 22, 1937. Proceedings of meeting of accountancy examiners, October 19, 1937. Minutes of meeting of American institute of accountants' foundation and American institute benevolent fund, inc., October 22, 1937. Proceedings of meeting of advisory council of state society presidents, October 18, 1937. Reports presented at council and annual meetings. List of C.P.A. examiners, certificate of incorporation, certificate of change of name. By-laws and rules of professional con-duct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants, c1938. 5490.
- of name. By-laws and rules of professional conduct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants, c1938. 549p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. 1938 yearbook of the American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners. committees, members and associates. Proceedings of the annual meeting at Cincinnati, Ohio, September 26, 27, 28, and 29, 1938. Proceedings of meeting of accountancy examiners, September 26, 1938. Minutes of meeting of American institute benevolent fund, inc., September 29, 1938. Minutes of meeting of admerican institute benevolent fund, inc., September 26, 1938. Reports presented at council and annual meetings, list of C.P.A. examiners, certificate of change of name. By-laws and rules of professional conduct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. 13p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Program of activities, 1936. Certified public accountant, 1027, p. 211.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Program of fiftieth anniversary celebration, New York, October 18-22, 1937, p. 17-9. Accountant, Sept. 25, 1937, p. 423.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Program of fiftieth anniversary celebration, New York, October 18-22, 1937, p. 17-9. Accountant, Sept. 25, 1937, p. 423.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Reports of secretary, council and committees for the fiscal year 1935-1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936, 80p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Year in review, 1938-1939; a report of activities is Novk, American institute of accountants, 1936, 80p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Year in review, 1938-1939; a report of activities for the fiscal year 1935-1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936, 80p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Year in review, 1938-1937, a report of activities for the fiscal year 1935-1936. New York, American institute of accounta

- 4-11.
- p. 4-11, AMERICAN institute's fiftieth anniversary. Ac-countant, March 13, 1937, p. 372. ANNIVERSARY of American institute of ac-countants—Growth of profession in United States—Now one national organization. (Edi-torial) Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 80-3. ANNUAL
- p. 80-3. ANNUAL meeting. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept., Oct., 1938, p. 142; 209; June, Sept., Oct. 1939, p. 335; 147; 217. ANNUAL meeting, 1938. Certified public accoun-tant, Oct. 1938, p. 4-11. ANNUAL meeting papers. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 294. ARMISTEAD, GEORGE. Report of the presi-dent of the American institute of accountants. (In American institute of accountants. 1935)

- Mindrinko Financia, Giberto I. American institute of accountants. (In American institute of accountants. 1935 year book. p. 219-29.)
 BISHOP, P. W. American institute of accountants. countaint, Dec. 3, 1938, p. 770-3.
 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Program of the fifty-second annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, September 18 to 21, 1939. San Francisco. San Francisco, Calif., California society of certified public accountants, 1939. 15p.
 CAREY, JOHN L. Professional organization. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan associ-ation of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting conference, 1938. p. 1-7.).
- ammai Michigan accounts p. 1-7.) COLLINS, CLEM W. Address of the president nominate, at annual banquet; 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting, American insti-tute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 4 mimeographed

- tute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 4 mimeographed pages.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Relationship of the American institute of accountants to the profession of accountancy. Report (Colorado society of certified public accountants), Oct. 1939, p. 3.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Report of the president. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 286-95; Oct. 1939, p. 223-6.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Toastmaster's address. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 164-5.)
 CONSOLIDATION. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 516-7.
 FIFTIETH anniversary. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 167.
 FIFTIETH anniversary celebration. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, Corporate accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 3-7.
 FIFTIETH anniversary celebration of the American institute of accountants. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 3-7.
 FIFTY years of progress. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 15-6.
 GLOVER, P. W. R. Remarks of P. W. R. Glover, of Barrow, Wade, Guthrie & co., New York, chairman of the special executive committee in charge of arrangements for the celebration; 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting. American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 4 mimeographed pages.
 GROUP meeting of institute members. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, New York, Atternan of the special executive committee in charge of arrangements for the celebration; 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting. American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.
 HURDMAN, FREDERICK H. Common effort toward a common goal. New York state society

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—American institute of accountants—(Continued)

of certified public accountants' monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 2-5. IMPERCEPTIBLE insurrection. (Editorial) Jour-

- IMPERCEPTIBLE insurrection, (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 69.
 IMPORTANT merger of accountancy bodies. (Editorial) Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 4624.
 IMPORTANT step—Brief history of progress— Fortuitous aids to development—What was twenty-five years ago—Spread of this influence— Esprit de corps—American institute of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936.

- Esprit de corps-American institute of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 393-8.
 INSTITUTE-Society-Institute. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 743-52.
 INSTITUTE'S annual meeting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 164.
 INSTITUTE'S new home. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 137.
 JAY, HARRY M. Goodwill. Certified public accountants, Dec. 1936, p. 695-7.
 JUBILEE of the American institute of accountants. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 25-8.
 LOFLIN, W. F. Recent accounting developments; address at semi-annual meeting of Georgia society of CPA's-1939. 14 typewritten pages.
 McCALL, AMBROSE V. and FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, 1939.
 6 mimeographed pages. Certified public accountant, 1939, p. 9-13, with Institute reply.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Remarks at fitteth anniversary celebration and annual meeting, American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 2
- versary celebration and annual meeting, Amer-ican institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 2 mimeographed pages. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Report of the president. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936,
- 322-33
- p. 322-33. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Report of the president of the American institute of accountants. (In American institute of accountants. 1936 year book. p. 369-80; 1937 year book, p. 397-411.) MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Consolidation urged. Certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 387-8. MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Greater service. Cer-tified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 571-5. MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Items for consid-eration. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 571-5.

- eration. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1930, p. 451-3. 1938 annual meeting. Certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 4-5; Aug. 1938, p. 9-16. ONE national organization. Bulletin of the Amer-ican institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 3.8
- 3-8.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Candidates as human beings. (from Journal of accountancy) Accoun-tants journal, April 1937, p. 322-4.
 PROGRAM of activities. Certified public accoun-tant, Jan. 1937, p. 14-5.
 PROGRAM of annual meeting. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 7-9.
 RESEARCH establishment. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 129-30.
 SECOND fifty years. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1938, p. 73.
 SPRINGER, DURAND W. Policy amendments. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 632-4, 625-6.

- 675-6.

- 675-6. TAX revision program. (Editorial) Journal of ac-conntancy, Oct. 1939, p. 219-20. TRIBUTE from England. (reprinted from In-corporated accountants' journal, December, 1937.) Certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 7-10. WAGNER, EDWIN H. Problems of the pro-fession in the United States. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 320-30. WILCOX, EDWARD B. Advisory council and the institute. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 2. 1939, p. 2.

- American society of certified public accountants AMALGAMATION in America. Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 372.

 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Negotiations regarding "one national organiza- tion." New York, American institute of ac- countants, Feb. 10, 1936, 19p.

 AMERICAN Society breakfast. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 635-52.

 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB- LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory, 1935-1936.

 Officers-directors-state representatives-com- mitices-members of state boards of accountancy -officers of state organizations-membership roster-constitution and by-laws. Washington, D. C., American society of certified public ac- countants, 1936, 128p.

 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB- LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory, 1935-1936.

 Officers-directors-state representatives-com- mittees-members of state boards of accountancy -officers of state organizations-membership roster-constitution and by-laws. Washington, D. C., American society of certified public ac- countants, 1936. 128p.

 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB- LIC ACCOUNTANTS, Program; the Amer- ican society of certified public accountants an- nual meeting-Hotel Blackstone, Fort Worth, Texas, October 17-18, 1936. Certified public accountant, sept. 1936, p. 517-8.

 CONSOLIDATION. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 516-7.

 IMPORTANT merger of accountancy bodies. (Edi- torial) Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 402-4.

 - torial) Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 462.4

 - Milai, J. Massruhan accomman, Jam. 1907, p. 4624.
 INSTITUTE—Society—Institute. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 743-52.
 JAY, HARRY M. Goodwill. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 695-7.
 MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Consolidation urged Certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 387-8.
 MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Greater service. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 515-6.
 MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Impending dangers. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 571-5.
 1936 annual meeting, Fort Worth, Texas, October, 17-18. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 434-5. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 9-10.
 - NE national organization. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936,
 - p. 3-8. SPRINGER, DURAND W. Policy amendments. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 632-4, 675-6.

American woman's society of certified public accountants See Woman C.P.A. (official organ).

Argentina

See Accountants' societies—Federacion de Cole-gios de doctores en ciencias economicas y Con-tadores publicos nacionales.

Asociacion Colombiana de contadores See (El) Contador Colombiano (official organ).

Association internationale de comptabilite DENHAENE, GEORGES. Association inter-nationale de comptabilite--historique. 34 Rue de la Carpe, Bruxelles, Secretariat general de de la Carpe, B l' A.I.C., 1938. 62p.

Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario ONTARIO. Legislature. No. 10, 2nd session, 19th legislature, Ontario 1 Edward VIII, 1936an act respecting the Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario. Toronto, King's printer, 1936. 2p. (assented to April 9, 1936.)

Association of chartered accountants in Egypt Profession in Egypt; successful action by the Asso-ciation of chartered accountants in Egypt. Ac-countant, July 22, 1939, p. 113-4.

Australian institute of cost accountants

See Australian accountant (official organ).

Australia

See also Accountants' societies-Association of accountants of Australia, Australasian institute

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—Australia—(Cont.)

- CCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—Australia—(Cont.) of cost accountants, Commonwealth institute of accountants, Federal institute of accountants, In-stitute of chartered accountants in Australia, Insti-tute of chartered accountants in Australia, Insti-tute of chartered accountants of Australia, AUSTRALASIAN CONGRESS ON ACCOUNT-ING. Proceedings of Australasian congress on accounting, 1936, held in Melbourne, 16th to 20th March, 1936. Melbourne, Australasian congress on accounting, cl936. 361p.
 AUSTRALASIAN CONGRESS ON ACCOUNT-ING. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1936, p. 524-31. Incorporate accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 266-9. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 434-9.

Belgium

See Accountants' societies-Vlaamsche accoun-tants vereeniging, Association internationale de comptabilite.

Beta alpha psi BETA alpha psi. News letter of Beta alpha psi; the national accounting fraternity.

Borsautoriserte revisorers forening BORSAUTORISERTE revisorers forening. Ars-beretning, 1935-1936. Oslo, Norway, Kirkegaten 23, Borsautoriserte revisorers forening.

Brazil

- See Accountants' societies-Instituto Brasileiro
- See Accountants' societies—Instituto Brasileiro de contabilidade. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Steps in the development of a constructive one year program; suggested plan of operation for state society and chapter activities. New York, American institute of accountants, July 7, 1938.

- American institute of accountants, July 7, 1938. 7p., AMALYSIS of state society publications. Certi-fied public accountant, March 1937, p. 17-8. MEMBERSHIP in state societies. Certified public accountant, June 1938, p. 1. METHODS of organization. Certified public ac-countant, July 1938, p. 16. TROPER, MORRIS C. Programs of activities for state societies. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 2-11. WILLIAMS, T. DWIGHT. Extension of account-ing services by state societies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 141-3.)

C.P.A.

Alabama ALABAMA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Membership roster, con-stitution, and by-laws, 1936-1937. 10p.

Arizona

FAGERBERG, DIXON, JR. President's message to members of the Arizona society of public accountants, November 11, 1939. 8 typewritten pages.

Arkansas ARKANSAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory. No date. Folder.

California CALIFORNIA STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Year book, 1938-1939; by-laws: directory of members. San Francisco, Calif., California state society of cer-tified public accountants, 1939. 60p.

Connecticut COMPETITIVE bidding. Certified public ac countant, Dec. 1937, p. 28. CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Connecticut C.P.A. (Monthly bulletin) Room 601, 955 Main St., Bridgeport, Conn. Connecticut C.P.A. CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Constitution and

by-laws, also Connecticut statutes pertaining to certified public accountants, revised to July 1,

- 2937. 30p. CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory of mem-bers—code of ethics—tax calendar, May 1, 1937.
- 19p. CONNECTICUT society program for cooperation with bar. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 16. QUESTIONNAIRE on society program of activi-ties. Certified public accountant, May, 1938, p.
- **RÉPORT** of society committee on professional ethics. *Certified public accountant*, Sept. 1937, p. 24-5.

- District of Columbia DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Bui-

FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Florida accountant. (official organ)

GEORGIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, INC. Directory; Georgia society by-laws; membership roster. 18p.

| Same, | 1938-1939. | 63p. |
|-------|------------|------|
| Same, | 1939-1940. | 69p. |

- Indiana

| INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED | |
|--|--|
| PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Year book, 1936- | |
| 1937. Indianapolis, Ind., Indiana association of | |
| certified public accountants, 1936. 48p. | |
| Same, 1937-1938. 47p. | |
| Same, 1938-1939. 47p. | |
| Same, 1939-1940. 48p. | |
| | |

Louisiana SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Charter and by-laws, as amended to July 23, 1937. 22p. SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Roster of members as at October 1, 1937. 24p.

- Michigan MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Program and roster of members, 1938-1939. Detroit, Michi-gan association of certified public accountants, 1938. 13p. Same, 1939-40. 14p. MICHIGAN celebration. Certified public accoun-tant, Dec. 1936, p. 701-2.

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES-C.P.A.-(Continued) K.Alimpor

| Ivininesota | | |
|-------------------|-------------------|------|
| MINNESOTA SOCIETY | OF CEPTIFIED | DIID |
| | OF CERTIFIED | LOD- |
| LIC ACCOUNTANTS. | Year book, 1936. | 20- |
| LIC ACCOUNTANTS. | 1 Car DOOK, 1930. | 29p. |
| | | |

| Same, | 1937. | 29p. |
|-------|-------|------|
| Same, | 1938. | 22p. |
| Same, | 1939. | 23p. |

- Missouri COMPETITIVE bidding. Certified public accoun-tant, Aug. 1938, p. 19. MISSOURI SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory and by-laws,
 - 24p. 24p.

New York AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. State-ment by committees of American institute of accountants and New York state society of cer-tified public accountants at a meeting with the Honorable John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney gen-eral of the state of New York, January 6, 1939. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 206-15. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 6-16. p. 6-16.

| Same, | January | 1937. | 119p. |
|-------|---------|-------|-------|
| | January | 1938. | 112p. |

- state society of certified public accountants, 1936. not paged. NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Manual for committees of the New York state society of cer-tified public accountants. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1938. 20p. NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FUED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Service to
- 20p. IEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Service to profession of accountancy; functions and obiec-tives of the New York state society of certified public accountants. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants (1939). 140. IEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Some reasons for membership in the New York state society of certified public accountants. New York, New York state society of certified public accoun-tants. no date. 14p.

- EW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, Ten-year book, 1897-1906. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 87p. NEW
- NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Training American accountants. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 401. NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Year book, September, 1936. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1936. 1890. 189p.

- Same, September, 1937. 207p.
 Same, July, 1938. 181p.
 Same, July 1939. 218p.
 TROPER, MORRIS C. Programs of activities for state societies. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 2-11.

North Carolina NORTH CAROEINA ASSOCIATION OF CER-TIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, INC. Con-stitution and by-laws, revised June 1936. Char-lotte, N. C. North Carolina association of cer-tified public accountants, inc., 1936. 23p. NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF CER-TIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, INC. Directory, May 1, 1937. not paged.

Ohio OHIO SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Roster, January 1, 1938. folder.

- OREGON STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Constitution and by-laws, December 1, 1938. Portland, Ore., Oregon state society of certified public accoun-tents 1028 1028
- Oregon state society of certined public accoun-tants, 1938. 12p. OREGON STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory of mem-bers, December 1, 1936. 12p. ______Same, December 1, 1938. 14p.

- Pennsylvania MUNICIPAL audits. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1938, p. 77. PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Call for the forty-first annual meeting, Skytop Lodge, Sky-top, Pa., June 13, 14, 15, 1938. Philadelphia, Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, 1938, 95p. Same, 42nd annual meeting . . . June 19, 20, 21, 1939. 48p. PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. 1935-1936 year book. Philadelphia, Pa., Pennsylvania in-stitute of certified public accountants, 1936. 71p.
- 71p.

- 71p. Same, 1936-1937. 1937. 75p. Same, 1938-1939. 1938. 84p. Same, 1939-1940. 1939. 87p. PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Purpose and objectives, benefits of affiliation. (1937.) folder. PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Fortieth any mual meeting, Skytop Lodge in the Poconos, Thursday, Friday, Saturday, June 17, 18, 19, 1937. folder.
- nual meeting, Skytop Longe in the roconso, Thursday, Friday, Saturday, June 17, 18, 19, 1937. folder. PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of the president and summaries of reports of the other officers and committees, for the fiscal year 1935-36. 30 mimeographed pages.

- Philippine Islands PHILIPPINE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Constitution and by-laws. Philippine accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 61-6. Officers and directors of the interview
- ficers and directors of the institute since its organization—Directory of members and asso-ciates, December 31, 1939. Philippine accoun-

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES-C.P.A. -- Philippine Islands-(Continued)

tants' journal, Oct., Nov., and Dec. 1939, p. 156-66.

PUERTO RICO INSTITUTE OF ACCOUN-TANTS. Accountants' bulletin. (official organ) P. O. box 1343, San Juan, P. R.

Rhode Island RHODE ISLAND SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory of mem-bers, 1937. 7p.

- Tennessee TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory of member-ship, 1938-1939, 12p. TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Roster of membership,
- December 31, 1935. 12p.
- Texas TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Roster of membership, 1938, with historical sketch to 1938. 35p. TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Year book, 1939. 54p.

- United States LOFLIN, WILLIAM F. Advantages of a paid secretary. 2 typewritten pages.
- Utah UTAH ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Rules of professional conduct... Members... Amendments to the by-laws, approved Dec. 7, 1938. 7p.

Virginia BYERLY, F. P. Relationship between the prac-tice of law and of accounting. (resolution of Virginia society of public accountants regarding

- Virginia society of public accountants regarding unauthorized practice of law by public accoun-tants) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 154. VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF PUBLIC ACCOUN-TANTS. President's message, officers and direc-tors, committees, new members, etc., as of October 31, 1938. 12p. VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF PUBLIC ACCOUN-TANTS. Rules of professional conduct, con-stitution, by-laws and roster, as of August 31, 1938. 29b.
- 1938, 29p.

Washington WASHINGTON SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Articles of incorpo-ration and by-laws; revised May 1, 1939, 20p. WASHINGTON SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory of members, January 1938. 15p.

West Virginia WEST VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Year book and directory of members, 1937. 7p.

Wisconsin WISCONSIN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. Directory of members, May 31, 1938. 47p.

Canada

See Accountants' societies-Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario.

Canadian society of cost accountants and industrial engineers. Certified public accountants association of On-

tario.

tario. Dominion association of chartered accountants. Institute of chartered accountants of Alberta. Institute of chartered accountants of Manitoka. Institute of chartered accountants of Ontario. International accountants' and executives' cor-poration of Canada.

Canadian society of cost accountants and industrial engineers

See also Cost and management (official organ)

- CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS. Annual meeting, May 1936. Cost and management, June 1936, p. 173-83.
 CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS. By-laws adopted Dec. 11, 1936 (effective from May 1st, 1937) Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 358-61.
 Same, amended May 30th, 1938. Cost and management, June-July 1938, p. 166-9.
 Same, amended June 3, 1939. Cost and management, Sept. 1939, p. 256-9.
 CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS. Membership list, September 1, 1936. Cost and management, Sept. 1937, P. 277-84.
 CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS. Minutes of annual meeting. Cost and management, Sept. 1937, p. 196-9.
 CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS. Society's by-laws . . . adopted Dec. 11, 1936 (effective from May 1st, 1937.) Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 358-61.

Cape society of accountants and auditors SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General exam-ining board. Membership lists, July 1937; Trans-vaal society of accountants—Natal society of accountants—Cape society of accountants and auditors—Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State—Rhodesia society of accountants, Johannesburg, South African so-cieties, general examining board, 1937. 89p.

- Certified public accountants association of Ontario CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ASSO-CIATION OF ONTARIO. Act of incorporation and by-laws. Toronto, Certified public accoun-tants association of Ontario. no date. 15p. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ASSO-CIATION OF ONTARIO. Information regard-ing the examinations, and the courses of in-struction conducted for the association by the University of Toronto. Toronto, Certified public accountants association of Ontario. no date. 13p. ONTARIO. Legislature. Bill; an act respecting the Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario; 2nd session, 19th legislature, Ontario, Edward VIII, 1936. Toronto, King's printer, 1936. 2p.
 - 1936. 2p.

Chartered accountants of Scotland See Accountants' societies—Scottish chartered accountants.

Chile See Accountants' societies—Sociedad nacional de

Colegio de contadores profesionales de la Habana See (La) Tribuna del contador (official organ)

Colombia

See Accountants' societies-Asociacion Colombiana de contadores.

Commonwealth institute of accountants

- See also Australian accountant. (official organ) COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF AC-COUNTANTS. Handbook of activities; and activities; and
- COUNTANTS, Handbook of activities; and services. Melbourne, Commonwealth institute of accountants (1939) 32p. COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF AC-COUNTANTS. Proceedings of jubilee celebra-tions held in Sydney, March 1937, Melbourne, Commonwealth institute of accountants, 1937.
- 82p. COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF AC-COUNTANTS. Year book, 1935. Melbourne, Commonwealth institute of accountants, 1936. 172p.

- COMMONWEALTH institute of accountants jubilee celebrations. Australian accountant, April 1937, p. 160-71. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 327-30. GRIFFITH, S. W. Commonwealth institute presi-

20

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES---Commonwealth institute of accountants-(Continued)

dential address, delivered to the annual general meeting of the Commonwealth institute of ac-countants, at Hobart, on March 16, 1939. Aus-tralian accountant, May 1939, p. 261-8.

- Corporation of accountants, ltd. See also Corporate accountant (official organ) CORPORATION of accountants, ltd. Year book, 1936. Glasgow, Corporation of accountants, ltd., 1936. 535p.

Same, 1938. 542p. ote: Consolidated with London association of certified accountants under name of "Associa-tion of certified and corporate accountants, Itd." Note

- Corpul contabililor autorizati si expertilor contabili See also Revista generala de comert si con-tabilitate (official organ) CORPUL CONTABILILOR AUTORIZATI SI EXPERTILOR CONTABILI. Taboul expertilor contabili, pana la l lulie 1936. Strada Teilor no. 12, Bucuresti, Corpul contabililor autorizati si expertilor contabili.

Cuba

See Accountants' societies — Colegio de contadores profesionales de la Habana

Denmark See Accountants' societies — Foreningen af statsau-toriserede revisorer i Danmark.

- Dominion association of chartered accountants See also Canadian chartered accountant (official

- NIGHTINGALE, FRANK A. President's address. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 251-61
- 251-61. SHEPARD, ALFRED B. Presidential address delivered at the thirty-fourth annual meeting, Toronto, 26th August 1936. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 209-23. WINTER, GEORGE C. President's address. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 247.55
- 247-55.

Egypt

See Accountants' societies-Association of chartered accountants in Egypt.

England

See Accountants' societies-Association of certified and corporate accoun-tants, ltd.

- Corporation of accountants, ltd. London association of certified accountants. Incorporated accountants' students' society society of London.
- Incorporated accountants' society of Manchester and district.

Incorporated accountants' district society of Sheffield.

Institute of chartered accountants in England

- Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales.
 Institute of certified public accountants.
 Institute of cost and works accountants.
 Institute of municipal treasurers and accountants.
 Society of incorporated accountants and auditors.
 AMALGAMATION. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1939, p. 2-3.
 AMALGAMATION scheme between the Corpora-tion of accountants and the London association of certified accountants (summary of a recent circular to members of the Corporation of ac-countants). Irish accountant and secretary, Nov. Dec. 1938, p. 161.

- Federacion de Colegios de doctores en ciencias econom
 - deracion de Colegios de doctores en ciencias econom-icas y Contadores publicos nacionales FEDERACION DE COLEGIOS DE DOCTORES EN CIENCIAS ECONOMICAS Y CONTA-DORES PUBLICOS NACIONALES. Estatutos de la Federacion de Colegios de doctores en ciencias economicas y Contadores publicos nacionales. Buenos Aires, Federacion de Colegios de doctores en ciencias economicas y Contadores publicos nacionales, 1936. 16p.

Federal institute of accountants

- ederal institute of accountants See also Australian accountant. (official organ) up to and including January 1939; Federal accoun-tant (official organ) beginning February 1939, BARKER, E. M. Institute—how it is constituted and controlled. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 454-5, FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. List of members, year ended 31st December, 1935. Melbourne, Federal institute of accoun-tants, 1936. 99p.
- FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS, Memorandum and articles of association, Mel-bourne, Federal institute of accountants, 1934. 54n
- 540. FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Report of the council and statement of accounts for the year ended 31st December, 1938. Mel-bourne, Federal institute of accountants, 1939. 19p.

- Foreningen af statsautoriserede revisorer i Danmark FORENINGEN AF STATSAUTORISEREDE REVISORER. Communication from Foreningen af statsautorisrede revisorer (Society of state-authorized accountants in Denmark) Copenhagen, Foreningen af statsautoriserede revisorer, 1937.
 - 37p. FORENINGEN
 - 5/p. FORENINGEN AF STATSAUTORISEREDE REVISORER. Mcdlemsfortegnelse, 1, Novem-ber 1937. Kobenhavn, Foreningen af statsau-toriserede revisorer. 1937. not paged. FORENINGEN AF STATSAUTORISEREDE REVISORER I DANMARK. 1912-12. Januar ----1937. Kobenhavn, Foreningen af stasautori-serede revisorer, 1937. 94p.

Foreningen auktoriserade revisorer FÖRENINGEN AUKTORISERADE REVISOR-ER. Ledamotsforteckning, Februari, 1936. Stockholm, Föreningen auktoriserade revisorer, 1936. 23p.

Germany See Accountants' societies—Institut der Wirt-schaftsprüfer.

Greece

See Accountants' societies—Societe scientifique de comptabilite de Grece.

Honduras See Accountants' societies-Sociedad de peritos mercantiles y contadores publicos.

Hotel accountants association See Hotels-Societies.

Incorporated accountants' district society of Sheffield INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' DISTRICT SOCIETY OF SHEFFIELD. Fittieth anniver-sary celebration. Accountant, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 561-4. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 55-9.

Incorporated accountants' society of Manchester and dis-

April 1936, p. 229-35.

Incorporated accountants' students' society of London INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' STU-DENTS' SOCIETY OF LONDON. Practice income tax appeal. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 129-35.

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—(Continued)

- Institut der Wirtschaftsprufer

- Institute of accountants and actuaries in Glasgow INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND ACTU-ARIES IN GLASGOW. Annual meeting. Ac-countant, May 1, 1937, p. 623-8. INSTITUTE of accountants and actuaries in Glasgow. Reports and accounts, for year 1935. Glasgow, Institute of accountants and actuaries in Glasgow, 1936. 23p. _____Same, 1937. 1938. 23p.
- Institute of chartered accountants in Australia See also Chartered accountant in Australia (official organ) INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN AUSTRALIA. List of members as at June 30, 1936. Sydney, Australia, The institute, 1936. 304p. _____Same, June 30, 1937. 307p. _____Same, June 30, 1938. 306p.
- Same, June 30, 1937. 307p.
 Same, June 30, 1938. 306p.
 Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales FISHER, F. LINDSAY. Presidential address. Accountant, Oct. 16, 1937, p. 508-13.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Adjourned annual general meeting. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 439-40.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTATNTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Council meeting. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 188-90.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTATNTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Council meeting. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 188-90.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTATNTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Fifty-fifth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 9, 1936. p. 713-26. Fifty-sixth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 655-77; June 12, 1937. p. 834-5. Fifty-seventh annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 655-77; June 12, 1937, p. 834-5. Fifty-seventh annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 653-37. Fifty-eighth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 7, 1938, p. 623-37. Fifty-eighth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 655-77; June 12, 1937, p. 809, p. 599-618.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTATNTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. List of members, 1936, p. 709, p. 599-618.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTATNTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. List of members, 1937, 1854p.
 Same, 1937. 1854p.
 Same, 1937. 1854p.
 Same, 1937. 1854p.
 Same, 1937. not paged.
 MEMBERSHIP rights. Certified accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 294-7.
 SQUIRE, JOHN. Hall of the Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales. London, Institute of chartered accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 250-2. Incorporated accountants in England and Wales. Certified accountants in England and Wales. Sontenet journal, Aug. 1937, p. 250-2. Incorporated accountants in England and Wales. Sontenet accountants in England and Wales. Sontenet j

Institute of chartered accountants in Ireland

stitute of chartered accountants in Ireland
GOLDEN jubilee celebrations. Accountant, June 11, 1938, p. 810-7.
INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN IRELAND. Forty-eighth annual general meeting, May 7, 1936. Accountant, May 23, 1936, p. 785-8. Forty-ninth annual general meeting, May 6, 1937. Accountant, May 22, 1937, p. 729-34. Fiftieth annual general meeting, May 25, 1938. Accountant, June 11, 1938, p. 805-17. Fifty-first annual general meeting, May 11, 1939. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p. 709-14.
INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNT

| INSTITUTE TANTS IN Incorporated | | CHARTERED LAND, Jubilee intants' journal, | celebra | |
|---------------------------------------|----|---|---------|------|
| p. 357-8. INSTITUTE | OF | CHARTERED | ACC | OUN- |

| TANTS IN | IRELAND. | Year b | ook an | d list |
|---------------|-------------|----------|---------|--------|
| of members, | 1935-1936. | Dublin, | Institu | te of |
| chartered acc | ountants in | Ireland. | 1936. | 167p. |
| Same | | | | - |

| | 100-1001 | |
|---|------------|-------|
| C | 1027 1020 | 1750 |
| | 1937-1938. | 1/30. |
| | | |

-Same, 1938-1939. 177p.

- Institute of chartered accountants of Alberta INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS OF ALBERTA. Information relating to membership, articles of clerkship, instruction courses and examinations. June 1, 1938. Calgary, Alberta, Institute of chartered accountants of Alberta, 1938. 11p.
- Institute of chartered accountants of Ontario INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS OF ONTARIO. Annual report for the year ending May 31, 1938. Toronto, Institute of chartered accountants of Ontario, 1936. 5p.

Institute of cost and works accountants

- (ltd.) 193 p. 119-22.
- Institute of municipal treasurers and accountants INSTITUTE OF MUNICIPAL TREASURERS AND ACCOUNTANTS. Annual general meet-ing. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 351-4.
- Institution of certified public accountants INSTITUTION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Year book; list of members, memorandum and articles, syllabus of examina-tions, etc., 1936-1937. London, Institution of certified public accountants, ltd. 1937. 250p.
- Instituto Brasileiro de contabilidade See Mensario Brasileiro de contabilidade (offi-cial organ)
- Instituto de contadores del Peru INSTITUTO DE CONTADORES DEL PERU. Ley, estatutos y reglamento interno. Lima, Peru, Instituto de contadores del Peru, 1936. 67p.
- Instituto de contadores publicos titulados de Mexico INSTITUDO DE CONTADORES PUBLICOS TITULADOS DE MEXICO. Estatutos y regla-mentos. Mexico, D. F., Editorial cultura, 1938. 35p.
- International accountants' and executives' corporation of Canada
 - Canada INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTANTS' AND EXECUTIVES' CORPORATION OF CANA-DA. Special bulletin; general information re-garding the world-wide activities of the Inter-national accountants' corporation operating as incorporated or chartered organization, and de tails regarding membership. Toronto, Canada, International accountants' and executives' corpo-ration of Canada, no date. ration of Canada, no date.
- Ireland

See accountants' societies—Institute of chartered accountants in Ireland.

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES-(Continued)

Italy

See Accountants' societies-Sindacato provinciale fascista ragionieri de Milano. inter-

Japan

See Accountants' societies—Japan association of certified auditors and accountants (Nippon Kensa Keirishi Kai).

Japan

apan association of certified auditors and accountants (Nippon Kensa Keirishi Kai) JAPAN ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED AUDI-TORS AND ACCOUNTANTS (Nippon Kensa Keirishi Kai). Year book, 1933-1937. Osaka, Japan, 436 Osaka building, Nakanoshima, 1937.

- London association of certified accountants See also Certified accountants journal (official

 - condon association of certified accountants See also Certified accountants journal (official organ)
 LONDON ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS, LTD. Annual report. Certi-fied accountants journal, April 1936, p. 129-32; April 1937, p. 114-7; May 1938, p. 162-5; July 1939, p. 211-7;
 LONDON ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS, LTD. Certified accountants' annual conference. Birmingham, 1937, Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1937, p. 309-16.
 LONDON ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS, LTD. Certified accountants' year book, 1936. London, London association of certified accountants, 1936. 652p.
 Same, 1937. 676p.
 LONDON ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS, LTD. Extraordinary general meeting. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1937, p. 248-50; Jan. 1939, p. 16-7; Feb. 1939, p. 48-52.

Mexico

See Accountants' societies—Instituto de conta-dores publicos titulados de Mexico.

Natal society of accountants SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General ex-amining board. Membership lists, July 1937; Transval society of accountants-Natal society of accountants—Cape society of accountants and auditors—Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State—Rhodesia society of accountants. Johannesburg, South African so-cieties, general examining board, E. V. Buchan-an, Secretary, 1937. 89p.

- National association of cost accountants
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Annual meeting; reports of officers and directors, New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 8, section 3.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Annual meeting; reports of officers and directors. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 3, p. 443.69.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Officers and directors, 1936.37. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 3.)
 Same, 1937-38. Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 3.)
 Same, 1938-39. Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 3.)
 Same, 1938-40. Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 1, section 3.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Year book, 1936. New York, National association of cost accountants, 1936. 329.

| Same, | | |
|-------|-------|-------|
| Same, | | |
| Same, | 1939. | 406p. |

- National association of junior accountants See Junior accountant (official organ)
- Nederlandsch instituut van accountants NEDERLANDSCH INSTITUUT VAN AC-COUNTANTS. Lijst van de leden en van hunne kantoren. Amsterdam, Nederlandsch in-stituut van accountants, 1937. 48p. ______Same, 1938. 51p. ______Same, 1939. 68p.

Netherlands

See Accountants' societies—Nederlandsch insti-tuut van accountants.

New Zealand See Accountants' societies—New Zealand so-ciety of accountants.

Norway

See Accountants' societies-Borsautoriserte re-visorers forening.

Peru

See Accountants' societies-Instituto de contadores del Peru.

Public accountants' association of Illinois PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS' ASSOCIATION OF ILLINOIS. Public accountant (official organ) Chicago, Ill., Public accountants' association of Illinois.

Rhodesia society of accountants SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General exam-ining board. Membership lists, July 1937; Trans-vaal society of accountants—Natal society of ac-countants. Cape society of accountants and auditors --Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State—Rhodesia society of accoun-tants. Johannesburg, South African societies, general examining board, E. V. Buchanan, Sec-retary, 1937. 89p.

Roumania

See Accountants' societies—Corpul contabililor autorizati si expertilor contabili; Consiliul supe-rior al corpului contabilior experti so autorizati.

Scotland

See Accountants' societies— Corporation of accountants, ltd. Institute of accountants and actuaries in Glasgow.

Scottish chartered accountants. Society of accountants in Aberdeen. Society of accountants in Edinburgh.

Sindacato interprovinciale fascista ragionieri di Milano SINDACATO INTERPROVINCIALE FASCIS-TA RAGIONIERI DI MILANO. Elenco degli iscritti al sindacato interprovinciale fascista regionieri de Milano. Milano, Sindacato inter-provinciale fascista ragionieri di Milano, 1937. 78p.

Sociedad de peritos mercantiles y contadores publicos See (El) Economista Hondureño (official organ)

Sodiedad nacional de contadores See Numero (official organ)

ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETIES—(Continued)

Societe scientifique de comptabilite de Grece See Revue de comptabilite (official organ)

Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General exam-ining bard. Membership lists. July 1937: Trans-OUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General exam-iming board. Membership lists, July 1937; Trans-vaal society of accountants—Natal society of accountants—Cape society of accountants and auditors—Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State—Rhodesia society of accountants. Johnannesburg, South African so-cieties, general examining board, E. V. Buchan-an, Secretary, 1937. 89p.

Society of accountants in Aberdeen SOCIETY OF ACCOUNTANTS IN ABER-DEEN. Report by the council for the year to 31st December, 1935, to the sixty-ninth annual meeting to be held on 5th February, 1936. Aberdeen, Society of accountants in Aberdeen, 1936. 21p.

| Same, | 1936. | 1937. | 21p. |
|-------|-------|-------|------|
| Same, | 1937. | 1938. | 22p. |
| Same, | 1938. | 1939. | 22p. |

- Society of incorporated accountants and auditors See also Incorporated accountants' journal (offi-cial organ) changed to "Accountancy" (official

 - cial organ) changed to "Accountancy" (official organ)
 HOLMAN, WALTER. Presidential address. Accountant, July 10, 1937, p. 48-50. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 363-79.
 NELSON, C. HEWETSON. Half-a-century. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 363-5.
 SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS. Conference at Belfast. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 363-79. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 11-2.

 - - -Fifty-second annual general meeting. In-
- 303-12.
 Fifty-second annual general meeting. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 315-24. Accountant, June 5, 1937, p. 800-9.
 Fifty-third annual general meeting. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 301-9. Accountant, May 28, 1938. p. 737-45.
 Society of incorporated accountants' of the second accountant's annual general meeting. Accountant, May 28, 1938. p. 737-45.
 Society of incorporated accountant's of the second accountant's of the second accountant's of the second accountant's benevolent fund; forty-fourth annual meeting. Incorporated accountants' benevolent fund; forty-fourth annual meeting. Incorporated accountants' ofference in Nottingham, 1939–handbook. London, Society of incorporated accountants' and auditors, 1936. Jaccountants' AUD AUDITORS. Incorporated accountants' AUD AUDITORS. Incorporated accountants' per book, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' year book, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' year book, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' per book, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' and auditors, 1939. Accountants' and auditors, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' per book, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' and auditors, 1936. London, Society of incorporated accountants' per book, 1936.
- 1220p.

1220p. Same, 1937. 1248p. Same, 1938. 1280p. Same, 1939. 1302p. SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Syllabus of exami-nations, October 31st, November 1st, 2nd, and 3rd, 1938, and notes in regard to qualifying as an incorporated accountant. London, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, July 1938. 24p.

South Africa

- Transvaal society of accountants. Natal society of accountants. Cape society of accountants and auditors. Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State.

Rhodesia society of accountants. South African societies, General examining board.

- South African societies. General examining board SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General ex-amining board. Membership lists, July 1937; Transvaal society of accountants—Natal society of accountants—Cape society of accountants and auditors—Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State—Rhodesia society of accountants. Johannesburg, South African so-cieties, general examining board, E. V. Buchanan Secretary, 1937, 800 cieties, general examining Buchanan, Secretary, 1937. 89p.
- Staff

taff Accountants' division of Syracuse chapter of C.P.A.'s NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Training American accountants. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 401.

Sweden

See Accountants' societies—Foreningen auktoriserade revisorer.

Switzerland

See Accountants' societies-Verband Schweizer-ischer bücherexperten (Association Suisse des experts-comptables).

Transvaal society of accountants SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. General exam-ining board. Membership lists, July 1937; Trans-vaal society of accountants-Matal society of accountants-Cape society of accountants and auditors.-Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State-Rhodesia society of accountants. Johnannesburg, South African so-cieties, general examining board, E. V. Buchanan, Secretary, 1937. 89p.

United States

- See also Accountants' societies—C.P.A. See also Accountants' societies—C.P.A. PERREN, A. (La) Profession d'expert-comptable aux Etats-Unis. deuxieme edition. Neuchatel et Paris, Delachaux & Niestle S. A., 1936. 120p. SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Recent account-ing developments in the United States. Accoun-tant, April 22, 1939, p. 535-44; April 29, 1939, p. 572-9.
- erband Schweizerischer bucherexperten (Association Suisse des experts-comtables) Verband
- Suisse des experts-contables) See also Bulletin; monatliches mitteilungsblatt über revisionswesen (official organ) VERBAND SCHWEIZERISCHER BUCHER-EXPERTEN. (Der) Bücherexperte in der Schweiz; fest-schrift zum 25 jähringen jubiläum des Verbandes Schweiz, bücherexperten. (l'ex-pert-comptable en Suisse; ouvrage publie par l'Association suisse des experts-comptables, a loccasion du XXVme anniversaire de sa fonda-tion.) Zurich, Verband Schweiz, bücherexperten, 1939, 167p. VERBAND SCHWEIZERISCHER BUCHER-EXPERTEN. Jaresbericht, 1936-37. Zurich, Verband schweizerischer bücherexperten, 1937. 14p.
- 14p
- VERBAND EXPERIMENT SCHWEIZERISCHER BUCHER-EXPERTEN. Membership list, June 30, 1936. Zurich, Verband schweizerischer bücherexperten, Zurich, Ver 1936. 13p. VERBAND
- ERBAND SCHWEIZERISCHER BUCHER-EXPERTEN, Statuten des Verbandes Schweizer-ischer bücherexperten, Zurich, Verband schwei-zerischer bücherexperten, May 1936. 30p.

Vlaamsche accountants vereeniging

See Accountancy; official organ van de Vlaam-sche accountants vereeniging.

- ACCOUNTANTS' successful Dec. 26, 1936, p. 875. claim. Accountant.
- ACCOUNTANTS' testimony at hearings on federal tax bill. Certified public accountant, May 1938. p. 4-9.

- ACCOUNTANTS' views on governmental reorgani-zation considered in congress. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 22-8.
- ACCOUNTANTS' working library. Monthly bulletin, New York state society of certified public ac-countants, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 31-2.
- ACCOUNTANTS' working library. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 278-9.
- ACCOUNTANTS' working papers not subject to will. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Aug. 1936, p. 53-5.

ACCOUNTING

- ACCOUNTING See also Accountants; Auditing; Auditors; Bookkeeping; Cost and factory accounting; subdivision Accounting under various headings, e.g., Gas-Accounting; also names of various accounts.
 ACCOUNTANT looks at current business. Credit executive, April 1937, p. 108-9.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, presented at the fifty-first annual meeting, Amer-ican institute of accountants, 1938. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 252p.
 ANDRUSS, HARVEY A. Ways to teach book-keeping and accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co. cl937. 178p.
 ANOTHER constructive comment—Profession pro-ceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 135-6.
 AVEYARD, C. H. Special points arising in the accounts of seasonal businesses. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 563-5.
 BAKER, JAMES W., and SHERWOOD, J. F. College accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., cl937. 554p.
 BERLE, A. A., JR. Accounting and the law. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 915. Jour-nal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 368-78.
 BLACKLOCK, D. S. Accounting for economic management. Glasgow, Jackson, son & co., 1938. 128p.
 BLAYTON, JESSE BEE. Need for better records

- management. Glasgow, Jackson, etc. 2 128p.
 BLAYTON, JESSE BEE. Need for better records in negro business; an opportunity for negro accountants. Atlanta, Ga., Colored division, National youth administration, June 1, 1939. 52p. (Bulletim no. 11.)
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Introduction to accounting. ed. 2 New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1938. 570n
- 679p

- ci. 2 New York, joint whey a sons, inc., 1938.
 6799.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 23-6.
 BYLAND, JOHN R. Accounting principles and practice. 2v. Chicago, Ill., Follett pub. co., cl935. 157p. and 154p.
 BYRNE, R. Why and the wherefore of accountants. Accountants. May 1939, p. 9-11: June 1939, p. 33-5.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Primary accounting concepts; a speculation in the interest of clarity. Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 348-75.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Primary accounting principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 243p. (American business fundamentals).
- fundamentals) CARR, AUSTIN H. Progress in accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 121-0
- 121-9.
 CHANT, L. W. Steps in accounting. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 411-2.
 COASE, R. H. Business organization and the accountant. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 470-2; Oct. 8, 1938, p. 505-7; Oct. 15, 1938, p. 537-8; Oct. 22, 1938, p. 559-60; Oct. 29, 1938, p. 607-8; Nov. 5, 1938, p. 631-2; Nov. 12, 1938, p. 665-6; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 737-7; Dec. 10, 1938, p. 737-9; Dec. 3, 1938, p. 757-7; Dec. 10, 1938, p. 814-5; Dec. 17, 1938, p. 834-5.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Accounting in the public interest. 25 typewritten pages. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 325-33.

- COLLINS, CLEM W. Accounting in the public interest; abstract of talk, given in Boston, May 1, 1939, Hartford, May 2, 1939, Philadelphia, May 3, 1939, Washington, May 5, 1939, Rochester, May 11, 1939, Buffalo, May 12, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 16 mimeographed pages.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Place of accounting in the changing social order. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. Proceedings of the Mountain states accounting conference, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 30, and 21, 1938. P. S0-101.)
 Same, given at the Mountain states accounting conference, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 31, 1938. 41 typewritten pages.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Public accounting. Diary of Alpha kappa psi, May 1938, p. 25.
 COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Accountancy of tomorrow; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 552.4.
 DEVELOPMENTS in accounting theory and practice since 1929; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth amiversary celebration, 1937. p. 179-204.)
 DORAU, HERBERT B. Impact of economics on accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 26.8, 39.
 FEDDLE, A. S. Mere bookkeeping entries. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 13-4.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Introduction to principles of accounting. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936, 629p.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Modern tendencies in accounting. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 23-0.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Principles of accounting. June 1938, p. 321-30.

- 321-30. FITZGERALD, A. A. Principles of accounting. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 102-10 FORUM on accounting. Philip F. Gray, presiding; leaders Arthur B. Foye and Otto A. Shults. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov.

- leaders Arthur B. Foye and Otto A. Shults. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 143-60.
 FUNDAMENTAL accounting principles. Accoun-tant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 790-2.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Accounting concepts of profit. New York. Ronald press co., c1939. 635p.
 GOETZ, BILLY E. What's wrong with account-ing; paper presented at the meeting of the Chicago chapter of the Society for the advance-ment of management, May 16, 1939. Advanced management, fall 1939, p. 151-7.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER G. Accounting in law practice. ed. 2. Chi-cago. Ill., Callaghan and co., 1938. 553p.
 GRUEHN, H. L. Significant accounting problems of today. (In American gas association. Pro-ceedings, 1937, p. 154-7, discussion, p. 157-9.)
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Accounting and the busi-ness executive. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936. p. 123-35.
 HORNE, HENRY A. Place of accounting in the changing social order. 12 typewritten pages.
 HOWARD, MILTON. Accounting as an aid to industry. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936. p. 183-9.

- industry. Can 1936. n. 183-9.
- HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Interpretation of accounting records. ed. 3, rev. and enl. Princeton. N. J., Princeton university press, 1938, 320n.
 IMPORTANT series of articles. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 9-10.
 "INFLUENCE of accounting on the development of an economy." (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancv, March 1936. p. 170.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Accounting. New York, American institute of banking section, American bankers association, c1937. 499p.
 IRISH, RONALD A. Modern practice in final accounts. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 62-9.

- accounts. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 62-9. JOHNS, W. G. S. Logic of accounts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 529-36. Philippine ac-countants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 304-9. JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Principles of account-ing. New York, Farrar & Rinehart, inc., c1937.
- 690p.
- DNES, E. FURNIVAL. Some accountancy problems of yesterday and today. Incorporated IONES.

ACCOUNTING-(Continued)

- accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 181-7, dis-cussion, p. 187-8. KELLEY, ARTHUR C. In defense of the ac-countant. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 63-5.
- 63-5.
 KELLY, E. A. Contrasts in cost and financial accounting. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1938, p. 51-2.
 KELLY, LINCOLN G. Introduction to round table discussion: Extension of accounting practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting, subjects. 1939, p. 139-40.)
 KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Whither accounting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 61-4.
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed. 4. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 703p.
- ed. 703p.
- 7035. KESTER, ROY B. Unbalanced objectives in financial accounting; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, III. November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 531.4
- LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Fundamentals of accounting. New Brunswick, N. J., The author,
- accounting. New Brunswick, N. J., The author, 1938, 320p. LAZENBY, C. D. Basic bookkeeping and account-ing. New York, University pub. co., c1937.

- 234p. LITTLETON, A. C. Uses of theory. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 227-33. MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROB-ERT D. Accounting fundamentals. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 667p. McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Accounting principles. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 885p. McLAREN, A. J. Criticism of accounts. Chart-ered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1937, p. 358-67.
- 67
- 67. McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL. Influence of federal taxation upon accountancy. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meet-ing, American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy. Dec. 1937, p. 426-39. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937 n 120.32.)
- accountants. Pittern annocious, 1937, p. 120-32.) MacNEAL, KENNETH. Shortcomings of some accented accounting principles under modern conditions. Annalist. July 13, 1939, p. 38-9. MacNEAL, KENNETH. Truth in accounting. B. University of Pennsylvania
- conditions. Annalist. July 13, 1939, p. 38-9.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Truth in accounting. Philadelphia, Pa. University of Pennsylvania press, 1939. 334p.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. What's wrong with ac-counting? Nation, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 370-72; Oct. 14, 1939, p. 409-12.
 MADDEN, JOHN T. Accounting iurisprudence. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 447.51
- 447.51
- MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Accounting as credit aid; New Jersey C.P.A.'s have educational pro-gram. Credit and financial management, Sept.

- istration, April 12-14, 1937. New York, The author, 1937. 57p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 333-69. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 593-7; May 14, 1938, p. 661-5; May 21, 1938, p. 701-5. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 206-12.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Wider horizons. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 295-304.
 MICHIGAN, UNIVERSITY OF. School of business research. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research. 1937, 46p. (Michigan business papers, no. 1.)
 MILLS, HARRY B. Functional control in business organizations. Profit, May 1937, p. 1, 4.
 MINETT, F. H. and ARMITAGE, R. L. Economist as accountant. Accountant, Jan. 23, 1937, p. 125-7.
- 125-7
- mist as accountant. Accountant, Jan. 23, 1937, p. 125-7.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Accounting methods must be revised to meet the increasing burden of taxation. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 90-102.
 NELSON, BERTRAM. Interpretation of accounts. Accountant, March 27, 1937, p. 452-4.
 NEW uses for accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 324-5.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and others. Elementary accounting. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., c1938. 684p.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and others. Intermediate accounting. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., c1939. 838p.
 NORRIS, HARRY. Accounting principles: a constructive attack. Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 846-9.

- PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Accounting pe-riods and accounting methods—general account-ing systems—special methods of accountine. (In his *Income tax fundamentals*. 1937. p. 156-203.) PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Place of theory in accounting. Accounting ledger, Feb. 1939, p.
- 13-7. PRICKETT
- NICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Principles of accounting. rev. ed. New York, Macmillan co., 1937. 519p. Workbook for principles of accounting.

519p.

- 519p. ——Practice set; economy stores: Part 1—Books of original entry. Part 2—Ledgers. Part 3—Statements and report forms. ——Ruled forms no. 1, for problems in text, chapters 1-16—Principles of accounting. PUBLIC understanding of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 292-3. PURPOSES of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 74-6. PALUH UILLUS L Problems of the accountant
- accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 74-6. RAUH, JULIUS J. Problems of the accountant. Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 9-12. REITELL, CHARLES and VANSICKLE, CLAR-ENCE. Accounting principles for engineers. (formerly published under the title of Cost finding for engineers). New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 518p. RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Where do we go from here? Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 85-90.
- 85-90.
- RITTENHOUSE. CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Secretarial accounting. (formerly published under the title of: *Elements of ac-*counts.) New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., c1936. 342p.
- C1936. 342D. ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY and WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Bookkeep-ing and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course, rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 569p.

26

ACCOUNTING-(Continued)

- CCOUNTING—(continuea) ROWLAND, STANLEY W. Experience, research and speculation in accounting. Accountant, April 1, 1939, p. 442-4. SALIERS, EARL A. Accounting theory. Account-ing forum, Jan. 1936, p. 3-4. SALIERS, EARL A. How to keep accounts and prepare statements. New York, Ronald press
- prepare statements. New YOR, Round , co., c1938. 461p. SALIERS, EARL A. Neglected features of ac-
- 5-6.
- 5-6. SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Basic accounting principles. Chicago, Ill. Business publications, inc., 1937. 656p. SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, and MOORE, UNDERHILL. Statement of accounting principles. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938. 138p. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Theory and mechanics of accounting. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 475b.
- 475p. SCHUR,
- accounting, New Yolk, TASKELL, MANFORD 4755. SCHUR, JOHN A. and HASKELL, MANFORD M. Introduction to accounting procedure: Book 3-Applied accounting. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 80p. SCHYBERGSON, HENRIK. German and Amer-ican theories on accounting. (English transla-tion) (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treu-hand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band D. "Vorträge Schybergson und Schranz," p. 43-63.) SCOTT, DR Responsibilities of accountants in a changing economy. Accounting review, Dec.
- SCOTT, DR Responsibilities of accountants in a changing economy. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 396-401.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and BOLING, CLEM. Secretarial accounting; a course of college grade, developing the fundamental principles of accounting as applied to professional personal service, and mercantile enterprises. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939, 452p.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Economic and accounting concepts. (from Canadian journal of economics and political science) Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 626-9.
- 626-9.
- 626-9. SMITH, H. H., JR. Development of specialized types of practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 152-3.) STARKEY, RODNEY F. Importance of flexibility in accounting principles and procedure. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 27-31
- 27-3
- 27-31.
 STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States. (Address delivered at the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 133-59.)
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Stabilized accounting. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 219p.
- 1936. 219p.
- SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Stabilized accounting shows real financial status and in-come. Controller, April 1937, p. 99-104. TALES usually told after office hours; it ain't all beer and skittles what we does to win our victuals. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 252-60.
- Z52-00.
 Z52-00.
 Z52-00.
 Z52-00.
 Z62-00.
 Z62-00.
- (in American institute of accountants. Fapers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939, p. 150-1.) THOSE very naughty accountants—A rather petulant critic—A business man should under-stand accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1936, p. 235-7. Indian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 25-6.
- TROPER, MORRIS C. Is specialization in the practice of accountancy a desirable development? Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 12-16. TULPIN, ROY B. Accounting practices to effect

- good management must come first. Controller, Sept. 1938, p. 254-9. VICKERY, B. G. Principles and practice of book-keeping and accounts. Lendon, Gregg pub. co., Itd. (1936). WILCOX, EDWARD B. Accounting in the pub-lic interest. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 151-15
- 151.4
- B. 131-4. WILLIAMS, R. GLYNNE. Modern problems in accountancy. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1936, p. 163-5. WILLIAMS, T. DWIGHT. Extension of account-
- ILLIAMS, 1. DWIGHT, EAGMAN & Constant of accounting services by state societies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-codure and other accounting subjects. 1939. cedure a p. 141-3.)
- p. 141-3.) WILSON, H. A. R. J. Accountability. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 271-9; Feb. 1938, p. 296-304; April 1938, p. 356-61; July 1938, p. 78-81; Aug. 1938, p. 105-9; Oct. 1938, p. 174-6; Nov. 1938, p. 212-
- Almanacs, diaries, etc. ACCOUNTANTS' and auditors' diary for 1937. London, T. Whittingham and co., ltd., 1936. 76p. and 160p. 1938. 82p. and 160p. 1939. 90p. and 160p.

Australia TURNER, R. S. Effect of accounting methods on income tax liabilities. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1937, p. 37-43.

- Bases
- Bases
 BRIDGES, JAMES F. Value of accrual accounting to management. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 7, 14-5.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Controlling the differences between corporate accounting and tax accounting; round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 13 mimeographed pages. (In National tax association, association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 147-55.) (In National tax association. Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, D. 147-55.)
 (In National tax association. Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, p. 147-55.)
 (In National tax association. Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, p. 147-55.)
 (In National tax association, Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, of National of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 324-8.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Accounting records as related to income tax returns; opening presentation at round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, of National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 137-40.)
 KRUEGER, JUDSON E. Office accounts. (In American institute of accountains. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 178-80.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Taxable income and accounting bases for determining inc-Accrual accounting responsibility, cl936, v. 2, p. 267-89; 290-94.)
 NEVINS, H. E. Accrual accounting. Trust companies, July 1938, p. 52-4.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. and MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Methods of accounting and determinion of when items become income and are deductible. (In their Law of federal income taxion. 1934, v. 1, p. 476-601.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Neglected features of accounting versus business practice: cound table discussion. Mon.

- 140-7.)
 TAX accounting and business accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 353; Jan. 1939, p. 1-2.
 TAX accounting vs. commercial practice. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 5.
- China

NOM LEE, J. STEPHEN. Government account-

ACCOUNTING-China-(Continued)

ing in China. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 283-90.

Cooperative CLADER,

- LADER, WILL-A. Coöperative accounting? (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July
- 1939, p. 54. COOPERATIVE accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 261. MARTIN, CHESTER, Cooperative accounting?
- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 54.
- Costs
- RODEY, B. S., JR. Deflecting the curve of ris-ing accounting costs. *Edison electric institute bulletin*, June 1938, p. 276-80.

Cuba

PADIERNE, J. LATOUR. Contabilidad superior. Habana, P. Fernandez y ca., 1937. 370p.

- Encyclopedias, dictionaries, etc. See also Dictionaries.
 BOOKKEEPERS' handy guide; a practical desk book for quick reference. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 565p.
- Germany SCHYBERGSON, HENRIK. German and Ameri-can theories on accounting. (English transla-tion) (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. "Vorträge Schybergson and Schranz," p.

Government regulation TALBOT, CYRIL.

ALBOT, CYRIL. Increasing responsibility to and closer regulation by federal bodies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938, p. 210-5.)

Great Britain

- ireat Britain HALSEY, LAURENCE. Position of the public accountant in relation to business and govern-ment in Great Britain. Accountant, Aug. 20, 1938, p. 256-61; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 292-8. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 90-8; Sept. 1938, p. 171-80. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 373-86; Dec. 1938, p. 434-49. JEAL, EDWARD F. Learned judges and the auditor; a synthesis in interpretation of juris-prudence affecting auditors. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 777-83; June 17, 1939, p. 813-20. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 178-93; Oct. 1939, p. 265-83.

- Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 178-93; Oct. 1939, p. 265-83.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. British control of company accounts and finance. Harvard bussiness review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 11-23.
 WATERHOUSE, NICHOLAS E. Matters affecting the profession in Great Britain and Ireland. Accountant, Oct. 15, 1938, p. 529-35. Certified accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 379-86.
- History ACT for the better regulation and examination of public accounts; Saturday the sixth day of October, one thousand-seven hundred and ninety-
 - October, one thousand-seven hundred and ninety-eight, royal assent given. Accountant, supple-met, Dec. 19, 1936. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Little old New York. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1939, p. 58-9. deROOVER, RAYMOND. Characteristics of

 - tancy, July 1959, 56-9.
 deROOVER, RAYMOND. Characteristics of bookkeeping before Paciolo. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 144-9.
 deROOVER, RAYMOND. Something new about Jan Ympyn Christoffels. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 657-8.
 FITZPATRICK, L. Story of bookkeeping, ac-counting and auditing. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 128-36.
 FREEDMAN, CHARLES. Certified audits—for whom? Accountant disagrees with recent article

 - whom? Accountant disagrees with recent article in Barron's, demands inventory checks. Barron's Jan. 16, 1939, p. 9.

- HATFIELD, HENRY RAND. Historical defense of bookkeeping; a paper read before the Ameri-can association of university instructors in accounting, December 29, 1923; republished by friends and colleagues on the occasion of the author's retirement from active teaching at the University of California, May 15, 1937. 22p.
 HATFIELD, HENRY RAND. Survey of develop-ments in accounting. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939 p. 5-11.)
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. Herwood library of ac-countancy; a catalogue of books printed between 1494 and 1900 in the Herwood library of accoun-tancy. New York, Herwood and Herwood, 1938.
- 233p
- Z33D.
 HISTORY from old accounts—John P. Cushing, merchant and investor. Accountant, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 255-6; Aug. 29, 1936, p. 289-92.
 JONES, E. FURNIVAL. Some accountance prob-lems of yesterday and to-day. Incorporated investor accountance in the second accountance of the second accountan

- JONEŠ, E. FURNIVAL. Some accountancy problems of yesterday and to-day. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 181-7, discussion, p. 187-8.
 KNIGHT, L. C. Brief history of early accountancy. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 80-1.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Origin of present accounting principles. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939, p. 58-84.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility 1911-1936; essays and discussions, edited by Bishop Carleton Hunt. 2 vols. in 1. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1938, v. 1, 368p. v. 2, 421p. (bound together) Table of contents and analytical index, 1937, 20p.
- her, together) Table of contents and analytical index, 1937. 20p.
 NIXON, E. V. History of the accountancy profession and the position of the accountant in commerce. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936, p. 256-71, discussion, p. 272-86.)
 O'REILLY, HUGH S. Is accounting history important? Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 15-19.
 REAVELY, S. D. History and development of accounting. Cost and management, Feb. 1938, p. 41-5, 47-8, 50-61.
 ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Accounts—old and new. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 780-9.

- Charterea accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 780-9.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Recent accounting developments in the United States. Accountant, April 22, 1939, p. 535-44; April 29, 1939, p. 572-9.
 SHIMME, SHINSHICHIRO. Introduction of backback account in the United States.
- SHIMME, SHINSHICHIRO. Introduction of double-entry bookkeening into Japan. Account-ing review. Sent. 1937, p. 290-5.
 STRONG, GEORGE J. Italian influence on ac-counting. New Jersey Italian-American, March 2 1020
- TRIST. H. J. Accountant, public and non-public, his place in the realm of commerce. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 33-44.

Japan SHIMME, SHINSHICHIRO. Introduction of double-entry bookkeeping into Japan. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 290-5.

Latvia COMMERCIAL bookkeeping law in Latvia. (from Latvian economic review) Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 260-3.

Law

Denmark FORENINGEN AF STATSAUTORISEREDE REVISORER. Communication from Foren-ingen af statsautoriserede revisorer (Society of state-authorized accountants in Denmark) Copenhagen. Foreningen af statsautoriserede re-visorer, 1937. 37p.

TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Legal provisions for local governmental accounting as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 232.)

ACCOUNTING-Law-(Continued)

West Virginia PEYTON, T. W. Relation of West Virginia statutes to accountancy and books of account; address before the West Virginia society of certified public accountants at their annual meet-ing at the Hotel Prichard, Huntington, W. Va., October 20, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages.

WYOMING. State board of accountancy. Chap-ter 45, session laws of 1911 and Chapter 2, Wyoming compiled statutes, 1931. (approved Oct. 28, 1939.) 16p.

Machine methods

See Mechanical devices.

Mexico

ALATRISTE, ROBERTO CASAS. Accounting in Mexico. Journal of accountancy, March 1937 Accounting p. 197-204.

Problems

See also Examinations-American institute of accountants

- See also Examinations—American institute of accountants. ACCOUNTING questions; a department. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 74-7; Feb. 1936, p. 153-6; April 1936, p. 312-5; June 1936, p. 2473-5; July 1936, p. 73-6; Sept. 1936, p. 226-9; Dec. 1936, p. 475-7; Feb. 1937, p. 139-40; March 1937, p. 224-7; April 1937, p. 295-8; May 1937, p. 381-8; June 1937, p. 139-44; Sept. 1937, p. 62-4; Aug. 1937, p. 139-44; Sept. 1937, p. 225-8; Oct. 1937, p. 303-6; Nov. 1937, p. 383-6; Dec. 1937, p. 455-9; Jan. 1938, p. 65-7; Feb. 1938, p. 154-6; March 1938, p. 625-8; June 1938, p. 505-7; July 1938, p. 49-50; Aug. 1938, p. 17-9; Sept. 1938, p. 425-3; June 1938, p. 264-6; Nov. 1938, p. 425-3; June 1938, p. 264-6; Nov. 1938, p. 425-3; June 1938, p. 264-6; Nov. 1938, p. 321-3; Dec. 1938, p. 402; Jan. 1939, p. 127-8; April 1939, p. 212-3; May 1939, p. 300-1; June 1939, p. 373-4; July 1939, p. 56-7; Aug. 1939, p. 224-4; Sept. 1939, p. 345-7; Dec. 1939, p. 402-4. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Accounting questions and answers, selected from the files of the American institute of accoun-
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Accounting questions and answers, selected from the files of the American institute of accoun-tants, bureau of information. New York. Ameri-can Institute of accountants, January 1937. 127p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Examination questions prepared by the board of examiners of the American institute of ac-countants, May 1932, to November, 1935, inclu-sive. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1936. 306p. ______Same, May 1936 to November 1938. c1939. 209p.

- Same, May 1930 to Associate the second secon
- damentals. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., 1937. 107p.
 BYLAND, JOHN R. Accounting principles and practice. 2v. Chicago, Ill., Follett pub. co., c1935. 157p. and 154p.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 243p. (American business fundamentals)
 COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration
- and co., 2459. (Interical Outsides's funda-mentals)
 COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. Department of accountancy. Accountancy 220; study outline and problems. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 78p.
 COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. Department of accountancy. Accounting prob-lems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 202. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 59p.
 COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. Department of accountancy. Accounting prob-lems; notes and solutions for Accounting prob-lems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 271.

New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 73p.

- 1909, 73p. OLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. Department of accountancy. Accounting prob-lems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 272. New York, College of the City of New York, 1020 61b. COLLEGE 1939. 61p.
- FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Assignment mate rial (In his Introduction to principles of ac-counting. 1936. p. 479-620.)
 HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Problems in accounting. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co. 1938 6890
- HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Problems in accounting. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1938. 689p.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Accounting problems. New York, American institute of banking, sec-tion American bankers association, c1937, 109p.
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Cases. (In his Prin-ciples of accounting, c1937, p. 549-629.)
 KOHLER, ERIC L. Advanced accounting prob-lems. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 271b.

- 271p. KOHLER, ERIC L. Solutions for advanced ac-counting problems. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. loose-leaf. LINDSAY, MAURICE M. Holding companies and consolidation statements. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1939.

- and consolidation statements. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1939. 199p.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Problems. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936, p. 493-54.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Accounting principles. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 885p.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Problems. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 291-391.)
 MARDER, LOUIS. C.P.A. review: auditing and theory-questions with answers. Accountants digest, June 1936, p. 397-404; Sept. 1936, p. 314-23. Reprinted by the author, 165 Broadway, New York city, c1937. 40p. C.P.A. review: auditing and theory-questions with answers (supplement) and Accountants digest, Sept. 1939, p. 27-33.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and others. Class exercises and problems. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1938, p. 533-675.)
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN and KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Practice sets. (In their Ac-counting, clementary theory and practice. 1936, p. 591-679.)
 ACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR and BRYAN,

- RALPH DALE. Practice sets. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice. 1936. p. 591-679.)
 PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR and BRYAN, CHARLES T. Revised comprehensive propositions in accounting. New York, Business textbook publishers, inc., 1939. loose-leaf.
 PATON, WILLIAM A., BRIGGS, R. P., and LAING, L. L. Problems for "Essentials of accounting". Ann Arbor, Mich., EdWards brothers, inc., 1937. Parts 1 and 2. loose-leaf.
 PATON, W. A., BRIGGS, R. P. and LAING, L. L. Problems and practice sets for "Essentials of accounting". New York, Macmillan co., 1938. loose-leaf.
- loose-leaf.
- loose-leat. PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Principles of accounting. rev. ed. New York, Macmillan co., 1937. 519p. PROBLEMS and solutions. (Students' depart-ment). See each issue of the *Canadian chartered accountant*, beginning January 1936, to Decem-here 1036.

- accountant, beginning January 1936, to Decem-ber 1939. QUESTIONS and answers department. (see each issue of the Certified public accountant, begin-ning January 1936, to Dec. 1936.) REITELL, CHARLES and VanSICKLE, CLAR-ENCE. Problems. (In their Accounting prin-ciples for engineers. 1936, p. 393-512.) SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Basic accounting principles. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1937. 656p. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Theory and mechanics of accounting. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 475p.
- 475p.
- SEIDMAN, HENRY L. New York C.P.A. ques-

ACCOUNTING—Problems—(Continued)

- leaf.
- leat. von ROSEN, URBAN F. Classified questions and problems given by the Ohio state board of ac-countancy, autumn, 1931-spring, 1936, inclusive. Cleveland, Ohio, Fenn college book store, 1936, 312p. loose-leaf.

Records

See Records.

Rules and standards

See Accounting-Standardization.

Russia

- ussia
 ACCOUNTING control in U.S.S.R. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 81-2.
 BRAITHWAITE, W. Soviet accounting—a comparison. Accountant, June 4, 1938, p. 773-4.
 CLOSE, JOHN F. Some problems for the accountant in Russia today. Canadian chartered accountant, feb. 1936, p. 99-103.
 DIAKONOFF, V. A. Accounting in the U.S.S.R. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 100-8.
 Indian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 7-12.
 MILLER, J. Accounting and planning in the U.S.S.R. Accountant, June 4, 1938, p. 775-8.

South America PROBLEMAS de contabilidad. Primer suplemento de Selección contable, Agosto, 1937.

Standardization

- tandardization
 ACCOUNTANCY and the press (S.E.C. and accounting practices). Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-7.
 ACCOUNTANTS and the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 84-6.
 ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 309-12; Dec. 1937, p. 424-7.
 ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 323-4; July 1939, p. 2.

- p. 2. ACCOUNTING principles of today are sum-marized after two years' study. Controller, Feb.
- 1938, p. 46-7. ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION-ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION-Tentative statement of accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting association. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6 ALEXANDER, A. DeWITT. Procedure in ac-counting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 242-4.) AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION. Executive committee. Tentative statement of accounting principles affecting corporate reports. ACCOUNTING June 1936, p. 187-91. Re-printed. 18p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. General

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. General introduction and rules formerly adopted. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939, 8p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 1.) AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Statement by committees of American institute of accountants and New York state society of certified public accountants at a meeting with

the Honorable John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general of the state of New York, January 6, 1939. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 206-15. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 6-16. Same. 23 mimeographed pages.

- ANDREWS, FREDERICK B. Accounting prin-ciples. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 149-50. ARMSTRONG, J. E., JR. Accepted principles of accounting; delivered before the annual con-

- pages. ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART. Securities and exchange commission and current accounting practice. Texas accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 4-6. BARR, ANDREW. Comments on "A statement of accounting principles." Journal of accountancy, Accel 1030 comments on "A statement of accountancy,
- BÅRR, ANDREW. Comments on "A statement of accounting principles." Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 318-23.
 BERLE, A. A., JR. Accounting and the law. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 9-15. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 368-78.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Address at Mountain states accounting conference, Hotel Utah, Salt Lake City, May 31-June 1, 1938. 10 typewritten napes.
- pages. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Need for accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 30-7.
- LOUGH, CARMAN G. Relationship of the Securities and exchange commission to the accountant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, BLOUGH. 23-39.
- accountant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 23-39. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Some accounting prob-lems of the Securities and exchange commission; an address before the New York state society of certified public accountants on January 11, 1937. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeo-graphed pages. New York certified public accoun-tant, April 1937, p. 3-14. BROAD, SAMUEL J. Coöperation with the Securities and exchange commission. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 78-89. BROAD, SAMUEL J. Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountants. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 23-6.

- suatements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 23-6.
 BYERLY, F. P. Formulation of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 93-9.
 BYRNE, GILBERT R. To what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 364-79. Reprint. 16p. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary cele-bration, 1937, p. 243-54.
 CLADER, WILL-A Comments (on "Formulation of accounting statements" by Byerly) June 19, 1937, at Sky Top, Pa. 16 typewriten pages.
 COMMENTS on "A statement of accounting principles" by Wyman P. Fiske, James L. Dohr, and Andrew Barr. Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1938, p. 308-23.
 CONTROLLERS enthuse over prospect of stand-ardizing accounting principles. Controller, April 1938, p. 96-8.
 DISCUSSION of "A statement of accounting principles" by Statement of accounting principles" by Statement of accounting radiating accounting principles. Controller, April 1938, p. 96-8.

- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 328-9. FISHER, F. S., JR. Integration of legal and accounting concepts. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938, p. 49-54.) Phi delta delta, Nov. 1939, p. 17-24. FISKE, WYMAN P. Comments on "A statement

ACCOUNTING-Standardization-(Continued)

- ACCOUNTING-Standardization-(Continued) of accounting principles." Journal of accounting, April 1938, p. 308-16.
 FRANK, JEROME N. Accounting for investors: the fundamental importance of corporate earn-ing power; address before the eighth annual meeting of the Controllers' institute of America, Waldorf.Astoria Hotel, New York, Oct. 10, 1939. Washington, D. C. Securities and ex-change commission, 1939, 11 mimeographed pages. Journal of accounting concepts of profit. c1939. p. 167-257.
 GOETZ, BILLY E. What's wrong with account-ing; paper presented at the meeting of the Chi-cago chapter of the Society for the advancement of management, May 16, 1939. Advanced man-agement, fall 1939, p. 151-7.
 GREER, HOWARD C. Application of accounting rules and standards to financial statements. Accounting review. Dec. 1938, p. 334-45.
 GREER, HOWARD C. Reply by Professor Greer. (Accounting exchange.) Accounting re-view. March 1937, p. 79-82.
 GREER, HOWARD C. The what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of accounting re-view. March 1937, p. 79-83.
 GREER, HOWARD C. Undat excepted ac-counting principles. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting review. March 1938, p. 213-23. Accounting? Accounting review. March 1938, p. 25-31.
 GREER, HOWARD C. Would published financial statements be improved by more uniform appli-cation of accounting? Marcy 20 and 21, 1938. p. 133-50, discussion, p. 513-4.)
 GREEDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting re-quirements of the S.E.C. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 36-42.
 GREDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting re-quirements of the Securities and exchange com-mission for the preparation of financial statements. New York, Ronald press co. c1939, 5179.
 HARVEY, JOHN L. Some observations on ac-counting spacicion at Hotel Childont-Haddon Hall, Atlantic City, N. J., M
- LEGAL and accounting concepts. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 281. LENHART, NORMAN J. Principles of account-
- ing as applied to current practice. L.R.B. & M. Journal, Nov. 1936, p. 13-20, 23-4. LITTLETON, A. C. High standards of account-ing. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. ing. J 99-104.
- LITTLETON, A. C. Relation of function to prin-ciples. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 233-41. LITTLETON, A. C. Suggestions for the revision
- of the tentative statement of accounting prin-ciples. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64.

- LITTLETON, A. C. Tests for principles. Ac-counting review, March 1938, p. 16-24, LOFLIN, W. R. Recent accounting development; address _at__semi-annual meeting of Georgia
- LOFLIN, W. R. Recent accounting development; address at semi-annual meeting of Georgia society of C.P.A's--1939. 14 typewritten pages. McCALL, AMBROSE V. and FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, 1939. New York, Grosby press, inc., 1939. 35p. (includes proceedings) ——Report of conference . . January 6, 1939. 6 mimeographed pages. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13, with Institute reply.

- accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13, with Institute reply.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Accounting principles. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939. p. 20-84.)
 MATHEWS, GEORGE C. Address before the Milwaukee chapter, Wisconsin society of certified public accountants, Milwaukee, Wis., January 8, 1937. 15 mimeographed pages.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Accounting procedure and the stock exchange. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 65-6.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Introduction to discussion of 'A statement of accountants. Papers on accounting principles." (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure; 1938, p. 1-2.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Principles of accounting of accounting principles." (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles of accounting principles. Science, 1937, p. 423-5.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Uniformity in accounting. Havians of the stock of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 428-5.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Uniformity in accounting. Papers on the stock of accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 428-5.
- 1.8
- p. 1-3. MORRIS, A. W. Comments and criticisms on "A statement of accounting principles" prepared by Thomas Henry Sanders, Henry Rand Hat-field and Underhill Moore; paper presented before the sixteenth annual conference of certified public accountants of the Pacific northwest. no date. 17 typewritten pages. NELSON, EDWARD G. Note on principles of accounting. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 350-5.
- 350-5

- accounting, Alcounting Theorem, Dec. 1909, p. 350-5.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Comments on "A statement of accounting principles." Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 196-207.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Objectives of accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 229-33.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Statement of accounting principles. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy. April 1938, p. 328.
 PINKERTON, PAUL W. Accordance with accepted principles of accounting consistently maintained. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants. Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, 1938.
 p. 12-19.) ceedings p. 12-19.)
- p. 12-19.) PRACTICE before Securities and exchange com-mission. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 17-20. PRONOUNCEMENTS on accounting procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 145-7.
- ECENT pronouncements on accounting. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. RECENT 89.92

- RECENT S.E.C. pronouncements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 463-4. ROCKEY, CHARLES S. Suggested standards of practice. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1939, p. 196-7. ROREM, C. RUFUS. Accounting theory; a critique of the tentative statement of accounting principles. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 133-8. RUDD GEODCE HARMEN
- RUDD, GEORGE HARVEY. Bases for accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 245-52.)
 S.E.C. hearings. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 194-5.

ACCOUNTING—Standardization—(Continued)

- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Comments on the statement of accounting principles. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, March 1937, p. 76-9.

- Ing exchange) Accounting votes, inclusion of the Securities and exchange commission upon accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1936.
 p. 66-74.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Proposed reforms of accounting. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 75-112.)
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Recent accounting developments in the United States. Accountant. April 22, 1939, p. 535-44; April 29, 1939, p. 572-9.
 SANDERS. THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD,
- Ian, Apin 22, 1999, p. cor. 1, 21, 1999, p. 572-9.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, and MOORE, UNDERHILL.
 Statement of accounting principles. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938, 138p.
 SAXE, EMANUEL. Accountancy advances. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 5-7.
 SCOTT, DR Accounting principles and cost accounting. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 70-6.

- counting. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 70-6. SCOTT, DR Tentative statement of principles. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 296-303. SCOVILL, H. T. Summary of certain testimony before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting confer-ence. Papers on accounting procedure and re-lated matters, June 16 and 17, 1939, p. 106-14.) Same. 14 typewritten pages. SNYDER, RALPH W. Accounting principles. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 116.
- (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938,

- (Editorial) Journal of accounting principles. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 190-1. STAUB, WALTER A. Uniformity in account-ing; talk given at the annual meeting of the American institute of accountants held in Cin-cinetic Obio Sentember 26-29, 1938, as part ISLAUD, WALTER A. Omfolinity in accounting, ing talk given at the annual meeting of the American institute of accountants held in Cincinnati, Ohio, September 26-29, 1938, as part of a symposium on the general subject of A statement of accounting principles. 10 type-written pages. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 3-.)
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Critique of the tentative statement of accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 55-62.
 TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 350-63. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 316-21.
 TO what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? A round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 231-64.)
 TORBET, ALBERT W. Need for unified and coördinated effort in the development of a statement of the principles underlying the practice of accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting - . . . May 19, 20, 1939, p. 515.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. United States of America before the Securities and exchange commission. United States of America before the Securities and exchange commission. United States of America before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson & Robbins, inc.; testimony of expert witnesses. Washington, D. C., Government principe of accounting principles underlying problems and a state of Ac Se for accounting principles underlying problems and exchange commission.

- of expert witnesses. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1939, 638p. WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Accounting problems and the S.E.C.; paper presented at a meeting of the Illinois society of certified public accoun-tants, December 16, 1938, at Chicago. 10 mimeographed pages. Same as "Approach to accounting problems" presented before Indian-apolis chapter of N.A.C.A. WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Approach to account-ing problems. New York, National association

- of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 10, section 1, p. 575-89.)
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. "Effective criticism." (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 41.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Some current problems in accounting; address before annual meeting of American accounting association at Detroit, Michigan, December 28, 1938. 10 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 117-26.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Standardization of accounting principles; address before the Controllers institute of America, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, N. Y., September 27, 1938. 12 mimeographed pages. (In Controllers institute of America, 1938, p. 138-51.)
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Subjects for accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 234-41.)
 WHAT are "accepted" accounting principles, attorney asks. Controller, March 1937, p. 80, 82, 91.
- 82, 91. WINTER.
- 82, 91. /INTER, SIDNEY G. Need for uniform and coördinated effort in the development of a statement of the principles underlying the prac-tice of accounting. (In Ohio state university. *Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting*. . . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 16-23, discussion, p. 23-6.)

- System building and installation See also Cost and factory accounting—System building and installation.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Planning an accounting system. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 180-6; May 1938, p. 249-57; July 1938, p. 401.7 401-7
 - 401-7. GORDON, WILLIAM D. and LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Modern accounting systems. ed. 2. revised. New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1937.
 - 1937. 473p. ECKERT, J. BROOKS. Accounting systems; design and installation. New York, Ronald HECKERT,

 - design and installation. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 514p.
 MOFFATT, A. Accounting efficiency through a standard practice. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 473-8.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and others. Installation of a simple accounting system. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. p. 549-51.)
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. Accounting systems, their design and installation. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, 1936. 737p.

Teaching See Education.

Terminology See Terminology.

- See Terminology.
 See Terminology.
 Uniform methods and systems
 See also Accounting—Standardization; specific
 business, industry or trade.
 ARMSTRONG, E. G. Uniform accounting methods and uniform published statements. Bulletin
 of the American institute of banking, Oct. 1938,
 p. 525-31.
 BENTLEY, HARRY C. and LEONARD, RUTH
 S. Supplement: uniform systems. (In their
 Bibliography of works on accounting by American authors. 1935, v. 2. p. 291-363.)
 HAUN, ROBERT D. Uniform accounting. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 8-11, 16.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Available uniform accounting
 manuals—List of uniform systems of trade
 associations. New York, National association of
 cost accountants, June 1, 1939, (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 2, p. 1266-71.)
 STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States. (Address delivered at the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the
 Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages.
 Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60.
 (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth
 anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 133-59.)

- ACCOUNTING and finance for Pennsylvania muni-cipalities. Rowland, Charles J. and Faylor, Homer O.
- ACCOUNTING and inflation. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 367-9.

ACCOUNTING and the law. Berle, A. A., Jr.

- ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 309-12; Dec. 1937, p. 424-7; March 1938, p. 99-103; June 1938, p. 212-3.
- ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 323-4; July 1939, p. 2.
- ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (Release 1210) Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 13-4.
- ACCOUNTING clinic. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 2-3; May 1939, p. 9.

ACCOUNTING CLINICS

See Accounting conferences.

ACCOUNTING concepts of profit. Gilman, Stephen.

Michigan accounting conference, Michigan state college, November 6, 1936. East Lansing, Mich., Michigan state college—Division of liberal arts,

- Michigan accounting conference, Michigan state college. November 6, 1936. East Lansing, Mich., Michigan state college—Division of liberal arts, 1936. 31, 1936. All accounting procedure and related matters presented at the first Middle Atlantic states accounting conference, held at Richmond, Va., June 16, and 17, 1939—theme: Accounting in the public interest. Richmond, Va., Virginia society of public accountants, 1939. 120.
 MIDDLE Atlantic states accounting conference. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 13; May 1939, p. 12-3.
 MOUNTAIN STATES ACCOUNTING CONFERENCE. Program, May 31—June 1, 1938, Hotel Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah. 5p.
 MUNICIPAL accounting conference. Certified public accountant conference. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 265.
 MUNICIPAL accounting conference. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 365-6.
 OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY. College of commerce and administration, Department of accounting, Proceedings of the first institute on accounting held at the Ohio state university, May 20, and 21, 1938. Columbus, Ohio, Ohio state university College of commerce and administration, 1938, 154 PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting state college, State College, Pa. State college, Pa., Harrisburg chapter, Pennsylvania state college, State College, Pa. State college, Pa., Harrisburg chapter, Pennsylvania state college, State College, Pa. State college, Pa., Pariburg chapter, April 1939, p. 196.
 THIRD national accounting conference. Editorial Journal of accountancey, April 1939, p. 505-9.

- ACCOUNTING control at the New York world's fair. McCaffrey, George D.
- ACCOUNTING control in the U.S.S.R. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 81-2.
- ACCOUNTING controls in the federal government. Bartelt, E. F.

- ACCOUNTING COURSES See also Education. ACCOUNTANCY education. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 171-2. BACAS, PAUL E. Content of the auditing course. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 263-6. BENTLEY SCHOOL OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE. Special bulletin. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance (1937). 22n.

 - Bentley school of accounting and manage (22), 22), COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. De-partment of accountancy. Accountancy 220; study outline and problems. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 78p. COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. De-partment of accountancy. Accounting problems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 202. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 59p.

 - INTERNATIONAL INC. Correspondence course in accounting. 6v. Chicago, Ill., International accountants society, inc. c1939. LANGER, CHARLES H. and KNAUTZ, HARRY A. Walton federal income tax accounting and procedure, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Walton pub. co., c1935. Ioose-leaf.
 - c1935. loose-leaf. McMULLEN, STEWART YARWOOD. Federal income tax accounting; a practical course for basic instruction. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. loose-leaf.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

ACCOUNTING COURSES—(Continued)

ROSENKAMPFF, A. H. Are you getting the most out of your accounting courses? Account-ing ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 4, 38.

- ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENTS
 BARTIZAL, JOHN R. Private accounting. Diary of Alpha kaopa psi, May 1938, p. 23-4.
 FAIRMAN, J. F. Engineering and accounting economics. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 452-3, 479.
 HARRISON, R. E. W. Accountant as a member of a profit-earning team; paper presented at the annual meeting of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, June 17th, 18th and 19th, 1937. Philadelphia, Pa., Clarke-Harrison, inc., 1937. 13 mimeographed pages.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Organization of the accounting department. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation, c1938, p. 473-7.)
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. Organization of p. 29-37.)

 - 29-37.)
- ACCOUNTING economy by machine methods. Graham, Willard J.
- ACCOUNTING, elementary theory and practice. Owens, Richard Norman and Kennedy, Ralph Dala Dale.
- ACCOUNTING features of the Illinois corporation act. Payne, Robert E.

ACCOUNTING FIRMS See Accountants' office.

- ACCOUNTING for A.R.P. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 16-8.
- ACCOUNTING for air transportation. Dunnion, т. ј.
- ACCOUNTING for and the control of scrap. Carroll, William J.
- ACCOUNTING for butane cylinders. 2 typewritten pages.
- ACCOUNTING for by-products and joint products. Greer, Howard C.
- ACCOUNTING for construction projects. Ellis. George D.
- ACCOUNTING for control of finished goods. Wibbelsman, C. J.
- ACCOUNTING for corporations. Mannix, Raymond
- ACCOUNTING for corpus and income. Sherritt, Lawrence W.
- ACCOUNTING for customers' property in a book manufacturing plant. Ammon, A. J.
- ACCOUNTING for distribution costs. Metropolitan life insurance company. Policy-holders service bureau.
- ACCOUNTING for economic management. Blacklock, D. S.
- ACCOUNTING for finished stock storage in a hosiery mill. (Forum section) New York, National as-sociation of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938; (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 35-7.)

ACCOUNTING for fixed assets. Stempf, Victor H.

- ACCOUNTING for foreign-exchange contracts. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 76-7.
- ACCOUNTING for frozen foods. (Accounting ques-

Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. tions) 403-4.

- ACCOUNTING for Buckenmyer, A. J. heavy machine construction.
- ACCOUNTING for hospital investments. Peters, Ralph W.
- ACCOUNTING for insurance claims. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 273-4.

ACCOUNTING for investors. Frank, Jerome N.

- ACCOUNTING for investors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 290-2.
- ACCOUNTING for life insurance policies. Kruchten, E. Q.
- ACCOUNTING for machines on loan. Cooper, Edward J.
- ACCOUNTING for machines on loan. (Forum sec-tion) Wallick, Edgar U.
- ACCOUNTING for machines on loan. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bul-letim, v. 19, no. 19, section 2, p. 1143-6.)
- ACCOUNTING for moisture loss on cotton yarn. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, No. 5, section 2, p. 344-6.)
- ACCOUNTING for nonferrous metal mining proper-ties and their depletion. Fernald, Henry B., Peloubet, Maurice E. and Norton, Lewis M.
- ACCOUNTING for partnerships. Allred, John Burnis.
- ACCOUNTING for pension payments. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, n. 425-7.
- ACCOUNTING for plant and equipment. Metropoli-tan life insurance company. Policy-holders service bureau.
- ACCOUNTING for power in the paper and pulp in-dustry. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, sec-tion 2, p. 1349-53.)
- ACCOUNTING for productive materials. Urich, John E.
- ACCOUNTING for profits and losses on foreign ex-change for 1935. Lopata, Edwin L.
- ACCOUNTING for public information. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 284.
- ACCOUNTING for public property. Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.
- ACCOUNTING for research costs. (Forum section.) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 421-3.)
- ACCOUNTING for returnable containers. Smith, Charles W.
- ACCOUNTING for savings and loan association. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, June 15, 1936, p. 22.
- ACCOUNTING for set-up time. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 2, p. 542-3.)

- ACCOUNTING for small automobile agencies. Path-finder service bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 4-6.
- ACCOUNTING for tax expense. countant, Jan. 1937, p. 15-6. Certified public ac-
- ACCOUNTING for the depletion of oil lands. Andruss. Harvey A.
- ACCOUNTING for the manufacture of mechanical rubber products. Halligan, C. W.
- ACCOUNTING for the usual business in which the sale of feed is a major activity. Bennett, George E.
- ACCOUNTING for treasury stock and payment of dividends from capital surplus. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 74-6.
- ACCOUNTING for truck operations. Torrence, Gerald A.
- ACCOUNTING for underwriting and registration expenses. (Accounting questions) countancy, June 1938, p. 506-7. Journal of ac-
- ACCOUNTING fundamentals. MacFarland, George A. and Ayars, Robert D.
- ACCOUNTING in law practice. Graham, Willard J. and Katz, Wilber G.

ACCOUNTING in Mexico. Alatriste, Roberto Casas.

- ACCOUNTING in relation to regulation of security sales. Mathews, George C.
- ACCOUNTING in the public interest. Collins, Clem w
- ACCOUNTING in the public interest. Stempf, Victor H.
- ACCOUNTING in the public interest. Wilcox, Edward B.
- ACCOUNTING in the U.S.S.R. Diakonoff, V. A.
- ACCOUNTING libraries. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 29.

ACCOUNTING LITERATURE

- ACCOUNTING LITERATURE See also Bibliographies, catalogues, etc.
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Some notes on the early literature and development of cost ac-counting in Great Britain. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 1935; Aug. 14, 1937, p. 225-31; Aug. 21, 1937, p. 253-5; Aug. 28, 1937, p. 283-7; Sept. 4, 1937, p. 313-6; Sept. 11, 1937, p. 343-4.
 JONES, E. FURNIVAL. Some accountancy prob-lems of yesterday and today. Incorporated ac-countants journal, Feb. 1937, p. 181-7, discus-sion, p. 187-8.
 ROSS, T. EDWARD. Record of forty years, 1898-1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1938, 40th anniversary number. 570.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Significant re-cent accounting literature. Harvard business re-

- cent accounting literature. Harvard business re-view, Spring number, 1937, p. 366-88. Reprinted. TEXT-books. Accountant student and Accoun-tants journal, Nov. 1936, p. 193-4.

ACCOUNTING MACHINES See Mechanical devices.

ACCOUNTING manual for colleges. Mills, Gail A.

ACCOUNTING manual for counties of Tennessee, by W. H. Read. Tennessee, University of.

ACCOUNTING MANUALS

See also Accounting departments. HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Manual of accounting procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation, c1936. p. 498-500.)

ACCOUNTING methods must be revised to meet the

increasing burden of taxation. Montgomery, Robert H.

- ACCOUNTING PERIODICALS See Periodicals and newspapers.
- ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES See Accounting-Standardization.
- ACCOUNTING principles. and Noble, Howard S. McKinsey, James O.
- ACCOUNTING principles. drews, Frederick B. (Correspondence) An-
- ACCOUNTING principles. der, Ralph W. (Correspondence) Sny-
- ACCOUNTING principles and cost accounting. Scott, DR
- ACCOUNTING principles and practice. Byland, John R.
- ACCOUNTING principles and practice. Carmichael, Geoffrey.
- ACCOUNTING principles and procedure; cost ac-counting. Langer, Charles H.
- ACCOUNTING principles and procedure; municipal accounting lectures. Langer, Charles H.
- ACCOUNTING principles and procedure on estate accounting; lectures 44 and 45. Langer, Charles H. and Greeley, Harold Dudley.
- ACCOUNTING principles for coöperative cotton gin associations, by Otis T. Weaver. United States. Farm credit administration. Cooperative division.
- ACCOUNTING principles for engineers. (formerly published under the title of: Cost finding for engineers) Reitell, Charles and Van Sickle, Clarence
- ACCOUNTING principles of today are summarized after two years' study. Controller, Feb. 1938, p. 46-7.
- ACCOUNTING problems. Inghram, Howell A.
- ACCOUNTING problems and the S.E.C. Werntz, William W.
- ACCOUNTING problems in the canning industry. Rountree, George V.
- ACCOUNTING problems of public utilities. Living-ston, D. M.
- ACCOUNTING problems under the Robinson-Pat-man act. Freer, Robert E.
- ACCOUNTING problems under the Robinson-Pat-man act. Retzlaff, Herbert.
- ACCOUNTING procedure for an oil company. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 187-8.
- ACCOUNTING procedure for coöperative grain ele-vators, by E. B. Ballow. United States. Farm credit administration.

ACCOUNTING procedure for foreclosed proper-ties. Savings and loans, Nov. 1939, p. 20.

ACCOUNTING PUBLICATION SERIES Contents

- Contents: Chatters, Carl H.—Accounting manual for small cities. No. 1. Harris, Walter O.—Municipal general ledger and principal supporting records. 1934. No. 2. Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.—Standard practice in muni-cipal accounting and financial procedure. 1937. No. 3. No. 3.

ACCOUNTING PUBLICATION SERIES-(Cont.)

- Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.—County finance and accounting standards, 1937. No. 4. Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.—Accounting for public prop-erty. 1939. No. 5.
- ACCOUNTING publishing associates. Brief on tax economy. New York, Accounting publishing asso-ciates, c1939. 20p.
- clates, C1939. 20p.
 ACCOUNTING questions; a department. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 74-7; Feb. 1936, p. 153-6; April 1936, p. 312-5; June 1936, p. 473-5; July 1936, p. 73-6; Sept. 1936, p. 226-9; Decc. 1936, p. 475-7; Feb. 1937, p. 139-40; March 1937, p. 224-7; April 1937, p. 295-8; May 1937, p. 381-3; June 1937, p. 456-9; July 1937, p. 262-4; Aug. 1937, p. 139-44; Sept. 1937, p. 235-6; Dect. 1937, p. 303-6; Nov. 1937, p. 383-6; Dec. 1937, p. 303-6; Nov. 1937, p. 383-6; Dect. 1937, p. 325-5; May 1938, p. 425-8; June 1938, p. 154-6; March 1938, p. 425-8; June 1938, p. 352-5; May 1938, p. 425-8; June 1938, p. 505-7; July 1938, p. 49-50, Aug. 1938, p. 117-9; Sept. 1938, p. 132-4; Feb. 1938, p. 422-3; May 1939, p. 42-4; Feb. 1939, p. 122, March 1939, p. 300-1; June 1939, p. 324-3; May 1939, p. 300-1; June 1939, p. 322-3; May 1939, p. 300-1; June 1939, p. 273-4; Nov. 1939, p. 345-7; Dec. 1939, p. 402-4.
 ACCOUNTING questions and answers American
- ACCOUNTING questions and answers. American institute of accountants.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS See Records.

ACCOUNTING records as related to income tax returns. Fernald, Henry B.

- ACCOUNTING RELEASES ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 498-500

 - ACCOUNTING releases of the Securities and exchange commission. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 37-47.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Coöperation with the Se-curities and exchange commission. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 78-89.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. S.E.C. release no. 10. (Commentator) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1939, p. 179-80.
 EFFECTIVE criticism. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 136-7.
 S.E.C. releases. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 106-7.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 1.

 - inision. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charging losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securi-ties and exchange commission, April 1, 1937.
 - 1 mimeographed page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 2. (inde-pendence of accountants) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 6, 1937. 1 mimeographed page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-

 - UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 3 (write-ups in the consolidation of accounts) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Sept. 13, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 4. (administrative policy on financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 25, 1938. 1 mimeographed nage. page. UNITED
 - NITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 5. (treatment of dividends on a corporation's own capital stock held in sinking fund) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.

- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 6. (treatment of excess of proceeds from sale of treasury stock over the cost thereof) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the commission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission. May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 8.
- change commission, analy 10, 1950. 6 minutes
 graphed pages.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 8. (creation of surplus by appraisal in balance-sheets representing the accounts of promotional companies) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 20, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 9. (balance-sheet presentation of preferred or other senior classes of capital stock having preferences on involuntary liquidation in excess of the par or stated value.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1
- mimeographed page. NITED STATES. mimeographed page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 10. (unamortized bond discount and expense appli-cable to bonds which, prior to maturity, have been retired out of the proceeds of a sale of capital.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1 mimeo-graphed page.
- exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Accounting problems and the S.E.C.; paper presented at a meeting of the Illinois society of certified public accountants, December 16, 1938, at Chicago. 10 mimeographed pages.
 Same as "Approach to accounting problems" presented before Indianapolis chapter of N.A.C.A.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Approach to accounting problems. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 10, section 1, p. 575-89.)

- ACCOUNTING releases of the Securities and ex-change commission. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 37-47.
- ACCOUNTING reports and their meaning to the public. Blough, Carman G.
- ACCOUNTING requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements, Greidinger, B. Bernard.

ACCOUNTING RESEARCH

- CCOUNTING RESEARCH See also Accounting—Standardization; Research. ACCOUNTING research. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1937, p. 2-3. ACCOUNTING research. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 363-4. ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION. Annual meeting. Accountant, March 16, 1939, p. 363

- Annual meeting. Accountant, March 10, 2007, p. 363.
 ACCOUNTING research association. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 730-1; Dec. 5, 1936, p. 759; Dec. 19, 1936, p. 841; Jan. 2, 1937, p. 15-21; Oct. 9, 1937, p. 480-1; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 265-6; April 2, 1938, p. 448. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 73-6.
 ACCOUNTING research association—Tentative statement of accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting association. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6.
 ALEXANDER, A. DEWITT. Procedure in accounting research. (In American institute of accounting research.)

- ALEXANDER, A. DeWIIT. Procedure in ac-counting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 242-4.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Foreign operations and foreign exchange. New York, American institute of accountants, Dec. 1939.

ACCOUNTING RESEARCH-(Continued)

p. 29-36. (Accounting research bulletins, no. 4) (special). AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS

- Committee on accounting procedure. General introduction and rules formerly adopted. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939, 8p. (Accounting research bulletin no. 1.) AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure Ouvering
- MERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-re-organization or corporate readjustment amplifi-cation of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept.

- Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-reorganization or corporate readjustment amplification of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 27p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 3.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 2.)
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Survey of French contributions to the study of cost accounting research bulleting the 19th century; published on behalf of the Accounting research association, by Gee & co. (publishers), ltd. Supplement to the Accountant, June 26, 1937. 37p.
 ERRATA. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 240.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Accounting research and service department. (Correspondence) Journal of accountanty. ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and service department. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 24, section 1, p. 1365:90.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and service department. Practice in accounting for raw materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 24, section 1, p. 1365:90.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and service department. Practice in accounting for raw materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 14, section 1, p. 785-809.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and technical service department. Practice in accounting for raw materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 14, section 1, p. 785-809.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and technical service department. Practice in
- COUNTANTS. Research and technical service department. Practice in applying overhead and calculating normal capacity, compiled by Research and technical service department. New York. National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 3, p. 917-34.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Objectives of accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939. p. 229-33.) PRONOUNCEMENTS on accounting procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 145-7
- p. 145-7

- p. 145-7
 RESEARCH department. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 196.
 RESEARCH establishment. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 129-30.
 ROWLAND, STANLEY W. Experience, research and speculation in accounting. Accountant, April 1, 1020 5445.
- ROWLAND, STARDET W. EXperience, research and speculation in accounting. Accountant, April 1, 1939, p. 442-4.
 RUDD, GEORGE HARVEY. Bases for account-ing research. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects, 1939, p. 245-52.)
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Introduction to round-table discussion: Progress in accounting research. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects, 1939, p. 227-8.)
 THEORIES and practice. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 316-21.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Subjects for accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 234-41.)

- ACCOUNTING research. C journal, Jan. 1937, p. 2-3. Certified accountants'

- ACCOUNTING research. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 363-4.
- ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION ANNUAL meeting. Accountant, March 16, 1939, p. 363.
- ACCOUNTING research association. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 730-1; Dec. 5, 1936, p. 759; Dec. 19, 1936, p. 841; Jan. 2, 1937, p. 15-21; Oct. 9, 1937, p. 480-1; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 265-6; April 2, 1938, p. 448. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 73-6.
- COUNTING research association Tentative statement of accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting associa-tion. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6. ACCOUNTING

- ACCOUNTING RESEARCH BULLETINS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Contents:
 - No. 1-General introduction and rules formerly adopted. No. 2—Unamortized discount and redemption

 - No. 2—Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded.
 No. 3—Quasi-reorganization or corporate read-justment; amplification of institute rule no. 2 of 1934.
 No. 4—Foreign operations and foreign exchange.
 ERRATA. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 343.
 SOME old "rules" revived—Bond discount— Quasi-reorganizations. (Editorial) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 453-6.
- ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

See Accounting—System building and installa-tion; Cost and factory accounting—System building and installation; also under names of special business or industry.

- ACCOUNTING system for utilities under holding company act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Sept. 15, 1936, p. 10-1.
- ACCOUNTING systems design and installation. Heckert, J. Brooks.
- ACCOUNTING systems, their design and installa-tion. Thompson, William Rodney.
- ACCOUNTING terminology for Canadian practice. Dominion association of chartered accountants. Committee on accounting terminology.

ACCOUNTING THESES ACCOUNTING theses.

- ACCOUNTING THESES ACCOUNTING theses. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 286-9. FJELD, E. I. Selection of a thesis topic in the field of accountancy. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 10-11. LITTLETON, A. C. Accounting theses: a list compiled. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 313-5
- 313-5. STICE, HILDA R. Accounting theses. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, Sept. 1939,
- ACCOUNTING theses. (Accounting exchange) Ac-counting review, Sept. 1938, p. 286-9.
- ACCOUNTING training as a preparation for the business world. Saliers, Earl A.
- ACCOUNTING treatment of proceeds from life insurance. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 224-7.
- ACCOUNTING treatment of sums repaid to gov-ernment under Vinson act. Controller, March 1939, p. 88-9.

ACCOUNTS

See also Classification; Names of special accounts ACCOUNTS

as evidence. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 48-9.

ACCOUNTS-(Continued)

- ACCOUNTS—(Continued)
 BACK, W. J. Preparing accounts from incomplete records. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 406-13, discussion, p. 413-4. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 425-30.
 BENTLEY, HARRY C. Functions of accounts. Boston, Mass. Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1937. 167p.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Account. (In his Introduction to accounting, 1938, p. 28-37.)
 CARTER, W. ROGER. Presentation of final accounts. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, March 1937, p. 331-9. Accountant, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 376-84.
 FTIZGERALD, A. A. Accounts as an aid to business management. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 270-4.
 FRICKER, R. A. Accounts from incomplete records. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 240-2.
 KEENS, THOMAS. Business accounts and how to read them. (from the Accountant's journal, London.) Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1936, p. 407-14.

- to read them. (from the Accountants' journal (London.) Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1936, p. 407-14.
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 88-153, 266-88.
 LESLIE, A. C. Account stated. Commonwealth journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 515-6.
 McCARTHY, J. E. Realistic accounts and statements—for management—for labor; address the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 535-6.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Valuation accounts. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939, p. 247-70.)
 NELSON, BERTRAM. Interpretation of accounts. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937, Pat 1, p. 42-57.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Accounts (In heir Principles of accounting, rev. ed. 1937, p. 36-53.)
 ROBERTS, R. A. Accounts in narrative form. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 168-9.
 ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Accounts_of and new. Chartered accountain May 1938, p. 780-9.

- Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 780-9. SALIERS, EARL A. Mixed accounts. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938, p. 111-26.) SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Account and the ledger—Special column journals and controlling accounts. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 74-99; 208-32.) STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Control accounts in relation to costing. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 237-40, discussion p. 240-1.
- ACCOUNTS as evidence. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 48-9.

ACCOUNTS CURRENT MacDONALD, A. R. Accounts current. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 118-22.

- ACCOUNTS of governmental authorities; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 288-310.)
- ACCOUNTS of trustees. (Editorial). Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 93-5.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

CCOUNTS PAYABLE See also Payables. ALLEN, ROBERT T. and CRAFTS, J. AN-DREW. Accounts payable recording under book-keeping machine procedure. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 282-92. FIELDING, H. G. Buying organization and ac-

- counts payable. (Printed with: Hill, S. A. Retail method of merchandise accounting. June 1939. p. 14-23.) HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Accounts payable and cash disbursements procedure. (In his Account-ing systems, design and installation, c1936. p. 417-37.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Costs and payables. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 1, p. 137-59; 1938, p. 256-306.) TROUANT, D. L. Notes and accounts payable and accrued expenses. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 97-108.)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

- See also Collection of accounts; Receivables. AMTHOR, EDGAR R. Efficient accounts receiv-able operation; address made before the Balti-more group of controllers, Jan. 9, 1935. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1935.
- York, National retail dry goods association, 1935. mimeographed.
 ASSIGNMENT of accounts receivable. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 258.
 BACAS, PAUL E. and others. Accounts and notes receivable. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 231-44.)
 BALDWIN, C. F. Assignment of accounts receiv-able. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 372.
 BALDWIN, C. F. Should assignments be secret? Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 6-9.

- BÅLDWIN, C. F. Should assignments be secret? Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 6-9.
 BENNER, GEORGE. Aging accounts receivable; tests which find out profit stealers. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 21-3.
 BISHOP, J. F. Thirty-day accounts receivable. Balance sheet, May 1939, p. 11-4.
 CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. New trend in accounting—accounts receivable. Chicago, Ill., Ditto, inc. (1939?) 11p.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Strange confirmation. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, Nov. 1939, p. 349.
 DUNNINGTON, G. H. Something you should know about selling A/R. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1938, p. 9-10.
 FRASER, ANGUS. Accounts receivable financing on the non-notification plan. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 215-9, discussion p. 219-20, 229-34.
 GILMAN, LEWIS E. Discussion of loans secured by accounts receivable. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1935, p. 155-7.
 HAGIOS, J. ANTON. Accounts receivable and sales audit procedures in N.R.D.G.A. stores. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Nov. 1936, p. 13, 47-8.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Billing and accounts receivable procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation, c1936, p. 207-24.)
 JACKSON, HERBERT W. Recordak system of accounts receivable operation; address before the Credit management division, N.R.D.G.A. silver jubilee convention, Hotel Pennsylvania, New York City. New York, Recordak corpora-tion, 1936. 7p.
 KEITH, G. F. Revised system of accounts receivable. Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 11-3, 15. LAYTON, W. B. Receivable. Credit and finan-cial management, Feb. 1938, p. 11-3.
 LIFSHEY, LOUIS J. Watching "marinal" ac-counts receivable. Credit executive, Feb. 1936, p. 50-2.
 MARVIN, J. ARTHUR. Examination of notes and accounts receivable. Accounting ledger, Oct 1939 p. 24-6 38

- p. 50-2. MARVIN, J. ARTHUR. Examination of notes and accounts receivable. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 23-6, 38. MATTISON, E. A. Bank financing of accounts receivable. Burroughs clearing house, Nov. 1938, p. 10-2.
- NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Developments in accounts receivable procedure; round table dis-cussion. (In its Year book of retailing, 1937.
- cussion. (in its fear over of resuming, results of p. 22-9.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Results of sur-vey on unit post accounts receivable practices. (from Credit management division, second an-

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE—(Continued)

- nual convention) New York, National retail dry goods association. (1935). 6p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Round table dis-cussion on accounts receivable procedure, six-teenth annual convention, Controllers' congress, Chicago, Illinois, June 12, 1935. National retail dry goods association, 1935. 10 mimeographed
- NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Credit management division. Accounts receivable procedure. (In its Credit management year book, 1937-1938, p. 223-6.)
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Accounts receivable and credit management. (In his Retail store opera-tion. c1937, p. 575-616.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Revenues and receiv-ables. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 1, p. 160-204; 1938, p. 307-32.)
 REGARDING notice to debtors in connection with loans on accounts receivable. Robert Morris associates monthly bulketin, May 1939, p. 296.
 SALE of accounts receivable. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 188-9.

- 199.0
- 188.9. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Accounts receivable. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 199-212.) SILBERT, THEODORE H. Accounts receiv-able financing. Bankers magazine, June 1936, p. 521-3. Van GELDER, E. C. Application of recordak to accounts receivable. Balance sheet, Sept. 1937, p. 6.3.

- p. 6-8. WEDGE, P.
- p. 6.8.
 WEDGE, P. J. Let's see the record—what's the accounts receivable picture? Credit and financial management, May 1939, p. 30.
 WOOLLEY, E. S. One way to make loans bankable. Bankina, Jan. 1939, p. 28-9.
 ZEIGLER, N. B. Accounts receivable records and methods. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. hulletin, v. 19, no. 10, section 1, p. 581-94.) Printed with: Luenstroth, Harold W. Customer's accounts. tomer's accounts.

Verification

- ACAS, PAUL E. Examination of accounts receivable. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 29-32. BACAS.

- receivable. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 29-32.
 MARSH, WILLIAM F. Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939, p. 76-90.)
 MARVIN, J. ARTHUR. Accounts receivable; comments on paper prepared by Mr. C. H. Towns at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19, 1939. 11 typewritten pages.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Accounts and notes receivable and cash. (In his Audit working papers. 1937, p. 77-91.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. McKesson and Robbins case; effect on accounting practice in the U.S.A. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1939, p. 72-33.
 SCHOLEFIELD, J. B. Verification of inventory and accounts receivable; introductory statement preceding round table discussion at meeting of Arizona society of certified public accountants, Phoenix, Arizona, May 20, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
- pages.
 pages.
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Auditors' examinations of accounts receivable, address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. T. Mav 19-20, 1939, 15 mimeographed pages.
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Examination of accounts receivable. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 148-53.

ACCOUNTS receivable. Marvin, J. Arthur.

ACCOUNTS receivable records and methods. Zeigler, N. B.

ACCRUAL BASIS See Accounting-Bases. ACCRUALS HOWARD,

- CCRUALS HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Prepayments and accruals of revenue and expense. (In his *A B C of accounting*, 1938. p. 90-106.) JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Alternative method of accounting for accruals and deferments. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937. p. 254-67.) KESTER, ROY B. Merchandise, other mixed accounts, and accruals. (In his Principles of accounting, ed. 4, c1939. p. 88-11.) McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Accrued and deferred items. (In their Ac-counting principles. c1939. p. 249-70.) PINKERTON, PAUL W. Concepts of the accrual of income. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 69-71.)
- ACCURATE timekeeping is essential to use of stand-ard costs. Taylor, Paul C.

ACHELIS, JOHNFRITZ

Factoring. Robert Morris associates monthly bulle-tin, Dec. 1936, p. 147-50, discussion, p. 151-7. Factoring's growth. (from Banking) Credit and financial management, Feb. 1937, p. 32, 35.

ACKERMAN, SAUL B.

- CKERMAN, SAUL B. Auditing procedure outline of insurance coverages for an industrial concern. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 15-7, 40. Insurance; a practical guide for various forms of coverage, the policy contracts and the protection afforded purchasers. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 599p. ______Questions and problems to accompany. Insurance. c1939. 145p.

- ACKNOWLEDGMENT. (Editorial) Journal of Ac-countancy, Jan. 1937, p. 13-4.
- ACT for the better regulation and examination of public accounts; Saturday the sixth day of October, one thousand seven hundred and ninety-eight, royal assent given. Accountant, supple-ment, Dec. 19, 1936.
- ACTION against Irish accountants; Leech v. Stokes and others. *Accountant*, May 15, 1937, p. 710-1; May 22, 1937, p. 744; June 12, 1937, p. 853-4.
- ACTION against Irish accountants; solicitor's appeal dismissed; Leech v. Stokes and others. Accoun-tant, July 10, 1937, p. 55-7.
- ACTION alleging negligence against auditors dis-missed; Diamond T. Montreal limited v. James G. Ross et al. and Frank B. Wadsworth. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 205-7. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434. (Findings and opinions.)
- ACTION for negligence; verdict for defendant. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 485-9.
- ACTION for professional charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 114.
- ACTIVITIES of the institute during the current year. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Jan. 15, 1936, p. 9-20.
- ACTIVITIES of the institute's staff. Certified public accountant, July 1939, p. 7-13.

- ACTUARIAL SCIENCE ACTUARIAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA. Trans-actions, October 14th and 15th, 1937. New York, Actuarial society of America, 1937. 658b. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACTUARIES. Record, American institute of actuaries, 1935; v. 24, numbers 49, 50, with index. Chicago, Ill., American institute of actuaries, 1935. 533p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACTUARIES. Record, American institute of actuaries, 1936; v. 25, numbers 51, 52, with index. Chicago, Ill., American institute of actuaries, 1936. 842p.

ACTUARIAL SCIENCE—(Continued)

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACTUARIES. Record, American institute of actuaries. 1937; v. 26, numbers 53, 54, with index. Chicago, III., American institute of actuaries, 1937. 877p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACTUARIES. Record of the American institute of actuaries; Index to volumes sixteen to twenty-five. Chi-cago, III., American institute of actuaries, 1937.
- MacLEAN, JOSEPH B. and MARSHALL, ED-WARD W. Distribution of surplus. New York, Actuarial society of America, 1937. 154p. (Actuarial studies no. 6.)

ACTUARIAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA Transactions, October 14th and 15th, 1937. New York, Actuarial society of America, 1937, 658p.

ADAMS, A. L.

New uniform systems of accounts. Journal of the ion, Dec. 1938, American water works association, Dec. p. 1978-85.

ADAMS, E. SHERMAN

Reserve against depreciation. Bankers monthly, Nov. 1939, p. 680-2.

ADAMS, F. A.

Importance of an internal audit for National auditgram, June 1939, p. 15-20. for banks.

ADAMS, FERRELL H.

Reporting county finances. Municipal finance, Aug. 1937, p. 5-8.

ADAMS, ORVAL W. Where from here. (address before the Mountain states accounting conference of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 15 typewritten pages.

ADAMS, W. CLARENCE

Electric cooperatives scan wholesale power rates. Public utilities fortnightly, Sept. 15, 1938, p. 368-77.

ADAMSON, A.

General methods with statistical aids, in analysis and interpretation of accounting statements. Ac-countant, July 18, 1936, p. 98-102; July 25, 1936, p. 130-4.

Observed variations in form and presentation to business profit and loss accounts. Accountant, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 589-93; Nov. 6, 1937, p. 621-5.

ADDING MACHINES

See Mechanical devices.

- ADDITIONAL views as to accounting for undis-tributed earnings tax. Controller, Sept. 1936, p. 198-201.
- ADDRESS to Kansas licensed municipal public ac-countants. Ellis, George P.
- ADDRESSES presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance of the American institute of accountants, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. American institute of accountants.

ADJUSTMENTS

- ADJUSTMENTS
 ALM, I. W. Combining, adjusting and closing entries. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 432-6.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Adjusting entries. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 176-243.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Adjustments and statement preparation—Adjusting and closing the ledger. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 152-79.)
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Adjusting the books. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936. p. 114-27.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Adjustments and the accounting statements. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 83-107.) 107.)

PATON, WILLIAM A. Periodic operations and adjustments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 1, p. 228-71.)
PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Adjusting entries. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 121-49.)
SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Adjusting entries. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 15-62.)
SCHMIDT, LEO A. Adjustments. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 75-100.)
SMITH, FRANK P. Surplus adjustments in the iron and steel industry. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 379-90.

ADMINISTRATION

- See Factories-Management; Government; Management.
- ADMINISTRATION of federal finances. Selko, Daniel T.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

- DMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
 ADMINISTRATIVE expenses in successive insolvency proceedings. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 262-71.
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Selling and administrative costs. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936, p. 228-40.)
 DISTRIBUTION of selling and administrative expenses. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 2, 3-4.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of general administrative costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry, c1937, p. 504-16.)
- their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 504-16.)
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Application of selling and administrative expense to product. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 245-73.)
 WALKER, PERCY H. Establishment charges—their components and methods of allocation. Accountant, Nov. 25, 1939, p. 571-6.
 WYLIE, HARRY L. Control of administrative expenses. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 180-6.)

- ADMINISTRATIVE expenses in successive insolven-cy proceedings. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 262-71.
- ADMINISTRATIVE management in the government of the United States. President's committee on administrative management.

ADMINISTRATIVE process, Landis, James M.

ADMINISTRATIVE provisions of the income tax law. O'Bryan, W. H.

ADMINISTRATORS

See Executors and trustees.

ADVANCED accounting problems. Kohler, Eric L.

- ADVANCED cost accounting. Schlatter, Charles F.
- ADVANCED purchases of seasonal merchandise. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy. July 1938, p. 49-50.

ADVANTAGES of a paid secretary. Loflin, William

ADVERTISING

- See also Professional ethics—Advertising. ADVERTISING. (In Business executive's hand-book, 1937. p. 273-403.) ANDERSON, FLOYD. Retail advertising, plan-ning and control. Balance sheet, Nov. 1939, p. 18-20.
- p. 18-20. CONVERSE, PAUL D. Essentials of distribu-tion. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 58&p. DYGERT, WARREN B. Advertising principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 212p. (American business funda-matter) mentals) GOODE, KENNETH M. How to write adver-

AGRICULTURE—(Continued)

- tising. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 168p. (American business fundamentals) HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Harvard business re-ports, v. 11; cases on coöperative advertising, with introduction and commentaries by Neil Hopper Borden. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., c1932. 352p.
- Hopper Borden. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., c1932. 352p.
 MOORE, FRANK S. Legal protection of good-will; trade marks—trade emblems—advertising —unfair competition. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 218p.
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Retail advertising. (In his *Retail store operation*. c1937. p. 155-90.)

Auditing SCOTT, H. BRUCE. Auditing advertising trans-actions. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 262-3.

- Budgeting HICKIN, R. A. Advertising budget. Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 220-4.
- ADVERTISING. Certified accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 38-40.

ADVERTISING accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 325-6.

ADVERTISING AGENCIES

ADVENTION CONTINUES ACCOUNTING JUBIEN, ARTHUR E. Advertising agency ac-counting. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 383-96.

Statistics

- of business, 1935; advertising agencies. Wash-ington, D. C., Department of commerce, Bureau of the census, March 1937. 10p.
- ADVERTISING expense allocation. Banking, April 1938, p. 82.

- ADVERTISING EXPENSES
 ADVERTISING expense allocation. Banking, April 1938, p. 82.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of advertising costs. (In their Mana-gerial control, instruments and methods in in-dustry. c1937. p. 485-503.)
 POPE, EDWARD B. Is our mailing profitable? This system shows how to compute costs. (re-printed from Printers' ink, March 31, 1938.) 4p.
- ADVERTISING in another profession. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 89.
- ADVERTISING principles and practice. Dygert, Warren B.

ADVISORY COUNCIL OF STATE SOCIETY PRESI-DENTS

ANOTHER constructive comment — 110 Coston proceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy,

AEROPLANES

See Airplanes.

AFTER incentives-what? Sayre, B. M.

AGAIN — How much rent? Horwath hotel accoun-tant, July 1938, p. 2, 6.

AGARD, R. F.

Topeka modernizes its accounting; a manual de-scribing how mechanical accounting equipment is applied to the preparation of records in the auditor's office, City of Topeka, Kansas. De-troit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. (1939) 71p.

AGENCIES

See also Advertising agencies; Collection agencies; Insurance agencies.

ROBERTSON, D. CLAUDE. Phases of mercan-tile law; agency and partnership. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 126-46.

Accounting

CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Agency and branch accounting. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 229-39.)

AGENTS

- GENTS EXPLANATION on balance-sheet of advances to trustee. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 303-6. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Laws and regulations governing the recognition of agents, attorneys, and other persons represent-ing claimants before the Treasury department and offices thereof. Washington, D. C. Treasury department, Office of the secretary, Sept. 15, 1936. 21p. (Department circular no. 230) (re-vised) Supplement, section 3, as revised May 11, 1939. mimeographed.
- 11, 1939, mimeographed.

AGG, THOMAS R., joint author See Marston, Anson and Agg, Thomas R.

AGNEW, ALBERT

- Objections to assessments—and appeals. Federal accountant, April 1939, p. 177-9. Powers of commissioners to amend assessments; what is evasion? Federal accountant, Feb. 1939,
- p. 44-7.
- AGREED rates of depreciation. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 3, 1936, p. 412.

AGRICULTURAL ADJUSTMENT ACT COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Agri-cultural adjustment act. (In its Federal revenue laws, January, 1936. p. 201-17.)

AGRICULTURAL ADJUSTMENT ADMINISTRA-

- TION BACKMAN, JULES. Agricultural adjustment administration in the United States, 1933-1936. (In his Government price-fixing. c1938. p.
- AGRICULTURAL bookkeeping. McNall, Preston E. and McMurry, Karl F.

- AGRICULTURAL MACHINERY DUN and BRADSTREET, inc., and Natural business year council. Farm equipment manu-facturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 4, July 1938) DUN and BRADSTREET, inc. Analysis of the 1936 operations of farm implement dealers.
 - 1936 operations of farm implement dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey, no. 24.)

Statistics UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on manufacturers of agricultural machinery and implements, regis-tered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, March 1939. 57p. (Report no. 6.)

AGRICULTURAL RELIEF TAX See Taxation, United States—Agricultural relief.

AGRICULTURE

GRICULTURE See also Agricultural machinery; Creameries; Dairying; Fruit; Livestock; also names of special products, e.g. Cotton. CONVERSE, PAUL D. Marketing farm products. (in his Essentials of distribution, 1936. p. 253-

- 78.)
- HOPKINS, JOHN A. Elements of farm manage-ment. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 390p.

AGRICULTURE—(Continued)

- Accounting
- Accounting
 FARM worker's monthly labor record. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1939, p. 7-8.
 HOPKINS, JOHN A. Checking up on perform-ance—use of records. (In his Elements of farm management, c1936. p. 313-26.)
 McNALL, PRESTON E. and McMURRY, KARL F. Agricultural bookkeeping. New York, Long-mans, Green and co., 1937. 205p.
 SCHMIDT, E. D. Comparative farm statements and how to get them. Rand McNally bankers monthly, March 1936, p. 142-3.
 SHULTIS, ARTHUR. Farm accounting and en-terprise cost system. Pathfinder service bulletin, Jan. 1936, p. 1, 2-8.
 SMITH, JAMES A. Accounting for produce growing and shipping. Pathfinder service bulle-tin, March 1939, p. 1, 3-6, 8.

Australia

CAMPBELL, J. M. Some aspects of pastoral accounts and taxation. Brisbane, Aus., Accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, inc., Oct. 1938.

Canada CHOWN, W. F. Other aspects of agricultural accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 334-41.

- Great Britain BROWNE, G. S. Farm accounts—the farmer's view. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 85-7. FLEMING, ALLAN J. Farm accounts. Accoun-tants' magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 497-508. HART, N. B. Farm accounts—the accountant's view. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 87-9. INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts, farm accounts. Incorporated accountant's journal, April 1938, p. 234-5. WITNEY, D. Comparative study of farm accounts and costs. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1937,
- and costs. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 448-59.
- Budgeting HOPKINS, JOHN A. Elements of farm manage-ment. c1936. p. 83-93; 204-16; 271-97; 327-37.
- Canada
- NICHOLS, M. E. Our duty to the prairies. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 267-72.

- Cost accounting McNALL, PRESTON E. and McMURRY, KARL F. Simple cost finding. (In their Agricultural bookkeeping. 1937. p. 134-58.)
 SHULTIS, ARTHUR. Farm accounting and enterprise cost system. Pathfinder service bul-letin, Jan. 1936, p. 1, 2-8.

- Great Britain DINSDALE, D. H. Farming costs. Cost accoun-tant, May 1936, p. 360-6. WYLLIE, JAMES. Farm cost accounting. Accoun-tant July 4, 1936, p. 18-22, discussion, p. 22-3; Cost accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 60-6, discussion, p. 66-9.

Costs WILLIAMSON, PAUL S. Costs and returns from farm enterprises from 82 cost-account farms, 1937. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell university, Oct. 1938. 35p. (Cornell extension bulletin, no. 395.)

Great Britain

WITNEY, D. Comparative study of farm accounts and costs. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 448-59.

Credit

- redit DIAMOND, Z. N. and LETZLER, ALFRED. New Frazier-Lemke act: a study. *Columbia law review*, Nov. 1937, p. 1092-1135. SCHERICH, EDGAR R. Commercial banking from the standpoint of agriculture. Washington,

D. C., Farm credit administration, May 1939.

D. C., Fain 1997 62p. TEXT of farm credit act of 1937 as enacted into law-amends various farm credit measures. Commercial and financial chronicle, Aug. 28, 1937, p. 1325-8.

Marketing McCALLUM, JOHN E. Agricultural marketing schemes and the natural products marketing act. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 342.53

Statistics

STINE, O. C. Income parity for agriculture. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and weakh. 1937. v. 1. p. 327-37; discussion, p. 338-48.)

AHEARN, V. P. Federal wage-hour law, interpreted and explained. Rock products, Nov. 1938, p. 70-3.

AHRMANN, H. A. Accounting under the social security act. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 353-73.)

AIKMAN, A. H.

tants' magazine, March 1937, p. 147-61; April 1937, p. 203-16.

AIKMAN, W. M. Relation of the legal and accounting professions. Texas accountant, May 1938, p. 1. Unemployment insurance. Texas manufacturer, Jan. 1936, p. 6-9.

- AIR CONDITIONING
 BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Air conditioning and the income tax. Heating, piping and air conditioning, Sept. 1938.
 EDISON ELECTRIC INSTITUTE. Air conditioning, 1935; factual data on air conditioning installations—manufacturers coöperation with utilities. New York, Edison electric institute, September 1935. 24p.

Costs

- ESTIMATING air conditioning operating cost. (reprinted from Heating and ventilating, Oct. 1935.) EVANS, R. W. Air conditioning cost. Buildings
- 1935.) EVANS, R. W. Air conditioning cost. Buildings and building management, Nov. 1938, p. 29-30, 31; Jan. 16, 1939, p. 57-9. SUTHERLAND, DAVID L. Air conditioning data, Buildings and building management, Nov. 1938, p. 28, 31.

AIR TRANSPORTATION

- AIR TRANSFORTATION.
 Accounting
 DUNNION, T. J. Accounting for air transporta-tion. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1352-65.) Printed with: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for airplane production.
 GAMLIN, FRANK. Commercial aviation statistics. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 40-3.

Cost accounting DUNNION, T. J. Accounting for air transporta-tion. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1352-65.) Printed with: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for airplane production.

AIRCRAFT INDUSTRY

- AIRCRAFT INDUSTRY Cost Accounting EBERT, GEORGE M. Cost accounting for air-plane production. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1333-51.) MALLET LEONADD C. Davidance in acceleration
 - MALLET, LEONARD C. Problems in costing airplanes. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

AIRCRAFT INDUSTRY-Cost accounting-(Cont.) bulletin, v. 18, no. 20, section 1, p. 1152-8.) Printed with: Seeber, Carl L. Cost system in a job order plant.

AIRPLANE INDUSTRY

See Aircraft industry.

AIRPLANES Cost_accounti

BEERT, GEORGE M. Cost accounting for air-plane production. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants. Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section I, p. 1333-51.)

Costs

- Sets MALLET, LEONARD C. Problems in costing airplanes. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 20, section 1, p. 1152-8.) Printed with: Seeber, Carl L. Cost system in a isb order blant.
- job order plant. WRIGHT, THEODORE P. Factors affecting the cost of airplanes. United States air services, March 1936, p. 23-5.

AIRPORTS

See also Air transportation.

Auditing

IRELAND, F. Audit of airport authority accounts. Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 597-8.

AITKEN, J. N., JR. Future relationship of the certified public accoun-tant and the public. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 200-6.)

AITKEN, WILLIAM

Financial statements of grain exporters and ship-pers. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 331-46.

AIYAR, V. SANKAR Indian income-tax (amendment) act, 1939; a re-view. Indian accountant, May 1939, p. 205-211; June 1939, p. 230-44.

ALABAMA. PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

General rules for electric, gas, water, telephone and telegraph utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Montgomery, Ala., Public service commission, 1936. 69p.

ALABAMA-Governor's no. 148, laws 1936 (House bill no. 248-XX) an act to amend section 21 of the code of Alabama of 1923. (approved, February 27, 1937.) Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 22.

ALABAMA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS

Membership roster, constitution and by-laws, 1936-1937. 10p.

ALASKA LEGISLATURE

Chapter 65; an act establishing a territorial board of accountancy and defining its powers and providing a penalty for the unlawful use of titles and degrees, and apportioning funds for the organization and maintenance of such board. (approved March 11, 1937.) Juneau, Alaska, Office of the secretary, 1937. 5p.

- ALASKA-JUNEAU GOLD MINING COMPANY CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Other side. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov.
 - (CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Somewhat muddled. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 202-3.

ALATRISTE, ROBERTO CASAS Accounting in Mexico. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 197-204.

ALATRISTE, SEALTIEL, JR. Introducción a la técnica de los costos. Mexico, D. F., Union tipografica editorial Hispano-Americana, c1938. 374p.

ALBEDI, LOUIS M.

Field warehousing. Bulletin of the Am. institute of banking, Oct. 1938, p. 514-22. American

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE STORES See Liquor trade.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

See Beverages; Liquor trade:

ALDERSON, WROE

- Effect of price controls on non-price competition. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 356-62.
- ollowing family budgets from Providence Portland. Dun's review, Dec. 1938, p. 24-8. Following Providence

ALDRICH, LAURENCE W.

Writing of reports to stockholders an art. Con-troller, March 1936, p. 53-5.

- ALDRICH, WINTHROP W. Appraisal of the federal social security act; an address before the Institute of public affairs, University of Virginia, Charlottesville, Va., July 10, 1936. New York, Chase national bank, 1936. 47p. Trust companies, July 1936, p. 61-71. Stock market from the viewpoint of a commercial banker; an address at a luncheon meeting of the Rochester chamber of commerce, Rochester, New York, on Thursday, October 14, 1937. New York, Chase national bank, 1937. 32p.

ALEXANDER, A. DeWITT

- Future developments within the profession. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 207-9.)
- Procedure in accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 242-4.)

ALEXANDER, J. E. Contracts and accounting procedure for leased departments. Bulletin of the National dry goods association, May 1937, p. 25-6, 72.

ALEXANDER, PETER English hire purchase act. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 410-3.

ALEXANDER PUBLISHING COMPANY, INC. How to reduce the undistributed profits tax; com-piled from the Alexander federal tax service. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 137p.

ALEXANDER PUBLISHING COMPANY, INC. DUNNE, HAROLD J. Alexander publishing com-pany. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 220-1.)

ALFORD, EDWIN D. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400-1.

ALFORD, H. E.

Purchase orders. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1938, p. 4-5.

ALFORD, L. P. Henry Laurence Gantt; leader in industry. New York, American society of mechanical engineers 1934. 315p.

ALGEBRA CRENSHAW, BOLLING H., SIMPSON, THOMAS MARSHALL, and PIRENIAN, ZAREH M. Commercial algebra; college course. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1935, 174p.

ALISON, COLIN A. and GUNN, J. A. L. Should economists use accountancy forms to dem-

- ALISON, COLIN A. and GUNN, J. A. L .- (Cont.) onstrate their science? Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 150-6.
- ALL-SOUTH accounting conference. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 2-4.
- ALLCOCK, HARRY
 - British decimal coinage. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 821-2.
- ALLEGATIONS of negligence withdrawn. Accoun-tant, March 27, 1937, p. 444. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 242.
- ALLEGED negligence by accountants; judgment for defendants. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 805-15.
- ALLEGED negligence by accountants; Leech v. Stokes bros. and Pim. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 417-21.
- ALLEGED negligence by accountants; Leech v. Stokes bros. and Pim; judgment for defendants. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 95-103.
- ALLEGED negligence of accountants; action in the Irish Free State. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 638-41; Nov. 14, 1937, p. 675-6.
- ALLEGED negligence of accountants; an Irish Free State decision. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 137-42.
- ALLEN, A. R. High cost of selling. Australian accountant, April 1937, p. 185-91.
- ALLEN, A. STUART
 A. P. D. Accountancy. July 1939, p. 362-3.
 Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.)
 Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 3-9.
 Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 484-7; Nov. 5, 1938, p. 497-9. (In V. inter-nationaler prifungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band C. thema 6, p. 1-27.) 1-27.)
 - Excess profits tax. Accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 28-30.

ALLEN, A. STUART and NELSON, BERTRAM

National defence contribution; a commentary on the provisions of part 3 of the finance act, 1937. Supplement to Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937. 23p.

ALLEN, B. P.

- Auditing in small banks. National auditgram, March 1937, p. 6-7, 16. Auditors and comptrollers as scientific executives. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 25-8. Auditors and comptrollers—key men of future American banking. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 1, 11-4.

ALLEN, CHESTER A.

Function of the public accountant in fiduciary accounting. (extracts) New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 21-4.

ALLEN, E.

Implications of economic planning. Cost accoun-tant, April 1937, p. 343-5.

ALLEN, FRANCIS G. Certified audits—for whom? Plan suggested to make accountants responsible solely to stock-holders. Barron's, Dec. 26, 1938, p. 3.

ALLEN, FRANCIS T. General principles of insurance. New York, Long-mans, Green and co., 1936. 241p. (American business fundamentals)

ALLEN, H. K.

Costs and services of local government in selected

Illinois counties. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, College of commerce and business administration, 1936. 53p. (Bulletin no. 52.)

ALLEN, L. H. Accounting insurance and taxes. Savings and loans, March 1937, p. 12-4.

ALLEN, L. L. Methods and costs of road stabilization in Minne-sota. Roads and streets, March 1937, p. 63-4, 66, 68.

ALLEN, M. R. Coöperation between the accountant, secretary and auditor. Brisbane, Accountants' and secre-taries' educational society, August, 1936. 24p. Hints to examination candidates. Brisbane, Ac-countants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), Sept. 1937. 22p.

ALLEN, ROBERT T. and CRAFTS, J. ANDREW

Accounts payable recording under bookkeeping machine procedure. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 282-92.

ALLEN, THOMAS H. Depreciation as it applies to physical properties. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 6-10.

ALLERDICE, CHARLES A. Logarithms. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 104-9.

ALLEY, JAMES B. Some corporate reorganization problems, (reprinted from the American bar association journal, Aug.

1936.) Sp.
 Work of the Reconstruction finance corporation in connection with 77B. (reprinted from April 1936 Corporate reorganizations (a monthly maga-zine) New York, N. Y.)

ALLIED CHEMICAL and DYE CORPORATION V. STEEL and TUBE COMPANY OF AMERICA MAY, GEORGE OLIVER. Cross examination in Allied chemical and dye corporation v. Steel and tube company of America. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 283-6.)

ALLISON, COLIN A. and GUNN, J. A. L. Should economists use accountancy forms to dem-onstrate their science? Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 341-4.

ALLOCATION of dividend to income. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

ALLOCATION OF INCOME

See Income.

ALLOCATION of proceeds of unproductive prop-erty. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

ALLOWANCES. Dawson, William A.

ALLRED, JOHN BURNIS

- Accounting for partnerships. Wichita Falls, Texas, The author, c1937. 90p. Accounting for partnerships; partnership definitions
- and organization accounting problems. Path-finder service bulletin, Sept. 1937, p. 1, 3, 5-8. Accounting for the small oil producer. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1936, p. 1, 3-5, 6.

ALLTON, ROBERT A.

Sewer rental method of sewerage financing; water department collection experiences. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1938, p. 1285-98. Water works and sewerage, Aug. p. 1285-98. #. 1938, p. 758-60.

ALM, I. W.

Combining adjusting and closing entries. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 432-6.

ALPHA KAPPA PSI FRATERNITY

Alpha kappa psi survey of general business cur-ricula in 64 undergraduate schools of commerce and business administration, made by committee on education and research. Indianapolis, Ind., Alpha kappa psi fraternity, 1937. 1 sheet.

ALTMAN, GEORGE T.

Changes in the capital gain or loss provisions under the revenue act of 1938. Tax magazine,

Changes in the capital gain or loss provisions under the revenue act of 1938. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 643-6.
Combining the gift and estate taxes. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 259-61.
Community property: avoiding avoidance by adoption in the revenue act. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 138-41, 184.
Insurance trusts under inheritance and estate tax laws. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 72-3, 118.
Integration of gift and estate taxes. Trusts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 627-30.
Introduction to federal taxation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 166p.
Introduction to federal taxation (1938 act). ed. 2, rev. and enl. New York, Commerce clearing house; inc., c1938. 238p.
Mortgagors' losses: capital or ordinary? Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 387-9, 418.
New trends in taxing trust benefits; decision of supreme court in Burnet v. Wells susceptible to strange implications. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 199-203, 247, 250. p. 199-203, 247, 250.

- ALTMEYER, ARTHUR J. Federal old age security program; address over a network of the National broadcasting company, Washington, D. C., November 6, 1936. 8 mimeo-

 - Washington, D. C., November 6, 1936. 8 mimeographed pages.
 1939 social security act amendments; effect of revisions of old age insurance law. *Credit and financial management*, Oct. 1939, p. 24, 26, 28, 30.
 Progress under the social security act; address before the biennial conference on social welfare, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Sept. 25, 1936. Washington, D. C., Social security board, 1936. 16 mimeo. pages.

ALUMINUM

See Foundries, Aluminum.

- ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Capital gains and undistributed profits taxes; a suggested program. (In Investment bankers as-sociation of America. Twenty-sixth annual con-vention. 1937, p. 173-81; 191-215.) Commercial and financial chronicle, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 3071-3. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 145-50, 174-6, 183.
 - Current trends in federal finances and taxation; a discussion of the undistributed profits and capital gains tax. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 315-23, 374.

 - 374.
 Federal finances and taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 714-8, 760.
 Federal revenue legislation, the undistributed profits tax; an address before the Economic club of Chicago, February 18, 1937. 23p.
 Principal changes in revenue act analyzed, effects described. Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 319-30.
 Problems in federal taxation and finance. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taration held in conjunction with the annual match.

 - Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress. Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 75-86.) Surtax and its background; address before round table—Surtax on undistributed corporate earn-ings, at 25th annual meeting of the Chamber of commerce of the United States, April 26-29, 1937, Washington, D. C. 16 mimeographed pages. Taxation of undistributed profits from the business point of view. (In Tax policy league inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 90-112.) Trend of taxation and its effect on business. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 61-8.

 - 61-8.

01-0. Undistributed profits tax. (In National tax asso-ciation. *Proceedings*, 1937. p. 173-9.) Undistributed profits tax and stock dividends and stock rights. *Journal of accountancy*, Dec. 1937, p. 414-22. Reprinted. 11p.

- ALYEA, LOUIS F. Enforcement of real estate tax liens and consti-tutional barriers to remedial legislation for tax delinquents in each of the United States. Chi-cago, Ill., Municipal finance officers association, 1939. not paged.
- AMALGAMATION. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1939, p. 2-3.
- AMALGAMATION in America. Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 372.
- AMALGAMATION scheme between the Corporation of accountants and the London association of certified accountants (summary of a recent cir-cular to members of the Corporation of accoun-tants). Irish accountant and secretary, Nov.-Dec. 1938, p. 161.

AMALGAMATIONS

See Consolidations.

- AMENDMENTS to by-laws. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 11-3.
- AMENDMENTS to the finance bill. Accountant, tax supplement, July 22, 1939, p. 291-3.

AMERICAN ACADEMY OF ACCOUNTANCY Check-list of audit procedures. Chicago, Ill., Amer-ican academy of accountancy, c1937. 79p.

- AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION Convention report; proceedings of the twenty-first annual convention, Chicago. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 68-75.

 - 76-82. n.
 - Accounting
 - Accounting Accounting
 - Accounting

- Executive committee Tentative statement of accounting principles affect-ing corporate reports. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 187-91. Reprinted. 18p.
- AMERICAN accounting association. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 17-8; Jan. 1938, p. 18-20. Educational business manager and buyer, Feb. 1936, p. 21.

AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION MONO-GRAPHS Contents:

Mason, Perry. Principles of public-utility deprecia-tion. (No. 1.) Daniels, M. B. Financial statements. (No. 2.)

AMERICAN APPRAISAL COMPANY

Securities act of 1933 and registration statements as they relate to appraisal reports on property facts and values. New York, American appraisal company, (1937). 80 mimeographed pages. company, (1 (Bulletin 884)

AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION

- Decennial report of the American arbitration asso-ciation on the progress of commercial arbitration, 1926-1936. New York, American arbitration association, 1936. 29p.
- AMERICAN arbitrator and his office. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 311-27.

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGIATE SCHOOLS OF BUSINESS Proceedings of the eighteenth annual meeting, held at Harvard graduate school of business administration, Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., April 22, 23, 24, and 25, 1936. Fayetteville, Ark., University of Arkansas, Charles C. Ficht-ner, secretary, American association of collegiate schools of business, c1936. 242p. Same, 19th annual meeting ... 1937. 101p. Same, 20th annual meeting ... 1938. 155p. Same, 21st annual meeting ... 1939. 217p.

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF UNIVERSITY IN-STRUCTORS IN ACCOUNTING

Convention report . . . proceedings of the twentieth annual convention, New York. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 74-7.

AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION

Earning power of banks. New York, American bankers association, Jan. 1939. 93p. Service charge survey, 1938. New York, Amer-ican bankers association, Jan. 1939. 36p. (Bul-letin no. 77.)

Uniform account analysis. New York, American bankers association, c1939. 12p. Uniform account analysis plan. Banking, July

1939, p. 49, 72.

Bank management commission

- Commercial bank management; loan administration policies. New York, Research council, Amer-ican bankers association, 1938. 24p. (Booklet ican ba no. 21.)

 no. 21.)
 Earnings and expenses of all insured commercial banks, 1937. New York. American bankers association, Research council, 1938. 32p.
 Survey of personal loan department experience and practice. New York, American bankers association research council, 1938. 20p. (Bulletin 74 Mar. 1038) 74, May 1938)

Research council Savings deposits and depositors in banks and trust companies of the Unitied States for the years 1928, 1933, 1938, with a summary of the inter-vening years. New York, American bankers association, 1938. 8p.

State bank division

Trust division

Guide to trust fees, with recommended cost account-ing system; schedule of 1932, revised in 1936. New York, American bankers association, 1936. 52p.

AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION

- MERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION

 Canons of professional ethics also canons of judicial ethics. Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1933). 32p.
 Same, Sept. 30, 1937. 50p.
 Constitution and by-laws (1938-1939) rules of procedure of the house of delegates (adopted January 5, 1937) Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1938). 63p.
 International double taxation. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 611-2, 628.
 Opinions of the committee on professional ethics annotated; with supplement of May 4, 1936 to July 24, 1937, numbers 155 to 174. Chicago, Ill., American bar association, 1936, 1937. 301p. supplement, p. 320-27.
 Proceedings of the seventh tax clinic of the American bar association. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 663-5, 692-8.
- Proposed amendments to the constitution and by-laws of the American bar association. Chicago, Ill., American bar association, 1936. 30p.

Committee on federal taxation

- Committee on federal taxation A.B.A. federal tax committee report. Tax maga-sine, Sept. 1936, p. 524-7, 568-9. Report of the standing committee on federal taxa-tion presented to and approved by the house of delegates of the American bar association, at the sixtieth annual meeting, Kansas City, Missouri, September 27, 1937. Chicago, III., American bar association, 1937. 10p. Suggested changes in federal taxation. Trust com-panies, Aug. 1938, p. 210-12. Tax clinic of the committee on federal taxation, American bar association; open forum proceed-ings, George M. Morris, chairman. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 643-8, 675-83.

See Lawyers, Coöperation with.

- Special committee on co-ordination of

- Report of the special committee on co-ordination of the bar. Chicago, Ill., American bar associa-tion, 1936. 11p.
- AMERICAN BUSINESS FUNDAMENTALS, by Justin H. Moore and others. edited Contents:
 - Allen, Francis T.—General principles of insurance. Bennett, George E.—Bookkeeping principles and
 - practices. urton, Norman Lee.—Introduction to cost ac-Burton, N counting.
 - Carmichael, Geoffrey-Accounting principles and
 - practice. Doubman, J. Russell—Principles of retail merchan-
 - dising. vgert, Warren B.—Advertising principles and Dygert practice.

Goode, Kenneth M.—How to write advertising. Steiner, William Howard—Mercantile credit.

AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. FINAN-CIAL ADVISORY SERVICE

- CIAL ADVISORY SERVICE
 Balance sheet in college and university financial reports. (reprinted from Educational business manager and buyer.) Washington, D. C., American council on education, March 1936. (Financial advisory bulletin 3.)
 College and university business organization. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Oct. 1938. 26p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 13.)
 College finance. (reprinted from Educational record.) Washington, D. C., American council on education, November 1935. 16p. (Financial bulletin 1.)

- education, November 1935. 16p. (Financial bul-letin 1.) Current investment practices of colleges and uni-versities. Washington, D. C., American council on education, May 1936. 23p. (Financial ad-visory bulletin 4.) Current practices of colleges and universities in obtaining professional counsel and services. (reprinted from the Journal of higher educa-tion.) Washington, D. C., American council on education, May 1936. Sp. (Financial advisory bulletin 5.) Depreciation of real property in educational insti-
- education, May 1936. 8p. (Financial advisory bulletin 5.)
 Depreciation of real property in educational institutions. (reprinted from Education, D. C., American council on education, November 1935. 9p. (Financial bulletin 2.)
 Endowment income and investments, 1926-1935. Washington, D. C., American council on education, April 1937. 21p. (Series 3-Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 8.)
 Endowment income and investments, 1926-1937. Washington, D. C., American council on education, November 1938. 16p. (Series 3-Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 14.)
 Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 14.)
 Financial advisory service of the American council on education; its organization and activities, October 1936. 4p.
 Fitting the accounting system to the plan of reporting recommended by the National committee on standard reports. Washington, D. C., American, April 1936, 14p. (Financial advisory bulletin 6.)
 Funds subject to annuity agreements. Washington.

AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. FINAN-CIAL ADVISORY SERVICE—(Continued)

- CIAL ADVISORY SERVICE—(Continued)
 D. C., American council on education, April 1939. 32p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 3, no. 15.)
 Independent audits of colleges and universities. Washington, D. C., American council on educa-tion, March 1938. 13p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 12.)
 Inventory of plant assets. Washington, D. C., American council on education, June 1939. 37p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 3, no. 16.) no. 16.)
- no. 16.)
 Principles of college and university business practice. Washington, D. C., American council on education, July 1937. 7p. (Series 3—Financial addrisory service, v. 1, no. 9.)
 Reporting current income and expenditures. Washington, D. C., American council on education, August 1937. 21p. (Series 3—Financial addrisory service, v. 1, no. 10.)
 Statements of fund transactions in financial reports. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Nov. 1937. 18p. (Series 3—Financial addrisory service, v. 1, no. 11.)
 Training for college and university business administration. Washington, D. C., American council on education, April 1937. 12p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 7.)

- AMERICAN druggists' complete short course in drug store bookkeeping. Wein, Charles.

AMERICAN FORUM OF THE AIR

Taxing government securities and salaries; re-print of a radio discussion by John W. Hanes and others . . . Feb. 19, 1939. New York, Burland printing company, inc. 1939. 19p.

AMERICAN GAS ASSOCIATION

AMERICAN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

- AMERICAN institute and auditing procedure. Ac-countant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 214; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 263-7.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE EXAMINATIONS See Baumann, H. P., editor; Examinations-American institute of accountants.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS See also Accountants' societies—American insti-

- See also Accountants' societies—American insti-tute of accountants. Accountants' index, fourth supplement; a bibliog-raphy of accounting literature, January, 1932, December, 1935 (Inclusive). New York Ameri-can institute pub. co., c1936, 503p. Accounting questions and answers, selected from the files of the American institute of accoun-tants, bureau of information. New York, Ameri-can institute of accountants, Jan. 1937. 127p. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance of the American institute of accountants, Chicago, March 28, and 29, 1938. New York, American institute of accoun-

- Same, October 19, 21, and 22, 1937. 4p. By-laws and rules of professional conduct as amended to December 1, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. 16p. Same, 1937-1938. 16p. Contingent-fee rule amended. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 13. Double taxation. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1939, p. 335-6. Examination of financial statements by inde-pendent public accountants; a revision of the bulletin prepared by the American institute of accountants in 1929 and published by the Fed-eral reserve board under the title "Verification of financial statements". New York, American institute of accountants, January, 1936. 41p. Controller, April 1936, p. 91-2; 94, 96. (Ex-tracts) tracts)

- Institute of accountants, january, 1936. 44p.
 Controller, April 1936, p. 91-2; 94, 96. (Extracts)
 Fiftieth anniversary celebration. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 7-9; July 1937, p. 8-10; Sept. 1937, p. 12-24.
 Final vote on proposed changes in by-laws. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 12-5; Nov. 1937, p. 12-24.
 Final vote on proposed changes in by-laws. Certified public accountants, Sept. 1937, p. 14-5.
 Midyear review; reports to council, American institute of accountants, spring meeting, April 11-12, 1938. New York, American institute of accountants, spring meeting, April 11-12, 1938. New York, American institute of accountants, (1937). 1p.
 Negotiations regarding "one national organization." New York, American institute of accountants, Feb. 10, 1936. 19p.
 1935 year book of the American institute of accountants, Feb. 10, 1936. Minutes of accountants, Joard of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceedings of the annual meeting, October 17, 1935. Minutes of American institute bastoner foundation meeting, October 17, 1935. Minutes of American institute benevolent fund, inc., meeting, October 17, 1935. Minutes of advisory council of state society presidents, January 6, 1936. Reports presented at council and annual meetings. List of C.P.A. examiners. By-laws and rules of professional conduct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners. System and subservices of professional conduct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants; officers, council, of state society presidents; officers, council, board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants; officers, council of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners. Combines of countants; officers, council, board of exa
- conduct. Kules of the Doard of examiners, New York, American institute of accountants, c1936. 357p.
 936 year book of the American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceedings of the annual meeting at Dallas, Texas. October 20 and 22, 1936. Minutes of council meetings, October 19 and 22, 1936. Proceedings of meeting of accountancy examiners October 19, 1936. Minutes of meeting of American institute of accountants foundation, October 22, 1936. Minutes of meeting of American institute benevolent fund, inc. October 2, 1936. Proceedings of meeting of advisory council of state society presidents, October 19, 1936. Reports presented at council and annual meetings. List of C.P.A. examiners. New York, American institute of accountants; c1937. 509p.
 937 year book of the American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceedings of the Annual meeting at New York, New York, October 19, 21, and 22, 1937. Minutes of omeeting of meeting of accountants of accountants of accountants of acting of meeting of accountants, class. Cotober 19, 21, and 22, 1937. Minutes of meeting of accountants and associates. Proceedings of meeting of accountants and associates. Proceedings of the annual meeting at New York, New York, October 19, 137. Minutes of meeting of accountants and annual meetings. Ctober 18 and 22, 1937. Proceedings of meeting of advisory council of state society presidents. October 22, 1937. Reports presented at council and annual meetings, List of C.P.A. examiners, and a
- 1937

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS--(Continued)

certificate of incorporation, certificate of change of name. By-laws and rules of professional conduct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountants, c1938. 549p.

549p.
1938 year book of the American institute of accountants; officers, council, board of examiners, committees, members and associates. Proceedings of the annual meeting at Cincinnati, Ohio, September 26, 27, 28, and 29, 1938. Minutes of council meetings, September 26 and 29, 1938. Proceedings of meeting of accountancy examiners, September 26, 1938. Minutes of meeting of American institute of accountants foundation, September 29, 1938. Minutes of meeting of Advisory council of state society presidents, September 26, 1938. Reports presented at council and annual meetings, list of C.P.A. examiners, conduct. Rules of the board of examiners. New York, American institute of accountant, Aug. 1939. 407p.
1939 annual meeting. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 5-10.
Papers on accounting principles and procedure, presented at the fifty-first annual meeting, American institute of accountant, construct of accountant, p. 252p. 1938 year book of the American institute of ac-

- 252p.
- Work, American institute of accountants, c1939. 252p.
 Papers on auditing procedure and other accountains, c1939. 252p.
 Papers on auditing procedure and other accountains, c1939. 295p.
 Plan book for public relations; prepared for the use of committees on public relations of state societies of certified public accountants and their chapters. New York, American institute of accountants and their chapters. New York, American institute of accountants and their chapters. New York, American institute of accountants and their chapters. New York, American institute of accountants (1938). Not paged.
 Program of activities, 1936-1937. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. 13p.
 Program of activities, 1937. 1938. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 2-11.
 Program of fiftieth anniversary celebration, New York, October 18-22, 1937. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 2-13.
 Programme of fiftieth anniversary celebration, New York, October 18-22, 1937. Accountant, Sept. 25, 1937, p. 423.
 Proposed amendments to by-laws. Certified public accountant, Sept. 25, 1937, p. 423.
 Proposed amendments to by-laws. Certified public accountant, sept. 1935-1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. 80p.
 Short form of independent certified public accountant's report or opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1937, p. 139.
 Steps in the development of a constructive one year program; suggested plan of operation for state society and chapter activities. New York, American institute of accountants, July 7, 1938.
 Suggested program of activity by state societies for the fixed program of accountants, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. Net York, American Institute of accou

- 7p.
- Suggested program of activity by state societies of certified public accountants in behalf of the natural business year. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. 4 mimeo-
- institute of accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. 4 mimeo-graphed pages. Trial board. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 448; June 1938, p. 465; Dec. 1938, p. 360. Year in review, 1938-1939; a report of activities. New York, American institute of accountants, c1939. 23p. Year's work of the American institute of accountants, 1936-1937. New York, American institute of accountants, 1937-1938; secretary's report and supplement. New York, American institute of accountants, c1938. 31p. Bard of examiners

Board of examiners Circular of information, syllabus, bibliography. New York, American institute of accountants, April 1937. 11p.

-Same, Oct. 1938. 11p.

- Examination questions prepared by the Board of examiners of the American institute of accoun-tants, May 1932, to November 1935, inclusive. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1936. 306p. -Same, May 1936 to November 1938.
- c1939. 209p.

- Same, May 1936 to November 1938. c1939. 209p.
 Examinations, May 1936. Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 410-29.
 Examinations, November 1936. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 400-20.
 Examinations, November 1937. New York, Ameri-ican institute pub. co., inc., 1937. 31p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 474-96.
 Examinations, November 1938. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 530-52.
 Examinations, May 1938. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 530-52.
 Examinations, May 1939. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 415-28.
 Examinations, May 1939. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 383-94.
 Examinations, November 1939. New York, Ameri-can institute pub. co., inc., 1939. 17p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 418-31.
 Institute examinations in law. Journal of accoun-tancy, Dec. 1936, p. 421-5.
 Suggestions to candidates for commercial law examinations. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 232-7.

- Committee on accounting procedure Foreign operations and foreign exchange. New York, American institute of accountants, Dec. 1939. p. 29-36 (Accounting research bulletins, no. 4) (special) General introduction and rules formerly adopted. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 8p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 1)
- no. 1.)
- Quasi-reorganization or corporate readjustment am-
- Quasi-reorganization or corporate readjustment am-plification of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 27p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 3.) Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded. New York, American insti-tute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Account-ing research bulletin, no. 2.)

- Committee on federal taxation Federal tax revision program; submitted Septem-ber 18, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 21p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 649-54, 661-6. Last-in, first-out inventory method. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 310-4. Proposed changes in federal revenue law. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 349-63. Reprinted. 15p.
- 15p.
- Proposed changes in the federal revenue law; a memorandum submitted to the United States treasury department, September 1, 1938. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., e1938. 32p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 227-51 51
- ecommendations for amendment of federal revenue act. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, Recommendations p. 379-95.

Committee on state legislation Digest of answers to questionnaire regarding in-terstate practice of accountancy. Certified pub-lic accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 2-6.

Council Education. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 32.

Executive committee

Competitive bidding for audit engagements. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 367-8. Reprinted. 1p.

Auditor's opinion on the basis of a restricted exam-

ination. Journal of accountancy, Dec. p. 365-6. 1939.

Extensions of auditing procedure; a report of the Special committee on auditing procedure, adopted

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Special committee on auditing procedure-(Cont.)

Special committee on auditing procedure—(Lont.) by the Council of the American institute of ac-countants, May 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 8p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 342-9. Controller, June 1939, p. 200-4, 230-1. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 431-43; Dec. 1939, p. 417-30. Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 850-4. Philippine accountants journal, July, Aug., Sept. 1939. p. 130-140.

Philippine accountants journal, July, Aug., Sept. 1939, p. 130-140. Same; report of May 9, 1939, as modified and approved at the annual meeting, September 19, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, Oct. 18, 1939. 10p. Journal of accountants, Oct. 1939, p. 377-85. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939, p. 13041 130-41.

Special committee on cooperation with S.E.C.

Coöperation with the S.E.C. Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1937, p. 434-43.

Special committee on governmental accounting

Local government accounting and auditing. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 234-7.
 Qualifications for public fiscal positions. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 155-6. Reprinted.
 Special accountancy examinations. Certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 3-4.

Special committee on inventories

- Special committee on inventories Report of the special committee on inventories. (In its 1936 year book, p. 458-66; 1937 year book, p. 510-2; 1938 year book, p. 142-3.) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 122-32; Jan. 1938, p. 29-32. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 11-3. Valuation of inventories. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 122-32. (In American institute of accountants. 1936 year book, p. 458-66.) Valuation of inventory. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 29-32. (In American institute of accountants. 1937 year book, p. 510-2.)

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

- AMERICAN institute of accountants. Incorporated accountants' Journal, Dec. 1937, p. 83-5. Certi-fied public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 7-10.
- AMERICAN institute of accountants; fiftieth anniversary celebration. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 660-9. Incorporated accountants' Journal, Oct. 1937, p. 7-8; Nov. 1937, p. 43-53. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1938, p. 62-3.
- AMERICAN institute of accountants; jubilee cele-bration. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1937, p. 372-8.
- AMERICAN institute of accountants, 1939 annual meeting. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 4-11.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACTUARIES

- 1935, v. MERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACTUARIES
 Record, American institute of actuaries, 1935, v. 24, numbers 49, 50, with index. Chicago, Ill., American institute of actuaries, 1935. 533p.
 Record, American institute of actuaries, 1936, v. 25, numbers 51, 52, with index. Chicago, Ill., American institute of actuaries, 1936. 842p.
 Record, American institute of actuaries, 1937, v. 26, numbers 53, 54, with index. Chicago, Ill., American institute of actuaries, 1937. 877p.

Record of the American institute of actuaries; index to volumes sixteen to twenty-five. Chi-cago, Ill., American institute of actuaries, 1937. 113p.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

Statement concerning the profession of architecture. Octagon, Dec. 1939, p. 6-15.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF BANKING

Trust costs; allocating administrative and operating costs of large trust departments. Trust com-panies, June 1937, p. 683-6.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF BOLT, NUT AND RIVET MANUFACTURERS

Cost principles for bolt, nut, and rivet manufactur-ers. Cleveland, Ohio, American institute of bolt, nut, and rivet manufacturers, 1938. 20p.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CONSULTING ENGI-NEERS

Correspondence with William W. Werntz and re-port of discussion on engineering audits led by C. Oliver Wellington. March-April 1939. mimeographed.

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. See also Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada.
 Cost accounting for laundries. Joliet, III., Amer-ican institute of laundering, cl939. 61p.
 Depreciation rates as used and considered fair by laundryowners and average rates allowed by fed-eral treasury department. Joliet, III., American institute of laundering (1938?) 5p. (Special report no. 69.)
 Laundry costs by services at American institute of laundering. Joliet, III., American institute of laundering, Oct. 1938. 20p. (Special report no. 92.)

 - Manual for standard accounting system. Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering, March 1, 1938. loose leaf.
 - 1937 operating cost percentages. Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering (1938). 20p. (Service bulletin, no. 55.)
 1938 operating cost percentages. Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering (1939) 16 p. (Special reducts no. 67.)

 - ican institute of laundering (1939) 16 p. (Special report no. 97.)
 Sample accounting forms for A.I.L. standard accounting system. Joliet, III., American institute of laundering, inc. (1938?) forms.
 Simplified sales recording system for small laundering, 1938. 11p. (Special report no. 87.) Same as: Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada. Simplified sales recording system for small laundering, July 1937.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF STEEL CONSTRUC-TION, INC.

of committee on cost accounting; third progress report of committee on cost accounting. New York, American institute of steel construction, inc. May 29, 1937. 13 mimeographed pages.

AMERICAN institute's fiftieth anniversary. Accoun-tant, March 13, 1937, p. 372.

AMERICAN LAW INSTITUTE RUDD, GEORGE HARVEY. Bases for account-ing research. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 245-52.)

AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

- MERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION American management association, the leading national association of companies in all fields of business for the exchange of information on management problems. New York, American management association, (1936). 12p. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy, by Bleecker L. Wheeler, Wyman P. Fiske, Roscoe Seybold and Edward J. Cheney. New York, American management association, c1939, 28p. (Financial management series, no. 57.) 57.)
- Efficiency and economy in office procedures, by

AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION--(Continued)

- —(Continued)
 W. E. Tarr, W. F. Titus, Morton P. Francis, Orrin G. Sherman, C. L. Stivers and J. H. MacDonald. New York, American management association, c1938. 35p. (Office management series, no. 85.)
 Modern office management methods, by John Mitchell, Eugene J. Benge, V. J. Olearo, J. J. Smith and L. Urwick. New York, American management association, c1938. 36p. (Office management association, by E. D. Bart-lett, Richard S. Schultz, John A. Williams, A. L. Kress, E. B. Roberts, and R. L. Hull. New York, American management association, c1938. 40p. (Office management series, no. 84.)
 Papers presented at the finance conference held at the Hotel Pennsylvania, New York, January 25-26, 1939. Contents:
 - Contents:

Effects of governmental policies on financial management.

Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy.

- policy. Personnel and payroll records under the social security laws, by Paul H. Wilson and others. New York, American management association, c1936. 40p. (Office management series, no 72.) Practical aspects of depreciation and obsolescence, by John T. Madden, Bleecker L. Wheeler, and Horace Hill. New York, American management association, c1938. 28p. (Financial manage-ment ceries up 54)

- Horace Hill. New York, American management association, c1938. 28p. (Financial manage-ment series no. 54.)
 Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer, by Jules I. Bogen, George Cochrane, Roy A. Foulke, and Stuart A. Rice. New York, American management association, c1939. 32 p. (Financial management series, no. 56.)
 Quality and inventory control, by Richard W. Simon and others. New York, American man-agement association, c1939. 36p. (Production series no. 114.)
 Recent insurance management developments, by Thomas Watters, Jr., Ralph W. Morrell, Ernest W. Brown and George W. Elliott. New York, American management association, c1939. 27p. (Insurance series no. 33.)
 Use and occupancy-Boiler and machinery cover-age, by J. Victor Herd, Reginald Fleming and James H. Coburn. New York, American man-agement association, c1939. 19p. (Insurance series no. 34.) agement association, series no. 34.)

AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION Professional trust busting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 139-40. Sept. 1939, p. 149.

AMERICAN MINING CONGRESS

- Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936. Washing-ton, D. C., American mining congress, c1936. 86p.
- AMERICAN office machines research service. Office machines research, inc.

AMERICAN PETROLEUM INSTITUTE

Uniform system of accounts for the oil industry, adopted by the board of directors of the Amer-can petroleum institute, with revisions to June 30, 1936. New York, American petroleum institute, 1936. 63p.

AMERICAN PHOTO-ENGRAVERS ASSOCIATION

Manual of the standard cost system for photo-engravers. Chicago, Ill., American photo-en-gravers association. 1938. 96p.

AMERICAN SAVINGS AND LOAN INSTITUTE

Standard accounting manual for savings, building and loan associations. Chicago, Ill., American savings and loan institute, c1936. 64p.

AMERICAN SMELTING AND REFINING COM-

PANY COTTER, ARUNDEL. Pioneer in inventory con-trol. Barron's Nov. 6, 1939, p. 20.

AMERICAN society breakfast. Certified public ac-countant, Nov. 1936, p. 635-52.

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS

- COUNTANIS
 Amended constitution and by-laws, effective October 22, 1936. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 591-2.
 C.P.A. examination questions, November, 1935. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 54-8; Feb. 1936, p. 243-9; March 1936, p. 314-9; June 1936, p. 374-5.
 C.P.A. examination questions. May 1936. Certified public accountants.
- 1936, p. 374-5. C.P.A. examination questions, May 1936. Cer-tified public accountant, July 1936, p. 442-4; Aug. 1936, p. 679-83. Nov. 1936, p. 679-83. C.P.A. examination questions, November 1936. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 663-74; Dec. 1936, p. 735-42. Directory, 1935-1936: Officers-directors-state converting transformatives-members of state
- Officers-directors-state Directory, 1935-1936: Officers—directors—state representatives—committees—members of state boards of accountancy—officers of state boards of accountancy—officers of state organizations— membership roster—constitution and by-laws. Washington, D. C., American society of certi-fied public accountants, 1936. 128p.
 Program; the American society of certified public accountants annual meeting—Hotel Blackstone, Fort Worth, Texas, October 17-18, 1936. Cer-tified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 517-8.

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL ENGINEERS AND INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PUB-LIC WORKS OFFICIALS

in works of pricials of the second se Public works engineers'

AMERICAN TELEPHONE AND TELEGRAPH COM-PANY, INC. Plan for employees' pensions disability benefits and death benefits, with amendments to and including Sept. 1, 1938. New York, American telephone and telegraph co., inc. 22p.

AMERICAN TOBACCO COMPANY COTTER, ARUNDEL. How tobacco firms treat inventories. Barron's, Nov. 20, 1939, p. 8, 10.

- AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES Interpretative bulletin no. 1, under the wage and hour law. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, Oct. 13, 1938. 2p.

 - trade association executives, Oct. 13, 1930. 2p. (Current news bulletin) List of members, January 1, 1937; purposes and program. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, 1937. 80p. Regulations covering learners, apprentices, messen-gers and handicapped workers under fair labor standards act. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, Oct. 15, 1938. 3p. (Current neone bulletin)
 - trade association executives, Oct. 15, 1938. 3p. (Current news bulletin) Robinson-Patman act; data compiled from public sources of information and reproduced by the federal trade commission in connection with its administration of the Robinson-Patman act of June 19, 1936, amending section 2 of the Clayton act, July 25, 1936. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, 1936. 38 mimeographed pages.

AMERICAN TRANSIT ASSOCIATION Proceedings of the American transit association and its affiliated associations, 1935; containing a complete report of the fifty-fourth annual convention held in the Hotel Ambassador, At-lantic City, N. J., September 23 to 25, 1935. New York American transit assoc., 1936. 1029p.

AMERICAN TRANSIT ASSOCIATION—(Continued)

to 24, 1936. 1167p. Same, fifty-fifth meeting, September 21 to 24, 1936. 1167p. Same, fifty-sixth meeting, September 19 to 23, 1937. 1073p. Same, fifty-seventh meeting, October 2 to

6. 1938. 611p.

- AMERICAN utilities and asset values. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 610-2. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 24-7.
- AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION, joint author
- See Municipal finance officers association of the United States and Canada and the American water works association.

AMERICAN WOMAN'S SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Woman C.P.A., bi-monthly bulletin of the Ameri-can woman's society of certified public accoun-tants. Chicago, Ill., American woman's society of certified public accountants.

AMERICAN WOOLEN COMPANY COTTER, ARUNDEL. American woolen's erratic record. Barron's, Oct. 30, 1939, p. 13.

AMMON, A. J. Accounting for customers' property in a book manufacturing plant. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, section 1, p. 1367-88.)

- AMORTIZATION
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded, New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Accounting re-search bulletin, no. 2.)
 BAUMANN, H. P., editor. Reply to question on amortization of bond discount. (Students' depart-ment) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 305-6.
 - 305-6.
 - FINANCIAL PUBLISHING COMPANY. Monthly payment direct reduction loan amortization schedules, showing equal monthly payment necessary to amortize a loan of \$1000; also the amount of interest and principal in each payment and the balance outstanding at any time during the life of the loan. Boston, Mass., Financial pub. co., c1938. not paged.
 LASSALLE, L. L. Question on amortization of bond discount. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-5.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939. p. 261-82.)
 PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Valuation and amortization. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 209-26. FINANCIAL PUBLISHING COMPANY

 - CHARTELL A. D. Valuation and amortization. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 209-26.
 SINKING funds and amortization. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 72-9.)
 UNITED STATES. Federal housing administra-tion. Illustrative case; mortgagee's application for insurance; credit and security instruments to be submitted for insurance under title 2 of the national housing act, including tables for computation of amortization, maturity, monthly service charge, revised June 1, 1936. Washing-ton, D. C., Federal housing administration, 1936. 25p.
 - ton, D. C., Federal housing administration, 1936. 25p. UNITED STATES. Federal housing administra-tion. Monthly amortization payment computing chart. National real estate journal, April 20, 1939, p. 26.

AMOS, J. ELLWOOD

Economics of corporate saving, Urbana, Ill., Uni-versity of Illinois, 1937. 136p. (Illinois studies in the social sciences, v. 22, no. 2)

AMTHOR, EDGAR R.

Efficient accounts receivable operation; address

made before the Baltimore group of controllers, Jan. 9, 1935. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1935. mimeographed.

AMUSEMENTS

See also Athletics; Theaters.

Accounting INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; cinemas and dance halls. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 134-5.

- ANALYSING the record of industrial and commer-cial failures. Dun's review, Feb. 1939, p. 32-6.
- ANALYSIS of electric supply company accounts. Accountant, May 22, 1937, p. 734-5.
- ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS See Statements, Financial.
- ANALYSIS of open commitments in wheat and corn futures on the Chicago board of trade, Septem-ber 29, 1934, by D. B. Bagnell. United States. Agriculture, Department of. Grain futures administration.
- ANALYSIS of state society publications. Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 17-8.
- ANALYSIS of state unemployment compens laws. United States. Social security board. compensation
- ANALYSIS of stock brokerage statements prepared for Robert Morris associates, New York chap-ter. Todman, Frederick S.
- ANALYSIS of table d'hote dinners. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1938, p. 4-5.
- ANALYSIS of the business operations of coöpera-tive cotton gins in Oklahoma, 1933-34, by Otis T. Weaver and Omer W. Herrman. United States. Farm credit administration.
- ANALYSIS of the cost of fluid milk distribution in the United States of America. Accountant, June 13, 1936, p. 904.

ANALYST looks at the accountant. Cotter, Arundel.

- ANALYZING checking accounts scientifically. Het-zel, Frederick W.
- ANALYZING financial statements. Wall, Alexander.

- ANDERSEN, AR'THUR Present-day problems affecting the presentation and interpretation of financial statements; ad-dress delivered at the annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, Boston, Massachusetts, October 15, 1935. New York, American institute of accountants, (1936) 15p. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 168-73.
- ANDERSEN, C. W. Australasian congress on accounting. Australian accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 37-40.

ANDERSON, ANDREW P. Some relations of the highway construction outfit to unit operating cost. Roads and streets, Nov. 1936, p. 21-6; Dec. 1936, p. 25-8.

ANDERSON, DAVID R.

Further comments on last-in, first-out. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 459-61.)

ANDERSON, FLOYD

Retail advertising, planning and control. Balance sheet, Nov. 1939, p. 18-20.

ANDERSON, H. D. Accounting future in the electric public utility industry under the "public utility act of 1935" and other "new deal" laws. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1936, p. 331-4.

- ANDERSON, HAROLD C.
 By their reports ye shall know them. (from Bulletin (District of Columbia institute of certified public accountants) Certified public accountants). Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 23-4.)
 Economic and financial aspects of our social security program. 17 typewritten pages.
 Problems in the social security act; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 135-7.)
 Social security taxation. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 58-60.)
 Taxability of dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 74-8, 120.

ANDREW, GEORGE C. Accounting for gold mining companies. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 236-55.

ANDREWS, ALEXANDER B.

Per capita cost of courts. Lawyer, Nov. 1939, p. 11-5.

ANDREWS, FREDERICK B.

Accounting principles. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 149-50.

ANDREWS, L. G. More on peg-board or strip system of accounting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods associa-tion, Sept. 1939, p. 22-3.

ANDREWS, PETER B. B. There's drama in those bank statements. Banking, Sept. 1939, p. 68-71.

ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN

- NDREWS, I. COLEMAN Accounts of governmental authorities. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meet-ing of American institute of accountants, Wal-dorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) (In American Institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 296-300.)
- 300.) Digest of address before annual meeting of North American gasoline tax conference, at Richmond, Va., October 7, 1936. 15 typewritten pages. Future of professional accountancy. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 220.
- 220.
 Introduction to round table discussion: Municipal accounting session. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 199-202.)
 Municipal accounting. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939, p. 60-4.)
 Opening remarks at breakfast round table discussion of the annual financial report of a municipality, Sept. 10, 1936. 4 typewritten pages.

ANDRUSS, HARVEY A. Accounting for the depletion of oil lands. Journal

of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 103-17. Ways to teach bookkeeping and accounting. Cin-cinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1937. 178p.

ANGELL, MONTGOMERY B.

Tax evasion and tax avoidance. Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 80-97.

ANGELL, NORMAN

Economic factors in international affairs. Accoun-

tant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 224-9, discussion, p.

- ANGLO-AMERICAN trade agreement. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 726-7.
- ANGLO-ARGENTINE meat inquiry. Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 603-6.

"ANNALIST"

HOLMES, R. L. A. Business barometers; meas-urement of ecomonic activity with special refer-ence to "The economist" index of business activity. Accountant, March 4, 1939, p. 293-9.

- ANNAN, WILLIAM
 Apportionment difficulties and inconsistencies. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 541-54; Dec. 1936, p. 607-17.
 Mechanised accounting and its audit features. Accountants' magazine, March, 1939, p. 163-80. Irish accountant and secretary, Dublin manage-ment exhibition number (April 1939). p. 21-2.
- NIVERSARY of American institute of accoun-tants—Growth of profession in United States— Now one national organization. (Editorial) Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. ANNIVERSARY §0.3
- ANNUAL meeting. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1938, p. 142; Oct. 1938, p. 209; June 1939, p. 335; Sept. 1939, p. 147; Oct. 1939, p. 217.
- ANNUAL meeting, 1938. Certified public accoun-tant, Oct. 1938, p. 4-11.
- ANNUAL meeting of American accounting associa-tion. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 20-1.
- ANNUAL meeting papers. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 294.

ANNUAL report. Mead corporation.

- ANNUAL report of a city board of education. Crockett, J. D. M.
- ANNUAL reports of corporations required by S. E. C. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Jan. 1936, p. 23-4.

ANNUITIES

- AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Funds subject to annuity agreements. Washington, D. C., Ameri-can council on education, April 1939, 32p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 3, no.
- ANNUITY computations—Annuity insurance. (In Business executive's handbook, 1937. p. 38-71;
- 1139-44.) SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. and LANG, THEO-DORE. Annuities. (In their Mathematics of business and finance, c1937. p. 241-301; 373-84; 418-35

- business and induce, c1937. p. 241-301; 373-84; 418-35.)
 WATSON, J. DONALD. Annuities illustrated by diagrams. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1936, p. 192-5.
 WATSON, J. DONALD. Explaining annuity formulas. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 388-9.
 WOLFE, S. HERBERT, comp. Inheritance tax calculations, an explanation of the underlying principles with tables and instructions for ascertaining the present value of dower and courtesy rights, life estates, annuities vested and contingent remainders upon the Northampton, Carlisle, actuaries, American experience, American men ultimate and other tables of mortality at various rates of interest, with brief analysis of the inheritance tax laws of the various states and territories, originally compiled by S. Herbert Wolfe, revised and brought up to date by Lee J. Wolfe and William M. Corcoran. New York, Baker, Voorhis & co., 1937. 246p.

ANNUITIES—(Continued)

Taxation

- ROWLAND, S. J. Taxation of the annuity fund and some practical points arising therefrom. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 401-9.
- ANOTHER attempt to interfere with practice—Some unanswerable arguments. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 245-6.
- ANOTHER constructive comment Profession pro-ceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 135-6.
- ANOTHER revenue act appears—A tax to destroy business. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 84-6.

ANTHONY, C. G. Diesel truck costs in heavy duty service. Power wagon, April 1937, p. 5-8.

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION laws in force December 15, 1937. Automobile manufacturers association.

ANTI-TRUST LAWS See Trusts.

APARTMENT HOTELS

Costs

HORWATH and HORWATH. Six small apart-ment houses in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1939, p. 4-5.

Statistics

- HORWATH and HORWATH. Six small apart-ment houses in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1939, p. 4-5.
- APARTMENT house rental, investment, and man-agement. McGonagle, James R.

- APARTMENT HOUSES See also Co-operative apartment houses. McGONAGLE, JAMES R. Apartment house rental, investment, and management. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 420p.

Accounting

- MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Apartment house altera-
- MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Apartment house altera-tions. Buildings and building management, July 1937, p. 50-1, 72.
 MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Billing and collecting apartment rents. Buildings and building manage-ment, Feb. 1937, p. 40-3.

Costs

- osts APARTMENT operating costs. Buildings and building management, July 1938, p. 44-5, 81. EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Rental policies and costs. Buildings and building management, Oct. 1938, p. 41-3, 64-6. MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Apartment operating costs. Buildings and building management, April 1939, p. 13-5.
- COSIS. Duilaings and contains management, 1939, p. 13-5.
 WOODWARD, V. FLOYD. Reducing the heating costs in apartment buildings. Buildings and building management, Aug. 1936, p. 39-40, 70-1.

Valuation

apartment houses, including two demonstration apartment houses, including two demonstration appraisals with actual figures. National real estate journal, May 1938, p. 43-5, 60.

- APARTMENT operating costs. Buildings and build-ing management, July 1938, p. 44-5, 81.
- APPARENT authority of directors. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 129-30.
- APPEALS unsuccessful in Pepper pool case. Canad-ian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 354-8.

APPLES See Fruit.

APPLEY, LAWRENCE A. Business looks to the C.P.A.; address to the Pennsylvania institute in annual meeting at Skytop, Pa., June 14, 1938. Phila., Pa., Penn-sylvania institute of certified public accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. 8 typewritten pages.

- APPLEYARD, C. E. Increasing efficiency through scientific research. Cost accountant, June 1937, p. 22-7.
- APPLICATION and uses of standard costs in the shoe industry. Wonson, Harold S.
- APPLICATION of bank costs to depositors' accounts. Lawson, Wilbur F.
- APPLICATION of heat treating costs. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 1, section 2, p. 29-33.)
- APPLICATION of measured day work. Sellers, Coleman, 3rd.
- APPLICATION of raw material costs to sales. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 2, p. 987-8.)
- APPLICATION of standard cost accounting to rail-road administration. James, Charles C.
- APPLIED economics for engineers. Lester, Bernard.
- APPLIED time and motion study. Holmes, Walter G.
- APPORTIONMENT of fame—Avenues to success— Success not dependent on one factor. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 162-5.
- APPORTIONMENT of mortgage foreclosure proceeds. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- APPORTIONMENT on death of tenant-for-life. Ac-countant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 106-7.
- APPRAISAL and abstract of available literature on the occupation of the accountant. National occupational conference.
- APPRAISAL standards. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 23-7.

APPRAISALS

See Valuation.

APPRAISING the social security program; designed to set forth the work accomplished under the social security act and to furnish a background for evaluation of proposed changes. Annals of the American academy of political and social science, March 1939. 277p.

- APPRECIATION BELL, WILLIAM H. Realization of appreciation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July

 - (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 45-6.
 MADDEN, JOHN T. Some reflections on appreciation practices. Accounting ledger, Feb. 1939, p. 8-10.
 MUCKLOW, WALTER. Appreciation, depletion; obsolescence and depreciation. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936, p. 148-65.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and OTHERS. Fixed asset appreciation and devaluation. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 283-93.)
 WRITE-OFF of appreciation. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 334-5. 334-5.
- APPROACH to accounting problems. Werntz, William W.
- APRICOTS See Fruit.

APTITUDE tests for staff accountants; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 389-414.)

ARANT. ROSCOE

- Business taxation in the southern states. Tax Magazine, June 1938, p. 339-42, 376-9, 384; July 1938, p. 403-6, 434-7. Place of business taxation in the revenue systems of the states. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 191-9,
- 242.

ARBITRATION AND AWARD

- ARBITRATION AND AWARD See also Arbitration journal.
 AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION. Decennial report of the American arbitration association on the progress of commercial arbi-tration, 1926-1936. New York, American arbi-tration association. 1936. 29p.
 AMERICAN arbitrator and his office. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 311-27.
 ARBITRATION under a company's articles. Ac-countant, July 16, 1938, p. 66-8.
 DELLER, ANTHONY WILLIAM. Use of arbi-tration in patent controversies. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 399-410.
 GOODWIN, J. PRYSE. Experience in arbitra-tion. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 1025-6, 128.

- tion. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 105-6, 128.
 GROSSMAN, MOSES H. Importance of commercial arbitration. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 3-10.
 HOTCHKISS. WILLARD E. Arbitration—an analysis. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1939, p. 45-8.
 KIBURTZ, E. G. Compulsory arbitration in the grain and feed trade. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 327-30.
 ODENVEN ERNEST C. Commercial arbitration

- grain and feed trade. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938 D. 327-30. LORENZEN, ERNEST G. Commercial arbitration —enforcement of foreign awards. Yale law jour-nal, Nov. 1935, p. 39-68. MACASSEY, LYNDEN. Business men and arbi-tration. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 684-90. ODLUM, FLOYD B. National system of the American arbitration association. (reprinted from Scots law times) Arbitration journal, Jan. 1937, p. 6-12.

- from Scots law times; Arcane 1937, p. 6-12. SAGAL, LEWIS. Development of arbitration as a function of the accounting profession. Con-necticut C.P.A., Aug. 1938, p. 1-4. TAYLOR, GEORGE W. Factual approach to industrial arbitration. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 343-7. THOMSON, G. R. Arbitration in Scotland and England. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 274-8.
- THOMSON, G. A. Andreast, Sournal, Sept.
 England. Certified accountants journal, Sept.
 1939, p. 274-8.
 WORTHINGTON, W. Commercial arbitration.
 Accountant student and the Accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 307-14.

ARBITRATION under a company's articles. Ac-countant, July 16, 1938, p. 66-8.

ARCHITECTS

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS. Statement concerning the profession of archi-tecture. Octagon, Dec. 1939, p. 6-15.

ARE present forms of financial statements satisfac-tory? Robinson, Leland Rex.

ARE you a stockholder? Winthrop, Alden.

ARENTZ, E. V.

Flat rate interest, with an excerpt or two from the financier's (or moneylender's) catechism. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 110-30.

ARISMAN, GEORGE M. Federal and state income taxes as an element of cost. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, p. 385-98.) Printed with: Seideman, J. S. Taxes—cost accounting's heat relearned. best salesman.

ARITHMETIC

LIPKIN, CHARLES. Mental multiplication; how to figure mentally, putting down the answer at

once, without using any paper. New York, The author, 1939. 25p. TUMMINELLO, CHARLES

- E. Tumminello Boston, Mass. theory of numerical roots. Bosto Christopher pub. house, c1939. 179p.
- ARKANSAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS

Directory. Little Rock, Ark., Arkansas society of certified public accountants. no date. folder.

ARMAMENT JONES, J. H. Burden of rearmament. Accoun-tant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 553-5.

ARMAMENT PROFITS See Taxation, Great Britain-Profits.

- ARMAMENT profits. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 550-2; Oct. 29, 1938, p. 586-8.
- ARMAMENT profits duty. Accountant, tax supple-ment, June 24, 1939, p. 27-40; July 1, 1939, p. 253-7.

ARMISTEAD, GEORGE Report of the president of the American institute of accountants. (In American institute of ac-countants. 1935 year book. p. 219-29.)

ARMITAGE, R. L., joint author See Minett, F. H., and Armitage, R. L.

ARMSTRONG, A. B.

Branch store accounting. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 12-7. Taking a physical inventory in chain stores. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 9-12.

ARMSTRONG, A. F. Bankers' advances against cotton and produce. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 19-24.

ARMSTRONG, E. G.

Modern bookkeeping systems. National auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 7, 10-1.
 Uniform accounting methods and uniform published statements. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, Oct. 1938, p. 525-31.

ARMSTRONG, J. E., JR. Accepted principles of accounting; delivered before the annual convention of the Maryland associa-tion of certified public accountants at the Emer-son Hotel, Baltimore, Maryland, May 4, 1937. 12 typewritten pages.

ARMSTRONG CORK PRODUCTS COMPANY

Accounting procedure, suggested for wholesale dis-tributors of the Armstrong line. Lancaster, Pa., Armstrong cork products co., Floor division, c1936. 28p.

- ARNETT, TREVOR
 Observations on the financial condition of colleges and universities in the United States. New York, General education board, 1937. 25p.
 Trends in current receipts and expenditures and in receipts for capital purposes of endowed uni-versities and colleges, and in current receipts of state institutions in the United States from 1927-28 through 1936-37. New York, General education board, 1939. 158p.
 Trends in tuition fees in state and endowed col-leges and universities in the United States from 1928-29 through 1936-37. New York, General education board, 1939. 113p.

ARNOTT, M. K.

Installation of a costing system. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, March 1937, p. 215-20. Cost accountant, April 1938, p. 340-7.

ARONSON, A. S. Defenses under the Robinson-Patman act, with special reference to cost defenses. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 27-46.)

ARRANGEMENTS under section 153 of the com-panies act, 1929. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 350-1.

ART NEEDLE WORK

Statistics

thistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of art needle work shops. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 72.)
 — analysis of the 1936 operations of art needle work stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 70.)

ARTHUR, DONALD

Need for basic tax reform. Certified public ac-countant, March 1938, p. 11-12.

ARTHUR, HENRY B. Inventory profits in the business cycle. American economic review, March 1938, p. 27-40. Something business can do about depressions. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 7-14.

- ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART RTHUR, JOHN F. SIUARI
 Notes on the business and accounts of a cotton merchant. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 20, section 1, p. 1185-1209.)
 Securities and exchange commission and current accounting practice. Texas accountant, Feb.

 - accounting practice. Texas accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 4-6. Special accounting considerations in cotton mer-chants' accounts. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 41-4.
- AS others see us. Certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 13-5.

ASH, ROBERT

- SH, ROBERT
 How to write a tax brief, together with an outline of procedure before the Bureau of internal revenue and the Board of tax appeals. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 36p.
 Procedure in tax cases before the Board of tax appeals and the courts. New York certified pub-lic accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-29.

ASHBAUGH, WILLIAM L. Coordinated decentralization. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 271-6.)

ASHENFELTER, R. F. Application of pegboard methods in accounting. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 10-3.

ASHLEY, C. A. Auditor's report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 118-20.

- ASHLEY, R. W. Control of labour costs. Australian account Oct. 1939, p. 179-90. Standard costs in an engineering indu Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 1-22. costs. Australian accountant, industry.

ASHTON, F. R. S. Costing for public accountants' fees. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 120-2.

ASHWORTH, FRED

Control of agency accounts; the auditor's duties with respect to corporate trusts and agencies. *Trust companies*, March 1938, p. 304-8.

ASHWORTH, ROBERT

- Accountant's activities in the commercial world. Accountant's activities in the commercial world. Accountant, Aug. 1, 1936, p. 160-2. Modern factory accounting. Accountant, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 769-74, discussion, p. 774-5. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 268-73.

ASKEW, C. F.

Building society accounts and finance. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 75-83.

- ASPECTS of the organization, functions, and financ-ing of state public utility commissions; by C. O. Ruggles. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.
 - ASSESSMENT of real estate for the purpose of taxation. Collins, Clem W.

ASSET REVALUATION

See Valuation-Asset revaluation.

ASSETS

- BASHE, C. E. Fair market value of inventory property. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, property. Taxes-p. 71-2, 105-6. FITZGERALD, A.

- projerty. 1axes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1959, p. 71-2, 105-6.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Balance sheet problems. Anstralian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 1-14; Sept. 1938, p. 81-7; Oct. 1938, p. 161-9.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Valuation of assets. (In his Accounting, c1937, p. 451-61.)
 JACKSON, J. W. H. Plant assets (public utility). Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 11-5.
 McKESSON AND ROBBINS, INC. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 6.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Balance sheet assets. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939, p. 200-46.)
 OLSON, LYLE H. Principles of accounting and appraising as applied to the fixed and inventory assets; address before the District of Columbia institute of certified public accountants, October 12, 1939. New York, American appraisal co., 1939, 12p.
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN and KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Valuation of assets. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice, 1936.
- Accounting, elementary theory and practice, 1936.
- Accounting, elementary theory and practice, 1930. p. 371-90.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Assets and equities— Asset and equity accounts. (In his Essentials of accounting, 1937. Part 1, p. 13-31. 1938, p. 22-41; 42-57.) SHORT, FRANK G. Accounting for the issuance of charge for accest under the decisions of the
- p. 22-41; 42-57.) SHORT, FRANK G. Accounting for the issuance of shares for assets under the decisions of the Securities and exchange commission. *Journal of accountancy*, May 1939, p. 262-72. STEVENS, W. H. S. Stockholders' participations in assets in dissolution. *Journal of business of the university of Chicago*, Jan. 1937. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series. release no. 1.

- Inite Entropy of Citation, 311, 1937.
 INITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charging losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission. April 1, 1937.
 INITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly citied by the Commission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938.
 WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Limitations on assets. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 42-8.
 YOUNG, N. S. "Fixtures." Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 554-61.

Capital

See Assets-Fixed.

- Contingent HORR, EDWARD NORTON. Appraising con-tingent assets. Credit and financial management, April 1938, p. 8-11.
 TOLLEY, W. EARLE. Contingent liabilities and assets. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 301-2.

Current

- Jurrent DANIEL, E. T. Verification of current assets and basis of valuation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 248-64. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY. Definition of current assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 262-3. GREIDINGER, B. BERNHARD. Balance sheet —current assets. (In his Accounting require-ments of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 126-42.)

ASSETS-Current-(Continued)

NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and OTHERS. Current assets. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. p. 386-404.)

Fixed

- See also Property.
 AYARS, ROBERT D. Taxation of capital assets. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 16-20.
 BACAS, PAUL E. and OTHERS. Fixed assets. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 262-83.)
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Fixed assets. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 161-74.)
- 161-74.)
 CHAMBERLAIN, HENRY T. Adjustments of fixed assets. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 8-12.)
 DeVITT, JOHN H. Accounting procedure for capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936.

- capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 139-60.)
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Fixed assets. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting, 1936. p. 399-412.)
 FREEMAN, E. STEWART. Long-life assets; when to buy and how to account for them. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 4, section 1, p. 183-205.)
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Acquirement and valuation of fixed assets—Useful life of fixed assets—Depreciation methods—Fixed asset readjustments. (In his Accounting concepts of profit, c1939, p. 474-549.)
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER G. Fixed assets—depreciation. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938, p. 215-25.)
 GRELDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet—fixed assets. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchanage commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939.
 HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Present-day need for improved accounting read-accuration of the solution of financial statements.

- p. 173-228.) HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Present-day need for improved accounting for plant and equipment. (In National association of cost accountants. *Year book*, 1936. p. 106-16, discussion, p. 116-21.) HOSSACK, A. B. Accounting procedures for capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. *Year book*, 1936.

- capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 121-39.)
 MILLS, HARRY B. Fixed assets, their control and depreciation. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1937, p. 1-4, 8.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and OTHERS. Cost of fixed assets—Fixed asset appreciation and devaluation. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939. p. 237-60, 283-93.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and OTHERS. Fixed and other assets. (In their Elementary accounting, c1938. p. 405-18.)
 PATON, W. A. Fixed assets. (In his Essentials of accounting, 1938. p. 513-47.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Fixed assets and deferred charges. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 114-28.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Special problems in accounting for capital assets. Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 185-98.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Fixed assets. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939. p. 193-224.)
 SPRY, F. W. Verification of fixed assets including depreciation thereof, and basis of valuation. Chartered accountain in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 288-301. 288-301.
- 288-301.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Accounting for fixed assets. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 935-49.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. Valuation of fixed assets and principles related to write-ups and write-ins. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 17-20.)
 TROUANT, D. L. Property, plant and equipment. (In his Financial audits, c1937, p. 73-87.)
 WILSON, JOHN A. Fixed asset appraisals and

accounting. Canadian chartered accountant.

Feb. 1937, p. 97-110. WRIGHT, P. W. Accounting for fixed assets. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 10-6, 18-9.

Intangible

- ntangible
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER
 G. Intangible assets—Liabilities. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 275-82.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Wasting intangible assets. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 466-7.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet—intangible assets, deferred charges and other assets. (In his Accounting requirements of the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 229-54.)
 MARSHALL, H. S. Appraisal for assessment
- MARSHALL, H. S. Appraisal for assessment of intangible property of corporations. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, on intrangious property of corporations. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 4-8. OLSON, LYLE H. Valuation of intangibles. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 20-3. PATON, WILLIAM A. Intangible assets. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 27.)

- his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 27.) SCHMIDT, LEO A. Intangibles. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 291-300.) TROUANT, D. L. Intangible assets. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 88-9.) UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial state-ments) Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mime-ographed pages. ographed pages.

Plant

See Assets, Fixed; Property.

Revaluation

See Valuation-Asset revaluation.

Valuation See Valuation.

Wasting

- Vasting
 See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence —Gas, Natural; Land; Lumber; Oil industry.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Tech-nical matters. (Legal notes) Journal of accoun-tancy, May 1937, p. 394.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Wasting intangible assets. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 466-7.
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Problem of wasting assets. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938. p. 124-37.)
 JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Theory of real property valuation. Sacramento, Calif., The author, e1938. 309p.

- JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Theory of real property valuation. Sacramento, Calif., The author, c1938. 309p. McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Depletion of properties. (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting, 1938. p. 246-8.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Natural resources. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 26.)
- his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 26.) PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Natural resource assets—their treatment in accounts and valua-tion. Harvard business review, Autumn num-ber, 1937. p. 74-92. Reprinted. 19p. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Natural resources. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 281-9.)
- SHERWOOD, J. F. Basis for computation amount of depreciation and depletion. (In Federal tax accounting. c1938. p. 129-31.) of (In his
- ASSIGNMENT of accounts receivable. (Correspondence) Baldwin, C. F.
- ASSIGNMENT of accounts receivable. (Edit Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 258. (Editorial)

ASSIGNMENTS

See Liquidations and receiverships.

56

ASSOCIATED PRESS

Insured pension plan. New York, Associated press, January 1, 1939. 10p.

- ASSOCIATED simplified system. Inter ciation of ice cream manufacturers. International asso-
- ASSOCIATION OF AMERICAN RAILROADS. AC-COUNTING DIVISION
 - Mandatory and recommendatory accounting rules and forms, effective October 1, 1937, and rules of order. Washington, D. C., Association of American railroads, 1937. 233p.

ASSOCIATION OF APPRAISAL EXECUTIVES

Basic standards of appraisal practice and pro-cedure with definitions of a selected list of appraisal terms and code of ethics for inde-pendent public appraisers. Washington, D. C., Association of appraisal executives, c1936. 53p.

ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH CHAMBERS OF COM-MERCE

MERCE Budget, 1937--proposed national defense contri-bution; report of the special committee of rep-resentatives of the . . . Association of British industries, Chamber of shipping of the United Kingdom, Mining association of Great Britain, British iron and steel federation, Corporation of Lloyds, The Baltic; prepared for submission to the Right Hon. Neville Chamberlain, M.P., Chancellor of the exchequer, 11th May, 1937. London, Association of British chambers of com-merce, 1937. 19p.

ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT-ANT EXAMINERS PRELIMINARY examinations. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 364.

- ASSOCIATION OF CONSULTING MANAGEMENT ENGINEERS, INC. Function of the engineer in the confirmation of inventories. New York, Association of con-sulting management engineers, inc. (1939). not paged.
 - Profession of management and the function of the consulting management engineer. New York, Association of consulting management engineers, inc., c1937. 29p.

ASSOCIATIONS

See Societies, associations, etc.

ASSURANCE

See Insurance.

ASTONISHING opinion. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 404-6.

ATKINS, PAUL M. Capital funds investment analysis. Bankers maga-rine, Sept. 1939, p. 192-7. Official supervision of bank security portfolios. Banker's magazine, July 1938, p. 13-9.

ATKINSON, EARL W. College training of the accountant. Federation notes, Oct. 1936, p. 19-24, 27.

ATKINSON, GEORGE S. Depletion as a deduction from taxable income. Texas accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 1-2.

ATKINSON, J. B. System of accounting for abattoirs revenue. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1939, p. 810-25.

ATKINSON, STERLING K.

Journal entries and financial policy. Accounting forum, April 1936, p. 16-9. Taxable income to lessor from lessee improvements. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 20-4, 38.

ATLAS, MARTIN

Average income and its use in taxation. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 124-31.

Capital-gains taxation. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 346-54.

ATTACK on the fortunate few—Great success always is conspicuous—Method and motive must deter-mine propriety. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Feb. 1936, p. 87-90.

ATTORNEYS

See Lawyers.

ATWELL, W. B. Accounting in the dairy industry. National ac-countant, Aug. 1937, p. 10-9.

- AUDIT for routing economics and overcharges. Bal-ance sheet, April 1938, p. 16-9.
- AUDIT of companies in France; luncheon of the French chamber of commerce in London. Ac-countant, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 277-80.
- AUDIT of French companies. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 431.
- AUDIT of immensity. (Editorial) Journal of Ac-countancy, July 1936, p. 6-7.
- AUDIT of milk dealers and coöperative associations. New York (state). Agriculture and markets, Commissioner of.
- AUDIT of stock. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 447-8.
- AUDIT of unit trust yields. Accountant. Jan. 21, 1939, p. 80.
- AUDIT practice set. Meyer, Harvey G.
- AUDIT procedure in America. (Editorial) Accoun-tant, June 24, 1939, p. 834-6. Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1939, p. 101-3. (reprinted)
- "AUDIT procedure in America." (Editorial) nal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 77-9. Jour-
- AUDIT procedure with respect to verification of in-ventories and receivables. Ellis, George P.

AUDIT reports and the banks. Taylor, Harry E.

AUDIT working papers. Peloubet, Maurice E.

AUDITING

- See also Auditors: Corporations—Auditing. ALLEN, FRANCIS G. Certified audits—for whom? Plan suggested to make accountants responsible solely to stockholders. Barron's, Dec. 26, 1938, p. 3. whom? Plan suggested to make accountants responsible solely to stockholders. Barron's, Dec. 26, 1938, p. 3. AMERICAN ACADEMY OF ACCOUNTANCY. Check-list of audit procedures. Chicago, Ill., American academy of accountancy, c1937. 79p. AMERICAN institute and auditing procedure. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 214; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 263-71.
- 263-7.
- p. 2057. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects, presented at the fifty-second annual meeting, American institute of accountants, 1939.
- 295p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing procedure. Audi-tor's opinion on the basis of a restricted exam-ination. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 365-6.
- 365-6. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing procedure. Exten-sions of auditing procedure; a report of the Special committee on auditing procedure, adopted by the Council of the American institute of ac-countants, 1939, B. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 342-9. Controller, June 1939, p. 200-4, 230-1. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 431-43: Dec. 1939, p. 417-30. Accountant, Joure 24, 1939, p. 850-4. Philippine accountants' journal, July, Aug., Sept. 1939, p. 130-40. 130-40. Same; report of May 9, 1939, as modified

AUDITING—(Continued)

and approved at the annual meeting, September 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, October 18, 1939. 10p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 377-85. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939,

- accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939, p. 130-41. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Statement by committees of American institute of accountants and New York state society of certified public accountants at a meeting with the Honorable John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney gen-eral of the state of New York, January 6, 1939. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 206-15. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 6-16. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CONSULTING ENGINEERS. Correspondence with William W. Werntz and report of discussion on engineering audits led by C. Oliver Wellington. March-April 1939. Microid (Constructive comment Profession
- April 1939. mimeographed.
 ✓ ANOTHER constructive comment Profession proceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 135-6.
 ✓ AUDIT procedure in America. (Editorial) Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 834-6. Journal of accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 834-6. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 101-3. (reprinted) "AUDIT procedure. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 77-9.
 ✓ AUDITING procedure. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 117-8.
 BACAS, PAUL E. Auditing practice set. ed. 3, rev. New York, Ronald press co., <1936. looseleat.

 - ACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Auditing procedure. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 443p. BACAS

 - Josephile Mew Folk, Rohald press Col, CF977.
 JatleY, GEORGE D. Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 63-75.)
 BAILEY, GEORGE D. Testimony of the S.E.C. hearings on auditing practice and procedures at the Central states accounting conference, June 2, 1939; first section presented by George D. Bailey. 21 typewritten pages.
 BRIKK, VICTOR Z. Some comments on the Inter-state hosiery case. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 18-22, 38.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Can audit programs be standardized. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p.

 - ROAD, SAMUEL J. Can audit programs be standardized. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p.

 - standardized. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 21, 24. BROAD, SAMUEL J. Effect of extensions of auditing procedure on the accountant's practice and reports. New York certified public accoun-tant, Nov. 1939, p. 59-66. BROAD, SAMUEL J. Extensions of auditing procedure to meet new demands. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 41-7.)
 - institute of accountants. repers on encomp procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 41-7.) BYRNES, THOMAS W. and BAKER, K. LANNEAU. Auditing laboratory set. New York, Ronald press co., c1936, 273p. and forms. CERTIFICATE revised. (Editorial) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 452-3. CHAN, STEPHEN. Supervision of accountants' reports. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 261-5. CONCERNING the gnat and the camel—Reductio ad absurdum. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1936, p. 233-5. CONICK, M. C. Discussion of the report of the special committee on auditing procedure of the American institute of accountants, dated May 9, 1939. (In Pennsylvania institute of accoun-tants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American

 - tants-Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939.
 - 6p.) DAVIES, ERNEST COULTER. Auditing. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 295p. plus 87p. loose leaf.

DAVIS, HARRY LEO and DICKMAN, KER-

- MIT S. Outline of auditing. New York, Outline publicity co., c1937. 48p.
 DISCUSSION of papers presented on Extensions of auditing procedure. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 90-6.
 ECONACON. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 103-4.
 ELLIS, CECIL A. Auditing procedure in America. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 191-2.
 ELLIS, CECIL A. Good systems and fraudulent practices. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939, p. 355-64.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Audit procedure with respect to verification of inventories and receivables; address delivered to annual convention, Georgia society of certified public accountants. Macon, Ga., May 26, 1939. 27 typewritten pages.
 EPISCOPUS. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant, London, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 303-4.
 EXTENSIONS of auditing procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountant, Journal of accountant, June 1936, p. 7, 34. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1936, p. 70-2.
 FLEISHER, FERNALD and COMPANY. Report on continuous audits? Action of p. 2000.
 FRALEY, A. L. Fundamentals and ethics of the section of the sectio

 - FILISHER, FERNALD and COMPANY. Re-port on continuous audits. Philadelphia, Pa., Fleisher, Fernald and co., 1939. 7p. FRALEY, A. L. Fundamentals and ethics of auditing. National auditgram, March 1936, p.
 - 10.2

 - GILMAN, STEPHEN. Old and new viewpoints toward auditing. 5 typewritten pages. GLOVER, P. W. R. Basic questions of auditing procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939,
 - procedure, Journal of accounting, 1920 p. 92-100. GLOVER, P. W. R. Current discussions of audit-ing procedure; paper read at meeting of the Massachusetts society of certified public accoun-tants held at Boston, Mass., October 2, 1939.
- massachusetts society of certified public accountants held at Boston, Mass., October 2, 1939. 10 typewritten pages.
 GLOVER, P. W. R. Current trends in auditing procedure; address presented at the forty-fourth annual credit congress, National association of credit men, Grand Rapids, Mich., June 14, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Sept. 1939, p. 75-6, 94-7.
 GLOVER, P. W. R. Extensions of auditing procedure. (Correspondence) Journal of accountants, Dec. 1939, p. 396.
 GLOVER, P. W. R. Introduction to round table discussion: Discussion of auditing procedure. (In American institute of accountants. Pagers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 1-4.)
 HERMANOS, MANCERA. (La) Auditoria de los estados financieros (responsabilidades y debres del comisario en las sociedades anonimas). Mexico, D. F. Editorial cultura, 1937. 97p.
 HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Auditing, principles and procedure. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1939. 561p.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountant, May 1939, p. 1, 3.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountant, Ceditorials) Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 397-9.
 INISH, RONALD A. Statistical analysis as an

- IRISH, RONALD A. Statistical analysis as an audit weapon. Australian accountant, July 1938, р. 454-7. КІККНАМ,
- IRKHAM, E. J. and GAA, C. J. Is there a theory basis for audit procedure? Accounting review, June 1939, p. 139-46.
- LAWRENCE, W. B. Advantages for auditing. (In his Cost accounting. 1937. p. 449-62.)
- LEE, EARLE GOODRICH. Extensions of auditing procedure. (Correspondence) accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 194-6. Journal of
- LENHART, NORMAN J. Principles of account-

AUDITING-(Continued)

- AUDITING--(Continued)
 ing as applied to current practice. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 13-20, 23-4.
 LILLY, LEWIS. What is an adequate auditing procedure? (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fapers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 35-40.)
 McCALL, AMBROSE V. and FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, 1939. New York, Grosby press, inc., 1939.
 Sp. (includes proceedings)
 Report of conference... January 6, 1939.
 Memographed pages. Certified public accoun-tant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13, with Institute reply.
 McKESSON & ROBBINS case-S.E.C. investiga-tions -- Institute's position -- Attorney general's meeting-Possible improvement in auditing-Evolution of auditing-Publicity and the future. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939.
 McKESSON & CEORGE V. Address bafore

- p. 65-9. McLAUGHLIN,
- p. 65-9.
 McLAUGHLIN, GEORGE V. Address before monthly meeting of the National association of cost accountants, at Hotel Granada, Brooklyn, December 21, 1938. 6 typewritten pages.
 MARSH, WILLIAM F. Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 76-90.)
 MEYER, HARVEY G. Audit practice case. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 7 sections. NELSON, ANDREW. Introduction to auditing. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1938.
- New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1938. 261p. NEW YORK
- New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1938. 261p.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Special com-mittee on auditing practice and procedure. Ex-tensions of auditing procedure; a report adopted by the society of the meeting of May 22, 1939.
 New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 8p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit pro-cedure of committee on stock list. New York, New York stock exchange, August 1939. 8p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 236-43. L.R.B & M. journal, Sett. 1939, p. 918.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Public ex-amining board. Report of Public examining board on customer protection—to New York, New York stock exchange, 1939. 40p.
 OBJECTIVE appraisal of audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 259-60.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Audit working papers, their function, preparation and content. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1937. 412p.

- York, American institute pair, e.g., 412p. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Discussion of the report of the special committee on auditing pro-cedure of the American institute of accountants. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the Amer-ican institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939.
- PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Enjoyment of un-
- PELOUBEL, MAURICE E. Enjoyment of un-pleasant assignments. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 5-9. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. McKesson and Rob-bins case and the extension of U. S. audit pro-cedure. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1930 302 5
- course. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 392-5. REDMOND, JOHN L. Accountants. Credit execu-tive, Feb. 1939, p. 38. RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Where do we go from here? Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 85-90.
- 85-90. REYNOLDS, F. B. "Onlooker sees . . " Accoun-tants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 8-11. ROCKEY, CHARLES S. Suggested standards of practice. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 196-7.

- NOTHSCHILD, ALFRED. Inclusion of insurance data in audits as a standard practice. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 47-8.
 S.E.C. hearings. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 136; April 1939, p. 194-5.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Summary of certain testimony before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939, p. 106-14.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Auditing, theory and procedure. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939, 469p.
 SIEGEL, ALBERT. Extensions of auditing procedure affecting credit analysis. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1939, p. 41-4.
 STEWRAT, WILLIAM M. Difference between auditing and checking. National auditgram, Sept. 1938, p. 10, 14-5.
 TALES usually told after office hours; it ain't all beer and skittles what we does to win our victuals. Journal of accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 330-400; June 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 330-400; June 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 330-400; June 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, Tune 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p.

- IOWNS, CHARLES H. Examination of accounts receivable. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 148-53.
 TROUANT, D. L. Financial audits. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1937. 245p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. United States of America before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson & Robbins, inc.; testimony of expert witnesses. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 638p.
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. Discussion of engineering audits, at luncheon meeting of American institute of consulting engineers, April 5, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages.
 WHITMORE, EUGENE. Hullabaloo about audits. American business, Feb. 1939, p. 13-4, 50-1.
 Same. 10 mimeographed pages.
 WOOLLEY, E. S. Real audits. Banking, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 4.

- Audit programs
 KAHN, SIDNEY B. Monthly audit administration, working papers and reports. (address delivered before a meeting of the New York state society of certified public accountants on April 11, 1938.) 17 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant. April 1938, p. 28-39.
 TUCKER, ARTHUR R. Acceptance of accoun-tants' audit program now being sought. Con-troller, July 1939, p. 242-3.
- Australia
 Australia
 BALLANTYNE, J. R. Audit programmes and audit working papers. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 351-9.
 CHENOWETH, R. W. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band c. thema 6. p. 49-71.)
 FORTESCUE, EDWARD E. Auditing for the intermediate student. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 167-75.
 LORD, JOHN. Partial audits and qualified re-ports. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1938, p. 162-73.
 QUAIN. JOHN M. Auditing. Australian accoun-tant, Jan. 1939, p. 468-80.
 SOLOMON, V. L. Audit of mechanised accounts. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 371-84

AUDITING-(Continued)

- Canada
 - Banada
 FREEMAN, GEORGE R. Some problems of the practising accountant. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 244-64.
 ROSS, HOWARD I. Auditor, the client and the public. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 229-37.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Auditing. Toronto, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons (Canada), Itd., 1937. 523p.

China

NOM LEE, J. STEPHEN. Government auditing in China. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 190-8.

Court decisions SMAILS, R. G. H. Legal decisions. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 337-509.)

- Europe
- autope
 ALLEN, A. STUART. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September 1938; papers given in English.) Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 484-7, Nov. 5, 1938, p. 494-9. Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 3-9. (In V. internationaler priifungs- und treuhand- kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 1-27.)
 O'DEA, FRANCIS J. H. Currency depreciation and restrictions, and other problems of the auditor in present day continental Europe. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 60-6.
 SCHMALTZ, KURT. Audit of annual accounts. (English translation) '(In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongressarchiv, 1938. band B. thema 3, p. 37-64.)
- France
 - HANS, J. Commercial control and audit, French and German methods. Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 380-1.

Germany

HANS, J. Commercial control and audit, French and German methods. *Accountant*, March 13, 1937, p. 380-1.

Great Britain

- AUDITOR'S report. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 916-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 110-3. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 161-4. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 152-3.
 BACK, W. J. Standard practice in auditing, with a memorandum on the use of machines in accounting, by R. N. Barnett, issued under the auspices of the Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, 1937, 44p. BARNETT, R. N. Effect on auditing of machine accounting. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 399-404, discussion, p. 404-5. Accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 691-702. BARNETT, R. N. Effect on audit private date accountant, student in Australia, April 1939, p. 691-702. BARNWELIFF, C. PECY. Audit of private limited companies and private concerns, Accountant student and Accountant's journal, Aug. 1938, p. 393-7, discussion, p. 397-8.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Audits, ed. 9. London, Gee and co. Itd., 1936, 3620.

- Jowna, Aug. 1900, p. 0907, discussion, p. 397.8.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Audits. ed. 9. London, Gee and co., Itd., 1936. 362p.
 DePAULA, F. R. M. Principles of auditing; practical manual for students and practitioners. ed. 10. London, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons, Itd., 1939. 348p.
 EFFICIENCY audits. Accountants' journal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 935.8.
 ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and advisory work. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English) Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 837.42; Dec. 24, 1938, p. 873.7; (In V. inter-

- nationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D, p. 99-122.) FREEMAN, GEORGE R. Some problems of the practising accountant. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1939, p. 244-64. HOLMAN, WALTER. Some practical points in auditing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 84-7. HOWELL, A. W. A. Audit of machine-written accounting records. Accountant, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 265-70; Sept. 2, 1939, p. 299-303; Sept. 9, 1939, p. 321-5; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 338-42; Sept. 23, 1939, p. 365-9; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 384-6; Oct. 7, 1939, p. 400-3. HUSBAND, P. E. Interim audit work; some special features and characteristics. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1939, p. 302-3.

- HUSBAND, F. E. Interim audit work; some special features and characteristics. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1939, p. 302-3.
 JEAL, 'EDWARD F. Learned judges and the auditor; a synthesis in interpretation of juris-prudence affecting auditors. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 777-83; June 17, 1939, p. 813-20. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 178-93; Oct. 1939, p. 265-83.
 LOUDON, JOHN. Effect of mechanised accounting on audit procedure. Accountant, magasine, July 1939, p. 428-42.
 OXBORROW, HAROLD R. Auditing by and for tax authorities; a paper submitted to the Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, 1938. Certified accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 348-57. Indiam accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 80-97. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 113-42.)
 RICEE, G. F. D. Errors encountered in auditing. Incorporated accountant' journal, March 1938, p. 208-11, discussion, p. 2181-3, 185.
 ROWLAND, STANLEY W. Limited audits. Accountant, Nay 1938, p. 175-81. discussion, p. 181-3, 185.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. British control of company accounts and finance. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 282-5.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. British control of company accounts and finance. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 11-23.
 SPICER, ERNEST EVAN and PEGLER, E. C. Practical auditing; edited by W. W. Bigg. ed. 7. London, H. F. L. (publishers), Itd. (1937)
 WITTY, RICHARD A. Audit of annual accounts, (in V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B, thema 3, p. 123-47.)

- History FITZPATRICK, L. Story of bookkeeping, ac-counting and auditing. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 128-36. ac-1

Independent audits

- Megendent audits
 See also Accountants—Independence of.
 ACCOUNTING for investors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 290-2.
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Independent audits of colleges and universities. Washington, D. C., American council on education, March 1938. 13p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 12.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants; a revision of the bulletin prepared by the American institute of accountants. New York, American institute of accountants, January, 1936. 41p. Extracts. Controller, April 1936, p. 91-2, 94, 96.
 AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357; Oct. 1939, p. 220-1.
 AUDL, GEORGE P. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accountants. Januars, organization and the independent audit. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357; Oct. 1938, p. 224-7.
 BALDWIN, ARTHUR L. External check on local finances; address before conference on government management, Estes Park, Colorado, June 1939. 7 typewritten pages.

60

AUDITING-Independent audits-(Continued)

- independent audits—(Continued) independent audit; address before the annual convention of the American management asso-ciation, finance and accounts division, January 25, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages. (In American management association. Problems and responsi-bilities of the finance officer, c1939. p. 3-12.) BROAD, SAMUEL J. Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 23-6.
- New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 23-6. COCHRANE, GEORGE. Discussion of address Objective appraisal of the independent audit, by Jules I. Bogen. (In American management association. Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer. c1939, p. 9-12.) CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Memorandum of committee on legislation concerning a uniform system of periodic auditing and accounting of
- system of periodic auditing and accounting of all public moneys, state, county and municipal. Connecticut C.P.A., Jan. 1939, p. 1-10.
- DURKEE, RODNEY S. What is expected of the independent auditor? Controller, Oct. 1939, p. 352-4
- burkEE, RODNEY S. What management expects of the independent auditor. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p.
- Ceaure and once and state and state
- 105-6. GRATUITOUS attack. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 131-4. HASKELL, JOHN. What does the investor expect of the independent auditor? (In American in-stitute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939.
- p. 12-6.) IMPORTANT document revised. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 84-5. INDEPENDENT audits of brokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938,

- INDEPENDENT audits of brokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 5-6.
 LENHART, NORMAN J. To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detection of fraud? (In Pennsylvania institute of accountants.—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants... Proceedings of the second accounting claim (October 20-1, 1939, 10p.)
 McGLADREY, IRA B. Independent audits or political audits? Cedar Rapids, Iowa, The author, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on istock list. Sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on istock list. New York, New York stock exchange, August 1939, 8p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 322-4. Savings and Ioan associations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 322-4. Savings and Ioan associations. Banking, Dec. 1939, p. 27.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Puzzle for auditors. Banking, Dec. 1939, p. 228-31.
 STEINEMANN, ROBERT. Taxes, taxes, everywhere, to drive us all to drink; address delivered at the annual conference of the tax assessors and collectors association of Texas at Galveston, Texas, May 17, 1939. New York, Fidelity and casualty co., 1939, 156.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy (Co., 1939, 156.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
 STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountan

panies—Preliminary report of the committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, pur-suant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) a resolution authorizing an investigation of interstate rail-roads and affiliates with respect to financing, roads and athlates with respect to mancing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other mat-ters—Fallibility of auditors' certificates; inade-quacy of Price, Waterhouse & co.'s certificate to Missouri Pacific stockholders. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Feb. 10, 1939. 13p. (76th congress, 1st session—Report No.

- D. C., Government printing office, Feb. 10, 1939. 13p. (76th congress, 1st session—Report No. 25, Part 3.)
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. What does the Securities and exchange commission expect of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 17-26.)
 WINN, W. R. Discussion of paper "To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied" upon for the detection of fraud?" by Norman I. Lenhart. (In Pennsylvania institute of certi-fied public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceed-ings of the second accounting clinic, October
- ings of the second accounting clinic, October 201, 1939. 2p.) WOOLLEY, E. E. Real audits. Banking, Feb. 1939, p. 19-20. Florida accountant, April 1939, p. 1, 4.
- Internal mulit ADAMS, F. A. Importance of an internal audit for banks. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 15.20.

 - ADAMS, F. A. Importance of an internal audit for banks. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 15-20.
 BANKS, E. H. System of internal check and its bearing upon the audit programme. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 189-94.
 BODMAN, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company. New York, National association of cost accountants. April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 807-20.)
 BOUTELLE, EUGENE G. Internal auditing can be active, forceful function of business. Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 337-42, 344.
 BRINK, VICTOR Z. Internal check. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 138-47. Reprinted by American surety company and New York casualty company. 289.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Effect of extensions of auditing procedure on the accountant's practice and reports. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 404-6, 408, 410, 419.
 EINSTEIN, SAMUEL Internal auditing. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 197-6.
 COVERT, VINE F. Internal auditing. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 197.
 HATHAWAY, KING. Applied scientific management—13; organization—the auditor's department. Society for the advancement of management journal, Sept. 1937. p. 149-53.
 HENELL, H. E. Internal auditing. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 2, p. 1046-9.)
 HOWKINS, W. Internal audit procedure and control. National accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 4-5, 12.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACC. COUNTANTS. Place of internal auditing in accountant sufficienting and the section of the controller's office. Balance sheet, Dec. 1938, p. 7-10, 13-5.

 - 12. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST AC-COUNTANTS. Place of internal auditing in industrial companies. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 3, p. 1285-97.)
 - NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Internal audit, a manual for department stores and specialty stores; prepared by the Detroit controllers' group. New York, Controllers' congress, Na-tional retail dry goods association, c1936. 10p.
 - NELSON, ANDREW. Internal check. (In his Introduction to auditing. 1938. p. 18-37.)
 - PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Examination into

AUDITING-Internal audit-(Continued)

- System of internal audit—(Continued)
 system of internal audit and control. (In his Audit working papers. 1937, p. 22-67.)
 RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Internal audit; address at Controllers' congress—annual convention, Pacific coast regional group, September 16th, 1938. 14 typewritten pages.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Outwitting employee frauds requires careful office controls. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1939, p. 41-3.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Internal check and audit procedure. (In his Auditing. 1937, p. 43-102.)
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Illustration of justifiable elasticity in audit procedure based upon internal control. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 32-5.

- control. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 32-5. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Influence of internal control upon audit procedure. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1936, p. 170-85. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Internal audit control. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 820-36.) Printed with: Bodman, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil combany.

- Bodman, G. T. Internal duating for a large oil company.
 STEPHENSON, E. C. Internal auditing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 24-6.)
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. Principles of internal check-Internal check methods. (In his Accounting systems, 1936. p. 146-207.)
 THOMSON, HENRY M. Internal auditing for trading and manufacturing concerns. New York, National association of cost accountants. April Trading and manufacturing concerns. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, sec-tion 1, p. 836.45.) Printed with: Bodman, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company.
 TUCKER, CHARLES W. Internal audit control. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 248.59.)
 TUCKER, CHARLES W. What is required for internal audit control? (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 293-306, discussion, p. 306-9.)
 WILLIAMS, PAUL D. Internal audit and con-trol. Journal of the American water works asso-ciation, Oct. 1937, p. 1566-79.

Law

Connecticut CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Municipal audit-ing act of 1939. New Haven, Conn., Connecticut society of certified public accountants, July 1939. 14p.

- Monthly audits
 KAHN, SIDNEY B. Monthly audit administration, working papers and reports (address delivered before a meeting of the New York state society of certified public accountants on April 11, 1938.) 17 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 28-39.
 SANDLER, JOSEPH, Special features of monthly audits. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 21-7. Philippine accountants, journal, Aug. 1938, p. 295-303.
 SEIDMAN, LAWRENCE J. Present-day scope of monthly audits. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 17-20.

Problems

- See also Examinations-American institute of
- See also Examinations—American institute of accountants. BACAS, PAUL E., MADDEN, JOHN T. and ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY. Audit-ing procedure; problems. New York, Ronald press company, c1937. 68p. COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. Department of accountancy. Accountancy 220; study outline and problems. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 78p. COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. School of business and civic administration. Department of accountancy. Accounting prob-lems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 202.

- EIDMAN, HENRY L. New York C.P.A. audit-ing questions, 1924-1933, with answers. 2 v. New York, C.P.A. examinations review, c1936. not paged. Same,
- TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMAN C. C.P.A. problems and questions in theory and auditing. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 701p.

AUDITING. Davies, Ernest Coulter.

- AUDITING DEPARTMENTS See Auditing-Internal audit.
- AUDITING laboratory set. Byrnes, Thomas W. and Baker, K. Lanneau.
- AUDITING machine-produced accounts. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1937, p. 65.
- AUDITING of unit trust yields. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 424-5. Accoun-tant, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 418-20.
- for licenses. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 48. AUDITING of Victorian
- AUDITING practice set. Bacas, Paul E.
- AUDITING principles and procedure. Holmes, Arthur w.

AUDITING procedure. Bacas, Paul E. and others.

- AUDITING procedure. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 117-8.
- AUDITING procedure in America. (Correspondence) Ellis, Cecil A.
- AUDITING, theory and procedure. Sherwood, J. F. and Culey, Roy T.
- AUDITOR as director—Accountants as directors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 243-6.
- AUDITORS

 - See also Accountants; Auditing. ALLEN, B. P. Auditors and comptrollers as scientific executives. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 25-8. AUDITORS to audit elections. (Editorial) Journal of accounterer Oct 1036 p. 2320

 - AUDITORS to addit electronis. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 238-9.
 BARNET, ROBERT A. Need of auditors in sav-ings bank. National auditgram, Jan. 1936, p. 1, 5-6, 12.
 CAGUIAT, ENRIQUE. Need for an auditor. Philippine accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 213
 - 21-3

 - 21-3.
 CHANGE of auditors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 462-3.
 DOLGE, WILLIAM. "Your highness: the auditor is here for the semi-annual check-up." California certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 1, 4.
 FJELD, E. I. Auditors of big business. Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 6-8.
 McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Internal and traveling auditors. (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting, 1938. p. 208-23.)
 OBJECTIVE appraisal of audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 259-60.
 PUTNAM, L. L. Every good auditor earns his pay. Profit, July 1937, p. 1, 4.

AUDITORS-(Continued)

- RECOGNITION of auditor's importance—Auditor's independence clearly defined—Reliance upon auditors' reports. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 81-4.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Auditor. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure, cl939, p. 18-23.)
 WELCKER, WILLIAM H. Municipal accounting in Pennsylvania. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 15-9
- p. 15-9.

- Appointment of ALLEN, F whom? P LLEN, FRANCIS G. Certified audits—for whom? Plan suggested to make accountants responsible solely to stockholders. Barron's, Dec.
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 Special committee on appointment of auditors.
 American Institute of appointment of auditors.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.

 - 130.41

- 356.3
- FREEDMAN, CHARLES. Certified audits-for
- FREEDMAN, CHARLES. Certified audits—for whom? Accountant disagrees with recent article in Barron's, demands inventory checks. Bar-ron's Jan. 16, 1939, p. 9. McCALL, AMBROSE V. and FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, (includes proceedings).

- p. 100-3.)
- p. 100-3.) NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing practice and procedure. Extensions of auditing procedure; a report adopted by the society at the meeting of May 22, 1939. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 8p. DELOUDET MAUDICE F. McKesson and Rob-

PELOUBET, MAURICE E. McKesson and Robbins case; effect on accounting practice in the U.S.A. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1939, p. 722-33.

- U.S.A. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1939, p. 722-33. PROFESSION proceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 135-6. RANKIN, R. G. Making good audits better. Banking, May 1939, p. 25. SCOVILL, H. T. Summary of certain testi-mony before the Securities and exchange com-mission in the matter of McKesson Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting con-ference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 106-14.) 14.)

- <u>Same. 14 typewritten pages.</u> <u>SELECTION of auditors. (Notes of the month)</u> *Journal of accountancy*, Feb. 1939, p. 107-8. SHARP, F. W. Election of auditors by stock-holders. (Correspondence) *Journal of accoun-tancy*, Jan. 1939, p. 40-1. STATEMENT before New York attorney general.
- Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 6-16. TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 350-63.

As directors AUDITOR as director—Accountants as directors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 243-6.

As registrars WARREN, A. O. Can auditors act as registrars. Accountant, March 27, 1937, p. 451.

As stockholders

See Accountants-Independence of.

Australia

- ustralia ALLEN, M. R. Co-operation between the accoun-tant, secretary and auditor. Brisbane, Accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, August, 1936, 24p. CLELAND, A. B. Auditor under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1937, p. 613-29, discussion, p. 509.30
- 629-30.

Canada

ROSS, HOWARD I. Auditor, the client and the public. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 229-37.

Duties and responsibilities

See Accountants-Duties and responsibilities.

Great Britain

- reat Britain DePAULA, F. R. M. Sections of the companies act, 1929, particularly affecting auditors—Legal position of auditors. (In his Principles of audit-ing. 1939, p. 152-78; 215-52.) JEAL, EDWARD F. Learned judges and the auditor; a synthesis in interpretation of juris-prudence affecting auditors. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 777-83; June 17, 1939, p. 813-20. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 178 03. Oct 1039 p. 25-83. 178-93; Oct. 1939, p. 265-83.

Independence of See Accountants—Independence of.

India

POSITION of auditors in India. Accountant, April 24, 1937, p. 570-4.

Responsibilities for inventories

- See Inventories-Verification.
- AUDITORS and accountants; degrees of liability. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 342-5. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 223-32.
- AUDITORS and depreciation. Accountant, Aug. 13, 1938, p. 210-11.
- AUDITORS and mechanisation. Accountant, Sept. 3, 1938, p. 314-6.
- AUDITORS' certificate rules, 1932. Indian accoun-tant, March 1936. p. 264-5.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATES See Certificates-Auditors'

- AUDITOR'S duty as to showroom accounts. In-corporated accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 203-5.
- AUDITORS' examinations of accounts receivable. Towns, Charles H.

AUDITORS' FEES

See Wages, fees, etc.-Accountants.

AUDITORS' LIABILITY

- See Accountants—Duties and responsibilities; Negligence; Fraud; Court decisions.
- AUDITOR'S opinion on the basis of a restricted examination. American institute of accountants. Special committee on auditing procedure.
- AUDITOR'S report. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 916-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 110-3. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 161-4. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 152-3.
- AUDITOR'S report. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1937, p. 246-8.
- AUDITOR'S report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 135-9.
- AUDITORS' report to the shareholders; an appeal to the council of the Dominion association of chartered accountants for leadership. *Canadian chartered accountant*, Nov. 1939, p. 341-47.
- AUDITOR'S report to the shareholders; memoran-dum regarding roundtable discussion at annual meeting in Halifax, August 1938. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 63-5.
- AUDITOR'S right to recover fees. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Feb. 1936, p. 227-8.
- AUDITORS, shareholders and balance sheets. Canad-ian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 487-90.
- AUDITORS to audit elections. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 238-9.
- AUDITS. Cutforth, A. E.
- AUDITS for churches. Wandmacher, F. Cornelius.
- AUDITS of departmental and institutional accounts. Benson, James L.
- AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. Journal of ac-countancy, May 1939, p. 274-8.
- AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357; Oct. 1939, p. 220-1.

AULD, GEORGE P.

- Federal social security act. Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1936, p. 430-53. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p.
- 224-7
- Rébuilding trade by tariff bargaining. New York, National foreign trade council, inc., and the National foreign trade association, c1936. 74p.

- AUSTIN, MAURICE Capital gains and losses under the revenue act of 1938. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 131-5. Taxes-the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 131-3, 181-2.
 Liquidating dividends as distributions of earnings and profits. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 4-6, 39.
 Reorganization under the revenue acts. (In Amer-ican institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniver-sary celebration, 1937. p. 220-9.)

AUSTRALASIAN CONGRESS ON ACCOUNTING Proceedings of the Australasian congress on ac-counting, 1936, held in Melbourne, 16th to 20th March, 1936. Melbourne, Australasian congress on accounting, c1936, 361p.

- AUSTRALASIAN CONGRESS ON ACCOUNTING ANDERSEN, C. W. Australasian congress on accounting. Australian accountant, Feb. 1936,
 - accounting, Anastrantic accounting, Arastrantic Australia, Feb. 1936, p. 434-9. AUSTRALASIAN congress on accounting. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 434-9. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1936, p. 383-7; April 1936, p. 524-31. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 266-9.

AUSTRALASIAN INSTITUTE OF SECRETARIES, INC.

| ot | secr | etarie. | s, 193 | 6. | 110 | p. |
|----|------|---------|--------|----|-----|----|
| | | Sama | | | | |

- -Same, 1937. 114p. -Same, 1938. 119p. -Same, 1939. 120p.
- AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTANT. (official organ of the Commonwealth institute of accountants and Federal institute of accountants.) Melbourne, Aus., Accountants publishing company, Itd.
- "AUSTRALIAN accountant." Australian accountant, Feb. 1936. p. 2-9.

AUTOMATIC COIN MACHINES See Vending machines.

AUTOMOBILE AGENCIES See Automobile trade.

AUTOMOBILE DEALERS See Automobile trade.

- AUTOMOBILE FINANCE COMPANIES AND DE-PARTMENTS

 - AUTOMOBILE FINANCE COMPANIES AND DE-PARTMENTS
 BEZOIER, R. A. How a bank can handle auto-mobile loans at a profit. Bankers monthly, Dec. 1939, p. 7423.
 COOKE, SIDNEY M. Floor plan ratios as an aid in passing on finance paper. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 244.9.
 COON, OWEN L. Analysis of automobile repos-sessions. Robert Morris associates monthly bul-letin, Feb. 1938, p. 227-30, 243.
 CRAVENS, KENTON R. Bank financing of auto-mobiles. Burroughs clearing house, Dec. 1939, p. 12-4, 30, 32-5.
 FLEMING, LEW. Trends in consumer financing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 179-84, 193-6.
 HUEGY, HARVEY W. and WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Financial policies and practices of automobile finance companies. Urbana, 111, University of Illinois, Bureau of business re-search, 1938. 56p. (Bulletin no. 56.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SALES FINANCE COMPANIES. Composite experience of sales finance companies and automobile dealers, 1937. 1p.

- Accounting FINANCING charges of automobile finance com-panies. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, May 1939, p. 300-1.
- Statistics.

- tatistics
 BEZOIER, R. A. Automobile financing analyzed Bankers monthly, Sept. 1939, p. 521-3, 552-5.
 BEZOIER, R. A. Finance company statements analyzed. Bankers monthly, Oct. 1939, p. 588-90, 608, 611-2.
 EMERSON, DEAN. Analyzing automobile finance company statements. Robert Morris associates
- company statements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletim, Sept. 1936, p. 77-91. HUEGY, HARVEY W. and WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Automobile finance company flexi-

AUTOMOBILE FINANCE COMPANIES AND DE-PARTMENTS—Statistics—(Continued)

bility. Bankers monthly, Nov. 1938, p. 658-9,

bility. Bankers montaly, 1001. 2009, p. 1684-5. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SALES FINANCE COMPANIES. Sales finance com-panies and automobile dealers, the 1936 com-posite experience. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 69.

AUTOMOBILE INDUSTRY

DYNAMICS of automobile demand; based upon papers presented at a joint meeting of the American statistical association and the Eco-nometric society in Detroit, Michigan, on De-cember 27, 1938. New York, General motors corporation, 1939. 139p.

Accounting RUSSELL, DONALD M. Accounting aspects of the automobile industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 8-11, 36.

Cost accounting WHEELER, S. J. Costing in the motor industry. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 32-8.

Statistics

- TOLLES, N. A. and LaFEVER, N. W. Wages, hours, employment, and annual earnings in the motor-vehicle industry, 1934. Monthly labor re-view, March 1936, p. 521-53.
- UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on automobile manu-facturers registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project spon-sored by the Securities and exchange commis-sion. New York, Works progress administration, Feb. 1939. 57p. (Report no. 4.)

AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE

See Insurance, Automobile

- AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIATION ANTI-DISCRIMINATION laws in force Decem-ber 15, 1937. (reprinted with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York, Automobile manufacturers association, c1937. 1 sheet.

 - York, Automobile manufacturers association, c1937. 1 sheet. LAWS prohibiting sales below cost; in force Decem-ber 15, 1937. (reprinted with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York, Automobile manufacturers association, c1937. 1 sheet. RESALE price maintenance laws ("Fair trade acts") in force December 15, 1937. (reprinted with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York, Automobile manu-facturers association, c1937. 1 sheet.

AUTOMOBILE PARTS AND ACCESSORIES Statistics

- atistics BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New operating yard-sticks for five wholesale trades. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 20.4. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of automotive parts and ac-cessory stores, battery, ignition and tire stores, garages (with parts and repairing) and used automobile parts and accessories. (In their 1922 to the store to a 33, 33a, 33b, 34b, 34b

- salers. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936. p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3.) (1937 ed.-p. 54, 82, 108, 135, 198-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times, c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p. 26-7.) FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of automobile parts and accessory manu-facturers. (In his Behind the scenes of busi-ness, 1936. p. 49, 75, 99, 124, 174-5.) (1937 ed.-p. 49, 77, 103, 130, 188-90.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 26-7.) (In his Signs of the times, c1938. p. 26-7.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p.20-1.)
- 26-7.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1938, p. 20-1.)
 UNITED STATES. Works progress administration. Selected information on manufacturers of automobile parts and accessories registered under the securities exchange act of 1934 at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations: a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and accessories resisteries and ministration, June 1939. 159p. (Report no. 18.)

AUTOMOBILE REPAIR SHOPS

ROLLINSON, CHARLES E. Accountancy in the distributive motor trade. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, May 1938, p. 283-8.

AUTOMOBILE SERVICE STATIONS

See also Gasoline service stations.

Statistics

The second se

AUTOMOBILE TIRES See Tires.

AUTOMOBILE TRADE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SALES FINANCE COMPANIES. Composite experience of sales finance companies and automobile deal-ers, 1937. 1p.

- ers, 1937. 1p.
 Accounting
 ACCOUNTING for small automobile agencies.
 Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 4-6.
 CLERIHUE, V. RANDOLPH. Accounts of an automobile distributor. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 353-66.
 FORD MOTOR COMPANY. Manual of accounting procedure for Ford dealers. Dearborn, Mich., Ford motor co., cl936. 660, and forms.
 GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION. General motors dealers standard accounting manual. rev. ed. Dayton, Ohio, Reynolds and Reynolds co., January 1938. loose leaf.
 LAIRD, THOMAS D. Motor-car agents' accounts. Accountants' magazine. May 1938, p. 272-9.
 ROLLINSON, CHARLES E. Accountancy in the distributive motor trade. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 283-8.

Cost accounting HESSE, M. A. Costs as applied to garages and retail car selling. Australian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 15-34.

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of motor vehicle dealers (new and used). (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 37.)

AUTOMOBILE TRANSPORTATION See Motor transportation.

AUTOMOBILE WRECKING COMPANIES See Wrecking companies.

AUTOMOBILES

Cost of operation See also Delivery costs; Motor buses; Motor trucks; Motor transportation; Taxicabs.

AUTOMOBILES-Cost of operation-(Continued)

- BRUMLEY, D. L. Costing motor vehicle operations in government departments. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 285-9.
 CHAMBERS, ROBERT K. Expense control for automobile fleets. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, p. 1007-27.)
- CUTS salesmen's expenses and auto costs with new report plan. Sales management, Oct. 10, 1938.
- 1938.
 GIFFORD, L. D. What does your car cost? Profit. April 1938. p. 1, 4.
 McKEE RAYMOND WALTER. Motor vehicle operating costs. (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting. 1938. p. 183-207.)
 1937 survey of salesmen's expense account prac-tices. (reprinted from Sales management's "Man-aging salesman in 1938" Oct. 10, 1937.) 1p.
 OPERATES fleet of 1,100 salesmen's cars at aver-age of 3.94c per mile. Sales management, Oct. 10, 1938.
 THIS schedule helps cut auto expenses. American business combined with System, March 1936, p. 33.

- p. 33. THREE tested methods of basing automobile al-lowances. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 35-8.
- AUTOMOTIVE and equipment wholesalers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc.
- AVAILABILITY of reserves for dividend. Accoun-tant, June 26, 1937, p. 894-5.

AVEN, WILLIAM R. Know your motor truck costs. Power wagon, Oct. 1936. p. 5-6.

AVERAGE ADJUSTING

See Insurance, Marine.

AVERY, BARTON

Uniform accounting in Kansas. Municipal finance, Nov. 1939, p. 45-7.

- AVEYARD, C. H. Consolidated balance sheets. Accountant, June 25, 1938, p. 876-8. Hotel accounting and control. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 729-31. Special points arising in the accounts of seasonal Special points arising in the accounts of seasonal

 - businesses. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 563-5.

AVIATION

See Air transportation.

AVIATION INSURANCE

See Insurance, Aviation.

AWARDS

See Arbitration and award; Prizes and contests.

AWNINGS See Canvas goods.

AYARS, ROBERT D.

- Taxation of capital assets. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 16-20.
- AYARS, ROBERT D., joint author See MacFarland, George A. and Ayars, Robert D.
- BACAS, PAUL E.
- Auditing practice set. ed. 3, revised. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. loose leaf.
 Content of the auditing course. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 263-6.
 Examination of accounts receivable. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 29-32.

BACAS, PAUL E. and others Auditing procedure. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 443.

-Same; problems. c1937. 68p.

BACHMAN, B. B. Diesel engines in motor trucks. Power wagon, Feb. 1937, p. 5-8, 44.

- BACK, W. J. Examination questions. Accountancy, June 1939, p. 340-3.
 - nance act, 1937. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 99-106, discussion, p. Finance
- Finance act, 1937. Incorporatea acconnums journal, Dec. 1937, p. 99-106, discussion, p. 106-7.
 General knowledge: the questions on company practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 192-5, discussion, p. 195-6.
 Partnership accounts and taxation. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 369-73, discussion, p. 373-4.
 Preparing accounts from incomplete records. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 406-13, discussion, p. 413-4. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 425-30.
 Solicitors' accounts under the new act. Accountant, July 18, 1936, p. 93-8.
 Solicitors' accounts under the new act. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 274-8, 279-80.
 Solicitors' accounts under the 1933 act. London, Gee & co., Itd., 1936. 16p. (Accountant lecture series no. 45.)
 Standard practice in auditing, with a memorandum on the use of machines in accounting & R. N. Barnett, issued under the auspices of the Society of incorporated accountants & auditors. London, Society of incorporated accountants
- BACKMAN, JULES

Cost of production as a basis for price fixing. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 143-53. Enforcement of government price fixing. Harvard business review, Winter number, part 1, 1938, p. 154-67.

Government price-fixing. New York, Pitman pub. corp., c1938. 304p.

BACKUS, EDGAR H. hotography revolutionized our bookkeeping. Bankers monthly, April 1938, p. 208-9, 222-3. Photography

BAD DEBTS

- See Debts and debtors; Losses; Taxation, United States-Bad debts.
- BAD debts; income tax deduction—when allowable. Reprint of general counsel's memorandum 18525. National auditgram, March 1938, p. 10-11.

.

BADGER, RALPH EASTMAN Effect of recent trends on investment values. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 333-8.

- BADGER. RALPH EASTMAN and GUTHMANN, HARRY G. Investment principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall inc., 1936. 987p.
- BAEHNE, G. W., editor Practical application of the punched card method in colleges and universities. New York, Columbia university press, 1935. 442p.
- BAERNCOPF, JOSEPH B. What is ahead for the junior accountant? 12 typewritten pages.
- BAGNALL, L. H. Costing in the dycing trade. Accountant, April 23, 1938, p. 561-5.
- BAGNELL. D. B. See United States. Agriculture, Department of. Grain futures administration.
- BAIEVSKY, BORIS
 Accountant and taxes. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 35-6.

 Deferred charges and prepaid expenses. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938
 - p. 184-5.

BAIEVSKY, BORIS-(Continued)

Housing and accountancy systems. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1939, p. 181-2. Uniform system of accounts for homestead corpo-rations. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 352-68; July 1936, p. 421-33.

- BAILEY, GEORGE D. "Accountants' certificates." (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting conference, 1938, p. 15-20, discussion,

 accounting conference, 1938, p. 15-20, discussion, p. 20-1.)
 Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting. . . May 19, 20, 1939, p. 63-75.)
 Introduction to round table discussion on: Accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedures, 1938, p. 75-7.)
 Practical application of municipal accounting principles. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938, p. 13-8.)
 Practical problems in governmental accounting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 52-7.
 Testimony of the S.E.C. hearings on auditing practice and procedures at the Central states accounting conference, June 2, 1939; first section presented by George D. Bailey. 21 typewritten pages. pages.

BAILEY, M. R. Motor truck equipment trusts. Banking, Feb. 1937, p. 72.

BAIN, JOE S.

Depression pricing and the depreciation function. Quarterly journal of economics, Aug. 1937, p. 705-15.

BAKER, BENJAMIN G.

Computation of depreciation in the laundry indus-try. Joliet, Ill., Laundryowners national asso-ciation of the United States and Canada, April 1937. 22p. (Special report no. 81.)

BAKER, E. J. Charting the costs of offset. Inland printer, June 1936, p. 39-40.

BAKER, GEORGE R. G.

- Incidence of real estate taxes. Canadian chartered
- accountant, June 1938, p. 443-66. Problem of municipal taxation in Canada as sub-mitted to the Rowell commission. Cost and management, Dec. 1939, p. 362-74.

BAKER, HAROLD A

Principles of retail merchandising. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 462p.

BAKER, HELEN

Industrial relations executive and collective bar-gaining. Society for the advancement of manage-ment journal, July 1939, p. 105-7.

BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN

- See also Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.
- Compensation of executive officers of steel corpora-tions. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 473-85.
- Executive compensation. Dun's review, Nov. 1939, p. 16-22. Executive compensation compared with earnings. Harrard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 213-24.
- p. 213-24. Executive compensation policies of small industrial companies, 1928-1936. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 466-80. Executive salaries and bonus plans. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 274p. How should executives be paid? Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 94-106.

- Incentive compensation plans for executives. Har-vard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 44-61.
- Operating expenses and executive compensation policies of investment companies: 1929-1935. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1937, p. 337-51.

BAKER, K. LANNEAU, joint author See Byrnes, Thomas W. and Baker, K. Lanneau.

BAKER, LESLIE W.

Computation of surtax on undistributed profits. Daily record (Baltimore, Md.), Dec. 22, 1936.

- BAKER, RA CHARLES RAY PALMER, and HOWELL, ALMONTE
 - Preparation of reports; scientific, engineering, ad-ministrative, business. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 578p.

BAKER, T. I. Plant control including the treatment of deprecia-tion. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 766-73.

BAKERIES

- Cost accounting DUCKLES, L. H. Controlling operations through cost accounting. Food industries, April 1936,

 - cost accounting. Food industries, April 1936, p. 169-72, 211. HENRY, W. R. Cost accounting in the baking industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1299-1308.) HERBERT, EARLE R. Cake bakery cost con-trol. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1309-14.) Printed with: Henry, W. R. Cost accounting in the bak-ing industry.

Costs

osts LINDSAY, JOHN R. Controllable loss factors in the baking industry. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1315-23.) Printed with: Henry, W. R. Cost accounting in the baking industry.

Statistics

1.)

BAKERS' SUPPLIES

- Statistics BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New operating yard-sticks for five wholesale trades. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 20-4.
- BALANCE sheet Fjeld, E. I. classification and terminology.
- BALANCE sheet in college and university financial reports. American council on education. Finanreports. American council on education. Finan-cial advisory service.
- BALANCE sheet manual for retail stores. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- BALANCE sheet of the nation's economy. Dickinson, Frank G. and Eakin, Franzy.
- BALANCE sheet values: the limitations of industrial accounting. Leake, P. D.

BALANCE SHEETS

See also Commentator; a department edited by William D. Cranstoun. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.

Examination of financial statements by inde-pendent public accountants; a revision of the bulletin prepared by the American institute of accountants in 1929 and published by the Fed-

BALANCE SHEETS—(Continued)

- ALAIVE SHEETS—(Continuea)
 eral reserve board under the title "Verification of financial statements". New York, American institute of accountants, January, 1936, 41p.
 Extracts. Controller, April 1936, p. 91-2, 94, 96.
 BACAS, PAUL E. and others. Balance sheet and statement of income. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937, p. 360-8.)
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Balance sheet. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 142-6.)

- BENNETI, OLONOP E. Balance sheet. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 142-6.)
 BITTER, VINCENT C. A. Presentation of the balance sheet manual. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 20-2.)
 BODDINGTON, A. LESTER. Financial statements; their treatment and interpretation. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, ltd., 1938. 366p.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Balance sheet.—Preparation of balance sheet. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 7-14; 252-61.)
 BUCHANAN, ROBERT. Review of court decisions. (In American institute of accountains. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting guestions) Journal of accountancy. Jan. 1938, p. 65-7.
 COASE, R. H. and others. Published balance sheets as an aid to economic investigation—some difficulties. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 129.
 COMPARATIVE forurge on balance sheet. 40.

- some difficulties. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 129. COMPARATIVE figures on balance sheets, Ac-countant, Jan. 15, 1938, p. 66-7. CRICKMER, H. C. Balance sheet from a bank-er's point of view. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1936, p. 178-87. CRUM, W. L. Industrial corporation balance sheets in prosperity and depression. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 214-32
- sheets in prospering and depression. Plariage business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 214-32.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Balance sheets; their use, abuse and limitations. Certified accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 46-54. Accountant student and the Accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 296-303. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1937, p. 202-22. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 202-22. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 212-20.
 DISCLOSURES on corporation balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, * Feb. 1939, p. 112.
 ELIMINATION of notes from balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 332-4.
 EXPLANATION on balance-sheet of advances to trustee. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 346-35, discussion, p. 353-61.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Balance sheet problems. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 161-9.
 FJELD, E. I. Balance-sheet classification and terminology. New York, The author, 1936, 218-9.
 FJELD, E. I. Balance-sheet classification and terminology. New York, The author, 1936, 218-9.
 FJELD, E. I. Classification and terminology of individual balance-sheet items. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 211-29.
 FJELD, E. I. Classification and terminology of individual balance-sheet items. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 211-29.
 FJELD, E. I. Classification and terminology of individual balance-sheet items. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 30-45.
 FORM and contents of the balance sheet. (Editorial) Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p.

- FORM and contents of the balance sheet. (Edi-torial) Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 198-9
- FREEMAN, E. S. Examination of the balance sheet and accompanying documents. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 122-35.
 GRAHAM, BENJAMIN and MEREDITH, SPENCER B. Interpretation of financial state-ments. New York, Harper & bros., 1937. 122p.
- GRAVES, WILLIS C. Whose is the responsi-bility? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939, p. 124-6.)

GREANEY, E. J. Elimination of cents. (Corre-

spondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937,

- spondence) Journal of accountancy, ocn 1997, p. 299-300.
 GREENWOOD, HERBERT. Balance sheet reform. Accountant, Feb. 6, 1937, p. 197-201.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. New York, Ronald press co., cl 939, 517p.
 HAHN, F. F. Balance-sheet is the company's. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-
- (In American institute of accountants. Fapers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 127-9.) HARMON, CLAUD F. Responsibility rightfully the auditor's. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fapers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 130-31.) HARVEY, C. B. Form and content of the balance sheet, profit and loss account and auditor's report. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1936 p. 420.43

- report. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1936, p. 420-43.
 HERMANOS, MANCERA. (La) Auditoria de los estados financieros (responsabilidades). Mexico, D.F., Editorial cultura, 1937, 97p.
 HEWER, A. R. Balance sheet, its purpose and form. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1937, p. 147-9.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Plus and minus accounting. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 351-2.
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Balance sheet. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938, p. 7-33.)
 HUDSON, H. What story does a balance sheet tell? Irish accountant and secretary, Jan. 1938, p. 5-6, 8.
 IMPORIANT document revised. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 84-5.

- p. 5-6, 8. IMPORTANT document revised. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 84-5. INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Balance sheet. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 17-41.) IS the balance sheet an anachronism? Australian accountant, March 1936, p. 74-6. JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Balance sheet. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937. p. 498-523.) KELLEY, ARTHUR C. In defense of the ac-countant. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 6-3-5.

- KELLEY, ARTHUR C. In defense of the accountant. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 63-5.
 KESTER, ROY B. Balance sheet. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939, p. 25-34.)
 KETTLE, RUSSELL. Few remarks on balance sheets and profit and loss accounts. Accountant, April 8, 1939, p. 467-78. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 410-30.
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Balance sheet. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938, p. 6-20.)
 LEAKE, P. D. Balance sheet values: the limitations of industrial accounting. London, Gee & co., Itd., 1938. 75p.
 LOCKWOOD, J. Modern balance sheet. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 3-6.
 MacDONALD, IAN W. Principles underlying profit statements and balance-sheets. Accountants and balance sheets. Accountants magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 539-50.
 MacDONALD, O. R. Comparative balance sheets and profit and loss statements. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 464-70.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Balance sheet. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936, p. 11-22.)
 MCINTOSH, HERBERT W. Limits of the auditor's responsibility. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 132-3.)
 MCKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Balance sheet. (In their Accounting, or theory v. practice. Journal of accountants, Papers on sudility principles. (1939, p. 23-43.)
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Curse of balancing, or theory v. practice. Journal of accountance, April 1937, p. 279-81.
 MYER, JOHN N. Analysis of two successive balance sheets. (In their Financial statement analysis, 1939, p. 42-69.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and others. Form and content of the balance sheet. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 39-59.)

- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS and others. Form and content of the balance sheet. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939. p. 39-59.) OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN and KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Balance sheet. (In their Ac-counting, elementary theory and practice, 1936. p. 8-20.) PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Balance sheet. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 1-18.)

BALANCE SHEETS—(Continued)

- ALANCE SHEETS—(Continued)
 QUEFFEULOU, GEORGES. (Le) Bilan épanoui, selon les règles de la "Structure du bilan", de E. Renè Delaporte. Paris, Société pratique d'editions et d'études commerciales et indus-trielles, 1939. 34p.
 S., G. Private balance sheets under the Victorian companies act, 1928. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 255-8.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Balance sheet. (In his Hom to beeb account and brebare statements

- Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 255-8. SALIERS, EARL A. Balance sheet. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938, p. 9-35.) SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Balance sheet. (In their Basic accounting principles, 1937, p. 14-46.) SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, and MOORE, UNDERHILL. Balance-sheet. (In their Statement of account-ing principles, 1938, p. 55-97.) SCHMIDT, LEO A. Balance sheet. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting, 1937, p. 7-23.) SISSON, H. A. What does the balance sheet say?
- SISSON, H. A. What does the balance sheet say? Accountant student and Accountants' journal,
- Jan. 1939, p. 275-6. SMAILS, R. G. H. Balance sheet and the layman. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 362-7
- 362-7.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Introduction to round-table discussion: Whose balance-sheet is it? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 115-7.)
 TREMPER, EDWARD P., Jr. Primary and sec-ondary responsibility. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 134-6.)
 WHOSE balance-sheet is it? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 5-6.

Analysis

- analysis
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Two-to-one working capital ratio. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 30-6.
 FJELD, E. I. Balance-sheet classification and terminology. New York, The author, 1936. 218p.
 KAWIN, SAM. Balance sheet analysis and a detailed study of capital, inventory, profit and loss ratios. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 18-23.
 PIXLEY, FRANCIS W. How to read a balance sheet; edited by Andrew Binnie. ed. 9. London, Gee & co., Itd., 1937. 71p.
 ROBINSON, DWIGHT P., Jr. Accountants' reports and audited accounts from an investment analyst's viewpoint. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 187-99.

Consolidated

- onsolidated
 AVEYARD, C. H. Consolidated balance sheets. Accountant, June 25, 1938, p. 876-8.
 BYRD, KENNETH F. Preparation of consolidated balance sheets of holding and subsidiary companies. Accountant, Dec. 16, 1939, p. 654-60; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 677-81.
 CONSOLIDATION of balance-sheets of domestic corporations with those of foreign subsidiary. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 298.
 MINORITY interests on consolidated balance sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy.

- MINORITY interests on consolidated balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1936, p. 227-8.
 ROWLAND, STANLEY W. Note on the consoli-dation of balance sheets. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Feb. 1936, p. 722-6.
 TAYLOR, IACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Consolidated balance sheets. (In their Inter-mediate accounting, 1938, p. 334-460.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 3 (write-ups in the consolidation of accounts) Washing-ton, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Sept. 1, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.

Pro-forma "GIVING effect to" on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, 381-2 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Pro-

- forma balance sheet. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure, c1939. p. 411-3.) UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2054; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Potrero sugar company. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 435-6. USE of pro-forma balance-sheets. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 96-8.

- BALANCING BALANCING the books. Accountant, Feb. 22,
 - BALANCING the books. Accountant, Feb. 22, 1936, p. 319-20.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Curse of bal-ancing, or theory v. practice. Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1937, p. 279-81.
- BALANCING the books. Accountant, Feb. 22, 1936, p. 319-20.

BALDERSTON, C. CANBY See also Davis, Hiram S. and others.
 Executive guidance of industrial relations; an analysis of the experience of twenty-five com-panies. Phila., Pa., University of Pennsylvania press, 1935. 435p.
 Profit-sharing for wage earners. New York, Indus-trial relations counselors, inc., 1937. 156p.

BALDERSTON, C. CANBY and KARABASZ VIC-TOR S.

Management of a textile business; a study of the operation of an individual enterprise. Washingoperation of an individual enterprise. Washing-ton, D. C., Textile foundation, inc., 1938. 210p.

BALDWIN, ARTHUR L. External check on local finances; address before External check on local mances; address before conference on government management, Estes Park, Colorado, June 1939. 7 typewritten pages. Matter of legally privileged confidence. *Report* (Colorado society of certified public accountants) April 1936, p. 3-5.

BALDWIN, C. F. Assignment of accounts receivable. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 372

372. Should assignments be secret? Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 6-9. What would federal licensing mean to business? Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 6-7, 34.

BALKAM, GILBERT Cost accounting for small accounts. Bankers' monthly, March 1939, p. 152. Present day trends in account analysis. Bankers' monthly, Dec. 1939, p. 712-3, 740-1.

BALL, GEORGE W., joint author See Thomson, Metellus, Jr., Ball, George W. and Wright, John A.

BALLANTINE, ARTHUR A. Federal power over interstate commerce. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 26-33.)

BALLANTYNE, H. Social credit. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 128-9.

BALLANTYNE, J. R. Audit programmes and audit working papers. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 351-9.

BALLARD, JOHN W. Coordinating federal activities with state super-vision; address by John W. Ballard, chief ex-aminer, delivered at the National convention of the U. S. building and loan league, New York City, October 14, 1936. 4 mimeographed pages. What you gain from an examination; address before Arkansas building and loan league. 8 typewritten pages.

BALLOW, E. B. See United States. Farm credit administration.

BALMAIN, KEITH S.

- Departmental store accounting. Australian accoun-tant, May 1938, p. 285-90.
- BALSER, WILLIAM J.
- ALSER, WILLIAM J. Extension of accounting practice in the field of small business. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 157-8.)
- BANE, FRANK
- Administration of the federal system of old-age benefits, (In National retail dry goods associa-tion. Controllers' congress. Year book of retail-ing. 1936, p. 53-6.)
- BANK accounting and audit control. Potts, James E.

BANK accounting practice. Langston, L. H.

BANK confirmation forms. Certified public accoun-tant, April 1939, p. 1-2.

BANK confirmation forms. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 4-5. National audit-gram, Sept. 1939, p. 24, 31.

BANK CONFIRMATIONS

- ANK CONFIRMATIONS
 BANK confirmation forms. Certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 1-2.
 BANK confirmation forms. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 4-5. National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 24, 31.
 HOBDAY, HAROLD. Confirmation and certification of information to public accountants and others. National auditgram, May 1939, p. 12-5.

BANK DEPOSITS

See Deposit insurance; Deposits.

BANK DISCOUNT

- See Discount.
- BANK examination and regulation in Canada and in the United States. Malone, Charles T.
- BANK examination procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 73-4.

BANK EXAMINATIONS

See Banks and banking-Auditing.

BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLEMENTS

- Sixth annual report, 1st April 1935-31st March 1938. 79p.
- Eighth annual report, 1st April 1937-31st March
- Infinite annual report, 1st April 1957—31st March 1938. 115p.
 Ninth annual report, 1st April—1938—31st March 1939. 137p.
 Basle, Switzerlanad, Bank for international settle-ments, 1936, 1938, 1939.

BANK HOLDING COMPANIES

See Banks and banking, Bank holding companies.

BANK reconciliation statements. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 263-8.

BANK RECONCILIATIONS See Reconciliations.

BANK service charges. Thibault, Raymond L.

BANKERS AND CREDIT MEN, COOPERATION WITH

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on cooperation with bankers. Report of the special committee on cooperation with bankers. (In its 1937 year book. p. 497-500.)
- 500.) BANKERS report on cooperation with public accountants. Certified public accountant. Jan. 1938, p. 27. BLAINE, E. L., JR. Cooperation with public accountants; address at Credit conference, thirty-fourth annual convention, American institute of banking, Seattle, Washington, June 11, 1934. 10 typewritten pages. typewritten pages.

- CHARLES, WILLIAM. Accountants in their relations with bankers. National auditgram, Dec. 1935, p. 11-2.
 CO-OPERATION between bankers and accountants. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Aug. 1936, p. 12-5.
 CO-OPERATION with bankers. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Sept. 1936, p. 25-6.
 CO-OPERATION with contents, Sept. 1936, p. 25-6.

- CO-OPERATION with Dankers, Dutterin of income American institute of accountants, Sept. 1936, p. 25-6.
 CO-OPERATION with credit men. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 13; Sept. 1937, p. 19; Sept. 1938, p. 18-9; Dec. 1938, p. 14.
 HERRICK, ANSON. Can the banker get it?— a question relating to the subject of what the banker expects of the accountant; before a joint meeting of the Robert Morris associates (San Francisco chapter). Credit managers association of Northern California (Bankers group) and California society of certified public accountants (San Francisco chapter), November 28, 1939.
 10 mimeographed pages.
 NEW JERSEY BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Committee on coöperation with New Jersey society of certified public accountants and Robert Morris associates. Report on joint sessions, May 1936, 7p.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on coöperation with bankers and other credit grantors. Report of the Committee on coöpera-tion with bankers and other credit grantors on results of meetings held with officials and members of the New York credit men's associ-ation. New York Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 109-13.
 PUGH, JOSEPH M. Coöperation between bank-ers and accountants. L.R.B. & M. Journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 49-51.
 QUESTIONS and answers; questions asked by the
- 49.51.
 QUESTIONS and answers; questions asked by the committee for cooperation with accountants, New England chapter, R.M.A., and answers made by the Massachusetts society of certified public accountants' committee on cooperation with bankers. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 249-51.
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Committee on coöperation with public accountants, P. F. Gray, chairman. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 203-4. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 1936, p. 9-10.

- bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 203-4. Butterin of the American institute of accountants, March 1936, p. 9-10.
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Report of committee on co-operation with public accoun-tants, Philip F. Gray, chairman. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 142-3.
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Report on joint sessions-New Jersey society of certified public accountants' committee on cooperation with the New Jersey bankers association and Rob-ert Morris associates. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin. June 1938, p. 17-18.
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Chicago chapter and Illinois society of certified public accountants. Committee on cooperation with bankers. Questions and answers—at joint meet-ing held in Chicago, November 17, 1938. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1939, p. 241-2, 251-5.
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Committee on co-operation with public accountants. Re-countants. Committee on compariton with public accountants. Committee on committee on con-operation with public accountants. Re-context and public accountants. Re-context of committee on properiod public accountants. Committee on compariton with public accountants. Committee on compariton heat heat and the social public accountants. Re-context of committee on compariton with public accountants. Re-context of committee on properiod public accountants. Re-context of committee on compariton with public accountants. Re-context of committee on compariton with public accountants. Re-context of committee on compariton public accountants. Re-context of committee on committee on compariton public accountants. Re-context of com
- DBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Committee on co-operation with public accountants. Re-port of committee on co-operation with public accountants, Philip F. Gray, chairman. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 161-2.
- WITTER, JEAN C. Accountants and investment hankers. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 293-5.)

BANKERS BOX COMPANY

- Manual of record storage practice-How long should records be kept? Chicago, Ill., Bankers box co., c1939. 5p.
- BANKERS report on cooperation with public accoun-tants. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1938. tants. p. 27.

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY Plan for pensions. New York, Bankers Trust co., December 20, 1938. 18p.

BANKHEAD ACT

See Cotton control act.

- BANKING developments and the need for research. Riddle, John H.
- BANKING turnover and facilities in Illinois. Winakor, Arthur H.

BANKRUPTCY See also Business failures; Liquidations and receiverships

- receiverships. ADMINISTRATIVE expenses in successive in-solvency proceedings. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 262-71. BANKS, CHARLES S. Treatise on bankruptcy for accountants. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university. c1939, 129p. CLARK, SAMUEL O. S.E.C. activities in bank-ruptcies; how commission operates under chapter 10 Condit and forgunal management Aug 1930.
- 10. Credit and financial management, Aug. 1939, p. 11-13. DEALINGS with
- EALINGS with embarrassed debtors. (In Business executive's handbook, 1937. p. 775-(In
- Business executive's handbook, 1937. p. 775-802.)
 FITZPATRICK, PAUL J. Brief survey of the bankrupicy situation. (In his Problems of busi-ness failures. 1936. p. 51-65.)
 MOSS, OSCAR. Role of accountants in bank-rupicy and reorganization cases. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 146-9. 146-9.)

- processing and other accounting temperatures and the p. 146-9.) POTTER, SAMUEL I. Priorities—wages and taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 399-400. REPORTS of receivers or trustees. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 6. STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Insolvency and bankruptcy. (In his Mercantile credit. 1936. p. 223-37.) STEMPF, VICTOR H. Corporate reorganizations; a review of the causes of financial reor-ganizations and trends in procedures availed of to accoundish the result; a discussion presented gauzzations and trends in procedures availed of to accomplish the result; a discussion presented at the Illinois society of certified public ac-countants, Chicago, Ill., June 1937. 31 mimeo-graphed pages. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 127-48.

- Accounting GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER G. Accounting for receivers and trustees in bankruptcy. (In their Accounting in law prac-tice, 1938. p. 438-68.)
 WEINSTEIN, JACOB I. Bankruptcy law of 1938 (Chandler act); a comparative analysis prepared for the National association of credit men. New York, National association of credit men, c1938. 497p. See index under Accounting.

Australia

- ustralia HEBDEN, ERIC S. Priorities of debts; the bankruptcy act 1924-1933. Brisbane, Accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, inc., June 1937. 40p. MILLER, R. GOYNE. Bankruptcy act, 1924-1933. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 852.6

- Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 852-6. ROBERTSON, D. CLAUDE. Bankruptcy law: special points for students. Australian accoun-tant, May 1938, p. 306-201; June 1938, p. 381-90. SCAMBLER, H. McE. Realization of the security of a bankrupt debtor. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 11-4. YOUNG, N. S. Administration of deceased estates in bankrupt a dustralian accountant. Oct
- YOUNG, N. S. Administration of deceased estates in bankruptcy. Australian accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 232-40.
 YOUNG, N. S. Bankruptcy examinations in South Australia. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1937, p. 667-74.
 YOUNG, N. S. Doctrine of relation back. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1937, p. 2005.
- p. 400-5. YOUNG, N. S. Rights, duties and responsibilities

of trustees in bankruptcy and the organization of a trustee's office. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 840-7.

Canada

ROSS, DOUGLAS L. Bankruptcies and liquida-tions. Canadian chartered accountant, April April 1937, p. 305-11.

England

- ngland
 ACCOUNTANT'S outlook upon insolvency practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 145-8.
 CLARK, R. KYNOCH. Some notes on bankruptcy practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 348-51.
 DOLBY, CHARLES M. Insolvency. Incorporated accountants' Journal, Aug. 1936, p. 399-405, discussion, p. 405-6. Accountant, Sept. 19, 1936, p. 392-400.
 FORDHAM, H. Some points on English bankruptcy law. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 161-2, 164.
 GOODWIN, LESLIE. Deeds of arrangement, in practice and theory. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1938, p. 251-6.

- GÓODWIN, LESLIE. Deeds of arrangement, in practice and theory. Certified accountants jour-nal, Aug. 1938, p. 251-6.
 HUSSEY, ALBERT V. Accountant's outlook upon insolvency practice. Accountant, March 5, 1938, p. 327-31.
 HUSSEY, ALBERT V. Some interesting points on insolvency practice. Accountant, June 13, 1936, p. 889-95, discussion, p. 895-7.
 MAHONY, DANIEL. Amendment of bankruptcy and liquidation law. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 278-80.

- and liquidation law. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 278-80.
 MAHONY, DANIEL. Could insolvency law and practice be simplified? Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 291-6, discussion, p. 296-7.
 PREFERING a bank guarantor. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 442-3.
 PROTECTED transactions in bankruptcy. Accountant, Feb. 4, 1939, p. 142-4.
 RADFORD, GORDON E. Law relating to accounts in insolvencies. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1936, p. 18-24, discussion, p. 24-5.
 SALES, C. A. Some apparent inconsistencies in bankruptcy law. Accountant, student, Accountant, Science, Jaccountant, Science, Jaccount, Science, Jaccountant, Feb. 1939, p. 303-5.
- Commany Journal, Feb. 1935, p. 303-3. Great Britain SEYD, RICHARD E. Bankruptcies in 1937; statistics of failures in the United Kingdom and Ireland during the year 1937. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 126-8.

Ireland

EYD, RICHARD E. Bankruptcies in 1937; statistics of failures in the United Kingdom and Ireland during the year 1937. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 126-8. SEYD.

History

WARREN, CHARLES. Bankruptcy in United States history. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard univ. press, 1935.

Law

- Autley, JAMES B. Work of the reconstruction finance corporation in connection with 77-B. (reprinted from April 1936 Corporate reorgan-izations (a monthly magazine).
 BANKRUPTCY reform. (Editorial.) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1939, p. 4-5.
 BARRY, ROBERT I. Functions of the public accountant in reorganizations under chapter X of the bankruptcy act. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 161-5.
 CELLER, EMANUEL. Retention of accountants and their compensation under the Chandler bill. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 178-84.

- 178-84
- p. 178-84. CHANDLER, WALTER. Bill to reorganize bank-ruptcy act progressing in congress. Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 14-7, 42. CHANDLER, WALTER. Revised bankruptcy act of 10.20 dimension has accounting internal. Nov.
- of 1938. American bar association journal, Nov. 1938, p. 880-4, 931. CHANDLER act. (Editorial.) Journal of accoun-
- HANDLER act. (Editorial.) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1938, p. 140-1.

BANKRUPTCY-Law-(Continued)

- ANKRUPTCY—Law—(Continued)
 CHANDLER act; the most important bankruptcy legislation in forty years. (reprinted from the Prentice-Hall bankruptcy service) New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1938. p. 501-607.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Corporate reorganizations—sec. 77B cases. (In its Unitied States supreme court business law decisions, 1935-1936. c1936. p. 29-37.)
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal bankruptcy act, including the Chandler act. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1938.

- New York, Commerce clearing nouse, inc., 187p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Fraz-ier-Lemke farm relief act. (In its New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1936. p. 246-8.) DAVIS, DOROTHY S. How has 77-B actually worked? Dun's review, Aug. 1937, p. 18-21, 46. DIAMOND, Z. N. and LETZLER, ALFRED. New Frazier-Lemke act a study. Columbia law review, Nov. 1937, p. 1092-1135. EPES, W. PERRY, Ir. Corporate reorganization: the revised Chandler bill. (Legislation note) Virginia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 309-19. ETTINGER, RICHARD P. and GOLIEB, DAVID E. Bankruptcy, insolvency and receiver-ships. (In their Credits and collections. 1938. p. 400-28.) THOMAS K. Bankruptcy act as p. 400-28.) FINLETTER,
- p. 400-28.) FINLETTER, THOMAS K. Bankruptcy act as amended 1938. (In his *Law of bankruptcy re-*organization. 1939. p. 699-827.) FINLETTER, THOMAS K. Law of bankruptcy reorganization. Charlottesville, Va., Michie co.,
- 1939. 994p. FISH, GEORGE D. and BUTLER, FRANCIS X. Tax relief provisions of the Chandler act. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1938,
- Credit and provides a plan under section 77. p. 9-11. FORMULATION of a plan under section 77. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 247-61. GERDES, JOHN. Corporate reorganizations; changes effected by chapter 10 of the bank-ruptcy act. Harvard law review, Nov. 1938, p. 1-39.
- 1-39. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. under Chandler GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Corporate reorganization under Chandler act. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 115-6.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Correction. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. New bankruptcy law. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 192-3.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Reorganization plan under the Chandler act. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Jayron Journal of accountancy Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 245-6. Cor

- 245.6
- HOWLAND, JOHN. Enforcement of secured creditors' claims under 77 and 77B: a func-tional analysis. Yale law journal, May 1937, 1109-23.
- p. 1109-23. KING, PAUL H. First year of Chandler act; review of some features of bankruptcv law of special interest to credit men. *Credit and finan-cial management*, July 1939, p. 24-6, 28-9, 48. KUNZE, HARRY L. Priority of taxes under the bankruptcy act. *Accounting review*, June 1936,
- p. 125-9. LESSOR'S claims under section 77 of the bank-ruptcy act. Yale low journal, Dec. 1937, p. ruptcy act. 272-7.
- LISMAN, F. J. Railroad reorganizations and section 77. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 24-40.
- MATTUCK, MAXWELL S. "Good faith" clause of 77-B adjudicated. Credit executive, Sept., 1936, p. 276.
- MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Arrange-ments under the Chandler act. Credit executive, Aug. 1938, p. 235-7.
- MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Chandler act; a preliminary survey. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1938, p. 59-66. MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Chandler out or mine doferite in charter 11 and reproduct Chandler
- act again; defects in chapter 11, and suggested

amendments. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p.

- amendments. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 248-9.
 MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Corporate reorganizations under the Chandler act. Credit executive, Sept. 1938, p. 271-3.
 MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Section 77-B of the federal bankruptcy act. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 3-11.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. and MERTENS, JACOB, Jr. Bankruptcy, receiverships, priorities and liens. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934, v. 5. p. 353-413.)
 ROBERT, P. C. Arrangements and wage carners plans under the Chandler act. (In Illinois, University of. Bureau of business research. Opinion and comment. May 1939, p. 18-25.)
 ROSENBERG, JAMES M. Chandler bill and the Securities and exchange commission. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 191-6.
 ROSTOW, EUGENE V. and CUTLER, LLOYD N. Competing systems of corporate reorganizations chapters 10 and 11 of the bankruptcy act. Yale law journal, June 1939, p. 134-76.
 77-B cases; corporate reorganizations. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 40; Dec. 1937, p. 38-9.
 STANTON, HARRY L. Significance of the Chandler act; new duties and responsibilities of indenture trustees_in reorganizations. Trust

- Nov. 1936, p. 325-7.
 STANTON, HARRY L. Significance of the Chandler act; new duties and responsibilities of indenture trustees in reorganizations. *Trust* companies, Sept. 1938, p. 275-79.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Bankruptcy laws of the United States. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1937. 145p.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Public—no. 696— 75th congress, chapter 575-3d session (H.R. 8046); an act to amend an act entitled "An act to establish a uniform system of bankruptcy throughout the United States", approved July 1, 1898, and act amendatory thereof and supple-mentary thereto; and to repeal section 76 thereof and all acts and parts of acts incon-sistent therewith. (Approved July 22, 1938.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938, 11p. 1938. 11p. WATERS, HENRY H. Reorganization problems
- WAIERS, HEINEY H. Reorganization productions under the new bankruptcy act. (In American transit association *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 331-42.)
 WEINSTEIN, JACOB I. Bankruptcy law of 1938 (Chandler act); a comparative analysis prepared for the National association of credit men. New Varley National comparison of credit men. 1929. York, National association of credit men. c1938. 497p
- WEINSTEIN, JACOB I. Certain phases of the Chandler bill which are of particular interest to accountants. New York certified public ac-countant, Jan. 1939, p. 185-90. ZIZMOR, JULIUS. Trust receipt law tested in hankruptcy. Credit executive, May 1937, p.
- 137-8.
- BANKRUPTCY in United States history. Warren, Charles.
- BANKRUPTCY law of 1938 (Chandler act.) Weinstein, Jacob I.
- BANKRUPTCY reform. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1939, p. 4-5.

BANKS, CHARLES S.

Treatise on bankruptcy for accountants. Chicago, III., LaSalle extension university, c1939. 129p. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 59-61.

BANKS, E. HAROLD

- Control exercised through the medium of the
- Control excised unrough the medium of the budget. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 285-94.
 System of internal check and its bearing upon the audit programme. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, March 1936, p. 189-94.

BANKS, T. G. Water department budgets. Journal of the Ameri can water works association, June 1936. p. 741-*

BANKS, TALCOTT M., JR. Indenture securities and the Barkley bill. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 533-72.

BANKS AND BANKING

- ANKS AND BANKING See also Federal reserve bulletin. AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Bank management commission. Survey of personal loan department experience and practice. New York, American bankers association, research council, 1938. 20p. (Bulletin 74, May 1938) ATKINS, PAUL M. Official supervision of bank security portfolios. Bankers magazine, July 1938, p. 13-9. BEATY, JOHN Y. 'Capital and surplus adequate to protect largest deposits in history. Rand McNally bankers monthly, July 1937, p. 402-5, 436-7.
- 436-7
- 436-7. BENSON, PHILIP A. Serving a public need; address at a dinner given by the American in-stitute of accountants and the New York state society of certified public accountants, January 30, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 154-60. BOGEN, JULES I. and others. Money and bank-ing; edited by Major B. Foster and Raymond Rodgers. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 7045.

- COUGESS, AC., -704p. CHASE, HARVEY S. Money and bank deposits. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 41-51. CRAVENS, CHARLES T. Life insurance as col-lateral. National auditgram, April 1939, p. 7-10, 1999.

- CRAVERS, OMARADA 21. Constraints, p. 7-10, 18-20.
 DAVIS, HERBERT L. Insurance and banking; examinations and accounting. Boston, Mass., Christopher pub. house, c1937. 227p.
 DOEPKE, F. C. H. Country bank's bond portfolio. Burroughs clearing house, Oct. 1938, p. 10-2, 26-7.
 EDDY, JOHN W. M. Some introductory principles of money and banking. Australian accountant, March 1936, p. 103-10.
 HURST, T. E. Banker as a lender. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, Dec. 1937, p. 238-42, discussion, p. 242-3.
 KIMBALL, CHARLES C. Accountants' reports from a banker's viewpoint; address before Massachusetts society of certified public accountants, inc., at Worcester, Mass., November 23, 1936.
 220. Journal of accountants, Aug. 1937, p. 265-78. Indian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 265-71.
 Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 231-3, 239-43.
 MILWAUKEE CONFERENCE OF BANK AUDITORS AND COMPTROLLERS. Schedule for the destruction and preservation of records. National auditgram, Dec. 1938, p. 19-20.
 MUNN, GLENN G. Encyclopedia of banking and finance. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1937.
 NORRIS, LESTER E. Restrictions on invest-

- nnance. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1957.
 866p.
 NORRIS, LESTER E. Restrictions on investments by banks. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1936, p. 1-3, 23.
 PADDI, JOHN B. Problems of small loan operations in a commercial bank. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 157-62, 1757 175-7

- 175-7.
 POTTS, JAMES E. Starting the operating manual. Bankers magazine, July 1939, p. 17-20.
 RIDDLE, JOHN H. Banking developments and the need for research. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 109-17.
 SMITH, FRANK P. and MARQUIS, RALPH W. Capital and surplus as protection for bank deposits. Bankers magazine, March 1937, p. 215 26
- -26.
- WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Money, credit and banking. New York, Ronald press co., c1938.

1172p. WOOLLEY, E. S. Three ways to manage a bank. Banking, April 1937, p. 24-5.

Accounting ARMSTRONG, E. G. Modern bookkeeping sys-tems. National auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 7, 10-1. BACKUS, EDGAR H. Photography revolution-

- ized our bookkeeping. Bankers' monthly, April 1938, p. 208-9, 222-3. BRIDGES, JAMES F. Proper analysis methods-what are they? National auditgram, Dec. 1938,
- what are they? National auditgram, Dec. 1938, p. 18, 24.
 BRIDGES, JAMES F. Value of accrual accounting to management. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 7, 14-5.
 BRUNKHORST, R. H. Reserve accounts. Burroughs clearing house, March 1936, p. 5-7.
 BRUNKHORST, R. H. Shift to 100% account analysis. Burroughs clearing house, May 1937, p. 8-10, 24-5.
 CADY, T. S. Bad debt deductions by banks and taxation of recoveries on charged-off assets. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 507-11.
 CAMERON, DON R. Machine posting simplifies trust security records. Bankers' monthly, Jan. 1938, p. 9-11.

- trust security records. Bankers' monthly, Jan. 1938, p. 9-11. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Jewel-consistency. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, May 1939, p. 302-3. GORDON, WILLIAM D. and LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Banks. (In their Modern account-ing systems, 1937. p. 120-81.) GRIMM, GEORGE D. Control of installment pay-ment financing. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 46-12

- ment financing. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 4-6, 12. HOLGATE, H. C. F. Accounting period in bank-ing. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 489-93. JENKINS, B. N. Bad debts; charge off and re-covery or sale under the federal revenue laws and related rulings and regulations. (T.D. 4633, G.C.M. 18525, I.T. 3172, G.C.M. 20854, I.T. 3256) National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 9-12, 203
- JONES, LAURENCE H. Valuation reserves in bank accounting; submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements of the graduate school of banking of the American institute of banking. New Brunswick, N. J., The author, June 1939.
- New Brunswick, N. J., The author, June 1997, 97p. KISER, SHELDON F. Machine bookkeeping in the savings department National auditgram, March 1937, p. 8-9. LANGSTON, L. H. Bank accounting practice. New York, Ronald press co., c1937, 532p. LeMASTERS, EARLE H. Efficient bookkeeping with cours control. Rankers monthly, Jan, 1939,

- LeMASTERS, EARLE H. Efficient bookkeeping with group control, Bankers monthly, Jan. 1939, p. 16-7.
 LOVELL, O. B. Procedure which makes it easy to control bank expenditures. Bankers monthly, Feb. 1938, p. 84-6, 98-9.
 LYLE, E. F. More ideas on single posting. Bankers monthly, Aug. 1939, p. 464-5.
 MARTIN, L. H. Reports and statistics for execu-tive control. National auditgram, Feb. 1939, p. 5-9, 18-20.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BANK AUDITORS AND COMPTROLLERS. Classi-

- ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BANK AUDITORS AND COMPTROLLERS. Classi-fication of accounts commonly known as "reserve accounts" and the treatment of such accounts fication of accounts commonly known as reserve accounts" and the treatment of such accounts on the books of a bank. National auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 3-4, 10.
 PAGE, M. O. Proof department. National audit gram, Oct. 1939, p. 12-5.
 POTTS, JAMES E. Bank accounting and audit control. Boston, Mass., Bankers pub. co., 1938. 2029.
 REVES, H. F. Posting efficiency increased in this mortgage department. Rand McNally bank-ers' monthly, June 1936, p. 330-1, 358.
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Banking practice. (In their Secre-tarial accounting, cl936, p. 47-53.)
 SCHALK, OSCAR G. Par, cost income, and bond premium control of the bond account. National auditgram, May 1936, p. 5-6, 16.
 SINK, E. H. Faster note accounting with this record system. Rand McNally bankers' monthly, Feb. 1936, p. 78-9, 103-5.
 STAUB, WALTER A. General accounting poli-tor of the bond present accounting poli-tor.

- STAUB, WALTER A. General accounting poli-cies as applied to banks. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1938, p. 1-13.
- WOOLLEY, E. S. Ask Banking; a department. (see each issue of Banking beginning October 1938.)

BANKS AND BANKING—Accounting—(Continued) WOOLLEY, E. S. Duties of an accounting sys-tem. (reprinted from *Banking*, Sept. 1935.) WOOLLEY, E. S. Tax saving bond ledger. *Bank-ing*, Sept. 1938, p. 26-7.

Auditing ADAMS,

DAMS, F. A. Importance of an internal audit for banks. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 15-20.

15-20. ALLEN, B. P. Auditing in small banks. National auditgram, March 1937, p. 6-7, 16. ALLEN, B. P. Auditors and comptrollers-key

- ALLEN, B. P. Auditors and comptrollers-key men of future American banking. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 1, 11-4.
 BALLARD, JOHN W. Coördinat.ng federal activities with state supervision; address by John W. Ballard, chief examiner, delivered at the National convention of the U. S. building and loan league, New York City, Octoher 14, 1936, 4 mimeographed pages.
 BANK examination procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 73-4.
 BARNET, ROBERT A. Need of auditors in savings banks. National duitors for the same series.
- ings banks. National auditgram, Jan. 1936, p. 1, 5-6, 12.
- 1, 5-6, 12. BOGEN, JULES I. and others. Bank examina-tions, audits, and reports. (In their Money and banking. 1936. p. 355-77.) BORTON, CECIL W. Audit objectives. National auditgram, May 1938, p. 1, 13. BORTON, CECIL W. Auditing as a tool of management. National auditgram, Dec. 1938, p. 8-11, 21-2.
- 8-11, 21-2. BRANNEN, B. A.
- . A. How the bank auditor func-McNally bankers' monthly, April
- BRANNEN, B. A. How the bank auditor func-tions. Rand McNally bankers' monthly, April 1936, p. 204-5. BRUNKHORST, R. H. Auditor's part in better banking. Burroughs clearing house, Oct. 1936, p. 12-4, 24-5.
- CHICAGO BANK AUDITORS' CONFERENCE. HICAGO BANK AUDITORS' CONFERENCE. How to plan and execute a bank's audit pro-gram. Chicago, Ill., P. J. Drexler, City national trust company of Chicago, c1937. 46p. Same as: Chicago conference of bank auditors and controllers. Special committee. Audit plan and bracedure
- and procedure. CHICAGO CONFERENCE OF BANK AUDI-TORS AND CONTROLLERS. Special com-mittee. Audit plan and procedure. National auditgram, Jan. 1936, p. 4-5; June 1936, p.

- anditgram, Jan. 1936, p. 4-5; June 1936, p. 13-4, 16.
 Same as: Chicago bank auditors' conference. How to plan and execute a bank's audit program.
 COCHARD, D. R. Audit policies and procedure. National auditgram, Nov. 1939, p. 13-9.
 CROWLEY, LEO T. Bank regulation on the part of FDIC: address before the Indiana banking conference, Indiana university, Bloomington, In-diana, October 25, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 DOUGHERTY, JOSEPH. How to prevent de-falcations and embezzlements. National audit-gram, Sept. 1937, p. 8, 13.
 DRISCOLL, JOHN J., JR. Internal auditing of banks. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1, p. 1121-38.) Printed with: Waldow, Ottmar A. Duties and responst-bilities of a bank auditor.

- with: Waldow, Ottmar A. Duties and responsibilities of a bank auditor.
 FLEMING, J. K. Auditing methods for smaller banks, National auditgram, Dec. 1939, p. 5-7, 19.
 GOLDSMITH, H. STUART. Commercial bank auditor looks at your problems, National auditgram, April 1938, p. 8, 16.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Control of banking. Accountant, July 22, 1939, p. 100-1.
 HOYT, CHESTER W. Problems and procedure in bank auditing; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference. Atlantic City, N. L. May

- in bank auditing; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference. Atlantic City, N. J., May 18-20, 1939. 15 typewritten pages. HOYT, CHESTER W. Relationship between the board of directors, the president, and the audi-tor. National auditgram, Oct. 1937, p. 12-4. KELLY, LINUS A. Relation between the bank examiner and the auditor. National auditgram, Nov. 1939, p. 25-8. MALONE, CHARLES T. Bank examination and

regulation in Canada and in the United States; submitted in partial fulfillment of the require-ments of the graduate school of banking of the American institute of banking, New Brunswick, N. J., June 1938. 68 mimeographed pages and form form.

- MASSIE, J. W. Internal audit procedure and control. National auditgram, Feb. 1937, p. 4-5,
- MATHIAS, DAVID B. Control and examination of bonds and coupons received for collection. National auditgram, May 1939, p. 17, 23.
 POTTS, JAMES E. Bank accounting and audit control. Boston, Mass., Bankers pub. co., 1938.
- POWERS, HUGH E. Auditors' reports as an OWERS, HUGH E. Auditors' reports as an aid to bank management. Bulletin of the Ameri-can institute of banking, Jan. 1938, p. 74-9, ALPH, HENRY D. Uniform examinations. Burroughs clearing house, Aug. 1938, p. 7-9,
- RALPH. 28-31.

- 28-31.
 REVISION in bank examination procedure and in the investment securities regulation of the comptroller of the currency. Federal reserve bulletin, July 1938, p. 563-6.
 STEWARD, WILLIAM M. Difference between auditing and checking. National auditgram, Sept. 1938, p. 10, 14-5.
 TEWKSBURY, C. L. How to audit mortgage loans. Bankers monthly, Jan. 1938, p. 7-8, 50-2.
 TYLER, RALPH S., Jr. Some legal questions confronting an auditor in examining bank loans and investments. National auditgram, Feb. 1938, p. 11-3.
- and investments, and investments, and investments, and investments, and investments, and investments, and responsibilities of a bank auditor. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1,
- (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1, p. 1105-20.)
 WILLETT, FREDERICK S. Importance of in-ternal auditing of bank operations; address de-ternal auditing of bank operations. ternal auditing of Dank operations; address de-livered at Northern Indiana conference of bank auditors and comptrollers, South Bend, Novem-ber 20, 1936. 7 typewriten pages. National audit-gram, March 1938, p. 12-3. WILLIAMS, PAUL D. Internal audit pro-cedure and control. National auditgram, Feb.
- 1936, p. 1, 4-5. YEATMAN, MILLARD S. Director's examina-tions. National auditgram, Nov. 1936, p. 8-10, 13-14.
- Budgeting
- udgeting CLARY, HUGH L. Controlling expenses through a budget; how the Bank of America cuts its ratio of operating expense to deposits one-third. Bankers magazine, April 1937, p. 327-9. CORNS, MARSHALL C. Better bank manage-ment; assembling the budget. Bankers magazine, April 1936, p. 338-44. SCHAFER, CLARENCE W. We make a budget of income, expenses, and probable profit. Rand McNally bankers monthly, March 1937, p. 156, 165.

 - 165. WALTON, WALTER W. Expense budgeting. National auditgram, Dec. 1938, p. 12-7.

Cost accounting

- Sost accounting
 BALKAM, GILBERT. Cost accounting for small accounts. Bankers monthly, March 1939, p. 152.
 BARNHART, LYALL. Why and how of banking costs. Burroughs clearing house, Nov. 1936, p. 14-7, 26-8; Dec. 1936, p. 16-8, 24-6; Jan. 1937, p. 12-4, 26-8.
 BOSTON, G. S. Analysis of accounts. National auditgram. June 1936, p. 8.
 CORNS, MARSHALL C. Better bank management; analyzing the commercial account. Bankers magasine, July 1936, p. 89-92.
 CORNS, MARSHALL C. Better bank management; arriving at costs and analyzing the bank. Bankers magasine, March 1936, p. 252-7.
 CORNS, MARSHALL C. Detter bank management; arriving at departmental item costs. Bankers magasine, June 1936, p. 543-50.

- Bankers magazine, June 1936, p. 543-50. GABLE, CHARLES D. Cost analysis in banks. National auditgram, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 9-11.

BANKS AND BANKING-Cost accounting-(Cont.)

- HETZEL, FREDERICK W. Analyzing checking accounts scientifically. New York, Bankers pub.
- accounts scientifically. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1936, 111p. HUMPHREYS, J. ROSS. Simple method of expense control. Bankers monthly, July 1938, p. 427-30.

- expense control. Bankers monthly, July 1938, p. 427-30.
 LAWSON, WILBUR F. Application of bank costs to depositors' accounts. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, sectors in p. 701-7.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.
 RANKIN, R. G. Bank operating expenses and costs; address delivered before the Virginia bankers' conference in Charlottesville, Virginia, August 26, 1938. 17 typewritten pages.
 SELLORS, JOHN. Costing of accounts and account analysis for a bank. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 707-12.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.
 SMITH, J. D. Procedure for proving of bank deposits and figuring of float. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 13-20.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.

- 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 713-20.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.
 THIBAULT, RAYMOND L. Bank service charges. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 691-701.)
 WALDOW, OTTMAR A. Cost control of bank operations. New York National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 721-8.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank serv-ice charges. National auditgram, March 1936, p. 4-5.
 WOOLLEY, E. S. How to obtain bank costs. New York, Bankers pub co., 1936. 132p. Bank-ers magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 27-36.
 WOOLLEY, E. S. Out of the maze of cost find-ing. Banking, May 1938, p. 30-1.

- Costs
- osts ADVERTISING expense allocation. Dumme, April 1938, p. 82. AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Uni-form account analysis. New York, American bankers association, c1939. 12p. AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Uni
 - form account analysis plan. Banking, July 1939,

 - n. 397-9. FRASIER, C. A. Bank cost analysis. Bankers magazine, June 1939, p. 483-6. MORRIS, DANIEL A. Recent trends in costs and profits. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, July 1938, p. 385-92. ROKAHR, THEODORE. New York sponsors uniform analysis. Burrouans clearing house, Oct.

 - KUKAHK, THEODORE. New York sponsors uniform analysis. Burroughs clearing house, Oct. 1939, p. 12-4, 29-32.
 VINCENT, HAL G. Service charges approved when customers understand them. Rand McNally bankers monthly, July, 1937, p. 394-5, 434.
 WALDOW, OTTMAR A. Values and purposes of item costs. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 9-11.
 WOOLLEV F. S. Act. Darking Journal of Statement of Sta

 - p. 9-11. WOOLLEY, E. S. Ask Banking; a department. (see each issue of Banking beginning October 1938.)

 - 1938.)
 WOOLLEY, E. S. Hodge-podge of cost analysis. Banking, March 1938, p. 24-5.
 YOUNG, BENJAMIN E. Determining per item costs. Bankers magazine, March 1938, p. 213-7. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, April 1938, p. 201-7.

- YOUNG, BENJAMIN E. Research in costs and methods of operation. Bankers magazine, March 1937, p. 211-3.
 ZWINGLI, CONRAD. Discussion of bank costs. National anditgram, Feb. 1938, p. 8-11.

Deposits See Deposits; Deposit insurance.

Examinations

See Banks and banking-Auditing.

Failures

SECRIST, HORACE. National bank failures and non-failures; an autopsy and diagnosis. Bloom-ington, Ind., Principia press, 1938. 309p.

Finance MICHIGAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION AND OTHERS. Bond investment policies for banks; proceedings of the first annual Michigan bankers association study conference, Ann Arbor, December 9 and 10, 1938; under joint auspices Michigan bankers association, Michigan state banking department, School of business ad-Michigan bankers association, Michigan state banking department, School of business ad-ministration, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of busi-ness administration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 34p. (Michigan business papers, no. 2.)

- Government regulation CROWLEY, LEO T. Bank regulation on the part of FDIC; address before the Indiana banking conference, Indiana university, Bloomington, Indiana, October 25, 1938. 13 mimeographed protection of the statement o
 - pages. WATKINS, LEONARD L. Commercial banking reform in the United States. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business ad-ministration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 133p. (Michigan business studies, v. 8, no. 5.)

History HISTORY of reserve requirements for banks in the United States. Federal reserve bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 953-72.

1938, p. 953-72. WESTERFIELD, RAY B. History of banking in the United States to 1913. (In his Money, credit and banking. c1938. p. 346-71.)

Law

New York
 NEW YORK (state). New York banking law annotated; containing all amendments through August, 1936, with annotations from decisions of the courts and rulings of the attorney general, edited by William Edward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin law pub. co., c1935. 395p.
 ————Same, 1937 edition. 396p.
 ————Same, 1938 edition. 148p.

- Same, 1938 edition. 148p.
 United States
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Banking act of 1935. (In its New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935, to August 26, 1936. p. 73-113.
 REVISION in bank examination procedure and in the investment securities regulation of the comptroller of the currency. Federal reserve bulletin, July 1938, p. 563-6.
 UNITED STATES. Comptroller of the currency. Federal laws affecting national banks, including provisions of U. S. revised statutes, federal reserve act, deposit insurance law, emergency banking act, bank conservation act, banking act and Janking act, and other laws affecting, directly or indirectly, the national banking system, as of January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Comptroller of the currency, Jane 27, 1938. 3p.

Management

AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Bank management commission. Commercial bank management; loan administration policies. New

BANKS AND BANKING-Management-(Continued)

- AINES AND BAINKING Management (Comtinued)
 York, Research council, American bankers association, 1938. 24p. (Booklet no. 21.)
 ATKINS, PAUL M. Capital funds investment analysis. Bankers magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 192-7.
 CAMPBELL, J. F. Asset valuation and reserves. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 1, 4-5, 15-7.
 ILLINOIS BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Committee on bank management. Simplified account analysis form. Bankers magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 254-5.
 IOYCE, CHARLES C. Control of income and
- p. 254-5. JOYCE, CHARLES C. Control of income and expense on owned bonds and mortgages and real estate. National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 6-8,
- POTTS, JAMES E. Operating and audit manuals. National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 26-9, dis-cussion, p. 29-30.

Officers

WILLIAMS, PAUL D. Comptroller' National auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 8-10. Comptroller's job.

- Reports and statements
 GILLETT, CHARLES C. Cycling checking ac-count statements. Burroughs clearing house, April 1939, p. 12, 30-2.
 MOST complete bank statement in America; 1935 annual report, Merchandise bank and trust company. Modern finance, April 1, 1936, p. 156-60. 156-60.
 - 130-00. PERLEY, J. MARSHALL. Cycling checking ac-count statements. Burroughs clearing house, April 1939, p. 10-2. TOBLER, DAVID. Analyzing foreign bank state-ments. Bankers magazine, July 1938, p. 27-32.

Statistics

- tatistics AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Earn-ing power of banks. New York, American bank-ers association, Jan. 1939. 93p. AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Serv-ice charge survey, 1938. New York, American bankers association, Jan. 1939. 36p. (Bulletin 77)
- bankers association, Jan. 1939. 300. (Dancenter, 77.)
 AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Bank management commission. Earnings and expenses of all insured commercial banks, 1937. New York, American bankers association, Research council, 1938. 329.
 MORRIS, DANIEL A. Recent trends in costs and profits. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, July 1938, p. 385-92.
 THOMPSON, DONALD S. Trends of bank earnings and expenses. Journal of the American statistical association, June 1938, p. 327-33.
 WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Banking turnover and facilities in Illinois. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois. Bureau of business research, 1937. 60p. (Bulletin no. 55.)

Stockkeeping SNYDER, G. W., JR. Perpetual inventory and equipment record give "fingertip control." Bank-ers monthly, May 1939, p. 305-8.

Taxation

- Taxation
 BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Supplemental taxes of state banks. Bankers monthly, July 1938, p. 402-7, 408.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Taxation of banks and insurance companies. (In his Public finance, 1936. p. 445-65.)
 BULLOCK, THOMAS M. Revised tax regulations regarding recoveries by banks. National auditgram, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 15.
 CADY, T. S. Bad debt deductions by banks and taxation of recoveries on charged-off assets. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 507-11.
 DAVIS, OSCAR R. Federal taxation of banks under the revenue act of 1936. National auditgram Feb. 1937, p. 1, 9-12.
 JENKINS, B. N. Federal taxation of banks under the revenue act of 1936 as amended. National auditgram Feb. 1938, p. 4-7, 16-7.
 LICHTFELDT, CLARENCE H. Bank taxation. National auditgram, May 1936, p. 7-9.

- LINDHARDT, PARKER. Capital gains and losses of banks and trust companies. National auditgram, May 1937, p. 4.5, 12. SKELTON, WILLIAM A. Revenue act of 1938 as it relates to banks and trust companies. National auditgram, March 1939, p. 7-12, 18-20.

Valuation

- [aluation] BIRDZELL, L. E. Asset valuations from a super-visory point of view. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, July 1939, p. 354-62. CAMPBELL, J. F. Asset valuation and reserves. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 1, 4-5, 15-7. JONES, LAURENCE H. Valuation reserves in bank accounting; submitted in partial fulfill-ment of the requirements of the graduate school of banking of the American institute of bank-ing. New Brunswick, N. J., the author, June 1939. 97p.

- BANKS AND BANKING, AUSTRALIA J., M. F. Some notes on the audit of a bank. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1936, p.
- MILLS, R. C. Australian monetary and banking system. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 349-52.

BANKS AND BANKING, BANK FOR INTERNA-TIONAL SETTLEMENTS

- See also Federal reserve bulletin. BANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLE-ANK FOR INTERNATIONAL SETTLE-MENTS. Sixth annual report, 1st April 1935-31st March 1936. 79p. Eighth annual report, 1st April 1937-31st March 1938. 115p. Ninth annual report, 1st April 1938-31st March 1939. 137p. Basle, Bank for international settlements, 1936, 1938, 1939.
- DULLES, ELEANOR LANSING. Bank for international settlements in recent years. American economic review, June 1938, p. 290-304.

- BANKS AND BANKING, BRANCHES BOECKEL, RICHARD M. Expansion of branch banking. Editorial research reports, v. 1, no. 8, banking. Feb. 1937. Feb.

 - Feb. 1937.
 BRADFORD, RICHARD S. Country branch bookkeeping. Banking, June 1939, p. 30.
 DAVIS, B. N. L. Branch controls—operating and audits. National auditgram, Sept. 1938, p. 17-9.
 DOWRIE, GEORGE W. Branch banking situa-tion and outlook. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 411-23.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Future of the machine in branch banking. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 733-4.
- 10-11. WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Branch banking. (In his Money, credit and banking. c1938. p. 940-62.)

- BANKS AND BANKING, CANADA BIGGAR, F. C. Monetary misconceptions. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 39-47

 - 39:47.
 BOGEN, JULES I. and others. Canadian banking. ing system. (In their Money and banking.
 1936. p. 488-508.)
 FRICKER, ERIC. Bank of Canada; notes on its organization and accounting system. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1936, p. 33-9.
 HAMILTON, MAYNE D. Canadian banking. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 375-83; Dec. 1936, p. 458-69.
 MALONE, CHARLES T. Bank examination and regulation in Canada and in the United States; submitted in partial fulfillment of the require-ments of the graduate school of banking of the

BANKS AND BANKING, CANADA—(Continued)

American institute of banking, New Bruns-wick, N. J., June 1938. 68 mimeographed pages and form.

and torm. OSBORNE, J. A. C. Bank of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 195-201. PLUMPTRE, A. F. W. Open market operations of the bank of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 421-33. SMAILS, R. G. H. Chartered bank. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 289-91.)

BANKS AND BANKING, COOPERATIVES See Agriculture-Credit.

BANKS AND BANKING, ENGLAND See Banks and banking, Great Britain.

BANKS AND BANKING, EUROPE HOLGATE, H. C. F. Bank auditing. Corporate accountant, March 1939, p. 17-9. PLAUT, T. Banking under dictatorship. Accoun-tant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 467-9.

- BANKS AND BANKING, FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS
 - BANKS Federal home loan bank board. Manual of exam-ining procedure; examining division of the Fed-eral home loan bank board, effective January 1, 1939. Washington, D. C., Federal home loan bank board, 1939. 109 mimeographed pages. Note: Superseded by edition effective Jan. 2, 1940.
 - WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Analysis of F.H.L.B. lending policies. Bankers monthly, July 1939, p. 387-90, 409, 415-6, 418.
- BANKS AND BANKING, FEDERAL LAND BANKS See Agriculture--Credit.

ANKS AND BANKING, FEDERAL RESERVE BANKS BANKS

- BANNS BOGEN, JULES I. and others. Federal reserve system. (In their *Money and banking*. 1936. p. 378-402.)
- a78.402.)
 EBERSOLE, J. FRANKLIN. Money management powers of the treasury and federal reserve banks. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 1-9.
 ETTINGER. RICHARD P. and GOLIEB, DAVID E. Federal Reserve system. (In their Credits and collections. 1938. p. 40-54.)
 FEDERAL RESERVE BANK OF ST. LOUIS. Federal reserve system today. St. Louis, Mo., Federal reserve bank of St. Louis, March 1936. 40n
- 40p.

- 40p. 40p. HISTORY of reserve requirements for banks in the United States. Federal reserve bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 953-72. TRUE, C. C. Relationship of the federal reserve bank to its member banks. National auditgram, March 1938, p. 17-20. UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system; Board of governors. Reserve requirements of member banks of the federal reserve system; letter from the secretary of the board of gov-ernors of the federal reserve system trans-mitting in response to senate resolution no. 78, a report on the recent order of the board in-reasing the reserve requirements of member banks on March 1, 1937 and May 1, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 7p.
- Washington, D. C., Government printing once, 1937. 7p. UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Trust powers of national banks: regulation F. This regulation as printed herewith is in the form as revised effective June 1, 1936. New York, Federal reserve bank of New York, 1936. 20p. WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Federal reserve sys-tem. (In his Money, credit and banking. 1938. p. 372.414.)
- p. 372-414.)

BANKS AND BANKING, FOREIGN DEPARTMENTS TENNEY, HAROLD A. Foreign department audit and procedure. National auditgram, May 1938, p. 8-9, 16.

BANKS AND BANKING, FRANCE BOGEN, JULES I. and others. British and French banking system. (In their Money and banking. 1936. p. 427.54.)

BANKS AND BANKING, GERMANY BOGEN, JULES I. and others. Banking systems of Germany and Holland. (In their Money and banking. 1936. p. 455-87.)

- BANKS AND BANKING, GREAT BRITAIN BOGEN, JULES I. and others. British and French banking systems. (In their Money and banking. 1936. p. 427-54.)
 BURROWS, H. R. Banks and credit. Accoun-tant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 196-9.
 FURNISS, J. M. Banks and banking—past, pres-ent and future. Accountant, Jan. 23, 1937, p. 129-33.

 - 129-33.
 - 129-33. HOLGATE, H. C. F. Contingent liabilities of the English commercial banks with an introductory essay on their published accounts. (being an excerpt from a thesis on "Bank accounting" approved for the Ph.D. degree of London uni-versity.) London, Gee & co., ltd., 1939. 77p. HOLGATE, H. C. F. Rationalisation of banking processes through the use of multiple forms. Accountant, April 22, 1939, p. 533-4. LATHAM, B. Some impressions on banking and finance abroad. Australian accountant, Aug.

 - LATHAM, B. Some impressions on banking and finance abroad. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 21-5.
 LETCHER, H. P. Guarantees to banks. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 852-4.
 MAGAARD, H. G. Introduction to banking and the London money market. Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 261-8.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Bank of England. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 33-41.
 - 33-41
 - Connatan enterete accountant, Jam. 1936, p. 33-41.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Banking practice for: accountant. Accountant, Jan. 4, 1936, p. 8-10; Jan. 11, 1936, p. 45-7; Jan. 18, 1936, p. 93-4; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 125-6; Feb. 1, 1936, p. 161-3; Feb. 8, 1936, p. 202-3; Feb. 15, 1936, p. 241-2; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 278-9; Feb. 29, 1936, p. 317-9; March 7, 1936, p. 361-3; March 14, 1936, p. 413-4; March 21, 1936, p. 450-2; March 28, 1936, p. 489-92.
 POOL, A. G. Some aspects of British post-war banking policy. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1939, p. 297-300.
 TUKE, WILLIAM FAVILL. Functions of a bank. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 174-7.

BANKS AND BANKING, HOLDING COMPANIES UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Form 24-K for bank holding companies. (published Dec. 28, 1937) Washington, D.C., Securities and exchange commission, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages. Instruction book for form 24-K. 1937.

5 mimeographed pages.

BANKS AND BANKING, INVESTMENT BANKS See Investment companies.

BANKS AND BANKING, IRELAND MAGRATH, C. R. R. Bank accounting by machinery. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1937, p. 67.

BANKS AND BANKING, LAND BANKS See Agriculture-Credit.

BANKS AND BANKING, LOAN DEPARTMENTS

Costs LORENZ, OTTO C. Personal loan expense. Bankers magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 110-2.

BANKS AND BANKING, NETHERLANDS BOGEN, JULES I. AND OTHERS. Banking systems of Germany and Holland. (In their Money and banking. 1936. p. 455-87.) _Banking

BANKS AND BANKING, SAFE DEPOSIT DEPART-MENTS ABBOTT, GAYTON. Sound practices in the

BANKS AND BANKING, SAFE DEPOSIT DEPART-MENTS—(Continued)

- operation of safe deposit departments. National auditgram, May 1938, p. 4-5, 14-5, 16. FREER, R. W. Appraising the safe deposit department. National auditgram, Feb. 1938, p.
- SAFE deposit principles and practice based on a research study of systems in 100 vaults; accounting records. Bankers monthly, Aug. 1938, p.

BANKS AND BANKING, STATE BANKS AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION.

MERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. State bank division. Condition and operation of state banks, 1937; survey of resources, liabilities, earn-ings and expenses. American bankers associa-

- Same, 1938. 1939. 68p.
 BANKS AND BANKING, TRUST COMPANIES AND DEPARTMENTS
 AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Trust division. Guide to trust fees, with recommended cost accounting system; schedule of 1932, revised in 1936. New York, American bankers association, 1936. 52p.
 JAMISON, D. S., JR. Systematizing the trust department for control requirements. National auditgram, Nov. 1938, p. 7, 12-3.
 KEMMER, JULIUS. Protection for real estate assets; a modern system of management for smaller trust departments. Trust companies, Jan. 1938, p. 23-8.

 - assets, a modern system of management of smaller trust departments. Trust companies, Jan. 1938, p. 23-8.
 MODERN trust department; a behind-the-scenes view of operations and organization. Trust com-panies, April 1938, p. 469-73.

Accounting

- accounting
 BOSWORTH, AMASA W. Advances in trust accounting and control; efficiency and economy of punched-card recording system. Trust companies, Jan. 1936, p. 25-32.
 HARWOOD, P. M. Valuing trust assets at "cost" and at "market"; the accountant's viewpoint. Trust companies, June 1936, p. 59-5.
 HOYT, STANLEY. Essential organization and records; minimum equipment necessary to small trust departments. Trust companies, Nov. 1937, p. 543-50.
 DOHNSON, CHRIS. Outline of organization and
- p. 343-30. JOHNSON, CHRIS. Outline of organization and records; description of medium-size trust de-partment set-up. *Trust companies*, Sept. 1938, p. 316-21.
- p. 316-21. KEMMER, JULIUS. Anticipating income tax time; how small trust departments eliminate the spring peak, and put income tax data to work. *Trust companies*, May 1938, p. 549-53, 618-20. KRIEGSHAUSER, C. J. Control of trust de-partment assets. National auditgram, Jan. 1937, artment assets. National auditgram, Jan. 1937,
- p. 4-5, 11. MEYER, CHARLES Z. Trust department ac-counting. National auditgram, Dec. 1936, p. 10-11.
- 4, 10-11.
 NEVINS, H. E. Accrual accounting. Trust companies, July 1938, p. 52-4.
 REID, JOHN A. Valuing trust assets for book records. Trust companies, Oct. 1936, p. 435-6.
 TYCHSEN, PAUL C. This system controls trust securities. Bankers monthly, June 1938, p. 336-7.
 CEORCE S. Observations on pulsing
- VRIONIS, GEORGE S. Observations on valuing of trust assets. Trust companies, May 1936, p. 477-84.
- WADDINGTON, M. W. Trust company account-ing. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 366-73. Indian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. p. 366-109-14.
- WAITE, FREDERICK. Electrographic system of trust accounting; outline of basic set-up and

provisions. Trust companies, Aug. 1936, p. 187-94; Oct. 1936, p. 439-43. ZELLICK, ROY R. Should trust departments operate common trust funds? Accounting pro-cedure. Trust companies, Oct. 1936, p. 448-50.

- Auditing ASHWORTH, FRED. Control of agency ac-counts; the auditor's duties with respect to cor-counts; the auditor's duties with respect to com-duties with respect to com-
 - GRIMM, GEORGE D. System of protecting trust assets; respective duties of auditor and trust department. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 361-4
 - JAMISON, D. S., JR. Audit control in the trust department. Bankers magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 325-9.

 - department. Bankers magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 325-9.
 JOHNSON, CRIS. Trust department procedure and auditing. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 17-20.
 NELLAN, EDWIN P. Trust examination; an examiner's analysis. New York, American bankers association, Research council, c1939. 84p.
 PAULGER, LEO H. Purposes of trust examination; how supervision operates to advance public, beneficiary and fiduciary interests. Trusts and estates, Feb. 1939, p. 217-21.
 SKELTON, WILLIAM A. Revenue act of 1938 as it relates to banks and trust companies. National auditgram, March 1939, p. 7-12, 18-20.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Trust companies. (In his Auditing, 1937. p. 331.)
 VANDOREN, W. T. Maintenance of proper records together with audit and examination of trust departments. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 7-9. 7.9

- Cost accounting AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Trust division. Guide to trust fees, with recommended cost accounting system; schedule of 1932, re-vised in 1936. New York, American bankers association, 1936. 52p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF BANKING. Trust costs: allocating administrative and concreting
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF BANKING. Trust costs; allocating administrative and operating costs of large trust departments. Trust companies, June 1937, p. 683-6.
 BIGGS, GLENN A. Workable cost analysis; program for determining and classifying trust expenses. Trust companies, July 1938, p. 29-35.
 WEIG, WILLIAM J. Cost analysis of trust departments; a practical cost system. Trust companies, Feb. 1938, p. 184-6.
 WEIG, WILLIAM J. Facing the cost facts; profitable and capable personal trust service depends on cooperation in cost analyses. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 710-3.
 WEIG, WILLIAM J. Trust department income and expenses; advantages of a cost system. Trust companies, Jan. 1938, p. 45-7.

Costs

- osts BIGGS, GLENN A. Workable trust cost analysis. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, Julv 1938, p. 375-84. BLOOR, W. HARRY. Cost-plus basis for each account. Trust companies, Feb. 1938, p. 193-5, BRUNKHORST, R. H. Comptroller's view of trust costs: the effects of volume on overhead. Trust companies, May 1938, p. 583-6. DRISCOLL, JOHN J. Fundamentals of trust department cost analysis. Trust companies, Feb. 1936. p. 156-60.

- department cost analysis. Trust companies, Feb. 1936, p. 156-60.
 EVANS, JOHN H. Know trust costs. Trust companies, June 1938, p. 740.
 HIGGINS, CLARENCE B. Method for determining trust costs; break-down by types and allocation of type of service. Trust companies, Dec. 1936, p. 733-6.
 LAIRD, WALTER J. Living trust fees on income and principal; bringing fee schedules into line with cost of trust service. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 280-4.
 WHAT is being done to put trust business on paying basis; cost analysis basis for annual charges. Trust companies, Feb. 1937, p. 188-90.
 ZELLICK, ROY R. Minimizing costs of safekeeping; standards for profitable operation of

BANKS AND BANKING, TRUST COMPANIES AND DEPARTMENTS—Costs—(Continued)

custody accounts. Trust companies, Nov. 1938, p. 594-5.

Law

....

NITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Trust powers of national banks; regulation F. This regulation as printed herewith is in the form as revised effective June 1, 1936. New York, Federal reserve bank of New York, 1936. 20p. ÜNITED

-Same, revised effective December 31, 1937. 26p.

Statistics

- tatistics AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Trust division. Guide to trust fees, with recom-mended cost accounting system; schedule of 1932, revised in 1936. New York, American bankers association, c1936. S2p. TRUST assets and earnings decline but national bank figures show marked gains in most dis-tricts. Trusts and estates, Jan. 1939, p. 105-8.

BAR ASSOCIATIONS, COOPERATION WITH See Lawyers, Cooperation with.

BAR management and beverage profits. Hunting-ton, R. T. (Dick).

BARBER, EARL H.

Futility of regulation by valuation. Public utilities fortnightly, March 18, 1937, p. 361-8.

BARBER SHOP SUPPLIES

Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of beauty and barber sup-ply concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 67.)

BARDT, H. M.

Tax problems concerning a corporate fiduciary. Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 709-11, 750-4, 763.

BARFORD, L. Partnership in relation to income tax. Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 96-8.

BARKER, E. M.

ARKER, E. M. Hire purchase—collection of instalments. Federal accountant, April 1939, p. 157-9. Institute—how it is constituted and controlled. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, 454-5. Some observations on hire purchase business. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 36-9.

BARKER, HOWARD F. Cost investigations by the United States tariff commission. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 8-9, 16-7, 20-1; Nov. 1936, p. 22-6.

BARLOON, MARVIN J. Purchase discounts; allocation of responsibility between financial control and the purchasing function. *Journal of accountancy*, Nov. 1939, p. 337-42.

BARNES, GEORGE L. Burden of complying with government's edicts falls on controller. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 318-25.

BARNES, PARRY

- Insurance settlements and the income tax: before Insured members' conference, Associated indus-tries of Missouri at Kansas City, Mo., Dec. 21, 1937. 6 typewritten pages.
- Office organization of an accounting practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 173-7.)

BARNES, RALPH M.

Motion and time study. New and sons, inc., 1937. 295 p. New York, John Wiley

BARNET, ROBERT A. Need of auditors in savings bank. National audit-gram, Jan. 1936, p. 1, 5-6, 12.

BARNETT, F. OSWALD Accountants' time and cost records. Australian accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 40-5. Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 381-3.

BARNETT, FRANK E.

Some observations on the Robinson-Patman act. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1937, p. 1-12, 19.

BARNETT, H. D. Purchase records and accounts payable. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 134-53.

BARNETT, JOHN T.

Problem of taxation of western minerals. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal min-ing convention of the American mining congress. Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 41-7.)

BARNETT, R. N.

- ARNETT, R. N.
 Effect on auditing of machine accounting. Accountant, Sept. 3, 1938, p. 328-33. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 691-702. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 399-404, discussion, p. 404-5.
 Memorandum on the use of machines in accounting. (In Back, W. J. Standard practice in auditing. 1937. p. 36-41.)

BARNHART, LYALL

Why and how of banking costs. Burroughs clear-ing house, Nov. 1936, p. 14-7, 26-8; Dec. 1936, p. 16-8, 24-6; Jan. 1937, p. 12-4, 26-8.

BARON, C. Electricity supply costing, with particular refer-ence to distribution. Cost accountant, March 1938, p. 317-20.

BARR, ANDREW Comments on "A statement of accounting prin-ciples". Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 318-23.

BARR, RALPH H. Cost accounting; before the Northwest canners association, Jan. 6, 1939. 15 mimeographed pages.

finder service bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 1, 3-7. Path-

BARR, W. A. With never a post mortem; three-man plan proyides cost and production control in 300-man job-order plant. Factory management and mainte-nance, May 1937, p. 45-7.

BARRELS

See also Containers.

- Accounting GOETTSCHE, H. C. Correspondence. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, March
 - 1937, p. 229-31. MUCKLOW, WALTER. Barrel and stave fac-tories. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936, p. 289-
 - ZIMMERMAN, R. C. Accounting for returnable containers. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p. 35-40.

BARRETT, JAMES D. Depreciation in equipment simplified. Bankers monthly, June 1939, p. 367, 369.

BARRETT, S. J. Taxation accounting. Edison electric institute bulle-tin, Jan. 1939, p. 33-5.

BARRINGTON (N. J.), BOROUGH OF Financial survey of the borough of Barrington and the school district of the borough of Barring-ton, county of Camden, New Jersey, with a

BARRINGTON, (N. J.), BOROUGH OF—(Continued) refunding plan. Packard bldg., Philadelphia, Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., June 1, 1936. 36p.

BARRON'S REPORTS to stockholders. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 221-2.

BARROWCLIFF, C. PERCY Audit of private limited companies and private concerns. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 112-7. Accountant, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 432-7. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 393-7, discussion, p. 2000 June 397-8.

BARROWS, DOUGLASS M.

Thoughts on depreciation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1930. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 659-68.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-broduction basic production basis.

Vegetable oil industry and some of its peculiar accounting problems. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 8, section 1, p. 431-48.)

BARRY, DAVID C. Installment financing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1936, p. 243-52.

BARRY, ROBERT I.

Functions of the public accountant in reorganiza-tions under chapter X of the bankruptcy act. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 161-5.

BARS AND BAR ROOMS

See Restaurants, cafes, etc.

BARTELT, EDWARD F.

- Accounting controls in the federal government. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938. 24p. (Supplement to the Proceedings of conference on municipal accounting and finance
- conference on municipal accounting and finance of the American institute of accountants, Chi-cago, March 28 and 29, 1938.) Address at conference of the Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada held at San Francisco, California, on October 18, 1939. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, 1939. 30 mimeo-graphed pages. Municipal finance, Nov. 1939, p. 15-26.
- graphed pages. Municipal finance, Nov. 1939, p. 15-26.
 Address delivered before the Middle Atlantic states accounting conference at Richmond, Virginia, June 17, 1939. Washington, D. C., Treasury department, 1939. 26 mimeographed pages. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 68-80.)
 Address delivered before the National association of state auditors, controllers, and treasurers, at the Buena Vista Hotel, Biloxi, Mississippi, November 16, 1936. 43 mimeographed pages.
 Remarks at a conference on government accounting how bus the school of the International business machines corporation, at Endicott, New York, September 14, 1939. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, 1939. 36 mimeographed pages.
 United States treasury; address before the Iowa bankers association, Des Moines, Iowa, June 6, 1939. 30 mimeographed pages.

BARTIZAL, JOHN R. Private accounting. Diary of Alpha kappa psi, May 1938, p. 23-4.

BARTLETT, ARTHUR.

Million dollars was missing so they called in Lester Pratt, who traps more bank robbers than any detective or G-man and does it with an adding machine. This week magazine (New York herald-tribune) Dec. 31, 1939, p. 6, 9.

BARTON, A. E. Public finance, and the form and presentation of public accounts. (In Australasian congress on accounting. *Proceedings*, 1936. p. 9-23, discus-sion, p. 24-5.)

BARTON, H. M. Pitfalls in the path of a professional accountant. Accountant, Oct. 16, 1937, p. 513-9.

BASHE, C. E. Fair market value of inventory property. Taxes-the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 71-2, 105-6. Minnesota income tax. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 149-52, 190.

BASIC accounting principles. Saliers, Earl A. and Holmes, Arthur W.

BASIC bookkeeping and accounting. Lazenby, C. D.

- BASIC course in cost accounting. Mannix, Raymond L.
- **BASIC** principles for costing and accounting for folding paper box manufacturers. Folding paper box association of America.
- BASIC questions of auditing procedure. Glover, P. W. R.
- BASIC standards of appraisal practice and pro-cedure. Association of appraisal executives.

BASIS of inventory in quarterly reports. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 405.

BASS, A. W., JR. Job evaluation; a specific application. Mechanical engineering, Dec. 1938, p. 927-30.

BASS, F. H. Private company in New Zealand. Secretary in in Australia and New Zealand, May 1939, p. 909-13.

BATES, GEORGE E.
Some effects of the securities act upon investment banking practices. Law and contemporary prob-lems, Jan. 1937, p. 72-9.
Waiting period under the securities act. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 203-13.

BATTELLE, GORDON S. Future of the certified public accountant; intro-duction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 197-9.)

BATTERIES

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of battery, ignition and tire stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 34, 34a, 34b.)

BATTLEY, C. H. System of records for the trust accounts of a solicitor. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 113-6.

BATY, LAURENCE E.

Model state commission for utility regulation. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 13, 1936, p. 187-95; Aug. 27, 1936, p. 241-7.

BAUER, JOHN

- AUER, JOHN
 Concepts of capital and income in the regulation of public utilities. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 22-9.
 Prudent investment; can it be used as the future basis of public utility rate control? Public utilities fortnightly, June 23, 1938, p. 793.7.
 Relative failure or adequacy of public utility regulation. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 19, 1937, p. 217-24.

BAUM, WILLIAM

Problem of labor costs. Rayon and melliand textile monthly, June 1936, p. 360-2.

- BAUMANN, H. P. editor
 BAUMANN, H. P. editor
 American institute of accountants' examinations, November 1935, (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 56-68; Feb. 1936, p. 136-49; March 1936, p. 26-35; April 1936, p. 291-302; May 1936, p. 386-95.
 American institute of accountants examinations, May 1936. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 262-72; Aug. 1936, p. 133-44; Sept. 1936, p. 207-16; Oct. 1936, p. 296-8; Nov. 1936, p. 377-87.
 American institute of accountants examinations, November 1936. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 67-76; Feb. 1937, p. 141-51; March 1937, p. 384-91; June 1937, p. 299-304; May 1937, p. 384-91; June 1937, p. 460-5; July 1937, p. 69-73; Supplement, Jan. 1938, p. 3-18. Journal of accountancy, supple-ment, Jan. 1938, p. 19-57. American institute of accountants examinations, May 1937. (Stu-dents' department) dents' department)

 - b) accountants examinations, May 1957. (314)
 American institute of accountants examinations, November 1937. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 76-82; Feb. 1938, p. 344-53; May 1938, p. 438-47; June 1938, p. 316-23; July 1938, p. 63-8.
 American institute of accountants examinations, May 1938. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 271-9; Nov. 1938, p. 331-46; Dec. 1938, p. 407-11.
 American institute of accountants examinations, November 1938. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 54-60; Feb. 1939, p. 117-25; March 1939, p. 82-9; April 1939, p. 249-53; May 1939, p. 62-8.
 American unstitute of accountants examinations,
 - American institute of accountants examinations, May 1939. (Students' department) *Journal of accountancy*, Aug. 1939, p. 129-40; Sept. 1939, p. 206-12; Oct. 1939, p. 279-81; Nov. 1939, p. 352-5; Dec. 1939, p. 409-17.
 - Reorganization problem. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 466-70.
 - Reply to question on amortization of hond discount. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 305-6.
 - Solution to problem, "Minority interests in con-solidated statements." (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 300-5.
 - Tax problem. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 460-6.
 - Virginia C.P.A. examination. (Students' depart-ment) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 460-71.

- BAUMANN, H. P. AND GORDON, SPENCER
 Unofficial answers to the examination questions of the American institute of accountants, May, 1932, to November, 1935. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1936. 413p.
 Unofficial answers to the examination questions of the American institute of accountants, May, 1936 to November, 1939. New York, American institute publishing co., inc., c1939. 298p.

BAXTER, W. T.

AXIER, W. I. Note on the allocation of oncosts between depart-ments. Accountant, Nov. 5, 1938, p. 633-6. Report writing. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 234-7.

BEALL, JOHN Sales set this maintenance budget. Factory management and maintenance, July 1939, p. 90-1.

BEAN, IVAN R. How to increase loan volume on field warehouse receipts. Bankers monthly, Nov. 1938, p. 655-7.

BEARDSLEY, CHARLES A. How the integrated bar serves the lawyer. (re-printed from California state bar journal, Dec. 1935.) Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 138-40.

BEATTY, CHARLES Finance act, 1938, so far as it concerns death duties. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 481-3.

BEATY, JOHN Y. Capital and surplus adequate to protect largest deposits in history. *Rand McNally bankers* monthly, July 1937, p. 402-5, 436-7. More states recognize field warehouse receipts as good collateral. *Bankers monthly*, Oct. 1939, p. 595-7.

BEAUTY PARLOR SUPPLIES Statistics

UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of beauty and barber supply concerns (In their 1936 retail survey. report DUN no. 67.)

BEAUVAIS, J. ERNEST

Cost accounting system for a journal bearing foundry. Cost and management, April 1937, p. 119-25; May 1937, p. 130-53.

BECK, HOWARD C.

Governmental accounting and financing. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 716-8.

BECKETT, RUPERT

Economic situation in 1935. Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 243-6.

BECKMAN, THEODORE N. AND NOLEN, HER-MAN C.

Chain store problem; a critical analysis. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938, 350p.

BECRAFT, FRANK W. Effect of 1936 revenue act on mining industry. Mining journal, June 15, 1937, p. 3-5, 38-9.

BEDELL, L. V. Control of labor costs. (In National association Control ot labor costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 139-48.) Measured day work—a wage plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 533-9.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.

BEECH, W. Workshop costing on the railway. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 39-44.

BEER

See Beverages; Breweries; Liquor trade.

BEER DISTRIBUTORS See Breweries; Delivery service.

BEET SUGAR See Sugar.

BEFORE the auditor comes. Healy, Robert E.

BEGINNINGS of state accountancy legislation and organizations. (In American institute of ac-countants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 508-16.)

BEHIND the scenes of business. Foulke, Roy A.

BEIGHTON, T. P. D.

Foreign companies under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1937, p. 685-700, discussion, April 1937, p. 774-5.

BEIGHTON, T. P. D.-(Continued)

- Growth of fixed and flexible trusts in England. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 153-60. Refunds of income tax under section 18 of com-
- monwealth act. Australian acconutant, Oct. 1936, p. 199-212.
- evised British national defence contribution scheme. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. Revised British 397-400.

BEKAERT, ARSENE C. Wages and hours law. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 27-31, 38.

BELISLE EUGENE L. AND STODDARD, WILLIAM LEAVÍTT

Public relations committees; a new management technique. Society for the advancement of man-agement journal, Nov. 1938, p. 150-4, 160.

BELL, HERMON F.

Department store accounts. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 37-40.

Depreciation from the point of view of tax regu-lations. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Feb. 1937, p. 39-40. Retail merchandise accounting. New York, Ronald

press co., c1936. 276p.

BELL, WILLIAM

Foundry costs. Cost accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 264-78.

Machine rates. Accountant, June 25, 1938, p. 871-5.

BELL, WILLIAM H.

Accountants' certificates; address at meeting of the New Jersey society of certified public ac-countants on October 17, 1939. 11 typewritten pages. Realization

Journal of appreciation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 45-6.

BELLEMORE, DOUGLAS H.

Prestol The budget is balanced. Banking, March 1939, p. 30-1.

BELLMAN, HAROLD Ethics of accountancy. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 240-3, discussion, p. 243-7. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 603-6.

BEMIS, LLOYD

Going value is still with us and why not? Public utilities fortnightly, March 4, 1937, p. 284-92.

BENEFIT ORGANIZATIONS

See Societies, associations, etc.

BENEFIT PLANS

See Pensions and benefit plans; Social security.

BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATIONS

See Chartered accountants' benevolent associa-tion; Pensions and benefit plans; Societies, associations, etc.

BENEY, M. ADA Cost of living in the United States, 1914-1936, New York, National industrial conference board, inc., c1936. 99p. (National industrial confer-ence board studies no. 228)

BENGE, EUGENE J. How the employer can reduce unemployment taxes. Society for the advancement of management journal. May 1938, p. 99-102, 116. Office economics. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 151p.

BENINGTON, HAROLD

Plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 110-1.

BENJAMIN, EUGENE S.

Liability ratios in credit analysis. Bankers maga-sine, March 1938, p. 203-5.
 Negotiated receivables. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 480-2.
 Practical credit analysis for bank and trade credit

- men, accountants, investors, business schools, merchants. ed. 3. New York, The author, c1939. 180p.

Turnover ratios in credit analysis. Bankers maga-sine, June 1937, p. 467-72.

BENJAMIN, HAROLD S.

- Current ratio or net working capital? Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 364-5. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements
- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy. Dec. 1939, p. 400.

BENNER, GEORGE

Aging accounts receivable; tests which find out profit stealers. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 21-3.

BENNETO, C. A.

Law relating to apportionment. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, Feb. 1938, p. 556-64.

BENNETT, CLARENCE F.

Management reports—their use and interpretation. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section I, p. 1028-43.) Printed with: Culen, J. F. Major accounting reports for management.

BENNETT, CLINTON W.
Cost plan for the knitting industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 13, no. 3, section 1, p. 143-65.)
Vermont maple furniture company (a cost study). New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, July 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 21, section 1, p. 1225-50.)

BENNETT, CLINTON W. AND FISKE, WYMAN P. Hattie Hicks sweets company; case study of a cost plan for a small confectionery plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 18, section 1, p. 1065-93.)

BENNETT, EMMETT L. Immunities from the income tax. Tax magasine, April 1938, p. 207-10, 238-43. Income tax immunities. Taxes—the tax magasine, Aug. 1939, p. 451-2, 492-3.

BENNETT, GEORGE E.

- Accountant as an expert witness. Accounting forum, April 1936, p. 5-8. Accounting for the usual business in which the sale of feed is a major activity. (paper de-livered, February 18, 1938, before the Eastern federation of feed merchants in convention as-sembled, Syracuse, New York) 22 typewritten nages pages.
- Bookkeeping principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 223p. (Ameri-can business fundamentals) Securing and holding a position. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 26-7. Think! Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 25-6, 30
- 39.

BENNETT, JOHN J., JR. See also American institute of accountants and New York state society of certified public ac-countants; McCall, Ambrose V. and Furman, Max.

BENNETT, L. W.

Annual report to employees. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 308.

BENNETT, ROBERT J. Accounting profession in Pennsylvania. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 710-5.

BENNETTS, K. J. Wastage in material. Australian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 369-79. Cost and management, March 1937, p. 68-78.

BENNION, H. S.

Cost accounting practices in federal government departments; address before National account-ing conference, Edison electric institute, Chi-cago, Ill., November 14, 1939. 16 typewritten pages.

- BENSON, JAMES L. Audits of departmental and institutional accounts; prepared for presentation before the annual convention of the National association of state auditors, comptrollers and treasurers, Biloxi, Miss., November 15, 16, 17 and 18, 1938. 9 typewritten pages.
 - typewritten pages. Expert testimony in the Securities and exchange commission hearings on auditing procedure. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters. June 16, and 17, 1939, p. 80-1.) Municipal accounting. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 64-7.)

- BENSON, PHILIP A.
 Free enterprise needs free credit. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 287-92.)
 Serving a public need; address at a dinner given by the American institute of accountants and the New York state society of certified public accountants, January 30, 1939, New York, American insitute of accountants, 1939. 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 154-60.
 Benson dinner. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 134.

BENSON, PHILIP A. AND NORTH, NELSON L. Real estate principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938, 583p.

BENSON dinner. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 134.

BENSTED, C. C. Income tax as affecting companies and company secretaries. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 55-9.

BENTLEY, ED. R. Relationship between the lawyer and accountant. Florida accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 17-9.

BENTLEY, HARRY C.

£

Functions of accounts. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1937. 167p. Preparing for C.P.A. examinations. Accounting forum, Jan. 1938, p. 15-7.

BENTLEY SCHOOL OF ACCOUNTING AND FI-NANCE

Special bulletin. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance (1937). 22p.

BERCAW, W. W. Liability of P. I. residents for U. S. income tax. Philippine accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 86-9

BERCOW, M. S. Accounting services and fees. Credit executive, May 1936, p. 146. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 340-1.

BERGDOLL, JOHN

Electric power derived from refuse incineration. Water works and sewerage, Sept. 1938, p. 863-9.

BERGENDAHL, E. C.

Time studies reduce costs. Laundry age, Jan. 1939, p. 32.

BERGENGREN, ROY F. Cuna emerges. ed. 2. Madison, Wis., Credit union national association, c1936. 289p.

BERGMAN, NATHANIEL B.

- ERGMAN, NATHANIEL B.
 Federal tax procedural questions, decentralization, etc. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 146-53.
 Some developments in federal taxation and a review of New York city special taxes. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 45-60.
 This blessed language. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 271-2.

BERGNER, R. W., joint editor See LaSalle extension university.

BERKSON, PINCUS M. When the commissions disregard legislative rate standards. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 4, 1938, p. 143-51.

BERLE, A. A., JR.

EALE, A. A., JR. Accounting and the law. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 9-15. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 368-78. Taxation and municipal finance. New York certi-fied public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 5-11.

BERMAN, EDWARD, joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

BERNARD, RENE J.

Now we plan, set up and operate our budget. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Feb. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 11, section 1, p. 575-604.)

BERNSTEIN, BLANCHE, joint author See Young, R. A. and Bernstein, Blanche.

BERNSTEIN, E. M. Public utility rate making and the price level. Chapel Hill, N. C., University of North Caro-lina press, 1937. 142p.

BERTRAM, RUDOLF F.

Local budget control by state tax commissions; evaluation of the situation in New Mexico. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 476-80, 500.

BETA ALPHA PSI News letter of Beta alpha psi; the national ac-counting fraternity.

BETA alpha psi. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 16-7.

BETHLEHEM STEEL CORPORATION

Pension plan for subsidiary companies of Beth-lehem steel corporation; sixteenth annual report, fiscal year ended December 31, 1938. 8p. Relief plan of Bethlehem steel corporation and subsidiary companies; thirteenth annual report, fiscal year ended December 31, 1938. Bethlehem, Dealt det december 31, 1938. Pa., Bethlehem steel corporation, 1939. 24p.

BETHLEHEM-YOUNGSTOWN MERGER.

MAY, GEORGE OLIVER. Bethlehem-Youngs-town merger suit. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 317-36.)

BETT, F. W. Accountant's duty as to secrecy. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 518-9.
Chat with an executor. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 414-8.
Insurance and its elementary principles. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 523-8.

BEVERAGES

See also Breweries; Liquor trade.

Accounting. BOLTE, ARTHUR H. and LOW, ARTHUR

BEVERAGES-Accounting-(Continued)

- EVERAGES—Accounting—(Continued)
 E. Management and cost control in the carbonated beverage industry; in coöperation with the cost accounting committee of the American bottlers of carbonated beverages, rev. ed. Washington, D. C., American bottlers of carbonated beverages, c1936. 172p.
 FOX, ARTHUR E. Liquor control. Accounting forum, Jan. 1937, p. 507.
 GRINSTEAD, RAYMOND M. Modern wine and liquor control with wine cellar control, public and service bar controls. Stamford, Conn., The Dahls no date 48p. (Pocket handbook no. 29)
 HUNTINGTON, R. T. (DICK) Accounting and control. (In his Bar management and beverage profits, c1938. p. 63-85.)
 McVAY, E. A. and KEIPER, B. F. Elements of beverage control. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1936, p. 4-5, 6-7.
 VASOLL, HERBERT H. Beverage accounting; accounting for containers and deposits on containers as applied to breweries. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 275-81.

- Cost accounting BOLTE, ARTHUR H. and LOW, ARTHUR E. Management and cost control in the car-bonated beverage industry; in cooperation with bonated beverage industry; in cooperation with the cost accounting committee of the American bottlers of carbonated beverages, rev. ed. Wash-ington, D. C., American bottlers of carbonated beverages, c1936. 172p. JORGENSEN, ARNOLD. Food and beverage con
 - trol. Horwath hotel accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 4-5

Costs

- osts
 FOOD and beverage costs. (see each issue of Horwath hotel accountant.)
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. Beverage statis-tics. Horwath hotel accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 5-7; Sept. 1936, p. 5-7.
 HUNTINGTON, R. T. (DICK) What it costs to do business. (In his Bar management and beverage profits, c1938. p. 59-62.)

Statistics

- tatistics HORWATH AND HORWATH. Beverage statis-tics. Horwath hotel accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 5-7: Sept. 1936, p. 5-7. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Popularity and profitableness of drinks. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, Aug. 1936, p. 5. MAXWELL, LLOYD W. Tobacco, beverages and confections. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936. p. 309-42.) 42.`
- WHAT the hotel guest drinks. Horwath hotel accountant, April 1937, p. 5.

Stockkeeping HUNTINGTON, R. T. (DICK) Storeroom con-trol and equipment. (In his Bar management and beverage profits, c1938. p. 86-93.)

BEVERIDGE, JOHN W. Depletion of oil and gas properties; principles of depletion allowances for determining taxable income. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 67-70.

BEZANSON, ANNE See Davis, Hiram S. and others.

- BEZOIER, R. A. Automobile financing analyzed. Bankers monthly, Sept. 1939, p. 521-3, 552-5. Finance company statements analyzed. Bankers

 - Finance company statements analyzed. Bankers monthly, Oct. 1939, p. 588-90, 608, 611-2. How a bank can handle automobile loans at a profit. Bankers monthly, Dec. 1939, p. 742-3.

BIBLIOGRAPHIES, INDEXES, CATALOGUES, FTC. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Accountants' index, fourth supplement; a bibliog-raphy of accounting literature, January, 1932, December, 1935 (inclusive). New York, Ameri-can institute pub. co., c1936, 503p. BLACKETT, OLIN W. Literature of business

statistics; a bibliography. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 67p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8,

- 1930. 070. Carling a series of the series of
- tancy; South Hall, Columbia university, October 1937. New York, Columbia university, 1937.
 Z4p.
 COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF AC-COUNTANTS (VICTORIAN DIVISION). Commonwealth accountants' library. Catalogue of books in Melbourne library. Melbourne, Commonwealth accountants' library. 1939. 40p.
 CURRENT literature; a department. Jownal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 78-80; Feb. 1936, p. 157-60; March 1936, p. 237-40; April 1936, p. 476-80; July 1936, p. 77-80; Aug. 1936, p. 156-60; Sept. 1936, p. 230-2; Oct. 1936, p. 308-12; Nov. 1936, p. 388-92; Dec. 1937, p. 158-60; March 1937, p. 239-400; June 1937, p. 478-80; July 1937, p. 239-400; June 1937, p. 478-80; July 1937, p. 239-400; June 1937, p. 478-80; July 1937, p. 399-400; June 1937, p. 478-80; July 1937, p. 398-400; Dec. 1937, p. 471-3; Jan 1938, p. 86-8; Feb. 1938, p. 182-4; March 1938, p. 270-2; April 1938, p. 528-9; July 1938, p. 71-2; Aug. 1938, p. 135-6; Sept. 1938, p. 207-8; Oct. 1938, p. 280; Nov. 1938, p. 351-2; Dec. 1938, p. 443-6; June 1939, p. 64; Feb. 1939, p. 28; March 1939, p. 192; April 1939, p. 256; May 1939, p. 320; June 1939, p. 398; July 1939, p. 72; Aug. 1939, p. 144; Sept. 1939, p. 216; Oct. 1939, p. 285; Nov. 1939, p. 366; Dec. 1939, p. 216; Oct. 1939, p. 245; Nov. 1939, p. 216; Oct. 1939, p. 285; Nov. 1939, p. 360; Dec. 1939, p. 423-3.
- Oct. 1939, p. 285; Nov. 1939, p. 300; Dec. 1939, p. 432-3. DAVENPORT, DONALD H. and SCOTT, FRANCES V. Index to business indices. Chi-cago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1937. 187p. HERWOOD, HERMAN. Herwood library of ac-countancy; a catalogue of books printed between 1494 and 1900 in the Herwood library of ac-countancy. New York, Herwood and Herwood, 1938. 233p. INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Library catalogue. London, Gee and co., Itd., 1937. 2v. First supplement (1937). January, 1939. 36p.

- Catalogue. London, Gee and Co., IG., 1507. 2013
 First supplement (1937). January, 1939. 36p.
 MARYLAND ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Catalogue of books. ed. 2, revised. Baltimore, Md., Enoch Pratt free library, January 1938. 40p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Complete topical index, N.A.C.A. publications, April 1920 to January, 1936. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 3, p. 872-973.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Complete topical index, N.A.C.A. publications, April, 1920 to January, 1939. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 20, no. 11, section 3, p. 699-766.)
 NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Bibliography of municipal and state accounting. Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, 1937. 30p. (Bulletim no. 7).
 SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUNT.

- mittee of numerical accounting, service of (Bulletin no. 7). SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Catalogue of the library at Incorporated accountants' hall. Lon-don, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, 1939. 487p.

BICKFORD, R. S. Mathematical computations for defaulted bond issues. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 199-206.

BICKLEY, JOHN H. Original cost in utility accounts. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 292-3.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

BICYCLES

Statistics

UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of bicycle, motorcycles and parts concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. renort no. 75.) DUN

71.)

BIDDING

See Professional ethics-Bidding.

BIDDING. (Editorial) Philippine accountants' jour-nal, Feb. 1938, p. 42,

BIGG, W. W.

- IGG, W. W.
 Partnership accounts. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 73-9.
 Practical aspects of costing. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 239-43.
 Stock exchange transactions. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 164-70.

BIGGAR, F. C.

- Monetary misconceptions. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Jan. 1937, p. 39-47. Some aspects of currency inflation. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1936, p. 40-60.

- BIGGS, GLENN A.
 Workable cost analysis; program for determining and classifying trust expenses. Trust companies, July 1938, p. 29-35.
 Workable trust cost analysis. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, July 1938, p. 275 64
- **BILL** to repeal. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 101-4.

BILLIARDS

See Amusements.

BILLS OF EXCHANGE

- See Negotiable instruments. BENNETT, GEORGE E. Notes, bills of exchange and drafts. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 147-56.)

BILLS OF SALE

GUNN, J. A. L. N. S. W. bills of sale (amend-ment) act. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 81-4.

BIMETALLISM See Money.

BIMSON, CARL A.

How we compute cost on installment loans. Bank-ers monthly, July 1939, p. 397-9.

BINAMIRA, I. V.

Fundamental legal principles in fixing utility rates. Philippine accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 269.76

BINNIE, ANDREW, editor See Pixley, Francis W.

BIOGRAPHY

- IOGRAPHY
 ALFORD, L. P. Henry Laurence Gantt; leader in industry. New York, American society of mechanical engineers. 1934. 315p.
 LYBRAND, WILLIAM M. As I look back over half a century. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1938, p. 7-38.
- p. 7-38. SPRINGER, DURAND W. Threescore and ten. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 470-9. WEINER, ABRAHAM B. Charles Waldo Has-kins. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 3-5.

BIRD, FREDERICK L.

Federal taxation of state and local bonds effect on state and local governments. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 212-9.)

BIRD, ROLAND

Standardisation of tax treatment in accounts. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 282-3.

BIRDZELL, L. E. Asset valuation from a supervisory point of view. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, July 1939, p. 354-62.

- BISCHOFF, H. E.
 Rates of tax under the revenue act of 1936. L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 23-30.
 Some important differences between New York state and federal personal income tax laws. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 13-23.
 Tax rates and computations. L.R.B. & M. journal, July 1939 p. 10-20
 - July 1939, p. 10-20. Tax rates and computations under the revenue act of 1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 17-25, 32.

BISHOP, J. F. Thirty-day accounts receivable. Balance sheet, May 1939, p. 11-4.

BISHOP, P. W.

- American institute of accountants; an impression of the annual meeting. Accountant, Dec. 3, 1938, p. 770-3.
- BITTER, VINCENT, C. A. How the expense budget is prepared and con-trolled in a chain store operation. Balance sheet,
 - April 1937, p. 17-20. Presentation of the balance sheet manual. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1936. p. 20-2.) (In

BJORK, E. I. Methods of accounting for taxes. American gas association monthly, June 1939, p. 227-9.

BLACK, E. B.

- Rates, valuation and water ordinances. Journal of the American water works association, March 1938, p. 472-83.
- BLACK, ERCIL L., joint author See Wolf, George O. and Black, Ercil L.

BLACK, J. B. Cost accounting with particular reference to underwear manufacture. Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 375-7.

BLACK, J. E. Time study and economic balance. Factory manage-ment and maintenance, June 1936, p. 209-10, advertising page 36-7.

BLACK, JOHN C. Maintenance of shoulders and rights-of-way. Roads maintenance of shoulders and rights-of-way. Roads and streets, Feb. 1938, p. 47-8, 50, 52. Modernistic bridge at an old site; design features, construction and cost items of new structure near Chicago. Roads and streets, June 1936, p. 21-4.

BLACKETT, OLIN W. Literature of business statistics; a bibliography. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 67p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 1.)

BLACKETT, OLIN W., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

BLACKLOCK, D. S. Accounting tor economic management. Glasgow, Jackson, son & co., 1938. 128p.

BLACKSMITH SHOPS

BLACKSMITH SHOPS-Statistics-(Continued) smith shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 93.)

BLACKWOOD, DAVID D. Business planning. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archin, 1938. band b. thema 2, p. 145-76.) Summary by J. Stirling Brown. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 145-61.

BLAIR, T. A. Graphic charts in cost work. Cost and manage-ment, April 1938, p. 123-4.

BLAKEY, GLADYS C., joint author See Blakey, Roy G. and Blakey, Gladys C.

- BLAKEY, ROY G. AND BLAKEY, GLADYS C.
 Federal tax legislation, 1939. American economic review, Dec. 1939, p. 695-707.
 Revenue act of 1936. American economic review, Sept. 1936, p. 466-82.
 Revenue act of 1937. American economic review, Dec. 1937, p. 698-704.
 Revenue act of 1938. American economic review, Sept. 1938, p. 447-58.

BLAMEY, FRANK

Some observations concerning wills. Federal ac-countant, April 1939, p. 150-5. Some red light signals in the administration of trust estates. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 17-22.

BLAND, F. A. Problem of the budget. Australian accountant, May 1939, p. 245-8.

BLAND, JOHN R. Why did they steal? Credit and financial manage-ment, March 1937, p. 20-1, 28.

BLANDI, THOMAS

Cost accounting for wineries. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1937, p. 1, 3-5, 7-10.

BLANK, R. E. S. Monaco holding companies. Accountant, May 30, 1936, p. 818-20.

ANKET" depreciation rates: replacement of portion of the assets. *Australian accountant*, Dec. 1937, p. 326-8. "BLANKET"

BLAST-FURNACES

See Furnaces.

BLAYTON, JESSE BEE

- Accounting in life insurance companies. National accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 11-16.
 Need for better records in Negro business; an opportunity for negro accountants. Atlanta, Ga., Colored division, National youth administration, June 1, 1939. 52p. (Bulletin no. 11.)

BLETHEN, FRED A.

emote management of a subsidiary. National accountant, April 1937, p. 4-7, 44-8. Remote

BLINDS

See Curtains, draperies, etc.

BLISS, GEORGE L.

Standardization of savings and loan accounting. (In American institute of accountants, Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 184-8.)

BLOCKER, JOHN G.

- LOCKER, JOHN G.
 Budgeting in relation to distribution cost accounting. Lawrence, Kansas, University of Kansas, School of business, Jan. 1937. 79p. (Kansas studies in business no. 18.)
 Budgeting in relation to standard costs. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 117-24.

BLOMQUIST, KARL E. Social security problems; address before Kiwanis club, Gloversville, N. Y., January 14, 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.

BLOOMBERG, LAWRENCE N. Investment value of goodwill. Ba Johns Hopkins press, 1938. 70p. Baltimore, Md.,

Jonns Hopkins press, 1938. 70p.
BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R.
Air conditioning and the income tax. Heating, piping and air conditioning, Sept. 1938.
Income tax aspects of alimony trusts. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 455.7, 493.4.
Lifetime gifts and the estate tax. Bankers monthly, Jan. 1939, p. 8-11, 47.
Percentage leases in court. Buildings and building management, April 1939, p. 13.5.
Supplemental taxes of state banks. Bankers month-ly, July 1938, p. 402.7, 408.
Survey of tax exemptions. Taxes—the tax maga-sine, May 1939, p. 273-5, 316.
Tax exemptions. Tax magasine, May 1937, p. 269.74, 310; July 1937, p. 398-405, 440; Aug. 1937, p. 463-75; Sept. 1937, p. 527-32, 566; Nov. 1937, p. 658-68, 692.
Taxation of "other financial institutions". Bankers monthly, Aug. 1938, p. 476-81, 490.

BLOOMFIELD, ARTHUR L. Canadian wheat pools: 1929-1936. Canadian char-tered accountant, March 1937, p. 232-47.

BLOOR, W. HARRY Cost-plus basis for each account. Trust companies, Feb. 1938, p. 193-5.

BLOUGH, CARMAN G.

- LOUGH, CARMAN G. Accountants' certificates; address before the Phila-delphia chapter of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, on December 13, 1937. 17 type-written pages. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 106-18. Accounting reports and their meaning to the public. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 162-8. Address at Mountain states accounting conference, Hotel Utah, Salt Lake City, May 31-June 1, 1938. 10 typewritten pages.

- Applicability of the "last-in, first-out" method to different types of industry. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939.

- tute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 78-81.)
 Deficiencies most frequently noted in financial statements. Controller, June 1938, p. 165-7.
 How companies may make statements more illuminating to stockholders; before Controllers institute of America, October 4 and 5, 1937. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 282-7, 290.
 Need for accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 30-7.
 Relationship of the Securities and exchange commission to the accountant. Journal of accounting roblems of the Securities and exchange commission; an address before the New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York. 3-14.
- Some problems in presentation of financial information to investors. (In Controllers institute of America. Year book, 1937. p. 64-78.)

BLOUGH, ROY

Flat versus graduated rates for business net in-come taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 74-85.) Intergovernmental exemptions from the federal point of view. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 65-74.)

BLUE SKY LAW

See Investment companies-Law.

BLUM, SEYMOUR

Cigar cost accounting. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 25-8.

BLUME, A. L.

Increasing hazards in the practice of accountancy. (1939) 15 typewritten pages.

- BLYTH, J. R.
- Cost control in textile manufacture. Cost accoun-tant, Feb. 1936, p. 272-7.
- BOARD of accountancy and Philippine institute of certified public accountants vigorously oppose passage of bill no. 3741. Philippine accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 164-8.

BOARD OF TAX APPEALS See United States. Board of tax appeals.

- BOARD of tax appeals. (Correspondence) Harris, Byron P.
- BOARD of tax appeals. (Editorial) accountancy, April 1938, p. 276-7. Journal of
- BOARD of tax appeals service. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- BOARD of tax appeals table of petitioners and docket disposition table. Commerce clearing house, inc.

BOAT BUILDING

See Shipbuilding.

BOATS

See Ships and shipping.

- **BODDINGTON, A. LESTER**
 - Financial statements; their treatment and inter-pretation. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, ltd., 1938. 366p.

BODDINGTON, W. H. Cost accountancy in the local government service; a review of the subject with special reference to papers submitted at conference of the Insti-tute of cost and works accountants and the In-stitute of municipal treasurers and accountants. *Cost accountant*, Dec. 1937, p. 200-12, appendix and discussion, p. 212-26.

BODFISH, JOHN H.

Operating expense ratios in building and loan associations. Journal of land and public utility economics, Nov. 1936, p. 419-20.

BODMAN, G. T.

DDIARN, G. 1. Internal auditing for a large oil company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 807-20.)

BOECKEL, RICHARD M. Expansion of branch banking. (In Editorial re-search reports, v. 1, 1937. p. 133-55.)

- BOECKH, E. H., AND ASSOCIATES, INC. Building cost index numbers. National real estate journal, May 1939, p. 27.
- BOETTGER, F. A., joint author See Lause, M. A. and Boettger, F. A.

BOGAN, R. D.

- Valuation of goodwill. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1935, p. 249-65. Valuation of unlisted shares. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1936, p. 653-70.

BOGELUND-JENSEN, S.

Departmental accounting and true cost allocation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Aug. 1938, p. 52, 54, 56; Sept. 1938, p. 68.

- BOGEN, JULES I. Objective appraisal of audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 259-60. Objective appraisal of the independent audit; ad-dress before the annual convention of the American management association, finance and accounts division, January 25, 1939. 14 mimeo-graphed pages. (In American management asso-ciation. Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer. c1939. p. 3-12.)

BOGEN, JULES I. AND OTHERS

Money and banking; edited by Major B. Foster and Raymond Rodgers, New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 704p.

BOHL, A. J. Proved economics in commercial accounting opera-tions; address before the Third national account-ing conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 523-6.

BOILER and machinery coverage. American management association.

BOILER PLANTS

- Cost accounting WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting boiler house costs. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 20-2.
- BOLETIN del Colegio de doctores en ciencias eco-nomicas y contadores publicos nacionales. Av. de Mayo 811 (3er. Piso), Buenos Aires.

BOLING, CLEM, joint author See Sherwood, J. F. and Boling, Clem.

BOLON, DALLAS S. Introduction to accounting. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1938. 679p.

BOLTE, ARTHUR H. AND LOW, ARTHUR E. Management and cost control in the carbonated beverage industry; in cooperation with the cost accounting committee of the American bottlers of carbonated beverages. rev. ed. Washington, D. C., American bottlers of carbonated bever-ages, c1936. 172p.

BOLTS AND NUTS

Cost accounting AMERICAN

MERICAN INSTITUTE OF BOLT, NUT AND RIVET MANUFACTURERS. Cost prin-ciples for bolt, nut, and rivet manufacturers. Cleveland, Ohio, American institute of bolt, nut, and rivet manufacturers, 1938. 20p.

BONBRIGHT, JAMES C.

- OUNDRIGHT, JAMES C. Basing assessed value on capitalized income. Muni-cipal finance, Feb. 1938, p. 12-6. Valuation of property is treatise on the appraisal of property for different legal purposes. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1937. 2v. Valuation of public utility properties for tax purposes. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1937. p. 212-9.)

BOND DISCOUNT

See Discount.

BOND HOUSES See Brokers; Investment companies.

BOND investment ND investment policies for banks. Michigan bankers association and others.

BONDS

- BADGER, RALPH EASTMAN and GUTH-MANN, HARRY G. Investment principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc.,
- practices. rev. ed. New York, Frentice-rian, mc., 1936. 987p. EFFECTIVE criticism. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1939, p. 136-7. GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Extinction of bonded indebtedness. (In his Financial organi-zation and management of business. p. 246-74.) HATCHER, RAYMOND H. Ownership certifi-

BONDS-(Continued)

- cates for bond interest. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 85, 120. HATCHER, RAYMOND H. Proper execution of ownership certificates. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 331-4. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, 405-6.
- p. 405-0. MACAULAY, FREDERICK R. Movements of interest rates, bond yield and stock prices in the United States since 1856. New York, Na-tional bureau of economic research, 1938. 240p. and 351p
- and 3510. McDIARMID, FERGUS J. Plain talk on debt retirement from a utility bond buyer. *Public* utilities fortmightly, July 20, 1939, p. 67-78. MICHIGAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION AND OTHERS. Bond investment policies for banks; propagings of the fort ennuel Michigen bank
- OTHERS. Bond investment policies for banks; proceedings of the first annual Michigan bank-ers association study conference, Ann Arbor, December 9 and 10, 1938; under joint auspices Michigan bankers association, Michigan state banking department, School of business admin-istration, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of busi-ness administration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 34p. (Michigan business papers, no. 2.) WILSON, THOMAS A. Investment course. Burroughs clearing house, March 1939, p. 7-9, 26, 28.
- WOOLLEY, E. S. Keeping in step with the bond market. (reprinted from *Banking*, July 1936.)

- Accounting AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Committee on accounting procedure. Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds re-funded. New York, American institute of ac-countants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Accounting research

 - countants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 2.) BANKS, CHARLES. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 59-61. BAUMANN, H. P., editor. Reply to question on amortization of bond discount. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 305-6

 - department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 305-6.
 CAFFYN, HAROLD R. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1937, p. 223.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 377-80; Aug. 1937, p. 133-8.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. S. E. C. release no. 10. (Commentator) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1939, p. 179-80.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Bonds. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting, 1936. p. 413-21.)
 - p. 413-21.) FREEMAN, HERBERT C. Unamortized discount and premium on bonds refunded. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p.
 - OWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Interest on bonds. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938. p. 22148.) HOWARD

 - bonds. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938. p. 22148.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Bonds. (In his Accounting, c1937. p. 415-24.)
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Bonds payable and bonds receivable. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937. p. 356-74.)
 KESTER, ROY B. No-par stock, bonds payable, treasury stock. (In his Principles of accounting, ed. 4, c1939. p. 432-53.)
 LASSALLE, L. L. Question on amortization of bond discount. (Students' department.) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-5.
 LITTLE, ARTHUR S. Treatment of bond discount. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 185-6.
 LITTLE, ARTHUR S. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 216-23.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Bonds. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936, p. 402-19.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Corporate bonds—

- Accounting for corporate bonds. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 167-98.)
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 58-9.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Bonds and bond sinking fund. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. p. 354-71.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Bonds. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 32; 1938, p. 716-39.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Presentation of bond discount. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 285-90.
- р. 285-90.
- 285-90. QUESTION and answer on bond discount. (Stu-dents' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-6. SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Bonds. (In their Basic accounting prin-ciples, 1937, p. 462-9.) UNAMORTIZED debt discount, expense and
- ciples. 1937. p. 462-9.) UNAMORTIZED debt discount, expense and premiums on bonds refunded. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 473.4. Erratum, Sept. 1936, p. 229. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 10. (un-amortized bond discount and expense applicable to bonds which, prior to maturity, have been retired out of the proceeds of a sale of capital.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1 mimeographed page. YORK, THOMAS. Treatment of bond discount. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 121.
- 1939, p. 121.

- Auditing PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Capital stock and funded debt. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 140-7.)
- Taxation
 - IRD, FREDERICK L. Federal taxation of state and local bonds effect on state and local governments. (In National tax association. Pro-BIRD,

 - state and pocar bounds cincer on state and pocar governments. (In National tax association. Pro-ceedings, 1938. p. 212-9.) RICE, GEORGE W. Tax-exempt bonds—shall we remove the exemptions? Taxes—the tax maga-zine, Feb. 1939, p. 69-70, 88. STUDENSKI, PAUL. Federal taxation of state and municipal bonds. (In National tax associa-tion. Proceedings, 1938. p. 222-7.) Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 5-7, 53. TOBIN, AUSTIN J. Federal taxation of state and local bonds. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 621-4, 686-8. WENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP. Federal taxation of state and local bonds. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 205-11.) Taxes —the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 134-6, 182.

Valuation Mation SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. and LANG, THEODORE. Bond valuation—Bond problems. (In their Mathematics of business and finance, c1937. p. 302-26; 529-41.)

BONDS, DEPOSITORY See Insurance, Surety and fidelity.

BONDS, FIDELITY See Insurance, Surety and fidelity.

BONDS, MORTGAGE GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Financing with mortgage bonds, (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 226-45.)

- BONDS, MUNICIPAL
 RICE, GEORGE W. Tax-exempt bonds—shall we remove the exemptions? Taxes—the tax magasine, Feb. 1939, p. 69-70, 88.
 TEITELBAUM, EDWARD. Obligations of the city of New York. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 9, May 5, 1938.)

BONDS, REAL ESTATE BICKFORD, R. S. Mathematical computations for defaulted bond issues. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 199-206.

BONDS, SERIAL GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Sinking fund and serial bonds. (In his Financial organization and management, 1936. p. 275-303.)

BONDS, SINKING FUND GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Sinking fund and serial bonds. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 275-303.)

BONNAR, BENJAMIN H.

Effect of compensation methods on management operation and employee production; retrospective quota bonus plan. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 65-9.)

BONNELL, ROBERT O.
 "(A) New competitor of business." Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 214-25.

BONNET. LESLIE

JUNNET, LELLE Honorary secretary's guide. (the proper manage-ment of the meetings of societies, social and sports clubs, institutes, guilds and fellowships, and the conventions of debate.) London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938. 40p.

BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD AND DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS

Organizing and financing business; with questions and problems. ed. 2, rev. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 503p.

BONSALL, GEORGE H. General contributory pension plan. Muncipal fi-nance, Aug. 1937, p. 40-5.

BONUS

See Wages, fees, etc.-Bonus.

- **BONUS** problems under the revenue act of 1938. (Correspondence) Reno, Edwin S.
- BONUS problems under the revenue act of 1938. Tyson, Buchanan.

BOOK MANUFACTURING

Accounting AMMON, A. J. Accounting for customers' prop-erty in a book manufacturing plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, section 1, p. 1367-88.)

BOOK PLATES

See Publishing.

BOOK REVIEWS

- COCK REVIEWS
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Introduction to federal taxation. New York Commerce clearing house, inc., 1936. 166p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 154-5.
 AMERICAN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION. Hospital consumpting and activities Chicago Lill
- pital accounting and statistics. Chicago, Ill., American hospital association, 1937. 87p. Journal
- Inter accounting and statistics Chicago, in: American hospital association, 1937. 87p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 133.
 AUSTRALASIAN CONGRESS ON ACCOUNT-ING. Proceedings of the Australasian congress on accounting, held in Melbourne, Australia, March 16-20, 1936, Melbourne, Australiasian congress on accounting, 1936. 361p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 156-8.
 BACAS, PAUL E., MADDEN, JOHN T. and ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR H. Auditing pro-cedure. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 443p. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 354.
 BACKMAN, JULES. Government price-fixing. New York, Pitman publishing corp., 1938. 304p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 395.
 BAKER, RAY PALMER and HOWELL, ALT-MONTE CHARLES. Preparation of reports. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., 1938, p. 205.

- 206
- BANKS, CHARLES S. Treatise on bankruptcy for accountants. Chicago. Ill., LaSalle extension

- university, 1939. 129p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 213. BELL, HERMON. Retail merchandise accounting. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 276p. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 311. BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Practical credit analy-sis. rev. ed. New York, The author, 1939. 180p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 215. BONBRIGHT, JAMES C. Valuation of property. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1937. 2 v. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 469-71. BRODSKY, D. and LIBERMAN, J. A. Hand-book of interstate motor-carrier law. New York, Milbin pub. co., 1937. 182p. Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1937, p. 156. BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Public finance. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1936. 632p. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 314-6. BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Undistributed-profits tax. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1936, 281p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 395-7.
- 281p. Journal of accountancy, May 2019, 395-7.
 BYRNES, THOMAS W. and BAKER, K. LANNEAU, Auditing laboratory set. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 154.
 COLM, GERHARD and LEHMANN, FRITZ. Economic consequences of recent American tax policy. New York, New school for social research, 1938. 100p. Journal of accountancy. Sept. 1938, p. 205-6.
 DANIELS, M. B. Financial statements. Chicago, III., American accounting association, 1939, p. 141-2.

- 141-2.
 DARLINGTON, GEORGE M. Office management. New York, Ronald press co., 1935. 203p. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 72.
 DARTMOUTH COLLEGE. Amos Tuck school of administration and finance. Reading list on business administration. 4th rev. Hanover, N. H., Dartmouth college, 1939. 54p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 284.
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Procedure for hospital costs. New York, United hospital fund of New York, 1937. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 180.

- York, 1937. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 180.
 DOHR, JAMES L. Law of business. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 659p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 394-6.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Capital consumption and adjustment. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1938. 271p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 358-9.
 FAVINGER, CALVIN E. and WILCOX, DANIEL A. Social security taxation and records. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 649p. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 69.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Corporation finance. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 516p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 347-8.
 FOULKE, ROY A. and PROCHNOW, HERBERT V. Practical bank credit. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 670p. Journal of accountancy, Nash, p. 356-7.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Analyzing financial statements. New York, Ronald press co., no date. 475p. Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 236.
 GILVER, IOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN

- 236.
- 230. GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Managerial control—instruments and methods in industry. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 574p. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p.
- 126-7. GRAHAM, BENJAMIN and MEREDITH, SPENCER B. Interpretation of financial state-ments. New York, Harper & brothers, 1937. 122p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 397.
- 397. GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Theory and practice of modern taxation. ed. 2. Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., 1938. 364p. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 254-5. GUTHMANN, HARRY G. Analysis of financial statements. New York, Prentice Hall, inc., 1935. 583p. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 151-2.

HANSON, ARTHUR WARREN. Problems in

BOOK REVIEWS-(Continued)

auditing. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1935. 556p. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936,

- 1935. 556p. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1930, p. 72.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Accounting systems—design and installation. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 514p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 306-7.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS and STONE, IRV-ING, J. Wholesale accounting and control. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 223.
 HETZEL, FREDERICK W. Analyzing checking accounts scientifically. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1936. 111p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 223.
 HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Investigations for financing. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 328 pages of text and 75 pages of solutions and answers. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 234-6.
 HOSMER, W. A. Problems in accounting. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 689p.
- 1937, p. 234-6. HOSMER, W. A. Problems in accounting. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 689p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 143. HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON. Development of the business corporation in England, 1800-1867. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard university press. 1936. (Harvard economic studies, v. 62) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 155-7. JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Principles of account-ing. New York, Farrar & Rinehart, inc., 1937, 690p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 315-6.

- 60p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 315-6.
 KERR, THOMAS S. Business law: principles and cases. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1939, 1048p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 357-8.
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed. 4. New York, Ronald press co., 1939, 700p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 282-3.
 KIRSH, BENJAMIN S. and SHAPIRO., HAROLD ROLAND. Trade associations in law and business. New York, Central book co., 1938, 399p. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 126. 126
- KURTZ, EDWIN B. Science of valuation and depreciation. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 221p. Journal of accountancy, May, 1938, p.
- 451-2. IANG, THEODORE and SCHLAUCH, WIL-LIAM S. Selected tables for business and finan-cial calculations. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 62.

- LIAM S. Selected tables for business and mancial calculations. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 69.
 LANGER, CHARLES H. Accounting principles and procedure; municipal accounting lectures. Chicago, Ill., Walton pub. co., 1937. 120p. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 448-50.
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Cost accounting procedure. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, 1938, 359p. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 524-5.
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Cost accounting. New York. Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 598p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 469-70.
 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALITIES. Financial reports of municipalities. San Francisco, Calif., League of California municipalities, 1938. 133p. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 70.
 LEAKE, P. D. Balance sheet values: the limitations of industrial accountang. London, Gee & co., 1938. 65. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 190-1.
 LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH and MAXWELL. A. D. Textile costing. Washington, D. C., Textile foundation, 1938. 282p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 348-9.
 LYON, HASTINGS. Corporations and their financing. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., 1938. 9460. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 69-70.

 - 946p. 69-70
- 69-70.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS. ROBERT D. Accounting fundamentals. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1936. 667p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 236-7.
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Accounting principles. Chicago, Ill.. South-western pub. co., 1935. 758p. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 73.

- McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL and FEIGEN-BAUM, B. J. Income tax management for in-dividuals under federal and California revenue acts. San Francisco, Calif., Walkers manual. inc., 1936. 449p. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 232-3.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Truth in accounting. Philadelphia, Pa., University of Pennsylvania press, 1939. 334p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 395-6.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Taxable income. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 437p. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 233-4.
 MANSFIELD, HARVEY C. Comptroller general. New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1939, 292p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 336-7.

- New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1939, 2920. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 396-7.
 MASON, PERRY, Principles of public-utility depreciation. Chicago, III., American accounting association, 1937. 128p. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 266-8.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility; 1911-1936, 2 vols. in 1. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1936.
 w. 1, 368p. v. 2, 421p. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 77-8.
 MEYER, HARVEY G. Audit practice case. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1936.
 w. 1, 368p. v. 2, 421p. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 77-8.
 MEYER, HARVEY G. Audit practice case. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 356.
 MILLS, GALL A. Accounting manual for colleges. Princeton, N. J., Princeton university press, 1937. 165p. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 525-7.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal income tax handbook, 1935-1936. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 1207p. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 310.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal income tax handbook, 1936-1937. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 1260p. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 254.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal income tax handbook, 1938-1939. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 1260p. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 254.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal income tax handbook, 1938-1939. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 1260p. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 254.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal income tax handbook, 1938-1937. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 1260p. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 254.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. and MAGILL, ROSWELL Federal taxes on estates, trusts, and gifts, 1938-39. New York, Ronald press co., cl935. 458p. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 310.1.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. and MAGILL, ROSWELL Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1935-1936. New

- co., c1935. 458p. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 310-1. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. and MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 526p. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 526p. 475-7
- 475-7. MOORE, FRANK S. Legal protection of good-will. New York, Ronald press co., 1936. 218p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 224-5. MOORE, JUSTIN H., editor. American business fundamentals. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 8v. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, tu. co., 1 78
- p. 78, MOREY, LLOYD. Introduction to governmental accounting. New York, John Wiley and sons, 1936, 314p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936,
- accounting. New York, John Wiley and sons, 1936. 314p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 471-2.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSO-CIATION. Accounting for public property, Chi-cago. III.. Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, 1939. 42p. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 71.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSO-CIATION AND THE AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION. Manual of water works accounting. Chicago. II., Municipal finance officers association and American water works association, 1938. 483p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 214-5.
 NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Municipal accounting state-ments. Chicago, III., National committee on municipal accounting, 1936. 156p. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 153-5.
 NEBRASKA, UNIVERSITY OF. College of

BOOK REVIEWS-(Continued)

- COCK REVIEWS—(Continued)
 business administration. Selected books on business. Lincoln, Neb., University of Nebraska, 1939. 50p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 284.
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Cost accounting. Chicago, III., Business publications, inc., 1938, 703p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 204.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on public relations. New York stock exchange. New York, New York stock exchange. 1936, 40p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 155.
 O'CONNOR, JOHNSON. English vocabulary builder. Hoboken, N. J., Stevens institute of technology. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 134.
- technology. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 134. OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN and KEN-NEDY, RALPH DALE. Accounting-elemen-tary theory and practice. New York, D. Van-Nostrand co., inc., 1936. 687p. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1936, p. 232-4. PATON, W. A. Essentials of accounting. New York, Macmillan co., 1938. 830p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 349-50. PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Studies in federal taxa-tion. Chicago, Ill., Callaghan and co., 1937, 350 p. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 76-8.

- PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Income tax fun-damentals. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., 1937, 581p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 469.
- p. 469.
 PERAGALLO, EDWARD. Origin and evolution of double entry bookkeeping. New York, Ameri-can institute of accountants, 1938. 156p. Journal of accountancy, May, 1939, p. 317-8.
 PERREN, A. (La) Profession d'expert-comp-table aux Etats-Unis. Paris, Delachaux & Niestle, 1936. 125p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 152-4.
 PERINEICH CARPLELA D. Neture of divi

- p. 152-4. PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Nature of divi-dends. New York, The author, 1935. 2369. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 306. PROCHNOW, HERBERT V. and FOULKE, ROY A. See Foulke. Roy A. and Prochnow, Herbert V. REITELL, CHARLES. Cost accounting. ed. 2, rev. Scranton, Pa., International textbook co., 1937. 4359. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 203-4.

- rev. Scranton, Pa., International textbook co., 1937. 435p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 203-4.
 REITELL, CHARLES. How to be a good foreman. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 186p. Journal of accountancy. Oct. 1939, p. 283-4.
 ROWLAND, STANLEY W. and MAGEE, BRIAN. Accounting, Part 1. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1936. 445p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 154-5.
 ROWLAND, STANLEY W. and MAGEE, BRIAN. Accounting, Part 1, 1938. ed. 3. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1938. 451p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 396.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation principles and applications. ed. 3. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 482p. Journal of accountancy, May p. 142-3.
 SALIERS, EARL A. How to keep accounts and prepare statements. New York, Ronald press co., 1938. 481p. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 450-1.
 SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES. ARTHUR W. Basic accounting principles. Chicago, III. Business publications, 1937, p. 317-8.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, Significant recent accounting literature. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1937, p. 366-88. Reprinted.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND and MOORE, UNDERHILL. Statement of accountancy, March 1938, p. 264-6.
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Advanced cost accountancy of accountancy, March 1938, p. 264-6.
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Advanced cost accountancy. Nary 1939. 217p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939. p. 213-4.

- finance. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 548p. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 69. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Theory and mechanics of accounting. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 475p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 397-8.

- 475p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 397.8.
 SCHULTZ, W. J. and CAINE, M. R. Financial development of the United States. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937, 757p. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 268-9.
 SEED, H. E. Goodwill as a business asset. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1937, 472p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 316-7.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Legislative history of federal income tax laws 1938-1861. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 1166p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 316-7.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Auditing theory and procedure. Cincinnati, Ohio, Southwestern pub. co., 1939. 469p. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 70-1.
 SHULTZ, BIRL E. Stock exchange procedure. New York, New York stock exchange institute, 1936. 102p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 155.
 SIMONS, HENRY C. Personal income taxation. Chicago, 11., University of Chicago press, 1938. 238p. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 355-6.
 SMAUS R. G. H. Auditing. Toronto. Sir Isaac.

- 355-6. SMAILS, R. G. H. Auditing. Toronto, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, (Canada), Itd., 1933. 441p. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 237-8. SMAILS, R. G. H. Auditing. Toronto, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons (Canada), Itd., 1937. 523p. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 355. SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOME. Stabilized accounting. New York, Harper and bros., 1936. 219p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 472-4.
- 219p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 472.4.
 TANNENBAUM, ROBERT. Costs under the unfair practices acts. Chicago, III., University of Chicago press, 1939. 65p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 396.
 TAX POLICY LEAGUE, INC. How shall business be taxed? A symposium conducted by the Tax policy league, December 28-29, 1936. New York, Tax policy league, 1937. 715p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 396-7.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. C.P.A. problems and questions in theory and auditing, ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1939. 701p. Journal of accountancy Jacountaned accountancy, Jacob B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Intermediate accounting. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938, p. 413.
 TEEVAN, JOHN C. C.P.A. law questions and answers. New York, Ronald press co., 1935. 256p. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 150-1.
 TROULANT, D. L. Financial audits. New York

- 150
- 150-1. TROUANT, D. L. Financial audits. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1937. 245p. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 471-3. TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Facing the tax problem. New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. 606p. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 473-5.
- June 1937, p. 473-5.
 TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Studies in current tax problems. New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. 303p. Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1938, p. 83-5.
 UNITED STATES, Commerce, Department of, Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce. Dis-tribution cost accounting for wholesaling, by H. F. Taggart. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1939. Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1939, p. 284.
 VAN SICKLE CLAPENCE I. Cost accounting
- VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Cost accounting. New York, Harper and bros., 1938. 998p. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 318-9. WALL, ALEXANDER. How to evaluate finan-cial statements. New York, Harper and bros., 1936. 319p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 474.
- WATERMAN, MERWIN H. Public utility finan-cing, 1930-35. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of

BOOK REVIEWS-(Continued)

- OOK REVIEWS-(Continued)
 Michigan, 1936. 144p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 147-54.
 WEINSTEIN, JACOB I. Bankruptcy act of 1938, a comparative analysis. New York, National association of credit men, 1938. 497p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 347.
 WILLIAMS, JOHN BUURR. Theory of invest-ment value. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard univer-sity press, 1938. 613p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 412-3.
 WILLIAMS, NATHAN BOONE. Dust bin. Washington, D. C., W. F. Roberts co., 1938. 300p. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 191.
- 191
- ¹⁹¹. WINSLOW, C. MORTON and MUNRO, WILLARD L. Winslow's minimizing death taxes, Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937, 144p. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, Chica 1937. 144p. p. 133-4. TN, JAMES -1- Ronal
- 1937. 1949. Sources
 p. 133.4.
 WREN, JAMES H. Accountants' certificates. New York, Ronald press co., 1937. 182p. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 74.6.
 WYATT, BIRCHARD E. WANDELL, WIL-LIAM H. and SCHURZ, WILLIAM L. So-cial security act in operation; a practical guide to the federal and federal-state social security programs. Washington, D. C., Graphic arts press, inc., 1937. 382p. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 180.

BOOK TRADE MELCHER, FREDERIC G. Successful bookshop; a manual of practical information. New York, National association of book publishers, no date. 16p.

Accounting CONKLIN, GROFF. Bookkeeping methods for a rental library and a small bookshop. (In his How to run a rental library, 1934. p. 76-101.)
 DAVIDSON, MERRICK B. Accounting system for a subscription book company. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 8-20.

- - 72.)

BOOKKEEPERS' handy guide; a practical desk book for quick reference. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 565p.

BOOKKEEPING

- OOKKEEPING
 ANDRUSS, HARVEY A. Ways to teach bookkeeping and accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, Southwestern pub. co., c1937. 178p.
 BAKER, JAMES W., and SHERWOOD, J. F. College accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, Southwestern pub. co., c1937. 554p.
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Bookkeeping principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 223p. (American business fundamentals) co., 193 mentals)
- mentals) BENTLEY, HARRY C. Functions of accounts. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1937. 167p. BOLON, DALLAS S. Introduction to accounting. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1025 270. BOLON, DALLAS S. Introduction to accounting. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1938, 679p.
 CLARKE, GEOFFREY T. That first set of books. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 122-5.
 CORSTVET, EMMA. Inadequate bookkeeping as a factor in business failure. Yale law journal, May 1936, p. 1201-222.
 CRADIT, RAYMOND V. Bookkeeping for per-sonal and business use. Chicago, Ill., American technical society, 1937. 236p.
 FEDDE, A. S. Mere bookkeeping entries. Account-ing forum, Nov. 1939, p. 13-4.
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Simple book-keeping, forms and procedure. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938. p. 67-79.)

- JACOBS, JUSTIN. Automatic bookkeeping via adding machine. New York certified public ac-countant, Oct. 1936, p. 3-5. LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Fundamentals of accounting, New Brunswick, N. J., The author, 1029 272-

- LAMBERTON, KOBERT A. Fundamentals of accounting. New Brunswick, N. J., The author, 1938, 320p.
 LAZENBY, C. D. Basic bookkeeping and accounting. New York, University pub. co., c1937. 234p.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS. ROBERT D. Accounting fundamentals. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 667p.
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Bookkeeping procedures. (In their Accounting principles, c1939, p. 108-36.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Advanced bookkeeping principles. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 97-124.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Primary books and procedures. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 117-62.)
 PILCHER, DALTON J. Logical journalizing. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 466-9, 507.
- 507
- 507.
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY and WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Bookkeep-ing and accounting, principles and practice; ad-vanced course. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 569p.
 SALIERS, EARL A. How to keep accounts and prepare statements. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 461p.
 SCHUR, JOHN A. and HASKELL, MAN-FORD M. Introduction to accounting procedure: Books 1 and 2. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936.
- 1936.
- Books 1 and Z. New YOR, Frence-fran, inc., 1936.
 Book 1--Practical bookkeeping Book 2--Secretarial accounting
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and BOLING, CLEM. Secretarial accounting; a course of college grade developing the fundamental principles of accounting as applied to professional, personal service, and mercantile enterprises. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939, 452p.
 TRUMAN, NEVIL Better bookkeeping. Account tants journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 646-50; Feb. 1936, p. 727-31.
 VICKERY, B. G. Principles and practice of bookkeeping and accounts. London, Gregg pub. co., Itd. (1936).
 WILSON, H. A. R. J. Accountability. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 271-9; Feb. 1938, p. 296-304; April 1938, p. 356-61; July 1938, p. 78-81; Aug. 1938, p. 105-9; Oct. 1938, p. 174-6; Nov. 1938, p. 212-15.

- Double entry
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Rationale of double-entry. Accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 446-7.
 PERAGALLO, EDWARD. Origin and evolution of double entry bookkeeping; a study of Italian practice from the fourteenth century, with a foreword by Robert H. Montgomery. New York, American institute pub. co., 1938. 156p.
 SHIMME, SHINSHICHIRO. Introduction of double-entry bookkeeping into Japan. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 290-5.

Encyclopædias, dictionaries, etc. BOOKKEEPERS' handy guide; a practical desk book for quick reference. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 565p.

Germany

PLAUT, T. Standardised bookkeeping in Ger-many. Accountant, Sept. 17, 1938, p. 395-6; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 438-9.

- History
 ANDRUSS, HARVEY A. Short history of book-keeping. (In his Ways to teach bookkeeping and accounting. c1937. p. 1-8.)
 CURRIE, A. W. Robinson Crusoe, bookkeeper. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 104

 - 110-4. DeROOVER, RAYMOND. Characteristics of bookkeeping before Paciolo. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 144-9. DeROOVER, RAYMOND. Something new about

BOOKKEEPING-History-(Continued)

- BOOKKEEPING—History—(Continued)
 Jan Ympyn Christoffels. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 657-8.

 FITZPATRICK, L. Story of bookkeeping, accounting and auditing. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 128-36.
 HATFIELD, HENRY RAND. Historical defense of bookkeeping; a paper read before the American association of university instructors in accounting, December 29, 1923; republished by friends and colleagues on the occasion of the university of California, May 15, 1937. 22p.
 KNIGHT, L. C. Brief history of early accountancy. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 80-1.
 PERAGALLO, EDWARD. Origin and evolution of double entry bookkeeping; a study of Italian practice from the fourteenth century, with a foreword by Robert H. Montgomery. New York, American institute pub. co., 1938. 156p.
 SHIMME, SHINSHICHIRO. Introduction of double-entry bookkeeping into Japan. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 290-5.
 STRONG, GEORGE J. Italian influence on accounting. New Jersey Italian-American, March 3, 1939.

- 3, 1939.

Machine methods

See Mechanical devices.

Single-entry

- Ingle-entry NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Single-entry statements. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939. p. 1-20.) PORTER, D. R. Single entry bookkeeping. Ac-countants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 154-5.
- BOOKKEEPING and accounting, principles and prac-tice. Rosenkampff, Arthur Henry and Wallace, William Carroll.
- **BOOKKEEPING** for personal and business use. Cradit, Raymond V.
- BOOKKEEPING principles and practice. Bennett, George E.

BOOKS

- See also names of various books, e.g. Journals;
- See also names of various books, e.g. Journals; Ledgers.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Special books of original entry—Factory ledger—private ledger. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting, 1936. p. 79-94; 439-51.)
 GATES, J. R. Loose-leaf minute books. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 393-4.
 INGRAM, H. DUDLEY. Lopse-leaf minute books as admissible evidence. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1936, p. 423-5.
 LOOSE-leaf books. Accountants journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 823-4. Certified accountants journal, March 1936, p. 91.
 LOOSE-leaf minute books. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug 1936, p. 273-5.
 LOOSE-leaf minute books and the auditor. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, p. 2025.
 COND (Hearte of only assurance on Itd.)

- 202-5
- 2023. OPINION. (Hearts of oak assurance co., ltd.) Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 237. PATON, WILLIAM A. Primary books and pro-cedures. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937.
- ceaures. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. part 1, p. 58-80.) RODEN, F. CREWE. Loose-leaf records. Accoun-tant, March 6, 1937, p. 341-5. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Specialized books. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 139-52.) VALUE of loose leaf
- VALUE of loose-leaf records. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 166.

BOOMS

See Speculation.

BOORD, H. O.

Public accountant and the budget. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 329-32.

BOOTH, A. C.

Foreign exchanges. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 616-20. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 41-5.

BOOTH. S. RUSSELL

Resumption of privately owned public utilities by public bodies, with particular reference to ques-tions of goodwill, maintainable income and depre-ciation. (In Australasian congress on accounting. *Proceedings*, 1936. p. 289-316; discussion, p. 217 35. 317-35.)

BOOZER, HERMAN W.

- OOZER, HERMAN W. Some aspects of plant ledgers and public utility plant accounting. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. 18-26.) Printed with: Millians, Paul M. Management control of ship-line operation.
- BORAH bill. (Éditorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 170-1.
- BORAH-O'MAHONEY bill. (Correspondence) O'Mahoney, Joseph C.
- BORAH-O'MAHONEY LICENSING BILL See Business—Government regulation and con-trol; Corporations—Law—United States.
- BORDNER, H. W. Consolidated reports. (Accounting exchange) Ac-counting review, Sept. 1938, p. 289-91.
- BORROWED capital; a study in finance. Wermuth, Charles E.

BORSAUTORISERTE REVISORERS FORENING Arsberetning, 1935-1936. Oslo, Norway, Kirkegaten 23, Borsautoriserte revisorers forening.

BORTH, DANIEL

"Examination of financial statements." Certified public accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 654-9. Reply to Mr. Franck. Louisiana commerce teacher, March 1939, p. 13, 14.

BORTON, CECIL W. Audit objectives. National auditgram, May 1938, p. 1, 13.

p. 1, 13. Auditing as a tool of management. National audit-gram, Dec. 1938, p. 8-11, 21-2.

BOSLAND, CHELCIE, C. Common stock theory of investment; its develop-ment and significance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 154p.

BOSTON, G. S. Analysis of accounts. National auditgram, June 1936, p. 8.

BOSTON

OSTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, RETAIL TRADE BOARD AND OTHERS Boston conference on distribution. Boston, Mass., Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board, 1937. 92p. and charts. Same, 1939. 114p.

BOSTON conference on distribution. Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board and others.

BOSTON CONSOLIDATED GAS COMPANY

Employees savings and benefit plan as amended January 1, 1937. Boston, Mass., Boston consoli-dated gas co. 22p.

BOSWORTH, AMASA W.

Advances in trust accounting and control; efficiency and economy of punched-card recording system. Trust companies, Jan. 1936, p. 25-32.

BOTTLES

See also Containers. ZIMMERMAN, R. C. Accounting for returnable containers. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p. 35-40.

BOTTLING See also Beverages; Breweries; Distilleries.

BOTTLING-(Continued)

Accounting

- EOLITE, ARTHUR H. and LOW, ARTHUR E. Management and cost control in the car-bonated beverage industry; in coöperation with the cost accounting committee of the American ine cost accounting committee of the American bottlers of carbonated beverages. rev. ed. Wash-ington, D. C., American bottlers of carbonated beverages, c1936. 172p. SHAIR, LEONARD A. Accounting control for the independent distillery. *Mida's criterion*, Dec. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-5.

Cost accounting

ost accounting BOLTE, ARTHUR H. and LOW, ARTHUR E. Management and cost control in the car-bonated beverage industry; in coöperation with the cost accounting committee of the American bottlers of carbonated beverages. rev. ed. Wash-ington, D. C., American bottlers of carbonated beverages, c1936. 172p.

BOUDIN, LOUIS B. Sherman act and labor disputes. Columbia law review, Dec. 1939, p. 1283-1337.

BOUTELLE, EUGENE G. Internal auditing can be active, forceful function of business. Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 337-42, 344. Internal checks and balances. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1939, p. 17-27, 32.

BOWEN, HOWARD R. Overall limitation of property tax rates. Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1939, p. 108-13.

BOWER, FRANK Double taxation. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 4, 1939, p. 45-9.

BOWERING, WILLIAM B.

Poultry cost accounting. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1938, p. 1-8.

BOWERS, EDISON L.

Some economic aspects of installment selling. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing, 1936. p. 112-5.)

BOWERS, GLENN A.

Fine points of administration of New York un-employment insurance law. Controller. May 1936. p. 114-20.

BOWLBY, J. M. Address before Illinois society of certified public accountants, May 1, 1936. 9 typewritten pages. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, 1936 p. 13. (extracts)

BOWLING ALLEYS

See Amusements.

BOWMAN, ARCHIBALD

Reporting upon the corporate investment; address at Columbia university, school of business, De-cember 14, 1937. 24p. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 396-416.

BOWMAN, F. A.

Accounting for depreciation in telephone work. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 112-26.

- BOWMAN, W. J. Commonwealth income tax assessment act of 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1936,
 - p. 200-12. N.S.W. unclaimed moneys act, 1917; what con-stitutes unclaimed moneys? Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 348-50.

BOXES, PACKING CASES, ETC. See also Containers; Paper boxes.

Accounting NATIONAL

CONTAINER ASSOCIATION. Cost and accounting manual for a corrugated and solid fibre shipping container plant. Chicago, Ill., National container association, c1935, 98p.

accounting Cost

ost accounting KEMP, W. G. Costing in the tin-box making industry. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 18-20. NATIONAL CONTAINER ASSOCIATION. Cost and accounting manual for a corrugated and solid fibre shipping container plant. Chicago, Ill., National container association, c1935. 98p.

BOY SCOUT COUNCILS

See Societies, associations, etc.

BOYD, D. TILFOURD

Accountancy in relation to Irish industry and commerce. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 366-72, discussion, p. 372-3. Ac-countant, July 17, 1937, p. 89-94, discussion, p. 94-5.

BOYD, ORTON WELLS AND PEARCE, FREDER-ICK LEON

Problems in income tax fundamentals. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., 1937. 107p.

BOYE, E. C.

address delivered at group meeting of the Mis-souri bankers association, October, 1936. 7p. Precautions taxes:

BOYES, R. F.

Costing in the cocoa and chocolate industry. Cost accountant, July 1938, p. 45-50.

BOYRER, WILLIAM C. Going value? Public utilities fortnightly, May 7, 1936, p. 608-13.

BOYS' CLOTHING See Clothing.

BRABSON, GEORGE D.
Current trend in tax exemption of state and federal employees. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 443-5, 484, 491.
Income tax exemptions and the loss of federal revenues. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 8-11.

BRADFORD, RICHARD S.

Country branch bookkeeping. Banking, June 1939, p. 30.

BRADLEY, PHILLIPS

Some considerations of politics and equity with respect to intergovernmental immunity. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 75-90.)

BRADLEY, WILLIAM R. Inspections. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 3b, March 10, 1938.)

BRADY, WILLIAM W.

Accountants' liability to third parties; the Ultra-mares case reaffirmed. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.

BRAHAM, JOE J. Advisability of mailing monthly statements. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 2, p. 779-80.)

BRAIN, RONALD H.

- KAIN, KONALD H.
 Marginal age relief. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 19, 1939, p. 321.4.
 Some notes on dominion income tax relief. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 365.9; Aug. 13, 1938, p. 377-80; Aug. 20, 1938, p. 389-92; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 401-3; Sept. 3, 1938, p. 409-11; Sept. 17, 1938, p. 425-7; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 433-5.

BRAITHWAITE, W. Soviet accounting—a comparison. Accountant, June 4, 1938, p. 773-4.

BRANCHES WARTIME problems for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 293-4.

Accounting

- Accounting ARMSTRONG, A. B. Branch store accounting. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 12-7.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Agency and branch accounting. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 229-39.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Multi-unit enterprises—con-solidating results. (In his Principles of account-ing, ed. 4. e1939. p. 599-620.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Branch accounting. (In their Account-ing principles. c1939. p. 643-60.)
 MULTIPLE shop accounts. Irish accountant and secretary, May 1937, p. 93; June 1937, p. 117-8; Aug. 1937, p. 143, 148.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Branch accounting. (In their Intermediate ac-counting, c1939. p. 580-628.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Branch and home office accounting. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. p. 498-512.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Consignments and branch accounts, (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 581-99.)
 REYNOLDS, D. F. Branch accounts. Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 312-20.
 ROLLASON, DONALD E. Profit or loss on ex-change on inter-company transactions. Aus-tralian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 133-6.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HER-MANN C. Branch house accounting. (In their Intermediate accounting, 1938. p. 284-312.)
- Auditing
 - BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Branch ac-counts. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 401-4.)
- BRAND, CHARLES J. Public policy as to open price plans. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 40-6, 53.
- BRAND, GEORGE E., editor and compiler Unauthorized practice decisions. Detr Detroit bar association, 1937. 838p. Detroit, Mich.,
- BRANNEN, B. A. How the bank auditor functions. Rand McNally bankers monthly, April 1936, p. 204-5.
- BRASSIERES

See Corsets, girdles and brassieres.

- BRAUER, JOSEPH
 - Shall or shall not the Wisconsin reserve fund for unemployment be capitalized, (1939) 5 typewritten pages.
- BRAUNSTEIN, JACQUES, AND JOHNSON, MARK

H. Public utility depreciation and the income ta Harvard law review, May 1939, p. 1077-1104. tax.

BRAY, F. S.

ccountant as company director. Accountancy, April 1939, p. 240-1. Accountant

BREAD

See Bakeries.

BRECHT, ROBERT P., joint author See Wylie, Harry L., Gamber, Merle P. and Brecht, Robert P.

BREDEMEYER, GEORGE W. Commitments. New York certified public accoun-tant, March 1939, p. 261-5, discussion, p. 269-74.

BREED, C. B., AND OTHERS

Highway costs; a study of highway costs and motor vehicle payments in the United States; submitted to Association of American railroads, January 30, 1939. Washington, D. C., Associa-tion of American railroads, January 30, 1939. 150p.

BRELSFORD, J. K. Accounting for farmers coöperative business asso-ciations. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1938,

ciations. Fainmater service omnerin, Deci 2005, p. 1, 3-5, 8. Accounting for newspaper publishers. Pathfinder service bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 1, 3-8. Competitive bidding. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 242-3.

BRENNAN, P. C. Bank reconciliation statements. Australian accoun-tant, Nov. 1938, p. 312-20. Reduction of capital. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 73-80.

BRENNAN, T. F. Depreciation of the property of state-owned public utilities and its relation to the state budget. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 352-5.

BRETT, ALDEN C.

Internal check and audit; panel discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 365-406.)

- BRETT, FRANCIS J. Accountant is perplexed. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 533-6. Controller's job--what is it and why? Address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, No-vember 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bul-letin, Nov. 1939, p. 517-9, 546. Utility company accounting problems may become those of all industries. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 301-4.
 - 301-4.

BRETT, GEORGE M.

Fundamental compound interest functions. Account-ing forum, supplement. May 1939. 8p.

BRETT, W. HAROLD

Random reflections of a company promoter. Ac-countant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 282-5.

BREWER, ANDREW J.

Refinancing problems under the new securities act, discussion. (In American transit association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 296-7.)

BREWERIES

See also Liquor trade.

- Accounting BREWERY advertising appropriation—its extent and apportionment. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p.
 - GOETTSCHE, H. C. department) Journal of accountum, 1937, p. 229-31. HAMILTON, G. S. Brewery accounting. London, Gee & co., Itd., 1939, 139p. HAMILTON, G. S. Mechanised system of sales accounting for breweries. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p. 841-6. Design of accounts? RE-Design of accounts? GOETTSCHE, H. C. Correspondence. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, March

 - accounting to: breakform 1938, p. 841-6. INCORPORATED A C C O U N T A N T S' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; brewery accounts. Accountancy, Sept. 1939, p.

 - 472-6.
 LUCAS, W. L. Brewery accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 97-105.
 VASOLL, HERBERT H. Beverage accounting; accounting for containers and deposits on containers as applied to breweries. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 275-81.
 ZIMMERMAN, R. C. Accounting for returnable containers. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p. 35-40.

Budgets REITELL, CHARLES. Hold your prices for continued profits; complete budgetary control essen-tial to scientific brewery management. American brewer, Dec. 1937, p. 19-21.

Cost accounting COPE, W. J. Cost system for a brewery. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 2-10.

BREWERIES-Cost accounting-(Continued)

REWERLES—Cost accounting—(Continued)
ESCOTT, C. R. Brief outline of a cost finding system for breweries. Brewery age, May 1938.
GOETTSCHE, H. C. Arriving at a profitable sell-ing price. Brewery age, April 1936, p. 25-7.
HAMILTON, G. S. Brewery costs. Accountant, April 29, 1939, p. 550-72.
SPITZNAS, C. THOMAS. Standard cost system for a brewery. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 4, p. 1243-62.)

Costs

- iosts GOETTSCHE, H. C. AND COMPANY. Com-parative brewery costs and statistics. Chicago, Ill., H. C. Goettsche and co., c1938. 4p. and exhibits A-Z. REITELL, CHARLES. Inter-play of brewery costs. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 235-40.

Finance

NEUMAYER, J. M. Brewery financing and its correlated problems. *Robert Morris associates* monthly bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 159-64.

Statistics

GOETTSCHE, H. C., AND COMPANY. Com-parative brewery costs and statistics. Chicago, Ill., H. C. Goettsche and co., c1938. 4p. and exhibits A-Z.

BREWERY accounting. Hamilton, G. S.

BREWERY advertising appropriation-its extent and apportionment. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p. 26-8.

BREWSTER, KINGMAN

Is the undistributed income of foreign personal holding companies taxable to United States stockholders? Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 69-71, 112-4

BRICKENDEN, W. T.

Fuel for thought. Cost and management, June 1936, p. 162-72.

BRICKER, JOHN W.

Meed for good accounting in the affairs of govern-ment. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 53-5.)

BRICKMAKING INCORPORATED A C C O U N T A N T S' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; brickworks. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 61-2.

BRIDGES, JAMES F.

Proper analysis methods-what are they? National Value of accrual accounting to management. Na-tional auditgram, April 1938, p. 7, 14-5.

BRIDGES

- Costs BLACK, JOHN C. Modernistic bridge at an old site; design features, construction and cost items of new structure near Chicago. *Roads and streets*, June 1936, p. 21-4.
- BRIEF explanation of the social security act. United States. Social security board.

BRIEF note on seasonal variation. Fick, K.

- BRIEF note on seasonal variation. Fisher, Arne,
- BRIEF on tax economy. Accounting publishing associates.

BRIGGS, R. P., joint author See Paton, William A., Briggs, R. P., and Laing, L. L.

BRIGHAM, L. H., joint author See Williams, John H. and Brigham, L. H.

BRINDLEY, JOHN E.
Iowa taxation and budget control. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1936, p. 194-201.
Net income and retail sales taxes of Iowa. Bulletin of the National tax association, Dec. 1936, p. 66-73.

BRINK, VICTOR Z.

RINK, VICTOR Z. Internal check. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 138-47. Reprinted by American surety co., and New York casualty co. 28p. Some comments on the Inter-state hosiery case. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 18-22, 38.

BRISTLE, R. J. Systematic control of boiler room costs. Buildings and building management, May 1937, p. 48-9, 77.9

BRISTOL, GEORGE T.

Merchandising problems of grocery and candy wholesalers. Dun's review. Oct. 1937, p. 21-4, 46-7.

BRITAIN'S war finance. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 70-3.

BROAD, SAMUEL J.

- Accountant's report and certificate. Journal of ac-
- Accountant's report and certificate. Journal of ac-countancy, July 1939, p. 17-22. Can audit programs be standardized. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 21, 24. Comments on the paper of Walter A. Staub. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939 p. 82-3.
- 1939. p. 82-3.) Coöperation with the Securities and exchange commission. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, 78-89.

- b. 78-89.
 c. Fifect of extensions of auditing procedure on the accountant's practice and reports. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 59-66.
 Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountants. New York certified public accountants. April 1936, p. 23-6.
 Extensions of auditing procedure to meet new demands. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 41-7.)
 Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium.) Journal of accountant of account. Journal of accountant of accountant of account. Journal of accountant o

BROADCASTING STATIONS

See Radio broadcasting stations,

BRODIE, CYRIL F. C.

Profits insurance—its evolution and modern prac-tice. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 318-26, discussion, p. 326-9.

BRODNER, JOSEPH Control of guests' safe deposit boxes in hotels; an address before the Hotel accountants associa-tion of New York City, November 29, 1937. 11 mimeographed pages.

-Same. 16 typewritten pages.

BROKERAGE accounting. Pace, Homer St. Clair.

BROKERS

See also Commodity brokers; Insurance brokers;

- See also Commodity brokers; Insurance brokers; Investment companies. MEYER, CHARLES H. Law of stockbrokers and stock exchanges. v. 2, being the cumulative supplement embracing decisions, statutes and exchange rules from the publication of the original volume to July 1, 1936. A38p. MEYER, CHARLES H. Je36. 438p. MEYER, CHARLES H. Legal pitfalls of the stockbrokerage business and how they may be avoided. New York, Baker, Voorhis and co., 1937. 73p. REGULATION of over-the-counter dealers. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p.
- EGULATION of over-the-counter dealers. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 148

BROKERS-(Continued)

ROBERTSON, D. CLAUDE. Share brokers and their clients. Australian accountant, March 1938.

WILLIAMS. ILLIAMS, FRANK M. Accountant and the security dealer; address at the meeting of the Bond club of Cleveland on Friday evening, April 2, 1937. 24 typewritten pages.

- Accounting DEUTSCHER, H. H. Margin requirements for customers' accounts. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1937, p. 13-7.
 DISCLOSURE of borrowings on balance-sheet of stock broker. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 228-9.
 DOE, GILBERT A. Revenue and expense sta-tistics in a brokerage office. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 212-7.
 DRISCOLL, JOSEPH A. Highlights in stock brokerage accounting. Accounting forum, May, 1939. p. 33-5, 42.

 - accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 2127.
 DRISCOLL, JOSEPH A. Highlights in stock brokerage accounting. Accounting forum, May, 1939, p. 33-5, 42.
 DUMBRILLE, H. H. Some changes in stock brokerage business. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary, number, part 2, p. 56-9.
 ENGLISH, EARLE W. Analyzing a broker's statement. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletim, March 1938, p. 257-68, 272-7, dis-cussion, p. 268-71.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. and LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Stock brokerage. (In their Mod-ern accounting systems, 1937. p. 182-43.)
 McLAUGHLIN, L. B. Accounting for stock brokers. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1936, p. 1, 2, 5-8.
 PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR. Brokerage ac-counting. New York, Business textbook pub-lishers, Inc., c1938. various paging.
 POSITION statement of brokers. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 42-3.

 - questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 42-3.
 STOCK brokers' accounts, theory and practice. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 64-6; Feb. 1939, p. 143-5; March 1939, p. 223-4.
 April 1939, p. 303-5; May 1939, p. 376-7; June 1939, p. 450-2; July 1939, p. 66-9; Aug. 1939, p. 302-4; Dec. 1939, p. 217-8; Oct. 1939, p. 302-4; Dec. 1939, p. 217-8; Oct. 1939, p. 302-4; Dec. 1939, p. 441-3.
 TODMAN, FREDERICK S. Analysis of stock brokerage statements, prepared for Robert Morris associates, New York chapter. New York, The author, 1936. not paged.
 UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Revision of regulation T relating to extension and maintenance of credit by brokers, dealers, and members of national securities exchanges (effective January 1, 1938) Federal reserve bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 1191-201.

- Auditing
 AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 274-8.
 AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357; Oct. 1939, p. 220-1.
 EDDIS, KENDALL. Audit of brokerage houses; a system devised to reduce the routine. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 20-6.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. and LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Balance sheets. (In their Modern accounting systems, 1937, p. 236-9.)
 INDEPENDENT audits of brokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, P. 2-6.

 - INDEFERINT Construction of accountancy, July 1938, p. 5-6.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on stock brokerage accounting. Stock brokerage auditing by independent accountants. (report of discussion at open forum meeting, Frederick S. Todman, chairman.) New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 66-76.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on member firms. Questionnaire for member firms doing any securities business with others than members or member firms or doing a general business with the public. New York, New York stock exchange (1939). 1p. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 277-8.

- NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on member firms. Regulations prescribed by the committee on member firms for audit under authority of rule 532 (as amended October 26, 1938) of the rules of the Board of governors. New York, New York stock exchange, 1939. 1p. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 2724.5 1p. 274-5
- 274.5.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Stockbrokers. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 320-31.)
 TAYLOR, HERBERT. Audit of sharebrokers' accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1937, p. 318-341.
 ZALETEL, ALBERT W. Some phases of stock brokerage auditing. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 47-9.

Great Britain

See Investment companies-Great Britain.

- Law

 - See also Investment companies—Law.
 NORRIS, LESTER E. Recent developments regarding regulation T. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 6-9, 12.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 621 —74th congress (S. 4023); an act to provide for the continuation of trading in unlisted securities upon national securities exchanges, for the registration of overthe-counter brokers and
 - ties upon national securities exchanges, for the registration of over-the-counter brokers and dealers, for the filing of current information and periodic reports by issuers, and for other pur-poses. (approved May, 1936.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 7p. NITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Revision of regulation T relating to extension and maintenance of credit by brokers, dealers, and members of national securities exchanges. (Effective January 1, 1938) Federal reserve bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 1191-201. UNITED

- BROOK, L. A. General distinctions between real and personal property. Secretary in Australia and New Zea-land, Nov. 1937, p. 663-5.
- BROOKLYN COLLEGE. BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH, BANKING GROUP Deposit insurance for mutual savings banks. Bankers magazine, June 1936, p. 524-30.

- BROOKS, COLLIN
 Clashes of duty in accountancy and business. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 801-11, discussion, p. 811-3.
 Drane definition decountant. Feb. 13, 1937, p.

Press and finance. Accountant, Feb. 13, 1937, p. 231-3, discussion, p. 233-4. Professional man and the "distribution of leisure" problem. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 105-10, discussion, p. 110-11.

BROSTER, ERIC JAMES

- ROSTER, ERIC JAMES Cost, demand and net revenue analysis. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938. 83p. Practical framework of cost, demand and net revenue analysis. *Accountant*, Jan. 1, 1938, p. 11-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 41-2; Jan. 15, 1938, p. 78-80; Jan. 22, 1938, p. 117-8; Jan. 29, 1938, p. 153-5; Feb. 5, 1938, p. 185-90; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 225-7; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 258-60; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 294-6; March 5, 1938, p. 322-3.

BROUGHTON, A. C. Investment, reserves, and sinking funds; the eco-nomic aspect. Accountant, April 11, 1936, p. 588-90.

BROUT, HENRY Costs from the viewpoint of the credit men. Credit executive, March 1936, p. 77-8.

BROWER, J. E.

KOWER, J. B. Accountant and industrial and public relations. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 8-18. Some problems of university accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 304-15.

BROWN, A. T.

- Cost control as a basic problem of industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 7-19.)
- BROWN, BERNHARD
- Punched hole principle of accounting as applied to retailing. (In National retail dry goods asso-ciation. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 4-8.)
- BROWN, C. C. Gross earnings method of taxing freight lines. Taxes-the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 288, 313.
- BROWN, CHARLES H., JR. Retirement systems, civil service, personnel. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 34-8.
- BROWN, E. CARY, joint author See Moonitz, Maurice and Brown, E. Cary.
- BROWN, ERNEST W. See American management association.

- BROWN, GERALD H. Social security in Canada. Municipal finance, Nov. 1936, p. 30-40.
- BROWN, H. L.
 Every milk plant should have an efficient accounting system. Milk plant monthly, June 1936, p. 36-8, 58.
 Proper accounting will give facts on motor vs. horse delivery costs. Milk plant monthly, May 1936, 70.
 - p. 32-4.

- BROWN, H. W. Method of recording and checking freight. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. freight. 450.2
- BROWN, L. N. Manual for a ten-payment plan. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 132-5. (In National retail dry goods association. Credit management year book. 1937-1938. p. 141-50.)

BROWN, LAWRENCE E.

Mechanics of invoice, order and purchase control in the smaller store. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 76-7.)

BROWN, LEWIS H.

Management's aims and responsibilities. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 20-7.

BROWN, LYNDON O. Market research and analysis. New York, Ron-ald press co., c1937. 487p.

BROWN, STANLEY, M., editor Business executive's handbook, edited by Stanley M. Brown. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 1281p.

BROWN, THAD H. Federal telephone regulation. Pr nightly, July 8, 1937, p. 3-11. Public utilities fort-

BROWN, VICTOR J. Colorado prosecutes low cost bituminous road program. Roads and streets, July 1937, p. 41-6.

BROWNE, G. S.

Farm accounts-the farmer's view. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 85-7.

BRUCE, ROBERT

- Method for classifying and accumulating mate-rial used data. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 24, section 1, p. 1381-408.)
- BRUCE, ROBERT, joint author See Gretz, Harry C. and Bruce, Robert.

- BRUMBY, L. A.
 - KUMDI, L. A. Budgetary control. (In Australasian congress on accounting. *Proceedings*, 1936. p. 211-34, dis-cussion, p. 235-52.) Cost accountant, June 1937, 2216 (2019) 235-52. p. 3-16.

- BRUMLEY, D. L. Costing motor vehicle operations in government departments. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 285-9.
- BRUNKHORST, R. H.

KUNKHORST, R. H. Auditor's part in better banking. Burroughs clearing house, Oct. 1936, p. 12-4, 24-5. Comptroller's view of trust costs; the effects of volume on overhead. Trust companies, May 1938, p. 583-6. Reserve accounts. Burroughs clearing house.

Reserve accounts. Burroughs clearing house, March 1936, p. 5-7. Shift to 100% account analysis. Burroughs clearing house, May 1937, p. 8-10, 24-5.

- BRUSH, WILLIAM W.
 - Obsolescence in water works equipment and oper-ating methods. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1936, p. 207-13.

BRUSSEL, J. W. Burden under the thumb. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1937, p. 59-61.

- BRYAN, CHARLES T., joint author See Pace, Homer St. Clair and Bryan, Charles T.

BRYAN, FREDERICK P. Legal theory of emergency taxes. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 74-86.

BRYANT, G. A. Application of the punched card system to accoun-tancy. Certified accountants journal, Feb. 1938, p. 52-7.

BUBB, W. J. Railway accounts. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 356-67.

BUBB, W. NORMAN

Accountant and the community. Accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 456-60, discussion, p. 460-1. Accountant, Aug. 19, 1939, p. 233-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 168-77. Cost and management, Sept. 1939, p. 259-66.

- BUCHANAN, ROBERT Review of court decisions. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 118-23.)
 Simplification of income tax law and its adminis-tration. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1939, p. 1-7, 26.

- BUCHER, F. N. Gratuitous directorships and the anomaly of in-come tax. Accountant, tax supplement, June 17, 1939, p. 229-30.
 Taxation of dividends. Accountant, tax supple-ment, Sept. 23, 1939, p. 353-5.
 Tenants and the landlord's property tax. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 437-9.

(DER) BUCHEREXPERTE in der Schweiz. Verband Schweizerischer bücherexperten.

- BUCK, A. E. Budget in governments of today. New York, Mac-

 - Budget in governments of today. New York, Macmillan co., 1934. 349p.
 Financial control and accountability. (In United States. President's committee on administrative management. Fiscal management in the national government. 1937. p. 3-30.)
 Municipal budgeting. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936, p. 16-9. Municipal year book, 1937, p. 21-5. Municipal year book, 1938, p. 23-7. Municipal year book, 1939, p. 16-20.)

BUCK, GEORGE B.

Municipal pensions. Municipal finance, Nov. 1936, p. 17-24.

BUCKELEW, J. M. Streamlined credit policy; well organized plan that expedites orders. *Credits and financial man-*agement, April 1939, p. 6-9.

BUCKENMYER, A. J. Accounting for heavy machine construction. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, section 1, p. 1119-40.)

BUCKET SHOPS See Brokers.

BUCKLE, J. H.

Depreciation. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, March 1937. p. 11-19. Printed with: Hiley, T. A. Income tax-ation; the basis of assessment of interstate companies.

BUCKLEY, DAVID A. Current problems of federal taxation. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 183-7.

- BUDGET. Accountant, tax supplement, April 29, 1939, p. 164-6.
- BUDGET balancing and national debt. Chase, Harvey

BUDGET in governments of today. Buck, A. E.

- BUDGET methods and procedures of manufacturing companies. Controllers institute of America. companies.
- BUDGET, 1937—proposed national defence contribu-tion. Association of British chambers of commerce.
- BUDGET resolutions relating to income tax. Incor-porated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 288-9.
- BUDGET; the chancellor's speech. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, May 1937, p. 281-6; May 1938, p. 265-71.

BUDGETARY CONTROL See Budgets, Business.

- BUDGETARY control through modernized mechanical methods. Burroughs adding machine company.
- BUDGETARY methods in national and state gov-ernments, by J. Wilner Sundelson. New York (state) Tax commission.
- OGETARY procedure and control for retail stores. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. retail BUDGETARY
- BUDGETING for California municipalities. League of California municipalities.

BUDGETING in public schools. DeYoung, Chris A.

- BUDGETING in relation to distribution cost ac-counting. Blocker, John G.
- BUDGETING research costs. (Questions and an-swers) New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 2, p. 901-5.)

BUDGETS. Business

- trades.
 BAKER, HAROLD A. Departmental merchandise budget. (In his Principles of retail merchan-dising. 1939. p. 388-416.)
 BANKS, E. HAROLD. Control exercised through the medium of the budget. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 285-94.

- BEALL, JOHN. Sales set this maintenance budget. Factory management and maintenance, July 1939, P. 90-1.
- Pactory management and maintendace, July 1959, p. 90-1.
 BERNARD, RENÉ J. How we plan, set up and operate our budget. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 11, section 1, p. 575-604.)
 BLACKWOOD, DAVID D. Business planning. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band B. thema 2, p. 145-76.) Summary by J. Stirling Brown. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 145-61.
 BLAND, F. A. Problem of the budget. Australian accountant, May 1939, p. 245-8.
 BLOCKER, JOHN G. Budgeting in relation to distribution cost accounting. Lawrence, Kansas, University of Kansas, School of business, Jan. 1937. 79p. (Kansas studies in business no. 18.)
 BLOCKER, JOHN G. Budgeting in relation to standard costs. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 117-24.

- Design of the second second

- CHAN, STEPHEN. Budgets as a basis for credit.
- CHAN, SIEPHEN, Budgets as a basis for credit. *Credit executive*, June 1936, p. 173-6. COMPTON, WILLIAM H. Cost and profit trend charts and flexible budgets; presented at the 21st semi-annual meeting of the American gear manufacturers association, Skytop Lodge, Penn-sylvania, October 10, 11, 12, 1938. 5 mimeo-graphed pages
- Budget methods and procedures of manufacturing companies, as presented in the 1938 spring conference of controllers conducted by Controllers institute of America, c1938. 40p.
 COST accounting and budgeting. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, p. 326-8.
 CROCKETT, HORACE G. Cost standards and budgetis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-17.)
 CROCKETT, HORACE G. Recent trends in budgeting. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 166-9.)
 DEAN, CHARLES W. One result of the Gates rubber company's new budgetary control system has been no more guesswork for the budget. American business. Accountant, March 21, 1936, p. 45-7.
 DIPAULA, F. R. M. Frinciples and practice of budgeting in modern business. Accountant, March 21, 1936, p. 45-7.
 DIVETT, S. J. Budgetary control in industry. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 25-30.
 EXPENSE budgeting; round table discussion. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. (Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 38-45.)

- 38-45.)
- 38-45.)
 GARDEN, D. J. Flexible budgeting and control. London, MacDonald & Evans, 1937. 244p.
 GARDNER, FREDERIC V. Variable budget in management by exception. Factory management and maintenance, Nov. 1937, p. 67-74; Dec. 1937, p. 64-74.
 CLOVER, LOHN, C. and MAZE, COLEMAN
- 1937, p. 04-74. GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Budget a tool for managerial control. (In their Managerial control, instruments and meth-ods in industry. c1937. p. 200-32.)
- oas in inausiry. c1937. p. 200-32.) HADDEN, A. A. Job-order plants, too, can budget. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1938, p. 62-3. Profit, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 4. HADLEY, THOMAS D. Budgets. Australian ac-countant, June 1937, p. 333-47. HANLEY, E. J. Control of factory overhead at

See also names of businesses, industries and trades.

BUDGETS-Business-(Continued)

varying volumes of production. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938.

- varying volumes of production. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 154-68.)
 HATHAWAY, KING. Applied scientific management—11; notes on budgetary control. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 56-61.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Standard costs and budgets. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants.—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accountaing clinic, 1938, p. 20-8.)
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Advantages and uses of budgets. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 11-18.
 HICKIN, R. A. Budgeting—a preliminary survey. Australian accountant, May 1939, p. 249-54; June 1939, p. 315-24.
 HICKIN, R. A. Sales budget. Australian accountant, July 1339, p. 386-91, Sept. 1939, p. 120-9.
 HOURSTON, JOHN J. D. Stock control and budgeting. Accountants' magazine, June 1937, p. 305-18.

- budgering. Accountants' magazine, Julie 1937, p. 305-18.
 HOWEY, A. G. Cash and balance sheet budgeting. Cost and management, Dec. 1937, p. 318-23.
 IMPEY, F. L. Budgetary control. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, March 1939, 331-5
- p. 331-5. INCREASING profits through budgetary control. (In Business executive's handbook, 1937. p. 1087-1111.)
- 1087-1111.) KELLOGG, PAUL. Prepare tomorrow's state-ments today. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 273-83. KLEIN, FRANK. Control of plant expense through variable budgets. Society for the ad-vancement of management journal, July 1937,

- Infolgin Variable Budgets. Society Joy The out vancement of management journal, July 1937, p. 104-10.
 KLEIN, FRANK. Essentials for effective budg-etary control. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 400-3.
 KLEIN, FRANK. Some developments in variable budgeting. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, p. 1155-71.)
 Printed with: Wilks, Paul A. Flexible budget system at Strathmore paper co.
 KNOEPPEL, C. E. and SEYBOLD, EDGAR G. Variable budgeting for profit control. (In their Managing for profit. 1937, p. 205-20.)
 KNOWLES, C. N. Some elementary aspects of budgetary control. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 4 mimeo-graphed pages. (In American institute of ac-countants, Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 480-2.)
- p. 480-2.) MacDONALD, JOHN H. Practical budget pro-cedure. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939.

- cedure. New 10rk, Frentscorner, 2326p. 326p. McEACHREN, J. W. Budgeting for the small business firm. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1937, p. 14-7. McEWEN, G. C. Budgetary control as an aid to business profits. Cost and management, Dec. 1939, p. 357-62. McKENZIE, J. R. Business planning. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, brand B. thema 2, p. 45-61.)

- Kongress-archiv, 1938. brand B. tuema 2, p. 45-61.)
 McKENZIE, J. R. Flexible budgets. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 251-60.
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Budgets. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 706-33.)
 MADGE, A. V. Budgetary control. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 118-23. Indian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-5; Nov. 1936, p. 29-31, 33. Cost and management, Feb. 1937, p. 60-4.
 MERTENS, NICHOLAS J. Budgeting and financial control. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 185-92.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY. Policyholders service bureau. Cash

budget. New York, Metropolitan life insurance

- budget. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1937. 38p.
 MIHALIK, ANDREW S. ("Ye) Olde budget". Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 50-61.
 MILLER, GEORGE. Budgets for maintenance. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1938, p. 58-9.
 MINICH, HENRY D. Budget simply a plan for proper relation between activities. Controller, Feb. 1936, p. 38-40, 42.
 MOLER, ARTHUR L. Borrower's budget is a key to credit analysis. Rand McNally bankers monthly, Aug. 1937, p. 458-9, 485-6.
 MORRIS, DONALD. Budgetary control. Accoun-tant, June 20, 1936, p. 925-8; June 27, 1936, p. 965-9.
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Budgetary control and cost accounting. (In his Cost accounting, prin-ciples and practice. 1938. p. 401-27.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Business budgets. (In their Intermediate ac-counting, c1939, p. 526-49.)
 ORECK, MARVIN. Budgetary and controlling a small volume retail operation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1935, p. 25, 44.
 OWENS. RICHARD NORMAN and KEN-
- Small volume retail operation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1935, p. 25, 44.
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN and KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Budget. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice. 1936. p. 575-90.)
 PERRY, HENRY C. Budget, its preparation and use coneisely and simply described. Controller, Oct. 1938, p. 288-90.
 PERRY, HENRY C. Control of business through an integrated corporate budget. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 239-44.
 PERRY, HENRY C. Operation of budget of furniture manufacturing company. Controller, May 1936, p. 122.
 PODD, GEORGE O. Budgeting expenses. Horwath hotel accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 45, 7.
 PORTER, F. R. Budgetary control for the small business. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 58-9.
 POULTON, P. K. and GOLDSMITH, P. H. Budgeting for profit. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1939, p. 52-6, 120, 122.
 POULTON, P. K. and GOLDSMITH, P. H. Budgeting inventories and stabilizing employment. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1939, p. 52-5.
 POULTON, P. K. and GOLDSMITH, P. H. Budgeting tor cut unit costs. Factory management and maintenance, 22, 124.
 RAIN/SFORD, W. BRUCE. Preparation of the

- RAINSFORD, W. BRUCE. Preparation of the Jan. 1936, p. 524-5. DTFIL, CHARLES. distrib Commonwealth journal of accountancy,
- Jan. 1936, p. 524-5. REITELL, CHARLES. Applying standard costs and budgets to distribution. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p.
- REITELL, CHARLES and JOHNSTON, C. E. Budgets and distribution costs. (In their Cost accounting, principles and methods. 1937. p.
- accounting, principles and methods. 1357. p. 326-77.) ROBINSON, GOLDSBOROUGH. Controlling profits and cash through the budget. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 11, section 1, p. 637-64.) TENNENT, H. C. Budgeting for small businesses. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 1, 3-8. THEISS, EDWIN L. Beginnings of business budgeting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 43-55.

- 43.55.
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Planning for tax economy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1496-510.) Printed with: McCaffrey, George D. Accounting control at the New York world's fair.
 TYRRELL, S. C. Budgetary control and its application to small type organizations. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 375-82.
 VanSICKLE, CLARENCE L. Budgetary control. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938. p. 629-713.)

BUDGETS—Business—(Continued)

- WILKS, PAUL A. Flexible budget system at Strathmore paper company. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1,

- Straumote paper company. New York, Actional Actional Cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, p. 1143-55.)
 WILLSMORE, A. W. Business budgets and budgetary control. ed. 2. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, Itd., 1936. 241p.
 WINDLE, A. E. We budget maintenance and control it. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1936, p. 24-5, 68.
 WYLIE, HARRY L. Making the budget work. American business, April 1938, p. 26-8, 51-2.
 WYLIE, HARRY L., GAMBER, MERLE P. and BRECHT, ROBERT P. Budgeting-control of office costs. (In their Practical office management. 1937, p. 173-84.)
 WYNNE, J. L. Budgetary controls. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 2-6.
 WYNNE, J. L. Practical system of budgetary controls that plant officials like and use. Executives service bulletin, May 1938, p. 7-8.

Countie

bERTRAM, RUDOLF F. Local budget control by state tax commissions; evaluation of the situation in New Mexico. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 476-80, 500.

Household

See Household-Budgeting.

- Municipal BERTRAM, RUDOLF F. Local budget control

 - BERTRAM, RUDOLF F. Local budget control by state tax comissions; evaluation of the situa-tion in New Mexico. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 476-80, 500.
 BUCK, A. E. Budget in governments of today. New York, Macmillan co., 1934. 349p.
 BUCK, A. E. Municipal budgeting. (In Inter-national city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936. p. 16-9. Municipal year book, 1937. p. 21-5. Municipal year book, 1938, p. 23-7. Municipal year book, 1939, p. 16-20.
 BURROUGHS ADDING MACHINE COM-PANY. Budgetary control through modernized mechanical methods; a discussion of forms, ac-count classification and statistical reports.
 Detroit, Mich, Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 36p., E. Cimelifed enterlast

 - count classification and statistical reports.
 Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 36p.
 FOX, CHARLES J. Simplified control of Boston's budget. (reprinted from American city magazine) 2p.
 HOEXTER, S. B. Municipal budgets balanced by collecting taxes through advertising. Rand McNally bankers monthly. Dec. 1936, p. 731-2.
 KILPATRICK, WYLIE. State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Municipal jear book, 1936, p. 340-66.)
 KNOX, ROY A. Municipal budget system. Municipal finance, Nov. 1937, p. 31-4.
 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALITIES. Budgeting for California municipalities; bulletin two, uniform accounting committee. Los Angeles, Calif., League of California municipalities, Jan. 1939. 107p. (League report no. 18.)
 LOCAL authorities' budgets. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 378-80.

National

- National
 BELLEMORE, DOUGLAS H. Prestol The budget is balanced. Banking, March 1939, p. 30-1.
 BUCK, A. E. Budget in governments of today. New York, Macmillan co., 1934. 349p.
 BUCK, A. E. Financial control, and accounta-bility. (In United States. President's committee on administrative management. Fiscal manage-ment in the national government. 1937. p. 3-30.)
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Budgetary procedure. (In his Public finance. 1936. p. 50-71.)
 CHASE, HARVEY S. Budget balancing and na-tional debt; an address before the Economic conference at Rollins College, Winter Park, Florida, January 27, 28, and 29, 1938. 10p. MUSGRAVE, RICHARD ABEL. Nature of budgetary balance and the case for the capital budget. American economic review, June 1939, p. 260-71. 260-71.
- p. 260-71.
 NATIONAL ECONOMY LEAGUE. How to balance the federal budget; a realistic appraisal of national finances. New York, National economy league (1939). 32p.
 NEW budget for the U.S.? Fortune, April 1939, p. 68-71, 126, 129, 130, 132, 134. Reprinted.
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Special report of the state tax commission—no. 14; budgetary methods in national and state govern-

- report of the state tax commission—no. 14; budgetary methods in national and state govern-ments, by J. Wilner Sundelson. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1938. 640p. UNITED STATES. President's committee on ad-ministrative management. Administrative man-agement in the government of the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 47p.
- 1937. 47 p. WEBER, ABRAHAM S. Governmental budgeting and accounting. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 17-20, 31.

JOLLY, W. A. Some points from the national budget. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1939, p. 627-9.

China NOM LEE, J. STEPHEN. Government budgeting in China. no date. 11 typewritten pages.

Great Britain

- BUDGET. Accountant, tax supplement, April 29, 1939, p. 164-6. BUDGET; the chancellor's speech. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 281-6; May 1938, p. 265-71. DEBATE on the budget resolutions. Accountant, tax supplement, May 8, 1937, p. 184-5.

- Russia HAENSEL, PAUL. Soviet Russia's unified budget for 1936. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 210-1, 252-4.
- MacGREGOR, D. C. Soviet financial system. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 173-87.

States

- ates BRINDLEY, JOHN E. Iowa taxation and budget control. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1936, p. 194-201. BURROUGHS ADDING MACHINE COM-PANY. Budgetary control through modernized mechanical methods; a discussion of forms ac-count classification and statistical reports. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 36p. daté. 36p. nn
- Below, Man, Barbagae Hang, Barbagae Hang, Barbagae Hang, Supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936. p. 340-66.)
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission—no. 14; budgetary methods in national and state governments, by J. Wilner Sundelson. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1938. 640p.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Open letter to the delegates of the state constitutional convention on the subject of the debt and budget

BUDGETS-States-(Continued)

- policies of the state. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, May 24, 1938. 7p. PUBLIC service. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1938, p. 6.

- BUEHLER, ALFRED G.
 Constitutional limitations upon the taxing power. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1939, p. 176-82.
 Critique of present methods of business taxation in the United States. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 155-67. 45-62.)

 - now snaw owsmess ve taxeal c1937. p. 45-62.)
 Public finance. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 632p.
 Regulatory taxation. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1939, p. 138-52.
 Some phases of the undistributed profits tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, Nov. 1936, p. 46-54.
 Trend in taxes on distribution. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution, 1937. p. 15-8.)
 Undistributed profits tax. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1937. 281p.
 Undistributed profits tax. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 451-3.
 Undistributed profits tax in the fiscal system. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 29-43.

BUELL, S. D.

USEL, 3. D. Use of accountants' reports by management. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 156.)

BUFFHAM, A. H.

Accounting system of a public mental hospital. Accountant, March 18, 1939, p. 361-3.

BUILDERS

See Building construction; Contractors.

BUILDING AND LOAN AND SAVINGS ASSOCIA-

- CHLDING AND LOAN AND SAVINGS ASSOCIA-TIONS
 DAVIDSON, WILLIAM L. Building societies. Accountants' magazine, June 1936, p. 346-62.
 DAVIDSON, WILLIAM L. Building societies-income tax arrangement. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 437-47.
 KETCHUM, BERT. Conning verification of ac-counts. Savings and loans. Dec. 1939, p. 3-4.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING AND LOAN SUPERVISORS. Examination re-port blanks; prepared by a special committee, August 20, 1936. mimeographed forms.
 SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. and LANG, THEODORE. Building and loan association cal-culations. (In their Mathematics of business and finance. c1937. p. 436-54.)
 UNITED STATES BUILDING AND LOAN LEAGUE. Building and loan annals, 1938. Chicago, III., United States building and loan league, c1939. 851p.
 UNITED STATES BUILDING AND LOAN LEAGUE. Standard report form as recom-mended by accounting division, United States building and loan league for adoption by the National association of building and loan super-visors and the Federal home loan bank board. Chicago, III., United States building and loan league, 1935. form.

Accounting

- ACCOUNTING for savings and loan associations. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, June 15, 1936, p. 22.
 ACCOUNTING procedure for foreclosed properties. Savings and loans, Nov. 1939, p. 20.
 ALLEN, L. H. Accounting, insurance and taxes. Savings and loans, March 1937, p. 12.4.
 AMERICAN SAVINGS AND LOAN INSTITUTE. Standard accounting manual for savings, building and loan associations. Chicago, III., American savings and loan institute, c1936. 64p.

- ASKEW, C. F. Building society accounts and finance. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 75-83. BLISS, GEORGE L. Standardization of savings and loan accounting. (In American institute of

- and loan accounting. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 184-8.)
 BURNS, C. J. Accounting standardization to date. Savings and loans, July 1937, p. 10, 12.
 BURNS, C. J. Numeration. Savings and loans, Sept. 1938, p. 14-5.
 BUTLER, J. S. Operations and accounts of permanent building societies. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 505-11.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. and LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Building and loan associations. (In their Modern accounting systems, 1937, p. 7-54.)
 STOUT, FRANK B. Accounting for real estate owned. Savings and loans, Aug. 1937, p. 21-2.
 UNIFORM accounting for building and loan associations. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 19.

- p. 19. UNITED STATES. Federal home loan bank board. Accounting bulletins, no. 1 to 15, for federal savings and loan associations. Washing-ton, D. C., Federal home loan bank board, 1936.

- various paging.
 Auditing
 BALLARD, JOHN W. What you gain from an examination; address before Arkansas building and loan league. 8 typewritten pages.
 GLENDENING, FRANK S. Building and loan accounting; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 179-80.)
 ILLINOIS. Auditor of public accounts. General information for the accountant engaged in building and loan association audits. Chicago, III., Auditor of public accounts. Uniform audit reports proposed for Illinois building and loan insurance corporation. Chicago, III., Auditor of public accounts. Uniform audit reports proposed for Illinois building and loan associations. (Editorial) Journal of accountarcy, Nov. 1937, p. 332-4. Savings and loan associations of building and loan associations of building and loan associations of building and loan associations by federal agencies and independent accountants. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 189-94.)

Budgeting DAVIS, NEILL. Your advertising budget. Sav-ings and loans, Dec. 1938, p. 9.
 THEOBALD, A. D. Operating budgets for asso-ciations. Savings and loans, May 1938, p. 9-10,

- BODFISH, JOHN H. Operating expense ratios in building and loan associations. Journal of land and public utility economics, Nov. 1936, p. 419-20.
- p. 419-20. MAXIMUM percentage of appraised value loan-able by building and loan associations and aver-age foreclosure costs: by states. Savings and loans, April 1938, p. 16.

Government regulation CROWLEY, LEO T. Excerpts from an address before the United States building and loan league, Chicago, Ill., November 17, 1938. 9 mimeographed pages.

Great Britain MEIKLE, ALEXANDER. Building societies. Accountant, July 1, 1939. p. 16-21. REVIEW of financial reviews. Accountant, May 14, 1938, p. 666-70.

Law

UNITED STATES. Federal home loan bank board. Federal savings and loan insurance cor-

BUILDING AND LOAN AND SAVINGS ASSOCIA-TIONS-Law-United States-(Continued)

110NS-Law-United States -(Continued) poration, Washington, D. C., rules and regula-tions for insurance of accounts, August 21, 1936. rev. ed. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 33p. UNITED STATES. Federal home loan bank board. Rules and regulations for federal savings and loan associations (revised edition June 1935) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1935. 39p. _____Same, revised edition, effective December 1, 1936. 1936. 59n.

1, 1936. 1936. 59p.

Statistics

- atistics BODFISH, JOHN H. Operating expense ratios in building and loan associations. Journal of land and public utility economics, Nov. 1936, p. 419-20. FINANCIAL and operating ratios, as of Decem-ber 31, 1938. Savings and loans, Nov. 1939, p. 18. Difference of condition of call control of the set of t

- p. 18. SUMMARY statement of condition of all state chartered associations. Savings and loans, May 1937, p. 14-6. WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. State-chartered sav-ings, building and loan associations in Illinois, 1920 to 1936. Urbana, Ill., University of Illi-nois, Bureau of business research, August 1939. 45p. (Bulletin no. 98.)

Taxation

- BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Taxation of "other financial institutions". Bankers monthly, Aug. 1938, p. 476-81, 490.
- BUILDING and loan annals, 1938. United States building and loan league.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION See also Contractors.

Accounting

- TORNBORGH, BERT V. Accounting methods for
- TORNBORGH, BERT V. Accounting methods for operative builders. National real estate journal, Aug. 1938, p. 32-5.
 WALKER, FRANK R. Practical accounting and cost keeping for contractors; illustrating and describing in easy, understandable language, bookkeeping and accounting systems for con-tractors, giving complete instructions and ex-amples of the proper methods of keeping time and compiling costs on all classes of construc-tion work. Chicago, Ill., Frank R. Walker co., 1938. ed. 3. 169p.
 WINDES, W. N. Accounting system for resi-dential builders. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1938, p. 1, 3-8.

Costs

- osts BOECKH, E. H. AND ASSOCIATES, INC. Building cost index numbers. National real estate journal, May 1939, p. 27. CARPENTER, M. K. Building classification and cost schedules. Municipal finance, May 1939,
- 24-30.
- cost schedules. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 24-30.
 CONSTRUCTION costs analyzed on large apartment building; breakdown of all costs on Knickerbocker Village housing project in New York shows direct labor gets 32½ per cent of building dollar, while 42.4 per cent goes for materials and 25.1 per cent is for overhead and miscellaneous items. Engineering news-record, Dec. 19, 1935, p. 851-2.
 COSTS of building a typical six-room house in different localities. National real estate journal, April 20, 1937, p. 76-7.
 COSTS of building the same standard house in representative cities of the country. National real estate journal, April 20, 1937, p. 643-53.
 GARFIELD, FRANK R. and HOAD, WILLIAM M. Construction costs and real property value. Journal of the American statistical association, Dec. 1937, p. 643-53.
 HALL, W. A. Building construction costs. Australian accountart, July 1938, p. 422-33.
 LOCAL building cost variations in New FHLB index numbers. National real estate journal, April 1936, p. 40-1.

- OPERATIVE building economy shown by cost studies. National real estate journal, Dec. 1937, p. 46-7, 63-5. THOMSSEN, ROHLAND H. Practical cost-cut-ting methods for the operative builder. National real estate journal, July 1937, p. 32-4.

Statistics McCULLOCH, H. K. Buildings. (In Sloan, Lau-rence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936, p. 164-200.)

BUILDING CONTRACTORS

See Contractors.

BUILDING MANAGEMENT See Apartment hotels; Apartment houses; Office buildings; Real estate management.

BUILDING MATERIAL

Accounting HOOD, A. A. Uniform accounting for building material dealers. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1939, p. 1, 2-6.

Statistics

BUILDING owners and managers association of Seattle. Percentage leases. Buildings and build-ing management, June 1939, p. 30.

BUILDING SUPPLIES See Building material.

BUILDINGS

See also Apartment hotels; Apartment houses; Assets, Fixed; Office buildings; Real estate.

Valuation

CARPENTER, M. K. Building classification and cost schedules. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 24-30.

BULK STATIONS

See Oil storage.

BULLETIN "N" United States. Treasury department.

BULLOCK, THOMAS M. Revised tax regulations regarding recoveries by banks. National auditgram, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 15.

BUNCE, F.

robate, succession and federal estate duties. Brisbane (Aus.), Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, (incorporated), July 1937. Probate, 14p.

BURCH, JAMES S. Uniform highway cost accounting needed for proper evaluation of highway service. Roads and streets, Aug. 1937, p. 78, 80.

BURCH, T. S. Question of floor space costs. Burroughs clearing house, Feb. 1938, p. 10-2, 22, 24, 26.

BURDEN

See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead.

BURDEN application. Cogburn, M. B.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

See United States. Internal revenue, Bureau of. BURGIN, LESLIE

Transport problems. Accountant, Feb. 11, 1939, p. 185-8.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

BURIAL SOCIETIES

Accounting LANGHAM, H. L. Burial societies. (In his Synagogue accounts, control and administration. 1933. p. 37-41.)

BURKE, T. VINCENT

Investment trusts. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p 19-23.

BURKE, WILLIAM F. Value of budgets in a period of changing price levels. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 1-2, 4.

BURNELL, A. L.

DRUGLL, A. L. Electricity undertakings (special problems); (a) hire purchase accounts; (b) rental accounts including continuous billing. Certified accountants journal, July 1936, p. 213-22.

BURNHAM, ELIZABETH, A. Influence of size of business on department store operating results. *Harvard business review*, Winter number, part 1, 1938, p. 211-25.

BURNS, A. E., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

BURNS, ARTHUR F., joint author See Mitchell, Wesley C. and Burns, Arthur F.

BURNS, ARTHUR ROBERT

Anti-trust laws and the regulation of price com-petition. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 301-20.

BURNS, C. J. Accounting standardization to date. Savings and loans, July 1937, p. 10, 12. Numeration. Savings and loans, Sept. 1938, p. 14-5.

BURNS, EVELINE M.

Financial aspects of the social security act. American economic review, March 1936, p. 12-22.

BURR, G. B.

- National defence contribution. Certified accoun-tants journal, Dec. 1938, p. 387-91, National defence contribution and its difficulties. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 432-5.

BURROUGHS ADDING MACHINE COMPANY

Budgetary control through modernized methods; a discussion of forms, account classification and statistical reports. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 36p.

BURROUGHS ADDING MACHINE COMPANY

thALL, L. DEANE. Burroughs adding machine company. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on accounting principles and pro-cedure. 1938. p. 221-3.)

BURROWS, H. R. Banks and credit. Accountant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 196-9.

196-9.
Problems of international exchanges. Accountants' journal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 900-5.
Progress, employment and leisure. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 641-5.
Saving, spending and investing. Accountants' jour-nal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 818-22.

- BURROWS, ROBERT A., compiler New 1937 railroad chart; showing at a glance inter-relation, consolidation and capitalization of the principal American railroads—as of No-vember 1, 1937. First national bank building, Pittsburgh, Pa., Robert A. Burrows, c1937. chart.
 - chart. New 1939 utility chart; electric light and power, gas, transportation, water, communications, in-vestment companies, etc., showing at a glance inter-relation and capitalization of the principal public utility holding, operating and investment companies as of June 1, 1939, also service area

maps of the principal public utility systems in the United States. Pittsburgh, Pa., First national bank building, Robert A. Burrows, c1939. chart.

BURTON, ARTHUR S. Credit problems in the paper industry. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 338-9.

BURTON, J. H.

Stores accounts and stores control. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, ltd., 1937. 299p.

- BURTON, NORMAN LEE Cash discounts. Accounting forum, April 1936, p. 0.13
 - Introduction to cost accounting. New York, Long-mans, Green and co., 1936. 269p. (American business fundamentals)

BUSES

See Motor buses.

BUSH, W. ALBERT

Pickle costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 1, p. 277-89.)

BUSINESS

- See also Industry.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. Free enterprise needs free credit. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 287-92.)
 BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD and DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS. Organizing and financing business; with questions and problems. 2nd rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 503p.
 CLAYTON, WILLIAM L. Harvard tercentenary; business evils and the remedies. Certified public accountant, Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 647-62.
 COASE, R. H. Business organization and the accountant. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 667-8; Nov. 5, 1938, p. 559-60; Oct. 29, 1938, p. 665-61; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 705-7; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 814-5; Dec. 17, 1938, p. 834-5.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Text of radio address from radio station KSL, Salt Lake City, Tuesday, May 31, 1938. (In connection with Mountain states accounting conference.) 4 type-written pages.

- ness. rev. ed. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1936. 200p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Changeable character and relentless ratios for 36 manufacturing industries —fourteen important financial ratios—median and interquartile range figures for 1938. Dun's review. Dec. 1939, p. 10-6.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Fourteen guides to financial stability; supplement to 1936 edition of "Behind the scenes of business." New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1936. 43p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Signs of the times; a supplement to the 1937 edition of "Behind the scenes of business." New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1938. 43p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. They said it with inventories: supplement number two to the 1937 edition of "Behind the scenes of business." New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1937.
 GEORGE, EDWIN B. How big is big business? Dun's review. March 1939, p. 18-31, 53-5.
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Financial organization and management of business. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 840p.
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of

104

BUSINESS—(Continued)

USINESS—(Continued)
business administration. Business and modern society; papers by members of the faculty of the Graduate school of business administration, Harvard university, edited by Malcolm P. Mc-Nair, and Howard T. Lewis. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard university press, 1938. 411p.
HEIMANN, HENRY H. "Will we ever learn?" Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 282-91.
HENSEL, PHILIP H. Statistical control of business activities. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, March 1938, p. 177-87.
JACKSON, J. HUGH. Business and Kiwanis ideals. Kiwanis magazine, Dec. 1937.
JACKSON, J. HUGH. Sound thinking, a great need of modern business; address given before the Controllers' council of the International asso-ciation of milk dealers, at the Hotel Adolphus, Dallas, Texas, October 22, 1937. 18 typewritten pages.

- ciation of milk dealers, at the Hotel Adolphus, Dallas, Texas, October 22, 1937. 18 typewritten pages.
 JONES, J. H. Neglected aspects of rationalization. Incorporated accountants journal, March 1936, p. 209-12, discussion, p. 212-5. Accountant, April 25, 1936, p. 645-9, discussion, p. 649-51.
 LASHINS, IVAN R. Where are the leaders? Credit executive, April 1937, p. 114-6.
 MINICH, HENRY D. Can business be controlled profitably by definite mathematical formulae? Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 24.
 NOBLE, EDWARD J. Accountancy and the nation's business. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 279-86.)
 PATON, W. A. Valuation of the business enterprise. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 26-32, comments by S. J. Broad, p. 32-5.
 PREST, W. Size of the business unit. Austration accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 38-50.
 SCHRANZ, ANDREAS. International comparison of research into, and study of business coperation. (English translation.) (In V. internationaler prüfungs und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band D. "Vorträge Schybergson und Schranz," p. 12-3.
 SISSON, H. A. Business control and management. Accountant, June 1937, p. 192-5. Cost accountant, June 1937, p. 192-5. Sunternational. Sunternational. Sunternation.
 SURVEY of business trends—1938; sales and in-
- 180-91
- 180-91.
 SURVEY of business trends—1938; sales and inventories. Dun's review, March 1939, p. 5-12, 56.
 UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of Census of business: 1935—Service establishments.
 Washington, Department of commerce, Bureau of the census, 1937. v. 1, 67p. v. 2, 209p. v. 3, 101p.

Germany

SCHRANZ, A. Recent tendencies in German. business economics. *Accounting review*, Sept. 1937, p. 278-85.

Government competition with

See Government competition with business.

- Government regulation and control
 BALDWIN, C. F. What would federal licensing mean to business? Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 6-7, 34.
 BARNES, GEORGE L. Burden of complying with government's edicts falls on controller. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 318-23.
 BORAH bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 170-1.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Regulatory taxation. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1939, p. 138-52.
 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES. Federal licensing of corporations; a report of the Department of manufacture committee, Jan. 1938. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, 1938. 109.
 CLOAKE, T. REGINALD. Government keeps the books. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 145, 37-8.
 - 37-8.
 - CONGRESS convenes again. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4.

- COST accounting and regulation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90. CROMWELL, JAMES H. R. Should the federal government license corporations? Builetin of

- Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90.
 CROMWELL, JAMES H. R. Should the federal government license corporations? Bulletin of America's town meeting of the air, Feb. 28, 1938, p. 12-9.
 DOUGLAS, WILLIAM O. Address before the Foundation for the advancement of the social sciences, Denver, Colo., June 22, 1938. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commussion, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages.
 EDWARDS, CORWIN D. Current trends in government control of business. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. 36-44, discussion, p. 44-6.)
 EGLY, HARRY H. Address before the Cleveland group of the Investment bankers association, at Cleveland, Ohio, December 7, 1938. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.
 EISNER, MARK AND OTHERS. How government regulates business; an explanation of the principal federal and state laws which regulate business—a series of radio addresses . . over the facilities of the municipal broadcasting system, radio station WNYC. New York, Dynamic America press, 1939, 130p.
 FEDERAL licensing act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 12-3.
 FEDERAL licensing of corporations—O'Mahoney bill—Borah bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 168-71.
 FEDERAL licensing: open wedge? Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 7, 34.
 FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost and congress on accounting, Berlink and the principal meeting accountancy for prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlink 2001.

- pnancial management, March 1938, p. 7, 34.
 FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 390-8. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuband kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 1-18; 205-20.)
 GOVERNMENTAL examination of corporate accounts? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 273-5.
 GRAVES, W. BROOKE. Uniform regulation and control of commerce. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 337-48.
 LYON, HASTINGS. Government regulation of their financing. cl938, p. 920-32.)
 MILLER, HENRY. Federal trade commission regulation of business practice. (In Boston conference on distinguishing of the set of t

- MILLER, HENRY. Federal trade commission regulation of business practice. (In Boston con-ference on distribution, 1939, p. 81-6.)
 O'MAHONEY, JOSEPH C. Borah-O'Mahoney bill. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 111.
 O'MAHONEY, JOSEPH C. Should the federal government license corporations? Bulletin of America's torum meeting of the air Feb. 28

- Schultzer, JOBIE 11 C. Subara The Technic of America's town meeting of the air, Feb. 28, 1938, p. 5-12.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Influence of recent federal regulation on industrial management and accounting. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 5-16, J. STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States, (address delivered at the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf. Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 133-59.)
 ZORN, BURTON A. and FELDMAN, GEORGE J. Business under the new price
- ORN, BURTON A. and FELDMAN, GEORGE J. Business under the new price laws; a study of the economic and legal prob-lems arising out of the Robinson-Patman act and the various fair trade and unfair practices laws. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 463p.

HOWITT, HAROLD. Methods of computing cost

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

106

BUSINESS—Government regulation and control—Great Britain—(Continued)

and control of prices by public authorities. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 561-72. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. Thema 8, p. 99-132.)

Netherlands

- Netherlands LINDNER, J. A. M. F. and KOPPENBERG, W. E. Methods of computing costs and control of prices by public authorities. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs-und treuthand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 19200 133-68.)
- BUSINESS and modern society. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration.
- BUSINESS and the Robinson-Patman law; a symposium. Werne, Benjamin, ed.
- BUSINESS appeasement as reflected in the 1939 revenue act. Cooper, Walter A.

BUSINESS CORRESPONDENCE

See Commercial correspondence.

BUSINESS correspondence and office management. Duddy, Edward A. and others.

- BUSINESS CYCLES ARTHUR, HENRY B. Something business can do
 - ARTHUR, HENRY B. Something business can do about depressions. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 7-14.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Nov. 1937, p. 380.
 FICK, K. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, n. 452-3.
 - 452-3.

 - p. 452-3. FISHER, ARNE. Brief note on seasonal variation. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 174-99. GRAUE, EDWIN. Taxes: their relation to the business cycle. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 645-

 - 7, 689.
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. Prosperity and depression from 1790 to 1938. Credit executive, March 1938, p. 77-9.
 HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 296-7.
 KING, WILLFORD I. Cycles. (In his Causes of economic fluctuations. c1938. p. 223-46.)
 MCNAIR, MALCOLM P. Business cycles theories: some comments for the layman. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 191-233.)
 - tration. Business and modern society. 1930, p. 191-23.). MITCHELL, WESLEY C. AND BURNS, ARTHUR F. Production during the American business cycle of 1927-1933. National burgeau of economic research bulletin 61, Nov. 9, 1936, p. 1-20
 - PARKER, FRANK. Business cycle—cause, effects and controls. *Robert Morris associates monthly* bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 131-3, discussion, p.

- 143-50. PORTENTS of danger. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 401-4. SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W. Accountant's analy-sis of the cause of the business cycle. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 135-7, 192. SLADE, J. J., JR. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 380-2.
- Correspondence) Journal of accountary, Nov. 1937, p. 380-2.
 SLICHTER, SUMNER H. Must we have another boom? Atlantic monthly, May 1937, p. 600-7.
 SLOAN, LAURENCE H. AND OTHERS. Two cycles of corporation profits; 1922-1933, 1934-19XX. New York, Harper and Brothers, 1936. 428p.
- SNIDER, JOSEPH L. Business cycle literature. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939,
- SNIDER, JOSEPH L. Recent publications on business cycles. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 241-7.

WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. Meeting the problem of the business cycle. Credit and financial man-agement, July 1938, p. 18-21, 30.

BUSINESS ETHICS

- USINESS ETHICS
 See also Protessional ethics.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Business ethics. (In his *Essentials of distribution*, 1936. p. 560-75.)
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Credit department ethics. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1937, p. 291.
- BUSINESS executive's handbook, edited by Stanley M. Brown. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 1281p.

BUSINESS FAILURES

- See also Bankruptcy; Banks and banking—Fail-ures and defalcations; Liquidations and receiverships. BONNEVILLE,
- ships.
 BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD AND DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS. Business failures and reorganizations. (In their Organizing and financing business. 1938. p. 397-427.)
 CORSTVET, EMMA. Inadequate bookkeeping as a factor in business failure. Yale law journal, May 1936, p. 1201-222.
 DAVIS, DOROTHY S. War time casualties on the business front. Dun's review, Oct. 1939, p. 20-1.
- 20-1.
- the business tront. Dun's review, Oct. 1939, p. 20-1.
 DAVIS, HORACE B. Business mortality; the shoe manufacturing industry. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 331-8.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analyzing the record of industrial and commercial failures. Dun's review, Aug. 1937, p. 35-7; Sept. 1937, p. 47-9 Oct. 1937, p. 35-7; Nov. 1937, p. 35-9; Dec. 1937, p. 35-7; Jan. 1938, p. 20-2; April 1938, p. 36-8; Keb, 1938, p. 38-41; March 1938, p. 20-2; April 1938, p. 40-2; Oct. 1938, p. 38-40; Nov. 1938, p. 36-8; Feb, 1938, p. 38-40; Janch 1939, p. 44-6; Feb, 1939, p. 32-6; March 1939, p. 44-6; April 1939, p. 38-40; May 1939, p. 46-8; June 1939, p. 36-8; Sept. 1939, p. 37-9; Oct. 1939, p. 38-40; Nov. 1939, p. 36-8; Sept. 1939, p. 37-9; Oct. 1939, p. 38-40; Nov. 1939, p. 32-5; Dec. 1939, p. 38-40; Nov. 1939, p. 38-40; Nov. 1939, p. 31-9.

- Diff and Drassiver momenty reveal, jain 1900,
 p. 31-9.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Business failures. (In his Corporation finance. c1938. p. 464-77.)
 FITZPATRICK, PAUL J. Problem of business failures. Philadelphia, Pa., Dolphin press, 1936.

- FILEFATRICK, FARLES, F. FODEM OF DUSINESS, Failures, Philadelphia, P.a., Dolphin press, 1936.
 157p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Records of business failures. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 188-93.) (1937 ed. p. 208-13).
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Causes of failure. (In his Financial organization and management of business, 1936. p. 728-49.)
 HUTCHINSON, RUTH GILLETTE AND OTHERS. Business life and death in a Hudson River town; the mortality record of business enterprises in Poughkeepsie, N. Y., from 1843 through 1936. Dun's review, June 1939, p. 12-8.
 HUTCHINSON, RUTH GILLETTE AND OTHERS. Study in business mortality. American economic review, Sept. 1938, p. 497-514.
 NUMBER of failures declines but total liabilities rise. Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, Feb. 1936, p. 20-4.
 PABST, W. R., JR., AND DAVIS, DOROTHY S. Business failures and business activity since 1887. Dun's review, Dec. 1937, p. 14-7, 45-6.

Great Britain

SEYD. RICHARD E. Bankruptcies in 1938; statistics of failures in the United Kingdom and Ire-land during the year 1938. Accountant, Feb. 11, 1939, p. 189-92.

BUSINESS FORECASTING

See also Budgets, Business KING, WILLFORD I. Possibility of forecasting business fluctuations. (In his *Causes of economic fluctuations*. c1938, p. 147-53.) NELSON, BERTRAM. Forecasting in business.

Accountant, Jan. 15, 1938, p. 84-8.

BUSINESS FORECASTING—(Continued)

PARKINSON, HARGREAVES, Forecasting in business. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 282.
SELMAN, SAMUEL N, Going to make a profit? Profit-or-loss statements provide the answer, but

always too late. Forecasting predicts the result gives you time to take whatever "steps" are needed. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1938, p. 92-3.

BUSINESS HISTORICAL SOCIETY, INC. Preservation of business records, prepared by Ralph M. Hower and Ralph Ellis. Boston, Mass., Busi-ness historical society, inc., Oct. 1937. (Bulletin, vol. 11, nos. 3-4.)

BUSINESS LAW

See Commercial law; Industry.

- BUSINESS law; principles and cases. Kerr, Thomas
- BUSINESS law decisions. Commerce clearing house, inc.

BUSINESS LETTERS

See Commercial correspondence.

- BUSINESS life insurance on the books of account. Kelly, C. L.
- BUSINESS looks to the C.P.A. Appley, Lawrence A.

BUSINESS PAPERS

- See also Negotiable instruments. KESTER, ROY B. Business papers. (In his Principles of accounting, ed. 4. c1939. p. 213-
- 65.) McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE HOW-ARD S. Business papers. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 291-322.)

BUSINESS PLANNING

See Budgets, Business.

- BUSINESS promotion costs. Horwath hotel accountant, March 1938, p. 4.
- BUSINESS records as evidence. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 173-4.

BUSINESS STATISTICS See Statistics.

- BUSINESS statistics. Riggleman, John R. and Frisbee, Ira N.
- BUSINESS taxation and financial management. Graham, Willard J.
- BUSINESS under the new price laws. Zorn, Burton A. and Feldman, George J.

BUSINESS YEAR

See period.

BUSSCHAU, W. J. Future of gold supply. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 367-73, discussion, p. 373-5.

BUSSING, IRVIN

USSING, IRVIN Publicity utility regulation and the so-called sliding scale; a study of the sliding scale as a means of encouraging and rewarding efficiency in the man-agement of regulated monopolies. New York, Columbia university press, 1936. 174p.

BUTANE CYLINDERS

See Containers.

BUTLER, E. D.

- Some aspects of rubber companies' and estates' ac-counts. Accountants' magazine, May 1937, p. 260-7. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 13-5.
- BUTLER, FRANCIS X., joint author See Fish, George D. and Butler, Francis X.

BUTLER, J. S.

DILER, J. S.
 Live stock accounts. Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 154-60.
 Operations and accounts of permanent building so-cieties. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 505-11.

BUTLER BROTHERS CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Relieving income. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 349.

BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES

- scenard, w. chractes first-out" principle in pricing inventories. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants.-Harrisburg chapter and American institute of accountants. Proceed-Discussion-
- and American institute of accountants. Proceed-ings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 3p.) Shorter approach to the problem of interdependent state and federal income taxes. 1200 Gimbel building, Phila., The author, no date. 32p.

BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES, joint author See Reno, Edwin S. and Butscher, W. Charles.

BUTT, R. F. Real estate accounts. Brisbane, Australia. Ac-countants' and secretaries' educational societ (incorporated), May 1936. 15p. Australia. Ac-

BUTTER, EGGS, ETC. SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canad: butter. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 193 p. 441-9.

Accounting

IRWIN, E. W. Butter consignment accounts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 459-67. WHOLESALE egg and poultry business. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 200-1.

Statistics

atistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of butter, eggs and cheese wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936. p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3). (1937 ed. — p. 54, 82, 108, 135, 198-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times, c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his They said it with the inventories, c1939. p. 26-7.)

BUTTON, HOWARD

Service and its reward. Accountant, Feb. 27, 1937, p. 301-5.

BUYERS, JOHN

Rallentando. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 19.21 Revolution in Britain. Corporate accountant, May

- 1937, p. 81-4.
- BUYER'S manual. National retail dry goods association. Merchandising division.

BUYING

See Purchasing.

BUYING organization and accounts payable. Field-ing, H. G.

BY-PRODUCTS

See Cost and factory accounting - Products.

BY-PRODUCTS of bidding. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, May 1936, p. 322.

- countancy, May 1936, p. 322.
 BYERLY, F. P.
 Determination of earnings and dividends under federal tax law. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 17-28.
 Formulation of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 93-9.
 Some problems common to the practice of law and accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceed-ings of the second annual institute on accounting . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 42-7.)
 Relationship between the practice of law and of ac-counting. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 154-60.

BYERS, JOHN R. B. Chart of accounts for a building and loan associa-tion. Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 13-5.

BYLAND, JOHN R.

Accounting principles and practice. 2 v. Chicago, Ill., Follett pub. co., c1935. 157p. and 154p.

BYNG, E. S.

Administration-a profession. Accountant, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 532-7.

BYRD, KENNETH F.

Preparation of consolidated balance sheets of holding and subsidiary companies. Accountant, L 16, 1939, p. 654-60; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 677-81. Dec.

BYRNE. GILBERT R.

To what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of ac-countancy, Nov. 1937, p. 364-79. Reprint 16p. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 243-54.)

BYRNE, R.

Why and the wherefore of accountancy problems. Accountant student, May 1939, p. 9-11; June 1939, p. 33-5.

BYRNES, THOMAS W.

Auditing instruction by the laboratory method. Ac-counting review, March 1939, p. 33-8. Opportunities for accounting students (reprinted by permission of the New York state society of certified public accountants). Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4.

BYRNES, THOMAS W. AND BAKER, K. LAN-NEAU

Auditing laboratory set. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 273p. and forms.

BYWATER, JOHN A. Valuation of shares. Secretary in Australia, May 1939, p. 923-6.

BYWELL, E. M. Cost of music and entertainment. Horwath hotel accountant, April 1937, p. 3.

- **C.P.A.** examination—April, 1939. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 46-54.
- C.P.A. examination statistics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 277-8.

C.P.A. examinations and how to prepare for them. LaSalle extension university.

C.P.A. law review. Marder, Louis.

C.P.A. LEGISLATION

See Accountancy-Law-United States.

- C.P.A. legislation in New York. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 193-4.
- C.P.A. problems and questions in theory and audit-ing. Taylor, Jacob B. and Miller, Hermann C.
- C.P.A. requirements amended. Certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 10.

CABARETS

See Restaurants, cafés, etc.

CADIGAN, JEANA J. Education for commerce at the university level; commercial laboratories, etc., in the United States of America and at Edinburgh university. Ac-countants' magazine, March 1939, p. 187-95. Ac-countant, May 1939, p. 705-8.

CADY, LEVERETT, P. Percentage rental leases. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 132-3.

CADY, T. S. Bad debt deductions by banks and taxation of re-coveries on charged-off assets. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 507-11.

CAFETERIAS

See Restaurants, cafés, etc.

CAFFYN, HAROLD R.

- Accountancy examinations of Great Britain. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on ac-counting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 241ğ.)
- Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 223.

CAGUIAT, ENRIQUE Need for an auditor. Philippine accountants' jour-nal, Jan. 1938, p. 21-3,

CAHILL'S consolidated laws of New York. New York (state).

CAIN, J. HARVEY Comments of "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds." Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 91-3.

CAIN, W. G. Retail store system. Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 211-5.

CAIRNS, W. M. S.

Colliery costs. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 612-21.

CAKE bakery cost control. Herbert, Earle R.

CALCULATING MACHINES See Mechanical devices.

- CALDWELL, EUGENE How much "use and occupancy" insurance should we carry? American business, Dec. 1938, p. 31-2, 39.
- Bayroll reporting made easy. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1939, p. 44-5, 122, 124.
 Reserves on the balance sheet. American business, May 1939, p. 26-8. Profit, July 1939, p. 1, 4.
 Twenty ways to cut taxes. American business, June 1937, p. 11-3, 60.

CALDWELL, SYDNEY M. Methods of fraud. Incorporated accountants' jour-nal, May 1937, p. 301-6.

CALE, EDWARD G.

Study of ineffective investment trust and precious metal mining issues. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 32-43.

CALENDAR

ALENDAR CALENDAR reform—League of nations favors re-form—World calendar. (Editorials) Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 162-4. TATE, CHARLES T. Calendar reform. Certified accountants journal, June 1937, p. 175-7.

CALENDAR reform—League of nations favors re-form—World calendar. (Editorials) Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 162-4.

CALIFORNIA Chapter 353, laws 1939 (assembly bill no. 1860) (regular session); an act to amend sections 5016, 5017, 5018 and 5044 of, and to add section 5016.3; 5016.6; 5017.3; 5017.6 to, the Business and professions code, relating to the practice of accounting. (approved June 2, 1939) Certified public accountant, July 1939, p. 21-2.

CALIFORNIA FRUIT GROWERS EXCHANGE Uniform accounting system for citrus associations. Los Angeles, Calif., California fruit growers ex-change (1934). 30p.

CALIFORNIA STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Program of the fifty-second annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, September 18

CALIFORNIA STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS—(Continued)
 to 21, 1939, San Francisco. San Francisco, Calif., California state society of certified public ac- countants, 1939, 15p.
 Year book, 1938-1939; by-laws; directory of mem- bers. San Francisco, Calif., California state so- ciety of certified public accountants, 1939, 60p.

CALIFORNIA unemployment insurance law a com-promise act. Controller, March 1936, p. 59-66.

CALL MONEY

See Money markets; Banks and Banking; Loans,

CALLAHAN ZINC-LEAD COMPANY

ALLAHAN ZINC-LEAD COMPANY UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Release no. 2061; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Callahan zinc-lead company, securities act of 1933—sec. 8(d) (File no. 2-1039) (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434-5.

CAMELFORD, J. FULTON Report writing. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 12-7.

CAMERON, DON R.

Machine posting simplifies trust security records. Bankers monthly, Jan. 198, p. 9-11.

CAMERON, JAMES C. Study of costs in the packing industry; the price of cattle and the price of beefsteak. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1936, p. 428-35.

- CAMMAN, ERIC A. Cost features of the Robinson-Patman act; an ad-dress at a meeting of Trade association execu-tityes in New York city, held at Hotel Pennsyl-vania, New York city on Sept. 29, 1936. 20 mimeographed pages. Federal social security act. (In National associa-tion of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 16.30
 - 16-30.)

- 16-30.)
 Five factors which make sellers liable under Patman act. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 305-10.
 Relation of costs to the determination of selling prices. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 118-32.) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 71-6. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 2020. 1938, p. 7-16. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 228-39. Social security; seven billion dollars a year. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 251-82.

CAMP, E. A.

Operating costs in the south. Buildings and build-ing management, Feb. 1936, p. 32, 60-1.

CAMPBELL, EARL C. Separation of sources of state and local tax revenues in California. American economic re-view, March 1936, p. 41-52.

CAMPBELL, H. DEAN Increasing importance of inventory records. Profit, Dec. 1939, p. 1, 2-4.

CAMPBELL, HARRY S., JR. Percentage leases. Buildings and building manage-ment, March 1936, p. 33.

CAMPBELL, J. F. Asset valuation and reverves. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 1, 4-5, 15-7

CAMPBELL, J. M.

Some aspects of pastorial accounts and taxation. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, inc., Oct. 1938. 25p.

CAMPBELL, LINN P.

Modern accounting system for a realty office. Na-tional real estate journal, Jan. 1939, p. 14-8.

CAMPS

Accounting KINTISCH, MORTON D. Camp canteen control. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1938, p. 1-3.

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of tourist camps. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 106.)

CANADA

- Companies act, 1934; 24-25 George 5, chap. 33, an companies act, 1934; 24-25 George 5, chap. 33, an act respecting dominion companies (assented to 28th June, 1934) and 25-26 George 5, chap. 55 assented to 5th July, 1935). Ottawa, Office of the secretary of state, 1935. 339p. Foreign exchange control board; rules and regula-tions. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 287-90.
- p. 25/-90. icome war tax act; chapter 97, R.S.C.; as amended by 18-19 Geo. V, ch. 12, 30 (1928); 20-21 Geo. V, ch. 24 (1930); 21-22, Geo. V, ch. 35 (1931); 22-23 Geo. V. ch. 43, 44 (1932); 23-24, Geo. V, 14, 15, 41 (1932-1933); 24-25, Geo. V, ch. 19, 55 (1934); 25-26 Geo. V, ch. 22, 40 (1935); 1 Edw. VIII, ch. 6, 38 (1936); 2 Geo. VI, ch. 48 (1938). Ottawa, King's printer, 1938. 45p. Income war 45p.
- 43p.
 43p.
 Edward VIII; chapter 38, an act to amend the income war tax act (assented to 23rd June, 1936.) Ottawa, King's printer, 1936. 9 p.
 Regulations with respect to reciprocal tax convention between the Dominion of Canada and the United States of America. Ottawa, Commissioner of income tax, Feb. 1938. 11p.

ALBERTA, PROVINCE OF Information respecting the registration and taxation of companies incorporated otherwise than by or under an act of the Province of Alberta known as foreign companies. Edmonton, Alberta, Provincial secretary, 1939. 19p.

EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA Legal decisions (Exchequer court of Canada) re-specting income war tax act 1917 and amend-ments; income tax schedules; reciprocal exemp-tions from income tax. Toronto, Dominion as-sociation of chartered accountants (1939). 49p. plus 9p.

CANADIAN CORRESPONDENT Dominion of Canada companies act, 19 of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 186-9. 1935. Journal

- CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS
 Annual meeting, May 1936. Cost and management, June 1936, p. 173-83.
 By-laws adopted Dec. 11, 1936. (effective from May 1st, 1937.) Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 358-61.
 Same, amended May 30, 1938. Cost and management, June-July 1938. p. 166-9.
 Same, amended June 3, 1939. Cost and management, Sept. 1939. p. 256-9.
 Examinations. Cost and management, Aug. 1936, p. 237-45; Nov. 1936, p. 329-333.
 Membership list, September 1, 1936. Cost and management, Sept. 1936, p. 277-84.
 Minutes of annual meeting. Cost and management, Sept. 1937, p. 196-9.

CANDY

See Confectionery

CANDY manufacturers. Dun and B and Natural business year council. manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc.,

CANNERIES

See Canning and preserving

CANNING AND PRESERVING

- CANNING AND PRESERVING Accounting NATIONAL CANNERS ASSOCIATION. Chart of accounts. Washington, D. C. National can-ners association, no date. 8 mimeographed pages. ROUNTREE, GEORGE V. Accounting problems in the canning industry. (Lecture 3—Account-ing for specific industries, Northwestern university school of commerce.) Chicago, III., North-western university, school of commerce, c1938. 23 mimeographed pages.

CANNING AND PRESERVING-Accounting-(Cont.)

- ANNING AND PRESERVING—Accounting—(Cont.) SINCLAIR, L. R. Salmon canning and branch accounting principles as applied to salmon can-nery account. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 284-92. SPOILAGE allowances in canning fruits and vegetables. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 2, p. 1513-4.)

- Cost accounting BARR, RALPH H. Cost accounting; before the Northwest canners association, Jan. 6, 1939. 15 mimeographed pages.
 BARR, RALPH H. Cost accounting for the can-ning industry. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 1, 3-7.
 BUSH, W. ALBERT. Pickle costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 1, p. 277-89.)
 KEAST, GEORGE R. Cost accounting problems in the canning industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 12-6.

 - 12-6.
 OVER-absorbed and under-absorbed burden in the canning industry. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 2, p. 679-83.)
 TULL, T. W. Cost accounting and machine bookkeeping for a citrus fruit cannery. Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 3, 4-8.

Costs

CHART of packing cost per dozen No. 2 cans of tomatoes. Canner, Sept. 16, 1939, p. 14.

Statistics

- Statistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Fruit and vegetable canners; seasonal fluctuations and natu-ral fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 14, June 1939.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of fruit and vegetable canners. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936, p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 50, 78, 104, 131, 190, 191) (in his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936, p. 28-9.) In his Signs of the times, c1938. p. 28-9.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p. 22-3.)

CANNON, ARTHUR M. Problems and trends in taxation; before the City club of Portland, December 2, 1938. 22 typewritten pages.

CANS

See also Containers.

Statistics

tatistics UNITED STATES. Work progress administration Selected information on manufacturers of con-tainers and closures other than paper or wood, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, May 1939. 57p. (Report no. 14.) (Report no. 14.)

CANTAMESSNER, FELIX N. P.W.A. accounting. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938, Lecture 4, March 24, 1938.)

CANTEENS

Accounting KINTISCH, MORTON D. Camp canteen control. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1938, p. 1-3.

CANVAS GOODS TRADE

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the

1935 operations of awning, tent and canvas stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 48.) ——Analysis of the 1936 operations of awn-ing, tent and canvas stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. Survey no. 45.)

CAPACITY to pay current debts. Winakor, Arthur H.

CAPE MAY, N. J., CITY OF Financial survey of the city of Cape May, county of Cape May, New Jersey, with a refunding plan. Packard bldg., Philadelphia, Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., August 15, 1935. 35p.

CAPEN, CHARLES H.

Wholesale cost of water. Journal of the American water works association, July 1939, p. 1096-1109.

CAPEY, A. R.

Currency problems. Incorporated accountants' jour-nal, Oct. 1936, p. 25-31.

- nal, Oct. 1936, p. 25-31.
 CAPITAL
 AIKMAN, A. H. Capital expenditure for taxation purposes. Accountants' magazine, March 1937, p. 147-61; April 1937, p. 203-16.
 BAUER, JOHN. Concepts of capital and income in the regulation of public utilities. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 22-9.
 BENJAMIN, HAROLD S. Current ratio or net working capital? Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 364-5.
 BRENNAN, P. C. Reduction of capital. Australian accontant, Feb. 1939, p. 73-80.
 CAPITAL and dividends; Brown v. Gaumont British picture corporation, limited. Incorporated accountants' journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 38-56.
 DOHR, JAMES L. Capital and surplus in the corporate balance sheet, Accounting review, March 1939, p. 38-42.
 EXPENSE and capital determined from poorly kept records. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountants of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 225-7.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Measures of capital consumption and adjustment. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1938. 2719.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Measures of capital consumption 1919-1933. National bureau of economic research bulletin 60, June 30, 1936, n. 1-13. 1-13.
 - p. 1-13. FETTER, FRANK A. Reformulation of the con-cepts of capital and income in economics and accounting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. and 3-12
 - 3-12. FITZPATRICK, PAUL J. What is working capi-tal? An analysis of the major concepts. Credit executive, Sept. 1939, p. 262-5. FOREIGN capital and the domestic market. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p.

 - 5-8. GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Working capi-tal. (In his Financial organization and manage-ment of business. 1936, p. 436-520.) HOWARD, STANLEY E. Concepts of capital and income. Accounting review, March 1937, p.

 - 1-2. JARRETT, H. W. Formula for relating working capital to sales and fixed charges. (Forum sec-tion) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 21, section 2, p. 1251-2.) LITTLETON, A. C. Substitute for stated capital. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 75.24

 - Harrard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 75-84. MAGEE, JAMES D. Taxation and capital invest-ment. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1939, 64p. MARPLE, RAYMOND P. Capital surplus and corporate net worth. New York, Ronald press co., c1936, 201p. MAY, GEORGE O. Recent opinions on dealings in treasury stock. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 17-22. MONTCOMERV ROBERT H. Dealings in treas-1938. p. 17-22. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Dealings in treas-

110

CAPITAL-(Continued)

 APITAL—(Continuea)
 ury stock; we call it capital—the courts call it income. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 466-79. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 331-42.
 MOORE, UNDERHILL. Relationship between legal and accounting concepts of capital. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 64.8) 64-8.)

- 64.8.) MYER, JOHN N. Working capital. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 10-3. OBORN, R. W. T. Working capital. Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 347-52. OUTHWAITE, A. H. Verification of liabilities, capital and reserves. Chartered accountant in Australia Nov. 1936, p. 331-50.

- Capital and reserves. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1936, p. 331-50.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Capital adjustments— Reorganizations—Stock rights. New York, Pren-tice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2v. loose-leaf.
 SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY. Capi-tal changes service. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., c1937, c1938, c1939. loose-leaf.
 SOUND capital structure. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, March 1938, p. 279-83.
 THORP, WILLARD L., AND OTHERS. Some capital problems. (In their Economic problems in a changing world, c1939. p. 583-637.)
 WERMUTH, CHARLES E. Borrowed capital; a study in finance. New Orleans, La., Charles E. Wermuth and co., Jan. 25, 1936. 4 mimeo-graphed pages. raphed pages.
- graphen pages. WHAT is borrowed capital? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 7-8. WILSON, H. A. R. J. Management of working capital. Accountant, Aug. 15, 1936, p. 225-8.
- CAPITAL
- APITAL ACCOUNTS SCHMIDT, LEO A. Analysis of capital account changes—Expansion of the capital account. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. his *Theor* p. 37-56.)
- CAPITAL adjustments --- Re rights. Prentice-Hall, inc. Reorganizations - Stock
- CAPITAL and dividends; Brown v. Gaumont British picture corporation, limited. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, May 1937, p. 277-80.

CAPITAL ASSETS See Assets, Fixed.

CAPITAL changes service. Sinclair, Murray and co.

CAPITAL consumption and adjustment. Fabricant, Solomon.

CAPITAL EXPENSES See Expenses.

CAPITAL gain and loss provisions of the revenue act of 1938 as affecting the owners of securities. Smith, Barney and company.

CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES See Taxation, United States-Capital gains and

- losses
- CAPITAL stock issued to employees and officers. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 142-4.

CAPITAL STOCK TAX See Taxation, United States-Capital stock.

CAPITAL surplus and corporate net worth. Marple, Raymond P.

CAPITALISM

- tal-Vile imposition on the credulous-Decep-tion for political effect. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 328-31.
- CAPITALIZED development expense. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 122-3.

CAPLAN, PERCY I. Blind spots in consumer credit. Credit executive, Sept. 1939, p. 270-5.

CARBON DIOXIDE, SOLID See Dry-ice.

CARDBOARD

See Paper, cardboard, etc.

- CARDOZO, BENJAMIN N. SEAVEY, WARREN A. Mr. Justice Cardozo and the law of torts. Yale law journal, Jan. 1939, p. 390-422. Harvard law review, Jan. 1939, p. 372-407.

- CAREY, JOHN L.
 Address before the West Virginia society of certified public accountants, Charleston, W. Va. November 4, 1938. 9 mimeographed pages.
 Address . . . delivered at 3rd annual convention N.S.P.E., New York City, October 9, 1937. American engineer, Dec. 1937, p. 5-6.
 Professional organization. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1938, p. 1-7.)
 Things to come. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 520-1, 563. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants. Sept. 15, 1936, p. 21-3.

CARMAN, LEWIS A.

- ARMAN, LEWIS A.
 Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 380.
 Corporation income taxes under the revenue act of 1936. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1936, p. 1, 3-8. Profits, Nov. 1936, p. 1, 3-6.
 Primary accounting concepts; a speculation in the interest of clarity. Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 348-75.
 Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 377-80; Aug. 1937, p. 133-8.

CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY

Accounting principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 243p. (Ameri-can business fundamentals) Objective tests in accounting. Accounting review,

Sept. 1937, p. 315-7.

CARNEY, W. H.

Budgetary control builds profits. National accoun-tant, Oct. 1936, p. 12-3, 23, 25, 27.

CARPENTER, M. K.

Building classification and cost schedules. Muni-cipal finance, May 1939, p. 24-30.

CARPET, RUGS, ETC.

Cost accounting INSTITUTE of carpet manufacturers of America, inc. Manual selling and distribution costs. New York, Institute of carpet manufacturers of America, inc. (1937) 40p.

Statistics

CARR, AUSTIN H.

Accountancy examinations of Canada. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on account-ing principles and procedure. 1938. p. 233-40.) Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 362-73.

Progress in accounting. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Aug. 1938, p. 121-9.

CARR, F. J. Opportunity for larger service by controllers lies close at hand. Controller, Dec. 1938, p. 366,

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

CARR, M. L.

Let's preserve the records! Credit and financial management, June 1936, p. 8-9.

CARRINGTON, W. S.

Income tax provisions of the finance act, 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, April 17, 1937, 1937, p. 145-50.

CARROLL, K. L.

Depreciation, reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 227-32, June 1939, p. 278-82

Secret reserves and sinking funds. Federal accoun-tant, June 1939, p. 278-82.

CARROLL, MITCHELL B.

ARROLL, MITCHELL B.
Developments in international tax law in 1937 and suggestions to protect American foreign trade. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 75-8, 116-9.
International double taxation. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 588-90, 608-10.
U.S. revenue act of 1936; what it means to Americans in Britain and Britons in America. (reproduced from the Anglo-American news) Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 19, 1936, p. 384.7. 384-7.

CARROLL, PHIL, JR. Timestudy for cost control. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 305p.

CARROLL, WHLLIAM J. Accounting for and the control of scrap. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 977-83.) Printed with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an element of cost.

CARRYING CHARGES

See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead.

CARSON, A. J. Application of peg-board methods to retail account-ing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing,

CARTAGE CHARGES

See Freight charges.

CARTELS

See Consolidations; Trusts.

CARTER, ARTHUR H.

Accountancy views its progress and looks ahead. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 9-15.

- CARTER, MILTON E. Administering the revenue act of 1936. (In Pro-ceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 35-40.) Decentralization as applied to settlement procedure in income tax cases. Tax magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 635-6 688

 - p. 635-6, 688. Decentralization of the Bureau of internal revenue. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 403-4.

CARTER, ROGER N.

- ARTER, ROGER N.
 Accountancy in England and America. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 485-7.)
 Administration of the income tax in Great Britain and Northern Ireland in regard to the determination of income tax liability. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1938, p. 466-73.
 Taxpayer and the treasury. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 26, 1938, p. 84-93. Certified accountant, June 1938, p. 83-91. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 49-55.

CARTER, ROGER N. AND EDWARDS, HERBERT Murray and Carter's guide to income-tax practice. ed. 13. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1936, 950p. and 24p. Includes: Finance act, 1936; Part 2. 24p.

Addendum to a Guide to income tax prac-tice. (thirteenth edition) 1937. p. 951-1056.

CARTER, W. J. New theory of interpreting net profits; address delivered April 19, 1938, before the Atlanta chapter of the National association of cost accountants. 8p.

CARTER, W. ROGER Presentation of final accounts. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 331-9. Accountant, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 376-84.

CARTER VS. CARTER COAL COMPANY ET AL UNITED STATES Supreme court. Supreme court of the United States, nos. 636, 651, 649 and 650—October term, 1935; Carter vs. Carter coal company et al . . . (May 18, 1936.) various paging.

CARTMELL, N. M. Control of inventory investments. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 88-108.)

Practical application of inventory control methods. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, May 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 18, section 1, p. 1047-66.)

CARVER, T. N. Theory of the shortened working week. American economic review, Sept. 1936, p. 451-62.

CARY, WILLIAM LUCIUS, joint author See Rhame, William T. and Cary, William Lucius; Meck, John F. and Cary, William Lucius.

CASE for a "cost or market" basis. Sweet, Homer N.

CASE for a "stabilized" basis. Davis, Albion R.

CASH

- ASH BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Cash. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 201-16.) BENNETT, GEORGE E. Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 34-52, 72-88, 121-32. BOLON, DALLAS S. Accounting for cash. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 370-
- 78.) "CASH at bank." Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 718-9
- FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Cash. (I Introduction to principles of accounting. (In his 1936.
- Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936.
 p. 323-42.)
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Cash receipts procedure

 Cash disbursements procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936.
 p. 235-50; 431-7.

 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Cash journals. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 200-11.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Cash and its statements. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 127-41.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Cash. (In his Essentials of accounting. c1937. part 1, p. 119-36.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Cash audit and adjustment. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 396-410.)

- ment. (I 396-410.)
- 396-410.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Accounts and notes receivable and cash. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 77-91.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Handling cash. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938. p. 276-89.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Cash records. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 232-47.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Cash. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 189-98.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Cash. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939.

- (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939. p. 83-116.)
- p. 83-116.) TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Cash and receivables. (In their Intermedi-ate accounting, 1938. p. 84-104.) TROUANT, D. L. Cash. (In his Financial audits. e1937. p. 34-40.

"CASH at bank." Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 718-9

CASH budget. Metropolitan life insurance company. Policy-holders service bureau.

CASH DISCOUNT See Discount.

CASH discounts. (Correspondence) Kestler, Melvin.

CASH discounts and overdrafts. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p. 832-3.

CASH REGISTERS

See Mechanical devices.

CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF INSURANCE POLI-CIES

See Insurance, Life; Insurance accounts; Insurance policies.

CASKETS

See Undertakers' supplies.

CASLOW SCRIP MOVEMENT See Credit; Money.

CASSEL, J. C., joint author See Paul, O. J. and Cassel, J. C.

CASSIN, W. J.

This system provides efficient stock room account-ing, Rand McNally bankers monthly, Sept. 1937, p. 548-9.

CASSON, HERBERT N.

How can professional men find clients? Irish accountant and secretary, October/December 1938, p. 145.

CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. Federal social security act and its administration. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1935. 18p.

- Incidence of expense as related to the standard cost concept. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 6-7, 30. New trend in accounting. Chicago, Ill., Ditto,

New trend in accounting. Chicago, III., Ditto, inc., no date. 11p. New trend in accounting—accounts receivable. Chicago, Ill. Ditto, inc., no date. 11p. New trend in accounting—order and billing. Chi-cago, Ill., Ditto, inc., no date. 24p.

CASTINGS

See Foundries.

CATALOGUE of the library at Incorporated accoun-tants' hall, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors

CATALOGUES

See Bibliographies, indexes, catalogues, etc.

CATERING TRADE

Cost accounting CHAPLIN, F. L. Costing and control in the catering trade. Cost accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 236-45.

Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of bakery shops and caterers. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 1.)

CATTLE

See Livestock.

CAULCOTT, L. W.

Activity, L. W. Income tax schedules D and E assessment and relief. Corporate accountant, March 1936, p. 56-9; May 1936, p. 86-90; July 1936, p. 94-100. Schedule E, income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 251-61.

CAULCUTT, JOHN Machinery of credit. Accountant, Jan. 21, 1939, p. 89-95.

CAUSES of economic fluctuations. King, Willford I.

CAUSES of failure at examinations. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 30-1

CAVANAUGH, ANDREW J.

Address at the joint spring meeting of the Virginia society and the North Carolina association of public accountants, at Richmond, Virginia, May 21, 1937. 7 mimeographed pages.

CAVERLY, HARCOURT L. Scope and problems of state sales taxes. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 148-61, discussion, p. 161-2.)

CEILING for hours, a floor for wages and a break for children. United States. Labor, Department of.

CELLER, EMANUEL

Retention of accountants and their compensation under the Chandler bill. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 178-84. Review of the Robinson-Patman bill. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 229-32.

CELLER bills. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 196-7.

CEMENT Statistics .

- aristics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., and NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Cement manufacturers, seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Brad-street, inc., May 1939. 1p. (Bulletin no. 13.) UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on cement manufac-turers registered undar the securities exphance and NA Cement
- turns registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project spon-sored by the Works progress administration, May 1939. (*Report no. 12.*)
- CEMENT manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc. and Natural business year council.
- CENSUS of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project. United States. Works progress administration. Report no. 1. Steel producers. Report no. 2. Meat packers. Report no. 3. Chain variety stores. Report no. 4. Automobile manufacturers. Report no. 5. Manufacturers of tires. Report no. 6. Manufacturers of agricultural machinery and implements

 - machinery and implements. Report no. 7. Cigarette n Report no. 8. Sugar refin
 - Cigarette manufacturers. Sugar refiners. Mail order houses.

 - Report no. 9.
 - Report no. 10. 01 refiners. Report no. 11. Office machinery manufacturers. Report no. 12. Cement manufacturers. Report no. 13. Department stores.

 - Report no. 14. Manufacturers of containers. Report no. 15. Chain grocery and food stores. Report no. 16. Manufacturers of chemicals. Report no. 17. Motion picture producers and dis-
 - tributors.

Report no. 18. Manufacturers of automobile parts and accessories.

- CENSUS of business: 1935-Service establishments. United States. Census, Bureau of.
- CENTRAL states accounting conference. Ce public accountant, May 1939, p. 10-12. Certified

CENTRAL STATISTICAL BOARD COPELAND, MORRIS A. Aims and purposes of United States central statistical board. Con-troller, July 1939, p. 236-7, 255.

CENTRAL STATISTICAL BOARD-(Continued)

- NITED STATES. Central statistical board. Report of the Central statistical board; message from the President of the United States trans-mitting a report of the Central statistical board on the returns made by the public to the federal government—January 10, 1939. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 37p. UNITED
- CENTRALISATION of accountancy records, with special reference to mechanical methods. Ac-countants' magazine, June 1938, p. 357-62.

- CENTRALIZATION OF RECORDS See Filing and indexing; Office management; Records.
- CENTRALIZED control of tax work in business or-ganization. Metropolitan life insurance com-pany. Policy-holders service bureau.

CERAMICS

See Clay industries; Pottery; Brickmaking.

CERTIFICATE revised. (Editorial) Accounting re-view, Dec. 1939, p. 452-3.

CERTIFICATES

Auditors

- See also Bankers and credit men, Coöperation Reports. with
- ACCOUNTANTS' reports. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 289-90. ACCOUNTANTS' certificates; a round table. (In ACCOUNTANTS'
- American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anni-versary celebration. 1937. p. 415-57.) AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
- Short form of independent certified public ac-countant's report or opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 289, AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
- Special committee on auditing procedure. Audi-tor's opinion on the basis of a restricted ex-amination. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, 365-6.
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. MERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing procedure. Ex-tensions of auditing procedure; a report of the Special committee on auditing procedure, adopted by the Council of the American institute of ac-countants, May 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 8p. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 342-9. Controller, June 1939, p. 200-4, 230-1. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 431-43; Dec. 1939, p. 417-30. Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 850-4. Philippine accountants' journal, July, Aug., Sept., 1939, p. 130-40.
- Philippine accountants¹ journal, July, Aug., Sept., 1939, p. 130-40.
 ——Same; report of May 9, 1939, as modified and approved at the annual meeting, September 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, October 18, 1939. 10p. Journal of accountants journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939, p. 377-85. Philippine accountants journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939, p. 130-41.
 AUDITORS' report to the shareholders; an appeal to the council of the Dominion association of chartered accountants for leadership. Canadian chartered accountants, Nov. 1939, p. 341-47.
 BACAS, PAUL E. and OTHERS. Certificates and reports. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937, p. 378-400.)
- 378-400.)
- p. 378-400.) BAILEY, GEORGE D. "Accountants' certificates." (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteeth annual Michigan accounting con-
- association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting con-ference. 1938. p. 15-20, discussion, p. 20-1.) BAILEY, GEORGE D. Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting. May 19, 20, 10-20, p. 62, 25.)
- second annual institute on accounting. May 19, 20, 1939. p. 63-75.) BAILEY, GEORGE D. Introduction to round table discussion on Accountants' certificates. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p.
- 75-7.) BELL, WILLIAM H. Accountants' certificates; address at meeting of the New Jersey society

of certified public accountants on October 17,

- of certified public accountants on October 17, 1939. 11 typewritten pages. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Accountants' certificates; address before the Philadelphia chapter of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public ac-countants in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, on De-cember 13, 1937. 17 typewritten pages. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 106-18. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Accounting reports and their meaning to the public. Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 162-8. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Relationship of the securities and exchange commission to the ac-countant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 23-39.

- p. 23-39. BROAD, SAMUEL J. Accountant's report and certificate. Journal of accountancy, July 1939,

- p. 17-22. CERTIFICATE revised. (Editorial) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 452-3. CERTIFYING the background. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 327. CHANDLER, GRANT. Problems incident to the certification of financial statements included in registration statements filed under the securi-ties act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accoun-tants. Technical program of the thirteenth an-mual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. tants. Technical program of the thirteenth an-nual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. 24-34, discussion, p. 34-5.) COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Auditors' report or certificate. Accounting forum, May 1939, p.
- 23-8
- 23.8.
 23.8.
 DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Round table discussion at the annual meeting—Should the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders be changed? A summary prepared by Kenneth W. Dalglish. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 453-61.
 FEDDE, A. S. Accountants' certificates. (for American institute of accountants, round table session, September 28, 1938. 3 typewritten pages. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938.
- on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 81-2.)
- p. 81-2.) FURTHER references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 121-8. GLOVER, P. W. R. Basic questions of auditing procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, 9. 92-100.

- procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 92-100, GRATUITOUS attack. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1939, p. 131-4, GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accountants' cer-tificate. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939, p. 187,487)

- preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 387-487.) HARMON, CLAUD F. Responsibility rightfully the auditor's. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 130-1.) HERTZLER, ROBERT R. Accountants' certifi-cates. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 25-7. HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Accountants' certifi-cates; paper presented at the round table, Wed-mesday, September 28, 1938, annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, 6 mimeo-graphed pages. JOHNSTON, ARNOLD W. Accountants' certifi-
- graphed pages. JOHNSTON, ARNOLD W. Accountants' certifi-cates; paper delivered at the twenty-first annual convention of the Oklahoma society of certified public accountants, Oklahoma City, November 14-15, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.
- MAY,
- 14-15, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages. IAY, GEORGE O. Wider horizons. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 295-304. IEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on coöperation with bankers and other credit grantors. Report of the Committee on coöpera-tion with bankers and other credit grantors on results of meetings held with officials and mem-bers of the New York credit men's association. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 109-13. UEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Special com-NEW
- NEW

CERTIFICATES—Auditors'—(Continued)

- mittee on auditing practice and procedure. Ex-
- ERTIFICATES—Auditors'—(Continued)
 mittee on auditing practice and procedure. Extensions of auditing procedure; a report adopted by the society at the meeting of May 22, 1939. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 8p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure of committee on stock list. New York, New York stock exchange, August 1939. 8p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 236-43. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1939, p. 9-18.
 PRACTITIONER. Auditor does not do his duty by qualifying his certificate. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 182-3.
 RAWLINGS, A. LEE. Accountants' reports; address delivered at annual meeting of the Virginia society of public accountants held at the Cavalier Hotel, Virginia Beach, Virginia, September 8th and 9th, 1939. 13 typewritten pages.
 ROBERTS, F. A. Foreign branches and the certificates and inventories. Spokesman, Jan. 1939, p. 13-4. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 19-201.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-

- and inventories. Spokesman, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 3:4. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 199-201.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange comgraphed pages.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Oklahoma hotel building company (File 2.3598). Securities exchange act of 1933, release no. 1900. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 328-32.
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of railroads, holding companies, and affiliated companies—Preliminary report of the committee on inter-state commerce, United States senate, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) a resolution authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters—Faltibility of auditors' certificates in adequacy of Price, Waterhouse & co's certificates to Missouri Pacifie stockholders. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Feb. 10, 1939. 13p. (76th congress, 1st session—Report no. 25; Part 3.)
 WREN, JAMES H. Accountants' certificates, modern requirements as interpreted by representative accounting firms; a selection of 1936 certificates with content coded and indexed for quick reference. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 181p.

- C.P.A. CONNECTICUT. .P.A. CONNECTICUT. State board of accountancy. Causes for which a certificate may be revoked or suspended. (In its Information in regard to examinations for certificate of certified public accountant, October 1939. p. 11.) FIRST C.P.A. certificate issued in each state and territory. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 521.2)
 - tants. 521-2.)

 - 521-2.)
 FI.ORIDA accountancy law upheld. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938. p. 17-9.
 FI.ORIDA accountancy law upheld. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 358-9.
 HIGH standards for the C.P.A. certificate. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 6-7.
 LEGISLATIVE episode. Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 7-10.

CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANTS' YEAR BOOK See London association of certified accountants; Association of certified and corporate accountants.

- CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT NOTE for 1937. Certified public accountant, Jan. ' 1937, p. 1.
- CERTIFIED public accountant; bulletin of the Amer-ican institute of accountants. New York, Ameri-can institute pub. co., inc., c1937.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS See Accountants.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ACT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ASSO-CIATION OF ONTARIO. Act of incorpora-tion and by-laws. Toronto, Ont., Certified public accountants association of Ontario (1937). 13 mimeographed pages.

- CERTIFYING the background. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 327.
- CHAIN store expenses and profits, by Malcolm P. McNair, Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.
- CHAIN store problem; a critical analysis. Beckman, Theodore N. and Nolen, Herman C.

- CHAIN STORES
 BECKMAN, THEODORE N. and NOLEN, HERMAN C. Chain store problem; a critical analysis. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 350p.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Chain stores—Meeting chain competition. (In his Essentials of dis-tribution, 1936. p. 183-220.)
 PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. Robinson-Patman anti-price discrimination law and the chain store. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 62-25.

 - p. 62-75.

Accounting

- counting MACHINE accounting for a chain of accessory stores. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1938, p. 4-7. MILLER, WALTER. Multiple store accounts.
- IILLER, WALTER. Multiple store accoun Accountants' magazine, May 1936, p. 288-95.

Budgeting BITTER, VINCENT C. A. How the expense budget is prepared and controlled in a chain store operation. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 17-20.

- Costs
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Chain store expenses and profits; an interim report for 1932, by Malcolm P. Mc-Nair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business admin-istration. Aug. 1934. 320. (Bulletin no. 94.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Expenses and profits of limited price variety chains in 1936, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, June 1937. 38p. (Bulletin no. 105.)

Inventor

ARMSTRONG, A. B. Taking a physical inventory in chain stores. *Balance sheet*, April 1938, p. 9-12.

CHAIN STORES—(Continued)

Statistics

- Artarist SIGNES—(continued)
 Artaristics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for chain stores. (In his Practical credit analysis, cl939, p. 172, 174.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research. Chain store expenses and profits; an interim report for 1932, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, Aug. 1934, 320, (Bulletin no. 94.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business administration, Bureau of business research. Expenses and profits of limited price variety chains in 1936, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, June 1937. 38p. (Bulletin no. 105.)
 MERRILL LYNCH AND CO., and CASSATT AND CO., INC. Chain store statistics, containing record of operations of 30 chain store companies and other information of interest to investors. New York, Merrill Lynch and co., inc., June 1939. 34p.

- Taxation
 - axation
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Trend in taxes on distribution. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution. 1937. p. 15-8.)
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Shall we tax the chains?
 Bulletin of the National tax association, Dec. 1936, p. 88-93.
 FUSH ALBERTA F. Comparative chain and in.

 - Bulletin of the National tax association, 2021 FISH, ALBERTA E. Comparative chain and in-dependent store taxation in nine western states. Bulletin of the National tax association, June 1939, p. 275-81. FOX, FRED L. Taxation of chain stores. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1936. p. 2027 (d)

 - 337-48.)
 PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. Economic analysis of the supreme court's decisions on chain-store taxation. Journal of business of the University of Chicago, Jan. 1938, p. 51-69.
 PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. State discriminatory chain store taxation. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 349-59.
 RAWSON, ROBERT H. Judicial review of state chain store taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 396-8, 425-7.
 RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Federal chain store tax bill. Balance sheet Sent 1020 -

 - ICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Federal store tax bill. Balance sheet, Sept. 193 1939, p.
 - TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Reports and recommendations regarding the personal income tax, the sales tax, the chain store tax, released April 5, 1937. New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. 16p. WOLFF, REINHOLD P. Chains adjust them-selves to state taxation. Dun's review, Oct. 1939, 228 467
 - p. 22-8, 46-7.

CHAIN STORES, DEPARTMENT CHAINS HARVARD UNIVERSITY, Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Operating results of department store chains and department store ownership groups; 1929, 1931, 1934. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of busi-ness administration, June 1936. 52p. (Bulletin no. 101.)

- no. 101.)
 CHAIN STORES, FOOD CHAINS
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY, Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research. Expenses and profits of food chains in 1935. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, April 1936. Solp. (Bulletin no. 99.)
 UNITED STATES. Works progress administration. Selected information on chain grocery and food stores registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, May 1939. 58p. (Report no. 15.)

CHAIN STORES, GROCERY CHAINS UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on chain grocery and food stores registered under the securities ex-change act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corpora-tions; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange com-mission. New York, Works progress administra-tion, May 1939. 58p. (Report no. 15.)

CHAIN STORES, LIQUOR CHAINS FENTON, J. RALPH. Multiple store inventory control as applied by a liquor store system. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 645-55.) Printed with: LaRose, Edmond S. Frozen capital made pro-ductive by inventory control.

CHAIN STORES, VARIETY CHAINS UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on chain variety stores registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Feb. 1939. 5p. (Report no. 3.)

Costs HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Expenses and profits of limited price variety chains in 1937, by Stanley F. Teele. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, June, 1938. 33p. (Bulletin no. 107.)

- Statistics
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Expenses and profits of limited price variety chains in 1937, by Stanley F. Teele. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, June, 1938. 33p. (Bulletin no. 107.)
 UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on chain variety stores registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, Works progress administration vroject sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Feb. 1939. 55p. (Report no. 3.)

CHALK, CRAYONS, ETC.

- CHALK, CKAYONS, ETC. Cost accounting CHUBBUCK. ARTHUR C. and NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Standard costs for the Pioneer crayon manufacturing company. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939, (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 1, p. 423-56.)
- CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE STATE OF
- HAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK Classified list of trade and allied associations and publications in the city of New York. (April 15, 1937) New York, Chamber of commerce of the state of New York, 1937. 18p. Supreme court issue. New York, Chamber of commerce of the state of New York, 1937. 15p.

- CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
 Federal debt and expenditures; report of the committee on federal finance. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, Dec. 1938. 26p.
 Federal licensing of corporations; a report of the Department of manufacture committee, Jan. 1938. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, 1938. 10p.
 Financing a trade association. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States (1937). 23p.

CHAMBER AMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA—(Continued)

- STATES OF AMERICA—(Commune)
 Referendum no. 70, on the report of the special committee on federal taxes and expenditures. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, Dec. 11, 1935. 31p.
 Trade association activities; a classification and statistical survey of the activities and services of 500 associations. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, no date. 16p.

- CHAMBERLAIN, HENRY T.
 Adjustments of fixed assets. (In American institute of accountants. *Papers on accounting principles and procedure*, 1938. p. 8-12.)
 Professional examinations; a department for students of accounting. *Accounting review*, Dec. 1937, p. 407-23; March 1938, p. 81-90; June 1938, p. 199-211; Sept. 1938, p. 292-320; Dec. 1938, p. 411-23; March 1939, p. 65-75; June 1939, p. 163-75; Sept. 1939, p. 297-308; Dec. 1939, p. 437-51.

CHAMBERS, E. J.

Alberta legislation relative to adjustment and re-duction of debts. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 470-8.

CHAMBERS, NORMAN G. Practicable application of tax principles. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 30-41.

CHAMBERS, ROBERT K.

Expense control for automobile fleets. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, p. 1007-27.)

CHAN, STEPHEN

- HAN, SIEPTEN
 Auditing income properties. Buildings and building management; Aug. 1937, p. 35-6.
 Budgets as a basis for credit. Credit executive, June 1936, p. 173-6.
 Supervision of accountants' reports. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 261-5.

CHANCELLOR, H. W. Holding and subsidiary companies under the N. S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, p. 180-94, discussion, p. 194-6.

CHANDLER, GRANT

HANDLER, GRANT Problems incident to the certification of financial statements included in registration statements filed under the securities act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting confer-ence. 1937. p. 24-34, discussion, p. 34-5.)

CHANDLER, WALTER

- HANDLER, WALLER, WALLER, Bill to reorganize bankruptcy act progressing in congress. Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 14-7, 42. Revised bankruptcy act of 1938. American bar association journal, Nov. 1938, p. 880-4, 931.

CHANDLER ACT

See Bankruptcy-United States.

- CHANDLER act. (Editorial) J tancy, Sept. 1938, p. 140-1. Journal of accoun-
- CHANDLER act; the most important bankruptcy legislation in forty years. (reprinted from the Prentice-Hall bankruptcy service.) New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1938. p. 501-607.
- ANGE of auditors. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1938, p. 462-3. CHANGE of auditors.
- CHANGES in cost of living. United States. Labor statistics, Bureau of.
- CHANGES in federal taxes under the revenue act of 1938. Wiseman, John.
- CHANGING from calendar year to natural busi-ness year. Klanderman, Gerald E.

CHANT, L. W. Steps in accounting. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 411-2.

CHANTLER, PHILIP London sliding scale; incentive and efficiency in 'the British gas industry. Journal of land and public utility economics, Aug. 1936, p. 228-37.

CHAPIN, F. H. Watch your borrowers' machine tools. Bankers monthly, Sept. 1939, p. 525-7.

CHAPLIN, F. L.

Costing and control in the catering trade. Cost accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 236-45. Hotel costing and control. (from Cost accountant) Cost and management, March 1937, p. 78-94.

CHAPMAN, C. M.

Use of railway statistics and accounts in de-termining taxable valuations. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1937. p. 242-51.)

CHAPMAN, HERMAN HOLLIS

- Iron and steel companies in years of prosperity and depression; submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for degree of doctor of philosophy under the joint committee on graduate instruction, Columbia university. Tuscaloosa, Ala., The author, 1935. 316p.
- CHARGE of armament profits duty. Accountant, tax supplement, June 24, 1939, p. 242-3.
- CHARGE of national defence contribution. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 265. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 211-2.

CHARITABLE INSTITUTIONS See Institutions.

CHARITIES

See also Social work; Unemployment relief.

Auditine

MARKS, JOSEPH A. Charitable foundations; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certified public accoun-tant, Nov. 1939, p. 104-5.

CHARLES, WILLIAM

Accountants in their relations with bankers. Na-tional auditgram, Dec. 1935, p. 11-2.

CHARLESWORTH, J. L. Centralized control and decentralized management. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1936, p. 29-32.

CHART OF ACCOUNTS

- HART OF ACCOUNTS See also Classification.
 BURNS, C. J. Numeration. Savings and loans, Sept. 1938, p. 14-5.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Chart of accounts with symbols. (In his Accounting principles and practice, 1936. p. 107-8.)
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Numerical chart of accounts. (In his Introduction to principles of accounts. (In his Jacounts, Commissioner of. Chart of accounts, Commissioner of. Chart of accounts, Commissioner of. Chart of accounts, N. J., Dept. of local government, 1937. 62p.
- CHART of accounts for municipal officials. New Jersey. Municipal accounts, Commissioner of of.
- CHART of packing cost per dozen No. 2 cans of tomatoes. Canner, Sept. 16, 1939, p. 14.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS See Accountants.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' BENEVOLENT AS-SOCIATION

Fiftieth annual meeting. Accountant, May 9, 1936, p. 727-30.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF SCOTLAND See Scottish chartered accountants.

CHARTERS, MUNICIPAL See Municipal charters.

CHARTS

See Graphic methods; Organization charts.

CHARTS and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and surtax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936. Herdrich and Boggs. Also published as: *Taxes or dividends?* by Commerce clearing house.

CHASE, HARVEY S.

- Budget balancing and national debt; an address before the Economic conference at Rollins Col-lege, Winter Park, Florida, January 27, 28, and before the Beomanni control of analy 27, 28, and 29, 1938. 10p. Confusion regarding money. Bankers magazine, May, June 1938. Money and bank deposits. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 41-51.

CHATTERS, CARL H.

- Distribution of tax-exempt securities. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 51-6.)
- b) Acque, and the second provided accounting presented at annual meeting, the American society at Kansas City, 1935. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 77-81.
 Municipal accounting. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936, p. 38-42. Municipal year book, 1937, p. 41-3. Municipal year book, 1938, p. 40-3. Municipal year book, 1938, p. 222-3.
 Municipal accounting. (Correspondence) Journal of accountiancy, March 1937, p. 222-4.
 Municipal accounting. March 1937, p. 48-51.
 Reform of municipal research reports, c1936. p. 303-15. (vol. 1, no. 16.)

CHATTERS, CARL H. AND HILLHOUSE, ALBERT м.

Local government debt administration. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 528p.

- CHECK-list of audit procedures. American academy of accountancy.
- CHECK list of possible effects of the Robinson-Patman act. Thorp, Willard L. and George, Edwin B.

CHECKING

- HECKING
 BANKS, E. H. System of internal check and its bearing upon the audit programme. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 189-94.
 BOUTELLE, EUGENE G. Internal checks and balances. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1939, p. 17-27, 32.
 BRINK, VICTOR Z. Internal check. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 138-47. Reprinted by American surety company and New York casualty company. 28p.
 NELSON, ANDREW. Internal check. (In his Internal check. In his International 1938, p. 18-37.)

- NELSON, ANDREW. Internal check. (In his Introduction to auditing. 1938, p. 18-37.)
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Internal check and audit procedure. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 43-102.)
 STEWART, WILLIAM M. Difference between anditing and checking. National auditgram, Sept. 1938, p. 10, 14-5.
 TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 313-36; THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. Principles of internal check—Internal check methods. (In his Accounting systems. 1936. p. 146-207.)
- his Accounting systems. 1936. p. 146-207.)

CHECKS

HOLGATE, H. C. F. Lithographed signatures on cheques; the practical difficulties and an alterna-

tive suggestion. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p.

- 621-3. MAKIN, 621-3. MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Crossed cheques. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 182-4. USES of paid cheques. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 5.

CHEESE

Accounting WILSON, C. N. Creamery and cheese factory accounting simplified. National butter and cheese journal, Nov. 10, 1937, p. 18-20; Nov. 25, 1937, p. 10, 12-3; Dec. 10, 1937, p. 10-2.

Statistics

ratistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of butter, eggs and cheese wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3). (1937 ed.—p. 54, 82, 108, 135, 198-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)

CHEMICAL INDUSTRY MOTT, R. Cost accounting in the chemical indus-try. Cost accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 237-42.

Accounting WEIR, ARTHUR A. Modern business and the industrial chemist. Federal accountant, July 1939, p. 352-9; Sept. 1939, p. 465-70.

Budgeting BUDGETING research costs. (Questions and an-swers) New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 2, p. 901-5.)

- Cost accounting LEWIS, N. M. Cost statistics. Cost accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 88-92.
 ODLING, H. R. Costing problems in the chemi-cal industry. Cost accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 98-104. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 444-8.
 SHEEHAN, D. M. Counting chemical costs; accounting practices of Monsanto chemical com-pany. Chemical and metallurgical engineering, Feb. 1938. pany. *Che* Feb. 1938.

Statistics

- reb. 1936.
 tatistics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for chemical manufacturer. (In his Practical credit analysis. c1939, p. 65.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of chemical manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 49, 75, 99, 124, 174-5.) (1937 ed.—p. 49, 77, 103, 130, 188-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936, p. 26-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 267.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 267.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 26-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 26-7.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939, p. 20-1.)
 LEWIS, N. M. Cost statistics. Cost accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 201-32.)
 RUDD, A. S. Chemicals. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936, p. 201-32.)
 UNITED STATES. Works progress administration. Selected information on manufacturers of chemicals and fertilizers giving assets over \$10, 000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, June 1939. 66p. (Report no. 16.)
 CHENEY, EDWARD J.

- CHENEY, EDWARD J. Relation of "condition" to "depreciation". (In American management association. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy. c1939. p. 23-6; discussion, p. 27-8.)
- CHENOWETH, R. W. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs-und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv. 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 49-71.)

CHICAGO BANK AUDITORS' CONFERENCE How to plan and execute a bank's audit program. Chicago, Ill., P. J. Drexler, City national trust company of Chicago, c1937. 46p. Same as: Chicago conference of bank auditors and controllers. Special committee. Audit plan and procedure.

CHICAGO CONFERENCE OF BANK AUDITORS AND CONTROLLERS. SPECIAL COMMITTEE. Audit plan and procedure. National auditgram, Jan. 1936, p. 4-5; June 1936, p. 13-4, 16. Same as: Chicago bank auditors' conference. How to plan and execute a bank's audit program.

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

Interest and salary payments. Accountants' journal, (Eng.), April 1936, p. 927-30.

CHILDREN'S WEAR See Clothing.

CHILDS COMPANY

CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Something about a reserve—Novel sinking-fund procedure. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 348-9.

CHINA, glass, silver and linen. Horwath hotel ac-countant, Nov. 1937, p. 4-6.

CHINLUND, EDWIN F. "Translation" of foreign currencies. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 118-21. Controller, Sept. 1936, p. 205, 246-7.

CHIROPODISTS

GOODWILL of chiropodist's practice. Accountant, June 5, 1937, p. 812-3.

CHISHOLM, LESLIE L. Effect of a retail sales tax on the economic re-sources of the various states. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1937, p. 178-9.

CHOCOLATE, COCOA, ETC.

Cost accounting BOYES, R. F. Costing in the cocoa and chocolate industry. Cost accountant, July 1938, p. 45-50.

CHOSSUDOWSKY, EUGEN M. Anglo-American trade. Accountants' magazine, March 1938, p. 155-64.

CHOW, Y. C.

Concept of expense. Accounting review. Dec. 1939, p. 340-9.

CHOWN, W. F.

Other aspects of agricultural accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 334-41.

CHRYSTIE, T. LUDLOW

Death taxes and gift taxes on inter vivos trans-fers-their correlation. Tax magazine. Dec. 1936, p. 716-8, 758.

CHUBBUCK, ARTHUR C. AND NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Standard costs for the Pioneer crayon manufac-turing company. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 1, p. 423-56.)

CHURCH, HAROLD B.

Control and use of costs in motor truck operation. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, April 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 16, section 1, p. 1041-58.) Printed with: White, Arthur F. Cost finding in transportation.

CHURCHES

Auditing WANDMACHER, F. CORNELIUS. Audits for churches. (from the Lutheran, Sept. 1939.) 6 typewritten pages.

CHURCHILL, WILLIAM LUCIUS Depreciation dollars. Factory management and

maintenance, Feb. 1936, p. 69, advertising page 43-4; March 1936, p. 109, advertising page 42-3.

CHURCHIMAN, B. D. Coupon book credit system described in detail. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, May 1938, p. 41-3, 64, 66.

CIES, RALPH D.

Costing problems posed by the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 350-5.

CIGAR BOXES AND CONTAINERS

See Boxes, packing cases, etc.; Containers.

CIGAR STORES

See Tobacco trade.

CIGARETTES

See Cigars, cigarettes, etc.

CIGARS, CIGARETTES, ETC.

Accounting SEIDMAN, LAWRENCE J. Accounting pro-cedure in the cigar manufacturing industry. Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 11-3.

Cost accounting BLUM, SEYMOUR. Cigar cost accounting. Ac-counting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 25-8.

Statistics

- FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesalers of cigars, cigarettes, and tobacco. (In his They said it with inventories. c1939, p. 26-7.)
 MAXWELL, LLOYD W. Tobacco, beverages and confections. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936. p. 309-420.
- 42.) UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on cigarette manu-facturers with assets over \$10,000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission New l by New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 39p. (Report no. 7.)
- CIRCULAR no. 230-Canons of legal ethics. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 174-5.

CITIES

See Municipal.

CITRON, BERNARD

Current figures in the garment industry-need and value of complete monthly financial state-ments. Credit executive, April 1939, p. 103-5.

CITRUS FRUIT See Fruit.

CITY court—trial term, by Evans, J.; Mandelbaum v. Gilbert and Barker. Bulletin of the Ameri-can institute of accountants. Nov. 16, 1936, p. 22. New York law journal, Oct. 10, 1936.

CIVIL liabilities of accountants under the securities act. Rich, Wiley Daniel.

CIVIL SERVICE

- IVIL SERVICE CIVIL SERVICE HOME STUDIES, INC. Ac-countant (grade 2, New York City) actual pre-vious civil service problems with solutions— also questions and answers based on local tax laws. New York, The chief, c1938. 34 mimeo-
- laws. New York, The chief, c1938. 34 mimco-graphed pages.
 CIVIL SERVICE HOME STUDIES, INC. Ac-counting and auditing assistant (federal service) —modern objective, short answer form, civil service questions and answers, including mental alertness, true and false style, completion, multi-ple choice, etc., based on subjects of tests. New York, The chief (1937). 32 mimeographed pages.

CIVIL SERVICE-(Continued)

UNITED STATES. President's committee on NILED STATES. President's committee on administrative management. Personnel admin-istration in the federal service, by Floyd W. Reeves and Paul T. David. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 75p. (Studies on administrative management in the government of the United States, no. 1.)

- CIVIL SERVICE HOME STUDIES, INC. Accountant (grade 2, New York City) actual previous civil service problems with solutions— also questions and answers based on local tax laws. New York, The chief, c1938. 34 mimeo-graphed access graphed pages.
 - Accounting and auditing assistant (federal service) —modern objective, short answer form, civil service questions and answers, including mental alertness, true and false style, completion, multiple choice, etc., based on subjects of tests. New York, The chief (1937). 32 mimeographed pages.
- CIVIL service preparation in the field of unem-ployment insurance. Accountants' publications.

- cLADER, WILL-A
 Comments (on "Formulation of accounting statements" by Byerly) June 19, 1937, at Skytop, Pa. 16 typewritten pages.
 Coôperative accounting? (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 54.
 Organization for the maintenance of continuing property records; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 14, 1939, p. 543-4, 568.
 Peculiarities of our federal taxes. Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 332-47.
 Principles relating to earned surplus. 4 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants, Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 36-7.)
- CLAIM against chartered accountants. Accountant, March 25, 1939, p. 397-400.
- CLAIM for accountant's charges; Radford v. Mandleberg & co., limited. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 449-50.
- CLAIM for fees. Accountant, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 775.
- CLAIM for negligence. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1939, p. 35-6.
- CLAIM for professional fees. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 676.
- CLAIM for professional services. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 160.

CLAMP, G. H.

Cost accountants and present-day problems. Ac-countant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 199-201. Cost and management, Oct. 1936, p. 316-20. (extracts) Presidential address. Cost accountant, Oct. 1935, p. 123-6.

CLAPP. RAYMOND F.

Proposal for the development of uniform accounting in social work. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 7-9.

CLARK, CHARLES W.

Accounting procedure for gold dredging operations. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1939, p. 7-12.

CLARK, K. RAYMOND, joint author See Winslow, C. Morton and Clark, K. Raymond.

CLARK, NORMAN B. Accounting system for private colleges. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1938, p. 1, 3-6.

CLARK, R. KYNOCH Some notes on bankruptcy practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 348-51.

CLARK, SAMUEL O. S.E.C. activities in bankruptcies; how commission operates under chapter 10. Credit and financial management, Aug. 1939, p. 11-13.

CLARKE, GEOFFREY T.

- Professional office. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 183-5. That first set of books. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 122-5.

CLARY, HUGH L. Controlling expenses through a budget; how the Bank of America cuts its ratio of operating expense to deposits one-third. Bankers magazine, April 1937, p. 327-9.

- CLASSIFICATION See also Libraries.
 BURNS, C. J. Numeration. Savings and loans, Sept. 1938, p. 14-5.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Account classifica-tion. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 106-10.)
 FJELD, E. I. Balance sheet classification and terminology. New York, The author, 1936. 218p.
 FJELD, E. I. Classification and terminology of individual balance-sheet items. Accounting review, Dec. 1936. p. 330-45.
 - Dec. 1936, p. 330-45. GILMAN, STEPHEN, Development of account classification Proprietorship classification. (In his Accounting concepts of profit, c1939, p. 258-
 - 88.)
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. General outline of system—classification of accounts. (In his Accounting systems design and installation, c1936.)
 p. 73-86.)
 JACKSON, J. W. H. Symbol systems. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 69-76.
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Account classification for a manufacturin business. (In

 - accountant, Aug. 1935, p. 65-76.
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Account classification for a manufacturing business. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937, p. 145-51.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Cost systems and cost classification—Classification of accounts. (In his Cost accounts.) (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1936, p. 46-52.) In his Basic course in cost accounting. 1938, p. 26-32.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Typical account classification. (In their Principles of accounting, rev. ed. 1937, p. 55-6.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Account classification, numerical and mmemonic systems. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 569-83.)
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. Principles of account classification and symbol systems. (In his Account classification and symbol systems. (In his Accounting systems.) symbol systems. 1936. p. 104-45.)

CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTANCY SERVICES See Accountants' office.

- CLASSIFICATION of balance-sheet items. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 65-7.
- CLASSIFICATION of financiel accounts in hospitals. Duke endowment. Hospital section.
- CLASSIFICATION of funded debt. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 155-6.
- CLASSIFICATION of loss by subsidiary. (Account-ing questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. ing questions) 1936, p. 226-7.
- CLASSIFICATION of surplus. (Correspondence) Olson, L. H.
- CLASSIFIED C.P.A. questions in theory of accounts. Tunick, Stanley B. and others.

CLASSIFIED questions and problems given by the Ohio state board of accountancy, autumn, 1931-spring, 1936, inclusive. von Rosen, Urban F.

CLAY INDUSTRIES

See Brickmaking; Pottery.

CLAYTON, WILLIAM L. Harvard tercentenary; business evils and the remedies. Certified public accountant, Sept. remedies. Ce 1936, p. 535-9.

CLEANING AND DYEING See also Dyeing and finishing. UNITED STATES. Labor, Department of, Effect of minimum-wage determinations in service in-dustries; adjustments in the dry-cleaning and power-laundry industries. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 44p. (Bulle-tin of the Women's bureau, no. 166.)

Costs

- A-3)
- A-3) Same, July 15, 1937. (Bulletin no. A-4) NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF DYERS AND CLEANERS. Cost percentages; cost compari-sons of 169 plants for the year 1937. Silver Spring, Md., National association of dyers and cleaners (1938) folder. (Bulletin service)

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of cleaning and dyeing estab-lishments and tailor shops (cleaning and press-ing). (In their 1936 retail survey. report nos. 109, 111.) —Analysis of the 1936 operations of clean-

105, 111.) — Analysis of the 1936 operations of clean-ing and dyeing establishments and tailor shops (cleaning and pressing). (In their 1937 retail survey. (survey nos. 95, 111.)

CLEARIHUE, H. B.

Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 401-9.

CLEARY, J. V. Original cost determination. Edison electric insti-tute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 487-90, 492.

CLELAND, A. B. Auditor under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1937, p. 613-29, discussion, p. 629-30.

CLEREHUGH, R.

- Costing in a cleansing department. Cost accountant, April 1937, p. 346-51.
- CLERICAL and accounting waste in industry. Lara-mee, Frederick G.

CLERIHUE, V. RANDOLPH

Accounts of an automobile distributor. Cana chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 353-66. Canadian

CLEVELAND, HAYWARD, joint author See Reeve, Archie F. and Cleveland. Hayward.

CLIFF, HERBERT E.

Accountants ready to contribute full share to ad-vancement. Gas age-record and Natural gas, Jan. 21, 1937, p. 33, 36, 46-7.

CLINE, DENZEL C. Sales tax exemptions. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 121-40.)

CLINIC in accounting practice. Dorgan, Vincent J. and others.

CUNICS

See Hospitals.

CLINTON, LEWIS Trust receipts. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1939, p. 243-9.

CLOAKE, T. REGINALD

- LOAKE, T. REGINALD
 Discussion of goodwill; presented at round table forum "Intangible assets"—New York state society of certified public accountants, November 30, 1938. 9 typewritten pages.
 Government keeps the books. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 14-5, 37-8.
 Intangible assets; a discussion of good will. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 308-12.

CLOCKS, WATCHES, ETC.

Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of watch repairing concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 114.)

CLOSE, JOHN F.

Some problems for the accountant in Russia today. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 99-103

- CLOSING THE BOOKS See also Calendar; Period.
 ALM, I. W. Combining, adjusting and closing entries. (Accounting exchange) Accounting re-view, Dec. 1939, p. 432-6.
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Closing the books. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 196-200.)
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Closing the accounts. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 187-207.)
 HECKERT L. BROOKS. Summarizing and clos-

 - (in his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 187-207.)
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Summarizing and closing procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 451-60.)
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Closing the books. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936. p. 128-36.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Periodic summary. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 271-90.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Closing and post-closing entries. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 165-83.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Adjusting and closing books. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938. p. 329-49.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Closing entries. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 163-89.)

CLOTH

See Textiles.

CLOTHING INDUSTRY

GREENSPAN, A. ALBERT. Men's clothing in-dustry. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 374-9.

- Accounting CITRON, BERNARD. Current figures in the garment industry—need and value of complete monthly financial statements. Credit executive, April 1939, p. 103-5.
 JANIS, GEORGE N. Clothing manufacturing accounting. New York certified public accoun-tant, May 1939, p. 365-70.

Budgeting

FEDERGREEN, SOL. Budget for a dress con-cern—its preparation and application. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 370-4.

Cost accounting KAY, ROBERT. Costing methods in the clothing

CLOTHING INDUSTRY-Cost accounting-(Cont.) industry. Accountants' journal, June 1938, p.

- 765-9.
 SCHROEDEL, GORDON W. Job order cost system for a company manufacturing uniforms. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1331-45.) Frinted with: Sweetser, Frank L. Standard costs simplified for garment manufacturers. SWEETSER, FRANK L. Standard costs simplified for garment manufacturers. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1309-30.)
- Statistics
- tatistics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Practical credit analysis. ed. 3. c1939. Operating ratios for cloth-ing manufacturers—p. 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 57, 59, 79, 116, 141, 147, 148. Operating ratios for dress manufacturers—p. 117, 118, 164, 165, 166, 167. Operating ratios for coat and suit manufacturers—p. 139, 144.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., and NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Men's work clothing manufacturers; seasonal fluctua-tions and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 17, September 1939.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., and NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Women's coat and suit manufacturers; seasonal fluctua-

 - RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Women's coat and suit manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939, 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 18, October 1939, 17 (Note: ROLLE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of manufacturers of women's cloaks and suits; infants' and children's clothing; men's and boys' clothing; dresses; men's neckwear; men's shifts, underwear and pajamas; women's cloaks and suits; 1936. see index) (1937 ed.—see index) (1n his Fourteen guides to financial stability, cl936. p. 26-7, 28-9, 32-3, 34-5.) (In his Signs of the times, cl938. p. 26-7, 28-9, 32-3, 34-5.) (In his They said it with inventories, cl939, p. 20-1.) 20-1.)

CLOTHING STORES

See Clothing trade.

- CLOTHING STORES See Clothing trade.
 CLOTHING TRADE, RETAIL
 DUN and BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of men's and boys' clothing stores, men's furnishing stores, women's acces-sories and other stores, women's and children's ready-to-wear shops, children's and infants' ready-to-wear shops, and family clothing stores. (In their 1936 retail swrvey, reports no. 23, 23a, 24, 24a, 26, 29a, 29b, 29c, 30, 31, 31a, 31b.)
 —Analysis of the 1936 operations of chil-dren's and infants' ready-to-wear shops, family clothing stores, men's and boys' clothing shops, men's furnishing stores, women's accessory stores, women's ready-to-wear shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. Survey nos. 27, 29, 29a, 29b, 29c, 32, 32a, 32b, 32c, 35, 36, 36a, 36b, 36c.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of retailers of men's and boys' clothing, installment clothing, retailers and women's spe-cialty shops. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936. p. 55, 81, 105, 130, 186-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 57, 85, 111, 138, 204-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 42-3.) (In his They said it with inventories, e1939 p. 30-1. Men's furnishings and fur garments, p. 30-1.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business field, Boston, Mass., Harvard Uni-versity, Graduate school of business administra-tion, May 1936. 38p. (Bulletin no. 104.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of

104.) HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of

business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Operating results of department and specialty stores in the Pacific coast states: 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, July 1936. 20p. (Bulle-tin no. 102.)

- CLOTHING TRADE, WHOLESALE FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesaler of womenswear, coats, suits and dresses. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936, p. 54, 80, 104, 129, 184-5.) (1937 ed.-p. 56, 84, 110, 137, 202-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 40-1.) (In his Signs of the times, c1938. p. 40-1.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939, p. 28-9.)
- CLUB operating ratios. Horwath hotel accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 6.

CLUBS

- See also Restaurants, cafés, etc.; Societies, asso-
- See also Restaurants, cates, etc.; Societies, asso-ciations, etc. BONNET, LESLIE. Honorary secretary's guide. (the proper management of the meetings of societies, social and sports clubs, institutes, guilds and fellowships, and the conventions of debate.) London, Gee & Co., Itd., 1938. 40p. CLUB operating ratios. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, Dec. 1938, p. 6. WESTCHESTER country club. Annual report, fiscal year ending December 31, 1936. 31p.

COAL

See also Fuel; Mining and metallurgy-Coal.

Statistics UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of. Retail prices . . prepared by Retail price division and Cost of living division, Bureau of labor statistics. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, January 1936-December 1939. printing of (pamphlets)

COAL TRADE

Costs HUTCHISON, GEORGE E. Costs of the retail coal merchant. 14 typewritten pages.

Statistics

- atistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of coal dealers and coal and ice dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 74, 75.) FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of retailers of coal. (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p. 30-1.) DUN

COASE, R. H.

OASE, R. H. Business organisation and the accountant. Accoun-tant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 470-2; Oct. 8, 1938, p. 505-7; Oct. 15, 1938, p. 537-8; Oct. 22, 1938, p. 559-60; Oct. 29, 1938, p. 607-8; Nov. 5, 1938, p. 631-2; Nov. 12, 1938, p. 665-6; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 705-7; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 737-9; Dec. 3, 1938, p. 775-7; Dec. 10, 1938, p. 814-5; Dec. 17, 1938, p. 834-5.

COASE, R. H. AND OTHERS Published balance sheets as an aid to economic investigation—some difficulties. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 129.

COATES, CHARLES F.

Connecticut's rule against bidding. Certified public accountant, March 1938, p. 7-10.

COATES, W. H.

American experiment. Accountant, Jan. 7, 1939, 11-8.

Britain and the United States. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, April 1938, p. 248-52.

COBURN, JAMES H. See American management association.

COCHARD, D. R. Audit policies and procedure. National auditgram. Nov. 1939, p. 13-9.

COCHRAN, HOWE P. Scientific tax reduction; federal tax law and pro-cedure. New York, Funk and Wagnalls co., 1937. 757p.

COCHRAN, M. H.

Accounting for property taxes. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 656-8, 682-3.

COCHRANE, GEORGE

- COCHRANE, GEORGE
 See also American management association.
 Address given at a luncheon meeting, 25th August
 1938, in the Lord Nelson Hotel, Halifax...
 to the annual meeting of the Dominion associa tion of chartered accountants. Canadian chartered
 accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 262-7.
 Discussion of address. Objective appraisal of the
 independent audit, by Jules I. Bogen. (In Ameri can management association. Problems and re sponsibilities of the finance officer. c1939, p.
 9-12.)
 Some observations on the profession. Canadian
 chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 110-7.

COCONUT OIL See Vegetable oils and oilseed,

CODE authority for the toy and plaything industry. Outline of cost system for the toy and play-things industry. New York, Code authority for the toy and plaything industry. no date. 7p.

CODES OF ETHICS

See Professional ethics.

CODES OF FAIR COMPETITION See Industrial and business codes.

CODIFICATION of income tax. Accountants' maga-zine, June 1939, p. 362-8.

COFFEE AND TEA Statistics

NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Coffee—Tea. (In its Inter-national raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 75-91; 116-23.) CONFERENCE

COFFEE BROKERS See Commodity brokers.

COGBURN, M. B.

Burden application. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 208-12.

COGGER, WILLIAM Alleged shifts in constitutional doctrines. Taxes---the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 573-5, 597-8. Tax avoidance v. tax evasion. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 518-20, 566.

COGHLAN, W. A. Review of loss of profits insurance. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 415-21.

COHEN, HERMAN H., joint author See Rogers, Hugo E. and Cohen, Herman H.

COINS AND COINAGE See also Gold as money; Money; Silver as money

money. DECIMALISATION. Certified accountants jour-nal, April 1937, p. 98-100.

COLBERT, ASEL R.

OLDERI, ASEL R. Benefits of sound depreciation practices; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, No-vember 15, 1939, Edison electric institute bulle-tin, Nov. 1939, p. 549-51.

COLD STORAGE

See also Warehouses; Refrigeration.

COLDWELL, E. S. If outside check of inventories is needed, here is a program. Controller, May 1939, p. 171-3, 176, 178.

COLE, R. W. E.

Accounting for social security taxes. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on account-ing principles and procedure. 1938, p. 143-9.)

- COLE, SETH T.
 Function of the law bureau of the department of taxation and finance in the administration of the tax laws in New York state. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 34-7.
 Regulatory taxation; with special reference to the income tax. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 67-8.
 Treatment of capital gains and losses for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 583-5, 636.

COLE, WILLIAM MORSE

Theories of cost. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 4-9.

COLEBATCH, HAL Money. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 273-7.

COLEMAN, LUCIUS H.

Application of the keysort and pegboard to the large and small business. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 16-27.

COLLATERAL ARMSTRONG, A. F. Bankers' advances against cotton and produce. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 19-24.

COLLECTION AGENCIES

Accounting

COUNTING WARFEL, CHARLES R. Simplified accounting for collection agencies. Pathfinder service bulle-tin, Sept. 1938, p. 1, 3, 6-8.

COLLECTION OF ACCOUNTS

- CREDITS and collections. (In Business execu-tive's handbook. 1937. p. 673-772.) DETTINGER, RICHARD P, AND GOLIEB, DAVID E. Credits and collections. rev. ed. 1939. p. 304-69, 480-500. FITZSIMMONS, ROBERT J. Collecting retail lumber accounts. Credit world, Jan. 1939, p. 20-1, 28. GRIFFIN. BRYAN W AND CODUME

- GRIFFIN, BRYAN W. AND GREENE, H. C. Installment credits and collections and the in-stallment market. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc.,
- stallment market. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 326p. HAGIOS, J. ANTON. Accounts receivable and sales audit procedures in N.R.D.G.A. stores. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Nov. 1936, p. 13, 47-8. HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Billing and accounts receivable procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936, p. 225-34.) HORTON, R. A. Mechanics of collection. Credit world, Nov. 1938, p. 8-9. JACKMAN, A. M. Effective handling of collec-tions; a discussion of policies—a review of methods. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 238 40, 242-3.

- methods. Creati executive, Aug. 1939, p. 238-40, 242-3.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Credit management division. Collection policies and practices. (In its Credit management year book, 1937-1938, p. 184-206.)
 PADDON, E. E. Main cost factors in collecting in-stallment accounts. Credit world, Jan. 1939, p. 4.5

- 4-5. PULFORD, E. A. Recovering lazy capital; how slow accounts add to business costs. *Credit and financial management*, April 1939, p. 16-7. ROUSH, H. E. Our collection procedure for hos-pital accounts. *Credit world*, April 1938, p. 12, 25.
- SECORD, DANIEL F. Collection bookkeeping. Credit and financial management, Jan. 1936, p. 4-6, 31.
- STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Collection pro-cedure. (In his Mercantile credit. 1936. p. 194-211.)
- ZERMAN, SAMUEL WILLIAM. Attorney system as a modern method of collecting water accounts. Journal of the American water works associa-tion, Nov. 1936, p. 1669-76.

COLLECTION of papers on accountancy, commerce and economics. Sodhbans, P. S.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING See Trade agreements.

- COLLEGE accounting. Baker, James W., and Sherwood, J. F.
- COLLEGE and university business organization. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- COLLEGE degree as C.P.A. prerequisite. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 321-3.
- COLLEGE finance. American council on education. Financial advisory service.

COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. SCHOOL OF BUSINESS AND CIVIC ADMINISTRATION. DEPARTMENT OF ACCOUNTANCY. Accountancy 220; study outline and problems. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939.

- 78p.

- 78p.
 Accounting problems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 202. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 59p.
 Accounting problems; notes and solutions for Accountancy 271. New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 73p.
 Accounting problems; notes and solutions for Accounting problems; notes and solutions for Accounting problems; notes and solutions for Accounting Problems; New York, College of the City of New York, 1939. 61p.

COLLEGES

See Schools, colleges, etc.

COLLEGIATE C.P.A. requirement; a consideration of its ultimate effect upon the practice of public accounting. Gilman, Stephen.

COLLIERIES

See Mining and metallurgy-Coal.

- **COLLINS, ARTHUR**
 - Municipal internal audits. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1939. 403p.

COLLINS, CLEM W.

- Accountants, CLEM W. Accountanty and public affairs. Certified public ac-countant, Aug. 1938, p. 2-4. Accountant's opinion. Banking, June 1939, p. 87. Accounting in the public interest. 25 typewritten pages. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 325-33.
- Accounting in the public interest. 25 typewritten pages. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 325-33.
 Accounting in the public interest: abstract of talk given in Boston, May 1, 1939, Hartford, May 2, 1939, Philadelphia, May 3, 1939, Washington, May 5, 1939, Philadelphia, May 3, 1939, Washington, May 12, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1930. 16 mimeographed pages.
 Assessment of real estate for the purpose of taxation. (paper read at the fourth annual conference on business and government in New Mexico, University of New Mexico, Albuquerque, Dec. 4, 1937.) 29 typewritten pages.
 Place of accounting in the changing social order; address at the Mountain states accounting conference. Salt Lake City, Utah, May 31, 1938. 41 typewritten pages. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 89-101.)
 Public accounting. Diary of Alpha kappa psi, May 1938, p. 25.
 Relationship of the American institute of accountants, to the profession of accountants, 1939, p. 3.
 Report of the president. Journal of accountancy, Nov, 1938, p. 266-95: Oct. 1939, p. 223.6.
 Text of radio address from radio station KSL, Salt Lake City, Tuesday, May 31, 1938. (in connection with Mountain states accounting conference.) 4 typewritten pages.
 Toastmaster's address. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 164-5.)

- 1937. p. 164-5.)

COLLOQUY on branch banking. James, F. Cyril.

COLM, GERHARD

- OLM, GERHARD
 Basis of federal fiscal policy. Taxes—the tax magasine, June 1939, p. 338-40, 369-70.
 Public revenue and public expenditure in national income. (in National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 175-227; discussion, p. 228-48.)
 Significant tax legislation in foreign countries. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 526-39.)
- 526-39.)

COLORADO H. 575; an act to specify the qualifications of certified public accountants and registered ac-countants; to regulate the services performed and the reports issued by them; providing for the col-lection and disposition of fees; providing for the administration hereof; amending or repealing all acts or parts of acts in conflict herewith, and providing penalties for the violation of this act. (approved June 1, 1937.) Certified public ac-countant, July 1937, p. 19-27.

COLORADO, STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY Practice of public accountancy in Colorado. Denver, Colo., State board of accountancy, Sept. 20, 1938. 27p.

- COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY. SCHOOL OF BUSINESS LIBRARY
- Exhibition of selected books and manuscripts from the Montgomery library of accountancy; South Hall, Columbia university, October 1937. New York, Columbia university, 1937. 24p.

OLUMBUS AND SOUTHERN OHIO ELECTRIC COLUMBUS

Retirement annuity plan. Columbus, Ohio, Columbus and southern ohio electric co., Sept. 1, 1938. 7p.

COMBS, B. L

Responsibility of the controller to management. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 20-2.

- COMMENT on State street trust co. v. Ernst de-ferred. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- COMMENTARIES on the companies act, 1929. Accountant student, Aug. 1939, p. 88-9; Sept. 1939, p. 102-3; Oct. 1939, p. 127-8; Nov. 1939, p. 155; Dec. 1939, p. 182-3.
- COMMENTARY on federal income taxes. Knoeller, Herman M.

COMMENTATOR: A DEPARTMENT See Cranstoun, William D., editor.

- **COMMENTS** and criticisms on "A statement of ac-counting principles" prepared by Thomas Henry Sanders, Henry Rand Hatfield and Underhill Moore. Morris, A. W.
- COMMENTS and descriptions in annual reports of corporations. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 193-6.
- **COMMENTS** on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds." Cain, J. Harvey.
- **COMMENTS** on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds". Mills, Gail A.
- **COMMENTS** on "A statemen ciples". Paton, William A. statement of accounting prin-

COMMENTS on "A statement of accounting prin-cipes", by Wyman P. Fiske, James L. Dohr, and Andrew Barr. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 308-23.

COMMERCE

See also Export and import trade. ANGLO-AMERICAN trade agreement. Accoun-tant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 726-7.

COMMERCE-(Continued)

- BALLANTINE, ARTHUR A. Federal power over interstate commerce. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 26-
- CHOSSUDOWSKY, EUGEN M. Anglo-American trade. Accountants' magazine, March 1938, p. 155-64. 155-6
- COATES, W. H. Britain and the United States. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1938, p.

- Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 248-52.
 GRAVES, W. BROOKE. Uniform requisition and control of commerce. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 337-48.
 INTER-relation between law and commerce. Accountant, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 839-42.
 PATMAN, WRIGHT. Interstate and intra-state commerce. (In his Robinson-Patman act; what you can and cannot do under this law. c1938, p. 224-34.)
 THOMPSON, R. R. Debt of culture to commerce. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 48-60.

- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC.
 Accountancy law service; reporting the laws, regulations, codes of ethics, decisions and ruings on the subject of public accountancy; published in cooperation with American institute of accountants. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, loose leaf.
 Board of tax appeals service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, c1939. loose leaf.
 - leaf.

leaf.
Board of tax appeals table of petitioners and docket disposition table. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 472 p.
Canadian tax service. 3v. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. loose-leaf.
Corporation laws of New York, revised to January 1, 1937. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937. 308p.

- Inc., 1937. 308p.
 Same, revised to June 7, 1937. 325p.
 Same, revised to September, 1939. 333p.
 Corporation tax service; state and local. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937, c1938, c1938. c1939. 59v.

- 187p
- ¹⁸/p.
 Federal revenue laws, January, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 287p.
 Federal tax service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 4v.
 Same, c1937.

- ments in place, related statutes, explanatory com-ment, finding lists, topical index. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. loose-leaf. Labor law service. ed. 2 New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. loose-leaf
- loose-leaf.
- Law regulating commodity exchanges (approved June 15, 1936) an act amending the grain futures

act. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 15p.

- Massachusetts security valuations; approved lists of stock and bod values as of January 1, 1916 and official circular letters establishing the basis for computing gain or loss or other taxable income under the Massachusetts personal income tax law. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 136p.
- hinder the Massachusetts personal income tax law. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 136p.
 New and amended sections revenue act 1936, with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 80p.
 New business laws, 73d congress, 2d session, January 3, 1934 to June 18, 1934; the texts of twenty-one selected new laws of general application (other than agriculture) originally published as New deal laws. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1934. 196p.
 New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1935; the texts of twenty-five selected new laws of general application (other than agriculture). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1935. 288p.
 New York and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes). ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 313p.
 1937 revenue act (the loophole law), with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 313p.
 Official regulations regarding federal old-age benefits (payroll taxes). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 50p.
 Procedure and practice before the United States board of tax appeals, including court rules for review, rules of board of tax appeals, specimen forms, code of evidence of District of Columbia. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. Sp.
 Procedure and practice before the United States board of tax appeals, including court rules for review, rules of board of tax appeals, specimen forms, code of evidence of District of Columbia. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1936, with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. Sp.

- 198p.

- 206p.

- 206p. Securities act service; federal regulation of issue of securities. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937, c1938, c1939. loose-leaf. Social security act, as amended 1939; with explana-tion and charts of new provisions. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 131p. Standard federal tax service, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 5v. loose-leaf leaf.

- loose-leaf.
- Stock rights tables, 1925-1936, with data for allocat-ing cost or other basis for income tax purposes. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937. 84p.
- -Same. 1925-38, c1939. 92p.
- Tax control diary, 1939. 38, c1939, 92p. Tax control diary, 1939. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 643p. Tax law of the state of New York, constituting chapter 60 of the consolidated laws, as of Novem-ber 1935. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1935. 217p.
- Tax law of the state of New York, with article 4 secs. 130-9, of state departments law, as of August 1939. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 317p.

COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC.—(Continued)

- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC.—(Continued)
 Taxes or dividends? Charts and formulas for determining corporation normal and undistributed profits taxes under the revenue act of 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 18p.
 Originally published under the title "Charts and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and surfax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936."
 United States master tax guide, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 235p.
 ——Same, 1937. c1937. 240p.
 ——Same, 1938, c1938. 255p.
 ——Same, 1939. c1939. 240p.
 United States, supreme court business law determined and the suprement of the suprement court business law determined and the suprement court business law deter

- Same, 1939, c1939, 240p.
 United States supreme court business law decisions, 1935-1936; selected decisions affecting business (except tax cases) New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 159p.
 Same, 1938-1939, c1939, c22p.
 S. Supreme court selected death tax cases, 1898 to 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 195p.
 S. tax cases. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938.

COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE INC.

- RUDOLPH, R. R. Commerce clearing house. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on ac-counting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 224.)
- **COMMERCE** department memorandum on natural business year. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 14-6.
- COMMERCIAL algebra. Crenshaw, Bolling H., Simp-son, Thomas Marshall and Pirenian, Zareh M.

COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION See Arbitration and award.

- COMMERCIAL bank management; loan administra-tion policies. American bankers association. Bank management commission.
- COMMERCIAL banking from the standpoint of agri-culture. Scherich, Edgar R.
- **COMMERCIAL** banking reform in the United States. Watkins, Leonard L.
- COMMERCIAL bookkeeping law in Latvia. (from Latvian economic review) Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 260-3.

COMMERCIAL CORRESPONDENCE

- DMMERCIAL CORRESPONDENCE BUSINESS letters. (In Business executive's hand-book. 1937. p. 135-224.)
 DUDDY, EDWARD A. AND OTHERS. Business correspondence and office management. Chicago, III., American technical society, c1938. 234p.
 TAINTOR, SARAH AUGUSTA AND MONRO, KATE M. Secretary's handbook; a manual of correct usage, ed. 5, rev. New York, Macmillan co. 1938. 512m. co., 1938. 512p.
- COMMERCIAL CREDIT COMPANIES See Credit companies: Finance companies.

COMMERCIAL CRIME See Defalcation; Fraud; Forgery.

COMMERCIAL DISCOUNT See Discount.

COMMERCIAL FACTORING See Factoring.

COMMERCIAL FRAUD See Fraud.

- COMMERCIAL LAW
 ACCOUNTANT and legal knowledge. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 855-7.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Suggestions to candidates for commercial law examinations. Journal of ac-countancy, March 1938, p. 232-7.

- DOHR, JAMES L. Business-law training for students of accounting. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 77-80.
 DOHR, JAMES L. Law of business. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 659p. (University ac-counting series, edited by Roy B. Kester)
 DOHR, JAMES L. Law of business; cases and questions. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 121p.

- 121p.
 HIBSCHMAN, HARRY. Everyman's legal manual. New York, National library press, c1938. 206p.
 KERR, THOMAS S. Business law; principles and cases. ed. 2 New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1939. 1048p.
 MARSHALL, FRANCIS W. Layman's legal guide to essential laws. New York, Blue ribbon books, inc., c1934. 346p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CREDIT MEN. Credit manual of commercial laws, 1937. New York, National association of credit men, c1936. 572p. 572p.
- 572p. Same, 1938. 714p. Same, 1939. 762p. Same, 1940. 761p. PICKAR, GEORGE H. Law of business relations. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1937. 3v. ROWLEY, ERIC N. Mercantile law. Australian accountants, Nov. 1936, p. 350-64. WHY must accountants study law? Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 129.30.
- 129-30.

- Examination questions GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, November 1935. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 303-9. GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in Dependent of construction. Sent

 - April 1936, p. 303-9.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, May 1936. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 217-22.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, November 1936. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 307-13.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, May 1937. Journal of accountancy, supple-ment, Jan. 1938, p. 58-64.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, November 1937. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 58-64.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, November 1937. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 58-62.
 MARDER, LOUIS. C.P.A. law review—questions with answers. Accountants digest, June 1937, p. 468-73; Sept. 1937, p. 60-4; Dec. 1938, p. 444-8; Sept. 1938, p. 326-31; June 1939, p. 328-35.
 March 1938, p. 20-4; Dec. 1938, p. 143-7; March 1939, p. 233-40; June 1939, p. 328-37.
 MuLL, SAMUEL. New York C.P.A. commercial law questions, 1924-1933; with answers prepared by Samuel Null. 2v. New York, C.P.A. examina-tions review, c1937. not paged.
 Same, 19341938, v.3. not paged.
 Same, 19341

COMMERCIAL PAPER See Negotiable instruments.

COMMISSARIES

Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Commissaries. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 261-74.)

COMMISSION MERCHANTS

See Consignments; Factoring.

COMMISSIONER Healy's address. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 2-3.

COMMISSIONS

- See also Professional ethics—Commissions. SALES commissions on annual report of invest-ment trust. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 456-7. SAXE, EMANUEL. Commissions. (In his Estate accounting, 1939. p. 109-34.)

COMMITMENTS

- COMMITMENTS
 See also Liabilities, Contingent.
 ADVANCED purchases of seasonal merchandise.
 (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy,
 July 1938, p. 49-50.
 BREDEMEYER, GEORGE W. Commitments.
 New York certified public accountant, March
 1939, p. 261-5, discussion, p. 269-74.
 CONTINGENT liabilities and commitments; a
 round-table. New York certified public accountant
 tant, March 1939, p. 257-74.
 GETZ, JOSEPH. Difference between contingent
 liabilities and material commitments, New York
 certified public accountant, March
 1939, p. 257-74.
 GETZ, JOSEPH. Difference between contingent
 liabilities and material commitments, New York
 certified public accountant, March
 1939, p. 257-74.
 Second S
- certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 257-
- certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 257-61, discussion, p. 269-74. NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Inventory losses. (letter to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange.) Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 230. NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Letter dated January 14, 1938, to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange, regarding the treatment in accounting statements of inventory losses and the differences between the present losses and the differences between the present prices and the cost of goods contracted for but not yet received. New York, New York stock ex-change. 1938. 3p.

COMMODITIES

- See also Specific commodities, i.e., Cotton; Rub-ber; Silk; etc. NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. International raw commodity price control, by Robert F. Martin. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., c1937. 166p. UNINTENTIONAL
- NINTENTIONAL discrimination. (Ed Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 5-8. (Editorial)

Statistics COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc., 1939. 616p.

COMMODITY BROKERS

- Accounting McLAUGHLIN, L. B. Accounting for commodity brokers. Pathfinder service bulletin, May 1937, p.
- PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR. Commodity broker-age. (In his Brokerage accounting, 1939. section 1-98.)
 - 6, p. 1-98.)
 TODMAN, FREDERICK S. Address before Association of stock exchange firms, senior margin clerks' section. New York, Association of stock exchange firms, Nov. 25, 1938. 24p.

COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC.

- Law regulating commodity exchanges (approved June 15, 1936) an act amending the grain futures act. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 15p.
- TODMAN, FREDERICK S. Address before Asso-ciation of stock exchange firms, senior margin clerks' section. New York, Association of stock exchange firms, Nov. 25, 1938. 24p.

COMMODITY EXCHANGES

- Government regulation COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Law regulating commodity exchanges (approved June 15, 1936) an act amending the grain futures act. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936.
 - New York, Commerce clearing nouse, inc., e.s.e., 15p.
 TEXT of commodity exchange act—measure provides regulation for trading in major commodity markets similar to that exercised by SEC over securities. Commercial and financial chronicle, June 27, 1936, p. 4245-8.
 TODMAN, FREDERICK S. Address before Association of stock exchange firms, senior margin clerks' section. New York, Association of stock exchange firms, Nov. 25, 1938. 24p.

COMMODITY LOANS

See Loans.

COMMODITY PRICES

See Prices.

- COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc., 1939. 616p.
- COMMON CARRIERS

See Electric and street railroads; Express com-panies; Motor buses; Motor transportation; Motor trucks; Railroads; Ships and shipping.

COMMON stock theory of investment; its develop-ment and significance. Bosland, Chelcie C.

COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY Service annuity system and related trust agree-ment. Chicago, Ill., January 1, 1937. 24p.

- COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNT-ANTS

 - ANTS Handbook of activities; activities and services. Melbourne, Commonwealth institute of accoun-tants (1939). 32p. Proceedings of jubilee celebrations held in Sydney, March, 1937. Melbourne, Commonwealth institute of accountants, 1937. 82p. Year book, 1935. Melbourne, Commonwealth in-stitute of accountants, 1936. 172p. ______Same, 1937. 171p.

- Victorian division Commonwealth accountants' library. Catalogue of books in Melbourne library. Melbourne, Com-monwealth accountants' library, 1939. 40p. Victorian companies act, 1938; a summary of the principal changes in the law, with special refer-ence to the new provisions relating to accounts. Melbourne, Commonwealth institute of accoun-tants, Victorian division, 1939. 111p.

Western Australian division Incidence of income taxation as it applies to pri-vate companies incorporated in Western Aus-tralia. Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 282-97.

COMMONWEALTH institute of accountants jubilee celebrations. Australian accountant. April 1937, p. 160-71. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 327-30.

COMMUNICATIONS

See Confidential communications.

COMMUNITY property. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 245-6.

COMPANIES

See Corporations.

COMPANIES' ACT See Corporations-Law.

- COMPANIES act, 1929. Accountant student, May 1939, p. 5-6; June 1939, p. 31; July 1939, p. 55-6.
- **COMPANIES** bill 1938 (Victoria); notes compiled by a joint committee representing the Australasian institute of secretaries, Commonwealth institute of accountants, Federal institute of accountants, the Chartered institute of secretaries. Accountant, May 20, 1939, p. 673-7.
- COMPANY law; companies and the war. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1939, p. 301-3; Nov. 1939, p. 331-4; Dec. 1939, p. 363-6.
- COMPANY legislation in Australia. Accountant, May 20, 1939, p. 662-5.
- COMPANY legislation in India. Accountant, Jan. 30, 1937, p. 146-8.
- COMPARATIVE analysis of composite expense aver-age obtained by questionnaires from member agencies of the National association of insurance agents. National Association of insurance agents.

3

- COMPARATIVE brewery costs Goettsche, H. C. and company. and statistics.
- COMPARATIVE decorating costs based on a study of a typical office in a Chicago building. Buildings and building management, May 1939, p. 30.
- COMPARATIVE evaluation of occupations in indus-try. Finlay, W. W.
- COMPARATIVE figures on balance sheets. Accoun-tant, Jan. 15, 1938, p. 66-7.
- COMPARISON of the revenue acts of 1934 and 1936. United States, House of representatives.
- COMPARISON of weekly salaries of office employees. Management review, Aug. 1938, p. 262-3.
- COMPENSATING industrial effort; scientific study of work and wages. Dickinson, Z. Clark.

- COMPENSATION (DEFENCE) ACT (RREAT BRITAIN. Claims under the compensa-tion (defence) act-treasury rules. Accountant, Nov. 18, 1939, p. 554-7.
- COMPENSATION of executive officers of retail com-panies, 1928-1935, by John Calhoun Baker. Har-vard university. Graduate school of business administration.
- COMPENSATION ratemaking in New York state. State insurance fund.

COMPETITION

- OMPETITION
 See also Government competition with business; Professional ethics—bidding.
 COMPETITION with cost. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 161-3.
 EAKIN, FRANZY. Balancing production and con-sumption in our competitive system. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Oct. 1939, p. 1-2, 3-8.
 GASKELL, NELSON B. Regulation of competi-tion. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1936, p. 15-20, 24, 27.
 GUNNARSON, A. B. Distribution cost accounting in relation to problems of competition. (In Na-tional association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 277-87, discussion, p. 287-90.)
 LASHINS, IVAN R. New "NRA"? Credit execu-tive, Feb. 1937, p. 37-40.

- COMPETITION, UNFAIR DUNN, CHARLES WESLEY. Law upon resale pice protection; address delivered at the annual meeting of the Associated grocery manufactur-ers of America, inc., in New York City, on December 1, 1936. New York, The author, 1936.

 - fair competition. New York, Ronald press co., c1936, 218p.
 PERKINS, ROSS L. Accounting and the unfair-practices act. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects, 1939, p. 161-7.)
 RICHBERG, DONALD R. Suggestion for revision of the anti-trust laws. (reprinted from University of Pennsylvania law review, Nov. 1936) 14p.
 TANNENBAUM, ROBERT. Cost under the unfair practices acts. Chicago, III., University of Chicago press, c1939, 65p. (Studies in business administration, v. 9, no. 2.)
 - COMPETITION with cost. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1937, p. 161-3.

COMPETITIVE BIDDING

See Professional ethics-Bidding.

COMPETITIVE bidding. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 28; March 1938, p. 2-6; Aug. 1938, p. 19; Sept. 1938, p. 13.

斩

- COMPETITIVE bidding. (Correspondence) Brelsford, J. K.
- COMPETITIVE bidding. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Dec. 1937, p. 406-7; March 1938, p. 188-9; May 1938, p. 361-3; Sept. 1939, p. 148.
- COMPETITIVE bidding. (editorial from Herald statesman, Yonkers, N. Y.) Certified public ac-countant, Aug. 1939, p. 14-5.
- **COMPETITIVE** bidding. (resolution adopted by the Central states accounting conference) Certified public accountant, July 1939, p. 17-8.
- COMPETITIVE bidding and solicitation. Rossetter, George W.
- **COMPETITIVE** bidding for accounting engagements. Illinois society of certified public accountants.
- **COMPETITIVE** bidding for accounting engagements; a statement by the Illinois society of certified public accountants. *Certified public accountant*, Oct. 1939, p. 1-3.
- **COMPETITIVE** bidding for audit engagements. American institute of accountants. Executive committee.
- COMPETITIVE bidding for municipal audits. Certi-fied public accountant, April 1938, p. 19-20.
- COMPETITIVE bidding for new issues of corporate securities. Stanley, Harold.
- COMPETITIVE bidding in Ireland. Irish accountant and secretary. May 1938, p. 76, 80.
- COMPETITIVE bidding not necessary. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 88-9.
- COMPETITIVE bids for municipal audits. Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 15-6.
- COMPLETE accounting course, edited by David Himmelblau. Contents: Himmelblau, D. Investigations for financing. c1936. Davies, E. C. Auditing. rev. ed. c1938.
- COMPLETE practical income tax. McBain, A. G.
- COMPLETE system of bookkeeping for electricity supply authorities. Hindman, James.
- COMPLETE topical index, N.A.C.A. publications. April, 1920 to January, 1936. National association of cost accountants.
- COMPLETE topical index, N.A.C.A. publications. April 1920 to January, 1939. National association of cost accountants.
- COMPOSITE experience of sales finance companies and automobile dealers, 1937. National association of sales finance companies.

COMPRESSING STATIONS See Pipe lines.

- COMPTON, WILLIAM H. Can it be done. Trenton, Nov. 1937, p. 17-8. Cost and profit trend charts and flexible budgets; presented at the 21st semi-annual meeting of the American gear manufacturers association, Skytop Lodge, Pennsylvania, October 10, 11, 12, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.

COMPTROLLER GENERAL

See United States. Comptroller general.

COMPTROLLER general; a study in the law and practice of financial administration. Mansfield, Harvey C.

COMPTROLLERS

See Corporations-Controllers.

- COMPULSORY audit of stock exchange transactions. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 423-4.
- COMPUTATION of depreciation in the laundry in-dustry, Baker, Benjamin G.
- COMPUTATION of federal and Pennsylvania taxes based on income, calendar year-1938. Reno, Edwin S.
- COMPUTATION of interdependent federal and Penn-sylvania income taxes. Reno, Edwin S. and Butscher, W. Charles.
- **COMPUTATION** of working capital. (Accounting questions) *Journal of accountancy*, Nov. 1937, p. 385-6.
- COMPUTING rates and reporting time for employees operating several machines. (Questions and an-swers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 181-3.)
- CONCEPTION of taxable income. Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 610-2.
- CONCERNING the gnat and the camel-Reductio ad absurdum. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 233-5.

CONCESSIONS

HULL, F. BRYANT. Accounting for concession departments in retail department stores. Path-finder service bulletin, April 1938, p. 4-5.

CONCRETE

Cost accounting KUNKE, FRED E. Know your trucking costs. Rock products, Sept. 1939, p. 55, 62.

CONFECTIONERS' SUPPLIES Statistics

BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New operating yardsticks for five wholesale trades. *Dun's review*, Nov. 1937, p. 20-4.

CONFECTIONERY

- CONFECTIONERY
 Cost accounting
 BENNETT, CLINTON W. AND FISKE, WYMAN P. Hattie Hicks sweets company; case study of a cost plan for a small confectionery plant. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, May 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v 17, no. 18, section 1, p. 1065-93.)
 NATIONAL CONFECTIONERS' ASSOCIA-TION. Cost system. Chicago, Ill. Tallman, Rob-bins & co. (no date) forms.

Statistics

- 42.)
- CONFERENCE on accounting practice and procedure; report to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney general

of the state of New York. McCall, Ambrose V. and Furman, Max.

- CONFERENCE ON RESEARCH IN NATIONAL IN-COME AND WEALTH See National bureau of economic research.

- CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATIONS See Professional ethics—Confidential communications.
- CONFIDENTIAL relationships in the professions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 328.

CONFIRMATION of receivables. Marvin, J. Arthur.

CONFIRMATIONS

See Accounts payable; Accounts receivable; Auditing; Bank confirmations; Certificates— Auditors'; Inventories—Verification; Notes pay-able; Notes receivable; Payables; Receivables.

CONGRESS convenes again. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4.

CONICK, M. C. Discussion of the report of the special committee on auditing procedure of the American institute of accountants, dated May 9, 1939. (In Pennsyl-vania institute of accountants—Harrisburg chap-ter, and the American institute of accountants. *Proceedings of the second accounting clinic*, October 20-21, 1939.) 6p.

CONKLIN, GROFF How to run a rental library. New York, R. R. Bowker co., 1934. 136p.

CONLEY, WILLIAM H. Accounting in the junior colleges. Accounting re-view, March 1939, p. 22-6.

CONNECTICUT

Tax commissioner

Duties and powers of independent public accoun-tants' periodic auditing of municipal accounts. Hartford, Conn., Tax commissioner, Oct. 1939. 31p.

CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Connecticut C.P.A. (Monthly bulletin) Room 601, 955 Main St., Bridgeport, Conn., Connecticut

- C.P.A.

- C.P.A. Constitution and by-laws, also Connecticut statutes pertaining to certified public accountants, revised to July 1, 1937. 30p. Directory of memhers—code of ethics—tax calen-dar, May 1, 1937. 19p. Full text of the committee on competitive bidding of the Connecticut Society of certified public accountants. New York, American institute of accountants, Nov. 10, 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.
- pages. Memorandum of committee on legislation concern-ing a uniform system of periodic auditing and accounting of all public moneys, state, county and municipal. Connecticut C.P.A., Jan. 1939,
- and municipal, connection of the second seco
- CONNECTICUT society program for cooperation with bar. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 16.

CONNELLY, WILLIAM F.

- Corporate taxation in Connecticut. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 153-6, 191-2. Income tax manual for New York state. New York, New York university, The author, c1938. 28p. and forms.

CONNIFF, EUGENE A.

- ONNIFF, EUGENE A.
 Income tax vs. tax on capital. Modern finance, Oct. 1, 1936, p. 153.
 New capital stock tax and excess-profits tax. Modern finance, July 16, 1936, p. 46.
 Surtax on undistributed profits. Modern finance, Oct. 15, 1936, p. 173-4.
 Surtax on undistributed profits—income producing. Modern finance, Nov. 1, 1936, p. 207.

CONOVER, JOHN L. Customers' accounting system, Public service elec-tric and gas company. (In American gas asso-ciation. Proceedings, 1935. p. 240-51, discus-sion, p. 251-5.) American gas journal, Dec. 1935, p. 19-22, 34.

- CONRAD, MORTON S. Some suggestions for changes in the federal in-come tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 713-8.
- **CONSENSUS** of major recommendations submitted by states societies and others relative to amend-ments to the revenue act of 1936. *Certified pub-lic accountant*, March 1937, p. 20-1.

CONSIGNMENTS

See also Factoring.

- Accounting FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Consignments. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 427-38.)
 IRWIN, E. W. Butter consignment accounts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 459-67. KESTER, ROY B. Accounting for sales and consignments. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939, p. 636-55.)
 PATON, W. A. Consignments and branch ac-counts. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 581-99.)

 - Counts. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 581-99.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Types of business organization— accounting considerations. (In their Principles of accounting, rev. ed. 1937. p. 262-93.)
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY and WAL-LACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Consignments. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938. p. 531-43.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Consignments. (In their Intermediate ac-counting. 1938. p.245-58.)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS See Balance sheets-Consolidated.

- CONSOLIDATED EDISON COMPANY OF NEW YORK, INC.
 - Provisional retirement plan. New York, Consoli-dated Edison co. of New York, inc., March 1, 1936. 13p.
- CONSOLIDATED financial statements. Kracke, Edward A.
- CONSOLIDATED financial statements. Stempf, Victor H.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS See Statements, Consolidated.

- CONSOLIDATED statements of railway companies. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7-10.
- CONSOLIDATION. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 516-7.
- NSOLIDATION of balance-sheets of domestic corporations with those of foreign subsidiary. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April, 1937, p. 298. CONSOLIDATION

CONSOLIDATIONS

- See also Holding companies.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Methods of amalgamation and the valuation of business for amalgamation and other purposes. London, G. Bell and sons, Itd., 1938. 336p.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Consolidation. (In his Comparison for graves and solidation).

- Itd., 1938. 336p.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Consolidation. (In his Corporation finance. c1938. p.256-413.)
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Consolidations. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 607-78.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Bethlehem-Youngstown merger suit. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 317-36.)
 RECONSTRUCTIONS and amalgamations; a lecture delivered before the London students' society of the Chartered institute of secretaries. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 73-7.
 STATUTORY merger and consolidation of corporations. Yale law journal, Nov. 1935, p. 105-34.
- of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 243-4. ZIMERING, MAX. Notes on consolidations. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 20-4.

Accounting

- accounting
 COOPER, STUART R. Consolidated accounts— another view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 164-5, MacDONALD, O. R. Absorptions; points arising out of the absorption of one company by another. Australian accountant, May 1938, p. 301-6.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Merger of corpora-tions. (In his Accounting for corporations, 1937. p. 199-211.)
 MINORITY interests on consolidated balance-sheat (Accounting on consolidated balance)

- MINORITY interests on consolidated balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1936, p. 227-8.
 ROBSON, T. B. Construction of consolidated ac-counts; some points to be taken into consideration. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1936. 47p. (Accountant lecture series no. 44.) Accountant, March 7, 1936, p. 364-72.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Mergers; stock allotment—Holding companies and consolidated balance sheets. (In their Inter-mediate accounting, 1938. p. 313-51.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, releases no. 3. (write-ups in the consolidation of accounts) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange
- wiNCOTT, H. E. Consolidated accounts-one view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 162-3.

- Auditing
 BACAS, PAUL E. and OTHERS. Consolidated accounts. (In their Auditing procedure. c1937. p. 407-13.)
 KOHLER, E. L. Some tentative propositions underlying consolidated reports. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 63-77.
 KRACKE, EDWARD A. Consolidated financial statements. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 372-89 (In V. internationaler prüfungs. und treuhand.kongress. Kongress.archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 135-60.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Working papers for larger consolidations. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 345-60.)

- Cost accounting DAVIDSON, H. C. Cost allocations in combina-tion companies. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 493-5, 498.
- Great Britain
 COOPER, STUART R. Auditing of concerns. Accountant. Oct. 1, 1938, p. 461-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema S. p. 71-89, under title "Auditing of combines.")
 PALMOUR, CHARLES J. G. Auditing of concerns. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 10-4. Accountant, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 493-8, dis-

CONSOLIDATIONS-Great Britain-(Continued)

cussion, p. 498-9. (In V. internationaler prü-fungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress. archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 1-17, under title "Auditing of combines.") VICKERS, GEOFFREY. Legal obstacles to industrial integration. Accountant, Nov. 20, 1937 p. 605-9.

Mustrial integration. Accountant, Nov. 20, 1937, p. 695-9.
 WINCOTT, H. E. Consolidated accounts—one view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 162-3.

CONSTRUCTION

See Building construction; Contractors; Engi-neering; Roads and highways.

- **CONSTRUCTION** cost analysis of vessels building in the United States yards. Eastern under-writer, Feb. 17, 1939.
- **CONSTRUCTION** costs analyzed on large apartment building; breakdown of all costs on Knicker-bocker Village housing project in New York shows direct labor gets 32½ per cent of build-ing dollars, while 42.4 per cent goes for materials and 25.1 per cent is for overhead and miscel-laneous items. *Engineering news-record*, Dec. 19, 1935, p. 851-2.

CONSTRUCTION costs; the construction industry year book. New York, Engineering news-record, c1936. 127p. Same, 1937. 160p.

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY See Contractors; Engineering.

CONSTRUCTION of an index of business activity. Accountant, Jan. 9, 1937, p. 55-6.

- CONSTRUCTION of consolidated accounts; some points to be taken into consideration. Robson, T. B.
- CONSTRUCTIVE industrial practices. National association of manufacturers.

CONSUMER COOPERATIVES

See Cooperative stores and associations.

- CONSUMER co-operatives (from the Index, lished by the New York trust company) and management, Feb. 1937, p. 52-9. pub-Cost
- (EL) CONTADOR Colombiano; el organo oficial de la Asociacion Colombiana de contadores. Aparta-dos: Nacional 29, Aereo 32, Cartegena, Colombia.

CONTAINERS See also Bottles; Boxes, packing cases, etc.; Cans; Paper boxes.

- Accounting ACCOUNTING for butane cylinders. 2 typewritten
 - GOETTSCHE, H. C. Correspondence. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 229-31. NATIONAL
 - CONTAINER ASSOCIATION.
 - NATIONAL CONTAINER ASSOCIATION. Cost and accounting manual for a corrugated and solid fibre shipping container plant. Chicago, Ill., National container association, c1935. 98p.
 PRIEBE, E. P. Skelgas company's plan of con-tainer control. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 18, no. 22, section 1, p. 1247-57.)
 RETURNABLE containers. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 402-3.
 - 402.3
 - 402.3.
 SMITH, CHARLES W. Accounting for returnable containers. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 22, section 1, p. 1258.75.) Printed with: Priebe, E. P. Skelgas company's plan of container control. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 17-29.
 VASOLL, HERBERT H. Beverage accounting; accounting for containers and deposits on containers as applied to breweries. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 275-81.

ZIMMERMAN, R. C. Accounting for returnable containers. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p. 35-40.

Cost accounting NATIONAL CONTAINER ASSOCIATION. Cost and accounting manual for a corrugated and solid fibre shipping container plant. Chicago, Ill., National container association, c1935. 98p.

Statistics

tatistics UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on manufacturers of containers and closures other than paper or wood, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project spon-sored by the Securities and exchange commis-sion. New York, Works progress administration, May 1939. 57p. (Report no. 14.)

CONTESTS

See Prizes and contests.

CONTINGENT FEES

See Professional ethics-Contingent fees.

CONTINGENT fees in Great Britain—Canadian view of the matter. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1936, p. 6-7.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES See Liabilities, Contingent.

CONTINGENT liabilities of the English commer-cial banks with an introductory essay on their published accounts. Holgate, H. C. F.

CONTINUING PROPERTY RECORDS

See Property-Accounting.

CONTRACTORS

See also Building construction.

Accounting

- See also Building construction.
 Accounting
 CONTRACTORS' accounting; weekly forum. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 32-6.
 ELLIS, GEORGE D. Accounting for construction projects. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-55.)
 ELLIS, GEORGE PRICE. Employe or inde-pendent contractor? Roads and streets, April 1937, p. 44-5.
 ELLIS, GEORGE PRICE. Interstate employment; second of a series of articles on the federal social security law as it affects contractors. Roads and streets, May 1937, p. 36-7.
 HUDSON, H. Accountancy for builders. Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 258-60.
 TROTTER, HUGH BERRY. Accounting for gen-eral contractors. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 214-20.
 WALKER, FRANK R. Practical accounting and cost keeping for contractors; illustrating and describing in easy, understandable language, bookkeeping and accounting systems for con-tractors, giving complete instructions and ex-amples of the proper methods of keeping time and compiling costs on all classes of construc-tion work. Chicago, Ill., Frank R. Walker co., 1938, ed. 3, 169p.
 WILTSHIRE, PERCY E. Small contractors' ac-counts and costs. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 232-45. Indian accountant, Par. 1938, p. 1, 3-8.
 tuditing PRESCRIBED certificates. (Editorial) Invended af PRESCRIBED certificates. (Editorial) Invended af

Auditing PRESCRIBED certificates. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 1-2. SMAILS, R. G. H. Contracting and engineering companies. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 291-5.)

Cost accounting DUFFIELD, R. W. Terminal costs, Cost accoun-tant, June 1936, p. 9-13. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 140-8.

CONTRACTORS—Cost accounting—(Continued)

- ONTRACTORS—Cost accounting—(Continued)
 JAMES, CHARLES C. Managerial control through cost accounting for construction work. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19 no. 13, section 1, p. 756-77.) Printed with: Ellis, George D. Accounting for construction projects.
 WALKER, FRANK R. Practical accounting and cost keeping in easy, understandable language, bookkeeping and accounting systems for con-tractors, giving complete instructions and ex-amples of the proper methods of keeping time and compiling costs on all classes of construc-tion work. Chicago, 111., Frank R. Walker co., 1938. ed. 3. 169p.

- Statistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of general contractors. (In their 1936 retail swreys, report no. 58.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios for building contractors. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1937. p. 49, 77, 103, 130, 188-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to finan-cial stability. c1936. p. 26-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 26-7.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 20-1.)
- CONTRACTORS' accounting; weekly forum. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 32-6.

- CONTRACTS See also Vinson act. ACCOUNTING treatment of sums repaid to gov-ernment under Vinson act. Controller, March

 - erinment under Vinson act. Controller, March 1939, p. 88-9. DEFENCE contracts: costs and profits. (extracts from report) Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 176-7. GLASS, SPAULDING F. Excess profit on war materials under the Vinson act. Marine engi-neering and shipping review, Oct. 1938, p. 445-7, 476 Borginted.
 - 476. Reprinted GOVERNMENT contracts and costing. Accoun-tant, Nov. 12, 1938, p. 675-6. GOVERNMENT contracts and costs. Accountant,

 - Aug. 27, 1938, p. 280-2. GOVERNMENT contracts—principles and pro-cedure. N.A.M. law digest, Nov. Dec. 1939, p.
 - GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Negli-gence and breach of contract, (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 392-4. MUNKMAN, J. H. International contracts to pay

 - MUNKMAN, J. H. International contracts to pay money. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 81-5.
 NATIONAL COUNCIL OF AMERICAN SHIP-BUILDERS. Summary of treasury department, bu-reau of internal revenue, on matters pertaining to the Vinson act. New York, National council of American shipbuilders, 1935. mimeographed. NEW "McLintock agreement". Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 177-8.
 NO-PROFIT contract and rearmament. Accoun-tant, March 19, 1938, p. 378-80.
 QUANTUM meruit. Accountant, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 826-7.

 - 826-2

 - p. 826-7. SHEALEY, R. PRESTON. Law of government contracts (federal contracts) ed. 3. Washington, D. C., Federal pub. co., inc., 1938. 537p. supplement, 1939. 68p. UNITED STATES. Labor, Department of, Reg-ulations prescribed by the secretary of labor under public act no. 846, seventy-fourth con-gress (series a). (Sept. 14, 1936) Washing-ton, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 7n. 7p.

Cost-plus

- STALKER, W. H. Cost in relation to contracts on a percentage basis. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 414-20, discussion, p. 420-1. Accountant, Oct. 3, 1936, p. 461-6. Cost and management, Sept. 1936, p. 260-76.
- CONTROL and use of costs in motor truck opera-tion. Church, Harold B.

- CONTROL of capital issues. Accountant, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 419-22.
- CONTROL of direct and indirect labor costs. Martin. A.
- CONTROL of direct labor cost variance in a metal goods factory. Makepeace, R. S.
- CONTROL of fixed trusts. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 29-31.
- CONTROL of guests' safe deposit boxes in hotels. Brodner, Joseph.
- CONTROL of overheads. Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 510-2.
- CONTROLLABLE loss factors in the baking indus-try. Lindsay, John R.

CONTROLLERS

See Corporations-Controllers.

- CONTROLLERS' CONGRESS OF THE NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. See National retail dry goods association. Con
 - trollers' congress.
- CONTROLLERS describe procedures in compiling report forms SS-2a. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 296-8, 300-3, 305.
- CONTROLLERS enthuse over prospect of standard-izing accounting principles. Controller, April 1938, p. 96-8.

CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA

- CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA
 Budget methods and procedures of manufacturing companies, as presented in the 1938 spring conference of controllers conducted by Controllers institute of America, New York, Controllers institute of America, e1938. 40p.
 Comments, suggestions, and criticism with respect to the Federal power commission's tentative draft of a uniform system of accounts prescribed for public utilities and licensees subject to the provisions of the federal power act (approved August 26, 1935). New York, Controllers institute of America, March 31, 1936. 57p.
 Controllers' committee emphasizes some general standard routines. Controller, Aug. 1938, p. 220-4.
- 220-4.
- standard routines. Controller, Aug. 1938, p. 220-4. Last-in, first-out inventorying takes care of wide fluctuations. Controller, May 1939, p. 160-4. Median, minimum and maximum monthly salary paid employees in fifteen job classifications by companies in New York, Philadelphia and Cincinnati areas, also job duties and qualifications. New York, Controllers institute of America (July 1939). mimeographed. 1935 year book; proceedings of the fourth annual meeting, the Waldorf-Astoria, New York, Controllers institute of America, 1936. 1579. 1936 year book; proceedings of the fifth annual meeting, the Waldorf-Astoria, New York city, September 16, 17, 1936. 1869. 1936 year book; proceedings of the fifth annual meeting, the Waldorf-Astoria, New York city, Oct. 5, 6, 1936. 1869. 1937 year book; proceedings of the sixth annual meeting, the Waldorf-Astoria, New York city, Octoer 4, 5, 1937. 209p. 1938 year book; proceedings of the seventh annual meeting, the Waldorf-Astoria, New York city, Octoer 4, 5, 1937. 209p.

Committee on cooperation with Treasury department CONTROLLERS institute's suggestions for im-provement of federal tax laws. (memorandum by committee) Controller, Dec. 1938, p. 356-65.)

CONTROLLING ACCOUNTS FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 155-68.) INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Controlling account technique. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 259-76.

NÉWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS.

CONTROLLING ACCOUNTS-(Continued)

- Controlling accounts—(Continued)
 Controlling accounts. (In their Elementary accounting, c1938, p. 138-53.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Controlling accounts and subsidiary ledgers. (In his Essentials of accounting, 1938, p. 163-79.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Controlling accounts and subsidiary ledgers. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 184-98.)
- CONTROLLING profits and cash through the budget. Robinson, Goldsborough.
- **CONTROLLING** the differences between corporate accounting and tax accounting. Cooper, Walter A

CONVENTIONS

See Accountants' societies; Societies, associations, etc.

- CONVERSE, PAUL D. Essentials of distribution. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 588p. Shall we tax the chains? Bulletin of the National tax association, Dec. 1936, p. 88-93.
- CONVERSION of shares into stock. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Aug. 1936, p. 477-83.

CONVEYING AND HOISTING See Elevators.

- CONWAY, EDMUND J. Staff training. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 119-26.
- COOK, FRANKLIN H. Sale as a test of income realization. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 355-67.

COOK, FREDERICK Cotton importing, finance and marketing. Accoun-tant, Oct. 16, 1937, p. 520-8.

COOKE, SIDNEY M.

Floor plan ratios as an aid in passing on finance paper. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 244-9.

COON, OWEN L.

Analysis of automobile repossessions. Robert Mor-ris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 227-30, 243.

COONS, EDWARD S., JR. No-man's land in depreciation deduction. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 455-7, 491, 492, 504.

COOPER, EDWARD J. Accounting for machines on loan. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 34.)

COOPER, HOWARD E. Elimination of fixed overhead expense from inven-tory and production costs under the standard cost plan. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 310-9, dis-cussion, p. 319-21.)

COOPER, R. M. Collector's viewpoint. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 6-9.

COOPER, STUART R.

- Auditing of concerns. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 461-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 71-89, under title "Auditing of combines".)
- Consolidated accounts—another view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 164-5.

COOPER, W. F.

Outline of profits. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, July 1938, p. 92-4.

COOPER, WALTER A.

- Business appeasement as reflected in the 1939 revenue act. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939,
- revenue act. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 80-91. Changes in federal tax laws, and important recent rulings. Controller, Feb. 1936, p. 26-34, dis-cussion, p. 34-8. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 135-42, 182-3. Changes in federal tax laws and some important decisions and rulings of the past year. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 33.44
- 33-44

- **CO-OPERATION** between hankers and accountants. Bulletin of the American institute of accoun-tants, Aug. 1936, p. 12-5.
- COÖPERATION between controllers and public ac-countants. Stempf. Victor H.
- COOPERATION between lawyers and accountants; a symposium. (transcript of a radio discussion. Law and layman series, broadcast from station WICC, Bridgeport, Conn., on Thursday, No-yember 11, 1937. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 2-6.
- COÖPERATION of accountants with bench and bar. Staub, Walter A.

COOPERATION WITH BANKERS

See Bankers and credit men, Cooperation with.

CO-OPERATION with bankers. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Sept. 1936, p. 25-6.

COOPERATION WITH CREDIT MEN

See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with.

- COÖPERATION with credit men. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 13; Sept. 1938, p. 18-0
- COOPERATION WITH INVESTMENT BANKERS See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with; Investment bankers association of America; Investment companies.

COOPERATION WITH LAWYERS See Lawyers, Coöperation with.

COOPERATION with public accountants. Blaine, E. L., Jr.

COOPERATION WITH STOCK EXCHANGES See Stock exchanges.

COOPERATION WITH THE BAR See Lawyers, Coöperation with.

mission.

COOPERATION with the S.E.C. American institute of accountants. Special committee on coöpera-tion with S.E.C.

COÖPERATION WITH THE SECURITIES AND EX-CHANGE COMMISSION See Stock exchanges-Government regulation; United States. Securities and exchange com-

COÖPERATION with the securities and exchange commission. Broad, Samuel J.

COÖPERATION with trade associations public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 14. associations. Certified

COOPERATIVE ACCOUNTING See Accounting, Coöperative.

- COOPERATIVE accounting? (Correspondence) Clader, Will-A.
- COOPERATIVE accounting? (Correspondence) Martin. Chester.

COÖPERATIVE accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 261.

COOPERATIVE ADVERTISING See Advertising.

COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATIONS See Cooperative stores and associations.

COOPERATIVE LEAGUE

Accounting bureau PRIMER of bookkeeping for coöperatives. New York, Coöperative league, Accounting bureau, York, Coö c1937, 40p.

COOPERATIVE MARKETING ASSOCIATIONS See Cooperative stores and associations.

COOPERATIVE STORES AND ASSOCIATIONS

- COOPERATIVE STORES AND ASSOCIATIONS See also Credit unions.
 CONSUMER co-operatives (from the Index, published by the New York trust company) Cost and management, Feb. 1937, p. 52-9.
 HEIMANN, HENRY H. "Will we ever learn?" Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 282-91.
 PALMER, JAMES L. What the consumer co-operative movement means to the retailer. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 10-6.)
 TERESHTENKO, VALERY J. and OSTRO-LENK, BERNARD. Literary development of coöperative principles and data. (Division of "Study of co-operation" project. . U. S.
 Works progress administration for the City of New York.) ed. 2. New York, Co-operative project, Oct. 1938. 42p.
 UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Early developments in coöperative cotton market-ing, by O. W. Hermann and Chastina Gardner. Washington, D. C., Farm credit administration, March 1936. 46p. (Circular no. C-101.)

Accounting

- accounting
 BRELSFORD, J. K. Accounting for farmers co-operative business associations. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 1, 3-5, 8.
 COOPERATIVE LEAGUE. Accounting bureau. Primer of bookkeeping for coöperatives. New York, Coöperative league, Accounting bureau, c1937, 40p.
 HEISMAN, M. J. Accounting for coöperative warehouse associations. Pathfinder service bul-letin, Oct. 1937, p. 1, 3-5.
 McNALL, PRESTON E. and McMURRY, KARL F. Agricultural bookkeeping. 1937. p. 159-202.
- KARL 159-202
- AXE, EMANUEL. Some notes on accounting for consumers' coöperatives. Accounting forum, Jan. 1938, p. 11, 17. UNITED STATES. Agriculture, Department of. Resettlement administration. Uniform report
- forms and accounting system for coöperative associations. Washington, D. C., Department of agriculture, Resettlement administration (1937).
- agriculture, Resettlement administration (1937). 41 mimeographed pages. UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Accounting principles for cooperative cotton gin associations, by Otis T. Weaver. Washington, D. C., Farm credit administration. 1936. 92p. (Bulletin no. 2.) UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Accounting procedure for cooperative grain elevators, by E. B. Ballow. Washington, D. C.,

- Farm credit administration. (Bulletin no. 28.) WISCONSIN. Agriculture and markets, Depart-ment of. System of accounts for coöperative associations. Madison, Wis., Department of agri-culture and markets, Oct. 1936. 59p. (Bulletin no. 174) Y., S. G. Accounts of co-operative companies manufacturing butter or cheese. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 436-43.

Auditing NEW YORK (state). Agriculture and markets, Commissioner of. Report of Commissioner of agriculture and markets regarding the audit of milk dealers and cooperative associations. Al-bany, N. Y., Commissioner of agriculture and markets, 1938. (Leglislative document (1938) no. 100.)

Statistics

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of
- UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of cooperatives—feed, fer-tilizer and fuel, petroleum, distributors, eleva-tors and assemblers. (In their 1937 retail sur-vey. survey nos. 20, 21, 22.) ARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Operating results of consumer co-operatives in the United States in 1937, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Graduate school of business administration, March 1939. 37p. (Bulletin no. 108.) HARVARD

- administration, March 1959. (Sumerin 40., 108.)
 OPERATIONS of retail coöperatives, 1936; summary. Monthly labor review, May 1938, p. 1068-84.
 UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Analysis of the business operations of coöperative cotton gins in Oklahoma, 1933-1934, by Otis T. Weaver and Omer W. Herrmann Washington, D. C., Government printing office, April 1937. 960. (Bulletin no. 12.)
 UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Statistics of farmers' coöperative business organizations, 1920-1935, by R. H. Elsworth. Washington, D. C., Farm credit administration, Coöperative division, May 1936. 129p. (Bulletin no. 6.) no. 6.)
- COORDINATING production and inventory control. Dolliver, E. P.

CO-PARTNERSHIP See Partnership; Wages, fees, etc.—Profit sharing.

COPE, W. J.

Cost system for a brewery. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 2-10.

COPELAND, M. A. Concepts of national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 3-34; discussion, p. 35-63.)

COPELAND, MELVIN T.

- Broblem of administering the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 156-73.
 Purpose of the Robinson-Patman act. (reprinted from Boston transcript) Indianapolis, Ind., Na-tional food brokers association, (1936). 29p.

COPELAND, MORRIS A. Aims and purposes of United States central sta-tistical board. Controller, July 1939, p. 236-7, 255.

COPELAND, W. Taxation of incomes, with special reference to social security taxation. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1939, p. 52-6.

COPPER

See Mining and metallurgy, Copper.

COPYRIGHTS

See Patents, copyrights, etc.

CORBETT, HENRY R. Pension funds: alternative methods of valuation. (In American institute of actuaries. Record, 1936. v. 25. p. 27-32.)

CORCORAN, WILLIAM N., joint compiler See Wolfe, S. Herbert, comp.

CORDAGE AND TWINE

Costs

UNITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1—the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washingon, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936. 34p.

Statistics
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Distribution of hard fibre cordage. by Howard T. Lewis. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, June 1930. 26p. (Bulletin no. 82)

authinistration, year of the second state of the seco

CORDLE, O. M.

Preparation and presentation of information re-quired in connection with federal income tax returns and related schedules. (paper presented at Mountain states accounting conference of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 9 typewritten pages.

CORDNER, JOHN J. Penalty tax on corporations improperly accumu-lating surplus. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1939, p. 1-10.

CORMACK. GEORGE P.

Cost estimating for a trucking company. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 6, section 1, p. 315-32.)

CORN

See Produce.

CORNELL UNIVERSITY. STATE COLLEGE OF

- ORNELL UNIVERSITY. STATE COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE
 MAUGHAN, ORLO H. Cost of store credit. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell university, State college of agriculture, April 1936. 26p. (Cornell exten-sion bulletin 349)
 WILLIAMSON, PAUL S. Costs and returns from farm enterprises from 82 cost-account farms, 1937. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell university, Oct. 1938. 35p. (Cornell extension bulletin, no. 395.)

- CORNS, MARSHALL C. Better bank management; analyzing the commer-cial account. Bankers magazine, July 1936, p. 89-92.
 - 89-92. Better bank management; arriving at costs and analyzing the bank. Bankers magazine, March 1936, p. 252-7. Better bank management; arriving at depart-mental item costs. Bankers magazine, June 1936,
 - p. 543-50.
 - Better bank management; assembling the budget. Bankers magazine, April 1936, p. 338-44.
- CORPORATE accountants' year book. Corporation of accountants, limited.
- CORPORATE accounting and the trade association. Rodgers, Frank G.
- CORPORATE reorganization to avoid payment of income tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1935, p. 134-42.
- CORPORATE reorganization under Chandler act. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATIONS See Reorganizations.

CORPORATE reorganizations. Stempf, Victor H.

CORPORATE reorganizations and the holding com-pany act. Fortas, Abe.

CORPORATE REPORTS See Reports.

CORPORATE SAVINGS See Corporations-Finance; Economics.

CORPORATE SURPLUS See Surplus.

CORPORATE secretary's manual and guide. Doris, Lillian and Friedman, Edith J.

CORPORATION finance. Field, Kenneth.

- CORPORATION finance. Hoagland, Henry E.
- CORPORATION laws of New York. Commerce clearing house, inc.

CORPORATION manual. Parker, John S. and Smith, J. B. R., ed.

CORPORATION tax service; state and local. Commerce clearing house, inc.

- CORPORATIONS
 ABBOTT, CHARLES CORTEZ. Federal corporations and corporate agencies. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 436-50
 CHART of a typical organization of a corporation. (In Controllers institute of America. Year book, 1937. facing p. 21.)
 DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Corporate secretary's manual and guide; a

 - 1937. facing p. 21.)
 DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Corporate secretary's manual and guide; a manual of legal principles involved in corporate organization and management and a guide to corporate procedure with forms. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 1528p.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Taxation; to be or not to be —incorporated? That is the question arising out of the revenue act of 1936. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 293-6. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems. p. 12-5.) Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 4-6.
 FISHER, ROBERT D., editor. Robert D. Fisher manual of extinct or obsolete companies. v. 5 New York, Robert D., Fisher, Successor to Marvyn Scudder and co., inc., 1937. 541p.
 FISHER, ROBERT D., editor. Robert D. Fisher manual of valuable and worthless securities, vol. 6. including vol. 5. New York, Robert D., Fisher & co., inc., 1938. 1008p.
 GROVES, HENRY M. Form of business organization; corporate v. partnership. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 581-2, 631.
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Accounting principles. c1939. p. 427-542.

 - PREST, W. Size of the business unit. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 38-50.

CORPORATIONS—(Continued)

Accounting

- See also Accounting—Standardization.
 ACCOUNTANCY and the press (S.E.C. and accounting practices). Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-7.
 ACCOUNTING research association Tentative statement of accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting association. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6.
 AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION. Executive committee. Tentative statements of accounting principles effecting corporate reports. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 187-91. Reprinted. 18p.
- Executive committee. Tentative statements of accounting principles effecting corporate reports. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 187-91. Reprinted. 18p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Statement by committees of American institute of accountants and New York state society of certified public accountants at a meeting with the Honorable John J. Bennett, Jr., Attorney general of the state of New York, January 6, 1939. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 206-15.
 Same. 23 mimeographed pages. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 206-15.
 Same. 23 mimeographed pages. Certified public accounting practice. Texas accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 4-6.
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Elements of corporation bookkeeping. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 205-18.)
 BERLE, A. A., JR. Accounting and the law. Accounting review, May 1938, p. 368-78.
 BLOUGH, CARMEN G. Relationship of the securities and exchange commission to the accountant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 23-39.

- BLOUGH, CARMEN G. Some accounting problems of the Securities and exchange commission; an address before the New York state society of certified public accountants, on January 11, 1937. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 3-14.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Corporation. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938, p. 322-69.)
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Cooperation with the Securities and exchange commission. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 78-89.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountants. New York certified public accountant. April 1936, p. 23-6.

- New York certified public accountants. New York certified public accountants. BYERLY, F. P. Formulation of accounting prin-ciples or conventions. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 93-9. CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting prin-ciples and practice. 1936. p. 66-105. CLADER, WILL-A. Comments (on "Formulation of accounting statements" by Byerly) June 19, 1937, at Sky Top, Pa. 16 typewritten pages. CONTROLLERS enthuse over prospect of stand-ardizing accounting principles. Controller, April 1938, p. 96-8. COOPER, WALTER A. Controlling the differ-ences between corporate

- ences between corporate accounting and tax ac-counting. (In National tax association, Round table discussion, Monday October 24, 1938.) (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938.) 147-55.)
- p. 147-55.)
 DISCLOSURES on corporation balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 112.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. On the treatment of corporate savings in the measurement of national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v.1. p. 113-42.)
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Corporations. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936, p. 255-88.)
 FRANK, JEROME N. Accounting for investors: the fundamental importance of corporate earning

'S' INDEX
power; address before the eighth annual meeting of the Controllers' institute of America, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, Oct. 10, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 295-304. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 380-5, 416.
GILMAN, STEPHEN, Accounting conventions and the corporation. (In his Accounting conventions and the corporation. (In his Accounting convertions of profit, c1939. p. 147-66.)
GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Corporations. (In their Accounting review, March 1937, p. 79-82.
GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 79-82.
GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting requirements of the S. E. C. Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange for work, The author, 1939, 631p.
HEALY, ROBERT E. Next step in accounting; address before the annual meeting of American accounting association at Hotel Chalfonte—Haddon Hall, Atlantic City, N. J., Monday, Dec. 27, 1937. 16 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 1-9.
HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 386-401. discussion by Arthur N. Lorig and Charles T. Sweeney. p. 401-6.
HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Corporation. (In his Accounting theory. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 241-53.
INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Corporation. (In his Accounting, c1937, p. 374-50.)
JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Corporations. (In his Frinciples of accounting. e1937, p. 374-50.)
IAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Corporations. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938, p. 241-53.)
KESTER, ROY B. Corporation. (In his Accounting. C1937, p. 374-50.)
JENHART, NORMAN J. Principles of accounting as applied to current practice of accounting as applied to current practice of accounting as applied to current practice. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 234-4.

- his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938. p. 201-56.)
 LENHART, NORMAN J. Principles of account-ing as applied to current practice. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 13-20, 23-4.
 LITTLETON, A. C. High standards of accounting. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 99-104.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Relation of function to prin-ciples. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 233-41.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Relation of function to prin-ciples. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Suggestions for the revision of the tentative statement of accounting prin-ciples. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Tests for principles. Ac-counting review, March 1938, p. 16-24.
 McCABE, GEORGE K. Need for greater accu-racy in corporate reserve accounting practices. Annalist, Nov. 13, 1936, p. 670, 685.
 McCALL, AMBROSE V. AND FURMAN, MAX. Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney gen-eral of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, 1939. New York, Grosby press, inc., 1939. 85p. (in-cludes proceedings)
 Maya 6 mimeographed pages. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13, with Institute reply.
- reply.
- MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Corporations. (In their Account-ing fundamentals. 1936. p. 326-82.)
- McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Corporation accounts and records. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 454-78.)
- Inelf Accounting principles. C1539. p. 454-76.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Accounting for corporations. Boston, Mass., The author, 1937. 412p.
 MATHEWS, GEORGE C. Address before the Milwaukee chapter, Wisconsin society of certified public accountants, Milwaukee, Wis., January 8, 1937. 15 mimeographed pages.
- MAY, GEORGE O. Accounting procedure and

CORPORATIONS-Accounting-(Continued)

- CORPORATIONS—Accounting—(Continued)
 the stock exchange. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 65-6.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Improvement in financial accounts; lectures on the A. Lowes Dickinson foundation graduate school of business administration, April 12-14, 1937, New York, The author, 1937. 57p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 333-69. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 503-7; May 14, 1938, p. 661-5; May 21, 1938, p. 701-5. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 42-56; Aug. 1938, p. 106-20; Sept. 1938, p. 200-12.
 MON'IGOMERY, ROBERT H. Accounting methods must be revised to meet the increasing burden of taxation. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 90-102.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Inventory losses, (letter to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange.) Accountant, Feb. 12 1028.

- dents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange.) Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 230.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit pro-cedure of committee on stock list. New York, New York stock exchange, Aug. 1939, 8p. Jour-nal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 23643. L.R.B. & M journal, Sept. 1939, p. 9-18.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Corporations. (In their Elementary accounting,
- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Corporations. (In their Elementary accounting, c1938. p. 302-53.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Corporate capital ac-counts. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 30.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Essentials of accounting. 1029 (52 270)

- PATON, WILLIAM A. Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 653-739.
 PAYNE, ROBERT E. Accounting features of the Illinois business corporation act. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 456-65.
 PAYNE, ROBERT E. Accounting features of the Illinois corporation act; paper delivered before the H. A. resident school of LaSalle university, March 24, 1936. Chicago, Ill., The author, 1936. 20 mimeographed pages.
 PRACTICE before securities and exchange com-mission. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 17-20.
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. and MIKESELL, R. MERRILL, Corporation. (In their Principles of accounting, rev. ed. 1937. p. 368-416.)
 PRONOUNCEMENTS on accounting procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 145-7.

- 145-7.
- p. 145-7. PURPOSES of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of
- accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 74-6. RECENT pronouncements on accounting. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 89-92

- torial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 89-92.
 RECENT S.E.C. pronouncements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 463-4.
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY and WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Corporations. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938. p. 393-458.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Corporation—Opening corporation books—Current closing entries for corporation books—Current closing entries for corporation books—Current corporation. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938. p. 373-447.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Corporation accounting. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 411-61.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Corporation problems. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 339-48.)
 SMITH, FRANK P. Accounting requirements of stock exchanges, 1933. Accounting review, June 1937. p. 415-53.

- 1937, p. 145-53.
- TAX accounting and business accounting. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 353
- TULPIN, ROY B. Accounting practices to effect

good management must come first. Controller. Sept. 1938, p. 254-9. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-

MIED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charg-ing losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 1, 1937. 1 mimeographed page. Same, release no. 2. (independence of accountants) May 6, 1937. 1 mimeographed page

- page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 5.
 ("treatment of dividends on a corporation's own capital stock held in sinking fund") Washington, D. C. Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 6. ("treatment of excess of proceeds from sale of treasury stock over the cost thereof") Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 6. ("treatment of excess of proceeds from sale of treasury stock over the cost thereof") Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 8. (creatmission. 8. (creatmissi
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 8. (creation of surplus by appraisal in balance-sheets representing the accounts of promotional companies) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 20, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission Findings and onicine of the commission.
- ONTED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Oklahoma hotel building co. (File 2-3598). Securities exchange act of 1933, May 1939, p. 328-32.
 WINTHROP, ALDEN. Are you a stockholder? New York, Covici, Friede, inc., c1937. 320p.

Australia OUTHWAITE, A. H. Accounts and audit under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 30-47.

- Great Britain Great Britain CARTER, W. ROGER. Presentation of final ac-counts. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 331-9. Accountant, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 376-84. LEAKE, P. D. Changing outlook of industrial accounting. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 731-7. MacDONALD, E. N. Adjustment of accounts under schedule D. Accountant, star supplement, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 297-401. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 113-7. PROVISION for income tax by companies; a plea for uniformity in accounts. (reproduced from the Stock exchange gasette) Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 568. TODD, GEORGE F. Evolution of the law relat-ing to limited company accounts. Accountant,
- ing to limited company accounts. Accountani, Sept. 5, 1936, p. 333-8; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 359-61.
- 339-51. WILSON, H. A. R. J. Company accounting. London, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons, Itd. (1936) WOOD, W. CECIL. Company accounts. ed. 5. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, Itd. no date.
- 408p.

Auditing

- suditing See also Auditing; Auditors.
 GOVERNMENTAL examination of corporate accounts? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 273-5.
 NEW YORK stock exchange. Committee on stock list. Sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure of com-mittee on stock list. New York, New York stock exchange, Aug. 1939. B. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 236-43. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1939, p. 9-18.

Australia AUDITING of Victorian companies; examinations for licenses. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 48.

France

AUDIT of companies in France; luncheon of the

CORPORATIONS-Auditing-France-(Continued)

French chamber of commerce in London, Accoun-

tant, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 277-80. AUDIT of French companies. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 431.

- Great Britain BARROWCLIFF, C. PERCY. Audit of private limited companies and private concerns. Accoun-tant student and Accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 112-7. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 393-7, discussion, p. 397-8. Accoun-tant, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 432-7. ROBERTS, F. A. Some reflections on company matters. Accountant, March 26, 1938, p. 423-5.

Australi

BOBERTSON, D. CLAUDE. Proprietary com-panies. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1936, p. 606-18.

Controllers

- ALLEN, B. P. Auditors and comptrollers as sci-entific executives. National auditgram, June
- and the executives. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 25-8.
 AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer, by Jules I. Bogen, George Cochrane, Roy A. Foulke, and Stuart A. Rice. New York, American management association, c1939. 32p. (Financial management series, no. 56.)
 BARNES, GEORGE L. Burden of complying with government's edicts falls on controller. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 318-23.
 BRETT, FRANCIS J. Controller's job-what is it and why? Address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 517-9, 546.

- 200-2. COMMISSIONER Healy's address. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 2-3. CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. Controllers' committee emphasizes some general standard routines. Controller, Aug. 1938, p. 2004 220-4

- standard routines. Controller, Aug. 1938, p. 2204.
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Duties and responsibilities of the controller, address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 14, 1939. 4 mimeographed pages.
 EAKIN, FRANZY. Controller's methods would aid national economy if carefully applied. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 312-7.
 FRANK, JEROME N. Accounting for investors: the fundamental importance of corporate earning power; address before the eighth annual meeting of the Controllers' institute of America, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, Oct. 10, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 295-304. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 380-5, 416.
 HATHAWAY, KING. Applied scientific management-12; functions of the comptroller's department. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1937, p. 85-90.
 HEALY, ROBERT E. Before the auditor comes; address before the mid-western conference of the Controllers institute of America, Cleveland Hotel, Cleveland, Ohio, May 15, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.

- PERRY, HENRY C. Coöperation between controllers and public accountants. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 390-2, 394.
 PUCKETT, B. EARL. Controller's job—as I see it. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers congress. Year book of retailing. 1938, 77.83.
- 1938. p. 77-83.) RELATIONS between controllers and public ac-countants to be reviewed. Controller, Aug. 1939,
- p. 279. ROWE, LOUIS G. Internal control of operating disbursements. Controller, April 1939, p. 129-32. 150.
- 32, 150. SEYBOLD, ROSCOE. Address . . . at opening session of the eighth annual meeting of the Controllers institute of America, October 9, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, N. Y. New York, Controllers institute of America, 1939. 5 mimeographed pages. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Cooperation between con-trollers and public accountants; before Con-trollers' institute of America, October 10, 1939. 10 typewritten pages
- trollers' institute of America, October 10, 1957. 10 typewritten pages. TUCKER, ARTHUR R. What are controller's duties? Business world now wants to know. *Controller*, April 1939, p. 124-8. WILLIAMS, PAUL D. Comptroller's job. Na-tional auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 8-10.

Directors

- (Editorial) Journal of accountants, April 1937, 243-6.
- LAW

p. 243-3. LAW relating to directors. (In Business execu-tive's handbook. 1937. p. 949-75.) STATUS of directors. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 108.

Australia McHUTCHISON, M. W. Duties and responsi-bilities of directors and secretaries. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1936, p. 449-68, discussion, p. 468-9.

- Great Britain APPARENT authority of directors. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 129-30. BUCHER, F. N. Gratuitous directorships and the anomaly of income tax. Accountant, tax supple-ment, June 17, 1939, p. 229-30. HASZARD, CLIVE. Duties and liabilities of company directors. Accountants' journal, Sept. 1938 p. 82-5.
- company directors. Accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 82-5. PURCHASES and sales between a company and its directors. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p.

Executives

METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau, Functions of an assistant to the president. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 15p.

Failures See Bankruptcy; Business failures.

Finance

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-reorganization or corporate readjustment ampli-fication of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 27p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 3.)
 AMOS, J. ELLWOOD. Economics of corporate saving. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, 1937. 136p. (Illinois studies in the social sci-ences, v. 22, no. 2.)
 BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD and DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS. Organizing and financing business; with questions and problems. 2nd rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938, 503p.
 DOUGALL, 'HERBERT E. and DAUER, ERNST A. One hundred short problems in cor-poration finance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 78p.
 EFFECTS of governmental policies on financial management; by Paul Studenski, Mark M. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.

CORPORATIONS-Finance-(Continued)

CORPORATIONS—Finance—(Continued)
 Jones, Randolph E. Paul, Arthur A. Ballantine, Leslie Mills, and Victor H. Stempf. New York, American management association, c1939. 52p. (Financial management series no. 58.)
 FIELD, KENNETH. Corporation finance. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 52p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Measures of financial health. (In American management association. Prob-lems and responsibilities of the finance officer. c1939. p. 13-23.)
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Financial or-ganization and management of business. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall inc., 1936. 840p.
 HOAGLAND, Henry E. Corporation finance. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 596p.
 KIMBALL, MILO. Principles of control

- 5900. KIMBALL, MILO. Principles of corporate finance. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1939. 3060. LYON, HASTINGS. Corporations and their financing. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., 1938 0465
- 1939. 300p.
 1939. 300p.
 LYON, HASTINGS. Corporations and their financing. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., cl938. 946p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TURERS. Industrial financing; report of the Committee on industrial financing of the National association of manufacturers submitted at the N.A.M. congress on American industry, New York, December 1939. New York, National association of manufacturers, 1939. 31p.
 STAUB, WALTER A. AND OTHERS. Effects of social security and undistributed earnings taxes on corporate policy trends. New York, American management association, 1937. (Financial management series no. 51.) 32p.
 WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Capacity to pay current debts. Urbana, 111, University of Illinois, College of commerce and business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 54p. (University of Illinois bulletin, v. 34, no. 11.)

- Australia LORMER, G. Ways and means of raising capital for new enterprises and for expansion of exist-ing industries. Australian accountant, Aug.
- tor new enterprises and for expansion of exist-ing industries. Australian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 38-59. TOLLEY, A. H. Controlling the finances of a large business. Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 207-14.

- OLLASON, G. CAN
- Great Britam OLLASON, G. CAMERON. Borrowing by limited companies. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, March 1938, p. 335-43. YEABSLEY, R. E. Modern company flotation. Accountant, April 24, 1937. p. 581-9. Accoun-tant tudent and Accountant' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 108 166 p. 108-16.

Foreign

of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 101-4. INFORMATION returns by accountants. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p.

- 241-3. NEW JERSEY'S franchise tax on foreign corpora-tions. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 401-2, 419, 430.
- 430. SECTION 340. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3.

German

GERMAN company law: accounts and audit. Ac-countant, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 594-5.

Government regulation See Business—Government regulation and control.

- Great Britain
 BACK, W. J. General knowledge: the questions on company practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 192-5, discussion, p. 195-6.
 FORDHAM, H. Formation of limited companies. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 117-20.
 FORDHAM, H. Limited liability and companies. Corporate accountant, May 1938, p. 78-80.
 FOSS, V. HARBOTTLE. Accountant, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 542-4.

- JORDAN, HERBERT W. Private company formation. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 361-7. Incorporated accountants', journal, Oct. 1937, p. 23-8.
 SCHWARTZ, G. L. Limited liability company. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 46-8.
 WEBB, F. K. Joint stock company—development in Great Britain. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 245-8.
 WOOLLEY, FRED. Structure of limited liability companies. Accountant, July 24, 1937, p. 127-31, discussion, p. 131-2. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937 p. 373-8, discussion, p. 378-9.

Law

See also Investment companies-Law

- Australia GRIFFITH, S. W. Company law. (In V. interna-tionaler pröfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kon-gress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 4, p. 87-104.) GUNN, J. A. L. National security (capital issues) regulations. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 225-30. KELVNACK LOUND
- 225-30. KELVNACK, JOHN E. Capital issues. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 314-7; Dec. 1939, p. 396-7. NATIONAL security (capital issues) regulations. Federal accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 568-70.

Canada

- CANADA Companies act, 1934; 24-25 George 5, chap. 33, an act respecting dominion companies (assented to 28th June 1934) and 25-26 George 5, chap. 55 (assented to 5th July, 1935). Ottawa, Office of the secretary of state, 1935. 339p. CANADIAN correspondent. Dominion of Canada companies act, 1935. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 186-9. FREEMAN, GEORGE R. Some problems of the practising accountant. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1939, p. 244-64. THOMPSON, R. R. Some suggested reforms to the Dominion companies act. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 188-204. WADE, C. B. Dominion companies act respecting the interpretation of section 83 (1). Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 256-60. WALKER, C. E. Company legislation; conserva-tion of the capital fund in the interests of the shareholders and creditors of the company-statutory provisions and excerpts from court cases thereon. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 100-9. WALKER, C. E. Company legislation in regard to the acquiring of initial capital—excerpts from court cases thereon. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 31-9.

Delaware

- CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY. Delaware corporation law annotated, 1936. New York, Corporation trust co., 1936. 350p. Amendments, 1937. 21p. CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY. Delaware corporations; digest of the Delaware law— advantages of the law for business corporations brief summary of the statutory requirements costs. New York, Corporation trust co., c1937. 36n. 36p.

Denmark JESPERSEN, C. Company law. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. *Kongress-archiv*, 1938. band C. thema 4, p. 134-49.)

France JEAL, E. F. Commissaire aux comptes in France; a study in comparative legislation. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 15-7; July 9, 1938, p. 50-3; July 16, 1938, p. 84-6.

Germany

GERMAN company law. Accountant, Sept. 11, 1937, p. 341-2. 1937, p. GERMAN GERMAN company law: accounts and audit. Accountant, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 594-5. KOSIOL, ERICH. Annual financial statements

CORPORATIONS-Law-Germany-(Continued)

- of German corporations. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 183-91. KOSIOL, ERICH. Bases of valuation in German corporate balance sheets. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 355-60.

- Great Britain ARRANGEMENTS under section 153 of the com-panies act, 1929. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 350-1.
- 350-1.
 COMMENTARIES on the companies act, 1929.
 Accountant student, Aug. 1939, p. 88-9; Sept.
 1939, p. 102-3; Oct. 1939, p. 127-8; Nov. 1939,
 p. 155; Dec. 1939, p. 182-3.
 COMPANIES act, 1929. Accountant student, May
 1939, p. 55-6; June 1939, p. 31; July 1939,
 p. 55-6; Companies and the wave Cartified
- COMPANY law; companies and the war. Certified

- p. 556.
 COMPANY law; companies and the war. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1939, p. 301-3; Nov. 1939, p. 331-4; Dec. 1939, p. 306-6.
 CONTROL of capital issues. Accountant, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 419-22.
 CREW, ALBERT. Amendments to the companies act. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1938, p. 17-20, discussion, p. 20-2.
 CREW, ALBERT. Leading cases affecting the companies act, 1929. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1938, p. 17-20, discussion, p. 20-2.
 CREW, ALBERT. Leading cases affecting the companies act, 1929. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1937, p. 316-7; Feb. 1938, p. 51-2.
 CREW, ALBERT. Some leading cases affecting the companies act, 1929. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 207-8.
 FREEMAN, GEORGE R. Some problems of the practising accountant. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 244-64.
 GRINDEY, H. Some aspects of company law. Certified public accountants journal, Jan. 1937, p. 19-24.
 HALSEY, LAURENCE. Position of the public accountant, Aug. 20, 1938, p. 256-61; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 292-8. Journal of accountant, Past, 293, p. 434-49.
 LOUDON, JOHN. Company law. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band C. thema 4, p. 199-221.) Accountant, Dec. 10, 1938, p. 801-8.
 PREFERENTIAL claims under section 264 (3), companies act, 1929. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 182-3.
 PÜRCHASES and sales between a company and
- 182-3
- p. 182-3. PURCHASES and sales between a company and its directors. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p. 830-2.
- 530-2. SANDELSON, DAVID I. Law affecting private limited companies. Incorporated accountants journal, March 1938, p. 215-9. SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. British control
- SANDERS, IHUMAS HENRY. British control of company accounts and finance. Harvard busi-ness review, Autumn number 1939, p. 11-23.
 TODD, GEORGE F. Evolution of the law relat-ing to limited company accounts. Accountant, Sept. 5, 1936, p. 333-8; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 359-61.
- WOOLLEY, FRED. Structure of limited liability July 1937, p. 373-8, discussion, p. 378-9. Account tant, July 24, 1937, p. 127-31, discussion, p. 131-2.

Illinois PAYNE, ROBERT E. Accounting features of the Illinois corporation act; paper delivered before the H. A. resident school of LaSalle extension university, March 24, 1936. Chicago, Ill., The author, 1936. 20 mimeographed pages. *Certified public accountant*, Aug. 1936, p. 456-65.

- India COMPANY legislation in India. Accountant, Jan. 30, 1937, p. 146-8. INDIAN companies act (amendment) bill, 1936. Accountant, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 260-4. Indian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 72-7, 78-80. INDIAN companies amendment act, 1936. Incor-porated accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 168-9, 174-6. Indian accountant, March 1937, p.

- 150-2; April 1937, p. 166-74; May 1937, p. 194-207; June 1937, p. 219-29. JALUNDHWALA, R. C. Company balance sheet, profit and loss account and auditors' report (under the Indian companies act, 1913-36.) Indian accountant, June 1938, p. 194-206. POSITION of auditors in India. Accountant, April 24, 1937, p. 570-4.

- New South Wales BEIGHTON, T. P. D. Foreign companies under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1937, p. 685-700, discussion, April 1937, p. 774-5. CLELAND, A. B. Auditor under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1937, p. 613-29, discussion, p. 629-30
- Australia, Feb. 1937, p. 613-29, discussion, p. 629-30. INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN AUSTRALIA (NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCH). Notes on the New South Wales companies act, 1936. Supplement to the Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936. 88p. INSTITUTE
- 88p. NSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN AUSTRALIA, NEW SOUTH WALES DEBATING CLUB. Reports of eight addresses on the New South Wales companies act, 1936. Sydney, Institute of chartered accoun-tants in Australia, 1937. 169p. EW SOUTH WALES companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1937, p. 14-6

- Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1957, p. 14-6. SIDNEY, R. L. Formation of companies (including prospectuses), under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1937, p. 23-33; Aug. 1937, p. 97-113. SPOONER, W. H. N.S.W. companies act, 1936; new rules of importance to liquidators. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 519-24. WALTON, S. J. Proprietary companies under the New South Wales companies act, 1936. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1936, p. 362-79.
- 362-79. WILLIS, R. W. Documents to be filed under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. *Chartered accoun-tant in Australia*, May 1937, p. 825-49.

- New York COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Cor-poration laws of New York, revised to January 1, 1937, New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937. 308p.

- inc., 1937. 308p.
 Same, revised to June 7, 1937. 325p.
 Same, revised to September, 1939. 333p.
 NEW YORK (state) State, Department of. Extracts from the stock corporation law, general corporation law, tax law, executive law and penal law. Albany, N. Y., Secretary of state, 1936. 59p.
 O'BRIEN, WILLIAM DALE. Important amendments of stock corporation law and tax law. New York law journal, May 3, May 4, 1938.
 UNITED STATES CORPORATION COMPANY. New York law saftecting business corporations; annotated, revised to June 13, 1936, containing the amendments of the legislative session which adjourned May 13, 1936. ed. 17. New York. United States corporation co., 1936. 513p.
 Same, to June 7, 1937. ed. 18, 1937. 520p.
 Same, to April 18, 1938. ed. 19. 1938.
- 528p.
- -Same, to June 20, 1939. ed. 20. 1939. 545p.

WILSON, D. A. Notes on the formation of private companies. Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 735-7.

United States

- See also Investment companies-Law-United States
- States. BALDWIN, C. F. What would federal licensing mean to business? Credit and financial manage-ment, March 1938, p. 6-7, 34. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES. Federal licensing of corporations; a report of the Department of manufacture com-

- CORPORATIONS-Law-United States-(Continued) mittee, Jan. 1938. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, 1938. 10p. CROMWELL, JAMES H. R. Should the federal government license corporations? Bulletin of States and the states of the state
 - CROMWELL, JAMES H. R. Should the federal government license corporations? Bulletin of America's town meeting of the air, Feb. 28, 1938, p. 12-9.
 FEDERAL licensing act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 12-3.
 FEDERAL licensing bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 92-4.
 FEDERAL licensing of corporations—O'Mahoney bill—Borah bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 168-71.
 FEDERAL licensing: opening wedge? Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 7, 34.
 FULLER, WARNER. Incorporated individual: a study of the one man company. Harvard law review, June 1938, p. 1373-406.
 GOVERNMENTAL examination of corporate accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 273-5.
 HILLS, GEORGE S. Federal taxation vs. corporation law. (from Wisconsin, law review) Madison, Wis., University of Wisconsin, c1937, p. 280-312.
 KREBS, WILLIAM SAMUEL. Modifying the trust fund doctrine. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 26-9, 54.

 - Arbbo, WILLIAM STANDEL, Monifying unit trust fund doctrine. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 26-9, 54.
 MECK, JOHN F. AND CARY, WILLIAM LUCIUS. Regulation of corporate finance and management under the public utility holding company act of 1935. Harvard law review, Dec. 1938, p. 216-58.
 MUELLER, ALFRED G. Deciding factors in qualifying to do business in various states. Controller, Dec. 1936, p. 335-40.
 O'MAHONEY, JOSEPH C. Borah-O'Mahoney bill. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 111.
 O'MAHONEY, JOSEPH C. Should the federal government license corporations? Bulletin of America's town meeting of the air, Feb. 28, 1938, p. 5-12.
 O'MAHONEY bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy
- p. 5-12. O'MAHONEY bill. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1937, p. 169-70. PARKER, JOHN S. AND SMITH, J.B.R., ed. Corporation manual; statutory provisions relating to the organization, regulation and taxation of

- Victoria AUDITING of Victorian companies; examinations for licenses. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 48. COMMONWEALTH institute of accountants. Vic-torian division. Victorian companies act, 1938; a summary of the principal changes in the law, with special reference to the new provisions relat-ing to accounts. Melbourne Commonwealth in-stitute of accountants, Victorian division, 1939.
- 111p. COMPANIES bill 1938 (Victoria); notes compiled COMPANIES bill 1938 (Victoria); notes compiled by a joint committee representing the Australasian institute of secretaries. Commonwealth institute of accountants, Federal institute of accountants, the Chartered institute of secretaries. Accountant, May 20, 1939, p. 673-7.
 COMPANY legislation in Australia. Accountant, May 20, 1939, p. 662-5.

- IAMES, C.R.B. Companies act, 1938; how it affects secretaries. (extracts from lecture delivered to members of the Victorian division of the Australasian institute of secretaries (inc.) on Tuesday, the 28th March, 1939. Melbourne, Australasian institute of secretaries, 1939. 31p. JOSKE, P. E. Formation of companies under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 659-65. LLOYD, J. Requirements of the registrar-general's department under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 184-95.

- 1938. Charterea accommum in Austrana, con-1939, p. 184-95. ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Victorian companies act, 1938; innovations and comparisons. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 536-44. S., G. Private balance sheets under the Victorian communication of 1928. Chartered accommunity in

- S., G. Private balance sheets under the Victorian companies act, 1928. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 255-8.
 SMITH, M.R.M. Receivers and managers under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 409-12.
 TOOTELL, G. C. Company management under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, May 1939, p. 747-69.
 VICTORIA. Companies act, 1938 (no. 4602) with which is incorporated the investment companies act, 1938. (no 4621) Melbourne, Government printer, 1939. 352p.
- Management
 DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Corporate secretary's manual and guide; a manual of legal principles involved in corporate organization and management and a guide to corporate procedure with forms. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 1528p.
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Corporations: general. (In their Basic ac-counting principles. 1937. p. 383-410.)

- Meetings CORPORATE meetings, minutes, and resolutions. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 1005-

 - (in Business executive's hanabook. 1937. p. 1005-84.)
 CREW, ALBERT. Conduct of the procedure at meetings. Accountants' magazine, April 1939, p. 260.4; May 1939, p. 285-9; June 1939, p. 354-9.
 CREW, ALBERT. Some vagaries in connection with company meetings. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1939, p. 272-4.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Meeting procedure. Accountant, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 13-4; Jan. 9, 1937, p. 53-4; Jan. 16, 1937, p. 2909; Jan. 23, 1937, p. 127-9; Jan. 30, 1937, p. 157-8; Feb. 6, 1937, p. 127-9; Jan. 30, 1937, p. 239-0; Feb. 27, 1937, p. 139-4; Feb. 13, 1937, p. 239-0; Feb. 27, 1937, p. 305-7; March 6, 1937, p. 338-40; March 13, 1937, p. 377-9; March 20, 1937, p. 413-15; March 27, 1937, p. 449-51; April 3, 1937, p. 765-7; Dec. 11, 1937, p. 801-2; Dec. 18, 1937, p. 837-9.

New Zealand BASS, F. H. Private company in New Zealand. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1939, p. 909-13.

Officers

- Micers
 AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Problems and responsibilities of the finance of-ficer, by Jules I. Bogen, George Cochrane, Roy A. Foulke, and Stuart A. Rice. New York, American management association, c1939. 32p. (Financial management series, no. 56.)
 JACKSON, J. HUGH. Sound thinking, a great need of modern business; address given before the Controllers' council of the International asso-ciation of milk dealers, at the Hotel Adolphus, Dallas Texas, October 22, 1937. 18 typewritten pages.

- Datas Texas, October 22, 1977 To typerform pages. LAW relating to officers. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 976-89.) UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Interstate hosiery mills, inc.-common capital stock of no par value (File 1-300) Securities exchange act of 1934, release

CORPORATIONS-Officers-(Continued)

no. 2048. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 321-8.

321-8. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Interstate hosiery case; findings and opinions of the Securities and exchange com-mission—taken from release no. 2048 of the com-mission. New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 425-36.

Promoters and promotion See Promotion.

Refinancing See Refinancing.

Registrars WARREN, A. O. Can auditors act as registrars. Accountant, March 27, 1937, p. 451.

Reorganizations

See Reorganizations.

Reports

See Reports.

Secretaries

- ceretaries See also Certified secretary (organ of the Cor-poration of certified secretaries) ALLEN, M. R. Co-operation between the accoun-tant, secretary and auditor. Brisbane, Accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, Au-gust, 1936, 24p. DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Corporate secretaries.
- DÖRIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Corporate secretary's manual and guide; a manual of legal principles involved in corporate organization and management and a guide to cor-porate procedure with forms. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 1528p.
 JOHNSON, HERBERT. Statutory duties of the secretary of a public limited company. Accoun-tant student and Accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 105-10. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 735-40.
 McHUTCHISON, M. W. Duties and respon-sibilities of directors and secretaries. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1936, p. 449-68, discussion, p. 468-9.

Statistics

- RUM, W. L. Corporate earnings on invested capital. Harvard business review, Spring number, CRUM.

capital. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1938. p. 336-50.
GEORGE, EDWIN B. How big is big business? Dun's review, March 1939, p. 18-31, 53-5.
GEORGE, EDWIN B. Is big business getting bigger? Dun's review, May 1939, p. 28-36, 56.
ROBINSON, LELAND REX. Corporate earnings on share and borrowed capital in ratios of gross income (1918-1935). Journal of the American statistical association, Sept. 1936, p. 481-90.

Stockholders

- Biockholders
 LAW relating to stockholders. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 989-98.)
 STEVENS, W.H.S. Voting rights of capital stock and shareholders. (reprinted from Journal of business of the University of Chicago, Oct. 1938, p. 311-41.)
 McINNES, John S. Rights of preference shareholders. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Proceedings. 1936. p. 49-72, discussion, p. 73-89.)
 PROTECTION of dissenting shareholders. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 346-8.
 ROBERTS, E. A. Shareholders or member? Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 49-50.
 STEVENS, W.H.S. Stockholders' participations in assets in dissolution. Journal of business of the university of Chicago, Jan. 1937.
 WINTHROP, ALDEN. Are you a stockholder? New York, Covici, Friede, inc., c1937. 320p.

Taxation See Taxation—Corporations, under various states and countries.

Treasurers

See Corporations-Officers.

Valuation See Valuation.

CORPORATIONS and their financing. Lyon, Hastings.

CORPUL ORPUL CONTABILILOR AUTORIZATI SI EX-PERTILOR CONTABILI

Taboul expertilor contabili, pana la 1 Julie 1936. Strada Teilor no, 12, Bucuresti, Corpul con-tabililor autorizati si expertilor contabili.

CORRESPONDENCE

See Commercial correspondence.

CORSETS, GIRDLES AND BRASSIERES Statistics.

tatistics
FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of manufacturers of corsets, girdles, and brassieres. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 49, 75, 99, 124, 174.5.) (1937 ed.-p. 50, 78, 104, 131, 190.1.) (In his Fourteen guides tot financial stability. c1936. p. 28-9. (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 28-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 20-1.)

- CORSON, JOHN J.
 Old age benefits amendments analyzed. Controller, Oct. 1939, p. 344-8.
 Wages and employment under the old-age insur-ance program. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Oct. 3, 1938. 11p.

CORSTVET, EMMA

Adequate records as an element in business sur-vival. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 49-63. Inadequate bookkeeping as a factor in business failure. Yale law journal, May 1936, p. 1201-222.

COST ACCOUNTANTS

See Accountants.

COST ACCOUNTING

See Cost and factory accounting.

COST accounting. Lawrence, W. B.

- COST accounting and budgeting. Cost and manage-ment, Nov. 1936, p. 326-8.
- COST accounting and regulation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90.
- COST accounting for airplane production. Ebert, George M.
- COST ST accounting for federal agencies. Voegele. Albin B. and Towns, Charles H.
- COST accounting of laundering. accounting for launderies. American institute
- **ST** accounting for new product. (Accounting questions) *Journal of accountancy*, Feb. 1938, p. 155-6. COST
- accounting, fundamentals and procedure. Van COST Sickle, Clarence L.
- COST accounting in the baking industry, Henry, W. R.
- COST accounting in the plastic molding industry-a case study. Peden, Robert W.
- COST accounting investigation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 367.
- COST accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act. Sawyer, Albert E.
- COST accounting practices in federal government de-partments. Bennion, H. S.
- COST accounting, principles and methods. Reitell, Charles and Johnston, C. E.
- COST accounting, principles and practice. Neuner, John J. W.

142

- COST accounting procedure. LaSalle extension university.
- ST accounting under the Robinson-Patman act. Bulletin of the American institute of accoun-tants, Oct. 26, 1936, p. 12-3. COST

COST accounts. Strachan, W.

- COST accounts for wireless retailers. Dwerryhouse, W. R.
- COST and accounting manual for a corrugated and solid fibre shipping container plant. National container association.

- COST AND FACTORY ACCOUNTING
 See also Costs; Standard costs; sub-headings
 Cost accounting and Costs, under name of specific
 business, industry or trade, e.g. Banks and
 banking—Cost accounting.
 ALATRISTE, SEALTIEL, JR. Introductión a la
 técnica de los costos. Mexico, D. F., Union
 tipografica editorial Hispano-Americana, c1938.
 374p.
 ASHLEY, R. W. Standard costs in an engineering
 industry. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p.
 1-22.
 - 1.22
 - 1-22. ASHWORTH, ROBERT. Modern factory accoun-ting. Accountant, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 769-74, discus-sion, p. 774-5. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 268-73. BARR, W. A. With never a post mortem; three-
 - BARK, W. A. With never a post mortem; three-man plan provides cost and production control in 300-man job-order plant. Factory management and maintenance, May 1937, p. 45-7.
 BIGG, W. W. Practical aspects of costing. Ac-countant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 239-43.
 BLACKLOCK, D. S. Accounting for economic management. Glasgow, Jackson, son & co., 1938. 1280.

 - 128p.
 - 128b. BOLON, DALLAS S. Manufacturing statements and accounts. (In his *Introduction to accounting*. 1938, p. 403-21.) BROSTER, ERIC JAMES. Cost, demand and net revenue analysis. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938.
 - 83p
 - BROSTER, ERIC JAMES. Practical framework of cost, demand and net revenue analysis. Accountant, Jan. 1, 1938, p. 11-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 41-2; Jan. 15, 1938, p. 78-80; Jan. 22, 1938, p. 117-8; Jan. 29, 1938, p. 153-5; Feb. 5, 1938, p. 285-60; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 294-6; March 5, 1938, p. 322-3.
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Introduction to cost accounting. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 269p. (American business fundamentals) CLAMP, G. H. Cost accountants and present-day problems. Accountant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 199-201. Cost and management, Oct. 1936, p. 316-20 (extracts)

 - tracts)

 - Cost and management, Oct. 1936, p. 316-20 (extracts)
 COST accounting and budgeting. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, p. 326-8.
 COST accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90.
 COST accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90.
 COST accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90.
 CUNNINGHAM, A.R.G. Cost and financial accounts—their relationship and control. Cost accountint, May 1939, p. 374-8.
 DENHAM, ROBERT S. Cost fumbling or cost engineering? Factory management and maintenance, Oct. 1936, p. 49, 83, 84.
 DETWILER, E. M. Presentation of cost information to foremen. Cost and management, Dec. 1937, p. 314-8.
 DINGLE, G.R.M. Value of cost data to management. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 343-6.
 DONALD, W. COUTTS. Costing as an aid to
 - ³⁴³⁻⁶. DONALD, W. COUTTS. Costing as an aid to price fixing. *Cost accountant*, Jan. 1936, p. 240-5, discussion. p. 246-58. DRURY, J. W. Use of costing in financial con-trol and economy. *Cost accountant*, Oct. 1939, p. 112
 - 112.8
 - DUNNIGAN, W. Y. Management cost committees.

- Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 598-600; May 14, 1938, p. 670-3.
 DUNNIGAN, W. Y. Measurement of economic factors in costing. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 13-5; July 11, 1936, p. 53-6.
 EDWARDS, R. S. Rationale of cost accounting. Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 389-90. Cost accountant, June 1937, p. 216-8.
 EMOND, WILLIAM. Practical costing. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 715-9.
 FERNALD, CHARLES E. Cost analysis: indus
- FERNALD, CHARLES E. Cost analysis; indus-try's compass. Profit, Feb. 1938, p. 1. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, June 1938, p.

- Morris associates monthly bulletin, June 1938, p. 15-6.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Manufacturing cost controls. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936, p. 377-97.)
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Manufacturing expense—a talk for students. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 345-51.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Cost accounting procedure. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 546-55.)
 GOODWIN, JOHN H. Plant ledger for a small manufacturer. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 130-5.
- 130-5.

- maintactive of the principles and practice of cost accounting. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 15-20.
 HERRISON, W. E. Review of the principles and practice of cost accounting. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 15-20.
 HEPPLEY, OSCAR R. Accounting problems of seasonal manufacturing companies. Utah C.P.A., April 1939; May 1939; June 1939.
 HICKIN, R. A. System of production costs. Australian accountant, April 1939, p. 198-212.
 HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Present-day need for improved accounting for plant and equipment. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 106-16, discussion, p. 116-21.)
 HOBSON, C. THORNTON. Service that management can get from the cost accountant; paper submitted at seventeenth national cost conference. Institute of cost and works accountants. Central ment can get from the cost accountant; paper submitted at seventeenth national cost conference. Institute of cost and works accountants, Central Hotel, Glasgow, 8th-10th September, 1938. Endote, Institute of cost and works accountants, 1938. 6p. Cost accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 168-73, discussion, p. 173-9.
 HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Plant ledgers and plant accounting. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 200-12.
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Cost accounting. (In his A B C of accounting. 1938. p. 184-97.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Manufacturing enterprise; the voucher system. (In his Accounting, c1937. p. 341-73.)
 JACK, H. D. Cost accounting during booms and slumps. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 21-6.
 JACKSON, J. HUGH. Underlying principles of cost control. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 45-54.)
 JOHNSTON, WILLIAM. Efficiency of cost accounting. C1937. D. 341-73.

- p. 450-79.) JOHNSTON. WILLIAM. Efficiency of cost ac-counting. Cost accountant. May 1938, p. 369-77. Cost and management, Aug. 1938, p. 202-15. KASSANDER, A. R. Cost accounting under the new price discrimination law. L.R.B. & M. jour-nal. Sent. 1936, p. 1-6, 1-6. KASSANDER, A. R. Notes on the cost forum held by New York chapter, National association of cost accountants. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 1-5.
- of cost accountants. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 1-5. KELLY, E. A. Contrasts in cost and financial ac-counting. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1938, p. 51, 52. KEMP, G. W. Cost accounting by the machine method. Cost and management, March 1938, p.
- 88-93.
- KESTER, ROY B. Manufacturing corporation. (In his Principles of accounting, ed. 4. c1939. p. 491-539.)
- KICKLER, D. C. Eight pieces of paper enough to run this plant. Factory management and maintenance, Feb. 1937, p. 50-2.
- KNOEPPEL, C. E. AND SEYBOLD, EDGAR G.

ł.

COST AND FACTORY ACCOUNTING-(Cont.)

- Relation of cost accounting to profit-making. (in their Managing for profit. 1937. p. 165-88.)
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Accounting for the manufacturer. (In his Fundamentals of account-ing. 1938. p. 257-73.)
 LANDELL, C. D. What the executive requires from the cost accountant. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, p. 322-5.
 LANGER, CHARLES H. Accounting principles and procedure: cost accounting. Chicago, III.,

- ments. (In their Accounting junaamentals. 1990, p. 420-42.) McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Accounting principles, c1939, p. 543-642. MacMILLAN, J. A. Sources of cost information. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 14-7. MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Differential costs. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 23-5. MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Basic course in cost accounting. Boston, Mass., The author, 1938. 3550.

- MANNIX, RAYMÓND L. Basic course in cost accounting. Boston, Mass., The author, 1938. 335p.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Essentials of cost accounting. Boston, Mass., The author, 1936. 236p.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Manufacturing accounting. In his Accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 77-96.
 MARSH, WILLIAM F. Accounting aid to industry L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversarv number, part 2, p. 33-6.
 MATHEMATICS of costing. Accountant, Jan. 1, 1938, p. 2-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 31; Jan. 15, 1938, p. 67-8; Jan. 22, 1938, p. 108-9; Jan. 29, 1938, p. 475; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 15, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 15, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 15, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 15, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 15, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 15, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 16, 1938, p. 304. MAY GEORGE O. Cost accounting. Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 518-26.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Cost accounting. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936, v. 2, p. 364-69.)
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY. Policyholders service bureau. Accounting for plant and equipment. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. 1935, 47p.
 MILLER, ANDREW. Practical cost accounting. Accountant's magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 516-29.
 MORAN, DONALD L. Trend of costing—nast, present and future. Cost accountant, March 1936, N. FLU, DONALD F. Methods in cost accounting.

- n. 304-8. NEILL, DONALD F. Methods in cost accounting. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1939, p. 170-8.
- NEUNER, IOHN J. W. Cost accounting, principles and practice. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1938. 710p.
- NEUNER, JOHN I. W. Just what or who is a cost accountant, (Forum section) New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Nov. 1,

(N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1939.

- 1, p. 342-3.) NEW methods that cut factory costs. (Reprinted from Factory management and maintenance) 92p.
- no date. NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Noncost factory accounting—Cost accounting controls. (In their Elementary accounting. e1938. p. 43982.)

- b. 439-82.)
 NICHOLSON, T. H. Presentation and interpretation of costs. Cost accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 204-10, discussion, p. 210-21.
 NOLAN, D. J. Cost accountancy. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Proceedings. 1936. p. 175-93, discussion, p. 194-208.)
 NOLAN, D. J. Value of cost accounting to business executives. Cost accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 91-101. Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 361-80.
- 361-80.
 OBORN, R. W. T. Manufacturing expense. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 404-14.
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Special problems of the manufacturing concern. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice, 1936. p. 289-369.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Manufacturing accounts. (In his Essentials of accounting, 1938. p. 490-512.)
- PATON. ATON, WILLIAM A. Plant accounts. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter
- 23.) PATTON, D. R. Methods of cost finding. Cost and management, April 1936, p. 109-19. PEACE, C. C. Accounting plan for a multiple manufacturing and distributing business. Char-tered accountant in Australia, April 1936, p. 511-22

- manufacturing and distributing business. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1936, p. 511-23.
 PEDEN, ROBERT W. Technique of industrial control. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1937, (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 15, p. 851-72)
 PENNOCK, J. R. Practical cost problems. Cost accountant, July 1936, p. 31-8.
 PERRY, WILLIAM E. Tools of cost control. (In National association of cost accountant, July 1936, p. 31-8.
 PORTEOUS, KENNETH. Factory orders and inventory records; a case history of their mechanical preparation. Factory management and maintennee, Sept. 1937, p. 69-80.
 PRESHAW. GERALD. Is cost accounting a science? National accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 31-4.
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Accounting for a manufacturing business. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937, p. 469-92.)
 REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSON, C. E. Cost accounting, principles and methods. ed. 2, revised by C. E. Johnston. Scranton, Pa., International textbook co., 1937, 4250.
 REITELL, CHARLES AND VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE. Accounting principles for engineers? (formerly published under the title of "Cost finding for engineers"). ed. 2 New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1936, 189.
 ROCHFORD, G. E. Production cost from the control post. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 93-5.
 ROLFE, GEORGE S. Departmentalize the sales department. Chartered accounting in Australia.

- trol post. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 93.5.
 ROLFE, GEORGE S. Departmentalize the sales department. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 139-41.
 ROLFE, GEORGE S. Production costs and the sales department. Accountant, Jan. 29. 1938, p. 144-5.
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Manufacturing accounts. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938, p. 459-95.)
 RUSHTON. R. F. Costing as an integral part of the accounting system. Australian accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 198-217.
 RUSSELL, G. Presidential address. Cost accountant. Sent. 1938, p. 94-100.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Accounting for investors in plant. (summary of address at Houston, Texas) 6 mimeographed pages.
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Manufacturing accounting—Factory ledger.

- W. Manufacturing accounting-Factory ledger.

COST AND FACTORY ACCOUNTING-(Cont.)

(In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 538-68.)

- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Influence of recent federal regulation on industrial management and accounting. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 5-16.)
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Some questions of cost accounting, theory and practice. Accountant, Nov. 11, 1939, p. 515-8, discussion, p. 518-23.
 SAPP, WARREN H. Accountant's relation to cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 20-32.)
 SAPP, WARREN H. Cost accountant's place in industrial recovery program. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 1-2, 3.
 SAPP, WARREN H. What a cost accountant

- industrial recovery program. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 1-2, 3.
 SAPP, WARREN H. What a cost accountant should be. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, April 1938, p. 2, 3-4.
 SAUNDERS, F. W. H. Will your costing system stand up to the test of rising prices? Cost accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 165-8, discussion, p. 173-84. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 119-21.
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting as evidence in cases arising under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 12, section 1, p. 681-97.)
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of no cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no 12, section 1, p. 679-88.)
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Advanced cost accounting; being volume 2 of "Cost accounting." New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1939. 217p.

- New York, John Wile 2 M. Cost, inc., 1939. 217p.
 SCHYBERGSON, HENRIK. German and Ameri-can theories on accounting. (English translation)
 (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. "Vor-träge Schybergson und Schranz", p. 43-63.)
 SEYBOLD, ROSCOE. Progress in industrial ac-counting. Controller, Dec. 1939, p. 428-31, 434.
 SHEPHERD, W. G. Production cost control. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 14-7.
 STALKER, W. H. Costing in relation to con-tracts on a percentage basis. Accountant, Oct. 3, 1936, p. 461-6.
 STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Control accounts in relation to costing. Incorporated accountant' journal, April 1936, p. 237-40, discussion p. 240-1.
 STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Cost accounts. ed. 6.

- 240-1.
 STRACHAN, WILLIAM. Cost accounts. ed. 6.
 London, Sweet & Maxwell, ltd. (1937).
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. System for a manufacturing concern. (In his Accounting systems, their design and installation. 1936. p. 549-606.)

- 549-606.)
 TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution. Cost accountin, Oct. 1938, p. 125-130, appendices and report of dis-cussion, p. 131-59.
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. New York, Har-per & brothers, c1938. 9980.
 Von REISCHACH, JOHN. Cost accounting and the sales manager. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1937, p. 179-81.
 WALKER, ROSS G. Some recent experiments in the control of manufacturing costs. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business adminis-tration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 153-90.)
 WEAVER, F. E. L. Factory costing. Cost ac-
- 153-90.)
 WEAVER, F. E. L. Factory costing. Cost accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 244-50.
 WELLS, RALPH G. Cost control from the standpoint of the operating executive. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 731-49.)
 WHEELER, S. J. Is continuous costing necessary in conjunction with standard costs? Cost accountant, March 1937, p. 307-11.
 WHEELER, S. J. Practical costing in industry. Cost accountant, March 1938, p. 312-6.

- WHISLER, R. F. Quality, an element of cost. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, May 1, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 969-76.)
 WHITHER cost accounting? Accountancy, Jan. 1020 1200

- v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 969-76.)
 WHITHER cost accounting? Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 126-8.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; cost control. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 131-2.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; projecting results under changed conditions. Corporate accountant, July 1938, p. 94-5.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; review of examination questions. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 166-70; May 1938, p. 73-4, 76.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; some major problems on policy. Corporate accountant, March 1939, p. 11-17.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; the problem of the small business. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 146-9.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; typical examination questions. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 146-9.

- p. 23-5. WILLIS, S. W. Punched card method of cost accounting. Cost and management, Nov. 1939,
- p. 324-8. WILMOT, HAROLD. Cost accountant's place in management. Cost accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 132-7, discussion, p. 139-51. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1936, p. 345-50, discussion, p. 350-5.

Administrative costs

See Administrative expenses.

- Advertising costs
 - See Advertising expenses.

By-products See Cost and factory accounting—Products.

Cost distribution

- LAWRENCE, W. B. Distribution of service department costs-Distribution of manufacturing
- expense to production. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937, p. 191-226.) WALKER, PERCY H. Establishment charges— their components and methods of allocation. Accountant, Nov. 25, 1939. p. 571-6.

Departmental

- epartmental LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Process and departmental costs. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 217-28.) McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Departmental accounting. (In their Ac-counting principles. c1939. p. 621-42.)

Development costs

- Action 1, 1999.
 Action 1, 1999.
 Action 1, 1999.
 Account 1, 1

Direct costs

- irect control in the second second

Distribution costs See Distribution costs.

COST AND FACTORY ACCOUNTING-(Cont.)

- Estimating costs
- istimating costs
 GRANT, EUGENE L. Notes on the technique of estimating costs. (In his Principles of engineering economy. c1938. p. 389-405.)
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Estimated costs. (In his Cost accounting principles and practice. 1938. p. 518-39.)
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Estimate cost system. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938. p. 412-31.)
 WHITE, J. C. Estimating as a science. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 14, section 1, p. 820-8.) Printed with: Lause, M. A. and Boettger, F. A. Presentation and use of cost control data.
 WILLIAMS, GEORGE L. Technique of estimating. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 60-73.)

Finished goods WIBBELSMAN, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 77-89.)

France

EDWARDS, RONALD S. Survey of French con-tributions to the study of cost accounting during the 19th century; published on behalf of the Accounting research association, by Gee & co. (publishers), ltd. Supplement to the Accountant, June 26, 1937. 37p.

Germany PLAUT, T. Cost accounting and state control in Germany. Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 163-5. SCHYBERGSON, HENRIK. German and Ameri-can theories on accounting. (English translation) (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. "Vor-träge Schybergson und Schranz", p. 43-63.)

Great Britain

- COSTS of defence department contracts. Ac-countant, May 15, 1937, p. 698-9. LEAKE, P. D. Changing outlook of industrial accounting. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 731-7.

- listory EDLER, FLORENCE. Cost accounting in the six-teenth century; the books of account of Chris-topher Plantin, Antwerp, printer and publisher. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 226-37. EDWARDS, RONALD S. Some notes on the early literature and development of cost ac-counting in Great Britain. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 193-5; Aug. 14, 1937, p. 225-31; Aug. 21, 1937, p. 253-5; Aug. 28, 1937, p. 283-7; Sept. 4, 1937, p. 313-6; Sept. 11, 1937, p. 343-4.

Idle capacity See Idle capacity.

- Indirect costs DUANE, W. R. GALT. Indirect costs directly applied. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 290-5.
- Inspection costs GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of inspection costs. (In their Man-agerial control, instruments and methods in in-dustry. c1937. p. 341-59.)
- Job orders

 - ob orders
 HADDEN, A. A. Job-order plants, too, can budget. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1938, p. 62-3. Profit, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 4.
 HALLBERG, VIDAR. Fundamental principles of finding and controlling job costs. Cost and man-agement, April 1937, p. 98-111.
 MCKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Cost accounting—job order. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 573-601.)

- MASTERS, MARTIN J. Costing repair or service jobs. Profit, June 1938, p. 1, 3-4. REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSTON, C. E. Process and job-order cost systems. (In their Cost accounting, principles and methods. 1937. 193-256.)
- Cost accounting, principles and memory 121-p. 193-256.)
 SCHROEDEL, GORDON W. Job order cost sys-tem for a company manufacturing uniforms. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1331-45.) Printed with: Sweetser, Frank L. Standard costs simpli-fied for garment manufacturers.
 SEEBER, CARL L. Cost system in a job order plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 20, section 1, p. 1339-51.)
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Job cost system. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and pro-cedures. c1938. p. 387-411.)

- Joint costs
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. By-products and joint costs. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 208-16.)
 KELLER, I. WAYNE. Function of costs in a joint-products industry. New York, National association of cost accountants. Nov. 15, 1939. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 6, section 1, p. 359-72.)
 LANG, THEODORE. Accounting for joint products. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 10-3, 37.

Joint products See Cost and factory accounting-Products.

Labor

See Labor-Accounting.

Maintenance

See Maintenance and repairs.

Marketing costs

- See also Marketing—Costs VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Marketing cost systems. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures, c1938. p. 563-626.)

Material

See Material

New products See Cost and factory accounting—Products.

Orders

- brders
 CUSTOMERS' deposits on special orders. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 301.
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Outline of specific order cost accounting. (In his Cost accounting. 1937. p. 69-79.)
 WYLIE, HARRY L. Can we cut the cost of handling small orders? American business, Sept. 1938, p. 28-30, 52.

Overhead

- BAXTER, W. T. Note on the allocation of oncosts between departments. Accountant, Nov. 5,

- acosts between departments. Accountant, Nov. 5, 1938, p. 633-6.
 BRUSSEL, J. W. Burden under the thumb. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1937, p. 59-61.
 COGBURN, M. B. Burden application. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 208-12.
 CONTROL of overheads. Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 510-2.
 COOPER, HOWARD E. Elimination of fixed overhead expense from inventory and production costs under the standard cost plan. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 310-21.)
- Year book, 1936. p. 310-9, discussion, p. 319-21.) DALLACHY, J. W. Allocation of oncost to work-in progress. Accountants' magazine, June 1936, p. 365-9. GARDNER, FREDERIC V. Development of stand-ard burden rates and the allocation of bur-den to departments and products. (In Na-

COST AND FACTORY ACCOUNTING-Overhead-(Continued)

- tional association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 182-92.) GARDNER, FREDERIC V. Variable budget in management by exception. Factory Manage-ment and maintenance, Nov. 1937, p. 67-

- management by exception. Pactory Management and maintenance, Nov. 1937, p. 67-74.
 GOODWIN, J. PRYSE. Unabsorbed burden—an experience therewith. (Forum section.) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 2, p. 295-6.)
 HANLEY, E. J. Control of factory overhead at varying volumes of production. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 154-68.)
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Burden procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 364-83.)
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 87-144; 195-204.
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Accounting for manufacturing expense. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 175-89.)
 LOWE, GORDON. Distribution of overhead (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1936. p. 106-37.) (In his Basic course in cost accounting, 1938. p. 114-51.)
 MECHLING, B. F. Overhead by formula. Factory management and maintenance, March 1937, p. 49, 92, 94.
 MYERS, H. J. Standards for manufacturing expense. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 318-29.)
 Printed with: Crockett, Horace G. Cost standards and budgets.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and technical service department. Practice in applying overhead and caculating normal capacity, compiled by Research and caculating normal capacity, compiled by Respective of the processeries of the process
- COUNTANTS. Research and technical service department. Practice in applying overhead and calculating normal capacity, compiled by Re-search and technical service department. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 3, p. 917-34.) ONCOST AND OVERHEADS. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 27.8
- 27-8
- 27-8. PATON, WILLIAM A. Periodic operations and adjustments. (In his *Essentials of accounting*. 1937. Part 1, p. 260-71.) SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Burden application. (In his *Advanced cost accounting*. 1939. p. 33-83.)

- 83.)
 SEEBER, CARL L. Material burden and its application. (in National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 155-63.)
 TREATMENT of oncost in cost accounts. Accountant, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 558-61.
 USE of material burden rate. (Questions and answers.) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 2, p. 900-2.)
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Overhead. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938. p. 259-358.)
 WALKER, PERCY H. Establishment charges—their components and methods of allocation. Accountants.
- their components and methods of allocation. Ac-countant, Nov. 25, 1939, p. 571-6. WIGHT, L. A. Economic recovery of factory overheads. Accountant, Nov. 21, 1936, p. 701-3.

Power costs

See Power costs.

Problems

- roblems LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Prac-tical solutions—problems in cost accounting pro-cedure. (assignments 1-15) Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, (1937) loose leaf. LAWRENCE, W. B. Practical problems in cost accounting. (In his Cost accounting. 1937. p. 479-559.)
- MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Problems. (In his

Basic course in cost accounting. 1938. p. 242-

- REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSON, C. E. REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSON, C. E. Problems, questions and discussion cases to ac-company. "Cost accounting, principles and methods." ed. 2. Scranton, Pa., International textbook co., c1937. 1119.
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Problems. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938, p. 714-978.)
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; review of ex-amination questions. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 159-62; May 1937, p. 88-90; 92; May 1938, p. 73-4, 76; Sept. 1938, p. 122-5.

Process costs

- rocess costs CROSSKEY, W. Process costs. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 152-6. DAVIS, RALPH C. Effect of "dead time" on in-ventory in process. Society for the advancement of management journal, May, 1936, p. 71-4. GRFEN, EARL A. Should materials be charged into process at actual cost or replacement cost? (In National association of cost accountants. Year heads 1936, p. 321-7 discussion p. 327.0)

- Into process at actual cost or replacement cost: (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 321-7, discussion, p. 327-9.)
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Process and departmental costs. (In its Cost accounting procedure, 1937. p. 217-28.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Process cost accounting. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 299-325.)
 MCKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Process and distributive costs. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 602-20.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Process cost method. (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1936. p. 138.74.) (In his Basic course in cost accounting, 1938. p. 152-87.)
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Process costs. (In his Cost accounting, principles and practice. 1938. p. 349-83, 428-37.)
 PROCESS costs of 100 years ago. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 374.
 REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSON, C. E. Process and job-order cost systems. (In their Cost accounting, principles and methods. 1937. p. 193-256.)
 STALKER W. H. Process costs. Accountant In

- Cost accounting, principles and methods. 1937. p. 193-256.) STALKER, W. H. Process costs. Accountant, Jan. 16, 1937. p. 91-6. Cost and management, Feb. 1937, p. 34-46. VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Process cost system. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938. p. 361-86.) WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; process costs. Corporate accountant, July 1937, p. 113-5.

Production costs

- roduction costs
 FACKLER, CLARENCE W. Some limitations of production cost as a price fixing base. Account-ing ledger, April 1939, p. 33-7.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Production cost methods. (In his Accounting systems, design and installa-tion. c1936. p. 283-93.)
 ROCHFORD, G. E. Production cost from the con-trol post. Cost and management, March 1938. p. 93-5.
 SUEPHERD, W. G. Production cost control Cost

- SHEPHERD, W. G. Production cost control. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 14-7.

Products

- BURTON, NORMAN LEE. By products and joint costs, (In his Introduction to cost accounting, 1936, p. 208-16.) OST accounting for new product. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p.
- COST 155-6. COST
- 155-6. COST of new products using existing facilities. (Forum section) New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 2, p. 987-8; June 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 19, section 2, p. 1121-8; July 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1121-8; July 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1230-1.) GREER, HOWARD C. Accounting for bv-prod-ucts and joint products. New York, National as-sociation of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 24, section 1, p. 1399-422.)
- (WACCA: Denterin, et A', et A', et al.
 HATHAWAY, KING. Applied scientific management—14; Organization—the product research and development department. Society for the ad-

COST AND FACTORY ACCOUNTING-Products-(Continued)

vancement of management journal, Nov. 1937,

- vancement of management journal, ive. 1997, p. 173-8, 192. KELLER, I. WAYNE. Function of costs in a joint-products industry. New York, National as-sociation of cost accountants. Nov. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. Bulletin, v. 21, no. 6, section 1, p.
- joint-products industry. New York, National association of cost accountants. Nov. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. Bulletin, v. 21, no. 6, section 1, p. 359-72.)
 LANG, THEODORE. Accounting for joint products. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 10-3, 37. McFARLAND, WALTER B. When is selling at a loss a profitable business policy? New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 328-39.) Printed with: Woodbridge, Frederick W. Make it visual.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Process cost method—by-products. (In his Basic course in cost accounting, principles and practice. 1938, p. 384-400.)
 RYNELL, OLOV. Further thoughts on "Cost of new products using existing facilities". (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accounting. P38, p. 184-7.)
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Waste, spoilage, srap, by-products, and joint products. (In his Cost accounting for joint product, 20, p. 1230-1.)
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Waste, spoilage, srap, by-product, and joint products. (In his Cost accounting for joint product, 1938, p. 384-400.)
 WAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Accounting for joint product and by-product cost. (In his Cost accounting, 1938, p. 178-96.)
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Accounting for joint product. New York, National association of cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938. p. 542-59.)
 WEBSTER, NORMAN R. Pricing and costing graded product. New York, National association of cost accountants. Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 1, p. 200-4.)
 Printed with: Bush, W. Albert, Pickle costs.
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER, Fallacy of selling below cost. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nev. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 457-9.)

Repairs

See Maintenance and repairs.

Replacements See Replacements.

Research costs

- desearch costs
 ACCOUNTING for research costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 421-3.)
 BUDGETING research costs. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 2, p. 901-5.)
 GARDNER, R. M. Budgeting research costs. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, section 2, p. 1141-2.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Present-day practice in accounting for research and development costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 13, section 3, p. 889-909.)
 elling costs

Selling costs See Selling expenses.

Setting-up costs ACCOUNTING for set-up time. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 2, 1937. (N. p. 542-3.)

Standard costs See Standard costs.

Standardization

See Accounting-Standardization; Cost and fac-tory accounting-Uniform methods and systems.

Sweden

RYNELL, OLOV. Uniform cost accounting prin-ciples in Sweden. New York, National associ-

ation of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 10, section 1, p. 590-607.) Printed with: Werntz, William W. Approach to accounting problems.

- System building and installation
 ARNOTT, M. K. Installation of a costing system. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 215-20. Cost accountant, April 1938, p. 340-7.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN I. Managerial selection of a cost system. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 233-47.)
 HARRISON, W. E. Problems arising in costing installation. Cost accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 65-73.
 - 65-73

 - installation. Cost accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 65.73.
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Installing a cost system. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937, p. 321-7.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Cost systems and cost classifications—Estimating cost systems. (In his Cost accounting, 1937, p. 31-7.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Estimating cost systems. (In his Cost accounting, 1937, p. 381-95.)
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Installing a costing system. Accountant, Jan. 7, 1939, p. 18-20; Jan. 14, 1939, p. 47-9; Jan. 21, 1939, p. 95-7; Jan. 28, 1939, p. 127-29; Feb. 4, 1939, p. 95-7; Jan. 28, 1939, p. 127-29; Feb. 4, 1939, p. 221-3; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 257-60; March 4, 1939, p. 300-2; March 11, 1939, p. 332-4.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting: installing a system. Corporate accountant. Jan. 1937, p. 23-5.
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Cost systems. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. c1938, p. 361-521, 563-626.)

Terminal costs DUFFIELD, R. W. Terminal costs. Cost Ac-countant, June 1936, p. 9-13. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 140-8.

- Uniform methods and systems
 See also Accounting—Standardization; specific business, industry or trade.
 BENTLEY, HARRY C. AND LEONARD, RUTH S. Supplement: uniform systems. (In their Bibliography of works on accounting by American authors. 1935. v. 2. p. 291-363.)
 KIRSH, BENJAMIN S. AND SHAPIRO, HAROLD ROLAND, Uniform cost accounting methods of trade associations. (In their Trade associations in law and business. 1938. p. 80-101.)
 - associations in law ana ousiness. 1990. p. 80-101.) LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Uni-form cost accounting systems. (In its Cost accounting procedure, 1937. p. 297-302.) LAWRENCE, W. B. Uniform methods. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 463-75.) NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Uniform cost account-ing system. (In his Cost accounting, princi-ples and practice. 1938. p. 618-73.)

Unit costs MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Methods of unit costing. (In his Basic course in cost account-ing. 1938, p. 54-69.)

Variances See Standard costs.

- COST, and profit trend charts and flexible budgets. Compton, William H.
- COST **ST** control from the standpoint of the operat-ing executive. Wells, Ralph G.
- COST control of bank operations. Waldow, Ottmar A.
- COST demand and net revenue analysis. Broster, Eric James.
- COST estimating for a trucking company. Cormack, George P.
- COST factors in the determination of price dis-crimination. Stevens, W. H. S.

- COST figuring in the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. Sieplein, W. R.
- COST figuring manual for the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. Sieplein, W. R.
- COST finding for railroads. Koontz, Harold D.
- COST finding in transportation. White, Arthur F.
- COST finding plan proposed; report to Eastman commended to railroads and I. C. C. for their consideration—to be used for rate mak-ing. Railway age, June 13, 1936, p. 947-50.
- COST-keeping for national forests. Hartman, David.
- COST manual for furniture manufacturers, cluding presentation of uniform expense analy-sis and budgetary control methods. National association of furniture manufacturers, inc.
- COST of depreciation and obsolescence. Civil engineering, March 1938, p. 179-80.
- ST of fluid milk distribution. Accountant, June 13, 1936, p. 877-80. COST
- COST OF LIVING

ee also Monthly labor review.

- See also Monthly labor review. BENEY, M. ADA. Cost of living in the United States, 1914-1936. New York, National indus-trial conference board, inc., c1936. 99p. (Nat-ional industrial conference board studies no. 288.) MONTAGUE, GILBERT H. New deal costs and
- the high cost of living. (reprinted from the Annals of the American academy of political and social science, Philadelphia, January, 1936.
- abc.)
 bc.)
 UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of Changes in cost of living, January 15, 1936 to December 15, 1939. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936-1939. (pamph-lets issued quarterly)
- COST of living in the United States, 1914-1936. Beney, M. Ada.
- COST of local government in Oklahoma for fiscal year ending June 30, 1936 (with comparison to previous years). Oklahoma. Tax commission.
- COST of new products using existing facilities. (Forum section) New York National associa-tion of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 2, p. 987-8; June 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 19, section 2, p. 1121-8; July 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1230-1.)
- ST of operation in the commercial stationery and office outfitting business. National sta-COST tioners association.

COST OF PRODUCTION

See Costs; Prices.

- COST of production as a basis for price fixing. Backman, Jules.
- COST of store credit. Maughan, Orlo H.
- **ST** percentages. National association of dyers and cleaners. COST
- for the knitting industry. Bennett, COST plan Clinton W.

COST-PLUS CONTRACTS See Contracts.

- COST principles for bolt, nut, and rivet manu-facturers. American institute of bolt, nut and rivet manufacturers.
- COST principles in minimum price regulation. Taggart, Herbert F.

COST STANDARDS

See Standard costs.

- standards and budgets. Crockett, Horace COST G.
- COST system in a job order plant. Seeber, Carl L.

COST SYSTEMS See Cost and factory accounting.

ST under the unfair practices acts. Tannen-baum, Robert. COST

- COSTELLO, JOHN L. Discussion of state taxation. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harris-burg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second account-ing clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 8p.)
- COSTING in the steel tube trade. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 492-6.

COSTING of accounts and account analysis for a bank. Sellors, John.

- COSTS . See also Cost and factory accounting; Dis-tribution costs; Expenses; Production costs; Selling expenses. AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS ASSO-CIATION Laws prohibiting sales below cost,
 - AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIATION. Laws prohibiting sales below cost, in force December 15, 1937. (reprinted with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York, Automobile manufacturers association, c1937. 1 sheet.
 BACKMAN, JULES. Cost of production as a basis for price fixing. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 143-53.
 BACKMAN, JULES. Government price-fixing. New York, Pitman pub. corp., c1938. 304p.
 BARKER, HOWARD F. Cost investigations by the United States tariff commission. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 8-9, 16-17, 20-1; Nov. 1936, p. 22-6.

 - accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 8-9, 16-17, 20-1; Nov. 1936, p. 22-6. BICKLEY, JOHN H. Original cost in utility accounts. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1937, p. 292-3, BROUT, HENRY. Costs from the viewpoint of the credit man. Credit executive, March 1936, p. 77-8. BROWN A T. Cost control as a basic problem
 - p. 77-8. BROWN, A. T. Cost control as a basic problem of industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Yearbook, 1938. p. 7-19.) BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Meaning of cost. (in his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936.

 - KITON, NORMAN LEE. Meaning of cost.
 (in his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936.
 p. 12-21.)
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Cost features of the Robinson-Patman act; an address at a meeting of Trade association executives in New York city, held at Hotel Pennsylvania, New York city on Sept. 29, 1936. 20 mimeo. pages.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Relation of costs to the determination of selling prices. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 118-32.) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 7-16. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 228-39. 228-39.
 - 228-39. CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting for costs and expenses. (In his Accounting prin-ciples and practice. 1936. p. 206-17.) CIES, RALPH D. Costing problems posed by the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business re-

 - CIES, RALPH D. Costing problems posed by the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 350-5.
 COLE, WILLIAM MORSE. Theories of cost. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 4-9.
 COMPETITION with cost. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 161-3.
 COST accounting under the Robinson-Patman act. Bulletin, of the American institute of accountants, Oct. 26, 1936, p. 12-3.
 COURT decision on "original cost." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7.
 COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone companies. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 529-32.

COSTS—(Continued)

- 104.
- DAWSON, R. Costs and the intelligent use of figures. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 285-8.

- Bernes, Oct. 1939, p. 285-8.
 DEAN, JOEL P. Coöperative research in cost-price relationships. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 182-4.
 DEAN, JOEL P. Correlation analysis of cost variation. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 55-60.
 DEAN, JOEL P. Statistical cost curves. Journal of the American statistical association, March 1937, p. 83-9.
 DEAN, JOEL P. Statistical determination of costs, with special reference to marginal costs. Chicago, University of Chicago, School of business, c1936. 145p.
 DEFENCE contracts: costs and profits. (extracts from report.) Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 176-7.
- 176-7

- from report.) Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 176-7.
 EADIE, WILLIAM. Reports on cost investigations. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 156-7.
 FISKE, WYMAN P. Cost characteristics and business policy. Mechanical engineering, Jan. 1938, p. 51-2.
 FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 390-8. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 1-18, 205-20.)
 FREEMAN, E. STEWART. Cost analysis a science, but pricing may be classed as an art. Controller, Jan. 1939, p. 12-9, 22-3.
 FREER, ROBERT E. Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 480-7.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Problems of expenditure and cost—Periodic distribution of asset cost. (In his Accounting concepts of profit, c1939. p. 310-56.)
 GLOVER, IOHN G. AND MAZE. COLEMAN

- 310-56.)
- p. 510-50.7 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Managerial control, instruments and meth-ods in industry. New York, Ronald press co.,
- c1937. 574p. GRANT, EUGENE L. Principles of engineering economy. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., econo... c1938. 431, ——Same HO y. 431p.

- GRER, HOUAND E. THENS OF Constructions of the second sec

held by New York chapter, National asso-ciation of cost accountants. L. R. B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 1-5. LACHMANN, L. M. Investment and costs of production. American economic review, Sept. 1938 - 460 81

- production. American economic review, Sept. 1938, p. 469-81. LASHINS, IVAN R. Robinson-Patman act and quantity discounts. Credit executive, June 1937, p. 172-4. LINDNER, J. A. M. F. AND KOPPENBERG. W F. Matheda
- D. 176-7. INDNER, J. A. M. F. AND KOPPENBERG, W. E. Methods of computing costs and control of prices by public authorities. (In V. interna-tionaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. *Kongress-archiv*, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 133.68 133-68.)
- LIST-06.7 LITTLETON, A. C. Tests for principles. Ac-counting review, March 1938, p. 16-24. McKEE, J. E. Necessity of true costs for suc-cessful management. Cost and management, Max 1226
- May 1936, p. 130-6. MacNEAL, KENNETH. Imputed market prices. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939. p. 152-.73.)
- 73.)
 MITCHELL, WALTER, JR. California unfair practices act. Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, Jan. 1936, p. 5-8.
 MUND, VERNON A. Financial adjustment in the empirical law of cost. American economic review, March 1936, p. 74-80.
 NEW importance of costs—Robinson-Patman act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10-2 Cost and management March 1937 p.
- p. 10-2. Cost and management, March 1937, p.
- 66-8. EW "McLintock agreement." Accountant, Aug. NEW
- NEW "McLintock agreement. Accounts, f. 1939, p. 177-8. "ORIGINAL COST" in utility accounts. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8. OSTLUND, H. J. Robinson-Patman act and quantity discounts. Accounting review, Dec. quantity discounts. Accounting review, 1939, p. 402-9. PATMAN, WRIGHT. Robinson-Patman

- PATMAN, WRIGHT. 'Robinson-Patman act; What you can and cannot do under this law. New York, Ronald press co., c1938, 408p.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Costs and payables. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. part 1, p. 137.59; 1938. p. 256-306.)
 PERKINS, ROSS L. Accounting and the un-fair-practices act. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 161-7.)
 PRICING product under the Robinson-Patman act; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fifteth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 267-85.)
 RESEARCH in cost accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy. Sept. 1938, p. 138-9.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Cost problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Manufacturer's news hetter, Aug. 5, 1937.

- Journal, of altonnumer, Generation, Problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Manufacturer's news letter, Aug. 5, 1937.
 ROBINSON-PATMAN act in action. Yale law journal, Jan. 1937, p. 447-82.
 SARGENT, CHARLES WESLEY. Some qualities of cost in accounting. Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 12-3, 18-9.
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting as evidence in cases arising under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 12, section 1, p. 681-97.)
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 679-88.)
 SCHOLEFIELD, J. B. Robinson-Patman act and the accountant. Journal of accountant, April 1939, p. 256-60. Cost and management, April 1939, p. 129-33.
 SMITH, BLACKWELL AND McCONNELL, JOSEPH H. Analysis of FTC action on 66 Robinson-Patman cases. Dun's review, Jan. 1938, p. 7-13; 45-8.
 SOCIAL interest in accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountant, Journal of accountant, Journal of accountant, Journal of accountant, April 1938, p. 7-13; 45-8.

COSTS-(Continued)

- XOSTS—(Continued)
 STEVENS, W. H. S. Cost factors in the determination of price discrimination. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 689-96.) Printed with: Sawyer, Albert E. Cost accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act.
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Cost principles in minimum price regulation. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business studies, v. 8, no. 1.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Established act and the section of the section of

- TAGGART, HERBERT F. Established cost survey. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section 1, p. 145-59.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Standard brands case. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1939. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 4, section 1, p. 195-262.)
 TANNENBAUM, ROBERT. Cost under the unfair practices acts. Chicago, III., University of Chicago press, c1939. 65p. (Studies in business administration, v. 9, no. 2.)
 THORP, WILLARD L. Note on cost under the Robinson-Patman act. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, P. 25, 47.
- p. 25, 47. THORP, WILLARD L. Price discrimination and cost. Journal of accountancy, March 1937,
- THORT, WILLIAM of accountancy, March 1957, p. 183-6.
 TOTAL costs. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 720-4.
 WALKER, ROSS G. Some recent experiments in the control of manufacturing costs. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern so-
- Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 153-90.)
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. Cost prices and profits. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 165-71, discussion, p. 171-4.
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER, Fallacy of selling below cost; address delivered at the fifteenth annual convention of the American institute of steel constructon . . . Oct. 29, 1937. 160.

- teenth annual convention of the American institute of steel constructon . . Oct. 29, 1937. 16p.
 WELLINGTON, C. OLÍVER. Fallacy of selling below cost. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 457-9.)
 WELLS, RALPH G. Cost control from the standpoint of the operating executive. New York, National association of cost accountants, U, North, National association of cost accountants, Narch 15, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 731-49.)
 WERNE, BENJAMIN, ed. Business and the Robinson-Patman law; a symposium. New York, Oxford university press, 1938. 296p.
 WHYTE, MALCOLM K. Robinson-Patman act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of cost accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference, 1936, p. 15-24.)
 WILLAMS, GEORGE L. Technique of estimating. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 60-73.)
 ZARKER, A. B. Is fixed overhead always a cost? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 2, p. 1347-8.)
- COSTS and returns from farm enterprises from 82 cost-account farms, 1937. Williamson, Paul S.
- COSTS and services of local government in selected Illinois counties. Allen, H. K.
- COSTS of building a typical six-room house in different localities. National real estate jour-nal, April 20, 1937, p. 76-7.
- COSTS of building the same standard house in representative cities of the country. National real estate journal, April 20, 1939, p. 24-5.

- **COSTS** of city and county audits; there is pre-sented herewith data on the costs of annual audits of 52 cities and 65 counties. Kansas municipalities, Feb. 1937, p. 33-5.
- COSTS of defence department contracts. Accountant, May 15, 1937, p. 698-9.
- COSTS **STS** of the retail coal merchant. Hutchison, George E.

COTTER, ARUNDEL Analyst looks at the accountant. Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 279-83.
Scotching the inventory bugaboo. Barron's, Aug. 21, 28, Sept. 4, 11, 18, 25, Oct. 2, 9, 23, 30, Nov. 6, 13, 20, 1939, p. 3; 20; 7; 8; 18; 10; 13; 9; 7; 13; 20; 7; 8; 10.

COTTON

COOK, FREDERICK. Cotton importing, finance and marketing. Accountancy, Oct. 16, 1937, and marl p. 520-8.

Statistics

ANTIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Cotton. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 16-33.)

COTTON BROKERS

See Commodity brokers.

COTTON CONTROL ACT COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Cot-ton control act of 1934 ("Bankhead act") (In its Federal revenue laws, January, 1936. p. 217-25.)

COTTON CONVERTERS Statistics

- tatistice BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for cotton jobbers and converters, (1n his Prac-tical credit analysis, c1939. p. 36, 37, 38, 40, 41, 107, 140, 146.) FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operat-ing ratios of cotton goods converters. (1n his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 49, 75, 99, 124, 174-5.) (1937 ed.—p. 50, 78, 104, 131, 190-1.) (1n his Fourteen guides to ji-nancial stability. c1936. p. 28-9.) (1n his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 28-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 20-1.)

COTTON FABRICS See Textiles.

COTTON FUTURES

STICK FOILORD See also Hedging. ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART. Notes on the business and accounts of a cotton merchant. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, June 15, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bul-letin, v. 17, no. 20, section 1, p. 1185-1209.)

Accounting UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Cooperative division. Accounting principles for cooperative cotton gin associations, by Otis T. Weaver. Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, 1936. 92p. (Bulletin no. 2.)

Statistics

tatistics UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Analysis of the business operations of coop-erative cotton gins in Oklahoma, 1933-1934, by Otis T. Weaver and Omer W. Herrmann. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, April 1937. 96 p. (Bulletin no. 12.)

COTTON JOBBERS Statistics

BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for cotton jobbers and converters. (In his Prac-tical credit analysis, c1939, p. 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 107, 140, 146.)

COTTON MERCHANTS See Cotton trade.

COTTON mill inventories. Cert countant, Aug. 1936, p. 483-6. Certified public ac-

COTTON MILLS

- KENNEDY, STEPHEN JAY. Profits and losses in textiles; cotton textile financing since the war. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 257p.
- Cost accounting LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH AND MAXWELL, ARTHUR D. Textile costing; an aid to man-agement. Washington, D. C., Textile founda-tion, inc., 1938. 282p.

Costs UNITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1—the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washington, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936.

Inventories

COTTON mill inventories. Cer countant, Aug. 1936, p. 483-6. Certified public ac-

Statistics

- tatistics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for coton mills. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939, p. 130, 153, 154, 155.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Cot-ton textile weavers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939, 1p. (Natural busi-ness year bulletin, no. 19, November 1939.)
 UNITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1--the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washington, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936. 34p. 34p.

COTTON textile weavers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

COTTON TRADE

- COTTON TRADE Accounting
 ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART. Notes on the business and accounts of a cotton merchant. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, June 15, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bul-letin, v. 17, no. 20, section 1, p. 1185-1209.)
 ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART. Special account-ing considerations in cotton merchants' ac-counts. L. R. B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 41.4.
 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts;
 - SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; cotton merchants. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 170-1.

COTTONSEED OIL See also Vegetable oils and oil seeds.

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Pro-ducers of crude cottonseed oil and refiners of cottonseed oil; natural business year bulletin no. 9, December 1938. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 3p.

COUCHMAN, CHARLES B.

- OUCHMAN, CHARLES B.
 Accountancy of tomorrow; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 552-4.
 Auditors' report or certificate. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 23-8.
 Calendar year not the economic year. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 237-8.

- Double entry thinking. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Nov. 1936, p. 368-75. Natural business year; excerpts from address at annual convention of National association of credit men, Richmond, Va., June 12, 1936, 11 mimeographed pages. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 21-4 (extracts).
- Natural business year's first birthday; a prog-ress report. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1936, p. 13-5. 37.
- UNCIL audit systems; points for and against the professional and district audit. Accountant, Aug. 1, 1936, p. 170-1. Certified accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 287-8. COUNCIL

COUNCILOR, JAMES A. Social security taxation. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on account-ing procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 49-57.) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 244-52.

COUNTIES

- COUNTIES Accounting EGAN, JAMES F. Accounting procedure in the city and county of San Francisco. (In Amer-ican institute of accountancy. Papers on audit-ing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 208-10.) MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSO-CIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Accounting for public property. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' associa-tion, May 1939, 42p. (Accounting pub. no. 5.) MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. County finance and accounting standards. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance of-ficers' association of the United States and Canada, August 1937. 35p. (Accounting pub. no. 4.)
 - NÉBRASKA. Auditor of public accounts. Man-NEBRASKA. Auditor of public accounts. Manual of procedure, uniform system of accounting, all county officers, state of Nebraska, Lincoln, Neb, Auditor of public accounts. Sept. 1, 1937, 39p.
 SHREEVE, T. L. Modern accounting for country oces. Utah C. P. A., Oct. 1939, p. 1, 3-4; Nov. 1939, p. 2-4.
 TAX research foundation. Legal provisions for local governmental accounting as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 232.)

 - 232.)

 - p. 232.) It is full plating of the density of the optimization of the plating of

- Anditing
 COSTS of city and county audits; there is presented herewith data on the costs of annual audits of 52 cities and 65 counties. Kansas municipalities, Feb. 1937, p. 33-5.
 MINNESOTA, Hennepin county, Financial statement of Hennepin county, 1937. Minneapolis, Minn., County auditor, 1938. 44p.
 VIRGINIA. Auditor of public accounts. Model for reports on audits of the accounts and records of the counties of the commonwealth of Virginia, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1937. Minneographed.

Costs

- osts ALLEN, H. K. Costs and services of local gov-ernment in selected Illinois counties. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, College of commerce and business ad-ministration, 1936. 53p. (Bulletin no. 52.) OKLAHOMA. Tax commission. Cost of local gov-ernment in Oklahoma for fiscal year ending

COUNTIES-Costs-(Continued)

June 30, 1936 (with comparison to previous years) Oklahoma City, Okla., Tax commission, 1936. 108p.

Finance

- inance ADAMS, FERRELL, H. Reporting county fi-nances. Municipal finance, Aug. 1937, p. 5-8. MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSO-CIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. County finance and accounting standards. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, August 1937. 25p. (Accounting publi-cation no 4) cation no. 4.) AX RESEARCH
- TAX FOUNDATION. Legal provisions for centralization and reporting of financial statistics of local governments as of July 1, 1937. (In its *Tax systems of the world*. c1938. p. 233.)
- COUNTY finance and accounting standards. Munici-pal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.

COURT ACCOUNTING See Executors and trustees—Accounting.

- COURT decision on "original cost." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7.
- COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone companies. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 55-64. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 629-32.

COURT DECISIONS

- COURT DECISIONS See also Lawsuits.
 BUCHANAN, ROBERT. Review of court decisions. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 118-23.)
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Court decisions and rulings on the subject of public accountancy. (In its Accountancy law service. c1938. Loose leaf.)
 GORDON, SPENCER. Liability arising from accountant's report. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 48-55.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Technical matters. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 394.
 LEGAL notes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 327.
 MORRIS, JAMES W. Tax cases from the government's point of view. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 269-71.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Legal decisions. (In his Auditing. 1937, p. 337-509.)

- Accountancy law ASTONISHING opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 404-6. DECISION upholding Illinois act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 12.

1936, p. 12. FLORIDA ac

- 1936, p. 12.
 FLORIDA accountancy law upheld. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 17-9.
 FLORIDA accountancy law upheld. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 358-9.
 ILLINOIS. Supreme court. Docket no. 23680-agenda 24-June, 1936; Fred Elliott et al. appelleets. 9 typewritten pages.
 RESTRICTIVE act upheld. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10.
 SUPREME court decisions on accountancy acts. Certified public accountancy, acts-Illinois case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy acts-Illinois case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy acts-Illinois p. 88-93.
- case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, rep. 1937, p. 88-93.
 WISCONSIN. Dane County circuit court. Edwin L. Wangerin, George Heiser, Jr., Ray M., Nosseck, William Sidney Schmidt, plaintiffs vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy, et al., defendants; before Hon. A. G. Zimmerman,

- judge-ruling on demurrer . . . dated April 6, 1936. 5 typewritten pages.
 WISCONSIN. Supreme court. No. 103. August term-1936-State of Wisconsin; in supreme court; Edwin L. Wangerin et al., appellants vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy et al., respondents. 5 mimeographed pages.
 WISCONSIN. Supreme court. State of Wisconsin: in supreme court; no. 103-August term-1936. Edwin L. Wangerin et al., appellants, vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy et al., respondents. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 20-4.
 WISCONSIN court upholds state accountancy accountants, June 1936, p. 23-5.
 WISCONSIN regulatory law constitutional. Cer-tified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 720-3.

- Accountants' fees
 Accountants' lees
 Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 10.
 Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 10.
 Accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 352.
 Accountants' scheme accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 121-2.
 Accountants' scheme accountant, Dec. 26, 1936, p. 875.
 ACTION for professional charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 114.
 CLAIM for accountant's charges; Radford v. Mandleberg & co., limited. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 449-50.
 CLAIM for fees. Accountant, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 775.
 - 775.

 - 775. CLAIM for professional services. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 160. FEE for company investigation; accountant's claim. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 200-2. FEE for company investigation; accountant's claim succeeds. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 22.3
 - 22-3. PROFESSION in Ireland: a claim for professional fees. Accountant, Dec. 25, 1937, p. 877. SUCCESSFUL action for charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 376. SUCCESSFUL claim for fees. Accountant, March 20, 1937, p. 411.

Accountants' practice RESTRICTIVE covenant unenforceable. Incor-porated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 421.

Accounting NEW YORK court of appeals decisions on uni-form system of accounts. American gas jour-nal, June 1936, p. 34, 50.

Designations, degrees, etc.
MISUSE of professional designation. Accountant, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 29-30.
PROFESSION in Egypt; successful action by the Association of chartered accountants in Egypt. Accountant, July 22, 1939, p. 113-4.

Evidence

- vidence
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Duty to preserve accounting records. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 269-70.
 INGRAM, H. DUDLEY. Loose-leaf minute books as admissible evidence. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1936, p. 423-5.
 LOOSELEAF books. Accountants' journal. (Eng.), March 1936, p. 823-4. Certified accountants jour-nal. March 1936, p. 91.
 LOOSE-LEAF books as evidence. Australian ac-countant, May 1936, p. 253-5.
 LOOSE-LEAF minute books. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 273-5.

COURT DECISIONS-Evidence-(Continued)

LOOSE-LEAF minute books and the auditor. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, 202-5

OPINION. (Hearts of oak assurance co., ltd.) Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 237.

- Financial statements GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Quali-fied statements. (Legal notes) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1939, p. 47.

Fraud

- See also Court decisions—Misfeasance; Interstate hosiery mills, inc.; McKesson and Robbins, inc.; Pepper pool case; State Street trust company v. Ernst, et al.
 APPEALS unsuccessful in Pepper pool case. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 254 (2006)
- 354-8. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Ac-countant's liability for negligence and fraud; comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N. Y. 104, 15, N.E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 326-30. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Com-ment on State street trust co. v. Ernst deferred. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 122. CEPETLEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. In-

- Intent on State sufert trust co. v. Lines determined (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 122.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Unwarranted generalization—Accountants' legal responsibility for ambiguous or incorrect statements. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 251-4.
 NEGLIGENCE—Public accountants—Liability to third party for mistake in statement. Virginia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 331-2.
 NEW YORK court of appeals. State street trust company, appellant, vs. Alwin C. Ernst et al., co-partners doing business under the firm name and style of Ernst & Ernst, respondents. Decided May 24, 1938. 11 mimeographed pages.
 PEPPER case: Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 221-2; 225-8. Certified accountants iournal, April 1936, p. 1036, p. 109-208.
 PEPPER case; judge's summing up. Incorporated tants journal, April 1936, p. 2018.
 PEPPER pool case; a fraudulent prospectus conviction. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 103-4; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 286-96; Feb. 29, 1936, p. 323-37; March 7, 1936, p. 325-37; March 14, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 494-501.
 PUBLIC accountants, not liable for mistakes in the state of the state state state state state state state state state accountant, and state state accountant, and accountant, and a prospectus conviction. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 323-37; March 7, 1936, p. 325-37; March 14, 1936, p. 323-37; March 14, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 448-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 448-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 448-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 458-63; Mar
- Al8-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 494-501.
 PUBLIC accountants not liable for mistakes in statement. (from Virginia law review, vol. 24, no. 3.) Philippine accountants' journal, April, May, and June 1939, p. 79-80.
 STATE street trust company case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 282.
 TELLING half the truth—Investors beguiled by silence—Truth must be intelligible. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 403-6.

Libel

SETTLEMENT of accountant's libel action. Ac-countant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 246.

- Negligence ACTION against Irish accountants; Leech v. Stokes and others. Accountant, May 15, 1937, p. 710-1; May 22, 1937, p. 744; June 12, 1937,

 - p. 853.4. ACTION against Irish accountants; solicitor's appeal dismissed; Leech v. Stokes and others. Accountant, July 10, 1937, p. 55-7. ACTION alleging negligence against auditors dis-missed; Diamond T. Montreal limited v. James G. Ross et al. and Frank B. Wadsworth. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 205-7. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434. (Findings and opinions.) ACTION for negligence; verdict for defendant.

ACTION for negligence; verdict for defendant.

Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939,

- Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 485-9. ALLEGATIONS of negligence withdrawn. Ac-countant, March 27, 1937, p. 444. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 242. ALLEGED negligence by accountants; judgment for defendants. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 805-15.
- 805-15. ALLEGED negligence by accountants; Leech v. Stokes Bros. & Pim. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 417-21. ALLEGED negligence by accountants; Leech v. Stokes Bros. and Pim; judgment for defendants. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 95-103.

- 95-103.
 ALLEGED negligence of accountants; action in the Irish free State. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 638-41; Nov. 14, 1937, p. 675-6.
 ALLEGED negligence of accountants; an Irish Free State decision. Canadian chartered accountant, reb. 1937, p. 137-42.
 AUDITOR'S duty as to showroom accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 203-5.

- corporated accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 203-5.
 CLAIM against chartered accountants. Accountant, March 25, 1939, p. 397-400.
 CLAIM for negligence. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1939, p. 35-6.
 DISMISSAL of action against auditors. (from Manchester guardian) Accountant, March 28, 1936, p. 480-1, 508-10.
 DUTIES of auditors: charges of negligence dismissed. Accountant, Feb. 27, 1937, p. 308-13.
 DUTIES of auditors not standardized. Certified accountant, April 1937, p. 326-30.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountant's liability for negligence and fraud; comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N.Y. 104, 15, N.E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 326-30.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N.Y. 104, 15, N.E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 326-30.
- GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Com-ment on State street trust co. v. Ernst deferred. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938,
- p. 122. GREFLEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. English decision on negligence of accountant. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p.
- 467-8. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. State street trust co. v. Ernst, 278 N.Y. 104. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Un-warranted generalization—Accountants' legal re-sponsibility for ambiguous or incorrect state-ments. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1938 p. 251.4

- warranted generalization—Accountants legal ice sponsibility for ambiguous or incorrect statements. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 251-4.
 LIABILITIES of auditors. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 601-4.
 NEGLIGENCE—Public accountants—liability to third party for mistake in statement. Virginia law review. Ian. 1938, p. 331-2.
 NEW YORK COURT OF APPEALS. State street trust company, appellant, vs. Alwin C. Ernst et al., co-partners doing business under the firm name and style of Ernst & Ernst, respondents. Decided May 24, 1938. 11 mimeographed pages.
 PUBLIC accountants not liable for mistakes in statement. (from Virginia law review, vol. 24, no. 3.) Philippine accountants' journal, April. Mav and June 1939, p. 79-80.
 STATE street trust company case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 282.
 UNSUCCESSFUL action against accountants. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 242-5.

- p. 242-5.

Professional fees UNITED STATES. Court of claims. In the Court of claims of the United States: no. 43469 (decided November 6, 1939) James A. Councilor & William Gordon Buchanan, partners, doing

COURT DECISIONS—Professional fees—(Continued)

business under the firm name and style of Councilor & Buchanan v. the United States.

- Unauthorized practice of law ACCOUNTANT refused recovery on tax refund
 - ACCOUNTANT retused recovery on tax retund contract; giving opinion on interpretation of statute held practice of law. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 700. CITY COURT—trial term, by Evans, J., Mandel-baum v. Gilbert and Barker. New York law journal, Oct. 10, 1936. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 22.

- Working papers ACCOUNTANT'S right to retain documents. Ac-tancy, Dec. 1938, p. 89-90. ACCOUNTANTS' working papers not subject to will. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Aug. 1936, p. 53-5.
 - p. 53-5. EXTRACT from an opinion delivered by Surrogate Delehanty in the case of Estate of William H. Dennis. New York law journal, Feb. 15, 1936,
 - p. 827. OWNERSHIP of accountants' correspondence and working papers. Accountant, Nov. 19, 1938, p. 686-7. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan.

 - 686-7. Chartered accountant in Austrana, jan. 1939, p. 490-1.
 WORKING papers. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1938, p. 366-8.
 WORKING papers not subject to will—Decision by New York surrogate—Ipswich mills case not in conflict—Decision in harmony with professional opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 466-7.

- COURTNEY, JAMES L. Time study and the accountant. Accountant, Sept. 2, 1939, p. 307-8. Value of a weekly financial report. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 466-7.

COURTS

CELLER bills. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 196-7.

Costs

ANDREWS, ALEXANDER B. Per capita cost of courts. Lawyer, Nov. 1939, p. 11-5.

COUSE, WILLIAM J. New Jersey retirement plan; details of the pension plan of the New Jersey bankers association. Bankers magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 313-8.

COVERT, VINE F. Internal auditing procedure of Westinghouse com-pany described. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 404, 406, 408, 410, 419.

COWAN-DOUGLAS, HUGH

Accountants magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 16-24. Indian accountant, April 1938, p. 152-7.

COWCHER, W. B.

H. M. inspector of taxes; a sketch of district organisation. Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 415-8.

COXALL, WILLIAM C.

- Control of expenditure. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 476-84. Cost control or expenditure control for municipali-ties? Cost accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 159-81, discussion, p. 181-93.

COYKENDALL, S. A., JR. Protection against strike suit legislation. Credit executive, May 1937, p. 133-5.

COYLE, DAVID CUSHMAN But is there a federal deficit? Harpers magazine, April 1938, p. 449-57.

CRADIT, RAYMOND V.

Bookkeeping for personal and business use. Chi-cago, Ill., American technical society, 1937. 326p.

CRADIT, RAYMOND V., joint author See Duddy, Edward A. and others.

CRAFTS, J. ANDREW Employers' accounting under the social security act. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21.

CRAFTS, J. ANDREW, joint author See Allen, Robert T. and Crafts, J. Andrew.

- CRANDELL, J. CHESTER Principles related to inventory valuation. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 21-5.)
 - Ratios available for financial analysis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 23, section 1, p. 1349-82.)

CRANDELL, WILLIAM T. Financial statements of national wealth and na-tional income. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 271-90.

CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D. Obligations imposed by a professional status. 5 typewritten pages. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 15-6, 43-5.

- CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor See also Commentator; a department. Accounting to employees. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 203. Depreciation deductible and otherwise. (Commen-tator) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 229-30. Jewel—consistency. (Commentator) Journal of a

 - 229-30.
 Jewel—consistency. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 302-3.
 Little old New York. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Iuly 1939, p. 58-9.
 Other side. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 348.
 Relieving income. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 349.
 Reporting to employees. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 338-9.
 S.E.C. release no. 10. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 338-9.
 S.E.C. release no. 10. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 179-80.
 Some general observations on surplus. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 68-70. 68-70.
 - 68-70. Something about a reserve—Novel sinking-fund procedure. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, Nov. 1939, p. 348-9. Somewhat muddled. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 202-3. Strange confirmation. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 349. Voluntary payments on pension plans. (Commen-tator) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 59.

CRATE, HAROLD E. Financial and industrial survey. Canadian char-tered accountant, June 1936, p. 414-22.

CRATES

See also Containers.

Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Veneer works, crate factories and minor operations. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 307-22.)

CRAVENS, CHARLES T.

Life insurance as collateral. National auditgram, April 1939, p. 7-10, 18-20.

CRAVENS, KENTON R.

Bank financing of automobiles. Burroughs clearing house, Dec. 1939, p. 12-4, 30, 32-5.

- CRAWFORD, HENRY P. Income tax law of Argentina. Washington, D. C., Department of commerce, Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce, 1936. (Comparative law series, December 1936. p. 1-9.) Income tax law of Panama. Washington, D. C.,

CRAWFORD, HENRY P.-(Continued)

Department of commerce, Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce, 1939. (Comparative law series, April 1939, p. 161-71.)

CRAWFORD, ROBERT

Costs and statistics—their scope and function. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 12-22; Feb. 1939, p. 96-104.

CRAYONS

See Chalk, crayons, etc.

CREAMERIES

See also Dairving: Milk dealers.

Accounting ATWELL,

ATWELL, W. B. Accounting in the dairy indus-try. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 10-9. WILSON, C. N. Creamery and cheese factory accounting simplified. National butter and cheese journal, Nov. 10, 25, Dec. 10, 1937, p. 18-20; 10, 12-3; 10-2.

Costs TASKER, J. F. Costs and capitalisation of North Auckland creameries during 1935-36. Accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 43-7.

Statistics

TASKER, J. F. Costs and capitalisation of North Auckland creameries during 1935-36. Accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 43-7.

CREAN. RAYMOND B.

Budgets of trade associations; round table discus-sion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 106-7.

CREDIT

- REDIT See also Agriculture—Credit; Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with
 ASSIGNMENT of accounts receivable. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 258.
 BALKAM, GILBERT. Present day trends in account analysis. Bankers monthly, Dec. 1939, p. 712-3, 740-1.
 BARRY, DAVID C. Installment financing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1936, p. 2452
- 243-52
- p. 243-52. BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Liability ratios in credit analysis. Bankers magazine, March 1938, 203-5
- p. 203-5. BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Practical credit analy-sis for bank and trade credit men, accountants, sis for bank and trade credit men, accountants, ed. 3,
- BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Practical credit analysis for bank and trade credit men, accountants, investors, business schools, merchants. ed. 3. New York, The author, c1939. 180p.
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Turnover ratios in credit analysis. Bankers magazine, June 1937, p. 467-72.
 BLAINE, E. L., JR. Coöperation with public accountants; address at Credit conference, thirty-fourth annual convention, American institute of banking, Seattle, Washington, June 11, 1934. 10 typewritten pages.
 BUCKELEW, J. M. Streamlined credit policy; well organized plan that expedites orders. Credit and financial management, April 1939, p. 6-9.
 BURROWS, H. R. Banks and credit. Accountant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 196-9.
 CAULCUTT, JOHN. Machinery of credit. Accountant, Jan. 21, 1939, p. 89-95.
 CHURCHMAN, B. D. Coupon book credit system described in detail. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May 1938, p. 41-3, 64, 66.

- retail dry goods association, May 1938, p. 41-3, 64, 66. CREDITS and collections. (In Business execu-tive's handbook. 1937. p. 673-772.) DECKER, O. P. and RAYMOND, PAUL C. Credit information from banks; how far can the banker go on inquiries? Credit and financial management, May 1939, p. 20-2. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Use of com-mercial and consumer credit; section 2 of Survey of business trends, 1935-1937. Dun's review, May 1938, p. 18-28. ELLINGER, BARNARD. Money and credit—

how they work in practice. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 651-7, discussion, p. 657-60.

- ETTINGER, RICHARD P. and GOLIEB, DAVID E. Credits and collections; revised in collabora-

- ⁶⁰⁷⁻⁰⁰, ⁶⁰⁷⁻⁰⁰

- HOUGH, RAYMOND S. McKesson & Robbins, inc., and the trade creditors. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 43-4.
 HUFFORD, C. F. How are house accounts con-trolled? Credit world, July 1938, p. 27.
 HURST, T. E. Banker as a lender. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 238-42, discussion, p. 242-3.
 JARVIE, J. GIBSON. Credit and present day needs. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 48-52, discussion, p. 52-3.

- needs. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 48-52, discussion, p. 52-3. JOHNSTON, MURRAY V. Streamlining credit forms. Credit and financial management, June 1937, p. 6-9. McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD S. Credit transactions. (In their Accounting principles. e1939. p. 137-67.) MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Accounting as credit aid; New Jersey C.P.A.'s have educational pro-gram. Credit and financial management, Sept. 1939, p. 23-4.
- gram. Credit and financial management, Sept. 1939, p. 23-4. MARKHAM, J. Credit control. Federal accoun-tant, Feb. 1939, p. 23-4. MAUGHAN, ORLO H. Cost of store credit. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell university, State college of agriculture, April 1936. 26p. (Cornell ex-tension bulletin 349.) MAXWELL, GEORGE A. Gold and its relation-ship to credit. (talk given at a meeting of the Baltimore bank auditors and comptrollers) 13 twoewritten pages

- ship to credit. (talk given at a meeting of the Baltimore bank auditors and comptrollers) 13 typewritten pages.
 MAXWELL, W. RUSSELL. Credit. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 39-47.
 MERRIAM, MALCOLM M. Retail credit in 1938; summary of a survey by Department of commerce. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1939, p. 9-12.
 MILLS, R. C. Can banks create credit? Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 305-7.
 MOSLEY-ROBERTS, A. E. Credit control. Accountant, Nov. 27, 1937, p. 734.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Credit management division. Credit management year book, 1937-1938; compiled by J. Anton Hagios. v. 5. New York, National retail drv goods association, c1938, 256p.
 NEW JERSEY BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Committee on coöperation with New Jersey society of certified public accountants and Robert Morris associates. Report on joint sessions, May 1936. 7p.
 PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR. Work of the credit executive; the determination and control of credit in the modern business organization. New

CREDIT-(Continued)

York, The author, c1938. 19p. (Occupational

- YORK, Internation, Control of the addition, Control of the addition, Control of the addition o
- 62, 175-7. PATCH, BUEL W. Credit policy and control of recovery. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 1-20.) PUTNAM, L. L. Trading certificates. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 236-40. SIEGEL, ALBERT. Limitations of utilizing ac-
- SIEGEL, ALBERT. Limitations of utilizing ac-counting information for credit purposes. Credit and financial management, July 1939, p. 12-4, 52. STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Mercantie credit. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 251p. (American business fundamentals.) TAYLOR, HARRY E. Audit reports and the banks. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 200.2
- 200-2.
- 200-2. WEBSTER, E. E. Credit executive, his work and philosophy. Cost and management, March 1939, p. 102-12. WEISBERG, CHARLES. Accountant and credit work. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 13-4. WEISBERG, CHARLES. What the credit man current from the accountant Credit area for the accountant.
- expects from the accountant. Credit executive, April 1938, p. 106-8. WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Money, credit and banking. New York, Ronald press co., c1938.

- banking. New York, Konalu press co., cross. 1172p.
 WHITAKER, C. L. Credit information sources; direct and indirect methods of checking on accounts. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 18-20.
 WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Can a firm's size affect its debt payments? Credit and financial management, Jan. 1938, p. 6-8.
 WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Capacity to pay current debts. Urbana, 111. University of Illinois, College of commerce and business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 54p. (University of Illinois builletin, v. 34, no. 11.)

- CREDIT AGENCIES ETTINGER, RICHARD P. and GOLIEB, DAVID E. Mercantile agencies—Special agencies. (In their Credits and collections. 1938. p. 122-75.) STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Mercantile
 - STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD, Including agency. (In his Mercantile credit. 1936. p. 24-

CREDIT AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ANOTHER constructive comment—Profession pro-ceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 135-6.

- CREDIT BUREAUS ETTINGER, RICHARD P. and GOLIEB, DAVID E. Sources of information—retail credit ex-change bureaus. (In their Credits and col-lections, 1938. p. 223-9.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Credit management division. Credit bureau reporting services. (In its Credit man-agement year book, 1937-1938. p. 176-83.)

CREDIT COMPANIES See Finance companies.

- CREDIT DEPARTMENTS FOULKE, ROY A. and PROCHNOW, HER-BERT V. Bank credit department. (In their Practical bank credit. 1939. p. 3-41.) PERRV, HENRY C. Treasurer views credits; financial officer discusses department work. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 10-1. 44. STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Mercantile credit department. (In his Mercantile credit. 1936. p. 8-23.)
 - 1936. p. 8-23.)

Costs

osts NATIONAL retail dry goods association. Credit management division. Credit department ex-pense. (In its Credit management year book, 1937-1938. p. 166-75.)

CREDIT FRAUDS See Fraud.

CREDIT INSURANCE

See Insurance, Credit.

CREDIT management year book, 1937-1938. National retail dry goods association. Credit management division.

CREDIT MEN, COOPERATION WITH

See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with

CREDIT UNIONS BERGENGREN, ROY F. Cuna emerges. ed. 2. Madison, Wis., Credit union national association, Madison, Wis c1936. 289p.

- Accounting BERGENGREN, ROY F. Practice. (In his Cuna emerges. c1936. p. 102-43.)
- CREDITS and collections. Ettinger, Richard P. and Golieb, David E.

CREE, C. E.

Cost accounting in hospitals. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 4-10.

CREMER, GEORGE S. Some dangers of over-regulation. New York cer-tified public accountant, July 1938, p. 77-81.

CRENSHAW, BOLLING H., SIMPSON, THOMAS MARSHALL, AND PIRENIAN, ZAREH M. Commercial algebra; college course. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1935. 174p.

CRENSHAW, BOLLING H., joint author See Simpson, Thomas Marshall, Pirenian, Zareh M., and Crenshaw, Bolling H.

CREW, ALBERT

- **KEW**, ALDER I Amendments to the companies act. Certified ac-countants journal, Jan. 1938, p. 17-20, discussion p. 20-2.
- Characteristics and functions of a professional accountant. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 608-12; Feb. 1939, p. 105-9; March 1939, p. 180-4.
- p. 180-4. Conduct of and procedure at meetings. Accoun-tants' magazine, April 1939, p. 260-4; May 1939, p. 285-9; June 1939, p. 354-9. Examinations; how to prepare and how to pass. Certified accountants journal, April 1938, p.
- 119-23.

- 119-23. Leading cases affecting the companies act, 1929. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1937, p. 316-7; Feb. 1938, p. 51-2. Profession of accountancy. Certified accountants journal, June 1939, p. 175-6; July 1939, p. 209-10; Aug. 1939, p. 240-2. Some leading cases affecting the companies act, 1929. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 207-8.
- Some vagaries in connection with company meet-ings. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1939, p. 272-4.

CRICKMER, H. C. Balance sheet from a banker's point of view. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1936, p. 178-87.

CRISES See Panics.

CRITCHLEY, T. P. AND THORPE, N. W. Costing as it affects a municipal engineer's de-partment. Cost accountant, May 1938, p. 378-82.

CROCKETT, HORACE G.

- Cost standards and budgets. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-17.)
- Recent trends in budgeting. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 166-9.)

CROCKETT, J. D. M.

Annual report of a city board of education. 9 typewritten pages.

CROMWELL, JAMES H. R. Should the federal government license corporations? Bulletin of America's town meeting of the air, Feb. 28, 1938, p. 12-9.

CROSS, NORMAN C. Inventories; address before Petroleum accountants society, February 23, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.

CROSSKEY, W.

Process costs. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 152-6.

CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Planning for tax economy. New York, Waldrep-Tilson, inc., c1936. 290p.

CROWLEY, LEO T.

- Bank regulation on the part of FDIC; address before the Indiana banking conference, Indiana university, Bloomington, Indiana, October 25, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 Excerpts from an address before the United States building and loan league, Chicago, Ill., November 17, 1938. 9 mimeographed pages.

CRUM, W. L.

Corporate earnings on invested capital. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1938, p. 336-50. Industrial corporation balance sheets in prosperity and depression. Harvard business review, Win-ter number, 1937, p. 214-32.

CRUMBAKER, CALVIN

President and tax exempt securities; paper pre-sented before the sixteenth annual conference of certified public accountants of the Pacific northwest. no date. 9 typewritten pages.

CRUSHED STONE

See Stone crushing.

- CRYLLS, H. L. De COURCY
- tudents' causerie—Accountancy; methods of providing for depreciation of fixed assets. *Irish* accountant and secretary, Sept. 1938, p. 137-8, 140; Oct./Dec. 1938, p. 151. Students

CUBA

Proposed law re performance of accounting func-tions, 1937. 10 mimeographed pages.

- CUDNEY, J. R. Warehouse receipts provide a source of new loans. Rand McNally bankers monthly, June 1937, p. 343-5.

CULEY, ROY T., joint author See Sherwood, J. F., and Culey, Roy T.

CULLEN, J. F. Major accounting reports for management guidance. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 1, p. 1009-27.)

CUMMINS, H. H.

- MMINS, H. H. Auditor's report. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936. p. 93-110. dis-cussion, p. 111-29.) Share issues and script audits. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, June 1937, p. 941-8.

CUNA emerges. Bergengren, Roy F.

CUNNINGHAM, A. R. G. Cost and financial accounts—their relationship and control. Cost accountant, May 1939, p. 374-8.

CUNNINGHAM, JOSEPH M.

CUPPAIDGE, E. R. Notes on securities over personal property in Queensland. Chartered accountant in Australia, Queensland. Churred Dec. 1937, p. 409-23.

CURLE, J. A.

Distribution costing, with special reference to the tobacco and printing trades. Cost accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 132-9.

CURRENCY See Money.

CURRENCY INFLATION See Inflation.

CURRENT ASSETS

See Assets-Current.

- CURRENT discussions of auditing procedure. Glover, P. W. R.
- CURRENT investment practices of colleges and universities. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- cial advisory service.
 CURRENT literature; a department. Journal of accountancy. Jan. 1936, p. 78-80; Feb. 1936, 157-60; March 1936, 237-40; April 1936, 316-20; May 1936, p. 77-80; Aug. 1936, p. 156-60; Sept. 1936, p. 230-2; Oct. 1936, p. 308-12; Nov. 1936, p. 388-92; Dec. 1937, p. 158-60; March 1937, p. 237-40; April 1937, p. 317-20; May 1937, p. 237-40; April 1937, p. 317-20; May 1937, p. 239-400; June 1937, p. 478-80; July 1937, p. 239-400; June 1937, p. 478-80; July 1937, p. 398-400; Dec. 1937, p. 319-20; Nov. 1937, p. 239-40; Oct. 1937, p. 319-20; Nov. 1937, p. 239-40; Oct. 1937, p. 319-20; Nov. 1938, p. 266-8; Feb. 1938, p. 182-4; March 1938, p. 270-2; April 1938, p. 528-9; July 1938, p. 71-2; Aug. 1938, p. 135-6; Sept. 1938, p. 207-8; Oct. 1938, p. 351-2; Dec. 1938, p. 351-2; Dec. 1938, p. 326; May 1939, p. 326; July 1939, p. 226; May 1939, p. 326; July 1939, p. 226; May 1939, p. 326; July 1939, p. 226; May 1939, p. 326; July 1939, p. 326; July 1939, p. 226; May 1939, p. 326; July 1939, p. 326; May 1939, p. 72; Aug. 1939, p. 144; Sept. 1939, p. 216; Oct. 1939, p. 285; Nov. 1939, p. 366; Dec. 1939, p. 432-3.
 CURRENT practices in inventory valuation. Graham.
- CURRENT practices in inventory valuation. Graham, E. W.
- CURRENT practices of colleges and universities in obtaining professional counsel and services. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- CURRENT ratio or net working capital? Benjamin, Harold S.
- CURRENT trends in auditing procedure. Glover, P. W. R.
- **CURRENT** trends in retailing of furniture and house furnishings for the second quarter of 1937. *Balance sheet*, Sept. 1937, p. 10.

- CURRIE, A. W. Robinson Crusoe, bookkeeper. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 110-4.
- CURSE of balancing, o gomery, Robert H. or theory v. practice. Mont-

CURTAINS, DRAPERIES, ETC. Statistics

atistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of drapery, curtain and blind concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 46.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of drap-ery, curtain and blind concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 46.)

CURTIS, C. A.

Public finance. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939, p. 348-55.

CURTIS, C. RALPH

URTIS, C. RALPH
Accountant and the machine. Accountants' magasine, Nov. 1936, p. 565-70.
Bank of England and the gold reserves. Certified accountants journal, March 1939, p. 83-5.
Office organisation. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 132-5; April 4, 1936, p. 528-30; Sept. 19, 1936, p. 393-4; Feb. 13, 1937, p. 237-9; June 5, 1937, p. 815-6; May 21, 1938, p. 715-6; Feb. 4, 1939, p. 150-2; March 25, 1939, p. 412-3; Nov. 18, 1939, p. 550-2.

- CUSHING, JAMES J. Systematic control reduces alteration costs. Build-ings and building management, June 1936, p. 38-9, 80-5.
- "CUSTOMER protection". New York stock exchange.

CUSTOMER'S accounts. Luenstroth, Harold W.

CUSTOMERS' ACCOUNTS LUENSTROTH, HAROLD W. Customers' ac-counts. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 10, section 1, p. 561-80.)

CUSTOMERS' deposits on special orders. (Account-ing questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 301.

CUSTOMS

See Taxation.

- CUTFORTH, A. E. Audits. ed. 9. London, Gee and co., 1td., 1936. 362p.
 - 362p. alance sheets; their use, abuse and limitations. Certified accountants journal, Feb. 1937, p. 46-54. Accountant student and the Accountants journal, Feb. 1937, p. 286-303. Canadian char-tered accountant, March 1937, p. 32-9; May 1937, p. 95-7. Indian accountant, March 1937, p. 187-49; April 1939, p. 186-90; May 1939, p. 212-20. Balance 212-20.

 - Meaning of a profession as an accountant sees it. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 16-7. Methods of amalgamation and the valuation of business for amalgamation and other purposes. London, G. Bell and sons, ltd., 1938. 336p.

CUTLER, LLOYD N., joint author See Rostow, Eugene V. and Cutler, Lloyd N.

CUTLERY

Cost accounting DOLLIVER, E. P. Production and cost control in the manufacture of cutlery. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 2, section 1, p. 93-109.)

CUTS salesmen's expenses and auto costs with new report plan. Sales management, Oct. 10, 1938.

CYCLES

See Business cycles.

CYLINDER MANUFACTURING

COSTING in the steel tube trade. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 492-6. HAYS, SAMUEL. Costing in the steel tube trade. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 400-3. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 242-5.

CYLINDERS

See Containers.

DAHL, J. O. Restaurant management, principles and practice. rev. ed. New York, Harper and brothers (1936). 322p

DAHL, LAWRENCE G.

Some comments on public utility refunding opera-tions. Journal of land and public utility eco-nomics, Aug. 1936, p. 256-63.

DAILEY, CLARKE G.

Real estate accounting and tax problems from the viewpoint of the real estate owner. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 230-3.

DAILY dividend service. Standard statistics company, inc.

DAINES, H. C. Control of expenditures in colleges and universi-ties. Educational business manager and buyer, Oct. 1936, p. 7-11, 25-7, 29.

DAIRYING

- See also Creameries; Milk dealers. SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p.
- SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canada; butter. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec.
- SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canada; romance of milk. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1936, p. 423-8.

Accounting

- accounting
 ATWELL, W. B. Accounting in the dairy industry. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 10-9.
 SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canada; production records for dairy plants. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 103-12.
 Y, S. G. Accounts of co-operative companies manufacturing butter or cheese. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 436-43.

Costs TASKER, J. F. Costs and capitalisation of North Auckland creameries during 1935-36. Accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 43-7.

Statistics

TASKER, J. F. Costs and capitalisation of North Auckland creameries during 1935-36. Accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 43-7.

DALBY, K. A. P. Organisation of an accountant's office. (reprinted from Examination notes.) Irish accountant and secretary, Feb. 1937, p. 27-9.

DALEY, V. L. Sawmilling costing from the log to the finished product. Australian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 417-28.

DALGLISH, KENNETH W. See Dominion association of chartered accountants.

DALLACHY, J. W. Allocation of oncost to work-in-progress. Accoun-tants' magazine, June 1936, p. 365-9.

DALTON, ARCHIBALD J. Auditing of receipts. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 5b, March 31, 1938.)

DANIEL, R. W. Factory acts and the new factory. Cost accountant, March 1937, p. 312-14.

DANIELL, E. T. Verification of current assets and basis of valua-tion. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 248-64.

DANIELS, M. B. Financial statements. Chicago, III., American ac-counting association, 1939. 215p.

DARBY, C. VAUGHAN

Arbit, C. VAUGHALY Problems of the local practitioner. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 33-6.)

DARBY, WALTER J. See New Jersey, Municipal accounts, Com-missioner of.

DARDEN, R. R.

Office appliances and mechanical equipment. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 16, section 1, p. 591-62.) Printed with Graham, Willard J. Accounting economy by machine methods. methods.

DARGUE, WILFRED Income tax—some points in practice. Accountant, tax supplement, May 23, 1936, p. 197-202. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 9-14.

DATES, RALPH W.

Let's quit squawking! Laundry age, March 1939, p. 42-4, 64.

DAUER, ERNST A., joint author See Dougall, Herbert E. and Dauer, Ernst A.

DAUGHERTY, CARROLL R.

Plans for administration of wages and hours act far from complete. Controller, Oct. 1938, p. 284-6, discussion, p. 286-7.

DAVENPORT, DONALD H. AND SCOTT, FRAN-CES V.

Index to business indices. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1937. 187p.

DAVID, L. C. Growth of the accounting profession in France. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniver-sary number, part 2, p. 67-71, 75.

DAVID, PAUL T., joint author See United States. President's committee on

administrative management.

DAVIDSON, H. C.
 Causes of property retirements. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 519-20.
 Cost allocations in combination companies. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 493-5, 498.

DAVIDSON, H. J. National health and pensions insurance act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938,

DAVIDSON, MERRICK B.

Accounting system for a subscription book com-pany. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 8-20.

- DAVIDSON, W. H.
 Digest of the revenue act of 1937. L.R.B. & M. *journal*, Sept. 1937, p. 1-6.
 New provisions of the income tax law. L.R.B. & M. *journal*, June 1936, p. 1-9, 31.
 Revenue act of 1939. L.R.B. & M. *journal*, July 1939, p. 1-9, 23.
 Significant income tax changes. L.R.B. & M. *journal*, May 1938, p. 1-12.
 Suggestions regarding the federal income tax law and its administration. L.R.B. & M. *journal*, Nov. 1939, p. 1-7.

 - Nov. 1939, p. 11-7.

DAVIDSON, WILLIAM L. Building societies. Accountants' magazine, June Building societies—income tax arrangement. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 437-47.

DAVIES, CECIL L.

Preparation of consequential loss claims. Accoun-

tant student and Accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 51-5. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 61-5

DAVIES, ERNEST COULTER Auditing. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 295 p. plus 87p. loose leaf.

DAVIES, H. V. Government help for exporters. Accountant, May 15, 1937, p. 700-3.

DAVIES, JOHN Department store accounting for inventory, and for purchases. *Controller*, July 1938, p. 212-3.

DAVIES, L. E.

Modern office mechanisation. Certified accountants journal, March 1937, p. 77-80.

DAVIS, ALBION R.
Case for a "stabilized" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 377-99.) Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 93-115.
Standard profits and economic costs. New York, Standard profits and economic protection of cost accountants, Ukr J.

1936, p. 93-113. Iandard profits and economic costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1220-8.) Printed with Kohl, Clem N. What is wrong with most profit and loss state-ward. ments?

DAVIS, B. N. L. Branch controls-operating and audits. National auditgram, Sept. 1938, p. 17-9.

DAVIS, DOROTHY S. How has 77-B actually worked? Dun's review, Aug. 1937, p. 18-21, 46. War time casualties on the business front. Dun's review, Oct. 1939, p. 20-1.

DAVIS, DOROTHY S., joint author See Pabst, W. R., Jr. and Davis, Dorothy S.

DAVIS, HARRY LEO AND DICKMAN, KERMIT S. Outline of auditing. New York, Outline publicity company, c1937. 48p.

DAVIS, HERBERT L. Insurance and banking; examinations and account-ing. Boston, Mass., Christopher publishing house, c1937. 227p.

DAVIS, HIRAM S. AND OTHERS

Vertical integration in the textile industries. Philadelphia, Pa., University of Pennsylvania, Wharton school of finance and commerce, and the Textile foundation, inc., 1938. 132p.

DAVIS, HORACE B.

Business mortality; the shoe manufacturing indus-try. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 331-8.

DAVIS, NEILL Your adverising budget. Savings and loans, Dec. 1938, p. 9.

DAVIS. O. R.

Accountants in public life; address at annual meet-ing, Kansas society of certified public accoun-tants, at Wichita, Sept. 8, 1939. 10 typewritten pages.

DAVIS, OSCAR R. Federal taxation of banks under the revenue act of 1936. National auditgram, March 1937, p. 1, 9-12.

DAVIS, RALPH C. Effect of "dead time" on inventory in process. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1936, p. 71-4.

160

DAWSON, C. O., METZGAR, ADRIAN AND HAMMOND, JAMES E. Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line

basis and should not vary with the volume of production—a debate. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1253-66.)

DAWSON, JOHN P.

Appointment of certified public accountants as receivers or auditors for receivers. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 144-5.)

DAWSON, MARSHALL Methods of financing workmen's compensation ad-ministrations and funds. Monthly labor review, March 1936, p. 592-605.

DAWSON, R.

Costs and the intelligent use of figures. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 285-8.

DAWSON, WILLIAM A.

Allowances; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, November 15, 1938. 6 mimeographed pages.

- pages. Depreciation and hospital costs. (reprinted from *Hospitals*, Nov. 1939.) 3p. Duties and responsibilities of the comptroller; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 14, 1939. 4 mimeographed pages.

meeting of February 14, 1939. 4 minneographed pages.
Hospital administration requires efficient accounting. New York, New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, Oct. 17, 1939. 5 minneographed pages.
Linen control; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 14, 1939. 3 minneographed pages.
Systematizing and the office; address at New York York conference on hospital fund of New York, conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, conference on hospital accounting of February 7, 1939. 6 minneographed pages.
Systematizing and the office; address at New York York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 7, 1939. 6 minneographed pages.
Uniform accounting—its need and value. (reprinted from Hospital, April 1939.) 7p.
Using the United hospital fund report to tell the story of the hospital, clo accompany Form for annual report and financial statement of associated hospitals, cl936.) 5 minneographed pages.

DAY. BESSE B.

Suggested method for allocating logging costs to log sizes. Journal of forestry, Jan. 1937, p. 69-71.

DAY, J. P. Currency stabilization. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 450-7.
Economic review of 1936. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 143-51.
Valuation of gold. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 408-17.

- DEALINGS in treasury stock. Montgomery, Robert

DEALINGS in treasury stock. Wells, Raymond P.

- DEALINGS in treasury stock. (Correspondence) May, George O.
- DEALINGS in treasury st Montgomery, Robert H. stock. (Correspondence)
- DEALINGS in treasury stock. (Correspondence) York, Thomas.

DEAN, ARTHUR H.

Lawyer's problems in the registration of securi-ties. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 154-90.

DEAN, CHARLES W. One result of the Gates rubber company's new budgetary control system has been no more guess-work for the budget. American business, May 1937, p. 34-5, 50.

DEAN, JOEL

- EAN, JOEL
 Cooperative research in cost-price relationships. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 182-4.
 Statistical cost curves. Journal of the American statistical association, March 1937, p. 83-9.
 Statistical determination of costs, with special reference to marginal costs. Chicago, Ill., Uni-versiy of Chicago press, c1936. 145p.
 Correlation analysis of cost variation. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 55-60.

DEAN, WALTER N. Taking the C.P.A. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 6-11, 55.

DEANE, B.

Consigned merchandise. Balance sheet, June 1937, p. 8-10.

DEATH TAXES

Taxation—Inheritance; Taxation—Estates trusts; Taxation—Gifts, under name of See Taxatio and trusts; country.

DEBATE on the budget resolutions. Accountant, tax supplement, May 8, 1937, p. 184-5.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

See Executors and trustees.

- DEFENTURES
 FORDHAM, H. Receivers and debenture holders. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 26-7.
 IS a mortgage a debenture? Incorporated accoun- tants' juwnal, June 1938, p. 297-8.
 KNIGHTLY, P. K. Redemption of debentures. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1937, p. 604-8.
 SOME notes on the rights of debenture-holders. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 16-9.

 - May 1938, p. 16-9. TORY, WILLIAM S. Accounting for municipali-ties with respect to unnegotiated debentures and debenture principal and interest in default. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p.
 - 104-17. TREWERN, W. L. Debentures. Brisbane, Ac-countants' and secretaries' educational society, September, 1936. 16p.

DEBIT AND CREDIT

SALIERS, EAKL A. Principles of debit and credit—Detailed applications of debit and credit. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare state-ments. 1938, p. 81-110.)

de BLAEY, W. N. AND KAMMER, A. Auditing by and for tax authorities. In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs-und treuhand-kongress. Kon-gress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 143-64.)

- DEBT, PUBLIC BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Public finance. New York, McGraw-Hill book company, inc., 1936.
 - BOERLER, ALFREID G. FUBIC Inflate. New York, McGraw-Hill book company, inc., 1936. 632p.
 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Federal debt and expenditures; report of the committee on federal finance. Washington, D. C. Chamber of commerce of the United States, Dec. 1938. 26p.
 CHASE, HARVEY S. Budget balancing and national debt; an address before the Economic conference at Rollins College, Winter Park, Florida, January 27, 28, and 29, 1938. 10p.
 CHATTERS, CARL H. AND HILLHOUSE, ALBERT M. Local government debt administration. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 528p.
 JONES, J. H. Internal and external debt. Accountant, March 18, 1939. p. 352-4.
 NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Public debt. (In its Cost of government in the United States, 1933-1935, p. 60-83.)

 - 60-83.)

DEBT, PUBLIC-(Continued)

- EBT, PUBLIC—(Continued)
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Open letter to the delegates of the state constitutional con-vention on the subject of the debt and budget policies of the state. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, May 24, 1938. 7p.
 "ONLY a billion." (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Feb. 1936, p. 85-7.
 OUR incomparable ability to forget—Blind faith in our stars—Wall motto suggested. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 167-70.
 TODD, EDWIN S. Field of public finance and taxation. Tax Magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 723-30, 756, 758.

- taxation. Tax Magazine, Dec. 1900, p. 1900, 756, 758. TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Find-ings and recommendations of the committee on debt adjustment of the Twentieth century fund. (reprinted for press use for Debts and recovery; a study of changes in the internal debt struc-ture from 1929 to 1937 and a program for the future.) New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1938. p. 245-72.
- DEBT of a local authority. (Municipal accounts) Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 178-80.

DEBTS AND DEBTORS

- BEB I SAND DEBIORS
 See also Debt, Public; Debt, International.
 BAD debts; income tax deduction—when allow-able. (reprint of general counsel's memorandum 18525.) National auditgram, March 1938, p. 10-11
- 10-11. CHAMBERS, E. J. Alberta legislation relative to adjustment and reduction of debts. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 470-8. CLASSIFICATION of funded debt. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936,

- questions, Journa. c, p. 155-6. FEW points on debt redemption. Accountants' magazine, July 1937, p. 409-22. FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Reserves for bad debts and depreciation. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 137-51.) GRAHAM, A. J. Is cancellation of indebtedness income? Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 707-8,
- GRAHAM, A. J. Is cancellation of indebtedness income? Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 707-8, 764.
 HEBDEN, ERIC S. Priorities of debts; the bankruptcy act 1924-1933. Brisbane, accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, inc., June 1937. 40p.
 JENKINS, B. N. Bad debts; charge off and re-covery or sale under the federal revenue laws and related rulings and regulations. (T.D. 4633, G.C.M. 18525, I.T. 3172, G.C.M. 20854, I.T. 3256) National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 9-12, 22-3. 22-3.

- MacDONALD, O. R. Auditing of bad debts. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 348-52.
 MacDONALD, O. R. Verification of book debts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 444-50.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Bad debts, depreciation, ob-solescence, depletion. (In their Accounting fun-damentals. 1936. p. 164-86.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Com-mittee on public utility statistics and accounts. Symposium on accounting for unamortized debt discount and call premiums on refunded debt issues. Washington, D.C., National assoication of railroad and utilities commissioners, 1939. 460. 46n

- b) Tantoau and unities commissioners, 1999, 460.
 OBORN, R. W. T. Control of sundry debtors. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 283-6.
 PARTIAL payments on debts. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 17-20.)
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Suggested modifications of the bad debt provision. (In his Studies in federal taxation. 1937, p. 235-66.)
 WHITE, WILFORD L. AND STEHMAN, J. HAROLD. Bad debt loss survey. Credit and financial management, June 1939, p. 16-20; July 1939, p. 15-8; Aug. 1939, p. 14-5, 40-1.
 WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Can a firm's size affect its debt payments? Credit and financial management, Jan. 1938, p. 6-8.

- WINAKOR, ARTHUR H. Capacity to pay current debts. Urbana, III., University of Illinois, College of commerce and business administration, Burcau of business research 1936. 54p. (University of Illinois bulletin, v. 34, no. 11)
 WOODBRIDGE, F. W. Time as a factor in determining debt-paying ability. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 236-50.
- DECEASED life tenants. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 426-7.
- DECEDENTS' ESTATES See Executors and trustees.
- DECENNIAL report of the American arbitration association on the progress of commercial arbi-tration, 1926-1936. American arbitration association.
- DECIMALISATION. Certified accountants journal. April 1937, p. 98-100.
- DECISION upholding Illinois act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 12

DECKER, O. P. AND RAYMOND, PAUL C. Credit information from banks; how far can the banker go on inquiries? Credit and financial management, May 1939, p. 20-2.

DECORATORS LIMITED survey on compensation of interior decorators. Balance sheet, March 1938, p. 17.

Statistics

- atistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of painting and decorating contractors and interior decorators. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 54, 100.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of interior decorators. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 100.)
- DEDUCTION of income tax, 1939-40. Accountant, Oct. 21, 1939, p. 390-1.
- **DEDUCTION** of tax from dividends. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 445-7; Oct. 8, 1938, p. 457-8.
- DEDUCTION of tax on payment of interest in foreign currency. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 15, 1938, p. 465-6; Oct. 22, 1938, p. 473-5.

DEEDS OF ARRANGEMENT See Bankruptcy; Liquidations and receiverships.

DEERING, RAYMOND C.

Audit and control of payroll expenditures. Na-tional auditgram, Dec. 1939, p. 17-8.

DEFALCATIONS

- EFAICATIONS See also Fraud. BARTLETT, ARTHUR. Million dollars was missing so they called in Lester Pratt, who traps more bank robbers than any detective or G-man and does it with an adding machine. This week magasine (New York herald-tribune) Dec. 31, 1939. p. 6, 9. BLAND, JOHN R. Why did they steal? Credit and financial management, March 1937, p. 20-1, 22
- 28
- CALDWELL, SYDNEY M. Methods of fraud. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 301-6.
- DEFALCATIONS of municipal treasurers-False
- DEFALCATIONS of municipal treasurers—False economy—Municipal audit specialized—Municipal officers' code of ethics. (Editorial comment) Canadian chartered accountant Jan. 1938, p. 1-5. DOUGHERTY, JOSEPH. How to prevent de-falcations and embezzlements. National audit-gram, Sept. 1937, p. 8, 13. LENHART, NORMAN J. To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detection of fraud? (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chap-ter, and the American institute of accountants.

DEFALCATIONS-(Continued)

- DEFALCATIONS—(Continued)
 Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 10p.)
 TALES usually told after office hours; it ain't all beer and skittles what we does to win our victuals. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 252-60. Philippine accountants' journal, Oc., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 401-13.
 TREMPER, EDWARD P., Jr. Defalcations in the making. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 482.
 UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-ANTY COMPANY. 1001 embezzlers; a study of defalcations in business. Baltimore, Md., United States fidelity and guaranty company, c1937, 38p.
 WINN, W. R. Discussion of paper "To what estent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detection of fraud!" by Norman J. Lenhart. (In Pennsylvania institute of cer-tified public accountants Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Pro-ceedings of the second accounting clinic, Octo-ber 20-21, 1939, 2p.)
 DEFALCATIONS of municipal tracements.
- **DEFALCATIONS** of municipal treasurers False economy Municipal audit specialized Muni-cipal officers' code of ethics. (Editorial com-ment) Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 1-5.
- DEFENCE contracts: costs and profits. (extracts from report) Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 176-7.

- Hom report) Accommune, Aug. 9, 1959, p. 1167.
 DEFERRED CHARGES
 BAIEVSKY, BORIS. Deferred charges and prepaid expenses. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 184-5.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet—intangible assets, deferred charges and other assets. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939, p. 229-54.)
 PATON, W. A. Principles related to "deferred charges" and "prepaid expenses". (In Amercian institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 26-30.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Deferred charges. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 114-28.)
 TROUANT, D. L. Deferred charges. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 90-6.)

DEFERRED charges and prepaid expenses. (Correspondence) Baievsky, Boris.

DEFERRED INCOME See Income.

- DEFERRED ITEMS
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Deferred items. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939. p. 225.44.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HER-MANN C. Prepaid expenses, deferred charges and deferred credits. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 125-30.)
- DEFINITION of current assets. Greeley, Harold Dudley.
- DEFINITION of "expenditure". Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 16.

DEGREES, ETC.

See also Certificates, C.P.A. PROFESSION in Egypt; successful action by the Association of chartered accountants in Egypt. Accountant, July 22, 1939, p. 113-4.

DEINZER, HARVEY T. Are leasehold improvements taxable income? Ac-

- counting review, June 1939, p. 147-50. Treasury-stock question. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 256-69.
- DELAWARE corporations. Corporation trust company.

DELICATESSEN TRADE Statistics

- attstics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of delicatessens. (In their 1936 retail survey, report no. 12.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of deli-catessen stores. (In their 1937 retail survey.
- survey no. 6.)

DELIVERY COSTS

- ELIVERY COSTS
 See also Automobiles—Cost of operation; Motor trucks—Cost of operation.
 HARRINGTON, C. C. Paring parcel delivery costs. Power wagon, Feb. 1937, p. 10-11.
 HENZLER, A. O. Driver bonus plan cuts delivery costs for Wieboldt stores. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 72-5.
 HERE'S how to cut delivery fleet operating costs. Furniture record, Oct. 15, 1937, p. 10, 40-1.
 JOHNSON, O'NEAL M. Distribution costs in the ice cream industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 203-21.)
- 21.) MASTER control coordinates sales and distribu-tion costs. Food industries, Feb. 1938, p. 88-9,
- RUTTER, EDWARD S. Vehicle costs; an analysis of sound accounting for the control of truck delivery costs. *Power wagon*, March 1937, p. 5-8, 42-4.

DELIVERY SERVICE

- HUMMEL, JOSEPH H. Method of route settle-ment for milk distributors. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 6-8. SHORT, L. J. Handling a country delivery serv-ice. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 212-4.

DELLER, ANTHONY WILLIAM Use of arbitration in patent controversies. Arbi-tration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 399-410.

DENHAENE, GEORGES

Association internationale de comptabilité—his-torique. 34 Rue de la Carpe, Bruxelles, Secre-tariat general de L'A.I.C., 1938. 62p.

DENHAM, ROBERT S.

Cost fumbling or cost engineering? Factory man-agement and maintenance, Oct. 1936, p. 49, 83, 84.

DENTAL SUPPLIES

Statistics

DENTISTS

- See also Professional men. PROFESSIONAL registration and practice. Cer-tified public accountant, March 1936, p. 152-4, 192.

- Accounting HADLEY, CHARLES R., COMPANY. Exhibit of pathfinder simplified bookkeeping systems for doctors and dentists. Los Angeles Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., (1939) forms.
 McLAUGHLIN, J. Accounting for physicians and dentists. Pathfinder service bulletim, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 6-8.

- DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manu-facturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 491-9.) Printed with: Gardner, Graham A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations.
- DEPARTMENT circular no. 230. United States. Treasury department.

DEPARTMENT of justice upholds constitutionality of accountancy law. Philippine accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 43-52.

DEPARTMENT STORES

- See also Dry goods; Retail trade. AKER, HAROLD A. Principles of retail mer-chandising. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 462p. BAKER,

- chandising. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 462p.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Department stores and mail-order houses. (In his Essentials of dis-tribution. 1936. p. 163-82.)
 FINLAYSON, M. Control of a departmental store. Accountant, Jan. 18, 1936, p. 98-102.
 LOGAN, FRED E. Management reports. Balance sheet, May 1938, p. 6-10.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Manual on receiving department opera-tions. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 35-103.

Accounting

- ALEXANDER, J. E. Contracts and accounting procedure for leased departments. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May
- the National retail dry goods association, May 1937, p. 25-6, 72.
 ANDREWS, L. G. More on peg-board or strip system of accounting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Sept. 1939, p. 22-3.
 ASHENFELTER, R. F. Application of pegboard methods in accounting. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 10-3.
 BALMAIN, KEITH S. Departmental store ac-counting. Australian accountant, May 1938, p. 285-90.
- 285-90. BELL, HERMON F. Department store accounts. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anni-versary number, part 2, p. 37-40. BARNETT, H. D. Purchase records and accounts payable. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 134-53.

- Boyanz, Jaskiewicz accounting Deputation, Joseph Port, p. 134-53.
 BöGELUND-JENSEN, S. Departmental accounting and true cost allocation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Aug. 1938, p. 52, 54, 56; Sept. 1938, p. 68.
 DAVIES, JOHN. Department store accounting for inventory, and for purchases. Controller, July 1938, p. 212-3.
 DEANE, B. Consigned merchandise. Balance sheet, June 1937, p. 8-10.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Department store accounting. (In their Modern accounting systems. 1937, p. 244-90.) 90.)

- 40.)
 HARVEY, C. M. Bookkeeping for a country departmental general store. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1936, p. 28:40.
 HUFFORD, C. F. How are house accounts controlled? Credit world, July 1938, p. 27.
 HULL, F. BRYANT. Accounting for concession departments in retail department stores. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1938, p. 4-5.
 KAPLAN, WALTER. Suggested standard practice of leased department accounting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1938, p. 28-30.
 LEASED-department sales. (Accounting question of the service)
- LEASED-department sales. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 384-5.
- tions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 384-5.
 McNAIR, MALCOLM P. GRAGG, CHARLES I., AND TEELE, STANLEY F. Accounting, credit, and finance. (In their Problems in retailing. 1937, p. 524-71.)
 MILLER, NELSON A. AND MESEROLE, W. H. Departmental accounting in drug stores, based upon the St. Louis drug store survey. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 534-43.) Printed with: Kleinhaus, H. I. Uniform accounting procedure as an aid in reducing retail operating costs.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Inventory manual retail dry goods association, 1937. 159p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Inventory manual for department stores and departmentized spectrum.

- cialty stores. New York, National retail dry goods association, June 1936. 65p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Small store ac-counting manual. New York, National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress, c1937. 42p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Workroom ac-counting manual for department forces and the
- TIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Workroom ac-counting manual for department stores and spe-cialty stores. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 8p.
 SALES of leased departments. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 1234
- Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1909, p. 123-4.
 SIMON, J. L. Machine accounting as applied to department store customers' accounts. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 12-20.
 STRATTON, L. W. Check list system for balanced stocks. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, April 1938, p. 26-7.
 TERRENCE, IRWIN. Installment selling procedure for a medium size department store. Balance sheet, Oct. 1938, p. 19, 20-2.
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. Systems for a department store. (In his Accounting systems, their design and installation. 1936. p. 492-548.)

- systems, their design and installation. 1936. p. 492-548.) TOLLEY, A. H. Figure gauges in department stores. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1937, p. 119-30.

Auditing

- uditing
 EINSTEIN, SAMUEL. Internal auditing. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 11-7.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Auditing and statistical information. (In their Modern accounting systems. 1937. p. 279-81.)
 HARPER, R. O. Sales auditing. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 6-9.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Internal audit; a manual for department stores and specialty stores; prepared by the Detroit controllers' group. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, e1936, 10p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Sales auditing; round table discussion. (In its Year book of retailing, 1937. p. 114-44.)
 WILLINGTON, D. W. Accountant's interpretation of department store auditing procedure. Balance sheet, June 1937, p. 5-8.

- Budgeting GERMAIN, ALLEN. Budget account system in a smaller-volume store. Bulletin of the Na-tional retail dry goods association, Oct. 1939,

 - tional retail dry goods association, Oct. 1939, p. 38-40, 42.
 LYON, GERALD JAY. Budgeting and control of capital and repairs expenditures. Balance sheet, June 1937, p. 10-4.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Budgeting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 95-7.
 SAMUELSON, SAMUEL. How we prepare and control our expense budgets. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 20-2.
- Cost accounting BÖGELUND-JENSEN, S. Departmental account-ing and true cost allocation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Aug. 1938, p. 52, 54, 56; Sept 1938, p. 68 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Basis for distributing receiving depart-ment expense. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 97-8.

Costs

HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business ARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department and specialty stores in 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, May 1936. 38p. (Bulletin no. 100.)

DEPARTMENT STORES-Costs-(Continued)

- -Same, 1936. c1937. 38p. (Bulletin no. 104.) Same, 1937, c1938, 34p, (Bulletin no.
- Same, 1937. C1930. Orp. 4 106.) HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department and specialty stores in 1938, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research, May 1939. 30p. (Bulletin no. 109.)
- Bureau of business research, May 1939. 30p. (Bulletin no. 109.) HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department and specialty stores in the Pacific coast states: 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, July 1936. 20p. (Bul-letin no. 102.)
- Dusiness administration. Bureau of business administration. Bureau of business administration. business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department store chains and department store ownership groups; 1929, 1931, 1934. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, June 1936. 52p. (Bulletin no.
- administration, June 1936. 52p. (Dutterin no. 101.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Limited study of silverware department workroom costs. Balance sheet, Sept. 1939, p. 10-4. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. 1935 departmental merchandising and operating results of depart-ment stores and specialty stores prepared by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 89p.

| Same, | 1936. | c1937. | 82p. |
|-------|-------|--------|------|
| Same, | | | |
| Same, | 1938. | c1939. | 78p. |

Inventories NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Inventory procedure affecting receiving department. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 101.

Special departments OWNED floral department operations. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 20-2.

- Statistics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for department stores. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939. p. 168, 169, 170, 171.)
 BURNHAM, ELIZABETH A. Influence of size of business on department store operating re-sults. Harvard business review, Winter number, part 1, 1938, p. 211-25.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the operations of general merchandise stores and large department stores. (In their 1936 retail survey, reports no. 15, 15a, 15b, 15c, 15x.) 15x.) DUN

 - retail survey. reports no. 15, 15a, 15b, 15c, 15x,
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. De-partment stores; seasonal fluctuations and natu-ral fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938, Ip. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 5, September 1938.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of department stores. (In his Behind the scenes of business.) 1936, p. 55, 81, 105, 130, 186-7.) (1937 ed.-57, 85, 111, 138, 204-55).
 (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. (1938, p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of business research. Operating results of department and specialty stores in 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, May 1936. 38p. (Bulletin no. 100.)

-Same, 1936. c1937. 38p. (Bulletin no. 104.)

- Same, 1937. c1938. 34p. (Bulletin no.
- Same, 1937. Cross. Cardinate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department and specialty stores in 1938, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research, May 1939. 30p.
- Bureau of business research, May 1939. 30p. (Bulletin no. 109.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department and specialty stores in the Pacific coast states: 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, July 1936. 20p. (Bul-letin no. 102.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Operating results of department store chains and department store ownership groups; 1929, 1931, 1934. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, June 1936. 52p. (Bulletin no. 101.)

- administration, June 1950. 52p. (Dimetia no. 101.) KLEINHAUS, H. I. Controllers' study shows '37 sales rise of 5%; profit declined 35%. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, June 1938, p. 11-3, 150. KLEINHAUS, H. I. Flash report on 1937 sales. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Jan. 1938, p. 21-2, 92. KLEINHAUS, H. I. Review of departmental operations; accent on merchandise. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retail-ing, 1936. p. 160-7; discussion, p. 167-8.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. 1935 departmental merchandising and operating results of depart-ment stores and specialty stores prepared by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' con-gress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 89p. ______Same, 1937. c1937. 82p.

- Stockkeeping DUNCAN, DELBERT J. Control of stock short-ages in department stores. Harvard business review, Winter number, part 1, 1938, p. 201-10.
- DEPARTMENT stores. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.
- DEPARTMENTAL accounting in drug stores. Miller, Nelson A. and Meserole, W. H.

- DEPARTMENTALIZATION See also Cost and factory accounting-Departmental
 - NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Departmentalization. (In their Elementary ac-counting. c1938. p. 419-38.)

DEPARTMENTALIZATION—(Continued)

PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Departmental accounting. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 493-512)

de PAULA, F. R. M. Financial planning—insuring for future profits. Accountant, July 29, 1939, p. 137-42. Form of presentation of the accounts of a holding company. Accountant, March 11, 1939, p. 325-220 32.

- 32.
 Principles and practice of budgeting in modern business. Accountant, March 21, 1936, p. 453-7.
 Principles of auditing; a practical manual for students and practitioners. ed. 10. London, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons, Itd., 1939. 348p.
 Treatment of dividends in accounts; one view. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 4-5.
 Valuation of stock in trade or inventories. Ac-countant, April 3, 1937, p. 488-91. Accountant student and Accountaits' journal, June 1937, p. 42-5. Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 383-7. Indian accountant, July 1937, p. 249-55.

DEPLETION

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence.

- DEPOSIT INSURANCE
 BROOKLYN COLLEGE. Bureau of economic research, Banking group. Deposit insurance for mutual savings banks. Bankers' magazine, June 1936, p. 524-30.
 CROWLEY, LEO T. Bank regulation on the part of FDIC; address before the Indiana banking conference, Indiana university, Bloomington, Indiana, October 25, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.

 - DEPOSITS covered by federal deposit insurance. *Federal reserve bulletin*, Feb. 1939, p. 101-4. JONES, HOMER. Operations of the Federal de-posit insurance corporation. *National auditgram*, Nov. 1938, p. 9-11. WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Insurance of deposit accounts; a review. *Bankers monthly*, Jan.

1939, p. 3-5, 64; Feb. 1939, p. 72-4, 99-100; March 1939, p. 166-70.

DEPOSITORY BONDS

See Insurance, Surety and fidelity.

DEPOSITS

- EPOSITS
 AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Research council. Savings deposits and depositors in banks and trust companies of the United States for the years 1928, 1933, 1938, with a summary of the intervening years. New York, American bankers association, 1938, 8p.
 CHASE, HARVEY S. Money and bank deposits. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 41-51.
 CROWLEY, LEO T. Bank regulation on the part of FDIC: address before the Indiana banking conference, Indiana university, Bloomington, Indiana, October 25, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.

- DEPOSITS covered by federal deposit insurance. Federal reserve bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 101-4. JONES, HOMER. Operations of the federal deposit insurance corporation. National audit-gram, Nov. 1938, p. 9-11.
- **POSITS** covered by federal deposit insurance. Federal reserve bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 101-4. DEPOSITS
- PRECIATION. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. (70. (In Laundry year book. 1938, p. 158-9.) DEPRECIATION.
- DEPRECIATION **RECIATION** allowances; alterations in sched-ule of agreed rates. Accountant, tax supple-ment, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 51.
- DEPRECIATION and plant ledgers. Fleisher, Fernald and company.
- **EPRECIATION"** as a source of funds: explana-tion of accounting basis for Dr. Sach's study. Annalist, Feb. 25, 1938, p. 292. "DEPRECIATION"
- DEPRECIATION charges from capital surplus. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy counting questions) Dec. 1936, p. 475-6.

accounts; a review. Bankers monthly, Jan. Dec. 1936, p. 475-6.
 DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE See also Valuation; various headings under Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence; Accountants' index, 1920 and Accountants' index supplements, 1921-1923; 1922-1927; 1928-1931; 1932-1935. For buildings, machinery and equipment of any business, industry or trade, see name of specific business, industry or trade, under Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence.
 ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION. Accountant, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 480-1.
 ADAMS, E. SHERMAN. Reserve against depreciation. Bankers monthly, Nov. 1939, p. 680-2.
 ALLEN, THOMAS H. Depreciation as it applies to physical properties. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 6-10.
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Depreciation and depletion. (In his Introduction to federal taxation. c1936. p. 57-66; 1938, p. 61-71.
 AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy, by Bleecker L. Wheeler, Wyman P. Fiske, Roscoe Seybold and Edward J. Cheney. New York, American management association, c1939, 280. (Financial management series, no. 57.)
 AMERICAN MAAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Practical aspects of depreciation and obsolescence, by John T. Madden, Bleecker L. Wheeler, and Horace Hill. New York, American management association, c1939, 280. (Financial management series, no. 57.)
 AMERICAN MAAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Practical aspects of depreciation. (In their Investment series, no. 54.)
 ATKINSON, GEORGE S. Depletion as a deduction from taxable income. Texas accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 61-7.
 AGEAR, PAULE E. AND OTHERS. Depreciation. New York, National association of cost accountants, See index, 1936, see index).
 BARKOWS, DOUGLASS M. Thoughts on depreciation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb 1, 1930, see index).
 BARNOWS, DOUGLASS M. Thoughts on depreciation. New York, National

p. 326-8. BONBRIGHT, JAMES C. Valuation of property; a treatise on the appraisal of property for different legal purposes. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1937. 2v. See index under Depreciation; Depletion; Obsolescence. BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD AND DEWEY, ILOYD ELLIS. Depreciation, depletion. (In their Organizing and financing business. 1938. p. 275-8.)

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

BUCKLE, J. H. Depreciation. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, March 1937. p. 11-19. Printed with: Hiley, T. A. Income taxation; the basis of assessment of interstate 1937. p. 11-19. Printed with: Huey, 1. A. Income companies. companies. BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Introduction to cost accounting. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936.

Companies.
 DURTON, NORMAN LEE. Introduction to cost accounting. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 269p.
 See index under Depreciation.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 243p.
 See index under Depreciation; Depletion.
 CARROLL, K. L. Depreciation, reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 227-32; June 1939, p. 278-82.
 CARTER, ROGER N. AND EDWARDS, HERBERT. Depreciation (wear and tear) and Depreciation allowances, etc. (In their Murray and Carter's guide to income-tax practice. 1936. p. 329-48; 843-64.)
 OHFENEY, EDWARD J. Relation of "condition" to "depreciation." (In American management association. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy. cl939, p. 23-6, discussion, p. 27-8.)
 COUREAN, HOWE P. Depreciation and depletion. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937. p. 141-55.)
 COLEPERT, ASEL R. Benefits of sound depreciation practices; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 549-51.
 COLLINS, CLEM W. Assessment of real estate for the purpose of taxation. (paper read at the fourth annual conference on business and government in New Mexico, University of New Mexico, Albuquerque, Dec. 4, 1937.) 29 typewritten pages.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. U. S. tax cases. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, c1939. I4v.
 See index in each volume under Depreciation; Depletion; Obsolescence.
 COONS EDWARD S. UR Nomar's land in denreciation deductions. Tax magazine. Aug. 1938.

c1938, c1939. 14v. See index in each volume under Depreciation; Depletion; Obsolescence. COONS, EDWARD S., JR. No-man's land in depreciation deductions. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 455-7, 491, 492, 504. COST of depreciation and obsolescence. Civil engineering, March 1938, p. 179-80. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Depreciation deductible and otherwise. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 229-30. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Graduated depreciation charges. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 337-8. CUTFORTH, A. E. Andits. ed. 9. London, Gee and co., 1td., 1936. 362p. See index under Depreciation.

COTFORTH, A. E. Audits. ed. 9. London, Gee and co., 163, 1936. 302p. See index under Depreciation.
DAWSON, C. O., METZGER, ADRIAN AND HAMMOND, JAMES E. Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line basis and should not vary with the volume of production—a debate. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p.1253-66.) DE PAULA, F. R. M. Depreciation, reserves and sinking funds. (In his Principles of auditing. 1939.

DE PAULA, F. R. M. Deprectation, reserves and sinking funds. (In this Frince, e. of analysis, f. e. p. 12451) DEPRECIATION. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 69-70. "DEPRECIATION" as a source of funds: explanation of accounting basis for Dr. Sach's study. Annalist, Feb. 25, 1938, p. 292. DEPRECIATION charges from capital surplus. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec.

DEPRECIATION charges from capital surplus. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 475-6. DEPRECIATION methods. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 79-94.) DEPRECIATION—the enigma of accounting. Financial world, May 25, 1938, p. 5-6, 30. DeVITT, JOHN H. Accounting procedure for capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 139-60.) EDGE, N. C. W. Dilapidations and depreciation. Accountant, March 20, 1937, p. 412. EDWARDS, RONALD S. Depreciation policy and the maintenance of capital. Accountant, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 529-31.

EDWARDS, RONALD S. Depreciation policy and the maintenance of capital. Accountant, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 529-31. ENNIS, WILLIAM D. Special cases in depreciation. Mechanical engineering, Oct. 1936, p. 638. FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Capital consumption and adjustment. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1938. 271p. FEDDE, A. S. Mere bookkeeping entries. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 13-4. FERNALD, CHARLES E. Depreciation and plant ledgers. Profit, Sept. 1936, p. 1, 3-4. FERNALD, HENRY B. Annual depreciation allowances. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 456-60, 506-7. FERNALD, HENRY B. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 1938, p. 153-8.

FERNALD, HENRY B. Annual depreciation allowances. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 456-60, 506-7.
FERNALD, HENRY B. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 150-3.
FIELD, KENNETH. Depreciation. (In his Corporation finance. c1938. p. 426-41.)
FISKE, WYMAN P. Bases for depreciation. (In American management association. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy. c1939. p. 4-12, discussion, p. 12-4.)
FISKE, WYMAN P. AND BARKER, WILLIAM GARDNER, 2nd. Production rate should be recognized in fixing basis for depreciation. Controller, Jan. 1938, p. 4-8.
FLEISHER, FERNALD AND COMPANY. Depreciation and plant ledgers. Philadelphia, Pa., Fleisher, Fernald and co. (1939). 15p.
GILMAN STEPHEN. Accounting concepts of profit. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 635p.
See index under Depreciation in industry. c1937. p. 134-50.)
GORE, CHALLISS. Is depreciation merely a "bookkeeping item." Trust companies, Jan. 1936, p. 41-3.
GRADY, PAUL. Principles of depreciation. (In American B. Maintenance and depreciation factor. (In their Managerial control, BENJAMIN AND MEREDITH, SPENCER B. Maintenance and depreciation factor. (In their fanacial statements. 1937. p. 67-9.)
GRANT, EUGENE L. Depreciation. (In his Principles of engineering economy. c1938, p. 222-54.)
GREEN, DONALD E. F. Depreciation—justice, equality and simplicity. Accountant, tax supplement, Set, 11, 1937, p. 386-8.
GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. p. 222-54.)
GRENDALDE, B. BERNARD. Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 517p.
See index under Depreciation. Depletion.
HARTMAN, DENNIS. Depletion.-Depreciation-Obsolescence. (In his Income tax index-digest. volume 21/25 BT A - 24/41

HARTMAN, DENNIS. Depletion-Depreciation-Obsolescence. (In his Income tax index-digest. volume 31-35, B.T.A., p. 34-41, 113-4.)

HATFIELD, HENRY R. What they say about depreciation. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 18-26.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

MEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—(Continued)
 HILL, HORACE. Depreciation accounting. (In American management association. Practical aspects of depreciation and obsolescence. c1938. p 21-8.)
 HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Present-day need for improved accounting for plant and equipment. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 106-16, discussion, p. 116-21.)
 HOBAN, LEO J. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 240.
 HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Auditing, principles and procedure. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1939. 561p.
 See index under Depreciation; Depletion; Obsolescence.
 HORNE, DONALD. Annual allowance for depreciation. Management review, May 1936, p. 139-46; June 1936. p. 171-6.

1936, p. 171-6. HOSSACK, A. B. Accounting procedures for capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. *Year book*, 1936, p. 121-39.) HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Depreciation charges and depreciation reserves. (In his *ABC* of

JACKSON, F. W. Depreciation accounting in respect to taxes. National accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 5-10. JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Depreciation—Obsolescence and depletion. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937. p. 375-427.)

accounting, 1938. p. 138-53.)
 JACKSON, F. W. Depreciation accounting in respect to taxes. National accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 5-10.
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Depreciation—Obsolescence and depletion. (In his Principles of accounting, e1937, p. 375-427.)
 KAPLAN, MAURICE C. AND REAUGH, DANIEL M. Accounting, reports to stockholders, and the S.E.C. Yale law journal, April 1939, p. 935-80. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 203-36.
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed 4. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 703p. See index under Depreciation Depletion; Obsolescence.
 KIRKHAM, EDWARD J. Depreciation under the income tax. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 345-73.
 KRESS, ARTHUR W. Summary sheet for analysis and control of depreciation. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1266-72.)
 Printed with: Dawson, C. O. Metzger, Adrian and Hammond, James E. Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line basis and should not vary with the volume of production.
 KURTZ, EDWIN B. Science of valuation and depreciation, depletion and debts. (In his Fundamentals of accounting, 1938. p. 123-32.)
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Depreciation methods. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 112-8).
 Le MASTER, EUSTACE. Accountant's provision for depreciation and its effect on prices; at meeting of Pacific coast economic association, December 27, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.
 LILBELAD, RAGNAR. Depreciation of industrial plant. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 361-9.
 McBAIN, A. G. Depreciation for the books of account. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 119-26, 1932. p. 123-80.
 MacDONALD, O. R. Recording depreciation in the books of account. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 119-26, 139.
 McBAIN, A. G. Depreciation of industrial plant. Accounting review, Desolescence, depleti

p. 157.8. MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Engineering valuation. co., inc., 1936. 655p. MASON, PERRY. Recent trends in depreciation decisions. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 1-14. MATHIESON, JOHN K. Practical aspects of depreciation; with discussion by R. E. W. Harrison, before 35th spring convention, National machine tool builders' association, Edgewater Beach hotel, Chicago, Illinois, May 3, 1937. Cleveland, Ohio, National machine tool builders' association, 1937. 12 minesographed pages. (In his Tmenty-five years of accounting, responsibility, 1911-1936.

before 35th spring convention, National machine tool puncts association, Eugewater Incart noting Chicago, Illinois, May 3, 1937. Cleveland, Ohio, National machine tool builders' association, 1937. 12 mimeographed pages.
MAY, GEORGE O. Depreciation. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting, responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 149-233.)
MAY, GEORGE O. Influence of accounting on the development of an economy. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 11-22; Feb. 1936, p. 92-105; March 1936, p. 171-84. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 305-52.)
MMYTCHELL, WALTER K. Record of equipment and depreciation. Profit, Oct. 1937, p. 1, 3.
MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Deductions for depreciation, depletion and obsolescence. (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1936-1937. p. 613-82.) (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1938-39. p. 506-78.)
MOONITZ, MAURICE AND BROWN, E. CARY. Annuity method of estimated depreciation. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 424-9.
MOYFR, C. A. Economic aspects of fixed-capital obsolescence. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 285-96.
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and service department. Depreciation policy in manufacturing industries (based on a questionnaire study by R. P. Marple, research and service department, under the supervision of A. B. Gunnarson, Director in charge of research) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. builletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 2, p. 1053-8.)
NELSON, ANDREW. Introduction to auditing. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1938. 261p. See index under Depreciation; Depletion.
NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. (In their accountance) and accountance.

NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. (In their *Intermediate accounting*, c1939. p. 261-82.) NIELSEN, OSWALD. Depreciation as a function of revenue. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 265-75.

NORTON, PAUL T. Depreciation and corporate surpluses. Iron age, May 7, 1936, p. 30-1, 103.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

NORTON, PAUL T., JR. Economic and tax aspects of the depreciation problem. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 4-8. OCHIS, MICHAEL. Depreciation for income tax purposes; a discussion of recent developments in

Aug. 1937, p. 4.8.
OCHIS, MICHAEL. Depreciation for income tax purposes; a discussion of recent developments in treasury practice. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1937, p. 1-15.
OVER-statement and under-statement. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 161-5.
OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Depreciation and maintenance. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice. 1936, p. 391-405.)
PATON, WILLIAM A. Depreciation—Natural resources. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapters 24 and 26.)
PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 2, p. 541-807.
PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depreciation and depletion. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937.

PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depreciation and depletion. (In his *income tax jundamentals.* 1937, p. 98-11.) p. 98-11.) PERCENTAGE depletion. (Editorial) *Journal of accountancy*, Oct. 1937, p. 246-7. Jan. 1938, p. 8. PRACTICAL aspects of depreciation and obsolescence, by John T. Madden, Bleecker L. Wheeler, and Horace Hill. New York, American management association, c1938. 28p. (*Financial management series*)

no. 34, J PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Annual survey of economic theory; the theory of depreciation. (re-printed from *Econometrica*, July 1938.) PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Valuation and amortization. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 209-26, PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Valuation and depreciation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy,

PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Valuation and depreciation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 46-8.
 REITELL, CHARLES AND VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE. Accounting for depreciation and depletion. (In their Accounting principles for engineers. 1936. p. 107-30.)
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND SMITH, HAROLD J. Depreciation of fixed assets. (In their Secretarial accounting, c1936. p. 166-9).
 SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation in financial statements. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 187-96.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation, principles and applications. ed. 3. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 482p.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation reconsidered. National accountant, April 1937, p. 12-20.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Financial aspects of depreciation. Texas accountant, March 1939, p. 1, 4-5. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 333-6.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Inadequate depreciation methods. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 303-8.
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Advanced cost accounting. New York, John Wiley & sons, Inc., 1939. 217p. See index under Depreciation.
 SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. AND LANG, THEODORE. Obsolescence and replacement of capitalized assets—Valuation of depleting assets and lease-holds. (In their Mathematics of business and finance, c1937, p. 422-514.)

assets—valuation of depieting assets and lease-holds. (In their Mathematics of business and finance, c1937, p. 482-514.) SEYBOLD, ROSCOE. Liquidity of depreciation reserves. (In American management association. De-termination of depreciation and obsolescence policy. c1939, p. 15-20; discussion, p. 21-2.) Controller, March 1939, p. 84-6. SHERWOOD, J. F. Federal tax accounting. ed. 9. Cincinnati, Ohio, Southwestern pub. co., c1936.

415p.

A15p.
See index under Depreciation; Depletion; Obsolescence.
Federal tax accounting; revenue act of 1938 and effective provisions of prior acts. ed. 10. Cin-einnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., e1938. 469p.
See index under Depreciation; Depletion; Obsolescence.
SHORT, FRANK G. Problems of depletion. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 21-7.
SHOULD we calculate depreciation accurately? Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 241-3.
SHOUF, CARL. Deductions for depletion. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 272-81.)
SLICHTER, SUMNER H. Must we have another boom? Atlantic monthly, May 1937, p. 600-7.
SMITH, FREDERICK A. T.D. 4422; has the treasury department disallowed part of the depreciation you've taken? A detailed plant register will supply the data you need. Factory management and maintenance. Jan. 1938, p. 86-7.
STRONG, GEORGE J. Fercentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61.

SWIFT,

ROWLAND. Depreciation allowance under the income war tax act. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 385-8. SWIFT, ROWLAND. Depreciation as allowed under the income war tax in relation to cost accounting.

SWIFT, ROWLAND. Depreciation as allowed under the income war tax in relation to cost accounting. Cost and management, Feb. 1938, p. 62-4. TOLLEY, CHARLES H. Depreciation rates. (In his Tolley's complete income tax, sur-tax, etc. 1936-37. p. 401. 1938-39, p. 40-1.) TORNBORGH, BERT V. Important depreciation ruling may bring big tax savings. National real estate journal, Dec. 1939, p. 14. TOWNS, CHARLES H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, * (40 50)

p. 649-58.) TROXEL, (C. EMERY. Economic influences of obsolescence. American economic review, June 1936,

TROXEL, C. EMERY. Economic influences of obsolvencinc. American contact, year of p. 280-90.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Statistics of income for 1934, part 2; compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1937. 251p.
 Same, 1935. 1938. 138p.
 Same, 1936. 1939. 235p.
 See index under Depreciation; Depletion.
 VATTER, WILLIAM J. Depreciation methods of American industrial corporations, 1927-35. Journa' of business of the University of Chicago, April 1937, p. 126-46.
 WEAR and tear allowances (official schedule of agreed rates of depreciation for the purpose of computing liability to United Kingdom income tax.) Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18-22; Dec. 1937, p. 107. Accountant, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374-9; April 29, 1939, p. 156-61. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305-11.
 WEAR and tear of plant and machinery in relation to N.D.C. Incorporated accountants' journal, March

WEAR and tear of plant and machinery in relation to N.D.C. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 197-8.

WHEELER, BLEECKER L. Introduction. (In American management association. Determination of depreciation. c1939. p. 3.4.)

WHEELER, BLEECKER L. Some aspects of depreciation and obsolescence. (In American manage-

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

ment association. Practical aspects of depreciation and obsolescence, c1938. p. 10-20.) WHITTAKER, EDMUND. Economic considerations of obsolescence. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 337-44.

WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; depreciation. Corporate accountant, May 1936, p. 79-82. WINFREY, ROBLEY. Statistical analysis of industrial property retirements. Ames, Iowa, Iowa State college of agriculture and mechanic arts, Dec. 1935. 176p. (Bulletin 125) WYNNE, WILLIAM H. Burden of obsolescence. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 312-26.

Adding Machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Calculating machines.

Addressographs

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Agriculture

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Creameries; Fruit; Horses; Livestock; Rice; Sugar; Tractors. McNALL, PRESTON E. AND McMURRY, KARL F. Depreciation. (In their Agricultural bookkeeping.

1937. p. 98-103.) WEAR and tear allowances—Farming. Accountant tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; Apr. p. 158; Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307. 375; April 29, 1939,

Air conditioning equipment BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Air conditioning and the income tax. Heating, piping and air con-ditioning, Sept. 1938.

| | Annual depres | ciation | Annual depreciation |
|--------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------|
| Type of Equipment | rate per cent | | rate per cent |
| Air conditioning system in hotels of | r í | Electrical equipment: | |
| restaurants (composite rate) | 6⅔ | Motor-(Continued) | |
| Blower or exhaust fans | 6 ² / ₃ to 10 | From 50 hp to 1000 kva: | |
| Pumps (varies with types) | 4 to 6 ² / ₃ | High speed | 5-6 |
| Compressors | 5 | Low speed | 4 |
| Cold storage plant (composite rate) | 62/3 | Below 50 hp capacity | 6-7 |
| Cooling towers | 6 2/3 | Meters (recording type) | 62/3 |
| Electrical equipment: | - , 0 | Power feed wiring | 62/3 10 |
| Conduits, wiring and fittings | 4 | Switchboard and wiring | -5 |
| Motor controllers | 8 | Magnesia insulation on hot pi | pes 10 |
| Motor (varies with capacity): | - | Water purifier | 10 |
| Large units, over 3000 kva | 31/2 | | 10 |
| Medium units-1000 to 3000 ky | a 4 | | |

Abnormal usage may justify increasing these rates to allow for as much as 15 to 30 per cent annual depreciation. The table is based on actual decisions of the courts and Board of Tax Appeals, and a bulletin issued by the Bureau of internal Revenue outlining rates which can be used in the average situation. It should be clearly understood however, that no fixed and arbitrary rates can be stated which will apply to every motor, compressor or fan. Depreciation varies with the circumstances of each particular installation of machinery and the rates fluctuate accordingly.

Air transportation equipment

DUNNION, T. J. Accounting for air transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1352-65.) Printed with: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for airplane production.

Aircraft engines

WEAR and tear allowances. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938. p. 282.

Aircraft industry

WEAR and tear allowances. Aircraft and aircraft engine manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 282. Accountant, tax supplement, April 29, 1939, p. 156. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 304

Airplane equipment See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Air transportation equipment.

Airplanes
 DUNNION, T. J. Accounting for air transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1352-65.) Printed with: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for airplane production.

Amusement

musement parks DEPRECIATION of electric dodgems and surfoplanes (rubber). Australian accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 104-5. Ap

EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Depreciation. Buildings and building management, Oct. 1938, p. 64-5.

Fixed Assets.

GODWIN, J. C. Accounting procedure on depreciation of capital assets. Jrixed assets. Irish accountant and secretary, Sept. 1938, p. 137-8, 140; Oct. /Dec. 1938, p. 151.
 GODWIN, J. C. Accounting procedure on depreciation of capital assets. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 6-8.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Fixed assets—depreciation. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 215-25.)
 MILLS, HARRY B. Fixed assets, their control and depreciation. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1937.

MILLS, MARKI B. Flace and the second second

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-Assets, Fixed-(Continued)

SCHMIDT, LEO A. Structures and equipment. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937.

SCHMIDT, LEO A. Structures and equipment. (In p. 243-79).
 SPRY, F. W. Verification of fixed assets including depreciation thereof, and basis of valuation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 288-301.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Accounting for fixed assets. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 935-49.)
 WALTER, CEDRIC N. Depreciation of fixed assets; another view. Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 405-7. Indian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 33-5.

Assets, Wasting SCHMIDT, LEO A. Natural resources. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 281-9.)

Automobile industry STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936, p. 2.)

| Land Land improvements Buildings Building fixtures Power plant machinery General factory machinery Power transmission equipment Office equipment | Annual rate % 0 3 3.7 9 7 6 | Material handling equipment Permanent tools Transportation equipment General factory equipment Amortization Body tools Chassis tools Potterne and facks | Annual rate % 8 10 15 10 331/3 33/3 |
|---|---|--|---|
| Office equipment | 10 | Patterns and flasks | 331/3 |

WEAR and tear allowances-Motor vehicle industry. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Automobiles

DE YOUNG, CHRIS A. Depreciation and budgeting. (In his Budgeting in public schools. c1936. p. 230.) Automobiles

Annual rate 20% PUBLIC utilities reports, 1936. v. 15. Annual allowance of 10 per cent for a combined utility's com-mon property consisting primarily of automobiles and office equipment was approved. Public service commission v. Missouri pub. service co. (Mo.) p. 1.

Bakeries

DEPRECIATION allowances; alterations in schedule of agreed rates. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb.

Bart Alexandres, and anotations in scattere of agreed reserves interactions, in scattere of agreed reserves in the scattere of a greed reserves in the scattere of a g

Banks

LANGSTON, L. H. Depreciation on building and equipment. (In his Bank accounting practice. c1937.

POTTS, JAMES E. Bank accounting and audit control. Boston, Mass., Bankers pub co., 1938. 202p. See index under Depreciation.

| Batteries DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and buildings | | |
|---|-----------------------|------------------------|
| Power and steam plant equipment: | Economical life years | Percent annual deprec. |
| Storage batteries | 17 | 6 |

Beverages BOLTE, ARTHUR H. AND LOW, ARTHUR E. Management and cost control in the carbonated beverage industry. rev. ed. Washington, D. C., American bottlers of carbonated beverages, c1936. 172p. See index under Depreciation; Obsolescence.

Billing machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Binding WEAR and tear allowances—Bookbinding. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305. 374; April 29,

Bins

ARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average con-dition in the example of factory valuation (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.) Sand and coal bins, concrete 2½ per cent MARSTON,

Blast furnaces

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Furnaces.

Bleaching WEAR and tear allowances—Bleaching and finishing. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939,

Boiler houses MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*. 1936. p. 437. Boiler house A, brick, tar and slag roof Boiler house B, brick, tar and slag roof 334 134 per cent 334 per cent

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management. Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

Power and steam plant equipment: Economical life years Percent annual deprec.

Boilers

DE YOUNG, CRIS A. Depreciation and budgeting. (In his Budgeting in public schools. c1936. p. 230.) Annual rate Boilers 5%

Bolts and nuts WEAR and tear allowances. Accountant, tax supplement, April 29, 1939, p. 156. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305.

Bookbinding

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Binding.

Bookkeeping machines See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Bottles

BOLTE, ARTHUR H. AND LOW, ARTHUR E. Depreciation of equipment; the bottle and case ques-tion. (In their Management and cost control in the carbonated beverage industry. c1936. p. 101-14.)

Brass foundries

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Foundries.

Broweries

TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, March 26, 1938, p. 139.

Brickmaking

WEAR and tear allowances—Brickmaking. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305.

Buildings

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Apartment houses; Dwellings; Factories; Garages; Tenements; Hotels; Loft Buildings; Office buildings; Sheds; Stores; Theatres; Warehouses; also name of industry, business or trade under Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence. DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

| | Economical life years | Per cent annual deprec. |
|-----------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Buildings: | | unnun depreen |
| Class A construction | 50 | 2 |
| Class B construction | 40 | 21/2 |
| Class C construction | 33 | 3 |
| Floors, wood | 33 20 | 5 |
| Floors, marble and tile | 20 | 5 |
| Plastering | 20 | š |
| Sheet metal, spouting, etc. | 15 | 63/3 |
| Hardware | 20 | 5 |
| Roofing, tin | 15 | 63/3 |
| Roofing, composition | 15 | 63/3 |
| Roofing, shingle | 15 | 62/3 |
| Stacks, brick | 15 33 | 3 |
| Stacks, steel | 12 | 83 |
| Doors | 12 33 | 3 |
| Windows (complete) | 33 | 3 |
| Interior wood trim | 40 | 21/2 |
| | | |

DE YOUNG, CHRIS A. Depreciation and budgeting. (In his Budgeting in public schools. c1936. p. 230.)

Annual rate 2 to 3%

JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Depreciation. (In his Theory of real property valuation. c1938. p. 144-52.) KESSELRING, JOHN. Measure of obsolescence in buildings. Municipal finance, Feb. 1936, p. 51-4. PROFITS from management. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 31-2, 74-5. PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 13. Re Jamaica water supply co. Shop, garage and store buildings:

Av. life yrs. 50.0 Coal storage bldg. at steam station no. 1 Brick bldg, at steam station no. 2 Trestle with side track and concrete piers at steam station no. 2 Other buildings TIDT, LEO A. Structures and equipment. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937.

SCHMIDT, p. 243-79.

p. 243-79.) STUDEBAKER corporation. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.) Annual rate % Annual rate %

Buildings Building fixtures

Building, fire resistive Building, frame

š.7

172

Boilers

| DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—(Continued) Cable | | | |
|--|--|---|--|
| DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | Jan. 16, 1939, p. Economical | 32. Per cent | |
| Power and steam plant equipment: | life years | annual depres. | |
| Cable, underground | 20 | 5 | |
| Calculating machines WHEN should equipment be replaced? American business, Jan. 1 | 937, p. 17, 45. | | |
| Carpets, rugs, etc. DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | Jan. 16, 1939, p. | 32. | |
| | Economical life years | Per cent annual deprec. | |
| Furniture and fixtures: Carpets, rugs, linoleum | 5 | 20 | |
| Check perforators and writers See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Mechanical device | s. | | |
| Chemical industry WEAR and tear allowances—Chemical manufacture. Accountant, April 29, 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. p. 305. | tax supplmeent, Sep 1937, p. 18. Accou | t. 4, 1937, p. 374; intancy, May 1939, | |
| Cleaning and dyeing RATES of depreciation. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Feb. 1936. p. 233. WEAR and tear allowances-Dyeing and cleaning. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306. | | | |
| Clothing industry WEAR and tear allowances—Mantles and ladies' clothing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18, 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374, 376; April 29, 1939. p. 156, 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305, 308. | | | |
| Coal See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mining and metal | lurgy, Coal. | | |
| Coking plants See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Foundries. | | | |
| Cold storage See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Ice and cold storage. | | | |
| Collieries See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mining and metallurgy, Coal. | | | |
| Compressors DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | Economical | Per cent | |
| Mechanical equipment: Air compressors MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of deprec tion in the example of factory valuation (In their <i>Engineering</i> | | 437.) | |
| Compressor equipment Air compressors Compressor-equipment buildings | | Per cent 3½ 4½ 6 | |
| Comptometers See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Calculating machi | nes. | | |
| Conduits MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of de condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engine | preciation used for vering valuation. 193 | 6. p. 437.) | |
| Conduit, piping—housings Conduit, piping—equipment | | Per cent 2 4 | |
| Corset manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Corset manufacture. Accountant, to April 29, 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. p. 305. | ax supplement, Sept. 1937, p. 18. Accou | . 4, 1937, p. 374; intancy, May 1939, | |
| Cotton Mills KENNEDY, STEPHEN JAY. Profits and losses in textiles; of 1936. p. 130, 147-52. WEAR and tear allowances—Cotton spinners and manufacturers. 1939, p. 156-7. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305. Incorporated WEAR and tear allowances—Madras manufacture. Incorporate Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, p. 308. | A | | |

173

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—(Continued)

Cotton spinning

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Cotton mills.

Crochet hook manufacture

WEAR and tear allowances—Crochet hook manufacture. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Incorporated accountants' journal, October 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306.

Cutlery manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Cutlery manufacture. Accountant, tax supplement, September 4, 1937; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306.

Dairies, creameries, etc.
 WEAR and tear allowances—Creameries, dairies and ice cream factories. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 157; Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306.

Dentists

- TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, March 26, 1939, p. 139. TAXATION in the Irish Free State—professions: wear and tear. Accountant, tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 274.

Dictophones and dictographs See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Doctors

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Physicians.

Drafting MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.) Per cent

Drafting-room equipment

Drop forging

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Forging.

- Dwellings See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Apartment houses; Tenement houses. JERRETT, ERMAN DANIEL. Probable life in years. (In his Theory of real property valuation. c1938. p. 147-50.)

Dye manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Dyestuffs (synthetic) manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18-9. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306.

Dyeing WEAR and tear allowances—Dyeing and finishing. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939,

Dyeing and cleaning See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Cleaning and dyeing.

Dynamo DEPRECIATION, schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

| | Economical life years | Per cent annual deprec. |
|--|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Power and steam plant equipment Dynamos | 20 | 5 |

Electric and street railroads

- wettric and street railroads
 WEAR and tear allowances—Trackless trolley omnibuses. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 311.
 WEAR and tear allowances—Tramways and light railways. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 378; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 310.

- Biestric light and power
 AGREED rates of depreciation. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 3, 1936, p. 412.
 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 11. Electric utility was held to be entitled to not more than 4 per cent on the present value of its property used and useful in the business by way of depreciation. Baker Civic League v. Mountain States Power Co. (Mont.) p. 94.
 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 12. 3½ per cent interest rate in connection with depreciation accruals on the sinking-fund basis was used. Department of public service v. Grays Harbor r. & light co. (Wash.) p. 178.
 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 14. Allowance of 3 per cent was held proper for the annual depreciation requirement of an electric utility department. Public Service Commission v. St. Joseph r. light, heat & p. co. (Mo.) p. 113.
 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 14. Allowance of 3 per cent was made for depreciation of property used by a municipal electric utility for street lighting. Depreciation charge of 4½ per cent of the property and plant of a municipal electric utility was reduced to 3 per cent where the retirement reserve had been accumulated to approximately 80 per cent of total property and plant. Re Oconto Falls (Wis.), p. 237.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-Electric light and power-(Continued)

PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Allowance of 4 per cent per annum was held to be fair, just, and reasonable for depreciation expense of electric utility property. Re Northern states power co. (N.D.) p. 126.

PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Allowance of 4 per cent per annum was held to be fair, just, and reasonable for depreciation expense of electric utility property. Re Northern states power co. (N.D.) p. 126.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Annual depreciation rate of 3 per cent for electric property was approved. Public service commission v. Missouri pub. service co. (Mo.) p. 1.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Appropriation to depreciation reserve of somewhat less than 2 per cent upon the depreciable property of an electric utility appeared not to be unreasonable. Mayor & aldermen of Lawrence v. Lawrence gas & e. co. (Mass.) p. 353.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Depreciation allowance of 3½ per cent per annum was held to be fair, just, and reasonable on the depreciable steam property of a public utility. Re Northern state power co. (N.D.) p. 126.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Two and one-half per cent applied to the rate base of an electric utility was considered ample to provide for retirement and future depreciation in the property. Re Flat Too power co. (W.Va.) p. 118.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 16. Annual retirement reserve of a specified amount or 1 per cent of the cost new of the depreciable property, whichever should be greater, was approved in determining rates of a hydroelectric utility company. Re Arizona power co. p. 487.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 16. Depreciation rate of 2.75 per cent of the undepreciated cost of an electric generating plant was used, in determining proper wolesale electric rates, on the basis of a a 4½ per cent sinking fund and a 22-year service life. Re Interstate power co. (Wis.) p. 422.
PUBLIC UTILITES REPORTS, 1937. v. 18. Allowance of 3.5 per cent was held to be ample for annual depreciation amount plus 2 per cent of additions and betterments for annual depreciation. Re Union electric light & p. co. (Mo.) p. 337.
PUBLIC UTILITES REPORTS, 1937.

annual depreciation of electric utility property. Public service commission v. Ozark utilities co. (Mo.) p. 408.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 18. Depreciation reserve of 2½ per cent was held to be adequate for an electric utility. Re Arizona general utilities co. (Ariz.) p. 315.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 20.
PUBLIC UTILITIES reports, 1937. v. 20.
PUBLIC UTILITIES reports, 1938. v. 20.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1938. v. 23. Fair composite rate of depreciation for the property of an electric utility company was held to be 5 per cent. Re New era construction corp. (N.D.) p. 461.
WEAR and tear allowances—Electricity undertakings. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307. р. 19. *Ассо* 1939, р. 307.

Electric light bulbs DE YOUNG, CHRIS A. Depreciation and budgeting. (In his Budgeting in public schools. c1936. p. 230.)

Light bulbs

Annual rate 50%

LEAROYD, JOHN S. Obsolescence in the electric lamp industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 950-60.) Printed with: Stempf, Victor H. Accounting for fixed assets.

Electric plant

Elevator

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Electric light and power.

Electric wiring DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

| | Economical life years | Per cent annual deprec. |
|--|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Mechanical equipment: Inside electric wiring Electric light and power wiring | 20 17 | 5 6 |
| | | |

Electrical undertakings (Municipal)

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Electric light and power.

DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

| M. Laster Landamark | Economical life years | Per cent annual deprec. |
|------------------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Mechanical equipment: Elevators | 20 | 5 |

Embroidery manufacture

WEAR and tear allowances—Handkerchief and embroidery manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

Engineers' precision tools See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Tools.

Engines DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

| De la contrata a la characterizada de | Economical life years | Per cent annual deprec. |
|--|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Power and steam plant equipment: Engines—gas and oil Engines | 13 20 | 7½ 5 |

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

Envelope making

verope making WEAR and tear allowances—Envelope making. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Accountancy, May 1 19. 1939. p. 307.

Equipment

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Machinery and equipment.

Factories

Accores
 BAKER, T I. Plant control including the treatment of depreciation. Chartered accountant in Anstrume, May 1938, p. 766-73.
 GORDON, F. W. Practical methods for depreciation of factory equipment. London, Arthur H. Stockwell, Itd. (1936). 63p.
 MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.)
 PURCHASE option and depreciation on leased property. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Auril 1939. p. 242.3

PÜRCHASE option and depreciation on leased property. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 242-3
RAUH, JULIUS J. Purchase option and depreciation on leased property. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 55.
SEEBER, CARL L. Depreciation for a plant using composite rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 669-76.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis.
STONIER, K. N. Plant control including the treatment of depreciation. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 754-66.
WEAR and tear of plant and machinery in relation to N.D.C. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 197-8.

1938, p. 197-8.

Farming

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Agriculture.

Fences

MARSTON. ARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation, 1936. p. units in average 437.) Percent

Woven-wire fences

File and rasp manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—File and rasp manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May р. 19. мал. 1939, р. 307.

Fire apparatus

| DEPRECIATION schedule. | | building | management, | Jan. 16, 1939, Economical life years | p. 32. | Per cent annual deprec. |
|--|-----|----------|-------------|--|--------|----------------------------|
| Mechanical equipment: Fire alarm appara Fire prevention ap | tus | | | - 20 20 | | 5 5 |

DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years

Fire escapes

Fishing tackle manufacture

Flagpoles

WEAR and tear allowances—Fishing tackle manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, р. 19. *Ассонти*..., May 1939, р. 307.

Flagpoles

poles DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, Years 16, 1939, p. 32.

Flax spinning See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Linen.

Flock manufacture

WEAR and tear allowances—Flock manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

Flour mills

WEAR and tear allowances—Flour milling. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

Flying equipment

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Air transportation equipment.

Folding and sealing machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

- Forcing HARRISON, R. E. W. Depreciation and the drop forging industry. Heat treating and forging, Dec.
 - 1936, p. 606-9.
 WEAR and tear allowances. Drop forgings manufacture. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306.

6⅔

% 6¾

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

Foundries

WEAR and tear allowances-Brassfounding. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305.

Fuel oil system

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Heating.

Furnaces

WEAR and tear allowances—Electric furnaces. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 311.

Furniture and fixtures

- BARRETT, JAMES D. Depreciation in equipment simplified. Bankers' monthly, June 1939, p. 367, 369. DE YOUNG, CHRIS A. Depreciation and budgeting. (In his Budgeting in public schools. c1936. p. 230.)
 - Furniture

Annual rate 5%

Furniture industry

- WEAR and tear allowances—Furniture manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.
- Gas
- LUEBKE, C. R. New and more rigid distinction between capital and maintenance expenditures and its effect on depreciation allowances for income tax purposes. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 149-52.)
 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936, v. 15. Depreciation rate of 2.5 per cent for gas property exclusive of a transmission line was approved. Public service commission v. Missouri pub. service co. (Mo.) p. 1.
 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 19. Lives of 33 years for high-pressure gas distribution and transmission system and of 50 years for a low-pressure mains, 50 years for steel high-pressure mains and 35 years for meters, services, and pumping equipment were reasonable. Kohler v. Wisconsin public service p. p. 337.

 - mains and 35 years for meters, services, and pumping equipment were reasonable. Kohler v. Wisconsin pub. service corp. p. 337. PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1938. v. 22. Court held that it was not warranted in over turning a commission finding based on substantial evidence that 1½ per cent was sufficient for annual deprecia-tion allowance of a gas utility. State ex rel. St. Louis v. Public service commission (Mo.), p. 6. WEAR and tear allowances—Gas undertaknigs (other than those owned by local authorities) Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

Natural

- Gas, Natura PUBLIC UBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 11. Calculations of the cost of natural gas were based on an allowance of 6 per cent for amortizing gas leases of the producing company. Re M & M pipe line co. (Tex.) p. 234.
 - allowance of 6 per cent for amortizing gas leases of the producing company. At an analysis and the product of the second second

 - (Obio) p. 433. PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 19. Composite depreciation rate of .7 per cent upon the depreciable property of a natural gas distributing company was held to be fair, reasonable, and sufficient, where the policy of the company was to charge most of the retirements and replacements to maintenance expense and to limit the major retirement and replacements to charges to the reserve. Re Springfield gas co. (Ohio) p. 2. SALIERS, EARL A.

Depreciation of oil and gas equipment. (In his Depreciation, principles and applications, c1939. p. 381-91.) SHERWOOD, J. F. Percentage depletion for oil and gas wells. (In his Federal tax accounting, c1938.

p. 130.)

| Gas plant DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and | building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. | |
|---|--|------------------|
| Power and steam plant equipment: | Years | % |
| Gas plant equipment | 15 | 6 3/3 |

Grain binders

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Agriculture.

Handkerchief manufacture

WEAR and tear allowances—Handkerchief and embroidery manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

| Heating DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and | 16, 1939, p. 32. ears % | |
|---|----------------------------|--|
| Power and steam plant equipment: Fuel oil system | 13 17 1/2 | |
| Mechanical equipment: Heating and ventilating | 20 5 | |

Hemstitching machinery Wear and tear allowances—Hemstitching. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 3-7.

Hosierv

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Knit goods.

Hospitals

Objection of the provided and the spital costs. (reprinted from Hospitals, Nov. 1939.) 3p. DUKE ENDOWMENT. Hospital section. Check list of hospital equipment. (In its Classification of financial accounts in hospitals (1939), p. 18-20.)

| | iears | % |
|--|-------------------------|--------------------|
| Administrative equipment | 10 | 10 |
| Dietary equipment | 10 | 10 |
| House and property equipment: | | |
| Laundry and linen room equipment | 15 | 63/3 |
| Plant operation equipment: | | |
| General furnishings (Housekeeping) | 15 | 63/3 |
| Housekeeping equipment | 10 | 10 |
| Heat, light and power | 10 | 10 |
| Maintenance and repair equipment: | | |
| Buildings and grounds | 10 | 10 |
| Professional equipment: | | |
| Medical and surgical equipment | 10 | 10 |
| Pharmacy equipment | 10 | 10 |
| X-ray and radium equipment | 10 | 10 |
| Laboratory equipment | 10 | 10 |
| Physical therapy equipment | 10 | 10 |
| DUKE ENDOWMENT. Hospital section. Classification of | f financial accounts in | |
| N.C., Duke endowment, Hospital section (1939). 20 p. an PEEVE ARCHIE E AND CLEVELAND HAVWARD | d forms. | F |
| REFVE ARCHIE E AND CLEVELAND HAVWARD | Depreciation (In their | Haspital acomomica |

REEVI HIE F. AND CLEVELAND, HAYWARD. Depreciation. (In their Hospital economies. p. 58-61.) Rate ner wear of

| | Rate per year % |
|------------------------|--|
| Ambulances | 25-30% (and other cars) |
| X-ray apparatus | 10 |
| Instruments | 10 (to allow for those worn out or lost) |
| Furniture and fixtures | 5 (including beds, rugs, etc.) |
| Laboratory equipment | 10 (to allow for breakage, etc.) |
| Machinery | 10 (boilers, elevators, plumbing, etc.) |
| Buildings (fireproof) | 2 |
| " (frame) | 3-5 |
| Garages | 5 |

Hydraulic plant

| DEPRECIATION schedule. | Buildings and | building | management, | Jan. 16, 193 Years | 9, p. 32. | % |
|------------------------|---------------|----------|-------------|-----------------------|-----------|----|
| Power and steam pla | nt equiqment: | | | Icals | | 70 |
| Hydraulic plant ee | | | | 17 | | 6 |

Ice and cold storage DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years

Mechanical equipment:

Refrigeration machinery WEAR and tear allowances—Ice manufacture and cold stores. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May, 1939, p. 376.

%

Ice-cre

WEAR and tear allowances—Creameries, dairies and ice-cream factories. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18; Accountancy, May 1939, p. 306.

Iron and steel

WEAR and tear allowances—Pig iron and steel manufacture and wrought iron manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20, 22. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 377, 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161.

Jute spinning and weaving WEAR and tear allowances—Jute spinning and weaving. Accountant, tax supplement, April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

Knit goods DEPRECIATION allowances; alterations in schedule of agreed rates. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 51. WEAR and tear allowances—Hosiery manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939,

p. 307.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued) Lace making WEAR and tear allowances—Lace and embroidery manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308. Land STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936, p. 2.) Annual rate % Land Land improvements 6 Laundrie AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. Depreciation rates as used and considered fair by laundryowners and average rates allowed by federal treasury department. Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering, no date. 5p. (Special report no. 69.) tute of laundering, no date. 5p. (Special report no Power plant equipment: Average rate used and considered fair Average rate allowed by Treasury department Plant machinery and equipment: Average rate used and considered fair Average rate allowed by Treasury department Office furniture and fatures: % ģ. 8.4 9.3 8.7 Average rate used and considered fair Average rate allowed by Treasury department Delivery trucks (gasoline): Average rate used and considered fair Average rate allowed by Treasury department Buildings_freeprof construction: 9.4 ò 24 23.5 Average rate allowed by Treasury department 23.5 Buildings—fireproof construction: 2.7 Average rate used and considered fair 2.7 Buildings—other types of construction: 2.7 Average rate used and considered fair 2.7 Average rate used and considered fair 2.7 Average rate used and considered fair 2.9 Average rate allowed by Treasury department 2.9 BAKER, BENJAMIN G. Computation of depreciation in the laundry industry. Joliet, III., Laundry-owners national association of the United States and Canada, April 1937. 22p. (Special report no. 81.) DEPRECIATION. (In Laundry year book, 1938, p. 158-9.) Recommended rates of depreciation and maintenance expense: maintenance expense: *A.I.L. Deprec. % **Internal Revenue ec. % Maintenance % Deprec. % Building: 2 Concrete Brick 2 21/2 21/2 Frame 4 4 Machines: Marking Machines Washers: 12 2 63/3 Brass 2 121/ Monel 12 12% 5 Starch Machines Drying Machines: Extractors 1 63 10 1 Tumblers: îŏ 1 Ironers: Hand irons 20 163 20 Flatwork ironers: 10 621 4

| Cnest type | 10 | 0 1/3 | / |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------|--|-------------------------------------|
| Cylinder type | 10 | 6 2/3 6 2/3 6 2/3 | 10 |
| Presses | 10 | 6% | 5 |
| Specialty Machines: | 10 | 0,13 | 0 |
| Blanket Machines | 14 | 63/3 | 1 |
| Curtain driers | 14 | 5 | 1/2 |
| Collar Machines | 8 | 63/3 | 12 |
| Miscellaneous: | 6 | 073 | /- |
| Scales | 14 | 5 | 1/2 |
| Trucks | 71/ | 1Ŏ | 1/* |
| Sewing machines | 81/ | 62/3 | i |
| Sleeve & sock forms | 1212 | 7 3 | î |
| * From Bulletin of American Institute | of Loundering Jol | et 111 ' | 1 |
| **Courtesy Troy Laundry Machinery (| or maundering, jon | , 111. | |
| Power Plant Equipment: | .0. | | Deprec. % |
| Air compressors | | | |
| Boilers | | | 63/3 |
| Conveyors (coal) | | | 3 ¹ / ₃ 10 |
| Electrical equipment | | | 10 |
| Heaters | | | |
| Steeles (steel on build) | | | 10 |
| Stacks (steel or brick) | | | 10 |
| Stokers | | | 62/3 |
| Steam traps | | | 0 2/3 |
| Pumps | | | 63/3 |
| | | | |

 Fumps
 633

 It is doubtful if the useful life of collection and delivery equipment is much over 3 years before the repair bills justify discarding for new equipment. Therefore, the following seems advisable:
 633

 Collection and delivery Equipment
 20

 Depreciation on office equipment may be broken up as other departmental machines but in the aggregate they will approximately balance to:
 00

 Office Equipment
 10

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-Laundries-(Continued)

DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years % annual deprec.

Mechanical equipment Laundry machinery LAUNDRYOWNERS NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Recapitulation of data obtained from plant equipment questionnaire no. 4-34, on depreciation experience. for laundry equipment. Joliet, Ill., Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada, Feb. 1, 1935. 5p. (Special report no. 67.) WEAR and tear allowances—Steam laundry proprietors. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 387; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Accountancy, May 1939 p. 310

1939, p. 310.

% 6¾

0%

Lighting

DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years

Lighting fixtures

Lime and limestone See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Quarries and quarrying.

Linen

WEAR and tear allowances—Flax spinning and linen weaving. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, 1937, p. 19. Accou May 1939, p. 307.

15

Linoleum

noleum DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, Years 16, 1939, p. 32.

20 linoleum WEAR and tear allowances—Linoleum and floor cloth manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accoun-tancy, May 1939, p. 308. Carpets, rugs,

Locomotive manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Locomotive manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Logging

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Lumber.

Lorries

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Electric trucks; Industrial trucks; Motor trucks; Vans.

Lumber industry MUCKLOW, WALTER. Appreciation, depletion, obsolescence and depreciation. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 148-65.)
PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depreciation of timber property. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937. p. 106.)
WEAR and tear allowances—Timber merchants, saw-millers and timber goods manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 378; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 310.

Machine shops MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*. 1936. p. 437.)

Machine shop, type A-iron clad, steel frame type B-brick, with tar and gravel roof type C-brick, with tar and slag roof C-brick, with tar and slag roof SEEBER, CARL L. Depreciation for a plant using composite rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 669-76.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis.

Machine tool industry

WEAR and tear allowances-Machine tool manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Machine tools CHAPIN, F. H. Watch your borrowers' machine tools. Bankers' monthly, Sept. 1939, p. 525-7.

Machinery

- See also Depreciation and obsolescence—Machinery and equipment. MACHINERY AND ALLIED PRODUCTS INSTITUTE. Depreciation reserve policies; the current need for sound and adequate practices. Chicago, Ill., Machinery and allied products institute, Dec. 1936, 13p. MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-
- tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.) %

Power-machine buildings

21/2 31/2 Power machinery WEAR and tear of plant and machinery in relation to N.D.C. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 197-8.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued) Machinery and equipment

Machinery and equipment See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Office equipment.
BAKER, T. I. Plant control including the treatment of depreciation. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 766-73.
BAKERT, JAMES D. Depreciation in equipment simplified. Bankers' monthly, June 1939, p. 367, 369.
BENNETT, GEORGE E. Think! Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 25-6, 39.
DEPRECIATION of machinery and equipment in manufacturing costs. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 177-8.
GORDON, F. W. Practical methods for depreciation of factory equipment. London, Arthur H. Stock-well, itd. (1936). 63p.
JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Probable life in years. (In his Theory of real property valuation. c1938. p. 147-50.)
KIRK, W. P. Purchase of new machinery and equipment. Society for the advancement of management journal, Sept. 1937, p. 154-6.
MUNKMAN, J. H. Wear-and-tear allowance and the Union cold storage case. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 511-7.
SCHMIDT, LEO A. Structures and equipment. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. D. 243-79.)

Aug. 1939, p. 511-7. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Structures and equipment. (In his *l neory and mechanics* ... p. 243-79.) SEEBER, CARL L. Depreciation for a plant using composite rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 669-76.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis. SOME points on wear and tear and obsolescence allowance. Accountant, tax supplement, April 11, 1927 p. 118.0

SOME points on wear and teat and obsolveness and a depreciation. Chartered accountant in 1936, p. 118-9. STONIER, K. N. Plant control including the treatment of a depreciation. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 754-66. STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936, p. 2.) Annual rate %

Power plant machinery General factory machinery

General factory equipment

WEAR and tear of plant and machinery in relation to N.D.C. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 197-8. WHIPP, W. E. Profits from replacing obsolete equipment. Executives service bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 5-6.

Madras manufacture

WEAR and tear allowances-Madras manufacture. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 158. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 107. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Match industry

WEAR and tear allowances-Match manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Material handling equipment STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.) Annual rate %

Material handling equipment

Mechanical devices

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Calculating machines; Listing machines; Office equipment; Typewriters. DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

Years

Mechanical office equipment 5 20% MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.) 4½% Auxiliary business machines

RATES of depreciation. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Feb. 1936, p. 233. WHEN should equipment be replaced? American business, Jan. 1937, p. 17, 45.

DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years

Meters

Mills

Meter

Milk bars WEAR and tear allowances—Milk bars. Accountant, tax supplement, April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

20

s See Depreciation, depletion etc.; Saw mills; Silk mills. depletion and obsolescence-Cotton mills; Flour mills; Knit goods; Paper, cardboard,

Mimeograph machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Mining and metallurgy DISNEY, WESLEY E. Depletion allowance. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 262-6, 268. FERNALD, HENRY B. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, 150-3.

p. 130-3. FISHER, B. F. Depletion as an element of cost and a deduction from profits for taxation in the mining industry. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. buildetin, v. 19, no. 9, section 2, p. 545-6.) GEORGE, H. WYBURN. Some thoughts on taxation of mining companies. Canadian chartered accountant,

Feb. 1939, p. 92-101.

97

10

5%

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-Mining and metallurgy-(Continued)

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—Mining and metallurgy—(Continued)
 HARTMAN, DENNIS. Depletion. (In his Income tax index-digest, v. 31-35, p. 34-7.)
 INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Depletion allowance a fundamental right, say courts and congress. (reprinted from Independent monthly, August, September, October, 1937). 32p.
 PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depletion of certain mines. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937. p. 106-8, 109-11.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Natural resource assets—their treatment in accounts and valuation. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 74-92. Reprinted. 19p.
 PERCENTAGE depletion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, No. 13, section 2, p. 780-3.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Minc valuation. (In his Depreciation, principles and applications. c1939, p. 398-400.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Basis for computation of amount of depreciation and depletion. (In his Federal tax accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61.

Mining and metallurgy, Coal
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Percentage depletion for coal, metal and sulphur mines. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938). p. 70-1.)
 PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depletion of coal mines. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937. p. 110.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Percentage depletion for coal, and metal mines and sulphur. (In his Federal tax accounting, c1938. p. 130.)
 WEAR and tear allowances—Collieries. Accountants' journal, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374; April 29, 1939, p. 156. Incorporated accountants' journal Oct. 1937, p. 18. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305.

Mining and metallurgy, Metal
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Percentage depletion for coal, metal and sulphur mines. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938), p. 70-1.)
 FERNALD, HENRY B., PELOUBET, MAURICE E. AND NORTON, LEWIS M. Accounting for nonferrous metal mining properties and their depletion. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 105-16.
 LAING, STANLEY B. Depletion in metal mines for income tax. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 329-37.
 PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depletion of metal mines. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937, p. 110.)

110.)

SHERWOOD, J. F. Percentage depletion for coal, and metal mines and sulphur. (In his Federal tax accounting, c1938. p. 130.)

Mining and metallurgy, Mineral property PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depreciation and depletion of mineral property. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937. p. 106, 107.)

Mining and metallurgy, Sulphur ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Percentage depletion for coal, metal and sulphur mines. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938). p. 70-1.) PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depletion of sulphur mines. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937.

p. 110.) SHERWOOD, J. F. Percentage depletion for coal, and metal mines and sulphur. (In his Federal tax

accounting, c1938. p. 130.)

Motor boats

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Boats.

Motor buse

Motor buses
DEPRECIATION of motor buses. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1232-4.)
FRANZ, ALFRED P. Bus depreciation. Bus transportation, Oct. 1937, p. 474-5.
McMULLEN, R. B. "Last mile"; a cost accountant sharpens his pencil and tells how to figure out when coaches should be retired. Bus transportation, June 1939, p. 272-4.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 11. A transportation company was authorized to accrue depreciation on buses and bus appurtenances on the basis of a 10-year life, or at the rate of 10 per cent per annum of the actual cost of such buses and bus equipment, subject, however, to the right of the Commission to make future changes if conditions and experiences should require them. Re Capital transit co. (D.C.) p. 85.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 20. Computation of depreciation of equipment operated by a motor coach line is too low when computed on a 10-year, 5 per cent sinking-fund basis, particularly if consideration is given to obsolescence. Re Bridge bus line corp. (Cal.) p. 188.
WEAR and tear allowances—Motor omnibuses. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 311.

Motor trucks

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Industrial trucks; Electric trucks.
 ROALFE, GEORGE D. Motor trucking costs. Rock products, April 1937, p. 55-7.
 WEAR and tear allowances—Motor pantechnicons and lorries. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountancy, May 1938, p. 311.

Motor vehicle manufacture

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Automobile industry.

Motors

MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*, 1936. p. 437.)

Motors for air compressors

Moving vans

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Motor trucks; Vans.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Livestock; Agriculture.

Multigraph machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Nail manufacture

Mules

WEAR and tear allowances-Nail manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Natural resources

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Assets, Wasting.

Needle manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Needle manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939,

Newspapers WEAR and tear allowances—Newspaper printing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 308.

Numbering machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Office appliances

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Office buildings

JERRETT, ERMAN DANIEL. Probable life in years. (In his Theory of real property valuation. c1938. p. 147-50.)

Office equipment

Office equipment PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 13. Re Jamaica water supply co. p. 420.

Office equipment 15.0 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Annual allowance of 10 per cent for a combined utility's common property consisting primarily of automobiles and office equipment was approved. Public service commission v. Missouri public service co. (Mo.) p. 1. STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.) Annual rate %

10

51/2 Vears

Office equipment WHEN should equipment be replaced? American business, Jan. 1937, p. 17, 45.

Office machines

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Mechanical devices.

Oil industry

ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Percentage depletion for oil and gas wells. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938). p. 68-70.) ANDRUSS, HARVEY A. Accounting for the depletion of oil lands. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936,

p. 103-17. BEVERIDGE, JOHN W. Depletion of oil and gas properties; principles of depletion allowances for determining taxable income. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 67-70. DISNEY, WESLEY E. Depletion allowance. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 262-6, 268. FERNALD, HENRY B. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, 2, 150-3

FERNALD, HENKY D. ACCOUNT FOR Store of the second state of the sec

1938. 496p.
See index under Depletion; Depreciation.
PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Percentage depletion for oil and gas wells. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937, p. 108-9.)
PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Natural resource assets—their treatment in accounts and valuation. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 74-92. Reprinted. 19p.
PERCENTAGE depletion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 246-7; Jan. 1938, p. 8.
PITCHER, ROBERT M. Depletion—Depreciation. (In his Practical accounting for oil producers. 1938, p. 66-76; 77-87.)
SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation of oil and gas equipment. (In his Depreciation, principles and applications. c1939, p. 381-91.)
SHERWOOD, J. F. Percentage depletion for oil and gas wells. (In his Federal tax accounting, c1938. p. 130.)

p. 130.) STRONG,

STRONG, GEORGE J. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61. SWEENEY, HENRY W. Percentage depletion. Oilnotes, Jan. 1938, p. 7-10.

| DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—(Continued) Oil leases ROSS, EDWARD P. Depletion of oil leases. Tax magazine, June | 1936, p. 323-5, 383-4. | |
|--|---|------------------------------------|
| Paint, varnish, etc. WEAR and tear allowances—Paint, colour and varnish manufac Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 2 May 1939, p. 308. | cture. Incorporated accoun 376; April 29, 1939, p. 157 | ntants' journal, 7. Accountancy |
| Paper bag manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Paper bag manufacture. Incorporate Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, p. 308. | d accountants' journal, Oc 1939, p. 159. Accountan | ct. 1937, p. 20. cy, May 1939, |
| Paper box manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Paper box manufacture. Incorporate Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, p. 308. | d accountants' journal, Oc 1939, p. 159. Accountan | ct. 1937, p. 20. cy, May 1939, |
| Paper, cardboard, etc. WEAR and tear allowances—Paper mills. Incorporated accountant tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 376; April 29, 1939, p. 159. | s' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 2 Accountancy, May 1939, | 20. Accountant, p. 308. |
| Paper mills See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Paper, cardboard | , etc. | |
| Partitions DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | , Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. | |
| Furniture and fixtures: Partitions, wood | Years 13 | % 7½ |
| Patents, copyrights, trademarks, etc. PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depreciation of patents and mentals, 1937. p. 45.) | | |
| Pavements and paving DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | | |
| Building appurtenances: Paving | Years 25 | % 4 |
| Sidewalks | 15 | 63/3 |
| Photographic equipment MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depre- tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering Depresent the state of the state o | eciation used for units in y valuation, 1936. p. 437.) | % |
| Photographic equipment | | 51/2 |
| Physicians TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, March 26, 19: TAXATION in the Irish Free State—professions: wear and t 26, 1937, p. 274. | 38, p. 139. ear. Accountant, tax su | <i>pplement</i> , June |
| Pipe DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | | ~ |
| Power and steam plant equipment: Piping | Years 13 | % 7 ½ |
| Plastics and molded products WEAR and tear allowances—Plastic moulding. Accountant, ta: Accountancy, May 1939, p. 309. | | · |
| Plumbing DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. | |
| Mechanical equipment: Plumbing | Years 17 | % |
| Power plants | | 6 |
| DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Power and steam plant equipment: | , Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years | % |
| Boilers Water purifying plant Engines Steam turbines | 20 | 5 |
| Superheaters Stokers—moving parts Dynamos | 20 | 5 |
| Electric machinery: Generators | | - · |
| Motors Switch parts Cable, underground | 20 | 5 |
| Steam plant equipment Piping | 17 13 | 6 7 % |

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

Precision tools See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Tools.

Printing

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Publishing. MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Your taxes—and depreciation. (reprinted from March 1938 Inland printer) 450 Seventh Ave., New York, N. Y., The author. 3 p. MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condi-

tion in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation, 1936. p. 437.)

Printing-shop fixtures

4½ 3¾

Printing machines Printing machines MILLER, EDWARD T. What's the depreciation rate? Inland printer, June 1936, p. 41-2. WEAR and tear allowances—Printing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 20. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937; April 29, 1939, p. 159. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 309.

Public utilities

See also Public utilities reports and under headings for particular utilities. BERNSTEIN, E. M. Public utility rate making and the price level. Chapel Hill, N. C., University of North Carolina press, 1937, 142p.

See index under Depreciation. BRAUNSTEIN, JACQUES, AND JOHNSON, MARK H. Public utility depreciation and the income tax. Harvard law review, May 1939, p. 1077-1104. BRENNAN, T. F. Depreciation of the property of state-owned public utilities and its relation to the state budget. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 352-5. DAVIDSON, H. C. Causes of property retirements. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p.

519-20

519-20. DEPRECIATION in utility accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 241-3. ELY, OWEN. Accounting for depreciation. Public utilities fortnightly, April 29, 1937, p. 542-52. FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Depreciation accounts of public utilities. (In his Capital consumption and adjustment. 1938. p. 86-91.) GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Public utility valuation and depreciation. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 226-74.) GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY. Recent decisions and rulings on utility depreciation. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 55-63.) Controller, Intv 1030 p. 244.8

July 1939, p. 244.8. GRUEHN, H. L. Depreciation principles. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 521-2, 551. HASBROUCK, H. C. Present views of authority on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec.

1938, p. 523-6. HORNE, HENRY A. Depreciation in utility accounts. (Correspondence). Journal of accountancy, June

449-51

HORNE, HENRY A. Depretation in during account. (2019)
HOWARD, STANLEY E. Rate base and the depreciation base in recent public utility cases. American economic review, June 1936, p. 258-71.
HUSSONG, H. O. Reasons for a retirements reserve. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 318-22, 352.
JONES, D. M. Some engineering factors affecting obsolescence. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 527-30, 552.
KOHLHEPP, C. E. 1938 depreciation problem. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 517-8, 526.
KREBS, W. S. Public-utility depreciation in its relation to the rate base. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 93-108.
MASON PEPRV Principles of nublic-utility depreciation. Chicago, Ill., American accounting associa-

1939, p. 93-108. MASON, PERRY. Principles of public-utility depreciation. Chicago, Ill., American accounting associa-tion, 1937. 128p. (American accounting association monographs, no. 1.) MASON, PERRY. Supreme court on public-utility depreciation. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 234-70. NASH, LUTHER R. Further comments on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 532.

MASON, FERRY. Supreme control on purceasing approximate effective constitute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 532.
NASH, LUTHER R. Further comments on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 532.
NASH, LUTHER R. That loss-in-value rule in depreciation accounting. Public utilities fortnightly, May 25, 1939, p. 653-63.
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Special committee on depreciation. Report of special committee on depreciation. (In its Proceedings of the fiftieth annual convention. 1938, p. 425-518.)
Same. New York, State law reporting co., c1938. 85p.
Same. Sist annual convention in Seattle, Washington, August 22-24, 1939. (In its Proceedings of the fifty-first annual convention. 1939. p. 337-408.) Reprinted. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities communications commission take with respect to depreciation. (In its Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention, 1936. p. 460-73.)
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. What action, if any, should the federal communications commission take with respect to depreciation. (In its Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention, 1936. p. 460-73.)
NEWSOM, REEVES. Comments on report on depreciation. Journal of the American water works association, May 1939, p. 837-40.
PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Principles of public-utility depreciation. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 149-65. Reprinted.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS. Depreciation. (In its Annual digest of public utilities reports, new series, for the year 1936, p. 1036, v. 12. Accrual of depreciation at the rate of 3½ per cent per annum by a consolidated company was approved where this amount was being accrued by the various constituent companies. Re Wisconsin central utilities co. (Wis), p. 4.
RATTRAY, WILLIAM. Depreciation for electric, water, and gas utilities. Journal of accountance, Oct. 1937, p. 495-8.
SCHARFF, MA

RAL Oct. 1939, p. SCHARFF, MA ¹⁹³⁷, p. 496-8. MA SCHARFF, MA 1937, p. 490-0. SCHARFF, MA 1938 p. 531-2. MAURICE R. Further comments on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec.

SLAFF, SAMUEL AND SLAFF, GEORGE. Place of "substitute plant" in utility valuations. Public utilities fortnightly, July 21, 1938, p. 74-83. STAEBNER, R. C. Depreciation problem for income tax purposes as it relates to public utilities. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan, 1939, p. 13-5. TAYLOR, EDWY L. No hard and fast rules for depreciation reserve. Public utilities fortnightly, July 6, 1939, p. 18-26.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued)

Pulp mills See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Paper, cardboard, etc.

Pump DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32.

Power and steam plant equipment: Pumps

Quarries and quarrying PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Depletion of quarries. (In his Income tax fundamentals. 1937. p. 107.) Railroads

Years

13

ailroads
See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Rolling stock.
KOONTZ, HAROLD D. Depreciation base in railroad accounting. Journal of land and public utility economics, Feb. 1937, p. 1-13.
KOONTZ, HAROLD D. Depreciation policy and financial structure in American railroads. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1936, p. 460-70.
MAY, GEORGE O. Influence of accounting on the development of an economy-3; railroad retirements and depreciation. Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 171-84. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 336-52.)
SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation and Interstate commerce commission railroad valuation. (In his Depreciation, Earl and applications. c1939, p. 392-7.)
UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce commission. Forty-ninth annual report on the statistics of railways in the United States for the year ended December 31, 1935. Washington, D.C., Government printing office, 1937. 264p.
See index under Depreciation.

Real estate

cal estate See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Apartment houses; Buildings; Dwellings; Factories; Garages; Tenements; Hotels; Loft buildings; Office buildings; Sheds; Stores; Theatres; Warehouses; also name of industry, business or trade under Depreciation, Depletion and obsolescence. McMICHAEL, STANLEY L. McMichael's appraising manual; a real estate appraising handbook for use in field work and advanced study courses. ed. 2. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 652p. PURCHASE option and depreciation on leased property. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Acrel 1030 of 2422 Dwellings; Factories; Theatres; Warehouses;

April 1939, p. 242-3. RAUH, JULIUS J. Purchase option and depreciation on leased property. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 55. REEVES, CUTHBERT E. Can obsolescence be standardized? Municipal finance, Feb. 1938, p. 36-40.

Refrigeration See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Ice and cold storage.

Reservoirs

MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.)

% 21/2

% 7%

Residences

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Dwellings.

Restaurants, cafes, etc.

Reservoir

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Hotels. DAHL, J. O. Restaurant management, principles and practice. 1936. p. 139-41. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Accounting for replacement and depreciation. American restaurant, Jan. 1938, p. 34, 78-9.

| | Per | centage of or | iginal cost | | |
|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------|-----|
| | China | Glass | Silver | Linen | |
| 1st year of life of restaurant | 95% | 100% | 90% | 83% | |
| 2nd year | 90 | 100 | 80 | 67 | |
| 3rd year | 85 | 100 | 70 | 50 | |
| 4th year | 80 | 100 | 60 | 50 | |
| 5th year and thereafter | 75 | 100 | 50 | 50 | |
| Restaurants generally do not have | | | | | |
| composite depresention forume of 10 | nor cent a wear accuming | an average | life of 10 |) weeks for | ~11 |

composite depreciation figure of 10 per cent a year, assuming an average life of 10 years for all of the equipment. Regardless of the actual life of the restaurant, the depreciation rate should never be less than 10 per cent annually.

Rolling stock UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce commission. Forty-ninth annual report on the statistics of railways in the United States for the year ended December 31, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 264p. See index under Depreciation.

Saw-mills

Scales

WEAR and tear allowances—Timber merchants, saw millers and timber goods manufacture. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 378, April 29, 1939, p. 161. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 310.

ales MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*. 1936, p. 437.) %

Track scales

3 Schools, colleges, etc. AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Depreciation of real property in educational institutions. (reprinted from *Educational business manager and buyer*.) Washington, D.C., American council on education, November 1935. 9p. (Financial advisory bulletin 2.) DE YOUNG, CHRIS A. Depreciation and budgeting. (In his *Budgeting in public schools.* c1936. p. 229-30.)

| DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—(Continued, |) | |
|--|---|---|
| Scrubbing machines DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, | Jan. 16, 1939, p. Years | 32. % |
| Miscellaneous: Scrubbing machines | 10 | 10 |
| Sewers DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management | , Jan. 16, 1939, p. Years | 32. % |
| Building appurtenances: Sewers | 15 | 63 |
| MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engi | depreciation used ineering valuation. | % |
| Sewer system | | 2 |
| Shafting, pulleys, etc. DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management | , Jan. 16, 1939, p. Years | . 32. % |
| Mechanical equipment: Shafting, pulleys Hangers, belting | 20 20 | 5 |
| Sheds | | |
| MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engli | depreciation used ineering valuation. | for units in average 1936. p. 437.) |
| Scrap shed, iron-covered steel frame Sheds, open frame | | 2 3 1/2 |
| Ships and shipping See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Boats. TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, March 26, 5 WEAR and tear allowances—Shipping. Incorporated accountants tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 377-8; April 29, 1939, p. 15 | 1938, p. 139. 7 <i>journal</i> , Oct. 193 59-60. Accountancy, | 7, p. 20-1. Accountant. May 1939, p. 309-10. |
| Shoe industry TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, March 26, 1 WEAR and tear allowances—Shoe and slipper manufacture. Inc p. 21. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 378; A 1939, p. 310. | orporated accountan | its' journel, Oct. 1937, 60. Accountancy, May |
| Shops MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Eng | depreciation used ineering valuation. | for units in average 1936. p. 437.) % |
| Shop, type D, brick with tile roof E, brick with tile roof F, brick with slate roof G, brick with tile roof H, ironclad steel frame | | 134 2 2 1/2 1 3/4 2 1/2 1 3/4 2 1/2 |
| Sidewalks See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Pavements and | paving. | |
| Silk Mills WEAR and tear allowances—Silk manufacture. Incorporated Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 378; April 29, p. 310. | accountants' journ , 1939, p. 160-1. A | al, Oct. 1937, p. 21. ccountancy, May 1939, |
| Slipper manufacture See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Shoe industry. | | |
| Spinning and weaving See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Textiles. | | |
| Sprinkler system DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management | t, Jan. 16, 1939, p | . 32. ~ |
| Mechanical equipment: Sprinklers | Years 20 | % 5 |
| Stacks MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Eng | depreciation used ineering valuation. | for units in average 1936. p. 437.) |
| Stacks, radial brick | | % 51/2 |
| Standpipes | 4 Tan 16 1030 | . 20 |
| DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building managemen Standpipes | t, Jan. 16, 1939, p Years 15 | 634 |
| | | |

| DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continue Steamplants | | • |
|--|--|--|
| DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building managem | <i>ent</i> , Jan. 1939, p. 32. Years | % |
| Power and steam plant equipment: Boilers Water purifying plant Steam turbines Superheaters Stoker-moving parts | 20 | 5 |
| Dynamos Electric machinery—Generators Electric machinery—Motors | | - |
| Switch parts Cable, underground Steam plant equipment Piping | 20 17 13 | 5 6 71⁄2 |
| | 10 | |
| Stokers DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building manageme | ent, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years | % |
| Power and steam plant equipment: Stokers—fixed parts | 5 | 20 |
| Storehouses See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Warehouses. | | |
| Sulphur SHERWOOD, J. F. Percentage depletion for coal, and meta accounting. c1938. p. 130.) | al mines and sulphur. (In | n his Federal tax |
| Sulphuric acid manufacture WEAR and tear allowances—Sulphuric acid manufacture. In p. 22. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 37 1939, p. 310. | corporated accountants' jo 8; April 1939, p. 161. | ournal, Oct. 1937, Accountancy, May |
| Tanks DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building manageme | ent, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years | % |
| Building appurtenances: Tanks, steel Tanks, wood | 22 12 | 41⁄2 8 |
| Taxicabs WEAR and tear allowances—Taxi-cabs. Accountant, tax sup 1939, p. 161. Incorporated accountants' journal, October 19 | plement, Sept. 4, 1937, 1 37, p. 22. Accountancy, N | p. 379; April 29, May 1939, p. 311. |
| Telephone and telegraph BOWMAN, F. A. Accounting for depreciation in telephone 1936, p. 112-26. | work. Canadian chartered | accountant, Aug. |
| CRUNDEN, A. B. Straight line depreciation accounting o association. <i>Proceedings</i> , 1938, p. 142-9.) DEPRECIATION schedule. <i>Buildings and building manageme</i> | f telephone companies. (nt, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years | In American gas % |
| Furniture and fixtures: Telephone equipment HOPPLE, E. J. Fixing depreciation rates for telephone co | 13 | 71/2 |
| HOPPLE, E. J. Fixing depreciation rates for telephone co 15, 1937, p. 467-75. PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. vol. 11. Overall co be adequate for a telephone company's annual depreciation. | mposite rate of 3.82 per Re Northwestern Bell tele | cent was held to ephone co. (Neb.) |
| p. 337. PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 13. Composite all property was fixed at approximately 3.4 per cent of aver | owance for annual depreci age exchange plant. Re | ation of telephone Wisconsin teleph. |
| co. (Wis.) p. 224. PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 13. Percentag depreciation of a telephone company. Pacific teleph. & teleg PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 14. Allowance o telephone company for depreciation and amortization was teleph. corporation v. Corporation commission. (Okla.) p. 34 PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Composite ra | s. co. v. Thomas (Ore.) (of 5 per cent on deprecia sustained as adequate an | C. C. ble property of a nd fair. Western |
| by the commission in fixing telephone rates was sustained | I by the court. Ohio B | ell teleph. co. v. |
| PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 16. Annual der fixed at 3.9 per cent. Re South-western Bell teleph. co. (W) PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 16. Following able in determining depreciation of units of telephone prope station apparatus, 20 per cent; aerial cable, 10 per cent, who Re Farmers new era teleph. co. (Wis.) p. 204. | salvage allowances were h rties; central office equipm ere a small company was l | eld to be reason- ent, 10 per cent; being investigated. |
| Commission in determining depreciation of telephone prop | erty approved as reasona rs; drop wire, fifteen yez ears; pole lines, twenty-f 'is.) p. 204. | ble the following ars; central office five years; aerial |
| equipment, twenty-five years; station apparatus; twenty years wire, eighteen years. Re Farmers new era telephone co. (W PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 17. Composite to the depreciable book fixed at 4 per cent. Re Central Ore PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 19. Composite c adequate for classes of telephone plant which would be in u version to effect a change from magneto to common batter | annual rate of depreciati gon teleph. co. (Or.) p. depreciation rate of 3.92 p se after a proposed recom- y service. Re Northweste | ion to be applied 164. Ser cent was held struction and con- ern Bell telegraph |
| co. (Minn.) p. 455. | | |

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-Telephone and telegraph-(Continued)

UNITED STATES. Federal communications commission. Proposed report; telephone investigation (pursuant to public resolution no. 8, 74th congress) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, (pursuant 1938. 79 792p. See index under Depreciation.

Tenements

JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Probable life in years. (In his Theory of real property valuation. c1938. p. 147-50.)

Textiles

- See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Cotton; Silk; Wool and worsted. LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH, AND MAXWELL, ARTHUR D. Textile costing; an aid to management. Washington, D. C., Textile foundation, 1938. 282p. See index under Depreciation.

Threshing machines See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Agricultural machinery.

Timber

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Lumber.

Tool manufacture

WEAR and tear allowances—Engineers' precision tools manufacture. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 19. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 375; April 29, 1939, p. 157. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 307.

Tools

See also Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence—Machine tools. DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years % Miscellaneous: Small hand tools 10 10 MARSTON, ANSON, and AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average condition in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*. 1936. p. 437.) or % 6 7½ Fower tools Compressed-air tools SEEBER, CARL L. Depreciation for a plant using composite rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no 11, section 1, p. 669-76.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-f-production basis. STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.) Power tools % 10 Permanent tools Track MARSTON. ARSTON, ANSON, AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average con-dition in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*, 1936, p. 437.) Track system, railroad sidings Transformer house MARSTON, ANSON, AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average con-dition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation, 1936, p. 437.) 23 Transformer house, concrete Transmission equipment STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.) Power transmission equipment 6 STUDEBAKER CORPORATION. Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.) % % 15 Transportation equipment Tug boats See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Ships and shipping; Boats. Type metal See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Printing. Typewriters WHEN should equipment be replaced? American business, Jan. 1937, p. 17, 45. acuum cleaners DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years Vacuum cleaner % Miscellaneous: Vacuum cleaners, portable Vacuum cleaners, stationary Vacuum cleaners, hand 10 10 Vans WEAR and tear allowances—Motor lorries and vans; steam lorries. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161; Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 311.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-(Continued) Ventilating DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years % Mechanical equipment: Heating and ventilating 20 5 Veneels See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Ships and shipping. Walle DEPRECIATION schedule. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Vears % Building appurtenances: Retaining walls Retaining walls MARSTON, ANSON, AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average con-dition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.) or % 3 Retaining walls, concrete Concrete walls and runways 3 Warehouses MARSTON, ANSON, AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average con-dition in the example of factory valuation. (In their *Engineering valuation*. 1936. p. 437.) % Warehouses, brick, tar and slag roof Storage buildings, ironclad, steel frame Gasoline storage, brick—concrete roof 22222 Storehouses, ironclad, steel frame Water system (industrial) MARSTON, ANSON, AND AGG, THOMAS R. Rates of depreciation used for units in average con-dition in the example of factory valuation. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 437.) % Water system, pumps and piping 334 Waterworks /aterworks See also Public utilities reports. BRUSH, WILLIAM W. Obsolescence in water works equipment and operating methods. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1936, p. 207-13. MUNICIPAL finance officers association of the United States and Canada and the American water works association. Depreciation. (In their Manual of water works accounting. c1938. p. 217-26.) PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 13. Re Jamaica water supply co. p. 420. Average life years Wells: in steam station no. 3 22.9 in electric stations Power and pumping structures: Stucco building at steam station no. 3 Electric stations Purification buildings 25.0 23.2 40.0 45.0 Standpipes 50.0 Office buildings Shop, garage and store bldgs.: Coal storage building at steam station no. 1 Brick building at steam station no. 2 Trestle with side track and concrete piers at steam station no. 2 Other buildings Boiler plant equipment Electric pumping equipment: Discharge lines used for electric station 24 Other equipment Steam pumping equipment Office buildings 50.0 50.0 50.0 34.0 50.0 27.5 60.0 25.0 22.8 35.0 35.0 Steam pumping equipment Oil pumping equipment Purification system Distribution mains: Under 4" 25.0 4" 6" 8" 10" 12" 14" 30.0 50.0 60.0 60.0 65.0 70.0 70.0 16" 18" 20" 70.075.075.0 24″ 35.0 35.0 Consumers' meters installation Hydrants Office equipment 45.0 15.0 Transportation and garage equipment Miscellaneous general equipment 6.0 12.0 Distribution mains: 50.0 6" pipe 8" pipe 60.0 50.0 Services Hydrants 45.0

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE-Waterworks-(Continued)

PEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND OBSOLESCENCE—Waterworks—(Continued)
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 14. Annual allowance for depreciation of a water utility on the 4 per cent sinking-fund basis was sustained on appeal. Re Scranton-spring brook water service co. v. Public service commission (Pa. super. ct.) p. 73.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 14. Depreciation rate of .74 per cent of the depreciated cost of water utility property was used in determining the reasonableness of rates. Herr v. Lancaster suburban water co. (Pa.) p. 369.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Depreciation allowance of 1 per cent was held to be adequate and ample in the case of a water plant. Blytheville v. Blytheville water co. (Ark.) p. 177.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1936. v. 15. Depreciation rate of 2 per cent for water property was approved. Publics REPORTS, 1937. v. 17. Allowance of 1 per cent was made for depreciation expense of a water utility. Revice commission v. Missouri pub. service co. (W.O.) p. 1.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1937. v. 18. Depreciation allowance of 1 per cent was held to be fair and reasonable for a water utility. Presque Isle water co. v. Itself. (Maine) p. 383.
PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, 1938. v. 24. Water utility was allowed 1 per cent on the rate base for a depreciation reserve. South Berwick water co. v. itself. (Me.), p. 409.
SCHWARTZ, WILLIAM J. Preparation and uses of a list of retirement units. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1623-26.
WEAR and tear allowances—Water undertakings. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 379; April 29, 1939, p. 161. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 22. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 311. p. 311.

| DEPRECIATION schedule. B | Buildings and | building management, | Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years | % |
|--|---------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------|
| Building appurtenances: Wells, deep | | | 15 | 6 ² /3 |
| Wood working machinery DEPRECIATION schedule. E | Buildings and | building management, | Jan. 16, 1939, p. 32. Years | % |

Miscellaneous: Wood working machinery 20

- DEPRECIATION for a plant using composite rates. Seeber, Carl L.
- DEPRECIATION for electric, water, and gas utili-ties. Rattray, William.
- **DEPRECIATION** in financial statements. Saliers, Earl
- DEPRECIATION in utility accounts. (Correspondence) Horne, Henry A.
- DEPRECIATION in utility accounts. (Editori Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 241-3. (Editorial)
- **DEPRECIATION** of electric dodgems and surfo-planes (rubber) Australian accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 104-5.

DEPRECIATION of machinery and equipment in manufacturing costs. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 177-8.

- DEPRECIATION of motor buses. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1232-4.)
- DEPRECIATION of real property in educational institutions. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- DEPRECIATION policy in manufacturing indus-tries. National association of cost accountants. Research and service department.
- DEPRECIATION principles and applications. Saliers, Earl A.
- **DEPRECIATION** rates as used and considered fair by laundryowners and average rates allowed by federal treasury department. American institute of laundering, inc.
- DEPRECIATION should be charged on a straightline basis and should not vary with the volume of production—a debate. Dawson, C. O., Metz-ger, Adrian and Hammond, James E.
- DEPRECIATION the enigma of accounting. Finan-cial world, May 25, 1938, p. 5-6, 30.

DEPRESSION

See Business cycles.

de ROOVER, RAYMOND Characteristics of bookkeeping before Accounting review, June 1938, p. 144-9. Something new about Jan Ympyn Chri Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937; p. 657-8. Paciolo. Christoffels.

5

- DESAULNIERS, MARCEL L., joint author See Tawney, H. G. and Desaulniers, Marcel L.
- DESIGNATIONS, DEGREES, ETC. MISUSE of professional designation. Accountant, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 29-30.
- DESIRABILITY of a natural business year—Efforts to induce reform. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1936, p. 2-4.
- DETAILS of profit sharing plan for employees of mining company. Controller, Jan. 1937, p. 13-15.
- DETERMINATION of depreciation and obsolescence policy. American management association.
- DETERMINATION of earnings and dividends un-der federal tax law. Byerly, F. P.
- DETERMINATION of prevailing minimum wages under the public contracts act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 610-33.
- **DETROIT** experiment; small buses come to town in a big way. Bus transportation, Dec. 15, 1936, p. 540-3.

DETWILER, E. M. Control of maintenance expenditures. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 73-7. Presentation of cost information to foremen. Cost expenditures. Cost and and management, Dec. 1937, p. 314-8.

DEUTSCHER, H. H. Margin requirements for customers' acco L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1937, p. 13-7. accounts.

DEVELOPMENT COMPANIES See Real estate.

- DEVELOPMENT COSTS See Cost and factory accounting-Development costs.
- DEVELOPMENTS in accounting theory and prac-tice since 1929; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 179-204.)

DeVITT, JOHN H. Accounting procedure for capital assets and de-preciation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 139-60.)

DEW, E. RODERICK

Share-pushers and the law. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 559-63.

DeWET, J. P.

Mining taxation in Manitoba. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 338-40.

DEWEY, DIX D.

Reminder of some of your 1938 taxes compiled for the Elgin association of commerce. Elgin, 111., Elgin association of commerce, January 13, 1938. 2p.

- DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS, joint author See Bonneville, Joseph Howard and Dewey, Llovd Ellis.

DEWHURST, J. FREDERIC Does distribution cost too much? (In Boston cham-ber of commerce. Retail board. Boston confer-ence on distribution, 1939, p. 46-9.)

DeYOUNG, CHRIS A. Budgeting in public schools. Garden City, N. Doubleday, Doran & co., inc., c1936. 610p. N.Y.,

DIAKONOFF, V. A. Accounting in the U.S.S.R. Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1937, p. 100-8. Indian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 7-12.

DIAMOND, HERBERT M., editor See Ettinger, Richard P. and Golieb, David E.

DIAMOND, Z. N. and LETZLER, ALFRED New Frazier-Lemke act: a study. Columbia law review, Nov. 1937, p. 1092-1135.

DIAMOND T. MONTREAL LIMITED V. JAMES G. ROSS ET AL AND FRANK B. WADSWORTH ACTION alleging negligence against auditors dis-missed; Diamond T. Montreal limited v. James G. Ross et al. and Frank B. Wadsworth. *Canadian chartered accountant*, Sept. 1939, p. 205-7. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434.

DICK, KENNETH ANDREW

Study of institutional accounting for fixed assets; a thesis presented in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of master of science in business of the University of Idaho graduate school. 1938. 48 typewritten pages.

DICKERSON, THOMAS M.

Municipal accounting. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 12, section 1, p. 609-24.)

DICKERSON, THOMAS M., joint author See Traylor, Orba F. and Dickerson, T. M.

DICKERSON, WILLIAM E. 1935 supplement to Ohio C.P.A. problems and solutions; statement of and solutions to the practical accounting problems given by the Ohio state board of accountancy on the May and November, 1935 examinations. Columbus, Ohio, Ohio state university book store, c1936. not naged not paged. 1936 supplement. c1937. not paged.

DICKINSON, FRANK G. AND EAKIN, FRANZY Balance sheet of the nation's economy. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, College of commerce and business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. (Bulletin no. 54.) 35p.

DICKINSON, Z. CLARK

Compensating industrial effort; scientific study of

work and wages. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 479p.

DICKINSON LECTURES PURPOSES of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 74-6.

DICKMAN, KERMIT S., joint author See Davis, Harry Leo and Dickman, Kermit S.

DICTAPHONES See Mechanical devices.

DIBBLE, FRANK W.

Over-allowances as related to the Illinois retailers' occupation (sales) tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 79-82, 110-3.

DIES

Cost accounting ost accounting AMORTIZING cost of special tools, dies and patterns. (Questions and answers) New York National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 2-Forum section-p. 1264-5.)

DIFFERENCES in cost as a basis for price differ-entials. Greer, Howard C.

DIGEST of state laws relating to inheritance and estate taxes, 1938. United States. Census, Bureau of

DILLEY, MERRILL B.

Innovations in teaching elementary accounting. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, March 1936, p. 79-82.

DILLON, W. ROY

Wills and executorships in the province of Quebec. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 86-94.

DIMENSION PLANTS See Lumber industry.

DINGLE, G. R. M. Value of cost data to management. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 343-6.

DINSDALE, D. H. Farming costs. Cost accountant, May 1936, p. 360-6.

DIRECT confirmation of receivables. P service bulletin, Sept. 1939, p. 1, 3, 6. Pathfinder

DIRECT COSTS See Cost and factory accounting-Direct costs.

DIRECT-MAIL SELLING See Mail-order business.

DIRECTORIES

 JIRECTORIES

 PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION CLEARING

 HOUSE. Directory of organizations in the field of public administration. Chicago, Ill., Public. administration clearing house, 1936. 179p.

 UNITED STATES Congress. Official congres-sional directory for the use of the United States congress, first edition, corrected to De-cember 21, 1935. Washington, D.C., Government printing office, 1935. 774p.

 ______Same, corrected to Dec. 20, 1936. 752p.

 ______Same, corrected to Dec. 20, 1938. 794p.

 ______Same, corrected to Dec. 20, 1938. 794p.

 ______Same, corrected to Dec. 19, 1939. 819p.

DIRECTORS

See Corporations-Directors.

DIRECTORY of organizations in the field of public administration. Public administration clearing house.

DIRKS, GEORGE L. Lubrication on incentive. Factory m and maintenance, Oct. 1938, p. 77-9. management DISBURSEMENTS

- DISBURSEMENTS
 MINICH, HENRY D. Safeguarding disbursement of funds. Controller, Sept. 1939, p. 314-6.
 PATON, W. A. Receipts and disbursements. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 231-55.)
 ROWE, LOUIS G. Internal control of operating disbursements. Controller, April 1939. p. 129-22 150.
- 32, 150.
- DISCLOSURE of bank loan on audit report. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 43-4.
- DISCLOSURE of borrowings on balance-sheet of stock broker. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 228-9.
- DISCLOSURES on corporation balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 112.
- DISCOUNT
- NDERSEN, ARTHUR. Present-day problems affecting the presentation and interpretation of financial statements; address delivered at the annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, Boston, Massachusetts, October 15, 1935. New York, American institute of accoun-tants (1936). 15p. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 168-73. ANDERSEN,

- spondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1933, p. 197.
 KREBS, WILLIAM SAMUEL. Treatment of commercial discount. Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 6-7.
 LASHINS, IVAN R. Robinson-Patman act and quantity discounts. Credit executive, June 1937, p. 172-4.
- duantity discounts, or the second sec
- Interest and discounts. (In their elementary accounting. c1936. p. 229-49.) OSTLUND, H. J. Robinson-Patman act and quan-tity discounts. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 402-9.
- PATON, WILLIAM A. Sales discounts and ad-justments—Notes and bills discounted. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 333-55; 449-
- Essentials of accounting, 1900, p. 165.) PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Interest, discount and insurance. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937, p. 114-7.) RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Retail method of inventory. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1939, p. 372. TREATMENT of discount on sale of stock. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 295-6.

Bond

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Accounting re-search bulletin, no. 2.)
 BANKS, CHARLES. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 59-61.
 BAUMANN, H. P., editor. Reply to question on amortization of bond discount. (Students' depart-ment) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 305-6.
- 305-6. CAFFYN.

- 305-6.
 CAFFYN, HAROLD R. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1937, p. 223.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, May 1937, p. 377-80; Aug. 1937, p. 133-8.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. S.E.C. release no. 10. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 179-80.
 FREEMAN, HERBERT C. Unamortized discount and premium on bonds refunded. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 397-9.
- and premium on bonds retunded. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 397-9.
 KLUG, V. CHILDS. Accounting treatment of unamortized discount and premium in utility refunding operations. (reprinted from the Journal of land and public utility economics, Nov. 1936.)
 LASSALLE, L. L. Question on unamortization of bond discount. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-5.
 LITTLE, ARTHUR S. Treatment of discount correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 185-6.
 LITTLE, ARTHUR S. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 216-23.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Treatment of bond discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 216-23.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Presentation of bond discount. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 285-90.
 OULESTION and answer on bond discount (St.

- 285-90
- 285-90. QUESTION and answer on bond discount. (Stu-dents' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-6. REYNOLDS, A. F. Treatment of bond discount. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 272.
- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 272.
 UNAMORTIZED debt discount, expense and premiums on bonds refunded. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 473-4. Erratum. Sept. 1936, p. 229.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 10, (unamortized bond discount and expense applicable to bonds which, prior to maturity, have been retired out of the proceeds of a sale of capital) Washington, D.C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 YORK, THOMAS. Treatment of bond discount. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 121.
- 1939, p. 121.

DISCUSSION of goodwill. Cloake, T. Reginald.

- DISCUSSION of papers presented on "Extensions of auditing procedure." New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 90-6.
- DISCUSSION of proper basis for quarterly reports. Bulletin of the American institute of accoun-tants, April 1936, p. 14-5.
- DISCUSSION on non-profit institutions accounting; round table meeting. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 110-6.
- DISMISSAL of action against auditors, (from Man-chester guardian.) Accountant, March 28, 1936, p. 480-1, 508-10.

DISNEY, WESLEY E. Depletion allowance. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 262-6, 268.

DISPENSARIES See Hospitals.

- DISPOSITION of variances from standard. Wood, Clifford G.
- DISPROPORTIONATE tax law. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 1-2.
- DISSOLUTION

See Liquidations and receiverships.

DISTILLERIES

Accounting SHAIR, LEONARD HAIR, LEONARD A. Accounting control for the independent distillery. *Mida's criterion*, Oct. 1939, p. 5-6, 14-7; Nov. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-3; Dec. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-5.

Cost accounting SHAIR, LEONARD A. Accounting control for the independent distillery. *Mida's criterion*, Oct. 1939, p. 5-6, 14-7; Nov. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-3; Dec. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-5.

DISTRIBUTION

See also Marketing. See also Marketing. BOSTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE. Retail trade board and others. Boston conference on distribution. Boston, Mass., Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board, 1937. 92p. and charts.

- commerce. Retail trade board, 1937. 92p. and charts.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Trend in taxes on distribution. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution, 1937, p. 15-8.)
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Essentials of distribution. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936, 588p.
 DEWHURST, J. FREDERIC. Does distribution cost too much? (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution. 1939, p. 46-9.)
 KNAUTH, OSWALD W. Reshaping distribution to modern economy. Cost and management, June-July 1939, p. 196-203.
 REITELL, CHARLES. Applying standard costs and budgets to distribution. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book. 1937, p. 228-50.)
 STERNER, NILS A. Co-ordination of production and distribution. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 295-300.
 WERNE, BENJAMIN, ed. Business and the Robinson-Patma law; a symposium. New York, Oxford university press, 1938. 296p.

- DISTRIBUTION cost accounting for wholesaling, by Herbert F. Taggart. United States. Com-merce, Department of. Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce.
- **DISTRIBUTION** cost analysis by commodities. Engle, Nathaniel H.
- DISTRIBUTION cost analysis under the Robinson-Patman act; discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 217-48.)

- DISTRIBUTION COSTS See also Selling expenses.
 BLOCKER, JOHN G. Budgeting in relation to distribution cost accounting. Lawrence, Kansas, University of Kansas, School of business, Jan. 1937. 79p. (Kansas studies in business no. 18.)
 CURLE, J. A. Distribution costing, with special reference to the tobacco and printing trades. Cost accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 132-9.
 DISTRIBUTION cost analysis under the Robin-son-Patman act; discussion. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 217-48.)

 - ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 217-48.) ENGLE, NATHANIEL H. Distribution cost analysis by commodities. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston confer-ence on distribution, 1937. p. 46-52.) Same. 9 mimeographed pages. ENGLE, NATHANIEL H. Distribution costs—

too high or p. 19-21, 59. or too low! Commerce, Dec. 1937,

- p. 19-21, 59.
 FLORENCE, P. SARGANT. Costs of small and large scale distribution. Accountant, Feb. 8, 1936, p. 206-9.
 GREER, HOWARD C. Distribution costs as factors in pricing policy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 1, p. 263-81.)

- (N.A.C.A. Duntering, C. L., Marken, Ma 21.)
- 21.)
 XASSANDER, A. R. Standard costs, and as supplement: Distribution costs. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1939, p. 1-16.
 KLEINHAUS, H. I. Distribution costs as a factor in business recovery. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1936,
- National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1936, p. 23, 46.
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Control of distribution cost. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 227-54.)
 LYMAN, JOHN R. Distribution cost-foundations of efficiency. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution, 1939. p. 64-6.)
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Selling and distributing costs. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 112-8.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY. Policyholders service bureau. Accounting

- METRÓPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Accounting for distribution costs. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. (1939). 42p.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Methods of determining distribution costs. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1933. rev. 1935. 200

- PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Methods of determining distribution costs. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1933. rev. 1935. 29p.
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Distribution costs. (In his Cost accounting, principles and practice. 1938, p. 590-617.)
 NIELSEN, A. C. Continuous marketing research —a vital factor in controlling distribution costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book. 1936, p. 220-55.)
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Effects of labor regulation on the cost of distribution and prices of goods. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution, 1937, p. 25-8.)
 PROBLEMS of distribution costs. Cost accountant, March 1936, p. 315-7.
 REITELL, CHARLES. Application of standard costs to distribution. New York, National association of cost accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 170-5.)
 REITELL, CHARLES. Standard costs in the field of distribution. New York, National association of cost accountants. (In American institute of accountants, papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 170-5.)
 REITELL, CHARLES. Standard costs in the field of distribution costs. (In their Cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 20, no. 3, sec. 1, p. 159-64.) principles and methods. 1937. p. 326-77.)
 SABIN, R. M. Standard distribution costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 18, no. 8, section 1, p. 417-26.)
 SAUNDERS, PHILIP. Approach to problem of finding unit costs of distribution. Controller, Aug. 1938, p. 225-9, 240.
 SAWFER, ALBERT E. Control of distribution costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938, p. 189-213.)
 SCHOENFELDT, LEE. Control of distribution costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 256-76.)

DISTRIBUTION COSTS—(Continued)

- DISIRIBUTION COSTS—(Continued)
 SELLING and distribution costs. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 32-6.
 SIM, A. S. M. Selling and distribution expenses. Cost accountant, April 1939, p. 332-8.
 STONE, G. C. Selling and distribution costs. Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 280-9. Indian accountant, March 1938, p. 134-45.
 SURVEYS distribution costs; Twentieth century fund finds 59 cents out of consumer's dollar goes for distribution, Credit and financial man-agement, Nov. 1939, p. 9-11, 30.
 TITUS, WALTER F. Analysis of selling and distributing costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 222-8.)
 TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND. Conclusions and recommendations of the committee on dis-tribution of the Twentieth century fund. (re-printed from Does distribution cost too much? A review of the costs involved in current marketing methods and a program for improve-ment.) New York, Twentieth century fund, c1939. p. 333-67.
 TYRRELL, S. C. Cost accounting for distribution and selling. Cost and management, Jan. 1938, p. 16-9.
 TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution. Cost accounting for

- and selling. Cost and management, Jan. 1938, p. 16-9.
 TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution. Cost accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 127-35, discussion, p. 138-47; Oct. 1938, p. 125-30, appendices and report of discussion, p. 131-59.
 TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution—stage 2; paper submitted at seventeenth national cost conference, Institute of cost and works accountants, Central Hotel, Glasgow, 8th-10th September, 1938. London, Institute of cost and works accountants, 1938. 23p.
 UNITED STATES. Commerce, Department of. Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce. Distribution cost accounting for wholesaling, by Herbert F. Taggart. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 86p. (Domestic commerce series no. 106.)
 Excerpts. (In Heckert J. Brooks. Analysis and control of distribution costs. c1940. p. 389-95.)
- 95.)
- **DISTRIBUTION** costs as factors in pricing policy. Greer, Howard C.
- DISTRIBUTION of hard fibre cordage, By Howard T. Lewis. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.
- DISTRIBUTION of selling and administrative expenses. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 2, 3-4.
- DISTRIBUTION of surplus. Maclean, Joseph B. and Marshall, Edward W.

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA INSTITUTE OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bulletin (official organ) Classification of accountancy services. Supplement to the Bulletin, vol. 2, no. 1. 4p. Directory of members, January 1936. 15p. ______Same, August 1937. 19p. Year book, 1938-1939. 28p.

- DITTO, INC. HARRISON, E. G. Ditto, inc. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 224-6.)
- DIVETT, S. J. Budgetary control in industry. Australian ac-countant, Aug. 1938, p. 25-30.
- DIVIDEND announcements. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 128.
- DIVIDENDS
 - ACCOUNTING for treasury stock and payment of dividends from capital surplus. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 74-6.

- ANDERSON, HAROLD C. Taxability of dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 74.8, 120.
 AUSTIN, MAURICE. Liquidating dividends as distributions of earnings and profits. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 4-6, 39.
 AVAILABILITY of reserves for dividend. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 8945.
 BUCHER, F. N. Taxation of dividends. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 23, 1939, p. 353-5.
 BYERLY, F. P. Determination of earnings and dividends under federal tax law. Journal of accountant, y June 26, 1938, p. 17-28.
 CAPITAL and dividends; Brown v. Gaumont British picture corporation, limited. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 277-80.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Dividends as affecting net income. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937, p. 2113-28.)
 dePAULA, F. R. M. Treatment of dividends in Principles of auditing. 1939.
 p. 201-14.)
 dePAULA, F. R. M. Treatment of dividends in Principles of Auditants.

- dend. (In his *Principles* , p. 201-14.) dePAULA, F. R. M. Treatment of dividends in accounts; one view. *Accountancy*, Oct. 1938, p. 4-5. DIVIDEND
- announcements. Accountancy, Jan.
- 1939, p. 128. DIVIDENDS on investment. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p.

- DIVIDENDS on investment. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 1154-5.
 DIVIDENDS paid during construction. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 117-9.
 DORIS, LILLIAN, AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Dividends. (In their Corporate secretary's manual and guide, 1936, p. 1001-75.)
 FIELD, KENNETH. Dividend policies. (In his Corporation finance, c1938, p. 442-63.)
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Surplus and dividend policies. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936, p. 560-606.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Allocation of dividend to income. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 232-5.
 HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Corporate entity faction and accounting theory. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 232-5.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Corporate surplus, dividends, and reserves. (In his Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 241-53.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Corporate dividends, in tractation of intercorporate dividends, and reserves. (In his Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 2439-43.)
 KEHL, DONALD. Origin and early development of American dividend law. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939, p. 366-79.
 KESTER, ROY B. Corporate surplus and dividends. (In his Principles of accounting review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 51-61.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Business profits as a legal basis for dividends. Tharvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 51-61.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Texation of intercorporate dividends. (In his Accounting review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 51-61.
 MAINS, RAYMOND L. Surplus-Dividends. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 152-66.)
 MILLER, ROBERT N. Taxation of intercorporate dividends. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 152-66.)
 MILLER, NOBERT N. Taxation of intercorporate dividends. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 152-66.)

- 152-66.) MILLER, ROBERT N. Taxation of intercorporate dividends. (In National tax association. Pro-ceedings, 1938. p. 430-8.) Taxes—the tax maga-sine, March 1939, p. 150-1, 183-4. MUSGRAVE, WALTER ALEXANDER. Surplus and dividends. Connecticut C.P.A., April 1939, p. 24
- p. 2.4. NATURE of surplus after payment of dividends. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 62-3. Treatment of dividends
- July 1937, p. 62-3. NELSON, BERTRAM. Treatment of dividends in accounts;-the other view. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 5-6.
- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Surplus and dividends. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939. p. 354-71.)

DIVIDENDS—(Continued)

- DIVIDENDS-(Continued)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Dividends and surplus. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 31; 1938. p. 693-715.)
 SAGE, GEORGE H. Dividend policy and business contingencies. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 245-52.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, AND MOORE, UNDERHILL. Dividends. (In their statement of accounting principles, 1938. p. 45-52.)
 SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Dividend policy under the undistributed profits tax. Commercial and functiol. know, 13, 1936, p. 671, 677.
 SILVERMAN, NATHANIEL. Stock redemption and taxable dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 82-4, 95-6, 115.
 STANDARD STATISTICS COMPANY, INC. Daily dividend service. New York, Standard statistics company, inc. 1939, loose-leaf.
 STATUTORY prescription of dividends. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 115-9.
 STANDARD MARCHARD. J. Some considerations affecting the payment of dividends. L.R.B. & M. J. WINCER RICHARD. Some considerations affecting the payment of dividends. L.R.B. & M. J. WARTER RICHARD. Some considerations affecting the payment of dividends. L.R.B. & M. J. WARTER RICHARD. David policies during the depression. Dun's review, April 1938, p. 7.12.
 TREATMENT of dividends. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy. Dec. 1937. p.

- TREATMENT of dividends. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 455-9
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 5. ("treatment of dividends on a corporation's own capital stock held in sinking fund") Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May
- capital stock held in SINKING FARM D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial state-ments) Washington D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeo-graphed pages. VanARSDELL, PAUL M. Problems of corporate-surplus administration. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 275-85.

- surplus administration. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 275-85.
 WANSLEY, RAYMOND M., AND ELDRED, WILFRED. How will dividends affect principal stockholders? Profit, Dec. 1936, p. 3.
 YOUNG, N. S. Payment of arrears of dividends on preference shares after liquidation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 105-13.

- Stock ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Undistributed profits tax and stock dividends and stock rights. Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 414-22. Re-printed 11p. KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Accounting for stock dividends paid. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 369-85.

 - Barting Technology (1997)
 Barti
 - 238-55

 - 238-55. KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Stock dividends in trust distributions. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 93-104. KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Taxability of stock dividends under federal and state laws. Ac-counting review, Dec. 1936, p. 373-87.
 - MITH, J. DUKE. Federal taxation of stock dividends when received and their cost basis when sold; an exploration of the important decisions and rulings covering the taxability of dividends and their cost basis when disposed of. *Tax magazine*, Oct. 1937, p. 593-6, 626. SMITH.

STOCK dividends and the tax on undistributed

profits. (from the Utah C.P.A.) Certified pub-lic accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 20-2. TRAYLOR, ORBA F. Critique of Koshland v. Helvering. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 453-4,

- Heivering. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 453-4, 492, 504. TRAYLOR, ORBA F., AND DICKERSON, THOMAS M. Allocation of stock dividends; chaotic state of trust accounting law under Pennsylvania rule. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 697-701.
- **'IDENDS** on investment. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 154-5. DIVIDENDS
- DIVIDENDS paid during construction. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 117-9

DIVIDENDS to pay. Kennedy, E. D.

DIVISION of joint rates and the Baltimore and Ohio case. Yale law journal, March 1937, p. 811-32.

DIORUP, CHRISTIAN

Uniform trust receipt. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 185-203, discus-sion, p. 203-7.

DOBRINER, HERMANN GEORG Outline of Germany's experience in taxing persons with small incomes. Bulletin of the National tax association, Dec. 1939, p. 66-81.

DOCKS

See Wharves.

DOCTORS

See Physicians.

- DODD, E. MERRICK
 - Amending the securities act—the American bar association committee's proposals. Yale law journal, Dec. 1935, p. 199-225.
- DODGE, CHESTER J. AND SULLIVAN, JOHN F. Estate administration and accounting. New York, New York university, The authors, 1937. 522p.

DOE, GILBERT A.

Revenue and expense statistics in a brokerage office. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 212-17.

DOFFORT, A. OLIN

DOEPKE, F. C. H. Country bank's bond portfolio. Bur ing house, Oct. 1938, p. 10-2, 26-7. Burroughs clear-

See American management association.

DOG RACING See Race-tracks.

DOHR, JAMES L.

- Counting review, March 1938, p. 77-80. Capital and surplus in the corporate balance sheet. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 38-42. Comments on "A statement of accounting prin-ciples." Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 316-8.

DOLBY, CHARLES M.

- Insolvency, Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 399-405, discussion, p. 405-6. Ac-countant, Sept. 1936, p. 395-400. Organization of an accountant's office. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, Itd., 1938. 112p.

DOLGE, WILLIAM

- Professional accountant's approach to corporation's annual statement. Controller, July 1937, p. 197-9.
 "Your highness: the auditor is here for the semi-annual check-up." California certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 1, 4.
- DOLL, WILL Outline of cost procedure in paint manufacture. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, June 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 20, section 1, p. 1161-72.)

DOLLIVER, E. P.

- COLLIVER, E. P.
 Coördinating production and inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 90-100.) Printed with: Wibbelsman, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods.
 Finished goods. inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 12, section 1, p. 767-79.)
 Production and cost control in the manufacture of cutlery. New York National, association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 2, section 1, p. 93-109.)

DOMENECH, FERNANDO J. Examination questions. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 382.

OMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED AC-COUNTANTS DOMINION

- COUNTANTS Inventory valuation of public manufacturing com-panies; memorandum regarding roundtable dis-cussion at annual meeting in Saskatoon, August 1939, Canadian chartered accountant, August 1939, p. 116-20. Provincial taxation respecting corporations and individuals; a summary prepared by the Domin-ion association of chartered accountants. Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountants, cl936. Not naged. c1936. Not paged. amendments to and including 1937.

Not paged.

-amendments to and including 1939. Not paged.

- paged.
 amendments to and including 1939. Not paged.
 Round table discussion at the annual meeting—Should the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders be changed? A summary prepaved by Kenneth W. Dalglish. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 453-61.
 Should the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders be changed? Memorandum on roundtable discussion, 25th August, 1938, at Halifax. Nova Scotia. Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountants, 1938. 8p.
 Terminology department. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 62-5; Aug. 1937, p. 248; Nov. 1937, p. 404-7; Dec. 1937, p. 476-82; Jan. 1938, p. 57-60; March 1938, p. 208-10; April 1938, p. 257-7; Oct. 1938, p. 455-60; Sept. 1938, p. 476-8; Jan. 1939, p. 67-9; Feb. 1939, p. 145-7; March 1939, p. 255.7; Oct. 1938, p. 476-8; Jan. 1939, p. 045-5; Mov. 1939, p. 378-80; June 1939, p. 36-7; May 1939, p. 378-80; June 1939, p. 453-4; July 1939, p. 36-7; May 1939, p. 69-71; Aug. 1939, p. 345-8; Nov. 1939, p. 453-4; July 1939, p. 36-7; May 1939, p. 378-80; June 1939, p. 453-4; July 1939, p. 69-71; Aug. 1939, p. 453-4; July 1939, p. 36-7; May 1939, p. 373-5; Dec. 1939, p. 444-6.
 Yearbook, 1936-1937. Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountants, 1936. 251p.
 Same, 1937-38. 260p.
 Same, 1938-39. 274p.
 Same, 1938-39. 274p.
 Same, 1938-39. 274p.
 Same, 1938-39. 274p.
 Committee on accounting terminology. Accounting terminology for Canadian chartered accountant, 1936. 251p.
 Same, 1939-30. 282p.
 Committee on accounting terminology. Accounting terminology for Canadian chartered accountant).
 Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountant, June 1938. Loose-leaf.
 DOMINION of Canada companies act, 1935. Canadian

- DOMINION of Canada companies act, 1935. Canadian correspondent.
- DOMINION of Canada income war tax act. Commerce clearing house, inc.

DONALD, W. COUTTS

Costing as an aid to price fixing. Cost accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 240-5, discussion, p. 246-58.

- - 347-50. Municipal accounting. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chap-ter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1938.
 - p. 45-51.)
 Tax advantages of the natural business year. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 5, section 2, p. 285-6.)

DONATIONS
 FAGEANT, LEONARD WILLIAM. Gifts to institutions; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York, certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 97-104. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1938, p. 14-23.

DONLEY, W. G. Effect of monetary policy upon business. National auditgram, June 1938, p. 5-7, 12-4.

DONOVAN, TERENCE Beginner's approach to the study of income tax and death duties. *Incorporated accountants' journal*, Oct. 1937, p. 9-13, discussion, p. 13-4.

DONOVAN, W. LEONARD Merit-rating study. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 110-22.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies.

DORAU, HERBERT B. Impact of economics on accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 26-8, 39.

DORGAN, VINCENT J. AND OTHERS Clinic in accounting practice; presented at a meet-ing of the Connecticut society of C.P.A.'s, held March 30, 1937, at New Haven. Certified pub-lic accountant, June 1937, p. 2-14.

DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Corporate secretary's manual and guide; a manual of legal principles involved in corporate organ-ization and management and a guide to corporate procedure with forms. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 1528p.

DOUBLE-ENTRY

See Bookkeeping, Double-entry.

DOUBLE TAXATION See Taxation—Double; also under various countries.

DOUBLE taxation and the United States. Ac-countant, tax supplement, April 3, 1937, p. 132.

DOUBMAN, J. RUSSELL Principles of retail merchandising. New• York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 213p. (Amer-ican business fundamentals.)

DOUGALL, HERBERT E. AND DAUER, ERNST A. One hundred short problems in corporation finance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 78p.

DOUGHERTY, J. JAY Certain aspects of public utility accounting of interest to the public accountant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 17-21.

DOUGHERTY, JOSEPH

How to prevent defalcations and embezzlements. National auditgram, Sept. 1937, p. 8, 13.

DOUGLAS, THORNTON G. Organization of staff. (In American institute of accountants, *Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects.* 1939, p. 181-3.)

- DOUGLAS, WILLIAM O. Address before the Bond club of Hartford, Hartford club, Hartford, Connecticut, Friday, Jan. 7, 1938. Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, 1938. 8 mimeographed change pages.
 - pages.
 Address before the Foundation for the advance-ment of the social sciences, Denver, Colo., June 22, 1938. Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages.
 Improvement in federal procedure for corporate reorganizations. American bar association journal, Nov. 1938, p. 875-9.

DOUGLAS social credit system. Corporate accoun-tant, Jan. 1936, p. 5-7.

DOUGLAS THEORY

See Social credit.

DOVER, VICTOR

War risks insurance. Accountancy, March 1939, p. 203-5.

DOWNIE, L. W.

control. (in Year Payroll accounting and labor control. National association of cost accountants. book, 1937, p. 101-22.)

DOWNS, H. C. Taxation of co-operative dairy associations in Queensland. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 38-41.

DOWNS, L. McCARTHY

Auditing control of state revenues and expendi-tures. (In National association of state auditors, comptrollers and treasurers. Report of the twenty-second annual convention. 1937. p. 89-92.)

DOWNS, W. S., joint author See Breed, C. B., and others.

DOWRIE, GEORGE W.

Branch banking situation and outlook. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 411-23.

DOYING, GEORGE E.

Municipal electric plants and unemployment. Pub-lic utilities fortnightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 473-9. Need the power industry fear federal competition? Public utilities fortnightly, March 3, 1938, p. 281-5.

DOYLE. NORMAN

Executorship law; rule as to lapsed share of residue. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 211-3.

DRAFTS

BENNETT, GEORGE E. Notes, bills of exchange and drafts. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 147-56.)

DRAPERIES

See Curtains, draperies, etc.

DRESS SHOPS

See Clothing trade.

DRESSES

See Clothing.

- DRISCOLL, JOHN J., JR.
 Fundamentals of trust department cost analysis. Trust companies, Feb. 1936, p. 156-60.
 Internal auditing of banks. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1, p. 1121-38.) Printed with: Waldow, Ottmar A. Duties and responsibilities of a bank auditor.
 Profitable fee basis for trust services; develop-ing rate structures based on local costs analysis. Trust companies, Nov. 1936, p. 591-7.

DRISCOLL, JOSEPH A. Highlights in stock brokerage accounting. Ac-counting forum, May 1939, p. 33-5, 42.

DRISCOLL, ROBERT S. "Last-in, first-out" inventory values advantageous in present price outlook. Annalist, Oct. 5, 1939, p. 429-30.

DROP FORGING

See Forging.

DRUG MANUFACTURE Budgeting

udgetting BUDGETING research costs. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 2, p. 901-5.)

DRUG store bookkeeping. Wein, Charles.

DRUG TRADE

- MCONTINUE
 MILLER, NELSON A., AND MESEROLE, W.
 H. Departmental accounting in drug stores, based upon the St. Louis drug store survey. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 534-43.) Printed with: Kleinhaus, H. I. Uniform accounting procedure as an aid in reducing retail operating costs.
 WEIN, CHARLES. American druggist's complete short course in drug store bookkeeping. New York, American druggist, no date. 12p.
 WEIN, CHARLES. Drug store bookkeeping. (reprinted from American druggist) New York, The author (1936). 12p. Accounting

 - The author (1936), 12p.

Statistics

- tatistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of drug stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 77, 77a, 77b.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of drug stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 77, 77a, 77b.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Retail drug stores; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 20, December 1939.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of drug and drug sundries wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3) (1937 ed.—p. 54, 82, 108, 135, 198-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)

DRURY, J. W.

- Advantages of sound costing as applied to public cleansing operations. Cost accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 228-35. Use of costing in financial control and economy. Cost accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 112-8.

DRY-CLEANING

See Cleaning and dyeing.

DRY GOODS

- RY GOODS See also Department stores; Retail trade. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Year book of re-tailing; proceedings of the seventeenth annual convention of the Controllers' congress of the National retail dry goods association, Palmer House, Chicago, III., June 8, 9, 10, 11, 1936. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, June 1936. 185p. ______Same, eighteenth annual convention, June 1937. 1920.
- 192p. 1937. Same, nineteenth annual convention, June 1938. 167p.
- Same, twentieth annual convention, June 1939. 191p.

ccounting BITTER, VINCENT C. A. Presentation of the

DRY GOODS-Accounting-(Continued)

balance sheet manual. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1936. p. 20-2.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Expense manual; a manual of expense accounting for retail stores. New York, Controllers' congress of the National retail dry good association, 1937. 159p.

Auditing

KUECHLER, G. J. Internal audit of refunds. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 10-12. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-

TION. Controllers' congress. Internal audit, a manual for department stores and specialty stores, prepared by the Detroit controllers' group. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 10p.

Cost Accounting WISHART, DON. Allocation of indirect or un-classified expense. Balance sheet, Sept. 1939, p. 6-9.

Costs

osts NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. 1935 depart-mental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores, by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1937. 89p.

-Same, 1936. c1937. 82p.

- . Statistics BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for dry goods—wholesale. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939. p. 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 77, 88, 152.)

 - 152.) BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New Operating yard-sticks for five wholesale trades. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 20.4. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of general merchandise stores (city)—country general stores—dry goods stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 15, 15a, 15b, 15c, 16, 16a, 16b, 17, 17a.) —Analysis of the 1936 operations of city general merchandise stores, country stores, coun-

 - (In their 1936 retail survey, report no. 15, 15a, 15b, 15c, 16, 16a, 16b, 17, 17a.)
 —Analysis of the 1936 operations of city general merchandise stores, country stores, country stores, country stores, country stores, country stores, country stores, and their 1937 retail survey, report nos. 15, 15a, 15b, 15c, 17, 17a, 17b, 18, 18a, 18b, 19.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Dry goods wholesalers; an analysis of operating and merchandising experience for 1937. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., Dec. 1938, 25p, (1938 wholesalers, report no. 3.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Dry goods wholesalers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938, 19, (Natural business year bulletin, no. 8, November 1938.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of dry goods wholesalers, (In his Behimd the scenes of business, 1936, p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3.) (1937 ed.—p. 54, 82, 108, 135, 198-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936, p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his Store of stability, 1937, ed.—p. 242, 92
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA. TION. Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, Jan. 1938, p. 21-2, 92.
 ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. Special trend study in behavior of corporate proportions; wholesale dry goods, 1917-1936; study no. 2. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 60-2, 64-5, 67-8.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen

analysis no. 3, and no. 10. wholesale dry goods. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 177, 257.)

DRY goods wholesalers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

DUANE, W. R. GALT Indirect costs directly applied. Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1936, p. 290-5.

DUCKLES, L. H.

Controlling operations through cost account Food industries, April 1936, p. 169-72, 211. accounting.

DUDDY, EDWARD A. AND OTHERS

Business correspondence and office management. Chicago, Ill., American technical society, c1938. 234p.

DUDLEY, CLAUDE W.

Kefunds of processing taxes under title 7 of the revenue act of 1936. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 518-20, 549-50. "Windfall" tax levy. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 651-3, 695-6.

DUFFIELD, R. W. Terminal costs. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 9-13. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 140-8.

DUKE ENDOWMENT HOSPITAL SECTION

Classification of financial accounts in hospitals. Charlotte, N.C., Duke endowment, hospital section (1939). 20p. and forms.

DULLES, ELEANOR LANSING

Bank for international settlements in recent years. American economic review, June 1938, p. 290-304.

Financial problems of the social security act. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 138-42.)

DUMBRILLE, H. H. Some changes in stock brokerage business. L.R. B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 56-9.

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC.

- VIN AND BRADSTREET, INC.
 Analyzing the record of industrial and commercial failures. Dur's review, Aug. 1937, p. 35-7; Sept. 1937, p. 47-9; Oct. 1937, p. 35-7; Nov. 1937, p. 37-9; Dec. 1937, p. 35-7; Jan. 1938, p. 36-8; Feb. 1938, p. 28-41; March 1938, p. 20-2; April 1938, p. 36-8; May 1938, p. 38-40; Nov. 1938, p. 38-41; Dec. 1938, p. 38-40; Jan. 1939, p. 34-6; Feb. 1939, p. 32-6; March 1939, p. 44-6; April 1939, p. 38-40; March 1939, p. 44-6; April 1939, p. 38-40; May 1939, p. 46-8; June 1939, p. 36-8; July 1939, p. 38-40; Aug. 1939, p. 36-8; Sept. 1939, p. 37-9; Oct. 1939, p. 38-40, Nov. 1939, p. 32-5; Dec. 1939, p. 38-40; p. 38 38-40,
- p. 38-40; Nov. 1939, p. 32-5; Dec. 1939, p. 38-40.
 Automothve and equipment wholesalers; an analysis of operating and merchandising experience for 1937. New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., Nov. 1938, 29p. (1938 wholesale survey, report no. 2.)
 Bulletins on the natural business year; sponsorship and purpose. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938, 19, p. 8-25, 49.
 Current trends in inventories—mid-year survey. Dun's review, Sept. 1939, p. 5-13, 44, 46.
 Dry goods wholesalers; an analysis of operating and merchandising experience for 1937. New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., Deals wholesalers; an analysis of operating figures for 1935. New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., Distance for 1937. New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., Distance for 1937. New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., 1936. 26p.
 1936 retail survey. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1936. 26p.
 1937 retail survey. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1937. loose-leaf.

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC.-(Continued)

Paint and varnish wholesalers; an analysis of operating and merchandising experience for 1937. New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., Oct. 1938. 23p. (1938 wholesale survey, report no. 1.)

- 1.) Survey of business trends, 1935-1937. Dun's review, May 1938, p. 5-28. Survey of business trends, 1938; sales and inven-tories, a preliminary report. Dun's review, April 1939, p. 21-8, 48-9; May 1939, p. 13-24. Survey of taxes paid by business in 1938. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., December 1939, 400. York, Du 1939. 40p.
- preliminary report. Dun's review, April 1939; a Survey
- p. 8-20. Toy manufacturers operating ratios of thirty-one concerns, 1935; prepared for the annual con-vention of toy manufacturers of the U.S.A., inc., December 10-11 (1936). New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1936. 22p.

UN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL DUN

- BUSINESS TEAK COUNCIL
 Candy manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural busi-ness year bulletin, no. 15, July 1939.)
 Cement manufacturers: seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., May 1939. 1p. (Bulletin no. 13.)

- natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., May 1939. 1p. (Bulletin no. 13.)
 Cotton textile weavers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 19, November 1939.)
 Department st. res; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 5, September 1938.)
 Dry goods wholesalers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 8, November 1938.)
 Farm equipment manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 8, November 1938.)
 Farm equipment manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 4, July 1938.)
 Flour millers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 7, November 1938.)
 Furi and vegetable canners; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 14, June 1939.)
 Fur coat manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 1, March 1938.)
 Furniture manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 1, March 1939.)
 Hosiery manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 16, August 1939.)
 Jewelry retailers; seasonal f

- fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 17,
- 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 17, September 1939.)
 Paint, varnish, and lacquer manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and Natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., April 1939. 1p. (Bulletin no. 12.)
 Producers of crude cottonseed oil and refiners of cottonseed oil; natural business year bulletin no. 9, December 1938. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 3p.
 Radic manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun

- ard Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 2, June 1938.)
 Retail drug stores; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 20, December 1939.)
 Shoe manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 4p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 6, October 1938.)
 Women's coat and suit manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939.
 Women's coat and suit manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939.
 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 18, October 1939.)
- D. (Vatural business year builtin, no. 18, October 1939.)
 Women's trimmed hat manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938.
 Ip. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 3, June 1938.)

DUNCAN, DELBERT J. Control of stock shortage in department stores. Harvard business review, Winter number, part 1, 1938, p. 201-10.

DUNCOMBE, FRED J.

Organization of work. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 188-92.)

DUNDON, DANIEL C.

See American management association.

DUNLOP, J. Coinage decimalisation with pence coins. Accoun-countant, March 6, 1937, p. 337-8.

- DUNN, CHARLES WESLEY Five months of the Robinson-Patman act; an address delivered before Trade association execu-tives in New York City on October 27, 1936, and revised as of November 25, 1936. The revision is directed to include additional en-forcement data. New York, New York trade association executives in New York City, 1936. 27 p.
 - 27p.
 Law upon resale price protection; address de-livered at the annual meeting of the Associated grocery manufacturers of America, inc., in New York City, on December 1, 1936. New York, The author, 1936. 29p.
 Supreme court issue; address delivered in New York City on February 17, 1937. 27p.

DUNN, D. S. J. Redeemable preference shares. Accountant, Nov. 20, 1937, p. 703.

DUNN, FRANK A.

Corporations and the revenue act of 1936. Account-ing forum, Nov. 1936, p. 4-5, 13. 1938 corporate income tax. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 20-3. Revenue act of 1939. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 23-5.

DUNN, R

Client, the accountant and hire purchase. Accoun-tant, Nov. 12, 1938, p. 667-70. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 455-61.

DUNNE, HAROLD J. Alexander publishing company. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Papers on accounting prin-ciples and procedure 1938. p. 220-1.)

DUNNIGAN, W. Y. Management cost committees. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 598-600; May 14, 1938, p. 670-3. Measurement of economic factors in costing. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 13-5; July 11, 1936, p. 53-6.

DUNNING, CHARLES A. Currency and credit in Canada. Cana chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 341-65. Canadian

DUNNINGTON, G. H.

Something you should know about selling A/R. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1938, p. A/R. 9-10.

DUNNION, T. J. Accounting for air transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1352-65.) Printed with: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for airplane production.

DUNSMORE, THOMAS Deductions in arriving at profits for income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 283-90.

DUPLICATING DEVICES

See Mechanical devices.

DURKEE, RODNEY S. What is expected of the independent auditor? Controller, Oct. 1939, p. 352-4. What management expects of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939. p. 31-4.)

DURMAN, CHARLES H.

- Accounting for standard costs. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 5-13. Costing for public works. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 159-64. Introduction to the Gantt chart. Cost accountant, July 1936, p. 39-47.

- DURNELL, JAMES F. Cutting the cost of Btu's. Building and building management, May 1938, p. 40-2. Modernizing the heating in a small building. Buildings and building management, June 1938, p. 46-7, 74.
- DUTCH boy business record system for contracting painters. National lead company.

DUTHIE, NORMAN W.

Industrial development in the distressed areas. Accountants' magazine, March 1938, p. 171-84.

DUTIES and powers of independent public accountants' periodic auditing of municipal accounts. Connecticut. Tax commissioner.

- DUTIES and responsibilities of a bank auditor. Waldow, Ottmar A.
- DUTIES of a junior taxman, by one who is. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 527-8.

DUTIES OF ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS See Accountants-Duties and responsibilities.

- DUTIES of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 197.
- DUTIES of auditors; charges of negligence dis-missed. Accountant, Feb. 27, 1937, p. 308-13.
- **TIES** of auditors not standardised. Ce accountants journal, June 1936, p. 170-2. Certified DUTIES of auditors
- DUTIES of auditors; the case of, In re S. P. Catterson and sons, limited. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 326-30.
- DUTY to preserve accounting records. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

DWERRYHOUSE, W. R. Cost accounts for wireless retailers. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1937. 39p.

DYEING AND CLEANING See Cleaning and dyeing.

DYEING AND FINISHING

- DYEING AND FINISHING
 Cost accounting
 BAGNALL, L. H. Costing in the dyeing trade. Accountant, April 23, 1938, p. 561-5.
 LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH AND MAXWELL, ARTHUR D. Cost problems of finishing mills. Sccuring the cost of finishing operations. (In their Textile accounting. 1938, p. 225-53.)
 SUITON, R. A. Costing the dyeing and printing of textile fabrics. Cost accountant. May 1936, p. 367-73.

DYGERT, WARREN B. Advertising principles and practice. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 212p. (Ameri-can business fundamentals)

- DYNAMIC accountancy. Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 320-2.
- DYNAMICS of automobile demand; based upon papers presented at a joint meeting of the American statistical association and the Econometric society in Detroit, Michigan, on December 27, 1938. New York, General motors corporation, 1939. 139p.

EADIE, WILLIAM

Reports on cost investigations. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 156-7.

EAKIN, FRANZY

- Balancing production and consumption in our com-petitive system. Illinois manufacturers costs association monthly bulletin, Oct. 1939, p. 1-2, 3.8

- 3.8. Business resorting to issuance of special reports to employees. Controller, July 1938, p. 184-90. Control of capital expenditures. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 272-5. Controller as an interpreter of economic activities. (In Controller's institute of America. Year book, 1937, p. 79-90.) Controller's methods would aid national economy if carefully applied. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 312-7.
- New methods of accounting for profits would im-prove national economy. Controller, June 1937, p. 160-6, 180.

EAKIN, FRANZY, joint author See Dickinson, Frank G. and Eakin, Franzy.

EARLY developments in coöperative cotton marketing, by O. W. Herrmann and Chastina Gardner. United States. Farm credit administration.

EARNED SURPLUS

See Surplus.

EARNING power of banks. American bankers association.

EARNINGS

- ARNINGS
 BYERLY, F. P. Determination of earnings and dividends under federal tax law. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 17-28.
 CRUM, W. L. Corporate earnings on invested capital. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1938, p. 336-50.
 FEDDE, A. S. Required reinvestment of earnings. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 370-6.

- 370.6. FERNALD, HENRY B. Accounting records as related to income tax returns; opening presen-tation at round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 6 mimeographed pages. PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Ascertainment of "earnings or profits" for the purpose of deter-mining taxability of corporate distributions. Hartard law review, Nov. 1937, p. 40.75. (In his Selected studies in federal taxation, 1938. p. 149.99). TEBEAU, ROBERT L. Book earnings vs. "ad-
- p. 149-99.) TEBEAU, ROBERT L. Book earnings vs. "ad-justed net income"; a further report on the un-distributed profits tax survey. *Dun's review*, March 1938, p. 15-6, 45.

- EARNINGS and expenses of all insured commercial banks. American bankers association. Bank management commission.
- EARNINGS and hours in blooming, rail, structural, plate and billet mills, iron and steel industry, 1933 and 1935. Monthly labor review, June 1936, p. 1615-38.
- EASTERN 4-states accounting conference. Certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 5-7.
- EASTERN tri-state conference. Certified public ac-countant, Dec. 1938, p. 13.

EASTMAN, ELLEN L.

Women in accountancy. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 25-7, 48.

EATING peas with your knife. May, George O.

EATON, MARQUIS G.

Organization for compliance with taxing statutes; control factors in corporation's cost of administer-ing tax laws discussed. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 214-7, 247.

EBERLE, GEORGE J. Value-of-the-service factor in utility rate making. *Public utilities fortnightly*, March 12, 1936, p. 363-73; March 26, 1936, p. 426-34; April 9, 1936, p. 488-97.

EBERSOLE, J. FRANKLIN

Money management powers of the treasury and federal reserve banks. *Harvard business review*, Autumn number, 1936, p. 1-9.

EBERT, GEORGE M.

ost accounting for airplane production. New York, National association of cost accounting, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1333-51.) Cost

ECKARDT, H. W.

Accounting for cost of lumber used in manufacture. American lumberman, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 27.

ECONACON

- Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant, London, July 1, 1939.) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 103-4.
- ECONOMIC and financial aspects of our social security program. Anderson, Harold C.
- ECONOMIC bulletin; a quarterly review of industry and trade. (Supplement to the Accountant) London, Gee & co., ltd.

ECONOMIC inquiry. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1938, p. 213-4.

- ECONOMIC PLANNING ALLEN, E. Implications of economic planning. Cost accountant. April 1937, p. 343-5.
- **ECONOMIC** problems in a changing world. Thorp, Willard L., and others.
- ECONOMIC theories of goodwill. Preinreich, Gabriel A. D.

ECONOMICS

- ADAMS, ORVAL W. Where from here? (address before the Mountain states accounting confer-ence of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 15 typewritten
- Salt Lake City, June 1, 1930.) 13 typewritten pages.
 ALISON, COLIN A. AND GUNN, J. A. L. Should economists use accountancy forms to demonstrate their science? Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 150-6; June 1939, p. 341-4.
 AMOS, J. ELLWOOD. Economics of corporate saving. Urbana, III., University of Illinois, 1937. 136p. (Illinois studies in the social sciences, v. 22, no. 2.)
 ANGELL, NORMAN. Economic factors in international affairs. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 224-9, discussion, p. 229-31.

- BALLANTYNE, H. Social credit. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936. p. 128-9.
 BECKETT, RUPERT. Economic situation in 1935. Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 243-6.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. Free enterprise needs free credit. (In American institute of accountants. Between en conductant data accountants.

- Diskidor, American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account- ing subjects. 1939. p. 287-92.)
 BURROWS, H. R. Saving, spending and in-vesting. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 818-22.
 COATES, W. H. American experiment. Ac- countant, Jan. 7, 1939, p. 11-8.
 COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Double entry think-ing. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 368-75.
 DAY, J. P. Economic review of 1936. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 143-51.
 DICKINSON, FRANK G. AND EAKIN, FRANZY. Balance sheet of the nation's economy. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, College of commerce and business administration, Burcau, of business research, 1936. 35p.
- College of commerce and business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 35p. (Bulletin no. 54.)
 DOUGLAS social credit system. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 5.7.
 EAKIN, FRANZY. Balancing production and consumption in our competitive system. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Oct. 1939, p. 1-2, 3-8.
 EDITORIAL research reports; edited by Richard M. Boeckel. Washington, D. C., Editorial re-search reports, 1937. vol. 1. 472p.
 FLANDERS, RALPH E. Balancing of incentive and security. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 330-9
- 330-9

- and secting. Cost and management, Dec. 1958, p. 330-9
 GIBSON, A. L. Social credit. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 129-32.
 GRANT, EUGENE L. Principles of engineering economy. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 431p.
 GRANT, EUGENE L. Principles of engineering economy-problems. New York, Ronald press co. c1938. 142p.
 GRIFFITH, DONALD K. Weaknesses of index-number accounting Ac
- number accounting. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 123-32.
- Inumber accounting. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 123-32.
 HARBESON, ROBERT W. Cost concept and economic control. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 257-70.
 JONES, J. H. Planning the land of Great Britain. Accountant, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 467-70.
 JONES, R. L. Economic law vs. statute law. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 234-5.
 KENNEDY, E. D. Dividends to pay. New York, Reynal and Hitchcock, c1939. 288p.
 KEYNES, JOHN MAYNARD. General theory of employment interest and money. New York, Harcourt, Brace and co., 1936. 403p.
 KING, WILLFORD I. Causes of economic fluctuations; possibilities of anticipation and control. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 353p.
 LANDIS, JAMES M. Administrative process. New Haven, COODPICH Economic law ys.

- New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1938. 160p. LEE, EARLE GOODRICH. Economic law vs. statute law. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 175.80, 192. LESTER, BERNARD. Applied economics for engineers. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1939. 464p. M'INTYRE, A. HAMILTON. Social credit. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 5-27. MACK, HAROLD L. Something for nothing. Carmel-by-the-sea, Calif., Carmel press, inc., 1936. 59p.
- McKENNA, REGINALD. Economic outlook. Accountant, Feb. 20, 1937, p. 267-70. MADDEN, JOHN T. Controller cons an uncon-trollable world. (summary) Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 334, 336-8.
- MAY, GEORGE O. Influence of accounting on the development of an economy. Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1936, p. 11-22; Feb. 1936, p. 92-105; March 1936, p. 171-84. (In his Taventy-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936, v. 2, p. 305-52.)

MILLS, R. C. Planned economy-possible or

ECONOMICS—(Continued)

desirable? Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p.

- desirable? Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 54-7.
 NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH. Studies in income and wealth; by the Conference on research in national income and wealth. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1937. 348p.
 OVERELL, DUNCAN. How the economic development of the country is likely to affect the accountant. Certified accountants journal, July 1938, p. 220-6.
 PLANT, ARNOLD. Accountant and the economist. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 125-6.
 PRATT, P. D. Social credit; realities and makebelief of the morey game. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1936, p. 22-6; Feb. 1936, p. 50-8.
 ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Accountant and the economist. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 186-92.
 SMALLS, R. G. H. Economic and accounting oncepts. (from Canadian journal of economics and political science) Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 626-9.
 SODHBANS, P. S. Collection of papers on accountant.

- p. 626-9. SODHBANS, P. S. Collection of papers on ac-countancy, commerce and economics, edited by H. S. Balhaya, Lahore, India, Indian ac-
- SOLITBARS, 1. B. Contention of the solution of th

- 843-5.
 STAMP, JOSIAH. Impact of science upon society. Incorporated accountants journal,. Oct. 1936, p. 7-17.
 SUGGESTION for politicians. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 406-8.
 THORP, WILLARD L., AND OTHERS. Economic problems in a changing world. New York, Farrar and Rinehart, inc., c1939. 820p.
 THORP, WILLARD L., AND OTHERS. Questions based on Economic problems in a changing world. New York, Farrar and Rinehart, inc., c1939. 38p.
- tions based on *Economic proteins in a changing* world. New York, Farrar and Rinehart, inc., c1939. 38p. WARE, CAROLINE F. AND MEANS, GARD-INER C. Modern economy in action. New York, Harcourt, Brace and company, c1936.

244p. WYER, SAMUEL S. Living-together in a power age. New York, Association press, 1936. 231p. WYNGARDEN, H. J. Contrasting economic trends of the twenties and thirties. (In Michi-gan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth an-mual Michigan accounting conference. 1938. p. 8-14.)

ECONOMICS of corporate saving. Amos, J. Ellwood.

- ECONOMICS of the petroleum industry. Pogue, Joseph E.
- "ECONOMIST"
 - OLMES, R. L. A. Business barometers; measurement of economic activity with special reference to "The economist" index of business activity. Accountant, March 4, 1939, p. 293-9. HOLMES, R.
- (EL) ECONOMISTA HONDUREÑO: organo de la Sociedad de peritos mercantiles y contadores publicos. Tegucigalpa, D. C., Honduras, C. A.

EDDES, C. S. N.S.W. income tax (management) act, 1936; companies and dividends. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 136-45.

EDDIS, KENDALL Audit of brokerage houses; a system devised to reduce the routine. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Jan. 1938, p. 20-6.

EDDIS, WALTON C., editor

See Manual for accountants-Canada.

EDDY, JOHN W. M.

Some introductory principles of money and bank-ing. Australian accountant, March 1936, p. 103-10.

EDES, OMAR K.

DDS, OWAR K. Standard cost system for a stationery manufactur-ing concern. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 17, section 1, p. 1005-29.)

EDGE, N. C. W.

Dilapidations and depreciation. Accountant, March 20, 1937, p. 412.

EDIBLE OIL

See Vegetable oil; Cottonseed oil.

EDISON ELECTRIC INSTITUTE

- DISON ELECTRIC INSTITUTE Air conditioning, 1935; tactual data on air con-ditioning installations—manufacturers coöpera-tion with utilities. New York, Edison electric institute, September 1935, 24p. Third national accounting conference; complete pro-gram and who's who of the speakers, November 13, 14, 15, 1939, Edgewater Beach Hotel, Chi-cago. New York, Edison electric institute, 1939. 16n. 16p.
- EDITORIAL research reports; edited by Richard M. Boeckel. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1937. vol. 1. 472p.

EDLER, FLORENCE Cost accounting in the sixteenth century; the books of account of Christopher Plantin, Antwerp, printer and publisher. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 226-37.

EDUCATON

- EDUCATON See also Accounting courses.
 ACCOUNTANCY education. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 171-2.
 ALPHA KAPPA PSI FRATERNITY. Alpha kappa psi survey of general business curricula in 64 undergraduate schools of commerce and busi-ness administration, made by committee on edu-cation and research. Indianapolis, Ind., Alpha kappa psi fraternity, 1937. 1 sheet.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on education. Report of the com-mittee on education. Report of the com-mittee on education. (In its 1935 year book, p. 282-5. 1936 year book, p. 440-2. 1937 year book, p. 483-5. 1938 year book, p. 118.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Council. Education. Certified public accoun-tant, Nov. 1937, p. 32.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Council. Education. Certified public accoun-tant, Nov. 1937, p. 32.
 ANDRUSS, HARVEY A. Ways to teach book keeping and accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1937. 178p.
 ATKINSON, EARL W. College training of the accountant. Federation notes, Oct. 1936, p. 19-24, 27.
 BACAS, PAUL E. Content of the auditing course. Accounting areview, Sept. 1939, p. 263-6.
 BENTLEY school of accounting and finance. Spe-cial bulletin. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance (1937). 22p.
 BORTH, DANIEL. Reply to Mr. Franck. Louisiana commerce teacher, March 1939, p. 13, 14.
 BYRNES, THOMAS W. Auditing instruction by

- 13, 14. BYRNES, THOMAS W. Auditing instruction by the laboratory method. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 33-8. CADIGAN, JEANA J. Education for commerce at the university level; commercial laboratories, etc., in the United States of America and at Edinburgh university. Accountants' magazine, March 1939, p. 187-95. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p. 705-8. COLLEGE degree as C.P.A. prerequisite. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, May, 1937, p. 321-3. CONLEY. WILLIAM H Account
- 321-3:
 CONLEY, WILLIAM H. Accounting in the junior colleges. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 22-6.
 CONWAY, EDMUND J. Staff training. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 119-26.
 CROCKETT, J. D. M. Annual report of a city board of education. 9 typewritten pages.
 DILLEY, MERRILL B. Innovations in teaching elementary accounting. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, March 1936, p. 79-82
 DOHR, JAMES L. Business-law training for

FDUCATION-(Continued)

- Students of accounting. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 77-80.
 EDUCATION for the accountant; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 363-88.)
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Professional training. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 250.52) 250-52.)

- accounting principles and proceaure. 1330. p. 220-52.)
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Education for the accountant. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 364-73.)
 FRANCK, W. E. High school bookkeeping and college accounting. Louisiana commerce teacher, March 1939, p. 11-2.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Collegiate C.P.A. requirement; a consideration of its ultimate effect upon the practice of public accounting. Chicago, III., The author, (1937). 160.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Is college the only way? Accounting review, June 1937, p. 105-11.
 GOLDEN GATE COLLEGE. Graduate school of accountancy. Annual report to the profession, June 30, 1938, by Myron M. Strain, Dean. San Francisco, Calif., 1938. 9 mimeographed pages.
- pages. GRACEY, ROBERT D. Staff training; address at the fifth international congress on account-ing, Berlin, September, 1938. 10 typewritten pages. GRAHAM,

- ing, Berlin, September, 1938. 10 typewritten pages.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Accounting education, ethics and training. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 258-62.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Accounting in the law-school curriculum. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 14-21.
 HACKETT, ROBERT P. Governmental accounting in the education of the public accountant. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 390-2.
 HEATON, WILLIAM C. Cultural background of the accountant. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 206-10.
 HECKERT, J. B., AND OTHERS. Instruction in methods of accounting control: a symposium. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 114-23.
 HOWARD, STANLEY E. Accounting in a liberal arts curriculum. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 149-54, comments by Andrew Barr, p. 154-7. 154.7
- 154-7. W. H. S. KENNETH W. Accounting labora-tories in collegiate schools of business. (Ac-counting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 178-82. JONES, RALPH COUGHENOUR. Current prac-tice in teaching elementary accounting. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 174-80. KESTER, ROY B. Education for professional accountancy. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 99-105, comments by Warren W. Nissley, p. 105-8.
- 105-8
- 99-105, comments by Warren W. Nissley, p. 105.8.
 KESTER, ROY B. Practitioner's responsibilities for accountancy education. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 259-65.
 KESTER, ROY B. Practitioner's responsibilities in a program of education for the accountant. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 26-33.)
 KNITTEL, ROGER F. Help wanted—accountants. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 158-62.
 LARIMORE, T. R. Accounting in the small liberal-arts college. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 180-3.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Professional college. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 109-16.
 LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Early university education in accountancy. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 131-44.
 LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Favoring requirement of a college education. (from Spokesman (Pennsylvania) Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 22-3.
 McCREA, ROSWELL C., AND KESTER, ROY

- (Pennsylvania) Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 22-3. McCREA, ROSWELL C., AND KESTER, ROY B. School of professional accountancy, Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 106-17. McGLADREY, IRA B. Some historical and voca-tional notes on accountancy. 13 typewritten pages.

- June 1938, p. 191-4. MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Higher educational standards. Certified public accountant, Jan.
- IORKISON, WILLIAM D. Higher educational standards, Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 3-4. EW YORK (state) university. Education law as amended to July 1, 1936. Albany, N. Y., Uni-versity of the state of New York press, 1936. NEW 395p.
- 395p.
 Supplement, 1937. 27p.
 Supplement, 1938. 35p.
 NEW YORK (state) university. Regulations of the commissioner of education on registration of courses of study in institutions of higher education, on registration of professional schools, and combining on the registration of professional schools. regulations on professional licensing, certification and practice, January 1936. Albany, N. Y., Pro-fessional licensure division, 1936. 59p. (Hand-
- and plactice, jailed if 1500. Albahy, N. T., Hondbook 40
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Educational qualifications which certified public accountants consider that those entering their employ should have; report on the committee on education, May 3, 1937. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 31p. New York state society of certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 28-36. (Report, condensed summary of answers and letter accompanying questionnaire.)
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Training American accountants. (Correspondence) Jour nal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 401.
 O'REILLY, HUGH S. Is accounting history important? Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 15-19.

- OWEŃS, WENS, RICHARD N. Place of the business management course in the curriculum. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, June 1937,

- management course in the currection. I ing exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 1837.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. What can we do for the student? New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 19-22.
 ROSENKAMPFF, A. H. Are you getting the most out of your accounting courses? Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 4, 38.
 ROSS, T. EDWARD. Record of forty years, 1898-1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1938, 40th anniversary number. 570.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Accounting training as a preparation for the business world; paper presented before Southern business education association at New Orleans, November 26, 1937. 11 tynewritten pages.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Education for accountant, You 1937, n. 1829.
- ciation at New Orieans, November 20, 1937. 11
 typewritten pages.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Education for accountancy.
 (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 18-9.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Junior accountant, his prob-lems, responsibilities and training. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 6-25.)
 SCOVILL, H. T. Problems and responsibilities of the junior accountant. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 7-11.
 STAFF training. (Editorial) Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 199-200.
 SYLLABUS of college preparation for accountancy. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 195-8.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. Education for the accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 373-701.

- TOWARD higher educational standards. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 403-5.
- TRAINING American accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 211-2.

EDUCATION-(Continued)

WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Higher education_ for public accountants. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 117-24.

Australia

GIBB, C. A. Psychological determinants of pro-ficiency. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 442-57.

Canada

MAPP, KRIS A. Educating our students-what arrend accountants journal, Jan. 1938, p. 151-4. (extracts)

- Great Britain ACCOUNTANT and legal knowledge. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 855-7. INCORPORATED accountants' course at Cam
 - bridge. Incorporated accountants' Journal, Aug. 1936, p. 389-91.

 - Incorn of the second and states in the second and sec

Scotland

cotand CADIGAN, JEANA J. Education for commerce at the university level; commercial laboratories, etc., in the United States of America and at Edinburgh university. Accountants' magazine, March 1939, p. 187-95. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p. 705-8.

Societies

- AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGIATE SCHOOLS OF BUSINESS. Proceedings of the eighteenth annual meeting, held at Harvard graduate school of business administration, Sol-diers Field, Boston, Mass., April 22, 23, 24, and 25, 1936. Fayetteville, Ark., University of Arkansas, Charles C. Fichtner, secretary, Amer-ican association of collegiate schools of business, c1936, 2420. 101p.
- ican association of comparison comparison compar 155b. 217p.
- EDUCATION for the accountant; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 363-88.)
- EDUCATION law as amended to July 1, 1936. New York (state) University.
- EDUCATIONAL meeting of the Massachusetts society (code of ethics adopted). Certified public ac-countant, May 1937, p. 23-4.
- EDUCATIONAL qualifications which certified public accountants consider that those entering their employ should have; report of the committee on education, May 3, 1937. New York state society of certified public accountants.

EDWARDS, CHARLES M.

Partnership return of income. Journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1936, p. 52-5.

EDWARDS, CORWIN D.

Current trends in government control of business. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan

association of certified public accountants. Tech-nical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. 36-44, dis-cussion, p. 44-6.)

EDWARDS, CORWIN D., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

EDWARDS, ERNEST E. War compensation. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 55-7.

EDWARDS, HERBERT, joint author See Carter, Roger N., and Edwards, Herbert.

EDWARDS, RONALD S.

- DWARDS, RONALD S.
 Control of war time profits. Accountant, May 13, 1939, p. 627-30.
 Depreciation policy and the maintenance of capital. Accountant, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 529-31.
 Nature and measurement of income. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 13-5; July 9, 1938, p. 145-7; July 30, 1938, p. 13-3; July 23, 1938, p. 121-4; July 30, 1938, p. 153-6; Aug. 6, 1938, p. 185-9; Aug. 13, 1938, p. 253-6; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 289-91; Sept. 3, 1938, p. 325-7; Sept. 10, 1938, p. 361-4; Sept. 17, 1938, p. 325-7; Sept. 10, 1938, p. 361-4; Sept. 17, 1938, p. 325-7; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 249-32.
 Nature and measurement of income; a note on the correspondence. Accountant, April 15, 1939, p. 499-501.
- 499-501.
- 499-501.
 Rationale of cost accounting. (summary) Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 389-90. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 371-3. Indian accountant, June 1937, p. 216-8.
 Rationale of double-entry. Accountancy, Sept. 1939,
- p. 446-7.
- p. 446-7. Some academic doubts about secret reserves. Ac-countant, May 2, 1936, p. 683-6. Canadian chart-ered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 479-86. Some notes on the early literature and develop-ment of cost accounting in Great Britain. Ac-countant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 193-5; Aug. 14, 1937, p. 225-31; Aug. 21, 1937, p. 235-5; Aug. 28, 1937, p. 283-7; Sept. 4, 1937, p. 313-6; Sept. 11, 1937, p. 343-4. Survey of French contributions to the study of cost accounting during the 19th century; pub-lished on behalf of the Accounting research asso-ciation, by Gee & co. (publishers), limited. Sup-plement to the Accountant, June 26, 1937. 37p.
- EDWARDS, RONALD S., joint author See Coase, R. H., and others.
- EFFECT of accountancy dates on liability to income tax, N.D.C. and E.P.T. Accountant, tax supple-ment. Dec. 23, 1939, p. 469-71; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 477-8.
- EFFECT of minimum-wage determinations in service industries. United States. Labor, Department
- EFFECT of section 3 (a) (10) of the securities act as a source of exemption for securities issued in re-organizations. Yale law journal, April 1936, p. 1050-76.
- EFFECT of taxation upon corporate policies. Magill, Roswell.
- EFFECTIVE criticism. (Correspondence) Werntz, William W.
- "EFFECTIVE" criticism." (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Dec. 1938, p. 354-5; March 1939, p. 136-7.
- EFFECTIVE date of trust income. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- EFFECTIVE registration statements under the securi-ties act of 1933. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- EFFECTS of competitive bidding—Bidding is logically unsound. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 408-9.

- EFFECTS of governmental policies on financial man-agement; by Paul Studenski, Mark M. Jones, Randolph E. Paul, Arthur A. Ballantine, Leslie Mills, and Victor H. Stempf. New York, American management association, c1939. 52p. American management association, c1 (Financial management series no. 58.)
- EFFECTS of social security and undistributed earn-ings taxes on corporate policy trends. Staub, Walter A. and others.
- EFFICIENCY and economy in office procedures. American management association.
- EFFICIENCY audits. Accountants' journal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 935-8.
- EFFICIENT accounts receivable operation. Amthor, Edgar R.

EGAN, JAMES F.

Accounting procedure in the city and county of San Francisco. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 208-10.)

- EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Cost accounting for office buildings. Buildings and building management, April 1937, p. 48-50, 81. Philadelphia managers study model operating set-up. Buildings and building management, Jan. 1938, p. 21-3. Rental policies and costs. Buildings and building management, Oct. 1938, p. 41-3, 64-6.

EGGLESTON, DeWITT CARL

- Becoming a public accountant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1938, p. 5, 17. Opportunities in public accounting. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 330-3.

EGGS

See Butter, eggs, etc.

EGLY, HARRY H.

Address before the Cleveland group of the Invest-ment bankers association, at Cleveland, Ohio, December 7, 1938. Washington, D.C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.

EHRMANN, HERBERT A. What federal social security act now requires from employer. *Controller*, Feb. 1938, p. 34-43.

EICHHOLZ, ROBERT B. Should the federal income tax be simplified? Yale law journal, May 1939, p. 1200-220.

EINSTEIN, SAMUEL Internal auditing. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 11-7

EISENHOWER, ARTHUR B. Milling business. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1936, p. 133-8.

EISNER, FREDERICK W.

Taxation of American investments and business in Great Britain. Bankers magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 205-10.

EISNER, MARK AND OTHERS

How government regulates business; an explana-tion of the principal federal and state laws which regulate business—a series of radio ad-dresses... over the facilities of the municipal broadcasting system, radio station WNYC. New York York, Dynamic America press, 1939. 130p.

ELDRED. WILFRED, joint author See Wansley, Raymond M. and Eldred, Wilfred.

ELECTION BALLOTS AUDITORS to audit elections. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 238-9.

ELECTION of auditors by stockholders. (Correspondence) Sharp, F. W.

ELECTION of auditors by stockholders. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 356-7.

ELECTRIC AND STREET RALROADS NEW YORK (state) Transit commission. Defini-tive plan and unification agreement proposed for the acquisition and unification, under public ownership and control, of rapid transit railroads, and related power properties in the city of New York . . submitted June 22, 1936. 193p. WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Public utility industries. 1936. p. 176-248.

Fares

RICHARDSON, S. M. Fare structures in urban transport. Federal accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 632-9.

Financ

inance
 NEW YORK (city). Finance, Department of Status of the city's rapid transit debt and the interest and amortization charges thereon, August 15, 1936. New York, Department of finance, Bureau of accountancy, 1936. 9p.
 WATERS, HENRY H. Reorganization problems under the new bankruptcy act. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 331-42.)

Societies

6, 1938. 611p.

ELECTRIC APPARATUS

See Electric equipment; Electric dealers; Elec-tric industries.

ELECTRIC BULBS

See Electric equipment; Electric industries.

ELECTRIC CONTRACTORS Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of electrical contractors. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 57.)

ELECTRIC DEALERS

- Accounting
 - ccounting ELECTRICAL appliances—what effect have ac-counting methods on appliances profits? Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May 1939, p. 52-4. LINDQUIST, R. E. Uniform accounting for household appliance dealers. Pathfinder service bulletim, April 1939, p. 1-5, 6. NATIONAL electrical wholesalers association. Revised uniform accounting system (with report

 - ATIONAL electrical wholesalers association. Revised uniform accounting system (with report of special committee) as approved and recom-mended by the National electrical wholesalers association, at the thirtieth annual convention . . . Hot Springs, Virginia, May 26, 1938. New York, National electrical wholesalers asso-ciation, 1938. 29p.

Statistics

bUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of electric and gas house-hold appliance stores and electrical fixtures and

ELECTRIC DEALERS-Statistics-(Continued)

guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)

ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT Costs

PINCHES, HAROLD E. What are the real costs of electric operation? *Public utilities fortnightly*, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 278-83.

ELECTRIC INDUSTRIES LEAROYD, JOHN S. Obsolescence in the electric lamp industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 950-60.) Printed with: Stempf, Victor H. Accounting for fixed assets.

Cost accounting NATIONAL ELECTRICAL MANUFAC-TURERS ASSOCIATION. Standard costs for the electrical manufacturing industry. (supplement to the uniform accounting manuals) New York, National electrical manufacturers associa-tion, Dec. 1937. 25p.

Statistics
FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of manufacturers of electrical parts and supplies. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.—...p. 50, 78, 104, 131, 190-1.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 28-9.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 28-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 20-1.)

- ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Interpretations of uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. New York, State law reporting company, Nov. 1, 1938. not paged (Bulletin
 - no. 1.) WILSON, ILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Electric light and power industry. (In their *Public utility* industries. 1936. p. 84-128.)

- Accounting ANALYSIS of electric supply company accounts. Accountant, May 22, 1937, p. 734-5. ANDERSON, H. D. Accounting future in the electric public utility industry under the "public utility act of 1935" and other "new deal" laws. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1936, 7 331.4 331-4.
 - p. 331-4. BOOZER, HERMAN W. Some aspects of plant ledgers and public utility plant accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. 18-26.) Printed with: Milians, Paul M. Management control of ship-line opera-
 - URNELL, A. L. Electricity undertakings (spe-cial problems); (a) hire purchase accounts; (b) rental accounts including continuous billing. *Certified accountants' journal*, July 1936, p. BURNELL,
- Certifiel accountants journal, jury 1990, p. 213-22.
 CONOVER, JOHN L. Customers' accounting system—Public service electric and gas company. American gas journal, Dec. 1935, p. 19-22, 34.
 FAIRMAN, J. F. Engineering and accounting economics. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 452-3, 479.
 HERRON, A. C. Electric fixed capital accounting by units of property as required by federal and state power commissions and how it may be accomplished. Edison electric institute bulletin, July 1938, p. 335-43.
 HINDMAN, JAMES. Complete system of bookkeeping for electricity supply authorities. London, Gee & co., Itd. 1938, 136p.
 LEE, RAYMOND E. Utility accounting methods. Journal of the American water works association, March 1936, p. 389-401.

- McKENNA, C. A. Problems and suggested solutions relating to the electric plant acquisition adjustment account. Edison electric institute bulletim, Aug. 1938, p. 359-61.
 OWEN, A. M. Electrical supply accounts; notes on the form in which statements of accounts of electrical supply authorities are presented. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), April 1936, p. 308-11. 308-11

- 308-11.
 PROVENCHER, A. J. Materials and supplies accounting system of the Detroit Edison company. Edison electric institute bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 56-60, 71.
 RODEY, B. S., Jr. Engineer's interest in unitized plant accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, May 1937, p. 173-6, 181.
 SMITH, G. MEREDITH. Some problems of accounting in a gas or electric public utility company. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 179-88.

- Uniform methods and systems ABRAMS, ERNEST R. Regulation of electric utilities by accounting. Commercial and finan-cial chronicle, April 3, 1937, p. 2204-7. ALABAMA. Public' service commission. General rules for electric, gas, water, telephone and telegraph utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Montgomery, Ala., Public service commission, 1936 690.
- Montgomery, Ala., Fuble service commission, 1936. 69p. CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. Comments, suggestions, and criticism with re-spect to the Federal power commission's tenta-tive draft of a uniform system of accounts prescribed for public utilities and licensees subject to the provisions of the federal power act (approved August 26, 1935). New York, Controllers institute of America, March 31, 1936 57n.
- Controllers institute of America, March 31, 1936, 57p.
 HUNTER, F. M. Legal aspects of new uniform accounting system. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 16-8, 35.
 KENTUCKY. Public service commission. Uniform
- KENTUCKY. Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Frankfort, Ky., Public service commission, 1936. 169p. MAINE. Public utilities commission. Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities; issue of 1923 revised, effective January 1, 1939. Au-gusta, Me., Public utilities commission, 1938.
- 135p. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Inter-traiter system of accounts for
- AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Inter-pretations of uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. Washington, D.C., National association of railroad and utilities commission-ers, August 15, 1939. 41 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin No. E-2) NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. List of retirement units for electric utilities, pre-pared by Committee on -statistics and accounts of public utility companies of National associa-tion of railroad and utilities commissioners. New York, State law reporting company, c1937. 21p.
- 21p. NATIONAL 21p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Report of the executive committee recommending adop-tion of a uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. (In its Proceedings of forty-eighth annual convention held at Atlantic City, N.J., November 10 to 13, 1936.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Uni-form system of accounts for electric utilities. New York, State law reporting co., c1937. 2137.

- New York, State law reporting co., c1937. 213p. NEW HAMPSHIRE. Public service commission. Uniform classification of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1935, revised January 1, 1938. Concord, N. H., Public service commission (1937). 120p. NEW JERSEY. Public utility commissioners. Uni-form system of accounts prescribed for electric corporations, classes A and B, approved No-vember 10, 1937; effective January 1, 1938. Trenton, N. J., Board of public utility com-missioners, 1937. 178p.

ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER—Accounting—Uni-form methods and systems—(Continued)

- LECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER-Accounting-Uni-form methods and systems-(Continued) NEW YORK (state). Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for municipal elec-tric utilities, effective March 1, 1936. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1935. 155p. NEW YORK (state). Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts prescribed for electric corporations, classes A and B; approved May 25, 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Public service commissioner. Uniform system of accounts prescribed for classes A, B, and C, electric utilities, effective January 1, 1937, for class A and B utilities, and January 1, 1938, class C utilities. Salem, Ore., Public utilities commissioner, 1936. 259p. PENNSYLVANIA. Public utility commission. Amendments to Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities (prescribed by the Federal power commission) effective January 1, 1938, Harrisburg, Pa., Public utility commission. (1937) 16 mimeographed pages. SMITH, CHARLES W. Uniform system of accounts of the federal power commission. *Accounting review*, June 1937, p. 153-62. UNITED STATES. Federal power commission. Interpretation of accounts-issue no. 1 (cases 1 to 8, inclusive). Washington, D. C., Federal power commission, May 8, 1937. 3 mimeographed pages. Same, issue no. 2 (cases 9 to 13, inclu-

 - pages.
- pages. Same, issue no. 2 (cases 9 to 13, inclu-sive). October 12, 1937. 3 mimeographed pages. UNITED STATES. Federal power commission. Order no. 43 (adopted December 31, 1936) amending the Uniform system of accounts, pre-scribed for public utilities and licensees by order no. 42 and adopting and adding thereto appendix 3 applicable to class C and class D public utilities and licensees. Washington, D. C., Federal power commission, 1936. 10 mimeo-graphed pages.

- 174p. WISCONSIN. Public service commission. Uniform

system of accounts for electric utilities (class C); effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 56p.

Cost accounting BARON, C. Electricity supply costing, with particular reference to distribution. Cost accoun-tant, March 1938, p. 317-20.

- Costs
- Costs
 DOYING, GEORGE E. Municipal electric plants and unemployment. Public utilities fortmightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 473-9.
 HENRY, R. A. C. Hydro electric power costs. Cost and management, Nov. 1937, p. 266-77.
 PINCHES, HAROLD E. What are the real costs of electric operation? Public utilities fort-mightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 278-83.
 POWER engineer compares fuel and hydro gen-eration. Public utilities fortnightly, Dec. 17, 1936, p. 834-8.
 RAU, OTTO M. Cost of distributing power. Public utilities fortnightly, April 15, 1937, p. 486-92.

Finance

FODEN, W. E. Some aspects of municipal elec-tricity supply finance. *Incorporated accountants' journal*, Aug. 1937, p. 440-3.

Law

United States SEAVEY, CLYDE L. Federal power act and kindred legislation with reference to state regu-lation. Public utilities fortnightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 539-47.

Rates

- ADAMS, W. CLARENCE. Electric coöperatives
- ADAMS, W. CLARENCE. Electric cooperatives scan wholesale power rates. Public utilities fort-nightly, Sept. 15, 1938, p. 368-77. GILMAN, EDGAR DOW. Relative cost of elec-tricity not shown by comparison of rate sched-ules. Public utilities fortnightly, April 9, 1936, 479-85.
- p. 479-85. VELIE, LESTER. Assault on electric rates. *Public utilities fortnightly*, March 2, 1939, p. 278-84.

Reports and statements NEEL, T. W. Simplification of the utility indus-try's reports to federal agencies. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 509-11, 550.

Statistics

- atistics RIGGS, HENRY EARLE. Do municipal electric plants really pay? *Public utilities fortnightly*, Sept. 24, 1936, p. 363-92. UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of. Retail prices . . . prepared by Retail price
- Retail prices . . . prepared by Retail price division and Cost of living division, Bureau of labor statistics. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, January 1936-December 1939. (pamphlets)

Valuation MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Example of the valuation of an electric utility. (In their Engineering valuation, 1936. p. 470-**95.**)

ELECTRIC PLANTS

See Electric light and power; Power plants.

ELECTRIC REPAIR SHOPS

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of electrical repair shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 97.)

ELECTRIC SIGNS

See Signs.

ELECTRIC TRUCKS

See also Industrial trucks.

ELECTRICAL appliances-what effect have account-ing methods on appliances profits? Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May 1939, p. 52-4.

ELECTRICAL MANUFACTURING See Electric industries.

ELECTRICAL PARTS AND SUPPLIES See Electric industries; Electric dealers.

ELEMENTARY accounting, Newlove, George Hillis and others.

ELEMENTARY principles of insurance accounting. Tawney, H. G. and Desaulniers, Marcel L.

ELEMENTS of farm management. Hopkins, John Α.

ELEVATORS

See Conveying and hoisting; Grain elevators.

- ELGEN, RILEY E. High cost of marketing utility and other securi-ties. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939,
 - ties. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 270-7. How better utility regulation can be achieved; cease sparring for legal advantage, says author, and adopt the sliding-scale method of rate ad-justment. Satisfactory results of the so-called "Washington Plan" of rate control. Public utilities fortnightly, April 23, 1936, p. 531-41. Utilities' valuation theory upheld; six justices reafirm "fair value" rule of "rate-making" desired by utilities. Barron's, April 24, 1939, p. 9.
 - p. 9.
- ELIMINATION of notes from balance-sheet. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 332-4.
- ELIMINATION of physical inventories. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 199-200.
- ELKINS, W. L

Meaning and purposes of this conference. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 4-6.)

ELLINGER, BARNARD Money and credit—how they work in practice. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 651-7, discussion p. 657-60.

ELLIOTT, C. FRASER

- Administration of the Canadian income tax law. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 268-84
- Contrasts between American and Canadian tax policies. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1938, p. 517-26.) Some phases of income tax law. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 272-3, 289.

ELLIOTT, D. C.

Quarterly series of manufacturers' inventories. Journal of the American statistical association, June 1938, p. 349-52.

ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON

- Fixed trusts. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 391-7, discussion, p. 397-9. Accountant, Sept. 12, 1936, p. 364-9. Mining accounts. (from Incorporated accountants'
- journal.) Australian accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 58-69.
- 58-69. Other auditing and advisory work. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 20-4. Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 837-42; Dec. 24, 1938, p. 873-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. p. 99-122.)

ELLIOTT, GEORGE W. See American management association.

ELLIOTT vs. University of Illinois; before Judge John Prystalski, no. 34 C 1085, Chicago, Illinois, Friday, January 3, 1936. 6 typewritten pages.

ELLIS, CECIL A.

- LLIS, CECIL A. Auditing procedure in America. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 191-2. Control and valuation of stores. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 425-42. Good systems and fraudulent practices. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939, p. 355-64.

ELLIS, FELIX M.

What are futures in stock trading? Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 414-6.

ELLIS, FRANKLIN C.

- LLIS, FRANKLIN C. Deductions for accrued taxes. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 197-8. Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Franklin C. Ellis. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 64.

ELLIS, GEORGE BELOE

Valuations: the hypothetical purchaser. Accountant, tax supplement, March 12, 1938, p. 109-12.

ELLIS, GEORGE D.

Accounting for construction projects. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-55.)

ELLIS, GEORGE PRICE

- 76.
- Improved accounting and reporting, as a basis for better government. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 393-5, 400.
- Interstate employment; second of a series of articles on the federal social security law as it affects contractors. Roads and streets, May 1937, p. 36-7.
- p. 36-7.
 Keynote address. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 1-6.)
 Municipal accounting practice. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 35-6.
 Professional training. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 250-2.)

ELLISON, J. H. Some points as regards liability to income tax of foreign possessions. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 469-73, discussion, p. 473-4.

ELLWOOD, A. D.

Further references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 121-8.

ELSDEN, J. J. Relation of the auditor to the office organisation of a commercial concern. Accountant, Nov. 14, 1939, p. 543-50.

ELSWORTH, R. H.

See United States. Farm credit administration. ELWELL, F. H.

Municipal audits. Municipal finance, Nov. 1937, p. 21-2.

ELY, OWEN

703-8.

X, OWEN
 Accounting for depreciation. Public utilities fort-nightly, April 29, 1937, p. 542-52.
 Utility stock fluctuation; varying sales ratios since 1928 and the present utility securities outlook. Public utilities fortnightly, Nov. 25, 1937, p. 702 8

EMBEZZLEMENT

See Defalcation; Fraud.

- EMERGENCY acts and orders. Accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 37-41; Dec. 1939, p. 65-6.
- EMERGENCY finance. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1939, p. 322-4.
- EMERGENCY legislation. Accountant, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 403-4.

EMERGENCY legislation; Courts (Emergency pow-ers) act, 1939. Certified accountants' journal, Nov. 1939, p. 336-40.

EMERGENCY RELIEF FUNDS See Funds; Relief expenditures.

EMERGENCY WORK RELIEF See Relief expenditures.

EMERSON, DEAN

- Analyzing automobile finance company statements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Sept. 1936, p. 77-91.
- EMINENT accountant retires. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 90-1.

EMOND, WILLIAM Practical costing. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 715-9.

EMPLOYEE rating methods. Metropolitan life insur-ance company. Policyholders service bureau.

EMPLOYEES METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Employee rating methods. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. (1939) 48p.

EMPLOYEES REPRESENTATION See Management-Employees' representation.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLANS See Wages, fees, etc.-Stock distributing.

EMPLOYEES thrift plan. Standard oil company (incorporated in New Jersey) and its domestic participating subsidiaries.

EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY

See Workmen's compensation.

EMPLOYERS' liability insurance. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 322-3.

- EMPLOYMENT See also Unemployment. BENNETT, GEORGE E. Securing and holding a position. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 26-7.

 - 26-7.
 KNITTEL, ROGER F. Help wanted—accountants. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 158-62.
 KNOPP, RUSSELL. Jobs and juniors. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 391-6.
 WOLMAN, LEO. Recovery in wages and employment. National bureous of economic research bulletin, no. 63, Dec. 21, 1936, p. 1-12.

- ENCYCLOPEDIAS MUNN, GLENN G. Encyclopedia of banking and finance. New York, Bankers publishing co., 1937. 866p.
- ENDOWMENT income and investments, 1926-1935. American council on education. Financial advisory service.

ENDOWMENT income and investments, 1926-1937. American council on education. Financial ad-visory service.

ENDOWMENTS

- NDOWMENTS See also Funds; Schools, Colleges, etc. AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Endowment income and investments, 1926-1935. Washington, D. C., American council on education, April 1937. 21p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no.
- 8.) AMERICAN MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Endowment income and investments, 1926-1937. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Nov. 1938. 16p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no.
- 14.) BENINGTON, HAROLD. Plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p.
- 110-1. CAIN, J. HARVEY. Comments on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds." Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 91-3. JOHNS, RALPH S. Plan for pooling the invest-ments of endowment funds. 15 typewritten pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 31-7.
- 31-7. MILLS, GAIL A. Comments on "A plan for pool-ing the investments of endowment funds." Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 166-70. WILLVONSEDER, ERNEST. Pooling of endow-ment fund assets by quasi-public corporations. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, 238-40 p. 238-40.

ENDRES, H. W. Original cost determination. Edison electric insti-tute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 491-2.

ENEY, H. E. Two simple unit control systems (women's shoes —silverware) Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1937, p. 25, 49.

- ENFORCEMENT of professional ethics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 240-1.
- **ENFORCEMENT** of real estate tax liens and con-stitutional barriers to remedial legislation for tax delinquents in each of the United States. Alyea, Louis F.

ENGEL, GEORGE C. AND KAHN, MARTIN O. Profitable specialty shop operation. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc. 1938. 184p.

ENGINEERING

- See also Management; Factories—Management.
 ALFORD, L. P. Henry Laurence Gantt; leader in industry. New York, American society of mechanical engineers. 1934. 315p.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Relation of engineering to cost control. (In their Managerial control, instruments and meth-ods in industry. C1937, p. 151-61.)
 GRANT, EUGENE L. Principles of engineering economy_rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 431p.
 GRANT, EUGENE L. Principles of engineering economy—problems. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 142p.
 MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Engineering valuation. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 655p.
 MAYNARD, HAROLD B. AND STECEMER-TEN, G. J. Operation analysis. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 298p.
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. Discussion of engineering audits, at luncheon meeting of American institute of consulting engineers, April 5, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages.

Accounting ELLIS, GEORGE D. Accounting for construc-tion projects. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-55.)

ENGINEERING—Accounting—(Continued)

VCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; engineers' accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 202-3. INCORPORATED

- Cost accounting ASHLEY, R. W. Standard costs in an engineer-ing industry. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939,

 - ing industry. American and the p. 1-22. DUFFIELD, R. W. Terminal costs. Cost account ant, June 1936, p. 9-13. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 140-8. JAMES, CHARLES C. Managerial control through cost accounting for construction work. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 756-77.) Printed with: Ellis, George D. Accounting for construction broizets.

Costs

See also Cost and factory accounting-Experimental costs; Cost and factory accounting-

ENGINEEPING AUDITS

See American institute of consulting engineers.

ENGINEERING valuation. Marston, Anson and Agg, Thomas R.

ENGINEERS

NICASTRO, GEORGE J. Licensing and registra-tion of engineers. American engineer, Feb. 1939, p. 4-5, 22, 24.

ENGINES

Costs YALE UNIVERSITY. School of engineering. Steam versus Diesel-electrics. Mechanical engi-neering, June 1939, p. 469-70.

ENGLE, NATHANIEL H.

Distribution cost analysis by commodities. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution, 1937, p. 46-52.)

p. 40-32.) Distribution costs—too high or too low! Com-merce, Dec. 1937, p. 19-21, 59.

ENGLISH, EARLE W.

Analyzing a broker's statement. Robert associates monthly bulletin, March 19 257-68, 272-7, discussion, p. 268-71. Morris 1938, p.

ENGLISH AND SCOTTISH CO-OPERATIVE PROP-ERTY, MORTGAGE AND INVESTMENT SO-CIETY, LTD.

PROPERTY society summoned; a question of accountancy. Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 237-9; April 2, 1938, p. 454-6; April 9, 1938, p. 496-9; May 28, 1938, p. 745-7.

ENGLISH decision on negligence of accountants. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

- ENGLISH LANGUAGE
 ENGLISH LANGUAGE
 BBERGMAN, NATHANIEL B. This blessed language. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1939, p. 271-2.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Jargon. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 37-40. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 139-43. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 5-7.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Vocabulary building. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 183.
 - 1938, p. 183. RICHARDSON,

1933, p. 183. ICHARDSON, A. P. This blessed language. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 247.8; May 1939, p. 304-5; June 1939, p. 377.8; July 1939, p. 60-1; Aug. 1939, p. 127.8; Sept. 1939, p. 204-5; Oct. 1939, p. 277.8; Nov. 1939, p. 350-1; Dec. 1939, p. 407-8.

RICHARDSON, A. P. This blessed language. (reprinted from the Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939.) Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, 622-5.

"P. USAS BLESSED LANGUAGE." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 198. "WOULD SEEM." (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1937, p. 86.

ENNIS, WILLIAM D. Special cases in depreciation. Mechanical engi-neering, Oct. 1936, p. 638.

ENSLOW, H. R.

State supervision of assessment in New York. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 458-60, 492.

EPES, W. PERRY, JR.

Corporate reorganization: the revised Chandler bill. (Legislation note) Virginia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 309-19.

EPISCOPUS

Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant, London, Aug. 5, 1939.) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 192-4.

EPSTEIN, BERNARD

Life insurance policies payable to named bene-ficiaries—exemption from the federal estate tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 579-82, 611-4.

EQUIPMENT

See Electric equipment; Machinery and equipment.

EOUITY

- ANGTON, A. E. Equitable apportionments. Accountant student and accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 56-9. Accountant, Oct. 10, 1936, p. 505-8. Australian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. LANGTON, p. 50 421-9.
- PATON, WILLIAM A. Assets and equities— Asset and equity accounts. (In his *Essentials* of accounting, 1937. part 1, p. 13-31; 1938 ed. p. 22-41, 42-57.)

ERIE RAILROAD COMPANY UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated com-panies—Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investi-gation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing reorganizations. mergers. respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certin other matters. Part 13, November 4, and 5, 1937, and February 17, 1938; Missouri Pacific system . . . Erie railroad company. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. p. 5579-5943.

ERNST AND ERNST See State street trust company vs. Alwin C. Ernst et al.

ERRATA. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 343.

ERRORS

- RRORS
 CONCERNING the gnat and the camel—Reductio ad absurdum. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1936, p. 233-5.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Locating, correcting and preventing errors. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938, p. 205-14.)
 RICE, G. F. D. Errors encountered in auditing. Incerporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 208-11, discussion, p. 211-2. Indian accoun-tant, May 1938, p. 175-81, discussion, p. 181-3. 185. 185.
- SCHMIDT, LEO A. Trial balance and errors. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. (In his Theory 1937. p. 69-74.)

ESCOTT, C. R. Brief outline of a cost finding system for brew-eries. Brewery age, May 1938.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

ESCROWS

- ILLER, CHRISSY L. Escrows. National audit-gram, Feb. 1939, p. 10-5. MILLER,
- ESSAY contests. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 19.

ESSAY contests. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 2.

ESSAYS

- SSAYS ESSAY contests. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 19. ESSAY contests. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1937, p. 2. MAY, GEORGE O. Twenty-five years of account-ing responsibility, 1911-1936; essays and dis-cussions, edited by Bishop Carleton Hunt. 2 vols. in 1. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1936. v. 1, 368p. v. 2, 421p. (bound treather)
 - together) Table of contents and analytical index. 1937. 20p.
- ESSENTIALS of accounting. Paton, W. A.
- ESSENTIALS of cost accounting. Mannix, Raymond L.

ESSENTIALS of distribution, Converse, Paul D.

ESTABLISHED cost survey. Taggart, Herbert F.

ESTABLISHING cost differentials under the Robin-son-Patman act. James, Charles C.

ESTATE accounting. Saxe, Emanuel.

- ESTATE administration and accounting. Dodge, Chester J. and Sullivan, John F.

ESTATE TAXES See Taxation—Estates and trusts, under various states and countries.

ESTATES

See Executors and trustees.

ESTATES, PRIVATE

See Branches; Coffee estates; Rubber estates.

ESTATES practice guide. Harris, Homer I.

ESTIMATED number of launderings of linen. Hor-wath hotel accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 4.

ESTIMATING

See Cost and factory accounting-I costs; Professional ethics-Estimating. and factory accounting-Estimating

- **IMATING** air conditioning operating costs. (reprinted from *Heating and ventilating*, Oct. 1935.) ESTIMATING
- ESTIMATING as a science. White, J. C.

ETHICS

See Business ethics; Professional ethics.

- HCS in retrospect—Fruitfulness of honesty— Diminishing practice—Uselessness of professional advertising—Giving something for nothing— Ethics and common decency—Little foxes that spoil the vines—One evil which persists—Broad view. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 313-9. ETHICS in
- ETTINGER, RICHARD P. AND GOLIEB, DAVID E. Credits and collections; revised in collaboration with Herbert M. Diamond. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 521p.
- EUTSLER, ROLAND B., joint author See Wilson, G. Lloyd, Herring, James M. and Eutsler, Roland B.

EVANS, E. OSWALD Accounts of a rural district council. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1936, p. 250-7.

EVANS, EDWIN D. Taxes under new act may be two and one half times larger than before. *Controller*, Oct. 1936, p. 264-9.

EVANS, JOHN F.

Unjust enrichment tax (windfall tax); presented at A.M.A. taxation and finance conference, Wednesday, December 2, 1936. 9 mimeographed pages.

EVANS. R.

Air conditioning costs. Buildings and building management, Nov. 1938, p. 29-30, 31; Jan. 16, 1939, p. 57-9.

EVERYMAN'S legal manual. Hibschman, Harry.

EVIDENCE

- See also Professional ethics-Confidential com-munications.
- ACCOUNTS as evidence. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, 48-9. p. 48-9 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Accountant as an
- pert witness. Accounting forum, April 1936, p. 5-8.
- pett withess. Accounting forum, April 1990, p. 5-8.
 BUSINESS records as evidence. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 173-4.
 ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and advisory work. (In Fifth international congress on accounting Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English) Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 20-4. Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 337-42; Dec. 24, 1938, p. 873-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. p. 99-122.)
 EXPERT evidence by the accountant. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 423-5.
 EXPERT evidence in auditing. Accountant, April 11, 1936, p. 576.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountant as a witness—Expert witness fees—Amount of fee is admissible in evidence. (Legal notes) Journal of accountant, July 1937, p. 65-8.

- Increase Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 65-8,
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Duty to preserve accounting records. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 269-70.
 INGRAM, H. DUDLEY. Loose-leaf minute books as admissible evidence. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1936, p. 423-5.
 LOOSE-LEAF books. Accountants' Journal (Eng.) March 1936, p. 253-5.
 LOOSE-LEAF books. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 273-5.
 LOOSE-LEAF minute books and the auditor. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, p. 202-5.
 LOOSE-LEAF minute books and the auditor. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, p. 202-5.

- p. 202-5. MacDONALD,
- proofs. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1936, p. and 620-6
- 620-6. NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSION-ERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS. Uniform business records as evidence act; Uniform composite reports as evidence act; Uniform judicial notice of foreign law act; Uniform offijudicial notice of foreign law act; Uniform offi-cial reports as evidence act; drafted by the National conference of commissioners on uni-form state laws and by it approved and recom-mended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936, approved by the American har association at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936. Chicago, III., National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws 1936. 15p. OPINION. (Hearts of oak assurance co., ltd.) Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 237.

EVANS, JOHN H. Know trust costs. Trust companies, June 1938, p. 740.

EVANS, M. J. Profit-sharing retirement fund. Iron age, July 8, 1937, p. 28-31.

EVIDENCE—(Continued)

- RESNICK, JOSEPH. Accountant as an expert witness. C.C.N.Y. bar, Fall 1938, p. 3-4, 23-4.
- EVOLUTION of Board of tax appeals. Smart, Allen R.
- EXAMINATION of accounts receivable. Towns. Charles H.
- EXAMINATION of financial statements by inde-pendent public accountants; a revision of the bulletin prepared by the American institute of accountants in 1929 and published by the Federal reserve board under the title "Verification of financial statements." American institute of accountants.
- **EXAMINATION** questions, May 1936 to November 1938. American institute of accountants. Board of examiners.
- EXAMINATION questions prepared by the board of examiners of the American institute of accoun-tants, May 1932, to November 1935, inclusive. American institute of accountants. Board of examiners.
- EXAMINATION report blanks. National association of building and loan supervisors.

EXAMINATIONS

- XAMINATIONS See also Auditing. ALLEN, M. R. Hints to examination candidates. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educa-tional society (incorporated), Sept. 1937. 22p. CAUSES of failure at examinations. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p.
- Student and Attentions 30-1. 30-1. CIVIL SERVICE HOME STUDIES, INC. Ac-counting and auditing assistant (federal service) —modern objective, short answer form, civil service questions and answers, including mental alertness, true and false style, completion, mul-tiple choice, etc., based on subjects of tests. New York, The chief (1937). 32 mimeographed pages

- York, The chief (1937). 32 mimeographed pages.
 CREW, ALBERT. Examinations; how to prepare and how to pass. Certified accountants journal, April 1938, p. 119-23.
 EXAMINATIONS. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 353.4.
 GREENE, HOWARD F. Technical preparation for accounting examinations. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 445-8.
 JONES, J. H. Examinations. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 39-42. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 152-7.
 MacDONALD, O. R. Answering of auditing questions. Accountant, April 1937, p. 317-8.
 POST, E. J. Legal subjects in examinations.
- p. 317-8. POST, E. J. Legal subjects in examinations. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p.

- POST, E. J. Legal subjects in examinations. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. p. 2724.
 PROFESSIONAL examinations. Accountant, Jan. 16, 1937, p. 74-6.
 SEAMAN, A. M. Student and the examinations. Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 343-51.
 SOME causes of failure in examinations. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 17-8.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Examiner's point of view. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 111-3.
 WEBSTER, NORMAN E. Ost accounting: review of examination questions. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 159-62; May 1937, p. 88-90, 92; May 1938, p. 73-4, 76; Sept. 1938, p. 122-5.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting: typical examination questions. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 23-5.
 WILLMAN, F. A. Scientific study. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, Dec. 1937, p. 243-4; Jan. 1938, p. 264-6; Feb. 1938, p. 304-7.
 WILSON, A. J. H. Hints for examines. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 566-8. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 356-8.

- - c1939. 209p.
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTAINTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, May 1936. Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 410-29. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTAINTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, November 1936. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 400.20 400-20.
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, November, 1937. New York, American institute publishing co., inc., 1937. 31p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 474-96.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, May 1938. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 530-52.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, November 1938. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 415-28.

 - 415-28
 - 415-26. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, May 1939, Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 383-94. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.

 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Examinations, November, 1939. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1939. 17p. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 418-31.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Institute examinations in law. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 421-51.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Board of examiners. Suggestions to candidates for commercial law examinations. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 232-7.
 BAUMANN, H. P., editor. American Institute of accountants examinations, November 1935. (Stu-dents' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 56-68; Feb. 1936, p. 136-49; March 1936, p. 226-33; April 1936, p. 291-302; May 1936, p. 386-95.

 - Jan. 1938, p. 19-57. BAUMANN, H. P., editor. American institute of accountants examinations, November 1937. (Stu-dents' department) *Journal of accountancy*, Jan. 1938, p. 76-82; Feb. 1938, p. 165-79; March 1938, p. 255-63; April 1938, p. 344-53; May 1938, p. 438-47; June 1938, p. 516-23; July 1938, p. 63-84.
 - BAUMANN, H. P., editor. American institute of accountants examinations, May 1938. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 124-32; Sept. 1938, p. 194-202; Oct. 1938, p. 271-9; Nov. 1938, p. 331-46; Dec. 1938, p. 407.11 p. 271-407-11.
 - BAUMANN, H. P., editor. American institute of accountants examinations, November 1938. Stu-dents' department) *Journal of accountancy*, Jan. 1939, p. 54-60; Feb. 1939, p. 117-25; March 1939, p. 182-9; April 1939, p. 249-53; May

EXAMINATIONS—American Institute of Accountants —(Continued)

- EXAMINATIONS—American Institute of Accountants —(Continued)
 1939, p. 306-9; June 1939, p. 379-82; July
 1939, p. 62-8.
 BAUMANN, H. P., editor. American institute of accountants examinations, May 1939. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 129-40; Sept. 1939, p. 206-12; Oct. 1939, p. 129-40; Sept. 1939, p. 205-5; Dec. 1939, p. 409-17.
 BAUMANN, H. P., AND GORDON, SPENCER. Unofficial anwers to the examination questions of the American institute of accountants, May, 1932, to November, 1935. New York, American institute pub. co. inc., 1936. 4130.
 BAUMANN, H. P., AND GORDON, SPENCER. Unofficial answers to the examination questions of the American institute of accountants, May, 1936 to November 1939. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., e1939. 298p.
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Think! Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 25-6, 39.
 CHAMBERLAIN, HENRY T. Professional examinations; a department for students of accounting. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 407-23; March 1938, 81-90; June 1938, p. 199-211; Sept. 1938, p. 292-320; Dec. 1938, p. 412-23; March 1938, p. 292-320; Dec. 1939, p. 437-51.
 DOMENECH, FERNANDO J. Examination questions. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, Journal of accountancy, April 1937, Journal of accountancy, April 1938, Journal of accountancy, April 1938, Journal of accountancy, July 1938, Journal of accountancy, July 1938, Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 58-62.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, November 1937. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, Journal of accountancy, July 1938, Journal of accountancy, April 1938, Journal of accountancy, July 1938, Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 58-62.
 GORDON, SPENCER. Institute examination in law, November 1937. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, Journal of account

- p. 214.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. C.P.A. examina-tions. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 214-5.
 PICKAR, GEORGE H. Law of business rela-tions. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of ac-counting and finance, c1937. 3v.
 STUDENTS' department. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 167-8.

American society of certified public accountants See Examinations-C.P.A.

- Australia
- QUAIN, JOHN M. Review of examination ques-tions on auditing set at the October, 1937, exam-inations. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 374-400.
- C.P.A
- C.P.A.
 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. C.P.A. examination questions, November, 1935. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 54-8; Feb. 1936, p. 121-2; March 1936, p. 187-9; April 1936, p. 243-9; May 1936, p. 314-9; June 1936, p. 374-5.
 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. C.P.A. examination questions, May 1936. Certified public accountant, Iuly 1936, p. 442-4; Aug. 1936, p. 498-507; Sept. 1936, p. 556-63; Nov. 1936, p. 679-83.
 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS. C.P.A. examination questions, November 1936. Certified public ac-

countant, Nov. 1936, p. 663-74; Dec. 1936, p. 735-42. BENTLEY, H. C.

- 735-42.
 PENTLEY, H. C. Preparing for C.P.A. examinations. Accounting forum, Jan. 1938, p. 15-7.
 C.P.A. examination statistics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 277-8.
 CHAMBERLAIN, HENRY T. Professional examinations; a department for students of accounting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 65-75

- counting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 65.75.
 DEAN, WALTER N. Taking the C.P.A. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 6-11, 55.
 FAILURES in C.P.A. examinations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 407-9.
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. C.P.A. examinations and how to prepare for them. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1937.

- MARDER, LOUIS. Suggestions for the final C.P.A. review. (Accounting exchange) Account-ing review, June 1939, p. 177-8. MOTT, WALTER K. Students' department. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 504.
- p. 504. PERCENTAGES of failure in examination—Reasons for failure—Specific causes of failure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 1660.
- PRELIMINARY examinations. (Editorial) Jour-

New York

- New York C.P.A. examination—April, 1939. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 46-54. MAUTNER, OSCAR. C.P.A. auditing answers to 86th examination, copy of which appears in the second issue of the Accounting ledger. Ac-counting lcdger, Feb. 1939, p. 36-43. MYER, JOSEPH C. New York C.P.A. theory questions with answers; revised and supplemented by Andrew Nelson. Brooklyn, N. Y., Standard text press, c1938. 640p. NEW YORK (state) University 87th accountant examination. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 32-6.
- NEW YORK (state) University 88th accountant examination. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 22-32.
- NEW YORK EW YORK (state) University Examination questions, April, October 1936; April, October 1937; April, October 1938; April, October 1939. Typewritten.
- NULL, SAMUEL. New York C.P.A. commercial law questions, 1924-1933; with answers prepared by Samuel Null. 2v. New York, C.P.A. ex-aminations review, c1937. not paged. ______Same, 1934-1938. v3. not paged. SEIDMAN, HENRY L. New C.P.A. auditing questions, 1924-1933, with answers. 2v. New

- EXAMINATIONS-C.P.A.-New York-(Continued) York, C.P.A. examinations review, c1936. not paged.
 - paged. Same, 1934-1938. v3. not paged. SEIDMAN, HENRY L. New York C.P.A. ques-tions in theory of accounts, 1924-1933, with answers. 2v. New York C.P.A. examinations review, c1936. not paged. SUCCESSFUL candidates at New York state C.P.A. examinations, October 1938. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 248-56

 - 56. SUCCESSFUL candidates at New York state C.P.A. examinations, April 1939. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 10-15.
 - Ohio DICKERSON, WILLIAM E. 1935 supplement to Ohio C.P.A. problems and solutions; state-ment of and solutions to the practical accounting problems given by the Ohio state board of ac-countancy on the May and November, 1935 exam-inations. Columbus, Ohio, Ohio state university book store a 1936 not named.

Virginia BAUMANN, H. P., ed. Virginia C.P.A. exam-ination. (Students' department) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1936, p. 460-71.

Canada

- anada
 CANADIAN SOCIETY OF COST ACCOUNTANTS AND INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERS.
 Examinations. Cost and management, Aug. 1936, p. 237.45; Nov. 1936, p. 329.33.
 CARR, AUSTIN H. Accountancy examinations of Canada. (In American institute of accountants, Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 233-40.) Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 362.73.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF MANITOBA. Examinations, May 1936. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 504-14.
- 1936. Ca
- p. 504-14. PROBLEMS and solutions. (Students' department) See each issue of the Canadian chartered accoun-tant, beginning January 1936.

Civil service CIVIL SERVICE HOME STUDIES, INC. Ac-countant (grade 2, New York City) actual pre-vious civil service problems with solutions—also questions and answers based on local tax laws. New York, (The) Chief, c1938. 34 mimeo-graphed pages.

Federal institute of accountants FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Examination regulations, 1939. Melbourne, Fed-eral institute of accountants, 1939. 19p.

- Great Britain CAFFYN, HAROLD R. Accountancy examina-tions of Great Britain. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 241-9.)
- Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales CAUSES of failure in examinations. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 201

 - student und Accountains journal, and 1990, p. 30-1. EXAMINATIONS of the Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales. Accountaint student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 264-7. INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Ex-aminations of the Institute of chartered ac-countants held in May 1937. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 80-4. INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Ques-

tions set at the final examination of the Institute tions set at the final examination of the Institute of chartered accountants in May, 1935. Accoun-tants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 697-704; March 1936, p. 860-3. PERCENTAGES of failure in examination—Rea-sons for failure—Specific causes of failure. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p.

166-9

SHALL I pass? Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 161-2. SOME causes of failure in examinations. Accoun-tant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 17-8.

- Institute of cost and works accountants INSTITUTE OF COST AND WORKS AC-COUNTANTS. Examination costing question papers. June 1936: Cost accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 72-82. Dec. 1937: Cost accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 286-9. June 1937: Cost accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 79-82. Dec. 1937: Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 297-301. June 1938: Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 297-301. June 1938: Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 297-301. June 1938: Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 298-5. Dec. 1938: Cost accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 281-5. June 1939: Cost accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 75-8. INSTITUTE OF COST AND WORKS AC-COUNTANTS. Report of examiners, June 1937, examination. Cost accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 73-9.
 - 73-9.

- Municipal accounting AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 Special committee on governmental accounting. Special accountancy examinations. Certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 3-4.
 SPECIAL examinations for C.P.A.'s. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 76-7.
 TURNER, CHARLES D. Special examinations for C.P.A.'s. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1938, p. 183-4.

Scotland

- cottand SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD, Papers set, December 1935. Accountants' magasine, Jan. 1936, p. 37-80. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, May 1936. Accountants' magasine, June 1936, p. 381-424.
- p. 381-424. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, December 1936. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 35-80. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, May 1937. Accountants' magazine, June 1937, p. 339-80. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, May 1937. Accountants' magazine, June 1937, p. 339-80.
- Scottish Chartered Accountants' magazine, June 1937, p. 339-80.
 Scottish Chartered Accountants' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, December 1937. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 43-88
 Scottish Chartered Accountants' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, May 1938. Accountants' magazine, June 1938, p. 381-424.
 Scottish Chartered Accountants' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, December 1938. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 41-84.
 Scottish CHARTERED Accountants' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, December 1938. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 41-84.
 Scottish CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, May 1939. Accountants' magazine, June 1939, p. 377-420.
 Scottish CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' CENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Papers set, May 1939. Accountants' magazine, June 1939, p. 377-420.

- p. 377-420. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Solutions to papers set, December 1935. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 124-36: March 1936, p. 332-200; April 1936, p. 260-72; May 1936, SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' CENERAL EVAMINING BOARD Solutions
- p. 332-6. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Solutions to papers set May 1936. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 461-72; Aug. 1936, p. 514-32; Nov. 1936, p. 583-96; Dec. 1936, p. 642-8. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Solutions to papers set, December 1936. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 127-36; March 1937,

EXAMINATIONS-Scotland-(Continued)

178-92; April 1937, p. 234-48; May 1937, p. 292-6. SCOTTISH

- 292-6. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD, Solutions to papers set, May 1937. Accountants' maga-zine, July 1937, p. 431-40; Aug. 1937, p. 485-96; Nov. 1937, p. 543-56; Dec. 1937, p. 605-12. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD, Solutions to papers set, December 1937. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 257-64; May 1938, p. 331-44. SCOTTISH CHARTERED

- 331.44. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Solutions to papers set, May 1938. Accountants' magazine, July 1938, p. 571.84; Dec. 1938, p. 510-28; Nov. 1938, p. 571.84; Dec. 1938, p. 626-32. SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD. Solutions to papers set, December 1938. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 135-52; March 1939, p. 208-24; April 1939, p. 269-80; May 1939, p. 330-6. 330-6
- 530-05. COTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GENERAL EXAMINING BOARD, Solutions to papers set, May 1939. Accountants' magazine, July 1939, p. 470-84; Aug. 1939, p. 531-40; Nov. 1939, p. 584-92; Dec. 1939, p. 636-48. SCOTTISH

- Society of incorporated accountants and auditors BACK, W. J. Examination questions. Accountancy, June 1939, p. 340-3. SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Examinations held on 5th, 6th and 7th May 1936. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 46.8
 - SOCIETY INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Examinations held on the 4th, 5th and 6th May 1937. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1937, 47-51.
 - D. TANTS AND AUDITORS. Results of exami-nations held in May 1936. Accountant, July 4,

 - nations held in May 1936. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 8-9. SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Revision of exami-nation syllabus. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 33-6. SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Syllabus of exami-nations, October 31st, November 1st, 2nd, and 3rd, 1938, and notes in regard to qualifying as an incorporated accountant. London, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, July 1938. 24n. 24p.
- EXAMINATIONS. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, April 1937, p. 353-4.
- EXAMINATIONS of the Institute of chartered ac-countants in England and Wales. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 264-7.
- EXCESS PROFITS See Profits.
- EXCESS PROFITS TAX See Taxation, Great Britain—Profits; Taxation, United States—Excess profits.
- EXCESS profits tax regulations (S. R. & O., 1939, no. 1734) Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 20, 1939, p. 479.
- EXCHANGE depreciation, its theory and its history, 1931-35, with some consideration of related domestic policies. Harris, S. E.
- EXCHANGE equalisation account. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 130-1.

EXCISE TAXES See Taxation—Excise, under various states and countries.

- EXECUTION of trusts (emergency provisions) act. Accountant, Oct. 28, 1939, p. 452-4.
- EXECUTIVE compensation practices of retail com-panies, 1928-1937, by John Calhoun Baker. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.
- EXECUTIVE guidance of industrial relations. Balderston, C. Canby.
- EXECUTIVE salaries and bonus plans. Baker, John Calhoun.

- EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEES See also Banks and banking—Trust companies and departments; Taxation—Estates and trusts; Taxation—Inheritance (under names of coun-

 - and departments; Taxation—Estates and trusts; Taxation—Inheritance (under names of countries and states)
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Insurance trusts under inheritance and estate tax laws. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 72-3, 118.
 AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Trust division. Guide to trust fees, with recommended cost accounting system; schedule of 1932, revised in 1936. New York, American bankers associa-tion, 1936. 52p.
 BETT, F. W. Chat with an executor. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 414-8.
 BLAMEY, FRANK. Some red light signals in the administration of trust estates. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 17-22.
 DRISCOLL, JOHN J., Jr. Profitable fee basis for trust services; developing rate structures based on local costs analysis. Trust companies, Nov. 1936, p. 591-7.
 FRIEDLAND, M. N. Irrevocable trusts: observa-tions and comments. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 326-8, 366-9.
 GREEN, VARIAN S. Trend of decisions and legislation affecting the corporate trustee. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 704-8, 761.
 HARRIS, HOMER I. Estates practice guide. New York, Baker, Voorhis & co., 1939, 1281p.
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Receivers, trustees and taxes. (reprinted from New Jersey law journal, June 9, 1938.)
 SMITH, B. G. Corporate trusteeships criticized

 - and taxes. (reprinted from New Jersey law journal, June 9, 1938.) SMITH, B. G. Corporate trusteeships criticized by securities commission. Controller, July 1936, p. 158, 160-3. WOLFE, S. HERBERT, comp. Inheritance tax calculations, an explanation of the underlying principles with tables and instructions for ascer-taining the present value of dower and curtesy rights, life estates, annuities vested and con-tingent remainders upon the Northampton, Carlisle, actuaries, American experience, Amer-ican men ultimate and other tables of mortality at various rates of interest, with brief analysis of the inheritance tax laws of the various states and territories, originally compiled by S. Herbert Wolfe and William M. Corcoran. New York, Baker, Voorhis & co., 1937. 246p.
- Accounting ACCOUNTS of trustees. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 93-5.
 BRIGGS, GARLAND B. Economies in trust accounting; punch cards simplify records and facilitate preparation of statements. Trust com-panies, May 1937, p. 551-3.
 DÖDGE, CHESTER J. AND SULLIVAN, JOHN F. Estate administration and accounting. New York, New York university, The author, c1937. 522p.
 - EXPLANATION on balance-sheet of advances to trustee. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 303-6. FIDUCIARY accounting; round table meeting.
 - New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7.
 - p. 24-7. GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Accounting for decedents' estates and trusts. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 415-37.) CONDUCTION DUDLEY. editor. Alloca-
 - p. *13-37...) HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Alloca-tion of dividend to income. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 148-51. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Appor-

EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEES-Accounting-(Cont.) tionment of mortgage foreclosure proceeds. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 71-5; Feb. 1938, p. 160-4. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Effective date of trust income. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 405-6; Jan. 1939, o. 475

- GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Sum-mary of rules re allocation of extraordinary dividends. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy,

- dividends, (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 232-5. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Wasting intangible assets. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 466-7. HAMMERSMITH, ALFRED E. Accounting valuation of trust assets; inventory and ap-praisal basis soundest-uniformity desirable. Trust companies, Nov. 1938, p. 596-8. HARRIS, HOMER I. Accounting. (In his Estates practice guide. 1939, p. 879-992.) HARROW, BENJAMIN Some accounting prob-lems presented by the New York estate tax. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 159-64. 159-64.
- p. 159-64. HECKL, E. C. Treatment of fiduciary accounts by bankers. National auditgram, April 1939, p. 11-4.
- p. 11-4. JUDD, ORRIN R. Problems in connection with
- real estate in accounts of fiduciaries. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 27-9, KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Stock dividends in trust distributions. Accounting review, June
- trust distributions. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 93-104. LANGER, CHARLES H. AND GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY. Accounting principles and procedure on estate accounting; lectures 44 and 45. Chicago, Ill., Walton school of commerce, c1936. not paged. LINDSAY, MAURICE M. Probate accounting. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1936. 145p. NEWHALL, GUY. Court accounting and allow-ances; an outline of effective procedure for protection of beneficiary and trustee-dangers of rigidity. Trust companies, April 1938, p. 409-14.

- ROSBE, ROBERT L. Corpus and income in trust accounting. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 374-81.

- accounting. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 374-81.
 RUDD, GEORGE HARVEY. System of records and accounts for trust estates. Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 1, 3-8.
 SAXE, EMANUEL. Estate accounting. New York, The author, 1939, 244p.
 Cumulative supplement (through August 31, 1939.) 12p.
 SAXE, EMANUEL. Review questions and problems on estate accounting. New York, The author, 1939. 40p.
 SCHULKIND, EDWARD B. AND WIENER, RALPH HERBERT. Accounting problems of mortgages foreclosed by trustee; allocation of proceeds and charges—New York cases. Trust companies, Feb. 1936, p. 131-6.
 SHERRITT, LAWRENCE W. Accounting for corpus and income. New York, The author, 1937. 97p.
 SULLIVAN, JOHN F. Preparation of court accounts by a fiduciary. Accounting ledger, April 1938, p. 5-8, 29.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANN C. Accounting for estates and trusts. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938, p. 539-56.)

- 539-56.)
- 539-56.) TYLER, ARTHUR B. Discharging liability upon accounting; final determination and adjudication of trustee accounts in Massachusetts. Trust companies, April 1937, p. 447-51. VIRGINIA. Auditor of public accounts. Manual of uniform system of accounting for clerks of courts of the commonwealth of Virginia. Rich-mond, Va., Auditor of public accounts, 1937. 36n 36p.

----- Uniform methods

| NATIONAL | | RENCE OF | |
|----------|-------|-----------|----------|
| SIONERS | ON UN | IFORM STA | TE LAWS. |

Uniform trustees' accounting act, drafted by the National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws and by it approved and recommended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936; approved by the American bar association at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936. Chicago, Ill., National con-ference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936, 16p. 1936. 16p.

Auditin

SAXE, EMANUEL. Audit of estate and trust accounts. (In his *Estate accounting*, 1939. p. 163-9.)

Australia

- ustralia
 IRISH, RONALD A. Snapshots in executorship accounts; advancement and hotchpot. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 165-7.
 MacDONALD, O. R. Examination problems on executorship accounts. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 457-60.
 TURNER, R. S. Basis of assessment of income derived by an executor. Australian accountant, April 1939, p. 192-7.
 YOUNG, N. S. Audit of solicitors' trust accounts (South Australia) Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Feb. 1937, p. 631-9.
 YOUNG, N. S. Rights, duties and responsibilities of trustees in bankruptcy and the organization of a trustee's office. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 840-7.

Canada

- anada DILLON, W. ROY. Wills and executorships in the province of Quebec. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 86-94.
 MORROW, T. A. Accounts of executors and trustees. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1936, p. 391-413; July 1936, p. 21-8.

- Great Britain
 ANNAN, WILLIAM. Apportionment difficulties
 and inconsistencies. Accountants' magazine, Nov.
 1936, p. 541-54; Dec. 1936, p. 607-17.
 EXECUTORS and trustees and unit trusts. Accountant, Sept. 12, 1936, p. 361-3.
 HUSSEY, ALBERT V. Practical aspects of the
 duties of trustees, liquidators and receivers.
 Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p.
 444.0
- 444-9.
 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; accounts of executors and trustees for presenta-tion to the beneficiaries. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, June 1937, p. 348-50.
 LONGCROFT, R. G. Few observations upon the duties of an ordinary trustee. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 370-4.
 ROYSTON, R. Changing of trust investments. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 170-1.
 TRUSTEES' remuneration for professional serv-ices. Accountant, Feb. 26, 1938, p. 282-3. Ac-countants' journal, July 1938, p. 10-11.
 WESTBY-NUNN, EDWARD. Trusts and trustees. Incorporated accountants' journal; Jan. 1336, p. 119-21.

Law

- Australia Australia BENNETO, C. A. Law relating to apportionment. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1938, p. 556-64. HAYES, J. E. Some aspects of executorship law. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1936,
- Chartered accountant in Analysis, and provide the provisions of the Queensland companies act of 1931. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1937, p. 952-9.

- Great Britain DOYLE, NORMAN. Executorship law; rule as to lapsed share of residue. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 211-3. EXECUTION of trusts (emergency provisions) act. Accountant, Oct. 28, 1939, p. 452-4.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

- EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEES-Law-Great Britain-(Continued)
 - GREAT BRITAIN. Execution of trusts (emer-gency provisions) act 1939; an act to facilitate the execution of trusts during the period of present emergency. Accountant, Oct. 28, 1939,
 - p. 466-7. LYDE, H. W. Executorship and trustee law. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 9-13.

- New York GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Alloca-tion of proceeds of unproductive property. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 340-3.
- (Legal notes) Johnnes of the state of New York decedents estates. New York, Central Hanover bank and trust company, c1938. loose leaf. NEW YORK (state). Surrogate's court act of the state of New York and the Decedent estate law of the state of New York, with 1936 amendments. Brooklyn, N. Y., Eagle library, inc. c1036. 88D. inc., c1936. 88p. Same, with 1937 amendments. 88p. Same, with 1938 amendments. 96p.

Pennsylvania TRAYLOR, ORBA F. AND DICKERSON, THOMAS M. Allocation of stock dividends; chaotic state of trust accounting law under Pennsylvania rule. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 697-701.

United States ACCOUNTS of trustees. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 93-5. FINAL draft of uniform trustees' accounting act;

- FINAL draft of uniform trustees' accounting act; salient provisions of act approved by National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws. Trust companies, Nov. 1936, p. 578-82.
 GOLSAN, PAGE. Protection for corporate trustees; the reliance clauses and certificates of value. Trusts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 615-20. Reprinted by Ford, Bacon and Davis, inc. 7n.
- 615-20. Reprinted by Ford, Bacon and Davis, inc. 7p. NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMIS-SIONERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS. Uniform trustees' accounting act, drafted by the National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws and by it approved and rec-ommended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936; approved by the American bar association at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936. Chicago, Ill., National con-ference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936. 16p.
- August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, Ill., National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936, 16p.
 POSNER, LOUIS S. Trustee and the trust in denture: a further study. Yale law journal, March 1937, p. 737-800.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 253—76th congress) (chapter 411, 1st session (S. 2065); an act to provide for the regulation of the sale of certain securities in interstate and foreign commerce and through the mails, and the regulation of the trust indentures under which the same are issued, and for other purposes . . "Trust indenture act of 1939." (approved August 3, 1939.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 32p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and regulations under the trust indenture act of 1939. UNISION. General rules and regulations under the trust indenture act of 1939. D. C., Securities and exchange commission. General rules and regulations under the trust indenture act of 1939. D. C., Securities and exchange commission (1939). 10 mimeographed pages, and forms T-1, T-2, and T-3.

- New Zealand WILLS, E. P. Some problems arising from the administration of trust estates in farm lands. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 567-72.
- EXECUTORS and trustees and unit trusts. Accountant, Sept. 12, 1936, p. 361-3.
- EXHIBIT of pathfinder simplified bookkeeping sys-tems for doctors and dentists. Hadley, Charles R., company.

EXHIBITIONS

See Fairs and expositions.

EXPENDITURE

- DEFINITION of "expenditure." Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 16.
- EXPENDITURE on air raid precautions. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 331-2.
- EXPENSE and capital determined from poorly kept records. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1937, p. 225-7.
- EXPENSE budgeting; round table discussion. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 38-45.)
- EXPENSE control for automobile fleets. Chambers, Robert K.
- EXPENSE manual; a manual of expense accounting for retail stores. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.

EXPENSES

- XPENSES
 See also Administrative expenses; Costs; Distribution costs; Selling expenses.
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION.
 Financial advisory service. Reporting current
 income and expenditures. Washington, D. C.,
 American council on education, August 1937.
 21p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v.
 1, no. 10.)
 BAIEVSKY, BORIS. Deferred charges and prepaid expenses. (Correspondence) Journal of
 accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 184-5.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting for.
 costs and expenses. (In his Accounting for.
 costs and expenses. (In his Accounting for.
 costs and expenses. (In his Accounting for.
 CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. Incidence of expense as related to the standard cost concept.
 Mational accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 6-7, 30.
 CHOW, Y. C. Concept of expense. Accounting
 review, Dec. 1939, p. 340-9.
 EAKIN, FRANZY. Control of capital expenditures. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 272-5.
 EXPENSE and capital determined from poorly
 kept records. (Accounting questions) Journal of
 accountancy, SEP. 1937, p. 225-7.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Expenditures, assets and
 income—Problems of expenditure and cost. (In
 his Accounting concepts of profit. c1936, p.
 289-341.)
 PETTIT, R. D. Expense control. Illinois manu-

- 289-341.)
- 289-341.)
 PETTIT, R. D. Expense control. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 1-2, 4-5.
 WEDDERSPOON, W. M. Survey of case law on capital and revenue expenditure. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 249-51.
- EXPENSES and profits of food chains in 1935. Harvard university. Graduate school of busi-ness administration. Bureau of business research.
- EXPENSES and profits of limited price variety chains in 1936, by Malcolm P. McNair. Harvard university. Graduate school of business admin-istration. Bureau of business research.
- EXPERT evidence by the accountant. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 423-5.
- EXPERT evidence in auditing. Accountant, April 11, 1936, p. 576.

EXPERT TESTIMONY See Evidence.

- EXPLANATION on balance-sheet of advances to trustee. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 303-6.
- EXPLANATORY federal income tax returns. Sin-clair, Murray and company, inc.

EXPORT AND IMPORT TRADE

- XPORT AND IMPORT IRADE See also Commerce. DAVIES, H. V. Government help for exporters. Accountant, May 15, 1937, p. 700-3. LATTMAN, WALTER. Some difficulties of ex-port trade. (summary of address given to Tor-onto members of the Canadian society of cost accountants and industrial engineers on Feb. 22, 1938.) Canadian chartered accountant, April 1938 p. 257-60. 1938, p. 257-60.

Statistics

BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for importers. (In his Practical credit analysis. c1939. p. 61.)

EXPOSITIONS

See Fairs and expositions.

EXPRESS COMPANIES

See also Haulage; Motor transportation; Motor trucks; Trucking.

Accounting

- counting UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce com-mission. Order—in the matter of a uniform system of accounts to be kept by express com-panies. Washington, D. C., Interstate commerce commission, March 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
- EXPULSION. Ce 1938, p. 2-5. Certified accountants' journal, Jan.

EXTENSIONS for capital stock tax returns. Certi-fied public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 15-6.

- EXTENSIONS of auditing procedure. American in-stitute of accountants. Special committee on auditing procedure.
- EXTENSIONS of auditing procedure. New York state society of certified public accountants. Special committee on auditing practice and procedure.
- EXTENSIONS of auditing procedure. (Correspond-ence) Glover, P. W. R.
- EXTENSIONS of auditing procedure. (Correspondence) Lee, Earle Goodrich.

EXTENSIONS of auditing procedure. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 333-4.

EXTERMINATOR SERVICE

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of exterminator service con-cerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 69x.)
- EXTERNAL check on local finances. Baldwin, Arthur L.
- **RACT** from an opinion delivered by Surrogate Delehanty in the case of Estate of William H. Dennis. New York law journal, Feb. 15, 1936, EXTRACT p. 827.
- EXTRACTS from the stock corporation law, gen-eral corporation law, tax law, executive law and penal law. New York (state). State, Department
- EXTRAVAGANCE of relief expenditures--New Jer--Example to the whole country. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 81-4.

FABRICANT, SOLOMON

- Capital consumption and adjustment. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1938. 271p.
- Measures of capital consumption, 1919-1933. National bureau of economic research bulletin no. 60, June 30, 1936, p. 1-13. On the treatment of corporate savings in the

measurement of national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 113-42.) Revaluations of fixed assets, 1925-1934. National bureau of economic research bulletin no. 62, Dec. 7, 1936, p. 1-11.

FABRICS See Textiles.

- FACHAUSDRUCKE des rechnungswesens, des prü-fungs- und treuhandwesens (technical terms of accounting and verification) Goetze, Peter.
- FACING the tax problem. Twentieth century fund, inc.

FACKLER, CLARENCE W. Some limitations of production cost as a price fixing base. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 33-7.

FACTORIES

- ACTORIES FISKE, WYMAN P. Cash for plant replacements? Factory management and maintenance, Nov. 1936, p. 54, 78, 80, 82. MOGENSEN, ALLAN H. New trends in plant layout and their effect on burden distribution. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 164-81.)

Australia

- JACKSON, J. W. H. Factors in factory produc-tion. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 391-
- 400.
 400.
 POOLE, E. C. Factory organisation and control. Australian accountant, April 1939, p. 171-9.
 RICHARDSON, W. S. Plant and machinery con-trol. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 177-83.
 STONIER, K. N. Plant control including the treatment of depreciation. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 754-66.

Canada CHARLESWORTH, J. L. Centralized control and decentralized management. Canadian char-tered accountant, July 1936, p. 29-32.

Costs

- osts GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of factory administration costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 409-27.) KAHN, MORITZ. What type of plant to build. Factory management and maintenance, April 1937, p. 51-5. NEW methods that cut factory costs. (Reprinted from Factory management and maintenance).

- NEW methods that cut factory costs. (Reprinted from Factory management and maintenance.) 92p. no date. OFFICERS' salaries in construction of new plant. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 474-5.

- Great Britain
 DANIEL, R. W. Factory acts and the new factory. Cost accountant, March 1937, p. 312-4.
 KINVIG, E. JAMES. Works organisation and layout. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 46-9.
 PHILLIPS, P. Main features of the factories act, 1937. Cost accountant, Jan 1938, p. 249-55.
 ROSS, H. W. Factory organisation and its rela-tion to works accountancy. Corporate accountant, July 1938, p. 102-10.
 STARK, R. C. Accountant in his relation to factory management. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 82-5. Indian accountant, May 1938, p. 172-4.
 STILL, G. E. Factory organisation and manage-ment. Cost accountant, March 1939, p. 304-13.
 THOMAS, H. J. General problems in works organisation. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 44-5.

Management GUNTHER, C. F. Planning and production con-trol in the factory. Society for the advancement of management journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 94-7.
 HATHAWAY, KING. Applied scientific manage-ment-16; function of the works manager and

FACTORIES-Management-(Continued)

- ACTORIES—Management—(Continued) the activities falling within his jurisdiction. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1939, p. 74-9. LIST of factors affecting quality—time—cost, prepared by a group of production men. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 750-1.) NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TURERS. Constructive industrial practices; re-port of the N.A.M. committee on industrial practices. New York, National association of manufacturers, May 1939. 37p.
- manufacturers, May 1939. 37p. NEW methods that cut factory costs. (Reprinted from Factory management and maintenance)
- 92p. no date. REITELL, CHARLES. How to be a good fore-man. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 186p.

Valuation

MARSTON, ANSON and AGG, THOMAS R. Valuation of private industrial property and examples. (In their *Engineering valuation*, 1936. p. 420-54.)

FACTORING

- ACTORING See also Automobile finance companies; Consignments; Credit companies; Finance companies.
 ACHELIS, JOHNFRITZ. Factoring. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 147-50, discussion, p. 151-7.
 ACHELIS, JOHNFRITZ. Factoring's growth. (from Banking) Credit and financial management, Feb. 1937, p. 32, 35.
 HILLYER, WILLIAM HURD. Credit validation —the keynote of modern factoring. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 274-5.
 HILLYER, WILLIAM HURD. Factors, finance companies and others; an analytical survey. Credit executive, July 1939, p. 204-6.
 JONES, OWEN T. Factoring. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 186-9.
 LEONARD, FREDERICK M. Factoring for the paper industry. Paper trade journal, Dec. 2, 1937, p. 22-4.
 WOOLLEY, E. S. One way to make loans bankable. Banking, Jan. 1939, p. 28-9.

ccounting SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Illustrative stabilization of a factoring company. (In his Stabilized accounting, 1936. p. 128-68.)

Statistic

BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for factors. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939. p. 131, 143, 146, 151.)

FACTORY ACCOUNTING See Cost and factory accounting.

FACTORY MANAGEMENT

See Factories-Management.

FACTORY OVERHEAD See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead.

FAGEANT, LEONARD WILLIAM Gifts to institutions; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 97-104. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1938, p. 14-23.

FAGERBERG, DIXON, JR. President's message to members of the Arizona society of public accountants, November 11, 1939. 8 typewritten pages.

FAHEY, JAMES E. Income tax definition of "reorganization". Colum-bia law review, June 1939, p. 933-69.

FAILURES

See Business failures.

FAILURES in C.P.A. examinations. (Editor Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 407-9. (Editorial)

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS

See Labor-Law and regulation.

- FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
 AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES. Interpretative bulletin no 1, under the wage and hour law. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, Oct. 15, 1938. 2p. (Current news bulletin)
 AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES. Regulations covering learners, apprentices, messengers and handicapped workers under fair labor standards act. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, Oct. 15, 1938. 3p. (Current news bulletin)
 FELLER, ALEXANDER, and HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to operate under the wage-hour law. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., e1938. 248p.

 - law. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1930. 248p.
 MARSH, SAM A. Fair labor standards act of 1938. 24 typewritten pages.
 MEDER, ALBERT E. Analysis of provisions of Connery fair labor standards bill. Controller, July 1937, p. 192-5.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Public—no. 718— 75th congress—chapter 676—3d session (S 2475); an act to provide for the establishment of fair labor standards in employments in and affecting interstate commerce, and for other purposes. (approved June 25, 1938.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 11p.

FAIR TRADE

See Competition; Prices.

FAIR trade, with especial reference to cut-rate drug prices in Michigan. Gault, Edgar H.

FAIRMAN, J. F. Engineering and accounting economics. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 452-3,

FAIRS AND EXPOSITIONS

FAIRS AND EXPOSITIONS
Accounting
MCCAFFREY, GEORGE D. Accounting control at the New York world's fair. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1483.96.)
MCCAFFREY, GEORGE D. Accounting control of a world's fair. National auditgram, April 1937, p. 9-11.

FALKNER, ROLAND P. Income and other taxes of individuals and cor-porations, 1929-34. Bulletin of the National tax association, Oct. 1936, p. 24-6.

FALLACY of selling below cost. Wellington, C. Oliver.

FALLIN, HERBERT Long term financial planning. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 47-52.

FALLON, E. J. Advantage of an office manual. Federal accoun-tant, Sept. 1939, p. 503-4.

FALSE security; the betrayal of the American investor. Reis, Bernard J.

FALSE STATEMENTS See Fraud.

- FAMILIAR controversy. (Correspondence) Pollock, Walter W.
- FAMILIAR controversy. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Dec. 1937, p. 401-3.

FANNING, W. M.

General considerations of a standard cost pro-cedure. Cost and management, May 1939, p. 160-7.

FANSHAW, A. J. J. Some thoughts on the balance sheet. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 346-53, chartered accountant, discussion, p. 353-61.

FARICY, WILLIAM T.

Importation of values through the use of unit rule formulae. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1937, p. 251-68.)

FARM

See Agriculture.

- FARM CREDIT ADMINISTRATION See United States. Farm credit administration.
- FARM equipment manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

FARM IMPLEMENTS

See Agricultural machinery.

FARM LOAN ACT

See Agriculture-Credit.

FARM worker's monthly labor record. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1939, p. 7-8.

FARMERS COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATIONS See Cooperative stores and associations.

FARMING

See Agriculture.

FARREL, A. C

KREL, A. C. Standards and wage incentives for office activities. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 8, section 1, p. 426-36.) Printed with: Sabin, R. M. Standard distribution costs.

FASTENERS, SLIDE

- FASTENERS, SLIDE
 Budgeting
 POULTON, P. K. and GOLDSMITH, P. H.
 Budgeting for profit. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1939, p. 52-6, 120, 122.
 POULTON, P. K. and GOLDSMITH, P. H.
 Budgeting inventories and stabilizing employ-ment. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1939, p. 52-5.
 POULTON, P. K. and GOLDSMITH, P. H.
 Budgeting to cut unit costs. Factory management and maintenance, ment and maintenance, Oct. 1939, p. 48-52, 122-4.

FATIGUE

See Time study.

FAVINGER, CALVIN E. AND WILCOX, DANIEL A. Social security taxation and records. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 649p.

FAVRET, JAMES R.

- Social security act and what it requires of you. National real estate journal, Jan. 1937, p. 35-6.
- FAYLOR, HOMER O., joint author See Rowland, Charles J. and Faylor, Homer O.

- FAZAKERLEY, T. W. Measuring the efficiency cost of salesmen. Char-tered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p.
- FEDDE, A. S.
 Accountants' certificates. (for American institute of accountants, round table session, September 28, 1939.) 3 typewritten pages. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 81-2.)
 Accountants reports and the banker. December 12, 1938. 11 typewritten pages.
 Ambit of the duties and responsibilities of the certified public accountant. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 43-7.
 Interpretation of insurance company statements for investors. New York, Fedde and co., c1937. 12p.

 - 12p.

- Mere bookkeeping entries. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 13.4.
 Natural business year; what it will mean to the credit man, to the accountant, and to the concern and its whole staff. Credit executive, June 1936, p. 169-71.
 Required reinvestment of earnings. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 370-6.
 Statement of accounting principles. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 328-9.

FEDERA, H. APPLETON Inheritance taxation after the Green case. Taxes —the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 267-8, 314. Multiple domicile in inheritance taxation. Taxes —the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 142-4, 185-6.

- FEDERACION DE COLEGIOS DE DOCTORES EN CIENCIAS ECONOMICAS Y CONTADORES PUBLICOS NACIONALES
 - PUBLICOS NACIONALES Estatutos de la Federacion de Colegios de doctores en ciencias economicas y Contadores publicos nacionales. Buenos Aires, Federacion de-Colegios de doctores en ciencias economicas y Contadores publicos nacionales, 1936. 16p.
- FEDERAL ACCOUNTANT: official organ of the Federal institute of accountants (Australia) Mel-bourne, Aus., Federal accountant publishing co., ltd.
- FEDERAL accounting and auditing. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 187.

FEDERAL AGENCIES See Government.

- FEDERAL and state income taxes as an element of cost. Arisman, George M.
- FEDERAL antitrust laws and related acts affecting interstate commerce. Trade association executives in New York city.
- FEDERAL bankruptcy act, including the Chandler act. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION See United States. Federal communications commission.
- FEDERAL debt and expenditure. Chamber of com-merce of the United States of America.
- FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION See Deposit insurance.
- FEDERAL government accounting. (Correspondence) Morey, Lloyd.
- FEDERAL government accounting. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 163-4.
- FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOARD See United States. Federal home loan bank board.
- FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS See Banks and banking—Federal home loan banks.
- FEDERAL HOUSING ADMINISTRATION See United States. Federal housing administration.
- FEDERAL income tax accounting. McMullen, Stewart Varwood.
- FEDERAL income tax assessment act of 1936, being five short papers on different aspects of the act read at a meeting of the society on Wednes-day, 3th July, 1936. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (incorpo-rated), 1936. 32p.
- FEDERAL income tax handbook, 1936-1937. Mont-gomery, Robert H.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

- FEDERAL income tax handbook, 1938-1939. Montgomery, Robert H.
- FEDERAL income tax information relating to fiscal year changes of corporations. Johns, Ralph S.

FEDERAL income taxation. Thomas, Roscoe L.

FEDERAL INCORPORATION OF BUSINESS See Business-Government regulation and control.

- FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Examination regulations, 1939. Melbourne, Federal institute of accountants, 1939. 19p. List of members, year ended 31st December, 1935. Melbourne, Federal institute of accountants, 1936 99p 1936. 99p.
 - emorandum and articles of association. Mel-bourne, Federal institute of accountants, 1934. Memorandum 54p.
 - Reprint of the council and statement of accounts for the year ended 31st December, 1938. Melbourne, Federal institute of accountants, 1939. 19p.

FEDERAL LAND BANKS

See Agriculture-Credit.

- DERAL licensing act. (Editorial) Journal of Ac-countancy, Jan. 1937, p. 12-3. FEDERAL licensing act.
- FEDERAL licensing bill. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Feb. 1938, p. 92-4.
- FEDERAL LICENSING OF CORPORATIONS See Business—Government regulation and con-trol; Corporations—Law—United States.
- FEDERAL licensing of corporations. commerce of the United States. Chamber of
- FEDERAL licensing of corporations-O'Mahoney bill —Borah bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 168-71.
- FEDERAL licensing opening wedge? Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 7, 34.
- FEDERAL old-age benefits. United States. Social security board.
- FEDERAL old age security program. Altmeyer, A. J.

FEDERAL POWER ACT See Public utility act of 1935.

FEDERAL POWER COMMISSION See United States. Federal power commission.

- FEDERAL regulation of family settlements. Magill, Roswell.
- FEDERAL RESERVE BANK OF ST. LOUIS
 - Federal reserve system today. St. Louis, Mo., Federal reserve bank of St. Louis, March 1936. 40p.
- FEDERAL RESERVE BANKS See Banks and banking-Federal reserve banks.
- FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD See United States. Federal reserve system, Board of governors.
- FEDERAL revenue laws, January 1936. Commerce clearing house, inc.

FEDERAL revenue legislation, the undistributed profits tax. Alvord, Ellsworth C.

- FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS See Building and loan and savings associations.
- FEDERAL savings and loan insurance corporation, Washington, D. C.; rules and regulations for insurance of accounts, August 21, 1936. United States. Federal home loan bank board.

FEDERAL SECURITIES ACT See Investment companies-Law-United States. FEDERAL social security act. Auld, George P.

- FEDERAL social security act and its administration. Castenholz, William B.
- FEDERAL -sation.

FEDERAL tax administration, 1939. Magill, Roswell.

FEDERAL tax commission. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, March 1939, p. 136.

FEDERAL tax course. Prentice-Hall, inc.

- FEDERAL tax law with explanatory digest; revenue act of 1936, as amended by revenue act of 1937. Prentice-Hall, inc.
- FEDERAL tax practice. Montgomery, Robert H. and others.
- FEDERAL tax revision program. American institute of accountants. Committee on federal taxation.
- FEDERAL tax service. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- FEDERAL tax service, cumulative. Prentice-Hall, inc.
- FEDERAL taxation of corporations. Seidman, Frank
- FEDERAL taxes in interim statements. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 18-9.
- FEDERAL taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1936-1937. Montgomery, Robert H. and Magill, Roswell.
- FEDERAL taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1938-1939. Montgomery, Robert H.

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION See United States. Federal trade commission.

- FEDERAL wages and hours law of 1938. Monthly labor review, July 1938, p. 107-12.
- FEDERGREEN, SOL Budget for a dress concern—its preparation and application. New York certified public accoun-tant, May 1939, p. 370-4.
- FEE for company investigation; accountant's claim. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 920-2; July 3, 1937, p. 22-3.

FEED

See Produce.

FEES

- See Wages, fees, etc.
- FEES (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

FEIGENBAUM, B. J., joint author See McLaren, Norman Loyall and Feigenbaum, B. J.

FELDMAN, GEORGE J., joint author See Zorn, Burton, A. and Feldman, George J.

FELDMAN, M. A. Separate accounting basis v. apportionment. Jour-nal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 324-8.

FELLER, ALEXANDER AND HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to deal with organized labor. New York Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 664p. How to operate under the wage-hour law. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1938. 248p. York, New

FELLER, JOHN E. O. Twenty-five years' development of federal income taxes. 12 typewritten pages.

222

FELLS, H. J.

- come tax in India. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 61-3. Income tax in India.
- FENNELL, WILLIAM G. Protective committees and deposit agreements in railroad reorganizations. Yale law journal, Dec. 1939, p. 224-40.

FENNINGTON, K. P.

Cost of packaging. Accountant, Dec. 31, 1938, p. 895-6.

FENTON, J. RALPH
Multiple store inventory control as applied by a liquor store system. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 645-55.) Printed with: LaRose, Edmond S. Frozen capital made productive by inventory control control.

FERGER, WIRTH F. Windfall tax and processing tax refund provisions of the 1936 revenue act. American economic review, March 1937, p. 45-60.

FERGUSON, C. E. H.

Accountancy profession and the public. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 857-64.

FERGUSON, DONALD G., joint author See Francis, Bion H., and Ferguson, Donald G.

FERGUSON, DUNCAN C. Managerial control. Cost and management, July 1936, p. 194-214.

- FERGUSON, E. A. Writing of a report. Brisbane, Australia, Accoun-tants' and secretaries' educational society, Sept. 1936. 16p.
- FERGUSON, W. S. Labor incentives. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 11-6.

FERNALD, CHARLES E.

- Cost analysis; industry's compass. Profit, Feb. 1938, p. 1. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, June 1938, p. 15-6. Depreciation and plant ledgers. Profit, Sept. 1936,
- p. 1, 3-4. Natural business year. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chap-or decountants. ter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 66-77.)
- p. 66-77.)
 Natural business year—an aid to management; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 18-20, 1939.
 ytpe-written pages.
 Why not continuous audits? Credit and financial management, June 1936, p. 7, 34. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1936, p. 70-2.

FERNALD, HENRY B.

- Accounting records as related to income tax returns; opening presentation at round table dis-cussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 6 mimeographed pages. association, at Detroit. 6 mimeographed pages. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938.) p. 137-40.) (In National tax association. Round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938.) Annual depreciation allowances. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 456-60, 506-7. Constant pressure on some companies to depart from sound principles. Controller, May 1937, p. 127-8.

- 127-8.
 Education for the accountant. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 364-73.)
 Effect of the undistributed profits tax on corporation policies; address at spring conference of Controllers institute of America, New York City, April 29, 1937. 6 mimeographed pages.
 Fernald discusses proposed tax. Monthly bulletin, the New York state society of certified public accountants, April 1936, p. 2, 4.

- International tax problem. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 85-8, 120-2.
 Mine taxation—a symposium. Mining congress journal, March 1939.
 Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 150-3.
 Practical difficulties resulting from the surtax; address before round table—Surtax on undistributed corporate earnings, at 25th annual meeting of the Chamber of commerce of the United States, April 26-April 29, 1937, Washington, D. C. 9 mimeographed pages.
 Practical problems under the 1936 revenue act. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metamining convention of the American mining convention of the American mining convention of National metal trades association, New York City, April 23, 1936. 14 typewritten pages.
- pages.
- pages. Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Henry B. Fernald. New York certified public accoun-tant, Oct. 1936, p. 55-6, 61. Statement of Mr. Fernald presented to the finance
- committee on the revenue bill, May 4, 1936. 21 mimeographed pages. Surtax on undistributed corporate earnings; prac-

- Suitax on undistributed corporate earnings; practical difficulties encountered in attempting to apply the tax on undistributed profits. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 447-50, 498.
 Tax on undistributed profits imposed by the revenue act of 1936. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 22-45.
 Undistributed profits tax and its effect on credits. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 118-26.
 Undistributed profits tax as a practical problem of business. (paper presented at meeting of Brooklyn chapter, National association of cost accountants, November 15, 1937.) 21 mimeographed pages.
- graphed pages. What tax on undistributed earnings would mean to corporations. Controller, June 1936, p. 130-5, 142

FERNALD, HENRY B., PELOUBET, MAURICE E. AND NORTON, LEWIS M. Accounting for nonferrous metal mining proper-ties and their depletion. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 105-16.

FERRIE, G. C.

asic inventory values for certain industries. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. Basic 124-8.

FERTIG, ARTHUR How will the expansion of installment selling affect the balance sheet? (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 116-20.)

FERTIG, ARTHUR AND COMPANY Retail furniture business; annual review and forecast, 1939. New York, Arthur Fertig and co., c1939. 6p.

FERTILIZERS Statistics

attaics
INTED STATES. Works progress administratration. Selected information on manufacturers of chemicals and fertilizers giving assets over \$10,000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, June 1939. 66p. (Report no. 16.)

FETTER, FRANK A. Reformulation of the concepts of capital and income in economics and accounting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 3-12.

FEW points on debt redemption. Accountants' maga-zine, July 1937, p. 409-22.

FEWEST failures since 1920 recorded for 1935. Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, Jan. 1936, p. 31-9.

- FICK, K. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 452-3.
- FIDELITY INSURANCE

See Insurance-Surety and fidelity.

FIDUCIARIES

See also Executors and trustees.

- Accounting ALLEN, CHESTER A. Function of the public accountant in fiduciary accounting. (extracts) New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938,

 - New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 21-4. FIDUCIARY accounting: round table meeting. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7. HECKL, E. C. Treatment of fiduciary accounts by bankers. National auditgram, April 1939, p. 11-0. ULDD OPPIN B. Problems in connection with
 - JUDD, ORRIN R. Problems in connection with real estate in accounts of fiduciaries. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 27-9. MOLL, ARTHUR B. Income tax returns of fiduciaries. New York certified public accoun-tant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7.
- FIDUCIARY accounting; round table meeting. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7.

FIELD, KENNETH

Corporation finance. New York, Ronald press co., c1938, 529p. Undistributed profits tax and business fluctuations. *Tax magazine*, March 1937, p. 127-8.

- FIELDING, H. G.
- Buying organization and accounts payable. Bris-bane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, June 1939. 23p. (Printed with: Hill, S. A. Retail method of merchandise accounting. S. A. Retail method June 1939, p. 14-23.)
- FIFTH international congress on accounting. Canad-ian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 390-2. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 459-60. Indian accountant, Oct.-Nov. 1938, p. 9-14, 15-18.
- FIFTH international congress on accounting, Berlin. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 347-8. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 22-4.
- FIFTH international congress on accounting-Ber-lin; arrangements for business meetings. Accoun-tant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 357-8.
- FIFTH international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English. Ac-countancy, supplement, Oct. 1938. 24p. Accoun-tancy, supplement, Nov. 1938. 27p.
- FIFTH international congress on accounting; wel-come to foreign delegates, Monday afternoon, 19th September. Accountant, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 492.
- FIFTIETH anniversary. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1937, p. 167.
- FIFTIETH anniversary celebration. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 247-9; Nov. 1937, p. 321.
- FIFTIETH anniversary celebration, 1937. American institute of accountants.
- FIFTIETH anniversary celebration of the American institute of accountants. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 3-7.
- FIFTIETH anniversary celebrations. Accountant, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 561-4.

- FIFTIETH anniversary of professional accountancy; American institute of accountants and New York state society of certified public accoun-tants join in anniversary celebration. Pace student, Oct. 1937, p. 3-4.
- FIFTY years of accountancy. Montgomery, Robert
- FIFTY years of progress. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 175-6.
- FIFTY years of Sherman act enforcement. Yale law journal, Dec. 1939, p. 284-302.

FIGART, DAVID M.

Tax on undistributed profits. Society for the ad-vancement of management journal, Nov. 1936, p. 149-56.

FILING AND INDEXING WEEKS, BERTHA M. How to file and index. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 261p.

FILLING STATIONS

See Gasoline service stations.

- FILLMORE, F. W. See also United typothetae of America. See also United typothetae of America. Ratios as an aid to management. Illinois manu-facturers' costs association monthly bulletin Oct. 1937, p. 1-3. (Reprinted from Ratios for print-ing management, published by United typothetae of America.)
- FINAL draft of uniform trustees' accounting act; salient provisions of act approved by National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws. Trust companies, Nov. 1936, p. 578-82.

FINANCE

- INANCE See also Corporations—Finance.
 BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD and DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS. Organizing and financing business; with questions and problems. 2nd rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 503p.
 EFFECTS of governmental policies on financial management; by Paul Studenski, Mark M. Jones, Randolph E. Paul, Arthur A. Ballantine, Leslie Mills, and Victor H. Stempf. New York, American management association, c1939. 52p. (Financial management association, c1939. 52p. (Financial management series no. 53.)
 MAZUR, PAUL. Financing and re-financing. (In National retail dry goods association. Con-trollers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 70-4, discussion, p. 74-7.)
 MUNN, GLENN G. Encyclopedia of banking and finance. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1937. 866p.

- finance. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1937. 866p. NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RE-SEARCH. Program of financial research; origin of the exploratory committee on financial re-search. National bureau of economic research bulletim, no. 64, May 1937, p. 1-22. PROGRAM of financial research. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 82-4. STUDENSKI, PAUL. Taxation and business enterprise. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 3-16, discus-sion by Mark M. Jones, p. 17-9.)

- Australia
 - ustralia McDIARMID, O. J. Federal subsidies to the states in Australia. Taxes—the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 271-2, 308. POTTER, W. IAN. Social background in busi-ness finance. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 247-59. WLLSON, K. C. Finance for industry. Australian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 431-8.

Germany

PLAUT, T. German state finance on the eve of the war. Accountant, Sept. 23, 1939, p. 355-7; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 377-80.

Great Britain

BRITAIN's war finance. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 70-3.

FINANCE-Great Britain-(Continued)

- BROOKS, COLLIN. Press and finance. Accoun-tant, Feb. 13, 1937, p. 231-3; discussion, p. 233-4.
- de PAULA, F. R. M. Financial planning-insur-ing for future profits. Accountant, July 29, 1939, p. 137-42.

- Ing for finite piones. Accountant, July 29, 1959, p. 13742.
 EMERGENCY finance. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1939, p. 322-4.
 HALL, N. F. National finances. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 28-30.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Keynes on forced saving. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 605-9.
 MEETING the cost of the war. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 600-4.
 PARKINSON, HARGREAVES. Britain's war finance. Accountant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 599-605.
 PLUMMER, A. Finance and its function in relation to industry. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1937, p. 340-2, discussion, p. 342-5.

International

NOX, FRANK A. International accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 93-103; Sept. 1936, p. 195-208; Oct. 1936, p. 296-308; Nov. 1936, p. 384-402. KNOX,

Russia

- ussia HAENSEL, PAUL. Public finance of the Union of soviet socialist republics. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1938, p. 517-20, 555-7; Oct. 1938, p. 591-4, 628; Nov. 1938, p. 659-62; 686-90; Dec. 1938, p. 724-6, 756-63. REDDAWAY, W. B. Russian financial system. London, Macmillan and co., ltd., 1935. 106p.

- United States DICKINSON, FRANK G. and EAKIN, FRANZY. Balance sheet of the nation's econ-omy. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Col-lege of commerce and business administration, Bureau of business research 1936. 35p. (Bulletin "~ 54)
- FINANCE act, 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 325-6; Aug. 15, 1936, p. 337-9; Aug. 22, 1936, p. 345-6; Aug. 29, 1936, p. 357-9; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 365-6; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 373-4; Sept. 19, 1936, p. 381-2; Sept. 26, 1936, p. 393-4, 395-6; Oct. 3, 1936, p. 405-6; Oct. 10, 1936, p. 413-5. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 423-9.
- FINANCE act, 1937. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 431-9. Certified accoun-tants journal, Sept. 1937, p. 275-82.
- FINANCE act, 1938. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 146-50.
- FINANCE act, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 16, 1939, p. 345-6.
- FINANCE acts, 1936, 1937, 1938, 1939. Great Britain.
- FINANCE bill and national defence contribution. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 312-3.
- FINANCE bill in committee. Accountant, tax supple-ment, July 8, 1939, p. 266-7.
- FINANCE bill. 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, May 23, 1936, p. 202-7. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, June 1936, p. 313-7.
- FINANCE bill, 1937. Accountant, tax supplement, June 5, 1937, p. 226-7, 235-7; June 12, 1937, p. 241-2; June 19, 1937, p. 249-50. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 208-11. In-corporated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 332-43.
- ANCE bill, 1938. Accountant, tax supplement, May 28, 1938, p. 242-54; June 4, 1938, p. 267-8; June 11, 1938, p. 276-7; June 18, 1938, p. 286; June 25, 1938, p. 298-301; July 2, 1938, FINANCE bill,

p. 310-3. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 317-29.

FINANCE bill, 1939; part 2—income tax. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, May 27, 1939, p. 204-9. Accountants' magazine, June 1939, p. 344-50.

FINANCE COMPANIES

See also Automobile finance companies; Fac-toring; Loan companies.
FLEMING, LEW. Trends in consumer financing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 179-84, 193-6.

Accounting FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Beware the deadly average! Are you trusting it in spreading your finance charges? Robert Morris associates month-ly bulletin, April 1936, p. 231-42.

- Statistics BEZOIER, R. A. Finance company statements analyzed. Bankers monthly, Oct. 1939, p. 588-90,
- FINANCE companies and advances to hire-purchase firms. Accountant, March 18, 1939, p. 350-2.
- FINANCE (no 2) act, 1939. Great Britain.
- FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICE See American council on education.
- FINANCIAL and operating ratios, as of December 31, 1938. Savings and loans, Nov. 1939, p. 18.
- FINANCIAL aspects of depreciation. Saliers, Earl A.
- FINANCIAL audits. Trouant, D. L.
- FINANCIAL interpreters at variance—Forced dis-sipation of surplus—No business can thrive without resources. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1936, p. 241-4.
- FINANCIAL management for highways. Leager, Marc C.
- FINANCIAL organization and management of busi-ness. Gerstenberg, Charles W.
- FINANCIAL policies and practices of automobile finance companies. Huegy, Harvey W. and Winakor, Arthur H.

FINANCIAL PUBLISHING COMPANY

Monthly payment direct reduction loan amortiza-tion schedules, showing equal monthly payment necessary to amortize a loan of \$1,000; also the amount of interest and principal in each payment and the balance outstanding at any time during the life of the loan. Boston, Mass., Financial pub. co., c1938. not paged.

FINANCIAL ratios become of age. Foulke, Roy A.

FINANCIAL reports of municipalities. League of California municipalities.

FINANCIAL statement analysis. Myer, John N.

FINANCIAL statement (1938-39). Great Britain.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS See Statements-Financial.

FINANCIAL statements. Daniels, M. B.

- FINANCIAL statements of retailers. Herwood, Herman.
- FINANCIAL statements; their treatment and inter-pretation. Boddington, A. Lester.
- FINANCIAL statistics for electric and gas subsidiaries of registered public-utility holding com-panies, year 1938. United States. Securities and exchange commission.

- FINANCIAL statistics of cities having a population of over 100,000; 1935 summary report. United States. Census, Bureau of.
- FINANCIAL statistics of cities having a population of over 100,000; 1936. United States. Census, Bureau of.
- FINANCIAL statistics of states, 1937. United States. Census, Bureau of.
- FINANCIAL status of hotels. Horwath and Horwath.
- FINANCING a trade assocation. Chamber of com-merce of the United States of America.
- FINANCING charges of automobile finance com-panies. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, May 1939, p. 300-1.
- FINANZAS y CONTABILIDAD; revista mensual de divulgacion financiera y contable. Editorial fi-nanzas, 5 de Mayo 32-415, Mexico, D. F.
- FINDINGS and opinions; a department. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 321-32; Oct. 1939, p. 286-8; Dec. 1939, p. 434-6.
- FINDINGS and recommendations of the committee on debt adjustment of the Twentieth century fund. Twentieth century fund.
- FINGER CANADIAN LUMBER COMPANY, LTD. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2024; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of Finger Canadian lumber com-pany, ltd. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 288.

FINISHED goods inventory control. Dolliver, E. P.

FINISHING MILLS

See Dyeing and finishing; Textiles; Cotton mills; Wool and worsted; Silk mills.

FINLAY, W. W.

NLAI, W. W. Comparative evaluation of occupations in industry. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 1, p. 161-75.) Printed with: Nick-erson, Clarence B. Inventory valuation—the use of price adjustment accounts to segregate inven-tory losses and gains.

FINLAY, WILLIAM B. Oil refinery cost methods. Pathfinder service bul-letin, Feb. 1936, p. 1, 2, 5-8.

FINLAYSON, M. Control of a departmental store Accountant, Jan. 18, 1936, p. 98-102.

FINLETTER, THOMAS K. Law of bankruptcy reorganization. Ch ville. Va., Michie company, 1939. 994p. Charlottes-

FINNEY, BURNHAM Incentive plan all can understand. Profit, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 3-4.

FINNEY, HARRY ANSON Beware the deadly average! Are you trusting it in spreading your finance charges? Robert Mor-ris associates monthly bulletin, April 1936, p. 231-42.

Introduction to principles of accounting. rev. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 629p. rev. ed.

FIRE INSURANCE

See Insurance, Fire; Insurance accounts.

FIRE LOSSES

KOMAREK, E. J. Adjustment of a recent fire and use and occupancy loss. (In National re-tail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 42-6. discussion p. 46-8.)

- "FIRM- name" legislation opposed. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 321-2.
- FIRST accounting clinic. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 9-10.
- FIRST C.P.A. certificate issued in each state and territory. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 521-2.)
- FIRST forms and instructions under New York un-employment insurance act. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 13-5.
- FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK Pension fund; rules and regulations. New York, First national bank of the city of New York
- FIRST public discussion of accountancy legislation in the United States. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 517-20.)
- FISCAL aspects of state and local relationships in New York. New York (state) Tax commission.
- FISCAL management in the national government. United States. President's committee on ad-ministrative management.
- FISCAL year. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 17-8.
- FISCAL years of new corporations. Montgomery, Robert H.

FISCHER, A. KARL

(1937). 15p.

Some features of life insurance company accounts and statements. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 52-5.

FISH, ALBERTA E.

Comparative chain and independent store taxation in nine western states. Bulletin of the National tax association, June 1939, p. 275-81.

FISH, GEORGE D.

- Approach to taxation problems: Planning and effect-ing tax economies—Income tax—Federal corpo-
- Approach to taktion proteins, riamme all effecting tax economies—Income tax—Federal corporate surfax on undistributed earnings to be or not to be—incorporated?—Social security at—Windfall tax and refunds arising out of the AAA. (reprint of articles appearing in *Credit executive.*) 23p.
 Federal and state taxation. *Credit executive*, Jan. 1937, p. 22-5; Feb. 1937, p. 152-4; June 1937, p. 251-2; Oct. 1937, p. 218-9; Aug. 1937, p. 251-2; Oct. 1937, p. 218-9; Aug. 1937, p. 251-2; Oct. 1937, p. 231-5; Dec. 1937, p. 376-7; Jan. 1938, p. 24-5; April 1938, p. 346-7.
 Federal and state taxation; no taxable gain on exercise of option. *Credit executive*, July 1939, p. 316-7.

- Federal and state taxation; no taxable gain on exercise of option. Credit executive, July 1939, p. 316-7.
 Federal and state taxation; present tax on capital gains and losses. Credit executive, March 1939, p. 87-8.
 Federal and state taxation; some of the important changes under the 1939 act. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 251-2.
 Federal revenue laws for 1938—the proposed revision. Credit executive, Feb. 1938, p. 37-9.
 Income tax. Credit executive, July 1936, p. 199-202. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems, p. 6-9.)
 Planning and effecting tax economies; some suggestions for reducing taxes under the 1936 federal revenue act. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 328-33. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems, 5p.) Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 2-5.
 Revenue act of 1937. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 270-4.
- evenue act of 1937. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 270-4.
- p. 270-4. Social security act. Credit executive, Dec. 1936, p. 360-3. (Reprinted under title: Approach to iaxation problems. p. 16-9.) Taxation; federal corporate surtax on undistrib-

FISH, GEORGE D.-(Continued)

- ISH, GEORGE D.—(Continued)
 uted earnings. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 234-5. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems. p. 10-11.)
 Taxation in 1939; important revisions and decisions of federal and New York state tax laws. Credit executive, Jan. 1939, p. 9-12..
 Taxation; the windfall tax and refunds arising out of the A.A.A. as contained in the revenue act of 1936. Credit executive, Sept. 1936, p. 261-4. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems. p. 20-3.)
 Taxation; to be or not to be—incorporated? That is the question arising out of the revenue act of 1936. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 293-6. (Reprinted under title: "Approach to taxation problems." p. 12-5.) Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 4-6.

FISH, GEORGE D. AND BUTLER, FRANCIS X. Tax relief provisions of the Chandler act. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1938, p. 9-11.

FISH, NATHANIEL L.

Accounting requirements in the motor transporta-tion industry. New York certified public ac-countant, July 1938, p. 32-4.

FISH TRADE

FISH IRADE Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of fish and sea food mar-kets. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 3.)

FISHER, ARNE Brief note on seasonal variation. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1937, p. 174-99.

FISHER, B. F. Depletion as an element of cost and a deduction from profits for taxation in the mining industry. (Correspondence) New York, National associ-ation of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 2, p. 545-6.)

FISHER, F. LINDSAY Presidential address. Accountant, Oct. 16, 1937, p. 508-13.

FISHER, F. S., JR. Integration of legal and accounting concepts. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on ac-counting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 49-54.) Phi delta delta, Nov. 1939, p. 17-24.

FISHER, IRVING Double taxation of savings. (reprinted from Amer-ican economic review, March 1, 1939, p. 16-33.) Income in theory and income taxation in practice. (reprinted from Econometrica, v. 5, no. 1, Janu-1927)

- ary 1937.)
- may best be defined for an income tax; how income may best be defined for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 379-90, 438. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 479-91.

FISHER, ROBERT D.

Values in securities of extinct companies; data on recoveries in supposedly worthless investments. *Trust companies*, July 1936, p. 51-4.

FISHER, ROBERT D., ed. Robert D. Fisher manual of extinct or obsolete companies. v. 5. New York, Robert D. Fisher, successor to Marvyn Scudder and Co., inc.,

FISHERIES

FISKE, WYMAN P.

Bases for depreciation. (In American management

association. Determination of depreciation and obsolescence policy. c1939. p. 4-12; discussion,

- Cash for plant replacements? Factory management and maintenance, Nov. 1936, p. 54, 78, 80, 82.
 Comments on "A statement of accounting prin-ciples". Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 109 16. 308-16.

- 308-16.
 Cost characteristics and business policy. Mechanical engineering, Jan. 1938, p. 51-2.
 Inventory control under fluctuating production. New York, National association of cost accountants. July 15, 1939 (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 22, section 1, p. 1265-76.)
 Inventory reserve plans. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 22, section 1, p. 1277-97.)

- FISKE, WYMAN P., joint author See Bennett, Clinton W. and Fiske, Wyman P.
- SKE, WYMAN P. AND BARKER, WILLIAM GARDNER, 2nd. FISKE,
- Production rate should be recognized in fixing basis for depreciation. *Controller*, Jan. 1938, p. 4-8.
- FITTING the accounting system to the plan of re-porting recommended by the National committee on standard reports. American council on education. Financial advisory service.

- Journal (PDOTS, American council on education. Financial advisory service.
 FITZGERALD, A. A.
 Accounting terminology. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936. p. 133-55; discussion, p. 156-72.)
 Accounts as an aid to business management. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 270-4.
 Balance sheet problems. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 1-14; Sept. 1938, p. 81-7; Oct. 1938, p. 16-9.
 Manufacturing expense—a talk for students. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 345-51.
 Meaning behind the figures. Australian accountant, dation the encounting. Australian accountant, June 1938, p. 321-30.
 Planning an accounting. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 180-6; May 1938, p. 249-57; July 1938, p. 401-7.
 Principles of accounting. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 102-10.
 Published accounts of holding companies under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Australian accountant, 1939, p. 225-30. Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 264-8.
 Statistical methods as applied to accounting reports. Australian accounting. Australian methods
 - 264-8.
 Statistical methods as applied to accounting reports. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 392-9; Sept. 1939, p. 83-90; Oct. 1939, p. 158-69; Nov. 1939, p. 233-42; Dec. 1939, p. 335-6.
 Two-to-one working capital ratio. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 30-6.

FITZGERALD, G. E. Accounts of holding companies. Australian accoun-tant, March 1938, p. 137-60.

FITZGERALD, JOHN J. Taxable status of term trusts. magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 699-710. Taxes-the tax

FITZPATRICK, L. Story of bookkeeping, accounting and auditing. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 128-36.

FITZPATRICK, PAUL J. Problem of business failures. Philadelphia, Pa., Dolphin press. 1936. 157 p. What is working capital? An analysis of the major concepts. Credit executive, Sept. 1939, p. 262-5.

FITZSIMMONS, ROBERT J. Collecting retail lumber accounts. Credit world, Jan. 1939, p. 20-1, 28.

FIVE-AND-TEN-CENT STORES See Chain stores-Variety chains.

FIVE-DAY WEEK See Hours of labor.

FIXED COSTS See Costs.

FIXED trust report. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 555-9.

FIXED TRUSTS

- See Investment trusts.
- FIXED trusts. Accountant, Aug. 29, 1936, p. 292-300; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 325-33. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 147-53; Oct. 1936, p. 174-86. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1936, p. 314-25.
- ED trusts report. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 445-50. FIXED trusts

FIXTURES

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of store equipment dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 91.)
- FJELD, E. I.
 - Auditors of big business. Accounting forum, May

 - Auditors of big business. Accounting jorum, May 1937, p. 6-8. Balance sheet classification and terminology. New York, The author, 1936, 218p. Balance-sheet form and classification in corporate reports. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 211-29. Classification and terminology of individual balance-theory incompared review. Dec. 1936, p. sheet items. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p.
 - 330-45 Selection of a thesis topic in the field of accoun-tancy. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 10-11.

FLANAGAN, FRANK J. Classification of municipal revenues and expendi-ture. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 11-4.

FLANDERS, RALPH E. Balancing of incentive and security. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 330-9.

FLAXSEED

See Vegetable oils and oilseeds.

FLEISCHMAN, JULIUS Decrease of the deficit in the federal budget by unification of existing taxes. Bulletin of the Na-tional tax association, April 1936, p. 205-10.

FLEISHER, FERNALD AND COMPANY Depreciation and plant ledgers. Philadelphia, Pa. Fleisher, Fernald and co. (1939). 15p. Report on continuous audits. Philadelphia, Pa., Fleisher, Fernald and co. 1939. 7p.

FLEMING. A. IAN

Some aspects of investment trust administration in Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 101-10.

FLEMING, ALLAN J.

Farm accounts. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 497-508.

FLEMING, J. K. Auditing methods for smaller banks. National auditgram, Dec. 1939, p. 5-7, 19.

FLEMING, LEW

Trends in consumer financing. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 179-84, 193-6.

FLEMING, REGINALD

See American management association.

FLETCHER, F. R. \$49,000 a year saved by standard cost system in a hosiery mill. *Textile world*, April 1936, p. 102-3.

FLEXIBLE budget system at Strathmore paper com-pany. Wilks, Paul A.

FLOOR COVERINGS See Carpets, rugs, etc.; Linoleum.

FLOOR SPACE

See Rents

FLOORING

Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Hardwood flooring in-dustry. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 275-80).

FLORENCE, P. SARGANT Costs of small and large scale distribution. Accoun-tant, Feb. 8, 1936, p. 206-9.

FLORIDA

- FLORIDA
 State board of accountancy
 Annual register, June 30, 1938. Miami, Fla., Office of the secretary, 1938. 41p.
 Florida accountancy law, rules of the board relating to holding of examinations and issuance of certificates and standards of conduct and ethical practice; alphabetical lists of holders of certificates of authority as public accountants and exertificates of authority as public accountants issued by this board who have registered in accordance with the law for 1936, as of June 30, 1936. Miami, Fla., Office of the secretary, State board of accountancy, 1936. 42p.
- FLORIDA accountancy law upheld. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 17-9.
- FLORIDA accountancy law upheld. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 358-9.

FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Florida accountant. (official organ)

FLORISTS

See also Greenhouses; Nurseries.

See also Greenhouses; Nurseries. Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of florists and nurseries (mainly flower shops). (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 78.) —Analysis of the 1936 operations of florist shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 78.) 78.)

FLOUR BROKERS

See Commodity brokers.

FLOUR millers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

FLOUR MILLS

See also Grain. EISENHOWER, ARTHUR B. Milling business. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov.

Inventories PELEJ, JOSEPH. Valuation of flour mill in-ventories. Journal of accountancy, July 1939,

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Flour millers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulle-tin, no. 7, November 1938.)

FODEN, W. E. Some aspects of municipal electricity supply finance. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 440-3.

FOLDING PAPER BOX ASSOCIATION OF AMER-ICA

asic principles for costing and accounting for folding paper box manufacturers. Chicago, Ill., Folding paper box association of America. no date. 54p. Basic

228

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

FOLSOM, M. B.

- OLSOM, M. B.
 Company annuity plans and the federal old age benefit plan. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1936, p. 414-24.
 Coordination of pension plans with social security provisions. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 527-30.
 Practical man's views concerning workings of social security. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 258-63.

FOOD

See also Hotels; Restaurants, cafes, etc.

- See also Hotels; Restaurants, cares, etc. Cost Accounting DAHL, J. O. Food cost accounting. (In his Restaurant management, principles and practice. rev. ed. (1936) p. 162-75.) HENDRY, J. R. Food cost accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 154-73; p. 298-309.

 - HORWATH AND HORWATH. Food department -detailed operating information; useful data made available by food cost accounting system. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1939, p. 6. JORGENSEN, ARNOLD. Food and beverage con-trol. Horwath hotel accountant, Jan. 1938, p.

WENZEL, G. L. Food cost control for the small restaurant. American restaurant magazine, July 1939, p. 36-7, 74-5.

Costs

- osts
 FOOD and beverage costs. (see each issue of Horwath hotel accountant.)
 HORWATH, JOHN N. Determining basic facts about food costs by butchering tests. American restaurant magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 70-1, 128-9.
 HORWATH, JOHN N. Market prices and food costs; resume of address before the Chicago stewards' association. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 6.
 KNOP, WILLIAM. Fluctuations in food costs. Horwath hotel accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 4-5.
 MARKET prices and food costs. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 6.
 WENZEL, G. L. Controlling your food costs. American restaurant magazine, March 1939, p. 32-3, 108-10.

- American restaurant magazine, Marca 1939, p. 32-3, 108-10. WENZEL, G. L. Does 40% food cost mean loss in quality? American restaurant magazine, April 1938, p. 44-6. WENZEL, G. L. Keep your food cost under 40%. American restaurant magazine, March 1938,

- American restaurant magazine, March 1938, p. 54-6.
 WENZEL, G. L. Nine fundamental factors in checking food cost. American restaurant magazine, June 1938, p. 43, 97-9.
 WENZEL, G. L. Ten controls for reducing food costs for the smaller business. American restaurant magazine, June 1939, p. 39, 78, 80, 82, 85.
- Statistics
- tatistics
 ANALYSIS of table d'hote dinners. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1938, p. 4-5.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of importers of food products. (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 36-7.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939, p. 26-7.)
 UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of. Retail prices. . . prepared by Retail price division and Cost of living division, Bureau of labor statistics. Washington. D. C., Government printing office, January 1936-December 1939. (pamphlets)

FOOD, FROZEN

Accounting ACCOUNTING for frozen foods. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939,

FOOD and beverage costs. (see each issue of Horwath hotel accountant.)

FOOD MANUFACTURERS

Statistics

MAXWELL, LLOYD W. Food products. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936. p. 276-308.)

MILLER, IVAN C. Statistics show changes in food production and distribution. Food indus-tries, Feb. 1938, p. 86-7, 119.

FOOTE, GEORGE W.

Partnership within a corporation. Cost and manage-ment, June-July 1939, p. 193-5.

FOOTNOTES

- FOOTNOTES. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy,
- FOOTNOTES. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 74.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet— surplus and footnotes. (In his Accounting re-quirements of the Securities and exchange com-mission for the preparation of financial state-ments. c1939, p. 284-312.)
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Footnotes ond finan-cial statements; address before the Minnesota statistical association, the Minnesota society of certified public accountants and the University of Minnesota, in Minneapolis, Minnesota, May 3, 1939 and before the Maryland association of certified public accountants, in Baltimore, Mary-land, on May 9, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11 minneographed pages. mimeographed pages.

FOOTNOTES. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 74.

- FOOTNOTES and financial statements. Werntz, Wil-liam W.
- FOR a broader tax base. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 324-6.

- FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international methods). September, Device (In Fifth international Accountancy, by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, 15-9. Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 538-603. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 390-8. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 1-18, 205-20.) 20.)
- FORD, J. Some contentious points in tin mining company balance-sheets. Accountants' magazine, May 1937, p. 269-76; June 12, 1937, p. 837-9.
- FORD, ROBERT S.

 - JED, ROBERT S. Intra-state apportionment of railway valuations for tax purposes. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1937. p. 269-80.) Shifting trends in revenues of federal, state and local governments. (In National association of state auditors, comptrollers and treasurers. *Re-port of twenty-second annual convention*, 1937. p. 40-7.)

FORD MOTOR COMPANY

Manual of accounting procedure for Ford dealers. Dearborn, Mich., Ford motor co., c1936. 66p. and forms.

FORDHAM, H.

ORDHAM, H.
Accountant and commerce. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 171-2.
Formation of limited companies. Corporate accoun-tant, Sept. 1938, p. 117-20.
Limited liability and companies. Corporate accoun-tant, May 1938, p. 78-80.
Receivers and debenture holders. Corporate accoun-tant, Jan. 1937, p. 26-7.
Some points on English bankruptcy law. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 161-2, 164.
Voluntary winding up. Corporate accountant, March 1939, p. 19-22.

FORECASTING See Business forecasting.

FORECLOSURE

See Mortgages; Real estate.

FOREIGN capital and the domestic market. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. (Edi-5-8.

FOREIGN CORPORATIONS

See Corporations-Foreign.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

- DIRLIGN EXCHANGE
 See also Federal reserve bulletin; International accounts; Treasury decisions.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 Committee on accounting procedure. Foreign operations and foreign exchange. New York, American institute of accountants, Dec. 1939.
 p. 29-36. (Accounting research bulletins, no. 4 (special)
- p. 59-50. (Accounting of the second of the s BOGEN,

- Childrey, Childrey and Schwing. 1980.
 BOOTH, A. C. Foreign exchanges. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 616-20. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 41-5.
 CANADA. Foreign exchange control board; rules and regulations. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 287-90.
 CHINLUND, EDWIN F. "Translation" of for-eign currencies. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 118-21. Controller, Sept. 1936, p. 205, 246-7.
 EXCHANGE equalisation account Accountancy.
- EXCHANGE equalisation account. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 130-1. FOREIGN exchange rates. Accountant, June 11,
- FÖREIGN exchange rates. Accountant, June 11, 1938, p. 825.
 HARRIS, S. E. Exchange depreciation, its theory and its history, 1931-35, with some consideration of related domestic policies. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard university press, 1936. 516p.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Calculating the rate of interest payable on loans in certain currencies. Accountant, May 28, 1939, p. 731-2.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Calculating the rate of interest payable on loans in certain currencies. Accountant, Dec. 30, 1939, p. 692-4.
 JONES, J. H. Exchange control and the currency standard. Accountant, 194 2, 1938, p. 3-5.
 KEMMERER, EDWIN WALTER. Principles of foreign exchange. (In his Money. c1935. p. 121-70.)
 KNOX, FRANK A. International accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Ags. 1926, p.

- NOX, FRANK A. International accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 93-103; Sept. 1936, p. 195-208; Oct. 1936, p. 296-308; Nov. 1936, p. 384-402. AKIN, F. BRADSHAW. New technique of
- MAKIN,
- 296-308; Nov. 1936, p. 384-402.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. New technique of exchange control. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 94-100.
 O'DEA, FRANCIS J. H. Currency depreciation and restrictions, and other problems of the auditor in present day continental Europe. L. R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 60-6.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Memorandum on foreign exchange accounting as affected by present conditions. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 8-9, 37.
 PRACTICAL application of foreign exchange. Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 313-8.
 ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Pounds and pounds. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 143-51.
 STABILISING the exchanges. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 567.
 THOMAS, P. S. Exchange equalisation account. Incorporated accountants journal, April 1936, p. 235-7.
 WARTIME problems for accountants. (Editorial)

- p. 235-7.
 WARTIME problems for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 293-4.
 WATSON, A. E. Gold standard and foreign rates of exchange. Australian accountant, April 1937, p. 205-14.
- p. 205-14. WESTERFIELD. RAY B. Foreign exchange. (In his Money, credit and banking. c1938. p. 456-98.)

- Accounting ACCOUNTING for foreign-exchange contracts. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy,
 - Jan. 1936, p. 76-7. BURROWS, H. R. Problems of international exchanges. Accountants' journal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 900-5. GODWIN, E. F. Forward exchange accounting.

Accountant student and Accountants' journal,

Accountances, Journal, Student and Accountances, Journal, Oct. 1938, p. 180-2.
LOPATA, EDWIN L. Accounting for profits and losses on foreign exchange for 1935. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 118-29.

FOREIGN exchange rates. Accountant, June 11, 1938, p. 825.

FOREIGN MISSIONS See Missions.

FOREIGN operations and foreign exchange. Ameri-can institute of accountants. Committee on ac-counting procedure.

FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES

See Foreign exchange; Holding companies.

FOREGN TRADE See Commerce; Export and import trade,

- FORENINGEN AF STATSAUTORISEREDE REVIS-ORER
 - ORER
 Communication from Foreningen af statsautoriserede revisorer (Society of state-authorized accountants in Denmark) Copenhagen, Foreningen af statsautoriserede revisorer, 1937. 37p.
 Medlemsfortegnelse, 1, November 1937. Kobenhavn, Foreningen af statsautoriserede revisorer, 1937. not paged.
 1912—12. Januar—1937. Kobenhavn, Foreningen af statsautoriserede revisorer, 1937. 94p.

FORENINGEN AUKTORISERADE REVISORER

FORESTRY SERVICE

Cost accounting HARTMAN, DAVID. Cost-keeping for national forests. Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 454-9.

FORGERIES

See also Defalcations; Fraud. TALES usually told after office hours; it ain't all beer and skittles what we does to win our victuals. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 252-60. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 401-13.

FORM and contents of the balance sheet. (Edi-torial) Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 198-9.

- FORMULAS GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Estate tax deduction for charity. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 511-5; July 1938,
 - TÁXATION-a divertissement-To compute a tax on undistributed income-Simplification by higher mathematics. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, May 1936, p. 323-7. TYSON, BUCHANAN. Bonus problems under the revenue act of 1938. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 94-105.
- FORMULATION of a plan under section 77. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 247-61.

FORMULATION of accounting principles or con-ventions. Byerly, F. P.

FORSTER, A. ASHLEY Amendments to the bills of sale act (N.S.W.) Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 169-78.

FORTAS, ABE

- Corporate reorganizations and the holding com-pany act; address before a legal seminar, Hotel Astor, New York, New York, July 14, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages. Securities act and corporate reorganizations. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 218-
- 40

- FORTESCUE, EDWARD E. Auditing for the intermediate student. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 167-75.
- FORTUNE tax round table. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 334-5.
- FORUM on accounting, Philip F. Gray presiding; leaders Arthur B. Foye and Otto A. Shults. 'Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 143-60.
- FORUM on ethics. American engineer, June-July 1938, p. 7.
- FORWARD step in tax administration. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 355. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 105-6.
- **S** v. Harbottle. Accountant, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 542-4. FOSS
- FOSTER, L. R. Partnership goodwill. (from Corporate accountant) Indian accountant, June 1937, p. 213-5. Rights and duties of an auditor under the com-panies act, 1929. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 166-8. Students' causerie: reserves and sinking funds. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 130-2.

FOSTER, MAJOR B., joint author and joint editor See Bogen, Jules I. and others.

FOULKE, ROY A.

- FOULKE, ROY A. AND PROCHNOW, HERBERT V. Practical bank credit. New York, Prentice Hall, inc., 1939. 690p.
- FOUNDATION guide for payroll taxes. KixMiller, William.

FOUNDATION guide for payroll taxes. KixMiller, William and Janus, Milton H.

FOUNDRIES

Accounting LANG, GEORGE V. Trends and methods in foundry and machine shop accounting. Iron Age, July 9, 1936, p. 56-9.

- Cost accounting BEAUVAIS, J. ERNEST. Cost accounting sys-tem for a journal bearing foundry. Cost and management, April 1937, p. 119-25; May 1937,
 - p. 130-53. BELL, WILLIAM. Foundry costs. Cost accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 264-78.

- CRAWFORD, ROBERT. Costs and statistics— their scope and function; practical application of costing principles in a manufacturing business. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 97-104.
 HALDANE, J. Foundry costs. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 4-14.
 KICKLER, D. C. Find gray iron foundry costs; through a set of comparatively simple forms accurate check may be obtained. Foundry, Jan. 1937, p. 54-57.
 La S A LLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Foundry cost accounting. (In its Cost account-tion)

- Foundry cost accounting. (In its Cost account-ing procedure. 1937. p. 229-36.) TULLOCH, E. J. Boiler and engineer shop cost-ing. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 250-9.
- Statistics Attistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of foundries. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.-p. 50, 78, 104, 131, 190-1.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936.

- (In his Sourcew guides to prantial statistics (1930. p. 28-9.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 28-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p.
- 22-3.) 1

FOUNDRIES, BRASS

Cost accounting BEECH, W. Workshop costing on the railway. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 39-44.

FOUNDRIES, IRON AND STEEL See also Iron and steel industry.

Cost accounting

- GRAY
- t accounting RAY iron founders' society, inc. Simplified cost system for the gray iron foundry industry, July 1936. Cleveland, Ohio, Gray iron founders' society, inc., cl936. 11p. TEEL founders' society of America. Manual of job cost finding practice for miscellaneous jobbing steel foundries. Cleveland, Ohio, Steel founders' society of America, 1939. 27p. STEEL

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of foundries and iron works. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 64.)
- FOUR C.P.A. decades. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 199-205.
- FOURTEEN guides to financial stability. Foulke, Roy A.

FOWLER, R. R., joint author See Coase, R. H. and others.

FOX, ARTHUR E. Accounting for night clubs. Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 15-8. Liquor control. Accounting forum, Jan. 1937, p. 5-7.

FOX, CHARLES J. Simplified control of Boston's budget. (reprinted from American city mazagine) 2p.

FOX, FRED L. Taxation of chain stores. (In National ta ciation. Proceedings, 1936. p. 337-48.) (In National tax asso-

FOX. LEONARD P.

Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the re-location of industry; discussion (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. National p. 568-73.)

FOX, ROBERT P.

Federal capital stock tax. Bulletin of tax association, Feb. 1939, p. 136-42. Bulletin of the National

FOX, ROBERT P., joint author See Shoup, Carl, and others.

FOX, W. H.

ment, Sept. 1939, p. 266-72. Accountant, Nov. 4, 1939, p. 487-92.

FRAILEY, L. E., joint author See Duddy, Edward A. and others.

FRALEY, A. L. Fundamentals and ethics of auditing. National auditgram, March 1936, p. 10-2.

FRANCHISE TAXES

See Taxation-under names of states.

FRANCIS, BION H. AND FERGUSON, DONALD G. what will social security mean to you? Cam-bridge, Mass., American institute for economic research, c 1936. 64p.

FRANCK, W. E. High school bookkeeping and college accounting. Louisiana commerce teacher, March 1939, p. 11-2.

FRANCO, GUS

Minimum wages in relation to costs. Cost and management, April 1936, p. 98-109.

- FRANK, JEROME N.
 Accounting for investors; the fundamental importance of corporate earning power; address before the eighth annual meeting of the Controllers' institute of America, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, Oct. 10, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 295-304. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 380-5, 416.
 Address before the Association of customers' brokers, Hotel Roosevelt, New York City, June 23, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 10 mimeographed pages.
 - pages.
 - Too much interest in interest; address before National association of securities commissioners, Kansas City, Mo., September 22, 1938. 11 mimeo-

Accounting for investors. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 290-2.

FRANZ, ALFRED P. Bus depreciation. Bus transportation, Oct. 1937, p. 474-5.

FRASER, ANGUS

Accounts receivable financing on the non-notification plan. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 215-9, discussion p. 219-20, 229-34.

FRASER, CLARENCE

Industrial relations trends in the U. S. Cost and management, Jan. 1936, p. 13-8.

FRASER, EDWARD

Municipal accounting practice. (Correspondenc Certified public accountant, May 1937, p. 31. (Correspondence)

FRATERNITIES

See Societies, associations, etc.

FRATERNITY finance and accounts. Krebs, George R.

FRAUD

See also Court decisions—Fraud; Defalcations; Misfeasance; Inter-state hosiery mills, inc.; Pepper pool case; State street trust v. Ernst et al; McKesson and Robbins case; Investment

- et al; McKesson and Robbins case; Investment companies—Law. BOUTELLE, EUGENE G. Internal checks and balances. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1939, p. 17-27, 32. BRINK, VICTOR Z. Some comments on the Inter-state hosiery case. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 18-22, 38. CALDWELL, SYDNEY M. Methods of fraud. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 301-6

- Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 301-6. DEW, E. RODERICK. Share pushers and the law. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 559-63. ELLIS, CECIL A. Good systems and fraudulent practices Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939 p. 355-64.
- 1939, p. 355-64. FRAUD in cash books. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 431-5.

- FREEMAN, GEORGE R. Some problems of the practising accountant. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1939, p. 244-64. GREAT BRITAIN. Prevention of fraud (invest-ments) act, 1939; drait rules of the Board of trade with respect to conduct of business of licensed dealers. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 700 01

- trade with respect to conduct or Dusiness on licensed dealers. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 789-91.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Prevention of fraud (investments) act, 1939; 2 & 3 Geo. 6, ch. 16. London, H. M. stationery office, 1939, 34p.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Report of the committee on share-pushing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 461-6.
 HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Internal check and fraud. (In his Auditing, principles and procedure. 1939, p. 94-115.)
 HUDSON, H. Fraud in share transfers; how an audit of share transfers is conducted. Irish accountant and secretary, Feb. 1938, p. 11. Indian accountant, March 1938, p. 131-3.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountant, May 1939, p. 257-8.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case—Responsibilities of auditors and of management. (Editorial) Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 397-9.
 ENHART NORMAN I. To what extent may

- LENHART, NORMAN J. To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detection of fraud? (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chap-ter, and the American institute of accountants. *Proceedings of the second accounting clinic*, October 20-21, 1939. 10p.)
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Fraud detection and prevention. Banking, April 1939, p. 23.
 NELSON, BERTRAM. Fraud in accounts. In-corporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 466-8.
 PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. National assembly bill

- 406-8.
 PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. National assembly bill no. 3301. Philippine accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 99-102.
 PREVENTION of fraud (investments) act. Ac-countant, May 13, 1939, p. 637; June 10, 1939, 2766
- 766-9

- PREVENTION of fraud (investments) act. Accountant, May 13, 1939, p. 637; June 10, 1939, p. 7659.
 PREVENTION of fraud (investments) bill. Accountant, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 190-5; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 697-704; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 742-4; Dec. 17, 1938, p. 855-6; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 267-9. Certified accountants fournal, July 1939, p. 1947.
 PRINCIPAL'S liability for employee's fraud. Certified accountants fournal, July 1939, p. 1947.
 PROPERTY society summoned; a question of accountant, A. C. Feb. 12, 1938, p. 283-90.
 PRINCIPAL'S liability for employee's fraud. Certified accountants fournal, July 1939, p. 1947.
 PROPERTY society summoned; a question of accountancy. Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 237-9; April 2, 1938, p. 454-6; April 9, 1938, p. 496-9; May 28, 1938, p. 745-7.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Case study of employee frauds. (In American institute of accounting subjects. 1939, p. 99-112.) New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 28-39.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Catching up with employee frauds. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 5-9; Dec. 1939, p. 67. 37.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Employee frauds—their prevention or detection. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1939, p. 66-7.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Dutwitting employee frauds requires careful office controls. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1939, p. 41-3.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Borne methods for preventing frauds. Balance sheet, Nov. 1939, p. 24.
 SHANAHAN, WILLIAM M. Frauds involving embloic accountant, June 1936, p. 325-9.
 SUMMERFIELD, W. and REYNOLDS, F. B. Accountants and the law of negligence. Accountant, Oct. 28, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 662-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 662-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 662-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 662-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 642-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 645-9; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 645-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 645-9; Dec.

FRAUD—(Continued)

- victuals. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 252-60. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 401-13. TELLING half the truth—Investors beguiled by silence—Truth must be intelligible. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 403-6. TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 350-63.
- p. 350-63. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Interstate hosiery mills, inc. --common capital stock of no par value (File 1-300) Securities exchange act of 1934, release no. 2048. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 321.8 321-8.
- 321-8. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Oklahoma hotel building com-pany (File 2-3598). Securities exchange act of 1933, release no. 1900. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 328-32. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission Interstate hosiery case: findings and
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Interstate hosicry case; findings and opinions of the Securities and exchange commission—taken from release no. 2048 of the commission. New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 423-36.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2024; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of Finger Canadian lumber company, Itd. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 288.
 WESTBY-NUNN, E. Prevention of fraud (investments) act. 1939. Accountant student, June 1939, p. 43; July 1939, p. 57-8; Aug. 1939, p. 92-3.
- vestments) act. 1939. Accountant student, June 1939, p. 43; July 1939, p. 57-8; Aug. 1939, p. 92-3. WINN, W. R. Discussion of paper "To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detection of fraud?" by Norman I. Lenhart. (In Pennsylvania institute of certi-fied public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceed-ings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 2p.)
- FRAUD in cash books. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 431-5.

FRAUDULENT PREFERENCE

See Bankruptcy.

FRAZIER, C. A

Bank cost analysis. Bankers magazine, June 1939, p. 483-6.

- FRAZIER-LEMKE ACT
 - KAZIEK-LEMKE ACI COMMERCE clearing house, inc. Frazier-Lemke farm relief act. (In its New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1936. p. 246-8.)
 DIAMOND, Z. N. and LETZLER, ALFRED. New Frazier-Lemke act: a study. Columbia law review, Nov. 1937, p. 1092-1135.

FREDERICK, MARVIN L. Personality factor in accounting success. Account-ing review, Dec. 1938, p. 400-4.

FREEDMAN. CHARLES

Certified audits-for whom? Accountant disagrees with recent article in Barron's demands inven-tory checks. Barron's, June 16, 1939, p. 9.

FREEMAN,

REEMAN, E. S. Examination of the balance sheet and accompany-ing documents. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 122-35.

FREEMAN, E. STEWART Changes in inventory practice noted as important accounting development. Controller, April 1938,

p. 92-5. Cost analysis a science, but pricing may be classed as an art. *Controller*, Jan. 1939, p. 12-19, 22-3. Long-life assets; when to buy and how to account

for them. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 4, section 1, p. 183-205.) Pricing the product. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939, p. 21-38.)

FREEMAN, GEORGE R.

- KEEMAAN, GEORGE R. Constructive accountancy. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1936, p. 257-77, discussion, p. 277-84. Accountant, Oct. 31, 1936, p. 589-96, discussion, p. 596-8. Some problems of the practising accountant. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 244.64
- 244-64.

FREEMAN, HERBERT C. Unamortized discount and premium on bonds re-funded. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Dec. 1939, p. 397-9.

FREER, R. W.

Appraising the safe deposit department. National auditgram, Feb. 1938, p. 14-6.

FREER, ROBERT E.

Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 480-7.

- FREIGHT CHARGES
 BROWN, H. W. Method of recording and checking freight. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 450-2.
 MILLING-in-transit privilege and freight accounting. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 2, p. 1276-80.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS.
 - 2, p. 1276-80.) NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Freight and insurance. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 434-60.)

- FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION
 AUDIT for routing economies and overcharges. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 16-9.

 MADIGAN, JOHN J. Securing lowest total freight costs in movement of packing house products. Harvard business review, Spring num-ber, 1937, p. 352-60.
 RAINS, NEIL J. Waybilling and accounting for motor freight carriers. Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 33-49.

FRICKER, ERIC Bank of Canada; notes on its organization and accounting system. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, July 1936, p. 33-9.

FRICKER, R. A. Accounts from incomplete records. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 180-6.

FRIEDLAND, M. N.

- Bailey case; assignment of life insurance policies under section 302 (g) of the revenue act of 1926. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p.
- 1930. Parso-the tax mayarine, or a tree, the size, size,

FRIEDMAN, EDITH J., joint author See Doris, Lillian and Friedman, Edith J.

FRIEDMAN, J. P. Proposed revenue act from the retail point of view. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 140-3.)

FRIEDMAN, MILTON, joint author See Kuznets, Simon and Friedman, Milton.

FRINK, EARL D.

Operating statement form that facilitates cost comparisons. Buildings and building manage-ment, Jan. 1936, p. 28.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

- FRISBEE, IRA N. Accounting for "income" municipalities. Account-ing review, June 1936, p. 164-9. Comments by D. M. Shonting, p. 169-71. Application of governmental accounting principles to practice. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 27-33.

- FRISBEE, IRA N., joint author See Riggleman, John R. and Frisbee, Ira N.
- FRIZELL, J. B. Financial background of Scottish education. Certi-fied accountants journal, Aug. 1939, p. 242-7, discussion, p. 247-8.
- FROZEN capital made productive by inventory con-trol. LaRose, Edmond S.
- FRUIT and vegetable canners. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

FRUIT AND VEGETABLE DEALERS

See also Produce dealers; Produce brokers. Statistics

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of fruit and vegetable markets. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 4.)

FRUIT GROWING

- Accounting CALIFORNIA FRUIT GROWERS EXCHANGE. Uniform accounting system for citrus associa-tions. Los Angeles, Calif., California fruit grow
 - tions. Los Angeles, Calif., California fruit grow-ers exchange (1934). 30p. SHIELD, R. J. Orchardists' accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 265-71.

Finance

SIMMONS, R. S. Citrus crop financing. Bur-roughs clearing house, Nov. 1937, p. 7-9, 23-4.

FRUIT PACKING AND SHIPPING ASSOCIATIONS

- Accounting CALIFORNIA FRUIT GROWERS EXCHANGE. Uniform accounting system for citrus associa-tions. Los Angeles, Calif., California fruit growers exchange (1934). 30p.
- FRUITS of bidding. Texas accountant, May 1937, p. 1-2.

FRYE, ARNOLD

Taxes collected by or in aid of municipalities, as part of an integrated tax system. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 633-6.

FRYE, HUGH M.

Competitive bidding. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 34.

FUEL

See also Coal trade; Oil trade; Mining and metallurgy—Coal. Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of fuel dealers. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 79.)

FUEL OIL

See Oil industry; Oil trade.

- FULLER, WARNER
- Incorporated individual: a study of the one-man company. Harvard law review, June 1938, p. 1373-406.

FULTON, ARTHUR W. Tax on life insurance premiums—is it defensible? Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 583-4.

- FUNCTION of costs in a joint-products industry. Keller, I. Wayne.
- FUNCTION of the engineer in the confirmation of inventories. Association of consulting manage ment engineers, inc.
- FUNCTIONS of a bank in relation to the capital market. Hooper, F. W.
- FUNCTIONS of accounts. Bentley, Harry C.
- FUNCTIONS of an assistant to the president. Metro-politan life insurance company. Policyholders service bureau.
- FUNCTIONS of the personnel director. Metropolitan life insurance company. Policyholders service hureau.
- FUNCTIONS of the public accountant in reorgani-zations under chapter X of the bankruptcy act. Barry, Robert I.
- FUNDAMENTAL accounting principles: Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 790-2.
- FUNDAMENTALS of accounting. Lamberton, Robert Α.
- FUNDAMENTALS of inventory pricing. Himmelblau, David.

FUNDED DEBT

See Bonds.

FUNDS

- UNDS
 See also Reserves and sinking funds.
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Funds subject to annuity agreements. Washington, D. C., American council on education, April 1939. 32p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 3, no. 15.)
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Statements of fund transactions in financial reports. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Nov. 1937. 18p. (Financial advisory service, series 3, v. 1, no. 11.)
 BENNINGTON, HAROLD. Plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 110-1.

- spondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 110-1.
 CAIN, J. HARVEY. Comments on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds." Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 91-3.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Plan for pooling the invest-ments of endowment funds. 15 typewritten pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 31-7.
 MacINTOSH, WILLIAM. Fund consciousness-a forgotten aspect of commercial accountancy. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1937, p. 188-201.

- a longotten aspect of commercial accountancy, Canadian chartered accountant, March 1937, p. 188-201. MILLS, GAIL A. Comments on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds". Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 166-70. SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Funds derived and applied. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 584-95.) UNITED STATES. President. Report of the President of the United States to the Congress, showing the status of funds and operations under the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, and 1938, as of December 31, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, Jan. 10, 1939. 543p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Report showing the financial status of funds and analy-sis of expenditures; emergency relief appro-priation acts of 1935, 1936, and 1937, as of

FUNDS-(Continued)

- June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and deposits, 1938. 451p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Report showing the status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, 1938, and 1939, as of November 30, 1939. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and de-posits, 1939, 17p.
- department, commissioner, or posits, 1939, 17p. WILLVONSEDER, ERNEST. Pooling of endow-ment fund assets by quasi-public corporations. New York certified public accountant, Feb.
- New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 238-40. WOLFF, JULIUS. Fund accounting. (In Me-Goldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 5a, March 31, 1938.)
- FUNDS subject to annuity agreements. American council on education. Financial advisory service.

FUNERAL DIRECTORS

See Undertaking.

FUR See Fur farming; Fur trade; Furriers.

FUR coat manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. Dun and Bradstreet, inc.

FUR GARMENTS

See Furriers. -

FUR TRADE

Statistics

- atistics BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for fur dealers—raw. (In his *Practical credit analysis*. c1939. p. 100, 134, 135, 158.) DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of furriers and fur shops. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 27.) —Aralysis of the 1936 operations of fur-riers and fur shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 30.)
- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Fur coat
- URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Fur coat manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Brad-street, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 1, March 1938.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesalers of furs and skins. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1937. p. 55, 83, 109, 136, 200-1.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. cl936. p. 38-9.) (In his Signs of the times. cl938, p. 38-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. cl939. p. 26-7.)

FURMAN, MAX, joint author See McCall, Ambrose V. and Furman, Max.

FURNACES

BUCKENMYER, A. J. Accounting for heavy machine construction. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, section 1, p. 1119-40.)

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of stove and furnace deal-ers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no.
- FURNISS, J. M. Banks and banking—past, present an Accountant, Jan. 23, 1937, p. 129-33. and future.

FURNITURE INDUSTRY

Accounting

Customers' deposits on special orders. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 301.

- Cost accounting BENNETT, CLINTON W. Vermont maple furni-BENNETT, CLINTON W. Vermont maple furni-ture company (a cost study). New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, July 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 21, section 1, p. 1225-50.)
 KICKLER, D. C. Eight pieces of paper enough to run this plant. Factory management and maintenance, Feb. 1937, p. 50-2.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FURNITURE MANUFACTURERS, INC. Cost manual for furniture manufacturers, including presentation

 - NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FURNITURE MANUFACTURERS, INC. Cost manual for furniture manufacturers, including presentation of uniform expense analysis and budgetary control methods. Chicago, Ill., National associa-tion of furniture manufacturers, inc., 1937. 26p. and supplements bound together.
 Supplement no. 1-Suggested methods for determining lumber waste. 1937. 3p.
 Supplement no. 2-Establishing inventory values. 1937. 2p.
 SOUTHERN F URNITURE MANUFAC-TURERS' ASSOCIATION. Cost accountants' division. Cost estimating for furniture manu-facturers. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1937, P. 1, 4-8.

 - p. 1, 4-8. SOUTHERN
 - p. 1, 4-8. SOUTHERN FURNITURE MANUFAC-TURERS' ASSOCIATION. Simplified detailed cost accounting system. High Point, N. C., Cost accountants' division of the Southern furniture manufacturers' association. Dec. 1, 1936. 31p. (Manual no. 1.) SOUTHERN FURNITURE MANUFAC-TURERS' ASSOCIATION. Simplified system for estimating cost. High Point, N. C., Cost accountants' division of the Southern furniture manufacturers' association, May 1, 1937. 24p. (Manual no. 2.)

- (Manuar no. 2.)
 Statistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Furni-ture manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and matural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 11, March 1939.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of furniture manufacturers. (In his Be-hind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.-D. 51, 79, 105, 132, 192-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 30-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 30-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 22-3.)
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analyses no. 6, and no. 12, furniture manu-facturer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 217, 279.)
 VIENTIEE manufacturers: seasonal fluctuation

 - FURNITURE manufacturers; seasonal fluctuation and natural fiscal closing dates. Dun and Brad-street, inc., and Natural business year council.

FURNITURE REPAIRING

Statistics UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of re-upholstering and furni-ture repair concerns. (In their 1936 retail sur-vey. report no. 103.) DUN

FURNITURE STORES

See Furniture trade.

FURNITURE stores show department stores how to make profits. Furniture record, July 15, 1938, p. 6-7.

FURNITURE TRADE CURRENT trends in retailing of furniture and house furnishings for the second quarter of 1937. Balance sheet, Sept. 1937, p. 10.

Accounting TINGLE, W. R. Simple stock card system gives you the operating facts you need to know. Furniture record, Sept. 15, 1938, p. 12-3; 47-8.

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of furniture stores, used

FURNITURE TRADE—Statistics—(Continued)

- furniture stores, furniture and hardware stores
- 6p. FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of furniture installment dealers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 55, 81, 105, 130, 186-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 57, 85, 111, 138, 204-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p. 30-1.) FURNITURE stores show department stores how to make profits. Furniture record, July 15, 1938, p. 6-7. 6p. FOULKE.
- 6.7
- p. 6-7. KLEINHAUS, H. I. What's behind the figures? A study of furniture department operations in 1936 as shown by the departmental merchan-dising and operating results. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1937,
- National retail ary gooas association, june 1957, p. 11-4. TRENDS in retailing of furniture and house furnishings, first quarter, 1938. Balance sheet, June 1938. p. 21. WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 14, furniture company. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 299.)

- Stockkeeping
 STOCK control for the furniture department; a method which the Hecht company, Washington, D. C., believes to be fool-proof. Balance sheet, Jan. 1938, p. 7-9.
 TINGLE, W. R. Simple stock card system gives you the operating facts you need to know. Furniture record, Sept. 15, 1938, p. 12-3, 47-8.

FURRIERS

- FURRIERS Statistics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for furriers—manufacturer. (In his Practical credit analysis. c1938. p. 149.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of furriers and fur shops. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 27.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of manufacturers of fur garments. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 50, 78, 104, 131, 190-1.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 28-9.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 28-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 22-3.)
- FURTHER comments on the auditor's report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 49-51.
- FURTHER consideration of the last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. Wilson, George A. first-out
- FURTHER references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 121-8.
- TURE of professional accountancy. Nissley, War-ren W. FUTURE

FUTURE of professional accountancy. (Correspond-ence) Andrews, T. Coleman.

FUTURES

- UTURES See also Cotton futures; Grain futures; Sugar futures; Hedging.
 ELLIS, FELIX M. What are futures in stock trading? Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 414-6.
 KEELER, FLOYD Y. Hedging in a futures market against inventory and how it should

interest the average banker. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, May 1938, p. 315-25. UNINTENTIONAL discrimination. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 5-8.

GAA

A, C. J., joint author See Kirkham, E. J. and Gaa, C. J.

GABLE, CHARLES D. Cost analysis in banks. National auditgram, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 9-11.

GABRIELSON, C. C

Comments on uniform accounting. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 218-21.)

GAINS

See Profits; Taxation, United States-Capital gains and losses.

GAIRDNER, ROBERT D. Stock exchange practice—with particular reference to points which affect the client. Accountants' magazine, May 1938, p. 279-90.

GALBRAITH, HARRY

Merchandise planning. Profit, Aug. 1939, p. 1, 3.

GALE, FRANK A.

- Accountants should come "from behind the curtain". New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 17-9. Professional accounting has "a story to tell". Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 2-5.

GAMBER, MERLE P., joint auditor See Wylie, Harry L., Gamber, Merle P. and Brecht, Robert P.

GAMLIN, FRANK

Commercial aviation statistics. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 40-3.

GANE, ROBERT M.

Social security act and its application. California certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 1-2, 6.

GANTT,

ANTT, HENRY LAURENCE ALFORD, L. P. Henry Laurence Gantt; leader in industry. New York, American society of mechanical engineers. 1934. 315p.

GANTT CHART See Graphic methods.

GARAGES Accounting

INCORPORATED A C C O U N T A N T S' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; garage accounts. Incorporated accountants' jour-nal, May 1938, p. 272-3.

Auditing WOTHERSPOON, W. N. Auditing garage ac-counts. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 290-4.

Cost accounting

HESSE, M. A. Costs as applied to garages and retail car selling. *Australian accountant*, Aug. 1937, p. 15-34.

Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of garages (with parts and repairing) (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 36, 36b.)

-Analysis of the 1936 operations of

GARBAGE

See Refuse.

- GARDEN, D. J. Industrial planning. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 15-8; July 10, 1937, p. 45-7; July 17, 1937, p. 87-8; July 24, 1937, p. 125-7; July 31, 1937, p. 164-7.
 - Some aspects of industrial planning. Cost accoun-tant, July 1938, p. 35-44.

GARDNER, CHASTINA See United States. Farm credit administration.

GARDNER, EDWARD J. Delinquent taxes in Ohio, real property, general taxes and special assessments for improvements and betterments. Bulletin of the National tax association, Oct. 1939, p. 6-19.

GARDNER, FREDERIC V.

- ARDNER, FREDERIC V.
 Development of standard burden rates and the allocation of burden to departments and products. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 182-92.)
 Variable budget in management by exception. Factory management and maintenance, Nov. 1937, p. 67-74; Dec. 1937, p. 64-74.

GARDNER, GRAHAM A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine in-stallations. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 12, no. 8, section 1, p. 481-90.)

GARDNER, R. M.

Budgeting research costs. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, section 2, p. 1141-2.)

GARDNER, R. W.

- Andrine insurance and average. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 11-6. Wheat production costs. Canadian chartered ac-countant, March 1939, p. 165-70.

GARFIELD, FRANK R. AND HOAD, WILLIAM M. Construction costs and real property value. Journal of the American statistical association, Dec. 1937, p. 643-53.

GARMENTS

See Clothing.

GARNSEY, GILBERT

- Holding companies and their published accounts; third edition by T. B. Robson, London, Gee and co., ltd., 1936. 362p.
- GARVER, R. D. Unit costs in utility valuation. (In American gas association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 111-4.)

GAS

- AS STOTZ, LOUIS and JAMISON, ALEXANDER. History of the gas industry. New York, The author, c1938. 534p. WADDINGTON, MELVILLE W. Some observa-tions by a newcomer to the gas industry. Canad-ian chartered accountant. July 1938. p. 30-41. WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. and EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Manufactured-gas industry. (In their Public utility industries. 1936. p. 51-63.)

- 1936. p. 51-05.7
 Accounting
 CONOVER, JOHN L. Customers' accounting system, Public service electric and gas company. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 240-51, discussion, p. 251-5.) American gas journal, Dec. 1935, p. 19-22, 34.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. and LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Gas companies. (In their Modern accounting systems, 1937. p. 291-334.)
 SMITH, G. MEREDITH. Some problems of accounting in a gas or electric public utility company. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 179-88.
 UNDERHILL, J. L. Customers' ledger system for small gas companies. Natural gas age record, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 425-7.

- Uniform methods and systems ALABAMA. Public service commission. General rules for electric, gas, water, telephone and telegraph utilities, effective, January 1, 1936. Montgomery, Ala., Public service commission, 1936 600 1936. 69p. AMERICAN GAS ASSOCIATION, INC. Ac-

- counting section. (In its Annual convention proceedings, 1935, p. 138-298; 1936, p. 140-280; 1937, p. 139-247; 1938, p. 131-257.)
 HASBROUCK, H. C. Developments in uniform classification of accounts. American gas journal, Nov. 1936, p. 37-40, 82.
 HUNTER, F. M. Legal aspects of new uniform accounting systems. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 16-8, 35.
 KENTUCKY. Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Frankfort, Ky., Public service commission, 1936. I54p.
 MAINE. Public utilities commission. Supplement "A" to Uniform classification of accounts for gas utilities, issue of 1923; effective January 1, 1938. Augusta, Me., Public utilities commission, 1938. 23p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Intervention of acids.
- ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Inter-pretations of uniform system of accounts for gas utilities. Washington, D. C., National asso-ciation of railroad and utilities commissioners, July 15, 1939. 25 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin no. G-1)

-Same, August 15, 1939. (Bulletin no.

- no. G-2)
 Same, August 15, 1939. (Bulletin no. G-2)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD
 AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. List of
 retirement units for gas utilities, prepared by
 committee on statistics and accounts of public
 utility companies of National association of
 railroad and utilities commissioners. New York,
 State law reporting company, e1937. 23p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD
 AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Rules
 governing the preservation of records of gas
 utilities. Washington, D. C., National association
 of railroad and utilities commissioners, August
 15, 1939. 21 mimeographed pages.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD
 AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Uni form system of accounts for gas utilities. New
 York, State law reporting co., c1939. 204p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD
 AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Uni form system of accounts for gas utilities, classes
 A and B. New York, State law reporting co.,
 c1939. 204p.
 NEW HAMPSHIRE. Public service commission
 Uniform classification of accounts for gas utilities, effective January 1, 1939. Concord, N. H.,
 Public service commission (1938). 96p.
 NEW HAMPSHIRE. Public service commissioners, Uni form system of accounts prescribed for gas
 corporations, classes A and B; approved Novem ber 10, 1937; effective January 1, 1938. Trenton,
 N. J., Board of public utility commissioners, 1937, 155p.

 NEW YORK (state). Public service commission,
 10, 1937; effective January 1, 1938. Albany,
 N. Y. Public service commission, 1937, 149p.

 OREGON. Public utilities commissioner, 10, 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Albany,
 N. Y. Public service commission, 1937, 149p.

 OREGON. Public utilities commissioner, 1937,
 243p.

 OREGON. Publi G-2) NATIONAI

- Salem, Ore., rank and 243p. PENNSYLVANIA. Public utility commissioner. Uniform system of accounts prescribed for gas utilities subject to the provisions of the public utility law, effective January 1, 1939. Harris-burg, Pa., Department of property and supplies. Bureau of publication, 1939. 167 mimeographed
- pages. WISCONSIN. Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities (classes A and B). effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 162p.

Cost accounting PALMER, C. D. Gas production costs. Cost ac-countant, March 1937, p. 300-7.

Costs

GARVER, R. D. Unit costs in utility valuation. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 111-4.)

GAS-(Continued)

Government regulation and control NICHOLS, ELLSWORTH, Gas company ques tions before courts and commissions. Publi utilities fortnightly, Oct. 27, 1938, p. 565-72. auesublic

Inventories

RITENOUR, O. H. Property records and con-tinuous inventory. (In American gas associa-tion. *Proceedings*, 1938, p. 213-7.)

Statistics

atistics UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of. Retail prices . . . prepared by Retail price division and Cost of living division, Bureau of labor statistics. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, January 1936-December 1939. (pamphlets)

Valuation

GARBER, R. D. Unit costs in utility valuation. (In American gas association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 111-4.)

GAS, NATURAL WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. and EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Natural-gas in-dustry. (In their *Public utility industries*. 1936. p. 63-83.)

- Accounting
 CLIFF, HERBERT E. Accountants ready to contribute full share to advancement. Gas agerecord and Natural gas, Jan. 21, 1937, p. 33, 36, 46-7.

 READ, CLARK P. Standardization of accounting instructions, forms and procedures for natural gas companies. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 214-7.)
- GAS and oil company assets. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 321-2.

GAS APPLIANCES AND APPARATUS Statistics

bUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of electric and gas house-hold appliance stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 44, 44a)

- GASKILL, NELSON B.
 Regulation of competition. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1936, p. 15-20, 24, 27.
 What you may and may not do under the new price discrimination law, Robinson-Patman law. Washington, D. C., Kiplinger Washington agency, inc., c1936. 63p.

GASOLINE

See also Oil.

- Accounting McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Gas and natural (casinghead) gasoline division. (In his Hand-book of petroleum accounting. 1938. p. 369-87.)

GASOLINE FILLING STATIONS See Gasoline service stations.

GASOLINE SERVICE STATIONS

See also Automobile service stations. Statistics

- bitics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of filling stations and grocery stores and filling stations. (In their 1936 retail survey. report nos. 9, 35, 35a, 35b.) Analysis of the 1936 operations of grocery stores with filling stations, coöperative petroleum DUN

distributors and filling stations. (In their 1937 retail survey. report nos. 11, 21, 39, 39a, 39b.)

Taxation

PACKARD, FRANK E. Why provisions of chain store tax laws should not apply to gasoline fill-ing stations. (In National tax association. *Pro-*ceedings, 1936. p. 352-61.)

See Taxation-Gasoline, under various states and countries.

GASOLINE TAXES

GATES, A. B. New technique in executive training. Cost and management, Aug. 1936, p. 226-37.

GATES, J. R. Loose leaf minute books. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 393-4.

GAULT, EDGAR H. Fair trade, with especial reference to cut-rate drug prices in Michigan. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1939. 54p. (Michigan business studies, v. 9, no. 2.)

GAUMONT BRITISH PICTURE CORPORATION CAPITAL and dividends; Brown v. Gaumont British picture corporation, limited. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 277-80.

GAY, CHARLES R.

Security markets and business progress. (address delivered at the fiftieth anniversary banquet of the American institute of accountants, New York City, October 21, 1937.) 12 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 167-76. 76.)

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY Pension plan-additional pension plan-with amend-ments effective January 1, 1936. Schenectady, N. Y., General electric co. 13p.

GENERAL MERCHANDISE STORES See Dry goods: Department stores: Retail trade.

GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION General motors dealers standard accounting man-ual. revised edition. Dayton, Ohio, Reynolds and Reynolds co., January 1938. Ioose-leaf. 1939 employe benefit plans; issued November 1938. Detroit, Mich., General motors corp., 1938. 6p.

GENERAL rules and regulations under the securi-tics exchange act of 1934, as amended to and including September 10, 1938. United States. Securities and exchange commission.

GENERAL theory of employment interest and money. Keynes, John Maynard.

GENTRY, W. H. R. Double domicile in inheritance taxation. Tax maga-sine, March 1938, p. 135-7, 152; Oct. 1939, p. 576-8, 598-600.

- GEORGE, EDWIN B. Business and the Robinson-Patman act: the first year. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 392-409. Federal trade commission decision in the Goodyear
 - Federal trade commission decision in the Goodyear case, with supplementary comments on its relation to the Robinson-Patman act. (reprinted from Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, April, May and June 1936 issues)
 How big is big business? Dun's review, March 1939, p. 18-31, 53-5.
 Is big business getting bigger? Dun's review, May 1939, p. 28-36, 56.

GEORGE, EDWIN B., joint author See Thorp, Willard L and George, Edwin B.

238

GEORGE, H. WYBURN

- Some thoughts on taxation of mining companies. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 92-101.
- GEORGIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS, INC. Directory; Georgia C.P.A. law; Georgia society by-laws; membership roster. 1936. 18p.

GERACI, FRANK V.

Cutting costs with statement-ledger accounting machines. American business combined with "System", July 1936, p. 17, 43.

GERARDI, J. A., joint author See Lasser, J. K. and Gerardi, J. A.

GERDES, JOHN

Corporate reorganizations; changes effected by chapter 10 of the bankruptcy act. Harvard law review, Nov. 1938, p. 1-39.

GERMAIN, ALLEN

- Budget account system in a smaller-volume store. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Oct. 1939, p. 38-40, 42.
- GERMAN company law. Accountant, Sept. 11, 1937, p. 341-2.
- GERMAN company law: Accounts and audit. Accountant, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 594-5.

GEROFSKI, IRVIN

- EROFSKI, IRVIN New developments in controlling labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-11.) Present-day problems in inventory control. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 191-211.)

GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W.

Financial organization and management of busi-ness. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 840p.

GESSNER, EDWARD J. Accounting for land development companies. Pitts-burgh accountant, Jan. March 1936, p. 1, 4-5. Managerial accounting control. Certified public accountant, May 1936, p. 261-73.

GETZ, JOSEPH

- Difference between contingent liabilities and mate-rial commitments. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 257-61; discussion, p. 269-74.
- p. 269-74. Obligations of New York state employers under unemployment insurance laws of other states. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 20-6. Refunds of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (windfall) tax. New York certified public accountant, special issue, Nov. 1936. 26p.

GIBB, C. A.

Psychological determinants of proficiency. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 442-57.

GIBBS, WAYNE F.

DBS, WAINE F. Training and opportunities for the young man in accounting. (In Middle Atlantic states account-ing conference. *Papers on accounting procedure* and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 29-30.)

GIBE, JEROME L. Modern industrial management. Profit, Nov. 1938, p. 1, 3-4.

GIBSON, A. L.

- Social credit. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 129-32. GIBSON, WALTER B.
- Motion picture accounting problems. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 23-7.

GIDDY, H. D. Loss of profits insurance. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1937, p. 855-67; standard policy conditions, p. 867-8; June 1937, p. 934-40.

GIFFORD, L. D.

What does your car cost? Profit, April 1938, p. 1, 4.

GIFFORD, T. J. CARLYLE Inflation of credit. Accountants' magazine, July 1937, p. 390-9.

GIFT SHOPS See Retail trade.

GIFT TAXES See Taxation—Gifts, under various states and countries.

GILBERT, DONALD W. Should the undistributed profits tax be repealed? Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 710-1, 755-6. Undistributed profits and business fluctuations. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 72-4, 120.

- GILBERT, E. A., joint author See Gilbert, Mort, and Gilbert, E. A.
- GILBERT, J. Retail merchandise control; classification, price line and unit control. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 9-18.

GILBERT, MORT, AND GILBERT, E. A. Life insurance: investing in disaster. New York, Modern age books, inc., c1938. 210p.

GILBERTSON, H. S. Management and collective bargaining. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 385-99.

GILBY, J. H. Capital gains and losses under the 1936 revenue act. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 1-2.

GILLETT, CHARLES C. Cycling checking account statements. Bu clearing house, April 1939, p. 12, 30-2. Burrough**s**

GILMAN, EDGAR DOW Relative cost of electricity not shown by com-parison of rate schedules. *Public utilities fort-nightly*, April 9, 1936, p. 479-85.

GILMAN, LEWIS E.

Discussion of loans secured by accounts receivable. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1935, p. 155-7.

GILMAN, STEPHEN

- Accounting concepts of profit. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 635p. Collegiate C.P.A. requirement; a consideration of its ultimate effect upon the practice of public accounting. Chicago, Ill., The author, (1937).
- 16p. 16p. 1s college the only way? Accounting review, June 1937, p. 105-11. Old and new viewpoints toward auditing. 5 type-
- written pages.

GILMAN, WESLEY A. Suggests making annual report a public relations document. Controller, May 1938, p. 124-8.

GINDER, WILLARD R.

Principles of recomment and estoppel; application with respect to the taxation of income in the wrong year. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 573-8, 619.

GINGER ALE See Beverages.

GIRDLES

See Corsets, girdles and brassieres.

"GIVING EFFECT TO" ON BALANCE SHEET See Balance sheets, Pro-forma.

"GIVING effect to" on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 381-2.

GLAESER, MARTIN G. Those joint TVA costs. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 259-69.

GLASS, SPAULDING E. Excess profit on war materials under the Vinson act. Marine engineering and shipping review, Oct. 1938, p. 445-7, 476. Reprinted.

GLASS INDUSTRY Cos

DASS INDOSTRI ost accounting HARROLD, P. L. Outline of factory cost pro-cedure in plate glass manufacture. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 1, p. 159-82.)

GLASS TRADE Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of paint, wallpaper and glass stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report

Analysis of the 1936 operations of glass stores and paint, wallpaper and glass stores, (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 57, 66.)

GLASSCO, J. GRANT Business investigation; a brief discussion of some

Business investigation; a brief discussion of some important fundamental principles. Canadian char-tered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 430-41. Lawyers' accounts; a survey of the accounting requirements of a legal practice with particular reference to the rules recently enacted by the law societies. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 19-31.

GLASSER, HERMAN

DASDER, HERMANN Social security legislation; its effect on industry in general and the banking business in particular. Bankers magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 22-5. Social security plan in operation. Bankers maga-zine, Feb. 1936, p. 167-71.

- GLENDENING, FRANK S.
 Building and loan accounting; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 179-80.)
 U. and O.—How the C.P.A. looks upon use and occupancy insurance before and after the loss; presented before the Insurance federation of Pennsylvania, at the Bellevue-Stratford Hotel, Philadelphia, on May 27, 1938. Philadelphia, Pa., The author, c1938. 16p.

GLICK, EDWARD J.

New Rochelle attains cas finance, May 1937, p. 20-3. cash basis. Municipal

GLOIN, JAMES A. Developments in use and occupancy insurance. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936, p. 99-105.)

GLOVER, JOHN DESMOND Industrial loan policy of the RFC. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1939, p. 465-76.

GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 574p.

- **CLOVER, P. W. R.** Basic questions of auditing procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 92-100. Current discussions of auditing procedure; paper read at a meeting of the Massachusetts society of certified public accountants, held at Boston,

Mass., October 2, 1939. 10 typewritten pages. Current trends in auditing procedure; address pre-sented at the forty-fourth annual credit con-gress, National association of credit men, Grand Rapids, Mich., June 14, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages. Same. 10 typewritten pages. Robert Magnic acception merkiluk bulk for Scott 1920

Same. 10 typewritten pages. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Sept. 1939, p. 75-6, 94-7.

- Morris associates monthly ownerm, Sept. 1995, p. 75-6, 94-7.
 Extensions of auditing procedure. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 396.
 Financial statements accompanied by a report and opinion of an independent certified public accountant. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939, p. 114-20.)
 Introduction to round table discussion: Discussion of auditing procedure. (In American institute of accountants Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 1-4.)
 Remarks of P. W. R. Glover, of Barrow, Wade, Guthrie & company, New York, chairman of the special executive committee in charge of arrangements for the celebration; Soth anniversary celebration and annual meeting, American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 4 mimeographed pages. pages.

GLUICK, LEWIS

- Duplicating devices for accountants. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 6-9. Taxation of accounting machine manufacturers. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 595-7. Trigonometry for accountants. Certified public ac-countant, April 1936, p. 232-3.

GNAEDINGER, PAUL E.

NAEDINGER, PAOL E. Standard costs for profit control. Factory man-agement and maintenance, April 1936, p. 151-2, advertising page 46, 48, 50; May 1936, p. 186-7, advertising page 50, 53; June 1936, p. 215-6, advertising page 39-42.

GODWIN, E. F. Forward exchange accounting. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 180-2.

GODWIN, J. C. See also National capital group of controllers. Accounting procedure on depreciation of capital assets. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 6-8.

GOEBEILLE, WILLIAM H. International business machines. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 226-7.)

GOETTSCHE, H. C. Arriving at a profitable selling price. Brewery age, April 1936, p. 25-7. Correspondence. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 229-31.

ĠOETTSCHE, H. C. AND COMPANY Comparative brewery costs and statistics. Chicago, Ill., H. C. Goettsche and co., c1938. 4p. and exhibits A-Z.

GOETZ, BILLY E.

What's wrong with accounting; paper presented at the meeting of the Chicago chapter of the society for the advancement of management, May 16, 1939. Advanced management, Fall 1939, p. 151-7.

GOETZE, PETER Fachausdrücke des rechnungswesens, des prü-fungs- und treuhandwesens (technical terms of accounting and verification) Berlin, Dr. Peter Goetze (1938), various paging.

GOGGANS, J. L. Essentials of admission to bar; presented at National conference of bar examiners, at annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Oct. 19, 1936. 12 typewritten pages.

GOLD

See also Gold as money; Mining and metallurgy, Gold; Money.

- GOLD and its relationship to credit. Maxwell George A.
- GOLD AS MONEY
- GOLD AS MONEY
 BUSSCHAU, W. J. Future of gold supply. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 367-73, discussion, p. 373-5.
 CURTIS, C. RALPH. Bank of England and the gold reserves. Certified accountants journal, March 1939, p. 83-5.
 DAY, J. P. Valuation of gold. Canadian chart-ered accountant, May 1937, p. 408-17.
 GOLD clause. Accountant, Jan. 21, 1939, p. 78-9.
 JONES, J. H. Gold crisis. Accountant, June 12, 1937, p. 828-30.
 KEMMERER, EDWIN WALTER. Gold ex-change standard—French and American bimetal-lism. (In his Money. c1935. p. 154-70; 319-58.)
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Problems of Britain's gold. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 365-71.
 MAXWELL, GEORGE A. Gold and its relation-ship, to credit. (Talk given at a meeting of the Baltimore bank auditors and comptrollers) 13
- bantmore pank auditors and comptrollers) 15 typewritten pages. MAXWELL, J. A. Monetary policies of Mr. Roosevelt. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 278-85.
- Managed currency, or open. Con-
- 278-85. SPAHR, WALTER E. Managed currency, or return to gold standard, courses open. Con-troller, Nov. 1936, p. 296-300. WATSON, A. E. Gold standard and foreign rates of exchange. Australian accountant, April 1937, p. 205-14. DADKED Cold superstition Com
- WILLIS, H. PARKER. Gold superstition. Com-mercial and financial chronicle, May 1937, p. 3399-401
- GOLD clause. Accountant, Jan. 21, 1939, p. 78-9.
- GOLD MINING

See Mining and metallurgy, Gold.

GOLD STANDARD

See Gold as money.

- GOLDBERG, LOUIS S.
 - OLDBERG, LOODS S. Federal social security act. Certified public ac-countant, July 1936, p. 410-20, 433. Outline and comments on the social security act. (reprint from current issues of the Daily re-porter, by courtesy Credit service exchange.)
- GOLDEN GATE COLLEGE. GRADUATE SCHOOL OF ACCOUNTANCY
 - Annual report to the profession, June 30, 1938, by Myron M. Strain, Dean. San Francisco, Calif., Golden Gate college, 1938. 9 mimeographed pages.
- GOLDEN jubilee celebrations. Accountant, June 11, 1938, p. 810-7.

GOLDSCHMIDT, R. W. Registration under the securities act of 1933. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 19-31.

- GOLDSMITH, H. STUART Commercial bank auditor looks at your problems. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 8, 16.
- GOLDSMITH, P. H., joint author See Poulton, P. K. and Goldsmith, P. H.

GOLDSTEIN, A.

- Some practical aspects of income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 450-7, dis-cussion, p. 457.
- GOLIEB, DAVID E., joint author See Ettinger, Richard P. and Golieb, David E.

GOLSAN, PAGE

Protection for corporate trustees; the reliance clauses and certificates of value. Trusts and

estates, Dec. 1939, p. 615-20. Reprinted by Ford, Bacon and Davis, inc. 7p.

GOODBAR, JOSEPH E.

Pension reserve plan of the social security act. Bankers magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 515-19.

GOODE, KENNETH M.

How to write advertising. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 168p. (American business fundamentals.)

GOODGOLD, LOUIS

Legal phases of the New York city sales tax law. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Account-ing and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 10b, May 12, city 0 1938.)

GOODWILL

See also name of specific business, industry or trade

- trade. BLOOMBERG, LAWRENCE N. Investment value of goodwill. Baltimore, Md. Johns Hop-kins press, 1938. 70p. BOGAN, R. D. Valuation of goodwill. Chart-ered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1935, p. 249-
- LOAKE, T. REGINALD. Discussion of good-will, presented at round table forum: "Intangible assets"—New York state society of certified public accountants, November 30, 1938. 9 type-CLOAKE, T. REGINALD.
- Loss state society of certified public accountants, November 30, 1938. 9 type-written pages.
 CLOAKE, T. REGINALD. Intangible assets; a discussion of goodwill. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 308-12.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Goodwill points arising on a valuation thereof for purposes of an amalgamation. (In his Methods of amalgamation and the valuation of business for amalgamation and other purposes. 1938. p. 146-93.)
 FOSTER, L. F. Partnership goodwill. (from Corporate accountant) Indian accountant, June 1937, p. 213-5.
- p. 213-5. GOODWILL. Accountant student, Dec. 1939, p. GOODWILL and partnerships. Accountancy, May
- GOODWILL in business. Accountant, April 22,
- 1939, p. 548-50. GOODWILL, rea real-estate appreciation and valua-
- tion of stocks. (Accounting questions. Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 73-6, HARRIS, A. G. L. Valuation of goodwill in pro-fessional businesses, with particular reference to

- HARRIS, A. G. L. Valuation of goodwill in professional businesses, with particular reference to public accountancy practices. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 567-8.
 HARROW, BENJAMIN. New York estate tax—some accounting problems. Taxes—the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 279-80, 317-8.
 JAY, HARRY M. Goodwill. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 695-7.
 MARSTON, ANSON and AGG, THOMAS R. Good-will value; the values of other intangibles. (In their Engineering valuation, 1936, p. 356-67.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Obsolescence of goodwill. Haberle crystal springs brewing company v. Clarke. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 295-301.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Valuation of goodwill. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 237-46.)
 MOORE, FRANK S. Legal protection of goodwill; trade marks—trade emblems—advertising —unfair competition. New York, Ronald press co., c1936, 218p.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Valuation of goodwill. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 169-80.
 PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Goodwill in coountancy, July 1937, p. 28-50. Indian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 15-20.
 PREINREICH, GABRIEL, A. D. Law of goodwill. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 317-29.

GOODWILL-(Continued)

- OODWILL—(Continued)
 RIGHTS on sale of goodwill. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 440-1.
 SALES, C. A. Valuation of goodwill. Accountant student and Accountants journal, March 1937, p. 343-5.
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Goodwill. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 516-23.)
 SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. Valuing goodwill. Accounting ledger, Dec. 20, 1937, p. 2-4.
 SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. AND LANG, THEODORE. Goodwill valuation. (In their Mathematics of business and finance, c1937, p. 515-28.)
 THIS goodwill. (from Commerce journal, Auckland, N.Z.) Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Aug. 1939, p. 965-9.
 WALKER, GEORGE T. Goodwill on financial statements. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 174-82.

- 174-82

WALKER, GEORGE T. Nonpurchased goodwill. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 253-9.

- GOODWILL. Accountant student, Dec. 1939, p. 172-4.
- ODWILL and partnerships. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 298-9. GOODWILL and
- GOODWILL in accountancy. Preinreich, Gabriel A. D.
- GOODWILL in business. Accountant, April 22, 1939, p. 548-50.

GOODWILL of **DDWILL** of accountant's practice. Accountant, Aug. 20, 1938, p. 270; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 307.

- GOODWILL of chiropodist's practice. Accountant, June 5, 1937, p. 812-3.
- GOODWILL, real-estate appreciation and valuation of stocks. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 73-6.

GOODWIN, J. PRYSE

- CODWIN, J. PRYSE
 Experience in arbitration. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 105-6, 128.
 Unabsorbed burden—an experience therewith.
 (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 20, no. 5, section 2, p. 295-6.)

GOODWIN, JOHN H.

Plant ledger for a small manufacturer. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 130-5.

GOODWIN, LESLIE Deeds of arrangement, in practice and theory. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1938, p. 251-6.

- GOODYEAR TIRE AND RUBBER COMPANY
 GEORGE, EDWIN B. Federal trade commission decision in the Goodyear case, with supplementary comments on its relation to the Robinson-Patman act. (reprinted from Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, April, May and June 1936 issues)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Goodyear tire and rubber reorganization of 1920 in retrospect. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 291-316.)

GORDON, F. W. Practical method

actical methods for depreciation of factory equipment. London, Arthur H. Stockwell, ltd. (1936). 63p.

GORDON, SPENCER

- ORDON, SPENCER
 Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 303-9.
 Institute examination in law, May 1936. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 217-22.
 Institute examination in law, November 1936. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 307-13.
 Institute examination in law, May 1937. Journal of accountancy, supplement, Jan. 1938, p. 58-64.

- Institute examination in law, November 1937. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 58-62. Institute examination in law, May 1938. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 49-53. Institute examination in law, November 1938. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 311-6. Liability arising from accountant's report. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 48-55.)

GORDON, SPENCER, joint author See Baumann, H. P. and Gordon, Spencer.

- GORDON, WALTER L. Personal income taxes and succession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 397-407.
 - Income taxes, succession duties and other direct taxes in Canada, the United States and Great Britain not including taxes on property. Canad-ian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 261-89.

GORDON, WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JERE-MIAH

Modern accounting systems. ed. 2. revised. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1937. 473p.

GORE, CHALLISS Is depreciation merely a "bookkeeping item"? Trust companies, Jan. 1936, p. 41-3.

GOSSELIN, HAROLD L. Record forms that increase operating efficiency. Buildings and building management, April 1937, p. 40-2.

GOTAAS, HAROLD B. Physical property records. Journal of the Ameri-can water works association, March 1939, p. 517-25.

GOTEIN, H.

Company taxation and the shareholder. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1936, p. 135-9.

GOURRICH, PAUL P.

Investment banking methods prior to and since the securities act of 1933. Law and contempo-rary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 44-71.

GOVERNMENT

- OVERNMENT See also Counties; Municipal; States; names of various federal departments. ABBOTT, CHARLES CORTEZ. Federal corpo-rations and corporate agencies. Harvard busi-ness review, Summer number, 1938, p. 436-50. EFFECTS of governmental policies on financial management; by Paul Studenski, Mark M. Jones, Randolph E. Paul, Arthur A. Ballantine, Leslie Mills, and Victor H. Stempf. New York, American management association, c1939. 52p. (Financial management series no. 58.) LANDIS, JAMES M. Administrative process. New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1938. 160p.
- 160p
- 1600. UNITED STATES. National emergency council. United States government manual; a simplified textbook designed to inform every citizen as to government procedure and to make effectively available all federal services. Washington, D. C., National emergency council, 1936. Loose leaf.
- UNITED STATES. Office of government reports. United States government manual. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Oct. 1939. 551p.

- Accounting ACCOUNTANTS' views on governmental reorgan-ization considered in congress. Certified public accountant, April 1938; p. 222-8.
 ACCOUNTS of governmental authorities; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 288-310.
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on governmental accounting.

GOVERNMENT—Accounting—(Continued)

- OVERNMENT—Accounting—(Continued)
 Qualifications for public fiscal positions. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 155-6. Reprinted.
 ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Accounts of governmental authorities. (addresses at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf.Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 296-300.)
 AULD, GEORGE P. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 224-7.
 BAILEY, GEORGE D. Practical problems in governmental accounting. Accounting review,

- BAILEY, GEORGE D. Practical problems in governmental accounting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 52-7.
 BARTELT, E. F. Accounting controls in the federal government, New York, American insti-tute of accountants, 1938, 24p. (Supplement to the proceedings of conference on municipal accounting and finance of the American institute of accountants, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938.) 1938.
- 1938.)
 BARTELT, E. F. Address at conference of the Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada held at San Fran-cisco, California, on October 18, 1939. Wash-ington, D. C., United States treasury depart-ment, 1939. 30 mimeographed pages. Municipal finance, Nov. 1939, p. 15-26.
 BARTELT, E. F. Address delivered before the National association of state auditors, controllers, and treasurers, at the Buena Vista Hotel, Bi-loxi, Mississipi, November 16, 1936. 43 mimeo-graphed pages.
- and treasurers, at the Buena Vista Hotel, Biloxi, Mississippi, November 16, 1936. 43 mimeographed pages.
 BARTELT, E. F. Remarks at a conference on government accounting held at the school of the International business machines corporation, at Endicott, New York, September 14, 1939. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, 1939. 36 mimeographed pages.
 BECK, HOWARD C. Governmental accounting and financing. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 716-8.
 BRICKER, JOHN W. Need for good accounting in the affairs of government. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 53-5.)
 BUCK, A. E. Financial control and accountability. (In United States. President's committee on administrative management. Fiscal management in the antional government. 1937. p. 3-30.)
 CHATTERS, CARL H. Present and future of governmental accounting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 48-51.
 EAKIN, FRANZY. Controller as an interpreter of economic accounting and anditing. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 163-4.
 GOVERNMENT reorganization. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 16-34.
 GOVERNMENT reorganization. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 79-90.

- GREEN, PAUL M. Some problems in govern-ment accounting. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 141-9.

- p. 141-9.
 HACKETT, ROBERT P. Governmental accounting in the education of the public accountant. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 390-2.
 INCONSISTENCY in governmental accounting re-quirements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 260.
 MANSFIELD, HARVEY C. Comptroller general; a study in the law and practice of financial ad-ministration. New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1939, 303p.
- MANSFIELD, HARVEY C. General accounting office. (In United States, President's committee on administrative management. *Fiscal manage-*ment in the national government. 1937. p. 33-62.)
- MILLER HERMANN C. Place of governmental accounting in the syllabus. (Accounting ex-change) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 176-7.
- MOREY, LLOYD. Accounting student and govern-

mental accounting. Accounting ledger. April 1939,

- n. 3840, 42. MOREY, LLOYD. Federal accounting and report-ing. (In Illinois, University of. Bureau of busi-ness research. Opinion and comment. May 1939.
- ness research. Optimien and comment account-p. 13-17.) MOREY, LLOYD. Federal government accountancy, April 1937, p. 293-4. MOREY, LLOYD. Federal organization and ac-counting. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1939,

- p. 7-8.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Government reorganization. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 329-31.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Introduction to government ac-counting. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1936, 318p.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Place of accountancy in gov-ernment; a series of addresses over radio station WILL, University of Illinois, April 1936. Ur-bana, Ill. University of Illinois, The author, 1936. 14n.
- WILL, University of Illinois, April 1936. Urbana, Ill. University of Illinois, The author, 1936. 14p.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Principles of accounting for governmental authorities. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 13 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 289-96.)
 PERHAPS it is obtuseness—Explanation is difficult. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 237-8.
- ficult. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 237-8. PILCHER, DALTON J. Principles of federal ac-countancy. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 141-52. QUALIFICATIONS for public fiscal positions (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939,
- 140
- p. 149.
 SEIDMAN, M. L. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 228-31.
 STONE, DONALD C. Governmental accounting surveys. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on muni-cipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28, and 29, 1938, p. 72-8.)
 UNITED STATES. President's committee on ad-ministrative management. Administrative man-agement in the government of the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937, 47p.
- 1937. 47p. WEBER, ABRAHAM S. Governmental budgeting and accounting. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p.

Anstralia BARTON, A. E. Public finance, and the form and presentation of public accounts. (In Australasian congress on accounting. *Proceedings*, 1936. p. 9-23; discussion, p. 24-45.)

Canada

- Carada McDONALD, GEORGE C. Public accounts of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 377-82. MAPP, KRIS A. Some problems as between busi-ness and government. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Sept. 1938, p. 192-200.

China NOM LEE, J. STEPHEN. Government accounting in China. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 283-90.

- 283-90.
 Anditing ACCOUNTANTS' views on governmental reor-ganization considered in congress. Certified pub-lic accountant, April 1938, p. 22-8.
 AUDIT of immensity. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, July 1936, p. 6-7.
 AULD, GEORGE P. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accoun-tancy. March 1938, p. 224-7.
 FEDERAL accounting and auditing. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 187.
 FEDERAL government accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 163-4.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Federal government accounting.

GOVERNMENT-Auditing-(Continued)

- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April

- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 293-4.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Government reorganization. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 329-31.
 SEIDMAN, M. L. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 228-31.
 UNITED STATES. President's committee on administrative management. Administrative management in the government of the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937, 47p. 1937. 47p.

China NOM LEE, J. STEPHEN. Government auditing in China. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 190-8.

- Cost accounting BENNION, H. S. Cost accounting practices in federal government departments; address before National accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, III., November 14, 1939. 16 typewritten pages.
 GOVERNMENT competition. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 187.
 GOVERNMENT cost accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 198.
 VOEGELE, ALBIN, B. AND TOWNS, CHARLES H. Cost accounting for federal agencies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 93-9.)

- Costs BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Public finance. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 632p. MONTAGUE, GILBERT H. New deal costs and the high cost of living. (reprinted from the An-nals of the American academy of political and social science, Philadelphia, January, 1936. 8p.) NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Cost of government in the United States, 1933-1935. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., c1936. 98p. (National in-dustrial conference board studies no. 223.)

- Finance
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Federal finances and taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 714-8, 760.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Problems in federal taxation and finance. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress. Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 75-86.)
 BARTELT, E. F. United States treasury; address before the Iowa bankers association, Des Moines, Iowa, June 6, 1939, 30 mimeographed pages.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Public finance. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936, 632p.
 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Federal debt and expenditures: report of the committee on federal finance. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, Dec. 1938, 26p.
 COLM, GERHARD. Public revenue and public expenditure actional income (In National burgat)

 - 369-70. COLM, GERHARD. Public revenue and public expenditure in national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 175-227, discussion, p. 228-48.)

 - 48.)
 COYLE, DAVID CUSHMAN. But is there a federal deficit? Harpers magazine, April 1938, p. 449-57.
 DICKINSON. FRANK G. AND EAKIN, FRANZY. Balance sheet of the nation's economy. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, College of commerce and business administration. Bureau of business research, 1936. 35p. (Bulletin no. 54)
 - commerce and business tasks of the provided of

- MANSFIELD, HARVEY C. Comptroller general; a study in the law and practice of financial ad-ministration. New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1939. 303p.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Maintaining citizen interest in the financial operations of government; before conference on governmental accounting, Detroit, Dec. 1, 1939. 19 typewritten pages.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Tracing the tax dollar; how can the citizen protect his biggest investment? (April 15, 1937.) 11 typewritten pages.
 NATIONAL ECONOMY LEAGUE. How to bal-ance the federal budget; a realistic appraisal of national finances. New York, National economy league, March 1939. 33p.
 SCHMIDT, EMERSON P. Should governments ever borrow? Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 261-2, 315-6.
 SELKO, DANIEL T. Administration of federal finances. Washington, D. C., Brookings institu-tion, 1937. 71p.
 UNITED STATES, President. Report of the President of the United States to the Congress, showing the status of funds and operations under the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, and 1938, as of December 31, 1938.
 Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Jan. 10, 1939. 543p.
 UNITED STATES. President's committee on ad-ministrative management. Fiscal management in the national government. Washington, D. C.,

- Jan. 10, 1939. 3439.
 JuNITED STATES. President's committee on administrative management. Fiscal management in the national government. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 62p. (Studies on administrative management in the government of the United States, no. 2.)
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Report showing the financial status of funds and analyses of expenditures; emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, and 1937, as of June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and deposits, 1938. 451p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Report showing the status of funds or 1935, 1936, 1937, 1938, and 1939, as of November 30, 1939. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and deposits, 1939, as 17p.

Australia BARTON, A. E. Public finance, and the form and presentation of public accounts. (In Australasian congress on accounting. *Proceedings*, 1936. p. 9-23, discussion, p. 24-45.)

Curanda CURTIS, C. A. Public finance. Canadian char-tered accountant, May 1939, p. 348-55.

Russia MACGREGOR, D. C. Soviet financial system. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 173-87.

Reorganization

- AULD, GEORGE P. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1938, p. 224-7.
 FEDERAL accounting and auditing. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 187.
 MANSFIELD, HARVEY C. Reorganization. (In his Comptroller aeneral. 1939, p. 274-88.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Government reorganization. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 329-31.
 PETTINGILL, SAMUEL B. President's reor-ganization plan... over Town Hall radio forum (NBC) on January 20, 1939, New York, Na-tional committee to uphold constitutional govern-ment, 1938, 3p.

GOVERNMENT-Reorganization-(Continued)

- REORGANIZATION of the accounting system of the United States government. Accountant the United States government. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p.
- SEIDMAN, M. L. Government reorganization and the independent audit. *Journal of accountancy*, March 1938, p. 228-31.

Reports PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. Auditor general. Report of the Auditor general to the President and the National assembly of the Philippines; supplement no. 1, pertaining to the fiscal affairs of the provincial governments, the municipal govern-ments, the city of Maguio, the Metropolitan water district, and the provincial hospitals, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1936. Manila, P. I., Bureau of printing, 1937. 506p.

-Same, 1937, 1938, 545p.

- GOVERNMENT accounting in China. Nom Lee, J. Stephen.
- GOVERNMENT auditing in China. Nom Lee, J. Stephen.
- GOVERNMENT budgeting in China. Nom Lee, J. Stephen.
- GOVERNMENT competition. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 137.
- GOVERNMENT COMPETITION WITH BUSINESS BONNELL, ROBERT O. "(A) New competitor of business". Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 214-25.
 DOYING, GEORGE E. Need the power industry fear federal competition? Public utilities fort-nightly, March 3, 1938, p. 281-5.
 GOVERNMENT competition. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 137.
 WANTZ, RAY E. Government competition with private business. Public utilities fortnightly, Feb. 27, 1936, p. 287-94.

GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS See Contracts; Vinson act.

- GOVERNMENT contracts and costing. Accountant, Nov. 12, 1938, p. 675-6.
- GOVERNMENT contracts and costs. Accounting, Aug. 27, 1938, p. 280-2.

GOVERNMENT contracts—principles and procedure. N.A.M. law digest, Nov.-Dec. 1939, p. 41-72.

- GOVERNMENT cost accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 198.
- GOVERNMENT lending. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1939, p. 76-7.
- GOVERNMENT price-fixing. Backman, Jules.

GOVERNMENT PROJECTS See Public works.

- GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF BUSINESS
 - See Business—Government regulation and con-trol; Public utilities—Government regulation and control; Stock exchanges—Government regulation.
- GOVERNMENT reorganization. (Correspondence) Morey, Lloyd.
- GOVERNMENT reorganization and the independent audit. Auld, George P.
- GOVERNMENT reorganization and the independent audit. Seidman, M. L.
- GOVERNMENTAL examination of corporate ac-counts? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 273-5.

GOW, JAMES T

Company reorganization. Canadian chartered ac-countant, April 1938, p. 290-4.

- GRACEY, ROBERT D. High standard in the appearance, content and grammatical construction of accountants' reports. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 372-82.
 - Staff training; address at the fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938. 10 typewritten pages.

- GRADY, PAUL Principles of depreciation. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 13-6.)
- GRAGG, CHARLES I., joint author See McNair, Malcolm P., Gragg, Charles I., and Teele, Stanley F.
- GRAHAM, A. J. Is cancellation of indebtedness income? Tax maga-zine, Dec. 1938, p. 707-8, 764.
- GRAHAM, B. L. Vinson act as it affects the excess profits tax. Controller, May 1938, p. 142, 144.
- GRAHAM, BENJAMIN

Undistributed profits tax and the investor. Yale law journal, Nov. 1936, p. 1-18.

GRAHAM, BENJAMIN AND MEREDITH, SPENCER B.

Harper & brothers, 1937. 122p.

GRAHAM, BERL G. Machine accounting; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 219-20.)

GRAHAM, E. W.

CUTTENT DE W. C. W. Current practices in inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 752-66.) Printed with: Peloubet, Maurice E. Problems of present-day inventory valuations. valuation.

- GRAHAM, WILLARD J.
 Accounting economy by machine methods. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 16 section 1, p. 935-51.)
 Accounting education, ethics and training. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 258-62.
 Accounting in the law-school curriculum. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 14-21.
 Business taxation and financial management. New Wilmington, Penn., Westminster college, Department of economics and business administration, Dec. 3, 1937, 25p.
- GRAHAM, WILLARD J., AND KATZ, WILBER G. Accounting in law practice. ed 2. Chicago, Ill., Callaghan and co., 1938. 553p.

- Callaghan and co., 1938. 553p.
 GRAHAM-DIXON, L. C.
 Armament profits duty. Accountant, tax supplement, July 8, 1939, p. 261-63; July 15, 1939, p. 273-5.
 Deeds of covenant and settlements to-day. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 459-60.
 Finance act, 1938. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 10, 1938. Accountant, tax supplement, May 28, 1938, p. 237-40; June 4, 1938, p. 261-4; June 11, 1938, p. 273-6; June 18, 1938, p. 281-3; June 25, 1938, p. 293-6; July 2, 1938, p. 305-8; July 9, 1938, p. 273-6; June 18, 1938, p. 305-8; July 9, 1938, p. 273-6; June 18, 1938, p. 305-8; July 9, 1938, p. 317-20.
 Finance bill, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, May 27, 1939, p. 201-2; June 3, 1939, p. 213-14; June 10, 1939, p. 221-3.
 Finance (No. 2) bill, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 365-7; Oct. 14, 1939, p. 373-5.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

GRAIN

246

See also Produce; Wheat.

- Statistics
- COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc, 1939. 616p.
- **GRAIN BROKERS**

See Commodity brokers.

GRAIN ELEVATORS

See also Flour mills.

- See also Flour mills.
 Accounting UNITED STATES. Farm credit administration. Accounting procedure for coöperative grain ele-vators, by E. B. Ballow. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Nov. 1938. 222p. (Bulletin no. 28.)
 VERIFICATION of inventory quantities in grain elevators. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 5, section 2, p. 287-9.) Printed with: Donaldson, William R. Tax advantages of the natural business year.

Auditing SMAILS, R. G. H. Grain elevator company. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 295-8.)

GRAIN FUTURES

- See also Futures; Hedging. PELEJ, JOSEPH. Valuation of flour mill in-ventories. Journal of accountancy, July 1939,
- ventories. Journal of accommancy, july 1909, p. 35-47. TEXT of commodity exchange act—measure pro-vides regulation for trading in major com-modity markets similar to that exercised by SEC over securities. Commercial and financial chronicle, June 27, 1936, p. 4245-8. UNITED STATES. Agriculture, Department of. Grain futures administration. Analysis of open commitments in wheat and corn futures on the Chicago board of trade, September 29, 1934, by D. B. Bagnell. Washington, D. C., Department of agriculture, Grain futures ad-ministration, May 1936. 20p. (Circular no. 397)

GRAIN FUTURES ACT COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Law regulating commodity exchanges (approved June 15, 1936) an act amending the grain futures act. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 15p.

GRAIN TRADE

- RAIN TRADE See also Flour mills.
 BLOOMFIELD, ARTHUR L. Canadian wheat pools: 1929-1936. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1937, p. 232-47.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Marketing grain and livestock. (In his Essentials of distribution. 1936. p. 279-300.)
 MANSFIELD, RICHARD I. Technique of the grain trade. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1937, p. 263-8, 293-5.

- Accounting AITKEN, WILLIAM. Financial statements of grain exporters and shippers. Canadian char-tered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 331-46.
 MACINTOSH, WILLIAM. Arithmetic of the grain trading account. Canadian chartered ac-countant, May 1939, p. 326-43.
 VERIFICATION of inventory quantities in grain elevators. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 5, section 2, p. 287-9.) Printed with: Donaldson, William R. Tax advantages of the natural business year.

GRANGE, WILLIAM J. AND QUAT, JACOB Real estate; a practical guide to ownership, trans-fer, mortgaging and leasing of real property. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 541p.

GRANITE

See Quarries and quarrying; Stone.

GRANT, EUGENE L.

- Principles of engineering economy. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 431p. Principles of engineering economy—problems. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 142p.

- GRAPHIC METHODS BLAIR, T. A. Graphic charts in cost work. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 123-4. BROSTER, ERIC JAMES. Cost, demand and International April 10 and a Cost to be itd
 - net revenue analysis. London, Gee & co., ltd.,
 - BROSTER, ERIC JAMES. Cost, definition and net revenue analysis. London, Gee & co., Itd., 1938. 83p.
 BROSTER, ERIC JAMES. Practical framework of. cost, demand and net revenue analysis. Accountant, Jan. 1, 1938, p. 11-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 41-2; Jan. 15, 1938, p. 78-80; Jan. 22, 1938, p. 117-8; Jan. 29, 1938, p. 153-5; Feb. 5, 1938, p. 185-90; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 252-7; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 258-60; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 294-6; March 5, 1938, p. 322-3.
 COMPTON, WILLIAM H. Cost and profit trend charts and flexible budgets; presented at the 21st semi-annual meeting of the American gear manufacturers association, Skytop Lodge, Pennsylvania, October 10, 11, 12, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.
 DURMAN, CHARLES H. Introduction to the Gantt chart. Cost accountant, July 1936, p. 39-47.

 - BORMAN, CHARLES H. Introduction to the Gantt chart. Cost accountant, July 1936, p. 39-47.
 HOLMES, R. L. A. Graphic statistics. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 41-2; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 127; Feb. 8, 1936, p. 201; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 277; March 7, 1936, p. 358-9; March 21, 1936, p. 612; May 2, 1936, p. 677; May 16, 1936, p. 612; May 2, 1936, p. 677; May 16, 1936, p. 966; June 27, 1936, p. 956; July 11, 1936, p. 966; June 27, 1936, p. 956; July 11, 1936, p. 49; July 25, 1936, p. 124; Aug. 8, 1936, p. 192; Aug. 15, 1936, p. 354; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 192; Aug. 15, 1936, p. 354; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 192; Aug. 15, 1936, p. 30; Oct. 3, 1936, p. 473.
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Graphic charts. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937, p. 429-47.)
 MATHEMATICS of costing. Accountant, Jan. 1, 1938, p. 2-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 22, 1938, p. 143; Feb. 5, 1938, p. 176; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 143; Feb. 5, 1938, p. 217; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 284; March 5, 1938, p. 310.
 RIGGLEMAN, JOHIN R. Graphic methods for presenting business statistics; introduction by M. C. Rorty. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936, 259p.
 SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. AND LANG, THEODORE Business graphics. (In their Mathematics of business and finance, c1937, p. 339-72.)
 WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Make it visual. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 315-27.)
 GRAPHIC methods for presenting business statistics.
- GRAPHIC methods for presenting business statistics. Riggleman, John R.
- GRAS, N. S. B. Historical background of modern price regulation. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 43-59.)
- GRATUITOUS attack. (Editorial) Ja countancy, March 1939, p. 131-4. Journal of ac-

GRAUBERT, ELLA Clarifying rights of life tenant and remainder-man. Trust companies, Aug. 1936, p. 167-71.

GRAUE, ERWIN Taxes: their relation to the business cycle. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 645-7, 689.

GRAVEL See Sand and gravel.

GRAVES, MARK Contribution of the accounting profession to tax administration. New York certified public ac-countant, Jan. 1938, p. 12-6. Certified public ac-countant, Feb. 1938, p. 6-11.

Y

۲

GRAVES, W. BROOKE

Uniform regulation and control of commerce. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 337-48.

GRAVES, WILLIS C. Voucher system. Profit, March 1939, p. 1, 3, 4. Whose is the responsibility? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 124-6.)

- GRAY, PHILIP F. Material facts for credit purposes. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 12-7, questions answered by Mr. Gray, p. 17-22. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 193-7.
 - Internal check and audit; panel discussion. (In Na-tional association of cost accountants. Year book. 1939. p. 365-406.)

GRAY IRON FOUNDERS' SOCIETY, INC. Simplified cost system for the gray iron foundry industry, July 1936. Cleveland, Ohio, Gray iron founders' society, inc., c1936. 11p.

GRFANEY, E. J. Elimination of cents. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 299-300.

GREAT BRITAIN

- Claims under the compensation (defence) act-treasury rules. Accountant, Nov. 18, 1939, p. 554-7.
- Deduction of income tax, 1939-40. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 21, 1939, p. 390-1. Execution of trusts (emergency provisions) act, 1939; an act to facilitate the execution of trusts

- Execution of trusts (emergency provisions) act, 1939; an act to facilitate the execution of trusts during the period of present emergency. Accountant, Oct. 28, 1939, p. 466-7.
 Finance act, 1936 (Geo. 5 & Edw. 8, Ch. 34.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1936. 39p.
 Finance act, 1937. (1 Edw. 8. & 1 Geo. 6, Ch. 54.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1937. 92p.
 Finance act, 1938. (1 & 2 Geo. 6, Ch. 46.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1937. 92p.
 Finance act, 1939 (2 & 3 Geo. 6, Ch. 46.) London, H. M. stationery office, 73p.
 Finance act, 1939 (2 & 3 Geo. 6, Ch. 41.) London, H. M. stationery office, 81p.
 Finance bill; a bill to grant certain duties of customs and inland revenue (including excise), to alter other duties, and to amend the law relating to customs and inland revenue (including excise) and the national debt, and to make further provision in connection with finance. Ordered by the House of commons, to be printed, 27 April 1937. 99p.
 Finance (No. 2) bill, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 368-70; Oct. 14, 1939, p. 377-82.
 Finance (no. 2) act, 1939 (2 & 3 Geo. 6, Ch. 109.)

- p. 377-82.
 Finance (no. 2) act, 1939 (j. 306/0, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 378-782.
 Finance (no. 2) act, 1939 (2 & 3 Geo. 6. Ch. 109.) London, H. M. Stationery office, 1939. 50p.
 Financial statement (1938-39) copy of "Statement of revenue and expenditure as laid before the House by the Chancellor of the exchequer when opening the budget." London, H. M. stationery office, 1938. 24p.
 Prevention of fraud (investments) act, 1939; draft rules of the Board of trade with respect to conduct of business of licensed dealers. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 789-91.
 Prevention of fraud (investments) act, 1939; 2 & 3 Geo. 6, ch. 16. London, H. M. stationery office, 1939. 34p.
 Report of the committee on share-pushing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 441-6.

- 461.6

GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY

- REELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY
 Definition of current assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 262-3.
 Liberty and taxes; address at regular luncheon meeting of Kiwanis club of New York, inc., February 2, 1938. 8p.
 Recent decisions and rulings on utility deprecia-tion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 55-63.) Controller, July 1939, p. 244-8.

GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor

Accountant as a witness-Expert witness fees-

Amount of fee is admissible in evidence. (Legal

- Amount of fee is admissible in evidence. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 65-8. Accountants' fees in corporate reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 390-3; Dec. 1937, p. 464-8. Accountant's liability for negligence. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181. Accountant's liability for negligence and fraud; comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N. Y. 104, 15, N.E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 326-30.
- Allocation of dividend to income. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 148-51. Allocation of proceeds of unproductive property. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 340-3.
- 1938, p. 340-3. Apportionment of mortgage foreclosure proceeds. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 71-5; Feb. 1938, p. 160-4. Comment on State street trust co. v. Ernst de-ferred. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 122. Corporate reorganization under Chandler act. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p.
- notes) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 115-6.

- ^{113-6.} Correction. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181. Duty to preserve accounting records. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 269-70. Effective date of trust income. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 405-6; Jan. 1939, p. 47-8. English decision on negligence of accountants. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 467-8.
- p. 467-8.
- b. 467-8.
 c. 5047-80.
 c. 5048-80.
 <lic. 5048-80.
 c. 5048-80.
 c.

- (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1933, p. 122-3.
 Professional fees in reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 311-4.
 Qualified statements. (Legal notes) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1939, p. 47.
 Reorganization plan under the Chandler act. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 245-6.
- 245-6.

- 245.6.
 State street trust co. v. Ernst, 278 N. Y. 104.
 (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181.
 Summary of rules re allocation of extraordinary dividends. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 232-5.
 Technical matters. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 394.
 Uncertainty in taxation. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 433.
 Unwarranted generalization—Accountants' legal responsibility for ambiguous or incorrect statements. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Martin 1938, p. 251-4.
 Wasting intangible assets. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 466-7.

GREELEY. HAROLD DUDLEY, joint author See Langer, Charles H. and Greeley, Harold Dudley.

GREEN, DONALD E. F.

Depreciation—justice, equality and simplicity. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Sept. 11, 1937, p. 386-8.

GREEN, EARL A. Objectives of standard costs and their use in measuring performance. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 244-52.

GREEN, EARL A.-(Continued)

Should materials be charged into process at actual cost or replacement cost? (In National associa-tion of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 321-7, discussion, p. 327-9.)

GREEN, EDWARD H.

- REEN, EDWARD H.
 Reorganization under the revenue acts. (In American institute of accountants. Fifiteth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 213-20.)
 Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Edward H. Green. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 56-61.
 Tax on undistributed profits imposed by the revenue act of 1936. New York certified public accountant, and, Oct. 1936, p. 46-54.

GREEN, PAUL M. Some problems in government accounting. counting review, June 1936, p. 141-9. Ac-

GREEN, VARIAN S. Trend of decisions and legislation affecting the corporate trustee. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 704-8, 761.

GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND Theory and practice of modern taxation. ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 364p.

GREENBERG, MORRIS

How to operate under a collective agreement. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 7-12.

GREENE, H. C., joint author See Griffin, Bryant W. and Greene, H. C.

- GREENE, HOWARD F. Accounting for investment bankers. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1936, p. 1, 3-6, 8.
 "Effective income"—what does it mean? National accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 16-21.
 Technical preparation for accounting examinations. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. p. 445-8. p. 445-8.

GREENE, JAMES H.

- Challenge of collective bargaining to industrial training. Society for the advancement of man-agement journal, Sept. 1937, p. 134-9.
- GREENE, U. S.
- New provisions in federal revenue act of 1936. Controller, Sept. 1936, p. 194-7.
 Problems arising from undistributed earnings tax not unsolvable. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 279-82.

GREENE, U. S., joint author See Crow, William H. and Greene, U. S.

GREENHOUSES

See also Florists; Nurseries. Statistics

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of nurseries and green-houses. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 87.)
- GREENMAN, RUSSELL L.
- Supervisory problems under the Wagner act. So-ciety for the advancement of management jour-nal, March 1939, p. 36-8, 48.

GREENSPAN, A. ALBERT Men's clothing industry. New York certified pub-lic accountant, May 1939, p. 374-9.

- GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY Federal tax calendar. Profit, Jan. 1938, p. 1, 3-4. Income tax merry-go-round. Taxes—the tax maga-zine, March 1939, p. 137-8. Judicial tax safeguards. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937,
 - p. 12-4, 60-2.

Revenue act of 1938; observations and analysis. Profit, Oct. 1938, p. 1, 2-4. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1938, p. 1-3, 8. Taxation with representation. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1936, p. 1, 6-8. Your 1935 federal income tax. Profit, Feb. 1936, p.

1.2, 4,

GREENWOOD, HERBERT Balance sheet reform. Accountant, Feb. 6, 1937, p. 197-201.

GREENWOOD, J. M. Do auditors pay enough attention to income tax? Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1936, p. 66-71.

GREENWOOD, KENDALL EDDIS Hospital accounting—departmental analysis. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 24-33.

GREER, HOWARD C.

- REER, HOWARD C.
 Accounting for by-products and joint products. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 24, section 1, p. 1399-422.)
 Application of accounting rules and standards to financial statements. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 333-45.
 Differences in cost as a basis for price differentials. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 255-66.

- tials. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 255-66.
 Distribution costs as factors in pricing policy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 1, p. 263-81.)
 Further comments on Mr. Kohl's article. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 179-80.)
 Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 290-2.
 Reply by Professor Greer. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, March 1937, p. 79-82.
 To what extent can the practice of accounting ledger, February 1939, p. 24-8.
 What are accepted accounting principles? (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. 1-9, discussion, p. 9-11.)
- p. 9-11.) What are accepted principles of accounting? Accounting review, March 1938, p. 25-31. Would published financial statements be improved by more uniform application of accounting rules and standards? (In Ohio state university. Pro-ceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1939. p. 133-50, discussion, p. 153-4.)

GREGORY, GERALD H.

- Functions of standard process cost accounting. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1937,
- Charterea accountant in Australia, April 1937,
 p. 776-91.
 Ideal standards or basic standards? Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 276-80.
 Use of standard costs in business. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1936, p. 221-30.

GREGORY, R. E.

Retail accounting procedure; the receipt and dis-bursement of cash. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 426-36.

GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD

4

Accounting requirements of the S.E.C. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 36-42. Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 517p.

GRETHER, E. T. Solidarity in the distributive trades in relation to the control of price competition. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 375-91.

GRETZ, HARRY C. AND BRUCE, ROBERT Reorganization of the unemployment insurance procedure of New York state. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1939, (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 24, section 1, p. 1523-51.) insurance

- GREYHOUND RACING See Race tracks.
- GREYHOUND racing track; pro forma accounts. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 238-9.

GRIFFIN, AUSTIN B., editor and compiler NEW YORK (state). Cahill's consolidated laws of New York, compiled and edited by Austin B. Griffin, 1936 supplement. Chicago, Ill., Calla-ghan and co., 1936. 451p.

GRIFFIN, BRYANT W. AND GREENE, H. C. Installment credits and collections and the install-ment market. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 326p.

GRIFFIN, C. E. Economic significance of recent price legislation. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 42-8.

GRIFFIN, E. P. Changes in the Queensland income tax laws as affecting inter-state trading. *Chartered accoun-tant in Australia*, March 1937, p. 679-84.

GRIFFITH, DONALD K.

Weaknesses of index-number accounting. Account-ing review, June 1937, p. 123-32.

GRIFFITH, F. L.

itility arithmetic and the utility accountant; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 539-42. Utility

- GRIFFITH, S. W.
 Commonwealth institute presidential address, de-livered to the annual general meeting of the Commonwealth institute of accountants, at Hobart, on March 16, 1939. Australian accoun-tant, May 1939, p. 261-8.
 Company law. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 4, p. 87-104.)

GRIFFITHS, PETER

- Cost of rail transport-making and fixing of rates. Cost accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 91-7; Nov. 1937, p. 185-8.
- p. 185-8. Tallage of the groats. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1937, p. 273-4. Valuation of raw materials. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 441-4; Oct. 9, 1937, p. 477-80.

GRILLS

See Restaurants, cafes, etc.

GRIMM, GEORGE D.

- Control of installment payment financing. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 4-6, 12. System of protecting trust assets; respective duties of auditor and trust department. Trust com-panies, Sept. 1938, p. 361-4.

GRINDEY, H.

Some aspects of company law. Certified public accountants journal, Jan. 1937, p. 19-24.

GRINSTEAD, RAYMOND M.

Modern wine and liquor control with wine cellar control, public and service bar cotrols. Stam-ford, Conn., The Dahls, no date. 48p. (Pocket handbook no. 29)

GRISWOLD, ERWIN N. Powers of appointment and the federal estate tax. Harvard law review, April 1939, p. 929-60, 967-8.

GROCERY TRADE, RETAIL Costs

osts HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research. Expenses and profits of food chains in 1935. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business admin-istration, April 1936. 50p. (Bulletin no. 199.)

Statistics

- tatistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of grocery stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report nos. 7, 7a, 8, 8a, 9.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of grocery stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 9, 9a, 9b, 10, 10a, 10b, 11.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research. Expenses and profits of food chains in 1935. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business admin-istration, April 1936. 50p. (Bulletin no. 99.)

GROCERY TRADE, WHOLESALE

- Statistics
- ROLERT TRADE, WHOLESALE
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for grocers-wholesale. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939. p. 53, 55, 173.)
 BRISTOL, GEORGE T. Merchandising problems of grocery and candy wholesalers. Dun's review, Oct. 1937, p. 21-4, 46-7.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of grocery wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936, p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 166-71, 182-3.) (1937 ed.—p. 55, 83, 109, 136, 200-201.) (In his Fourteen guides to finan-cial stability, c1936, p. 38-9.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 38-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 15, wholesale grocer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936, p. 307.)

GROETTUM, R. E.

Supreme court decisions, 1936-37. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937. p. 405-26.)

GROSS PROFIT

See Profits.

GROSSMAN, MOSES H. Importance of commercial arbitration. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 3-10.

GROUP meeting of institute members. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 1-2.

GROVES, HAROLD M.

ROVES, HAROLD M.
 Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the relocation of industry. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 557-68.)
 Equity and expediency in business taxation. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 33-44.)

GROVES, HENRY M. Form of business organization; corporate v. part-nership. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 581-2, 631.

GROVES, HENRY M. AND KOPPERMAN, CECIL H.

Assignment of earned income. Tax. magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 719-25, 736. Taxes-the tax

GROWING significance of the profit and loss ac-count. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 301-3.

GROWTH and incidence of taxation. May, George Ο.

GRUEHN. H. L.

Depreciation principles. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 521-2, 551. Significant accounting problems of today. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 154-7, discussion, p. 157-9.)

GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY OF NEW YORK Pension system; amended to January 2, 1936. New York, Guaranty trust co. 5p.

- GUIDE to trust fees, with recommended cost account-ing system. American bankers association. Trust
- GUNN, J. A. L.
 Adjustment of particular average claims. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 420-2.
 N.S.W. bills of sale (amendment) act. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 81-4.
 National security (capital issues) regulations. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 225-30.

GUNN, J. A. L., joint author See Alison, Colin A. and Gunn, J. A. L.

GUNNARSON, A. B. See also National association of cost accountants. Distribution cost accounting in relation to problems of competition. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 277-87, discussion, p. 287-90.)

GUNTHER, C. F. Planning and production control in the factory. Society for the advancement of management journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 94-7.

GUTHMANN, HARRY G., joint author See Badger, Ralph Eastman and Guthmann, Harry G.

GUTHMULLER, ROBERT W.

Machine accounting-punched card s counting ledger, April 1939, p. 43-5. system. Ac-

HABERLE CRYSTAL SPRINGS BREWING COM-PANY V. CLARKE MAY, GEORGE O. Obsolescence of goodwill: Haberle crystal springs brewing co. v. Clarke. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting respon-sibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 295-301.)

HACKETT, ROBERT P.

- Governmental accounting in the education of the public accountant. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 390-2.
- Property accounts for municipalities. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 64-8.

HACKETT, W. T. G.

Australian recovery plan; a Canadian viewpoint. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 18-38.

HADDEN, A

Job-order plants, too, can budget. Factory manage-ment and maintenance, Sept. 1938, p. 62-3. Profit, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 4.

- HADLEY, CHARLES R., COMPANY
 Exhibit of pathfinder simplified bookkeeping systems for doctors and dentists. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., (1939) forms.
 Manual of pathfinder truck cost system. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., c1936.
 11p. and forms.
 Manual of pathfinder voucher system. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., c1939.
 8n and forms.

 - Bp. and forms. Truck cost accounting condensed from Pathfinder truck cost accounting manual, 1936 edition. Pathfinder service bulletin, Sept. 1936, p. 1, 3-8.

HADLEY, CHARLES R., COMPANY, joint author See National association of building owners and managers and Charles R. Hadley company.

- HADLEY, THOMAS D. Aspects of gross profit. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 95-101. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 444.8. Budgets. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 333-47.

 - Sales forecast. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 41-7.

HAENSEL, PAUL
Federal "general welfare" bills; a criticism of the taxing provisions of H.R. 11 and 2. Taxes —the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 207-9, 252-5.
Public finance of the Union of soviet socialist republics. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 517-20, 555-7; Oct. 1938, p. 591-4, 628; Nov. 1938, p. 659-62, 686-90; Dec. 1938, p. 724-6, 756-63.
Sales tax in Soviet Russia. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 18-22.
Soviet Russia's unified budget for 1936. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 210-1, 252-4.

HAGAMAN, F. P. Attitude of courts toward government's powers to levy and collect taxes. *Controller*, March 1938, p. 64-70.

HAGEN, PAUL J. Accounting for small hotels. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1939, p. 1, 3-8.

HAGGARD, H. W. AND LORGE, IRVING. Physiologist and a statistician look at wage-incen-tive methods. New York, American management association, c1937. 26p. (Institute of manage-ment series no. 18.)

HAGIOS, J. ANTON Accounts receivable and sales audit procedures in N.R.D.G.A. stores. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1936, p. 13, 47-8.

Credit manager in a new role-advisor on family budgets. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Jan. 1937, p. 15-6, 32-3.

HAHN, F. F.

Balance-sheet is the company's. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 127-9.)

HAIG, ROBERT MURRAY

Taxation of capital gains. Wall Street jour March 23, 25, 29, April 2, 8, and 13, 1937. journal,

HAIGHT, H. H. Tell it in the annual report. Factory management and maintenance, July 1936, p. 256.

HALDANE, J. Foundry costs. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 4-14.

HALL, C. H.

Accountants liability insurance meeting a rapidly growing need. Eastern underwriter, Oct. 23, 1936, p. 37.

HALL, GEORGE W.

Evaluation of basic methods of compensation in relation to effect on selling cost. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' con-gress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 63-5.)

HALL, JULIAN Keeping the bank's wage-hour record. Burroughs clearing house, Feb. 1939, p. 18-9, 35-8.

HALL, L. DEANE

Burroughs adding machine company. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on account-ing principles and procedure. 1938. p. 221-3.)

HALL, N. F. National finances. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 28-30.

HALL, W. A. Building construction costs. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 422-33.

HALL, W. VINCENT

- Changes in the social security laws during 1939. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 166-71.
- Pay-roll taxes and their accounting treatment. Profit, March 1936, p. 1, 2, 4.

HALL of the Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales. Squire, John.

HALLAMORE, A. S. Effect of fixed costs on profits. Canadian char-tered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 17-26.

HALLBERG, VIDAR

Fundamental principles of finding and controlling job costs. Cost and management, April 1937, p. 98-111.

HALLER, FREDERICK J. Suggestions for an accounting plan for a non-profit organization; the Y.W.C.A. New York, Womans press, 1936. 109p.

HALLIGAN, C. W. Accounting for the manufacture of mechanical rubber products. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 4, section 1, p. 197-216.)

HALSEY, LAURENCE

ALSEY, LAURENCE Position of the public accountant in relation to business and government in Great Britain. Accountant, Aug. 20, 1938, p. 256-61; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 292-8. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 90-8; Sept. 1938, p. 171-80. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 373-86; Dec. 1938, p. 434-49.

HALVORSEN, H. B. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937; liability and assessment of a non-trading taxpayer. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, July 1938, p. 36-50.

HAMBURG, ALEX M. Valuation of real property for taxation. Taxes-the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 139-41, 187-8.

HAMEL, CHARLES D. Practice and evidence before the U. S. board of tax appeals. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 558p.

HAMILTON, G. S. Brewery accounting. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1939. 139p.

Brewery costs. Accountant, April 29, 1939, p. 569-72.

Mechanised system of sales accounting for brew-eries. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p. 841-6.

HAMILTON, JOHN Percentage rental leases. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 454-5.

HAMILTON, MAYNE, D. Canadian banking. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 375-83; Dec. 1936, p. 458-69.

HAMILTON, R. W. Income tax—a problem in ethics. Canadian char-tered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 118-22. Accoun-tants' magazine, March 1936, p. 161-5. Right to specialize. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 190-4.

HAMILTON, WALTON H.

Cost as a standard for price. Law and contempo-rary problems, June 1937, p. 321-33.

HAMLIN, SCOVILLE Federal taxes as a menace to state sovereignty. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 574-6.

HAMMERSMITH, ALFRED E. Accounting valuation of trust assets; inventory and appraisal basis soundest—uniformity de-sirable. Trust companies, Nov. 1938, p. 596-8.

HAMMOND, JAMES E., joint author See Dawson, C. O., Metzger, Adrian and Ham-mond, James E.

HANDBOOK for the collection and tabulation of statistical information about hospital in-patient

service in the state of New York. New York (state). Social welfare, Department of

HANDBOOK of petroleum accounting. McKee, Ray-mond Walter.

HANKINS, CLINTON G. Sanitarium-hospital accounting. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1939, p. 1, 2-3.

HANLEY, E. J. Control of factory overhead at varying volumes of production. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 154-68.)

HANNA, JOHN Securities exchange act as supplementary of the securities act. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 256-66.

HANS, J.

Commercial control and audit, French and German methods. Accountant, March 13, 1937, p. 380-1.

HANSEL, ARTHUR J. Limited v. general partnership organization for close corporations. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 524-5, 557.

HARBESON, ROBERT W.

Cost concept and economic control. Harvard busi-ness review, Spring number, 1939, p. 257-70. Recent effort to improve rate regulation: tempo-rary rate orders in New York. Journal of land and public utility economics, Feb. 1937, p. 78-86.

HARCOURT, CHARLES J. Students' department. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 224.

HARDER, OSCAR H.

Newspaper accounting. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, July 1936, p. 9-21.

HARDING, MARTIN J.

How we meet our operating cost problems. Ameri-can restaurant magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 43, 93-6.

HARDWARE MANUFACTURERS Statistics

tatistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of hardware and tool manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 51, 79, 105, 132, 192-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 30-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 30-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 22-3.)

HARDWARE TRADE

Accounting NATIONAL ATIONAL WHOLESALE HARDWARE AS-SOCIATION. Statement of expenses; overhead figures for the calendar or fiscal year. Phila-delphia, Pa., National wholesale hardware asso-ciation, 1937. form.

Statistics

about AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of hardware stores, and farm implement and hardware concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report nos. 55, 55a, 55b, 56.)

55b, 56.)
Analysis of the 1936 operations of furniture and hardware stores, hardware stores, hardware stores, with contracting. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 50, 58, 58a, 58b, 59, 60.)
FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of hardware wholesalers; plumbing and heating supplies wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3; 54, 80, 104, 129, 184-5). (1937 ed.-p. 55, 83, 109, 136, 200-1; 56, 84, 110, 137, 202-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 38-9, 40-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 38-9, 40-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)

HARDWARE TRADE-Statistics-(Continued)

- JARDWARE TRADE—Statistics—(Continued)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of retailers of hardware. (In his They said it with inventories. c1939, p. 30-1.)
 NATIONAL WHOLESALE HARDWARE AS. SOCIATION. Overhead expense in wholesale hardware distribution, 1936; averages 1914 to 1936, compiled by the research bureau of the National wholesale hardware association. Phila., Pa., National wholesale hardware association, 1936, folder.
 SPECIAL trend study in behavior of corporate proportions; wholesale hardware, 1917-1936. Study no. 4. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Oct. 1937, p. 106-12.

- HARING, ALBERT
 Price cutting vs. price control. Credit and finan-cial management, Feb. 1938, p. 6-8.
 Review of fair trade acts; how controlled pricing laws function. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 24, 26, 44.

HARMON, CLAUDE F. Responsibility rightfully the auditor's. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. *Papers on auditing* procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 130-1.)

HARNESS, SADDLERY, ETC.

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of leather, luggage and harness shops, and leather, shoe and harness repair shops. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no.

- HAROLD, GILBERT Profits in a theory. (Accounting exchange) Ac-counting review, Sept. 1939, p. 309-12.
- HARPER, R. O. Sales auditing. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 6-9.

HARRINGTON, C. C. Paring parcel delivery costs. Power wagon, Feb. 1937, p. 10-11.

HARRINGTON, RUSSELL A. Some accounting aspects of the social security act. Gas age-record, Jan. 25, 1936.

- HARRINGTON, RUSSELL C.
 Discussion of the revenue act of 1938; an address before the Rotary club of Providence, February 7, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages.
 Natural business year; address at joint meeting of Providence chapter of the National association of cost accountants and the Rhode Island association of credit men at the Metacomet golf club, East Providence, April 25, 1938. New York, Natural business year council, 1938. 10 mimeographed pages. mimeographed pages.

HARRIS, A. G. L. Valuation of goodwill in professional businesses, with particular reference to public accountancy practices. *Chartered accountant in Australia*, Feb. 1939, p. 567-8.

HARRIS, BYRON P. Board of tax appeals. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 423-4.

HARRIS, GOULD L. Cost standards—methods and appraisal. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 10-20.

HARRIS, HOMER I. Estates practice guide. New York, Baker, Voorhis & co., 1939. 1281p.

HARRIS, JONATHAN N. What did we earn last month? New York, Na-

tional association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 10, section 1, p. 501-26.)

HARRIS, KERR, FORSTER AND COMPANY. Trends in the hotel business. New York, Harris, Kerr, Foster & co., c1938. 31p.

HARRIS, MAYNARD, L.

Uniform system of accounts for multi-family hous-ing. Buildings and building management, Aug. 1936, p. 41-3.

HARRIS, S. E.

Exchange depreciation, its theory and its history, 1931-35, with some consideration of related domestic policies. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard university press, 1936. 516p.

HARRISON, E. G.

Ditto, Inc. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 224-6.)

HARRISON, H. A. Municipal audits and the accountant. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 222-3.)

- HARRISON, R. E. W. Accountant as a member of a profit-earning team; paper presented at the annual meeting of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accoun-tants, June 17th, 18th and 19th, 1937. Philadel-phia, Pa., Clarke-Harrison, inc., 1937. 13 mimeophia, Pa., Clarke-Harrison, inc., 1937. 13 mimeo-graphed pages. Depreciation and the drop forging industry. *Heat treating and forging*, Dec. 1936, p. 606-9.

HARRISON, W. E.
 Problems arising in costing installation. Cost accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 65-73.
 Review of the principles and practice of cost accounting. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 15-20.

- HARRISS, C. LOWELL Estate and gift tax avoidance—a note. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1938, p. 204-5.
 - 204-5. Federal commodity and service taxes expressed as percentages of retail price. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1937, p. 226-31. Monopoly and the excess profits tax. Tax maga-sine, Dec. 1938, p. 717-20, 741-4. State gift taxation—some statistical data. Bulletin of the National tax association, June 1939, p. 259-67.

State taxation of gifts. (In National tax associa-tion. Proceedings. 1938. p. 720-39.)

HARROLD, P. L. Outline of factory cost procedure in plate glass manufacture. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 1, p. 159-82.)

HARROW, BENJAMIN New York estate tax—some accounting problems. Taxes—the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 279-80, 317-8.

- 317-8.
 Recent decisions affecting New York state taxes. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 24-30.
 Some accounting problems presented by the New York estate tax. New York certified public ac-countant, Dec. 1938, p. 159-64.

HART, A. M.

Municipal accounting in New Jersey. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 350-3, discussion, p. 358-64.

HART, EDWIN WARREN

Important changes-the revenue bill of '38. Lan-tern, May 1938, p. 7-8.

HART, N. B.

Farm accounts-the accountant's view. Accoun-tancy, Dec. 1938, p. 87-9.

HARTMAN, DAVID

- ARIMAN, DAVID Accounting for repossessions and trade-ins. Ac-counting review, Sept. 1939, p. 267-72. Cost-keeping for national forests. Journal of ac-countancy, June 1936, p. 454-9. Lessons from the advertising dentist. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, Database Science Scienc
- p. 145-6.

HARTMAN, DENNIS

- Income tax index-digest; containing all decisions of the Board of tax appeals from volume 31 B.T.A. through volume 35 B.T.A. Washington, D. C., The author, no date. 135p. Tax avoidance. ed. 4. Washington, D. C., The author, c1939. 302p.

HARTWELL, JOBSON AND KIBBEE Survey of stockholder opinion on some functions and responsibilities of the auditor. New York, Hartwell, Jobson and Kibbee, c1939. 9p.

HARVARD UNIVERSITY. ARVARD UNIVERSITY. GRADUATE SCHOOL OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION.

- Business and modern society; papers by members of the faculty of the Graduate school of busi-ness administration, Harvard university, edited by Malcolm P. McNair, and Howard T. Lewis. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard university press, 1939 4115
- Cambridge, Mass., Haivard uncourt, 1938, 411p. Harvard business reports, v. 11; cases on co-operative advertising, with introduction and com-mentaries by Neil Hopper Borden. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., c1932. 352p.
- BUREAU OF BUSINESS RESEARCH BUREAU OF BUSINESS RESEARCH Aspects of the organization, functions, and finan-ing of state public utility commissions; by C. O. Ruggles. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business admin-istration, April 1937. 90p. (Business research studies no. 18.)

- Interpreter and the second state of the second state of the second state second sta
 - 104.)
 - Same, 1937. May 1938. 34p. (Bulletin no. 106.)

- Operating results of department and specialty stores in 1938, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Grad-uate school of business administration, Bureau of business research, May 1939. 30p. (Bulletin no. 109.)
- no. 109.) Operating results of department and specialty stores in the Pacific coast states: 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, July 1936. 20p. (Bulletin no. 102.)
- 102.) Operating results of department store chains and department store ownership groups; 1929, 1931, 1934. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business admin-istration, June 1936. 52p. (Bulletin no. 101.)

HARVEY, C. B. Form and content of the balance sheet, profit and loss account and auditor's report. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1936, p. 420-43.

HARVEY, C. M.

Bookkeeping for a country departmental general store. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1936, p. 28-40.

HARVEY, JOHN L.

ome observations on accounting practice with special reference to inventory valuation. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 440-51. Some

HARWOOD, P. M.

Valuing trust assets at "cost" and at "market"; the accountant's viewpoint. Trust companies, June 1936, p. 593-5.

HASBROUCK, H. C.

Abbroock, H. C. Developments in uniform classification of accounts. American gas journal, Nov. 1936, p. 37-40, 82. Present views of authority on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 523-6.

- HASKELI, JOHN
 Growing interdependence of the New York stock exchange and listed corporations; address to the Pittsburgh control of the Controllers' institute of America, at Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, January 25, 1937. 15p.
 Objectives and activities of the committee on stock list of the New York stock exchange under present day conditions. (address to the Rhode Island society of certified public accountants, September 15, 1936.) 17 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 271-81.
 Securities and exchange commission, the accountants, and the stock exchange. Journal of accountants, Papers on auditing procedure and other accountains, Papers on auditing procedure and other accountaing subjects. 1939. p. 12-6.)

HASKELL, MANFORD M., joint author See Schur, John A. and Haskell, Manford M.

HASKINS, CHARLES WALDO WEINER, ABRAHAM B. Charles Waldo Has-kins, Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 3-5.

HASTINGS, A. W. Refinancing problems under the new securities act. (In American transit association. Proceed-ings, 1935. p. 289-95.)

HASZARD, CLIVE

Duties and liabilities of company directors. Accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 82-5.

HAT JOBBERS Statistics BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for jobbers—hats. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939. p. 156.)

HATCHER, RAYMOND, H.

- Ownership certificates for bond interest. Tax maga-sine, Feb. 1937, p. 85, 120. Proper execution of ownership certificates. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 331-4. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 405-6.

HATCHERIES

See Fisheries; Poultry.

- HATFIELD, HENRY RAND Historical defense of bookkeeping; a paper read before the American association of university instructors in accounting, December 29, 1923; republished by friends and colleagues on the occasion of the author's retirement from active teaching at the University of California, May 15, 1937. 22p. Survey of developments in accounting. (In Amer-ican institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939.
 - procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939.

p. 5-11.) What they say about depreciation. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 18-26.

HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, joint author See Sanders, Thomas Henry, Hatfield, Henry Rand, and Moore, Underhill.

HATHAWAY, KING

- ATHAWAY, KING
 Applied scientific management—11; notes on budgetary control (concluded). Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 56-61.
 Applied scientific management—12; functions of the comptroller's department. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1937, p. 85-00.
- p. 85-90.
- p. 53-50. Applied scientific management—13; the auditor's department. Society for the advancement of management journal, Sept. 1937, p. 149-53. Applied scientific management—14; the product research and development department. Society for the advancement of management inversal

- research and development department. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1937, p. 173-8, 192. Applied scientific management—15; the sales de-partment. Society for the advancement of man-agement journal, Nov. 1938, p. 171-8. Applied scientific management—16; function of the works manager and the activities falling within his jurisdiction. Society for the advance-ment of management journal, May 1939, p. 74-9.
- HATTIE Hicks sweets company; case study of a cost plan for a small confectionery plant. Ben-nett, Clinton W. and Fiske, Wyman P.

HAULAGE

See also Express companies; Freight; Motor trucks; Trucking.

Accounting MacDOUGALL, HAMISH. Haulage industry; the need for haulers to keep proper records. Cor-porate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 129-31.

Statistics

ADDUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of trucking and hauling concerns; Transfer and storage concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 107, 107x.)

HAUN. ROBERT D.

Uniform accounting. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 8-11, 16.

HAWKINS, W. M. Internal audit—an important function of the con-trollers' office. Balance sheet, Dec. 1938, p. 7-10, 13-5.

HAY

See Produce.

HAY, D. SINCLAIR

Scottish industrial estate. Accountants' magazine, July 1937, p. 403-7.

HAYES, F. ALBERT

Constructive purchasing policies. Cost and manage-ment, Oct. 1938, p. 275-86.

HAYES, J. E.

ome aspects of executorship law. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1936, p. 566-86. Some

HAYES, W.

Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1938, p. 337-50.

HAYNES, J. MARVIN, joint author See Montgomery, Robert H. and others.

HAYNES, J. MARVIN AND McGUIRE, C. J. Hardships and inequities in the 1936 tax law. L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 15-8, 31.

HAYNES, LEO CECIL, joint author See Newlove, George Hillis and others.

HAYS, MORTIMER

Are price discriminations criminal? An interpreta-tion of section 3 of the Patman-Robinson bill. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 301-3.

HAYS, SAMUEL British national income and its distribution. Aus-

tralian accountant, July 1938, p. 471-3. Costing in the steel tube trade. Australian accoun-tant, July 1939, p. 440-3. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 242-5.

HEADLEE, C. E. What Westinghouse company does to control and check inventories. Controller, June 1939, p. 205-9

HEALY, ROBERT E.

- HEALY, ROBERT E.
 Address before the Harvard business school alumni association at its ninth annual special meeting at Baker library, Harvard business school, Boston, Massachusetts, June 16, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 12 mimeographed pages.
 Administration of the public utilities fortnightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 529-39.
 Before the auditor comes; address before the midwestern conference of the Controllers institute of America, Cleveland Hotel, Cleveland, Ohio, May 15, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.
 ——Reprinted under tilt "Responsibility for adequate reports is placed squarely on controllers", in Controller, June 1939, p. 196-9, 231.
 Next step in accounting; address before the annual meeting of American accounting association at Hotel Chalfonte-Haddon Hall, Atlantic City, N. J., Monday, Dec. 27, 1937. 16 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 1-9.
 Responsibility for adequate reports is placed squarely on controllers. Controllers, June 1939, p. 196-9, 231.
 ——Same as "Before the auditor comes". Address before the Harvard business school alumni

- 196-9, 231. Same as "Before the auditor comes".

- HEARINGS before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third ses-sion on H.R. 9682... (Revenue act of 1938). United States. Senate.
- HEAT, light and power. Horwath hotel accountant, July 1938, p. 3-6.

HEAT TREATING

HEAT IRC-INFO Cost accounting APPLICATION of heat treating costs. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 1, section 2, p. 29-33.)

HEATING Costs

- osts BRISTLE, R. J. Systematic control of boiler room costs. Buildings and building management, May 1937, p. 48-9, 77-9. DURNELL, JAMES F. Cutting the cost of Btu's. Buildings and building management, May 1938,
- 40-2
- DURNELL, JAMES F. Modernizing the heating in a small building. Buildings and building man-agement, June 1938, p. 46-7, 74.

HEATING-Costs-(Continued)

- HEATING—Costs—(Continued)
 HEAT, ight and power. Horwath hotel accountant, July 1938, p. 3-6.
 HEATING cost records. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 48-9.
 WOODWARD, V. FLOYD. Reducing the heating costs in apartment buildings. Buildings and building management, Aug. 1936, p. 39-40, 70, 71
- Statistics
 - DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of heating and plumbing contractors. (In their 1396 retail survey. report no. 59.)
- HEATING cost records. Buildings and management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 48-9. and building
- HEATING SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT See Hardware.

HEATON, WILLIAM C. Cultural background of the accountant. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 206-10. Profession in the United States. Canadian char-tered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 351-61.

HEBDEN, ERIC S.

Briorities of debts; the bankruptcy act 1924-1933. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educa-tional society, inc., June 1937. 40p.

- HECKERT, J. BROOKS Accounting systems, design and installation. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 514p. Modern developments in costs, budgets, and con-trol; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 1635. 163-5.)

 - 163-5.)
 Normal overhead and its significance in pricing. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 292-312.)
 Standard costs and budgets. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harris-burg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 20-8.)

- HECKERT, J. BROOKS AND OTHERS Instruction in methods of accounting control: a symposium. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 114-23
- HECKL, E. C.
- Treatment of fiduciary accounts by bankers. Na-tional auditgram, April 1939, p. 11-4.

HEDGING

- See also Futures. KEELER, FLOYD Y. Hedging in a futures market against inventory and how it should interest the average banker. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, May 1938, p. 315-25. PELEJ, JOSEPH. Valuation of flour mill inven-tories. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 35.47
- 35-47

SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Hedging. (In his Advanced cost accounting. 1939. p. 171-7.) UNINTENTIONAL discrimination. (Editorial)

Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 5-8.

HEER, CLARENCE Probable effects of the social security act on state and local finances. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 712-5, 760-1.

- HEIMANN, HENRY H. Calender for business. Nation's business, April 1937, p. 102-3.

 - ¹⁹⁵⁷, p. 102-5.
 Made to measure. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1936, p. 3.
 Natural audits. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1939, p. 4.
 "Will we ever learn?" Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 282-91.

- HEINDORFF, E. W. Secretaryship of trade, industrial and professional organisations. Brisbane, Accountants' and secre-taries' educational society, Aug. 1937, 29p. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 711-4.

HEINEN, FRANCIS I.

Effective internal audit control. National accoun-tant, Nov. 1937, p. 7-12.

HEISMAN, M. J. Accounting for coöperative warehouse associations. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1937, p. 1, 3-5.

HEITMULLER, R. E.

Investment cost studies; address before Life office management association, Montreal, Canada, Sept. 28, 1938. 16 mimeographed pages.

HELLEBRANDT, EDWIN T. Public utility holding companies and their regula-tion in Ohio. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 464-72.

HELLER V. STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY FLORIDA accountancy law upheld. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 358-9.

HELM, W. A.

Payroll accounting and records under the federal social security act; paper presented on behalf of the Missouri society's special committee at meeting of the St. Louis division of the Asso-ciated industries of Missouri, November 1935. 9 typewritten pages.

HENDRICKS, HOMER Surtax on undistributed profits of corporations. Yale law journal, Nov. 1936, p. 19-51.

HENDRY, J. R.

Food cost accounting. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Sept. 1937, p. 154-73. Cost and manage-ment, Dec. 1937, p. 298-309.

HENRY, R. A. C.

Hydro electric power costs. Cost and management, Nov. 1937, p. 266-77.

HENRY, W. R.

Cost accounting in the baking industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1299-1308.)

HENSEL, PHILIP HOWARD

- HENSEL, PHILIP HOWARD
 Accounting and the business executive. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 123-35.
 Advantages and uses of budgets. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 11-18.
 Analysis of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 27-39.
 Corporate financial reports. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 7-12, 56.
 Retail method of inventory control. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1937, p. 223-31.
 Statistical control of business activities. Cost and management, Feb. 1939, p. 50-62. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 177-87.

HENSHAW, FRANK O.

Labor control in the sign shop. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.)

HENZLER, A. O.

Driver bonus plan cuts delivery costs for Wieboldt stores. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 72-5.

HEPPLEY, OSCAR R.

Accounting problems of seasonal manufacturing companies. Utah, C.P.A., April 1939; May 1939; June 1939.

HERBERT, DENNIS

Some aspects of life assurance in connection with business. Accountant, April 4, 1936, p. 533-7, discussion, p. 537-9.

HERBERT, EARLE R. Cake bakery cost control. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1309-14.) Printed with: Henry, W. R. Cost accounting in the baking industry.

HERBRAND, D. A. Costing a daily newspaper. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 219-32; Nov. 1937, p. 245-8. Cost and management, June, July 1938, p. 176-91.

HERD, J. VICTOR See American management association.

HERDRICH AND BOGGS Charts and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and surtax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936. Indianapolis, Ind., Herdrich and Boggs, c1936. 18p. Also published as: Taxes or dividends? by Commerce clearing house, inc.

HERE'S how to cut delivery fleet operating costs. Furniture record, Oct. 15, 1937, p. 10, 40-1.

HERMANOS, MANCERA. (La) Auditoria de los estados financieros (respon-sabilidaded y deberes del comisario en las so-ciedades anonimas). Mexico, D. F., Editorial cul-tura, 1937. 97p.

HERRICK, ANSON Can the banker get it?—a question relating to the subject of what the banker expects of the accountant; before a joint meeting of the Robert Morris associates (San Francisco chapter). Credit managers association of Northern California (Bankers group) and California society of certi-fied public accountants (San Francisco chapter). November 28, 1939. 10 mimeographed pages. Comments upon the undistributed profits tax of 1936. San Francisco bar, Feb. 1938, p. 11-4.

HERRING, JAMES M., joint author See Wilson, G. Lloyd, Herring, James M. and Eutsler, Roland B.

HERRMANN, MORTIMER R.

Relief accounting. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comp-troller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 8, April 28, 1938.)

HERRMANN, OMER W. See United States. Farm credit administration.

HERRON, A. C. Electric fixed capital accounting by units of prop-erty as required by federal and state power commissions and how it may be accomplished. Edison electric institute bulletin, July 1938, p. 335-43.

HERTZLER, ROBERT R.

Accountants' certificates. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 25-7.

HERWOOD, HERMAN

- Analysis of financial statements of retailers. (In National association of credit men. *Credit man-ual of commercial laws.* 1938. p. 6-19.) Credit ratio analysis. Accounting forum, Jan. 1937,

- Credit ratio analysis. Accounting forum, Jan. 1937, p. 8-10, 14.
 Financial statements of retailers. Credit executive, June 1936, p. 165-8; July 1936, p. 210-3; Sept. 1936, p. 270-3. Reprinted. 35p.
 Herwood library of accountancy; a catalogue of books printed between 1494 and 1900; in the Herwood library of accountancy. New York, Herwood and Herwood, 1938. 233p.
 New York curb exchange. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 53-4.
 Price fixing in ancient Rome. Credit executive, June 1938, p. 173-5.
 Prosperity and depression from 1790 to 1938. Credit executive, March 1938, p. 77-9.

HERWOOD library of accountancy; a catalogue of books printed between 1494 and 1900; in the Herwood library of accountancy. Herwood, Herman.

HERY, E. G. Note on public utility operating property account-ing. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1936,

HESFORD, DESMOND M. Finance (No. 2) act, 1939. Accountant, tax supple-ment, Dec. 9, 1939, p. 445-52.

HESSE, M. A.

Costs as applied to garages and retail car selling. Australian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 15-34.

HETZEL, FREDERICK W.

Analyzing checking accounts scientifically. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1936. 111p.

HEWER, A. R.

Balance sheet, its purpose and form. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1937, p. 147-9. Taxation of companies and dividends, Tasmania. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 60-4.

HIBMA, OTTO

Resume of the Wisconsin securities act. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 541-5.

HIBSCHMAN, HARRY Everyman's legal manual. New York, National library press, c1938. 206p.

- HICKIN, R. A. Advertising budget. Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 220.4. Budgeting—a preliminary survey. Australian ac-countant, May 1939, p. 249-54; June 1939, p. 215-24. 315-24.

 - 315-24.
 Progressive managerial reports. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 352-8.
 Sales budget. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 386-91; Sept. 1939, p. 120-9.
 System of production costs. Australian accountant, April 1939, p. 198-212.
 Those collection letters! Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 99-102.

HIGGINBOTHAM, W. H. Prosperity and depression in the steel industry. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 37-42.

- HIGGINS, CLARENCE B. Method for determining trust costs; breakdown by types and allocation of type of service. Trust companies, Dec. 1936, p. 733-6.

HIGGINSON, H. P. Preparation of lease agreements. Australian ac-countant, Nov. 1936, p. 339-42.

HIGH standards for the C.P.A. certificate. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 6-7.

HIGH standards of accounting. Littleton, A. C.

HIGHAM, CHARLES

Should a professional man advertise? Accountant, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 483-4.

- HIGHTON, H. E. R. Cost of labour. Cost accountant, May 1936, p. 376-8.

HIGHWAY costs. Breed, C. B. and others.

HIGHWAY maintenance costs in New York state. Roads and streets, July 1936, p. 52, 54.

HIGHWAYS See Roads and highways.

HILBERT, JAMES

ILBERT, JAMES Reclamation form. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 984-6.) Printed with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an element of cost.

HILEY, T. A.

ILEY, I. A. Income taxation: the basis of assessment of inter-state companies. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, March 1937. p. 3-10. Printed with: Buckle, J. H. Depreciation.

HILL, H. L. H.

Professional etiquette. Queensland accountants and secretaries journal, Nov. 1, 1936. (December 1, 1935 issue) p. 270-1.

HILL, HORACE

Depreciation accounting. (In American manage-ment association. Practical aspects of deprecia-tion and obsolescence. c1938. p. 21-8.)

HILL, J. GORDON

Physical testing procedure of inventories. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 87-8.)

HILL, RAYMOND O.

Reports to management. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 274-6.)

HILL, S. A. Retail method of merchandise accounting. Bris-bane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, June 1939. 23p. Includes: Fielding, H. G. Buying organization and accounts payable.

HILLHOUSE, ALBERT M., joint author See Chatters, Carl H. and Hillhouse, Albert M.

HILLHOUSE, C. H. Way to reduce record storage costs. Bankers monthly, March 1939, p. 154-6.

HILLS, GEORGE S. Federal taxation vs. corporation law. (from *Wisconsin law review*) Madison, Wis., University of Wisconsin, c1937. p. 280-312.

HILLYER, WILLIAM HURD Credit validation—the keynote of modern factor-ing. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 2745. Factors, finance companies and others; an analyti-cal survey. Credit executive, July 1939, p. 204-6.

HILTON, W. P. Problems of the local practitioner. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 30-3.)

- HIMMELBLAU, DAVID
 Accountants' certificates; paper presented at the round table, Wednesday, September 28, 1938. annual meeting of the American institute of accountants. 6 mimeographed pages.
 Fundamentals of inventory pricing. (summary of lecture at Toledo chapter of National association of cost accountants, November 16, 1937.) 4 mimeographed pages.

 - mimeographed pages. Investigations for financing. New York, Ronald press company, c1936. loose leaf. (Complete accounting course, edited by David Himmelblau) Present-day need for improved accounting for plant and equipment. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 106-16, discussion, p. 116-21.)

HIMMELBLAU, DAVID, editor

See Complete accounting course.

HINDE, FRANK L

Job cost system for a valve manufacturer; a thesis submitted in connection with examinations by the Canadian society of cost accountants and industrial engineers. Cost and management, Sept. 1937, p. 204-16.

HINDMAN, JAMES Complete system of bookkeeping for electricity supply authorities. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938. 136n.

HINTON, W. J. Recovery in the U.S.A. Accountant, June 6, 1936, p. 856-61.

HIRE-PURCHASE

See Instalments.

- HIRE purchase act. 1938. Certified accountants jour-nal, Oct. 1938, p. 316-23.
- HIRE purchase legislation. Accountant, Aug. 1938, p.278-80.

HJRE purchase system generally. Moore, Allen.

HIRSHFIELD, C. F. Social security; should the engineering profession formulate its philosophy? *Mechanical engineer-*ing, March 1936, p. 145-8.

- HISLOP, C. B. Stock control; the physical and accounting aspects. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1938, p. 712-8.
- HISTORIAL defense of bookkeeping. Hatfield, Henry Rand.
- HISTORY from old accounts-John P. Cushing, merchant and investor. Accountant, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 255-6; Aug. 29, 1936, p. 289-92.
- HISTORY of reserve requirements for banks in the United States. Federal reserve bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 953-72.
- HISTORY of the gas industry. Stotz, Louis and Jamison, Alexander.

HITT, MOUNTRIE

Should accountants yield working papers under dragnet subpoena? Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 316-9.

HITZ, RALPH

IIIZ, RALPH
Standard practice manuals for hotel operation.
6 parts. New York, Harper and brothers, c1935, c1936.
Pt. 1—Front service division. 111p.
Pt. 2—Food departments. 49p.
Pt. 3—House keeping department. Mechanical department. 48p.
Pt. 4—Telephone departments. 97p.
Pt. 5—Miscellaneous departments. 39p.
Pt. 6—Audit and control division. 61p.

HOAD, WILLIAM M., joint author See Garfield, Frank R. and Hoad, William M.

HOAGLAND, HENRY E. Corporation finance. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 596p.

HOAR, ROGER SHERMAN

Patent tactics and the law; what the industrial executive and engineer should know about pat-ents. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 315p.

HOBAN, LEO J. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 240.

HOBDAY, HAROLD

Confirmation and certification of information to public accountants and others. National audit-gram, May 1939, p. 12-5.

HOBSON, C. THORNTON Service that management can get from the cost accountant; paper submitted at seventeenth na-tional cost conference, Institute of cost and works accountants, Central Hotel, Glasgow, 8th-10th September, 1938, London, Institute of cost and works accountants, 1938, 6p. Cost accoun-tant, Nov. 1938, p. 168-73, discussion, p. 173-9.

HODGE, WILLIAM E. President's address. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Oct. 1939, p. 236-44.

HOEBER. HELEN S.

Collective bargaining by united electrical radio and machine workers. *Monthly labor review*, July 1938, p. 67-77.

HOEHLER, FRED K. Social security in the United States. Municipal finance, Nov. 1936, p. 24-9.

HOEXTER, S. B. Municipal budgets balanced by collecting taxes through advertising. Rand McNally bankers monthly, Dec. 1936, p. 731-2.

HOFFMAN, LEO H. AND KNOX, ROBERT W. Liability for improper accumulation of su *Tax magazine*, April 1937, p. 200-3, 247. surplus.

HOFFMAN. M. F.

Consumers accounting and collecting. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1939, p. 1769-74.

HOGAN, THOMAS J. Use of the uniform system in hotel accounting. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, July 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 22, section 1, p. 1411-24.)

HOGBEN, LANCELOT

Mathematics for the million. New York, W. W. Norton & company, inc., c1937. 647p.

HOGEWEG, G. P. J. Matters affecting the accountancy profession (Eng-lish translation) (In V. internationaler prü-fungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 22-36.)

HOGG, ROBERT L. Taxation of life insurance companies under state laws. Taxes-the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 73-5, 114-7; March 1939, p. 147-9, 170-2, 174.

HOGSETT, E. L. Relation of attorney and accountant in tax cases; address delivered before the West Virginia society of certified public accountants at its annual meeting at the Hotel Prichard, Hunt-ington, West Virginia, October 30, 1937. 11p.

HOLDEN, H. CASSIE Unit trusts. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 151-4.

HOLDING, W. F.

Some thoughts on tax and other government re-turns. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 27-33.

HOLDING COMPANIES

- OLDING COMPANIES See also Consolidations. ABRAMS, ERNEST R. Future of the holding company in the nonutility field; significance of public utility act of 1935. Public utilities fort-niahtly, Jan. 21, 1937, p. 67-76. BLETHEN, FRED A. Remote management of a subsidiary. National accountant, April 1937, p. 4.7 44.8
- 4-7, 44-8
- FIELD, KENNETH. Principles of holding com-pany financing—Holding company financial plans. (In his Corporation finance. c1938. p. 342-68, 384-92.)

- 384-92.)
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Holding companies. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 679-708.)
 REIS. M. J. Fublic utility financing under the holding company act. Public utilities fortnightly, Jan. 21, 1937. p. 89-94.
 SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Holding companies and the new tax law. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936. p. 487-8, 507.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Official summary of security transaction.

tions and holdings reported to the Securities and exchange commission under the securities exchange act of 1934 and the public utility hold-ing company act of 1935. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission. WARTIME problems for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 293-4.

- Accounting ACCOUNTING system for utilities under hold-ing company act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Sept. 15, 1936, p. 10-1.
 ALFORD, EDWIN D. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400-1.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Foreign operations and foreign exchange. New York, American institute of accountants, Dec. 1939, p. 29-36. (Accounting research bulletins, no. 4 (special)

 - p. 29-30. (Accounting research owners), no. (special) BENJAMIN, HAROLD S. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Relationship of the Securities and exchange commission to the ac-countant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 93 30 23-39
 - CLASSIFICATION of loss by subsidiary. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept.

 - counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 226.7.
 LINDSAY, MAURICE M. Holding companies and consolidation statements. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1939, 1999.
 MOONITZ, MAURICE. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 227-35.
 OFFICERS' salaries in construction of new plant. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 474-5.
 PREMIUM on preferred stock of subsidiaries. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 67-8.
 SALIFRS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Subsidiary company. (In their Basic accountancy).

 - SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Subsidiary company. (In their Basic accounting brinciples, 1937, p. 524-37.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 3. (write-ups in the consolidation of accounts) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Sept. 13, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Some problems as to parent companies. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 337-41.

- Australia FITZGERALD, A. A. Published accounts of hold-ing companies under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 85-92.
- FITZGERALD, G. E. Accounts of holding com-panies. Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 137-60.
- NIXON, E. V. Accounts of holding companies. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 507-18.

Canada HOLDING companies accounts. Canadian char-tered accountant, April 1936, p. 268-72.

- Great Britain BODDINGTON. A. LESTER. Accounts of hold-ing and subsidiary companies. (In his Financial statements. 1938. p. 297-336.) BYRD. KENNETH F. Preparation of consoli-dated balance sheets of holding and subsidiary companies. Accountant, Dec. 16, 1939, p. 654-60; Dec. 23, 1939. p. 677-81. COOPER, STUART R. Consolidated accounts— another view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 164-5. dePAULA, F. R. M. Form and presentation of the accounts of holding companies. (In his Princibles of auditing. 1939. p. 253-79.) Accoun-tant. March 11, 1939, p. 325-32. GARNSEY. GILBERT. Holding companies and their published accounts; third edition by T. B. Robson. London, Gee and co., ltd., 1936. 362p.

HOLDING COMPANIES-Accounting-Great Britain-(Continued)

TOWNSEND, CHARLES. Holding companies and their accounts. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 691-4; Feb. 1936, p. 748-51. WINCOTT, H. E. Consolidated accounts—one view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 162-3.

- Uniform methods and systems
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Uniform system of accounts for mutual service companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, effective August 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1936. 24p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Uniform system of accounts for public utility holding companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, dated August 8, 1936, effective January 1, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 35p.

Auditing

udding KRACKE, EDWARD A. Consolidated financial statements. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 372-89. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 135-60.)

Canada SMAILS, R. G. H. Holding companies. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 298-303.)

- Auditing. 1937. p. 298-303.) Great Britain COOPER, STUART R. Auditing of concerns. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 461-7. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 71-89, under title "Auditing of 'combines'.") dePAULA, F. R. M. Audit of the accounts of holding companies. (In his Principles of audit-ing. 1939. p. 281-95.) PALMOUR, CHARLES J. G. Auditing of con-cerns. (In Fifth international congress on ac-counting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountant, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 493-8, discussion, p. 498-9. (In V. internation aler prifungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress. archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 1-17, under title "Auditing of 'combines'.")

Finance

hance WATERMAN, MERWIN H. Utility financing under the holding company act; trend and scope of federal regulation as shown by S.E.C. rules and decisions. *Public utilities fortnightly*, Feb. 16, 1939, p. 195-208.

- Government regulation and control
 FEDERAL regulation of holding companies: the public utility act of 1935. Yale law journal, Jan. 1936, p. 468-95.
 HELLEBRANDT, EDWIN T. Public utility holding companies and their regulation in Ohio. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 464-72 464-72.

UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. General rules and exchange com-mission. General rules and regulations and forms under the public utility holding company act of 1935; May 15, 1937. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1937. 180p.

Great Britain ROBSON, T. B. Some holding company problems. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 57-60.

Law

Monaco BLANK, R. E. S. Monaco holding companies. Accountant, May 30, 1936, p. 818-20.

- New South Wales CHANCELLOR, H. W. Holding and subsidiary companies under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, p. 180-94, discussion, p. 194-6.
- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Public utility holding company act of 1935. (In its Public

- New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1936. p. 146-73.) HEALY, ROBERT E. Administration of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Public utilities formightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 529-39.

Statistic

atistics UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Financial statistics for electric and gas subsidiaries of registered public-utility holding companies, year 1938; report of Public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, June 1939. 14p.

Valuation

- aluation HEALY, ROBERT E. Address before the Har-vard business school alumni association at its ninth annual special meeting at Baker library, Harvard business school, Boston, Massachusetts, June 16, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 12 mimeographed pages.
- HOLDING companies accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 268-72.
- HOLDING companies and consolidation statements. Lindsay, Maurice M.
- LDING companies and their published accounts; third edition by T. B. Robson. Garnsey, Gilbert. HOLDING

HOLGATE, H. C. F.

- Accounting period in banking. Accountants' maga-zine, Aug. 1938, p. 489-93. Bank auditing. Corporate accountant, March 1939, p. 17-9.
- Calculating the rate of interest payable on loans in certain currencies. Accountant, May 28, 1938, p. 731-2.
- p. 731-2. Contingent liabilities of the English commercial banks with an introductory essay on their pub-lished accounts. (being an excerpt from a thesis on "Bank accounting" approved for the Ph.D. degree of London university) London, Gee & co., Itd., 1939. 77p. Control of banking. Accountant, July 12, 1939, p. 100-1.
- 100-1.

- 100-1. Future of the machine in branch banking. Ac-countant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 733-4. Keynes on forced saving. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 605-9. Lithographed signatures on cheques; the practical difficulties and an alternative suggestion. Ac-countant, May 1, 1937, p. 621-3. Method of calculating the rate of interest in in-stalment trading. Accountant, Feb. 19, 1938, p. 248.
- 248.
- 270.
 Plus and minus accounting. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 351-2.
 Price fixing. Corporate accountant, May 1937, p. 87-8.
- 6/-0.
 Rationalisation of banking processes through the use of multiple forms. Accountant, April 22, 1939, p. 533-4.
 To-day's rates of exchange. Accountant, Dec. 30, 1939, p. 692-4.

HOLLAND, BENJAMIN L. Loans secured by the assignment of life insurance policies. Robert Morris associates monthly bul-letim, March 1937, p. 239-54.

HOLLERITH METHOD

See Mechanical devices-Tabulating and sorting.

HOLMAN, WALTER Accountancy in war-time. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 54-5.

p. 54-5. Presidential address. Accountant, July 10, 1937, p. 48-50. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 363-79. Some practical points in auditing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 84-7.

HOLME, RANDLE F. W.

Income tax. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 4, 1937, p. 530-5.

HOLMES, ARTHUR W.

Auditing, principles and procedure. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1939. 561p.

HOLMES, ARTHUR W., joint author See Saliers, Earl A. and Holmes, Arthur W.

HOLMES, J. HENDREN Termination of reciprocal tax exemption. Taxes-the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 195-6, 256-60; May 1939, p. 281-3, 318-24.

Hay 1939, p. 2010, 010 11
HOLMES, R. L. A.
Business barometers; measurement of economic activity with special reference to "The economist" index of business activity. Accountant, March 4, 1939, p. 293-9.
Graphic statistics. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 41-2; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 217; Feb. 8, 1936, p. 201; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 207; March 7, 1936, p. 358-9; March 21, 1936, p. 612; May 2, 1936, p. 532: April 18, 1936, p. 612; May 2, 1936, p. 677; May 16, 1936, p. 767; May 30, 1936, p. 817; June 13, 1936, p. 906; June 27, 1936, p. 124; Aug. 8, 1936, p. 192; Aug. 15, 1936, p. 254; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 323; Sept. 19, 1936, p. 391; Oct. 3, 1936, p. 473.

HOLMES, WALTER G. Applied time and motion study. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 335p.

HOLT, HERBERT E.

Accounting records mute unless interpreted b con-troller. Controller, Sept. 1937, p. 318-20.

HOLT, JOHN H. Hospitalization insurance; home office accounting. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 1, 3-5.

HOME, J. B. Trend of gilt-edged and equity prices with an eye to the future. Certified accountants journal, June 1937, p. 177-83.

HOME LOAN BANKS

See Banks and banking, Federal home loan

HOME OWNERS' LOAN CORPORATION See United States. Home owners' loan corporation.

HOME RELIEF

See Relief expenditures.

- HOMES AND DAVIS UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Interstate hosiery mills, inc.— common capital stock of no par value (File 1-300) Securities exchange act of 1934, release no. 2048. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 2019. 321-8.
 - UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange comprission. Interstate hosiery case; findings and opinion of the Securities and exchange com-mission—taken from release no. 2048 of the commission. New York certified public ac-countant, June 1939, p. 425-36.

HOMESTEAD CORPORATIONS

See Housing; Real estate; Real estate manage-

HONORARY secretary's guide. Bonnet, Leslie.

HOOD, A. A. Uniform accounting for building material dealers. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1939, p. 1, 2-6.

HOOPER, A. C. Profits. Accountant, Jan. 9, 1937, p. 57-60. Ac-countants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 642-5.

HOOPER, F. W. Functions of a bank in relation to the capital market. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1936. 61p.

HOOVER, HERBERT Present taxation as affecting the mining industry. [In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936. p. 5-10.)

HOOVER, W. H.

Economic effect of present taxes on the mining industry. Mining congress journal, Nov. 1939, p. 31-4.

HOPE, J.

Sales manager and the cost department. Cost ac-countant, Sept. 1939, p. 96-9. Cost and manage-ment, Oct. 1939, p. 303-8.

HOPE, J. WILLIAM

Accountants responsibility to the public; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 11 mime-ographed pages. New York certified public ac-countant, June 1939, p. 418-22.

HOPF, HARRY ARTHUR

Executive compensation: a problem in incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1937, p. 15-22.

HOPKINS, JOHN A. Elements of farm management. New York, Pren-tice-Hall, inc., c1936. 390p.

HOPPLE, E. J. Fixing depreciation rates for telephone companies. Public utilities fortnightly, April 15, 1937, p. 407-75.

HORD, WARNER H. Flow of property as a basis of internal control. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 272-85.

HORNE, DONALD Annual allowance for depreciation. Management review, May 1936, p. 139-46; June 1936, p. . 171-6.

ORNE, HAROLD M. AND MANSFIELD, D. BRUCE HORNE

Life insurance contract. New York, Life office management association, 1938. 270p.

HORNE, HENRY A.

IORNE, HENRY A.
Auditing procedure; a discussion of the report of the special committee on auditing procedure of the American institute of accountants, approved by the council of the institute, May 9, 1939. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting confer-ence. Papers on accounting procedure and re-lated matters. June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 13-21.)
Contributions of public utilities accounting to general accounting progress. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 35-9.
Depreciation in utility accounts. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 449-51.
Inconsistencies in accounting requirements of state and federal regulatory bodies. Journal of ac-countancy, Nov. 1938, p. 303-9.
Place of accounting in the changing social order. 12 typewritten pages.

- 12 typewritten pages. Summary of certain testimony before the Securi-

HORNE. HENRY A.-(Continued)

ties and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. *Papers on ac-counting procedure and related matters*. June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 82-96.)

HORR, EDWARD NORTON

Appraising contingent assets. Credit and financial management, April 1938, p. 8-11.

HORSE RACING

See Race tracks.

HORTON, R. A. Mechanics of collection. Credit world, Nov. 1938, p. 8-9.

HORWATH AND HORWATH

- Accounting for employees' meals. American restau-rant magasine, April 1939, p. 30-1, 89-90. Accounting for replacement and depreciation. American restaurant magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 34, 78-9.

- 34, 78-9. Beverage statistics. Horwath hotel accountant, Aug., Sept. 1936, p. 5, 6-7; 5-7. Financial status of hotels. New York, Horwath and Horwath, cl937. 31p. Food department—detailed operating information; useful data made available by food cost ac-counting system. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1939, p. 6. Fourth annual study of hotel operating data based on the 1935 reports of 100 hotels located in 41 cities. Horwath hotel accountant, April 1936, p. 4.7 4.7

Gleaned from U. S. census report. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1937, p. 5-7. Horwath and Horwath answers questions this

- and schedules.
- rvational restaurant association, c1938. 8 pages and schedules.
 Restaurant operating costs. American restaurant magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 27; Feb. 1936, p. 41, 86; March 1936, p. 58, 60, 78; April 1936, p. 37-8, 62; June 1936, p. 31-2, 56; July 1936, p. 40, 79-80; Aug. 1936, p. 44, 73-6; Sept. 1936, p. 32, 66; Aug. 1937, p. 42, 74; April 1937, p. 52, 64, 66; Aug. 1937, p. 42, 74; April 1937, p. 42, 64; 66; Aug. 1937, p. 41-2, 71-2; Nov. 1937, p. 48, 102-3; Dec. 1937, p. 33, 74-6; Feb. 1938, p. 77-8, 80-1; Mar. 1938, p. 63-4, 125; April 1938, p. 49-50, 106, 108-9; May 1938, p. 57-8; June 1938, p. 55-6; July 1938, p. 45-8, 70-1.
 Simplified system of accounts for small hotels prepared for the American hotel association of the United States and Canada, c1936, 22p.

- hotel association of the United States and Canada, c1936. 29p. Six small apartment houses in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1939, p. 4-5. Summarv of the trend of business in hotels for 1935. Horwath hotel accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 6-7. Same, for 1936. Horwath hotel accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 4-5. Same, for 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 4-5. Same, for 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Feb. 1939. p. 4-5.
- Feb. 1939, p. 4-5.

- HORWATH, JOHN N. Determining basic facts about food costs by butcher-ing tests. American restaurant magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 70-1, 128-9.
 Market prices and food costs; resume of address before the Chicago stewards' association. Hor-wath hotel accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 6.

HORWITZ, EDWARD S. Credit policy as a sales aid; many ways to build business good-will. Credit and financial management. April 1939, p. 12-4.

HOSIERY

See Knit goods.

HOSIERY manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

HOSKING, P. Partnership law and accounts. Australian accoun-tant, June 1936, p. 420-4; July 1936, p. 497-504.

HOSKINS, JOSEPH A.

Unauthorized practice of law. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal) Certified public ac-countant, May 1936, p. 291-4.

HOSKOLD'S FORMULA

See Valuation

- HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD
 Effect of direct charges to surplus on the measurement of income. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938, p. 114-51.) Accounting review, March 1938, p. 31-55.
 Plant ledgers and plant accounting. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 200-12.
 Problems in accounting. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 689p.
 Research department. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 240.

- HOSPELHORN, JOHN D. Railroad securities from the supervisor's point of view. National auditgram, May, 1939, p. 18-21, 23.
- HOSPITAL accounting and statistics. American hospital association.

HOSPITAL administration requires efficient accounting. Dawson, William A.

HOSPITAL economies. Reeve, Archie F. and Cleve-land, Hayward.

HOSPITALIZATION

See Insurance-Hospitalization.

HOSPITALS

- (OSPITALS See also Institutions.
 AMERICAN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION. Commission on hospital service. Standards for nonprofit hospital plans. Chicago, Ill., American hospital association. 1939, 11p.
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Duties and responsibilities of the comptroller; address at New York conference on hospital accounting. United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 14, 1939. 4 mimeographed pages.
- Accounting
 AMERICAN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION. Hospital accounting and statistics; a manual for American hospitals. ed. 2. Chicago, Ill., American hospital association. 1936. 85p.
 BAEHNE, G. W., editor. Applications in medical research and in hospitals. (In his Practical applications of the punched card method in colleges and universities. 1935. p. 241-316.)
 BUFFHAM, A. H. Accounting system of a public mental hospital. Accountant, March 18, 1939, p. 361-3.

 - Mental nospital. Accountant, Allowances; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, November 15, 1938. 6 mimeographed pages.

HOSPITALS-Accounting-(Continued)

- DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Depreciation and hos-pital costs. (reprinted from Hospitals, Nov. 1939.)

- pital costs. (reprinted from *Hospitals*, Nov. 1939.)
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Hospital administration requires efficient accounting. New York, New York conference on hospital accounting. United hospital fund of New York, Oct. 1939. 5 mimeographed pages.
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Linen control; address at New York conference on hospital accounting United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 14, 1939. 3 mimeographed pages.
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Systematizing and the office; address at New York conference on hospital accounting. United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 7, 1939. 6 mimeographed pages.
 DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Using the United hospital fund report to tell the story of the hospital (to accompany Forms for annual report and financial statement of associated hospitals, c1936.)
 S. mimeographed pages.
- jnancial statement of associated hospitals, c1936.)
 5 mimeographed pages.
 DUKE ENDOWMENT. Hospital section. Classification of financial accounts in hospitals. Charlotte, N. C., Duke endowment, Hospital section (1939).
 20p. and forms.
 GREENWOOD, KENDALL EDDIS. Hospital accounts of the mathematical section (1939).
- counting—departmental analysis. Canadian char-tered accountant, Ian. 1937, p. 24-33. HANKINS, CLINTON G. Sanitarium-hospital ac-counting. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1939,

- counting. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1939, p. 1, 2-3. LASHINS, IVAN R. Insurance; address at New York conference on hospital accounting. United hospital fund of New York, meeting of Decem-ber 13, 1938. 7 mimeographed pages. MUNGER, CLAUDE W. Specific services required by the hospital administrator from the accounting department; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 7, 1939. 6 mimeo-graphed pages.
- praphed pages. PETERS, RALPH W. Accounting for hospital in-vestments. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p.
- REEVE. ARCHIE F. AND CLEVELAND. HAYWARD. Hospital economics; one hundred practical suggestions for private and community hospitals. New York, Cleveland pub. co. no date.

- brachtal suggestions for pivate and community hospitals. New York, Cleveland pub. co. no date. 102p.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Modernizing hospital accounting. (reprinted from Hospitals, Dec. 1938.)
 ROREM. C. RUFUS. Uniform hospital accounting. Accounting review. June 1936, p. 157-62, comments by Monroe S. Carroll, p. 162-4.
 STONE, J. E. Reform of hospital accounts. Accountancy. Feb. 1939, p. 166-8.
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY, System for an endowed hospital. (In his Accounting systems, their design and installation. 1936. p. 675-734.)
 UNITED HOSPITAL FUND OF NEW YORK. Form for annual report and financial statement of associated hospitals. New York, United hospital fund, c1936. forms. WILLIAMS, F. J. Accountancy in hospitals. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 348-50; March 19, 1938, p. 382-5.

Uniform methods and systems DAWSON, WILLIAM A. Uniform accounting-its need and values. (reprinted from Hospitals, April 1939.) 7p.

Cost accounting

- iost accounting CREE, C. E. Cost accounting in hospitals. Muni-cibal finance, May 1939, p. 4-10. UNITED HOSPITAL FUND OF NEW YORK. Procedure for hospital costs; the determination of departmental and service costs. (approved by the New York conference on hospital accounting of the United hospital fund of New York, William A. Dawson, consulting accountant.) New Vork, United hospital fund of New York, c1937. 300. 300.
- UNITED HOSPITAL FUND OF NEW YORK. Procedure for patient service costs (final apportionment) approved by the Hospital accoun-

tants' committee of the New York conference on hospital accounting, November 17, 1936. New York, United hospital fund of New York, c1936. 21p.

Statistics

HOSSACK, A. B. Accounting procedures for capital assets and de-preciation. (In National association of cost ac-countants. Year book, 1936. p. 121-39.)

HOTCHKISS, WILLARD E. Arbitration—an analysis. Society for the advance-ment of management journal, March 1939, p. 45-8.

HOTEL accounting. Wilson, James A., Jr.

HOTEL business to date. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 5, 7.

- HOTEL operations in 1937. Horwath and Horwath.
- HOTEL operations in 1938. Horwath and Horwath.

HOTEL receipts and disbursements in 1938. Hor-wath hotel accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 6-7.

HOTELS

- See also Apartment hotels; Beverages; Food; Restaurants, cafes, etc.
 AGAIN—how much rent? Horwath hotel accommant, July 1938, p. 2, 6.
 HITZ, RALPH. Standard practice manuals for hotel operation. 6 parts. New York, Harper and brothers, c1935, c1936.
 Pt. 1—Front service division. 111p.

| 1 | 1-riont | service unvision, | IIIp. |
|-----|---------|-------------------|-------|
| Pt. | 2-Food | departments. | 49p. |
| | | | |

HOŴ

Pt. 2-Food departments. 49p. Pt. 3-Housekeeping department. 48p. Mechanical department. 97p. Pt. 4-Telephone departments 39p. Pt. 5-Miscellaneous departments 39p. Pt. 6-Audit and control division. 61p. OW much rent? Horwath hotel accountant, March 1938, p. 3. OTH, LOUIS. Man who starts rate-cutting. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 5-6. TOTH.

- Accounting AVEYARD, C. H. Hotel accounting and control. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 729-31.
 BRODNER, JOSEPH. Control of guests' safe deposit boxes in hotels; an address before the Hotel accountants association of New York City, November 29, 1937. 11 mimeographed

- pages.

 Same. 16 typewritten pages.

 FOX, ARTHUR E. Liquor control. Accounting forum, Jan. 1937, p. 5-7.

 HAGEN, PAUL J. Accounting for small hotels.

 Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1939, p. 1, 3-8.

 HTZ, RALPH. Audit and control division. (Part 6-Standard practice manuals for hotel operation. c1935, c1936. 61p.)

 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; hotel accounts. Incorporated accountant' jour

- SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; hotel accounts. Incorporated accountants' jour-nal, June 1938, p. 314-6. KENNY, MATTHEW J. Accountant in the hotel. (March 2, 1937.) 9 typewritten pages. McVAY, E. A. AND KEIPER, B. F. Elements of beverage control. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1936, p. 4-5, 6-7.

HOTELS-Accounting-(Continued)

- MORRISON, RONALD H. Some features of hotel accounting. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 9-15. RENT of hotel. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 427-8. ROOMS linen. Horwath hotel accountant, June

- ROOMS linen. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1938, p. 3-6.
 SIMON, PAUL. How to determine a fair rate. Horwath hotel accountant, March 1937, p. 3, 6.
 SIMON, PAUL. Reading a hotel statement. Horwath hotel accountant, March 1936, p. 4-7.
 TAYLOR, W. F. Hotel book-keeping. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 595-608.
 TOTH, LOUIS. Maintenance, improvements, and profits; address delivered at the convention of the New Jersey hotel association, Atlantic City, April 26, 1939. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1939, p. 3-5.
 WILSON, JAMES A., Jr. Hotel accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 22, section 1, p. 1424-50.) Printed with: Hogan, Thomas J. Use of the uniform system in hotel accountants. accounting.

- Uniform methods and systems HOGAN, THOMAS J. Use of the uniform system in hotel accounting. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, July 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 22, section 1, p. 1411-24.) HORWATH AND HORWATH. Simplified system of accounts for small hotels prepared for the American hotel association of the United States and Canada. New York, American hotel associa-tion of the United States and Canada, c1936. 290. 29p.

Cost accounting CHAPLIN, F. L. Hotel costing and control. (from Cost accountant) Cost and management, March 1937, p. 78-94.

- Costs
 BUSINESS promotion costs. Horwath hotel accountant, March 1938, p. 4.
 BYWELL, E. M. Cost of music and entertainment. Horwath hotel accountant, April 1937, p. 3.
 HEAT, light and power: Horwath hotel accountant, July 1938, p. 3-6.
 HOTEL receipts and disbursements in 1938.

 - HOTEL receipts and disbursements in 1938. Horveath hotel accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 6-7. PODD, GEORGE O. Trend of payroll costs in hotels. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 5-6.
 - 3, 5-6. REPAIRS, maintenance, replacements and addi-tions in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 4-5.

Inventories JENKINS, R. A. How to take inventories of china, glass, silver and linen. Horwath hotel ac-countant, Dec. 1937, p. 4-5.

- Reports and statements
 KEIPER, B. F. Reading hotel balance sheets. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1939, p. 25-35. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 3-6.
 KEIPER, B. F. Reading hotel profit and loss state-ments. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Sent. 1939, p. 77-93.
 SIMON, PAUL. Reading a hotel statement. Hor-wath hotel accountant, March 1936, p. 4-7.

- - 99.)

 - 99.) ESTIMATED number of launderings of linen. Hormath hotel accountant. Aug. 1938. p. 4. HARRIS, KERR. FORSTER AND COMPANY. Trends in the hotel business. New York, Harris, Kerr. Forster and co. c1938. 310. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Financial status

of hotels. New York, Horwath and Horwath, c1937. 31p. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Fourth annual

- study of hotel operating data based on the 1935 reports of 100 hotels located in 41 cities. Hor-wath hotel accountant, April 1936, p. 47. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Gleaned from U. S. census report. Horwath hotel accountant, June

- S. census report. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1937, p. 5-7. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Hotel operations in 1936; an analysis of 100 hotels in 44 cities. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1937, p. 4-7. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Hotel operations in 1937; operating ratios of 100 hotels located in 52 cities. (sixth annual study.) New York, Horwath and Horwath, c1938. 19p. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Hotel operations in 1938; operating ratios of 100 hotels located in 50 cities. New York, Horwath and Horwath, c1939. 24p.

- Same, for 1937. Horwath hotel accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 4-5.
 Same, for 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 4-5.
 HOTEL business to date. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 5, 7.
 HOTEL receipts and disbursements in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 6-7.
 KFIPER, B. F. Reading hotel balance sheets. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1939, p. 3-6.
 LOSSES from bad accounts and bad checks. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1937. p. 4, 5-6.
 MEEK, HOWARD BAGNALL. Theory of hotel room rates. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell university, Department of hotel administration, June 1938. 120n. (Hotel administration, no. 9.)
 PODD, G. O. Study of indiana hotels. Horwath hotel accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4, 5.
 REPAIRS, maintenance, replacements and additions in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 4-5.
 ROOM and restaurant payrolls. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1938, p. 6.
 TREND of business in hotels. (see each issue of the Horwath hotel accountant). Supersonal accountant, June 1938, p. 6.
 TREND of business in hotels. (see each issue of the Horwath hotel accountant).
 VALET sales and statistics. Horwath hotel accountant, botel accountant, botel accountant.

- the Horwath hotel accountant.) VALET sales and statistics. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, March 1938, p. 5. WHAT the hotel guest drinks. Horwath hotel ac-countant, April 1937, p. 5. WHAT the hotel guest eats. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, April 1937, p. 4.

Stockkeeping STOCK record—china, glassware, silver and linen. Horwath hotel accountant, March 1939, p. 6.

HOTELS, SEASONAL

HOIELS, SHADEN LA
 Accounting
 KINTISCH, MORTON D. Hotel resort accounting. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1937, p. 1, 3-8.
 MUCKLOW, WALTER. Use of graphs in connection with accounting for seasonal hotels. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 1, 5.

HOUGH, RAYMOND S. McKesson & Robbins, inc., and the trade creditors. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 43-4.

HOURS OF LABOR

- See also LABOR See also Labor-Law and regulation. BROOKS, COLLIN. Professional man and the "distribution of leisure" problem. *Incorporated* accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 105-10, dis-cussion, p. 110-11. CARVER, T. N. Theory of the shortened work-ing week. American economic review, Sept. 1936, p. 451-62. FEDERAL waves and house law of 1020. X

- P. 71702. FEDERAL wages and hours law of 1938. Monthly labor review, July 1938, p. 107-12. MORRIS, DONALD. Economic significance of the shorter working week. Accountant student and

HOURS OF LABOR-(Continued)

Accountants' journal, Oct. 1936, p. 170-4. SCHWARZ, R. Ph. What the 40-hour week did to France. Factory management and maintenance, May 1938, p. 68-70, 136, 138.

Accountants

- ccountants UNITED STATES. Court of claims. In the Court of claims of the United States; no. 43469 (de-cided November 6, 1939) James A. Councilor & William Gordon Buchanan, partners, doing busi-ness under the firm name and style of Councilor & Buchanan v. the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 10p.

HOURSTON, JOHN J. D. Stock control and budgeting. Accountants' maga-zine, June 1937, p. 305-18.

HOUSE FURNISHINGS

See also Furniture. Statistics

TRENDS in retailing of furniture and house furnishings, first quarter, 1938. Balance sheet, June 1938, p. 21.

HOUSEHOLD

See also Personal accounts.

Accounting RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND SMITH, HAROLD J. Household accounts. (In their Secretarial accounting, c1936. p. 62-82.)

- Budgeting ALDERSON, WROE. Following family budgets from Providence to Portland. *Dun's review*, Dec.
 - 1938, p. 24-8. HAGIOS, J. ANTON. Credit manager in a new role—advisor on family budgets. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Jan. 1937, p. 15-6, 32-3.

HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES See Electric dealers; Electric industries.

HOUSES

See Buildings.

HOUSING

- (OUSING See also Real estate; Building construction. CONSTRUCTION costs analyzed on large apart-ment building; breakdown of all costs on Knicker-bocker Village housing project in New York shows direct labor gets 32½ per cent of building dollars, while 42.4 per cent goes for materials and 25.1 per cent is for overhead and miscellane-ous items. Engineering news-record, Dec. 19, 1935, p. 851-2.UNITED STATES. Federal housing administra-tion. Illustrative case: mortgace's application
- NITED STATES. Federal housing administra-tion. Illustrative case; mortgagee's application for insurance; credit and security instruments to be submitted for insurance under title 2 of the national housing act, including tables for computation of amortization, maturity, monthly service charge, revised June 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Federal housing administration, 1936. 25p.

Accounting

- BAIFVSKY, BORIS. Housing and accounting systems. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p.
- HOUSING accounts. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 483-94.

- Uniform methods and systems BAIEVSKY, BORIS. Uniform system of accounts for homestead corporations. *Certified public ac-*countant, June 1936, p. 352-68; July 1936, p. 421-33
- 421-33. HARRIS, MAYNARD L. Uniform system of ac-counts for multi-family housing. Buildings and building manacement. Aug. 1936, p. 41-3. UNITED STATES. Federal housing administra-tion. Uniform system of accounts for large scale housing projects. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, June 15, 1936. 37p.
- HOUSING accounts. Accountants' magazine. Aug. 1936, p. 483-94.

HOUSING and accounting systems. Baievsky, Boris.

HOUSTON, J. C. Meter reading, billing and collecting simplified. American city, March 1936, p. 55-9.

- HOUSTON, SYDNEY Steamship business from the accountant's viewpoint. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 1, p. 9-22.) Printed with: James, Charles C. Application of standard cost accounting to railroad administration.
- HOW government regulates business. Eisner, Mark and others.
- HOW modern equipment cuts costs in time payment accounting. American business, June 1938, p. 37-40
- HOW much rent? Horwath hotel accountant, March 1938, p. 3.
- HOW secret is the accountants' professional secret? (Editorial) Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 328-30.
- HOW shall business be taxed? Symposium conducted by the Tax policy league. Tax policy league, inc.
- HOW should unemployment compensation costs be handled? Odom, William E.
- HOW standardization aids in making outstanding cost reductions. Power wagon, Aug. 1937, p. 17-8.
- HOW tax on undistributed earnings will appear in accounts. Controller, Aug. 1936, p. 176-81.
- HOW to balance the federal budget. National economy league.
- HOW to be a good foreman. Reitell, Charles.
- HOW to deal with organized labor. Feller, Alexander and Hurwitz, Jacob E.
- HOW to evaluate financial statements. Wall, Alexander.
- HOW to keep accounts and prepare statements. Saliers, Earl A.
- HOW to obtain bank costs. Woolley, E. S.
- HOW to operate under the wage-hour law. Feller, Alexander, and Hurwitz, Jacob E.
- HOW W to plan and execute a bank's audit program. Chicago bank auditors' conference.
- HOW to read a balance sheet. Pixley, Francis W.
- HOW to reduce the undistributed profits tax. Alex-ander publishing company, inc.
- HOW to run a rental library. Conklin, Groff.
- HOW to write a tax brief, together with an outline of procedure before the Bureau of Internal revenue and the Board of tax appeals. Ash, Robert.
- HOW to write advertising. Goode, Kenneth M.
- HOW we plan, set up and operate our budget. Ber-nard, Rene J.

HOWARD, LAWRENCE A. Relationship of the lawyer and the accountant. Connecticut bar journal, April 1937, p. 200-8.

HOWARD, MILTON

- Accounting as an aid to industry. Canadian char-tered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 183-9.
 Accounts of a small oil refinery. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 247-55.
 Suggested system for a social welfare agency. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 2040 39.49.

HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN

- A B C of accounting. ed. 3. rev. and enl. Prince-ton, N. J., Princeton university press, 1938. 320n.
- 320p.
 Accounting in a liberal arts curriculum. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 149-54; comments by Andrew Barr, p. 154-7.
 Concepts of capital and income. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 1-2.
 Rate base and the depreciation base in recent public utility cases. American economic review, June, 1936, p. 258-71.

HOWELL, A. W. A.
Audit of machine-written accounting records. Accountant, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 265-70; Sept. 2, 1939, p. 299-303; Sept. 9, 1939, p. 321-5; Sept. 16, 1939, p. 338-42; Sept. 23, 1939, p. 355-9; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 384-6; Oct. 7, 1939, p. 400-3.

HOWELL, ALMONTE CHARLES, joint author See Baker, Ray Palmer, and Howell, Almonte Charles.

HOWELL, H. E. Internal auditing. (Our open forum) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 2, p. 1046-9.)

HOWELL, WILLIAM R. Measured day work vs. wage incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 54-7.

HOWEY, A. G. Cash and balance sheet budgeting. Cost and man-agement, Dec. 1937, p. 318-23.

HOWINGTON, KELSEY D. How much does it cost? Simple but comprehensive ow much does it costr Simple but comprehensive accounting system requires small staff. Time saving methods and extensive use of slide rule reduce work to a minimum. *Rock products*, Sept. 1939, p. 23-5, 38; Oct. 1939, p. 37-9; Dec. 1939, p. 45-6.

HOWITT, HAROLD

WALL, HAROLD Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 561-72. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 99-132.)

HOWLAND, JOHN

Enforcement of secured creditors' claims under 77 and 77B: a functional analysis. Yale law journal, May 1937, p. 1109-23.

HOYT. CHESTER W.

- Problems and procedure in bank auditing; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 18-20, 1939. 15 type-
- Relationship between the board of directors, the president, and the auditor. National auditgram, Oct. 1937, p. 12-4.

HOYT. STANLEY

ssential organization and records; minimum equipment necessary to small trust departments. *Trust companies*, Nov. 1937, p. 543-50. Essential organization and

HUDSON, H.

- Accountancy for builders. Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 258-60.
- Accountancy for builders. Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 258-60.
 Fraud in share transfers; how an audit of share transfers is conducted. Irish accountant and secretary, Feb. 1938, p. 11, 16. Indian accountant, March 1938, p. 131-3.
 Goodwill of a flour milling business. Irish accountant and secretary, Dec. 1937, p. 204, 215. Interest in relation to cost accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 110.
 What story does a balance sheet tell? Irish accountant and secretary, Jan. 1938, p. 5-6, 8.

HUEBNER, S. S.

Property insurance; a textbook, completely re-vised and enlarged in collaboration with G. L. Armheim and C. A. Kline. New York, D. Ap-pleton-Century co., inc., c1938. 682p.

HUEGY, HARVEY W. AND WINAKOR. ARTHUR ы

- H. Automobile finance company flexibility. Bankers monthly, Nov. 1938, p. 658-9, 684-5. Financial policies and practices of automobile finance companies. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1938, 56n. (Bulletin no. 56.)

HUFFORD, C. F. How are house accounts controlled? Credit worla, July 1938, p. 27.

HUFFORD, KENNETH W. Accounting laboratories in collegiate schools of business, (Accounting exchange) Accounting re-view, June 1939, p. 178-82.

HUGHES, HECTOR More business links with the law. Accountant, March 19, 1938, p. 392-7.

HUGHES, J. F. Queensland income tax on interstate trading operations Australian accountant, June 1936, p.

HUGHES, JAMES F.
Celebration of passage of the first certified public accountant law. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 3-5.
Financing social security. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 23-32.
Our profession. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 5-13.

HUGHES, JOHN E. Constitutionality of processing tax refund limita-tions. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 5-7, 62.
Federal estate and gift taxes. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 446-8, 488-91.
Validity of estate tax regulations 80. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 145-6.

HUGHES, W. C. C.

Brief survey of a complete mechanised accounting system. Accountant, Dec. 4, 1937, p. 767-70.

HULL, F. BRYANT

Accounting for concession departments in retail department stores. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1938, p. 4-5.

- HULSE, JOHN K. Effect of the undistributed profits surtax on cor-porate expansion. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1937, p. 515-6.
 - Mortgage foreclosures under federal income tax regulations. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 451-2, 508.

HUMMEL, JOSEPH H. Method of route settlement for milk distributors. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 6-8.

HUMPHREY, DON D. Relation of surpluses to income and employment during depression. American economic review, June 1938, p. 223-34.

HUMPHREYS, J. ROSS Simple method of expense control. Bankers month-ly, July 1938, p. 427-30.

HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON Brief note on seasonal variation (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 296-7. Undistributed profits tax. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 453-4.

- HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON, editor MAY, GEORGE O. Twenty-five years of ac-counting responsibility, 1911-1936; essays and discussions, edited by Bishop Carleton Hunt. 2 vols. in 1. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1936, v. 1, 368p. v. 2, 421p. (bound troether)
 - together) ——Table of contents and analytical index, 1937. 20p.

HUNT, IRVIN T.

Accounts of a mortgage loan company. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1938, p. 428-42.

HUNTER, F. M.

Legal aspects of new uniform accounting systems. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 16-8, 35.

HUNTER, MERLIN H.

- Effects of taxation on the localization of industry. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1937. 179-86.)

p. 179-86.) Problems in state taxation. Taxes—the tax maga-zine, June 1939, p. 343-4, 366-7. Shall we tax corporations or business? American economic review, March 1936, p. 84-7. (In Na-tional tax association. Proceedings, 1936. p. 237-43.)

HUNTINGTON, R. T. (Dick)

Bar management and beverage profits. Stamford, Conn., The Dahls, c1938. 119p.

HUOT, P. H. Accounting in the newsprint industry. Cost and management, Jan. 1936, p. 2-10.

HURDMAN, FREDERICK H.

Common effort toward a common goal. New York state society of certified public accountants monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 2-5. Problems of uniform financial reports. 20 type-written pages.

HURDMAN, G. CHARLES

Registration of partnerships. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 7. Services of public accountants to public bodies. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 157-61.

HURST, T. E.

Banker as a lender. Accountant, Aug. 28, 1937, p. 287-91, discussion, p. 291-2. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 238-42, discussion, p. 242-3.

HURWITZ, JACOB E. joint author See Feller, Alexander and Hurwitz, Jacob E.

- HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Accounting postulates: an analysis of the tentative statements of accounting principles. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 386-401, discussion by Arthur N. Lorig and Charles T. Sweeney, p. 401-6.
 - orporate-entity fiction and accounting Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 241-53. Corporate-entity theory.

HUSBAND, P. E. Interim audit work; some special features and characteristics. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Feb. 1939, p. 302-3.

HUSSEY, ALBERT V.

- (USSEY, ALBERT V. Accountant's outlook upon insolvency practice. Accountant, March 5, 1938, p. 327-31.
 Practical aspects of the duties of trustees, liqui-dators and receivers. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 444-9.
 Some interesting points on insolvency practice. Accountant, June 13, 1936, p. 889-95, discussion, p. 905-7
- p. 895-7.

HUSSONG, H. O. Reasons for a retirement reserve. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 318-22, 352.

HUTCHINSON, ARTHUR R., joint author See Hutchinson, Ruth Gillette and others.

HUTCHINSON, O. N. Discussion of the "windfall tax" provisions of the revenue act of 1936, at meeting of members of the North Carolina association of certified public accountants at Charlotte, on September 17, 1936, discussion led by O. N. Hutchinson. 10 mimeographed pages.

- HUTCHINSON, RUTH GILLETTE AND OTHERS Business life and death in a Hudson River town; the mortality record of business enterprises in Poughkeepsie, N. Y., from 1843 through 1936. Dun's review, June 1939, p. 12-8. Study in business mortality. American economic review, Sept. 1938, p. 497-514.

HUTCHISON, GEORGE E. Costs of the retail coal merchant. 14 typewritten pages.

Social security act. 7 typewritten pages.

HYNEMAN, CHARLES S.

Mr. Mayor, why an audit? (reprinted from the Louisiana municipal review, July-August, Sep-tember-October, 1938.)

ICE

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of ice manufacturers and retailers. (In their 1936 retail survey, report no. 95.)

ICE CREAM

Accounting

- ccounting INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ICE CREAM MANUFACTURERS. Associated sim-plified system. Washington, D. C., International association of ice cream manufacturers, 1935. JOHNSON, O'NEAL M. Good accounting pro-cedure can help to make good ice cream profits. Ice cream trade journal, March 1936.

Costs

JOHNSON, O'NEAL M. Distribution costs in the ice cream industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 203-21.)

IDAHO

OAHO Senate bill no. 83; an act amending section 53-202, Idaho code annotated, relating to the quali-fications of applicants for certified public ac-countant certificate, and providing for require-ments as to experience and education of such applicants: and amending title 53, chapter 2, Idaho code annotated, by adding a new section to be known as section 53-205, I.C.A., and providing for recognition of a college or uni-versity degree held by applicants desiring to sit for examination. (approved Feb. 23, 1939.) Certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 8-9.

- IDLE CAPACITY.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of idleness costs. (In their Man-agerial control, instruments and methods in in-dustry. c1937. p. 394.408.)
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; 20—the problem of idle capacity. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 165-7.

ILLINGWORTH, A. G.

Unique accounting methods adopted by picture theatre organizations. Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 53-67.

- ILLINOIS. AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS General information for the accountant engaged in building and loan association audits. Chicago, Ill., Auditor of public accounts, 1938, 8p. Uniform audit reports proposed for Illinois build-ing and loan associations insured by the Fed-eral savings and loan insurance corporation. Chicago, Ill., Auditor of public accounts, Aug 1938, 8p. 1938, 8p.

ILLINOIS-(Continued)

Office bulletins, nos. 1, 2, and 3; prepared for the Committee on stock brokerage accounting, by Frederick S. Todman. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 82-5.

- SUPREME COURT Docket no. 23680-agenda 24-June, 1936; Fred Elliott et al. appellants, v. The university of Illinois et al. appellees. 9 typewritten pages.
- Illinois et al. appellees. 9 typewritten pages.
 ILLINOIS, UNIVERSITY OF. COLLEGE OF COMMERCE AND BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION, BUREAU OF BUSINESS RESEARCH
 Allen, H. K. Costs and services of local government in selected Illinois counties. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1936, 53p. (Bulletin no. 52.)
 Dickinson, Frank G. and Eakin, Franzy. Balance sheet of the nation's economy. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1936, 35p. (Bulletin no. 54.)
 Huegy, Harvey W. and Winakor, Arthur H. Financial policies and practices of automobile finance companies. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1938. 56p. (Bulletin no. 56.)
 Morey, Lloyd. Municipal budgets for capital improvement; address delivered before the sixth annual community planning conference, held at Decatur, Illinois, May 9, 1939. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Aug. 18, 1939. 15p. (Bulletin no. 102.)
 Opinion and comment. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1938. 331p.
 - 31p.

 - 31p.
 Winakor, Arthur H. Banking turnover and facilities in Illinois. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1937. 60p. (Bulletin no. 55.)
 Winakor, Arthur H. Capacity to pay current debts. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1936. 54p. (Bulletin, no. 11.)
 Winakor, Arthur H. State-chartered savings, building, and loan associations in Illinois, 1920 to 1936. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, August 1939. 45p. (Bulletin no. 98.)

ILLINOIS BANKERS ASSOCIATION. COMMITTEE ON BANK MANAGEMENT Simplified account analysis form. Bankers maga-sine, Sept. 1939, p. 254-5.

ILLINOIS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS

Countrained and the second sec

| Dame, | 1991-1990. | JIP. |
|-------|------------|------|
| Same, | 1938-1939. | 63p. |
| | 1939-1940. | 69p. |

Committee on governmental accounting Municipal audits. Bulletin of the Illinois society of certified public accountants, March 1939, p. 5-6.

ILLINOIS STUDIES IN THE SOCIAL SCIENCES AMOS, J. ELLWOOD. Economics of corporate saving. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, 1937. 136p. (Illinois studies in the social sci-ences, v. 22, no. 2.)

- ILSLEY, JAMES L. Public service in a democracy. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 343-51.
- IMAGINARY frontiers—Secret society of capital— Vile imposition on the credulous—Deception for political effect. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, May 1936, p. 328-31.

IMPERCEPTIBLE insurrection. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 69.

IMPERIAL oil's welfare plan. (reprinted from In-dustrial Canada) Cost and management, Feb. 1936, p. 45-50.

IMPEY, F. L.

- Budgetary control. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, March 1939, p. 331-5.
- IMPORT TRADE See Export and import trade.
- **IMPORTANCE** of internal auditing of bank opera-tions. Willett, Frederick S.
- IMPORTANT document revised. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 84-5.
- IMPORTANT merger of accountancy bodies. (Edi-torial) Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 462-4.
- IMPORTANT series of articles. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 9-10.
- IMPORTANT step-Brief history of progress-For-tuitous aids to development-What was twenty-five years ago-Spread of this influence-Esprit de corps-American institute of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 393-8.
- IMPROVEMENT in financial accounts. May, George 0.
- IMPROVING the operation of tabulating machine in-stallations. Gardner, Graham A.
- IMPULSO; organo oficial de las Asociaciones de Alumnos de las Escuelas profesionales de comercio de Cuba, del Colegio de contadores pro-fesion ales de la Habana, de los Claustros de profesores y de la Federación de estudiantes de las escuelas profesionales de comercio de Cuba. Cuba y Lamparilla, Habana, Cuba.

IMRIE, J. D.

- Planning in local government. (a summary) Ac-countancy, Aug. 1939, p. 426-8.
- IN parliament; finance bill, new clause.—(charge of national defence contribution) Accountant, tax supplement, July 10, 1937, p. 296-300.
- IN parliament; national defence contribution. Ac-countant, tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 265-9.

INCENTIVE taxation. ENTIVE taxation. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1939, p. 2-3.

INCENTIVES See Wages, fees, etc.-Incentives.

INCIDENCE of taxes-visible and invisible. Reming-ton, Paul E.

INCINERATION PLANTS Costs

BERGDOLL, John. Electric power derived from refuse incineration. Water works and sewerage, Sept. 1938, p. 863-9.

INCOME

- NCOME ALKMAN, A. H. Capital expenditure for taxa-tion purposes. Accountants' magazine, March 1937, p. 147-61; April 1937, p. 203-16. AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Reporting current in-come and expenditures. Washington, D. C., American council on education, August 1937. 21p. (Series 3. Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 10.) 10 1
- 10.) AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Double taxation. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1939, p. 335-6. ATKINSON, STERLING K. Taxable income to lessor from lessee improvements. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 20-4, 38.

INCOME-(Continued)

- ATLAS, MARTIN. Average income and its use in taxation. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 124-31.
- 124-31. BAUER, JOHN. Concepts of capital and income in the regulation of public utilities. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 22-9. CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting for in-come. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936, p. 195-205.) COLM, GERHARD. Public revenue and public ex-romatives in reviewed in preserve (In Network) hereasy
- penditure in national income (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 175-227, discussion, p.
- weath. 1937. V. 1. p. 1902. 228.48. CONCEPTION of taxable income. Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 610-2. COOK, FRANKLIN H. Sale as a test of income realization. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p.
- 535-67, OOPER, WALTER A. Controlling the differ-ences between corporate accounting and tax ac-counting. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1938. p. 147-55.) (In National tax associa-tion. Round table discussions, Monday, October 24 1029 COOPER, 24, 1938.)
- CorpetAND, M. A. Concepts of national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 3-34, discus-sion, p. 35-63.)
 CRANDELL, WILLIAM T. Financial statements of national wealth and national income. Ac-counting review, Sept. 1936, p. 271-90.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Income or surplus. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 403-4.
 DEINZER, HARVEY T. Are leasehold improve-ments taxable income? Accounting review, June 1939, p. 147-50.
 DOHR, JAMES L. Income divorced from reality. 25 typewritten pages. Journal of accountancy,

- DOHR, JAMES L. Income divorced from reality.
 25 typewritten pages. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 361-71.
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Nature and measurement of income. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 45-7; July 16, 1938, p. 133-6; Aug. 6, 1938, p. 121-4; July 30, 1938, p. 133-6; Aug. 6, 1938, p. 253-6; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 221-4; Aug. 20, 1938, p. 253-6; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 221-4; Sept. 3, 1938, p. 325-7; Sept. 10, 1938, p. 361-4; Sept. 17, 1938, p. 397-401; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 429-32.
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Nature and measurement of income; a note on the correspondence. Accountant, April 15, 1939, p. 499-501.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. On the treatment of national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 113-42.)

- search. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1.
 p. 113-42.)
 FELDMANN, M. A. Separate accounting basis v. apportionment. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 324-8.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Accounting records as related to income tax returns; opening presentation at round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 6 mimeographed pages. (In National tax association, at association. Round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938.)
 FETTER, FRANK A. Reformulation of the concepts of capital and income in economics and accounting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 3-12.

- 3-12.
 FISHER, IRVING. Income in theory and income taxation in practice. (reprinted from Econometrica, v. 5, no. 1, January 1937.)
 FISHER, IRVING. Practical schedule for an income tax; how income may best be defined for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 379-90, 438. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 479-91.
- GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Management of income. (In his Financial organization and man-agement of business. 1936. p. 521-59.)
- GILMAN, STEPHEN. Accounting concepts of profit. c1939. p. 98-131, 289-309, 568-83.

- GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. valuation and determination of income. (in their Accounting in law practice. 1938, p. 195-
- G. Vantaula and view fractice. 1938. p. 195-332.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Alloca-tion of dividend to income. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 148-51.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Sum-mary of rules re allocation of extraordinary dividends. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 232-5.
 GREENE, HUWARD F. "Effective income"— what does it mean? National accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 16-21.
 GROVES, HENRY M. AND KOPPERMAN, CECIL H. Assignment of earned income. Taxes —the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 719-25, 736.
 HAYS, SAMUEL, British national income and its distribution. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 471-3.
 HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Effect of

- p. 471-3. HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Effect of direct charges to surplus on the measurement of income. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Business and modern society, 1938, p. 114-51.) Accounting review, March 1938, p. 31-55. HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Concepts of capital and income. Accounting review, March 1937 p. 1-2 HOSMER,

- and income. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 1-2.
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Disposition of proprietary income. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938, p. 249-61.)
 KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Corporate distributions as income to stockholders. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 366-79.
 KUZNETS, SIMON. Changing inventory valuations and their effect on business savings and on national income produced. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 145-56, discussion, p. 157-72.)
 SIMON. Income originating in nine basic industries, 1919-1934. National bureau of economic research bulletin no. 59, May 4, 1936, p. 1-24.

- p. 1.24. KUZNETS, SIMON. National income, 1919-1935. National bureau of economic research bulletin no. 66, Sept. 27, 1937, p. 1-15. KUZNETS, SIMON. Some problems in measur-ing per capita labor income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in in-come and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 305-24.) KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN, MIL-TON Incomes from independent professional

- come and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 305:24.)
 KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN, MILTON. Incomes from independent professional practice, 1929:1936. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 72-3, Feb. 5, 1939.
 LAIRD, FREDERICK C. When is income realized? (reprinted from the December issue of the John Marshall law quarterly.)
 LITTLETON, A. C. Concepts of income underlying accounting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 13-22.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Realization of income through corporate distributions. Columbia law review, April 1936, p. 519-54.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Taxable income. New York, Ronald press co. c1936. 437p.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Allocation of income between states. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 19-20.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Report of the committee of the National tax association on allocation of income; presented at the thirty-first national tax association, 1938. 17p.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Report of the committee of the National tax association on allocation of income; presented at the thirty-first national tax association, 1938. 17p.
- income; presented at the thirty-second national tax conference held at San Francisco, Cali-fornia, October 16-19, 1939. Columbia, S. C., National tax association, Office of the sceretary, 1939. 32p.
- MAY, GEORGE O. Recent opinions on dealings in treasury stock. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 17-22.
- MAY, GEORGE O. Taxable income and account-ing bases for determining it. (In his Twenty-

INCOME—(Continued)

- NCOME—(Continued)
 five years of accounting responsibility, c1936.
 v. 2, p. 267-89.)
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Dealings in treasury stock; we call it capital—the courts call it income. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 466-79. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 331-42.
 NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH. Studies in income and wealth: by the Conference on research in national income and wealth. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1937, 348p.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Income and its determination. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 395-414.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Income-sheet accounts. (In his Essentials of accounting, 1937, part 1, p. 42-57; part 2, chapter 28.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Recording revenue on other bases than sales. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 22-4.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, VACOUNT RESULT RESULTED.

- other bases than sales. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 22-4. PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Capital distinguished from income. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 1, p. 102-43.) PINKERTON, PAUL W. Concepts of the accuual of income. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on accounting principles and pro-cedure. 1938, p. 69-71.) RATCHFORD, B. U. Fisher's concept of taxable income. Tax magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 646-7, 692-3.

- 692.3. ROBINSON, LELAND REX. Corporate earnings on share and borrowed capital in ratios of gross income (1918-1935.) Journal of the American statistical association, Sept. 1936, p. 481-90. ROWLAND, STANLEY W. Nature and measure-ment of income. Accountant. Oct. 8, 1938, p. 483.5: Oct. 15. 1938, p. 519-22. SALIERS, EARL A. What is income?—Income concept embodied in legislation. (In his Depre-ciation, principles and applications. c1939. p. 237-58.) SUPERVINC. NORMAN L Price partice as a
- SILBERLING, NORMAN J. Price parities as a gauge of income. Controller, Aug. 1939, p.

- gauge of income. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 280-3.
 SIMONS, HENRY C. Personal income taxation: the definition of income as a problem of fiscal policy. Chicago, III., University of Chicago press, c1938. 238p.
 SMAILS, R. G. H. Economic and accounting concepts. (from Canadian journal of economic and political science) Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 626-9.
 SMITH, J. DUKE. Is the value of improvements made by a lessee taxable income to the lessor? Tax magazine. Oct. 1938, p. 577-80, 616-7.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Tax accounting versus business practice: round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association. Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association. Round table discussion. Mondai, Cut. 24, 1938, of National tax association. Round table discussion, Oct. 24, 1938.)
 STINE, O. C. Income parity for agriculture. (In National tax association. Studies in income and wealth. 1937, v. 1. p. 327-37, discussion, p. 338-48.)
 TAX accounting. (Editional and provide taxable).
- cusion, p. 338-48.) TAX accounting and business accounting.
- (Edi-

- TAX accounting and business accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 1-2.
 TAX accounting vs. commercial practice. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Julv 1938, p. 5.
 TEBEAU, ROBERT L. Book earnings vs. "adjusted net income"; a further report on the undistributed profits tax survey. Dun's review, March 1938, p. 15-6, 45.
 THOMAS, ROSCOE L. Federal income taxation. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 15-20.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages. graphed pages.
- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Sta-tistics of income for 1934, part 1; compiled

from individual income to returns and gift tax returns. Washington for the second seco from individual income tax returns, estate tax returns and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C.,

- 1937. 251p.

- INCOME ACCOUNT GRAHAM. BENIAMIN AND MEREDITH, SPENCER B. Interpretation of financial state-ments. New York, Harper & brothers, 1937. MEREDITH, 122n
 - PATÓN. ATON. W. A. Income-sheet accounts. (Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 78-116.) (In his

INCOME divorced from reality. Dohr, James L.

INCOME from endowments of educational institution. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 382-3.

INCOME TAX See Taxation—Income, under various states and countries; Taxes.

- INCOME -tax algebra. (Correspondence) Wade, Harry H.
- INCOME tax and insured pension schemes. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 4, 1937, p. 529-30.
- INCOME tax index-digest. Hartman, Dennis.
- OME tax management for individuals federal and California revenue acts. M Norman Loyall and Feigenbaum, B. J. **INCOME** tax under McLaren,
- INCOME tax manual for New York state. Connelly, William F.
- INCOME TAX RETURNS See Tax returns.
- INCOME tax simplifier and account record book, including income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, wift and social security taxes. Shevit, estate, oi Frank H.
- INCOME taxation and accountancy. Stempf, Victor H.
- INCOME taxes in corporation reports. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 227-8.
- INCOME taxes in New Zealand. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 475-6.
- **INCOME** taxes in the Australian commonwealth. Accounting, tax supplement, July 23, 1938, p. 343.4: Tulv 30, 1938, p. 355.6; Aug. 6, 1938, p. 371.2; Aug. 13, 1938, p. 380.1: Aug. 20, 1938, p. 392.5; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 403.5; Sept. 3, 1938, p. 411.2; Sept. 10, 1938, p. 420; Feb. 25, 1939, 704. p. 70-1.
- INCOMES of doctors, dentists, lawyers, and accoun-tants, 1936. Monthly labor review, Nov. 1938, p. 1113-5.

INCOMPLETE RECORDS See Records

- INCONSISTENCIES in accounting requirements of state and federal regulatory bodies. Horne, state and Henry A.
- INCONSISTENCY in governmental accounting re-quirements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 260.
- **INCORPORATED** accountants' benevolent fund.
- INCORPORATED accountants' course at Cambridge. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 389-91.
- INCORPORATED accountants' course at Oxford ts' journal, university. Incorporated accountants Aug. 1938, p. 391-3.
- INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' DISTRICT SO-CIETY OF SHEFFIELD Fiftieth anniversary celebration. Incorporated

ftieth anniversary celebration. Inco accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 55-9. celebration. Incorporated

INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RESEARCH COMMITTEE

- Design of accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 240-2. Design of accounts; accounts of executors and trustees for presentation to the beneficiaries. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 348-50.
- Design of accounts; boot and shoe manufacturer. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 15-7.

- p. 15-7. Design of accounts; brewery accounts. Accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 472-6. Design of accounts; brickworks. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 61-2. Design of accounts; building and estate develop-ment accounts. Incorporated accountants' jour-nal, Dec. 1937, p. 89-92. Design of accounts; cinemas and dance halls. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 134-5.

Incorporated accountants journal, jan. 1938, p. 134-5.
 Design of accounts; cotton merchants. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 170-1.
 Design of accounts; engineers' accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 202-3.

202-3.
Design of accounts; farm accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 234-5.
Design of accounts; garage accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 272-3.
Design of accounts; hotel accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 314-6.
Design of accounts; landry accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 349-50.
Design of accounts; medical practitioners' accounts. Incorporated accounts, incorporated accounts. Incorporated accounts. Incorporated accounts. Incorporated accounts.
Design of accounts; motion of accounts. Incorporated accounts. Incorporated accounts. Incorporated accounts.

p. 390. Design of accounts; motor transport. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 428-9. Design of accounts; printers. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 11. Design of accounts; rubber companies. Accoun-tancy, Nov. 1938, p. 68-9. Design of accounts; shipping. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 149-50. Design of accounts; textile manufacturers. Ac-countancy, May 1939, p. 300-1.

INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' SOCIETY OF MANCHESTER AND DISTRICT Jubilee celebration. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 229-35.

- INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' STUDENTS SO-CIETY OF LONDON
 - Practice income tax appeal. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 129-35.

INCREASING hazards in the practice of accountancy. Blume, A. L.

INDEPENDENCE OF ACCOUNTANTS See Accountants-Independence of.

- "INDEPENDENCE" of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 409-10.
- "INDEPENDENCE" of accountants under securities act. Bulletin of the American institute of ac-countants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 19-21.

INDEPENDENT AUDITS See Auditing-Independent audits.

- INDEPENDENT audits of brokers' accounts. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 5-6.
- INDEPENDENT audits of colleges and universities. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- INDEPENDENT audits or political audits? McGladrey, Ira B.
- INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA

Depletion allowance a fundamental right, say courts and congress. (reprinted from Independence monthly, August, September, October, 1937.) 32p.

INDEX NUMBERS

- See also Statistics. GRIFFITH, DONALD K. Weaknesses of index-number accounting. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 123-32.
- **INDEX** to business indices. Davenport, Donald H. and Scott, Frances V.

INDEXES

See Bibliographies, indexes, catalogues, etc.

- INDIAN companies act (amendment) bill, 1936. Accountant, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 260-4. Indian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 72-7, 78-80.
- INDIAN companies amendment act, 1936. Incor-porated accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 168-9, 174-6. Indian accountant, March 1937, p. 150-2; April 1937, p. 166-74; May 1937, p. 194-207; June 1937, p. 219-29.

INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Year book, 1936-1937. Indianapolis, Ind., Indiana association of certified public accountants, 1936. 48p.

| Same, | 1937-1938. | 47p. |
|-------|------------|------|
| Same, | 1938-1939. | 47p. |
| Same, | 1939-1940. | 48p. |

INDIRECT COSTS

See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead.

INDIRECT costs directly applied. Duane, W. R. Galt.

INDORSEMENT

SIMONS, D. M. Indorsements. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. Accountant 21-2.

INDUSTRIAL ADMINISTRATION

See Factories-Management; Management.

- INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS CODES
 LASHINS, IVAN R. Voluntary codes. Credit
 executive, March 1937, p. 75-7.

 SMITH, BLACKWELL. Industry codes of fair
 competition in 1939; an address delivered before
 Trade association executives in New York City,
 March 8, 1939. New York, Trade association
 executives, 1939. 9p.

INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERING

See Factories-Management.

270

National association of INDUSTRIAL financing. manufacturers.

INDUSTRIAL MANAGEMENT See Factories-Management; Engineering.

- INDUSTRIAL pension plans, 1931 to 1934. Monthly labor review, Jan. 1937, p. 60-3.
- INDUSTRIAL procurement. Cost and management, July 1936, p. 220-4.

INDUSTRIAL RECOVERY

- NDUSTRIAL RECOVERY See also Industrial and business codes. HEIMANN, HENRY H. "Will we ever learn?" Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 282-91. HINTON, W. J. Recovery in the U.S.A. Ac-countant, June 6, 1936, p. 856-61. LASHINS, IVAN R. New "NRA"? Credit ex-ecutive, Feb. 1937, p. 37-40. MONTAGUE, GILBERT H. New deal costs and the high cost of living. (reprinted from the Annals of the American academy of political and social science, Philadelphia, January, 1936.) 8p.

- and social science, Finuace, proc., January, Sp. 8p. PATCH, BUEL W. Credit policy and control of recovery. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 1-20.) SAPP, WARREN H. Cost accountaris' place in industrial recovery program. Illinois manufac-turers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936. p. 1-2. 3. TAGGART, HERBERT F. Minimum prices under the NRA. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 477p. (Michigan business studies, v. 7, no. 3.)

Australia

HACKETT, W. T. G. Australian recovery plan; a Canadian viewpoint. *Canadian chartered* accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 18-38.

Canada

anada DAY, J. P. Economic review of 1936. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 143-51. WOODS, JAMES. Insurance of employment. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 116-23.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
 BALDERSTON, C. CANBY. Executive guidance of industrial relations; an analysis of the experience of twenty-five companies. Phila. Pa., University of Pennsvlvania press, 1935. 435p.
 FELLER, ALEXANDER AND HURWITZ, IACOB E. How to deal with organized labor. New York. Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 664p.
 FRASER, CLARENCE. Industrial relations trends in the U. S. Cost and management, Jan. 1936, p. 13-8.
 MORTON ERANK M. Industrial relations

- ORTON, FRANK M. Industrial relations. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 105-12, 114-5. MORTON.
- ROBERTS, R. LLOYD. Methods of industrial conciliation and arbitration in Great Britain. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 225-35.

INDUSTRIAL WASTE

See Scrap, waste, etc.; Waste in industry.

Anstralia

PREST, W. Size of the business unit. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 38-50.

Canada WOODS, JAMES. Insurance of employment. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 116-23.

Government regulation and control FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost

and control of prices by public authorities. (In and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Ber-lin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 159-0. Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 390-8. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-ackiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 1-18; 205-20.)

Great Britain HOWITT, HAROLD. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 561-72. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 99-132.)

Netherlands LINDNER, J. A. M. F. and KOPPENBERG, W. E. Methods of computing costs and control of prices by public authorities. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 133-68.)

- 68.)
 Great Britain
 BUYERS, JOHN. Rallentando. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 19-21.
 BUYERS, JOHN. Revolution in Britain. Corporate accountant, May 1937, p. 81-4.
 CARTER, ROGER N. Radio broadcast, Wednessday evening, October 20, 1937, 6:15 to 6:30
 P.M., station WABC, Columbia broadcasting system, at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages.
 DUTHLE, NORMAN W. Industrial development in the distressed areas. Accountants' magazine, March 1938, p. 171-84.
 GARDEN, D. J. Industrial planning. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 15-8; July 24, 1937, p. 125-7; July 31, 1937, p. 154; July 24, 1937, p. 125-7; July 31, 1937, p. 164-7.
 GARDEN, D. J. Some aspects of rationalisation. Incorborated accountants' journal. March 1936, p. 209-12, discussion, p. 212-5. Accountant, April 25, 1936, p. 645-9, discussion, Jan. 30, 1937, p. 159-63.
 VICKERS, GEOFFREY. Legal obstacles to industrial integration. Accountant, Nov. 20, 1937, p. 695-9.

 - p. 695-9.

Irish Free State BOYD, D. TILFOURD. Accountancy in relation to Irish industry and commerce. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 366-72, dis-cussion, p. 372-3. Accountant, July 17, 1937, p. 89-94, discussion, p. 94-5.

Northern Ireland BOYD, D. TILFOURD. Accountancy in rela-tion to Irish industry and commerce. Incor-porated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 366-72. discussion, p. 372-3. Accountant, July 17, 1937, p. 89-94, discussion, p. 94-5.

Scotland HAY, D. SINCLAIR. Scottish industrial estate. Accountants' magazine, July 1937, p. 403-7.

- United States
 See also Industrial recovery.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. Free enterprise needs free credit. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 287-92.)
 BROWN, A. T. Cost control as a basic problem of industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book. 1938, p. 7-19.)
 ECONOMIC inquiry. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 213-4.

INDUSTRY-United States-(Continued)

- FOULKE, ROY A. Behind the scenes of business. rev. ed. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., rev. ed. Ne 1936. 200p. _____Same.
- 1936. 200p.
 Same, second rev. ed. 1937. 221p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Changeable character and relentless ratios; for 36 manufacturing industries and interquartile range figures; for 1938. Dun's review, Dec. 1939, p. 10-6.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Fourteen guides to financial stability; supplement to 1936 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1936. 43p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Signs of the times; a supplement to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1938. 43p.

- ment to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1938. 43p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. They said it with inventories: supplement number two to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1939. 31p.
 FOX. LEONARD P. Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the relocation of industry; discussion. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 568-73.)
 GROVES, HAROLD M. Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the relocation of industry. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 557-68.
 HUNTER, MERLIN H. Effects of taxation on the localization of industry. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937, p. 179-86.)
 KENNEDY, E. D. Dividends to pay. New York, Reynal and Hitchcock, c1939. 288p.
 MITCHELI., WESLEY C. AND BURNS. ARTHUR F. Production during the American business cycle of 1927-1933. National bureau of economic research bulletin 61, Nov. 9, 1936, p. 1-20.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TUPERS Constructing industrial proceedings.
- aconume research of mattern of, nor, procepting
 1-20.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TURERS. Constructive industrial practices: report of the N.A.M. committee on industrial practices. New York, National association of manufacturers, May 1939. 37p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TURERS. Industrial financing of the Na-tional association of manufacturers; submitted at the N.A.M. congress on American industry, New York, December 1939. New York, National association of manufacturers, 1939. 31p.
 NOBLE, EDWARD J. Accountancy and the nation's business. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939 p. 279-86.)
- INDUSTRY codes of fair competition in 1939. Smith, Blackwell.
- INFLATED industrial share capital; a plea for the use of no par value shares. Leake, P. D.

INFLATION

- NFLATION See also Credit; Money; Prices. ACCOUNTING and inflation. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 367-9. BIGGAR, F. C. Some aspects of currencv infla-tion. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1936, p. 40-60. GIFFORD, T. J. CARLYLE. Inflation of credit. Accountants' magasine, July 1937, p. 390-9. INFLATION not expected. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 192-4. JONES, J. H. Inflation. Accountant, Nov. 25, 1939, p. 563-5.

- 1939, p. 563-5. KEMMERER, EDWIN WALTER. Germany's experience with inflation, 1914-1923. (In his Monev. c1935, p. 271-318.) NADLER. MARCUS. Problem of inflation as it affects business today. New York certified public accountant. subplement, Jan. 1938, p. 5-15. THREAT of inflation of the currency. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 161-2.
- INFLATION not expected. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 192-4.

- INFLUENCE of accounting on the development of an economy. May, George O.
- "INFLUENCE of accounting on the development of an economy". (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1936, p. 170.
- INFLUENCE of federal taxation upon accountancy. McLaren, Norman Loyall.
- INFLUENCE of internal control upon audit procedure. Stempf, Victor H.
- INFLUENCE of the new Robinson-Patman act on buying and selling. Institute of distribution, inc.

- INFORMATION RETURNS INFORMATION returns by accountants. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p.
 - torial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 241-3.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. (T.D. 4773) income tax—revenue act of 1937; regulations under title 2, relating to returns of information with respect to foreign corporations. Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, Nov. 6, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages and form 959.
- **INFORMATION** returns by accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 241-3.

INFRINGEMENTS

See Patents, copyrights, etc.

- INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Accounting. New York, American institute of banking, section American bankers association, banking, sec 1037, 499p.
 - c1937. 499p. Accounting problems. New York, American insti-tute of banking, section American bankers association, c1937. 109p.

INGLIS, ALEXANDER Audit of accounts of local authorities in Queens-land. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1937, p. 249-68.

INGRAM, H. DUDLEY

- Loose-leaf minute books as admissible evidence. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1936, p. 423-5.
- INHERITANCE tax calculations. Wolfe, S. Herbert, comp.

INHERITANCE TAXES See Taxation—Inheritance, under various states and countries.

INSOLVENCIES

See Bankruptcy; Business failures.

INSTALLMENT credits and collections and the in-stallment market. Griffin, Bryant W. and Greene, н. с.

INSTALMENTS

- NSTALMENTS See also Finance companies.
 BARRY, DAVID C. Installment financing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1936, p. 243-52.
 BOWERS, EDISON L. Some ecohomic aspects of installment selling. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 112-5.)
 BROWN, L. N. Manual for a ten-payment plan. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, June 1938, p. 132-5. (In National retail dry goods association. Credit management year book. 1937.1938. p. 141-50.)
 CAPLAN, PERCY I. Blind spots in consumer credit. Credit executive, Sept. 1939, p. 270-5.
 FERTIG, ARTHUR. How will the expansion of installment selling affect the balance sheet? (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 116-20.)
 GRIFFIN, BRYANT W. and GREENE, H. C. Installment credits and collections and the in-

272

INSTALMENTS-(Continued)

stallment market. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc.,

- stainment market. New York, Heintee-Hait, inc., 1936. 326p.
 KRACKE, EDWARD A. Installment sales of merchandise by public utilities. New York certi-fed public accountant, July 1938, p. 23-9.
 MULES, W. RUSSELL AND LAWS, OWENS. Mathematical principles of installment financing. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936.
- 300p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Credit management division. Deferred NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Credit management division. Deferred payment selling. (In its Credit management year book. 1937-1938. p. 56-150.)
 SCHMALZ, CARL N. Perils of installment sell-ing. Credit world, June 1939, p. 12-3, 20.
 SCHMALZ, CARL N. Where is installment sell-ing headed? Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 85-95.
 SCRAP the percentage quotation of the carrying charge. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Sept. 1937, p. 22, 51.
 WEISS, JULIAN D. Installment selling; a criti-cal view. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 96-104.

- and practices. (In National retailing—policies and practices. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 120-6.)

- Accounting BROWN, L. N. Installment selling procedure for a medium size store. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 124-31, discussion, p. 131-2.)
 KEMPER, JOHN D. Installment accounting and straight line production. Credit world, Feb. 1939. p. 4-5.

 - 1939, p. 4-5. MARTENS, W. S. Installment selling by department stores; results of 1937 survey, with par-ticular emphasis on expenses. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 110-8, discussion, p. 118-9.)
 - 118-9.) MILLER, RICHARD M. Proposed: a scientific statistical control for installment accounts. Bul-letin of the National retail dry goods association, Feb. 1938, p. 64-5, 74, 76. Credit world, Feb. 1938, p. 18-20, 30. MYERS, M. H. Effect of installment selling on the balance sheet. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Aug. 1937, p. 24, 74

 - 74. NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Installment sales and long term contracts. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 415-33.) PADDON, E. E. Main cost factors in collecting installment accounts. Credit world, Jan. 1939, p. 45.

 - p. 4-5. PATON, W. A. Installment sales. (In his Essen-tials of accounting. 1938. p. 600-15.) TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HER-MANN C. Accounting for installment sales. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 259-83.) TERRENCE, IRWIN. Installment selling pro-cedure for a medium size department store. Balance sheet, Oct. 1938, p. 19, 20-2.

- ARKER, E. M. Hire purchase—collection of instalments. *Federal accountant*, April 1939, p. 157-9. BARKER,

- 157-9.
 BARKER, E. M. Some observations on hire purchase business. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 36-9.
 MOORE, ALLEN. Hire purchase system generally. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (inc.), July 1939. 21p.
 SAWER, GEOFFREY. Hire purchase and cash order transactions. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 221-4, 226.
 VOUINC N S Hire purchase agreements. Char-
- SA WEAR, order transactions. 1939.
 1939. p. 221-4, 226.
 YOUNG, N. S. Hire purchase agreements. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1937, p.

Cost accounting

LORENZ, OTTO C. Know your installment costs before you lower your rates. Bulletin of the

National retail dry goods association, May 1939, p. 72, 74-5, 80.

Costs

- LORENZ, OTTO C. Free ride for time sales? A study in installment costs. Credit and finan-cial management, Aug. 1939, p. 18-20, 39.

- Great Britain ALEXANDER, PETER. English hire purchase act. Federal accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 410-3. DUNN, R. Client, the accountant and hire pur-chase. Accountant, Nov. 12, 1938, p. 667-70. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939,
 - p. 455-61. FINANCE companies and advances to hire-pur-chase firms. Accountant, March 18, 1939, p. 350-2
 - HIRE-purchase act, 1938. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1938, p. 316-23. HIRE-purchase legislation. Accountant, Aug. 1938,

 - HIRE-purchase legislation. Accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 278-80.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Method of calculating the rate of interest in installment trading. Accountant, tant, Feb. 19, 1938, p. 248.
 NEW hire purchase bill. Accountant, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 835-6.
 OGLE, JOHN. Hire purchase finance. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 19-20.

 - 19-20.
 - p. 19-20. SOME new hire-purchase problems. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 90-1. WESTBY-NUNN, E. Hire purchase act problem. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p. 708.

Statistics

YOUNG. R. A. AND BERNSTEIN, BLANCHE. Statistical pattern of instalment debt. National bureau of economic research bulletin 76-7, Oct. 15, 1939, p. 1-22.

Taxation

See Taxation, United States-Instalment sales.

INSTITUT DER WIRTSCHAFTSPRÜFER

INSTITUTE committee testifies on federal tax pro-posals. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, May 15, 1936, p. 3-17.

INSTITUTE examination in law. Gordon, Spencer.

INSTITUTE FOR RESEARCH

Accountancy as a career. Chicago, Ill., Institute for research, c1936. 15p.

- INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS AND ACTUARIES IN GLASGOW
- Annual meeting. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 623-8.
- Report and accounts, for year 1935. Glasgow, In-stitute of accountants and actuaries in Glasgow, 1936. 23p.
 - -Same, 1936. 1937. 23p. -Same, 1937. 1938. 23p.
- INSTITUTE OF CARPET MANUFACTURERS OF AMERICA, INC. Manual selling and distribution costs. New York, Institute of carpet manufacturers of America, inc. (1937). 40p.
- INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN USTRALIA
 - Company prospectuses and certificates of estimated future profits. *Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia*, July 1938, p. 59-60; Jan. 1939, p. 494; Sept. 1939, supplement. 3p. List of members as at June 30, 1936. Sydney, Institute of chartered accountants in Australia, 1926
 - 1936. 304p.
 - Same, June 30, 1937. 307p. Same, June 30, 1938. 306p.

New South Wales branch Notes on the New South Wales companies act,

Australia

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN AUSTRALIA—New South Wales branch—(Cont.)

1936. Supplement to the Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936. 88p.

New South Wales debating club Reports of eight addresses on the New South Wales companies act, 1936. Sydney, Institute of chartered accountants in Australia, 1937. 169p.

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES Adjourned annual general meeting. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 439-40. Council meeting. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p.

188-90

- Control methods. Internation, Reg. 7, 1997 p. 188-90.
 Examination questions set at the final examination of the Institute of chartered accountants in May 1935. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 860-3.
 Examinations of the Institute of chartered accountants held in May 1937. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, July 1937, p. 80-4.
 Fifty-fifth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 655-77.
 Fifty-sixth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 655-77.
 Fifty-senth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 8, 1937, p. 632-37.
 Fifty-eighth annual general meeting. Accountant, May 6, 1939, p. 599-618.
 Library catalogue. London, Gee and co., Itd., 1937.
 Zv.

2v. -First supplement (1937). January, 1939. 36p.

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN IRELAND

- IRELAND
 Forty-eighth annual general meeting, May 7, 1936. Accountant, May 23, 1936, p. 785-8.
 Forty-ninth annual general meeting, May 6, 1937. Accountant, May 22, 1937, p. 729-34.
 Fiftieth annual general meeting, May 25, 1938. Accountant, June 11, 1938, p. 805-17.
 Fifty-first annual general meeting, May 11, 1939. Accountant, May 27, 1939. p. 709-14.
 Jubilee celebrations. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 357-8.
 Year book and list of members, 1935-1936. Dublin, Institute of chartered accountants in Ireland, 1936. 167p. 1936. 167p.
- -1936-1937. 171p. -1937-1938. 175p. -1938-1939. 177p.

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF ALBERTA

Information relating to membership, articles of clerkship, instruction courses and examinations, June 1, 1938. Calgary, Alberta, Institute of chartered accountants of Alberta, 1938. 11p.

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF MANITOBA

Examinations, May 1936. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Dec. 1936, p. 504-14.

INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF ONTARIO

Annual report for the year ending May 31, 1938. Toronto, Institute of chartered accountants of Ontario, 1938. 5p.

- INSTITUTE OF COST AND WORKS ACCOUNT-ANTS
 - Costing terminology. Cost accountant, March 1937, p. 318-26. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 178-85.

- Fifteenth national cost conference and annual banquet of the institute. Cost accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 70-1. June 1936, examination costing question papers. Cost accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 78-82. December 1936, examination costing question papers. Cost accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 286-9. June 1937, examination costing question papers. Cost accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 79-82. December 1937, examination costing question papers. Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 297-301. June 1938, examination costing question papers. Cost accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 82-5. December 1938, examination costing question papers. Cost accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 281-5. June 1939, examination costing question papers.

INSTITUTE OF DISTRIBUTION, INC.

Influence of the new Robinson-Patman act on buying and selling. New York, Institute of distribution, inc. (1936). 57p.

INSTITUTE OF MUNICIPAL TREASURERS AND ACCOUNTANTS

Annual general meeting. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 351-4.

INSTITUTE ON ACCOUNTING OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY. College of com-merce and administration, Department of ac-counting. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting held at the Ohio state university, May 20, and 21, 1938. Columbus, Ohio, Ohio state university, College of commerce and ad-ministration, 1938. 154p.

- INSTITUTE --- Society--- Institute. Certified public ac-countant, Dec. 1936, p. 743-52.
- INSTITUTE'S annual meeting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 164.
- INSTITUTE'S new home. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 137.

INSTITUTION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT-

ANTS Year book; list of members, memorandum and articles, syllabus of examinations, etc., 1936-37. London, Institution of certified public accoun-tants, ltd., 1937. 250p.

INSTITUTIONS

See also Hospitals; Schools, colleges, etc.

- Accounting DISCUSSION on non-profit institutions account-ing; round table meeting. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 110-6. FAGEANT, LEONARD WILLIAM. Gifts to in-stitutions. L:R.B. & M. journal, March 1938,

 - stitutions, L.R.B. & M. JOWIMS, March 2009, p. 14-23. FAGEANT, LEONARD WILLIAM. Gifts to in-stitutions; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 97-104. McGLADREY, IRA B. Institutional accounting. (from Church property administration, Sept. 1936) 10 typewritten pages.

Auditing BENSON.

ENSON, JAMES L. Audits of departmental and institutional accounts; prepared for presenta-tion before the annual convention of the Na-tional association of state auditors, comptrollers and treasurers, Biloxi, Miss., November 15, 16, 17 and 18, 1938. 9 typewritten pages.

INSTITUTIONS—Auditing—(Continued)

MARKS, JOSEPH A. Charitable foundations; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. Ner York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 104-5.

- Reports RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND SMITH, HAROLD J. Treasurers' reports. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1936. p. 276-300.)
- INSTITUTO DE CONTADORES DEL PERU Peru, Ley, estatutos y reglamento interno. Lima, Pe Instituto de contadores del Peru, 1936. 67p.
- INSTITUO DE CONTADORES PUBLICOS TITU-LADOS DE MEXICO Estatutos y reglamentos. Mexico, D. F., Editorial cultura, 1938. 35p.
- **INSTRUCTIONS** for operating the simplified book-keeping system. Laundryowners national asso-ciation of the United States and Canada.
- INSTRUCTIONS to employers subject to the New York state unemployment insurance law. New York (state). Labor, Department of.
- INSTRUCTIVE example. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1938, p. 209-11.

- INSURANCE ACKERMAN, SAUL B. Insurance; a practical guide for various forms of coverage, the policy contracts and the protection afforded purchasers. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 599p.

 - ACKERMAN, SAUL B. Questions and problems to accompany Inswrance, c1939. 145p.
 ACKERMAN, SAUL B. Questions and problems to accompany Inswrance, c1939. 145p.
 ALLEN, FRANCIS T. General principles of in-surance. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 241p. (American business fundamentals)
 AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Recent insurance management developments, by Thomas Watters, Ir., Ralph W. Morrell, Ernest W. Brown and George W. Elliott. New York, American management association, c1939. 27p.
 BARNES, PARRY. Insurance settlements and the income tax; before Insured members' con-ference, Associated industries of Missouri at Kansas City, Mo., Dec. 21, 1937. 6 typewritten pages.

 - Kansas City, Mo., Dec. 21, 120. Compages. BETT, F. W. Insurance and its elementary prin-ciples. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 523-8. DAVIS, HERBERT L. Insurance and banking; examinations and accounting. Boston, Mass., Christopher pub. house, c1937. 227p. HUEBNER, S. S. Property insurance; a text-book, completely revised and enlarged in col-laboration with G. L. Amrhein and C. A. Kline. New York, D. Appleton-Century co., inc., c1938. 682p.
 - New York, D. Appleton-Century co., inc., c1938. 682p.
 INSURANCE statement adopted; new form to be used as supplement to financial statement. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 42, 43, 45.
 JONES, T. OSMOND. General principles and practice of insurance. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 139-43.
 LANBE, A. P. Superior insurance coverages. Balance sheet, Nov. 1939, p. 7-12.
 LASHINS, IVAN R. Insurance; address at New York conference on hospital accounting. United hospital fund of New York, meeting of Decem-ber 13. 1938. 7 mimeographed pages.
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Interest, discount and insurance. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 117-9.)

 - p. 117-9.) ROTHSCHILD, ALFRED, Inclusion of insur-ance data in audits as a standard practice. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 47-8. SCHULTZ, H. CLIFF. Accountant's responsi-bility in connection with all insurance. (Corre-spondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulle-tin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 418-9.)

Accounting FEDDE, A. S. Interpretation of insurance com-pany statements for investors. New York, Fedde and co., c1937. 12p.

Canada

- Canada INSURANCE companies—gain and loss statement. (General notes) Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 424-6. TAWNEY, H. G. AND DESAULNIERS, MAR-CEL L. Elementary principles of insurance ac-counting. Toronto, Stone and Cox, ltd., c1936. 81n

Auditing DAVIS, HERBERT L. Application of principles. • (In his Insurance and banking. c1937. p. 148-82.)

Canada SMAILS, R. G. H. Insurance—fire and casualty; Insurance—life. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 303-7.)

Law

India INSURANCE act of 1938. (from Wealth and welfare, Madras.) Indian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 281-3.

New York NEW YORK (state). New York insurance law, 1936 edition, containing all amendments through August, 1936, with an appendix containing emergency measures and miscellaneous laws af-fecting insurance, edited by William Edward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin law pub. co., 1935. 508p. NEW YORK (state). New York insurance law, 1938 edition, containing all amendments to June 1, 1938; miscellaneous laws affecting insurance and annotations from decisions of the courts and rulings of the attorney-general to April 1938, edited by William Edward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin pub. co., c1938. various paging.

paging. 1939 supplement, containing 1939 amend-ments, miscellaneous laws affecting insurance and annotations to July 21, 1939. not paged.

Societies

See Actuarial society of America; American institute of actuaries.

Taxation

- baration
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Taxation of banks and insurance companies. (In his Public finance, 1936, p. 445-65.)
 HOGG, ROBERT L. Taxation of life insurance companies under state laws. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 73-5, 114-7; March 1939, p. 147-9, 170-2, 174.
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Special report of the state tax commission. Special report of the state tax commission. Decial report of the state tax commission. Philip L. Gamble. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1936. 1950.
- 195p. PAUL, 195p. PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Insurance companies. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 4. p. 285-329.) SHARP, N. M. How insurance taxes operate a summary of systems in various countries. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1939, p. 20.47

- Canadian chartered accountant, July 1939, p. 28-42. SNYDER, IVAN V. Taxation of insurance com-panies by the states. Tax magazine, June 1938, b. 335-8, 371-5. WILLIAMSON, K. M. Reciprocity and retaliation in insurance taxation. (In National tax associa-tion. Proceedings, 1938, p. 462-79.) YOUNG, GEORGE B. Reciprocity and retaliation in insurance taxation. (In National tax associa-tion. Proceedings, 1938, p. 480-4.)

INSURANCE,

NSURANCE, ACCOUNTANTS' EMPLOYERS' liability insurance. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938. p. 322-3.

INSURANCE, ACCOUNTANTS'-(Continued)

- NSURANCE, ACCOUNTANTS'-(Continued)
 HALL, C. H. Accountants liability insurance meeting a rapidly growing need. Eastern underwriter, Oct. 23, 1936, p. 37.
 INSURING an accountant's earning power. (from Irish accountant and secretary) Indian accountant, May 1939, p. 211.
 LIABILITY under accountant's indemnity policy. Accountant, Oct. 21, 1939, p. 440-2.
 WOOD, RICHARD T. Accountant's liability insurance. Spectator, Nov. 5, 1936, p. 14-5.

INSURANCE, AUTOMOBILE ALLEN, FRANCIS T. Automobile insurance. (his General principles of insurance. 1936. (In 180.98

180-98.) AUTOMOBILE insurance. (In Business execu-tive's handbook. 1937. p. 615-25.) HUEBNER, S. S. Automobile insurance. (In his Property insurance. c1938. p. 525-52.)

INSURANCE, BANK DEPOSITS See Deposit insurance.

INSURANCE, BOILER AND MACHINERY AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Use and occupancy—Boiler and machinery cov-erage, by J. Victor Herd, Reginald Fleming and James H. Coburn. New York, American management association, c1939. 19p. (Insurance series no. 34.)

INSURANCE. BURGLARY AND ROBBERY
 ALLEN, FRANCIS T. Burglary, theft, and robbery insurance. (In his General principles of insurance. 1936. p. 221-30.)
 BURGLARY, theft and robbery insurance. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 643-9.)

- INSURANCE, BUSINESS LIFE
 BUSINESS life insurance. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 625-30.)
 KELLY, C. L. Business life insurance on the books of account. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 315-6.
 KNAPP, D. G. Accounting for business life insurance. (from the Journal of accountancy) Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1936, p. 341-6.
 - STRADLEY, LEIGHTON P. Tax effects of busi-NERDIAEL, LEIGHTON P. Tax effects of business life insurance; paper read at joint meeting of the Philadelphia chapter of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, on February 17, 1938. 25 typewritten pages.
 WHITE, EDWIN H. Undistributed profits tax—effect on business life insurance. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 597-9, 631.

INSURANCE. CASUALTY ALLEN, FRANCIS T. Plate glass insurance. (In his General principles of insurance. 1936. p. 231-6.)

INSURANCE, CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS See Insurance, Profits.

- INSURANCE, CREDIT
 CREDIT insurance. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 650-5.)
 ETTINGER. RICHARD P. AND GOLIER. DAVID E. Credit insurance. (In their Credits and collections. 1938. p. 429-53.)
 HUEBNER, S. S. Credit insurance. (In his Property insurance, c1938. p. 590-614.)
 MILLIANS, PAUL M. Relationship of credit insurance to the credit executive; address at Credit congress of industry, Grand Rapids, Michigan, June 14, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.
 STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Legal safe-guards of creditors; credit insurance. (In his Mercantile credit. 1936. p. 212-37.)

INSURANCE, DEPOSIT

See Deposit insurance.

INSURANCE. EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY See Workmen's compensation.

- INSURANCE, FIRE
 ALLEN, FRANCIS T. General principles of insurance. 1936. p. 121-63.
 FIRE insurance. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 608-14.)
 HUEBNER, S. S. Fire insurance. (In his Property insurance. c1938. p. 3-399.)
 RICHMOND, CARL G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospective earnings insurance. New York, National association of cost accountants. Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 209-25.)
 ROSENBLUM, LEO. Accountant and the fire insurance proventing forum, April 1937,
 - insurance policy. Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 7-8, 20.

Accounting GORDON. WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Fire insurance. (In their Modern accounting systems, 1937. p. 55-96.)
 SEYMOUR, NEVILLE C. Accounting for fire underwriting from the investors' point of view. Eastern underwriter, Jan. 7, 1938, p. 19, 22.

Canada

CLEARIHUE, H. B. Accounts and audit of a fire insurance company. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 401-9. chartered

INSURANCE, GROUP GROUP insurance. (In Business executive's hand-book. 1937. p. 630-6.)

INSURANCE, HEALTH

See Insurance, Hospitalization.

INSURANCE, HOSPITALIZATION AMERICAN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION. Rates and benefits of non-profit hospital care insurance

and benefits of non-profit hospital care insurance plans. Chicago, III., American hospital associa-tion, Dec. 31, 1938. 23p. ROREM, C. RUFUS. Voluntary hospital care insurance; hospital service plans help balance public and private budgets. (reprinted from State government, May 1939)

Accounting

HOLT, JOHN H. Hospitalization insurance; home office accounting. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 1, 3-5.

- **INSURANCE. LIABILITY** ALLEN, FRANCIS T. Miscellaneous public liabil-ity and property damage liability insurance. (In his General principles of insurance. 1936, p. 214-20.) LIABILITY insurance.
 - (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 640-3.)

- INDICAT Instruct. (III Distructs Extension Statements Instructs (III Distructs Extension)
 INSURANCE, LIFE
 See also Insurance—Business life; Insurance policies.
 ALLEN, FRANCIS T. General principles of insurance: 1936. p. 33-120.
 GILBERT, MORT, and GILBERT, E. A. Life insurance: investing in disaster. New York, Modern age books, inc., c1938. 210p.
 HORNE, HAROLD M. AND MANSFIELD. D. BRUCE. Life insurance contract. New York, Life office management association, 1938. 270p.
 LIFE insurance, annuities, and estate planning. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 1115-57.)
 LUDLOW, C. V. Life insurance loans. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1939, p. 261-71.
 MacLEAN, IOSEPH B. AND MARSHALL, EDWARD W. Distribution of surplus. New York, Actuarial society of America, 1937. 154p. (Actuarial society of America, 1937. 154p. (Actuarial society and the substate shore life underwriters association of York county, Penna, Sept. 28, 1939. 6 typewritters Direct. Surges.
 UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of, United
 - association of York county, Penna., Sept. 28, 1939. 6 typewritten pages. UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of. United States life tables; 1909 to 1931, 1920 to 1929. 1909 to 1911, 1901 to 1910, 1900 to 1902. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936 57n.

INSURANCE, LIFE—(Continued)

- Accounting
- kcounting
 BLAYTON, JESSE BEE. Accounting in life insurance companies. National accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 11-16.
 FISCHER, A. KARL. Some features of life insurance company accounts and statements. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniver-sary number, part 2, p. 52-5.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Life insurance. (In their Modern accounting systems. 1937. p. 97-119.)
 STOWE, H. J. Application of punched-card. equip-ment in obtaining policy reserve and dividend calculations. (In American institute of actuaries. Record, 1936. v. 25. p. 223-9.)

Canada

- HEITMULLER, R. E. Investment cost studies; address before Life office management associa-tion, Montreal, Canada, Sept. 28, 1938. 16

- tion, Montreal, Canada, Sept. 28, 1938. 16 mimeographed pages. INSURANCE companies—gain and loss state-ments. (General notes) Canadian chartered ac-countant, May 1937, p. 424-6. LEONARD, WILLIAM G. Financial records and statements of life insurance companies. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 364-76. SMITH, V. R. Life insurance; need stressed for improved method of presenting life insurance statements to the public. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 442-50. SMITH, V. R. Reaction of life insurance com-panies to the declining rate of interest. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 166-79.

Great Britain

- ireat Britain HERBERT, DENNIS. Some aspects of life assur-ance in connection with business. Accountant, April 4, 1936, p. 533-7, discussion, p. 537-9. LAING, J. MURRAY. Importance of interest to life assurance. Accountant student and the Ac-countants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 202-6. LEVER, E. H. Some reflections on long-term investments with particular reference to the business of life assurance. Accountant, April 16, 1938, p. 525-33.
- Taxation
 - See Taxation, Great Britain—Life insurance; Taxation United States—Life insurance.

INSURANCE, LOSS OF PROFITS See Insurance, Profits.

- INSURANCE, MARINE ACCOUNTING for insurance claims. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939,
 - differences, p. 273-4.
 CONSTRUCTION cost analysis of vessels building in United States yards. Eastern underwriter, Feb. 17, 1939.
 HUEBNER, S. S. Marine insurance. (In his Property insurance. c1938, p. 403-522.)

Australia

- GUNN, J. A. L. Adjustment of particular average claims. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 420-2
- LENTON, L. M. Marine insurance practice as affecting the commercial accountant. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 31-5.

Canada

GARDNER, R. W. Marine insurance and average. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 11-6.

- INSURANCE, PROFITS BRODIE, CYRIL F. C. Profits insurance—its evolution and modern practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 318-26, dis-cussion, p. 326-9. COGHLAN, W. A. Review of loss of profits in-surance. Australian accountant, July 1939, p.
 - 415-21.
 - CECIL L. Preparation of consequential DAVIES loss claims. Accountant student and Accoun-

- tants' journal, June 1936, p. 51-5. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 61-5. GIDDY, H. D. Loss of profits insurance. Char-tered accountant in Australia, May 1937, p. 855-67; standard policy conditions, p. 867-8; June 1937, p. 934-5.
- INSURANCE, PROSPECTIVE EARNINGS See Insurance, Use and occupancy.

INSURANCE, RECIPROCAL BROWN, ERNEST W. Reciprocal insurance. (In American management association. Recent insur-ance management developments. c1939.)

INSURANCE, SELF HUEBNER, S. S. Self-insurance. (In his Property insurance. c1938. p. 91-5.)

INSURANCE, SURETY AND FIDELITY FIDELITY and surety bonds. (In Business execu-tive's handbook. 1937. p. 655-7.) HUEBNER, S. S. Corporate bonding. (In his Property insurance. c1938. p. 553-70.)

Accounting

MARSH, CHARLES V. R. Keeping accounts and providing accurate statistics for surety and fidelity lines. Weekly underwriter, Dec. 24, 1938, p. 1294-7.

INSURANCE, TITLE HUEBNER, S. S. Title insurance. (In his Prop-erty insurance. c1938. p. 571-89.)

- INSURANCE, UNEMPLOYMENT ACCOUNTANTS' publications. Civil service prep-aration in the field of unemployment insurance. New York, Accountants' publications, c1936. 46p.

 - 46p.
 AIKMAN, W. M. Unemployment insurance. Texas manufacturer, Jan. 1936, p. 6-9.
 ALDRICH, WINTHROP W. Appraisal of the federal social security act; an address before the Institute of public affairs, University of Virginia, Charlottesville, Va., July 10, 1936.
 New York, Chase national bank, 1936. 47p. Trust companies, July 1936, p. 61-71.
 AULD, GEORGE P. Federal social security act. Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 430-53.
 BOWERS, GLENN A. Fine points of administra-tion of New York unemployment insurance law. Controller, May 1936, p. 114-20.
 BRAUER, JOSEPH. Shall or shall not the Wis-consin reserve fund for unemployment be capi-talized. (1939) 5 typewritten pages.
 BURNS, EVELINE M. Financial aspects of the social security act. American economic review, March 1936, p. 12-22.
 CALIFORNIA unemployment insurance law a compromise act. Controller, March 1936, p. 59-66.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Federal social security act.

 - 59-66.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Federal social security act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 16-30.)
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Social security; seven bil-lion dollars a year. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 251-82.
 CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. Federal social security act and its administration. Chicago, III., LaSalle extension university, c1935. 18p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Fed-eral and state unemployment insurance (payroll

 - COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, 1ND.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal and state unemployment insurance (payroll taxes); explanation of the law, federal social security act, federal regulations, charts and forms. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 123p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New York and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes). ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., June 1936. 192p.
 CONTROLLERS describe procedures in compiling report forms SS-2a. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 296-8, 300-3, 305.
 CRAFTS, J. ANDREW. Employers' accounting under the social security act. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21.
 DONOVAN, W. LEONARD. Merit-rating study. New York, National association of cost accountant.

INSURANCE, UNEMPLOYMENT-(Continued)

- tants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 110-22.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B, and Towns, Charles H. Cost
- voegele, Aloin B. and Towns, Charles R. Cost accounting for federal agencies.
 ELLIS, GEORGE PRICE. Employe or inde-pendent contractor? Roads and streets, April 1937, p. 44-5.
 ELLIS, GEORGE PRICE. Interstate employment;
- ELLIS, GEURGE FRICE, Interstate employment; second of a series of articles on the idearal social security law as it affects contractors. *Roads and streets*, May 1937, p. 36-7. FIRST forms and instructions under New York unemployment insurance act. *Controller*, Jan. 1026

- FIRST forms and instructions under New York unemployment insurance act. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 13-5.
 FOLSOM, M. B. Practical man's views concerning workings of social security. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 258-63.
 FRANCIS, BION H. AND FERGUSON, DON-ALD G. What will social security mean to you? Cambridge, Mass., American institute for economic research, c1936, 649.
 GETZ, JOSEPH, Obligations of New York state employers under unemployment insurance laws of other states. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 20-6.
 GLASSER, HERMAN. Social security legislation; its effect on industry in general and the banking business in particular. Bankers magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 22-5.
 GLASSER, HERMAN. Social security plan in operation. Bankers magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 26-5.
 GRETZ, HARRY C. and BRUCE, ROBERT. Reorganization of the unemployment insurance procedure of New York state. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 24, section 1, p. 1523-51.)
 HALL, W. VINCENT. Pay-roll taxes and their accounting treatment. Profit, March 1936, p. 1, 2, 4.
- HIRSHFIELD, C. F. Social security; should the
- HIRSHFIELD, C. F. Social security, should me engineering profession formulate its philosophy? Mechanical engineering, March 1936, p. 145-8. HUGHES, JAMES F. Financing social security. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936,

- p. 23-32. JARCHOW, CHRISTIAN E. Employer's problem. Social security analyst, Jan. 1937, p. 9-10, 28. KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for payroll taxes; social security act; state laws. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., c1936. 264p. Same. ed. 2. c1937. 616p. KixMILLER, WILLIAM AND JANUS, MIL-TON H. Foundation guide for payroll taxes. ed. 3. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press inc., c1938. 224p.
- KULP, C. A. Unemployment insurance, a problem of administration. Society for the advancement of management journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 137-40.
- 137-40. LATIMER, MURRAY W. Social security laws. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 115-26. LEASK, SAMUEL, JR. Unemployment compensa-tion: some pertinent considerations. Journal of the American waterworks association, Nov. 1936, 1723-34.
- the American waterworks association, iter, 2023,
 LINTON, M. ALBERT. Federal old age security program and some of its consequences. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1936, p. 31-42.
 LINTON, M. ALBERT. Social security, unemployment compensation and old age pensions; address at Hotel Sherman, Chicago, October 11, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Illinois chamber of commerce, 1935. 8 mimeographed pages.
 MACKEY, WALTER J. Problems in unemployment compensation administration. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting

- ment compensation administration. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 150-4.) MEECH, STUART P. Controllers' views as to immediate steps on social security. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 5-8, discussion, p. 8-12. MOUNTEER, CARLYLE E. Michigan unemploy-ment commission. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan ac-counting conference. 1938. p. 28-37.)

- NEW YORK (state). Labor, Department of. In-
- NEW YORK (state). Labor, Department of. Instructions to employers subject to the New York state unemployment insurance law. New York City, State of New York, Department of labor, Division of placement and unemployment insurance, April 15, 1937. 64p.
 ODOM, WILLIAM E. How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York; National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section J., p. 100-10.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PRINCIPAL provisions of state unemployment compensation laws. Controller, June 1937, p. 170-1.
- 170-1.
- RACHLIN, M. L. Some effects of the social security taxes. Tax magazine, March 1936, p.
- RAUCH. H. HERMAN. Problems in the administration of unemployment compensation laws.
- (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 55-70, discussion, p. 70-6.) RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Unemployment insur-ance and old age benefits. *Timberman*, Dec. 1036

- and bit age benches, Timberman, Dec. 1936.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Unemployment insurance, its effect upon labor policies. (reprinted from the Timberman, Dec. 1937.)
 ROBERTS, FRANCIS V. AND KAMPH, H. N. Pathfinder course in social security accounting. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., 1938. Lessons and practice assignments—294p. Laboratory material—forms.
 SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Organization and some of the administrative problems of the social security board; address before the sevententh international cost conference of the National association of cost accountants, Netherland-Plaza hotel, Cincinnati, June 23, 1936.
 19p. (In National association of cost accountants, Netherland-Science Netherland-Plaza hotel, Cincinnati, June 23, 1936.
 19p. (In National association of cost accountants, Netherland-Science Netherland-Plaza hotel, Cincinnati, June 23, 1936. 48-55.
- p. 48-55.) SHERWOOD, J. F. Social security and payroll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1937. losse-leaf. SHERWOOD, J. F. AND PENDERY, JOHN A. Social security and pay-roll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939.

- Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 256p.
 SNELHAM, J. S. Code of procedure of a large industrial for unemployment insurance. Con-troller, July 1936, p. 153-7.
 TERMINATION report form adopted by Oregon unemployment commission. Controller, June 1936, p. 143-5.
 UNITED STATES. Summary of provisions of the federal social security act relating to un-employment compensation, federal grants to states, old-age benefits and federal employment taxes. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 3p.
 UNITED STATES. Summary of state unemploy-ment compensation laws, January 1, 1936. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936.

- Ington, D. C., Government printing omce, 1956.
 Ip.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Analysis of state unemployment compensation laws, November 15, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936.
 Same, January 1, 1937. 23p.
 Same, December 1, 1937.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Federal old-age benefits; some questions and answers concerning the old-age benefits provisions of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Dec. 1936.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Federal-tional service circular no. 3)
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Federal-toard, Nov. 1936.
 ISp. (Informational service circular no. 5)
- no. 5)
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. First annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1936, with supplementary data for the period July 1, 1936-December 15, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 131p.
 Second annual report, fiscal year ended

INSURANCE, UNEMPLOYMENT-(Continued)

- sation; some questions and answers concerning sation; some questions and answers concerning the unemployment compensation provisions of the social security act and state unemployment compensation laws. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Nov. 1936, 36p. (Informational service circular no. 2.)
 VANDER HORST, G. Social security. National accountant, April 1937, p. 21-31.
 WALKER, H. J. Social security unemployment compensation problems. (In Railway account-ing officers. Fifty-second annual report. 1937. p. 88-94.)
- ing on... n. 88-94.)
- p. 88-94.) WILLYS, A. Brief summary of social security regulations and records. Pathfinder service bul-letin, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8. ZASTROW, L. E. Stabilization under state un-employment compensation laws. Illinois manufac-turers' costs association monthly bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 1-2, 4-6.

Great Britain

- UNEMPLOYMENT in Great Britain and the United States. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, 336-42
- p. 330-42. UNEMPLOYMENT insurance fund. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 353-4.

- INSURANCE, USE AND OCCUPANCY AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Use and occupancy—Boiler and machinery cov-erage, by J. Victor Herd, Reginald Fleming and James H. Coburn. New York, American management association, c1939. 19p. (Insurance

 - management association, c1939. 19p. (Insurance series no. 34.)
 CALDWELL, EUGENE, How much "use and occupancy" insurance should we carry? American business, Dec. 1938, p. 31-2, 39.
 GLENDENING, FRANK S. U. and O.-how the C.P.A. looks upon use and occupancy insurance before and after the loss; presented before the Insurance federation of Pennsylvania, at the Bellevue-Stratford Hotel, Philadelphia, On May 27, 1938. Philadelphia, Pa., The author, c1938. 16p.
 - 16p. GLOIN,
 - 16p.
 GLOIN, JAMES A. Developments in use and occupancy insurance. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 99-105.)
 KOMAREK, E. J. Adjustment of a recent fire and use and occupancy loss. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 42-6, discussion, n. 46-8.) 46-8.)
 - p. 46-8.) RICHMOND, CARL G. ICHMOND, CARL G. Accountant's responsi-bility in fire and prospective earnings insurance. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 209-25.)

INSURANCE, WAR RISK

Great Britain DOVER, VICTOR. War risks insurance. Accoun-tancy, March 1939, p. 203-5.

INSURANCE, WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION See Workmen's compensation.

INSURANCE; a practical guide for various forms of coverage, the policy contracts and the protection afforded purchasers. Ackerman, Saul B.

INSURANCE ACCOUNTS ACKERMAN, SAUL B. Auditing procedure out-line of insurance coverages for an industrial concern. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 15-7, 40

- KELLY, C. L. Business life insurance on the books of account. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 315-6.

- books of account. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 315-6.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Freight and insurance. (In their Intermediate accounting, e1939, p. 434-60.)
 SNYDER, E. E. Suggested outlines for distribution of insurance costs. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 5, 8.
 WHITNEY, W. H. Accounting for investments in life insurance. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 381-91. p. 381-91.
- INSURANCE act of 1938. (from Wealth and wel-fare, Madras.) Indian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 281-3.

INSURANCE AGENCIES

Accounting NEUER, JOHN J. W. Accounting for an in-surance agency. Pathfinder service bulletin, May 1936, p. 1, 3, 7-8.

Costs NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF INSURANCE AGENTS. Comparative analysis of composite expense average obtained by questionnaires from member agencies of the National association of insurance agents. New York, National associ-ation of insurance agents (1938). 1 sheet.

Statistics NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF INSURANCE AGENTS. Comparative analysis of composite expense average obtained by questionnaires from member agencies of the National associ-ation of insurance agents. New York, National association of insurance agents (1938). 1 sheet.

INSURANCE and banking. Davis, Herbert L.

INSURANCE companies—gain and loss statements. (General notes) Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 424-6.

INSURANCE POLICIES

- NSURANCE POLICIES ACCOUNTING treatment of proceeds from life insurance. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 2247. HOLLAND, BENJAMIN L. Loans secured by the assignment of life insurance policies. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1937, 2020 239-54
- p. 239-54. KRUCHTEN, E. Q. Accounting for life insurance policies. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 161-70. Profit, Sept. 1939, p. 1, 4. Reprinted. LOANS on life insurance policies. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1939,
- questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 178.
 TREATMENT of premium on general liability policy. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 458-9.
 WOLF, GEORGE O. AND BLACK, ERCIL L. Bank loans on the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 102-5.
- **INSURANCE** settlements and the income tax. Barnes, Parry.
- **INSURANCE** statement adopted; new form to be used as supplement to financial statement. *Credit* and financial management, March 1939, p. 42, 43, 45.

INSURANCE TRUSTS

See Executors and trustees.

INSURING an accountant's earning power. (from Irish accountant and secretary) Indian accoun-tant, May 1939, p. 211.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS See Assets, Intangible

INTERDEPENDENT taxes. Commerce clearing house, inc.

INTEREST

- ARENTZ, E. V. Flat rate interest, with an ex-cerpt or two from the financier's (or money-lender's) catechism. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 110-30. BRETT, GEORGE M. Fundamental compound interest functions. Accounting forum, May 1939, cumplement 800
- Supplement. 8p. CHIEF accountant. Interest and salary payments. Accountants' journal (Eng.), April 1936, p.
- PRANK, JEROME N. Too much interest in interest; address before National association of securities commissioners, Kansas City, Mo., September 22, 1938. 11 mimeographed pages.
 GRANT, EUGENE L. Interest; the time element in economy—Interest tables. (In his Principles of engineering economy. c1938. p. 39-118; 406-18.)
 HATCHER, RAYMOND H. Ownership certificates for bond interest. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 85, 120.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Calculating the rate of interest payable on loans in certain currencies. Accountant, May 28, 1938, p. 731-2.
 HOW to calculate simple interest and how to compute compound interest. (In Business executive's

- Accountant, May 28, 1938, p. 731-2.
 HOW to calculate simple interest and how to compute compound interest. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 5-15; 34-38.)
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Interest and discount on short term notes—Interest on bonds. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938, p. 198-248.)
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Interest on plant investment. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937, p. 205-16.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Interest on investment. (In his Cost accounting, 1937, p. 415-27.)
 MACAULAY, FREDERICK R. Movements of interest rates, bond yields and stock prices in the United States since 1856. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1938, 240p. and 351p.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Interest and discounts. (In their Elementary accounting, c1938, p. 229-49.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL. R. MERRILL. Interest, discount and insurance. (In their Principles of accounting. research, 1937, p. 107-14.)

- (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 107-14.) SOPHIAN, THEO. Appropriation of principal and interest under money-lending transactions. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 613-5.
- As a cost

 - a cost HUDSON, H. Interest in relation to cost ac-counts. Cost accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 110.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Reasons for excluding in-terest from cost. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p.

 - accounting responsioned, 1355-63.) MORAN, DONALD L. Interest on capital. Cost accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 246-9. SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Interest as a cost of manufacturing. (In his Advanced cost ac-counting. 1939. p. 197-211.)

- During construction INTEREST during construction. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1939,

 - p. 374. LAZO, R. LOUIS. Interest during construction. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 263. MARTIN, CHESTER. Interest during construc-tion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Neural 1920, p. 174.6 March 1939, p. 174-6.
- INTEREST during construction. (Correspondence) Lazo, R. Louis.
- INTEREST during construction. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 374.
- INTEREST during construction. (Correspondence) Martin, Chester.

INTERIOR DECORATORS

See Decorators.

INTERMEDIATE accounting. Newlove, George Hillis and others,

INTERNAL AUDIT

See Auditing-Internal audit.

INTERNAL audit, Richardson, C. L.

- INTERNAL audit, a manual for department stores. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- INTERNAL audit control. Stempf, Victor H.
- INTERNAL audit of travelling expenses. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 19, no. 11, section 2, p. 667-70.)
- INTERNAL auditing. (Our open forum) Howell, H. E.
- INTERNAL auditing for a large oil company. Bod-man, G. T.
- INTERNAL auditing for trading and manufacturing concerns. Thomson, Henry M.
- INTERNAL auditing of banks. Driscoll, John J., Jr. INTERNAL CHECK

See Auditing-Internal audit; Checking.

- INTERNAL check. Brink, Victor Z.
- INTERNAL check and audit; panel discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 365-406.)
- INTERNAL CONTROL See Auditing—Internal audit.

INTERNAL revenue code. Prentice-Hall, inc.

- INTERNAL revenue code service. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTANTS' AND EXECU-TIVES' CORPORATION OF CANADA Special bulletin; general information regarding the world-wide activities of the International accountants' corporation operating as incorpo-rated or chartered organizations, and details re-garding membership. 305 Gerrard street, east, Toronto, Canada, International accountants' and executives' corporation of Canada, no date.
- INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTANTS' CONGRESS See International congress on accounting.

INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTANTS SOCIETY. INC.

Correspondence course in accounting. 6v. Chicago, Ill., International accountants society, inc., c1939.

INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTS

- See also Foreign exchange. KNOX, FRANK A. International accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 93-103; Sept. 1936, p. 195-208; Oct. 1936, p. 296-308; Nov. 1936, p. 384-402.
- INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ICE CREAM MANUFACTURERS Associated simplified system. Washington, D. C., International association of ice cream manu-

facturers, 1935.

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MILK DEAL-ERS

- Simplified accounting manual for small milk dealers. (Issue "B") Chicago, Ill., International association of milk dealers, c1934, 25p.
 Simplified cost accounting procedure for milk dealers. Chicago, Ill., International association of milk dealers, 1936. 19p.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES GOEBEILLE, WILLIAM H. International busi-ness machines. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on accounting principles and pro-cedure, 1938. p. 226-7.)

- INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE International double taxation; an outline of the problems involved, the measures recommended and the progress made for its elimination or limitation. Paris, International chamber of commerce, 1939. 40p.
- INTERNATIONAL CITY MANAGERS' ASSOCIA-TION

Municipal

- INTERNATIONAL congress. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 353.
- INTERNATIONAL congress of accounting. Accoun-tants' magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 555-9.
- INTERNATIONAL CONGRESS ON ACCOUNTING NTERNATIONAL CONGRESS ON ACCOUNTING FIFTH international congress on accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 390-2. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 459-60. Indian accountant, Oct. Nov. 1938, p. 9-14, 15-18.
 FIFTH international congress on accounting, Ber-lin, Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 347-8. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 22-4.
 FIFTH international congress on accounting— Berlin; arrangements for business meetings. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 357-8.
 FIFTH international congress on accounting, Ber-lin, September 1938; papers given in English. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, 279.
 FIFTH international congress on accounting, Ber-lin, September 1938; papers given in English. Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, 249. Accoun-tancy, supplement, Nov. 1938, 279.
 FIFTH international congress on accounting; wel-come to foreign delegates, Monday afternoon, 19th September. Accountant, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 492.
 MITERNATIONALER accountant, accountant

 - 492
 - V. INTERNATIONALER prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, des V. internationalen prüfungs- und treuhand-kongresses, Berlin, 1938. 4 bänden (A bis D) Berlin, Kommissions-verlag preussische druckerei- und verlags-aktiengesellschaft (1939).
 GOETZE, PETER. Fachausdrücke des rechnungswesens, des prüfungs- und treuhandwesens (technical terms of accounting and verification) Berlin, Dr. Peter Goetze (1938). various paging.
 INTERNATIONAL congress. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 353.
 INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 555-9.
 INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting. Berlin. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1938. INTERNATIONALER prüfungs v. und

 - 260-2. INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting. (Ber-lin, 19-24, September 1936,) Indian accountant, July 1937, p. 237-8; Aug. 1937, p. 261-3. INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting, Ber-lin, 1938, Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 125-6.
 - 1938, p. 125-6. PROGRAMME of fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938. Corporate accountant, July 1938, p. 88-9.
- INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting, Berlin. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1938, p. 260-2.
- INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting. (Berlin, 19-24, September 1936.) Indian accountant, July 1937, p. 237-8; Aug. 1937, p. 261-3.
- INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting, Berlin; matters affecting the accountancy profession. Indian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 43-53.
- INTERNATIONAL congress on accounting, Berlin, 1938. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 125-6.

INTERNATIONAL DEBT

See Debt, International.

- INTERNATIONAL DOUBLE TAXATION See Taxation, International double.
- INTERNATIONAL double taxation. International chamber of commerce.

- INTERNATIONAL HARVESTER COMPANY Pension plan; as amended and in effect on atd after January 1, 1937. Chicago, Ill., Inter-national harvester co. 12p.
- INTERNATIONAL raw commodity price control, by Robert F. Martin. National industrial con-ference board, inc.
- INTERPRETATION of accounting records. Howard, Stanley Edwin.
- INTERPRETATION of accounts—issue no. 1 (cases 1 to 8, inclusive). United States. Federal power commission.
- INTERPRETATION of financial statements. Graham, Benjamin and Meredith, Spencer B.
- INTERPRETATION of insurance company state-ments for investors. Fedde, A. S.
- INTERPRETATION of Louisiana accountancy law. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 21-2.
- INTERPRETATION of Louisiana accountancy law. Philippine accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 132.3
- INTERPRETATIONS of uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- INTERPRETATIONS of uniform system of accounts for gas utilities. National association of rail-road and utilities commissioners.
- **INTERPRETATIONS** of uniform system of accounts for telephone utilities. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- **INTERPRETATIONS** of uniform system of accounts for water utilities. National association of rail-road and utilities commissioners.
- INTERPRETATIVE bulletin no. 1; general statement as to the coverage of the fair labor standards act of 1938. United States. Labor, department of.
- INTERPRETATIVE bulletin no. 1, under the wage and hour law. American trade association executives.
- INTERPRETING company financial statements for employees. Metropolitan life insurance company. Policyholders service bureau.
- INTER-RELATION between law and commerce. Ac-countant, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 839-42.

INTERSTATE COMMERCE

See Commerce.

- **INTERSTATE** commerce act; together with text or related sections of certain supplementary acts. United States. Interstate commerce commission.
- INTERSTATE COMMERCE COMMISSION See United States. Interstate commerce commission.
- INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 257-8.
- INTERSTATE hosiery case. Texas accountant, May 1939, p. 1, 3.
- INTERSTATE hosiery case Responsibilities of auditors and of management. (Editorial) Canad-ian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 397-9.

INTERSTATE HOSIERY MILLS, INC.

- NTERSTATE HOSIERY MILLS, INC.
 BRINK, VICTOR Z. Some comments on the Interstate hosiery case. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 18-22, 38.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 257-8.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. Texas accountant, May 1939, p. 1, 3.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case—Responsibilities of auditors and of management. (Editorial) Canad-ian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 397-9.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Interstate hosiery mills, inc. --common capital stock of no par value (File 1-300) Securities exchange act of 1934, release no. 2048. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 321-8.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Interstate hosiery case; findings and opinions of the Securities and exchange com-mission. Interstate hosiery case, findings and opinions of the Securities and exchange com-mission. New York certified public accoun-tant, June 1939, p. 425-36.
 NTHERSTATE practice. (Editorial) Journal of ac-
- INTERSTATE practice. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1938, p. 141-2.
- INTRODUCCION a la técnica de los costos. Ala-triste, Sealtiel, Jr.

INTRODUCTION to accounting. Bolon, Dallas S.

- INTRODUCTION to accounting procedure. Schur, John A. and Haskell, Manford M.
- INTRODUCTION to auditing. Nelson, Andrew.
- INTRODUCTION to cost accounting. Burton, Norman Lee.
- INTRODUCTION to federal taxation. George T. Altman,
- **INTRODUCTION** to federal taxation (1938 act). Altman, George T.
- INTRODUCTION to governmental accounting. Morey, Lloyd.
- INTRODUCTION to municipal accounting. Donald-son, William H.

INTRODUCTION to principles of accounting. Finney, Harry Anson.

INVENTORIES

- NVENTORIES ABBOTT, C. J. Control of inventory closely tied in with control of entire business. Controller, May 1939, p. 178, 180, 182-3. ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Principal changes in revenue act analzed, effects described. Con-troller, Nov. 1938, p. 319-30. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on inventories. Report of the special committee on inventories. (In its 1936 year book. p. 458-66; 1937 year book. p. 510-2; 1938 year book. p. 142-3.) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1936, p. 122-32; Jan. 1938, p. 29-32. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 11-3.
- p. 11-3. AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Quality and inventory control, by Richard W. Simon and others. New York, American man-agement association, c1939. 36p. (Production
- agement association, c1939. 36p. (Production series no. 114.) ANOTHER constructive comment Profession proceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 135-6. ARMSTRONG, A. B. Taking a physical inven-tory in chain stores. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 9-12.
- p. 9-12. ARTHUR, HENRY B. Inventory profits in the business cycle. American economic review, Mutaton, intervet D. Inventory pronts in the business cycle. American economic review, March 1938, p. 27-40. AUDIT of stock. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 447-8.
- BACAS, PAUL E, AND OTHERS. Inventories

- -deferred expenses. (In their Auditing pro-cedure, c1937, p. 245-61.) BAKER, HAROLD A. Inventory and stock con-trol. (In his Principles of retail merchandising. 1939, p. 346-87.) BOLON, DALLAS S. Accounting for merchan-dise. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 422-33.) BROAD, SAMUEL J. Extensions of auditing procedure to meet new demands. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 41-7.)

- institute of accountants. Papers on anatimg procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 41-7.)
 CAMPBELL, H. DEAN. Increasing importance of inventory records. Profit, Dec. 1939, p. 1, 2-4.
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Accounting for inventories. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936, p. 137-46.)
 CARTMELL, N. M. Control of inventory investments. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938, p. 88-108.)
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Inventories. (In his Scitific tax reduction. 1937, p. 47-62.)
 COTTER, ARUNDEL. Scotching the inventory bugaboo. Barron's, Aug. 21, 1939, p. 3; Aug. 28, 1939, p. 20; Sept. 4, 1939, p. 7; Sept. 11, 1939, p. 7; Sept. 11, 1939, p. 6; Sept. 18, 1939, p. 13; Oct. 9, 1939, p. 9; Oct. 23, 1939, p. 7; Oct. 30, 1939, p. 13; Nov. 6, 1939, p. 20; Nov. 13, 1939, p. 7; Nov. 20, 1939, p. 8, 10.
 DAVIS, RALPH C. Effect of "dead time" on inventory in process. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1936, p. 71-4.
 DOLLIVER, E. P. Coördinating production and inventory ontrol. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 90-100.)
 Printed with: Wibblesman, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods.
 DOLLIVER, E. P. Finished goods inventory control, New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 00-100.)
 Printed with: Wibblesman, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods.
 DOLLIVER, E. P. Finished goods inventory control, new York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1939, (M.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 12, section 1, p. 767-79.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Current trends in inventories. Tends of Starbards, 135-1937. Dun's review, Sept. 1939, p. 5-13, 44, 46.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Sales and inventories analyzed; section 1, of Survey of business trends, 1935-1937. Dun's review, May 1938, p. 17.

- p. 10-17. DUN AN
- p. 10-17. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Survey of business trends—1938; sales and inventories, a preliminary report. Dun's review, April 1939, p. 21-8, 48-9; May 1939, p. 13-24. ELIMINATION of physical inventories. (Account-ing questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 199-200. ELLIOTT, D. C. Quarterly series of manufac-turers' inventories. Journal of the American statistical association, June 1938, p. 349-52. ELLIS, CECIL A. Control and valuation of stores. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 425-42.

- 425-42. FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Inventories. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting, 1936. p. 367-70, 377-89.) FISKE, WYMAN P. Inventory control under fluctuating production. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, July 15, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 22, section 1, p. 1265-76.)
- b. WYMAN P. Inventory reserve plans. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 22, section 1, p. 1277-97.)
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Balance sheet problems. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 1-14; Sept. 1938, p. 81-7; Oct. 1938, p. 161-9.
 FOULKE, ROY A. They said it with inventories; supplement number two to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1939, 31p.
 FRFEMAN, E. STEWART. Changes in inventory

- FREEMAN, E. STEWART. Changes in inventory practice noted as important accounting develop-ment. Controller, April 1938, p. 92-5.
- GEROFSKI, IRVIN. Present-day problems in inventory control. (In National association of

INVENTORIES—(Continued)

- cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 191-211.) GILMAN, STEPHEN. Accounting concepts of profit. c1939. p. 357-473. GLOVER, P. W. R. Basic questions of auditing procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 92-100
- p. 92-100. HEADLEE, C.

- p. 92-100.
 HEADLEE, C. E. What Westinghouse company does to control and check inventories. Controller, June 1939, p. 205-9.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Inventory control and material cost procedure. (In his Accounting sys-tems, design and installation. c1936. p. 294-321.)
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Physical inven-tory of merchandise. (In his A B C of account-ing. 1938. p. 80-9.)
 INVENTORIES and profits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 460-2.
 JAIL for criminal inventories. Forbes, Sept. 15, 1939, p. 7-8.
 KESTER, ROY B. Stock control and accounting. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 621-35.)
- (In his Principles of accounting, ed. 4. e1939.
 p. 621-35.)
 KILDUFF, F. W. Some aspects of inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 12, section 1, p. 779-92.) Printed with: Dolliver, E. P. Finished goods inventory
- with: Dolliver, E. P. Finisnea goods inventory control.
 KNAPP, CARL T. Taking and tabulating inven-tory in the specialty store. Balance sheet, Jan. 1938, p. 15-6.
 KRACKE, EDWARD A. Impracticable inventories. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 14, 39.
 LANGER, CHARLES H. Taking of inventories. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-1, 22, 24, 34
- 34
- LaROSE, EDMOND S. Frozen capital made productive by inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 633-65.)
- 1, b, 633-45.) METROPOLITAN CONTROLLERS' ASSOCIA-TION. Balance sheet manual—preliminary draft; part 2.—Inventory. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of
- part 2—Inventory. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1937. p. 11-4.)
 MIDWORTH, C. A. Practical methods of eliminating old stock from merchandise inventories. Balance sheet, Dec. 1937, p. 14-7.
 MITCHELL, WALTER, JR. Collection and interpretation of inventory data. Journal of the American statistical association, June 1939, p. 283-90.
- American statistical association, June 1939, p. 283-90. NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Letter dated January 14, 1938, to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange, regarding the treatment in accounting statements of in-ventory losses and the differences between the present prices and the cost of goods contracted for but not yet received. New York, New York stock exchange, 1938. 3p. Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 230. (excerpt) NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Inventories. (In their Intermediate accounting,
- Inventories. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939. p. 164-78.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Inventories. (In his
- ATON, WILLIAM A. Inventories. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter

- PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Inventories. (In their Law of fed-eral income taxation. 1934. v. 1, p. 653-95.)
 PECK, SAM A. Inventory control. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1938, p. 68-71, 75.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventories. (In his Audit working babers. 1937. p. 93-104.)
 PORTEOUS, KENNETH. Factory orders and inventory records: a case history of their me-chanical preparation. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1937, p. 69-80.
 POULTON, P. K. AND GOLDSMITH, P. H. Budgeting inventories and stabilizing employ-ment. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1939, p. 52-5.
 RUXTON, R. G. Investigation of inventories.
- RUXTON, R. G. Investigation of inventory differ-ences. Balance sheet, Sept. 1938, p. 16-20.

- SAYRE, B. M. Inventory control and valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 9, section 1, p. 477-83.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Inventories. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 229-42.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Inventories. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939, p. 167-92.)
 SKUCE, W. C. Control of material as a cost element. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 114-31.)
 SLICHTER, SUMNER H. Must we have another boom? Atlantic monthly, May 1937, p. 600-7.

- 600-2
- STOCK exchange gives views on accounting treat-ment of inventory losses. *Controller*, Feb. 1938, p. 55-6.
- URVEY of business trends—1938; sales and inventories. *Dun's review*, March 1939, p. 5-12, 56; April 1939, p. 21-8, 48-9; May 1939, p. SURVEY 56; A
- 13.24. TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HER-MANN C. Inventories. (In their Intermediate accounting, 1938. p. 105.24.) TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hear-ings. Journal of accountancy. April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 350-63. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313.36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 437-51. TOWNS, CHARLES H. Accountants teamwork on inventories. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 4-5. 36.

- on inventories. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 4-5, 36.
 TROUANT, D. L. Inventories. (In his Financial audits. c1937, p. 58-72.)
 TRUNDLE, GEORGE T., JR. Your inventory a graveyard? Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1936, p. 45, 80-2.
 TURNOVER of inventory. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 383-4.
 UNINTENTIONAL discrimination. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 5-8.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. (T.D. 4959) title 26—internal revenue; chapter 1, subchapter A.—Part 9-subpart H.—subchapter E—part 465—subpart B—Income tax. Regulations relating to elective method of taking inventories for years beginning subsequent to December 31,

- part 465-subpart B-Income tax. Regulations relating to elective method of taking inventories for years beginning subsequent to December 31, 1938. (approved Dec. 28, 1939.) Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.
 WALKER, ROSS G. Income accounting and the base-stock inventory. Credit and financial management, May 1938, p. 14-7; June 1938, p. 14-6. WEISBERG, CHARLES. Trial balance; value, analysis and uses-part 6; inventory trends. Credit executive. Feb. 1938, p. 51-6.
 WHITMORE, EUGENE. Appleton electric licks a tough inventory problem. American business, Oct. 1939, p. 18-20, 48.
 WILLIAMS, A. P. Taking the inventory and meeting inventory problems. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailina. 1936, p. 28-31.)
 WYLJE, HARRY L. Systems to simplify inventory accounting. American business, March 1939, p. 26-7, 49-50.
 ZINCK, W. C. Low inventories, because—no wrong guesses are made; time element is removed. Here's a plan for controlling material costs that works like a charm in a 200-man plant making 1,500-odd items in a highly competitive industry. Factory management and maintenance, July 1938, p. 65-6, 128, 130.
- Cost method RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Comparison of the retail and the cost methods of inventory. Balance sheet, May 1938. p. 11-3. RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Retail and the cost methods of inventory discussion at a meeting
 - methods of inventory: discussion at a meeting of the Retail controllers association, Los An-geles, April 14, 1938. 5 typewritten pages.

Cost or market method GILMAN, STEPHEN. Inventory revaluation at cost or market. (In his Accounting concepts of profit, c1939. p. 429-62.)

INVENTORIES—Cost or market method—(Continued)

- NVENTORIES—Cost or market method—(Continued)
 INVENTORY—what is the lower of cost or market? A round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 335-62.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventory—what is the lower of cost or market? (opening remarks of the chairman, round table discussion, at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf. Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.)
 S mimeographed pages.
 SWEET, HOMER N. Case for "cost or market" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 400-8.) Printed with: Davis, Albion R. Case for a "stabilized" basis.
 WILSON, GEORGE A. Autor replies. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 461-8.)

Last-in, first-out method

- ast-in, first-out method See also Inventories—Valuation.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Last-in, first-out inventory method. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 310-4. Supplementary memorandum deal-ing with last-in, first-out inventory method. (In its Proposed changes in the federal revenue law, c1938, p. 28-32.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on inventories. Valuation of inventories. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 122-32. (In American institute of accountants. 1936 year book, p. 458-66.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on inventories. Valuation of inventory. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 29-32. Cost and management, Jan. 1938, p. 29-32. (In American institute of accountants. 1937 year book. p. 510-2.)
 ANDERSON, DAVID R. Further comments on last-in, first-out. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants. Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, sec-tion 2, p. 459-61.)
 ARTHUR, HENRY B. Something business can do about depressions. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 7-14.
 BASIS of inventory in quarterly report. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 405.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Applicability of the

- 405. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Applicability of the "lastin, first-out" method to different types of industry. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939. p. 78-81.)
- Imp subjects, 1939. p. 78-81.) BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES. Discussion—the "last-in, first-out" principle in pricing inven-tories. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 3p.)
- CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. Last-in, first-out inventorying takes care of wide fluctuations. Controller, May 1939, p. 160-4.
 COTTER, ARUNDEL. Scotching the inventory bugaboo. Barron's, Oct. 9, 1939, p. 9; Oct. 23, 1939, p. 7; Oct. 30, p. 17; Nov. 6, 1939, p. 20; Nov. 13, 1939, p. 7; Nov. 20, 1939, p. 8-10.
 CRANDELL I. CHESTER Principles related
- Nov. 13, 1939, p. 7; Nov. 20, 1909, p. 6-10. CRANDELL, J. CHESTER. Principles related to inventory valuation. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 21-5.)
- and procedure. 1938. p. 21-5.)
 DAVIS, ALBION R. Case for a "stabilized" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 377-99.) Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 93-115.
 DRISCOLL, ROBERT S. "Lastin, first-out" in-ventory values advantageous in present price outlook. Annalist, Oct. 5, 1939, p. 429-30.
 'GRAHAM, E. W. Current practices in inventory valuation. New York, National association of

- cost accountants, March 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 752-66.) Printed with: Peloubet, Maurice E. Problems of 'present-day inventory valuation. HARVEY, JOHN L. Some observations on ac-counting practice with special reference to in-ventory valuation. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 440-51. HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Fundamentals of in-ventory pricing. (summary of lecture at Toledo chapter of National association of cost accoun-tants, November 16, 1937.) 4 mimeographed pages.
- inventorial journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 81-4; June 1938, 457-60.
- p. 457-60. KASSANDER, A. R. Last-in, first-out inventory method. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1939, p. 1-8

- 1-8.
 KRACKE, EDWARD A. Inventories and taxes. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 369-76.
 McFARLAND, WALTER B. Last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 2, p. 341-2).
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST AC-COUNTANTS. Research and technical service department. To what extent is the last-in, first-out plan being adopted? New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 500-1.) Printed with: Gardner, Graham A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations. installations.

- Interpretations, installations, installations,
 NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Prevailing practices in inventory valuation. New York, National industrial confer-ence board, inc., Feb. 1938. 15p. (Studies in administrative control, no. 1.)
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on inventory methods. (summary of discussion. by Maurice E. Peloubet, chairman.) New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 40-7.
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory valua-tion—Professor Nickerson replies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 284-5.)
 OVER-statement and under-statement. (Editorial)

- 2. p. 284-5.)
 OVER-statement and under-statement. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 161-5.
 PALMER, ERNEST O. Last-in, first-out inven-tories. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin Nov. 1939, p. 1-2, 3. Manu-facturers news, Nov. 1939, p. 9-10, 29.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Acceptance by con-gress of the "last-in, first-out" method for valuing inventories. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 73-7.)
 PELOUBET MAURICE E. Inventory valuation
- PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventory valuation --Mr. Peloubet comments. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, (N.A.C.A. p. 283-4.)
- p. 203-4.) PELOUBET. MAURICE E. Statement of Mau-rice E. Peloubet, New York City, the Copper & brass mill products association. (In United States. Senate. Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes. (revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22. p. 143.67 purposes. (revi 22. p. 143-67.)
- ROLNIK, MAX. Some tax problems in inventory-ing under the last-in, first-out method. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 140-5.
- SEIDMAN, J. S. Last-in, first-out basis for tax purposes. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 2, p. 1367-8.)
- SEIDMAN, J. S. Regarding the last-in, first-out method. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1939.

INVENTORIES-Last-in, first-out method-(Continued) (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 2,

- (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 2, p. 183.)
 STAUB, WALTER A. Improvement of inventory and sales costing methods. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 12-4.
 STAUB, WALTER A. Some observations on inventory methods. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 28-32.
 STRANGE inconsistency-Yet maybe not strange. (Editorial) Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 20-2.
 WALKER, ROSS G. Base-stock principles in income accounting. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 76-94.
 WEBSTER, S. J.R. 'Last-in, first-out' method. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on audiing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 89-95.)
 WILDE, EDWARD A. Last-in, first-out method of taking inventory. (November 1939) 4 type-written pages.

- of taking inventory. (November 1939) * type-written pages. WILSON, GEORGE A. Author replies. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 461-8.) WILSON, GEORGE A. Further consideration of the last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-26.)
- Retail method
- Iterail method
 DAVIES, JOHN. Department store accounting for inventory, and for purchases. Controller, July 1938, p. 212-3.
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Retail method of inven-tory control. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1937, p. 223-31.
 HILL, S. A. Retail method of merchandise ac-counting. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, June 1939. 23p.
 JENKINS, THOMAS. Retail inventory method as an aid to smaller store operation. (In Na-tional retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1938. p. 133-7, discussion, p. 137-8.)
 KLAGSTAD, H. L. Are inventory reserves re-guired under the retail method? Balance sheet, Sept. 1938, p. 7-16.
 KLEINHAUS, H. I. Merchandise accounting and planning under the retail inventory method. Balance sheet, March 1938, p. 13-5, 8.
 KLEINHAUS, H. I. Retail inventory method. Balance sheet, March 1938, p. 18-28.
 KLEINHAUS, H. I. Retail method; a brief out-line. Profit, May 1939, p. 1, 4.
 McLUCKIE, E. J. Retail method of inventory con-trol. Pittsburgh accountant, Oct. Dec. 1936, p. 4.
 ODERMATT, M. R. Retail method of inventory. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 174.

- 1939, p. 174. RETAIL method of inventory. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 402
- 402. RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Comparison of the retail and the cost methods of inventory. Balance sheet, May 1938, p. 11-3. RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Retail and cost methods of inventory; discussion at a meeting of the Retail controllers association, Los Angeles, April 14, 1938. 5 typewritten pages. RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Retail method of inventory. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1939, p. 372.

Standard cost method

- INVENTORIES under standard cost plan. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 417-8.)
- Statistics
 - SPECIAL mid-year survey of inventory trends. Dun's review, Oct. 1938, p. 9-16.
- Valuation
 - AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS Special committee on inventories. Valuation of

- inventories. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 122-32. (In American institute of accountants. 1936 Year book. p. 458-66.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on inventories. Valuation of inventory. Journal of accountansy, Jan. 1938, p. 29-32. (In American institute of accountants. 1937 Year book. p. 510-2.)
 ARTHUR, HENRY B. Something business can do about depressions. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 7-14.
 BASHE, C. E. Fair market value of inventory property. Taxes—the Tax magasine, Feb. 1939, p. 7-14.
 BASIS of inventory in quarterly reports. (Editorial Journal of accountancy, 1937, p. 405.)

- 405.

- BASIS of inventory in quarterly reports. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 405.
 CRANDELL, J. CHESTER. Principles related to inventory valuation. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938, p. 21-5.)
 DANIELL, E. T. Verification of current assets and basis of valuation. Chartered accountant in Amstradia, Oct. 1936, p. 248-64.
 DAVIS, ALBION R. Case for a "stabilized" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 377-99.) Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 93-115.
 DE PAULA, F. R. M. Valuation and verification of stock-in-trade or inventories. (In his Principles of auditing. 1939. p. 103-23.)
 De PAULA, F. R. M. Valuation of stock in trade or inventories. Accountant, April 3, 1937, p. 488-91. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 242-5. Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 242-5. Accountants i journal, June 1937, p. 243-7. Indian accountant, July 1937, p. 249-55.
 DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Inventory valuation of public manufacturing companies; memorandum regarding round table discussion at annual meeting in Saskatoon, August 1939, Canadian chartered accountant, Pec. 1937, p. 425-42.
 FERRIE, G. C. Basic inventory values for certain industries. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 124-8.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Inventory revaluation methods—Inventory revaluation at cost or market—Comparison of inventory valuation of rask-countant, Narch 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 752-60.)
 Printed with: Peloubet, Maurice E. Problems of present-day inventory valuation of raw mate rials. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 441-4; Oct. 9, 1937, p. 440-51.
 HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Fundamentals of inventory revision of accountants of accountants of inventory valuation of raw mate rials. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 441-4; Oct. 9, 1937, p. 4

- ventory vitation. Journal of accountary, Dec. 1937, p. 440-51.
 HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Fundamentals of inventory pricing. (summary of lecture at Toledo chapter of National association of cost accountants, November 16, 1937.) 4 mimeographed pages

- tants, November 10, 12011 pages. INVENTORIES and taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 81-4. June 1938, p. 457-60. INVENTORIES in a declining market. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 3-5. KUZNETS, SIMON. Changing inventory valua-tions and their effect on business savings and on national income produced. (In National bu-reau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 145-56; discussion, p. 157.72.)
- LITTLETON, A. C. Suggestions for the revision of the tentative statement of accounting prin-ciples. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64. McKESSON AND ROBBINS, INC. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 6.

INVENTORIES-Valuation-(Continued)

- NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Prevailing practice in inventory valuation. New York, National industrial con-ference board, inc., Feb. 1938. 159. (Studies in administrative control, no. 1.) NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee
- FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on inventory methods. Inventory methods. (sum-mary of discussion, by Maurice E. Peloubet, chairman.) New York certified public accoun-tant, July 1938, p. 40-7.
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Favors use of price adjustment account or reserve. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 2, p. 1139-42.)
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory valua-tion—Professor Nickerson replies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 224-5.)
- 1937. (N. h. 284-5.)
- 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 284-5.)
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory valuation—the use of price adjustment accounts to segregate inventory losses and gains. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 1, p. 147-60.)
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory methods their relation to credit analysis. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1938, p. 6-9.
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory reserves as an element of inventory policy. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 345-54.
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory reserves as an element of inventory policy. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 345-54.
 NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory reference to a woolen company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 16, section 1, p. 895-921.)
 OVER.STATEMENT and under-statement. (Edi-

- 1, p. 895-921.) OVER-STATEMENT and under-statement. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 161-5. PELOUBET.
- 161-5.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventories. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accoun-tants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, 1938. p. 52-5.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventories and the auditor. Journal of accountants' journal, July, Aug, and Sept. 1939, p. 144-55.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventory valuation —Mr. Peloubet comments. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 283-4.)
- 282.4)
- 283.4.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Present-day problems in inventory valuation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 164-87, discussion, p. 187-91.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Problems of present-day inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-51.)
- (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-51.) PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Statement of Maur-ice E. Peloubet, New York City, the Copper & brass mill products association. (In United States, Senate. Hearings before the committee on fin-ance, United States senate, sveenty-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue equalize taxation and for other purposes. (Revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1938. p. 143-67
- (Revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1936. p. 143-67. RECOGNITION of decline in inventory value after closing date. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 2, p. 298-300.)
- 2, p. 296-300.)
 RENNER, ROBERT R. Similar plan described. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 2, p. 1143-9.)
 SAYRE, B. M. Inventory control and valuation. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Jan. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 9, section 1, p. 477-83.)

- STAUB, WALTER A. Improvement of inventory
- SIAUB, WALTER A. Improvement of inventory and sales costing methods. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 12-4.
 STAUB, WALTER A. Some observations on in-ventory methods. L.R.B. & M. Journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 28-32.
 STOCK valuations and purchase commitments. In-corporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 198-9.
 TAYLOR, JAMES W. Inventory valuation of pub-lic manufacturing companies: a summary of the
- TAVLOR, JAMES W. Inventory valuation of pub-lic manufacturing companies; a summary of the round table discussion held at the annual meet-ing of the association 24th August 1939, prepared by the chairman, James W. Taylor. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 334-41. TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hear-ings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 350-63. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 437-51.
- 437-51
- THOMPSON, HOWARD S. Oil inventories ac-counting. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p.

- counting. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 23-36.
 WALKER, ROSS G. Base-stock principles in income accounting. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 76-94.
 WALKER, ROSS G. Some financial questions in inventory valuation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 212-6.)
 WILSON, GEORGE A. Further consideration of the last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v 21, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-26.)

- No. 1, Section 1, p. 1220.
 Verification
 ACCOUNTANTS' responsibility for inventories.
 (In Testimony of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings.) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97. Federal accountant, July 1939, p. 343-5.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing procedure. Extensions of auditing procedure; a report of the Special committee on auditing procedure, adopted by the Council of the American institute of accountants, May 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939, p. 342-9. Controller, June 1939, p. 431-43. Dec. 1939, p. 417-30. Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 850-4. Philippine accountant's journal, July, Aug., Sept. 1939, p. 130-40.
 - 130-41

 - countants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939, p. 13041.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CONSULTING ENGINEERS. Correspondence with William W. Werntz and report of discussion. on engineering audits led by C. Oliver Wellington, March-April 1939, mimeographed.
 ASSOCIATION OF CONSULTING MANAGE. MENT ENGINEERS, INC. Function of the engineer in the confirmation of inventories. New York, Association of consulting management engineers, inc. (1939). not paged.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. Serving a public need; address at a dinner given by the American institute of accountants and the New York state society of certified public accountants, January 30, 1939. New York, Asturbed pages.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Comments on the paper of Walter A. Staub. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 82-3.)
 COLDWELL, E. S. If outside check of inventories is needed, here is a program. Controller, May 1939. p. 171-3, 176, 178.
 CROSS, NORMAN C. Inventories; address before Petroleum accountants society, February 23, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.

286

INVENTORIES-Verification-(Continued)

- NVENIORIES—Verification—(Continuea) and basis of valuation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 248-64. dePAULA, F. R. M. Valuation and verification of stock-in-trade or inventories. (In his Principles of auditing. 1939, p. 103-23.) ECONACON. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant, London, July 1, 1939.) Journal of accountant, London, p. 103-4.

- ECONACON. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant, London, July 1, 1939.) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 103-4.
 ELLIS, CECIL A. Auditing procedure in Amer-ica. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 191-2.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Audit procedure with re-spect to verification of inventories and receiv-ables; address delivered to annual convention, Georgia society of certified public accountants, Macon, Ga., May 26, 1939. 27 typewritten pages. pages.
- Same, 28 mimeographed pages, EPISCOPUS. Correspondence. (reprinted from Accountant, London, Aug. 5, 1939.) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 192-4. FREEDMAN, CHARLES. Certified audits—for
- FREEDMAN, CHARLES. Certified audits—for whom? Accountant disagrees with recent article in Barron's, demand inventory checks. Barron's, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 9.
 HILL, J. GORDON. Physical testing procedure of inventories. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 87-8.)
 HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Inventory. (In his Auditing, principles and procedure, 1939. p. 160-203.)
 MCLAUGHLIN, GEORGE V. Address before monthly meeting of the National association of

- McLAUGHLIN, GEORGE V. Address before monthly meeting of the National association of cost accountants, at Hotel Granada, Brooklyn, December 21, 1938. 6 typewritten pages.
 MARSH, WILLIAM F. Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting. May 19, 20, 1939. 7 (500)
- annual institute on accounting. May 19, 20, 1939. p. 76-90.) NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on cooperation with bankers and other credit grantors. Report of the Committee on coopera-tion with bankers and other credit grantors on results of meetings held with officials and mem-bers of the New York credit men's association. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 109-13.
- p. 109-13. NEW YORK STATE FIED PUBLIC AC

- ventury. Accounting Johns, May 1959, p. 15-7, 32.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventories. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of first accounting clinic, 1938, p. 52-5.) New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 72-80.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Inventories and the auditor. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 8-16. Philippine accountants in July, Aug., and Sept. 1939, p. 144-55.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. McKesson and Robbins case; effect on accountant in Australia, May 1939, p. 722-33.
 PRINCE, L. J. F. Auditor and stock valuation. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 481-5.
 ROCKEY, CHARLES S. Accountants' certificates

- ROCKEY, CHARLES S. Accountants' certificates and inventories. Spokesman, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 3-4. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 199-201.
- SCHOLEFIELD, J. B. Verification of inventory and accounts receivable; introductory statement

preceding round table discussion at meeting of Arizona society of certified public accountants, Phoenix, Arizona, May 20, 1939. 9 typewritten

- Phoenix, Arizona, May 20, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Inventories. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure, c1939, p. 167-92.)
 SIMS, GEORGE W. Some pitfalls encountered in making physical tests of inventory quantities (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 84-6.)
 STAUB, WALTER A. Physical tests of inventory quantities. (In American institute of accounting subjects. 1939, p. 59-62.)
 TAYLOR, JAMES W. Inventory valuation of public manufacturing companies; a summary of the round table discussion held at the annual meeting of the association 24th August 1939, prepared by the chairman, James W. Taylor. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 334-41. 334.41
- 334-41. TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hear-ings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 350-63. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 437-51. VERIFICATION of inventories. (Editorial)
- ERIFICATION of inventories. (Editorial) Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 84-6
- 84-6. WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. Discussion of engineering audits, at luncheon meeting of American institute of consulting engineers, April
- American institute of consulting engineers, April 5, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages.
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. "Mechanics" of confirmation of inventories. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 63-70. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 81-9.
 WOOLLEY, E. S. Real audits. Banking, Feb. 1939, p. 19-20. Florida accountant, April 1939, p. 1, 4.
- INVENTORIES and profits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 460-2.
- NVENTORIES and taxes. Kracke, Edward A.
- INVENTORIES and taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 81-4; June 1938, p. 457-60.
- INVENTORIES and the auditor. Peloubet, Maurice E.
- INVENTORIES in a declining market. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 3-5.
- INVENTORIES of auto and truck wreckers. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov 1938, p. 323.
- INVENTORIES under standard cost plan. (Correspondence) New York, National association or cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 417-8.)
- INVENTORY control and valuation. Sayre, B. M.
- INVENTORY control under fluctuating production. Fiske, Wyman P.
- INVENTORY manual for department stores and de-partmentized specialty stores. National retail dry goods association. Controllers congress.
- INVENTORY of plant assets. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- INVENTORY problems; round table discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939, p. 85-118.)

INVENTORY reserve plans. Fiske, Wyman P.

INVENTORY valuation-the use of price adjust ment accounts to segregate inventory losses and gains. Nickerson, Clarence B.

- INVENTORY -what is the lower of cost or market? Peloubet, Maurice E.
- INVENTORY --- what is the lower of cost or market? A round table. (In American institute of ac-countants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 335-62.)
- INVESTIGATIONS
 - COASE, R. H. AND OTHERS. Published balance sheets as an aid to economic investigation— some difficulties. *Corporate accountant*, Sept.
 - 1938, p. 129. CRATE, HAROLD E. Financial and industrial survey. Canadian chartered accountant, June

 - survey. Canaasun character
 1936, p. 414-22.
 EADLE, WILLIAM. Reports on cost investiga-tions. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 156-7.
 ECONOMIC inquiry. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1938, p. 213-4.
 GLASSCO, J. GRANT. Business investigation; a
 - brief discussion of some important fundamental principles. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 430-41. HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Investigations for financing. New York, Ronald press company, edited by David Himmelblau) JOHNSON, MILTON F. Investigation of a busi-ness on behalf of the debenture holder. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1936, p. 388-09
 - 388-99.
 - 388-99. JUDD, HAROLD G. Investigation of a business with a view to its changing ownership or secur-ing additional capital. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 90-108. LITHGOW, W. G. Conduct of investigations. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 436-42. Accountant student and Accountants' investigation of the second student of the second seco

 - p. 436-42. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 138-45. PRACTICE before Securities and exchange com-mission. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 17-20. SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Credit investigations and examinations. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939, p. 399-118) 418.) SMAILS.
 - MAILS, R. G. H. Business investigations. (In his Auditing. p. 273-85.)
- INVESTIGATIONS for financing. Himmelblau. David.

INVESTMENT BANKERS

See Bankers and credit men, Coöperation with; Investment companies.

INVESTMENT BANKERS ASSOCIATION OF

- NVESTMENT BANNERS ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA Proceedings of the twenty-sixth annual conven-tion, November 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, 1937 . . . White Sulphur Springs, West Virginia. Chi-cago, Ill., Investment bankers association of America, 1937. 423p. Twenty-fith annual convention held at Augusta, Ga., December 2-6, 1936. Commercial and finan-cial chronicle, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 3681-728.

INVESTMENT BANKERS ASSOCIATION OF

AMERICA LANDIS, JAMES M. Address before the twentyfifth annual conference of the Investment bank-ers association of America, Augusta, Georgia, December 4, 1936. 11 mimeographed pages.

INVESTMENT BANKING

See Investment companies.

INVESTMENT COMPANIES

- NVESTMENT COMPANIES See also Brokers; Investment trusts.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Operating expenses and executive compensation policies of invest-ment companies; 1929-1935. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1937, p. 337-51.
 BOGEN, JULES I. AND OTHERS. Investment banking. (In their Money and banking, 1936. p. 624-41.)
 EGLY, HARRY H. Address before the Cleveland group of the Investment bankers association, at

Cleveland, Ohio, December 7, 1938. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages. FIELD, KENNETH. Investment banking. (In his

- 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Investment banking. (In his Corporation finance. c1938. p. 185-201.)
 GOURRICH, PAUL P. Investment banking methods prior to and since the securities act of 1933. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 44-71.
 INVESTMENT COUNSEL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Investment counsel annual. New York, Investment trusts and investment comparing report pursuant to section 30 of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Part 1—Origin, scope and conduct of the study, nature and classification of investment trusts and investment companies; origins of the investigation in the United States. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, June 10, 1938.
 40 mimeographed pages.
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Investment trusts and investment com-panies; report pursuant to section 30 of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Part 2—Statistical survey of investment trusts and investment companies. 5 vols. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Janu-ary-March 1939. Mimeographed.
 UNITED STATES, Securities and exchange com-mission Investment trusts and investment com-
- mission. Investment trusts and investment commission. Investment trusts and investment com-panies; report pursuant to seciton 30 of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Part 3—Abuses and deficiencies in the organization and operation of investment trusts and invest-ment companies. Chapters 1-5. (April-December 1939) Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, 1939. mimeographed. WILLIAMS, FRANK M. Accountant and the security dealer: address at the meeting of the
- WILLIAMS, FRANK M. Accountant and the security dealer; address at the meeting of the Bond club of Cleveland on Friday evening, April 2, 1937. 24 typewritten pages. WOLFE, LEE J. Testimony before the Mortgage commission of the state of New York in the matter of the allocation by the Mortgage com-mission of the state of New York pursuant to the provisions of section 24 of chapter 19 of the laws of 1935 as amended, of its expenses and the expenses of its subsidiaries incident to the exercise of its or their powers, and such expenses as shall have been advanced by the superintendent of insurance or the superin-tendent of banks allocatable and chargeable to all properties, bonds, or mortgages or groups terment of banks allocatable and chargeable to all properties, bonds, or mortgages or groups thereof, that came under its jurisdiction; volume 2 testimony, report, exhibits and findings. New York, S. H., and Lee J. Wolfe, March 30, 1937. 168p.

- Accounting GREENE, HOWARD F. Accounting for invest-ment bankers. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1936, p. 1, 3-6, 8.
 THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. System for an investment house. (In his Accounting systems, their design and installation. 1936. p. 607-74.)
 UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Revision of regulation T relating to extension and maintenance of credit by brokers, dealers, and members of national securities exchanges. (effective January 1, 1938) Federal reserve bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 1191-201.

Australia MORGAN, R. H. Accounts of an investment com-pany. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 823-34.

- Auditing AUDITING of stockbrokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357; Oct. 1939, p. 220-1.
 AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 274-8.

INVESTMENT COMPANIES—Auditing—(Continued)

- INDEPENDENT audits of brokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938,
- INDEL ENTRY and is accountancy, July 1938, p. 5-6.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on member firms. Questionnaire for member firms doing any securities business with others than members or member firms or doing a general business with the public. New York, New York stock exchange (1939). 1p. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 277-8.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on member firms. Regulations prescribed by the committee on member firms for audit under authority of rule 532 (as amended October 26, 1938) of the rules of the Board of governors. New York, New York stock exchange, 1939. 1p. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 274-5.

Canada SMAILS, R. G. H. Investment companies. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 307-13.)

- Law
- GUNN, J. A. L. National security (capital issues) regulations. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, 225-30.
- p. 225-30. KELYNACK, JOHN E. Capital issues. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 314-7; Dec. 1939, p. 396-7. NATIONAL security (capital issues) regulations. Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 331-4. Fed-eral accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 568-70.

Great Britain

- CONTROL of capital issues. Accountant, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 419-22.
- CONTROL of capital issues and a second secon
- licensed dealers. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 789-91. GREAT BRITAIN. Prevention of fraud (invest-ments) act. 1939; 2 & 3 Geo. 6, ch. 16. Lon-don, H. M. stationery office, 1939. 34p. GREAT BRITAIN. Report of the committee on share-pushing. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 461-6. PREVENTION of fraud (investments) act. Ac-countant, May 13, 1939, p. 637; June 10, 1939, p. 766-9
- Countant, May 15, 1939, p. 657, June 10, 1959, p. 766-9. PREVENTION of fraud (investments) bill. Ac-countant, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 190-5; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 697-704; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 742-4; Dec. 17, 1938, p. 855-6; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 267-9. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1938, p. 283-90
- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. British control

- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. British control of company accounts and finance. Harvard busi-ness review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 11-23.
 SHARE pushing. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 258-61.
 SHARE pushing bill. Accountant, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 174-6. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 384-5.
 WESTBY-NUNN, E. Prevention of fraud (invest-ments) act, 1939. Accountant student, June 1939, p. 43; July 1939, p. 57-8; Aug. 1939, p. 92-3. 92.3

Illinois

ILLINOIS. Securities department. Office bulletins, nos. 1, 2, and 3; prepared for the Committee on stock brokerage accounting, by Frederick S. Todman. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 82-5.

Philippine Islands NEPOMUCENO, RICARDO. Securities and ex-change commission and the businessmen. Philip-pine accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 169-77.

South Carolina SOUTH CAROLINA. Securities act. (approved October 28, 1936) Columbia, S. C., Insurance commissioner and commissioner of securities, 1936. 30p.

See also Stock exchanges—Government regulation.

- See also Stock exchanges-Government regula-tion. AMERICAN APPRAISAL COMPANY. Securi-ties act of 1933 and registration statements as they relate to appraisal reports on property facts and values. New York, American appraisal company (1937). 80 mimeographed pages. *Bulletin 884*) BATES, GEORGE E. Some effects of the securi-ties act upon investment banking practices. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 72-9. BATES, GEORGE E. Waiting period under the securities act. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 203-13. BUSINESS recovery and the securities act. Guar-anty survey, Nov. 27, 1933, p. 1-6. CALE, EDWARD G. Study of ineffective invest-ment trust and precious metal mining issues. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 32-43.

- Law and contemporary protents, Jan. 1937, p. 32-43.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Effective engistration statements under the securities act of 1933; a tabulation of registration statements which have become effective under the securities act of 1936, from enactment to January 1, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, 55p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Securities act service; federal regulation of securities. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937, c1938, c1939, loose-leaf.
 DEAN, ARTHUR H. Lawyer's problems in the registration of securities. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 154-90.
 DODD, E. MERRICK. Amending the securities act—the American bar association committee's proposals. Yale law journal, Dec. 1935, p. 199-225.

- rary problems, April 1937, p. 154-90.
 DODD, E. MERRICK. Amending the securities act—the American bar association committee's proposals. Yale law journal, Dec. 1935, p. 199-225.
 EFFECT of section 3 (a) (10) of the securities act as a source of exemption for securities issued in reorganizations. Yale law journal, April 1936, p. 1050-76.
 FORTAS, ABE. Securities act and corporate reorganizations. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 218-40.
 GOLDSCHMIDT, R. W. Regulation under the securities act of 1933. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 19-31.
 KUHN, C. JOHN. Securities act and its effect upon the institutional investor. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 80-8.
 LASSER, J. K. AND GERARDI, J. A. Relation of accountants to the federal securities act. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 22, section 1, p. 1289-1312.)
 MacCHESNEY, BRUNSON AND O'BRIEN, ROBERT H. Full disclosure under the securities act. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 13-35.
 MATHEWS, GEORGE C. Accounting in relation to regulation of security sales. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 102-14.)
 SHEF, HAROLD H. Forms for registration of securities under the acts of 1933 and 1934. Harvard law review, June 1938, p. 1335-72.
- OVER-THE-COUNTER trading and the Maloney act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 633-50.
- REGULATION of over-the-counter dealers. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 148.
- 170. ICH, WILEY DANIEL. Civil liabilities of ac-countants under the securities act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 488-97. Accountants magazine, July 1938, p. 441-9. Reprinted by American surety company with: MacMillan, William R. Sources and extent of liability of a public accountant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 30-2. (condensed) RICH.
- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Accounting aspects of the securities act. Law and contempo-rary problems, April 1937, p. 191-217.

SMITH, RUSSELL A. Relation of federal and

ESTMENT COMPANIES—Law—United States— (Continued) INVESTMENT

- NVESTMENT COMPANIES—Law—United States— (Continued)
 state securities laws. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 241-5.
 THREE years of the securities act. Law and con-temporary problems, Jan. 1937, part 1; April 1937, part 2.
 THROOP, ALLEN E. AND LANE, CHESTER T. Some problems of exemption under the securities act of 1933. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 89-127.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Hearing before the committee on interstate and foreign com-merce, House of representatives, seventy-fifth congress, first session on H.R. 6968; to amend the securities act of 1933, as amended by adding thereto a new title, providing for the regulation of the solicitation, in interstate and foreign commerce, and through the mails, of proxies, deposits, and assets in connection with certain reorganizations, voluntary readjustments and debt arrangements and for other purposes. June 8-July 21, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937, 562p.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 621 —74th congress (S. 4023); an act to provide for the continuation of trading in unlisted securities upon national securities exchanges, for the registration of over-the-counter brokers and dealers, for the filing of current informa-
- for the registration of over-the-counter brokers and dealers, for the filing of current informa-tion and periodic reports by issuers, and for other purposes. (approved May 27, 1936.) Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936.
- 70. UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Revision of regulation T relating 'to extension and maintenance of credit by brokers, dealers, and members of national securities exchanges. (effective January 1, 1938) *Federal reserve bulletin*, Dec. 1937, p. 1191-201. UNITED STATES. Securities and regulations under the securities act of 1933. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Jan. 21, 1936. 41 mimeographed pages. Same, Nov. 20, 1936. 47 mimeographed pages. 7p. UNITED

pages.

- securities and exchange commission, D. C., Sc-curities and exchange commission, May 22, 1937, 34p. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Questionnaire to incorporated and un-incorporated investment trusts and investment companies of management type. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Janu-ary 1936. 90 mimeographed pages.

- Victoria TAIT, J. B. Proprietary, foreign holding and investment trust companies under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 117-33. VICTORIA. Companies act, 1938 (no. 4602) with which is incorporated the investment companies act, 1938. (No. 4621) Melbourne, Government printer, 1939. 352p.

Wisconsin HIBMA, OTTO. Résumé of the Wisconsin securi-ties act. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 541-5.

Societies INVESTMENT BANKERS ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Proceedings of the twenty-sixth an-nual convention, November 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, 1937 . . . White Sulphur Springs, West Vir-ginia. Chicago, III., Investment bankers associa-tion of America, 1937. 423p.

INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF NORTH AMER-

VESIMENT CONFORMATION OF TEXASTRATION OF TE

INVESTMENT cost studies. Heitmuller, R. E.

INVESTMENT counsel annual. Investment counsel association of America.

INVESTMENT COUNSEL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA

Investment counsel annual. New York, Invest-ment counsel association of America, July 1, 1938. 154p. (v. 1, no. 1.)

INVESTMENT HOUSES

See Investment companies.

- INVESTMENT principles and practices. Badger, Ralph Eastman and Guthmann, Harry G.
- **INVESTMENT** securities regulation. United States. Comptroller of the currency.

- INVESTMENT TRUSTS See also Investment companies. MAY, A. WILFRED. British and American in-vestment trusts. Bankers magazine, Aug. 1938, 117-22
 - p. 117-22. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Investment trusts and investment com-panies; report pursuant to section 30 of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Part 1--Origin, scope and conduct of the study, nature and classification of investment trusts and investment companies; origins of the invest-ment trust and investment companies movement in the United States. Washington, D. C., Securi-ties and exchange commission, June 10, 1938. 40 mimeographed pages.

Accounting PERRY, DONALD P. Influences on the develop-ment of investment company accounting. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 45-8, 75.

Canada

- BURKE. T. VINCENT. Investment trusts. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 19-23.
- FLEMING, A. IAN. Some aspects of investment trust administration in Canada. Canadian char-tered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 101-10.

- Great Britain ACCOUNTANTS and unit trusts. Accountant, Jan. 28, 1939, p. 114-5. AUDIT of unit trust yields. Accountant, Jan. 21,

 - AUDIT of unit trust yields. Accommun., 2019, p. 80.
 AUDITING of unit trust yield. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 424-5. Accountant, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 418-20.
 BEIGHTON, T. P. D. Growth of fixed and flexible trusts in England. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 153-60.

290

INVESTMENT TRUSTS-Great Britain-(Continued)

- NVESTMENT TRUSTS—Great Britain—(Continued)
 CONTROL of fixed trusts. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 29-31.
 ELLIOT'T, E. CASSLETON. Fixed trusts. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 391-7, discussion, p. 397-9. Accountant, Sept. 12, 1936, p. 364-9.
 FIXED trusts. Accountant, Aug. 29, 1936, p. 292-300; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 325-33. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 147-53; Oct. 1936, p. 314-25.
 FIXED trusts report. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 555-9.
 HOLDEN H. CASSEE Unit trusts. Incorporated

- 555-9. HOLDEN, H. CASSIE. Unit trusts. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 151-4. LONDON stock exchange. Fixed trusts; the stock exchange report. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 59-62. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Feb. 1936, p. 537-44. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1936, p. 157-61. MAY, A. WILFRED. British and American in-vestment trusts. Bankers magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 117-22.
- 117.22
- 117-22.
 MERRIMAN, C. O. H. Unit trusts; the technical side of operations. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, March 1939, p. 320-6. Ac-countant, July 15, 1939, p. 73-5.
 ROSENHEIM, C. L. Unit trusts—general aspects. Accountant, July 15, 1939, p. 75-9.
 WILLMAN, F. A. "Fixed trusts" report. Accoun-tants' journal (Eng.), Feb. 1936, p. 732-6.

Law

- United States UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Questionnaire to incorporated and un-incorporated investment trusts and investment companies of management type. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Janu-ary 1936. 90 mimeographed pages.
 - Victoria
- TAIT, J. B. Proprietary, foreign, holding and investment trust companies under the Victorian companies act, 1938. *Chartered accountant in Australia*, Aug. 1939, p. 117-33.
- INVESTMENT trusts and investment companies. United States. Securities and exchange commission.

INVESTMENT value of goodwill. Bloomberg, Lawrence N.

INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES See also Bonds; Brokers; Debentures; Invest-ment companies; Stock; Stock exchanges, AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION.

MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Endowment income and investments, 1926-1935. Washington, D. C., American council on education, April 1937. 21p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 8.)

- Same, 1926-1937. 16p. (v. 2, no. 14.)
 BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Investments. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 217-23.)
 BADGER, RALPH EASTMAN AND GUTH-MANN, HARRY G. Investment principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall,
- MANN, HARRY G. Investment principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 987p.
 BANKS, TALCOTT M., JR. Indenture securi-ties and the Barkley bill. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 533-72.
 BENINGTON, HAROLD. Plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 110-1 110-1
- BOSLAND, CHELCIE C. Common stock theory
- BOSLAND, CHELCIE C. Common stock theory of investment; its development and significance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 154p.
 CAIN, J. HARVEY. Comments on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds." Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 91-3.
 CALE, EDWARD G. Study of ineffective investment trust and precious metal mining issues. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 2026.

CHATTERS, CARL H. Distribution of tax-exempt

securities. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939, p. 51-6.) COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Effec-tive registration statements under the securities

- tive registration statements under the securities act of 1933; a tabulation of registration statements which have become effective under the securities act of 1933, from enactment to January 1, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, 55p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Securities act service; federal regulation of issue of securities. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, c1939, loose-leaf.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Stock exchange regulation securities. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939.
- loose-leaf.

- citating noise, inc., cryst, cryst, cryst, cryst, cryst, loose-leaf.
 EFFECT of section 3 (a) (10) of the securities act as a source of exemption for securities issued in reorganizations. Yale law journal, April 1936, p. 1050-76.
 ELGEN, RILEY E. High cost of marketing utility and other securities. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 270-7.
 FISHER, ROBERT D., ed. Robert D. Fisher manual of extinct or obsolete companies. v. 5. New York, Robert D. Fisher, successor to Marvyn Scudder and co., inc., 1937. 541p.
 FISHER, ROBERT D., ed. Robert D. Fisher manual of valuable and worthless securities, vol. 6, including vol. 5. New York, Robert D. Fisher X co., inc., 1938. 1008p.
 FOREIGN capital and the domestic market. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 2007.
- (Edi- 🗸 torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p.

- 5.8.
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Selling securities, underwriting, syndicating and distributing securities. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 336-435.)
 GREAT BRITAIN. Prevention of fraud (investments) act, 1939; 2 & 3 Geo. 6, ch. 16. London, H. M. stationery office, 1939. 34p.
 GREENE, HOWARD F. "Effective income"—what does it mean? National accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 16-21.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet—investments. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. (1939. the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 143-72.)
- b. 143-72.)
 HOSPELHORN, JOHN D. Railroad securities from the supervisor's point of view. National auditgram, May 1939, p. 18-21, 23.
 INVESTMENT COUNSEL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Investment counsel association of America, July 1, 1938. 154p. (v. 1, no. 1.)
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds. Journal of accountance, Jan. 1939, p. 31-7.
 JORDAN, DAVID F. Jordan on investments. ed. 3 rev. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 425p.

- 425p. KENT, ARTHUR H. Reciprocal taxation by fed-KENT, ARTHUR H. Reciprocal taxation by federal and state governments of salaries and income from securities. Taxes-the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 625-8, 656, 672-3.
 KUHN, C. JOHN. Securities act and its effect upon the institutional investor. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 80-8.
 LANG, P. C. Share transactions. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 260-5.
 LEVER, E. H. Some reflections on long-term investments with particular reference to the business of life assurance. Accountant, April 16, 1938, p. 525-33.
 MAGEE, JAMES D. Taxation and capital investment. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1939, 64p.

- ment. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1939. 64p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Regulation of securities. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 49-123.)
 MICHIGAN bankers association and others. Bond investment policies for banks; proceedings of the first annual Michigan bankers association study conference, Ann Arbor, December 9 and 10, 1938; under joint auspices Michigan bank-

INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES-(Continued)

ers association, Michigan state banking depart-ment, School of business administration, Uni-versity of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich., Uni-versity of Michigan, School of business admin-istration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 34p.

- Istration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 34p. (Michigan business papers, no. 2.)
 MILLS, GAIL A. Comments on "A plan for pool-ing the investments of endowment funds". Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 166-70.
 NORRIS, LESTER E. Restrictions on invest-ments by banks. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1936, p. 1-3, 23.
 PETERS, RALPH W. Accounting for hospital investments. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 1838.
- p. 183-8. REIS, BE

- p. 183-8.
 REIS, BERNARD J. False security; the betrayal of the American investor. New York, Equinox coöperative press, inc., 1937. 362p.
 REVISION in bank examination procedure and in the investment securities regulation of the comptroller of the currency. Federal reserve bulletin, July 1938, p. 563-6.
 SEYMOUR, NEVILLE C. Five year periods as price-earnings tests for fire insurance company stocks. Eastern underwriter, Jan. 27, 1939, p. 25-6. 25-6.

- stocks. Eastern underwriter, Jan. 27, 1939, p. 2256.
 STANLEY, HAROLD. Competitive bidding for new issues of corporate securities. New York, Morgan Stanley & co., 1939. 14p.
 STAUB, WALTER A. Some effects of federal taxes upon investment policies. (In Investment counsel association of America. Investment counsel association of the stock exchange official intelligence and the Stock exchange vgar-book; compiled and edited by the secretary of the share & loan department of the stock exchange. London, Thomas Skinner & co., 1936. 3458p.
 TEITELBAUM, EDWARD. Obligations of the city of New York. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the currency. Investment securities regulation. Washington, D. C., Comptroller of the currency, June 27, 1938. 3p.
 UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system. Board

- D. C., Comptroller of the currency, June 27, 1938. 3p. UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. List of stocks registered on na-1937 (prepared for purposes of regulation U) Washington, D. C., Federal reserve board, 1937.
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Security issues of electric and gas utilities 1935-1937. report of public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. 5p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Security issues of electric and gas utilities 1935-1936-1937-1938; report of public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 8p.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Relation of accounting statements and reports to security issues; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, 111-2018.
- dress before the Inita national accounting con-ference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illi-nois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric insti-tute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 537-8, 542. WILLVONSEDER, ERNEST. Pooling of endow-ment fund assets by quasi-public corporations. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939,
- vero rork certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 238-40. WILSON, THOMAS A. Investment course. Bur-roughs clearing house, March 1939, p. 7-9, 26, 28.

- WINTHROP, ALDEN. Are you a stockholder? New York, Covici, Friede, inc., c1937. 320p.
 WOODRUFF, ARCHIBALD M., Jr. Mortgages as life insurance company investments. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1939, p. 453-453-453 64.
- Accounting NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS.

Investments. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 199-331.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Investments. (In his

- ATON, WILLIAM A. Investments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 22.)
- 22.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Investments. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 505-15.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HER-MANN C. Investments. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 131-45.)

Auditing PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Securities. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 105-13.)
SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Securities. (In their Auditing, theory and pro-cedure. c1939, p. 117-36.)
TROUANT, D. L. Securities. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 50-7.)

Great Britain

CONTROL of capital issues. Accountant, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 419-22. SECURITY transfers; emergency regulations.

ECURITY transfers; emergency regulations. Accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 471.

Law

United States See Investment companies—Law—United States; Stock exchanges—Government regulation.

Registration of

See Investment companies—Law; Stock ex-changes—Government regulation.

Taxation

- Axanon See also Taxation. SINKER, JULIUS. Minimizing securities taxes, 1936-1937 edition. New York, Commerce clear-ing house, inc., 1936. 143p. SINKER, JULIUS. Your securities and federal taxes. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1926 112
- c1936. 112p.

Valuation

- See also Valuation. ATKINS, PAUL M. Official supervision of bank security portfolios. Bankers magazine, July 1938,
- security portiolios. Bankers magazine, July 1938, p. 13-9.
 BADGER, R. E. Effect of recent trends on investment values. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 333-8.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Massachusetts security valuations; approved lists of stock and bond values as of January 1, 1916 and official circular letters establishing the basis for computing gain or loss or other taxable income under the Massachusetts personal income tax law. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 136p.
 FISHER, ROBERT D. Values in securities of extinct companies; data on recoveries in supposedly worthless investments. Trust companies, July 1936, p. 51-4.
 JACOBSON, J. MARK. Valuation of securities for estate taxes. Trust companies, March 1937, p. 301-4.

- p. 301-4. NATIONAL CONVENTION OF INSURANCE COMMISSIONERS. List of securities held by insurance companies, with valuations to be used in the companies' annual statements as of De-cember 31, 1938. New York, Moody's investors service, Jan. 25, 1939. 708p. ROBINSON, LELAND REX. Investor informa-tion; its economic importance; address delivered at the Institute of public affairs, Charlottesville, Va., July 11, 1936. 27 mimeographed pages. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Securities owned. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 301-9.) TANNENBAUM DAVUD Valuation

- 301-9.) TANNENBAUM, DAVID. Valuation of securities under the federal estate tax law. Trusts and estates, June 1939, p. 709-13. VALUATION of investments in balance sheets. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 2-3.

INVESTOR information; its economic importance. Robinson, Leland Rex.

INVOICES

KUHN, HAROLD A. Why an invoice? Pi-box, v. 13, no. 10.

BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY IOWA

January 1, 1938. Sioux City, Iowa, State board of accountancy, 1938. 41p.
 Same, January 1, 1939. 42p.

WA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS Annual report of committee on natural business IOWA

year (1938-1939). 5 typewritten pages.

IOWA STATE COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE AND MECHANIC ARTS WINFREY, ROBLEY. Statistical analyses of industrial property retirements. Ames, Iowa, Iowa state college of agriculture and mechanic arts, Dec. 1935. 176p. (Bulletin 125)

IRELAND, F. Audit of airport authority accounts. Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 597-8.

IRISH, RONALD A.

- Modern practice in final accounts. Australian ac-countant, Aug. 1938, p. 62-9. Snapshots in executorship accounts; advancement and hotchpot. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936,

p. 165-7. Statistical analysis as an audit weapon. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 454-7.

"IRISH accountant and secretary". 35 Frescati Park, Blackrock, Dublin, Morris and company. 35 Frescati

IRON and steel companies in years of prosperity and depression. Chapman, Herman Hollis.

- IRON AND STEEL INDUSTRY See also Foundries, Iron and steel; Furnaces; Rolling mills.
 CHAPMAN, HERMAN HOLLIS. Iron and steel companies in years of prosperity and depression; submitted in partial fulfillment of the require-ments for degree of doctor of philosophy under the joint committee on graduate instruction, Columbia university. Tuscaloosa, Ala., The coundres 1035 3160
 - Columbia university, Fuscatoosa, Aia., The author, 1935. 316p.
 HIGGINBOTHAM, W. H. Prosperity and depres-sion in the steel industry. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 37-42.

Accounting DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manufacturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, sec-tion 1, p. 491-9.) Printed with: Gardner, Gra-ham A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations.

- nam A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations.
 OWENS, RICHARD N. Surplus accounts of iron and steel corporations. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 171-8.
 SMITH, FRANK P. Surplus adjustments in the iron and steel industry. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 379-90.

Cost accounting AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF STEEL CON-STRUCTION, INC. Uniform cost accounting; third progress report of committee on cost ac-counting. New York. American institute of steel construction, inc., May 29, 1937. 13 mimeographed pages.

Finance

SMITH, FRANK P. Financing the steel industry. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 331-9.

Statistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET. INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of foundries and iron works. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 64.)
 EARNINGS and hours in blooming, rail, struc-tural, plate, and billet mills, iron and steel

- industry, 1933 and 1935. Monthly labor review, June 1936, p. 1615-38. GAY, W. DAVID. Steel. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936. p. 96-125.) UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on steel producers with assets over \$100,000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works prog-ress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Nov. 1938. 63p. (Report no. 1.) WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 5, 'structural steel manufacturer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936, p. 205.)

IRON WORKS

See Iron and steel industry.

IRVING, BURTON M. Problems of the local practitioner. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 36-9.)

- IRVING. H. R.
 Amendments to sales tax exemptions act explained. Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 277-91.
 Further suggested sales tax reforms. Federal accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 641-6.
 How to treat bad debts and "other credits" in sales tax returns. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 212-18.
 How to treat "discounts" and "returns inward" in sales tax returns. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 307-73.
 Limitation of retrospective taxation and refunds of sales tax. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 367-73.

 - ot sales tax. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 367-73. Meaning of "goods" for sales tax purposes. Aus-tralian accountant, July 1937, p. 420-9. Money paid under mistake of law-important high court judement. Australian accountant, May 1938, p. 278-84. Sales tax: alteration of rate and "sale value" explained. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 283-8.
 - 283-8.
 - Sales tax reforms; should sales tax be increased or exemptions abolished? *Federal accountant*, Aug. 1939, p. 425-31.

- IRWIN, E. W. Butter consignment accounts. Australian accoun-tant, Jan. 1939, p. 459-67.
- WIN. JAMES W. Periodical reports to employees. Executives service bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 7-8. IRWIN.
- a mortgage a debenture? Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, June 1938, p. 297-8. IS а
- IS fixed overhead always a cost? (Forum section) Zarker, A. B.
- IS it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? A symposium, with comments by Samuel J. Broad, Thomas H. Sanders, William A. Paton, Maurice E. Peloubet, and Howard C. Greer. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 281-92.
- IS the balance sheet an anachronism? Australian accountant, March 1936, p. 74-6.
- IS the business year a "natural"? Mitchell, Walter, Jr.

ISAACS, NATHAN. joint author See Learned, E. P. and Isaacs, Nathan.

IVINS. J. E. Analysis of retrospective income taxation. Taxes —the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 76-8, 101-4.

- IYER, K. V. M. Indian income tax. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 126-9.
- J. M. F.

Some notes on the audit of a bank. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1936, p. 317-29.

JACK, H. D. Cost accounting during booms and slumps. Cost accountant, June 1939, p. 21-6.

JACKMAN, A. M. Effective handling of collections; a discussion of policies—a review of methods. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 238-40, 242-3.

JACKMAN, WILLIAM E.

Accounting for research and development costs; round table discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 199-228.)

JACKSON, ANDREW, joint author See Johnson, Adolph C. and Jackson, Andrew.

JACKSON, F. W. Depreciation accounting in respect to taxes. Na-tional accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 5-10.

JACKSON, HERBERT W. Recordak system of accounts receivable operation; address before the Credit management division, N.R.D.G.A. silver jubilee convention, Hotel Pennsylvania, New York City. New York, Recordak corporation, 1936. 7p.

JACKSON, IRWIN E., JR. Temporary rate making comes of age. Public utilities fortnightly, Dec. 7, 1939, p. 723-32. Public

- JACKSON, J. HUGH Business and Kiwanis ideals. Kiwanis magazine, Dec. 1937. Sound thinking, a great need of modern business: address given before the Controllers' council of the International association of milk dealers, at the Hotel Adolphus, Dallas, Texas, October 22, 1037 18 trueruitten naces, Texas, October 22,
 - 1937. 18 typewritten pages. Underlying principles of cost control. (In Na-tional association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 45-54.)

JACKSON, J. W. H.
Factors in factory production. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 391-400.
Plant assets (public utility). Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 11-5.
Science of management. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 307-13.
Symbol systems. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 69-76.

JACKSON, JOHN J. Major tax problems of industry. (In Nation tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 380-91.) National

JACKSON, L. A.

Financing water main extensions. Journal of the American water works association, Jan. 1938, p. 1-9.

JACOBS, HERBERT

Liabilities of receivers and managers. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 10-5. Accountant, July 16, 1938, p. 86-91.

JACOBS, J. L.

Exemption of tangible personality. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions, c1939, p. 141-54.) Urban property tax valuation trends. Tax maga-zine, May 1936, p. 263-6, 320.

JACOBS, JUSTIN Automatic bookkeeping via adding machine. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 3-5.

JACOBSON, J. MARK Valuation of securities for estate taxes. Trust companies, March 1937, p. 301-4.

JACOBY, NEIL H.

- Retail sales taxation; relation to business and con-sumers, and administrative problems. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 370p. Status of state general sales taxes as of July 1, 1938. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 468-74.
- JAIL for criminal inventories. Forbes, Sept. 15, 1939, p. 7-8.

JALUNDHWALA, R. C.

Company balance sheet, profit and loss account and auditors' report (under the Indian com-panies act, 1913-36.) Indian accountant, June panies act, 1913-1938, p. 194-206.

JAMES, ALBERT E.

Virtues of simplicity with special reference to revenue acts. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 619-20, 668-70.

JAMES, C. R. B.

Companies act, 1938; how it affects secretaries. (extracts from lecture delivered to members of the Victorian division of the Australasian insti-tute of secretaries (inc.) on Tuesday, the 28th March 1939. Melbourne, Australasian institute of secretaries of secretaries, 1939. 31p.

JAMES, CHARLES C.

- AMES, CHARLES C.
 Application of standard cost accounting to railroad administration. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-8.)
 Establishing cost differentials under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, Stevenson, Jordan and Harrison (1936). 12p. National accountant, April 1937, p. 8-11.
 Managerial control through cost accounting for construction work. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 756-77.) Printed with: Ellis, George D. Accounting for construction projects.

JAMES, F. CYRIL

- Colloquy on branch banking; contemporary ques-tions and answers. New York, American econ-omists council for the study of branch banking, c1939. 28p.
- JAMES, F. CYRIL, joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.
- JAMESON, E. S.
- Maconciliation statements. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 156-60.
- JAMISON, ALEXANDER, joint author See Stotz, Louis and Jamison, Alexander.
- JAMISON, C. L., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

- JAMISON, D. S., JR. Audit control in the trust department. Bankers magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 325-9. Systematizing the trust department for control requirements. National auditgram, Nov. 1938, p. 7 10-23
 - 7, 12-3.

JANIN, HARRY New provisions of the federal unemployment tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 563-5, 606-9.

JANIS, GEORGE N.

Clothing manufacturing accounting. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 365-70.

- JANIS, MURRAY
 - Difficulties in preparing monthly income state-ments. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 211-3.

Special taxation of corporate business. Tax maga-zine, Sept. 1938, p. 511-4, 558-64.

JANITOR SUPPLIES

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of input of input supply concerns. the 1935 operations of janitor supply concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 69.)

294

- JANUS, MILTON H., joint author See Kixmiller, William and Janus, Milton H.
- JAPAN ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED AUDITORS AND ACCOUNTANTS (NIPPON KENSA KEI-RISHI KAI) Year book, 1933-1937. Osaka, Japan, 436 Osaka building, Nakanoshima, 1937. 8p.

- JARCHOW, CHRISTIAN E.
 Employer's problem. Social security analyst, Jan. 1937, p. 9-10, 28.
 Employer's problem in social security reporting. Journal of the American statistical association, March 1937, p. 28-31, discussion, p. 32-4.

JARGON. Peloubet, Maurice E.

- JARRETT, H. W. Formula for relating working capital to sales and fixed charges. (Forum section) New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, July 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 21, section 2, p. 1251-2.)
- JARVIE, J. GIBSON
- redit and present day needs. Accountant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 48-52, discussion, p. 52-3. Credit

JAY, HARRY M. Goodwill. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 695-7.

- JAYNE, DAVID A. Cost accounting for bituminous coal mining com-panies. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1939,
 - p. 1, 4-8. Uniform system accounting of costs for bituminous coal mining industry. Charleston, W. Va., The author, c1938. 70p.

JEAL, EDWARD F.

- EAL, EDWARD F.
 Commissaire aux comptes in France; a study in comparative legislation. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 15-7; July 9, 1938, p. 50-3; July 16, 1938, p. 84-6.
 Learned judges and the auditor; a synthesis in interpretation of jurisprudence affecting auditors. Accountant, June 10, 1939, p. 77-83; June 17, 1939, p. 813-20. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 178-93; Oct. 1939, p. 265-83. p. 265-83.
- Some reflections on the evolution of the profes-sional practice of accountancy in Great Britain. Accountant, April 10, 1937, p. 521-9.

- JENKINS, B. N.
 Bad debts; charge off and recovery or sale under the federal revenue laws and related rulings and regulations. (T.D. 4633, G.C.M. 18525, I.T. 3172, G.C.M. 20854, I.T. 3256) National audit-gram, Sept. 1939, p. 9-12, 22-3.
 Federal taxation of banks under the revenue act of 1936 as amended. National auditgram, Feb. 1938, p. 4-7, 16-7.

JENKINS, R. A. How to take inventories of china, glass, silver and linen. Horwath hotel accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 4-5.

JENNINGS, A. R. Lavman's views of the Robinson-Patman act. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 1-6, 16.

JENSEN,

NSEN, JENS P. Exemption of improvements. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 206-21.)

JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL

Theory of real property valuation. Sacramento, Calif., The author, c1938. 309p.

JESPERSEN, C. Company law. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 4, p. 134-49.)

- JESSUP, R. S. Capital gains and losses since 1922. Taxes-the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 333-4, 368-9.
- JEWELRY retailers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc. and Natural business year council.

JEWELRY TRADE

- build in the provided and provided Statistics

 - URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Jeweiry retailers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 10, January 1939.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of retailers of jewelry. (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 30-1.)

- JOB ANALYSIS
 DICKINSON, Z. CLARK. Job analysis for wage and salary determination. (In his Compensating industrial effort. c1937, p. 187-218.)
 FINLAY, W. W. Comparative evaluation of occu-pations in industry. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 1, p. 161-75.)
 Printed with: Nickerson, Clarence B. Inventory valuation—the use of price adjustment accounts to segregate inventory losses and gains.
- JOB evaluation for the establishment of salary standards. Life office management association.
- JOB order cost system for a company manufac-turing uniforms. Schroedel, Gordon W.

JOBBERS

- See also Wholesale trade. Statistics
- BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for jobbers—general. (In his *Practical credit analy-*sis, c1939. p. 63, 93, 97, 110.)

- JOHNS, RALPH S. Federal income tax information relating to fiscal year changes of corporations. New York, Ameri-can institute of accountants, 1938. 4 mimeographed pages.

- JOHNS, W. G. S. Logic of accounts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 529-36. Philippine accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 304-9.
- JOHNSON, ADOLPH C. AND JACKSON, ANDREW Securities and exchange commission; its organiza-tion and functions under the securities act of 1933. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 3-18.

JOHNSON, ARNOLD W.

Accountants' certificates; paper delivered at the twenty-first annual convention of the Oklahoma society of certified public accountants, Oklahoma City, November 14-15, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages

Principles of accounting. No Rinehart, inc., c1937. 690p. New York, Farrar &

- JOHNSON, C. EDGAR Fair labor standards act of 1938-federal wages and hours law. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 6-11, 20-3.
 - p. 0-11, 20-3. Federal wages and hours law; a review of the fair labor standards act of 1938. National audit-gram, Dec. 1939, p. 9-14, 20-4. Social security act. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 6-11, 17-9.

JOHNSON, CHRIS Outline of organization and records; description of medium-size trust department set-up. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 316-21. Trust department procedure and auditing. National auditgram, April 1938, p. 17-20.

JOHNSON, GEORGE C. Amortized mortgages. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 1, 10.

JOHNSON, H.

Wages analysis. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 21.3

JOHNSON, HERBERT

tatutory duties of the secretary of a public limited company. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal. Aug. 1936. p. 105-10. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 735-40. Statutory

JOHNSON. MARK H. Tax-free liquidation; loophole and trap. Tax maga-zine, Jan. 1937, p. 3-4.

JOHNSON. MARK H., joint author See Braunstein, Jacques, and Johnson, Mark H.

JOHNSON, MILTON F.

- Investigation of a business on behalf of the de-benture holder. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Feb. 1936, p. 388-99.
- Stock and station agents' accounts. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, March 1938, p. 634-40.

JOHNSON. O'NEAL M.

- DINGUN, O'NEAL M.
 Distribution costs in the ice cream industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 203-21.)
 Good accounting procedure can help to make good ice cream profits. Ice cream trade journal, March 1936.

JOHNSTON. C. E., joint author See Reitell, Charles and Johnston, C. E.

JOHNSTON, MALCOLM

July 1936, p. 9-32.

JOHNSTON. MURRAY V. Streamlining credit forms. Credit and financial management, June 1937, p. 6-9.

JOHNSTON, WILLIAM

Efficiency of cost accounting. Cost accountant, May 1938, p. 369-77. Cost and management, Aug. 1938, p. 369-77, 1938, p. 202-15.

JOHNSTONE, B. R.

Refinery accounting. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 84-6.

JOINT product and by-product costs in mining. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, section 2, p. 1391-9.)

JOINT PRODUCTS

See Cost and factory accounting-Products.

- JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Forms of organ-ization—individual proprietorship, partnership, joint adventures, and joint stock company. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 50-60.)

 WEBB, F. K. Joint stock company—development in Great Britain. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 245-8.

JOINT VENTURES

See Ventures.

JOLLY, W. A. Some points from the national budget. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1939, p. 627-9.

JONES, D. M.

Some engineering factors affecting obsolescence. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 527-30, 552.

JONES, E. FURNIVAL

Some accountancy problems of yesterday and to-day. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 181-7, discussion, p. 187-8.

JONES, E. ROSCOE

Needed reforms in corporate taxation. Tax maga-zine, Dec. 1937. p. 709-10, 760. Revenue act of 1938—changes in the federal tax program. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 323-25, 370.

JONES, G. JETER

Accountants responsibility to the public (In Middle Accountants responsibility to the public (In Middle Alantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 46.)

JONES, HOMER

Operations of the Federal deposit insurance cor-poration. National auditgram, Nov. 1938, p. 9-11.

JONES, J. H.

- Accountant and economic affairs. Certified accoun-tants journal, Jan. 1936, p. 17-20, discussion, 20-1.
- British exchange equalisation account. Accountant, Aug. 28. 1937, p. 275-8. Burden of rearmament. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 553-5.

- 1936, p. 533-3.
 Currency problem. Accountant. Oct. 31, 1936, p. 579-81, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 615-6.
 Examinations. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 39-42. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 152-7.

- b. 152-7.
 b. 152-7.
 c. Condreved accountant in Australia, Aug. 1956, p. 152-7.
 Exchange control and the currency standard. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p. 3-5.
 Fair prices. Accountant, June 6, 1936, p. 842-4.
 Functions and future of the accountant. Accountant, Nov. 14, 1936, p. 667-71.
 Gold crisis. Accountant, June 12, 1937, p. 828-30.
 Inflation. Accountant, Nov. 25, 1939, p. 563-5.
 Internal and external debt. Accountant, March 18, 1939, p. 352-4.
 N.D.C. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 612-4.
 Neglected aspects of rationalisation. Incorporated accountants, fournal, March 1936, p. 209-12, discussion p. 212-5. Accountant, April 25, 1936, p. 645-9. discussion, p. 649-51.
 Planning the land of Great Britain. Accountant, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 467-70.
 Price problems. Accountant, March 5, 1938, p. 314-6.
- Price p 314-6.
- Reflections upon the N.D.C. Accountant, May 22, 1937, p. 720-2. Theories of taxation. Accountant, tax supplement, July 1, 1939, p. 249-51. Use of index numbers. Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937,
- p. 612-5.

JONES, LAURENCE H.

Valuation reserves in bank accounting; submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements of the graduate school of banking of the American institute of banking. New Brunswick, N. J., The author, June 1939. 97p.

296

JONES, MARK M.

Taxation and business enterprise—discussion. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 17-9.)

JONES, OWEN T. Factoring. Harvard business review, Winter num-ber, 1936, p. 186-9.

JONES, R. L. Economic law vs. statute law. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 234-5.

JONES, R. PERCIVAL Accident prevention in industry. Cost accountant, April 1938, p. 348-52.

JONES, RALPH COUGHENOUR

Current practice in teaching elementary account-ing. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 174-80.

JONES, T. OSMOND

General principles and practice of insurance. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 139-43.

JONES, W. D.

Management control. Cost and management, May 1936, p. 136-40.

JORDAN, HERBERT W. Private company formation. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 361.7. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 23-8.

JORGENSEN, ARNOLD Food and beverage control. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, Jan. 1938, p. 4-5.

JOSKE, P. E.

Formation of companies under the Victorian com-panies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, April 1939, p. 659-65.

- JOURNAL OF ACCOUNTANCY ACKNOWLEDGMENT. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 13-4.
 HARCOURT, CHARLES J. Student's depart-ment. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 224.
 LEGAL notes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 327

 - May 1937, p. 327. MAN to man. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 398-9. NEW format. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy,

 - NEW format. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 1.
 NOTES of the month. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 95.
 STUDENTS' department. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 297-9.
 STUDENTS' department. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 167-8; Dec. 1937, p. 2078; Dec. 1937, p. 167-8; Dec. 1937,

 - p. 407-8.

JOURNALS

- DURNALS
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 1-6, 59-62, 89-108.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Journal and ledger—Special journals. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 38-50; 121-44.)
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Journals. (In his Ac-counting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 322-44.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Journals. (In his Accounting, c1937. p. 180-231.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed. 4, c1939. p. 154-212.
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Special journals. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938. p. 86-96.)

- (In his Funaameniais of accommune. 1986-96.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Special journals. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 168-91.)
 MOULTON, R. C. Eliminating the journal. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1939, p. 211.3

- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Special journals—Other special journals and subsidiary ledgers. c1938. p. 154-68; 195-204.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Elaboration of journal. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. part 1, p. 97-118; 1938 ed. p. 193-210; 211-30.)
 PATON WILLIAM A. Primary books and pro-cedure—Elaboration of journal. (In his Essen-tials of accounting, 1937. Part 1, p. 58-80, 97-118.) 118.)
- PILCHER, DALTON J. Logical journalizing. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 466,

- Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 465, 507.
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Journals—Special journals—Colum-nar journals. (In their Frinciples of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 65-84; 93-106; 199-206.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Journal record—Specialization of journals—Cash journals—General journal. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements, 1938, p. 154-236.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. General journal—Special column journals and controlling accounts. (In their Basic accounting principles, 1937. p. 100-7; 208-32.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Simple journal—Special column journal. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting, 1937. p. 121-32.)

JOYCE, CHARLES C. Control of income and expense on owned bonds and mortgages and real estate. National audit-gram, Sept. 1939, p. 6-8, 21-2.

JUBIEN, ARTHUR E. Advertising agency accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 383-96.

JUBILEE of the American institute of accountants. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 25-8.

JUDD, HAROLD G.

Investigation of a business with a view to its changing ownership or securing additional capi-tal. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 90-108.

JUDD. ORRIN R.

Problems in connection with real estate in accounts of fiduciaries. New York certified public accoun-tant, Oct. 1938, p. 27-9.

JUDGMENTS

See Debts and debtors.

JUNIOR ACCOUNTANT; official organ of the Na-tional association of junior accountants. Boston, Mass., National association of junior accountants.

JUNK DEALERS

See also Scrap, waste, etc.

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of retail waste material dealers. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 104.) Analysis of the 1936 operations of waste

Analysis of the 1936 operations of waste material dealers (retail). (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 115.)

KAHN, MARTIN O., joint author See Engel, George C. and Kahn, Martin O.

KAHN, MORITZ What type of plant to build. Factory management and maintenance, April 1937, p. 51-5.

KAHN, SIDNEY B.

Monthly audit administration, working papers and reports. (address delivered before a meeting of the New York state society of certified public accountants on April 11, 1938.) 17 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 28-39.

KAISER, A. R.
 Taxation of intercorporate dividends; discussion. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 439-43.)

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

KAMMER, A., joint author See de Blaey, W. N. and Kammer, A.

KAMPH, H. N.

View of pay-roll accounting for 1939. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 6-7, 8.

KAMPH, H. N., joint author See Roberts, F. V. and Kamph, H. N.

KANSAS, UNIVERSITY OF, SCHOOL OF BUSI-NESS, BUREAU OF BUSINESS RESEARCH BLOCKER, JOHN G. Budgeting in relation to

distribution cost accounting. Lawrence, Kansas, University of Kansas, School of business, Jan. 1937. 79p. (Kansas studies in business no. 18.)

KAPLAN, ALFRED

- Tax disadvantages of individuals and partnerships. Taxes—the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 213-4. Taxesempt reorganizations; status after the Hendler case. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 523, 548.
- KAPLAN, MAURICE C. AND REAUGH, DANIEL м.

Accounting, reports to stockholders, and the S.E.C. Yale law journal, April 1939, p. 935-80. Ac-counting review, Sept. 1939, p. 203-36.

KAPLAN, WALTER

Suggested standard practice of leased department accounting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1938, p. 28-30.

KARABASZ, VICTOR S., joint author See Balderston, C. Canby and Karabasz, Victor S.

- KASSANDER, A. R. Cost accounting under the new price discrimina-tion law. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 1-6. 16.

1-6, 16.
Distribution costs. (prepared as supplement to article "Standard costs") L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1939, p. 12-6.
Last-in, first-out inventory method. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1939, p. 1-8.
Notes on the cost forum held by New York chapter, National association of cost accountants. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 1-5.

KATZ, WILBER G., joint author See Graham, Willard J. and Katz, Wilber G.

KAWIN, SAM

Balance sheet analysis and a detailed study of capital, inventory, profit and loss ratios. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 18-23.

KAY, R. M.

Some observations concerning mechanised account-ing. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 178-9.

KAY, ROBERT

Costing methods in the clothing industry. Accoun-tants' journal, June 1938, p. 765-9.

KEAST, GEORGE R.

SI, GEORGE R. Dest accounting problems in the canning industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniver-sary number, part 2, p. 12-6. Cost

KEATING, WILLIAM L. Controversial points in treatment of materials under a standard cost system. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 85-93.)

KEEFER, PEARL M., joint editor See New York special libraries association.

KEELER, FLOYD Y.

Hedging in a futures market against inventory and how it should interest the average banker. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, May 1938, p. 315-25.

KEENS, THOMAS

Business accounts and how to read them. (from the Accountants' journal (London) Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1936, p. 407-14.

KEEPING, GEORGE P.

International railway company v. the Niagara Parks commission. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Oct. 1938, p. 298-301.

KEGS

See Barrels; Containers.

KEHL, DONALD

Origin and early development of American dividend law. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939, p. 36-67.

KEIPER, B. F.

EIPLER, D. F. Reading hotel balance sheets. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, July 1939, p. 25-35. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 3-6. Reading hotel profit and loss statements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Sept. 1939, 77-03 p. 77-93.

KIERSTEAD, W. C. Taxation for school purposes; support and ad-ministration of education in the provinces of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 129-37.

KEITH, G. F.

Revised system of accounts receivable. Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 11-2, 15.

KEITH, J. CLARK

Journal of the American water works associa-tion, Aug. 1939, p. 1361-78.

KELLER, E. N.

Customer accounting problems in connection with statistics for federal power commission reports. *Edison electric institute bulletin*, Dec. 1939, p. 596-7.

KELLER, I. WAYNE Function of costs in a joint-products industry. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Nov. 15, 1339. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 6, section 1, p. 359-72.)

KELLER, JAMES I., JR.

Address at semi-annual meeting, Florida institute of accountants, November 18, 19, 1938, Lake-land, Florida. Florida accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 8-11.

KELLEY, ARTHUR C. In defense of the accountant. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 63-5.

KELLOGG, PAUL Prepare tomorrow's statements today. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 273-83.

KELLY, C. K. Classification and allocation of expenses. Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 259-70.

KELLY, C. L. Business life insurance on the books of account. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 315-6.

KELLY, E. A.

Contrasts in cost and financial accounting. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1938, p. 51, 52.

- accountant and secretary, April 1938, p. 51, 52.
 KELLY, LINCOLN G.
 Economic effect of present taxes on the mining industry; discussion of paper by W. H. Hoover. Mining congress journal, Nov. 1939, p. 34-5.
 Introduction to round table discussion: Extension of accounting practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 139-40.)
 Place of professional accountancy in present-day affairs; paper given at annual meeting of Mon-tana society of certified public accountants, Oct. 13, 1939. 16 typewritten pages.
 Presentation of financial statements. Certified pub-lic accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 2.7.
 Taxes; address at meeting of Intermountain asso-ciation of credit men at Salt Lake City, Utah, November 17, 1937. 11 typewritten pages.

KELLY, LINUS A. Relation between the bank examiner and the audi-tor. National auditgram, Nov. 1939, p. 25-8.

KELLY, WILLIAM J. Taxes and American progress, a commentary upon national policies in relation to the proposed revenue act of 1938; statement before Finance committee, of the United States senate, Washing-ton, D. C., March 18, 1938. Chicago, III., Ma-chinery and allied products institute, 1938. 16p.

KELYNACK, JOHN E.

Capital issues. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 314-7; Dec. 1939, p. 396-7.

KEMMER, JULIUS

- EMMER, JULIUS
 Anticipating income tax time; how small trust departments eliminate the spring peak, and put income tax data to work. Trust companies, May 1938, p. 549-53, 618-20.
 Protection for real estate assets; a modern system of management for smaller trust departments. Trust companies, Jan. 1938, p. 23-8.

KEMMERER, EDWIN WALTER Money: the principles of money and their ex-emplification in outstanding chapters of monetary history. New York, Macmillan co., c1935. 406p.

KEMP, G. W. Cost accounting by the machine method. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 88-93.

KEMP, W. G. Costing in the tin-box making industry. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 18-20.

KEMPER, JOHN D.

Installment accounting and straight line produc-tion. Credit world, Feb. 1939, p. 4-5.

KENDRICK, M. SLADE

- Incidence and effects of taxation: some theoretical aspects. American economic review, Dec. 1937,

- aspects. American economic review, Dec. 1937, p. 725-34. Processing tax provisions of the AAA. Tax maga-zine, May 1936, p. 273-8. Undistributed profits tax. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1937. 108p. Undistributed profits tax of 1936 and equity. Taxes—the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 200-2, 250-1.

KENDRICK, WAYNE Extensions of auditing procedure. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters. June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 10-13.)

KENNEDY, E. D. Dividends to pay. New York, Reynal and Hitch-cock, c1939. 288p.

KENNEDY, RALPH DALE, joint author See Owens, Richard Norman and Kennedy, Ralph Dale.

KENNEDY, STEPHEN JAY

Profits and losses in textiles; cotton textile financing since the war. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 257p.

KENNY, MATTHEW J. Accountant in the hotel. March 2, 1937. 9 typewritten pages.

KENT, ARTHUR H.

- Federal revenue act of 1936. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, supplement, March 1937. 12p.
- 12p. Federal revenue act of 1936—some current prob-lems; underlying reasons and objectives of ex-istent complexities in the law. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 204-8, 246. Federal tax program during 1935 and 1936; a review of the principal changes in federal taxes since the 1934 act. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 20.4 61.2
- 20-4. 61-2.

- Reciprocal taxation by federal and state governments of salaries and income from securities. Taxes-the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 625-8, 656, 672-3.
- Taxation of capital gains and losses. Tax maga-zine, July 1938, p. 389-92, 428-30.

KENTUCKY. PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

- ENTUCKY. PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Frankfort, Ky., Pub-lic service commission, 1936. 169p. Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Frankfort, Ky., Pub-lic service commission, 1936. 154p. Uniform system of accounts for municipal water utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Frankfort, Ky., Public service commission, 1935. 89p.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY Annual register, July 31, 1936. Louisville, Ky., Office of the secretary, 1936. 26p. Same, May 1, 1939. 30p.

KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-

COUNTAINTS What is a certified public accountant? Louisville, Ky., Kentucky society of certified public accoun-tants, June 15, 1939. 7p.

KEOGH, D. S. Control of labor through standards. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 123-35.)

KERR, THOMAS S.

Business law; principles and cases. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1939. 1048p.

- KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Accounting for stock dividends paid. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 369-85. Accounting for stock dividends received. Account
 - ing review, June 1938, p. 166-73. Analysis of variation in net profit. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p.
 - 429-32

 - 429-32.
 Corporate distributions as income to stockholders. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 366-79.
 Limitations on stock dividends. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 238-55.
 Stock dividends in trust distributions. Account-ing review, June 1937, p. 93-104.
 Taxability of stock dividends under federal and state laws. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 373-87.
 Whither accounting. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 61-4.

KESSELRING, JOHN Measure of obsolescence in buildings. Municipal finance, Feb. 1936, p. 51-4.

- KESTER, ROY B.
- ESTER, ROY B.
 Education for professional accountancy. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 99-105; comments by Warren W. Nissley, p. 105-8.
 Practitioner's responsibilities for accountancy education. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 259-65.
 Practitioner's responsibilities in a program of education for the accountant. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 26-3.)
 Principles of accounting. ed. 4. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 703p.
 Unbalanced objectives in financial accounting; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute Chicago, Ill., November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 531-4.
 FSTER, ROY B.. ioint author
- KESTER, ROY B., joint author See McCrea, Roswell C., and Kester, Roy B.

KESTLER, MELVIN

Cash discounts. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 197.

KETCHUM, BERT Conning verification of accounts. Savings and loans, Dec. 1939, p. 3-4.

KETTERING, CHARLES F. Research and industry. (from Scientific American) Cost accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 67-70.

KETTLE, RUSSELL

Few remarks on balance sheets and profit and loss accounts. Accountant, April 8, 1939, p. 467-78. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 410-30.

KEYNES, J. N.

- Ore purchase tariffs. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 152-8. Shadow boards. Australian accountant, March
- nadow boards. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 97-102.

KEYNES, JOHN MAYNARD General theory of employment, interest and money. New York, Harcourt, Brace and co., 1936. 403p.

KEYNES, JOHN MAYNARD MINETT, F. H. and ARMITAGE, R. L. Economist as accountant. Accountant, Jan. 23, 1937, p. 125-7.

KIBURTZ, E. G.

Compulsory arbitration in the grain and feed trade. Arbitration journal, Oct. 1938, p. 327-30. feed

KICKLER, D. C.

RCKLER, D. C.
 Eight pieces of paper enough to run this plant. Factory management and maintenance, Feb. 1937, p. 50-2.
 Find gray iron foundry costs; through a set of comparatively simple forms accurate check may be obtained. Foundry, Jan. 1937, p. 54, 57.

KILDUFF, F. W.

Some aspects of inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 12, section 1, p. 779-92.) Printed with: Dolliver, E. P. Finished goods inventory control.

KILLOUGH, LUCY WINSOR Exemptions to educational philanthropic and religious organizations. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939, p. 23-38.)

KILPATRICK, JAMES Prospectuses of public companies—behind the scenes. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 237-56.

KILPATRICK, WYLIE

State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' asso-ciation. Municipal year book, 1936. p. 340-66.)

KIMBALL, CHARLES C. Accountants' reports from a banker's viewpoint; address before Massachusetts society of certified public accountants, inc., at Worcester, Mass., November 23, 1936. 22p. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 267-78. Indian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 263-71. Robert Morris associates monthly builetin, Feb. 1938, p. 231-3, 239-43.

KIMBALL, MILO

Principles of corporate finance. New York, Long-mans, Green and co., 1939. 306p.

 KIMPEL, H. M.
 Centralized accounting at Cleveland Heights, Ohio. *American city*, Aug. 1936, p. 79, 81.
 Municipal financial control through modern ac- counting. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 12, section 1, p. 624-35.) Printed with: Dickerson, Thomas M. Municipal accountants. accounting.

KING, C. H.

Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 49-54.

KING, ELDON P.

Income tax reciprocity with Canada. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 511-17.)

KING, L. J. Job evaluation. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1938, p. 93-8.

KING, PAUL H. First year of Chandler act; review of some fea-tures of bankruptcy law of special interest to credit men. Credit and financial management, July 1939, p. 24-6, 28-9, 48.

KING, WILLFORD I.

Causes of economic fluctuations; possibilities of anticipation and control. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 353p.

KINGSLEY, V. R.

C.P.A. examinations. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 214.

KINTISCH, MORTON D. Camp canteen control. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1938, p. 1-3. Hotel resort accounting. Pathfinder service bulle-tin, April 1937, p. 1, 3-8.

KINVIG, E. JAMES Works organization and layout. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 46-9.

KIRK, W. P. Purchase of new machinery and equipment. Society for the advancement of management journal, Sept. 1937, p. 154-6.

KIRKHAM, EDWARD J. Depreciation under the income tax. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 345-73.

- KIRKHAM, EDWARD J. AND GAA, C. J. Is there a theory basis for audit procedure? Ac-counting review, June 1939, p. 139-46.
- KIRSH, BENJAMIN S. AND SHAPIRO, HAROLD ROLAND Trade associations in law and business. New York, Central book company, 1938. 399p.

KISER, SHELDON F.

Machine bookkeeping in the savings department. National auditgram, March 1937, p. 8-9.

KIXMILLER, WILLIAM

KIXMILLER, WILLIAM AND JANUS, MILTON H. Foundation guide for payroll taxes. ed. 3. Chicago, 111., Foundation press, inc., c1939. 224p.

KLAGSTAD, H. L. Are inventory reserves required under the retail inventory method? Balance sheet, Sept. 1938, p. 7-16.

KLANDERMAN, GERALD E. Changing from calendar year to natural business year. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. year. 386-92.

KLASSEN, C. W. AND WISELY, W. H. Newer methods of sewage works financing; recent experiences in the state of Illinois. Water works and sewerage, March 1937, p. 88-93.

KLEIN, FRANK

LEIN, FRANK Control of plant expense through variable budgets. Society for the advancement of management journal, July 1937, p. 104-10. Essentials for effective budgetary control. Con-troller, Nov. 1939, p. 400-3. Some developments in variable budgeting. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, p. 1155-71.) Printed with: Wilks, Paul A. Flexible budget system at Strathmore baber company. paper company.

- KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Accountants' testimony at hearings on federal tax_bill. Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 8-9.

 - p. 8-9. Changes in federal income taxation; existing prob-lems require simplification. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 731-4. Liquidations under the revenue act of 1936. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 648-50. Present menace of taxation; address prepared for delivery before the Controllers' congress of the National retail dry goods association, Chicago, June 22, 1937. New York, The author, 1937. 17 typewritten pages. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 30-5, discussion, p. 35-6.) Present menace of taxation; an interpretative need

 - book of retailing. 1937. p. 30-5, discussion, p. 35-6.)
 Present menace of taxation; an interpretative need for a sane, scientific, integrated and equitable taxing program seen. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 583-6, 626.
 Recent changes in federal income taxation; address delivered at forum of New York county lawvers association. Thursday, October 21, 1937. New York, N. Y. 21 typewritten pages.
 Reorganizations under the revenue acts. (remarks of the discussion leader at round table discussion, at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 5 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 5 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants, Fiftieth amiversary celebration. 1937. p. 206-13.)
 Revenue act of 1935. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Sept. 1935. p. 21-3.)
 Selected features of the revenue act of 1938. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 507-10. 540-51.
 Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Dr. Joseph J. Klein. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 63-4.

KLEIN, TOBIAS

External audits—Systems installation. (In McGold-drick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lectures 6a and 6b, April 7, 1938.)

- KLEINHAUS, H. I. See also National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
 Controllers' study shows '37 sales rise of 5%: profit declined 35%. Bulletin of the National re-tail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 11-3, 150.
 Distribution costs as a factor in business recovery. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods associ-ation, Oct. 1936, n. 23, 46.
 Flash report on 1937 sales. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Jan. 1938, p. 21-2, 92.
 Merchandise accounting and the sales of th

 - 92. Merchandise accounting and planning under the retail method. Pathfinder service bulletin, May 1939, p. 1, 3, 5, 8. Retail inventory method. Balance sheet, March 1938, p. 18-28. Retail method; a brief outline. Profit, May 1939,

 - p. 1, 4. Review of

 - Retail method; a brief outline. Profit, May 1939, p. 1, 4.
 Review of departmental operations; accent on merchandise. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing, 1936. p. 160-7, discussion, p. 167-8.)
 Standard accounting procedure—its value to retailing. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1936, p. 19-20, 45-6.
 Uniform accounting procedure as an aid in reducing retail operating costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 519-33.)
 What's behind the figures? A study of furniture department operations in 1936 as shown by the departmental merchandising and operating results. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1937, p. 11-4.
 Why operating costs are lower in Scandinavian store. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Sept. 1938, p. 21-2, 72, 74, 76.

KLUG, V. CHILDS Accounting treatment of unamortized discount and premium in utility refunding operations. (reprinted from the Journal of land and public utility economics, Nov. 1936.)

KNAPP, C. HOWARD

NAPP, C. HOWARD Revenue act of 1938: the viewpoint of the indus-trial accountant. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 71-81.)

KNAPP, CARL T. Taking and tabulating inventory in the specialty store. Balance sheet, Jan. 1938, p. 15-6.

KNAUTH, OSWALD W. Reshaping distribution to modern economy. C and management, June-July 1939, p. 196-203. Cost

KNAUTZ, HARRY A., joint author See Langer, Charles H. and Knautz, Harry A.

KNIGHT, L. C. Brief history of early accountancy. Federal ac-countant, March 1939, p. 80-1.

KNIGHTLY, P. K. Redemption of debentures. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1937. p. 604-8.

KNIT GOODS

- CONT GOODS Cost accounting ACCOUNTING for finished stock storage in a hosiery mill. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 35-7.)
- 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 35-7.)
 BENNETT, CLINTON W. Cost plan for the knitting industry. New York, National associ-ation of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 13, no. 3, section 1, p. 143-65.)
 BLACK, J. B. Cost accounting with particular reference to underwear manufacture. Accoun-tants' journal, June 1937, p. 375-7.
 FLETCHER, F. R. \$49,000 a year saved by standard cost system in a hosiery mill. Textile world, April 1936, p. 102-3.

Inventory ACCOUNTING for moisture loss on cotton yarn. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 2, p.

Statistics

- itatistics
 itatistics
 BENIAMIN. EUGENE S. Operating ratios for hosiery mills. (In his Practical credit analysis, c1939, p. 75.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., and NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Hosiery manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Brad-street, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 16, August 1939.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of hosiery and knitted outerwear whole-salers. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1936. p. 54, 80, 104, 129, 184-5.) (1937 ed.-p. 55, 83, 109, 136, 200-1.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 38-9.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. Hosiery and underwear; and knitted outerwear. p. 38-9.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of hosiery manufacturers, and knitted outerwear manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.-p. 51, 79, 105, 132, 192-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 30-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 30-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 22-3.)

KNITTEL, ROGER F.

Help wanted—accountants. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 158-62.

KNOELLER, HERMAN M.

CNOELLER, HERMAN M. Commentary on federal income taxes; address given December 16, 1937, at Tax clinic of the Wisconsin society of certified public accountants and also on December 20, 1937, before the Milwaukee chapter of the National association of cost accountants. 22 typewritten pages. Tax magasine, March 1938, p. 131-4, 180-3. Critique of federal income taxes. Tax magasine, March 1938, p. 131-4, 180-3.

KNOEPPEL, C. E. AND SEYBOLD, EDGAR G. Managing for profit; working methods for profit planning and control. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1937. 343p.

KNOP, WILLIAM

Fluctuations in food costs. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, Dec. 1939, p. 4-5.

KNOPP, RUSSELL

Calamity of December 31st. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 13-5, 38. Jobs and juniors. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 391-6.

KNOWLES, ASA S. AND MEANS, FREDERIC C. Survey of job evaluation as used by industry in determining base rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 1, p. 381-416.)

KNOWLES, C. N.

Some elementary aspects of budgetary control. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 414-20.

KNOX. FRANK A.

International accounts. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Aug. 1936, p. 93-103; Sept. 1936, p. 195-208; Oct. 1936, p. 296-308; Nov. 1936, p. 384-402.

KNOX, ROBERT W., joint author See Hoffman, Leo H. and Knox, Robert W.

KNOX, ROY A. Municipal budget system. Municipal finance, Nov. 1937, p. 31-4.

KNUST, HENRY

Natural business vear. Connecticut bar journal, April 1937, p. 225-6.

KOEHLER. WALTER C. Capital investment in pricing. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1939, p. 334-51.)

KOHL, CLEM N.

What is wrong with most profit and loss state-ments? New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1207-19.)

- KOHLER, ERIC L. Advanced accounting problems. New York, Pren-tice-Hall inc., 1939. 271p. Report of president of American accounting association. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 701

 - association. Accounting review, March 1957, p. 70-1. Solutions for advanced accounting problems. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. loose-leaf. Some debated issues on consolidated financial statements. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on accounting principles and pro-cedure, 1938. p. 42-6.) Some tentative propositions underlying consolidated
 - Some tentative propositions underlying consolidated reports. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 63-77.

KOHLHEPP, C. E. 1938 depreciation problem. Edison electric insti-tute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 517-8, 526.

KOHLHEPP, J. W. Liabilities of accountants. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 116.

KOMAREK, E. J. Adjustment of a recent fire and use and occupancy loss. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. *Vear book of retailing*. 1937. p. 42-6, discussion, p. 46-8.)

- KOONTZ, HAROLD D. Cost finding for railroads. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 284-95. Depreciation base in railroad accounting. Journal of land and public utility economics, Feb. 1937, p. 1-13.
 - Depreciation policy and financial structure in Amer-ican railroads. Harvard business review, Sum-mer number, 1936, p. 460-70.
- KOPPENBERG, W. E., joint author See Lindner, J.A.M.F. and Koppenberg, W. E.

KOPPERMAN, CECIL H., joint author See Groves, Henry M. and Kopperman, Cecil H.

- KOSIOL, ERICH Annual financial statements of German corporations. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 183-91. Bases of valuation in German corporate balance sheets. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 355-60.

- KRACKE, EDWARD A. Consolidated financial statements. Journal of ac-countancy, Dec. 1938, p. 372-89. (In V. inter-nationaler prifungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 135-60.)
 - Impracticable inventories. Accounting ledger, Oct.
 - 1939, p. 14, 39. Installment sales of merchandise by public utilities. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 23-9.
 - Inventories and taxes. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 369-76.

KREBS, GEORGE R.

Fraternity finance and accounts. St. Paul, Minn., Leland publishers, inc., c1935. 224p.

KREBS, WILLIAM SAMUEL Public-utility depreciation in its relation to the rate base. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 93-108.

^{9,5,103.}
Treatment of commercial disc forum, Nov. 1936, p. 6-7.
Modifying the trust fund doc forum, Jan. 1939, p. 26-9, 54. discount. Accounting doctrine. Accounting

KREJCU, JOSEPH E.

York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 265-8, discussion, p. 269-74.

- KREKSTEIN, I. H. Address to Philadelphia chapter, Pennsylvania in-stitute of certified public accountants, January 31, 1938, and Pittsburgh chapter, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, January 19, 1938.
 - ciation of cost accountants, January 19, 1938. 15 typewritten pages. General discussion of the Pennsylvania tax system. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the Ameri-can institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, 1938. p. 31-41.) Valuation of capital stock in Pennsylvania for tax purposes. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 51-5.

KREPS, THEODORE J., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

KRESS, ARTHUR W.

RESS, ARTHUR W. Summary sheet for analysis and control of de-preciation. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulle-tim, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1266-72.) Printed with: Dawson, C. O., Metzger, Adrian and Hammond, James E. Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line basis and should not vary with the volume of production—a debate.

- KRICHMAN, MARVIN L. Are U. S. shareholders taxable for the undis-tributed income of foreign personal holding com-panies? Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 712-4, 712-4, panies? 746-8.

KRIEGSHAUSER, C. J. Control of trust department assets. National audit-gram, Jan. 1937, p. 4-5, 11.

KRISTELLER, LIONEL P. Some problems common to the practice of law and accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceed-ings of the second annual institute on accounting ... May 19, 20, 1939. p. 33-40.)

KRUCHTEN, E. Q. Accounting for life insurance policies. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 161-70. Profit, Sept. 1939, p. 1, 4. Reprinted.

KRUEGER, JUDSON E.

Office accounts. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 178-80.)

KUECHLER, G. J. Internal audit of refunds. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 10-12.

KUHN, C. JOHN Securities act and its effect upon the institutional investor. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 80-8.

- KUHN, HAROLD A. Four-column ledger accounts for attorney's records and other purposes. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 1, 7-8.
 Simplification of forms for individual income tax returns. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 410-1.

Why an invoice? Pi-box, v. 13 no. 10.

KULP. C. A.

Unemployment insurance, a problem of administra-tion. Society for the advancement of manage-ment journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 137-40.

KUNKEL, FRED E. Know your trucking costs. Rock products, Sept. 1939, p. 55, 62.

KUNKEL, JOHN Valuation of compensation stock. Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1939, p. 48-50.

KUNZE. HARRY L. Priority of taxes under the bankruptcy act. Ac-counting review, June 1936, p. 125-9. What is taxed by an income tax? Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 349-52.

KURTZ, EDWIN B. Science of valuation and depreciation. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 221p.

- KUZNETS, SIMON
 Changing inventory valuations and their effect on business savings and on national income pro-duced. (In National bureau of ecomonic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 145-56, discussion. p. 157-72.)
 Income originating in nine basic industries, 1919-1934. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 59, May 4. 1936, p. 1-24.
 National income, 1919-1935. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 66, Sept. 27, 1937, p. 1-15.
 Some problems in measuring per capita labor income. (In National bureau of economic research search. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 305-24.)

KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN. MILTON Incomes from independent professional practice, 1929-1936. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 72-3, Feb. 5, 1939.

L.N.A. budget cost system. Lithographers national association.

LABOR

- ABOR See also Arbitration and award; Industrial rela-tions: Social security; Unemployment. BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Labor. (In his Intro-duction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 116-26.) FELLER, ALEXANDER and HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to deal with organized labor. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 664p. KEOGH, D. S. Control of labor through stand-ards. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1937. p. 123-35.)

- Accounting BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Accounting for labor. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936.

 - accounting
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Accounting for labor. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 127-39.)
 DOWNIE, L. W. Payroll accounting and labor control. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1937. p. 101-22.)
 FARM worker's monthly labor record. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1939. p. 7-8.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Labor and payroll pro-cedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 322-44.)
 HENSHAW, FRANK O. Labor control in the sign shop. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.)
 JOHNSON. H. Wares analysis. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 21-3.
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Pay-roll records and labor reports—Determining direct-labor costs. (In its Cost accounting pro-cedure. 1937. p. 67-86.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Accounting for labor costs. (In his Cost accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 147-74.)

 - 74)

 - MAKEPEACE, R. S. Control of direct labor cost variance in a metal goods factory. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 13, section I, p. 839-68.)
 MANNIX. RAYMOND L. Accounting for labor costs. (In his Basic course in cost accounting, 1938, p. 96-113.) (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1938, p. 96-113.) (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1936, p. 88-105.)
 MARTIN. A. Control of direct and indirect labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1. p. 991-1012.) Printed with: Henshaw, Frank O. Labor control in the sion shop.
 NORTH. A. F. System of labor cost and payroll concerting used by the Allen Brades company.
 - winn: inclusion we find the construction of the state state shop.
 NORTH. A. F. System of labor cost and payroll accounting used by the Allen Bradley company. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 527-32.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.
 NUTTALL. F. Labour as a cost element. Cost accountant, Aug. 1939. p. 79-83.
 ODOM, WILLIAM E. How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2. section 1, b. 100-10.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies.
- Costs
 ASHLEY, R. W. Control of labour costs. Australian accountant. Oct. 1939, p. 179-90.
 BAUM, WILLIAM. Problem of labor costs.
 Rayon and melliand textile monthly, June 1936, n. 360-2.
 DEDELL, L. V. Control of labor costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book. 1938, n. 139-48.)
 COMPTON. WILLIAM H. Can it be done? Trenton. Nov. 1937, p. 17-8.
 GEROFSKI. IRVIN. New developments in controlling labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants. Sept. 1. 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-11.)
 - GLOVÉR, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN

LABOR-Costs-(Continued)

- L. Control of direct labor costs. (In their Mana-
- L. Control of direct labor costs. (In their Mana-gerial control, instruments and methods in indus-try. c1937. p. 280-93.) HENSHAW, FRANK O. Labor control in the sign shop. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.) HIGHTON, H. E. R. Cost of labour. Cost accoun-tant, May 1936, p. 376-8. LABOR on the balance sheet; the creditman's new problem. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 39-42.

- 35:42.
 MAKEPEACE, R. S. Control of direct labor cost variance in a metal goods factory. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 13. section 1, p. 839-68.)
 MARTIN, A. Control of direct and indirect labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15. section 1, p. 991-1012.) Printed with: Henshaw, Frank O. Labor control in the sign shop.
- with: Henshaw, Frank O. Labor control in the sign shop.
 ODOM, WILLIAM E. How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 100-10.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PODD, GEORGE O. Trend of payroll costs in hotels. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 3, 5-6.
- 5-6.
- 23, 5-0. ment and maintenance, Dec. 1938, p. 53-4.

Law and regulation

- See also Monthly labor review. AHEARN, V. P. Federal wage-hour law, inter-preted and explained. Rock products, Nov. 1938,
- preted and explained. ROCK prounces, Aug. 2003, p. 70-3.
 AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES. Interpretative bulletin no. 1, under the wage and hour law. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, Oct. 13, 1938. 2p. (Current news bulletin)
 AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES. Regulations covering learners, apprentices, messengers and handicapped workers under fair labor standards act. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, Oct. 15, 1938. 3p. (Current news bulletin)
 BALLANTINE, ARTHUR A. Federal power over interstate commerce. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939, p. 26-33.)
 BEKAERT, ARSENE C. Wages and hour law. 2007. 31, 38.

- BEKAERT, ARSENE C. Wages and hour law. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 27-31, 38. BOUDIN, LOUIS B. Sherman act and labor disputes. Columbia law review, Dec. 1939, p. 1283-1337.
- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Labor law service. ed. 2. New York, Commerce clear-ing house, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939.
- ing house, inc., c1500, c2007, c2007, c1600, constructions in the second second

- p. 286-7. FEDERAL wages and hours, law of 1938. Monthly labor review, July 1938, p. 107-12. FELLER, ALEXANDER, and HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to operate under the wage-hour law. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1938.
- 248p.
 CREENMAN, RUSSELL L. Supervisory problems under the Wagner act. Society for the advance-ment of management journal, March 1939, p. 36.8, 48.
 JOHNSON, C. EDGAR. Fair labor standards act of 1938-federal wages and hours law. National auditgram, June 1939, p. 6-11, 20-3.

- JOHNSON, C. EDGAR. Federal wages and hours law; a review of the fair labor standards acts of 1938. National auditgram, Dec. 1939, p. 9-14,

- of 1938. National analysis, and the standards act of 1938. At typewritten pages. MARSH, SAM A. Fair labor standards act of 1938. 24 typewritten pages. MEDER, ALBERT E. Analysis of provisions of Connery fair labor standards bill. Controller, Julv 1937, p. 192-5. NYSTROM, PAUL H. Effects of labor regulation on the cost of distribution and prices of goods. (In Boston conference on distribution, 1937, p. 25-8.)
- on the cost of distribution and prices of goods.
 (In Boston conference on distribution, 1937. p. 25.8.)
 ROBBINS, E. C. Collective bargaining under the Wagner labor act. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937. p. 393-405.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Public—no. 718— 75th congress—chapter 676—3d session (S2475); an act to provide for the establishment of fair labor standards in employments in and affecting interstate commerce, and for other purposes. (approved June 25, 1938.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 11p.
 UNITED STATES. Labor, Department of. Ceil-ing for hours, a floor for wages and a break for children; an explanation of the fair labor stand-ards act of 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 15p.
 UNITED STATES. Labor, Department of. Inter-pretative bulletin no. 1; general statement as to the coverage of the fair labor standards act of 1938. Washington, D. C., Department of labor, Wage and hour division, Oct. 12, 1938. 3 mimeographed pages.
 UNITED STATES. Labor statistics. Bureau of.

- Wage and nour division, Oct. 12, 1330. 5 mimeographed pages. NITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of. State labor legislation, 1937, including work-men's compensation legislation, prepared by Labor law information service. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1938. 31p. UNITED
- LABOR control in the sign shop. Henshaw, Frank Ο.
- LABOR INCENTIVES See Wages, fees, etc.—Incentives.
- LABOR law service. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- LABOR on the balance sheet; the creditman's new problem. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 39-42.
- LABOR SAVING DEVICES HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Some labor sav-ing devices. (In his A B C of accounting. 1938. p. 106-23.)
- LABOR SHARES

See Wages, fees, etc.-Stock distributing.

- LABOR UNIONS See Trade unions.
- LACHMANN, L. M. Investment and costs of production. A economic review, Sept. 1938, p. 469-81. American
- LaFEVER, M. W., joint author See Tolles, N. A. and LaFever, M. W.
- LAING, J. MURRAY Importance of interest to life assurance. Accoun-tant student and the Accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 202-6.
- LAING, L. L., joint author See Paton, William A., Briggs, R. P., and Laing, L. L.
- LAING, STANLEY B. Depletion in metal mines for income tax. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 328-37.
- LAIRD, FREDERICK C. When is income realized? (reprinted from the December issue of the John Marshall law quarterly)
- LAIRD, THOMAS D.

Motor-car agents accounts. zine, May 1938, p. 272-9. Accountants' maga-

LAIRD, WALTER J. Living trust fees on income and principal; bring-ing fee schedules into line with cost of trust service. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 280-4.

LAMB, CARTER H.

Continued property record and its uses. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1616-22.

LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Fundamentals of accounting. New Brunswick, N. J., The author, 1938. 320p.

LAMPS

Cost accounting SKINNER, EMERY H. Determining costs for the lamp industry. News bulletin, School of business of the University of Chicago, Nov. 4, 1938, p. 73-5.

LAND

See Assets, Fixed; Real estate.

LANDELL, C. D.

What the executive requires from the cost accoun-tant. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, p. 322-5.

LANDIS, JAMES M.

- ANDIS, JAMES M.
 Address before the twenty-fifth annual conference of the Investment bankers association of Ameri-ca, Augusta, Georgia, December 4, 1936. 11 mimeographed pages.
 Administrative process. New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1938. 160p.

LANDLOW, JOSEPH M. Budgetary control for gold-mining companies. (re-printed from Engineering and mining journal, Jan. 1936.)

- LANE, CHESTER T. Coöperation with the S.E.C. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 5-11.
- LANE, CHESTER T., joint author See Throop, Allen E. and Lane, Chester T.

LANG, GEORGE V. Trends and methods in foundry and machine shop accounting. Iron age, July 9, 1936, p. 56-9.

LANG, P. C. Share transactions. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 260-5.

LANG, THEODORE Accounting for joint products. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 10-3, 37.

LANG, THEODORE, joint author See Schlauch, William S. and Lang, Theodore.

LANGE, A. P. Superior insurance coverages. Balance sheet, Nov. 1939, p. 7-12.

- LANGER, CHARLES H. Accounting principles and procedure; cost account-ing. Chicago, Ill., Walton publishing co., c1939. not paged.

- LANGER, CHARLES H. AND GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY
 - Accounting principles and procedure on estate accounting; lectures 44 and 45. Chicago, Ill., Walton school of commerce, c1936. not paged.

LANGER, CHARLES H. AND KNAUTZ, HARRY A. Walton federal income tax accounting and pro-cedure, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Walton pub. co., c1935. loose-leaf. (Walton accounting series)

LANGHAM, H. L.

Synagogue accounts, control and administration; including the accounts of burial societies and religion classes. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1933. 62p.

- LANGSTON, JAMES T. Provisions of social security act as amended. Controller, Dec. 1939, p. 424-7.
- LANGSTON, L. H. Bank accounting practice. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 532p.

LANGTON, A. E. Equitable apportionments. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 56-9. Accoun-tant, Oct. 10, 1936, p. 505-8. Australian accoun-tant, Dec. 1936, p. 421-9.

- LAPORTE, CLOYD Changes in corporate reorganization procedure pro-posed by the Chandler and Lea bills. Harvard law review, Feb. 1938, p. 672-92.
- LARAMEE, FREDERICK G. Clerical and accounting waste in industry. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 448-53.
- LARGE retail jewelry stores; statistical analysis of operating figures for 1935. Dun and Bradstreet,
- LARGER role for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 366.
- LARIMORE, T. R. Accounting in the small liberal-arts college. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 180-3.

LaROSE, EDMOND S.

- aROSE, EDMOND S.
 Frozen capital made productive by inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 633-65.)
 Recent developments in budgetary control. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 4 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 480-2.)

LARSON, JOHN G. Why December 31st? A suggestion for closing the business year. (reprint from *DICTA*, Sep-tember 1939.)

LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY See also Castenholz, William B. and Morey, Lloyd; Thompson, William Rodney. C.P.A. examinations and how to prepare for them. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1937.

- 77p.
- Cost accounting procedure. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, 1937. 359p.
 1938 manual of federal income tax procedure, edited by Milton Vogel and R. W. Bergner. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1938. 255p.

- Bindago, Int., Eabanic catching university, crystol. 255p.
 1939 manual of federal income tax procedure, c1939. 264p.
 Practical solutions—problems in cost accounting procedure. (assignments 1-15) Chicago, III., LaSalle extension university (1937). loose-leaf.
 Requirements for the C.P.A. and other examinations and the practice of public accounting; a summary of the qualifications needed by candidates for accountancy degrees in the United States and Canada. Chicago, III., LaSalle extension university (1939). 32p.
 Social security legislation; a practical guide to pay roll tax procedure and records. Chicago, III., LaSalle extension university, c1938. 70p.

- LASHINS, IVAN, R. Insurance; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of December 13, 1938. 7 mimeographed pages. New "NRA." Credit executive, Feb. 1937, p.
 - 37-40.
 - 37.40. Robinson-Patman act and quantity discounts. Credit executive, June 1937, p. 172.4. Voluntary codes. Credit executive, March 1937, p. 75.7. Where are the leaders? Credit executive, April 1937, p. 114-6.

LASSALLE, L. L. Question on amortization of bond discount. (Stu-dents' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-5.

LASSER, J. K. Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, 1939. 128p.

- LASSER, J. K. AND GERARDI, J. A. Relation of accountants to the federal securities act. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 22, section 1, p. 1289-1312.)
- LAST-IN, first-out basis for tax purposes. (Forum section) Seidman, J. S.

LAST-IN, FIRST-OUT INVENTORY METHOD See Inventories-Last-in, first-out method.

- LAST-IN, first-out inventory method. American in-stitute of accountants. Committee on federal taxation.
- LAST-IN, first-out method of taking inventory. Wilde, Edward A.

LATHAM. B.

Some impressions on banking and finance abroad. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 21-5.

LATIMER, MURRAY W. Social security laws. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 115-26.

LATTMAN, WALTER Some difficulties of export trade. (summary of address given to Toronto members of the Canadand society of cost accountants and industrial engineers on Feb. 22, 1938.) Canadian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 257-60.

LAUNDRIES

AUNDRIES UNITED STATES. Labor, Department of. Effect of minimum-wage determinations in service in-dustries; adjustments in the dry-cleaning and power-laundry industries. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 44p. (Bulletin of the Women's bureau, no. 166.)

Accounting

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. Manual for standard accounting system. Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering, March 1, 1938. loose leaf.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. Sample accounting forms for A.I.L. standard accounting system. Joliet, Ill., Amer-ican institute of laundering, inc. no date. forms.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. Simplified sales recording system for small laundries. Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering, inc., no date. 11p. (Special re-port no. 87.)
 Same as: Laundryowners national associa-tion of the United States and Canada. Simpli-fied sales recording system for small laundries, July 1937.
 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; laundry accounts. Incorporated accountants journal, July 1938, p. 349-50.
 LAUNDRYOWNERS NATIONAL ASSOCIA-

- TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Instructions for operating the sim-plified bookkeeping system. Joliet, Ill., Laundry-owners national association of the United States and Canada, no date. 57p.
 LAUNDRYOWNERS NATIONAL ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Simplified sales recording system for small laundries. (This special report also contains a recommendation for handling of route collections.) Joliet, Ill., Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada, July 1937. 11p. (Special report no. 87.)
 SIMPLE accounting. (In Laundry year book. 1938, p. 159-61.)
 WITTY, RICHARD A. Laundry finance. Ac-countant, July 25, 1936, p. 125-30.

- Uniform methods and systems LAUNDRYOWNERS NATIONAL ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Sample accounting forms for uni-form system of accounting. Joliet, III., Laun-dryowners national association of the United States and Canada, no date not paged. LAUNDRYOWNERS NATIONAL ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Value of uniform accounting to the laundry industry. Joliet, III., Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada, March 1935, 26p. (Special report no. 68.) Canada, no. 68.)

Budgeting DATES, RALPH W. Let's quit squawking! Laundry age, March 1939, p. 42-4, 64.

- Cost accounting AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING. Cost accounting for laundries. Joliet, Ill., Amer-ican institute of laundering, cl939. 61p. ROSEMAN, SYDNEY. Cost system for a laun-dry. Cost and management, Feb. 1939, p. 62-80.
- Costs AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC, Laundry costs by services at American institute of laundering, Joliet, Ill., American institute of laundering, Oct. 1938. 20p. (Spe-

 - institute of laundering, Oct. 1938. 20p. (Spe-cial report no. 92.) AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. 1937 operating cost percentages. Joliet, III. American institute of laundering (1938). 20p. (Service bulletin, no. 55.) AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF LAUNDERING, INC. 1938 operating cost percentages. Joliet, III., American institute of laundering (1939). 16p. (Special report no. 97.) REDMOND, WILFRID. Spotting high costs. Laundry age, Nov. 1939, p. 24-5, 76. TREND of laundry costs—Annual laundry cost figures for 1937. (In Laundry year book. 1938, p. 176-7.)

Statistics

- 101.)

LAUNDRY

- AUNDRY AND DRY CLEANING EMPLOYEES' BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION Outlining benefits, dues, eligibility requirements and policies. New Orleans, La., The associa-tion, April 10, 1936. 32p.
- LAUNDRY year book, 1938. New York, Laundry age pub. co., c1938. 364p.

- LAUNDRYOWNERS NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA See also American institute of laundering, inc. Instructions for operating the simplified bookkeep-ing system. Joliet, III. Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada, no date. 57p.
 - association of the United States and Canada, no date. 57p. Recapitulation of data obtained from plant equip-ment questionnaire no. 4.34, on depreciation experience for laundry equipment. Joliet, III., Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada, Feb. 1, 1935. 5p. (Special report no. 67.) Sample accounting forms for uniform system of accounting. Joliet, III., Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada (1938) not paged. Simplified sales recording system for small laun dries. (This special report also contains a recommendation for handling of route collec-tions.) Joliet, III., Laundryowners national asso-ciation of the United States and Canada, July 1937. 11p. (Special report no. 87.) Value of uniform accounting to the laundry indus-try. Joliet, III., Laundryowners national assoc-ation of the United States and Canada, March 1935. 26p. (Special report no. 68.)

LAUSE, M. A.

AOSE, M. A. Practical group bonus plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 567-78.) Printed with: Sayre, B. M. After incentives—what?

Presentation and use of cost control data. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 14, section 1, p. 797-819.)

LAW

- AW See also Commercial law; Counties—Law; Municipal law; States—Law.
 BERLE, A. A., JR. Accounting and the law. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 9-15. Jour-nal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 368-78.
 FISHER, F. S., JR. Integration of legal and accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 49-54.) Phi delta delta, Nov. 1939, p. 17-24.
 GOGGANS, J. L. Essentials of admission to bar; presented at National conference of bar examiners, annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Oct. 19, 1936. 12 typewritten Pages.
- pages. GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER G. Accounting in law practice. ed. 2. Chicago, Ill., Callaghan and co., 1938. 553p. JONES, R. L. Economic law vs. statute law. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 234-5.

Australia

WISEMAN, H. D. Ware legislation. Federal ac-countant, Dec. 1939, p. 612-15.

Great Britain

- Franchistian Constraints and orders. Accountancy Nov. 1939, p. 37-41; Dec. 1939, p. 65-6. EMERGENCY finance. Certified accountants jour-nal, Nov. 1939, p. 322-4. EMERGENCY legislation. Accountant, Oct. 7, 1930

- EMERGENCY legislation. Accountant, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 403-4.
 EMERGENCY legislation: courts (Emergency powers) act, 1939. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1939, p. 336-40.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Claims under the compensation (defence) act—treasury rules. Accountant, Nov. 18, 1939, p. 554-7.
 HUGHES, HECTOR. More business links with the law. Accountant, March 19, 1938, p. 392-7.
 INTER-RELATION between law and commerce. Accountant Dec. 18, 1937. p. 839-42.
 MacDONALD, IAN W. Judicial remits and proofs. Accountants magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 602-6.
 MORTGAGES under the new laction.

- MORTGAGES under the new legislation. Ac-

countant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 591-2; Dec. 9, 1939, p. 618-9.

- ous paging.

United State

- mited States
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New business laws, 73rd congress, 2d session, Janu-ary 3, 1934 to June 18, 1934; the texts of twenty-one selected new laws of general appli-cation (other than agriculture) originally pub-lished as New deal laws. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1934. 196p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, Janu-ary 3, 1935 to August 26, 1935; the texts of twenty-five selected new laws of general appli-cation, other than agriculture). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1935. 288p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. United States supreme court business law decisions, 1935-1936; selected decisions affecting business (except tax cases). New York, Commerce clear-ing house, inc., c1936. 159p.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Neutrality act of 1939, approved November 4, 1939 (Public reso-lution no. 54, 76th congress, approved November 4, 1939.) New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 14p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New

LAW, UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF

- AW, UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF See also Lawyers, Coöperation with.
 ACCOUNTANT refused recovery on tax refund contract; giving opinion on interpretation of statute held practice of law. Certified public ac-countant, Dec. 1936, p. 700.
 BENTLEY, ED. R. Relationship between the lawyer and accountant. Florida accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 17-9.
 BRAND, GEORGE E., editor and compiler. Un-authorized practice decisions. Detroit, Mich., Detroit bar association, 1937. 838p.
 BYERLY, F. P. Relationship between the prac-tice of law and of accounting. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1938, p. 154-60.
 BYERLY, F. P. Some problems common to the practice of law and accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting, May 19, 20, 1939. p. 242.7.
- 42-7.) CITY ~
- Minime on accomming, May 15, 20, 1935. p.
 CITY court—trial term, by Evans, J.; Mandelbaum v. Gilbert and Barker. New York law journal, Oct. 10, 1936. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 22.
 GRAVES, MARK. Contribution of the accounting profession to tax administration. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 26.
 Certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 26.
 Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 6-11.
 HOGSETT, E. L. Relation of attorney and accountants in tax cases; address delivered before the West Virginia society of certified public accountant meeting at the Hotel Prichard, Huntington, West Virginia, October 30, 1937. 11p.
 HOSKINS, JOSEPH A. Unauthorized practice of law. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal) Certified public accountant, May 1936, p. 291-4.
 INTERPROFESSIONAL amenities. (Editorial)

- 291-4.
 INTERPROFESSIONAL amenities. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1935, p. 5.
 KRISTELLER, LIONEL P. Some problems com-mon to the practice of law and accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting, May 19, 20, 1939.
- LEGAL and accounting practice. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 6-7.

LAUSE, M. A. AND BOETTGER, F. A.

LAW, UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF-(Cont.)

- Aw, UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF -(Cont.)
 MATHIESON, JOHN K. Conflicting activities of the legal and accounting professions. Certi-fied public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 2-6.
 UNAUTHORIZED practice of law. Certified pub-lic accountant, May 1937, p. 19-21.
 "UNAUTHORIZED practice of law" controversy; a symposium edited by Paul H. Sanders. Law and contemporary problems, Winter, 1938, p. 1-174 1-174.
- 1-174. "UNAUTHORIZED practice of the law." (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 3-4. WILTSHIRE, P. E. Preparation of legal docu-ments. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 420-1.
- LAW of bankruptcy reorganization. Finletter, Thomas ĸ

LAW of business. Dohr, James L.

LAW of business relations. Pickar, George H.

- LAW of federal income taxation. Paul, Randolph E. and Mertens, Jacob, Jr.
- LAW of government contracts. Shealey, R. Preston.
- LAW of stockbrokers and stock exchanges. Meyer, Charles H.
- LAW upon resale price protection. Dunn, Charles Wesley.

LAWLESS, FRANCIS T.

Comparison of the uniform system of accounts for motor carriers with the uniform system for electric companies. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 34-5.

LAWRENCE, W. B. Cost accounting. rev. e. Hall, inc., 1937. 598p. ed. New York, Prentice-

LAWS, OWENS, joint author See Mules, W. Russell and Laws, Owens.

- LAWS and regulations governing the recognition of agents, attorneys, and other persons representing claimants before the Treasury department and offices thereof. United States. Treasury depart ment.
- LAWS prohibiting sales below cost, in force December 15, 1937. Automobile manufacturers association.

LAWSON, ERIC W. Annual income as a method of valuation for real estate taxation. *Tax magasine*, April 1937, p. 209-13, 246.

LAWSON, WILBUR F. Application of bank costs to depositors' accounts. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p.701-7.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.

LAWSUITS

- See also Court decisions.
 COYKENDALL, S. A., JR. Protection against strike suit legislation. *Credit executive*, May 1937, p. 133-5.
 REILING, HERMAN T. Procedure in federal tax litigation. *Tax magazine*, Oct. 1936, p. 598-603
- 603.

LAWYERS

AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Canons of professional ethics also canons of judicial ethics. Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1933). 32p.

S2p. Same, Sept. 30, 1937. 50p. AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Constitution and by-laws (1938-1939) rules of procedure of the house of delegates (adopted January 5, 1937) Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1938). 63p.

- BEARDSLEY, CHARLES A. How the integrated bar serves the lawyer. (reprinted from California state bar journal, Dec. 1935.) Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 138-40. BENTLEY, ED. R. Relationship between the lawyer and accountant. Florida accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 17-9. GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Accounting in the law-school curriculum. Accounting review, March 1939 p. 14-21

- school curriculum. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 14-21. HOGSETT, E. L. Relation of attorney and accoun-tant in tax cases; address delivered before the West Virginia society of certified public accoun-tants at its annual meeting at the Hotel Prich-ard, Huntington, West Virginia, October 30, 1937 11 1937.
- 1937. 11p. SOLICITORS and clients' money. Accountant, July 23, 1938, p. 110-2.

- Accounting KUHN, HAROLD A. Four-column ledger accounts for attorneys' records and other purposes. Path-fudder service bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 1, 7-8.
 McCARTY, DWIGHT G. Value of office manage-ment. American bar association journal, June 1939, p. 505-9.

 - ment. American bar association journal, June 1939, p. 505-9. RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Lawyers' accounts. (In their Sec-retarial accounting, c1936, p. 184-97.) SHERWOOD, J. F. and BOLING, CLEM. Books of account for a lawyer. (In their Secretarial accounting, c1939, p. 101-32.) SPARROW, WAYMOUTH AND COMPANY. System of accounts for a law office. New York, Sparrow, Waymouth and co., Jan. 1, 1937. 10 typewritten pages and forms.

Australia YOUNG, N. S. Audit of solicitors' trust accounts (South Australia) Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Feb. 1937, p. 631-9.

Canada GLASSCO, J. GRANT. Lawyers' accounts; a survey of the accounting requirements of a legal practice with particular reference to the rules recently enacted by the law societies. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 19-31.

- Great Britain BACK, W. J. Solicitors' accounts under the new act. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 274-8, 279-80. Accountant, July 18, 1936, p. 93-8. BACK, W. J. Solicitors' accounts under the 1933 act. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1936. 16p. (Accoun-tant lecture series no. 45.) BATTLEY, C. H. System of records for the trust accounts of a solicitor. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 113-6. SOLICITOR. Filing system and office records for solicitors' offices. Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 149-50. SOLICITORS and clients' money. Accountant.

- 1938, p. 149-50. SOLICITORS and clients' money. Accountant, July 23, 1938, p. 110-2. SOLICITORS' audit regulations, 1938. Accoun-tants' journal, April 1938, p. 708-9.

- tants' journal, April 1938, p. 708-9.
 LAWYERS, COOPERATION WITH See also Law, Unauthorized practice of.
 AIKMAN, W. M. Relation of the legal and accounting professions. Texas accountant, May 1938, p. 1.
 BYERLY, F. P. Relationship between the prac-tice of law and of accounting. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1938, p. 154-60.
 BYERLY, F. P. Some problems common to the practice of law and accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting. . . May 19, 20, 1939. p. 42-7.)
 CONNECTICUT society program for coöperation with bar. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 16.

 - p. 10. COPERATION between lawyers and accoun-tants; a symposium. (transcript of a radio dis-cussion Law and layman series, broadcast from station WICC, Bridgeport, Conn., on Thursday, November 11, 1937. Certified public accountant,

LAWYERS, COOPERATION WITH-(Continued)

- AWYERS, COOPERATION WITH—(Continued) Dec. 1937, p. 2-6.
 GRAVES, MARK. Contribution of the account-ing profession to tax administration. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 12-6. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 6-11.
 HOWARD, LAWRENCE A. Relationship of the lawyer and the accountant. Connecticut bar jour-nal, April 1937, p. 200-8.
 INTERPROFESSIONAL amenities. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1935, p. 5.
 KRISTELLER, LIONEL P. Some problems com-mon to the practice of law and accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939, p. 33-40.
- annual institute to account of the legal and accounting professions. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 2-6.
 ROBERTSON, T. GRAHAM. Accountancy in the law courts. Accountants' magazine, March 1936, p. 143-55.

- ROBERT 103-7, Tr. Organization, March 1936, p. 143-55.
 STAUB, WALTER A. Coöperation of accountants with bench and bar. Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 199-213.
 TRANSCRIPT of a radio discussion dealing with the question of coöperation between lawyers and accountants; tation WICC, Bridgeport, Conn., November 11, 1937, New York, American institute of accountants, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages.
 TROUB, LEONARD M. Relationship between the lawyer and the accountant. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 127-31. Reprint. 7p. Connecticut bar journal, April 1937, p. 219-24. Accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 645-7.

LAYMAN, WILLIAM M.

- AYMAN, WILLIAM M.
 Distinction between salesmen, agents and independent contractors; determination of status under the social security act. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 409-12, 439-40.
 Income tax deduction of federal and state social security taxes. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 719-21, 761.
 Social security navroll systems and procedure.

719-21, 701.
 Social security payroll systems and procedure. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 67-71, 116.
 Some suggestions for reducing income tax liability; legitimate ways of effecting tax savings. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 575-80, 628.

LAYMAN'S legal guide to essential laws. Marshall, Francis W.

LAYTON, W. B. Receivable. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1938, p. 11-3.

LAZAROW, WILLIAM J. Natural business year; submitted in partial ful-fillment of the requirements for the degree of bachelor of business administration in the school of business and civic administration of the col-lege of the city of New York. New York, The author, June 1937. 67p.

LÁZARUS, ARTHUR Economic aspects of leased departments in retail stores. (In Boston conference on distribution, 1939. p. 52-5.)

LAZENBY, C. D. Basic bookkeeping and accounting. New York, University pub. co., c1937. 234p.

LAZO, R. LOUIS

Interest during construction. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 263.

LEACH, H. B. Bonus in the shipping room adds 20% to earnings. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1937, p. 58-9.

LEACH, W. BARTON Powers of appointment and the federal estate tax —a dissent. *Harvard law review*, April 1939, p. 961-6, 968.

LEADBETTER, FRANK

Will your costing system stand up to the test of rising prices? Cost accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 168-73, discussion, p. 173-84. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 121-5.

LEAGER, MARC C.

Financial management for highways. Raleigh, N. C., University of North Carolina, State college of agriculture and engineering, Feb. 1935. 162p. (State college record, v. 34, no. 4.)

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALITIES

- EAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALITIES Budgeting for California municipalities, bulletin wo, uniform accounting committee. Los An-geles, Calif., League of California municipalities, Jan. 1939. 107p. (League report no. 18.) Financial reports of municipalities. San Francisco, Calif., League of California municipalities, 1938. 133p. (Bulletin I, Uniform accounting com-mitiee.)
- mittee.)
- Manual of accounting procedures for California municipalities; bulletin three, uniform account-ing committee. Los Angeles, Calif., League of California municipalities, Jan. 1939. 177p. (League report no. 19.)

LEAHY, JAMES J. "70%"—distribution

70%"—distribution of profits under treasury decision 4914, section 102, internal revenue code. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1939. 69p.

LEAKE, P. D.

- EARE, P. D.
 Balance sheet values: the limitations of industrial accounting. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938. 75p.
 Changing outlook of industrial accounting. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 731-7.
 Inflated industrial share capital; a plea for the use of no par value shares. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1936. 15p. (Accountant lecture series no. 43.)

LEARNED, E. P. AND ISAACS, NATHAN Robinson-Patman law; some assumptions and ex-pectations. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 137-55.

LEAROYD, JOHN S.

- CAROTD, JOHN S. Obsolescence in the electric lamp industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 950-60.) Printed with: Stempf, Victor H. Accounting for fixed assets.
- SED-DEPARTMENT sales. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 384-5. LEASED-DEPARTMENT sales.

LEASED DEPARTMENTS

- EASED DEPARIMENTS
 See also Department stores.
 LAZARUS, ARTHUR. Economic aspects of leased departments in retail stores. (In Boston conference on distribution, 1938. p. 52-5.)
 LEASED-department sales. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 384-5.
 SALES of leased departments. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 123-4.
- 123-4.

LEASEHOLDS

- ATKINSON, STERLING K. Taxable income to
- AIRINSON, SIERLING K. Taxable income to lessor from lessee improvements. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 20-4, 38. DEINZER, HARVEY T. Are leasehold improve-ments taxable income? Accounting review, June 1939, p. 147-50.

LEASES

- EASES BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Percentage leases in court. Buildings and building manage-ment, April 1939, p. 13-5. BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS AS-SOCIATION OF SEATTLE. Percentage leases. Deviding and building unsuggement lurge 1920.
- Buildings and building management, June 1939,
- CADY, LEVERETT P. Percentage rental leases. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 132:3.

LEASES-(Continued)

- CAMPBELL, HARRY S., Jr. Percentage leases. Buildings and building management, March 1936, p. 33. HAMILTON, JOHN. Percentage rental leases. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1937 p. 454.5
- 1937, p. 454-5. HIGGINSON, H. P. Preparation of lease agree-ments. Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 339-42

- 339-42. PERCENTAGE lease practices. Buildings and building management, July 1936, p. 23-4, 64. PURCHASE option and depreciation on leased property. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 242-3. SLOSSON, FRANK S. Percentage lease facts. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 41-3, 78-9. SMITH I. DUIKE Is the value of improvements
- Diffutings and containing management, June 1, 1939, p. 41-3, 78-9.
 SMITH, J. DUKE. Is the value of improvements made by a lesser taxable income to the lessor? Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 577-80, 616-7.

LEASK, SAMUEL, JR.

Unemployment compensation: some pertinent con-siderations. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1723-34.

LEATHER GARMENTS

See Leather goods.

LEATHER GOODS INDUSTRY

LEAVY, LEONARD S. Auditing purchases and invoices. Municipal finance, May 1936, p. 3-6.

LEBRUN, HARVEY

Consumers' taxes v. income taxes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 600-2.

LECTURE AND STUDY GROUPS TRAINING American accountants. (Editori Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 211-2. (Editorial)

LECTURES

ECTURES MAY, GEORGE O. Improvement in financial accounts; lectures on the A. Lowes Dickinson foundation graduate school of business admin-istration, April 12-14, 1937. New York, The author, 1937. 57p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 333-69. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 593-7; May 14, 1938, p. 661-5; May 21, 1938, p. 701-5. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 42-56; Aug. 1938, p. 106-20; Sept. 1938, p. 200-12. p. 42-5 200-12.

LEDGERS

- BOLON, DALLAS S. Journal and ledger—Spe-cial ledgers. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 38-50; 145-75.) BOOZER, HERMAN W. Some aspects of plant ledgers and public utility plant accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. J8-26.) Printed with: Millians,

Paul M. Management control of ship-line opera-

- tion. FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Factory ledger— private ledger. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936, p. 439-51.) FLEISHER, FERNALD AND COMPANY. De-preciation and plant ledgers. Philadelphia, Pa., Fleisher, Fernald and co. (1939). 15p. GOODWIN, JOHN H. Plant ledger for a small manufacturer. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 130-5
- 130-5.
- manufacturer. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1930, p. 130-5.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Ledgers. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 87-148.)
 HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Plant ledgers and plant accounting. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 200-12.
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. General ledger. (In his A B C of accounting. 1938. p. 52-66.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Ledger—its summary and statement preparation—Classes of ledgers. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 103-30, 245-58.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 60-87, 131-53, 266-88.
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Subdivision of the ledger and controlling accounts. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938. p. 97-110.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Special ledgers. (In his Accounting principles. c1939. p. 192-219.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Factory ledger plan. (In his Basic course in cost accounting. 1938. p. 49-53.)
 MATHEWS, H. T. Plant ledger—what it is and

- (In his Basic course in cost accounting. 1938. p. 49-53.)
 MATHEWS, H. T. Plant ledger—what it is and why. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1627-9.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Ledger and the journal—Adjusting and closing the ledger—Interlocking ledgers. (In their Ele-mentary accounting. c1938. p. 32-72; 483-97.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Controlling accounts and subsidiary ledgers—Other features of ledger technique. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 163-79; 180-92.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Elaboration of ledger. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. part 1, p. 81-95.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Primary books and pro-cedure—Elaboration of ledger. (In his Essen-tials of accounting. 1937. Part 1, p. 68-80, 81-95.)
 PAITON, Ledger and the trial balance. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 54-64.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Ledger account—Periodic proof and adjustment of ledger—Subsidiary ledgers and controlling accounts. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938. p. 67-80; 127-53; 350-72.)

- ledgers and controlling accounts. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938, p. 67-80; 127-53; 350-72.) SALIERS, EARL A. Plant ledger. (In his De-preciation, principles and applications. c1939, p. 210-36.) SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Account and the ledger. (In their Basic ac-counting principles. 1937. p. 74-99.) SALIERS, EARL A. and HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Manufacturing accounting—Factory ledger. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 538-68.)
- SCHMIDT, LEO A. T-account ledger. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 31-6.)
- SIMPLIFIED practice in hand-kept ledger. Profit, July 1939, p. 2-3.

LEE, B. R. Control of payroll expense by the census. Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 6-7.

LEE, E. Elimination of factory waste. Certified secretary, May 1936, p. 94-101.

LEE, EARLE GOODRICH

- Economic law vs. statute law. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 175-80, 192. Extensions of auditing procedure. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 194-6.

LEE, MORRIS M. See National association of manufacturers.

LEE, RAYMOND E.

Utility accounting methods. Journal of the Ameri-can water works association, March 1936, p. 389-401.

LEEDS, MORRIS E.

- Bonus plan that weathered the depression. Ameri-can business, Oct. 1938, p. 17-8, 52.
- LEGAL and accounting concepts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 281.
- LEGAL and accounting practice. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 6-7.
- LEGAL decisions (Exchequer court of Canada) re-specting income war tax act 1917 and amend-ments; income tax schedules; reciprocal exemp-tions from income tax. Canada. Exchequer court of Canada.
- LEGAL notes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 327.

LEGAL NOTES; A DEPARTMENT See Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

- LEGAL pitfalls of the stockbrokerage business and how they may be avoided. Meyer, Charles H.
- LEGAL protection of goodwill; trade marks-trade emblems-advertising-unfair competition. Moore, Frank S.
- LEGAL tax saving methods, prepared under the direction of the Tax research institute of Ameri-ca. Rogers, Hugo E. and Cohen, Herman H.

LeGARDEUR, R. J. AND COMPANY

eGARDEUR, R. J. AND COMPANY Manual of accounts; prepared for New Orleans bank for coöperatives, for use by Glenwood coöperative, inc., Waterford sugar coöperative, inc., Helvetia sugar coöperative, inc., Magnolia sugar coöperative, inc., Evan Hall sugar coöpera-tive, inc. New Orleans, La., R. J. LeGardeur and co., 1936. 36p.

- LEGH-SMITH, W. H. Local rates and alternative methods of local taxa-tion. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 433-40.
- LEGISLATIVE episode. Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 7-10.

LEHN, F. D.

Principles and methods of measuring office activi-tics. New York, National association of cost accountants. May 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 18, section 1, p. 1169-90.)

LELAND, SIMEON E. Waste through multiplicity of governmental units. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1937, p. 162-8.

- Le MASTER, EUSTACE Accountant's provision for depreciation and effect on prices; at meeting of Pacific con economic association, December 27, 1939. and its coast
 - typewriten pages. Natural business year. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 2.4.

LeMASTERS, EARLE H.

Efficient bookkeeping with group control. Bankers monthly, Jan. 1939, p. 16-7.

LENHART, NORMAN J.

- Certain accounting practices in the nonferrous metal industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 17-22. Principles of accounting as applied to current practice. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 13-20, 23-4.

- Summary of certain testimony before the Securi-ties and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on account-ing procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 96-106.) To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detection of fraud? (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accoun-tants--Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939.) 10p. 10p.

LENTON, L. M. Marine insurance practice as affecting the com-mercial accountant. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 31-5.

LEONARD, FREDERICK M. Factoring for the paper industry. Paper trade journal, Dec. 2, 1937, p. 22-4.

LEONARD, WILLIAM G. Financial records and statements of life insurance companies. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 364-76.

LESCHER, T. EDWARD Some considerations of modern industry. Accoun-tant, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 257-60.

LESLIE, A. C.

- Account stated. Commonwealth journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1936, p. 515-8.
- LESSOR'S claims under section 77 of the bank-ruptcy act. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 272-7.

LESTER, BERNARD Applied economics for engineers. New York, John Wiley & sons, inc., 1939. 464p.

LETCHER, H. P. Guarantees to banks. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 852-4.

LETZLER, ALFRED, joint author See Diamond, Z. N. and Letzler, Alfred.

LEVER, E. H.

reflections on long-term investments with Some particular reference to the business of life as-surance. Accountant, April 16, 1938, p. 525-33.

LEVER, THOMAS S.

Accounting machine developments. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 217-39.)

- LEVESS, HERBERT H. Your accountant is a business consultant. Photo lithographer, April 1937.
- LEVESTAM, H. A. Company auditor's position with regard to secret reserves. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1939, p. 124-5.
- LEVIN, ABRAHAM J.

Reduction of the burden of death taxes. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 6-7.

LEWIS, H. I. See American management association.

- LEWIS, HOWARD T. See Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.

LEWIS, N. M. Cost statistics. Cost accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 88-92.

LIABILITIES

CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Liabilities. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 175-85.)

LIABILITIES-(Continued)

- IABILITIES—(Continued)
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. More about insurance. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 113.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet—liabilities. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 255-68.)
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Balance sheet liabilities (In his Truth in accounting, 1939. p. 271-91.)
 NOTES payable and liabilities on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 475.
 OUTHWAITE, A. H. Verification of liabilities, capital and reserves. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1936, p. 331-50.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-

- MIED SIAIES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-sis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Com-mission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages.

- Contingent
 BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Contingent liabilities. (In their Auditing procedure. c1937. p. 302-7.)
 CONTINGENT liabilities and commitments; a round-table forum. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 257-74.
 GETZ, JOSEPH. Difference between contingent liabilities and material commitments. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 257-61, discussion, p. 269-74.
 KREJCU, JOSEPH E. Contingent liabilities other than commitments. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 265-8, discussion, p. 269-74.
 - 269-74. LIABILITIES on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, 139-42
 - 159-42. NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Current and contingent liabilities. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 299-311.) PELOUBET, MAURICE, E. Current, and con-

 - Intermediate accounting, the second s
 - (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 196-206.)
 TOLLEY, W. EARLE. Contingent liabilities and assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937. p. 301-2.
 TROUANT, D. L. Contingent liabilities. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 109-12.)
 WARREN, A. O. Liquidator's liability for breach of duty for non-provision for contingent liabilities. Accountant, May 23, 1986, p. 795-6.

Current

- CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Giving effect to the unconsummated. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 508-9.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Current and contingent liabilities. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 299-311.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Current and contingent liabilities. (In this Audit working papers. 1937, p. 129-39.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Current liabilities. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939, p. 245-74.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Liabilities-current, contingent and fixed. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938, p. 196-206.)

Fixed

- ixed NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Fixed liabilities. (In their Intermediate account-ing. c1939, p. 312-330.) SHERWOOD, J. F. and CULEY, ROY T. Fixed liabilities. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939, p. 275-94.) TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN

C. Liabilities—current, contingent and fixed. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 196-206.)

- LIABILITIES of accountants. (Correspondence) Kohl-hepp, J. W.
- LIABILITIES of accountants under securities act of 1933, United States. (contributed) Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 135-6.
- LIABILITIES.of auditors. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 601-4.
- LIABILITIES on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 139-42.
- LIABILITY OF ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS See Accountants—Duties and responsibilities.
- LIABILITY under accountant's indemnity policy. Accountant, Oct. 21, 1939, p. 440-2.

LIBEL

- COUNTRY CONTRACT SETTLEMENT OF accountant's libel action. Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 246.
- LIBERTY and taxes. Greeley, Harold Dudley.
- LIBRARIES
 - IBRARIES
 ACCOUNTANT'S working library. Monthly bulletin, New York state society of certified public accountants, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 31-2.
 ACCOUNTANT'S working library. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 278-9.
 ACCOUNTING libraries. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 29.
 COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY. School of business library. Fxhibito a feasered books and manual

 - library. Exhibition of selected books and manu-scripts from the Montgomery library of accoun-tancy; South Hall, Columbia university, October 1937. New York, Columbia university, 1937.
- 1937. New York, Columbia university, 1937. 24p.
 COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF ACCOUN-TANTS (Victorian division). Commonwealth ac-countants' library, Catalogue of books in Mel-bourne library, Melbourne, Commonwealth ac-countants' library, 1939. 40p.
 CONKLIN, GROFF. How to run a rental library. New York, R. R. Bowker co., 1934. 136p.
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. Herwood library of ac-countancy; a catalogue of books printed between 1494 and 1900 in the Herwood library of ac-countancy. New York, Herwood and Her-wood, 1938. 233p.
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS IN ENGLAND AND WALES. Library cata-logue. London, Gee and co., 1td., 1937. 2v.
 First supplement (1937), January, 1939.

- First supplement (1937), January, 1939. 36p. MARYLAND ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Catalogue of books. ed. 2, revised. Baltimore, Md., Enoch Pratt free library, January 1938. 40p. SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Catalogue of the library at Incorporated accountants' hall. Lon-don, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, 1939. 487p. VOLUMES in the circulating library. Certified public accountant, March 1938, p. 25-36.

- Accounting CONKLIN, GROFF. Bookkeeping methods for a .
 - to run a rental library and small bookshop. (In his How to run a rental library. 1934. p. 76-101.) RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Library accounts. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1936. p. 198-224.)

- Cost accounting MILLER, ROBERT A. Cost accounting for libraries: acquisition and cataloging. Library quarterly, Oct. 1937, p. 511-36.
 RIDER, FREMONT. Library cost accounting. Library quarterly, Oct. 1936, p. 331-81.

LIBRARY OF CONGRESS See United States. Library of congress.

LICENSES

ICENSES NORTH CAROLINA. Act to provide a uniform procedure for the suspension or revocation by certain North Carolina boards and commissioners of licenses to engage in trades and lawful call-ings-ratified, March 30, 1939. Certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 22-3.

LICENSING OF CORPORATIONS

See Business—Government regulation and con-trol; Corporations—Law—United States.

LICHTFELDT, CLARENCE H. Bank taxation. National auditgram, May 1936, p. 7-9.

LIFE INSURANCE

See Insurance, Life; Insurance accounts; Insurance policies.

- LIFE insurance contract. Horne, Harold M. and Mansfield, D. Bruce.
- LIFE insurance gifts under the federal estate tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1939, p. 126-32.
- LIFE insurance: investing in disaster. Gilbert. Mort. and Gilbert, E. A.

- LIFE OFFICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION Job evaluation for the establishment of salary standards; report no. 1—clerical salary study committee. New York, Life office management association, Sept. 1, 1938. 54p. and appendix. 35p.
 - 35p. Life office salary administration; report no. 2— clerical salary study committee of the Life office management association. New York, Life office management association, Sept. 1, 1939. 137n.
- LIFE office salary administration. Life office management association.

- ment association.
 LIFE TENANT AND REMAINDERMAN APPORTIONMENT on death of tenant-for-life. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 106-7.
 DECEASED life tenants. Incorporated accountants' journal. Sept. 1938, p. 426-7.
 GRAUBERT, ELLA. Clarifying rights of life tenant and remainderman. Trust companies, Aug. 1936, p. 167-71.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Wasting intangible assets. (Legal notes) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 466-7.
 WILLIAMS, R. GLYNNE. Equitable apportion-ments-1; Howe v. Earl of Dartmouth. Ac-countants' journal (Eng.), March, 1936, p. 825-32.

WILLS, E. P. Some problems arising from the administration of trust estates in farm lands. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 567-72.

LIFSHEY, LOUIS J. Watching "marginal" accounts receivable. Credit executive, Feb. 1936, p. 50-2.

LIGGETT AND MYERS TOBACCO COMPANY COTTER, ARUNDEL. How tobacco firms treat inventories. Barron's, Nov. 20, 1939, p. 8, 10.

LIGHTING Costs

HEAT, light and power. Horwath hotel accountant, July 1938, p. 3-6.

LILJEBLAD, RAGNAR

Depreciation of industrial plant. Accounting re-view, Dec. 1937, p. 361-9.

LILLY, LEWIS What is an adequate auditing procedure? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 35-40.)

LIMESTONE

See Quarries and quarrying.

LIMITATIONS of the statement of funds applied and provided. Walker, George T.

- LIMITED partnership. 1936, p. 895-907. Yale law journal. March
- LIMITED survey of stores' air travel policies and buyers' traveling allowances. *Balance sheet*, Oct. 1939, p. 13, 15.
- LIMITED survey on compensation of interior deco-rators. Balance sheet, March 1938, p. 17.

LINDAHL, OSCAR N. Performance facts first requirement in reports to department heads. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 48-9

LINDHARDT, PARKER Capital gains and losses of banks and trust com-panies. National auditgram, May 1937, p. 4-5, 12.

LINDNER, J. A. M. F. AND KOPPENBERG, W. E. Methods of computing costs and control of prices by public authorities, (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. *Kongress-archiv*, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 133-68.)

LINDOUIST. R. E.

Uniform accounting for household appliance deal-ers. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1939, ers. Pati n. 1-5. 6.

LINDSAY, JOHN R. Controllable loss factors in the baking industry. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1315-23.) Printed with: Henry, W. R. Cost accounting in the baking industrv.

LINDSAY, MAURICE M. Holding companies and consolidation statements. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1939. 199p. Probate accounting. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1936. 145p.

LINEN, JOHN S.

Accounting reports and municipal credit. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal account-ing and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 24-30.)

LINEN

Cost accounting MALCOLM, J. W. Standard costs in the linen industry. Cost accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 268-71.

LINEN control. Dawson, William A.

LINK, HENRY C. Psychological foundations of management. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 288-91.

LINN, ARTHUR J.

- Computing branch bank operating costs. Rand McNally bankers monthly, Jan. 1937, p. 22-5, 43-4.
- Computing branch bank operating results. National auditaram. Nov. 1938, p. 4-6, 11-2.

LINOLEUM

Accounting c1936. 28p.

Statistics

- tatistics BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New operating yard-sticks for five wholesale trades. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 20.4. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of floor covering concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 45.) Analysis of the 1936 operations of floor covering stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 48.)

LINSEED OIL See Vegetable oils and oilseeds.

- LINTON, M. ALBERT Federal old age security program and some of its consequences. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletim, July 1936, p. 31.42. Social security unemployment compensation and old age pensions; address at Hotel Sherman, Chicago, October 11, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Illinois chamber of commerce, 1935. 8 mimeographed pages.

LIPKIN, CHARLES Mental multiplication; how to figure mentally, putting down the answer at once, without using any paper. New York, The author, 1939. 25p.

LIPSCHUTZ, A. A. Coördination of the accountant and the engineer in the fields of property accounting. Edison elec-tric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 31-2.

LIQUIDATIONS AND RECEIVERSHIPS

- See also Bankruptcy; Business failures. KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Liquidations under the revenue act of 1936. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, 648-50.
- p. 648-50.
 REPORTS of receivers or trustees. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 6.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. New provisions with respect to corporate liquidations. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 126-30.
 STEVENS, W. H. S. Stockholders' participations in assets in dissolution. Journal of business of the university of Chicago, Jan. 1937.
 URQUHART, C. R. Practical points in receiver-ships. Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 860-1.

Accounting

- Accounting
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER
 G. Accounting for receivers and trustees in bankruptcy. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 438-68.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOWARD
 S. Accounting for creditor control. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 857-76.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Statement of affairs-Liquidation of corporations. (In his Accounting for corborations. 1937. p. 225-39.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER. HERMANN C. Receivership accounting. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 461-538.)

Australia

- unstralia MacDONALD, O. R. Distributions in a winding up; adjustment of the rights of contributories inter se. Australian accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 171.7. ROSS, J. WALLACE. Liquidations and recon-structions. Australian accountant, April 1936, p. 176-97.

- Canada ROSS, DOUGLAS L. Bankruptcies and liquida-tions. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 305-11.

- Great Britain
 FORDHAM, H. Receivers and debenture holders. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 26-7.
 FORDHAM, H. Voluntary winding up. Corporate accountant, March 1939, p. 19-22.
 GOODWIN, LESLIE. Deeds of arrangement, in practice and theory. Certified accountants jour-nal. Aug. 1938, p. 251-6.
 HUSSEY, ALBERT V. Practical aspects of the duties of trustees, liquidators and receivers. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 444-9.
 - 444.9. JACOBS, HERBERT' Liabilities of receivers and managers. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 10-5. Accountant, July 16, 1938, p. 86-91. JOHNSON, MARK H. Tax-free liquidation; loop-hole and trap. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 3.4. M'LINTOCK, WILLIAM. Creditors' voluntary liquidations. Accountants' magazine, April 1936, p. 200-47

 - p. 209-47.

- MAHONY, DANIEL. Amendment of bankruptcy and liquidation law. *Accountancy*, May 1939 p. 278-80. 1030
- and liquidation law. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 278-80.
 OLLASON, G. CAMERON. Inception of voluntary liquidation. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 233-7. Accountant, Jan. 29, 1938, p. 155-9.
 PARTRIDGE, A. H. Private arrangements with creditors with special reference to deeds of arrangement. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 213-6. Accountant, July 31, 1937, p. 161-4.
 ROBERTSON, D. CLAUDE. Preference shares; rights in a winding-up. Commonwealth journal of accountant, July 31, 1937, p. 161-4.
 TERMINATION of the existence of a company. Accountant student and Accountants, Nov. 1938, p. 207-11; Jan. 1939, p. 277-9.
 WALKER, PERCY H. Debentures and the powers of receivers appointed by debenture holders.

- **ALALK, FERCY H.** Debentures and the pow-ers of receivers appointed by debenture holders. *Incorporated accountants' journal*, March 1937, p. 207-12.
- p. 207-12. WARREN, A. O. Liquidator's liability for breach of duty for non-provision for contingent liabili-ties. Accountant, May 23, 1936, p. 795-6.

- New South Wales
 MUTTON, A. R. Voluntary liquidation in N.S.W. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1939, p. 798-801.
 PARSONS, A. J. R. Liquidators, receivers and managers under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1937, p. 913-32, discussion, p. 932-3.
 SPOONER, W. H. N.S.W. companies act, 1936; new rules of importance to liquidators. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 519-24.

New Zealand WILSON, D. A. Rights and duties of receivers and liquidators. Accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 775-8.

Victoria

Korra SMITH, M. R. M. Winding-up under the Vic-torian companies act, 1938. *Chartered accountant* in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 253-67; Nov. 1939, p. 318-33.

LIQUOR

See Beverages; Liquor trade.

LIQUOR TRADE

See also Beverages. Inventories

ventories FENTON, J. RALPH. Multiple store inventory control as applied by a liquor store system. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 645-55.) Printed with: LaRose, Edmond S. Frozen capital made pro-ductive by inventory control.

Statistics

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of packaged alcoholic bever-age stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 10.)
- no. 10.) Analysis of the 1936 operations of heer and liquor stores (packaged). (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 2.) FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesalers of wines and liquors. (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 28-9.1

- LISMAN, F. J. Railroad reorganizations and section 77. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 24-40.
- LIST of factors affecting quality-time-cost, pre-pared by a group of production men. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 750-1.)
- LIST of natural closing dates published by N.B.Y. council. Texas accountant, June 1936, p. 1, 3.4.

- LIST of retirement units for electric utilities. Na-tional association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- LIST of retirement units for gas utilities. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- LIST of securities held by insurance companies, with valuations to be used in the companies annual statements as of December 31, 1938. National convention of insurance commissioners. Committee on valuation of securities.
- LITERARY development of coöperative principles and data. Tereshtenko, Valery J. and Ostrolenk, Bernard.
- LITERATURE of business statistics; a bibliography. Blackett, Olin W.

LITHGOW, W. G. Conduct of investigations. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 436-42. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 138-45.

LITHOGRAPHERS NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

L.N.A. budget cost system; a manual for both large and small plants, by Stanley C. White. New York, Lithographers national association, c1937. 57p.

LITHOGRAPHING

ITHOGRAPHERS NATIONAL ASSOCIA-TION, L.N.A. budget cost system; a manual for both large and small plants, by Stanley C. White. New York, Lithographers national asso-ciation, c1937. 57p. Budgeting LITHOGRAPHERS

Cost accounting LITHOGRAPHERS NATIONAL ASSOCIA TION L.N.A. budget cost system; a manual for both large and small plants, by Stanley C. White. New York, Lithographers national asso-ciation, c1937. 57p.

LITTLE, ARTHUR S.

- Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 185-6. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 185-6. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 216-23.
- LITTLE old New York. (Commentator) Cranstoun, William D., editor.

LITTLETON, A. C.

- ITLEFON, A. C.
 Accounting research. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 21-2.
 Accounting theses: a list compiled. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 313-5.
 Business profits as a legal basis for dividends. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, 114
- Harvara oussiness review, 2017 p. 51-61. Concepts of income underlying accounting. Account-ing review, March 1937, p. 13-22. Contrasting theories of profit. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 10-5, comments by Walter Staub,
- p. 13-6. High standards of accounting. Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1938, p. 99-104. Professional college. Accounting review, June 1936,

- Professional college. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 109-16.
 Relation of function to principles. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 233-41.
 Substitute for stated capital. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 75-84.
 Suggestions for the revision of the tentative statement of accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64.
 Tests for principles. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 16-24.
 Uses of theory. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 227-33.

LIVESTOCK CONVERSE, PAUL D. Marketing grain and live-stock. (In his Essentials of distribution, 1936. p. 279-300.)

- Accounting BUTLER, J. S. Livestock accounts. Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 154-60.
 JOHNSON, MILTON F. Stock and station agents' accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1938, p. 634-40.
 POWELL, M. J. Stock, wool and produce agents' accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, The 1930 p. 13-25.

Statistics COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc., 1939. 616p.

LIVINGSTON, D. M. Accounting problems of public utilities; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 15 type-written pages.

LLOYD, J. Requirements of the registrar-general's department under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1939, p. 184-95.

LLOYD, JOHN S.

Address delivered before the South Bend clearing house association, May 6, 1938. 7 mimeographed pages.

LOAN COMPANIES

See Banks and banking-Morris plan: Building and loan and savings associations; Credit unions; Finance companies.

LOANS

- AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Bank AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Bank management commission. Survey of personal loan department experience and practice. New York, American bankers association, research council, 1938. 20p. (Bulletin 74, May 1938)
 ARMSTRONG, A. F. Bankers' advances against cotton and produce. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 19-24.
 BARRY, DAVID C. Installment financing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1936, p. 243-57
- 243-52

- BARKY, DAVID C. Instalment infancing. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1936, p. 243-52.
 DISCLOSURE of bank loan on audit report. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan, 1939, p. 43-4.
 FEW points on debt redemption. Accountants' magazine, July 1937, p. 409-22.
 FINANCIAL PUBLISHING COMPANY. Month-ly payment direct reduction loan amortization schedules, showing equal monthly payment neces-sary to amortize a loan of \$1,000; also the amount of interest and principal in each pay-ment and the balance outstanding at any time during the life of the loan. Boston, Mass., Finan-cial pub. co., c1938. not paged.
 FOULKE, ROY A. and PROCHNOW, HER-BERT V. Practical bank credit. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939, 690p.
 GILMAN, LEWIS E. Discussion of loans secured by accounts receivable. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1935, p. 155-7.
 GLOVER, JOHN DESMOND. Industrial loan policy of the RFC. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1939, p. 465-76.
 GOVERNMENT lending. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 76-7.
 HURST, T. E. Banker as a lender. Accountant, Aug. 28, 1937, p. 287-91, discussion, p. 291-2.
 LOANS on life insurance policies. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 177-8.
 LUDLOW, C. V. Life insurance loans. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1939, p. 261-71.
 McGOWAN, JOHN F, Commodity loans. Robert

- McGOWAN, JOHN F. Commodity loans. Robert

LOANS-(Continued)

- Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 163-9, discussion, p. 169-74. PADDI, JOHN B. Problems of small loan oper-ations in a commercial bank. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 157-62,

- associates monting butterin, Dec. 1960, pr. 11: 57, 175.7.
 SOPHIAN, THEO. Appropriation of principal and interest under money-lending transactions. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 613-5.
 TAYLOR, HARRY E. Audit reports and the banks. Journal of accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 200-2. Indian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 53-4.
 TYLER, RALPH S. Outline of discussion of cer-tain aspects of bank loans upon whiskey ware-house receipts. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1936, p. 211-9.
 WOLF, GEORGE O. AND BLACK, ERCIL L. Bank loans on the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 102-5.
- LOANS on life insurance policies. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 177-8.

LOBBYING

UNITED STATES. House of representatives. Report no. 2925, 74th congress, 2d session; regulation of lobbying, June 2, 1936. 6p.

LOCAL AUTHORITIES See Municipal.

- LOCAL authorities' budgets. Accountancy, July 1939. p. 378-80.
- LOCAL authorities' capital requirements. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 60-2.
- LOCAL authorities: internal financial control. Marshall, A. H.
- CAL authorities; stamp duty and district audit regulations. Accountant, Sept. 17, 1938, p. 407-10. LOCAL authorities; stamp
- LOCAL building cost variations in new FHLB index numbers. National real estate journal, April 1936, p. 40-1.
- LOCAL bus operations make remarkable progress. Intercity carriers hurt by competition. Bus transportation, March 1937, p. 122-6.
- LOCAL government accounting and auditing. Amer-ican institute of accountants. Special committee on governmental accounting.
- LOCAL government acts (1938). New Jersey citi-zens' committee for the Princeton local govern-ment survey.
- LOCAL government debt administration. Chatters, Carl H. and Hillhouse, Albert M.

LOCKHART, WILLIAM B. Sales tax in interstate commerce. Harvard law review, Feb. 1939, p. 617-44.

LOCKSMITHS

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of locksmiths. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 97.)

LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH

- Early university education in accountancy. Account-ing review, June 1938, p. 131-44. Favoring requirement of a college education. (from Spokesman (Pennsylvania) Certified public ac-countant, Aug. 1937, p. 22-3. Modern balance sheet. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 3-6.

LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH, joint author See Gordon, William D. and Lockwood, Jeremiah.

LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH AND MAXWELL, AR-THUR D.

Textile costing; an aid to management. Washing-ton, D. C., Textile foundation, inc., 1938. 282p.

LOCOMOTIVES

Costs YALE UNIVERSITY. School of engineering. Steam versus Diesel-electrics. Mechanical engi-neering, June 1939, p. 469-70.

LOFLIN, WILLIAM F.

- Advantages of a paid secretary. 2 typewritten pages.
- Excerpt from talk on recent accounting develop-ments at semi-annual meeting, Georgia society of C.P.A.'s, Atlanta, Ga., Nov. 18, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.
- Recent accounting developments; address at semi-annual meeting of Georgia society of CPA's-1939. 14 typewritten pages.

LOGAN, FRED E.

Management reports. Balance sheet, May 1938, p. 6-10.

LOGAN, HARRY L., JR. Priorities and lien preferences accorded federal and state claims in corporate reorganizations. *Tax magazine*, April 1938, p. 201-6, 244-8.

LOGARITHMS ALLERDICE, CHARLES A. Logarithms. Aus-tralian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 104-9.

LOGGING

See Lumber.

- LONDON ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED AC-COUNTANTS
 - Annual report. Certified accountants journal, April 1936, p. 129-32; April 1937, p. 114-7; May 1938, p. 162-5; July 1939, p. 211-7. Certified accountants, annual conference, Birming-

 - certined accountants' annual conference, Birmingham, 1937. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1937, p. 309-16.
 Certified accountants' year book, 1936. London, London association of certified accountants, 1936. 652p.
 - 1930. 652p.
 Same. 1937. 676p.
 Same. 1939. 697p.
 Extraordinary general meeting. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1937, p. 248-50; Jan. 1939, p. 16-7; Feb. 1939, p. 48-52.

LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE

Fixed trusts; the stock exchange report. Accoun-tant, Jan. 11, 1936, p. 59-62.

LONG, HENRY F. State taxation faces the future. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 571-3, 604-7.

- LONG-LIFE assets; when to buy and how to account for them. Freeman, E. Stewart.
- LONG-TERM CONTRACTS See Contracts.

LONGCROFT, R. G. Few observations upon the duties of an ordinary trustee. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, April 1937. p. 370.4.

LONGPORT (N. J.), BOROUGH OF Borough of Longport, county of Atlantic, New Jersey; refinancing plan. Packard bldg., Phila-delphia, Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc. no date. not paged.

LOOMIS, MILTON E. Profession and the public. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 40-3.

LOOPHOLE ACT OF 1937 See Tax evasion and avoidance; Taxation, United States—Personal holding companies.

LOOSE-LEAF BOOKS See Books.

- LOOSE-leaf books. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 823-4. Certified accountants jour-nal, March 1936, p. 91.
- LOOSE-leaf books as evidence. Australian accoun-tant, May 1936, p. 253-5.
- LOOSE-leaf minute books. Canadian chartered ac-countant, April 1936, p. 273-5.

LOOSE-leaf minute books and the auditor. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1937, p. 202-5.

LOOSE-LEAF RECORDS See Records.

LOPATA, EDWIN L. Accounting for profits and losses on foreign ex-change for 1935. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 118-29.

LORD, JOHN Partial audits and qualified reports. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1938, p. 162-73.

LOREE, H. M.

Preparation of cost data; address before Hamilton chapter, October 27, 1938. Cost and manage-ment, Nov. 1938, p. 299-303.

LORENZ, OTTO C.

- Free ride for time sales? A study in instalment costs. Credit and financial management, Aug. 1939, p. 18-20, 39. Know your instalment costs before you lower your
- rates. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May 1939, p. 72, 74-5, 80. Personal loan expense. Bankers magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 110-2.

LORENZEN, ERNEST G.

Commercial arbitration-enforcement of foreign awards. Yale law journal, Nov. 1935, p. 39-68. of foreign

LORGE, IRVING, joint author See Haggard, H. W. and Lorge, Irving.

LORIG, ARTHUR N.

Classification of municipal income and expendi-tures. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 163-73. Cost accounting and the classification of municipal expenditures. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 291-5.

Present condition of municipal accounting. Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 376-85.

LORMER. G.

- Ways and means of raising capital for new enter-prises and for expansion of existing industries. Australian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 38-59.
- LOS ANGELES plan for pricing office space. Build-ings and building management, June 1934, p. 27.

LOSSES

- OSSES ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Mortgagors' losses: capi-tal or ordinary? Taxes-the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 387-9, 418. LOSSES from bad accounts and bad checks. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 4, 5-6. OPINIONS by securities commission's chief ac-countant may set accounting standards. Con-troller, May 1937, p. 130. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charg-ing losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 1, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
- mimeographed page. WHITE, WILFORD L. and STEHMAN, J. HAROLD. Bad debt loss survey. Credit and financial management, June 1939, p. 16-20; July 1939, p. 15-8; Aug. 1939, p. 14-5, 40-1.
- LOSSES from bad accounts and bad checks. Hor-wath hotel accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 4, 5-6.

- LOUDON, JOHN Company law. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 4, p. 199-221.) Accountant, Dec. 10, 1938, p. 801-8. Effect of mechanised accounting on audit pro-cedure. Accountants' magazine, July 1939, p.
 - 428-42.

LOUISIANA. STATE BOARD OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS

By-laws, rules and regulations (approved May 15, 1936) containing copy of act 136 of the legisla-ture of the state of Louisiana of 1924 and a copy of act 159 of 1926. New Orleans, La, State board of certified public accountants, 1936. 9p.

LOVELL, O. B. Procedure which makes it easy to control bank expenditures. Bankers monthly, Feb. 1938, p. 84-6, 98-9.

LOW, ARTHUR E., joint author See Bolte, Arthur H. and Low, Arthur E.

- LOWE, GORDON Distribution of overhead charges. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 109-12. Function of the wage office. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 27-30. Relation of time study with cost accountancy. Cost and management, Oct. 1938, p. 272-4. What is the function of the cost accountant? Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1939, p. 6(19-23)

 - p. 619-23.

LOWE, J. BLAKE AND WRIGHT, JOHN D. New surtax on corporations; what to do about it. Baltimore, Md., Munsey building, The authors, 1936. 58p.

LOWENHAUPT, ABRAHAM Patman act difficult to apply to settled business practices. Controller, Jan. 1937, p. 16-19, 28.

- LOWERY, J. M. Uniform accounting in California municipalities. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects, 1939. p. 203-7.)
- LOWEST and simplest. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1936, p. 9.
- LOWEST bidder again. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, July 1936, p. 8.

LOWRIMORE, CHARLES S. Taxation of unrealized income. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 10-2. Trust income—test of grantor's taxability. Taxes —the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 521-2, 548.

LUCAS, W. L.

Brewery accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 97-105.

LUDLOW, C. V. Life insurance loans. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1939, p. 261-71.

- LUDWIG, C. C.
 Use of accounts in making and controlling muni-cipal budgets. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 19-23.)
 Water works—financing and rates. Journal of the American water works association, May 1937, p. 617-36.
 - p. 617-36.

LUENSTROTH, HAROLD W. Customer's accounts. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 10, section 1, p. 561-80.)

LUMBER accounts. Mucklow, Walter.

LUMBER INDUSTRY

- Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Lumber accounts. New York, American institute pub co., inc., 1936.
 - TREATMENT of real estate taxes on non-oper-ating timberland. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 2, p. 783-6.)

Auditing MUCKLOW, WALTER. Auditing. (In his Lum-ber accounts. 1936. p. 371-5.)

- Cost accounting DALEY, V. L. Sawmilling costing from the log to the finished product. Australian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 417-28.
 DAY, BESSE B. Suggested method for allo-cating logging costs to log sizes. Journal of forestry, Jan. 1937, p. 69-71.

Valuation

JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Evaluation of water, and of timber and mineral land. (In his Theory of real property valuation. c1938. p. 244-53.)

LUMBER TRADE

Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Accounts of retail deal-ers. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 217-21.)

Statistics

- tatistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of lumber concerns, lumber and building material dealers, and lumber and millwork concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report nos. 19, 51, 52.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of lumber and building material dealers, and millwork concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. report nos. 62, 63.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of lumber wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936, p. 54, 80, 104, 129, 184-5.) (1937 ed.-p. 55, 83, 109, 136, 200-1.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 38-9.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 40-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939, p. 28-9.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of retailers of lumber. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 55, 81, 105, 130, 186-7.) (1937 ed.-p. 57, 85, 111, 138.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1939. p. 30-1.)
- 4.2.5.7 (In his Jesus of the inventories. ê1939.
 b. p. 30-1.)
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 8—lumber yard. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 233.)

LUMBER YARDS See Lumber trade.

LUNN, GEORGE C.

Principles of public utility accounting. Cost and management, April 1939, p. 133-6.

LUTZ, HARLEY L. Principles of the undistributed profits tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1938, p. 200-4.

Privilege of personal income taxation. Bulletin of the National tax association, Oct. 1937, p. 11-22. Should capital gains be taxed as income? Bulletin of the National tax association, Feb. 1937, p. 130-6.

LYBRAND, WILLIAM M. As I look back over half a century. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1938, p. 7-38.

Friendly tributes. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 26.

LYBRAND, ROSS BROTHERS AND MONTGOMERY Record of half a century in the accountancy pro-fession. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937. 39p.

LYBRAND, ROSS BROTHERS AND MONTGOMERY ROSS, T. EDWARD. Record of forty years, 1898-1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1938, 40th anniversary number. 57p.

LYDE, H. W.

Executorship and trustee law. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 9-13.

LYLE, E. F.

More ideas on single posting. Bankers monthly, Aug. 1939, p. 464-5.

LYMAN, JOHN R.

Distribution cost-foundations of efficiency. (In Boston conference on distribution, 1939. 64-6.)

LYNDHURST (N. J.) Brief financial and administrative survey of the township of Lyndhurst, New Jersey, with a plan of refunding. Packard bldg., Philadelphia, Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., January 1, 1935. 25p.

LYNN, R. W. Appeals to the general commissioners for income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 50-3.

LYON, GERALD JAY Budgeting and control of capital and repairs ex-penditures. Balance sheet, June 1937, p. 10-4.

LYON. HASTINGS

Corporations and their financing. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., c1938, 946p. LYTLE, CHARLES WALTER

- YTLE, CHARLES WALTER
 Recent developments in wage incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1938, p. 79-83.
 (Same as chapter XXI of revised ed. (1938) of his "Wage incentive methods".)
 Wage incentive fallacies. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 14-5, 29-30; April 1937, p. 42-3.
 Wage incentive methods, their selection, installa-tion and operation. revised printing. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 468p.

McALLISTER, BRECK P. Price control by law in the United States: a survey. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 273-300.

McANANLY, FRANCIS J. Characteristics of regulated accounting for the public utility industry. New York certified pub-lic accountant, July 1938, p. 23-9.

MACASSEY, LYNDEN Business men and arbitration. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, April 1939, p. 684-90.

McBAIN, A. G.

- IdealN, A. G.
 Complete practical income tax. ed. 9. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1937. 336p.
 Complete practical income tax. ed. 10. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938. 336p.
 Income tax appeals. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 91-105.
 Income tax repayment claims. Accountant, tax supplement, July 22, 1939, p. 285-91.

McBRIDE, L. M.

Jurisdictional aspects of state income taxation. Taxes-the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 197-9, 238-46.

McBURNIE, JAMES G. Children's settlements as affected by the 1936 finance act. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 628-35.

Tax explained. Accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 30-2.

Cost accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Accounts of retail deal-ers. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 345-70.)

McCABE, GEORGE K.

Need for greater accuracy in corporate reserve accounting practices. Annalist, Nov. 13, 1936, p. 670, 685.

McCAFFREY, GEORGE D.

- Accounting control at the New York world's fair. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1483-96.) Accounting control of a world's fair. National auditgram, April 1937, p. 9-11.

- McCALL, AMBROSE V. AND FURMAN, MAX Report on conference on accounting practice and procedure, to John J. Bennett, Jr., attorney gen-eral of the state of New York, pursuant to the order of the attorney general, January 6, 1939. New York, Grosby press, inc., 1939. 85p. (includes proceedings)
 - -Report of conference . . . January 6, 1939. 6 mimeographed pages. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 9-13 (with
 - Institute reply.)

McCALLUM, JOHN E. Agricultural marketing schemes and the natural products marketing act. Canadian chartered ac-countant, May 1936, p. 342-53.

McCANN, ROBERT

Storekeeping and material control. Irish accoun-tant and secretary, Dec. 1937, p. 216; Jan. 1938, p. 10.

McCARREN, KENNETH J. Luring industry through tax exemption. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions, c1939. p. 39:47.)

McCARTHY, J. E.

IcCARINY, J. E. Realistic accounts and statements—for management —for labor; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute. Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 535-6.

McCARTNEY, J. F.

Office mechanization and its effects. (from the Sec-retary) Accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 711-5.

McCARTY, DWIGHT G. Value of office management. American bar asso-ciation journal, June 1939, p. 505-9.

MACAULEY, FREDERICK R.

- MOROLE1, FREDERICK K. Movements of interest rates, bond yields and stock prices in the United States since 1856. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1938. 240p. and 351p.
- MacCHESNEY, BRUNSON AND O'BRIEN, ROBERT

Full disclosure under the securities act. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 133-53.

McCONNELL, F. H.

- greater clarity in reports, but differ on meth-ods. Barron's, July 17, 1939, p. 8.
- McCONNELL, JOSEPH H., joint author See Smith, Blackwell and McConnell, Joseph H.
- McCOWEN, GEORGE B.
- Replacement cost of goods sold. Accounting re-view, Sept. 1937, p. 270-7.

McCRACKEN, HUGH M. How to get a bird's-eye view of the restaurant business. American restaurant magazine, July 1939, p. 33, 68-9, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74.

McCREA, ROSWELL C. AND KESTER, ROY B. School of professional accountancy. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 106-17.

McDERMOTT, ARTHUR V

Legal aspects of the Comptroller's office. (In

McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 11, May 19, 1938.)

- McDIARMID, FERGUS J. How the British finance their public utilities. Public utilities fortnightly, Nov. 23, 1939, p. 675-85
 - Plain talk on debt retirement from a utility bond buyer. Public utilities fortnightly, July 20, 1939, p. 67-78.

McDIARMID, O. J. Federal subsidies to the states in Australia. T —the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 271-2, 308. Taxes

MacDONALD, A. R.

Accounts current, Australian accountant, March 1938, p. 118-22.

MacDONALD, E. N.

Adjustment of accounts under schedule D. Accoun-tant student and Accountants' journal. Aug. 1936. p. 113-7. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 297-401.

McDONALD, EDWIN C.

Type of pension plans favored since enactment of social security law. Controller, March 1938, p. 71-3, 85.

McDONALD, GEORGE C. Public accounts of Canada. Cana accountant, May 1937, p. 377-82. Canadian chartered

- MacDONALD, IAN W.
 Judicial remits and proofs. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 620-6.
 Principles underlying profit statements and balancesheets. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 530-50 539-50

MacDONALD, JOHN H.

Office management. rev. and enl. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 599p. Practical budget procedure. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 326p.

- MacDONALD, O. R.
 Absorptions; points arising out of the absorption of one company by another. Australian accountant, May 1938, p. 301-6.
 Answering of auditing questions. Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 317-8.
 Auditing of bad debts. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937 p. 248-55.

 - 1937, p. 348-52. Comparative balance sheets and profit and loss statements. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 464-70.
 - Dissolution of partnership—the partners' capital accounts. Australian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 75-80.

 - 75-80. Distributions in a winding up; adjustment of the rights of contributories inter se. Australian accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 171-7. Examination problems on executorship accounts. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 457-60. Recording depreciation in the books of account. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 119-26. Accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 637-40. Secret reserves. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 69-72. Verification of book debts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 444-50.

MacDOUGALL, HAMISH

Haulage industry; the need for haulers to keep proper records. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 129-31.

McDOUGALL, J. L.

Railway passenger travel. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 127-34.

McDOWELL, MAXWELL E. Analysis of changes brought about by 1938 federal revenue act. Controller, July 1938, p. 195-7, 200-2, 204, 206, 213.

McEACHREN, J. W. Budgeting for the small business firm. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1937, p. 14-7.

McEWEN, G. C.

Budgetary control as an aid to business profit. Cost and management, Dec. 1939, p. 357-62.

McFADON, BARRETT F.

Sales control in the meat packing industry. Ac-counting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 35-8.

MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROB-ERT D.

Accounting fundamentals. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 667p.

McFARLAND, WALTER B. *

- **McFARLAND, WALTER B.** Basic theory of standard costs. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 151-8. Last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 21, no. 5, section 2, p. 341-2.) When is selling at a loss a profitable business policy? New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletim v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 328-39.) Printed with: Woodbridge, Frederick W. Make it visual.

McGILL, J. J. Earned hours wage system. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 85-8.

- McGLADREY, IRA B. Independent audits or political audits? Cedar Rapids, Iowa, The author. 1939. 9 typewritten pages.

 - Institutional accounting. (from Church property administration, Sept. 1936). 10 typewritten pages. Iowa accountants' head tells how to minimize income taxes. American banker, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 1, 7. Some historical and vocational notes on accountancy.

 - 13 typewritten pages. Training the beginner in public accounting. Cer-tified public accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 2-6. Philippine accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 277-81.

-Same. 9 typewritten pages.

McGOLDRICK, JOSEPH D. City finances and their relation to real estate. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 224-9.

McGOLDRICK, JOSEPH D. AND OTHERS

Accounting and auditing in the Comptoller's office of the city of New York; a course given at the school of business and civic administration of the City college. New York, College of the City of New York, 1938. various paging.

McGONAGLE, JAMES R. Apartment house rental, investment, and manage-ment. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 420p.

McGOWAN, JOHN F. Commodity loans. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 163-9, discussion 169-74.

McGREGOR, D. C. Soviet financial system. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Sept. 1937, p. 173-87.

McGUIRE, C. J., joint author See Haynes, J. Marvin and McGuire, C. J.; Montgomery, Robert H. and others.

MACHINE ACCOUNTING See Mechanical devices.

MACHINE accounting for a chain of accessory stores. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1938, p. 4-7.

MACHINE RATES BELL, WILLIAM. Machine rates. Accountant, June 25, 1938, p. 871-5.

MACHINE RENTAL

See Machinery-Rental.

MACHINE SHOPS

Accounting LANG, GEORGE V. Trends and methods in foundry and machine shop accounting. *Iron* age, July 9, 1936, p. 56-9.

Cost accounting TULLOCH, E. J. Boiler and engineer shop cost-ing. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 250-9. VENDER, E. E. Product cost and estimating in the screw machine products industry. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 33-9.

Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of machine shops. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 66.)

MACHINERY

- ACHINERY See also Machinery and equipment; Office machinery and equipment. METHOD of handling sales of large machines. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 17, section 1, p. 1003-5.)

- Accounting.
 Accounting for machines on loan. (Questions and answers) (New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, Section 2, p. 1143-6.)
 COOPER, EDWARD J. Accounting for machines on loan. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 34.)
 WALLICK, EDGAR U. Accounting for machines on loan. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 33.)

Rental RENTAL payments on machinery. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 139-140

MACHINERY AND ALLIED PRODUCTS INSTI-TUTE

Depreciation reserve policies; the current need for sound and adequate practices. Chicago, Ill., Machinery and allied products institute, Dec. 1936. 13p.

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT See also Special kinds of machinery, e.g. Agri-cultural machinery; Office machinery and equipment

- RICHARDSON, W. S. Plant and machinery control. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 177-83
- TROUANT, D. L. Property, plant and equipment. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 73-87.)

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT DEALERS See also Machinery manufacturers.

- Statistics UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of machinery sales con-cerns. (In their 1936 retail survey, report no. DUN 65.)
 - Analysis of the 1936 operations of ma-chinery sales concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 83.) DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Automotive
 - and equipment wholesalers; an analysis of oper-ating and merchandising experience for 1937. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., Nov. 1938. 29p. (1938 wholesale survey, report no. 2.)

MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS

Accounting BUCKENMYER, A. J. Accounting for heavy machine construction. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.

320

MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS - Accounting -(Continued)

C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, section 1, p. 1119-40.)

Statistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of machinery manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business, 1937. p. 52, 80, 106, 133, 194-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 32-3.) (In his Signs of the times, c1938. p. 32-3.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p. 22-3.)

MCHUTCHISON, M. W

Duties and responsibilities of directors and secre-taries. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1936, p. 449-68, discussion, p. 468-9.

- McINNES, JOHN S. Rights of preference shareholders. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936. p. 49-72, discussion, p. 73-89.)
 Taxation of companies in Queensland. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 324-9; July 1937, p. 410-20.

McINNES, RUSSELL

Investment banking and intergovernmental exemp-tions. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemp-tions. c1939. p. 57-64.)

McINTOSH, A. J. Auditor's report from a banker's viewpoint. Philip-pine accountant's journal, July, Aug. and Sept. 1939, p. 141-3.

McINTOSH, HERBERT W. Limits of the auditor's responsibility. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 132-3.)

- MacINTOSH, WILLIAM Arithmetic of the grain trading account. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939, p. 326-43.
 Fund consciousness---a forgotten aspect of com-mercial accountancy. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, March 1937, p. 188-201.

M'INTYRE, A. HAMILTON Social credit. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 5-27.

MACK, HAROLD L. Something for nothing. Carmel Carmel press, inc., 1936. 59p. Carmel-by-the-sea, Calif.,

McKAGUE, W. A. Commodity prices lag in recovery. Cost and man-agement, April 1936, p. 120-1.

MACKAY, JOHN Partnership menace. Irish accountant and secre-tary, April 1937, p. 69.

McKEE, J. E. Necessity of true costs for successful manage-ment. Cost and management, May 1936, p. 130-6.

McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER Handbook of petroleum accounting. New York, Harper and brothers, 1938. 496p.

McKENNA, C. A. Problems and suggested solutions relating to the electric plant acquisition adjustment account. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1938, p. 359-61.

- McKENNA, REGINALD Economic outlook. Accountant, Feb. 20, 1937, p. 267-70.
 - 267-70.
 Local authorities and the money market. Incorporated accountants' journal. July 1936, p. 363-6, Accountant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 193-5. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1936, p. 283-6.
 Monetary control and practice. Accountant, February 8, 1936, p. 204-5.

- McKENZIE, J. R.
 Business planning. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 2, p. 45-61.)
 Flexible budgets. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936,
 - p. 251-60.
- McKESSON and Robbins case. Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 178-80; Aug. 12, 1939, p. 210-13; Aug. 19, 1939, p. 239-41; Aug. 26, 1939, p. 270-2; Sept. 2, 1939, p. 304-6; Sept. 9, 1939, p. 326-8; Sept. 16, 1939, p. 346-7.
- McKESSON and Robbins case—S.E.C. investigation— Institute's position—Attorney general's meeting —Possible improvement in auditing—Evolution of auditing—Publicity and the future. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 65-9

- McKESSON AND ROBBINS, INC. ACCOUNTANTS' responsibility for inventories. (from Journal of accountancy) Federal accoun-tant, July 1939, p. 343-5. AMERICAN institute and auditing procedure. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 214; Feb. 25, 1939,
 - p. 263-7. AS others

 - America Taskinite and auditing procedure.
 Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 214; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 263-7.
 AS others see us. Certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 13-5.
 BAILEY, GEORGE D. Auditing procedure—a development to meet changing conditions. (In Ohio state university, Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting . . . May 19, 20, 1939, p. 63-75.)
 CROSS, NORMAN C. Inventories; address before Petroleum accountants society, February 23, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Audit procedure with respect to verification of inventories and receivables; address delivered to annual convention, Georgia society of certified public accountants, Macon, Ga., May 26, 1939. 27 typewritten pages.
 FURTHER references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 121-8.
 HOUGH, RAYMOND S. McKesson & Robbins, inc., and the trade creditors. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 230-41; Aug. 26, 1939, p. 239-41; Aug. 26, 1939, p. 230-43; Aug. 12, 1939, p. 210-13; Aug. 19, 1939, p. 239-41; Aug. 26, 1939, p. 230-45; Sept. 16, 1939, p. 346-7.
 McKESSON AND ROBBINS case—S.E.C. investigation—Institute's position—Attorney general's meeting—Possible improvement in auditing—Fublicity and the future. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 659.
 McKESSON AND ROBBINS, inc. (Editorial) 65-9

 - p. 65-9. McKESSON AND ROBBINS, inc. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 6. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. McKesson and Rob-bins case and the extension of U. S. audit procedure. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939. p. 392-5.
 - Dec. 1939, p. 392-5. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. McKesson and Rob-bins case; effect on accounting practice in the U.S.A. Chartered accountant in Australia, May

 - U.S.A. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1939, p. 722-33. ROTHSCHILD, ALFRED. Inclusion of insurance data in audits as a standard practice. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 47-8. S.E.C. hearings. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tance, March 1939, p. 136; April 1939, p. 194-5.

 - SAXE, EMANUEL. Accountancy advances. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 5-7.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Summary of certain testimony before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 106-14.)
 STATEMENT by executive committee. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 2-5.
 TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p.

McKESSON AND ROBBINS, INC .- (Continued)

- 350-63. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 437-51. UNITED STATES. District court for the south-ern district of New York. In the matter of McKesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, in
- CONTED STATES. District court for the south-ern district of New York. In the matter of McKesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, in proceedings for the reorganization of a corpora-tion... Report and summary of the operations of the business of McKesson & Robbins, incor-porated, debtor, and of the present condition thereof, William J. Wardall, trustee—first report dated January 27, 1939; Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Roberts, attorneys for trustee. ISD. UNITED STATES. District court for the south-ern district of New York. In the matter of McKesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, in proceedings for the reorganization of a corpora-tion... Report on the operation of the busi-ness and administration of the estate of Mc-Kesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, William J. Wardall, trustee—second report dated as of Julv 1, 1939; Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Roberts, attorneys for trustee. 439.
 UNITED STATES. District court for the south-ern district of New York. In the matter of McKesson and Robbins, incorporated, debtor, the operation of its business and the desirability of the con-tinuation thereof, pursuant to section 167 (5) of the bankruptcy act. Special report dated Novem-ber 22, 1939: Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Roberts, attorneys for trustee. 26p.
 UNITED STATES. Scurifies and exchange com-mission. United States of America before the Securities and exchange commission in the mat-ter of McKesson & Robbins, inc.; testimony of expert witnesses. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1939. 638p.
- McKESSON **ESSON and Robbins, inc. (Editorial)** Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 6.
- McKEWEN, J. L. Social security act; talk delivered before Kiwanis club of Pikesville, Maryland. 7 typewritten nages.

MACKEY, WALTER J. Problems in unemployment compensation admin-istration. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 150-4.)

- McKINSEY, JAMES O. American merchant's responsibilities in modern life. Certified public accountant, May 1936, p. 294-9.
- McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOWARD S. Accounting principles. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 885p.

McLAREN, A. J. Criticism of accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1937, p. 358-67.

- Australia, Nov. 1937, p. 358-67.
 MLLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL
 Influence of federal taxation upon accountancy. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting, American institute of accoun-tants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, Octo-ber 18-22, 1937.) 19 mimeographed pages. Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 426-39. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anni-versary celebration. 1937. p. 120-32.)
 Management of capital distributions under the revenue act of 1936. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 334-57.
 1939 revenue act and western mining; address at convention of American mining congress at Salt Lake City. Washington, D. C., American mining congress, Oct. 1939. 7 mimeographed pages.
 Revenue act of 1938. (address before the Mountain states accounting conference of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 20 typewritten pages.

- McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL AND FEIGEN-BAUM, B. J. Income tax management for individuals under fed-eral and California revenue acts; including an analysis of the corporate surtax on undistributed profits under the federal revenue act of 1936. San Francisco, Calif., Walker's manual, inc., c1936. 449p.

- McLAUGHLIN, GEORGE V. Address before monthly meeting of the National association of cost accountants, at Hotel Granada, Brooklyn, December 21, 1938. 6 typewritten pages.
 - Opportunities for the certified public accountant in the real estate field. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 234-7.

McLAUGHLIN, J. Accounting for physicians and dentists. Pathfinder service bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 6-8.

McLAUGHLIN, JAMES ANGELL Courts and the Robinson-Patman act: possibilities of strict construction. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 410-19.

McLAUGHLIN, L. B.

Accounting for commodity brokers. Pathfinder serv-ice bulletin, May 1937, p. 1-9. Accounting for stock brokers. Pathfinder service bulletin, April 1936, p. 1, 2, 5-8.

McLAUGHLIN, T. E. Accounting for motion picture production. Accoun-tant, May 29, 1937, p. 765-72.

- MACLEAN, JOSEPH B. AND MARSHALL, ED-WARD W.
 - Distribution of surplus. New York, Actuarial so-ciety of America, 1937. 154p. (Actuarial studies no. 6.)
- M'LINTOCK, WILLIAM Creditors' voluntary liquidations. magazine, April 1936, p. 209-47. Accountants'

McLUCKIE, E. J. Retail method of inventory control. Pittsburgh accountant, Oct.-Dec. 1936, p. 4.

McMASTER, EUSTACE

Natural business year. Credit world, Sept. 1937, p. 30-1.

McMICHAEL, STANLEY L. McMichael's appraising manual; a real estate appraising handbook for use in field work and advanced study courses, ed. 2. New York, Pren-tice-Hall, inc., 1937. 652p.

McMICHAEL'S appraising manual. McMichael. Stanley L.

McMILLAN, H.

Claims under Incorporated p. 353-4. schedule A. (Northern Ireland) accountants' journal, July 1936,

MacMILLAN, J. A. Sources of cost information. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 14-7.

MacMIILAN, WILLIAM R. Sources and extent of liability of a public accoun-tant. Chicago-Kent review, Dec. 1936, p. 1-23. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 417-33. Reprinted by American surety company, with: Rich, Wiley Daniel. Civil liabilities of accoun-tants under the securities act.

McMULLEN, R. B. "Last mile"; a cost accountant sharpens his pencil and tells how to figure out when coaches should be retired. Bus transportation, June 1939, p.

McMULLEN, STEWART YARWOOD Federal income tax accounting; a practical course for basic instruction. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. loose-leaf.

McMURRY, KARL F., joint author See McNall, Preston E. and McMurry, Karl F.

- McNAIR, MALCOLM P. See also Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.
 - Business cycle theories: some comments for the lay-man. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern

 - of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 191-233.) Economics of price control legislation. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' con-gress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 4-9.) Marketing functions and costs and the Robinson-Patman act. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 334-55.

McNAIR, MALCOLM P., GRAGG, CHARLES I., AND TEELE, STANLEY F. Problems in retailing. New York, McGraw-Hill book company, inc., 1937. 676p.

McNALL, PRESTON E. AND McMURRY, KARL F. Agricultural bookkeeping. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1937. 205p.

McNAUGHTON, A. G. L. Research in Canada. Cost and management, Oct. 1937, p. 232-51.

MacNEAL, KENNETH

- JacNEAL, KENNETH Shortcomings of some accepted accounting prin-ciples under modern conditions. Annalist, July 13, 1939, p. 38-9.
 Truth in accounting. Philadelphia, Pa., University of Pennsylvania press, 1939. 334p.
 What's wrong with accounting? Nation, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 370-72; Oct. 14, 1939, p. 409-12.

McPHERSON, L. A. Prospectus. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, inc., 1936. 16p.

McVAY, E. A. AND KIEPER, B. F. Elements of beverage control. Horwath hotel ac-countant, May 1936, p. 4-5, 6-7.

MACY, C. WARD

Property tax exemptions in the United States. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1936, p. 226-9.

MADDEN, JOHN T.

- MADDEN, JOHN T.
 Accounting jurisprudence. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 447-51.
 Address delivered before a joint dinner meeting of the Buffalo, Rochester and Syracuse chapters of the New York state society, held at the Rochester chamber of commerce on November 18, 1936. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1936. 22 mimeographed pages.
 Controller cons an uncontrollable world. (Summary) Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 334, 336-8.
 Depreciation and obsolescence as a management problem. (In American management association. Practical aspects of depreciation and obsolescence. cl938, p. 3-9.)
 Prudent investment principles. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 8-12.
 Revenue act of 1936 and the problems it presents to executives. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 3-15.
 Some reflections on appreciation practices. Accountant, Jehn, John T., joint author

MADDEN, JOHN T., joint author See Bacas, Paul E. and others.

MADGE, A. V.

Budgetary control. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 118-23. Indian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-5; Nov. 1936, p. 29-31, 33. Cost and man-agement, Feb.. 1937, p. 60-4.

MADIGAN, JOHN J. Securing lowest total freight costs in movement of packing house products. Harvard business re-view, Spring number, 1937, p. 352-60.

- MADISON, WILLIAM J. Accounting for material costs. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 76-84.)
 - Material accounting and problems. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 28-32.

MAFFITT, DALE L. Effect of federal legislation on the retirement and pensioning of water employees. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1937, p. 1111-6.

MAGAARD, H. G. Introduction to banking and the London money market. Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 261-8.

MAGATHAN, W. C. Windfall tax and refunds of AAA taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 10-4.

MAGATHAN, W. C., joint author See Montgomery, Robert H. and others.

MAGAZINES

See also Newspapers; Periodicals and news-papers; Publishers; Directory at end of Index. Costs

WHAT is circulation expense? Circulation man-agement, Feb. 1937, p. 10-11, 34.

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of magazine and newspaper dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no.

MAGEE, JAMES D. Taxation and capital investment. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1939. 64p.

MAGILL, ROSWELL

- AAGILL, ROSWELL
 Address before the American institute of accountants at Cincinnati, Ohio, September 29, 1938.
 13 mimeographed pages.
 Co-ordination of state and federal taxes. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 187-90, 246.
 Effect of taxation upon corporate policies; address before Academy of political science, New York city, November 9, 1938.
 13 mimeographed pages.
 Federal regulation of family settlements. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 40-54. Trust companies, Jan. 1937, p. 31-8. Reprinted. 17p.
 Federal tax administration, 1939. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 296-302.
 Problem of intergovernmental tax exemption. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 699-703, 754. (In National tax association. Proceedings. 1937, p. 388-99.) 388-99.)
- Realization of income through corporate distribu-tions. Columbia law review, April 1936, p. 519-54.
- Taxable income. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 437p.

MAGILL, ROSWELL, joint author See Montgomery, Robert H. and Magill, Roswell.

MAGRATH, C. R. R. Bank accounting by machinery. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1937, p. 67.

MAGUIRE, FRANK J. Ancient and modern trends in taxation. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 11-9.

MAGUIRE, JOHN M. AND OTHERS Section 820 of the revenue act of 1938. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 509-32; March 1939, p. 719-78.

MAHAFFIE, CHARLES D. Railroad reorganization. (In National association of railroad and utilities commissioners. Pro-ceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention-1936. p. 119-29.)

MAHONY, DANIEL

- Amendment of bankguptcy and liquidation law. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 278-80. Could insolvency law and practice be simplified? Incorporated accountants journal, May 1937, p. 291-6, discussion, p. 296-7.

- MAIL-ORDER BUSINESS CONVERSE, PAUL D. Department stores and mail-order houses. (In his Essentials of dis-tribution. 1936. p. 163-82.) SELLING by direct-mail. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 227-69.)

Statistics UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on mail order houses registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York Works progress administration, April 1939. 41p. (Report no. 9.)

MAIN, FRANK WILBUR
 Accountant of the future, his training and opportunities. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants-Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1939, p. 6-12.) (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16 and 17, 1939, p. 21-7.)
 Same. 13 typewritten pages.

- MAINE, PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
 Supplement "A" to Uniform classification of accounts for gas utilities, issue of 1923; effective January 1, 1939. Augusta, Me., Public utilities commission, 1938. 23p.
 Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities; issue of 1923 revised, effective January 1, 1939. Augusta, Me., Public utilities commission, 1938. 135p. 135p.
 - Uniform system of accounts for water utilities issue of 1936, effective January 1, 1938. Augusta, Me., Public utilities commission, 1938. 103p.
- MAINTAINING citizen interest in the financial op-erations of government. Morey, Lloyd.
- MAINTENANCE and repair costs by machine num-ber. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 2, p. 414-7.)

- MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS
 BEALL, JOHN. Sales set this maintenance budget. Factory management and maintenance, July 1939, p. 90-1.
 DETWILER, E. M. Control of maintenance ex-penditures. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 2023

 - penditures, Cost and management,
 p. 73-7.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE. COLEMAN L. Control of maintenance costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 324-40.)
 MAINTENANCE and repair costs by machine number. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 2, p. 414-7.)
 MASTERS. MARTIN J. Costing repair or service

 - 1937. (1v. 10. an. converse.)
 2, 6, 414-7.)
 MASTERS, MARTIN J. Costing repair or service jobs. Profit, June 1938, p. 1, 3-4.
 MILLER, ANDREW. Cost accounting of repairs. Cost accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 258-60.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Maintenance. (In his De-preciation, principles and applications. c1939. D. 117-29.)
 WINDLE A. E. We budget maintenance and
 - WINDLE, A. E. We budget maintenance and control it. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1936, p. 24-5, 68.

- MAJOR accounting reports for management guid-ance. Cullen, J. F.
- MAKE it visual. Woodbridge, Frederick W.

MAKEPEACE, R. S. Control of direct labor cost variance in a metal goods factory. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1939. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 13, section 1, p. 839-68.)

- MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW
 Bank of England. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 33-41.
 Banking practice for the accountant. Accountant, Jan. 4, 1936, p. 8-10; Jan. 11, 1936, p. 45-7; Jan. 48, 1936, p. 93-4; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 202-3; Feb. 13, 1936, p. 241-2; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 202-3; Feb. 15, 1936, p. 241-2; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 278-9; Feb. 29, 1936, p. 317-9; March 7, 1936, p. 361-3; March 14, 1936, p. 413-4; March 21, 1936, p. 450-2; March 28, 1936, p. 489-92.
 Control of raw material stocks. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 22-5.
 - 22-5.
 - Crossed cheques. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 182-4. Differential costs. Cost accountant, June 1938, p.

 - Fraud detection and prevention. Banking, April
 - Fraud detection and prevented. 1939, p. 23. Installing a costing system. Accountant, Jan. 7, 1939, p. 18-20; Jan. 14, 1939, p. 47-9; Jan. 21, 1939, p. 95-7; Jan. 28, 1939, p. 127-9; Feb. 4, 1939, p. 157-60; Feb. 11, 1939, p. 192-4; Feb. 18, 1939, p. 221-3; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 257-60; March 4, 1939, p. 300-2; March 11, 1939, p. 332-4. Meeting procedure. Accountant, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 24. Ian. 16, 1937, p.
- b); March 4, 1939, p. 300-2; March 11, 1939, p. 332-4.
 Meeting procedure. Accountant, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 13-4; Jan. 9, 1937, p. 53-4; Jan. 16, 1937, p. 1937, p. 157-8; Feb 6, 1937, p. 1937, p. 130-7; Jan. 30, 1937, p. 157-8; Feb 6, 1937, p. 1937, p. 305-7; March 6, 1937, p. 338-40; March 13, 1937, p. 377-9; March 20, 1937, p. 419-51; April 3, 1937, p. 485-7; Nov. 27, 1937, p. 735; Dec. 4, 1937, p. 765-7; Dec. 11, 1937, p. 735; Dec. 4, 1937, p. 837-9.
 Modern taxation problems in Britain. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 365-71.
 Questions of modern taxation. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 12-8.
 Taxation in Britain goots. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 112-8.
 Taxation in Britain. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 366-9.

- 1939, p. 366-9.
- MAKING the annual report speak for industry. National association of mapufacturers.

MALCOLM, J. W. Standard costs in the linen industry. Cost accoun-tant, Feb. 1939, p. 268-71.

MALE, THOMAS

Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 677-83.

MALLET, LEONARD C.

NLET, EDIVARD 2: A start of the start of

MALONE, CHARLES T.

Bank examination and regulation in Canada and in the United States; submitted in partial ful-fillment of the requirements of the graduate school of banking of the American institute of banking, New Brunswick, N. J., June 1938, 68 mimeographed pages and form.

MALONE, HAROLD G. Payroll accounting and procedure. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' con-gress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 32-6.)

MALONEY ACT

See Investment companies-Law-United States.

MAN to man. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 398-9.

MANAGEMENT

- IANAGEMENT See also Factories—Management; Office management; Engineering. ASSOCIATION OF CONSULTING MANAGEMENT ENGINEERS, INC. Profession of management and the function of the consulting management engineer. New York, Association of consulting management enginers, inc., c1937. 200 29p.
- BLACKLOCK, D. S. Accounting for economic management. Glasgow, Jackson, son & co., ltd.,
- BLACKLOCK, D. S. Accounting for economic management. Glasgow, Jackson, son & co., 1td., 1938. 128p.
 BLACKWOOD, DAVID D. Business planning. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuthand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 2, p. 145-76.) Summary by J. Stirling Brown. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 145-61.
 BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD and DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS. Organizing and financing business; with questions and problems. 2nd rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 503p.
 BROWN, LEWIS H. Management's aims and responsibilities. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 20-7.
 BUSINESS executive's handbook, edited by Stanley M. Brown. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 1281p.
 BYNG, E. S. Administration-a profession. Accountant, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 532-7.
 DUNNIGAN, W. Y. Management cost committees. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 598-600; May 14, 1938; p. 670-3.
 FERGUSON, DUNCAN C. Managerial control. Cost and management, July 1936, p. 194-214.
 GATES, A. B. New technique in executive training. Cost and management, Aug. 1936, p. 226-37.

- 37. GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Financial or-ganization and management of business. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 840p. GESSNER, EDWARD J. Managerial accounting control. Certified public accountant, May 1936, p. 261-27
- control. Certified public accountant, May 1930, p. 261-73. GIBE, JEROME L. Modern industrial manage-ment. Profit, Nov. 1938, p. 1, 3-4. GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. New York, Ronald press co., c1937.
- in industry. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 574p.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Modern developments in costs, budgets, and control; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 163-5.)
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Accounting and the business executive. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 123-35.
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Statistical control of business activities. Cost and management, Feb. 1939, p. 50-62. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 177-87.
 JONES, W. D. Management control. Cost and management. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 307-13.
 JONES, W. D. Management control. Cost and management cost and management. May 1936, p. 136-40.
 KELLOGG, PAUL. Prepare tomorrow's statements today. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 273-83.
 KNOEPPEL, C. E. and SEYBOLD, EDGAR G. Managing for profit; working methods for profit planning and control. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1937. 343p.
 LINK, HENRY C. Psychological foundations of management. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 288-91.
 McKENZIE, I. R. Business planning. (In V.

- 288-91
- McKENZIE, CKENZIE, J. R. Business planning. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kon-

gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band B. thema 2,

- gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band B. thema 2, p. 45-61.) MCKINSEY, JAMES O. and NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Accounting and management. (In their Accounting principles, c1939, p. 830-56.) MILLS, HARRY B. Management to benefit em-ployers and employees. Profit, July 1938, p. 1, 2-4.

- MILLS, HARRY B. Management to benefit employers and employees. Profit, July 1938, p. 1, 2-4.
 MILLS, HARRY B. Plan of organization in business management. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1938, p. 1, 3-4, 6-8.
 OWENS, RICHARD N. Place of the business management course in the curriculum. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 183-7.
 PECK, SAM A. Managerial aspects of controls. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 8, section 1, p. 471-90.)
 PERKS, FRANK W. Management control. (from Incorporated secretaries journal) Indian accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 199-205.
 REEDER, R. R., Jr. Management problems. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 203-14.
 ROBERTSON, A. W. Management's responsibility to society. Cost and management, Nov. 1938, p. 304-13.
 SCOTT, DR. Trends in the technique and tools of management. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 184-5

- of management. Accounting review, June 1937, 138-45.

- b. 138-45.
 SEEBAUER, GEORGE. Social aspects of scientific management. Cost and management, Nov. 1939, p. 335-41.
 SEVENTH international management conference. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 601-2. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 13-4.
 SISSON, H. A. Business control and management. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 912-5. Cost accountant, June 1937, p. 17-21.
 STERNER, NILS A. Co-ordination of production and distribution. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 295-300.
 TAVI.OR, HARRY, Job analysis. Cost and management.
- and distribution. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 295-300. TAYLOR, HARRY. Job analysis. Cost and man-agement, May 1936, p. 140-5, THORP, WILLARD L., AND OTHERS. Some management problems. (In their Economic prob-lems in a changing world. c1939, p. 369-441.) WELLINGTON, C. O. Where are the profits? Profit, Aug. 1938, p. 1, 3-4. WITTY, RICHARD A. Management congress at Washington. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 50-1.
- 50-1.
- MANAGEMENT and cost control in the carbonated beverage industry. Bolte, Arthur H. and Low, Arthur E.
- MANAGEMENT control of ship-line operation. Millians, Paul M.
- MANAGEMENT of a textile business. Balderston, C. Canby and Karabasz, Victor S.
- MANAGEMENT of capital distributions under the revenue act of 1936. McLaren, Norman L.
- MANAGEMENT of motion picture theatres. Ricket-son, Frank H., Jr.
- MANAGEMENT reports-their use and interpreta-tion. Bennett, Clarence F.
- MANAGERIAL aspects of controls. Peck. S. A.
- MANAGERIAL control, instruments and methods in industry. Glover, John G. and Maze, Coleman L.
- MANAGERIAL control through cost accounting for construction work. James, Charles C.
- MANAGING for profit; working methods for profit planning and control. Knoeppel, C. E. and Sey-bold, Edgar G.
- NDATORY and recommendatory accounting rules and forms, effective October 1, 1937, and rules of order. Association of American rail-roads. Accounting division. MANDATORY

MANDEL, H. ROBERT

- HANDEL, H. ROBERT
 Apartment house alterations. Buildings and building management, July 1937, p. 50-1, 72.
 Apartment operating costs. Buildings and building management, April 1939, p. 13-5.

 Billing and collecting apartment rents. Buildings and building management, Feb. 1937, p. 40-3.
 Duties of new managing agent on taking over a property. Buildings and building management, April 1937, p. 54-6, 86-8.
 Real estate management: a manual for profitable
- Real estate management; a manual for profitable property operation. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 218p.

MANIT SYSTEM See Wages, fees, etc.

MANNING, BRIAN

Internal organization of an accountant's office. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, March 1937, p. 340-3.

- MANNING, RAYMOND E. State tax legislation—1938. (In National tax as-sociation. Proceedings, 1938. p. 7-21.) Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 721-3, 735-8. State tax legislation in 1937. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 722-7.

MANNIX, FRANCIS X. Corporation taxes under the revenue act of 1936. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 640-4, 694-5.

MANNIX, RAYMOND L.

- Accounting for corporations. Boston, Mass., The author, 1937. 412p.
- Basic course in cost accounting. Boston, Mass., The author, 1938. 355p. Essentials of cost accounting. Boston, Mass., The author, 1936. 236p.

MANSFIELD, D. BRUCE, joint author See Horne, Harold M. and Mansfield, D. Bruce.

- MANSFIELD, HARVEY C.
 Comptroller general; a study in the law and practice of financial administration. New Haven, Conn., Yale university press, 1939. 303p.
 General accounting office. (In United States. President's committee on administrative management. Fiscal management in the national government. 1937. p. 33-62.)

MANSFIELD, RICHARD I.

- Technique of the grain trade. Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin, April 1937, p. 263-8, 293-5.
- MANUAL for committees of the New York state society of certified public accountants. New York state society of certified public accountants.
- MANUAL for standard accounting system. Ameri-can institute of laundering.
- MANUAL of accounting procedure for Ford dealers. Ford motor company.
- MANUAL of accounting procedures for California municipalities. League of California municipali ties.
- MANUAL of examining procedure. United States. Federal home loan bank board.
- MANUAL of job cost finding practice for miscel-laneous jobbing steel foundries. Steel founders' society of America.
- MANUAL of pathfinder truck cost system. Hadley, Charles R. company.
- MANUAL of pathfinder voucher system. Hadley, Charles R., company.
- MANUAL NUAL of record storage practice—How long should records be kept? Bankers box company.
- MANUAL of the standard cost system for photo-engravers. American photo-engravers association.

- MANUAL of uniform accounting and auditing pro-cedure. Savings banks auditors and comptrollers forum of the state of New York.
- MANUAL of uniform system of accounting for clerks of courts of the commonwealth of Vir-ginia. Virginia. Auditor of public accounts.
- MANUAL of uniform system of accounting for county accounts, installed in the counties of the commonwealth of Virginia. Virginia, Auditor of public accounts.
- MANUAL of water works accounting. Municipal finance officers association of the United States and Canada and the American water works association.
- MANUAL, uniform cost accounting principles and procedure for the crushed stone industry. Na-tional crushed stone association, inc.

MANUFACTURERS

- IANUFACTURERS
 See also Cost and factory accounting; Factories;
 Names of various industries.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC TURERS. Constructive industrial practices; re port of the N.A.M. committee on industrial
 practices. New York, National association of
 manufacturers, May 1939, 37p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC TURERS. Industrial financing; report of the
 Committee on industrial financing of the Na tional association of manufacturers submitted
 at the N.A.M. congress on American industry,
 New York, December, 1939. New York, National
 association of manufacturers, 1939. 31p.

 ANNUFACTURERS: TAVES

MANUFACTURERS' TAXES See Taxation—Excise, under various states and countries.

MANUFACTURING See Industry.

MANUFACTURING ACCOUNTS See Cost and factory accounting.

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead.

MANY certificates (Commentator) Cranstoun, Wil-liam D., editor.

MAPP, KRIS A.

- Educating our students—what is our responsibility? Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 255-66. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1938,
- District action and structure formati, Jan. 1938, p. 151-4. (extracts)
 Some problems as between business and government. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 192-200.

MARBLE

See Quarries and quarrying.

MARCHANT CALCULATING MACHINE COM-PANY

SEIDEL, C. W. Marchant calculating machine company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 227.)

- 1938. p. 227.) **MARDER, LOUIS** C.P.A. law review-questions with answers. Ac-countants digest, June 1937, p. 468-73; Sept. 1937, p. 60-4; Dec. 1937, p. 192-6; March 1938, p. 326-31; June 1938, p. 444-8; Sept. 1938. p. 20-4; Dec. 1938, p. 143-7; March 1939, p. 233-40; June 1939, p. 328-35. Same. 165 Broadway, New York city, The author, c1939. 47p. C.P.A. review; auditing and theory-questions with answers. Accountants digest, June 1936, p. 397-404; Sept. 1936, p. 42-51; Dec. 1936, p. 173-82; March 1937, p. 314-23. Same. 165 Broadway, New York city, The author, c1937. 40p. Same. (supplement) Accountants digest, Suggestions for the final C.P.A. review. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 177-8.

MARGIN

See Speculation.

- MARGULIES, WILLIAM
 Accounting as credit aid; New Jersey C.P.A's have educational program. Credit and financial management, Sept. 1939, p. 23-4.
 Assuring a profit on each job. Inland printer, June 1936, p. 29-31.
 Independent contractors; status under the payroll-tax laws. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 464-6, 498-9. Reprinted. 5p.
 Information files in accountants' offices. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 93-6.
 New Jersey's franchise tax on foreign corporations. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 401-2, 419, 430.

 - 430
 - Plan for profitable control in small printing plants. (reprinted from July 1937 Inland printer) 450 Seventh Ave., New York, N. Y., The author, 1938. 8p.

 - 1938. Sp.
 Receivers, trustees and taxes. (reprinted from New Jersey law journal, June 9, 1938.)
 What can we do about our income taxes? (Talk given November 18, 1937, before the Ironbound manufacturers association, Newark, N. J.) 2 typewritten pages, charts and forms.
 What the executive should know about taxes. (outline of talk at meeting of Ironbound manufacturers association, Newark, N. J., October 13, 1938.) 4 mimeographed pages.
 Your taxes—and depreciation. (reprinted from March 1938 Inland primter). 450 Seventh Ave., New York, N. Y., The author. 3p.

- MARIK, JOHN A. Recent changes in New York taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, July 1939, p. 24-6. Some important changes in New York taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 28-9, 31.

MARINE EQUIPMENT

See Ships and shipping.

MARINE INSURANCE See Insurance, Marine.

MARINE TRANSPORTATION See Ships and shipping; Lighterage.

- MARK-DOWN AND MARK-UP BAKER, HAROLD A. Markup and markdown. (In his Principles of retail merchandising, 1939. p. 302-23.)

 - p. 302-23.)
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Prices, mark-ups, and margins. (In his Essentials of distribution. 1936. p. 327-43.)
 DOWLEY, MICHAEL F. Markdowns; their causes and control. (In National retail dry goods association. Buyers manual. e1937. p. 271-81.)
 WEEDMAN, T. J. Mark-up method of stock estimating. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1935, p. 277-89.
- MARKET manipulation and the securities exchange act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1937, p. 624-47.
- MARKET prices and food costs. Horwath hotel ac-countant, Sept. 1937, p. 6.

MARKET research and analysis. Brown, Lyndon O.

- MARKETING See also Distribution. BROWN, LYNDON O. Market research and analysis. New York, Ronald press co., c1937.

 - analysis. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 487p. CONVERSE, PAUL D. Essentials of distribution. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 588p. GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Marketing costs and marketing policies and their effects on costs. (In their Managerial con-trol, instruments and methods in industry. c1937.
 - b. 448.84.) McCALLUM, JOHN E. Agricultural marketing schemes and the natural products marketing act. *Canadian chartered accountant*, May 1936, p.

McNAIR, MALCOLM P. Marketing functions

- and costs and the Robinson-Patman act. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 334-55. MacNEAL, KENNETH. Market prices. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939. p. 127-73.) NIELSEN, A. C. Continuous marketing research-a vital factor in controlling distribution costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year
- a vital factor in controlling distribution costs. (in National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 220-55.)
 PHELPS, D. M. Marketing research, its function, scope, and method. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business, Bureau of busi-ness research, 1937. 149p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 2.)
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Accounting and distribu-tion techniques as voluntary devices to eliminate
- tion techniques as voluntary devices to eliminate
- tion techniques as voluntary devices to eliminate abuses in marketing. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 108-17. STONE, G. C. Market research. Cost accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 62-7. WERNE, BENJAMIN, ed. Business and the Rohinson-Patman law; a symposium. New York, Oxford university press, 1938. 296p.
- MARKETING research, its function, scope, and method. Phelps, D. M.

MARKETS

See also Retail trade. PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. Supermarket. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1938, part 1, p. 188-200.

MARKHAM, J. Credit control. Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 23-4.

MARKS, HERBERT H.

National defence contribution. Accountant, tax sup-plement, Jan. 15, 1938, p. 21-7; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 61-5.

MARKS, JOSEPH A. Charitable foundations; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certi-fied public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 104-5.

MARPLE, RAYMOND P. See also National association of cost accountants. Capital surplus and corporate net worth. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 201p. Theory and practice with respect to payroll taxes. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 178-9.)

 MARPLE, RAYMOND P.
 DEPRECIATION policy in manufacturing industries. (Based on a questionnaire study by R.
 P. Marple, research and service department, under supervision of A. B. Gunnarson, director in charge of research). New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 2, p. 1053-62) (). 62.)

MARQUIS, RALPH W., joint author See Smith, Frank P. and Marquis, Ralph W.

MARSH, CHARLES V. R.

Keeping accounts and providing accurate statistics for surety and fidelitv lines. Weekly underwriter, Dec. 24, 1938, p. 1294-7.

MARSH, SAM A.

Co-ordinating purchasing policies for material con-trol. (In National association of cost accountants. *Year book*, 1937. p. 55-64.) Fair labor standards act of 1938. 24 typewritten

pages.

MARSH, WILLIAM F.

- Accounting aid to industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 33-6.
- Auditing procedure—a development to meet chang-ing conditions. (In Ohio state university. Proceed-ings of the second annual institute on account-ing . . . May 19, 20, 1939, p. 76-90.)

MARSHALL, A. H. Local authorities: internal financial control. London, Institute of public administration, 1936. 218p.

- MARSHALL, EDWARD W., joint author See Maclean, Joseph B. and Marshall, Edward W.

MARSHALL, FRANCIS W. Layman's legal guide to essential laws. New York, Blue ribbon books, inc., c1934. 346p.

MARSHALL, H. S. Appraisal for assessment of intangible property of corporations. Illinois manufacturers' costs asso-ciation monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 4-8.

MARSLAND, P. W. Depreciation table reducing balance method. Certi-fied public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 547. Cana-dian chartered accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 308-9. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 157-8.

MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Engineering valuation. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 655p.

MARTIN, A. Control of direct and indirect labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 991-1012.) Printed with: Henshaw, Frank O. Labor control in the sign shop.

MARTIN, CHESTER

Cooperative accounting? (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 54. Interest during construction. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 174-6.

MARTIN, J. H. Alternative use as a valuation factor. (In Na-tional tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 278-83.)

- MARTIN, JAMES W.
 Comparison of the Kentucky income tax with the principal differing accounting provisions of the federal income tax law. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1937, p. 246-50.
 General theory of tax exemptions. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. e1939. p. 3-20.)
 Municipal revenues and expenditures. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 329-32, 334, 375.
 Program of municipal revenues and expenditures to meet changing social conditions. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 64-71.) Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 329-32, 334, 375.
 Stable tax policy and accounting control_of profits,
 - 5/5. Stable tax policy and accounting control of profits, with special reference to Kentucky. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 407-9. Unit method of railroad assessment. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 155-6, 190.

MARTIN, L. H. Reports and statistics for executive control. Na-tional auditgram, Feb. 1939, p. 5-9, 18-20.

MARTIN, O. R.

Social security act. 14 typewritten pages.

MARTIN, ROBERT F. See National industrial conference board, inc.

MARTZ, H. R.

Engineer's comments on the control of continuing property records; address before the Third na-tional accounting conference, Edison electric in-stitute, Chicago, Illinois, November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 545.6 545-6.

MARVIN, J. ARTHUR

Accounts receivable; comments on paper prepared by Mr. C. H. Towns at Eastern four-states ac-counting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19, 1939. 11 typewritten pages.

- Confirmation of receivables; before New York state society of certified public accountants, October 23, 1939. 8 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 67-71.
 Examination of notes and accounts receivable. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 23-6, 38.
 Responsibility of the certified public accountant to his profession. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 47-9.)

MARX, EMILY

- Is form 872 a complete waiver of the limitation period? Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 639, 692-33. Is the income of a maintenance trust taxable to the settlor? Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8,
- 116. When the settlor of a trust reserves a life estate. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 143-8, 185-7.
- MARYLAND ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS Catalogue of books. ed. 2, revised. Baltimore, Md., Enoch Pratt free library, January 1938. 40p.

MASON, A. B. Control of cleaning costs. Buildings and building management, May 1938, p. 37-9.
 Essential operating records. Buildings and buildin-management, July 1938, p. 39-40.

MASON, PERRY

- Principles of public-utility depreciation. Chicago, Ill., American accounting association, 1937. 128p. (American accounting association monographs, no. 1.)
- Recent trends in depreciation decisions. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 1-14. Supreme court on public-utility depreciation. Ac-counting review, Sept. 1936, p. 234-70.

MASSACHUSETTS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS

MASSACHUSETTS TRUST

GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Massachusetts trust. (In his Financial organisation and man-agement of business. 1936. p. 61-77.)

MASSIE, J. W. Internal audit procedure and control. National auditgram, Feb. 1937, p. 4-5, 12.

MASTER control coördinates sales and distribution costs. Food industries, Feb. 1938, p. 88-9, 120.

MASTERS, MARTIN J.

Costing repair or service jobs. Profit, June 1938, p. 1, 3-4.

MATCHES

Accounting WORMAN, JOHN H. Matches. (In Mucklow, Walter. Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 293-6.)

MATERIAL

- IATERIAL See also Inventories; Property; Stores systems and stock records.
 NICKERSON, C. B. Favors use of price adjust-ment account or reserve. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 2, p. 1139.42.)
 RENNER, ROBERT R. Similar plan described. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants. May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 2, p. 1143.9.)

Accounting MADISON, W. J. Material accounting and prob-lems. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 28-32.
MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Accounting for mate-rials. (In his Basic course in cost accounting. 1938, p. 70-95.)

MATERIAL—(Continued)

- MAIERIAL Commune, Cost accounting APPLICATION of raw material costs to sales. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 2, p. 987-8.) BRUCE, ROBERT. Method for classifying and accumulating material used data. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, accident cost accident cost accountants, Aug. 15, accident cost accident cost accountants, Aug. 15, accident cost ac
 - BRUCE, 'ROBERT. Method for classifying and accumulating material used data. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 24, section 1, p. 1341-408.)
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Accounting for materials and supplies. (In his *Introduction to cost accounting*, 1936. p. 91-115.)
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of direct material costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry, c1937, p. 263-79.)
 GREEN, EARL A. Should materials be charged into process at actual cost of replacement cost? (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 321-7, discussion, p. 327-9.)
 KEATING, WILLIAM L. Controversial points in treatment of materials under a standard cost system. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 35-93.)
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Determination and statement of material cost-Stores valuation and records. (In its Cost accounting procedure, 1937, p. 11-30; 31-49.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Accounting for material-Materials. (In his Cost accounting for material sorage and consumption—Valuation of materials. (1937, p. 81-145.)

 - 145)

 - MADISON, WILLIAM J. Accounting for material costs. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. *Year book*, 1937. p. 76-84.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Accounting for mate-rials. (In his Essentials of cost accounting. 1936.
 P., 61-87.)
 - p. 61-87.) NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST AC-COUNTANTS. Research and service department. COUNTANTS. Research and service department. Practice in accounting for raw materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 14, section 1, p. 785-809.)
 SEEBER, CARL L. Material burden and its ap-plication. (In National association of cost ac-countants. Year book, 1937. p. 155-63.)
 URICH, JOHN E. Accounting for productive mate-rials. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 9, section 1, p. 483-96.) Printed with: Sayre, B. M. Inventory control and valuation.
 USE of material burden rate. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 2, p. 990-2.)

Costs

Ð,

SKUCE, W. C. Control of material as a cost element. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1938. p. 114-31.)

MATERIAL CONTROL

- See also Inventories; Stores systems and stock

- See also Inventories; Stores systems and stock records.
 CARTMELL, N. M. Control of inventory investments. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938, p. 88-108.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Stock control and accounting. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939, p. 621-35.)
 SKUCE, W. C. Control of material as a cost accountants. Year book, 1938, p. 114-31.)

- MATERIAL HANDLING
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of material handling costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 378-93.)
 MILLER, GEORGE. Cost of handling materials in Chrysler plants is held under budget control. Steel, Jan. 25, 1937, p. 47, 50-2.
- MATHEMATICAL computations for defaulted bond issues. Bickford, R. S.

- MATHEMATICAL principles of instalment financing. Mules, W. Russell and Laws, Owens.
- MATHEMATICAL proof of a proposition in partner-ship accounting. Moonitz, Maurice.

MATHEMATICS

- HOGBEN, LANCELOT. Mathematics for the million. New York, W. W. Norton & co., inc.,
- HOGBEN, LANCELOT. Mathematics tor the million. New York, W. W. Norton & co., inc., c1937. 647p.
 SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. and LANG, THEO-DORE. Mathematics of business and finance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 548p.
 SELECTED tables for business and financial cal-culations designed for everyday use in making interest and other computations; organized and arranged by Theodore Lang and William S. Schlauch. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 1820. 182p
- 182p.
 SHORT cuts in business mathematics. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 98-110.)
 SIMPSON, THOMAS MARSHALL, PIRENIAN, ZAREH M., AND CRENSHAW, BOLLING H. Mathematics of finance. ed. 2, rev. and enl. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 126p.

MATHEMATICS for the million. Hogben, Lancelot.

- MATHEMATICS of business and finance. Schlauch, William S. and Lang, Theodore.
- MATHEMATICS of costing. Accountant, Jan. 1, 1938, p. 2-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 31; Jan. 15, 1938, p. 67-8; Jan. 22, 1938, p. 108-9; Jan. 29, 1938, p. 143; Feb. 5, 1938, p. 176; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 215; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 247; Feb. 26, 1938, p. 284; March 5, 1938, p. 310.
- MATHEMATICS of finance. Simpson, Thomas Mar-shall, Pirenian, Zareh M., and Crenshaw, Bolling

MATHEWS, GEORGE C.

- MATHEWS, GEORGE C.
 Accounting in relation to regulation of security sales. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 102-14.)
 Same. 11 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 225-33.
 Address before the Milwaukee chapter, Wisconsin society of certified public accountants, Milwaukee, Wis., January 8, 1937. 15 mimeographed pages.

MATHEWS, H. T.

Plant ledger-what it is and why. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1627-9.

MATHIAS, DAVID B.

Control and examination of bonds and coupons re-ceived for collection. National auditgram, May 1939, p. 17, 23.

- MATHHESON, JOHN K.
 Conflicting activities of the legal and accounting professions. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 2-6.
 Practical aspects of depreciation; with discussion by R.E.W. Harrison, before 35th spring convention, National machine tool builders' association, Edgewater Beach hotel, Chicago, Illinois, May 3, 1937. Cleveland, Ohio, National machine tool builders' association, 1937. 12 mimeographed pages pages.

MATTER, J. K. Standard costs kept standard. American machinist, July 14, 1937, p. 610-1.

- MATTERSDORF, LEO Allocation of income between states. (Correspond-ence) Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 19-20.
 - Changes in New York state tax laws in 1938. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 143-7. Taxes-the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 19-20, 43.
 1937 changes in New York state tax law. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p.

MATTERSDORF, LEO-(Continued)

- 17-9. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 85-6. Recent changes in the New York franchise and in-come tax laws. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 208-9, 250-1.
- come tax taws. Tax megazine, Tepin 1950; p. 208-9, 250-1.
 Report of the committee of the National tax association on allocation of income; presented at the thirty-first national tax conference held at Detroit, Michigan, October 24-8, 1938. Columbia, S. C., National tax association, 1938. 17p.
 Report of the committee of the National tax association on allocation of income; presented at the thirty-second national tax conference held at San Francisco, California, October 16-19, 1939. Columbia, S. C., National tax association, 1938. 22p.
 Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Leo Mattersdorf. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 61-3.
- 1936, p. 61-3.

MATTISON, E. A. Bank financing of accounts receivable. Burroughs clearing house, Nov. 1938, p. 10-2.

MATTUCK, MAXWELL S. "Good faith" clause of 77-B adjudicated. Credit executive, Sept. 1936, p. 276.

MATZ, A. Position of the German accountant. Accounting re-view, Dec. 1938, p. 392-5.

MAUGHAN, ORLO H. Cost of store credit. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell univers-ity, State college of agriculture, April 1936. 26p. (Cornell extension bulletin 349)

MAUTNER, OSCAR C.P.A. auditing answers to 86th examination, copy of which appears in the second issue of the Ac-counting ledger. Accounting ledger, Feb. 1939, p. 36-43.

MAXIMUM percentage of appraised value loanable by building and loan associations and average foreclosure costs: by states. Savings and loans, April 1938, p. 16.

- MAXWELL, ARTHUR D., joint author See Lockwood, Jeremiah and Maxwell, Arthur D.

MAXWELL, F. C. Some observations on cost accounting. Australian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 518-26.

- MAXWELL, GEORGE A. Gold and its relationship to credit. (Talk given at a meeting of the Baltimore bank auditors and comptrollers) 15 typewritten pages.

MAXWELL, J. A. Monetary policies of Mr. Roosevelt. Australian ac-countant, Nov. 1938, p. 278-85.

MAXWELL, W. RUSSELL

Credit. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 39-47.

MAY, A. WILFRED

British and American investment trusts. Bankers magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 117-22. MAY, GEORGE O.

MAY, GEORGE O.
Accounting procedure and the stock exchange. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 65-6.
Consequences of increasing taxes. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 13, 1938, p. 383-5.
Dealings in treasury stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 113.
Eating peas with your knife. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 15-22. Reprinted. 100.
Federal taxing for 1937. New York sun, Jan. 4, 1937, p. 34. Reprinted by the author. 1937, 12p.
Growth and incidence of taxation; paper delivered before the general meeting of American iron and steel institute held in New York, May 27, 1937, 15p. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 337-41.

- Improvement in financial accounts; lectures on the A. Lowes Dickinson foundation graduate school of business administration, April 12-14, 1937. New York, The author, 1937, 57p. Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 333-69. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 593-7; May 14, 1938, p. 661-5; May 21, 1938, p. 701-5. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 42-56; Aug. 1938, p. 106-20; Sept. 1938, p. 200-12.
 Influence of accounting on the development of an economy. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 171-184. (In his Tweeny-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936 v. 2, p. 305-52.)
 Introduction to discussion of "A statement of accountants. Papers on accounting principles". (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 12-23.
 Principles of accounting. (Comments upon the essays of Gilbert R. Byrne, published in the November issue of the Journal of accountancy. Journal of accountancy, 1937, p. 423-5.
 Proposed graduated taxes on undistributed corporate profits. New York, The author, 1936, 199.
 Recent opinions on dealings in treasury stock. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 17-22.
 Remarks at fiftieth anniversary celebration and annul meeting, American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937, 2 mimeographed pages.
 Revenue act, 1936; statements . . . before committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fourth congress, second session on H. R. 12395; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes, May 6, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936, 119.
 Some considerations relating to federal taxation in 1935 and 1936. New York, The author, 1936.

- 28p.

- 28p.
 Taxation; federal legislation in 1935 and in 1936. New York sun, Jan. 4, 1936, p. 5.
 Taxation in 1937; expectations of returns from unsound tax legislation were proved unwarranted —the probability of substantial changes in the taxes on undistributed profits and capital gains. New York sun, Jan. 8, 1938, p. 5.
 Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936; essays and discussions, edited by Bishop Carleton Hunt. 2 vols. in 1. New York, Ameri-can institute pub. co., inc., c1936. v. 1, 368p. v. 2, 421 p. (bound together) Table of contents and analytical index. 1937. 20p.
- 20p.

Uniformity in accounting. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 1-8. Wider horizons. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 295-304.

MAYHALL, WILLIAM F. Municipal accounting practice. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, May 1937, p. 30-1.

MAYNARD, HAROLD B. AND STEGEMERTEN,

G. J. Operation analysis. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 298p.

MAYO, RALPH B.

Auditing problems of municipalities. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 213-7.)

MAZE, COLEMAN L., joint author See Glover, John G. and Maze, Coleman L.

MAZUR, PAUL

Financing and re-financing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 70-4, discussion, p. 74-7.)

MEAD CORPORATION

Annual report; a study of over five hundred financial reports of leading American business in-stitutions showing the present style trend and im-portant physical characteristics, compiled by W. B. Gibson, Chillicothe, Ohio, Mead corp., Sept. 15, 1939. 33p.

330

MEADE, ARTHUR C.

General changes in the federal revenue act of 1936 relating to corporation returns and the computa-tion of normal tax upon corporations. Daily record (Baltimore, Md.), Dec. 22, 1936.

MEAGHER, F. W. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1938, p. 189-201.

MEANS, FREDERIC C., joint author See Knowles, Asa S., and Means, Frederic C.

MEANS, GARDINER C., joint author See Ware, Caroline F. and Means, Gardiner C.

MEASURED day work-a wage plan. Bedell, L. V.

MEASURED day work or wage incentives? Williams, Archibald.

MEAT PACKING See Packing.

MEAT PRODUCTS

See Packing.

MEAT TRADE

ANGLO-Argentine meat inquiry. Accountant, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 603-6. Coste

iosts HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Expenses and profits of food chains in 1935. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business ad-ministration, April 1936. 50p. (Bulletin no. 99.)

Statistics

- tatistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of meat markets. (In their 1936 retail survey. report nos. 5, 5a, 8, 8a.)
 , Analysis of the 1936 operations of meat markets. (In their 1937 retail survey. report nos. 12, 12a, 12b.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Expenses and profits of food chains in 1935. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business adminis-tration, April 1936. 50p. (Bulletin no. 99.)

MECHANICAL ACCOUNTING See Mechanical devices.

- MECHANICAL DEVICES
 AGARD, R. F. Topeka modernizes its accounting; a manual describing how mechanical accounting equipment is applied to the preparation of records in the auditor's office, City of Topeka, Kansas. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. (1939) 71p.
 ALLEN, ROBERT T. and CRAFTS, J. ANDREW. Accounts payable recording under bookkeeping machine procedure. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 282-92.

 - 92.
 AMERICAN GAS ASSOCIATION, INC. Report of accounting machines committee: applications of accounting machines to payroll accounting. (In its Annual convention proceedings. 1938. p. 153-203.)
 ANNAN, WILLIAM. Mechanised accounting and its audit features. Accountants' magazine, March 1939. p. 163-80.
 ANNAN, WILLIAM. Mechanised accounting audit features. Irish accountant and secretary, Dublin management exhibition number (April 1939) p. 21-2.

 - 21-2.
 AUDITING machine-produced accounts. Irish accountant and secretary, April 1937, p. 65.
 AUDITORS and mechanisation. Accountant, Sept. 3, 1938, p. 314-6.
 BARNETT, R. N. Effect on auditing of machine accounting. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 399-404, discussion, p. 404-5. Accountant, Sept. 3, 1938, p. 328-33. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 691-702.

- BARNETT, R. N. Memorandum on the use of machines in accounting. (In Back, W. J. Stand-ard practice in auditing. 1937. p. 36-41.) BURROUGHS ADDING MACHINE COMPANY.
- ard practice in auditing, 1937. p. 36-41.)
 BURROUGHS ADDING MACHINE COMPANY.
 Budgetary control through modernized mechanical methods; a discussion of forms, account classification and statistical reports. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 36p.
 CARSON, A. J. Application of peg-board methods to retail accounting. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1939, p. 64-74.)
 CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. New trend in accounting—accounts receivable. Chicago, Ill., Ditto, inc. no date. 11p.
 CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. New trend in accounting—order and billing. Chicago, Ill., Ditto, inc. no date. 24p.
 CENTRALISATION of accountancy records, with special reference to mechanical methods. Accountants' magazine, June 1938, p. 357-62.
 CURTIS, C. RALPH. Office organisation. Ac-

- CURTIS, C. RALPH. Office organisation. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 132-5; April 4, 1936, p. 528-30; Sept. 19, 1936, p. 393-4; Feb. 13, 1937, p. 237-9; June 5, 1937, p. 815-6; May 21, 1938, p. 715-6; Feb. 4, 1939, p. 150-2; March 25, 1939, p. 412-3; Nov. 18, 1939, p. 550-2. DARDEN, R. R. Office appliances and mechanical equipment. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 16, section 1, p. 951-62.) Printed with: Graham, Willard J. Accounting economy by machine methods. DAVIES, L. E. Modern office mechanisation. Certified accountants journal, March 1937, p. 7-80.
- DOLBY, CHARLES M. Machine in accountancy,
- (In his Organization of an accountant's office. 1938, p. 101-9.) GERACI, FRANK V. Cutting costs with state-ment-ledger accounting machines. American business combined with "System", July 1936, p.
- Oussness commune 17, 43. GLUICK, LEWIS. Duplicating devices for ac-countants. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 6-9. GLUICK, LEWIS. Taxation of accounting ma-countant magazine, Oct. 1938, p.
- chine manufacturers. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 595-7
- GOEBEILLE, WILLIAM H. International busi-
- GOEBEILLE, WILLIAM H. International business machines. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 226-7.)
 GRAHAM, BERL G. Machine accounting; introduction to round table discussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 219-20.)
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Accounting economy by machine methods. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 16, section 1, p. 935-51.)
 HALL, L. DEANE. Burroughs adding machine company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accountan

- Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 221-3.) HAMILTON, G. S. Mechanised system of sales accounting for breweries. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p. 841-6. HARRISON, E. G. Ditto, inc. (In American in-stitute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 224-6.) HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Mechanical equipment and preparation of forms. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 478-94.) 94.)
- HOLGATE, H. C. F. Future of the machine in branch banking. Accountant, Nov. 28, 1936, p. 733-4.
- HOW modern equipment cuts costs in time pay ment accounting. American business, June 1938, p. 37-40.
- HOWELL, A. W. A. Audit of machine-written ac-

MECHANICAL DEVICES—(Continued)

- counting records. Accountant, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 265-70; Sept. 2, 1939, p. 299-303; Sept. 9, 1939, p. 321-5; Sept. 16, 1939, p. 338-42; Sept. 23, 1939, p. 365-9; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 384-6; Oct. 7, 0320, p. 365-9; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 384-6; Oct. 7,

- 1939, p. 365-9; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 384-6; Oct. 7, 1939, p. 400-3.
 HUGHES, W. C. C. Brief survey of a complete mechanised accounting system. Accountant, Dec. 4, 1937, p. 767-70.
 JACOBS, JUSTIN. Automatic bookkeeping via adding machine. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 3-5.
 KAY, R. M. Some observations concerning mechanised accounting. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 178-9.
 KEMP, G. W. Cost accounting by the machine method. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 88-93.
- KIMPEL, H. M. Centralized accounting at Cleve-land Heights, Ohio. American city, Aug. 1936, p. 79, 81.
 KISER, SHELDON F. Machine bookkeeping in an and the second se

- land Heights, Ohio. American city, Aug. 1936, p. 79, 81.
 KIŠER, SHELDON F. Machine bookkeeping in the savings department. National auditgram, March 1937, p. 8-9.
 LEVER, THOMAS S. Accounting machine developments. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1935, p. 217-39.)
 LOUDON, JOHN. Effect of mechanised accounting on audit procedure. Accountants' magazine, July 1939, p. 428-42.
 MCCARTNEY, J. F. Office mechanisation and its effects. (from the Secretary) Accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 711-5.
 MOSLEY-ROBERTS, A. E. Mechanisation and the auditor. Accountant, March 20, 1937, p. 416-9.
 NEW features in mechanical equipment for accounting offices. Accountant, Jan. 8, 1938, p. 53-5.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accountant, Protoday. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 10-6. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 469-79.)
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-VOR SUMMEDIAL SCHEMENTS.

- ROSS, H. W. Mechanical accounting. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 55-61; May 1937, p. 92.4
- ROSS, H. W. Office organisation of "to-morrow" with notes on the application of mechanical ap-pliances. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 431-4; Oct. 3, 1936, p. 467-70.
- ROSSELL, C. E. Monroe calculating machine company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 227-8.)
- ROWELL, E. P. Mechanical aids to problems in distribution accounting. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 245-51.
- RUSS, J. Office machinery. Cost accountant, April 1936, p. 332-40. SEIDEL, C. W. Marchant calculating machine company. (In American institute of accountants.

- Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 227.) SIMON, J. L. Machine accounting as applied to department store customers' accounts. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 12-20. SOLOMON, V. L. Audit of mechanised accounts. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 371-84. STARREVELD, R. W. Office machines research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 223.4.)

- accounting principles and proceaure. 1956. p. 223-4.) TAX accounting of the city of Detroit; a com-plete system covering all phases of tax account-ing. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 35p. TIPPING, J. Audit of municipal accounts with special reference to mechanical accountancy. In-corporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 243.8

- corporated accountants journal, April 1997, p. 243-8.
 TULL, T. W. Cost accounting and machine bookkeeping for a citrus fruit cancery. Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 3, 4-8.
 VAN DROOGE, HUBERT. Orders, inventories, billings under automatic control. Factory management and maintenance, June 1939, p. 56-9, 132
- 132, 134. VAN GELDER, E. C. Application of recordak to accounts receivable. *Balance sheet*, Sept. 1937, p.
- 6-8. WAITE, FREDERICK A. Electrographic system of trust accounting; outline of basic set-up and provisions. *Trust companies*, Aug. 1936, p. 187-94.
- 94. WERNER, THOMAS C. Underwood Elliott Fisher company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 228-30.)

Hollerith method See Mechanical devices—Tabulating and sorting.

- Peg board
 ANDREWS, L. G. More on peg-board or strip system of accounting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Sept. 1939, p. 22-3.
 BENNETT, H. H. Peg-board applications—book-keeping without books. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 57-60, discussion, p. 60.2
 - COLEMAN, LUCIUS H. Application of the key-sort and pegboard to the large and small busi-ness. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 16-27.

Punched card See Mechanical devices—Tabulating and sorting.

- Slide rule SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. and LANG, THEO-DORE. Slide rule. (In their Mathematics of business and finance. c1937. p. 327-38.)
- Tabulating and sorting BAEHNE, G. W., editor. Practical application of the punched card method in colleges and univers-ities. New York, Columbia university press, 1935.
- ities. New York, Columbia university press, 1503. 442p. BROWN, BERNARD. Punched hole principle of accounting as aspolied to retailing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 48.) BRYANT, G. A. Application of the punched card system to accountancy. Certified accountants journal, Feb. 1938, p. 52-7. DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manufacturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 491-9.) Printed with: Gardner, Graham A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations.
- installations. DURMAN, CHARLES H. Costing for public works. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 159-64, GARDNER, GRAHAM A. Improving the opera-tion of tabulating machine installations. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 481-90.)

- MECHANICAL DEVICES—Tabulating and sorting— (Continued)

 - MECHANICAL DEVICES—Tabulating and sorting— (Continued)
 GUTHMULLER, ROBERT W. Machine accounting; punched card system. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 43-5.
 LOREE, H. M. Preparation of cost data; address before Hamilton chapter, October 27, 1938. Cost and management, Nov. 1938, p. 299-303.
 MERCER, H. J. Punched card accounting. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 198-200.
 NATIONAL CAPITAL GROUP OF CONTROL-LERS. Practical tabulating methods used in re-tail stores. (In National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Controllers' congress. Year book of re-tailing. 1938, p. 31-48.)
 OPERATING a furniture unit control by tabulat-ing machines. Bulletin of the National dry goods association, May 1938, p. 38-40, 70.
 PINNEY, R. T. Punched card accounting. Certi-fied accountants journal, April 1939, p. 117-20.
 STOWE, H. J. Application of punched-card equip-ment in obtaining policy reserve and dividend calculations. (In American institute of actuaries. Record, 1936. v. 25, p. 223-9.)
 TWOHY, FRANK. Application of tabulating equip-ment in accounting procedure. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1704-11.
 VANNAIS, LEON E. Accounting records where

 - 1704-11
 - 1704-11.
 VANNAIS, LEON E. Accounting records where punched cards are in use. Accounting forum, Nov. 1937, p. 11-2, 22. Connecticut C.P.A., Oct. 1938, p. 1-6.
 VINCENT, J. E. Mechanised stores accounting. Cost accountant, Oct. 1939 p. 119-21.
 WIGHT, L. A. Mechanised accounting; the 'Hollerith' punched card method. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 462-73.
 WILLIS, S. W. Punched card method of cost accounting. Cost and management, Nov. 1939, p. 324-8.

 - 324-8.

MECHANICAL HANDLING

See Material handling.

MECHLING, B. F. Overhead by formula. Factory management and maintenance, March 1937, p. 49, 92, 94.

MECK, JOHN F. AND CARY, WILLIAM LUCIUS

Regulation of corporate finance and management under the public utility holding company act of 1935. Harvard law review, Dec. 1938, p. 216-58.

- MEDER, ALBERT E. Analysis of provisions of Connery fair labor stand-ards bill. Controller, July 1937, p. 192-5.
- MEDIAN, minimum and maximum monthly salary paid employees in fifteen iob classifications by companies in New York, Philadelphia and Cin-cinnati areas. Controllers institute of America.

MEECH, STUART P. Controllers' views as to immediate steps on social security. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 5-8, discussion, p. 8-12

- MEEK, HOWARD BAGNALL Theory of hotel room rates. Ithaca, N. Y.. Cornell university, Department of hotel administration, June 1938, 120p. (Hotel administration, no. 9.)
- MEETING the cost of the war. Accountants' maga-zine, Dec. 1939, p. 600-4.

MEETINGS

See Corporations-Meetings.

MEHAN, R. I.

Constitutionality of a rule against competitive bid-ding. Texas accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 5-7.

MEIKLE, ALEXANDER

Building societies. Accountant, July 1, 1939, p. 16-21.

MELCHER, FREDERIC G.

Successful bookshop; a manual of practical informa-tion. New York, National association of book publishers. no date. 16p.

- MELTON, L. D. Homestead tax exemption. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 188-205.)
- MEMBERS of reputable accountancy bodies do not advertise. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 412
- MEMBERSHIP in state societies. Certified public ac-countant, June 1938, p. 1.
- MEMBERSHIP rights. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1937, p. 294-7.
- MEMORANDUM addressed to Senate finance com-mittee relative to pending revenue legislation (H.R. 9682). New York state society of certified public accountants. Committee on federal taxation.
- MEMORANDUM as to the deduction of income tax for the year 1937-38. Accountant, tax supplement, May 1, 1937, p. 175-6.
- MEMORANDUM filed with the Senate finance committee by the Committee on federal taxation of the American institute of accountants regarding the proposed revenue act of 1938. American institute of accountants.
- MENACE of the advertising accountant. (Editorial) Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 269-71. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 40-2.

MEN'S CLOTHING

- See Clothing industry; Clothing trade.
- N'S work clothing manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year coun-MEN'S Dun and cil.
- MENSARIO BRASILEIRO DE CONTABILIDADE; orgao oficial do Instituto Brasileiro de con-tabilidade. Rua da Carioca, 41, Rio de Janeiro, Instituto Brasileiro de contabilidade.

MENTAL multiplication. Lipkin, Charles.

MERCANTILE credit. Steiner, William Howard.

MERCANTILE LAW

See Commercial law.

- MERCER, H. J. Punched card accounting. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 198-200.

MERCHANDISE

- See also Inventories; Stores systems and stock

- See also Inventories; Stores systems and records.
 ADVANCED purchases of seasonal merchandise. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 49-50.
 MERCHANDISE in transit on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 297.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Periodic operations and adjustments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 1, p. 250-71.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Merchandise accounts. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 57-68.)
- MERCHANDISE in transit on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 297.

MERCHANDISING

- HERCHANDISING See also Department Stores; Dry goods; Retail trade; Wholesale trade. BAKER, HAROLD A. Principles of retail mer-chandising. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 462p. DOUBMAN, J. RUSSELL. Principles of retail merchandising. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 213p. (American business funda-mertale) mentals) McKINSFY.
- cKINSEY. JAMES O. American merchant's responsibilities in modern life. Certified public accountant, May 1936, p. 294-9.

MERCHANDISING-(Continued)

- MCNTAGUE, GILBERT H. Merchandising under the Robinson-Patman act. Chicago, Ill., Founda-tion press, inc., e1936. 8p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Merchandising division. Buyer's manual. rev. ed. New York, National retail dry goods association, e1937. 372p.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Merchandising activities—Summarizing the ac-counts of a merchandising business. (In their Elementary accounting. e1938. p. 73-115.)

- Accounting
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Merchandising activities and accounts. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting, 1936, p. 31-62.)
 PATON, W. A. Merchandising accounts. (In his Essentials of accounting, 1938, p. 466-89.)
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND SMITH, HAROLD J. Mercantile accounts. (In their Secretarial accounting, c1936, p. 139-58.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND BOLING, CLEM. Accounting for a mercantile enterprise. (In their Secretarial accounting, c1936, p. 365-92.)
- MERCHANDISING under the Robinson-Patman act. Montague, Gilbert H.

- MERCHANTS' ASSOCIATION OF NEW YORK Recommendations of the Merchants' association of New York for revision of federal tax laws; report of committee on taxation and public revenue, approved by board of directors, October 5, 1939. New York, Merchants' association of New York, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.
- MERCURIO; organo del Colegio de contadores de San Juan. San Juan, Argentina, Colegio de contadores publicos de San Juan.

MEREDITH, SPENCER B., joint author See Graham, Benjamin and Meredith, Spencer B.

MERGERS

See Consolidations

MERIT-rating study. Donovan, W. Leonard.

MERRIAM, MALCOLM M.

Retail credit in 1938; summary of a survey by Department of commerce. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1939, p. 9-12.

MERRILL LYNCH AND CO., INC., AND CASSATT AND CO., INC. Chain store statistics, containing record of opera-tions of 30 chain store companies and other information of interest to investors. New York, Merrill Lynch and co., inc., June 1939. 34p.

MERRIMAN, C. O. H. Unit trusts; the technical side of operations. Ac-countant student and Accountants' journal, March 1939, p. 320-6. Accountant, July 15, 1939, p. 73-5.

MERTENS, JACOB, JR., joint author See Paul, Randolph E. and Mertens, Jacob, Jr.

MERTENS, NICHOLAS J. Budgeting and financial control.

- Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 185-92.

MESEROLE. W. H., joint author See Miller, Nelson A. and Meserole, W. H.

MESSAGE from the President of the United States. Roosevelt, Franklin Delano.

- MESSNER, C. L. Wartime regulation of finance and commerce. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 351-71.
- METAL INDUSTRY See Mining and metallurgy.

METAL WORK

See also Sheet metal.

See also Sneet metal. Cost accounting MAKEPEACE, R. S. Control of direct labor cost variance in a metal goods factory. New York, National association of cost accountants. March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 13, section 1, p. 839-68.)

- Statistice BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for metal manufacturers. (In his Practical credit analysis. c1939. p. 67.)
- METHOD for classifying and accumulating material used data. Bruce, Robert.
- **THOD** of handling sales of large machines. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 17, section 1, p. 1003-5.) METHOD
- METHODS of amalgamation and the valuation of business for amalgamation and other purposes. Cutforth, A. E.
- METHODS of charging social security taxes dis-cussed by controllers. *Controller*, April 1936, p. 83-8, 99-100.
- METHODS of computing costs, and control of prices by public authorities. Forbes, John F.
- METHODS of organization. Certified public accoun-tant, July 1938, p. 16.

METROPOLITAN CONTROLLERS' ASSOCIATION

Balance sheet manual—preliminary draft; part 2— inventory. (In National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Controllers' congress. Year book of re-tailing. 1939. p. 11-4.)
 Trend of operating costs. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1939. p. 17-24.)

METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY Insurance and retirement program for office employees. New York. Metropolitan life insur-ance co., January 1, 1939. 33p.

POLICYHOLDERS SERVICE BUREAU Accounting for distribution costs. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. (1939) 42p. Accounting for plant and equipment. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1935. 47p. Cash budget. New York, Metropolitan life insur-ance co., 1937. 38p. Centralized control of tax work in business organ-izations. New York, Metropolitan life insur-ance co. (1938). 32p. Compensating salaried employees during illness. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 7p.

- 7p.

- New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 7p.
 Employee rating methods. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. (1939) 48p.
 Functions of an assistant to the president. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 15p.
 Thurcions of the personnel director. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1937. 38p.
 Interpreting company financial statements for em-ployees. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 40p.
 Methods of determining distribution costs. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1933. rev. 1935. 29p.
 Payroll accounting methods. New York, Metropoli-tan life insurance co., 1936. 47p.
 Salary standardization and administration. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. no date. 41p. and appendix, 8p.
 Sharing profits with employees. New York, Metro-politan life insurance co., 1936. 28p.

METZGER, ADRIAN, joint author See Dawson, C. O., Metzger, Adrian and Ham-mond, James E.

MEYER, CHARLES

- Net operating losses and corporate capital gains and losses under the revenue act of 1939. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 132.9
- Surfaxes on undistributed income imposed by section 102 and title 1A of 1938 revenue act. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 114-25.

MEYER. CHARLES H.

- HEYER, CHARLES H. Law of stockbrokers and stock exchanges. v. 2, being the cumulative supplement embracing de-cisions, statutes and exchange rules from the publication of the original volume to July 1, 1936. New York, Baker, Voorhis and co., 1936, 438p. Legal pitfalls of the stockbrokerage business and how they may be avoided. New York, Baker, Voorhis and co., 1937. 73p.

ţ

MEYER, CHARLES Z. Trust department accounting. National auditgram, Dec. 1936, p. 4, 10-11.

- MEYER, HARVEY G. Audit practice case. N inc., c1939. 7 sections. New York, Prentice-Hall, Contents:
 - Section 1-Procedures, explanations, miscellane-Section 1—Procedures, explanations, miscellane-ous papers, and records. Section 3—General ledger. Section 4—Records. Section 5—Report on examination of accounts. Section 6—Audit working papers. Section 7—Ruled paper and file.

MEYERS, ARTHUR C. Presidential address, at Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, August 15, 1938, at the 33rd annual conference of the association. 12 mimeographed pages. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938. p. 5-12.

MICHIE, THOMAS J., JR. Business will not be revolutionized by Rohinson-Patman act. Controller, March 1937, p. 71-8.

MICHIGAN, STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY

- Annual register, 1936. Ann Arbor, Mich., State board of accountancy, 1936. 35p. Rules of professional conduct. Ann Arbor, Mich.,
- State board of accountancy (1939) 1p.

MICHIGAN, UNIVERSITY OF. SCHOOL OF BUSI-NESS ADMINISTRATION, BUREAU OF BUSI-NESS RESEARCH

- NESS ADMINISTRATION, BOREAU OF BOSI-BESS RACH
 GAULT, EDGAR H. Fair trade, with especial reference to cut-rate drug prices in Michican. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan busi-ness studies, v. 9. no. 2.)
 RATCLIFF, RICHARD U. Problems of retail site selection. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, 1939, 93p. (Michigan business studies, v. 9, no. 1.)
 TECHNICAL program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of busi-ness administration, Bureau of business research. 1937. 46p. (Michigan business papers, no. 1.)
 WATKINS, LEONARD L. Commercial banking reform in the United States. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of busi-ness administration, Bureau of business research. 1938. 133p. (Michigan business studies, v. 8, no. 5.) no. 5.)
- MICHIGAN accounting conference. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 12.
- MICHIGAN accounting conferences. Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants.
- MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS See also Michigan state college and the Michi-

gan association of certified public accountants. Program and roster of members, 1938-1939. De-troit, Mich., Michigan association of certified public accountants, 1938. 13p. _____Same. 1939-40. 14p.

MICHIGAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION AND OTHERS

OTHERS Bond investment policies for banks; proceedings of the first annual Michigan bankers association study conference, Ann Arbor, December 9 and 10, 1938; under joint auspices Michigan bank-ers association, Michigan state banking depart-ment, School of business administration, Uni-versity of Michigan. Ann Arbor, Mich., Uni-versity of Michigan, School of business admin-istration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 34p. (Michigan business papers, no. 2.)

- 34p. (Michigan business papers, no. 2.)
 MICHIGAN BUSINESS STUDIES
 BLACKETT, OLIN W. Literature of business statistics; a bibliography. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 67p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 1.)
 PHELPS, D. M. Marketing research, its function, scope, and method. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business, administration, Bureau of business research, 1937. 149b. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 2.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Cost principles in minimum price regulation. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 182p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 1.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Minimum prices under the NRA. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of business research, 1938. 182p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 7, no. 3.)
 WATERMAN, MERWIN H. Public utility financing, 1930-35. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 477p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 7, no. 3.)
 WATERMAN, MERWIN H. Public utility financing, 1930-35. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan business research, 1936. 622p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 7, no. 4.)
- MICHIGAN celebration. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 701-2.
- MICHIGAN STATE COLLEGE AND THE MICHI-GAN ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS
 - Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michi-gan accounting conference. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business ad-ministration, Bureau of business research, 1937. 46n. (Michigan business papers, no. 1, December 1937.)

 - 1937.)
 Technical program of the fourteenth annual Michi-gan accounting conference, November 17, 1938.
 East Lansing, Mich., Michigan state college— Division of liberal arts, 1938. 37p.
 Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference, Michigan state college, November 6, 1936. East Lansing, Mich., Michigan state college—Division of liberal arts, 1936. 31p.

MIDDLE ATLANTIC STATES ACCOUNTING CON-FERENCE

- Papers on accounting procedure and related matters presented at the first Middle Atlantic states accounting conference, held at Richmond, Va., June 16 and 17, 1939—theme: Accounting in the public interest. Richmond, Va., Virginia society of public accountants, 1939, 120p.
- MIDDLE Atlantic states accounting conference. Cer-tified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 13; May 1939, p. 12-3.

MIDWORTH, C. A. Practical methods of eliminating old stock from merchandise inventories. Balance 1937, p. 14-7. sheet. Dec.

MIDYEAR review. American institute of accountants.

MIHALIK, ANDREW S. ("Ye) Olde budget." July 1936, p. 50-61. Journal of accountancy, MIKESELL, R. MERRILL, joint author See Prickett, Alva L. and Mikesell R. Merrill.

MILEY, M. I.

Balance sheet accounts and the public interest. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1939, p. 598-600.

MILK

- See also Dairying. SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canada; romance of milk. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, June 1936, p. 423-8.

MILK DEALERS

- See also Dairying. Accounting ATWELL, W. B. A ATWELL, W. B. Accounting in the dairy industry. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 10-19.
 HUMMEL, JOSEPH H. Method of route settlement for milk distributors. Pathfinder service bulletim, Nov. 1938, p. 6-8.
 INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MILK DEALERS. Simplified accounting manual for small milk dealers. Chicago, Ill., International association of milk dealers, c1934. 25p.
 SADDINGTON, C. W. Dairy industry in Canada; production records for dairy plants. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 103-12.

Auditing NEW YORK (state). Agriculture and markets, Commissioner of. Report of Commissioner of agriculture and markets regarding the audit of milk dealers and coöperative associations. Albany, N. Y., Commissioner of agriculture and markets, 1938. (Legislative document (1938) no. 100.)
SMAILS, R. G. H. Milk distributors. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 313-4.)

- Cost accounting BROWN, H. L. Proper accounting will give facts on motor vs. horse delivery costs. Milk plant monthly, May 1936, p. 32-4.
 INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MILK DEALERS. Simplified cost accounting procedure for milk dealers. Chicago, Ill., International association of milk dealers, 1936. 19p.
 SAUNDERS, PHILIP. Some approaches to ac-counting for costs of distribution; address before Controllers' council of International association of milk dealers, at Dallas, Texas, October 22, 1937. 24p.

Costs

- osts ANALYSIS of the cost of fluid milk distribution in the United States of America. Accountant, June 13, 1936, p. 904. COST of fluid milk distribution. Accountant, June 13, 1936, p. 877-80. RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND COM-PANY. Summary report on cost of distributing milk in the Boston market; prepared for the Massachusetts milk control board. Boston, Mass., Charles F. Rittenhouse and co., Oct. 1936. 204p.

Statistics

- tatistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of milk distributors. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 2.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of milk dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 13.)
 MORTENSON, W. P. Distribution of milk under public utility regulation. American economic review, March, 1936, p. 23-40.
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND COMPANY. Summary report on cost of distributing milk in the Boston market; prepared for the Massachusetts milk control board. Boston, Mass... Charles F. Rittenhouse and co., Oct. 1936. 204p.
 SPENCER, LELAND. Milk audit report. (reprinted from American agriculturist, Feb. 26, 1938.)

MILK DISTRIBUTORS

See Milk dealers.

MILLAR, J. COCKBURN

Surtax and private companies. Accountants magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 96-111.

MILLER, A. V. Content of annual reports. (Correspondence) Jour-mal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 56-8.

MILLER, ANDREW

Cost accounting of repairs. Cost accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 258-60. Practical cost accounting. Accountants' magazine,

Nov. 1937, p. 516-29.

MILLER, CHRISSY L. Escrows, National auditgram, Feb. 1939, p. 10-15.

MILLER, EDWARD T.

- Acid test of gross profit. Inland printer, Oct. 1938, p. 28-30. Company builds a budget. Inland printer, March
- Company builds a budget. Inland printer, March 1939, p. 39-41.
 How to find your costs easily. Inland printer, Feb. 1937, p. 37-9.
 Problem of ratios. Inland printer, Dec. 1938.
 What's the depreciation rate? Inland printer, June 1936, p. 41-2.

MILLER, GEORGE

- Budgets for maintenance. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1938, p. 58-9. Cost of handling materials in Chrysler plants is held under budget control. Steel, Jan. 25, 1937, p. 47, 50-2.

MILLER, HENRY Federal trade commission regulation of business practice. (In Boston conference on distribution, 1939, p. 81-6.)

MILLER, HERMANN C. Place of governmental accounting in the syllabus.

Accounting exchange) Accounting in the synabus.
 (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 176-7.
 Suggested program of education for the accountant. (based upon the report of the committee on education of the American accounting association) Accounting review, June 1938, p. 191-4.

MILLER, IVAN C.

Statistics show changes in food production and distribution. Food industries, Feb. 1938, p. 86-7, 119.

MILLER, J. Accounting and planning in the U.S.S.R. Accoun-tant, June 4, 1938, p. 775-8.

MILLER, JESSE I.

Recoupment v. statute of limitations. Tax maga-zine, Aug. 1937, p. 456-7, 499-500.

MILLER, NELSON, A. AND MESEROLE, W. H. Departmental accounting in drug stores, based upon the St. Louis drug store survey. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 534-43.) Printed with: Kleinhaus, H. I. Uniform accounting procedure as an aid im reducting retail aboration costs. in reducing retail operating costs.

MILLER, R. GOYNE

Bankruptcy act, 1924-1933. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 852-6.

MILLER, RICHARD M.

Proposed: a scientific statistical control for in-stallment accounts. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Feb. 1938, p. 64-5, 74, 76. Credit world, Feb. 1938, p. 18-20, 30.

MILLER, ROBERT A.

Cost accounting for libraries: acquisition and cataloging. Library quarterly, Oct. 1937, p. 511-36.

MILLER, ROBERT N.

Income tax liability in reorganizations. Tax maga-sine, March 1936, p. 131-4.

MILLER, ROBERT N.-(Continued)

- 1938 revenue act; outline of the important changes affecting fiduciaries. Trust companies, June 1938, p. 659-64. Taxation of intercorporate dividends. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 430-8.) Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 150-1,
 - 183-4.

MILLER, WALTER Multiple store accounts. Accountants' magazine, May 1936, p. 288-95.

MILLIANS, PAUL M.

- IILLIANS, PAUL M.
 Management control of ship-line operation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-18.)
 Relationship of credit insurance to the credit executive; address at Credit congress of industry, Grand Rapids, Michigan, June 14, 1939. 8 mineographed nages
- mimeographed pages.

MILLINERY JOBBERS

BLAISTIC FORCE S. Operating ratios for millinery jobbers. (In his Practical credit analy-sis. c1939. p. 69, 142.)

MILLINERY MANUFACTURERS

Statistics DUN UN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Women's trimmed hat manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 3, June 1938.)

Statistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of millinery manufacturers. (In his Be-hind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 51, 77, 101, 136, 178-9.) (1937 ed.—p. 52, 80, 106, 133, 194-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to finan-cial stability. c1936. p. 32-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. Women's trimmed hats, p. 30-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. Women's trimmed hats, p. 22-3.)

MILLINERY TRADE

- Statistics
- MILLING in—transit privilege and freight account-ing. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 2, p. 1276-80.)

MILLS,

See Cotton mills; Flour mills.

MILLS, EDWARD V.

Definition of jobs, standardization of wages, build morale. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 64-6, 73.

MILLS, F. R. Accounting in small water plants. Journal of the American water works association, June 1938, p. 898-912.

MILLS, FREDERICK CECIL Statistical methods applied to economics and busi-ness, rev. ed. New York, Henry Holt and co., c1938. 746p.

- MILLS, GAIL A. Accounting manual for colleges. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Financial advisory service, 1937. 165p. Comments on "A plan for pooling the investments of endowment funds". Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 166-70.

MILLS, H. W. Cost accountancy as applied to motor transport Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 436-9.

MILLS. HARRY B.

- Accounting for taxes. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 6-7. Fixed assets, their control and depreciation. Path-finder service bulletin, March 1937, p. 1-4, 8. Functional control in business organizations. Profit,
- May 1937, p. 1, 4. Management to benefit employers and employees. *Profit*, July 1938, p. 1, 2-4. Plan of organization in business management. *Pathfinder service bulletin*, March 1938, p. 1, 3-4. 6-8.

MILLS, LESLIE

- Recent federal tax decisions of vital interest to the financial officer. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 34-43.)
- Review eview of important new decisions, rulings, etc. of the past year. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 136-42.

- MILLS, R. C. Australian monetary and banking system. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 349-52.
 Can banks create credit? Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 305-7.
 Flanned economy—possible or desirable? Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 54-7.

MILLWORK

See Woodworking.

MILNE, K. L. Method of accounting for cafe proprietors. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p.

MILWAUKEE CONFERENCE OF BANK AUDITORS

AND COMPTROLLERS Schedule for the destruction and preservation of records. National auditgram, Dec. 1938, p. 19-20.

MINER, E. J. Some phases of professional ethics; discussion of address of John F. Forbes, San Francisco. 3 typewritten pages.

MINERALS

See Mining and metallurgy; Quarries and quarrying.

MINES

See Mining and metallurgy.

MINETT, F. H. AND ARMITAGE, R. L.

Accountant as economist. Accountant, Jan. 30, 1937, p. 159-63. Economist as accountant. Accountant, Jan. 23, 1937, p. 125-7.

MINICH, HENRY D.

- Budget simply a plan for proper relation between activities. Controller, Feb. 1936, p. 38-40, 42. Can business be controlled profitably by definite mathematical formulae? Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 2-4.
- Safeguarding disbursement of funds. Controller, Sept. 1939, p. 314-6.
- MINIMIZING death taxes through life insurance. Ness, Harry.
- MINIMIZING securities taxes, 1936-1937, Sinker, Tulius.
- MINIMUM prices under the NRA. Taggart, Herbert F.

MINING AND METALLURGY KEYNES, J. N. Ore purchase tariffs. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 152-8.

MINING AND METALLURGY-(Continued)

- Accounting ELLIOTT, ccounting ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Mining accounts. (from Incorporated accountants' journal.) Aus-tralian accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 58-69. NEWMAN, E. B. Treatment of ore reserves in accounts. Federal accountant, July 1939, p. 346.51
 - 346-51
 - WILLCOX, FRANK. Mine accounting. Cost and management, March 1939, p. 87-100.

Cost accounting JOINT product and by-product costs in mining. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, section 2, p. 1391-9.)

NICOLSON, C. W. Mechanized mining in the tri-state district. Mining congress journal, Jan. 1938, p. 30-3.

Societies

AMERICAN MINING CONGRESS. Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in con-junction with the annual metal mining conven-tion of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936. Washington, D. C., American mining congress, c1936. 86p.

Statistics

COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc., 1939. 616p.

Taxation

- Gaxation
 BARNETT, JOHN R. Problem of taxation of western minerals. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 41-7.)
 BECRAFT, FRANK W. Effect of 1936 revenue act on mining industry. Mining journal, June 15, 1937, p. 3-5, 38-9.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Mine taxation—a symposium. Mining congress journal, March 1939.
 GEORGE, H. WYBURN. Some thoughts on taxation of mining congress journal, March 1939.
 GEORGE, H. WYBURN. Some thoughts on taxation of mining congress. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 92-101.
 HOOVER, HERBERT. Present taxation as affecting the mining industry. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining industry. Mining congress, journal, Nov. 1939, p. 31-4.
 KELLY, LINCOLN G. Economic effect of present taxes on the mining industry. Jiscussion of paper by W. H. Hover. Mining congress journal, Nov. 1939, p. 31-4.
 KELLY, NORMAN LOYALL. 1939 revenue act and western mining; address at convention of American mining congress at Salt Lake City.

- act and western mining; address at convention of American mining congress at Salt Lake City. Washington, D. C., American mining congress, Oct. 1939. 7 mimeographed pages.

Valuation

- ^{(aluation} JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Evaluation of water, and of timber and mineral land. (In his *Theory of real property valuation*. c1938. p. 244-53.) MARSTON, ANSON and AGG, THOMAS R. Valuation of mines, mineral deposits, and timber-lands. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 40-210.)

- Valuation of mines, mineral deposits, and theory lands. (In their Engineering valuation. 1936. p. 402-19.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Valuation of mines. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1. p. 247-62.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Natural resource assets—their treatment in accounts and valuation. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 74-92. Reprinted. 19p.
 VALUATION of inventories of metal mining companies. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 153-5.

- MINING AND METALLURGY, COAL
 MOSS, K. NEVILLE. Future of the coal mining industry. Accountant, May 2, 1936, p. 678-81.
 RYAN, JOHN T., Jr. Future of the bituminous coal industry. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 325-36.
 TURNER, PHILLP W. Wages and quota systems of the coal mining industry. Accountant, March 14, 1936, p. 415-8.
 UNITED STATES, Supreme court. Supreme court of the United States, nos. 636, 651, 649 and 650—October term, 1935; Carter vs. Carter coal company et al... (May 18, 1936.) various paging. paging.

Accounting VICKERY, M. R. F. Some aspects of colliery accounts. *Chartered accountant in Australia*, Jan. 1937, p. 525-30.

- Cost accounting CAIRNS, W. M. S. Colliery costs. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 612-21.
 JAYNE, DAVID A. Cost accounting for bitumi-nous coal mining companies. Pathinder service bulletin, Aug. 1939, p. 1, 4-8.
 JAYNE, DAVID A. Uniform system accounting of costs for bituminous coal mining industry. Charleston, W. Va., The author, c1938. 70p.

MINING AND METALLURGY, COPPER

Statistice NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Copper. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 124-34.)

MINING AND METALLURGY, GOLD

- MINING AND METALLUKGI, GULD
 Accounting
 ANDREW, GEORGE C. Accounting for gold mining companies. Canadian chartered accoun-tant. April 1936, p. 236-55.
 CLARK, CHARLES W. Accounting procedure for gold dredging operations. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1939, p. 7-12.
 STOWE, A. F. Australian gold mining accounts Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 16-20.
 WILLCOX, FRANK. Accounting system for gold mining companies prior to production. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 316-33.

Budgeting LANDOW, JOSEPH M. Budgetary control for gold-mining companies. (reprinted from Engi-neering and mining journal, Jan. 1936.)

MINING AND METALLURGY, METAL MINES

- Accounting FERNALD, HENRY B., PELOUBET, MAU-RICE E. and NORTON LEWIS N. Accounting for nonferrous metal mining properties and their depletion. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1030 p. 1051
 - Inerr depiction. John M. J. Certain accounting practices in the nonferrous metal industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anni-versary number, part 2, p. 17-22.

Statistics SLOAN, LAURENCE H. AND OTHERS. Non-ferrous metals. (In their Two cycles of cor-poration profits. 1936. p. 126-63.)

Valuation

VALUATION of inventories of metal mining companies. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 153-5.

ACCOUNTING AND METALLURGY, TIN Accounting FORD, J. Some contentious points in tin mining company balance-sheets. Accountants' magazine, May 1937, p. 269-76. Accountant, June 12, 1937, p. 837-9.

Statistics

MATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Tin. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 135-43.)

MINNESOTA. HENNEPIN COUNTY FINANCIAL statement of Hennepin county, 1937. Minneapolis, Minn., County auditor, 1938. 44p.

MINNESOTA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Year book, 1936. 29p.

| Same. | 1937. | 29p. |
|-----------|-------|------|
| Same, | 1938. | 22p. |
| Same, | 1939. | 23p. |

- MINORITY interests in consolidated statements: problem submitted by R. D., Montreal, Canada (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 298-300.
- MINORITY interests on consolidated balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 227-8.

MINZ,

Ŀ

INZ, W. Principles of calculation and public price control in Germany. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 358-9.

MISCHLER, JAMES J. Book closing and report issuing dates studied by controller. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 311-13.

MISSISSIPPI.

IISSISSIPPI. STATE BOARD OF PUBLIC AC-COUNTANCY Act, application of sections of the law, rules and regulations governing the issuance of C.P.A. certificates, rules of professional conduct. March 1, 1938. Jackson, Miss., State board of public accountancy, 1938. 14p.

STATE TAX COMMISSION

STATE TAX COMMISSION Service bulletin no. 17; receipts and disburse-ments and change in debt position of the state of Mississippi, January 1, 1936-December 31, 1936 and comparative receipts 1936 with 1935, together with report of an audit and survey, May 1, 1935-April 30, 1936, by Messrs. W. Q. Sharp and company, certified public accountants. Jackson, Miss., State tax commission, April 1937. 43p.

MISSOURI

ISSOURI (Senate bill no. 212.) (regular session); an act to repeal section 13712 and section 13713, article 1, chapter 110, revised statutes of Missouri, 1929, relating to the State board of accountance . . and to be known as section 13712, and declaring this to be a revision bill. (approved June 23, 1939) *Certified public accountant*, July 1939, p. 23-4.

- 1939, p. 23-4.
 MISSOURI PACIFIC RAILROAD
 GRATUITOUS attack. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 131-4.
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliate companies—Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress) authorizing an investigation of interestate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 2. December 14, 15, and 16, 1936; Missouri Pacific —terminal shares contracts. Washingon, D. C., Government printing office, 1938, p. 447-1081.
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliated companies—Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliate with respect to financing, reorganizations, sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 13.
 - tigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 13, November 4, and 5, 1937, and February 17, 1938; Missouri Pacific system . . Erie rail-road company. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939, p. 5579-5943. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated com-panies—Hearings before a sub-committee on

interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an inves-tigation of interestate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 11, October 20 and 21, 1937; Missouri Pacific rail-road company, Allegheny acquisition of control, Price, Waterhouse audits. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938, p. 4653-5030a. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated com-panies—Preliminary report of the committee on interstate commerce. United States senate, pur-suant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) a resolution authorizing an investigation of interstate rail-roads and affiliates with respect to financing, re-organizations, mergers, and certain other matters —Fallibility of auditors' certificates; inadequacy of Price, Waterhouse & co.'s certificate to Miss-souri Pacific stockholders. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Feb. 10, 1939. 13p. (76th congress, 1st session—Report no. 25, Part 3.)

MISSOURI SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS

- MR. PATMAN carries on. (reprinted by permis-sion from Printer's ink) L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 13-16.
- MISUSE of professional designation. Accountant, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 29-30.

MITCHELL, GEORGE W. Use vs. ownership as a basis for taxation. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. (In 284-92.)

MITCHELL, JAMES M.

Salary plans and administration. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 42-6.

MITCHELL, ROBERT V.

- Trends in rural retailing in Illinois, 1926 to 1938. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, August 1939. 63p. (Bulletin no. 100)

- MITCHELL, WALTER, JR.
 California unfair practices act. Dun and Brad-street monthly review, Jan. 1936, p. 5-8.
 Collection and interpretation of inventory data. Journal of the American statistical association, June 1939, p. 283-90.
 Is the business year a "natural"? Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 28-30.
 Natural business year. Journal of calendar reform, March 1938, p. 20-4.

- MITCHELL, WALTER K. Record of equipment and depreciation. Profit, Oct. 1937, p. 1, 3.
- MITCHELL, WESLEY C. AND BURNS. ARTHUR F. Production during the American business cycle of 1927-1933. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 61, Nov. 9, 1936, p. 1-20.
- MODERN accounting systems. Gordon, William D. and Lockwood, Jeremiah.
- MODERN economy in action. Ware, Caroline F. and Means, Gardiner C.
- MODERN mortgages. Accountant student, May 1939, p. 18; June 1939, p. 47; July 1939, p. 86-7.
- MODERN office management methods. American management association.
- MODERN DERN trust department; a behind-the-scenes view of operations and organization. Trust companies, April 1938, p. 469-73.

MODERN wine and liquor control with wine cellar control, public and service bar controls. Grin-stead, Raymond M.

MOFFATT, A.

Accounting efficiency through a standard practice. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 473-8. Pre-calculated payrolls. Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 199-202.

MOFFET, HAROLD S.

Accounting for an interurban motor coach com-pany. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 160-70.

MOGENSEN, ALLAN H. New trends in plant layout and their effect on burden distribution. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 164-81.)

- MOHAUPT, ROSINA
 Bonded debt of 272 cities as at January 1, 1937. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1937.)
 Bonded debt of 286 cities as at January 1, 1938. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1938.)
 Bonded debt of 289 cities as at January 1, 1939. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1939.)

 - June 1939.] Comparative tax rates of 279 cities. (reprinted from National municipal review, Dec. 1937.) Comparative tax rates of 294 cities, 1938. (re-printed from National municipal review, Dec. 1938.)

MOLER, ARTHUR L. Borrower's budget is a key to credit analysis. Rand McNally bankers monthly, Aug. 1937, p. 458-9, 485-6.

MOLEY, RAYMOND Peace in the United States. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 9 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 93-8.)

MOLL, ARTHUR B.

fied public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7.

MONARCH, J. LOUIS

Projected new rules for appeals from the Board of tax appeals and the Processing tax board of review. Taxes-the tax magazine. July 1939, p. 399-400, 411.

MONETARY SYSTEMS

See Money.

MONEY

- IONEY See also Coins and coinage; Gola as money. ALLCOCK, HARRY. British decimal coinage. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 821-2.
 BIGGAR, F. C. Monetary misconceptions. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 39-47.
 BOGEN, JULES I. AND OTHERS. Money and banking; edited by Major B. Foster and Raymond Rodgers. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 704p.
 BOWMAN, W. J. N.S.W. unclaimed moneys? act, 1917; what constitutes unclaimed moneys? Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 348-50.
- Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 348-50. CAPEY, A. R. Currency problems. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1936, p. 25-31. CHASE, HARVEY S. Confusion regarding money. (reprinted from Bankers magazine, May, June 1938.) CHASE, HARVEY S. Money and bank deposits. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 41-51. COLEBATCH, HAL. Money. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 273-7. DAY, J. P. Currency stabilization. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 450-7. DONLEY, W. G. Effect of monetary policy upon

- business. National auditgram, June 1938, p. 5-7, 12-4.
 DUNLOP, J. Coinage decimalisation with pence coins. Accountant, March 6, 1937, p. 337-8.
 DUNNING, CHARLES A. Currency and credit in Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 341-65.
 EDDY, JOHN W. M. Some introductory principles of money and banking. Australian accountant, March 1936, p. 103-10.
 ELLINGER, BARNARD. Money and credit—how they work in practice. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 651-7, discussion, p. 657-60.
 JONES, J. H. Exchange control and the cur-
- JONES, J. H. Exchange control and the cur-rency standard. Accountant, July 2, 1938, p.
- 3-51. KEMMERER, EDWIN WALTER. Money; the principles of money and their exemplification in outstanding chapters of monetary history. New York, Macmillan co., c1935. 406p. MACK, HAROLD L. Something for nothing. Carmel-by-the-sea, Calif., Carmel press, inc., 1036 50
- Carmel-by-the-sea, Caiit., Carmel press, inc., 1936, 59p. McKENNA, REGINALD. Monetary control and practice. Accountant, Feb. 8, 1936, p. 204-5. MacNEAL, KENNETH. Money. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939, p. 103-26.) MAXWELL, J. A. Monetary policies of Mr. Roosevelt. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 278 ec.
- 278-85.
- NICOLL, J. T. Plea for a universal currency. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 7-17. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1937, 728-36.
- b. 728-36.
 O'DEA, FRANCIS J. H. Currency depreciation and restrictions, and other problems of the auditor in present day continental Europe. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anni-versary number, part 2, p. 60-6.
 PUTMAN, L. L. Trading certificates. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 236-40.
 SPAHR, WALTER E. Managed currency, or re-turn to gold standard, two courses open. Con-troller, Nov. 1936, p. 296-300.
 UNIVERSAL currency. Accountants' magazine, March 1937, p. 164-70.
 WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Money, credit and banking. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 1172p.

- 1172p. WRIGHT, ALEXANDER. Our managed money. Accountants' magazine, April 1938, p. 229-43.

MONEY. Kemmerer, Edwin Walter.

- MONEY and bank deposits. Chase, Harvey S.
- MONEY and banking. Bogen, Jules I. and others.
- MONEY MARKETS HOOPET MARKETS HOOPER, F. W. Functions of a bank in relation to the capital market. London, Gee and co., ltd., 1936. MAGAARD, H. G. Introduction to banking and
 - the London money market. Australian accoun-tant, May 1936, p. 261-8.

MONKHOUSE, JOSEPH Co-ordination and measurement of municipal costs. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 60-4.

MONOPOLIES

See Consolidations; Trusts.

MONRO, KATE M., joint author See Taintor, Sarah Augusta and Monro, Kate M.

MONROE, M. M.

- Control of costs through daily operating reports. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 257-63.)
- MONROE CALCULATING MACHINE COMPANY ROSSELL, C. E. Monroe calculating machine company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 227-8.)

MONTAGUE, GILBERT H.

NONTAGUE, GILBERT H. Merchandising under the Robinson-Patman act. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., c1936. 8p. New deal costs and the high cost of living. (re-printed from the Annals of the American acad-emy of political and social science, Philadelphia, Inturer, 1036. 8n.) January, 1936. 8p.)

MONTANA, UNIVERSITY OF Information concerning the certificate as certified public accountant, December 1937. Missoula, Montana, University of Montana, 1937. 9p.

- MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Accounting methods must be revised to meet the

 - MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H.
 Accounting methods must be revised to meet the increasing burden of taxation. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 90-102.
 Curse of balancing, or theory v. practice. Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 279-81.
 Dealings in treasury stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 112-3. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 342-48.
 Dealings in treasury stock; we call it capital—the courts call it income. Journal of accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 341-42.
 Federal income tax handbook, 1936-1937. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 1207p.
 Same, 1938, 9. 1260p.
 Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1938-39. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 511p.
 Federal taxes on income and profits. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 5-7.
 Fifty years of accountancy. New York, Ronald press co. (Privately printed) 1939. 679p.
 Fiscal years of new corporations. New York, Natural business year council, 1936. 6 mimco-graphed pages.

 - graphed pages.

 - graphed pages. Friendly tributes. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 27. Natural business year. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin v. 18, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-22.) L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 1.12 1-12

 - 1-12.
 Report of the president. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 322-33. (In American institute of accountants. 1936 year book. p. 369-80.)
 Report of the president of the American institute of accountants. (In American institute of ac-countants. 1937 year book. p. 397-411.)
 Tax on undistributed income. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 19-28.
 Tax reform or what; address at the annual meeting of the Cotton-textile institute, New York City, Wednesday, October 27, 1937. New York, Cotton-textile institute, inc., 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.

 - mimeographed pages. Treatment of discount on bonds. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 58-9. What have we done, and how? Journal of accoun-tancy, Nov. 1937, p. 333-48. Certified accoun-tants journal, Dec. 1937, p. 372-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 374-89. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anni-versary celebration. 1937. p. 78-92.)

MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. AND MAGILL, ROS-WELL

Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1936-1937. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 526p.

MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. AND OTHERS Federal tax practice; practice before the treasury, board of tax appeals, and federal courts. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 872p.

- MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH Arrangements under the Chandler act. Credit executive, Aug. 1938, p. 235-7. Chandler act; a preliminary survey. Credit execu-tive, July 1938, p. 197-203. Robert Morris Isso-ciates monthly bulletim, Aug. 1938, p. 59-66. Chandler act again; defects in chapter 11, and suggested amendments. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 248-9.

- Corporate reorganizations under the Chandler act. Credit executive, Sept. 1938, p. 271-3. First decisions of Federal trade commission under Robinson-Patman act. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 266-8. Section 77-B of the federal bankruptcy act. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p.
- 3-11.

MONTGOMERY LIBRARY OF ACCOUNTANCY COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY. School of business

- OLUMBIA UNIVERSIII. School of Jashieve library. Exhibition of selected books and manu-scripts from the Montgomery library of accoun-tancy; South Hall, Columbia university, October 1937. New York, Columbia university, 1937. 24p
- MONTHLY audit administration, working papers and reports. Kahn, Sidney B.

MONTHLY AUDITS

See Auditing-Monthly audits.

MONTHLY payment direct reduction loan amortization schedules, showing equal monthly pay-ment necessary to amortize a loan of \$1000. ment necessary to amortize Financial publishing company.

MONUMENTS

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of monument and stone cut-ting concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 86.)
 - Analysis of the 1936 operations of monu-ment and cut stone concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 85.)

- MOONITZ, MAURICE Mathematical proof of a proposition in partnership accounting. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 29-30.
 - Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 227-35.
- MOONITZ, MAURICE AND BROWN, E. CARY Annuity method of estimated depreciation. Account-ing review, Dec. 1939, p. 424-9.

MOORE, ALLEN

Hire purchase system generally. Brisbane, Ac-countants' and secretaries' educational society (inc.), July 1939. 21p.

MOORE, E. W.

Marking of transfers. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 727-9.

MOORE, FRANK S.

Legal protection of goodwill; trade marks-trade emblems-advertising-unfair competition. New York, Ronald press co., c1936, 218p.

MOORE, JENNIE

Employment counsel VI-Accounting. Jobs and careers I, Dec. 1936, p. 635-7.

MOORE, UNDERHILL

Relationship between legal and accounting con-cepts of capital. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 64-8.)

MOORE, UNDERHILL, joint author See Sanders, Thomas Henry, Hatfield, Henry Rand, and Moore, Underhill.

MORAN, DONALD L.

- Interest on capital. Cost accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 246-9.
- rend of costing—past, present and future. Cost accountant, March 1936, p. 204-8.
- MORE views on the N.D.C. Accountant, tax supple-ment, May 15, 1937, p. 199-200.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

- MOREHOUSE, E. W.
 Changes in water utility accounting. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1605-12.
 Federal and state regulations, and management attitudes. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 512-4, 551.
 Innovations in public utility accounting regulation. Yale law journal, April 1937, p. 955-84.

MOREY, LLOYD

- MOREY, LLOYD
 Accounting student and governmental accounting. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 38-40, 42.
 Audit services to colleges and universities. Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 3.
 Basic principles of municipal accounting; their similarity to and differences from industrial and commercial work. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the con-ference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28, and 29, 1938, p. 7-12.)
 Federal accounting and reporting. (In Illinois, University of, Bureau of business research. Opinion and comment. May 1939, p. 13-7.)
 Federal government accounting. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy. April 1937, p. 293-4.
 Federal organization and accounting. Curified pub-lic accountancy, April 1939, p. 7-8.
 "Fund" and "appropriation". Illinois municipal review, Jan. 1937, p. 13.
 Government reorganization. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 30-31.
 Introduction to governmental accounting. ed. 2. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1936. 3189.
 Maintaining citizen interest in the financial opera-tions of government here on one

- Maintaining citizen interest in the financial opera-tions of government before conference on gov-ernmental accounting, Detroit, Dec. 1, 1939. 19 typewritten pages.
- typewritten pages. Municipal accounting principles as recommended by the national committee; address at annual meeting of the American society of certified public accountants, Kansas City, October 1935. *Certified public accountant*, Feb. 1936, p. 72-7. Municipal budgets for capital improvement; an address delivered before the sixth annual com-munity planning conference, held at Decatur, Illinois, May 9, 1939. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Aug. 18, 1939. 15p. (Bulletin v. 36, no. 102.)

- munity planning conference, held at Decatur, Illinois, May 9, 1939. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Aug. 18, 1939. 15p. (Bulletin v. 36, no. 102.)
 Philosophy of business administration. Journal of higher education, Feb. 1939, p. 68-74.
 Place of accountancy in government; a series of addresses over radio station WILL, Univer-sity of Illinois, April 1936. Urbana, Ill., Uni-versity of Illinois, The author, 1936. 14p.
 Possibilities and problems of uniform municipal accounting; address before National tax associa-tion, Indianapolis, Indiana, October 1, 1936. 7 mimeographed pages. (In National tax associa-tion. Proceedings, 1936. p. 386-94.)
 Principles of accounting for governmental authori-ties. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 13 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fifieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 289-96.)
 Progress toward accepted principles of municipal accounting forumal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 127-38. Reprinted 14p.
 Recent developments in municipal accounting. Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 9-11, 18.
 Tracing the tax dollar; how can the citizen protect his biggest investment? April 15, 1937. 11 typewritten pages.
 Uniform municipal accounting. Accounting forum,

his biggest investment? April 15, 1937. If typewritten pages. Uniform municipal accounting. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 17-8, 22. Work of committee on governmental accounting. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 472.

MORGAN, R. H. Accounts of an investment company. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 823-34. Undistributed profits and federal income tax. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 451-4.

MORRELL, RALPH W.

See American management association.

MORRIS, A. W. Comments and criticisms on "A statement of ac-counting principles" prepared by Thomas Henry Sanders, Henry Rand Hatfield and Underhill Moore; paper presented before the sixteenth annual conference of certified public accountants of the Pacific northwest. no date. 17 typewritten pages.

- MORRIS, ALEXANDER B.
 Oil finances at a glance, for 1935 and 1936; compilation of the 1935 and 1936 annual reports of 25 leading American oil companies analysed on a comparable basis and a review of operations, 1931 to 1936, by companies. Tulsa, Okla., The author, c1937. not paged.
 Specific credit—an ambiguity; an analysis of the cryptic section 14 (c) (1) of the revenue act of 1936 from the standpoint of the law and regulations. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 342-3.

MORRIS, DANIEL A. Recent trends in costs and profits. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, July 1938, p. 385-92.

MORRIS, DONALD

Budgetary control. Accountant, June 20, 1936, p. 925-8; June 27, 1936, p. 965-9. Economic significance of the shorter working week. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1936, p. 170-4.

MORRIS, E. E.

Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 468-77.

MORRIS, GEORGE MAURICE

- **IORRIS, GEORGE MAURICE** New surtax on undistributed profits; its purpose, provisions, problems, constitutional status, prob-able effect and future. *Trust companies*, July 1936, p. 25-8, 90. Some practical aspects of federal tax procedure. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. *Tech-mical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference*. 1937. p. 12-19, discussion, p. 19-23.)

MORRIS, JAMES W.

Tax cases from the government's point of view. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 269-71.

MORRIS, WILLIAM F.

Motion picture theatre accounting. Philadelphia, Pa., M.P.T. pub- co., c1933. not paged.

MORRISON, PAUL L.

Interest of the investor in accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 37-42.

MORRISON, RONALD H.

Some features of notel accounting. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 9-15.

- Certified public accoun-
- MORRISON, WILLIAM D. Consolidation urged. Certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 387-8.
 Greater service. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 515-6.
 Higher educational standards. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 3-4.
 Impending dangers. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 571-5.
 Items for consideration. Certified public accoun-tant, Aug. 1936, p. 451-3.
 Work for the lawmakers. Certified public accoun-tant, Oct. 1936, p. 567-8.

MORROW, L. C. How 133 plants look at wage incentives. Factory management and maintenance, Oct. 1937, p. 75-7, 172, 176, 180, 186, 188, 189.

MORROW, T. A. Accounts of executors and trustees. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1936, p. 391-413; July 1936, p. 21-8.

MORSE, JOHN R.

Reorganizing to prevent losses. Society for the advancement of management journal, July 1937, p. 98-100, 117.

MORTENSON, W. P.

Distribution of milk under public utility regulation. American economic review, March 1936, p. 23-40.

MORTGAGE COMPANIES See also Mortgages; Real estate management. WOLFE, LEE J. Testimony before the Mortgage commission of the state of New York in the matter of the allocation by the Mortgage com-mission of the state of New York pursuant to the provisions of section 24 of chapter 19 of the laws of 1935 as amended, of its expenses and the expenses of its subsidiaries incident to the exercise of its or their powers, and such ex-penses as shall have been advanced by the superintendent of insurance or the superin-tendent of banks allocatable and chargeable to all properties, bonds, or mortgages or groups all properties, bonds, or mortgages or groups thereof, that came under its jurisdiction; volume 2, testimony, report, exhibits and findings. New York, S. H. and Lee J. Wolfe, March 30, 1937. 168p.

Accounting HUNT, IRVIN T. Accounts of a mortgage loan company. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1938, p. 428-42.

- Auditing SMAILS, R. G. H. Mortgage companies. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 314-5.)
- MORTGAGES
 - See also Banks and banking, Federal home loan banks; United States—Home owners' loan
- see also Banks and banking, Federal home loan corporation.
 BICKFORD, R. S. Mathematical computations for defaulted bond issues. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 199-206.
 FINANCIAL PUBLISHING COMPANY. Monthly payment direct reduction loan amortization schedules, showing equal monthly payment necessary to amortize a loan of \$1,000; also the amount of interest and principal in each payment and the balance outstanding at any time during the life of the loan. Boston, Mass., Financial pub. co., c1938. not paged.
 GRANGE, WILLIAM J. and QUAT, JACOB. Mortgages and mottgage transactions. (In their Real estate. c1937. p. 143-227.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Apportionment of mortgage foreclosure proceeds (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 71-5; Feb. 1938, p. 160-4.
 HULSE, JOHN K. Mortgage foreclosures under federal income tax regulations. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 451-2, 508.
 IS a mortgage a debenture? Incorporated accountants, Journal, June 1938, p. 297-8.
 JOHNSON, GEORGE C. Amortized mortgages. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 1, 10.
 MODERN mortgages. Accountant student, May 1939, p. 18; June 1939, p. 47; July 1939, p. 71-2; Aug. 1939, p. 86-7.
 MORTGAGES under the new legislation. Accountant, Jee. 2, 1939, p. 591-2; Dec. 9, 1939, p. 618-9.
 RAMSEY, MARY LOUISE. Mortgage foreclosures and income taxes. Tax magazine during the anome taxes. Tax magazine during the anome taxes. Tax magazine during the taxes. Tax magazine during the taxes. Tax magazine during the spinely during the states. Tax magazine during the states. Constant during the during the states. Tax magazine during taxes. Tax magazine during taxes. Tax m

- 618.9. MARY LOUISE. Mortgage fore-closures and income taxes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 579-82, 631.
 ROBINSON, ARTHUR. Mortgages and charges by companies. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 361-79.
 THOMSON, METELLUS, JR., BALL, GEORGE W. and WRIGHT, JOHN A. Federal income taxation of rentals collected by a mortgage re-ceiver. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 511-6, 558-9. 558-9.

- UNITED STATES. Federal housing administra-tion. Monthly amortization payment computing chart. National real estate journal, April 20, 1939, p. 26. WOODRUFF, ARCHIBALD M., Jr. Mortgages
- as life insurance company investments. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1939, p. 453-64.
- 453-64. WYNES, W. ANSTEY. Expiration of the mort-gagors relief acts (South Australia) Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 439-41.
- MORTGAGES under the new legislation. Accoun-tant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 591-2; Dec. 9, 1939, p. 618-9.

MORTICIANS

See Undertakers.

- MORTON, FRANK M. Industrial relations. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 105-12, 114-5.

MORTON, R. L.

- Motor vehicle costs for a transport organisation. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 529-34.
- MORTUARIES See Undertakers.

- MOSLEY-ROBERTS, A. E. Credit control. Accountant, Nov. 27, 1937, p. 734. Mechanisation and the auditor. Accountant, March 20, 1937, p. 416-9. 734.
- MOSS, K. NEVILLE

- MOSS, OSCAR Role of accountants in bankruptcy and reorganization cases. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 146-9.)
- MOST complete bank statement in America; 1935 annual report, Merchandise bank and trust com-pany. Modern finance, April 1, 1936, p. 156-60.
- MOTION and time study. Barnes, Ralph M.

MOTION PICTURE

See Moving picture.

MOTION picture theatre accounting. Morris, Wil-liam F.

- MOTION STUDY See also Time study.
 BARNES, RALPH M. Motion and time study. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1937. 295p.
 HOLMES, WALTER G. Applied time and motion study. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 335p.
 POLLOCK, KENNETH W. Use of therblig times for rate setting. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 35-40.

MOTOR BUSES

See also Automobiles; Motor transportation.

- Accounting MOFFET, HAROLD S. Accounting for an inter-urban motor coach company. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 160-70.

 - Uniform methods and systems FISH, NATHANIEL L. Accounting requirements in the motor transportation industry. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 324. LAWLESS, FRANCIS T. Comparison of the uniform system of accounts for motor carriers with the uniform system for electric companies. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 34-5.
 - p. 34-5. SYSTEM of accounts for interstate motor carriers. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 194-5.

Future of the coal mining industry. Accountant, May 2, 1936, p. 678-81.

- MOTOR BUSES—Accounting—Uniform methods and systems—(Continued)
 - UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce commis-NITED STATES. Interstate commerce commis-sion. Uniform system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of passen-gers, subject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935. Issue of 1937, effective Janu-ary 1, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States. Interstate commerce commission. 1937. 121 mimeographed pages.
- Auditing MOFFET, HAROLD S. Accounting for an inter-urban motor coach company. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 160-70.

- Cost accounting MORTON, R. L. Motor vehicle costs for a trans-port organisation. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, 520
 - SPARHAWK, C. O. Mills and miles; a few observations on cost accounting. Bus transporta-tion, Dec. 1939, p. 596-8. TIME to retire? Bus transportation, Feb. 1939, p.
 - 94-6.

- Cost of operation STOCKS, CARL W. Business continues good. Bus transportation, Nov. 15, 1936, p. 507-11. STOCKS, CARL W. City operations gain in third quarter. Bus transportation, Dec. 1938, p. 587-90. THEISINGER, EARL F. Capital investment that became a capital investment. Bus transportation, Sept. 1937, p. 398-401.

Fares

RICHARDSON, S. M. Fare structures in urban transport. Federal accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 632.9

Statistics

- DETROIT experiment; small buses come to town in a big way. Bus transportation, Dec. 15, 1936, p. 540-3.

- in a big way. Bus transportation, Dec. 15, 1936, p. 540-3. LOCAL bus operations make remarkable progress —Intercity carriers hurt by competition. Bus transportation, March 1937, p. 122-6. REVENUES and traffic continue upward trend. Bus transportation, March 1938, p. 115-8. STOCKS, CARL W. Bus business up with a bang. Bus transportation, Sept. 1937, p. 414-9. STOCKS, CARL W. Bus industry forges ahead. Bus transportation, Sept. 1939, p. 448-52. STOCKS, CARL W. Bus operations continue to gain in 1938. Bus transportation, March 1939, p. 132-6. STOCKS, CARL W. Bus operations show fair gain. Bus transportation, June 1937, p. 270-3. STOCKS, CARL W. Business continues good. Bus transportation, Nov. 15, 1936, p. 507-11. STOCKS, CARL W. City operations gain in third quarter. Bus transportation, Dec. 1938, p. 587-00.

- 587-90
- 587-90. STOCKS, CARL W. Operating results for first quarter. Bus transportation, June 1938, p. 282-5. STOCKS, CARL W. Results of first quarter operations. Bus transportation, June 1939, p. 287-9.
- STREAMLINED maintenance puts K.C. on the gold standard. Bus transportation, Nov. 1937, p. 520-5.
- THIRD quarter riding best in five years. Bus transportation, Dec. 1937, p. 578-82.
- Taxation
- ECHWARTZ, HARRY. New tax law and its effect on the bus operator. Bus transportation, Oct. 15, 1936, p. 446-8.
- Valuation
- ROBERTS, EDWARD A. Going value, et al. Bus transportation, Aug. 15, 1936, p. 338-40.
- MOTOR CARRIER ACT See Motor transportation—Law—United States.

MOTOR CARRIERS See Motor vehicles; Motor transportation.

MOTOR CYCLES

MOTOR COLLS Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of bicycle, motorcycles and parts concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 75.) — Analysis of the 1936 operations of motor-cycle shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 42.)

MOTOR TRANSPORTATION See also Automobiles; Express companies; Motor buses; Motor trucks; Taxicabs; Trucking. WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. and EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Motor trans-portation as a public utility. (In their Public utility industries. 1936. p. 156-75.)

- Accounting
 IN CORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; motor transport. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 428-9.
 RAINS, NEIL J. Waybilling and accounting for motor freight carriers. Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 33-49.
 SCHMITT, JOE L. Accounting for motor car-riers which are subject to part 2 of the interstate commerce act commonly known as the "motor carriers act, 1935." Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1937, p. 1, 3-6.

- Uniform methods and systems FISH, NATHANIEL L. Accounting requirements in the motor transportation industry. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 32-4. LAWLESS, FRANCIS T. Comparison of the uniform system of accounts for motor carriers with the uniform system for electric companies. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 34-5. 34-5
- p. 34-5. UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce commis-sion. Uniform system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of property, subject to the provision of the motor carrier act, 1935; issue of 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States. Interstate commerce commission, 1937. 117 mimeographed pages.

- Cost accounting
 CHAMBERS, ROBERT K. Expense control for automobile fleets. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, 1007-27.)
 MILLS, H. W. Cost accountancy as applied to motor transport. Australian accountant, July 1937, p.436-9.
 SHORT, L. J. Costing motor vehicle operation. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 76-80.

 - RICHARDSON, S. M. Fare structures in urban transport. Federal accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 632-9.

- Government regulation NELSON, JAMES C. Motor carrier act of 1935. Journal of political economy, Aug. 1936, p.
- 464-504.
 RAPER, CHARLES LEE. Trend of federal and state control of transportation carriers; address at third regional chapter conference of the New York state society of certified public accountants at Skaneateles, New York, June 27, 1936.
 RAPOPORT, M. L. Government regulation of motor transport; does jurisdiction belong to the dominion or to the provinces? Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 290-5.

Law

UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce com-mission. Motor carrier act, 1935. (In its Inter-state commerce act, revised to October 1, 1935, p. 84-126.)

MOTOR TRUCKS

See also Automobiles; Electric trucks; Express companies; Haulage; Industrial trucks; Motor transportation; Trucking.

Accounting

- ccounting RAINS, NEIL J. Waybilling and accounting for motor freight carriers. Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 33-49. TORRENCE, GERALD A. Accounting for truck operations. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937, (N.A.C.A. bulle-tin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1087-1106.)

- FISH, NATHANIEL L. Accounting require-York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. New
- LAWLESS. FRANCIS T. Comparison of the uniform system of accounts for motor carriers with the uniform system for electric companies. New York certified public accountant, July 1938,
- UNITED MITED STATES. Interstate commerce com-mission. Uniform system of accounts for class mission. Uniform system of accounts for class 1 common and contract motor carriers of property, subject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935. Issue of 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States. Interstate commerce commission, 1937. 117 mimeographed pages.

- Cost accounting
 AVEN, WILLIAM R. Know your motor truck costs. Power wagon, Oct. 1936, p. 5-6.
 CHURCH, HAROLD B. Control and use of costs in motor truck operation. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 16, section 1, p. 1041-58.) Printed with: White, Arthur F. Cost finding in transportation.
 HADLEY, CHARLES R. COMPANY. Manual of pathfinder truck cost system. Los Angeles, Calif. Charles R. Hadley co., c1936. 11p. and forms.
 - iorm
 - forms.
 HADLEY, CHARLES R. COMPANY. Truck cost accounting; condensed from Pathfinder truck cost accounting manual, 1936 edition. Pathfinder service bulletin, Sept. 1936, p. 1, 3-8.
 KUNKEL, FRED E. Know your trucking costs. Rock products, Sept. 1939, p. 55, 62.
 MORTON, R. L. Motor vehicle costs for a transport organization. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 529-34.
 PEARSON, A. M. After all-you're selling time, not just rates! Prover wagon, Feb. 1938, p. 23-5.
 PEARSON, A. M. Budget plan for controlling

 - p. 23.5. PEARSON, A. M. Budget plan for controlling vehicle costs. *Power wagon*, May 1938, p. 19-20. PEARSON, A. M. It's time you're selling in this trucking business. *Power wagon*, March, 1938,
 - PEARSON, A. M. Time—the key to metered cost accounting; how to apply the time-budgeting plan to motor vehicle cost control. *Power wagon*, April 1938, p. 12-3.
 - RUTTER, EDWARD S. Vehicle costs; an analy-sis of sound accounting for the control of truck delivery costs. *Power wagon*, March 1937, p. 5-8. 42-4.
 - 5-8, 42-4.
 SAMAHA, S. L. How we utilize cost charts to control major expense items; use of efficiency charts has proved an effective means of checking cost averages on various units of our 125-truck fleet. Power wagon, Oct. 1937, p. 14-6.
 TORRENCE, GERALD A. Accounting for truck operations. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1087-1106.)
 TEPBO IOHN D. Recording the costs of truck

 - reim, v 10, no. 19, Section 1, p. 1087-1100.)
 ZERBO, JOHN D. Recording the costs of truck transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1107-19.)
 Printed with: Torrence, Gerald A. Accounting for truck operations.

- Cost of operation See also Delivery costs; Haulage—Costs; Truck-
- See also Delivery costs; Haulage—Costs; Truck-ing—Costs. ANTHONY, C. G. Diesel truck costs in heavy duty service. Power wagon, April 1937, p. 5-8. BACHMAN, B. B. Diesel engines in motor trucks. Power wagon, Feb. 1937, p. 5-8, 44. CORMACK, GEORGE P. Cost estimating for a trucking company. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 6, section 1, p. 315-32.) HERE'S how to cut delivery fleet operating costs. Furniture record, Oct. 15, 1937, p. 10, 40-1. HOW standardization aids in making outstanding cost reductions. Power wagon, Aug. 1937, p. 17-8.

 - 17-8.
 MCREE, RAYMOND WALTER. Motor vehicle operating costs. (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting. 1938. p. 183-207.)
 MASTER control coordinates sales and distribution costs. Food industries, Feb. 1938, p. 88-9, 120.
 OPERATING costs of light trucks. Power wagon, May 1936, p. 34-7.
 PARKER, EDGAR. Vital delivery reports that executives need. Power wagon, March 1936, p. 1966.

 - p. 16-8. RASMUSSEN, C. F. What is the operating cost of a truck? New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, p. 1028-33.) Printed with: Chambers, Robert K. Expense control for automobile fleets. ROALFE, GEORGE D. Motor trucking costs. Rock products, April 1937, p. 55-7. TRUCKING costs, what they are per mile-factors which affect them. Food industries, Feb. 1938, n. 90.

 - p. 90.

Finance

BAILEY, M. R. Motor truck equipment trusts. Banking, Feb. 1937, p. 72.

MOTOR VEHICLES

- See also Automobiles; Motor buses; Motor cycles; Motor trucks; Motor transportation; Taxicabs. OCHETTI, JAMES. Accounting for motor equip-ment. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 18-22.

MOTT, A. G. Weight to be given physical appraisals in deter-mining unit value assessments for railroads. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1937. p. 233-41.)

MOTT, R. Cost accounting in the chemical industry. Cost accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 237-42.

MOTT, WALTER K. Students' department. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 504.

MOULTON, R. C. Eliminating the journal. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1939, p. 211-3.

- MOUNCEY, A. J. Standardized costs. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 339-42.
- MOUNT CARMEL (PENNSYLVANIA), BOROUGH OF
 - OF Plan for refunding and funding the bonds and other indebtedness of the borough of Mount Carmel, Northumberland county, Pennsylvania. Packard bldg., Phila., Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc. (1937). 18p.

MOUNTAIN STATES ACCOUNTING CONFER-ENCE

- Erogram, May 31-June 1, 1938, Hotel Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah. 5p. Accountancy and public affairs. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 6.

MOUNTEER, CARLYLE E.

Michigan unemployment commission. (In Michi-gan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting conference, 1938. p. 28-37.)

MOVEMENTS of interest rates, bond yields and stock prices in the United States since 1856. Macaulay, Frederick R.

MOVING PICTURE INDUSTRY

- MOVING FORE INDUSTRY
 Accounting
 GIBSON, WALTER B. Motion picture accounting problems. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 23-7.
 MCLAUGHLIN, T. E. Accounting for motion picture production. Accountant, May 29, 1937, p. 765-72.
- Statistics
 - atistics UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on motion picture producers and distributors registered under the securities exchange act of 1934 at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of Ameri-can listed corporations; a Works progress ad-ministration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, June 1939. 64p. (Report uo. 17.) no. 17.)

MOVING PICTURE THEATERS See also Theaters, RICKETSON, FRANK H., JR. Management of motion picture theatres. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 376p.

Accounting

- Accounting ILLINGWORTH, A. G. Unique accounting meth-ods adopted by picture theatre organisations. Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 53-67. INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE Design of accounts; cinemas and dance halls. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 134-5. MORRIS, WILLIAM F. Motion picture theatre accounting. Phila., Fa., M.P.T. pub. co., c1933. not paged. RALPH, R. W. Picture theatre accounts. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 242-7. RICKETSON FRANK H. D. A.

- RICKETSON, FRANK H., JR. Auditing and accounting. (In his Management of motion picture theatres. 1938. p. 192-210.)

Auditing

RICKETSON, FRANK H., JR. Auditing and accounting. (In his Management of motion picture theatres. 1938. p. 192-210.)

Budgeting

RICKETSON, FRANK H., JR. Budget. (In his Management of motion picture theatres. 1938. p. 186-91.)

MOVING VANS

See Motor trucks.

MOYER, C. A. Economic aspects of fixed-capital obsolescence. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 285-96.

MOYER, ORVILLE Practical mortuary accounting. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1937, p. 1, 3-8.

MUCKLOW, WALTER

- IUCKLOW, WALTER Lumber accounts. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1936, 458p.
 Romance of the closed door. Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1937, p. 205-19.
 Use of graphs in connection with accounting for seasonal hotels. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 1, 5.

- MUDGE, JAMES W. Federal surtax on undistributed corporate profits. (In Controllers institute of America. Year book, 1937. p. 91-110.) Subscription rights plan declared best for retaining corporate funds. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 272-81.

MUECKE, C. W. L. Balance sheets, their form and purpose. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 146-56,

- MUELLER, ALFRED G. Deciding factors in qualifying to do business in various states. Controller, Dec. 1936, p. 335-40.
- MULES, W. RUSSELL AND LAWS, OWENS Mathematical principles of instalment financing. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 300p.

MULLEE, WILLIAM R.

Job shop inspection on bonus. Factory management and maintenance, May 1937, p. 58-9.

- MULLEN, E. Material costing and control in process industries. Cost accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 92-5.
- MULTIPLE shop accounts. Irish accountant and secre-tary, May 1937, p. 93; June 1937, p. 117-8; Aug. 1937, p. 143, 148.
- MULTIPLE store inventory control as applied by a liquor store system. Fenton, J. Ralph.

MUND, VERNON A.

Financial adjustment in the empirical law of cost. American economic review, March 1936, p. 74-80.

MUNGER, CLAUDE W.

Specific services required by the hospital adminis-trator from the accounting department; address at New York conference on hospital accounting, United hospital fund of New York, meeting of February 7, 1939. 6 mimeographed pages.

- MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS of governmental authorities; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 288-310.)
 - 310.) AGARD, R. F. Topeka modernizes its accounting; a manual describing how mechanical accounting equipment is applied to the preparation of records in the auditor's office, City of Topeka, Kansas. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding ma-chine co. (1939) 71p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Addresses presented at the conference on muni-
- chine co. (1939) 71p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Addresses presented at the conference on muni-cipal accounting and finance of the American institute of accountants. Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. New York, American institute of ac-countants, 1938. 85p.
 ——Supplement: Bartelt, E. F. Accounting controls in the federal government. 24p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on governmental accounting. Local government accounting and auditing. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 234-7.
 ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Accounts of gov-ernmental authorities. (addresses at 50th anni-versary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants. Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 296-300.)
 ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Introduction to round table discussion: Municipal accounting session. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other ac-counting subjects. 1939. p. 199-202.)
 BALLEY, GEORGE D. Practical application of municipal accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28, and 29, 1938, p. 13-8.)
- 13-8.

- 13.8.)
 BAILEY, GEORGE D. Practical problems in governmental accounting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 52-7.
 BECK, HOWARD, C. Governmental accounting and financing. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 716-8.
 CHATTERS, CARL H. Independent practitioner and municipal accounting; presented at annual meeting of the American society at Kansas City, 1935. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 77-81,

MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING—(Continued)

- CHATTERS, CARL H. Municipal accounting. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936. p. 38:42. Municipal year book, 1937. p. 41-3. Municipal year book, 1938, p. 40-3. Municipal year book, 1939, p. 32-4. CHATTERS, CARL H. Municipal accounting. ((Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1037. p. 222.3

- 1938, p. 40-3. Municipal year book, 1939, p. 32-4.
 CHATTERS, CARL H. Municipal accounting. ((Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 222-3.
 CHATTERS, CARL H. Present and future of governmental accounting. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 48-51.
 CHATTERS, CARL H. Reform of municipal ac-counting. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1936, p. 303-15. (vol. 1, no. 16.)
 DICKERSON, THOMAS M. Municipal account-ing. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, Feb. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 12, section 1, p. 609-24.)
 DONALDSON, WILLIAM R. Introduction to municipal accounting. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 2, March 3, 1939.)
 Same. 14 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 347-50.
 DONALDSON, WILLIAM R. Municipal ac-counting. (In Pennsylvania institute of certi-fied public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceed-ings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 45-51.) ings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 45-
- 51.) EGAN, JAMES F. Accounting procedure in the city and county of San Francisco. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 208-10.) ELLIS, GEORGE P. Address to Kansas licensed municipal public accountants. 8 typewritten

- municipal public accountants. 8 typewritten pages.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Essentials of municipal accounting. Municipal finance, Aug. 1936, p. 407.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Fundamentals of municipal accounting practice. Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 2-6.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Improved accounting and reporting as a basis for better government. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 393-5, 400.
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Keynote address. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28, and 29, 1938, p. 1-6.).
 ELLIS, GEORGE P. Municipal accounting practice. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 35-6.
 FLANAGAN, FRANK J. Classification of municipal finance, May 1939, p. 11-4.
 FOX, CHARLES J. Simplified control of Boston's budget. (reprinted from American city magazine) 2p.

- magazine) 2p. FRISBEE, IRA N. Accounting for "income" municipalities. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 164-9, comments by D. M. Shonting, p. 169р. 71

- 71.
 FRISBEE, IRA N. Application of governmental accounting principles to practice. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 27-33.
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Municipalities. (In their Modern accounting systems. 1937. p. 397-464.)
 HACKETT, ROBERT P. Governmental accountant. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 390-2.
 HACKETT, ROBERT P. Property accounts for municipalities. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 64-8.
- motorpanies
 p. 64-8
 HARRISON, H. A. Municipal audits and the accountant. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 222-3.)
 HART, A. M. Municipal accounting in New Jersey. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 350-3, discussion, p. 358-64.
- HURDMAN, G. CHARLES. Services of public accountants to public bodies. Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 157-61.

- KILPATRICK, WYLIE. State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936. p. 340-66.)
 KIMPEL, H. M. Centralized accounting at Cleveland Heights, Ohio. American city, Aug. 1936, p. 79, 81.
 KIMPEL, H. M. Municipal financial control through modern accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 12, section 1, p. 624-35.) Printed with: Dickerson, Thomas M. Municipal accounting.
 LANGER, CHARLES H. Accounting principles and procedure; municipal accounting lectures. Chicago, Ill., Walton publishing co., c1937.
- 111p.

- Same, e1938. 111p. Includes: Practical accounting problems. 37p.
 LEAVY, LEONARD S. Auditing purchases and invoices. Municipal finance, May 1936, p. 3-6.
 LORIG, ARTHUR N. Classification of municipal income and expenditures. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 163-73.
 LORIG, ARTHUR N. Present condition of municipal accounting. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 376-85.
 LUDWIG, C. C. Use of accounts in making and controlling municipal budgets. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1939. p. 19.23.

- finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1939. p. 19-23.)
 McGOLDRICK, JOSEPH D. AND OTHERS. Accounting and auditing in the comptroller's office of the city of New York; a course given at the school of business and civic administration of the City College. New York, College of the city of New York, 1938. various paging.
 MAYHALL, WILLIAM F. Municipal accounting practice. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, May 1937, p. 30-1.
 MAYO, RALPH E. Auditing problems of municipalities. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 213-7.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Accounting student and governmental accounting subjects. Pagers of municipal accounting their similarity to and differences from industrial and commercial work. (In American institute of accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 7-12.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. "Fund" and "appropriation". Illinois municipal accounting at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 7-12.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Municipal accounting principal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 7-12.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Municipal accounting principles of municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 7-12.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Municipal accounting principles as recommended by the national committee; address at annual meeting of the American society of certified public accountants, Kansas City, October 1935. Certained public accountants, Kansas City, October 1935. Certified public accountants, Kansas City, October 1935.

- tee, address at annual meeting of the American society of certified public accountants, Kansas City, October 1935. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 72-7. MOREY, LLOYD. Principles of accounting for governmental authorities. (address at 50th an-niversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 13 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 289-96.) MOREY, LLOYD. Progress toward accepted prin-ciples of municipal accounting. Journal of ac-countancy, Feb. 1937, p. 127-38. Reprinted. 14p.
- MOREY, LLOYD. Recent developments in muni-cipal accounting. Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 9-11, 18.
 MOREY, LLOYD. Work of committee on gov-ernmental accounting. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 472.
 MUNICIPAL accounting. Certified public accoun-tant, Dec. 1937, p. 29-31.

- MUNICIPAL accounting conference. public accountant, April 1938, p. 2-5. Certified
- MUNICIPAL accounting conference. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy. May 1938, p. 365-6.

MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING-(Continued)

- AUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING—(Continued)
 NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Bibliography of municipal and state accounting. Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, 1937. 30p. (Bulletin no. 7.)
 OCHETTI, JAMES. Accounting for motor equip-ment. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 18-22.
 RODGERS, RALPH A. Municipal accounting, cash basis, budgets and tax limitation in Kansas. Municipal finance, May 1936, p. 30-3.
 ROWLAND, CHARLES J. AND FAYLOR, HOMER O. Accounting and finance for Penn-sylvania municipalities. State College, Pa., Penn-sylvania state college, c1939. various paging.
 SURPLUS accounts in a municipal balance-sheet (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 312-5.
 TAX accounting of the city of Detroit; a com-plete system covering all phases of tax account-ing. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 35p.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Legal pro-visions for local governmental accounting as of luby 1 1937 (In its Tax casters of the ward

- TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Legal provisions for local governmental accounting as of July 1, 1937. (In its *Tax systems of the world.* c1938. p. 232.)
 WARNER, JOHN. Design and use of appraisal forms. *Municipal finance*, Feb. 1937, p. 7-20.
 WATSON, DENEEN A. Obstacles in connection with municipal accounting and finance. (In American institute of accountants differences

- with municipal accounting and mance. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal ac-counting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1939. p. 57-60.) WELCKER, WILLIAM H. Municipal accounting in Pennsylvania. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 150
- 15-9
- p. 15-9.
 WELCKER, WILLIAM H. Some aspects of municipal accounting in Pennsylvania; address delivered at meeting of Municipal finance of-focers of Pennsylvania, State college, Pa., No-vember 21, 1936. 10 typewritten pages.
 WRENSHALL, C. M. Municipal balance sheet defects. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 42-6.
 YOUNG, S. V. Good housekeeping in San Fran-cisco. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other ac-counting subjects. 1939, p. 211-2.)

- Australia
 - SELBY, E. H. Local government accounting and finance in New South Wales. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 90-6.
- Canada

ROBERGE, LACTANCE. Tax accounting in Montreal. Municipal finance, Feb. 1939, p. 5-8. SAMPSON, E. T. Municipal accounting and finance. Cost and management, June-July-August

- finance. Cost and management, June-July-August 1937, p. 162-80. SHEPARD, ALFRED B. Municipal accounting and auditing. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 50-64. TORY, WILLIAM S. Accounting for municipali-ties with respect to unnegotiated debentures and debenture principal and interest in default. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 104.17.

104-17. TORY, WILLIAM S. Capital account section of

IUKY, WILLIAM S. Capital account section of a municipal balance sheet. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 175-82.
 TOWNE, J. A. Municipal affairs. Cost and man-agement, March 1936, p. 66-75.
 WRENSHALL, C. M. Municipal administration and accounting. Toronto, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons (Canada), Itd., 1937. 281p.

Great Britain

ACCOUNTING for A.R.P. Accountancy, Oct.

Accounting for A.K.F. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 16-8.
 DEBT of a local authority. (municipal accounts) Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 178-80.
 EVANS, E. OSWALD. Accounts of a rural dis-trict council. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1926 - 260 7

trict council. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1936, p. 250-7.
 IMRIE, J. D. Planning in local government. (a summary) Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 426-8.
 LOCAL authorities' capital requirements. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 60-2.

RECORDING expenditure. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 292-4. STATISTICS in municipal finance and accoun-tancy. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 100-2.

System building and installation KLEIN, TOBIAS. Systems installation. (In Mc-Goldrick Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 6b, April 7, 1938.)

- Uniform methods and systems GABRIELSON, C. C. Comments on uniform ac-counting. (In American institute of accountants.

 - CONDRIGLESON, C. C. Commens on antionin accounting. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects, 1939, p. 218-21.)
 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALITIES. Manual of accounting procedure for California municipalities; bulletin three, uniform accounting committee. Los Angeles, Calif., League of California municipalities, Jan. 1939, 177p. (League report no. 19.)
 LOWERY, J. M. Uniform accounting in California municipalities. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sobjects. 1939, p. 203-7.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Possibilities and problems of uniform municipal accounting; address before National tax association. Proceedings, 1936. p. 386-94.)
 - MOREY, LLOYD. Uniform municipal account-ing. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 17-8,
 - MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCI-ATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Accounting for public property. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers' asso-ciation, May 1939. 42p. (Accounting publication and finance file)
 - no. 5.) MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCI-ATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Accounting manual for Texas cities and towns. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance of-ficers' association of the United States and
 - ficers' association of the United States and Canada, 1938. MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCI-ATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Standard practice in municipal ac-counting and financial procedure. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, c1937. 42p. (Ac-
 - counting publication no. 3) NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Municipal accounting state-ments, Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, August 1936. 156p. (Bul-letim ve 6)
 - municipal accounting, August 1936. 156p. (Bul-letin no. 6.) NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Standard classification of municipal revenues and expenditures. Chicago, III., National committee on municipal account-ing, April 1939. 103p. NEW BRUNSWICK INSTITUTE OF CHAR-TERED ACCOUNTANTS. Financial adminis-tration and a system of accounting for munici-palities. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1939, p. 12-27: Aug. 1939, p. 98-115. NEW JERSEY. Municipal accounts, Commis-sioner of. Chart of accounts for municipal offi-cials; by Walter J. Darby. Trenton, N. J., Auditor, Department of local government, 1937. 62p.

 - PHILLIPPS, MINER B. Uniform accounting in California. Municipal finance, Aug. 1936, p. 30-4.

MUNICIPAL accounting. Dickerson, Thomas M.

- MUNICIPAL accounting. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 29-31.
- MUNICIPAL accounting. (Correspondence) Chatters, Carl H.
- MUNICIPAL accounting conference. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 2-5.

NICIPAL accounting conference. (Editor Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 365-6. MUNICIPAL (Editorial)

MUNICIPAL accounting lectures. Langer, Charles H.

- ⁺ MUNICIPAL accounting statements. National com-mittee on municipal accounting.
 - MUNICIPAL administration and accounting. Wren-shall, C. M.
 - MUNICIPAL audit procedure. National committee on municipal accounting.

MUNICIPAL AUDITING

- AUNICIPAL AUDITING
 BALDWIN, ARTHUR L. External check on local finances; address before conference on government management, Estes Park, Colorado, June 1939. 7 typewritten pages.
 CONNECTICUT. Tax commissioner. Duties and powers of independent public accountants' peri-odic auditing of municipal accounts. Hartford, Conn., Tax commissioner, Oct. 1939. 31p.
 CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Memorandum of committee on legislation concerning a uniform system of periodic auditing and accounting of all public moneys, state, county and municipal. *Connecticut C.P.A.*, Jan. 1939, p. 1-10.
 CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Municipal auditing act of 1939. New Haven, Conn., Connecticut so-ciety of certified public accountants, July 1939. 14p.
- ciety of certified public accountants, July 1939. 14p. COSTS of city and county audits; there is pre-sented herewith data on the costs of annual audits of 52 cities and 65 counties. Kansas muni-cipalities, Feb. 1937, p. 33-5. DALTON, ARCHIBALD J. Auditing of receipts. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Ac-counting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 5b, March 31, 1938.) DEFALCATIONS of municipal treasurers-False economy-Municipal audit specialized-Muni-cipal officers' code of ethics. (Editorial com-ment) Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 1-5.
- 1-5.
- p. 1-5. ELLIS, GEORGE P. Address to Kansas licensed municipal public accountants. 8 typewritten

- pages. ELWELL, F. H. Municipal audits. Municipal finance, Nov. 1937, p. 21-2. HYNEMAN, CHARLES S. Mr. Mayor, why an audit? (reprinted from the Louisiana municipal review, July-August, September-October, 1938.) ILLINOIS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on governmental accounting. Municipal audits. Bulletin of the Illinois society of certified public accountants,

- ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on governmental accounting. Municipal audits. Bulletin of the Illinois society of certified public accountants, March 1939, p. 5-6.
 KILPATRICK, WYLIE. State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book. 1936. p. 340-66.)
 KLEIN, TOBIAS. External audits. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 6a, April 7, 1938.)
 McGLADREY, IRA B. Independent audits or political audits? (Cedar Rapids, Iowa, The author, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
 McGOLDRICK, JOSEPH D. AND OTHERS. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of the city of New York, 1938. various paging.
 MUNICIPAL audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 77.
 NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Municipal audit procedure. Chicago, III., National committee on municipal accounting, Feb, 1939. 54, (Bulletin no. 8.)
 O'BRIEN, H. T. Laws and regulations dealing with municipal audits and reports. New York certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 353-8, discussion, p. 358-64.

- SEARSON, LOUIS A. Promiscuous auditing of public accounts; address . . to the North Carolina association of certified public accoun-tants at Charlotte, N. C., October 1936. 7 type-
- Calonia a Charlotte, N. C., October 1936. 7 type-written pages.
 "SERVICES called audits." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 165-7.
 SMITH, EDWARD J. Functions of audit. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 3a, March 10, 1938.)
 STEINEMANN, ROBERT. Surety company's in-terest in municipal audits. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 46-56.)
 WELCKER, WILLIAM H. Essentials of a muni-cipal audit. Municipal finance, May 1936, p. 11-4.
- 11-4.

Australia

ustralia INGLIS, ALEXANDER. Audit of accounts of local authorities in Queensland. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Oct. 1937, p. 249-68.

- Great Britain
 COLLINS, ARTHUR. Municipal internal audits. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1939. 403p.
 COUNCIL audit systems; points for and against the professional and district audit. Accountant, Aug. 1, 1936, p. 170-1. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1936, p. 287-8.
 LOCAL authorities; stamp duty and district audit regulations. Accountant, Sept. 17, 1938, p. 407-10.
 TIPPING I Audit of municipal accounts with

 - 40/-10. TIPPING, J. Audit of municipal accounts with special reference to mechanical accountancy. *Incorporated accountants' journal*, April 1937, p. 243-8.

MUNICIPAL audits. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1938, p. 77.

MUNICIPAL BUDGETS

See Budgets, Municipal.

MUNICIPAL bud Morey, Lloyd. budgets for capital improvement.

MUNICIPAL CHARTERS NEW YORK (city). New York city charter, adopted at the general election held November 3, 1936, effective January 1, 1938. New York, City record office (1936). 83p.

- MUNICIPAL COST ACCOUNTING LORIG, ARTHUR N. Cost accounting and the classification of municipal expenditures. Account-ing review, Sept. 1936, p. 291-5. NEALE, ALBERT E. Municipal cost accounting —its need and possibilities. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Advances presented at the
 - The need and possibilities, (in American insti-tute of accountants, Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938, p. 37-45.)
 O'CONNOR, WILLIAM F. How to obtain accu-rate cost records for public works accounting. Public works, Dec. 1938, p. 25-6.
- Great Britain DURMAN, CHARLES H. Costing for public works. Cost accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 159-64. BODDINGTON, W. H. Cost accountancy in the local government service; a review of the subject with special reference to papers submitted at conference of the Institute of cost and works accountants and the Institute of municipal treas-urers and accountants. Cost accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 200-12, appendix and discussion, p. 212-26.
 - COXALL, WILLIAM C. Cost control or expendi-
 - COXALL, WILLIAM C. Cost control or expenditure control for municipalities. Cost accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 159-81, discussion, p. 181-93.
 DRURY, J. W. Advantages of sound costing as applied to public cleansing operations. Cost accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 228-35.
 MONKHOUSE, JOSEPH. Co-ordination and measurement of municipal costs. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 60-4.

MUNICIPAL COST ACCOUNTING-Great Britain-(Continued)

- (Continued)
 MUSE, A. W. Costing in the local government services. Cost accountant, May 1939, p. 364-9.
 MUSE, A. W. Some aspects of municipal costing. Cost accountant, March 1936, p. 309-14.
 SOWERBUTTS, GEOFFREY L. Recognition of the elements of cost in municipal accounts; paper submitted at sevententh national cost conference, Institute of cost and works accountants, Gentral Hotel, Glasgow, 8th-10th September 1938. London, Institute of cost and works accountants, 1938. Gp. Cost accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 200-8, discussion, p. 209-21.
 TERMINAL cost accounts for use by local authorities. Accountant student and Accountant, journal, Jan. 1937, p. 277-80. Cost and management, April 1937, p. 112-9.

- MUNICIPAL COSTS BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Local expenditures. (In his Public finance. 1936. p. 92-111.) OKLAHOMA. Tax commission. Cost of local government in Oklahoma for fiscal year ending June 30, 1936 (with comparison to previous years) Oklahoma City, Okla., Tax commission, 1936. 108p.

Great Britain

COXALL, WILLIAM C. Control of expenditure. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 476-84.

MUNICIPAL DEBT

See Debt, Public; Municipal finance.

MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENTS

- BRADLEY, WILLIAM R. Inspections. (In Mc-Goldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 3b, March 10, 1938.)
- (1938.) (cDERMOTT, ARTHUR V. Legal aspects of the Comptroller's office. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 11, May 19, 1938.) McDERMOTT,

MUNICIPAL FINANCE

- IONICIPAL FINANCE See also Budgets, Municipal; Debt, Public. BARRINGTON (N.J.), BOROUGH OF. Finan-cial survey of the borough of Barrington and the school district of the borough of Barrington, county of Camden, New Jersey, with a refund-ing plan. Packard bldg., Phila., Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., June 1, 1936, 36p. BERLE, A. A., Jr. Taxation and municipal finance. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 5.11

- BERLE, A. A., Jr. Taxation and municipal finance. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 5-11.
 CAPE MAY (N.J.), CITY OF. Financial survey of the city of Cape May, county of Cape May, New Jersey, with a refunding plan. Packard bldg., Phila., Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., August 15, 1935. 35p.
 CHATTERS, CARL H. and HILLHOUSE, AL BERT M. Local government debt administration. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. 528p.
 FALLIN, HERBERT. Long term financial plan-ning. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 20-3.
 INTERNATIONAL CITY MANAGERS' ASSO-CIATION. Municipal year book, 1936; the authoritative résumé of activities and statistical data of American cities, edited by Clarence E. Ridley and Orin F. Nolting. Chicago, Ill., Inter-national city managers' association, 1936. 475p.
 Same, 1938. 619p.
 Same, 1939. 587p.
 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALI-TIES. Financial reports of municipalities. San Francisco, Calif., League of California muni-cipalities, 1938. 132p. (Bulletin 1, Uniform ac-conning committee.)
 LONGPORT (N.J.), BOROUGH OF. Borough
- cipalities, 1938, 132p. (Butterin 1, Uniform ac-counting committee.) LONGPORT (N.J.), BOROUGH OF. Borough of Longport, county of Atlantic, New Jersey; refinancing plan. Packard bldg.; Phila., Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc. no date. not paged.

- LYNDHURST (N.J.), Brief financial and administrative survey of the township of Lyndhurst, New Jersey, with a plan of refunding. Packard bldg., Phila., Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., January 1, 1935. 25p.
 McGOLDRICK, JOSEPH D. City finances and their relation to real estate. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 224-9.
 MARTIN, JAMES W. Municipal revenues and expenditures. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 329-32, 334, 375.
 MARTIN, JAMES W. Program of municipal revenues and expenditures to meet changing social condition. (In American institute of accountants., Addresses presented at the conference on

- cial condition. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 64-71.) Tax maga-zine, June 1938, p. 329-32, 334, 375. MEYERS, ARTHUR C. Presidential address, at Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, August 15, 1938, at the 33rd annual conference of the association. 12 mineographed cages Municipal functed Aug
- 12 mimeographed pages. Municipal finance, Aug.
- 12 mimeographed pages. Municipal pnance, Aug. 1938, p. 5-12. MOHAUPT, ROSINA. Bonded debt of 272 cities as at January 1, 1937. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1937.) MOHAUPT, ROSINA. Bonded debt of 286 cities as at January 1, 1938. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1938.) MOHAUPT, ROSINA. Bonded debt of 289 cities as at January 1, 1939. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1939.) MOREY, LLOYD. Maintaining citizen interest in the financial operations of government; before

- as at January 1, 1939. (reprinted from the National municipal review, June 1939.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Maintaining citizen interest in the financial operations of government; before conference on governmental accounting, Detroit, Dec. 1, 1939. 19 typewritten pages.
 MOUNT CARMEL (PENNSYLVANIA), BOR-OUGH OF. Plan for refunding and funding the bonds and other indebtedness of the borough of Mount Carmel, Northumberland county, Pennsylvania. Packard bldg. Phila, Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., 1937. 189.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSO-CIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Municipal finance legislation, 1937: a digest, by Irving Tenner. Chicago, Ill., Public administration service, 1938. 639. (Public administration service publication no. 59.)
 QUIN, F. A. Cash position in municipal finance. Municipal frame, Feb. 1937, p. 67-9.
 RIGHTOR, C. E. Bonded debt of 283 cities as at January 1, 1936. (reprinted from National municipal review, June 1936.) 149.
 ROWLAND, CHARLES J. and FAYLOR, HOMER O. Accounting and finance for Pennsylvania state college, cl399. various paging.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Legal provisions for centralization and reporting of financial statistics of local governments as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. cl388. 9, 233.)
 UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of. Financial statistics of cities having a population of over 100,000; 1935 summary report prepared under the supervision of C. E. Rightor. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 21p. Same, 1936. 1938. 23p.
 VINTED STATES. Census, Bureau of. Financial statistics of cities having a population of over 100,000; 1935 summary report prepared under the supervision of C. E. Rightor. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 21p. Same, 1936. 1938. 23p.
 WATSON, DENEEN A. Obstacles in connection with municipal accounting and finance. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses p

- with municipal accounting and hnance. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal ac-counting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 57-60.) WOOLPERT, ELTON D. Financial statistics of cities over 100,000: 1935. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1937. p. 347-71.)

MUNICIPAL FINANCE—(Continued)

Canada

TOWNER, J. A. Municipal finance. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 170-6.

- Great Britain McKENNA, REGINALD. Local authorities and McKENNA, REGINALD. Local authorities and the money market. Incorporated accountants journal, July 1936, p. 363-6. Accountant, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 1935. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1936, p. 283-6.
 MARSHALL, A. H. Local authorities: internal financial control. London, Institute of public administration, 1936. 218p.
 POYNTON, T. L. Suggestions for financial pro-visions in future legislation. Accountant, Oct. 10, 1936, p. 497-501.
 SAMPSON, E. T. Municipal accounting and finance. Cost and management, June-July-August 1937, p. 162-80.
 STEPHEN, FRANCIS R. Some aspects of city finance. Accountant, Nov. 27, 1937, p. 737-9, discussion, p. 739-40.
- MUNICIPAL finance legislation, 1937: a digest. Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.

- United States and Canada.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA Accounting for public property. Chicago, III., Muni-cipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, May 1939. 42p. (Accounting publication no. 5.)
 Accounting manual for Texas cities and towns. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers' asso-ciation of the United States and Canada, 1938.
 Code of ethics and professional conduct, adopted by MFOA in conference assembled, August 18, 1938. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 95.
 Constitution. (revised September 11, 1936) Chi-cago, III., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, 1936. Cp. County finance and accounting standards. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, August 1937. 35p. (Accounting publication no. 4.)
 Municipal finance legislation, 1937: a digest, by Irving Tenner. Chicago, III., Public administra-tion service, 1938. 63p. (Public aministra-tion service, publication no. 59.)
 Retirement systems for public employees. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, 2038.
 Municipal finance officers' association service publication no. 59.
 Retirement systems for public administration service publication no. 59.
 Retirement systems for public employees. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, cip38. 9p. and forms.
 Standard practice in municipal accounting and

 - forms.
 - landard practice in municipal accounting and financial procedure. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, c1937. 42p. (Accounting publica-Standard tion no. 3.)

- MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA
 MEYERS, ARTHUR C. Presidential address, at Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, August 15, 1938, at the 33rd annual conference of the association. 12 mimeographed pages. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 5-12.
 MUNICIPAL accounting. Certified public accoun-tant, Dec. 1937, p. 29-31.

MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA AND THE AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIA-TION

- Manual of water works accounting. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada and the American water works association, c1938. 483p.
- MUNICIPAL financial control through modern ac-counting. Kimpel, H. M.

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT INTERNATIONAL CITY MANAGERS' ASSO-CIATION. Municipal year book, 1936; the authoritative résumé of activities and statistical data of American cities, edited by Clarence E.

Ridley and Orin F. Nolting. Chicago, Ill., International city managers' association, 1936. 475p.

| Same, | 1937. | 599p. |
|-------|-------|-------|
| Same, | 1938. | 619p. |
| Same | | |

MUNICIPAL internal audits. Collins, Arthur.

MUNICIPAL LAW

IUNICIPAL LAW NEW JERSEY CITIZENS' COMMITTEE FOR THE PRINCETON LOCAL GOVERNMENT SURVEY. Local government act (1938). Plainfield, N. J., New Jersey citizens' commit-tee for the Princeton local government survey, May 25, 1938. 70p.

MUNICIPAL REPORTS

- See also Municipal accounting. ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Opening remarks at breakfast round table discussion of the annual financial report of a municipality, Sept. 10,
- 1936. 4 typewritten pages. LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA MUNICIPALI-TIES. Financial reports of municipalities. San Francisco, Calif., League of California muni-cipalities, 1938. 132p. (Bulletin 1, Uniform
- cipalities, 1938. 132p. (Bulletin 1, Uniform accounting committee.) LINEN, JOHN S. Accounting reports and muni-cipal credit. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 24-30.) NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Municipal accounting state-ments. Chicago, III., National committee on municipal accounting, August 1936. 156p. (Bul-letin no. 6.)

- municipal accounting, August 1936, 156p. (Bulletin no. 6.)
 SIMON, HERBERT A. Municipal reporting. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1938. p. 47-51.)
 STRONG, MORGAN. Daily financial statements. Municipal finance, Aug. 1939, p. 27-8.
 SUTHERLAND, DOUGLAS. Public's interest in municipal reports. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 61-3.)
 TENNER, IRVING. Common errors in financial reports. Municipal finance, Feb. 1937, p. 70-1.

MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEMS See Pensions and benefit plans.

MUNICIPAL retirement systems. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1938. p. 310-8.)

MUNICIPAL STATISTICS See also Municipal finance. INTERNATIONAL CITY MANAGERS' ASSO-CIATION. Municipal year bo'k, 1936; the authoritative résumé of activities and statistical data of American cities, edited by Clarence E. Ridley and Orin F. Nolting. Chicago, Ill., International city managers' association, 1936. 4750 475p.

| Same, | 1937. | 599p. |
|-------|-------|-------|
| Same, | 1938. | 619p. |
| Same | 1939. | 587n. |

MUNICIPAL TAXATION See Taxation-Municipal, under various coun-tries and states.

MUNICIPAL year book. International city man-agers' association.

MUNKMAN, JOHN H. Executors and income tax. Accountants' maga-sine, Dec. 1938, p. 615-8, Exemption of non-residents from income tax. Accountants' magazine, April 1938, p. 244-8. International contracts to pay money. Accountant

MUNKMAN, JOHN H.-(Continued)

student and Accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 81-5.

Wear-and-tear allowance and the Union cold stor-age case. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 511-7.

MUNN, GLENN G. Encyclopedia of banking and finance. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1937. 866p.

MUNRO, ALAN W. Assessment of companies Queensland income tax. Sessiment of companies Queensand income tax. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), April 1937. p. 3-12. Printed with: White, T. H. Assessment of companies federal income tax.

MUNRO, WILLARD L., joint author See Winslow, C. Morton and Munro, Willard L.

MUNSON, G. KIBBY Treatment of capital write-downs discussed by S.E.C. decisions. Controller, April 1939, p. 134-6, 137. Value based on earnings and other principles in recent decisions. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 276-

8. 279.

MUREN, LEE J. Advantages of the natural business year. St. Louis chamber of commerce news, Dec. 18, 1935. p. 3, 10,

MURPHY, MARY E. Education and training of English accountants. Accounting review, Dec. 1938. p. 404-10.

MURRAY and Carter's guide to income-tax prac-tice. Carter, Roger N. and Edwards, Herbert.

MUSE, A. W. Costing in the local government services. Cost accountant, May 1939, p. 364-9.
Some aspects of municipal costing. Cost accoun-tant, March 1936, p. 309-14.
Uniform costing for highway departments. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 46-50.

MUSGRAVE, RICHARD ABEL Nature of budgetary balance and the case for the capital budget. *American economic review*, June 1939, p. 260-71.

MUSGRAVE, WALTER ALEXANDER Surplus and dividends. Connecticut C.P.A. April 1939, p. 2-4.

MUSICAL ENTERPRISES PHILHARMONIC-SYMPHONY SOCIETY OF NEW YORK. Report of the president of the Philharmonic-symphony society of New York, Mr. Marshall Field, read at annual meeting of the society held in Steinway Hall, on May 10th, 1937. 2 mimeographed pages.

MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS

Statistics

- UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of musical instrument stores (with radio). (In their 1936 retail survey. report DUN no. 85.)
- Analysis of the 1936 operations of mu-sical instrument stores (with radio). (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 86.)

MUTTON, A. R.

Voluntary liquidation in N.S.W. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1939, p. 798-801.

- MUTUAL stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Alford, Edwin D.
- MUTUAL stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Benjamin, Harold S.
- MUTUAL stockholdings in consolidated statements. Moonitz, Maurice.

MYER, JOHN N.

YER, JOHN N. Financial statement analysis; principles and tech-nique. New York, The author, 1939. 270p. Toward better financial statements. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 15-20. Working capital. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 10-3.

MYER, JOSEPH C. New York C.P.A. theory questions with answers revised and supplemented by Andrew Nelson. Brooklyn, N. Y., Standard text press, c1938. 640p.

MYERS, H. J. Are standard costs practical for a special order business? National accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 27-33.

Standards for manufacturing expense. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 318-29.) Printed with: Crockett, Horace G. Cost standards and budgets.

MYERS, M. H. Effect of installment selling on the balance sheet. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods asso-ciation, Aug. 1937, p. 24, 74.

- N.A.C.A. research study. National association of cost accountants.
- N.D.C. revised. Accountant, tax supplement, July 24, 1937, p. 313-14; July 31, 1937, p. 321-2; Aug. 7, 1937, p. 333-4; Aug. 14, 1937, p. 345-6; Aug. 21, 1937, p. 353-4; Aug. 28, 1937, p. 361-2; Sept. 4, 1937, p. 369-70; Sept. 11, 1937, p. 385-6.

NADLER, MARCUS

New York certified public accountant, supple-ment, Jan. 1938, p. 5-15.

NADLER, MARCUS, joint author See Bogen, Jules I. and others.

NAGELL, FRANK J. This is month for capital stock declaration: hints on computation. Controller, July 1938, p. 191-2.

NASH, LUTHER R.

- Effect of added business on rate reduction losses. Public utilities fortnightly, Dec. 22, 1938, p. 810-7.

- 810-7.
 Fundamentals of utility accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, June 1936, p. 245-51.
 Further comments on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 532.
 Is reproduction cost becoming obsolete as an ele-ment in utility fair value? Public utilities fort-nightly, May 26, 1938, p. 657-64.
 New accounting program; problems arising under the electric power classification prescribed by federal and state utility commissions, with par-ticular reference to original cost of property. Public utilities fortnightly, May 27, 1937, p. 665-74. 665-74.
- That loss-in-value rule in depreciation accounting. Public utilities fortnightly, May 25, 1939, p. 653-63.
- NATION-wide survey of restaurant operating data (first six months 1938). Horwath and Horwath.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BANK AUDITORS AND COMPTROLLERS

- AND COMPTROLLERS
 Classification of accounts commonly known as "reserve accounts" and the treatment of such accounts on the books of a bank. National auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 3-4, 10.
 Fourteenth annual convention, November 14-16, 1938. National auditgram, Nov. 1938, p. 8.
 National association of bank auditors and comptrollers; what it is and what it is doing. Chicago, Ill., First national bank, Charles Z. Meyer, secretary, 1938. 16p.
 Report of the twelfth annual convention. National auditgram, Oct. 1936, p. 4-5, 12.

352

 $\mathbf{\hat{b}}_{i}$, $\mathbf{\hat{c}}_{i}$

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING AND LOAN SUPERVISORS

Examination report blanks; prepared by a special committee, August 20, 1936. mimeographed mimeographed forms.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWN-ERS AND MANAGERS 1935 office building experience exchange report:

- ERS AND MANAGERS
 1935 office building experience exchange report; analysis of rental income operating expenses. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and managers (1936). 31p.
 1936 office building experience exchange report; analysis of rental income operating expenses. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and managers (1937). 31p.
 Uniform accounting for office buildings. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1939, p. 1, 3-8.
 Uniform accounting system as developed by the accounting committee. Buildings and building management, Oct. 1939, p. 28-30.

- NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWN-ERS AND MANAGERS AND CHARLES R. HAD-LEY, COMPANY
 - Def Comparison accounting system; submitted, June 19, 1939. Chicago, Ill., National association of build-ing owners and managers, 1939. 40 mimeo-graphed pages and forms.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNT-ANTS

- ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNT-ANTS
 Annual meeting; reports of officers and directors. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Dec. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 8, section 3.)
 Annual meeting; reports of officers and directors. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 3, p. 443-69.)
 Available uniform accounting manuals—list of uni-form systems of trade associations. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, sec-tion 2, p. 1266-71.)
 Complete topical index, N.A.C.A. publications, April 1920 to January, 1936. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 3, p. 872-973.)
 Complete topical index, N.A.C.A. publications, April 1920 to January 1939. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 3, p. 699-766.)
 N.A.C.A. research study; practice in accounting for torse call by proving companying

- 1939. (N.A.C.A. Dutterin, v. 20, no. 11, section 3, p. 699-766.)
 N.A.C.A. research study; practice in accounting for taxes paid by manufacturing companies. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section 3, p. 179-208.)
 Officers and directors, 1936-37. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 3)
- 3.)

- a) So. (N.A.C.A. builterin, V. 18, no. 1, section 3.)
 Same, 1937-38. Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. builtetin, v. 19, no. 1, section 3.)
 Same, 1938-39. Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. builtetin, v. 20, no. 1, section 3.)
 Same, 1939-40. Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. builtetin, v. 21, no. 1, section 3.)
 Place of internal auditing in industrial companies. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. builtetin, v. 20, no. 3, p. 1285-97.)
 Present-day practice in accounting for research and development costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. builtetin, v. 20, no. 13, section 3, p. 889-909.)
 Year book, 1936. New York, National association of cost accountants, 1936. 329p.
 Same, 1937. 279p.
 Same, 1939. 406p.

| -Same, | 1939. | 406p. |
|------------|-------|-------|

Research and service department Depreciation policy in manufacturing industries (based on a questionnaire study by R. P. Marple, research and service department, under

the supervision of A. B. Gunnarson, director in charge of research) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 2, (N.A.C.A. b. 1053-8.)

- p. 1053-8.) Practice in accounting for payroll taxes; compiled by research and service department. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 24, section 1, p. 1365-90.) Practice in accounting for raw materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 14, section 1, p. 785-809.)

- Research and technical service department

- Practice in applying overhead and calculating nor-The control of the second and calculating nor-mal capacity, compiled by research and tech-nical service department. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 3, p. 917-34.)
- p. 917-34.) To what extent is the last-in, first-out plan being adopted? New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 500-1.) Printed with: Gardner, Graham A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNT-ANTS

- ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNT-ANTS
 ACCOUNTING for machines on loan. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 19, no. 19, section 2, p. 1143-6.)
 ACCOUNTING for set-up time. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 2, p. 542-3.)
 AMMON, A. J. Accounting for customers' prop-erty in a book manufacturing plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, sec-tion 1, p. 1367-88.)
 APPLICATION of raw material costs to sales. (Forum section) New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, sec-tion 1, p. 1367-88.)
 ARISMAN, GEORGE M. Federal and state in-come taxes as an element of cost. New York. National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 7, sec-tion 1, p. 385-98.) Printed with: Seidman, J. S. Tazes-cost accounting best salesman.
 ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART. Notes on the business and accounts of a cotton merchant. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, June 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 20, section 1, p. 1185-1200.)
 BARROWS, DOUGLASS M. Thoughts on de-preciation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 659-68.)
 Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis.
- basis.
 BARROWS, DOUGLASS M. Vegetable oil industry and some of its peculiar accounting problems. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 8, section 1, p. 431-48.)
 BEDELL, L. V. Measured day work—a wage plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 533-9.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.
 BENNETT, CLARENCE F. Management reports —their use and interpretation. New York, National association of cost activity of the section of
- -their use and interpretation. New York, —their use and interpretation. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 1, p. 1028-43.) Printed with: Cullen, J. F. Major accounting reports for management.
 BENNETT, CLINTON W. Cost plan for the knitting industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 13, no. 3, section 1, p. 143-65.)
 BENNETT, CLINTON W. Vermont maple fur-

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUN-TANTS—(Continued)

- TANTS-(Continued)
 niture company (a cost study). New York, Natirnal association of cost accountants, July 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 21, section 1, p. 1225-50.)
 BENNETT, CLINTON W. and FISKE, WYMAN P. Hattie Hicks sweets company; case study of a cost plan for a small confectionery plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 18, section 1, p. 1065-93.)
 BERNARD, RENE J. How we plan, set up and operate our budget. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 11, section 1, p. 57604.)
 BODMAN, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company. New York, National association

- 604.)
 BODMAN, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 807-20.)
 BOOZER, HERMAN W. Some aspects of plant ledgers and public utility plant accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. 18-26.) Printed with: Millians, Paul M. Management control of ship-line operation.
- tion. BRUCE, ROBERT. Method for classifying and accumulating material used data. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 24, section 1, p. 1381-408.) BUCKENMYER, A. J. Accounting for heavy machine construction. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, June 1, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, section 1, p. 1119-40.) BUDGETTING
- 40.)
 BUDGETING research costs. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants. April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 2, p. 901-5.)
 BUSH, W. ALBERT. Pickle costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 1, p. 277-89.)
- p. 217-39.)
 CARROLL, WILLIAM J. Accounting for and the control of scrap. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 977-83.) Printed with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an
- os.) Frinted with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an element of cost. CHAMBERS, ROBERT K. Expense control for automobile fleets. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, p. 1007.
- 27.) CHUBBUCK. ARTHUR C. and NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Standard costs for the Pioneer crayon manufacturing company. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 1, 22,26)
- 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 1, b. 423-56.)
 CHURCH, HAROLD B. Control and use of costs in motor truck operation. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 16, section 1, p. 1041-58.) Printed with: White, Arthur F. Cost finding in transportation.
 COMPUTING rates and reporting time for em-plovees operating several machines. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 181-3.)
 CORMACK. GEORGE P. Cost estimating for a
- CORMACK, GEORGE P. Cost estimating for a trucking company. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 6, section 1, p. 215 32 315-32.)
- 515-32.)
 COST of new products using existing facilities. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 2, p. 987-8; June 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 19, section 2, p. 1121-8; July 1, 1937, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1230-1.)
 CRANDELL, J. CHESTER. Ratios available for financial analysis. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1936. (N.A.

C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 23, section 1, p. 1349-

- CROCKETT, HORACE G. Cost standards and
- UKUUKETT, HORACE G. Cost standards and budgets. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-17.)
 CULLEN, J. F. Major accounting reports for management guidance. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 1, p. 1009-27, ODN, D. 2007.

- v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-17.)
 CULLEN, J. F. Major accounting reports for management guidance. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 1, p. 1009-27.)
 DARDEN, R. R. Office appliances and mechanical equipment. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 16, section 1, p. 951-62.)
 Printed with: Graham, Willard J. Accounting Davis, ALBION R. Case for a "stabilized" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Ide. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 377-99.)
 Canadian C. Case York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1220-8.)
 Printed accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 93-115.
 DAVIS, ALBION R. Standard profits and economic costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1220-8.)
 Printed MOND, JAMES E. Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line basis and should not vary with the volume of production-a debate. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1253-66.)
 DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manufacturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1237-66.)
 DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manufacturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1253-66.)
 DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manufacturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 949.)
 DICKERSON, THOMAS M. Municipal accounting machin

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUN-TANTS—(Continued)

v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1352-65.) Printed with: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for air-

- Will: Ebert, George M. Cost accounting for air-plane production.
 EBERT, GEORGE M. Cost accounting for air-plane production. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1333-51)

- C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 1, p. 1333-51.)
 EDES, OMAR K. Standard cost system for a stationery manufacturing concern. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 17, section 1, p. 1005-29.)
 ELLIS, GEORGE D. Accounting for construction projects. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-55.)
 FARRELL, A. C. Standards and wage incentives for office activities. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 8, section 1, p. 426-36.) Printed with: Sabin, R. M. Standard distribution costs.
- ciation of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 8, section 1, p. 426-36.) Printed with: Sabin, R. M. Standard distribution costs.
 FENTON, J. RALPH. Multiple store inventory control as applied by a liquor store system. New York National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 645-55.) Printed with: LaRose, Edmond S. Frozen capital made productive by inventory control.
 FINLAY, W. W. Comparative evaluation of occupations in industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 1, p. 161-75.) Printed with: Nickerson, Clarence B. Inventory valuation-—the use of price adjustment accounts to segregate inventory losses and gains.
 FISKE, WYMAN P. Inventory control under fluctuating production. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 22, section 1, p. 1265-76.)
 FISKE, WYMAN P. Inventory reserve plans. New York, National association of cost account for them. New York, National association of cost account of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 5, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 22, section 1, p. 1265-76.)
 FISKE, WYMAN P. Inventory reserve plans. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 5, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 4, section 1, p. 183-205.)
 GARDNER, GRAHAM A. Improving the operation of tabulating machine installations. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 481-90.)
 GARDNER, R. M. Budgeting research costs. (Correspondence) New York, National association association of cost accountants, Iue 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 19, section 2, p. 114-2.)
 GEROFSKI, IRVIN, New developments in controlling labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Iue 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-1.)
 GR

- (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-11.)
 GRAHAM, E. W. Current practices in inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 752-66.)
 Printed with: Peloubet, Maurice E. Problems of present-day inventory valuation.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Accounting economy by machine methods. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin. v. 17, no. 16, section 1, p. 935-51.)
- C.A 51.)
- GREER, HOWARD C. Accounting for by-prod-ucts and joint products: New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 24, section 1, p. 1399-422.)
- GREER, HOWARD C. Distribution costs as fac-tors in pricing policy. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 1, p. 263-81.)

GREER, HOWARD C. Further comments on Mr.

Kohl's article. (Forum section) New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section

- 2, b. 179-80.) GRE12, HARRY C. and BRUCE, ROBERT. Reorganization of the unemployment insurance procedure of New York state. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 24, section 1, 1523-51.)

- tional association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 24, section 1, p. 1523-51.)
 HALLIGAN, C. W. Accounting for the manufacture of mechanical rubber products. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 4, section 1, p. 197-216.)
 HARRIS, JONATHAN N. What did we earn last month? New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 4, section 1, no. 10, section 1, p. 501-26.)
 HARROLD, P. L. Outline of factory cost procedure in plate glass manufacture. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 1, p. 159-82.)
 HENRY, W. R. Cost accounting in the baking industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1299-1308.)
 HENRHAW, FRANK O. Labor control in the sign shop. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.)
 HERBERT, EARLE R. Cake bakery cost control. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 199. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.)
 HERBERT, EARLE R. Cake bakery cost control. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1910.)
 HERBERT, EARLE R. Cake bakery cost control. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1910.)
- industry. HILBERT,
- HILBERT, JAMES. Reclamation form. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 984-6.) Printed with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an element of cost.
 HOGAN, THOMAS J. Use of the uniform system in hotel accountants, July 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 22, section 1, p. 1411-24.)
 HOUSTON, SYDNEY. Steamship business from the accountart's viewpoint. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 1, p. 9-22.)
 Printed with: James, Charles C. Application of standard cost accounting to railroad administration.
- cation of standard cost accounting to railroad administration. HOWELL, H. E. Internal auditing. (Our open forum) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 2, p. 1046-9.) INTERNAL audit of traveling expenses. (Ques-tions and answers) New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 11, section 2, p. 667-70.)
- 70.) JAMES, CHARLES C. Application of standard cost accounting to railroad administration. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-8.)
- AMES, CHARLES C. Managerial control through cost accounting for construction work. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 1, p. 756-77.) Printed with: Ellis, George D. Accounting for construction JAMES, projects.
- DOINT product and by-product costs in mining. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 21, section 2, p. 1391-9.)
- KELLER, I. WAYNE. Function of costs in a joint-products industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 6, section 1, p. 359-72.)
- KILDUFF, F. W. Some aspects of inventory con-trol. New York, National association of cost

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUN-TANTS—(Continued)

accountants, Feb. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 12, section 1, p. 779-92.) Printed with: Dolliver, E. P. Finished goods inventory control.

- with: Dolliver, E. P. Finished goods inventory control.
 KIMPEL, H. M. Municipal financial control through modern accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 12, section 1, p. 624-35.) Printed with: Dickerson, Thomas M. Municipal accounting.
 KLEIN, FRANK. Some developments in variable budgeting. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, p. 1155-71.) Printed with: Wilks, Paul A. Flexible budget system at Strathmore paper company.
 KLEINHAUS, H. I. Uniform accounting procedure as an aid in reducing retail operating costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 519-33.)
 KNOWLES, ASA S. and MEANS, FREDERIC C. Survey of job evaluation as used by industry in determining base rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Julet. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 1, p. 381-416.)
 KOHL, CLEM N. What is wrong with most profit and loss statements? New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1207-19.)
 KRESS, ARTHUR W. Summary sheet for analy-
- 1207-19.)
- 1207-19.) KRESS, ARTHUR W. Summary sheet for analy-sis and control of depreciation. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 1, p. 1266-72.) Printed with: Dawson, C. O., Metzger, Adrian and Hammond, James E. Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line basis and should not vary with the volume of broduction—a debate.

- Merzger, Aurian and Hammond, James E.
 Depreciation should be charged on a straight-line basis and should not vary with the volume of production-a debate.
 LaROSE, EDMOND S. Frozen capital made productive by inventory control. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 11, section 1, p. 633-45.)
 LASSER, J. K. and GERARDI, J. A. Relation of accountants to the federal securities act. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, July 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 22, section 1, p. 1289-1312.)
 LAUSE, M. A. Practical group bonus plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 1289-1312.)
 LAUSE, M. A. Practical group bonus plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 567-78.) Printed with: Sayre, B. M. After incentives-what?
 LAUSE, M. A. and BOETTGER, F. A. Presenta-tion and use of cost control data. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 14, sec-tion 1, p. 797-819.)
 LAWSON, WILBUR F. Application of bank costs to depositors' accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 3, section 1, p. 701.7.) Frinted with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.
 LEAROYD, JOHN S. Obsolescence in the electric lamp industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 950-60.) Printed with: Stempf, Victor H. Accounting for fixed assets.
 LEHN, F. D. Principles and methods of measfor fixed assets.
- LEHN, F. D. Principles and methods of meas-uring office activities. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, May 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 18, section 1, p. 1169-90.)
- LINDSAY, JOHN R. Controllable loss factors in the baking industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 20, section 1, p. 1315-23.) Printed with: Henry, W. R. Cost accounting in the baking industry.
- LIST of factors affecting quality-time-cost, pre-pared by a group of production men. New York,

- National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 750-1.)
 LUENSTROTH, HAROLD W. Customer's accountants, New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 10, section 1, p. 561-80.)
 McCAFFREY, GEORGE D. Accounting control at the New York world's fair. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1483-96.)
 McFARLAND, WALTER B. Last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 2, p. 341-2.)
 McFARLAND, WALTER B. When is selling at a loss a profitable business policy? New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 2, p. 341-2.)
 McFARLAND, WALTER B. When is selling at a loss a profitable business policy? New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 328-39.) Printed with: Woodbridge, Frederic W. Make it visual.
 MAINTENANCE and repair costs by machine number. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 2, p. 4147.)
 MAKEFEACE, R. S. Control of direct labor cost variance in a metal goods factory. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 13, section 1, p. 339-68.)
 MALLET, LEONARD C. Problems in costing airplanes. New York, National association of cost accountants, bulletin, v. 18, no. 20, section 1, p. 1152-8.) Printed with: Seeber, Carl L. Cost system in a job order plant.
 MARPLE, R. P. Theory and practice with respect to payroll taxes. (Forum section New York

- with: Seeber, Carl L. Cost system in a job order plant.
 MARPLE, R. P. Theory and practice with respect to payroll taxes. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 178-9.)
 MARTIN, A. Control of direct and indirect labor costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 991-1012.) Printed with: Henshaw, Frank O. Labor control in the sign shop.
- sign shop. MILLER, NELSON A. and MESEROLE, W. H. sign snop.
 sign snop.
 MILLER, NELSON A. and MESEROLE, W. H. Departmental accounting in drug stores, based upon the St. Louis drug store survey. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 534-43.) Printed with: Kleinhaus, H. I. Uniform accounting procedure as an aid in reducing retail operating costs.
 MILLIANS, PAUL M. Management control of ship-line operation. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 0. 1, section 1, p. 1-18.)
 MILLIANS, PAUL M. Management control of ship-line operation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-18.)
 MILLING-in-transit privilege and freight accounting. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 21, section 2, p. 1276-80.)
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Natural business year. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 305-22.)
 MYERS, H. J., Standards for manufacturing ex-

- WYERS, H. J. Standards for manufacturing expense. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 318-29.) Printed with: Crockett, Horace G. Cost standards and budgets. cost
- NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Just what or who is a cost accountant? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 342-3.)
- INCKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory valua-tion—Professor Nickerson replies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 284-5.)
- NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Inventory-the use of price adjustment accounts to segregate

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUN-TANTS-(Continued)

inventory losses and gains. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 1, p. 47-60.)

- NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Problems of in-
- NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Problems of inventory taking and valuing, with particular reference to a woolen company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 16, section 1, p. 895-921.)
 NÖRRIS, CLINTON J. Time-saving requisition forms. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 226-32.) Printed with: Richmond, Carl G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospective earnings insurance.
 NORTH, A. F. System of labor cost and payroll accounting used by the Allen Bradley company. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, p. 527-32.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.
 ODOM, WILLIAM E. How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York, National association of cost accountant sociation of cost accountant sociation of cost accountant of the section 1 association accountant of the section 1 accountant (a section 1, p. 527-32.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.
 ODOM, WILLIAM E. How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1030 (M 4 C 4 kulter cost).
- compensation costs be handled. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 100-10.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies. PAUL, O. J. and CASSEL, J. C. Responsibilities
- AOL, O. J. and CASSEL, J. C. Responsibilities of the accountant to management for early re-ports. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 14, section 1, p. 929-36.) Printed with: Wilson, Ira S. Speeding up financial statements
- Membs. PAYNE, RAYMOND. Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p.

- 283-4.)
- 283-4.) PFLOUBET, MAURICE E. Problems of present-day inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, (N.A.C.A. p. 741-51.)
- p. 741-51.)
 PRIEBE, E. P. Skelgas company's plan of container control. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 22, section 1, p. 1247-57.)
 RASMUSSEN, C. F. What is the operating cost of a truck? New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, p. 1028-33.)
 Printed with: Chambers, Robert K. Expense control for automobile fleets.
- REITELL, CHARLES. Standard costs in the field of distribution. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section 1, b. 159-64.) Printed with: Taggart, Herbert F. Established cost survey.
- REMINGTON, PAUL E. Incidence of taxes-visible and invisible. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 2, section 1, p. 87-105.)

- 'S' INDEX 357
 RICHMOND, CARL G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospective earnings insurance. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 209-25.)
 ROBINSON, GOLDSBOROUGH. Controlling profits and cash through the budget. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 11, section 1, p. 637-64.)
 ROBNETT, RONALD H. and TUCKER, HERBERT E. Planning and controlling salesmen's costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 1, p. 837-86.)
 RYNELL, OLOV. Uniform cost accounting principles in Sweden. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 10, section 1, p. 590-607.) Printed with: Werntz, William W. Approach to accounting problems.
 SABIN, R. M. Standard distribution costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 8, section 1, p. 417-26.)
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting as evidence in cases arising under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 599-67.)
 SAYPER, ALBERT E. Cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 579-67.)
 SAYRE, B. M. After incentives—what? New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 579-67.)
 SAYRE, B. M. Inventory control and valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 579-67.)
 SAYRE, B. M. Inventory control and valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 477-83.)
 SCHROE
- Sweetser, Frank L. Standard costs simplified for garment manufacturers. SEEBER, CARL L. Cost system in a job order plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 20, section 1, p. 1139-51.) SEEBER, CARL L. Depreciation for a plant us-ing composite rates. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 669-76.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis. basis.
- SEIDMAN, J. S. Regarding the last-in, first-out method. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1939, (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 2, p. 83.
- SEIDMAN, J. S. Taxes—cost accounting's best salesman. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, p. 375-84.)
- SELLERS, COLEMAN, 3rd. Application of meas-ured day work. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 25-31.) Printed with: Gerofski, Irvin. New developments in controlling labor costs.
- SELLORS, JOHN. Costing of accounts and ac-count analysis for a bank. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 707-12.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond T. But account and the section of the section L. Bank service charges.
- L. Bank service charges.
 SIEPLEIN, W. R. Cost figuring in the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, June 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 20, section 1, p. 1173-82.) Printed with: Doll, Will. Out-line of cost procedure in paint manufacture.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS-(Continued)

- NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS—(Continued)
 SMITH, CHARLES W. Accounting for returnable containers. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 22, section 1, p. 1258-75.) Printed with: Priebe, E. P. Skelgas company's plan of container control.
 SMITH, J. D. Procedure for proving of bank deposits and figuring of float. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 713-20.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.
 SPITZNAS, C. THOMAS. Standard cost system for a brewery. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. SPITZNAS, C. THOMAS. Standard cost system for a brewery. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 1, p. 1243-62.)
 SPOILAGE allowances in canning fruits and vegetables. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 2, p. 1513-4.)
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Accounting for fixed assets. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 820-36.) Printed with: Bodman, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company.

- Bodman, G. T. Internal unusing for oil company. SWEET, HOMER N. Case for "cost or market" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 400.8.) Printed with: Davis, Albion R. Case for a "stabilized" basis. SWEETSER, FRANK L. Standard costs simplified for garment manufacturers. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, 1200.30.)

- SWEETSER, FRATR L. Statuard cost Surgering for garment manufactures. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1309-30.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Established cost survey. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section 1, p. 145-59.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Standard brands case. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 4, section 1, p. 195-262.)
 TAYLOR, PAUL C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 517-27.)
 THIBAULT, RAYMOND L. Bank service charges. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 691-701.)
 THOMSON, HENRY M. Internal auditing for trading and manufacturing concerns. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 836-45.) Printed with: Bodman, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company.
 TORRENCE, GERALD A. Accounting for truck operations. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1087-1106.)
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Planning for tax economy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1087-1106.)
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Planning for tax economy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1087-1106.)
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Planning for tax economy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1087-510.)

-Same. 10 mimeographed pages.

- TOWNS, CHARLES H. Practical aspects of de-preciation on a unit-of-production basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 649-58.)
- RICH, JOHN E. Accounting for productive materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulle-tin, v. 17, no. 9, section 1, p. 433-96.) Printedwith: Sayre, B. M. Inventory control and valu-URICH. ation.

- USE of material burden rate. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants. May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17 section 2, p. 990-2.)
 VOEGELE, ALBIN B. and TOWNS, CHARLES H. Cost accounting for federal agencies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 93-9.)
 WALDOW, OTTMAR A. Cost control of bank operations. New York, National association of cost accountering, New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 721-8.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank
- Printed WIII: service charges. WALDOW, OTTMAR A. Duties and responsi-bilities of a bank auditor. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1,

- bilities of a bank auditor. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1, p. 1105-20.)
 WEBSTER, NORMAN R. Pricing and costing graded product. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 1, p. 2904.)
 Printed with: Bush, W. Albert. Pickle costs. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 1, p. 2904.)
 Printed with: Bush, W. Albert. Pickle costs. WELLS, RALPH G. Cost control from the standpoint of the operating executive. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 731-49.)
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Approach to accounting problems. New York, National association of cost accountants, I, p. 575-89.)
 WHISLER, R. F. Quality, an element of cost. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 969-76.)
 WHITE, ARTHUR F. Cost finding in transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 16, section 1, p. 1031-40.)
 WHITE, J. C. Estimating as a science. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 14, section 1, p. 820-8.) Printed with: Lause, M. A. and Boettger, F. A. Presentation and use of cost control data.
- M. A. and Boettger, F. A. Presentation and use of cost control data. WIBBELSMAN, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 77-89.) WILKS, PAUL A. Flexible budget system at Strathmore paper company. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, 1143-55.)

- Strathmore paper company. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, p. 1143-55.)
 WILLIAMS, ARCHIBALD. Measured day work or wage incentives? New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 12-24.)
 Printed with: Gerofski, Irvin. New developments in controlling labor costs.
 WILSON, GEORGE A. Further consideration of the last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-26.)
 WILSON, IRA S. Speeding up financial statements. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 14, section 1, p. 91-28.)
 WILSON, JAMES A., Jr. Hotel accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 22, section 1, p. 1424-50.) Printed with: Hogan, Thomas J. Use of the uniform system in hotel accounting.
- Thomas J. Use of the uniform system in hoter accounting. WONSON, HAROLD S. Application and uses of standard costs in the shoe industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 5, section 1, b. 255-83.) WOOD, CLIFFORD G. Disposition of variances from standard. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 9, section 1, b. 548-55.) Printed with: Peden, Robert W. Cost account-ing in the plastic molding industry.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS—(Continued)

- WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Make it vis-
- WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Make it visual. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 315-27.)
 ZARKER, A. B. Is fixed overhead always a cost? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 2, p. 1347-8.)
 ZEIGLER, N. B. Accounts receivable records and methods. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 10, section 1, p. 581-94.) Printed with: Luenstroth, Harold W. Customer's accounts. accounts.
- accounts. ZERBO, JOHN D. Recording the costs of truck transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1107-19.) Printed with: Torrence, Gerald A. Accounting for truck operations.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CREDIT MEN Credit manual of commercial laws, 1937. New York, National association of credit men, c1936. 572p.

ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF DYERS AND CLEANERS NATIONAL

- A-3)

 A-3) Cost percentages; cost comparisons of 169 plants for the year 1937. Silver Spring, Md., National association of dyers and cleaners (1938). folder. (Bulletin service)

NATIONAL

- ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FURNITURE MAN-UFACTURERS, INC. Cost manual for furniture manufacturers, includ-ing presentation of uniform expense analysis and budgetary control methods. Chicago, Ill., National association of furniture manufacturers, inc., 1937. 26p. and supplements bound together: Supplement no. 1—Suggested methods for determining lumber waste. 1937. 3p. Supplement no. 2—Establishing inventory yabues 1937. 2n. Supplement no. values. 1937. 2p.
- ASSOCIATION OF INSURANCE
- NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF INSURANCE AGENTS Comparative analysis of composite expense aver-age obtained by questionnaires from member agencies of the National association of insurance agents. New York, National association of insur-ance agents (1938). 1 sheet.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFACTURERS

- Constructive industrial practices; report of the N.A.M. committee on industrial practices; New York, National association of manufacturers, May 1939. 37p.
- York, National association of manuacturers, May 1939. 37p.
 Industrial financing; report of the committee on industrial financing of the National association of manufacturers submitted at the N.A.M. congress on American industry, New York, December, 1939. New York, National associa-tion of manufacturers, 1939. 31p.
 Making the annual report speak for industry; compiled by James P. Selvage and Morris M. Lee. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 187p.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFACTURERS AUDITING procedure. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 117-8.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PUBLIC SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS. COMMITTEE ON PUPIL-COST ACCOUNTING RESEARCH Public school pupil-cost accounting. Trenton, N. J., National association of public school business officiale c1033 85n

officials, c1933. 85p.

- ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS NATIONAL
 - Interpretations of uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. New York, State law reporting company, Nov. 1, 1938. not paged. (Bulletin

 - Same, Aug. 15, 1939. 41 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin no. E-2) Interpretations of uniform system of accounts for gas utilities. Washington, D. C., National asso-ciation of railroad and utilities commissioners, July 15, 1939. 25 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin no. G-1)

- Just 25, 125 initial optimized pages. (Builterin no. G-1)
 Same, Aug. 15, 1939, 25 mimeographed pages. (Builterin no. G-2)
 Interpretations of uniform system of accounts for telephone utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commission-ers, August 15, 1939, 19 mimeographed pages. (Builterin no. T-1)
 Interpretations of uniform system of accounts for water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commission-ers, August 15, 1939, 19 mimeographed pages. (Builterin no. W-2)
 List of retirement units for electric utilities, pre-pared by Committee on statistics and accounts of public utility companies of National associa-tion of railroad and utilities commissioners. New York, State law reporting company, c1937. 21p. 21p.
- 21p.
 List of retirement units for gas utilities, prepared by committee on statistics and accounts of public utility companies of National association of rail-road and utilities company, c1937.
 1939 interpretations of uniform system of accounts for water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commission-ers, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin no. W-1) ers, 1 W-1)
- Proceedings of forty-eighth annual convention held at Atlantic City, N. J., November 10 to 13, 1936. New York, State law reporting co., c1937. 541p.
- Same, forty-ninth annual convention held at Salt Lake City, Utah, August 31, September 1, 2, and 3, 1937, 574p. Same, fiftieth annual convention, held at

- Same, fiftieth annual convention, held at New Orleans, La., November 15-18, 1938. 719p.
 Same, fifty-first annual convention, held at Seattle, Washington, August 22-24, 1939. 492p.
 Rules governing the preservation of records of gas utilities. Washington, D. C., National asso-ciation of railroad and utilities commissioners, August 15, 1939. 21 mimeographed pages.
 Rules governing the preservation of records of water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commission-ers, August 15, 1939. 20 mimeographed pages.
 Symposium on accounting for unamortized debt discount and call premiums on refunded debt issues. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, 1939.
 460. 46p.

- 46p.
 Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. New York, State law reporting co., c1937, 213p.
 Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities. New York, State law reporting co., c1939, 204p.
 Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities, classes A and B. New York, State law reporting co., c1937, 166p.
 Uniform system of accounts for water utilities, classes A and B. New York, State law reporting co., c1939. 148p.

CIATION SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON DEPRE-

Report of special committee on depreciation . . . submitted to the National association of railroad and utilities commissioners at its 50th annual convention in New Orleans, Louisiana, November

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS—Special committee on depreciation-(Continued)

on depreciation—(Continued)
15-18, 1938. New York, State law reporting co., c1938. 85p. (In its Proceedings of the fiftieth annual convention, 1938. p. 425-518.)
——Same, 51st annual convention in Seattle, Washington, August 22-24, 1939. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, c1939. 75p. (In its Proceedings of the fifty-first annual convention, 1939. p. 337-408.)

ATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SALES FINANCE COMPANIES NATIONAL

Composite experience of sales finance companies and automobile dealers, 1937. 1p. Sales finance companies and automobile dealers; the 1936 composite experience. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 69.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SECURITIES DEAL-ERS

REGULATION of over-the-counter dealers. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p.

NATIONAL bank failures and non-failures. Secrist, Horace.

NATIONAL BANKRUPTCY CONFERENCE BANKRUPTCY reform, (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 4-5.

- NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH Program of financial research; origin of the ex-ploratory committee on financial research. Na-tional bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 64, May 1937, p. 1-22. Retrospect and prospect, 1920-1936. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1936. 480
 - 48p.
 - Studies in income and wealth; by the conference on research in national income and wealth. New York, National bureau of economic research, 1937, 348p.

- NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Measures of capital consumption, 1919-1933. National bureau of eco-nomic research bulletin, no. 60, June 30, 1936, p. 1-13.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Revaluations of fixed assets, 1925-1934. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 62, Dec. 7, 1936, p. 1-11.
 KUZNETS, SIMON. Income originating in nine basic industries, 1919-1934. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 59, May 4, 1936, p. 1-24.
 - p. 1-24. KUZNETS, SIMON. National income, 1919-1935. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 66, Sept. 27, 1937, p. 1-15. KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN, MIL-

 - KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN, MIL-TON, Incomes from independent professional practice, 1929-1936. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 72-3, Feb. 5, 1939.
 MITCHELL, WESLEY C. AND BURNS, ARTHUR F. Production during the American business cycle of 1927-1933. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 61, Nov. 9, 1936, p. 1-20
 - economic research bulletin, no. 61, Nov. 9, 1936, p. 1-20.
 NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RE-SEARCH. Program of financial research; origin of the exploratory committee on financial re-search. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 64, May 1937, p. 1-22.
 PROGRAM of financial research. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 82-4.
 WOLMAN, LEO. Recovery in wages and employ-ment. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 63, Dec. 21, 1936, p. 1-12.
 YOUNG, R. A. AND BERNSTEIN, BLANCHE.

Statistical pattern of instalment debt. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 76-7, Oct. 15, 1939, p. 1-22.

NATIONAL CANNERS ASSOCIATION Chart of accounts. Washington, D. C., National canners association. no date. 8 mimeographed pages.

NATIONAL CAPITAL GROUP OF CONTROLLERS Tabulating methods in retail stores. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' con-gress. Year book of retailing. 1938, p. 29-48.)

NATIONAL CASH REGISTER COMPANY RENALEY, D. E. National cash register com-pany. (In American institute of accountants. Papters on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 228.)

NATIONAL CITY BANK

Pension and benefit payment plan, as amended to June 1, 1937. New York, National city bank. 7p.

- NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL AC-COUNTING

 - COUNTING
 Bibliography of municipal and state accounting. Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, 1937, 30p. (Bulletin no. 7)
 Municipal accounting statements. Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, August 1936, 156p. (Bulletin no. 6)
 Municipal audit procedure. Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, Feb. 1939. 54p. (Bulletin no. 8)
 Standard classification of municipal revenues and
 - Standard classification of municipal revenues and expenditures. Chicago, Ill., National committee on municipal accounting, April 1939. 103p.

- NATIONAL CONFECTIONERS' ASSOCIATION Cost system. Chicago, Ill., Tallman, Robbins & co. (no date) forms.
- NATIONAL ATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSIONERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS
 - ATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSIONERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS
 Uniform business records as evidence act; Uniform composite reports as evidence act; Uniform official reports as evidence act; Iniform official reports as evidence act; drafted by the National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws and by it approved and recommended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference. Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936, approved by the American bar association at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936. Chicago, III, National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936. 15p.
 Uniform trustees' accounting act, drafted by the National conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936; approved and recommended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936; approved by the American bar association at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, III., National conference, Joston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, III., National conference, Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, III., National conference, Joston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, III., National conference, Joston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, III., National conference, Joston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936, Chicago, III., National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936, 16p.
 - 1936. 16p.

NATIONAL CONTAINER ASSOCIATION

- Cost and accounting manual for a corrugated and solid fibre shipping container plant. Chicago, Ill., National container association, c1935. 98p.
- NATIONAL CONVENTION OF INSURANCE COM-MISSIONERS. COMMITTEE ON VALUATION OF SECURITIES
- List of securities held by insurance companies, with valuations to be used in the companies' annual statements as of December 31, 1938. New York, Moody's investors service, Jan. 25, 1939. 708p.

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF AMERICAN SHIP-BUILDERS

BUILDERS Summary of treasury decisions and rulings issued by the treasury department, bureau of internal revenue, on matters pertaining to the Vinson act. New York, National council of American shipbuilders, 1935. mimeographed.

NATIONAL CRUSHED STONE ASSOCIATION, INC.

lanual, uniform cost accounting principles and procedure for the crushed stone industry. Wash-ington, D. C., National crushed stone associa-tion, inc., July 1937, 30p. Manual

NATIONAL DEBT See Debt, Public.

NATIONAL DEFENCE (GREAT BRITAIN) See Law-Great Britain; Taxation, Britain-Profits; War. Great

TIONAL defence contribution. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 137.46; Feb. 1938, p. 307. Accountants' maga-zine, July 1937, p. 381-4; Dec. 1937, p. 584-95. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 1945. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 286-8; July 1937, p. 384-8; Sept. 1937, p. 458-9. NATIONAL

NATIONAL ECONOMIC COMMITTEE ECONOMIC inquiry. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1938, p. 213-4.

NATIONAL ECONOMY LEAGUE

- How to balance the federal budget; a realistic appraisal of national finances. New York, Na-tional economy league (1939). 32p.
- NATIONAL ELECTRICAL MANUFACTURERS AS-SOCIATION
 - Standard costs for the electrical manufacturing industry. (supplement to the uniform account-ing manuals) New York, National electrical manufacturers association, Dec. 1937. 25p.

ATIONAL ELECTRICAL WHOLESALERS NATIONAL AS-

Social IDN Revised uniform accounting system (with report of special committee) as approved and recom-mended by the National electrical wholesalers association, at the thirtieth annual convention . . Hot Springs, Virginia, May 26, 1938, New York, National electrical wholesalers association, 1938, 29p.

NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD,

- ATIONAL INDUSTRY 1
 INC.
 Cost of government in the United States, 1933-1935. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., c1936. 989. (National industrial conference board studies no. 223.)
 Experience under the undistributed profits tax. Conference board bulletin, Oct. 13, 1937, p. 105-15

- 105-15.
 International raw commodity price control, by Robert F. Martin. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., c1937. 166p.
 Prevailing practices in inventory valuation. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., 1938. 15p. (Studies in administrative control, no. 1, Feb. 1938.)
 Profit-sharing and other supplementary-compensa-tion plans covering wage earners. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., Dec. 1937. 22p. (Studies in personnel policy no. 2.)
 What profit sharing record shows. Factory manage-ment and maintenance, Feb. 1939, p. 40.

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT

See also Labor-Law and regulation. FELLER, ALEXANDER AND HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to deal with organized labor. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 664p.

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD NIXON, R. A. Appropriate collective bargaining units; National labor relations board decisions. Harvard_business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 317-25.

NATIONAL LEAD COMPANY

Dutch boy business record system for contracting painters. New York, National lead company, c1935. forms.

Retirement annuity and life insurance plan. New York, National lead company, June 1, 1937. 12p, Retirement annuity plan and plan of past service and minimum pensions. New York, National lead co., January 1, 1937. 18p.

NATIONAL LEAD COMPANY COTTER, ARUNDEL. National lead's stable earnings. Barron's, Nov. 13, 1939, p. 7.

NATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL CONFERENCE

- Accountant; an N.O.C. abstract. Occupations; the vocational guidance magazine, March 1938, p. 552-9.
- Appraisal and abstract of available literature the occupation of the accountant. New Yo National occupational conference, 1938. 10p. on York.

NATIONAL RECOVERY

See Industrial recovery.

- NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION See also Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business

 - See also Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.
 Basis for distributing receiving department expense. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 97-8.
 Budgeting. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 95-7.
 How to install a production incentive plan. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 95-7.
 How to install a production incentive plan. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 101.
 Manual on receiving department operations. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 101.
 Manual on receiving department operations. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, 1048, p. 51-103.
 Practical questions and answers regarding effect of Robinson-Patman act on merchandising operation, 1936. 5 mimeographed pages.
 Results of credit department payroll cost survey. New York, National retail dry goods association (1935). mimeographed
 Special bulletin on Robinson-Patman act, July 31, 1936. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 5 m

- CONTROLLERS' CONGRESS Balance sheet manual for retail stores; part 1. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 36p. Budgetary procedure and control for retail stores, covering income, expenses, net profit and balance sheet; prepared by the Chicago controllers' asso-ciation and the San Francisco Bay cities con-trollers' group. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, June 1935. 15p. and schedules. Expense manual: a manual of expense accounting
- 15p. and schedules.
 Expense manual; a manual of expense accounting for retail stores. New York, Controllers' con-gress of the National retail dry goods association, 1937, 159p.
 Internal audit, a manual for department stores and specialty stores, prepared by the Detroit controllers' group. New York, Controllers' con-gress, National retail dry goods association, c1936, 10p.

- c1936. 10p.
 Inventory manual for department stores and departmentized specialty stores, New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, June 1936. 65p.
 Limited study of silverware department workroom costs. Balance skeet, Sept. 1939, p. 10-4.
 1935 departmental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores prepared by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, e1936. 89p.
 1936 departmental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores, by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, e1936. 82p. congress, National retail dry goods association, c1937. 82p. 1937 departmental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores,

NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION— Controllers' congress—(Continued) by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1938. 82p.

- c1938. 82p.
 1938 departmental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores, by H. I. Kleinhaus. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, June 1939, 78p.
 Results of survey on unit post accounts receivable practices. (from Credit management division, second annual convention) New York, Con-trollers' congress, National retail dry goods association (1935). 6p.
 Round table discussion on accounts receivable pro-cedure, sixteenth annual convention, Controllers' congress, Chicago, Ill., June 12, 1935. 10

- congress, Chicago, Ill., June 12, 1935. 10 mimeographed pages. Sales auditing; round table discussion. (In its Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 114-44.) Small store accounting manual. New York, Con-trollers' congress, National retail dry goods association. c1937. 42p. Social security bulletin, no. 17, November 6, 1936; relative to registration of employers and em-ployees under titles 2 and 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security act. New York, Con-trollers' congress, National retail dry goods association, 1936. folder 6p. Social security bulletin, no. 18, November 9, 1936. New York, Controllers' congress, National re-tail dry goods association, 1936. 4 mimeographed pages.
- pages.

- tail dry goods association, 1936. 4 mimeographed pages.
 Social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; explanations and interpretations of the official regulations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under title 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security act. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 14 mimeographed pages.
 Workroom accounting manual for department stores and specialty stores. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 8p.
 Year book of retailing; proceedings of the seventeenth annual convention of the Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, Palmer House, Chicago, Ill., June 8, 9, 10, 11, 1936. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, June 1936, 185p.
 Song eighteenth annual convention, June 1937. 192p.
- 1937. 192p.
- Same, nineteenth annual convention, June 1938, 167p.
- Same, twentieth annual convention, June 1939. 191p.

CREDIT MANAGEMENT DIVISION Credit management year book, 1937-1938; com-piled by J. Anton Hagios. v. 5. New York, Na-tional retail dry goods association, c1938. 256p.

MERCHANDISING DIVISION Buyer's manual. rev. ed. New York, N retail dry goods association, c1937. 372p. National

- **FIONAL** security (capital issues) regulations. Federal accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 568-70. Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 331-4. NATIONAL security
- NATIONAL service for accountants. Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 291-2.

- NATIONAL STATIONERS ASSOCIATION Cost of operation in the commercial stationery and office outfitting business, 1937 edition, show-ing comparisons with the past twelve years and the trends in expense. Washington, D. C., National stationers association, 1938. 4p.
- NATIONAL
- ATIONAL SURETY CORPORATION V. LY-BRAND, ET AL GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accoun-tant's liability for negligence. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181.

- NATIONAL TAX ASSOCIATION
 Final report of the committee of the National tax association on federal taxation of corporations, Robert Murray Haig, chairman; presented at the thirty-second national tax conterence held at San Francisco, California, October 16-19, 1939, Columbia, S. C., Office of the secretary, National tax association, 1939, 131p.
 Fourth report of the committee of the National tax association on double domicile in inheritance taxation. (In National tax association, Proceedings, 1938, p. 741-59.)
 Preliminary report of the committee of the National tax association on federal taxation of corporations. (In its Proceedings, 1938, p. 574-661.)
 Proceedings of the twenty-eighth annual conference

 - 574-661.)

 Proceedings of the twenty-eighth annual conference on taxation, October 1935. Columbia, S. C., National tax association, 1936. 390p.

 Sept. 28-Oct. 1, 1936. 471p.

 Oct. 25-28, 1937. 575p.

 Oct. 24-28, 1938. 910p.

 Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938.

 - mimeographed. Includes:

Fernald, Henry B. Accounting records as related to income tax returns. Stempf, Victor H. Tax accounting versus busi-ness practice. Cooper, Walter A. Controlling the differences between accurate accounting and tax ac-

between corporate accounting and tax accounting.

NATIONAL UPHOLSTERY AND DRAPERY TEX-TILE ASSOCIATION, INC. Uniform cost sheet for use in the upholstery fabric industry. New York, National upholstery and drapery textile association, inc. (1937). form.

NATIONAL WHOLESALE HARDWARE ASSOCIA-TION

Overhead expense in wholesale hardware distribu-Overhead expense in wholesale hardware distribu-tion, 1936; averages 1914 to 1936, compiled by the research bureau of the National wholesale hardware association. Phila., Pa., National wholesale hardware association, 1936. folder. Statement of expenses; overhead figures for the calendar or fiscal year. Phila., Pa., National wholesale hardware association, 1937. form.

NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR See Period.

NATURAL business year. Couchman, Charles.

NATURAL business year. Harrington, Russell C.

NATURAL business year. Johns, Ralph S.

NATURAL business year. Lazarow, William J.

NATURAL business year. Montgomery, Robert H.

- NATURAL business year. Natural business year council.
- NATURAL business year. Shults, Otto A.
- NATURAL business year. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Jan. 1936, p. 21; June 15, 1936, p. 18-23; Sept. 15, 1936, p. 14-8; Dec. 15, 1936, p. 12-4. Certified public accoun-tant, Feb. 1937, p. 20-3; May 1937, p. 18-9; Sept. 1937, p. 26-9; Oct. 1937, p. 23-5; May 1938, p. 18-9; July 1938, p. 13-4; Dec. 1938, p. 21-2; July 1939, p. 18-9. Cost and manage-ment, Oct. 1936, p. 292-7.
- NATURAL business year. (Editorial) Journal accountancy, March 1937, p. 167-8; Jan. 19 p. 1; April 1939, p. 197; Dec. 1939, p. 362. 1939,
- NATURAL business year; a means to efficiency. Natural business year council.

- NATURAL business year—Advantages to manage-ment—Change readily possible. (Editorials) Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 7-10.
- NATURAL business year-an aid to management. Fernald, Charles E.
- NATURAL business year boost; American institute of accountants endorses plan, which 6,300 firms have accepted in two years, for closing books at slack season rather than year-end. *Business* week, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 50-1.

- NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR BULLETINS: No. 1—Fur coat manufacturers: March 1938. No. 2—Radio manufacturers: June 1938.
 - No.
 - 3-Women's trimmed hat manufacturers: June 1938. No.
 - -Farm equipment manufacturers: July No. 4 1938.
 - No.
 - No.
 - No.
 - 1938.
 5-Department stores: September 1938.
 6-Shoe manufacturers: October 1938.
 7-Flour millers: November 1938.
 8-Dry goods wholesalers: November 1938.
 9-Producers of crude cottonseed oil and refiners of cottonseed oil: December 1938. No. No. 1938.

 - 1938. No. 10-Jewelry retailers: January 1939. No. 11-Furniture manufacturers: March 1939. No. 12-Paint, varnish, & lacquer manufac-turers: April 1939. No. 13-Cement manufacturers: May 1939. No. 14-Fruit and vegetable canners: June 1939. No. 15-Candy manufacturers: July 1939. No. 15-Hosiery manufacturers: August 1939. No. 16-Hosiery manufacturers: August 1939. No. 16-Wen's work clothing manufacturers: September 1939.
 - No. 18--Women's coat and suit manufacturers: October 1939.
 - No. 19—Cotton textile weavers: November 1939. No. 20—Retail drug stores: December 1939.

- NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL See also Dun and Bradstreet, inc. and Natural

 - See also bun and Bradstreet, inc. and Nathan business year council. Meeting of Natural business year council. Certi-fied public accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 23-5. Natural business year; a means to efficiency. New York, Natural business year; a program of local activity. New York, Natural business year council (1936). 7 new York, Natural business year council (1936).
 - 70.
 - Natural business year; its advantages to business management. New York, Natural business year council (1936). 7p.
 - council (1936). 7p. Natural business year; suggested natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Natural business year council (1936). 15p. News letters. New York, Natural business year council, 1936—mimeographs. Tentative list of suggested fiscal closing dates. Domestic commerce, June 20, 1936, p. 386.
- NATURAL business year; its advantages to business management. Natural business year council.
- NATURAL business year plea renewed by public accountants. Controller, July 1936, p. 164-5.
- NATURAL business year studies. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 2-3.
- NATURAL business year; suggested natural fiscal closing dates. Natural business year council.
- NATURAL TURAL business year, what does it mean to business? Southern California business, Oct. 1936

NATURAL GAS See Gas, Natural.

- NATURAL RESOURCES
- PATON, WILLIAM A. Natural resources. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 26.)

NATURE of surplus after payment of dividends. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 62-3.

NAVAL STORES

Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER, Naval stores. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 296-301.)

NAYLOR, JOHN C. Financial statements must vary in form to serve specific purposes. Controller, Jan. 1939, p. 4-10.

NEALE, ALBERT E.

Municipal cost accounting—its need and possi-bilities. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on muni-cipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 37-45.)

NEBRASKA, AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS Manual of procedure, uniform system of account-ing, all county officers. Lincoln, Neb., Auditor of public accounts, Sept. 1, 1937. 39p.

NEDERLANDSCH INSTITUUT VAN ACCOUN-TANTS

Lijst van de leden en van hunne kantoren. Amsterdam, Nederlandsch instituut van accountants. 1937. 48p. -Same, 1938. 51p. -Same, 1939. 68p.

- NEED for better records in Negro business. Blayton, Jesse Bee.

NEED for tax reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 1-4.

NEEL, T. W. Simplification of the utility industry's reports to federal agencies. Edison electric institute bulle-tin, Dec. 1938, p. 509-11, 550.

NEFF, HAROLD H.

Forms for registration of securities under acts of 1933 and 1934. Harvard law review, June 1938,

p. 1354-72. SEC making progress in revision of rules affect-ing registration. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 52-5.

NEGLIGENCE

- See also Court decisions-Negligence; Fraud;
- See also Court decisions—Negligence; Fraud; Misfeasance; State street trust v. Ernst et al. ACTION against Irish accountants; Leech v. Stokes and others. Accountant, May 15, 1937, p. 710-1; May 22, 1937, p. 744; June 12, 1937, p. 853-4. ACTION against Irish accountants; solicitor's ap-pend dirmicrody Lacok of States are interested.
- AČTION against Irish accountants; solicitor's appeal dismissed; Leech v. Stokes and others. Accountant, July 10, 1937, p. 55-7.
 ACTION alleging negligence against auditors dismissed; Diamond T. Montreal limited v. James G. Ross et al, and Frank B. Wadsworth. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 205-7. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434. (Findings and opinions)
 ACTION for negligence; verdict for defendant. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 485-9.

- Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 485-9. ALLEGATIONS of negligence withdrawn. Accoun-tant, March 27, 1937, p. 444. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, April 1937, p. 242. ALLEGED negligence by accountants; judgment for defendants. Accountant, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 805-15.
- 805-15.
 ALLEGED negligence by accountants; Leech v. Stokes Bros. and Pim. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 417-21.
 ALLEGED negligence by accountants; Leech v. Stokes Bros. and Pim; judgment for defendants. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 95-103.
- 95-103.
 ALLEGED negligence of accountants; an Irish Free State decision. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Feb. 1937, p. 137-42.
 ALLEGED negligence of accountants; action in the Irish Free State. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 638-41; Nov. 14, 1937, p. 675-6.

NEGLIGENCE—(Continued)

- AUDITOR'S duty as to showroom accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 203-5. BRADY, WILLIAM W. Accountants' liability to third parties; the Ultramares case reaffirmed. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.
- CLAIM against chartered accountants. Accountant, March 25, 1939, p. 397-400. CLAIM for negligence. Accountants' journal, Aug.

- March 25, 1939, p. 397-400.
 CLAIM for negligence. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1939, p. 35-6.
 DISMISSAL of action against auditors. (from Manchester guardian.) Accountant, March 28, 1936, p. 480-1, 508-10.
 DUTIES of auditors; charges of negligence dismissed. Accountant, Feb. 27, 1937, p. 308-13.
 DUTIES of auditors or standardised. Certified accountants journal, June 1936, p. 170-2.
 DUTIES of auditors; the case of In re S. P. Catterson and sons, limited. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 326-30.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountant's liability for negligence. (Legal notes) Journal of accountants, explicate and fraud; comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N.Y. 104, 15, N.E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountantant, Nov. 1938, p. 326-30.
 CREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountant's liability for negligence and fraud; comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N.Y. 104, 15, N.E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountantant, p. 326-30. notes) 326-30.
- GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Com-ment on State street trust co., v. Ernst deferred. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug.
- 1938, p. 122. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. English decision on negligence of accountant. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 467-8
- 40/-8. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Negli-gence and breach of contract. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 392-4. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. State street trust co. v. Ernst, 278 N.Y. 104. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181
- 181.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Un-warranted generalization—Accountants' legal re-sponsibility for ambiguous or incorrect state-ments. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 251-4.
 LIABILITIES of auditors. Accountant, April 18, 1026 6014
- LIABILITIES of auditors. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 601-4.
 LIABILITY of public accountants for mistake in statement. (from Virginia law review, vol. 24, no. 3.) Philippine accountants' journal, April, May and June 1939, p. 79-80.
 NEGLIGENCE. Certified accountants journal, Feb. 1939, p. 34-6.
 NEGLIGENCE—Public accountants—Liability to third narty for mistake in statement Virginia
- third party for mistake in statement. Virginia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 331-2. NEW YORK COURT OF APPEALS. State street trust company, appellant, vs. Alwin C. Ernst
- trust company, appellant, vs. Alwin C. Ernst et al., co-partners doing business under the firm name and style of Ernst and Ernst, respondents. (decided May 24, 1938.) 11 mimeographed pages. PRACTICAL point; auditor admitting liability for negligence. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 900. RESPONSIBILITIES of auditors and of accoun-tants—Auditor not author of the accounts. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 86.8
- 86-8.
- SEAVEY, WARREN A. Mr. Justice Cardozo and the law of torts. Yale law journal, Jan. 1939, p. 390-422. Harvard law review, Jan. 1939, p. 372-407.
- STATE street trust company case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 282.
- Sournai of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 282. SUMMERFIELD, W. AND REYNOLDS, F. B. Accountants and the law of negligence. Accoun-tant, Oct. 28, 1939, p. 455; Nov. 11, 1939, p. 508-9; Nov. 25, 1939, p. 565-7; Dec. 9, 1939, p. 622-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 694-5.
- UNSUCCESSFUL action against accountants. In-corporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 242-5.

- NEGLIGENCE. Certified accountants journal, Feb. 1939, p. 34-6.
- **NEGLIGENCE** and breach of contract. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor
- NEGLIGENCE- Public accountants--Liability to third party for mistake in statement. Virginia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 331-2.

- NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENTS BOLON, DALLAS S. Accounting for commercial paper. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. paper. (In p. 379-89.)

 - paper. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938.
 p. 379-89.)
 CUPPAIDGE, E. R. Notes on securities over personal property in Queensland. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1937, p. 409-23.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Promissory notes —Bills of exchange. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 63-78; 107-18.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Business papers. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 232-44.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Business papers—Negotiable instruments. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 243-65.)
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Negotiable instruments and business papers. (In his Funda-

 - ed. 4. c1939. p. 243-65.) LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Negotiable in-struments and business papers. (In his Funda-mentals of accounting. 1938. p. 71-85.) NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Negotiable instruments. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. p. 215-28.) SALIERS, EARL A. Business papers and meth-ods: notes and drafts. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938. p. 237-55.) SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Business instruments—Notes and drafts. (In their Basic accounting brincibles. 1937. p.

 - w. Dusiness instruments—Notes and drafts. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 266-85; 305-19.) SCHMIDT, LEO A. Negotiable instruments. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 213-28.)
- NEGOTIATIONS regarding "one national organization." American institute of accountants.

NEGRO BUSINESS

EGRO BUSINESS BLAYTON, JESSE BEE. Need for better rec-ords in Negro business; an opportunity for negro accountants. Atlanta, Ga., Colored division, National youth administration, June 1, 1939. 52p. (Bulletin no. 11.)

NEILAN, EDWIN P.

Trust examination; an examiner's analysis. New York, American bankers association, Research York, American bar council, c1939. 84p.

NEILL, DONALD F.

Methods in cost accounting. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1939, p. 170-8.

NELSON, ANDREW

See also Myer, Joseph C. Introduction to auditing. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1938. 261p.

NELSON, BERTRAM

Forecasting in business. Accountant, Jan. 15, 1938, p. 84-8.

p. 84-8. Fraud in accounts. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 466-8. Interpretation of accounts. Accountant, March 27, 1937, p. 452-4. Treatment of dividends in accounts; the other view.

Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 5-6.

NELSON, C. HEWETSON

Half-a-century. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 363-5. NELSON, EDWARD G.

Note on principles of accounting. Accounting re-view, Dec. 1939, p. 350-5.

NELSON, GODFREY N. Capital gains and losses; an interesting exposition of a phase of income taxation which has defects worthy of legislative consideration. Tax maga-zine, Dec. 1936, p. 706-9. Corporate tax problems; capital stock and dividend

364

NELSON, GODFREY N.-(Continued)

- distributions. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 123-6, 182.
- 123-6, 182. Reserves and their treatment for taxes. Account-ing forum, May 1939, p. 12-4, 28. Taxation of business. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 711-3, 754-5. Taxation of corporate holding companies. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p.
- 417-24.)
- 417-24.) Taxation of corporate surplus. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 15-9, 63-4. (In National tax asso-ciation. Proceedings, 1936. p. 221-33.) Uneconomic taxation of business is chargeable pri-marily to depression. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 327, 330-2.
- War-profit taxes and records. (reprinted from New York Times, Sept. 10, 1939) Taxes-the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 569, 614.

NELSON, JAMES C. Motor carrier act of 1935. Jour economy, Aug. 1936, p. 464-504. Journal of political

NELSON, W. BERTRAM

Company reconstructions. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, March 1936, p. 193-6.

- NEPOMUCENO, RICARDO
 Securities and exchange commission and the businessmen. *Philippine accountants' journal*, May 1938, p. 169-77.
 Securities and exchange commission and the public accountants. *Philippine accountants' journal*, Jan. 1938, p. 15-9.

NESBITT, ROBERT C.

Tithe settlement reviewed. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 626-32.

NESS, HARRY

Minimizing death taxes through life insurance; address before Life underwriters association of York county, Penna., Sept. 28, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.

NET PROFIT

See Profits.

NET WORTH

- NET WORTH
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Net worth consideration. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 186-94.)
 LITTLETON, A. C. Tests for principles. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 16-24.
 MARPLE, RAYMOND P. Capital surplus and corporate net worth. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 201p.
 SALIERS, EARL A. Changes in net worth. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements, c1938, p. 36-49.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Net worth. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939. p. 295-314.)

NETTLETON, TULLY Can value be determined by a slide-rule method? Public utilities fortnightly, Jan. 5, 1939, p. 19-26.

NEUHOFF, RALPH R.

Income tax reduction: a new approach. Taxe the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 67-8, 118-21. Taxes-

NEUMAYER, J. M. Brewery financing and its correlated problems. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 155-64.

NEUNER, JOHN J. W.

- EUNER, JOHN J. W.
 Accounting for an insurance agency. Pathfinder service bulletin, May 1936, p. 1, 3, 7-8.
 Cost accounting, principles and practice. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1938. 710p.
 Just what or who is a cost accountant? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 342-3.)
- NEUTRALITY act of 1939. United States. Congress.

- NEVINS, H. E.
- Accrual accounting. Trust companies, July 1938, p. 52-4
- NEW and amended sections revenue act 1936, with explanation. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- NEW bankruptcy law. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- NEW benefit plan of Standard oil co. of New Jersey. Monthly labor review, Feb. 1936, p. 324-7.
- NEW BRUNSWICK INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Financial administration and a system of accounting
 - for municipalities. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, July 1939, p. 12-27; Aug. 1939, p. 98-115.
- NEW budget for the U. S.? Fortune, April 1939, p. 68-71, 126, 129, 130, 132, 134. Reprinted.
- NEW business laws. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- "(A) NEW competitor of business." Bonnell, Robert
 - NEW corporation income tax. Sher, I. Herman.

NEW DEAL

See Industrial recovery.

- NEW developments in controlling labor costs. Gerofski, Irvin.
- NEW dominion tax legislation; (a) An act to amend the income war tax act 3 George VI, 1939 (as-sented to 13th September 1939 (b) the Excess profits tax act, 3 George VI, 1939 (assented to 13th September 1939) Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1939, p. 283-7.
- NEW factors in federal income taxation. Stempf, Victor H.
- NEW features in mechanical equipment for account-ing offices. Accountant, Jan. 8, 1938, p. 53-5.
- NEW format. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 1.
- NEW French tax affecting British interests. Incor-porated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 460.

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Act to create a state board of accountancy. (Approved, June 2, 1937.) Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 27-31.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Uniform classification of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1935, revised Janu-ary 1, 1938. Concord, N. H., Public service

commission (1937). 120p. Uniform classification of accounts for gas utilities, effective January 1, 1939. Concord, N. H., Public service commission (1938). 96p.

- NEW hire purchase bill. Accountant, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 835-6.
- NEW importance of costs-Robinson-Patman act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10-2. Cost and management, March 1937, p.66-8.
- NEW JERSEY. MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTS, COM-MISSIONER OF
 - Chart of accounts for municipal officials; by Walter J. Darby. Trenton, N. J., Auditor, Department of local government, 1937. 62p.
 - PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSIONERS Uniform system of accounts prescribed for electric corporations, classes A and B, approved Novem-ber 10, 1937; effective January 1, 1938, Trenton, N. J., Board of public utility commissioners, 1937, 178p.
 - Uniform system of accounts prescribed for gas corporations, classes A and B, approved Novem-ber 10, 1937; effective January 1, 1938, Trenton, N. J., Board of public utility commissioners, 1937, 155p.

EW JERSEY BANKERS ASSOCIATION. COM-MITTEE ON COOPERATION WITH THE NEW JERSEY SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS AND ROBERT MORRIS ASSO-NEW CIATES

Report on joint sessions, May 1936. 7p.

- NEW JERSEY CITIZENS' COMMITTEE FOR THE PRINCETON LOCAL GOVERNMENT SURVEY Local government acts (1938). Plainfield, N. J., New Jersey citizens' committee for the Prince-ton local government survey, May 25, 1938. 70p.
- NEW JERSEY SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

NEW JERSEY SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, COMMITTEE ON COOPERA-TION WITH THE NEW JERSEY BANKERS AS-SOCIATION AND ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCI-ATES

See New Jersey bankers association. Committee on coöperation with the New Jersey society of certified public accountants and Robert Morris associates.

- NEW legislation respecting taxation, dominion and provincial. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 114-20; Aug. 1938, p. 139-42; Sept. 1938, p. 221-7; Jan. 1939, p. 42-3; July 1939, p. 43-7; Aug. 1939, p. 123-7; Sept. 1939, p. 207-11; Oct. 1939, p. 283-7; Nov. 1939, p. 357.
- NEW "McLintock agreement". Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 177-8.
- NEW methods that cut factory costs. (Reprinted from Factory management and maintenance) 92p. no date.
- NEW MEXICO. STATE BOARD OF ACCOUN-TANCY
 - Register of New Mexico certified public accoun-tants, 1939-1940. Box 58. Raton, N. M., Office of the secretary, E. D. Reynolds, July 1939. 8p.
 - ⁸p.
 Register of New Mexico certified public accountants who have complied with rules adopted May 14, 1936 in respect of registration and payment of fee for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1937.
 Box 58, Raton, N. M., Ernest D. Reynolds, Secretary of state board, July 1936. 7p.
- NEW MEXICO senate bill no. 202. (approved March 17, 1937.) Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 19-20.
- NEW 1937 railroad chart. Burrows, Robert A., compiler.
- NEW 1939 utility chart. Burrows, Robert A., compiler.
- NEW provisions, revenue act of 1938, explained. Ohio society of certified public accountants.
- NEW revenue act. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 73-4.
- NEW simplified payroll method, for use in connec-tion with the social security act. National accoun-tant, Aug. 1937, p. 30-3.
- NEW South Wales companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1937, p. 14-6.
- NEW surtax on corporations; what to do about it. Lowe, J. Blake and Wright, John D.
- NEW theory of interpreting net profits. Carter, W. J.
- NEW trend in accounting. Castenholz, William B.
- NEW uses for accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 324-5.

NEW YORK (CITY) New York city charter, adopted at the general election held November 3, 1936, effective Janu-ary 1, 1938. New York, City record office (1936). 83p.

FINANCE, DEPARTMENT OF

Status of the city's rapid transit debt and the interest and amortization charges thereon, August 15, 1936. New York, Department of finance, Bureau of accountancy, 1936. 9p.

NEW YORK (STATE)

- and edited by William Edward Baldwin, 1939 supplement. New York, Banks-Baldwin law pub. co., c1939. various paging. Corporation laws of New York revised to Septem-ber, 1939. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 3339. Laws affecting New York decedents estates. New York, Central Hanover bank and trust co., c1938. loose leaf. New York banking law annotated; containing all amendments through August, 1936, with annota-tions from decisions of the courts and rulings of the attorney general, edited by William Ed-ward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin law pub. co., c1935. 395p. Same, 1937 edition. 396p. New York banking law annotated; 1938 edition, containing all amendments to June 1, 1938, with annotations from decisions of the courts and rul-ings of the attorney-general to April 1, 1938. New York, Banks-Baldwin company, c1938. 148p. and appendix.

- annotations from decisions of the courts and rul-ings of the attorney-general to April 1, 1938. New York, Banks-Baldwin company, c1938. 148p. and appendix. New York insurance law, 1936 edition, containing all amendments through August, 1936, with an appendix containing emergency measures and miscellaneous laws affecting insurance, edited by William Edward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin law pub. co., 1935. 508p. New York insurance law, 1937 edition, containing all amendments through August, 1937, with an appendix containing emergency measures and miscellaneous laws affecting insurance, edited by William Edward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin pub. co., c1937. 508p. New York insurance law, 1938 edition, containing all amendments to June 1, 1938. Miscellaneous laws affecting insurance and annotations from decisions of the courts and rulings of the attorney-general to April 1938, edited by William Edward Baldwin. New York, Banks-Baldwin pub. co., c1938. various paging. 1939 supplement, containing 1939 amend-ments, miscellaneous laws affecting insurance and annotations to July 21, 1939. not paged. Surrogate's court act of the state of New York, and the Deccdent estate law of the state of New York, with 1936 amendments. Brooklyn, N. Y., Eagle library, inc., c1936. 68p. Same, with 1937 amendments. 88p. Same, with 1938 amendments. 96p. Tax law of the state of New York as of August 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. Oryap. Workmen's compensation law of the state of New York, as amended, and with supplementary laws, to August 1937. New York, F. Robertson Jones, c1937. 156p.

COMMISSIONER OF

Report of Commissioner of agriculture and markets regarding the audit of milk dealers and copera-tive associations. Albany, N. Y., Commissioner of agriculture and markets, 1938. (Legislative document (1938) no. 100.)

LABOR, DEPARTMENT OF

Instructions to employers subject to the New York state unemployment insurance law. New York City, State of New York, Department of

NEW YORK (STATE)--LABOR, DEPARTMENT OF (Continued)

labor, Division of placement and unemployment insurance, April 15, 1937. 64p.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

- Dulic Service commission unitors system of accounts for municipal electric utilities, effective March 1, 1936. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1935. 155p. Uniform system of accounts for telephone com-panies, classes A and B; effective, January 1, 1936. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1935. 139p.

- 1935, 139p.
 1935, 139p.
 1935, 139p.
 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1937. 166p.
 1916, 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1937. 166p.
 1917, effective January 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1937. 149p.
 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1937. 149p.
 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1937. 149p.
 21, 1937, effective January 1, 1938; as amended October 6, 1937, effective May 1, 1938.
 Albany, N. Y., Public service commission, 1937. 130p. 130p.

- SOCIAL WELFARE, DEPARTMENT

OF Handbook for the collection and tabulation of statistical information about hospital in-patient service in the state of New York, prepared by the Division of research and the Division of medical care. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1936. 99p.

STATE, DEPARTMENT OF Extracts from the stock corporation law, general corporation law, tax law, executive law and penal law. Albany, N. Y., Secretary of state, 1936. 59p.

OF

- TAX COMMISSION

 Annual report, 1934. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon

 co. 1935. 363p.

 Same, 1935. 1936. 367p.

 Same, 1936. 1937. 345p.

 Same, 1938. 1939. 373p.

 Same, 1938. 1939. 378p. (Part 1 of the annual report of the Department of taxation and finance)

- Same, 1938. 1938. 1936. (Part 1 of the annual report of the Department of taxation and finance)
 Articles 9 and 9-A as amended to date. Albany, N. Y., State tax commission, June 1936. 50p. (N. Y. state tax bulletin, v. 21, no. 2.)
 Same, June 1937. 58p. (N. Y. state tax bulletin, v. 21, no. 2.)
 Same, April 1938. 64p. (N. Y. state tax bulletin, v. 23, no. 2.)
 Same, July 1939. 64p. (N. Y. state tax bulletin, v. 23, no. 3.)
 Estate tax law; article 10C, in effect September 1, 1930; amendments to the end of the legislative session of 1937. Albany, N. Y., Department of taxation and finance, Aug. 1937. 30p.
 Manual 27-A; 1937 amendments to the personal income tax law (article 16 of the tax law) and unincorporated business income tax law (article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 20, 1935. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1937. 13p.
 Manual 36.4; 1936 amendments to the personal income tax law (article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 20, 1935. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1936. 11p.
 Manual 38; personal income tax regulations 38, with appendix containing article 16 of tax law, article 16. A of the tax law) Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1936. 11p.
 Manual 38; personal income tax regulations 38, with appendix containing article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1936. 11p.
 Manual 38; personal income tax regulations 38, with appendix containing article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1936. 11p.
 Manual 38; personal income tax regulations 38, with appendix containing article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1936. 11p.
 Manual 38-A; personal income tax regulations 38, with appendix containing article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1939.) 44 mimeographed pages.</li

- anual 38-A; personal income tax law of New York (article 16 of the tax law) and tax on unincorporated businesses (article 16-A of the Manual 38-A;

- tax law) with 1938 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1938). 54p.
 Manual 39-A; personal income tax law of New York (article 16 of the tax law) and tax on unincorporated businesses (article 16-A of the tax law) with 1939 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1939) 54p.
 Rates of assessment of real property for the sev-eral cities, towns and villages of the state as finally fixed and determined by the state tax commission for the year 1937. Albany, N. Y., Department of taxation and finance, 1937, 17p.
 Special report of the state tax commission—no. 10; assessment of real property in the United States, by Joseph D. Silverherz. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1936. 396p.
 Special report of the state tax commission—no. 11; Town administered special districts and the control of local finance in New York, by Daniel T. Selko. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., c1936. 175p.
 Special report of the state tax commission—no. 12; Taxation of insurance companies, by Philip L. Gamble. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1936. 195p.

- 12. Gamble. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 195p.
 Special report of the state tax commission—no. 13; fiscal aspects of state and local relationships in New York, by Paul E. Malone. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1937. 433p.
 Special report of the state tax commission—no. 14; budgetary methods in national and state governments, by J. Wilner Sundelson. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., 1938. 640p.
 Tax law of the state of New York, as of August, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 274p.
 Same, July 1937. 283p.
 Same, Aug. 1938. 290p.

TAXATION AND FINANCE, DE-PARTMENT OF Instructions for preparation of assessment rolls

- structions for preparation of assessment rolls with model forms prescribed by the state tax commission under section 21 of the tax law. Albany, N. Y., State office building, Department of taxation and finance, March 1937. 13p. and forms. (New York state tax bulletin, v. 21, no.
- Torms. (New York state and information relating thereto, October 1, 1936. Albany, N. Y., State tax commission, 1936. 28p.
 Tax law as it relates to the assessment and taxation of real property, 1937. 108p. Albany, N. Y., (N. Y. state tax bulletin, v. 22, no. 5.)

TRANSIT COMMISSION Definitive plan and unification agreement proposed for the acquisition and unification, under public ownership and control, of rapid transit railroads, and related power properties in the city of New York . . . submitted June 22, 1936. 193p.

UNIVERSITY

ducation N. Y., University -press, 1936, 395p. Supplement, 1937. 27p. Supplement, 1938. 35p. Supplement, 1938. 35p. Supplement, 1938. 35p. Accounting ledger, 32-6.

- Supplement, 1938. 35p. S7th accountant examination. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 32-6. 88th accountant examination. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 22-32. Examination questions, April, October 1936: April, October 1937; April, October 1938; April, Octo-ber 1939. Typewritten. Regulations of the commissioner of education on registration of courses of study in institutions
- egulations of the commissioner of education on registration of courses of study in institutions of higher education, on registration of profes-sional schools, and regulations on professional licensing, certification and practice, January 1936. Albany, N. Y., Professional licensure division, 1936. 59p. (Handbook 40)

- NEW YORK and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes). Commerce clearing house, inc.
- NEW YORK banking law annotated; containing all amendments through August, 1936, with anno-tations from decisions of the courts and rulings of the attorney general, edited by William Ed-ward Baldwin. New York (state)
- NEW YORK C.P.A. commercial law questions, 1924-1933; with answers prepared by Samuel Null. Null, Samuel.
- NEW YORK C.P.A. theory questions with answers revised and supplemented by Andrew Nelson. Myer, Joseph C.

NEW YORK COURT OF APPEALS

- State street trust company, appellant, vs. Alwin C. Ernst et al., co-partners doing business under the firm name and style of Ernst & Ernst, respondents. (decided May 24, 1938.) New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1938. 11 mimeo-graphed pages graphed pages.
- NEW YORK court of appeals decision on uniform system of accounts. American gas journal, June 1936, p. 34, 50.

NEW YORK CURB EXCHANGE Requirements for listing applications, amended to December 28, 1936. New York, New York curb exchange, 1936. 16p.

- COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC RELA-TIONS

- New York curb exchange; a description of its activity. New York, New York curb exchange, Sept. 1937. 49p.
- NEW YORK laws affecting business corporations. United States corporation company.
- NEW YORK, NEW HAVEN AND HARTFORD RAILROAD COMPANY
 - In the district court of the United States for the district of Connecticut, in the matter of the New York, New Haven and Hartford railroad com-pany, debtor; no. 16562; plan of reorganization (filed, by the debtor) June 1, 1937. 61p. and exhibits.

NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS

- 31p. New York certified public accountants, July 1937, p. 28-36. (Report, condensed summarv of answers and letter accompanying questionnaire.)
 Fortieth anniversary celebration of the passage of the first certified public accountant law at a dinner of the New York state society of certified public accountants; seating list, Waldorf-Astoria, New York, April 20, 1936. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1936. not paged.
 Important notice re: new partnership law. (letter to members, Sept 1, 1939) New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 1p.
 Manual for committees of the New York state society of certified public accountants, 1938. 20 p.
 Open letter to the delegates of the state constitutional convention on the subject of the debt and budget policies of the state. New York, Ne

- York state society of certified public accoun-tants, May 24, 1938. 7p. Service to the profession of accountancy; function and objectives of the New York state society of certified public accountants. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants (1920) 14-(1939). 14p.
- (1939). 14p. Some reasons for membership in the New York state society of certified public accountants. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants. no date. 14p. Ten-year book, 1897-1906. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939.
- 87p.
- Training American accountants. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 401. Year book, September, 1936. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1936.
- 189p.

-Same, September, 1937. 207p. -Same, July, 1938. 181p. -Same, July, 1939. 218p.

COMMITTEE ON ACCOUNTING

WITH BANKERS AND OTHER CREDIT GRANT-ORS

Report of the Committee on coöperation with bankers and other credit grantors on results of meetings held with officials and members of the New York credit men's association. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 109-13.

- COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL TAXA-TION

Memorandum addressed to Senate finance Memorandum addressed to Senate finance committee relative to pending revenue legislation (H.R. 9682). New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, March 19, 1938. 23 mimeographed pages.
Panel discussion on federal taxation. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 27-45.
Some questions and answers on federal taxation. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 27-45.

COMMITTEE ON INVENTORY METHODS

Inventory methods. (summary of discussion, by Maurice E. Peloubet, chairman.) New York cer-tified public accountant, July 1938, p. 40-7.

COUNTING COMMITTEE ON RETAIL AC.

Retail accounting. (partial transcript of the pro-ceedings of open forum meeting, Walter A. Lese, chairman.) New York certified public ac-countant, July 1938, p. 48-65.

COMMITTEE ON STOCK BROKER-

AGE ACCOUNTING Stock brokerage auditing by independent accoun-tants. (report of discussion at open forum meet-ing, Frederick S. Todman, chairman.) New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 66-76.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AUDIT-ING PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE Extensions of auditing procedure; a report adopted by the society at the meeting of May 22, 1939. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 8p.

NEW YORK state tax service. Prentice-Hall, inc.

- NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE Bulletin, vol. 10, no. 8, August, 1939—Interim financial reports. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 286-8. Directory of members and member firms, including board of governors, committees and officials of
 - board of governors, committees and officials of affiliated companies, and stock clearing corporation members. New York, New York stock exchange, Feb. 10, 1939. 295p.
 New York stock exchange, its functions and operations. New York, New York stock exchange, April 1936. 40p.
 Renort of the president May 1935-May 1936

 - Report of the president, May 1935-May 1936. New York, New York stock exchange, 1936. 39p.

 - Stock exchange encourages interim financial reports. New York stock exchange bulletin, Aug. Stock exchange encourages international ports. New York stock exchange bulletin, Aug. 1933, p. 1, 4. Year book, 1935. New York, New York stock exchange, January 1936. 138p. ______Same, 1936. January 1937. 136p. ______Same, 1937. January 1938. 160p. ______Same, 1938. January 1939. 130p.

- COMMITTEE ON MEMBER FIRMS Questionnaire for member firms doing any securi-ties business with others than members or mem-ber firms or doing a general business with the public. New York, New York stock exchange (1939). 1p. Reprinted in Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 277-8. Regulations prescribed
- May 1939, p. 277-8, Regulations prescribed by the committee on mem-ber firms for audit under authority of rule 532 (as amended October 26, 1938) of the rules of the Board of governors. New York, New York stock exchange, 1939, 1p. Reprinted in *Journal* of accountancy, May 1939, p. 274-5.

COMMITTEE ON STOCK LIST

- Inventory losses. (letter to presidents of corpora-tions having securities listed on the New York stock exchange.) Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 230.
- 230.
 Letter dated March 23, 1936, on quarterly reports of corporations. New York, New York stock exchange, 1936. 4p.
 Letter dated January 14, 1938, to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange, regarding the treatment in accounting statements of inventory losses and of differences between the present prices and the cost of goods contracted for but not yet received. New York, New York stock exchange, 1938. 3p.
 Report to the subcommittee of committee on interstate commerce of the United States senate, January 25, 1937. New York, New York stock exchange, 1937. various paging.

COMMITTEE ON STOCK LIST. SUB-COMMITTEE ON INDEPENDENT AUDITS AND AUDIT PROCEDURE Report of sub-committee on independent audits and

audit procedure of committee on stock list. New York, New York stock exchange, August 1939. 8p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 236-43. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1939, p. 9-18.

PUBLIC EXAMINING BOARD

Report of Public examining board on customer protection—to New York stock exchange, August 31, 1939. New York, New York stock exchange, 1939. 40p.

NEW YORK tax cases; the full texts of the leading federal and state court cases construing the New York tax law, 1903 to 1936. Commerce clearing house, inc.

NEW ZEALAND SOCIETY OF ACCOUNTANTS Year book, 1935-36. Wellington, N. Z., N Zealand society of accountants, 1936. 163p. —————Same, 1936-37. 179p. ————————Same, 1937-38. 181p. New

NEWCOMER, MABEL

European taxation of business. (In Tax policy | NEXT step in accounting. Healy, Robert E.

league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 63-73.)

- p. 03-7 57,

NEWCOMER, MABEL, joint autnor See Hutchinson, Ruth Gillette and others.

NEWHALL, GUY

Court accounting and allowances; an outline of effective procedure for protection of beneficiary and trustee—dangers of rigidity. *Trust com-panies*, April 1938, p. 409-14.

NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS

Elementary accounting. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., c1938. 684p. Intermediate accounting. Boston, Mass., D. C. Heath and co., c1939. 838p.

NEWMAN, E. B. Treatment of ore reserves in accounts. Federal ac-countant, July 1939, p. 346-51.

NEWS AGENTS

Accounting NEWSAGENTS' accounts. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 50-1.

NEWS DEALERS

News Draws Distances Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of magazine and newspaper dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no.

NEWSOM, REEVES

Comments on report on depreciation. Journal of the American water works association, May 1939, p. 837-40.

NEWSPAPERS

See also Magazines; Periodicals and newspapers; Publishers; Directory at end of Index.

- Accounting BRELSFORD, J. K. Accounting for newspaper publishers. Pathfinder service bulletin, Jan. 1938,
 - p. 1, 3-8. HARDER, OSCAR H. Newspaper accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1936, p. 9-21.

Cost accounting HERBRAND, D. A. Costing a daily newspaper. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 219-32; Nov. 1937, p. 245-8. Cost and management, June-July 1938, p. 176-91.

Costs

WHAT is circulation expense? Circulation man-agement, Feb. 1937, p. 10-11, 34.

Statistics DUN

AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of newspaper publishing and printing (in small towns). (In their 1936 retail

Analysis of the 1936 operations of news-paper printing and publishing (small) (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 104.)

NEWSPRINT PAPER

See Paper, cardboard, etc.

NEWTON, FRANK A

EWTON, FRANK A. Subsidized "yardstick"; TVA electric rates shown to be higher than private company rates when the "yardstick" is applied on a fair basis, and the same privileges granted the private com-pany that the federal project enjoys. *Public* utilities fortnightly, March 31, 1938, p. 408-12.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

NICASTRO, GEORGE J. Licensing and registration of engineers. American engineer, Feb. 1939, p. 4-5, 22, 24.

NICHOLAS, DOROTHY M. Current tendencies in the preparation and presen-tation of financial statements. Australian ac-countant, Sept. 1939, p. 129-43.

NICHOLS, ELLSWORTH

- Gas company questions before courts and commis-sions. Public utilities fortnightly, Oct. 27, 1938, p. 565-72.
- What is the so-called prudent investment theory? Public utilities fortnightly, April 14, 1938, p. 463-8

NICHOLS, JOHN P., editor Retailer's manual of taxes and regulations; a compendium of state and local laws and ordi-nances affecting retailers, edited by John P. Nichols. New York, Institute of distribution, inc., c1937. loose-leaf.

NICHOLS, M. E. Our duty to the prairies. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1937, p. 267-72.

NICHOLS, W. JOE When the physical testing procedure may not be practicable or reasonable. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 71-2.)

NICHOLSON, T. H.

Presentation and interpretation of costs. Cost ac-countant, Dec. 1937, p. 204-10, discussion p. 210-21.

NICKERSON, CLARENCE B.

- Favors use of price adjustment account or re-serve. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 2, p. 1139-42.)
- Inventory methods-their relation to credit analy-sis. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1938, p. 6-9.

- p. 6-9.
 Inventory reserves as an element of inventory policy. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 345-54.
 Inventory valuation—Professor Nickerson replies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 284-5.)
 Inventory valuation—the use of price adjustment accounts to segregate inventory losses and gains. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 1, p. 147-60.)
 Problems of inventory taking and valuing with particular reference to a woolen company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 16, section 1, p. 895-921.)

NICKERSON, CLARENCE B., joint author See Chubbuck, Arthur C. and Nickerson, Clarence B.

NICOLL, J. T. Plea for a universal currency. Accountants' maga-sine, Jan. 1937, p. 7-17. Chartered accountant in Australia, March, 1937, p. 728-36.

NICOLSON, C. W. Mechanized mining in the tri-state district. Mining congress journal, Jan. 1938, p. 30-3.

NIELSEN, A. C.

Continuous marketing research—a vital factor in controlling distribution costs. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year Book, 1936. p. 220-55.)

NIELSEN, OSWALD

Depreciation as a function of revenue. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 265-75.

NIGHT CLUBS See Restaurants, cafes, etc.

- NIGHTINGALE, FRANK A. President's address. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 251-61.
- 1935 departmental merchandising and operating re-sults of department stores and specialty stores, prepared by H. I. Kleinhaus. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- 1935 office building experience exchange report. Na-tional association of building owners and managers.
- 1936 annual meeting, Fort Worth, Texas, October 17-18. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 454-5. Bulletin of the American institute of ac-countants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 9-10.
- 1936 departmental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores, by H. I. Kleinhaus. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- 1936 office building experience exchange report. Na-tional association of building owners and managers.
- 1936 operating costs in Philadelphia. Buildings and building management, Nov. 1937, p. 48-9.
- 1936 retail survey. Dun and Bradstreet, inc.
- 1936 supplement to Tax systems of the world. Tax research foundation.
- 1937. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 94-5.
- 1937 departmental merchandising and operating re-sults of department stores and specialty stores by H. I. Kleinhaus. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- 1937 explanatory federal income tax returns, corpo-ration-individual. Sinclair, Murray and company, inc.
- 1937 operating cost percentages. American institute of laundering.
- 1937 retail survey. Dun and Bradstreet, inc.
- 1937 survey of salesmen's expense account practices. (reprinted from Sales management's "Managing salesmen in 1938," Oct. 10, 1937.) 1p.
- 1938 annual meeting. Certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 4-5; Aug. 1938, p. 9-16.
- 1938 departmental merchandising and operating results of department stores and specialty stores by H. I. Kleinhaus. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- 1938 manual of federal income tax procedure. LaSalle extension university.
- 1938 national railway wage reduction controversy-brief on behalf of the carriers; before the presidential emergency board appointed under the terms of section 10 of the railway labor act. Washington, D. C., October 17, 1938. 167p. and exhibits.
- 1939. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 361-2.
- 1939 employe benefit plans. General motors corporation.
- 1939 interpretations of uniform system of accounts for water utilities. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- 1939 manual of federal income tax procedure. LaSalle extension university.

act and western mining. McLaren, 1939 revenue Norman Loyall.

- NISSLEY, WARREN W. Charges against surplus. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 38-41.) Future of professional accountancy. Journal of ac-countancy, Feb. 1937, p. 99-114. Reprinted.
 - 18p.

- NIXON, E. V. Accounts of holding companies. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 507-18. History of the accountancy profession and the po-sition of the accountant in commerce. (In Aus-tralasian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936. p. 256-71, discussion, p. 272-86.)

NIXON, R. A.

- Appropriate collective bargaining units; National labor relations board decisions. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 317-25.
- NO-profit contracts and rearmament. Accountant, March 19, 1938, p. 378-80

NOBLE, EDWARD J. Accountancy and the nation's business. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 279-86.)

NOBLE, HOWARD S., joint author See McKinsey, James O. and Noble, Howard S.

NOLAN, D. J. Value of cost accounting to business executives. Cost accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 91-101. Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 361-80.

NOLEN, HERMAN C., joint author See Beckman, Theodore N. and Nolen, Her-man C.

- NOM LEE, J. STEPHEN Government accounting in China. Journal of ac-countancy, April 1936, p. 283-90. Government auditing in China. Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1936, p. 190-8. Government budgeting in China. 11 typewritten

 - pages.
- NONDEDUCTIBLE capital losses and bona fide sales under the federal income tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1939, p. 75-86.

NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS

See Hospitals; Institutions; Schools, colleges, etc.; Societies, associations, etc.

- NON-trading partnerships. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- NORMAL inventories. (Commentator) Cranstoun, William D., editor.

NORMAN, H. G. Our profession—quo vadis? Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 335-42.

NORRIS, CLINTON J. Time-saving requisition forms. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 226-32.) Printed with: Richmond, Carl G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospec-tive earnings insurance.

NORRIS, HARRY

Accounting principles; a constructive attack. Ac-countant, June 24, 1939, p. 846-9.

NORRIS, LESTER E.

•

Recent developments regarding regulation T. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 6-9, 12. Restrictions on investments by banks. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1936, p. 1-3, 23.

NORTH, A. F.

OKIH, A. F. System of labor cost and payroll accounting used by the Allen Bradley company. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 527-32.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.

NORTH, NELSON L., joint author See Benson, Philip A. and North, Nelson L. NORTH CAROLINA

Act to provide a uniform procedure for the sus-pension or revocation by certain North Carolina boards and commissioners of licenses to engage in trades and lawful callings . . . ratified, March 30, 1939. Certified public accountant, May 1939, p. 22-3.

- STATE BOARD OF ACCOUN-TANCY

- Information in regard to examinations for certified public accountants. Raleigh, N. C., North Caro-lina state board of accountancy, Dec. 1, 1939. 19p.
- NORTH CAROLINA, UNIVERSITY OF. STATE COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE AND ENGINEER-ING
 - IEGGER, MARC C. Financial management for highways. Raleigh, N. C., University of North Carolina, State college of agriculture and engi-neering, Feb. 1935. 162p. (State college record, v. 34, no. 4.)
- NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, INC. Constitution and by-laws, revised June 1936. Charlotte, N. C., North Carolina association of certified public accountants, inc., 1936. 23p. Directory, May 1, 1937, not paged.

NORTON, LEWIS M., joint author See Fernald, Henry B., Peloubet, Maurice E. and Norton, Lewis M.

NORTON, PAUL T., JR. Depreciation and corporate surpluses. Iron age, May 7, 1936, p. 30-1, 103. Economic and tax aspects of the depreciation prob-lem. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 4-8.

- NOTE for 1937. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 1.
- NOTES of the month; a department. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 96-8; March 1937, p. 177-82; April 1937, p. 249-54; May 1937, p. 128-32; June 1937, p. 411-6; July 1937, p. 11-5; Aug. 1937, p. 87-92; Sept. 1937, p. 327-30; Dec. 1937, p. 490-13; Jan. 1938, p. 10-6; Feb. 1938, p. 99-105; March 1938, p. 238-9; April 1938, p. 43-4; Aug. 1938, p. 324-7; May 1938, p. 43-4; Aug. 1938, p. 2161; Nov. 1938, p. 317-8; Dec. 1938, p. 204-9; April 1938, p. 317-8; Dec. 1938, p. 261; Nov. 1938, p. 317-8; Dec. 1938, p. 261; Nov. 1938, p. 317-8; Dec. 1938, p. 261; Nov. 1938, p. 317-8; Dec. 1938, p. 399-400; Jan. 1939, p. 38-9; Feb. 1939, p. 106-9; March 1939, p. 171-3; April 1939, p. 238-9; May 1939, p. 239-9; June 1939, p. 370-1; July 1939, p. 51-3; Aug. 1939, p. 370-1; July 1939, p. 51-3; Aug. 1939, p. 370-3; Nov. 1939, p. 343-4; Dec. 1939, p. 393-5. p. 263 393-5.
- NOTES of the month; a department. Journal of ac-tancy, Feb. 1937, p. 95.
- NOTES on the business and accounts of a cotton merchant. Arthur, J. F. Stuart.

NOTES PAYABLE See Notes receivable and payable; Payables.

NOTES payable and liabilities on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy. June 1936, p. 475.

NOTES RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE

- NOTES RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE See also Receivables.
 BACAS, PAUL E. Notes receivable—Notes pay-able. (In their Auditing procedure. c1937. p. 242.4; 289.92.)
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Notes, bills of exchange and drafts. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 147.56.)
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Promissory notes. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 63.78.)
 OCHNSON APOLD W. Y.

- 1936. p. 63-78.) JOHNSON, ARN 1930, p. 65-78.) JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Notes receivable-notes payable and drafts. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937, p. 193-217.) MARVIN, J. ARTHUR. Examination of notes and accounts receivable. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939 p. 23.6 38
- 1939, p. 23-6, 38. NOTES payable and liabilities on balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy,

- (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 475.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Notes receivable and payable. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 1, p. 205-27.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Notes receivable and payable—Notes and bills discounted. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 425-48.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Accounts and notes receivable and cash. (In his Audit working papers. 1937, p. 77-91.)
 TROUANT, D. L. Notes and accounts receivable --Notes and accounts payable. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 41-9; 97-108.)

NOTRE DAME FORM OF STATEMENT See Statements-Notre Dame form.

NOTRE DAME UNIVERSITY See University of Notre Dame.

NOURSE, EDWIN G. How are industrial prices developed? (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 8-20.)

NOVELTIES

See Toys and novelties.

NUISANCE returns. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1938, p. 9.

NULL, SAMUEL New York C.P.A. commercial law questions, 1924-1933; with answers prepared by Samuel Null. 2v. New York, C.P.A. examinations review, c1937. not paged. ______Same, 1934-1938. v. 3. not paged.

NUMBER of failures declines but total liabilities rise. Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, Feb. 1936, p. 20-4.

NUMERATION

See Classification.

NUMERO; publicacion de la Sociedad nacional de contadores. Santiago, Chile, Sociedad nacional de contadores.

NURSERIES

See also Florists; Greenhouses. Statistics

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of florists and nurseries (mainly flower shops). (In their 1936 retail survey, report no. 78.)
- Analysis of the 1936 operations of nurseries and greenhouses. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 87.)

NUTS

See Bolts, nuts, etc.; Nut growing.

NUTTALL, F.

Labour as a cost element. Cost accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 79-83.

NYSTROM, PAUL H.

Effects of labor regulation on the cost of dis-

tribution and prices of goods. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Bos-ton conference on distribution, 1937, p. 15-8.) Retail store operation. ed. 4. rev. and enl. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 702p.

- OAKES, E. E. Taxation or exemption of municipally owned utilities. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1938. p. 243-54.)
- **OBJECTIVE** appraisal of audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 259-60.
- OBJECTIVE appraisal of the independent audit. Bogen, Jules I.
- **OBJECTIVES** and activities of the committee on stock list of the New York stock exchange under present day conditions. Haskell, John.
- **OBLIGATIONS** imposed by a professional status. Cranston, William D.

- OBORN, R. W. T. Control of sundry d June 1939, p. 283-6. debtors. Federal accountant,

 - June 1939, p. 283-6. Manufacturing expense. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 404-14. Stock control. Australian accountant, May 1939, p. 270-85. Working capital. Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 347-52.

O'BRIEN, H. T.

Laws and regulations dealing with municipal audits and reports. New York certified public accoun-tant, May 1939, p. 353-8, discussion, p. 358-64.

O'BRIEN, M. C.

Fundamentals of appraising apartment houses, in-cluding two demonstration appraisals with actual figures. National real estate journal, May 1938, p. 43-5, 60.

O'BRIEN, ROBERT H., joint author See MacChesney, Brunson and O'Brien, Robert H.

O'BRIEN, WILLIAM DALE

Important amendments of stock corporation law and tax law. New York law journal, May 3, May 4, 1938.

O'BRYAN, W. H.

Administrative provisions of the income tax law; address before Oklahoma City chapter, Okla-homa society of C.P.A.'s, August 1938. 22 typewritten pages.

OBSERVATIONS on the financial condition of colleges and universities in the United States. Arnett, Trevor.

OBSOLESCENCE

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence.

OBSOLESCENCE in the electric lamp industry. Learoyd, John S.

O'CALLAGHAN, R. H. C.

Income tax claims usually available to a trader. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1936, p. 169-73.

OCCUPATIONAL ANALYSIS See Job analysis.

OCHETTI, JAMES

Accounting for motor equipment. Municipal finance, May 1939, p. 18-22.

OCHIS, MICHAEL

Depreciation for income tax purposes; a discussion of recent developments in treasury prac-tice. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1937, p. 1-15.

O'CONNELL, M. J. F.

Treatise on taxation appeals. Acc nal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 911-4. Accountants' jour-

•

O'CONNOR, WILLIAM F. How to obtain accurate cost records for public works accounting. Public works, Dec. 1938, p. 25-6.

O'DEA, FRANCIS J. H. Currency depreciation and restrictions, and other problems of the auditor in present day conti-nental Europe. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 60-6.

ODERMATT, M. R. Retail method of inventory. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 174.

ODLE. HARRY V.

Accounting machines. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 34-5.

ODLING, H. R.

Costing problems in the chemical industry. Cost accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 98-104. Accountant, Oct. 2, 1937, p. 444-8.

ODLUM, FLOYD B.

National system of the American arbitration asso-ciation. (reprinted from Scots law times) Arbi-tration journal, Jan. 1937, p. 6-12.

ODOM, WILLIAM E.

How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 100-10.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies.

OFFICE APPLIANCES See Mechanical devices; Office machinery and equipment.

OFFICE appliances and mechanical equipment. Dar-den, R. R.

OFFICE BUILDINGS

- Accounting NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. Uniform ac-counting for office buildings. Pathfinder service building, Oct. 1939, p. 1, 3-8.

 - bulletin, Oct. 1939, p. 1, 3-8.
 OPERATION and maintenance expense accounts, for office buildings. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1938, p. 44-5.
 STACY, L. M. Income and expense classification for a typical office building. Buildings and building management, Feb. 1936, p. 28.

Cost accounting

- ost accounting EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Cost accounting for office buildings. Buildings and building manage-ment, April 1937, p. 48-50, 81. FRINK, EARL D. Operating statement form that facilitates cost comparisons. Buildings and build-ing management, Jan. 1936, p. 28.

Costs

- BURCH, T. S. Question of floor space costs. Burroughs clearing house, Feb. 1938, p. 10-2,
- Burroughs clearing house, Feb. 1938, p. 10-2, 22, 24, 26. CAMP, E. A. Operating costs in the south. Buildings and building management, Feb. 1936, p. 32, 60-1. COMPARATIVE decorating costs based on a study of a typical office in a Chicago building. Buildings and building management, May 1939, p. 300
- Buildings and building management, May 1959, p. 30.
 EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Cost accounting for office buildings. Buildings and building manage-ment, April 1937, p. 48-50, 81.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. 1935 office build-ing experience exchange report; analysis of rental income operating expenses. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and managers (1936). 31p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. 1936 office build-ing experience exchange report; analysis of rental
- ing experience exchange report; analysis of rental

income operating expenses. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and

National association of building owners and managers (1937). 31p. PORTLAND ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. 1938 operating costs in 18 office buildings at Portland, Oregon. Buildings and building management, June 1939, p. 20.

Statistics

- atistics NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. 1935 office build-ing experience exchange report; analysis of rental income operating expenses. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and man-
- National association of building owners and man-agers (1936). 31p. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. 1936 office build-ing experience exchange report; analysis of rental income operating expenses. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and managers (1937). 31p.

OFFICE economies. Benge, Eugene J.

- OFFICE EOUIPMENT See Office machinery and equipment.
- OFFICE expense control. Williams, John H. and Brigham, L. H.
- OFFICE MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT See Mechanical devices.
- OFFICE MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT DEALERS DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of office equipment and sup-ply dealers. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 70.)
 - Analysis of the 1936 operations of office equipment dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 88.)

OFFICE MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT MANU-FACTURERS GLUICK, LEWIS. Taxation of accounting GLUICK, DEWIS. Taxation of accounting

- FACTURERS
 GLUICK, LEWIS. Taxation of accounting machine manufacturers. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 595-7.
 UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on manufacturers of office machinery and equipment registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 57p. (Re-port no. 11.)

OFFICE MACHINES

See Mechanical devices.

OFFICE MACHINES RESEARCH, INC.

American office machines research service. New York, Office machines research, inc., c1937, c1938, c1939. loose leaf.

- OFFICE MANAGEMENT AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Efficiency and economy in office procedures, by W. E. Tarr, W. F. Titus, Morton P. Francis, Orrin G. Sherman, C. L. Stivers and J. H. MacDonald. New York, American management association, c1938. 35p. (Office management series no. 85.) AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Modern office management methods by John
 - AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Modern office management methods, by John Mitchell, Eugene J. Benge, V. J. Olearo, J. J. Smith and L. Urwick. New York, American management association, c1938. 36p. (Office man-agement series no. 83.)
 BENGE, EUGENE J. Office economies. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 151p.
 CURTIS, C. RALPH. Office organisation. Accoun-tant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 132-5; April 4, 1936, p. 528-30; Sept. 19, 1936, p. 393-4; Feb. 13, 1937, p. 237-9; June 5, 1937, p. 815-6; May 21, 1938, p. 715-6; Feb. 4, 1939, p. 150-2; March 25, 1939, p. 412-3; Nov. 18, 1939, p. 550-2.

OFFICE MANAGEMENT—(Continued)

- DUDDY, EDWARD A. AND OTHERS. Business correspondence and office management. Chicago, Ill., American technical society, c1938. 234p. ELSDEN, J. J. Relation of the auditor to the

- ELSDEN, J. J. Relation of the auditor to the office organisation of a commercial concern. Accountant, Nov. 14, 1939, p. 543-50.
 LARAMEE, FREDERICK G. Clerical and accounting waste in industry. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 448-53.
 LEHN, F. D. Principles and methods of measuring office activities. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1939. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 18, section 1, p. 1169-90.) ğ0.)
- MacDONALD, JOHN H. Office management. rev. and enl. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937.

- and enl. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1957. 599p.
 RANK, ROY G. Cost control in the office. Society for the advancement of management journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 98-100.
 ROSS, H. W. Office organisation of "to-morrow" with notes on the application of mechanical appliances. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 431-4; Oct. 3, 1936, p. 467-70.
 WILLIAMS, JOHN H. AND BRIGHAM, L. H. Office expense control. New York, American management association, cl936, 289. (Office management scries no. 77.)
 WYLIE, HARRY L. Adapting office procedures and facilities to administrative requirements. Cost and management, Oct. 1938, p. 263-71.
 WYLIE, HARRY L., GAMBER, MERLE P. AND BRECHT, ROBERT P. Practical office management; the correlation of men, methods and machines. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 300p.

OFFICE MANUALS FALLON, E. J. Advantage of an office manual. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 503-4. MacDONALD, JOHN H. Office manual. (In his Office management. 1937. p. 399-419.)

- OFFICE mechanisation: success or failure. Accoun-tants' magazine, April 1938, p. 215-26.
- OFFICE personnel administration. American management association.
- OFFICE procedure in an accountant's office. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 476-7.

OFFICE SUPPLIES

See Stationers; Stationery.

- OFFICERS' salaries in construction of new plant. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 474-5.
- OFFICIAL ICIAL recognition of accountancy institu Australian accountant, June 1936, p. 338-40. institutes.
- OFFICIAL regulations regarding federal old age benefits (payroll taxes). Commerce clearing house, inc.

OGLE, JOHN Hire purchase finance. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 19-20.

O'HARA, JOHN F.

Accountants need a sense of humor. Edison elec-tric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 515-6, 530.

OHIO. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION

No. 1400318142 COMMISSION Ohio state workmen's compensation insurance fund manual; premium rules and rates effective July 1, 1938; financial statement, December 31, 1937. Columbus, Ohio, Industrial commission, 1938. 158p. no. 26.

Same, premium rules and rates effective July 1, 1939; financial statement, December 31, - 1938. 160p. no. 27.

OHIO SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN-TANTS

New provisions, revenue act of 1938, explained. 1938. 24p. Roster, January 1, 1938. folder.

- OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY. COLLEGE OF COM-MERCE AND ADMINISTRATION, DEPART-MENT OF ACCOUNTING
 - Proceedings of the first institute on accounting held at the Ohio state university, May 20, and 21, 1938. Columbus, Ohio, Ohio state university, College of commerce and administration, 1938. 154p.
 - 154p. Proceedings of the second annual institute on ac-counting held at Ohio state university, May 19, and 20, 1939. Columbus, Ohio, Ohio state university, College of commerce and administra-tion, 1939. 90p.

OHLANDER, LYLE W.

Double inheritance taxation. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 387-90, 448.

OIL BURNERS Statistics

OIL INDUSTRY

- See also Oil refineries; Oil trade; Pipe lines. POGUE, JOSEPH E. Economics of the petroleum industry. New York, Chase national bank, March
- EID, WILLIAM F. Oil royalties in Alberta. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. REID. 6-16.

- Accounting ACCOUNTING procedure for an oil company. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sent 1938. p. 187-8.

 - (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 187-8.
 ALLRED, JOHN BURNIS. Accounting for the small oil producer. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1936, p. 1, 3-5, 6.
 AMERICAN PETROLEUM INSTITUTE. Uni-form system of accounts for the oil industry, adopted by the board of directors of the Ameri-can petroleum institute, with revisions to June 30, 1936. New York, American petroleum insti-tute, 1936. 63p.
 GAS and oil company assets. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 321-2.

 - 321-2. McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Handbook of petroleum accounting. New York, Harper and brothers, 1938. 496p. PITCHER, ROBERT M. Practical accounting for oil producers. Tulsa, Okla., Mid-west print-ing co., 1938. 370p. THOMPSON, HOWARD S. Oil inventories ac-counting. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 23-36. WILLIAMS T DUVICUM 5

 - WILLIAMS, T. DWIGHT. Federal income tax problems in the oil producing industry. *Texas* accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 5-9.

Auditing

BODMAN, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 807-20.)

Inventorie

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Report of the special committee on inventories. (In its 1936 year book. p. 458-66.) Journal of accountancy; Aug. 1936, p. 122-32. under title: Valuation of inventories. THOMPSON, HOWARD S. Oil inventories ac-counting. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 23.36
- 23-36.

Reports and statements PITCHER, ROBERT M. Financial reports and operating statements. (In his Practical account-ing for oil producers. 1938. p. 211-24.)

Statistics

MORRIS, ALEXANDER B. Oil finances at a glance, for 1935 and 1936; compilation of the

OIL INDUSTRY-Statistics-(Continued)

INDUSTRY-Statistics—(Continued)
 1935 and 1936 annual reports of 25 leading American oil companies analysed on a com-parable basis and a review of operations, 1931 to 1936, by companies. Tulsa, Okla., The author, c1937. not paged.
 SHAW, STANLEY N. Petroleum. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corpora-tion profits. 1936. p. 233-75.)

Taxation

ROSS, EDWARD P. Depletion of oil leases. Tax magazine, June 1936, p. 323-5, 383-4.

OIL inventories accounting. Thompson, Howard S.

OIL REFINERIES

- HOWARD, MILTON. Accounts of a small oil refinery. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 247-55. P. Refinery accounting. Certi-

 - refinery. Canaaan Construction 1939, p. 247-55. JOHNSTONE, B. R. Refinery accounting. Certi-fied public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 84-6. McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Refining division. (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting. 1938, p. 297-366.)

Cost accounting FINLAY, WILLIAM B. Oil refinery cost methods. Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 1, 2, 5-8.

cKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Refinery cost accounting. (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting. 1938. p. 314-55.) McKEE.

Statistics

UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on oil refiners with tion. Selected information on oil refiners with producing facilities having assets over \$50,000, 000 each, registered under the securities and exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchan c commission. New York, Works progress admin-istration, April 1939. 69p. (*Report no. 10*)

OIL TRADE

See also Pipe lines.

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of coöperatives—petroleum distributors. (In their 1937 retail survey. sur-vey no. 21.)

OKLAHOMA. STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY Certified public accountants, state of Oklahoma, registered in accordance with rules of the board, July 1936. First national building, Oklahoma July 1936. First national building, Oklahoma City, Okla., State board of accountancy, July 1936. 29p.

-Same, July 1937. 30p.

TAX COMMISSION

Cost of local government in Oklahoma for fiscal year ending June 30, 1936 (with comparison to previous years) Oklahoma City, Okla., Tax com-mission, 1936. 108p.

OKLAHOMA HOTEL BUILDING COMPANY UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Findings and opinion of the commis-sion in the matter of: Oklahoma hotel building company (File 2-3598). Securities exchange act of 1933, release no. 1900. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 328-32.

OLD-AGE BENEFITS

See Pensions; Social security.

OLD and new viewpoints toward auditing. Gilman, Stephen.

("YE) OLDE budget." Mihalik, Andrew S.

OLDER, CLIFFORD, joint author See Breed, C. B., and others.

O'LEARY, PAUL M. Role of banking groups in corporate reorganiza-tions. American economic review, June 1939, p. 337-44.

OLIPHANT, HERMAN

Trade associations and the law. Dun's review, Nov. 1938, p. 7-18.

OLIVER, E. L. Better than a bonus is Idaho Maryland mines corporation's method of sharing profits, which provides additional compensation in proportion to dividends paid to stockholders. Factory man-agement and maintenance, Feb. 1937, p. 49.

- OLLASON. G. CAMERON Borrowing by limited companies. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 335-43.
 - ception of voluntary liquidation. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 233-7. Accountant, Jan. 29, 1938. p. 155-9. Inception

OLSON, CHARLES E.

Cost accounting for price making. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 41-59.)

OLSON, LYLE H.

- Accountants, appraisers and the S.E.C. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 220-2.
- Appraisals and taxation. Accounting forum, March
- Appraisals and taxation. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 12-4, 21. Classification of surplus. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 319-20. Principles of accounting and appraising as applied to the fixed and inventory assets; address before the District of Columbia institute of certified public accountants, October 12, 1939. New York, American appraisal co., 1939. 12p. Valuation of intangibles. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 20-3.

- O'MAHONEY, JOSEPH C. Borah-O'Mahoney bill. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 111. Should the federal government license corpora-tions? Bulletin of America's town meeting of the air, Feb. 28, 1938, p. 5-12.
- O'MAHONEY bill. IAHONEY bill. (Editorial) Jatancy, March 1937, p. 169-70. Journal of accoun-
- O'MAHONEY BILL (FEDERAL LICENSING OF CORPORATIONS) See Business-Government regulation and con-trol; Corporations-Law-United States.

ONCOST

See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead.

- ONCOST and overheads. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 27-8.
- ONE defender is discovered. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1935, p. 239-40.
- ONE hundred short problems in corporation finance. Dougall, Herbert E. and Dauer, Ernst A.
- ONE national organization. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 3-8.
- 1001 embezzlers; a study of defalcations in busi-ness. United States fidelity and guaranty company.
- "ONLY a billion". (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Feb. 1936, p. 85-7.

ONTARIO. LEGISLATURE

- NTARIO. LEGISLATURE
 Bill; an act respecting the Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario; 2nd session, 19th legislature, Ontario, 1 Edward VIII, 1936. Toronto, King's printer, 1936. 2p.
 No. 10, 2nd session, 19th legislature, Ontario, 1 Edward VIII, 1936—an act respecting the Association of accountants and auditors in Ontario. Toronto, King's printer, 1936. 2p. (assented to April 9, 1936.)

OPEN letter to the delegates of the state constitu-tional convention on the subject of the debt and budget policies of the state. New York state society of certified public accountants.

OPEN-PRICING PLANS

See Prices.

- **OPERATES** fleet of 1,100 salesmen's cars at aver-age of 3.94c per mile. Sales management, Oct. 10, 1938.
- **OPERATING** a furniture unit control by tabulating machines. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May 1938, p. 38-40, 70.
- **OPERATING** and cost budget for the printing busi-ness. Fillmore, F. W.
- OPERATING costs of light trucks. Power wagon, May 1936, p. 34-7.

OPERATING EXPENSES. See Expenses.

- OPERATING results of consumer co-operatives in the United States in 1937, by Carl N. Schmalz. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.
- **OPERATING** results of department and specialty stores in 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Harvard university. Graduate school of business adminis-tration. Bureau of business research.
- **OPERATING** results of department and specialty stores in 1936, by Carl N. Schmalz. Harvard university. Graduate school of business admin-istration. Bureau of business research.
- OPERATING results of department and specialty stores in 1937, by Carl N. Schmalz. Harvard university. Graduate school of business admin-istration. Bureau of business research.
- **OPERATING** results of department and specialty stores in 1938, by Malcolm P. McNair. Harvard university. Graduate school of business admin-istration. Bureau of business research.
- OPERATING results of department and specialty stores in the Pacific coast states: 1935, by Carl N. Schmalz. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.
- **OPERATING** results of department store chains and department store ownership groups: 1929, 1931-1934. Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.
- OPERATION analysis. Maynard, Harold B. and Stegemerten, G. J.
- **OPERATION** and maintenance expense accounts, for office buildings. Buildings and building manage-ment, Jan. 16, 1938, p. 44-5.
- **OPERATIONS** of retail coöperatives, 1936; sum-mary. *Monthly labor review*, May 1938, p. 1068-84.

OPERATIVE BUILDERS

See Building construction.

- **OPERATIVE** building economy shown by cost studies. National real estate journal, Dec. 1937, p. 46-7, 63-5.
- OPINION. (Hearts of oak assurance co., ltd.) Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 237.
- **OPINION** and comment. Illino Bureau of business research. comment. Illinois, University of.
- OPINIONS by securities commission's chief accountant may set accounting standards. Controller, May 1937, p. 130.

OPPORTUNITIES in accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 260-1.

OPTICAL TRADE

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of jewelry and optical goods stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 83.)

cians. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 106.)

OPTIONS

- PTIONS See also Futures.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation; no taxable gain on exercise of option. Credit executive, July 1939, p. 216-7.
 PURCHASE option and depreciation on leased property. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 242-3.
 RAUH, JULIUS J. Purchase option and deprecia-tion on leased property. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 55.
 STOCK issued as bonus. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 8-10.

OPTOMETRISTS Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of The 1935 operations of optometrists. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 99.)

ORANGES

See Fruit.

- ORCHARDS
- See Fruit growing.

ORDERS

See Cost and factory accounting-Orders.

ORE

See Mining and metallurgy.

ORECK, MARVIN

Budgeting and controlling a small volume retail operation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1935, p. 25, 44.

OREGON. PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSIONER

- REGON. PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSIONER Re uniform system of accounts for class A and B telephone utilities. *Public utilities fortnightly*, March 18, 1937, p. 26-31. Uniform system of accounts prescribed for classes A, B and C electric utilities, effective January 1, 1938, for class A and B utilities, and January 1, 1938, for class C utilities. Salem, Ore., Public utilities commissioner, 1936. 259p.
- A, B and C gas utilities, effective January 1, 1938. Salem, Ore., Public utilities commissioner, 1937. 243p.
- A, B and C water utilities, effective January 1, 1939. Salem, Ore., Public utilities commis-sioner, 1938. 205p.

OREGON STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Constitution and by-laws, December 1, 1938, Port-land, Ore., Oregon state society of certified public accountants, 1938, 12p.

O'REILL, C. That trial balance. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 150-5.

O'REILLY, HUGH S.

After graduation—what? Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 9-10, 14. Is accounting history important? Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 15-19. -what? Accounting forum, May

ORGANISATIONS comptables. 5 bis, Rue Keppler, Paris.

- ORGANIZATION CHARTS WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Make it vis-ual. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 315-27.)
- ORGANIZATION meeting of American accounting association. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 77-9.
- ORGANIZATION of an accountant's office. Dolby, Charles M.
- ORGANIZING and financing business. Bon Joseph Howard and Dewey, Lloyd Ellis. Bonneville,
- ORIGIN and evolution of double entry bookkeeping. Peragallo, Edward.

ORIGINAL COST

See Costs.

GINAL cost in utility accounts. (Correspond-ence) Bickley, John H. ORIGINAL

"ORIGINAL cost" in utility accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8.

ORR. SAMUEL

- KK, SAMUEL
 Administration of the emergency revenue division. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 92-8.
 Sales tax. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 10a, May 12, 1938.)

OSBORN, HILARY H.

Social security legislation now extends to national banks. Tennessee banker, Jan. 1940, p. 12, 14-5.

OSBORNE, HARLOW

SOURINE, HARLOW Suggestions for a new system of wage payment. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1936, p. 166-9, discussion p. 169-72.

OSBORNE, J. A. C. Bank of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 195-201.

OSTERMAN, J. E. John Q. Supervisor can savvy this bonus plan. Factory management and maintenance, June 1938, p. 52-3.

OSTERMAYER, GEORGE H. Standard accounting methods. Buildings and build-ing management, May 1939, p. 21-2, 61-5.

OSTLUND, H. J. Robinson-Patman act and quantity discounts. Ac-counting review, Dec. 1939, p. 402-9.

OSTROLENK, BERNARD, joint author See Tereshtenko, Valery J. and Ostrolenk, Bernard.

OUR incomparable ability to forget-Blind faith in our stars-Wall motto suggested. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 167-70.

- OUTHWAITE, A. H. Accounts and audit under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 30-47. Verification of liabilities, capital and reserves. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1936, 2150.
- p. 331-50.
- OUTLINE and comments on the social security act. Goldberg, Louis S.
- OUTLINE of auditing. Davis, Harry Leo and Dickman, Kermit S.
- OUTLINE of cost procedure in paint manufacture. Doll, Will.

OUTLINE of factory cost procedure in plate glass manufacture. Harrold, P. L.

OVENS

See Furnaces; Stoves.

OVER- absorbed and under-absorbed burden in the canning industry. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 11, section 2, p. 679-83.)

OVER-statement and under-statement. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 161-5.

OVER-THE-COUNTER TRADING

See Brokers; Investment companies.

OVER- the counter trading and the Maloney act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 633-50.

OVERDRAFTS CASH discounts and overdrafts. Accountant, June 18, 1938, p. 832-3.

OVERELL, DUNCAN How the economic development of the country is likely to affect the accountant. *Certified accoun-tants journal*, July 1938, p. 220-6.

OVERHEAD

See Cost and factory accounting-Overhead,

OVERHEAD expense in wholesale hardware dis-tribution, 1936; averages 1914 to 1936. National wholesale hardware association.

OWEN, A. M.

lectrical supply accounts; notes on the form in which statements of accounts of electrical supply authorities are presented. Accountants' journal (N. Z.), April 1936, p. 308-11. Electrical

OWEN, LYLE

Source of taxes. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 473-8, 507-8.

OWEN, S. Standard costs. Cost accountant, April 1936, p. 343-6.

OWEN, W. C. Bonus drops packing costs 10%. Factory mana ment and maintenance, March 1939, p. 51-2. Factory manage-

OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN

- Place of the business management course in the curriculum. (Accounting exchange) Accounting curriculum. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1937, p. 183-7. Surplus accounts of iron and steel corporations. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 171-8.
- OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE

Accounting, elementary theory and practice. New York, A. Van Nostrand co., inc., 1936. 687p.

OWNED floral department operations. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 20-2.

OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATES

See Bonds.

- **OWNERSHIP** of accountants' correspondence and working papers. Accountant, Nov. 19, 1938, p. 686-7. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 490-1.
- OWNERSHIP of working papers. Certified accountants journal, July 1936, p. 202-4.
- OWNERSHIP without control. Accountant, Dec. 10, 1938, p. 790-1.

OXBORROW, HAROLD R.

Auditing by and for tax authorities; a paper sub-mitted to the fifth international congress on accounting. Berlin, 1938. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1938, p. 348-57. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs- und treuhandkongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 113-42.) Indian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 80-97.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

P.W.A.

- See Public works; United States. Public works administration.
- PABST, W. R., JR., AND DAVIS, DOROTHY S. Business failures and business activity since 1887. Dun's review, Dec. 1937, p. 14-7, 45-6.

- Dun's review, Dec. 1937, p. 14-7, 45-6.
 PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR
 Accountancy, indispensable tool of control and administration in business and in government. New York, The author, c1938. 21p. (Occupational monographs series)
 Brokerage accounting. New York, Business textbook publishers, inc., c1938. various paging.
 I choose my occupation. New York, Pace institute, c1935, 29p. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 69-72 (excerpts).
 Public practice of accountancy: the professional work and status of the certified public accountation tant (C.P.A.) New York, The author, c1938, c1939. 35p. (Occupational monographs series)
 Work of the credit executive; the determination and control of credit in the modern business organization. New York, The author, c1938. 19p. (Occupational monographs series)
 PACE. HOMER ST. CLAIR AND REYAN, CHARLES

PACE, HOMER ST. CLAIR AND BRYAN, CHARLES

Revised comprehensive propositions in accounting. New York, Business text-book publishers, inc., 1939. loose-leaf.

PACKAGING

See Packing and shipping.

PACKARD, FRANK E.

Why provisions of chain store tax laws should not apply to gasoline filling stations. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1936. p. 352-61.)

PACKING

McFADON, BARRETT F. Sales control in the meat packing industry. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 35-8.

Costs

- osts CAMERON, JAMES C. Study of costs in the packing industry; the price of cattle and the price of beefsteak. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, June 1936, p. 428-35. MADIGAN, JOHN J. Securing lowest total freight costs in movement of packing house products. Harvard business review, Spring num-ber, 1937, p. 352-60.

Statistics

- tatistics
 UNITED STATES. Works progress administration. Selected information on meat packers with assets over \$50,000,000 each registered under the securities and exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Jan. 1939. 45p. (Report no. 2.)
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analyses no. 4 and no. 9, meat packer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements, 1936. p. 195, 243.)
- 195, 243.)

PACKING AND SHIPPING ROUTING system that will save money. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 19-21.

Accounting HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Shipping and delivery procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 196-206.)

Costs

FENNINGTON, K. P. Cost of packaging. Accoun-tant, Dec. 31, 1938, p. 895-6.

PADDI, JOHN B.

Problems of small loan operations in a commer-cial bank. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 157-62, 175-7.

PADDON, E. E.

Main cost factors in collecting installment accounts. Credit world, Jan. 1939, p. 4-5.

PADIERNE, J. LATOUR Contabilidad superior. Habana, P. Fernandez y ca., 1937. 370p.

- PAGE, M. O. Proof department. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 12-5.
- PAINT and varnish wholesalers. Dun and Bradstreet. inc.

PAINT, VARNISH, ETC.

PAINT, VARNISH, ETC. Accounting SIEPLEIN, W. R. Cost figuring in the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, June 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 20, section 1, p. 1173-82.) Printed with: Doll, Will. Outline of cost procedure in paint manufacture.

- Cost accounting DOLL, WILL. Outline of cost procedure in paint manufacture. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 20, section 1, p. 1161-72.)
 PRESTON, C. R. Costing in the paint industry. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 43-5. Indian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 284-7.
 SIEPLEIN, W. R. A B C of costing figuring for the paint, varinish and lacquer industry. Cleve-land, Ohio, Sherwin-Williams co., October 1939, 41p.

 - land, Ohio, Sherwin-Wintams to., October 2420.
 SIEPLEIN, W. R. Cost figuring manual for the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. (extracted and presented at the annual convention of the National paint, varnish and lacquer association, inc., Cincinnati, Ohio, October 27, 1937.) Cleve-land, Ohio, Sherwin-Williams co., 1937. 54p.
 SIEPLEIN, W. R. Uniform cost accounting for paint and varnish and lacquer industry. Cleve-land, Ohio, W. R. Sieplein, 1937. 6 mimeo-graphed pages and chart.

Statistics

- tatistics BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New operating yardsticks for five wholesale trades. *Dun's review*, Nov. 1937, p. 20-4. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of paint, wallpaper and glass stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 53.)

- stores. (In their 1936 retail survey, report no. 53.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of paint stores, paint, wallpaper and glass stores. (In their 1937 retail survey, survey nos. 65, 66.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Paint and varnish wholesalers; an analysis of operating and merchandising experience for 1937. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., Oct. 1938. 23p. (1938 wholesale survey, report no. 1.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Paint varnish, and lacquer manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., April 1939. 1p. (Bulletin no. 12.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of paint and varnish manufacturers. [1937, 101, 126, 178-9.] (1937 ed.—p. 52, 80, 106, 133, 194-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. cl936. p. 32-3.) (In his They said it with inventories. cl939. p. 24-5.)
- NT, varnish and lacquer manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year PAINT, conneil.

PAINTING CONTRACTORS

Accounting NATIONAL LEAD COMPANY. Dutch boy busi-ness record system for contracting painters. New York, National lead co., c1935. forms.

Statistics

the 1935 operations of painting and decorating contractors. (In their 1936 retail survey. report

378

PALMER, C. D.

Gas production costs. Cost accountant, March 1937, p. 300-7.

PALMER, ERNEST O.

ALMER, EKNEST O. Controversial matters in taxation of income. Con-troller, Dec. 1939, p. 432-4. Last-in, first-out inventories. Illinois manufac-turers' costs association monthly bulletin Nov. 1939, p. 1-2, 3. Manufacturers news, Nov. 1939, p. 9-10, 29.

PALMER, JAMES L. What the consumer coöperative movement means to the retailer. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 10-6.)

PALMER, ROY H.

Some problems of administration of the state in-come and unincorporated business tax. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 15-23.

PALMOUR, CHARLES J. G. Auditing of concerns. (In Fifth international con-gress on accounting, Berlin, September 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supple-ment, Oct. 1938, p. 10-4. Accountant, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 493-8, discussion, p. 498-9, (In V. internationaler, prüfungs- und treuhand-kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938, band C. thema 5, p. 1-17, under title "Auditing of combines".)

PANICS

HERWOOD, HERMAN. Prosperity and depres-sion from 1790 to 1938. Credit executive, March 1938, p. 77-9.

PANTS MANUFACTURE See Clothing industry.

PAPER BOXES

See also Containers; Boxes, packing cases, etc. Accounting FOLDING

PAPER BOX ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Basic principles for costing and accounting for folding paper box manufacturers. Chicago, Ill., Folding paper box association of America. no date. 54p.

Cost accounting FOLDING PAPER BOX ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Basic principles for costing and accounting for folding paper box manufacturers. Chicago, Ill., Folding paper box association of America. no date. 54p.

Statistics

- tatistics
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of paper box manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 51, 77, 101, 178-9.) (1937 ed.-p. 52, 80, 106, 133, 194-5.) (In his Fourieen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 32-3.) (In his They said it with in-ventories. c1939. p. 24-5.)
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 1, paper box manufacturer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 151.)

PAPER, CARDBOARD, ETC.

- See also Stationery. BURTON, ARTHUR S. Credit problems in the paper industry. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 338-9.
- LEONARD, FREDERICK M. Factoring for the paper industry. Paper trade journal, Dec. 2, 1937, p. 22-4.

Accounting ACCOUNTING for power in the paper and pulp industry. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, sec-tion 2, p. 1349-53.) HUOT, P. H. Accounting in the newsprint indus-try. Cost and management, Jan. 1936, p. 2-10. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1936, p. 480-90.

Budgeting WILKS, PAUL A. Flexible budget system at Strathmore paper company. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1,

- Statistics
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of paper manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 51, 77, 101, 126, 178-9.) (1937 ed.—p. 52, 80, 106, 133, 194-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 32-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 32-3.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 24-5.)
 PECK, THOMAS W. Paper. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1938, p. 31-42.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 13, paper manufacturer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 289.)

Valuation MAY, GEORGE O. Maximum selling price of newsprint paper. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 263-82.)

PAPER MILLS

See Paper, cardboard, etc.

PAPER TRADE Statistics

- aristics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of paper wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 54, 80, 104, 129, 1845.) (1937 ed.-p. 56, 84, 110, 137, 2023.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 40-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 40-1.) (In his They said it with inven-tories. c1939. p. 28-9.)
- PAPERS on accounting principles and procedure. American institute of accountants.

PARENT COMPANIES

See Holding companies.

- PARK FUND EMPLOYES' ANNUITY AND BENEFIT
 - Eighteenth annual report of the retirement board, June 30, 1937. 127 N. Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill., Park employes' annuity and benefit fund, 111., Park employes 1937. 64p. Twentieth annual report . . . June 30,

PARKER, EDGAR Vital delivery reports that executives need. Power wagon, March 1936, p. 16-8.

PARKER, FLORENCE E.

Experience under state old-age pension acts in 1935. Monthly labor review, Oct. 1936, p. 811-35.

PARKER, FRANK

Business cycle—cause, effects and controls. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 131-3; discussion, p. 143-50.

p. 131-3; discussion, p. 140-30.
PARKER, JOHN S. AND SMITH, J. B. R., ed.
Corporation manual; statutory provisions relating to the organization regulation and taxation of domestic business corporations, and to the admission, regulation and taxation of foreign business corporations, in the several states, territories and districts of the United States, arranged under a uniform classification; the uniform stock transfer act; federal and state laws regulating the sale of corporate stocks and securities, with forms and precedents, edited by John S. Parker and J. B. R. Smith. ed. 38. New Vork, United States corporation co., 1937. John S. Parker and J. B. R. Smith. ed. 38. New York, United States corporation co., 1937. 2783p. _____Same. ed. 39. 1938. 2893p. _____Same. ed. 40. 1939. 2923p.

PARKER, LOVELL H.

- Capital gains and losses. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 604-10, 625-6. Taxation in the future. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938,
- p. 647-8, 676. Time element in estate tax valuation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 219-25.)

PARKES, A. E. Workers' compensation acts. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 81-2.

PARKINSON, BRADBURY B.

Criterion of income in early British taxation. Accountant, tax supplement, April 17, 1937, p. 150-3.

PARKINSON, HARGREAVES

- Britain's war finance. Accountant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 599-605.
- p. 599-005, Disclosure in published accounts. Cost accountant, April 1937, p. 337-43. Accountant, June 19, 1937, p. 873-7; April 15, 1939, p. 502-6. Forecasting in business. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 282.
- Stock exchange operations and international finance. Certified accountants journal, March 1939, p. 80-3.

PARLIAMENTARY PRACTICE PARLIAMENTARY procedure. (In E executive's handbook. 1937. p. 1063-84.) Business

PARRY, JOHN CARLE, JR. Have the auditors been around? Lantern, Feb. 1938, p. 3-4, 8, 18.

PARSONS, A. J. R.

Liquidators, receivers and managers under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, June 1937, p. 913-32, discus-sion, p. 932-3.

- PARTIAL explanation. (Commentator) Cranstoun, William D., editor.
- PARTNERSHIP return of income. Edwards, Charles Μ.

PARTNERSHIPS

- EDWARDS, CHARLES M. Partnership return of income. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 52-5.
- of income. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1900, p. 52-5.
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Forms of organization—individual proprietorship, partnership, joint adventure, and joint stock company. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 50-60.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Nontrading partnerships. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 392.
 HANSEL, ARTHUR J. Limited v. general partnership. Yale law journal, March 1936, p. 895-907.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Incorporation of partnership. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 142-51.)
 PARTNERSHIPS. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 911-46.)

Accounting

- ALLRED, JOHN BURNIS. Accounting for partnerships. Wichita Falls, Texas, The author, c1937. 90p. Pathfinder service bulletin, Sept. 1937, p. 1, 3, 5-8.
 BENNETT, GEORGE E. Elements of partnership bookkeeping. (In his Bookkeeping principles and practice. 1936. p. 201-4).
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Partnership. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 277-321.)
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Partnerships. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 24-55.)
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Partnership. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 227-53.)
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER

- 'S' INDEX
 G. Partnerships. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938, p. 101-29.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Partnership accounting; organization and capitalization—Partnership net income; dissolution. (In his Accounting. c1937, p. 302-40.)
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Partnerships. (In his Principles of accounting. c1937, p. 268-310.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Basic aspects of partnerships their organization; Partnerships of accounting. ed. 4. c1939, p. 3544407.)
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Partnership accounting. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938, p. 166-200.)
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Partnerships. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936, p. 297-325.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOWARD S. Partnerships. (In their Accounting principles. c1939, p. 376-426.)
 MOONITZ, MAURICE. Mathematical proof of a proposition in partnership accounting. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 29-30.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Partnerships and their organization—Partnership operations and dissolution. (In their Elementary accounting. class p. 264-301.)
 WENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE Partnerships (In their Accounting. 1937, Part 2, chapter 29.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Partnership accounting. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937, Part 2, chapter 29.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Partnership account. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937, Part 2, chapter 29.)
 PATON, WILLIAM CARROLL, Partnership sc. (In their Essentials of accounting. 1938, p. 616-52.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL, Partnership accounting. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937, Part 2, chapter 29.)
 SHIRKLL, Partnership. (In their Principles of accounting. 1937, p. 294-344.)
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL, Partnerships. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting. 1937, p. 292-53.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND BOLING, CLEM. Partnerships. 30.
 SHIBRY CAOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANNC C

 - p. 523-38.) WHITE, ROBERT A.
 - HITE, ROBERT A. Admission of a partner by investment. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 427-9.

Australia HOSKING, P. Partnership law and accounts. Australian accountant, June 1936, p. 420-4; July

- Australian accountant, June 1936, p. 420-4; July 1936, p. 497-504. MacDONALD, O. R. Dissolution of partnership— the partners' capital accounts. Australian ac-countant, Aug. 1937, p. 75-80. YORSTON, R. KEITH. Partnership accounts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 450-64; Feb. 1938, p. 75-80.

- Great Britain BACK, W. J. Partnership accounts and taxation. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 369-73, discussion, p. 373-4. BIGG, W. W. Partnership accounts. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 73-9.
- STEPHENS, K. V. Partnership dissolution ac-counts. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 330-1.

Great Britain

- For the second secon

PARTNERSHIPS-Great Britain-(Continued)

- Corporate accountant) Indian accountant, June 1937, p. 213-5. WHITE, ALEX. S. Notes on ranking of part-nership claims collaterally secured over partners' estates and ranking of partners inter se. Accoun-tants' magazine, April 1936, p. 206-8.

Ireland

MACKAY. IACKAY, JOHN. Partnership menace. accountant and secretary, April 1937, p. 69. Irish

Law

Australia ROBERTSON, D. CLAUDE. Phases of mercan-tile law; agency and partnership. Australian ac-countant, March 1937, p. 126-46.

- New York HURDMAN, G. CHARLES. Registration of part-nerships. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 7. NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Important notice re: new partnership law. (letter to mem-bers, Sept. 1, 1939) New York, state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 1p.

United States

SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Partnership: law and organization. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 320-45.)

Taxation

See Taxation-Partnerships, under names of countries and states.

PARTRIDGE, A. H. Private arrangements with creditors with special reference to deeds of arrangement. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 213-6.

PASCUAL, JOSE P. Has the Securities and exchange commission in-vestigatory power over certified public accoun-tants? *Philippine accountants' journal*, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.

PATCH, BUEL W.

- ATCH, BUEL W.
 Credit policy and control of recovery. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 1-20.)
 Exemptions from income taxation. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 453-72.)
 Experiments in price control. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 429-50.)
 Revision of federal tax on capital gains. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1936. p. 437-53. (v. 2, no. 22.)
 Taxation of undistributed corporate profits. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1936. p. 203-20. (v. 1, no. 11.)

PATENT tactics and the law. Hoar, Roger Sherman.

- PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, ETC. See also Trade marks. COPYRIGHT procedure. (I

 - ALIGYIS, COPTRIGHTS, EIC. See also Trade marks.
 COPYRIGHT procedure. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 345-54.)
 HOAR, ROGER SHERMAN. Patent tactics and the law; what the industrial executive and engineer should know about patents. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 315p.
 MOORE, FRANK S. Legal protection of goodwill; trade marks—trade emblems—advertising —unfair competition. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 218p.
 UNITED STATES. Copyright law of the United States of America being the act of March 4, 1909 (in force July 1, 1909) as amended by the acts of August 24, 1912, March 28, 1914, December 18, 1919, July 3, 1926, and May 23, 1928, together with Rules for practice and procedure under section 25 by the Supreme court of the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 66p.

- **PATHFINDER** course in social security accounting. Roberts, Francis V. and Kamph, H. N.
- PATHOS in accountancy. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1937, p. 248.

PATMAN, WRIGHT Robinson-Patman act; what you can and cannot do under this law. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 408p.

PATON, ALEX. D. Income tax in relation to trust and executry ac-counts. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 569-78.

- PATON, WILLIAM A. Comments on "A statement of accounting prin-ciples." Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. ciples." 196-207.
 - Essentials of accounting. Ann Arbor, Mich., Ed-wards brothers, inc., 1937. Part 1, 285p. Part 2,
 - warious paging. Essentials of accounting. New York, Macmillan co., 1938. 830p. "Gross profit" convention. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 19-20. Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds

 - Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus (comments in a symposium) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 285-9.
 - Objectives of accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 229-33.)

 - p. 229-33.)
 Presentation of bond discount. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 285-90.
 Principles related to "deferred charges" and "pre-paid expenses." (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 26-30.)
 Recording revenue on other bases than sales. Ac-counting ledger, April, 1939, p. 22-4.
 Statement of accounting principles. (Correspond-ence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938. p. 328.
 Valuation of the business enterprise. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 26-32, comments by S. J. Broad, p. 32-5.
- PATON, WILLIAM A., BRIGGS, R. P. AND LAING, L. L. Problems and practice sets for "Essentials of ac-counting." New York, Macmillan co., 1938. loose leaf. "Foundation of accounting." App
 - loose leat. Problems for "Essentials of accounting." Ann Arbor, Mich., Edwards brothers, inc., 1937. Parts 1 and 2. loose-leaf.

PATTERNS

- PATIERNS Cost accounting AMORTIZING cost of special tools, dies and pat-terns. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, sec-tion 2—Forum section—p. 1264-5.)

PATTON, D. R. Methods of cost finding. Cost and management, April 1936, p. 109-19.

PAUL, MURIEL S., joint author See Paul, Randolph E. and others.

PAUL, O. J. AND CASSEL, J. C.

AOL, O. J. AND CASSEL, J. C. Responsibilities of the accountant to management for early reports. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, March 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 14, section 1, p. 929-36.) Printed with: Wilson, Ira S. Speed-ing up financial statements.

- ing up functul statements.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E.
 Ascertainment of "earnings or profits" for the purpose of determining taxability of corporate distributions. Harvard law review, Nov. 1937, p. 40-75. (In his Selected studies in federal taxation, 1938, p. 149-99.)
 Five years with Douglas v. Willcuts. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939, p. 1-35.
 Implications in 1939 tax legislation. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 20-5.)

PAUL, RANDOLPH E.-(Continued)

- AUL, KANDOLPH E.—(Continued) Life insurance and the federal estate tax. Har-vard law review, May 1939, p. 1037-76. Studies in federal taxation—taxation without mis-representation, covering a restatement of the law of tax avoidance; realistic valuation for federal tax purposes; and suggested modifications of the bad debt provision. Chicago, III., Callaghan and co., 1937, 341p. Taxation of personal holding companies. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 404-14.)
- 404-14.)
- PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Law

1939) v. 1-v. 6. c1938.

PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND ZIMET, PHILIP Realistic valuation for federal tax purposes. (In Paul, Randolph E. Studies in federal taxation. 1937. p. 159-234.)

PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND OTHERS Selected studies in federal taxation. 2nd series. Chicago, Ill., Callaghan and co., 1938. 447p.

PAULGER, LEO H. Purposes of trust examination; how supervision operates to advance public, beneficiary and fiduciary interests. *Trusts and estates*, Feb. 1939, p. 217-21.

PAVEMENTS AND PAVING

Costs HIGHWAY maintenance costs in New York state. Roads and streets, July 1936, p. 52, 54. SHEDDAN, W. E. Work-relief paving costs analyzed. American city, March 1936, p. 85.

PAWNBROKERS

PAY as you go. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 7.

PAYABLES

- ATABLES
 See also Accounts payable; Notes payable.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Receivables and payables. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 343-66.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Costs and payables. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. part 1, p. 137-59.)

PAYNE, RAYMOND Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 177-8.)

PAYNE, ROBERT E.

- ALVEL, ROBERT E. Accounting features of the Illinois corporation act; paper delivered before the H. A. resident school of LaSalle extension university, March 24, 1936. Chicago, Ill., The author, 1936. 20 mimeo-graphed pages. Accounting features of the Illinois business cor-poration act. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 456-65. Treasury or reacquired stock: name presented ba
- 1930, p. 40005. Treasury or reacquired stock; paper presented be-fore the Chicago chapter of the National associa-tion of cost accountants. *Certified public ac-*countant, Feb. 1936, p. 98-105.
- **PAYROLL** accounting and records under the federal social security act. Helm, W. A.

- PAYROLL accounting methods. Metropolitan life in-surance company. Policyholders service bureau.
- **PAYROLL** accounting under social security and wage and hour laws; round table discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 228-51.)
- **PAYROLL** record form for social security taxes. Buildings and building management, Feb. 1937, p. 34.

PAYROLL TAXES

See Social security; Taxes-Payroll.

PAYROLL taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) Payne, Raymond.

PAYROLLS

- PAYROLLS
 AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Personnel and payroll records under the social security laws, by Paul H. Wilson and others. New York, American management association, c1936, 40p. (Office management series, no. 72.)
 BOWERS, GLENN A. Fine points of administra-tion of New York unemployment insurance law. Controller, May 1936, p. 114-20.
 CALDWELL, EUGENE. Payroll reporting made easy. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1939, p. 44-5, 122, 124.
 CRAFTS, J. ANDREW. Employers' accounting under the social security act. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21.
 DEERING, RAYMOND C. Audit and control of payroll expenditures. National auditgram, Dec. 1939, p. 17-8.
 FAVINGER, CALVIN E. AND WILCOX, DAN-IEL A. Social security taxation and records. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939, 649p.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Social security act. Credit executive, Dec. 1936, p. 360-3. (reprinted under title: Approach to taration problems.)
 FLEMING, THOMAS J. Control of payroll ex-pense. (In National retail dry goods association, controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 16-8, discussion, p. 18-20.)
 HALL, W. VINCENT. Pay-roll taxes and their accounting treatment. Profit, March 1936, p. 1, 2, 4.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Labor and payroll pro-cedure (un bid decompting endotation descreation descreation descreation descreation descreation descreation p. 2, 4.

- accounting ireatiness. Accounting systems, design and installation, c1936, p. 322-44.) KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for payroll taxes; social security act; state laws. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., c1936.
- 264p. Same, ed. 2. c1937. 616p. KixMILLER, WILLIAM AND JANUS, MIL-TON H. Foundation guide for payroll taxes. ed. 3. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press co., inc., c1939. 224p. LEE, B. R. Control of payroll expense by the census. Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 6-7. MOFFATT, A. Pre-calculated payrolls. Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 199-202. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Results of credit department payroll cost
- NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Results of credit department payroll cost survey. New York, National retail dry goods association (1935). mimeographed.
 STEARNS, RAYMOND M. One answer to fixed rate payroll problem. *Controller*, Feb. 1939, p. 60, 62.

Accounting CRAFTS.

- ccounting
 CRAFTS, J. ANDREW. Employers' accounting under the social security act. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21.
 DOWNIE, L. W. Payroll accounting and labor control. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1937. p. 101-22.)
 HELM, W. A. Payroll accounting and records under the federal social security act; paper presented on behalf of the Missouri society's special committee at meeting of the St. Louis division of the Associated industries of Missouri, November 1935. 9 typewritten pages.

PAYROLLS—Accounting—(Continued)

- HENSHAW, FRANK O. Labor control in the sign shop. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.)
 KAMPH, H. N. View of pay-roll accounting for 1939. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 679

- tim, U. 20, no. 15, Section 1, p. 961-91.)
 KAMPH, H. N. View of pay-roll accounting for 1939. Pathfinder service bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 6-7.8.
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Payroll records and labor reports. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937, p. 67-76.)
 LAYMAN, WILLIAM M. Social security payroll systems and procedure. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 67-71, 116.
 MALONE, HAROLD G. Payroll accounting and procedure. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 32-6.)
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY. Policyholders service bureau. Payroll accounting methods. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 47p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and service department. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 24, section 1, p. 1365-90.)
 NEW simplified payroll method for use in connection with the social security accounting used by the Allen Bradley company. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 527-32.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.
 PAYROLL record form for social security taxes. Buildings and building management, Feb. 1937, p. 34.

- p. 34. RECORDS necessary under social security laws. Horwath hotel accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 4-6. REITELL, CHARLES AND VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE. Handling of payrolls. (In their Accounting principles for engineers. 1936. p. 123246.
- Accounting principles for engineers. 1936. p. 333-46.) ROBERTS, FRANCIS V. AND KAMPH, H. N. Pathfinder course in social security accounting. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., 1938. Lessons and practice assignments—294p. Laboratory material—forms. SHERWOOD, J. F. Social security and payroll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1937. loose-leaf. SHERWOOD, J. F. AND PENDERY, JOHN A. Social security and pay-roll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 2560.

- 256p. SIMPLE form of receipt to employee devised by large corporation. *Controller*, Jan. 1937, p. 3-6.
- SPERRY, THOMAS C. Social security regula-tions and records. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 57-9.)
- THREE methods of reporting payrolls offered New York concerns. Controller, Jan. 1937, p. 6-8.
- ZASTROW, L. E. Record-keeping under the social security act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 76-99, discussion, p. 99-101.)
- IMMERMAN, F. K. Small plant adapts big-plant cost method; describing an efficient pay-roll and cost system fashioned on automatic sort-card lines, but which sticks to hand sorting. Factory management and maintenance, Oct. 1938, p. 54-5. ZIMMERMAN.

PEACE, C. C.

Accounting plan for a multiple manufacturing and distributing business. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1936, p. 511-23.

PEACE in the United States. Moley, Raymond.

PEAKE, G. A. Advertising accountancy services. Australian ac-countant, Nov. 1936, p. 316-7.

PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON

- Income tax fundamentals. Chicago, Ill., Founda-tion press, inc., 1937, 581p. Summary of the District of Columbia income tax act of 1939. Taxpayers bulletin, Oct. 5, 1939.
- 4p.
- 40. Trends in federal tax procedure; address before the Illinois society of certified public accoun-tants, at Chicago, Ill., April 6, 1939. Bulletin of the Illinois society of certified public accoun-tants, April 1939, p. 1-5.

PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON, joint author See Boyd, Orton Wells and Pearce, Frederick Leon.

- PEARSON, A. M.
 After all—you're selling time, not just rates! Power wagon, Feb. 1938, p. 23-5.
 Budget plan for controlling vehicle costs. Power wagon, May 1938, p. 19-20.
 It's time you're selling in this trucking business. Power wagon, March 1938, p. 14-5.
 Time—the key to metered cost accounting; how to apply the time-budgeting plan to motor vehicle cost control. Power wagon, April 1938, p. 12-3.

PEARSON, LISTER M. Cost problems in selling in the textile industry, from a salesman's viewpoint. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 4-8.

PECK, SAM A.

CLN, JAM A. Inventory control. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1938, p. 68-71, 75. Managerial aspects of controls. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 8, section 1, p. 471-90.)

PECK, THOMAS W. Paper. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1938, p. 31-42.

PECULIARITIES of our federal taxes. Clader, Will-A.

- PEDEN, ROBERT W. Cost accounting in the plastic molding industry— a case study. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 9, section 1, p. 531.47.) Material and labor costs in pricing. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 255.02.)
 - p. 255-92.)
 - Technique of industrial control. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, April 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 15, p. 851-72.)

PEELING, NOEL W. Accounts for the radio retailer. Accountant, Jan. 14, 1939, p. 49-57.

PEG-BOARD ACCOUNTING See Mechanical devices—Peg-board.

PEGRUM, DUDLEY F. Regulation of public utility securities in California. Public utilities fortnightly, July 7, 1938, p. 22-8.

PELEJ, JOSEPH Valuation of flour mill inventories. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 35-47.

PELLETIER, A. J. Statistics in business. Cost and management, May 1936, p. 148-50, 152-60.

PELOUBET, MAURICE E.

Acceptance by congress of the "last-in, first-out" method for valuing inventories. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 73-7.)

PELOUBET, MAURICE E.-(Continued)

- Accountant and inventory. Accounting forum. May
- Accountant and inventory. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 15-7, 32.
 Audit working papers, their function, preparation and content. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1937. 412p.
 Candidates as human beings. (from Journal of accountancy) Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 3224.

- Cannuality as initial beings; (from beings)
 accountancy) Accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 322-4.
 C.P.A. examinations. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 214-5.
 Discussion of the report of the special committee of accountants. (In Pennsylvania institute of accountants. Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939, 11p.)
 Enjoyment of unpleasant assignments. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 5-9.
 Inventories. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants.-Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, 1939, p. 5-9.
 Inventories. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, 1939, p. 72-80.
 Inventories, and the auditor. Journal of accountants.

- p. 72-80. Inventories and the auditor. Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1939, p. 8-16. Philippine accountants' journal, July, Aug. and Sept. 1939, p. 144-55. Inventory valuation—Mr. Peloubet comments. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 5, section 2, p. 283.4.) Inventory—what is the lower of cost or market? (opening remarks of the chairman, round table discussion at 50th anniversary celebration and
- (opening remarks of the chairman, round table discussion, at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 5 mimeographed pages.
 Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 289-90.
 Jargon. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 37-40. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, Sept. 1936, p. 139-43. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 5-7.
 McKesson and Robbins case and the extension of

40. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 139-43. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 5-7.
McKesson and Robbins case and the extension of U. S. audit procedure. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 392-5.
McKesson and Robbins case; effect on accounting practice in the U.S.A. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 722-33.
Memorandum on foreign exchange accounting as affected by present conditions. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 3-9, 37.
Natural resource assets—their treatment in accounts and valuation. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 74-92. Reprinted. 19p.
New York letter—Revenue act of 1939. (Correspondence) Chartered accountant in Mustralia, Oct. 1939, p. 230-2.
Place of theory in accounting. Accounting ledger, Feb. 1939, p. 13-7.
Present-day problems in inventory valuation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 164-87, discussion, p. 187-91.)
Problems of present-day inventory valuation. New York, National association of cost accountants. Journal of accountants, March 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 13, section 1, p. 741-51.)
Special problems in accounting for capital assets. Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 185-98.
Statement of Maurice E. Peloubet, New York City, the Copper & brass mill products association after purposes. (revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1938, p. 143-67.)
Vocabulary building. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Section 2, 1938, p. 143-67.)
Vecabulary building. (Correspondence) Journal of accountant, April 1936, p. 19-22.

PELOUBET, MAURICE E., joint author See Fernald, Henry B., Peloubet, Maurice E. and Norton, Lewis M.

- PELOUBET, MAURICE E. ACCOUNTANTS' testimony at hearings on fed-eral tax bill. Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 6-7.

PELTON, G. M. Increasing responsibilities of accountants. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, March 1937, p. 1-2, 4.

PENDERY, JOHN A., joint author See Sherwood, J. F. and Pendery, John A.

PENNOCK, J. R. Practical cost problems. Cost accountant, July 1936, p. 31-8.

- PENNSYLVANIA. PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION Amendments to Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities (prescribed by the Federal power commission) effective January 1, 1938. Harrisburg, Pa., Public utility commission (1937). 16 mimeographed pages. Uniform system of accounts prescribed for gas utilities subject to the provisions of the public utility law, effective January 1, 1939. Harris-burg, Pa., Department of property and supplies, Bureau of publication, 1939. 167 mimeographed pages.
 - pages.

- STATE BOARD FOR THE EXAM-INATION OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Information for candidates for the degree of certified public accountant, June 1, 1938. Harrisburg, Pa., Department of public instruc-tion, Bureau of professional licensing, 1938. 12p.
- PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUB-LIC ACCOUNTANTS
 Call for the forty-first annual meeting, Skytop Lodge, Skytop, Pa., June 13, 14, 15, 1938.
 Philadelphia, Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, 1938. 95p.
 Same, 42nd annual meeting, Skytop Lodge in the Poconos, Thursday, Friday, Saturday, June 17, 18, 19, 1937. Folder.
 1935.1936 year book, 1936. 71p.
 Same, 1938-1939, 1938. 84p.

| Same. | 1936-1937. | 1937. | 75p |
|-------|------------|-------|-----|
| | 1038-1030 | | |

| Same. | 1939-1940. | 1939. | 87n. |
|-------|------------|-------|------|

- Purpose and objectives, benefits of affiliation. (1937) folder.
- Report of committee on accounting terminology and review of published financial statements for the year ending with the June 20, 1936 meeting. Pittsburgh, Pa., Pennsylvania society of certi-fied public accountants, 1936. 7 mimeographed pages.
- Report of the president and summaries of reports of the other officers and committees, for the fiscal year 1935-36. 30 mimeographed pages.
- PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS—HARRISBURG CHAP-TER, AND THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF AC-COUNTANTS
 - COUNTANTS Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, Novem-ber 18-19, 1938, held at the Pennsylvania state college, State College, Pa. State college, Pa., Harrisburg chapter, Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants (1939) 78p. ——Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. various paging.
- **PENSION** schemes for accountants. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 52.

PENSIONS AND BENEFIT PLANS

- ENSIONS AND BENEFIT PLANS See also Social security. ACCOUNTING for pension payments. (Account-ing questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 425-7. ALDRICH, WINTHROP W. Appraisal of the federal social security act; an address before the Institute of public affairs, University of Virginia, Charlottesville, Va., July 10, 1936.

PENSIONS AND BENEFIT PLANS—(Continued)

- New York, Chase national bank, 1936. 47p. Trust companies, July 1936, p. 61-71.
 ALTMEYER, A. J. Federal old age security pro-gram; address over a network of the National broadcasting company, Washington, D. C., No-vember 6, 1936. 8 mineographed pages.
 AMERICAN TELEPHONE AND TELEGRAPH COMPANY, INC. Plan for employees' pensions, disability benefits and death benefits, with amend-ments to and including Sept. 1, 1938. New York, American telephone and telegraph co., inc. 22p. York, American telephone and telegraph co., inc. 22p. ASSOCIATED PRESS. Insured pension plan. New York, Associated press, January 1, 1939.
- 10p

- New York, Associated press, January 1, 1939. 10p.
 AULD, GEORGE P. Federal social security act. Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 430-53.
 BALDERSTON, C. CANBY. Executive guidance of industrial relations; an analysis of the experi-ence of twenty-five companies. Phila., Pa., Uni-versity of Pennsylvania press, 1935. 435p.
 BANE, FRANK. Administration of the federal system of old-age benefits. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1936, p. 53-6.)
 BANKERS TRUST COMPANY. Plan for pen-sions. New York, Bankers trust co., December 20, 1938. 18p.
 BETHLEHEM STEEL CORPORATION. Pen-sion plan for subsidiary companies of Bethlehem steel corporation; sixteenth annual report, fiscal year ended December 31, 1938. 8p.
 BETHLEHEM STEEL CORPORATION. Relief plan of Bethlehem steel corporation and sub-sidiary companies; thirteenth annual report, fiscal year ended December 31, 1938. Rethlehem, Pa., Bethlehem steel corporation, 1939. 24p.
 BONSALL, GEORGE H. General contributory pension plan. Municipal finance, Aug. 1937, p. 40-5.
 BOSTON CONSOLIDATED GAS COMPANY.

- BONSALL, GEORGE H. General contributory pension plan. Municipal finance, Aug. 1937, p. 40-5.
 BOSTON CONSOLIDATED GAS COMPANY. Employees savings and benefit plan as amended January 1, 1937. Boston, Mass., Boston consolidated gas co. 22p.
 BROWN, CHARLES H., JR. Retirement systems, civil service, personnel. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 34-8.
 BUCK, GEORGE B. Municipal pensions. Municipal finance, Nov. 1936, p. 17-24.
 BURNS, EVELINE M. Financial aspects of the social security act. American economic review, March 1936, p. 12-22.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Federal social security act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 16-30.)
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Social security; seven billion dolars a year. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 251-82.
 COLUMBUS AND SOUTHERN OHIO ELECTRIC COMPANY. Retirement annuity plan. Columbus, Ohio, Columbus and southern Ohio electric co., Sept. 1, 1938. 7p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal and state unemployment insurance (payroll taxes); explanation of the law, federal social security act, federal regulations, charts and forms. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 6136. 50p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New York and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 12p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New York and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 50p.
 COMMENCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Mey York and federal unemployment clearies clearing house, inc., c1936. 50p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Official regulations regarding federal old-age benefits (payroll taxes). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 50p.
 COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY. Service annuity system and related trust agreement. Chicago, Ill., January 1, 1937. 24p.

- ice annuity system and related trust agreement. Chicago, Ill., January 1, 1937. 24p.
- CONSOLIDATED EDISON COMPANY OF NEW YORK, INC. Provisional retirement plan. New York, Consolidated Edison co., of New York, inc., March 1, 1936. 13p.

CORBETT, HENRY R. Pension funds: alterna-

- tive methods of valuation. (In American insti-tute of actuaries. Record, 1936. v. 25. p. 27-32.) CORSON, JOHN J. Wages and employment under the old-age insurance program. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Oct. 3, 1938. 11p. COUSE, WILLIAM J. New Jersey retirement plan; details of the pension plan of the New Jersey bankers association. Bankers magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 313-8. CRAFTS, J. ANDREW. Employers' accounting under the social security act. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Voluntary payments on pension plans. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 59. FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK. Pension fund; rules and regula-tions. New York, First national bank (1937).

- NEW York, First national bank (1937). 15p.
 FOLSOM, M. B. Company annuity plans and the federal old age benefit plan. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1936, p. 414-24.
 FOLSOM, M. B. Coordination of pension plans with social security provisions. Edison electric institute bulletim, Nov. 1939, p. 527-30.
 FOLSOM, M. B. Practical man's views concern-ing workings of social security. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 258-63.
 GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY. Pension plan-additional pension plan—with amendments effective January 1, 1936. Schenectady, Gen-eral electric co. 13p.
 GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION. 1939 employe benefit plans; issued November 1938. Op. GLASSER, HERMAN. Social security legislation; its effect on industry in general and the bank-ing business in particular. Bankers magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 22-5.
 GLASSER, HERMAN. Social security plan in operation. Bankers magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 167-71.

- GOODBAR, JOSEPH E. Pension reserve plan
- GOODBAR, JUSEFH E. Felsion reserve plain of the social security act. Bankers magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 515-19.
 GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY OF NEW YORK. Pension system; amended to January 2, 1936. New York, Guaranty trust co. 5p.
 HALL, W. VINCENT. Pay-roll taxes and their accounting treatment. Profit, March 1936, p. 1, 2 4 4.
- IFIELD, C. F. engineering pro HIRSHFIELD. Social security; should profession formulate the philosophy? Mechanical engineering, March 1936, p. 145-8. HUGHES, JAMES F. Financing social security. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936,
- 23-32.

- New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 23-32. IMPERIAL oil's welfare plan. (reprinted from Industrial Canada.) Cost and management, Feb. 1936, p. 45-50. INCOME tax and insured pension schemes. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Dec. 4, 1937, p. 529-30. INDUSTRIAL pension plans, 1931 to 1934. Monthly labor review, Jan. 1937, p. 60-3. INTERNATIONAL HARVESTER COMPANY. Pension plan; as amended and in effect on and after January 1, 1937. Chicago, Ill., Inter-national harvester co. 12p. JARCHOW, CHRISTIAN E. Employer's prob-lem. Social security analyst, Jan. 1937, p. 9-10, 28. KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for
- KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for
- KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for payroll taxes; social security act; state laws. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc. cl936. 264p.
 Same. ed. 2. cl937. 616p.
 KixMILLER, WILLIAM AND JANUS, MIL-TON H. Foundation guide for payroll taxes. ed. 3. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press co., inc., cl939. 224p.
 LATIMER, MURRAY W. Railroad retirement act. (In Railway accounting officers. Fifty-sec-ond annual report 1937. p. 47-55.)
 LATIMER, MURRAY W. Social security laws. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 115-26.
 LAUNDRY AND DRY CLEANING EM-PLOYEES' BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION. Outlining benefits, dues, eligibility requirements and policies. New Orleans, La., Laundry and

PENSIONS AND BENEFIT PLANS-(Continued)

- dry cleaning employees' benevolent association, April 10, 1936. 32p. LINTON, M. ALBERT. Federal old age security program and some of its consequences. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1936, p.
- LINTON, M. ALBERT. Social security, unem-

- Morria associates monthly bulleting, July 1936, p. 31-42.
 LINTON, M. ALBERT. Social security, unemployment compensation and old age pensions; address at Hotel Sherman, Chicago, October 11, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Illinois chamber of commerce, 1935. 8 mimeographed pages.
 McDONALD, EDWIN C. Type of pension plans favored since enactment of social security law. Controller, March 1938, p. 71-3, 85.
 MAFFITT, DALE L. Effect of federal legislation on the retirement and pensioning of water employees. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1937, p. 1111-6.
 MECOH, STUART P. Controllers' views as to immediate steps on social security. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 5-8, discussion, p. 8-12.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY. Insurance and retirement program for office employees. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., January 1, 1939, 33p.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Retirement systems for public ensloyees. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, c1938, 9p. and forms.
 MUNICIPAL CITY BANK. Pension and benefit payment plan, as amended to June 1, 1937. New York. National city bank. 7p.
 NATIONAL LEAD COMPANY. Retirement annuity and life insurance plan. New York, National lead company, June 1, 1937, 12p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCI-ATION Controllers' laws social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; explanations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employees' tax under title 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; explanations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employees' tax under title 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; explanations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employees' tax under title 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; expl
- Jersey. Monting two, 1997. 324-7. PARK EMPLOYES' ANNUITY AND BENE-FIT FUND. Eighteenth annual report of the retirement board, June 30, 1937. 127 N. Dear-born St., Chicago, Ill., Park employes' annuity and benefit fund, 1937. 64p. Twentieth annual report. June 30, 1939.

- ARALER, FLORENCE E. Experience under state old-age pension acts in 1935. Monthly labor re-view, Oct. 1936, p. 811-35. PRINCETON UNIVERSITY. Provisions of acti-pany pension plans as a state of acti-
- PRINCETON UNIVERSITY. Provisions of company pension plans as adjusted to the social security act; excerpts from recent plans. Princeton university, Department of conomics and social institutions, June 1939. 45 mimeographed pages.
 PROTECTION of the aged—Utopia is nothing novel—Butt let us be pragmatic—For the aid of a few—What about the constitutionality? (Editorial). Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 14.
 RACHLIN, M. L. Some effects of the social security taxes. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 157.8.
 RAFKIND. ISRAEL. Public employee retirement in the United States. Mumicipal finance, Feb. 1939, p. 10-3.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Unemployment insurance and old age benefits. Timberman, Dec. 1936.

- REYNOLDS, F. B. Pension problems of accoun-tants individually and professionally. *Certified* accountants journal, May 1936, p. 155-60.

ROBERTS, FRANCIS V. and KAMPH, H. N.

- Pathfinder course in social security accounting. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co. 1938. Lessons and practice assignments—294p. Laboratory material—forms. ROCKEFELLER INSTITUTE FOR MEDICAL RESEARCH. Retiring allowances and group life insurance for employees. New York, Rocke-feller institute for medical research, December 23, 1938. 18p.

- feller institute for medical research, December 23, 1938. 18p. SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Laying the foun-dation for administering the federal old-age benefits program. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 14-21. SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. More than one million entries to be made by social security board. Controller, Dec. 1936, p. 325-32, dis-cussion, p. 332-5. SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Organization and some of the administrative problems of the social security board; address before the seven-teenth international cost conference of the Nasocial security board; address before the seventeenth international cost conference of the National association of cost accountants, Netherland-Plaza hotel, Cincinnati, June 23, 1936. 19p. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 33-48, discussion p. 48-55.)
 SHERMAN, WILLIAM H. Retirement systems for small communities. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 38-42.
 SMITH, L. A. Public employee pension systems. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1937, p. 1117-22.
 SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY. Pension department; rules and regulations effective July 1,

- SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY. Pension de-partment; rules and regulations effective July 1, 1937. New York, Southern pacific co. 15p. STANDARD OIL COMPANY (incorporated in New Jersey) and its domestic participating sub-sidiaries. Employees thrift plan, effective Janu-ary 1, 1936. New York, Standard oil co., Ad-ministrative committee, employees thrift plan, 1936 300

- ary 1, 1900 tomilite, employees thritt plan, 1936. 39p.
 TAFT, MERRILL. Pension systems based on insurance. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1937, p. 246-50.
 TANZOLA, JOSEPH J. Pensions. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and adding in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 7, April 14, 1938.)
 UNITED STATES. Summary of provisions of the federal social security act relating to unemployment compensation, federal employment taxes. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 3p.
- Washington, D. C., Contended and C., Contraction of the federal social security act relating to federal old-age benefits (public no. 271, 74th congress (H.R.7260); approved Aug. 14, 1935.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1037 1
- Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 1p.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. First annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1936, with supplementary data for the period July 1, 1936-December 15, 1936. Washington, D. C.
 Government printing office, 1937. 131p.
 Second annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1937, with supplementary data for July 1, 1937 to October 31, 1937. 205p.
 Third annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1938, with supplementary data for July 1, 1938 to October 31, 1938. 251p.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Regu-tatile 2 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 33p.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Social

- UNITED STATES. Social security board. Social security act, what it is and what it does. Wash-ington, D. C., Business information division, March 31, 1937. 25p.
- UNITED STATES RUBBER COMPANY. Re-tirement and savings plan. New York, United States rubber co., January 1, 1938. 15p.
- VANDER HORST, G. Social security. National accountant, April 1937, p. 21-31.
- WEINBERG, A. A. Administration of a public employes' retirement system. *Municipal finance*, Aug. 1938, p. 29-33.
- WESTERN ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. Plan

PENSIONS AND BENEFIT PLANS-(Continued)

- ENSIONS AND BENEFIT PLANS—(Continued) for employees' pensions disability benefits and death benefits; with amendments to and includ-ing September 1, 1938. New York, Western electric co., inc. 22p.
 WILLYS, A. Brief summary of social security regulations and records. Pathfinder service bul-letin, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8.
 WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND CLARK, K. RAYMOND. Profit sharing and pension plans (their creation and tax effect) New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., c1939. 192p. Accountants
- Accountants CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION. Fiftieth annual meeting. Ac-countant, May 9, 1936, p. 727-30. INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' BENEVO-LENT FUND. Forty-third annual meeting. In-corporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1936, p. 113-5.
- 113-5. Forty-fourth annual meeting. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 79-83. Forty-fifth annual general meeting. In-corporated accountants' journal, 1938, p. 311-6. PENSION schemes for accountants. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 52. REYNOLDS, F. B. Pension problems of accoun-tants individually and professionally. Certified accountants journal, May 1936, p. 155-60.

PEPPER, MORTON

- Application of state franchise taxes to trustees in bankruptcy. Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 259-60, 316
- **PER** case. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 221-2; 225-8. Certified accountants journal, April 1936, p. 106-9. PEPPER
- PEPPER case; judgment on appeal. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, April 1936, p. 225-8.
- PEPPER case; judge's summing up. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, March 1936. p. 199-208.
- PEPPER POOL CASE
 - APPEALS unsuccessful in Pepper pool case. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. case.
 - 354-8. PEPPER case. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 221-2; 225-8. Certified accoun-tants journal, April 1936, p. 106-9. PEPPER case; journal, April 1936, p. 225-8. PEPPER case; judge's summing up. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1936, p. 199-208. PEPPER pool case; a fraudulent prospectus con-viction. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 260-8.

 - Viction. Canaaian charterea accountant, April 1936, p. 260-8.
 PEPPER pool failure; alleged false prospectus. Accountant, Jan. 18, 1936, p. 103-4; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 135-6; Feb. 15, 1936, p. 256-9; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 286-96; Feb. 29, 1936, p. 323-37; March 7, 1936, p. 382-7; March 14, 1936, p. 418-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936 p. 404-501
 - 418-20; March 21, 1936, p. 438-03; March 28, 1936, p. 494-501.
 TELLING half the truth—Investors beguiled by silence—Truth must be intelligible. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 403-6.
- PEPPER pool case; a fraudulent prospectus convic-tion. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 260-8.
- PEPPER pool failure; alleged false prospectus. Accountant, Jan. 18, 1936, p. 103-4; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 135-6; Feb. 15, 1936, p. 256-9; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 286-96; Feb. 29, 1936, p. 323-37; March 7, 1936, p. 382-7; March 14, 1936, p. 418-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 494-501.

PERAGALLO, EDWARD Origin and evolution of double entry bookkeeping; a study of Italian practice from the fourteenth century, with a foreword by Robert H. Mont-gomery. New York, American institute pub. co., 1938. 156p.

- PERCENTAGE depletion. (Correspondence) Fernald, Henry B.
- PERCENTAGE depletion. (Correspondence) Hoban, Leo J.
- PERCENTAGE depletion. (Correspondence) Strong, George J.
- PERCENTAGE depletion. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 246-7; Jan. 1938, p. 8.
- PERCENTAGE lease practices. Buildings and build-ing management, July 1936, p. 23-4, 64.
- PERCENTAGE leases. (Correspondence) Hamilton, John.
- PERCENTAGES of failure in examination—Reasons for failure—Specific causes of failure. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 166-9.

- PEREIRA, FELIX de C. Trade acceptance. Robert Morris associates month-ly bulletin, March 1937, p. 238, 254-8.
- PERHAPS it is obtuseness-Explanation is difficult. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 237-8.

PERIOD

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Natural business year. (chart to facilitate the determination of the natural business year of a business enterprise) New York, American insti-tute of accountants (1937). 1p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
- Suggested program of activity by state societies of certified public accountants in behalf of the natural business year. New York, American in-stitute of accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. 4 mime-
- stitute of accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. 4 mime-ographed pages. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on natural business year. (In its 1936 year book, p. 466-72; 1937 year book. p. 513-15; 1938 year book, p. 144-7.) ANOTHER constructive comment—Profession pro-ceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939 p. 135.6
- ceeds. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Marcin 1939, p. 135-6.
 COMMERCE department memorandum on natural business year. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 14-6.
 COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Calendar year not the economic year. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 237-8.
- the economic year. Credit executive, Aug. 1950, p. 237-8.
 COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Natural business year; excerpts from address at annual convention of National association of credit men, Richmond, Va., June 12, 1936, 11 mimeographed pages. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 21-4 (extracts).
 COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Natural business year's first birthday; a progress report. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1936, p. 13-5, 37.
 DESIRABILITY of a natural business year's first birthday; a progress report. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1936, p. 13-5, 37.
 DESIRABILITY of a natural business year's forts to induce reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 2-4.
 DONALDSON, WILLIAM R. Tax advantages of the natural business year. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 5, section 2, p. 285-6.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Bulletins on the natural business year; sponsorship and purpose. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET. INC., AND NATU-

- pose. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938.
 1p.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Candy manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939.
 1p. (Natural business year bulletim, no. 15, July 1930.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Cotton textile weavers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and

PERIOD-(Continued)

- 388 ACCOUNTA
 SENDED-(CONTINUE)
 PARASTREET, INC., AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL Departments for the stores, seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938, 1p. (Natural business year)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL Dry stores in the stores in the store in the stor
- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Shoe man-ufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Brad-street, inc., 1938. 4p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 6, October 1938.)

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Women's coat and suit manufacturers; seasonal fluctua-tions and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1939. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 18, October 1939.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NATU-RAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Women's trimmed hat manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 3, June 1938.)
 FEDDE, A. S. Natural business year; what it will mean to the credit man, to the accountant, and to the concern and its whole staff. Credit executive, June 1936, p. 169-71.
 FERNALD, CHARLES E. Natural business year. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants-Harrisburg chapter, and the Amer-ican institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 66-77.)
 FERNALD, CHARLES E. Natural business year -an aid to management; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J. May 18-20, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
 FISCAL year. Accounting student and Accoun-tants' journal, May 1937, p. 17-8.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Accounting period con-vention. (In his Accounting concepts of profit. c1936, p. 279-82.
 HARRINGTON, RUSSELL C. Text of an ad-dress on the natural business year given before a joint meeting of Providence chapter of the Netionel correction of a conventer of the

- Archiveron, RUSSELL C. Text of an ac-dress on the natural business year given before a joint meeting of Providence chapter of the National association of cost accountants and Rhode Island association of credit men at the Metacomet golf club, East Providence, on Mon-day night, April 25, 1938. 10 mimeographed

- day night, April 25, 1938. 10 mimeographed pages.
 HEIMANN, HENRY H. Calendar for business. Nation's business, April 1937, p. 102-3.
 HEIMANN, HENRY H. Made to measure. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1936, p. 3.
 HEIMANN, HENRY H. Natural audits. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1939, p. 4.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Accounting period in banking. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 489-03. 03
- IÓŴA WA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Annual report of committee on natural business year (1938-1939). 5 type-

- ACCOUNTANTS. Annual report of committee on natural business year (1938-1939). 5 type-written pages.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Federal income tax infor-mation relating to fiscal year changes of cor-porations. New York, American institute of ac-countants, 1938. 4 mimeographed pages.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Natural business year. Cer-tified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 11-5.
 Same, 27 mimeographed pages.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Natural business year: ad-dress presented at the fifth annual regional chapter conference, New York state society of certified public accountants. . June 24, 1938. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938. 18 mimeographed pages. New York certi-fied public accountant July 1938, p. 5-19.
 KLANDERMAN, GERALD E. Changing from calendar year to natural business year. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 386-92.
 KNOPP, RUSSELL. Calamity of December 31st. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 13-5, 38.
 KNUST, HENRY. Natural business year. Con-mecticut bar journal, April 1937, p. 225-6.
 LARSON, JOHN G. Why December 31st? A suggestion for closing the business year. (reprint from DICTA, September 1939.)

- LAZAROW, WILLIAM J. Natural business year; submitted in partial fulfillment of the require-ments for the degree of bachelor of business administration in the school of business and civic administration of the College of the city of New York. New York, The author. June 1937, 67p
- LEMASTER, EUSTACE. Natural business year. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 2-4. Credit world, Sept. 1937, p. 30-1.

PERIOD-(Continued)

- LIST of natural closing dates published by N.B.Y. council. Texas accountant, June 1936, p. 1, 3.4.
 LLOYD, JOHN S. Address delivered before the South Bend clearing house association, May 6, 1938. 7 mimeographed pages.
 LOFLIN, WILLIAM F. Excerpt from talk on recent accounting developments at semi-annual meeting, Georgia society of C.P.A.'S, Atlanta, Ga., Nov. 18, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.
 MITCHELL, WALTER, Jr. Is the business year a "natural"? Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 28-30.

- p. 28-30. MITCHELL, WALTER, Jr. Natural business year. Journal of calendar reform, March 1938, p. 20-4. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Accounting meth-ods must be revised to meet the increasing burden of taxation. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1026 p. 200102

- ods must be revised to meet the increasing burden of taxation. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 90-102.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Fiscal years of new corporations. New York, Natural business year council, 1936. 6 mimeographed pages.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Natural business year. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-22.) L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 1-12.
 MUREN, LEE J. Advantages of the natural business year. St. Louis chamber of commerce news, Dec. 18, 1935, p. 3, 10.
 NATURAL business year. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Jan. 1936, p. 21; June 15, 1936, p. 12-4. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 20-3; May 1937, p. 18-9; Sept. 1937, p. 26-9; Oct. 1937, p. 23-5; July 1938, p. 13-4; Dec. 1538, p. 21-2; July 1939, p. 18-9. Cost and management, Oct. 1936, p. 22-7.
- p. 292.7, NATURAL business year. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 167.8; Jan. 1939, p. 1; April 1939, p. 197; Dec. 1939, p. 362. NATURAL business year—Advantages to man-agement—Change readily possible. (Editorials) Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 7 10
- Canadian charterea accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 7-10.
 NATURAL business year boost; American institute of accountants endorses plan, which 6,300 firms have accepted in two years, for closing books at slack season rather than year-end. Business week, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 50-1.
 NATURAL business year council. Meeting of Natural business year council. Meeting of Natural business year council. Natural business year; a means to efficiency. New York, Natural business year; a program of local activity. New York, Natural business year; its advantages to business management. New York, Natural business year; its advantages to business management.

- 7p. NATURAL business year council. Natural busi-ness year; suggested natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Natural business year council (1936).

- New York, Natural business year council (1936). 15p.
 NATURAL business year council. News letters. New York, Natural business year council, 1936. mimeographs.
 NATURAL business year council. Tentative list of suggested fiscal closing dates. Domestic com-merce, June 20, 1936, p. 386.
 NATURAL business year plea renewed by public accountants. Controller, July 1936, p. 164-5.
 NATURAL business year studies. Certified public accountants. Controller, July 1936, p. 164-5.
 PARRY, JOHN CARLE, Jr. Have the auditors been around? Lantern, Feb. 1938, p. 3-4, 8, 18.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Periodic operations and adjustments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937, part 1, p. 228-71.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Periodic procedure and
- PATON, WILLIAM A. Periodic procedure and analysis-Periodic operations illustrated. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 356-77; 378-93.)

- PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, Jr. Accounting and taxable periods. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934.
 v. 4. p. 589-630.)
 SARGENT, D. A. Spreading the peak. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 454-9.
 SCOVILL, H. T. Natural business year. Illinois bar journal, March 1935, p. 217-8.
 SHULTS, OTTO A. Natural business year; ad-dress delivered on November 10, 1936, before Rochester association of credit men. 18 type-written pages.

- written pages.

- Rochester association of credit men. 18 type-written pages.
 SOME companies with fiscal years will benefit from tax change; reprinted from Wall street journal, May 14, 1938.
 STUDY of natural fiscal closing dates. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 46.
 TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hearings. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 350-63.
 USE of weeks as fiscal period as compared with calendar year. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 6, 34-5.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Is December 31 a natural? Credit and financial management, April 1936, p. 6, 34-5.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Natural business year. Domestic commerce, Jan. 10, 1936, p. 5-6. Reprinted. 2p.
 WEAVER, ROY E. Natural business year. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936, p. 3-6.) p. 3-6.)

- p. 3-6.) **PERIODICALS AND NEWSPAPERS** See also Newspapers; Magazines; Directory at end of Index.
 ACCOUNTANT student And Accountants' journal. London, Gee & co. (Itd.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Certified public accountant; he American institute of accountant, we york, Ameri-can institute pub. co., inc. c1937.
 AMERICAN WOMAN'S SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Woman C. P. A.; bi-monthly bulletin of the American woman's society of certified public accountants. Chicago, Ill., American woman's society of cer-tified public accountants.
 ANALYSIS of state society publications. Certified public accountants.
 ANALYSIS of state society publications. Certified public accountants.
 COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF ACCOUN-TANTS AND FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Australian accountant. (Off-cial organ of the Commonwealth institute of accountants and Federal institute of accoun-tants.) Melbourne, Aus., Accountants publishing company, 1td.
 DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA INSTITUTE OF
 - company, ltd. DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Bul-letin. (official organ) Washington, D. C., Dis-trict of Columbia institute of certified public

 - trict of columbia institute of certified public accountants. ECONOMIC bulletin; a quarterly review of in-dustry and trade. (Supplement to the Accoun-tant) London, Gee & co., ltd. FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Federal accountant; official organ of the Federal institute of accountants (Australia). Melbourne, Aus., Federal accountant publishing co., pty., ltd. ltd.

 - ltd. IRISH accountant and secretary. 35 Frescati Park, Blackrock, Dublin, Morris and company. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF JUNIOR AC-COUNTANTS. Junior accountant; official organ of the National association of junior accoun-tants. Boston, Mass., National association of
 - tants. Boston, Mass., National association of junior accountants. PHILIPPINE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Philippine ac-countants' journal; official organ of the Philip-pine institute of certified public accountants. 217 Crystal Arcade, Manila, P. I. PUERTO RICO INSTITUTE OF ACCOUN-TANTS. Accountant's bulletin; official organ of the Puerto Rico institute of accountants. P.O. box 1343, San Juan, P.R.

PERIODICALS AND NEWSPAPERS-(Continued)

SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUN-TANTS AND AUDITORS. Accountancy; the journal of incorporated accountants. London, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors.

Dutch

ACCOUNTANCY; officieel orgaan van de Vlaam-sche accountsvereeniging. Lange Kievitstraat, 4 a, Antwerpen.

French

ORGANISATIONS comptables. 5 bis, Rue Keppler, Paris.

German

- BULLETIN; monatliches mitteilungsblatt über re-visionswesen. Zürich, Verband schweizerischer visionswesen. Zürich,
- büchersperten. DER) Wirtschaftstreuhänder; zeitschrift für deutsches prüfungs und treuhandwesen. Leipzig, G. A. Gloeckner. (DER)

Greek REVUE de comptabilite; orcane officiel de la Société scientifique de la Societe scientifique de comptabilité de Grèce. (text in Greek)

- Portuguese MENSARIO Brasileiro de contabilidade; rogao oficial do Instituto Brasileiro de contabilidade. Rua da Carioca, 41, Rio de Janeiro, Instituto Brasileiro de contabilidade.
 REVISTA de contabilidade e comercio. Rua da Formiga, 40-A, Porto. (Portugal)

Roumanian

REVISTA generala de comert si contabilitate; proprietatea corpului absolventilor scolior superioare de comert. Pusa la dispozitia corpului contabililor autorizati si experti contabili. Strada Teilor no. 12, Bucharest, Redactia si administratia.

Spanish

- panisi
 BOLETIN del Colegio de doctores en ciencias economicas y contadores publicos nacionales. Rio Bamba 926, Buenos Aires, Argentina.
 (EI) CONTADOR Colombiano; el organo oficial de la Asociacion Colombiana de contadores. Apartados: Nacional 29, Aereo 32, Cartegena, Colombiana Colombia

- Apartados: Nacional 29, Aereo 32, Cartegena, Colombia.
 (EL) ECONOMISTA Hondureño; organo de la Sociedad de peritos mercantiles y contadores publicos. Tegucigalpa, D.C., Honduras, C.A.
 FINANZAS y contabilidad; revista mensual de divulgacion financiera y contable. Editorial finan-zas, 5 de Mayo 32-415, Mexico, D.F.
 IMPULSO; organo oficial de las Asociaciones de Alumnos de las Escuelas profesionales de com-mercio de Cuba, del Colegio de contadores pro-fesionales de la Habana, de los Claustros de profesores y de la Federacion de estudiantes de las escuelas profesionales de contadores de san Juan. San Juan, Argentina, Colegio de contadores publicos de San Juan.
 NUMERO; publicacion oficial de la Sociedad na-cional de contadores. Santiago, Chile, Sociedad nacional de contadores.
 SELECCION contable. Estudios tecnico-contables serau, Tacuari 119, Buenos Aires, Argentina.
 (LA) TRIBUNA del contador; organo del Colegio de contadores profesionales de la Habana. San Joaquin, no. 14-A, Havana, Cuba., Colegio de contadores profesionales de la Habana.
 YERKINS, ROSS L.

PERKINS, ROSS L. Accounting and the unfair-practices act. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 161-7.)

PERKS, FRANK W.

Management control. (from Incorporated secre-taries' journal) Indian accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 199-205.

PERLEY, J. MARSHALL Cycling checking account statements. clearing house, April 1939, p. 10-2. Burroughs

PERREN, A. (La) Profession d'expert-comptable aux Etats-Unis. deuxième édition. Neuchatel et Paris. Delachaux & Niestle S.A., 1936. 120p.

PERRY, DONALD P.

Influences on the development of investment com-pany accounting. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 45-8, 75.

PERRY, HENRY C. Budget, its preparation and use concisely and simply described. *Controller*, Oct. 1938, p. 288-90. Control of business through an integrated corporate budget. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 239-44.

- 239-44.
 Cooperation between controllers and public accountants. Controller, Nov. 1939, p. 390-2, 394.
 Operation of budget of furniture manufacturing company. Controller, May 1936, p. 122.
 Treasurer views credits; financial officer discusses department work. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 10-1, 44.

PERRY, WILLIAM E. Tools of cost control. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 55-76.)

PERSONAL ACCOUNTS

ERSONAL ACCOUNTS See also Household-Accounting.
FOX, W. H. Accountant and the individual. Cost and management, Sept. 1939, p. 266-72. Ac-countant, Nov. 4, 1939, p. 487-92.
McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Personal accounting. (In their Account-ing principles. c1939, p. 734-56.)
RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND SMITH, HAROLD J. Personal accounts. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1936. p. 83-110.)

PERSONAL FINANCE COMPANIES See Finance companies.

PERSONAL income taxation. Simons, Henry C.

- PERSONAL responsibility. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1939, p. 194.
- **PERSONNEL** administration in the federal service, by Floyd W. Reeves and Paul T. David. United States. President's committee on administrative management.

PERSONNEL and payroll records under the Social security laws. American management association.

Security laws. American management association.
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Office personnel administration, by E. D. Bart-lett, Richard S. Schultz, John A. Williams, A. L. Kress, E. B. Roberts, and R. L. Hull. New York, American management association, c1938. 40p. (Office management series, no. 84.)
AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. Personnel and payroll records under the social security laws, by Paul H. Wilson and others. New York, American management association, c1936. 40p. (Office management series, no. 72.)
METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Functions of the personnel director. New York, Metro-politan life insurance co., 1937. 38p.

PET SHOPS

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of pet shops. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 87.)

PETER, D. B. Accountant's report. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 282-9. Indian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 87-91.

PETERS, HARVEY W.

Fair market value of blocks of stock. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 17-8, 41-2, 55.

PETERS, RALPH W.

Accounting for hospital investments. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 183-8.

PETERSON, A. Reducing the cost of operating centrifugal water works pumps. Journal of the American water works association, July 1936, p. 868-76, discussion, p. 877-81.

PETO, JOHN H.

Trade acceptance: its effect on accounts receiv-able, working capital, profits. Credit and financial management, April 1936, p. 10-2, 41.

PETROLEUM

See Oil.

PETTINGILL, SAMUEL B.

President's reorganization plan . . . over Town Hall radio forum (NBC) on January 20, 1938. New York, National committee to uphold con-stitutional government, 1938. 3p.

PETTIT, R. D.

Expense control. Illinois manufacturers' costs asso-ciation monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 1-2, 4-5.

PEYTON, T. W. Relation of West Virginia statutes to accountancy and books of account; address before the West Virginia society of certified public accountants at their annual meeting at the Hotel Prichard, Huntington, W. Va., October 30, 1937. 20 mime-ographed pages.

PHELPS, D. M.

Marketing research, its function, scope, and method. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business, Bureau of business research, 1937, 149p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, 1937. no. 2.)

PHELPS, MASHEK, AND RICHARDSON "Windfall tax"—as affecting rice millers. Port Arthur, Texas, The authors, 1936. 2 type-written pages.

PHILHARMONIC-SYMPHONY SOCIETY OF NEW YORK

Report of the president of the Philharmonic-sym-phony society of New York, Mr. Marshall Field, read at annual meeting of the society held in Steinway Hall on May 10th, 1937. 2 mimeographed pages.

PHILIPPINE accountants' journal; official organ of the Philippine institute of certified public ac-countants. 217 Crystal Arcade, Manila, P. I., Philippine institute of certified public accountants.

- tants.
 PHILIPPINE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
 Constitution and by-laws, Philippine accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 61-6.
 Officers and directory of members and associ-ates, December 31, 1939. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., and Dec. 1939, p. 156-66.
 Report of the special committee on legislation on pending accountancy bills before the national assembly. Philippine accountants' journal, April, May and June 1939, p. 83-6.

PHILIPPINE ISLANDS

Commonwealth act no. 342; an act to amend sec-tions one, four, eleven, twelve and sixteen of act numbered thirty-one hundred five entitled tions one, four, eleven, twelve and sixteen of act numbered thirty-one hundred five entitled "An act regulating the practice of public ac-counting; creating a board of accountancy; pro-viding for examination for the granting of certificates and the registration of certified pub-lic accountants; for the suspension or revocation of certificates, and for other purposes." as amended, and for other purposes. (June 23, 1938) Philippine accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 251-4. National assembly bill no. 3301. Philippine accoun-tants' journal, March 1938, p. 99-102.

- Board of accountancy

When is a person engaged in professional accoun-tancy work? Board of accountancy resolution no. 27, January 27, 1939. Philippine accountants' journal, April, May and June 1939, p. 81-2.

- Securities and exchange commission Amendments to SEC rules A-4, A-5, A-9, A-24, A-27, A-28, A-31; B-5, B-18; C-4 (new) and C-5. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 439-44. Rules and regulations governing securities ex-changes and their members, dealers, salesmen and customers. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 419-38.

PHILLIPPS, MINER B.

California. Municipal Uniform accounting in Cal finance, Aug. 1936, p. 30-4.

PHILLIPS, CHARLES F.

HILLIPS, CHARLES F.
 Economic analysis of the supreme court's decisions on chain-store taxation. Journal of business of the University of Chicago, Jan. 1938, p. 51-69.
 Robinson-Patman anti-price discrimination law and the chain store. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 62-75.
 State discriminatory chain store taxation. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 349-59.
 Supermarket. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1938, part 1, p. 188-200.

PHILLIPS, P. Main features of the factories act, 1937. Cost accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 249-55.

PHILLIPS, W. J. Re-armament and the prevention of excess profits. Accountant, April 25, 1936, p. 652-3.

PHOSPHATES See Fertilizers.

PHOTO-COPYING

See Blue print industry; Photographic records. PHOTO-ENGRAVING

AMERICAN PHOTO-ENGRAVERS ASSOCIA-TION. Manual of the standard cost system for photo-engravers. Chicago, Ill., American photo-engravers association, 1938. 96p.

Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of photo-engraving concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 102 Y.)

PHOTOGRAPHERS

- PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORDS
 JACKSON, HERBERT W. Recordak system of accounts receivable operation; address before the Credit management division, N.R.D.G.A. silver jubilee convention, Hotel Pennsylvania, New York City. New York, Recordak corporation, 1936. 7p.
 PHOTOGRAPHIC copies of important records. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 566-9.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

PHOTOGRAPHIC SUPPLIES

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of photographic supply deal-ers. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 71.)

- PHYSICIANS See also Professional men.
- Bet also rolessional men.
 Bet also rolessional men.
 Counting
 HADLEY, CHARLES R., COMPANY. Exhibit of pathfinder simplified bookkeeping systems for doctors and dentists. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley Co. (1939.) Forms.
 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; medical practitioners' accounts. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 390.
 McLAUGHLIN, J. Accounting for physicians and dentists. Pathfinder service bulletim, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 6-8.
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Physicians' accounts. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1936, p. 225-35.) Accounting HADLEY.
- PHYSIOLOGIST and a statistician look at wage-incentive methods. Haggard, H. W. and Lorge, Irving.

PICKAR, GEORGE H. Law of business relations. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1937. 3v.

PICKERING, D. H.

- Some aspects of printers' costs. Australian accoun-tant, Dec. 1937, p. 352-3. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 125-6.
- PICKLE costs. Bush, W. Albert.

PICKLES

See Canning and preserving.

PIERCE, DIXWELL L.

Use by state authorities of federal income tax returns. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 637-40, 666.

PIERS

See Wharves.

PILCHER, DALTON J. Logical journalizing. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 466-9, 507. Principles of federal accountancy. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 141-52.

PILIE, LOUIS H.

Increased internal efficiency. (In American insti-tute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 193-5.)

PINCHBECK, RAYMOND B. Accounting in the public interest. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters. June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 6-10.)

PINCHES, HAROLD E. What are the real costs of electric operation? Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 278-83.

PINKERTON, J. Income tax in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, April 23, 1938, p. 180-7.

PINKERTON, PAUL W.

- Accordance with accepted principles of accounting consistently maintained. (In Pennsylvania insti-tute of certified public accountants-Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic.
- 1938. p. 12-19. Concepts of the accrual of income. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 69-71.)

PINKUS, PHILIP J., joint author See Tunick, Stanley B. and others.

PINNEY, R. T. Punched card accounting. Certified accountants journal, April 1939, p. 117-20.

PIPE LINES WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. and EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Pipe line trans-portation. (In their *Public utility industries*. 1936. p. 249-71.)

Accounting

- ccounting McKEE, RAYMOND WALTER. Pipe line di-vision. (In his Handbook of petroleum account-ing, 1938. p. 279-94.) PITCHER, ROBERT M. Pipe line department and records—Gathering pipe line system. (In his Practical accounting for oil producers. 1938. p. 225-9; 230-7.)

PIPER BILI

UNAUTHORIZED practice of law. Certified pub-lic accountant, May 1937, p. 19-21.

PIRENIAN, ZAREH M., joint author See Crenshaw, Bolling H., Simpson, Thomas Marshall, and Pirenian, Zareh M. also Simpson, Thomas Marshall, Pirenian, Zareh M., and Crenshaw, Bolling H. Thomas

PITCHER, ROBERT M. Practical accounting for oil producers. Tulsa, Okla., Mid-west printing co., 1938. 370p.

PIXLEY, FRANCIS W.

How to read a balance sheet; edited by Andrew Binnie. ed. 9. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1937. 71p.

- PLACE of accountancy in government. Morey, Lloyd.
- **PLACE** of accounting in the changing social order. Collins, Clem W.
- **PLACE** of accounting in the changing social order. Horne, Henry A.
- PLACE of internal auditing in industrial companies. National association of cost accountants.

PLACEMENTS

See Employment.

- PLAN book for public relations. American institute of accountants.
- **PLAN** for pooling the investments of endowment funds. Johns, Ralph S.
- PLAN for pooling the investments of endowment funds. (Correspondence) Benington, Harold.
- PLANNING and controlling salesmen's costs. Rob-nett, Ronald H. and Tucker, Herbert E.
- PLANNING for tax economy. Crow, William H. and Greene, U. S.

PLANNING for tax economy. Towns, Charles H.

PLANT, ARNOLD

Accountant and the economist. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 125-6.

PLANT ACCOUNTING See Cost and factory accounting; Property-Accounting.

PLANT accounting and depreciation policies; round table discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 170-99.)

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

See Cost and factory accounting; Factories; Machinery and equipment; Property.

PLANT APPRAISALS See Valuation.

PLANT ASSETS

See Assets; Valuation-Asset revaluation.

PLANT ledger for a small manufacturer. Goodwin, John H.

PLANT LEDGERS See Ledgers.

PLANT REPLACEMENTS See Replacements.

PLANT VALUES See Valuation-Asset revaluation.

PLANTATIONS

See Branches; Coffee estates; Rubber estates.

PLASTIC MOLDING INDUSTRY

PLASIRC MOLENTER IN COLLECTION AND CONTROL AND CONT

PLATE GLASS

See Glass.

PLATE GLASS INSURANCE See Insurance, Plate glass.

PLAUT. H. C.

Graphical method of ascertaining the necessary volume of stock. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 443-7

PLAUT, T.

- LAUT, T.
 Banking under dictatorship. Accountant, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 467-9.
 Cost accounting and state control in Germany. Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 163-5.
 German state finance on the eve of the war. Accountant, Sept. 23, 1939, p. 355-7; Sept. 30, 1939, p. 377-80.
 Germany's war potentials 1914 and 1939 compared. Accountant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 592-4.
 Standardized bookkeeping in Germany. Accountant, Sept. 17, 1938, p. 395-6; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 438-9.

PLEA for basic tax reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 4-5.

PLUMBING Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of heating and plumbing contractors. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 59.)

PLUMBING SUPPLIES

See also Hardware. Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of plumbing equipment con-cerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no.

PLUMMER, A. Finance and its function in relation to industry. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1937, p. 340-2, discussion, p. 342-5.

PLUMPTRE, A. F. W. Open market operations of the bank of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 421-33.

PODD, GEORGE O.

- Budgeting expenses. Horwath hotel accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 4-5, 7. Review of restaurant operating costs: address delivered at the annual convention of the Na-
- tional restaurant association in Chicago, October

6. Horwath hotel accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 3-6. Study of Indiana hotels. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4, 5. Trend of payroll costs in hotels. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 3, 5-6.

PODELL, DAVID L.

Certified public accountant's responsibility to third parties for financial statements which he certi-fies. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 31-8.

POGUE, JOSEPH E.

Economics of the petroleum industry. New York, Chase national bank, March 1939. 60p.

POINT SYSTEMS See Wages, fees, etc.

POLICYHOLDERS SERVICE BUREAU

See Metropolitan life insurance company. Policyholders service bureau.

POLLOCK, KENNETH W. Use of therblig times for rate setting. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 35-40.

POLLOCK, WALTER W. Familiar controversy. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61-4.

POOL, A. G.

Some aspects of British post-war banking policy. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1939, p. 297-300.

POOL PARLORS

See Amusements.

POOLE, E. C.

Factory organisation and control. Australian ac-countant, April 1939, p. 171-9.

POOLS

See also Consolidations; Trusts.

Accounting ELLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and LLIOTT, E. CASSLETON. Other auditing and advisory work. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 20-4. Accountant, Dec. 17, 1938, p. 837-42; Dec. 24, 1938, p. 873-7. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. p. 99-122.)

POPE, EDWARD B.

Is our mailing profitable? This system shows how to compute costs. (reprinted from *Printers' ink*, March 31, 1938.) 4p.

PORCELAIN See Pottery.

PORTENTS of danger. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 401-4.

PORTEOUS, KENNETH

Factory orders and inventory records; a case history of their mechanical preparation. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1937, p. 69-80.

PORTER, D. R. Single entry book-keeping. Accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 154-5.

PORTER, F. R.

Budgetary control for the small business. Accoun-tant student and Accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 58-9.

PORTER. MATTHEW G.

Pastoral and agricultural taxation returns. Char-tered accountant in Australia, April 1938, p. 698-701.

PORTER, ROBERT

Systematic control of routine purchases. Buildings and building management, April 1937, p. 36-7, 75-6.

- PORTLAND ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWN-ERS AND MANAGERS
 1938 operating costs in 18 office buildings at Port-land, Oregon. Buildings and building manage-ment, June 1939, p. 20.
- POSITION of auditors in India. Accountant, April 24, 1937, p. 570-4.
- **POSITION** of the public accountant in relation to business and government in Great Britain. Halsey, Laurence.
- POSITION statement of brokers. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 42-3.

POSNER, LOUIS S.

Trustee and the trust indenture: a further study. Yale law journal, March 1937, p. 727-800.

POSSIBILITIES and problems of uniform municipal accounting. Morey, Lloyd.

POST, E. J. Legal subjects in examinations. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 272-4.

POTRERO SUGAR COMPANY UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2054; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Potrero sugar company. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 435-6.

POTTER, ARTHUR F. Help which the state can give in improving prop-erty tax assessments. Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1939, p. 113-6.

POTTER, SAMUEL I.

Priorities-wages and taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 399-400.

POTTER, W. IAN Social background in business finance. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 247-59.

POTTS, ERNEST CLIFFORD What is a fair price to pay for a utility plant? *Public utilities fortnightly*, Sept. 1, 1938, p. 310-15.

- POTTS, JAMES E.
 Bank accounting and audit control. Boston, Mass., Bankers pub. co., 1938, 202p.
 Branch bank accounting and control. National auditgram, Sept. 1937, p. 4-7, 10-11.
 Operating and audit manuals. National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 26-9, discussion, p. 29-30.
 Starting the operating manual. Bankers magazine, July 1939, p. 17-20.

- POULTON, P. K. AND GOLDSMITH, P. H.
 Budgeting for profit. Factory management and maintenance, Sept. 1939, p. 52-6, 120, 122.
 Budgeting inventories and stabilizing employment. Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1939, p. 52-5.
 - Budgeting to cut unit costs. Factory management and maintenance, Oct. 1939, p. 48-52, 122, 124.

POULTRY

Cost accounting BOWERING, WILLIAM B. Poultry cost account-ing. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1938, p. 1-8.

Statistics

- 116.)

POULTRY DEALERS

Accounting
 WHOLESALE egg and poultry business. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 200-1.

POWELL, HENRY M. Sales, business and use taxes in New York. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 24-6, 56.

POWELL, M. J. Stock, wool and produce agents' accounts. Char-tered accountant 'in Australia, July 1939, p. 13-25.

POWELL, THOMAS REED

Business taxation and interstate commerce. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 337-59.)

POWELL, WELDON

Accountants' report procedure. Pathfinder service bulletin, Sept. 1939, p. 1, 3, 6.

POWER COSTS

- OWER COSTS See also Electric light and power—Costs.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. and MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of power costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 294-323.)
 HEAT, light and power. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, July 1938, p. 3-6.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; some technical problems relating to steam and electric power costs. Corporate accountant, July 1936, p. 110-2.

- **POWER** engineer compares fuel and hydro-genera-tion. *Public utilities fortnightly*, Dec. 17, 1936, p. 834-8.

POWERS, HUGH E. Auditors' reports as an aid to bank management. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, Jan. 1938, p. 74-9. Changes in the revenue act of 1938. National auditgram, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 8-12.

POYNTON, T. L. Suggestions for financial provisions in future legislation. Accountant, Oct. 10, 1936, p. 497-501.

- POYSELL, ROBERT E. Using cost accounting records to get management business. National real estate journal, Feb. 1937, p. 26-7.
- **PRACTICAL** accounting and cost keeping for con-tractors. Walker, Frank R.
- PRACTICAL accounting for oil producers. Pitcher, Robert M.
- PRACTICAL application of foreign exchange. Aus-tralian accountant, May 1936, p. 313-8.
- **PRACTICAL** application of the punched card method in colleges and universities. Baehne, G. W., editor.
- **PRACTICAL** aspects of depreciation. Mathieson, J. K.
- **PRACTICAL** aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis. Towns, Charles H.
- **PRACTICAL** auditing; edited by W. W. Bigg. Spicer, Ernest Evan and Pegler, E. C.
- PRACTICAL bank credit. Foulke, Roy A. and Prochnow, Herbert V.
- PRACTICAL budget procedure. MacDonald, John H.
- PRACTICAL credit analysis. Benjamin, Eugene S.
- **PRACTICAL** difficulties resulting from the surtax. Fernald, Henry B.

PRACTICAL group bonus plan. Lause, M. A.

- **PRACTICAL** methods for depreciation of factory equipment. Gordon, F. W.
- PRACTICAL office management. Wylie, Harry L., Gamber, Merle P. and Brecht, Robert P.
- PRACTICAL point; auditor admitting liability for negligence. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 900. for
- PRACTICAL progress under the social security act. Winant, John G.
- PRACTICAL questions and answers regarding effect of Robinson-Patman act on merchandising opera-tion. National retail dry goods association.
- PRACTICAL solutions—problems in cost accounting procedure. LaSalle extension university.
- **PRACTICE** and evidence before the U. S. board of tax appeals. Hamel, Charles D.
- PRACTICE BEFORE BOARD OF TAX APPEALS See Taxation, United States; United States. Board of tax appeals.
- **PRACTICE** before Board of tax appeals. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 7.
- PRACTICE BEFORE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION See United States. Securities and exchange
 - commission.
- **PRACTICE** before Securities and exchange com-mission. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 17-20.
- PRACTICE before the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 137-8.
- PRACTICE BEFORE TREASURY DEPARTMENT See United States. Treasury department.
- PRACTICE before Treasury department. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 1-2; Aug. 1939, p. 79.
- PRACTICE in accounting for payroll taxes. National association of cost accountants. Research and service department.
- **PRACTICE** in accounting for raw materials. National association of cost accountants. Research and service department.
- **PRACTICE** in applying overhead and calculating normal capacity. National association of cost accountants. Research and technical service department.
- **PRACTICE** problems of accountants in connection with registration statements; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anni-versary celebration. 1937. p. 313-33.)
- PRACTICE under assumed name. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 10-1.

PRACTITIONER

- Auditor does not do his duty by qualifying his certificate. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 182-3.
- PRATT, HORACE L.
- Department cost records. Textile world, Jan. 1938, p. 100-1.

PRATT, LESTER A. BARTLETT, ARTHUR. Million dollars was miss-ing so they called in Lester Pratt, who traps more bank robbers than any detective or G-man and does it with an adding machine. This week magazine (New York herald-tribune) Dec. 31, 1939, p. 6, 9.

- PRATT, P. D.
- Social credit; realties and make-belief of the money game. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1936, p. 22-6; Feb. 1936, p. 50-8.

PRE-AUDITING

- See Budgets, Business; Business forecasting.
- **PRECAUTIONS** against unnecessary income taxes. Boye, E. C.

PREDETERMINED COSTS

- See Cost and factory accounting; Standard costs.
- PREFERENTIAL claims under section 264 (3), com-panies act, 1929. Accountant, Aug. 7, 1937, p.
- PREFERRING a bank guarantor. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 442-3.

PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D.

- Annual survey of economic theory; the theory of depreciation. (reprinted from Econometrica, July 1938.)
- Economic theories of goodwill. Journal of accoun-
- Economic theories of goodwill. Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 169-80. Fair value and yield of common stock. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 130-40. Goodwill in accountancy, Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 28-50. Indian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 15-20; Nov. 1937, p. 32-40. Law of goodwill. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 317-29.
- p. 51/-29. Principles of public-utility depreciation. Account-ing review, June 1938, p. 149-65. Reprinted. Valuation and amortization. Accounting review,

Sept. 1937, p. 209-26. Valuation and depreciation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 46-8.

- PRELIMINARY examinations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 364.

PREMIUM

- See also Bonds; Investments and securities; Stock.
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Unamortized discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded. New York, American institute of uscount and redemption premium on bonds refunded. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 24p. (Accounting re-search bulletim, no. 2.) CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Public utility. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 45-6. FREEMAN, HERBERT C. Unamortized dis-count and premium on bonds refunded. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 397-9. FREMIUM on preference.

- p. 397-9. PREMIUM on preferred stock of subsidiaries. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 67-8.
- Jan. 1936, p. 67-8.
 UNAMORTIZED debt discount, expense and pre-miums on bonds refunded. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 473-4. Erratum, Sept. 1936, p. 229.
- MIUM on preferred stock of subsidiaries. (Students' department) *Journal of accountancy*, Jan. 1936, p. 67-8. PREMIUM on

PRENTICE-HALL, INC.

- RENTICE-HALL, INC.
 Capital adjustments—Reorganizations—Stock rights New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2v. loose-leaf,
 Federal tax course, 1939. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. loose-leaf.
 Same, 1940. c1939. loose-leaf.
 Federal tax law with explanatory digest, revenue act of 1936. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 114p.
 Game, January 1937ed. 112p.
 Federal tax law with explanatory digest; revenue act of 1936, as amended by revenue act of 1937. August, 1937 edition. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1937. 133p.
 Federal tax service, cumulative. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 4v. loose-leaf.

PRENTICE-HALL, INC.-(Continued)

- Internal revenue code; an exact reprint of the internal revenue code as amended by the reve-nue act of 1939, also an appendix containing provisions of all other laws affecting federal taxes and a reprint of the revenue act of 1939, with references to I.R.C. sections which it amends. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 7190.

- amends. New York, Frentice-Itan, Inc., error 719p. New York state tax service. ed. 11. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2v. loose-leaf. 1939 social security amendments explained. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 18p. Regulations 101, income tax; revenue act of 1938. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 358p. Revenue act of 1939, with complete explanation. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 99p. Tax diary and manual for 1937. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 350p. and diary, 461p.
- 401p. Same, 1938. 404p. and diary 478p. Same, 1939. 378p. and diary 475p. Taxation affecting life insurance with special ref-erence to the federal income, gift and estate tax laws and to the inheritance and estate tax laws of the various states. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1935. 170p.

PREPAID EXPENSES

- See also Expenses. PATON, W. A. Principles related to "deferred charges" and "prepaid expenses." (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 26-30.)
- **PREPARATION** and presentation of information re-quired in connection with federal income tax returns and related schedules. Cordle, O. M.
- PREPARATION of reports. Baker, Ray Palmer, and Howell, Almonte Charles.
- PRESCRIBED certificates. (Editorial) accountancy, July 1939, p. 1-2. Journal of
- **PRESENT** condition of municipal accounting. Lorig, Arthur N.
- PRESENT-day practice in accounting for research and development costs. National association of cost accountants.
- **PRESENT** day problems affecting the presentation and interpretation of financial statements. Andersen, Arthur.
- PRESENT menace of taxation. Klein, Joseph J.
- PRESENTATION and use of cost control data. Lause, M. A. and Boettger, F. A.

PRESGRAVE, RALPH

Effort rating. Advanced management, Fall 1939, p. 126-33.

- PRESHAW, GERALD Is cost accounting a science? National accoun-tant, Dec. 1936, p. 31-4.
- **PRESIDENT** and tax exempt securities. Crumbaker, Calvin.

PRESIDENT'S COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE

MANAGEMENT See United States. President's committee on administrative management.

PRESIDENT'S reorganization plan. Pettingill, Samuel В.

PREST, W.

Size of the business unit. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 38-50.

PRESTAGE, W. A. Shares of no par value; suggested method under English law. Accountant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 247-8. Certified accountants journal, March 1936, p. 88-90.

PRESTON, C. R. Costing in the paint industry. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 43-5. Indian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 284-7.

PRETTYMAN, E. BARRETT

- Practical philosophy of tax collection. Tax maga-zine, Oct. 1936, p. 593-7, 634-5. Traynor proposals—some considerations. Taxes— the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 397-8, 438-41.
- PREVAILING practices in inventory va National industrial conference board, inc. valuation.

PREVENTION OF FRAUD ACT

- See Investment companies-Law-Great Britain.
- **PREVENTION** of fraud (investments) act. Accountant, May 13, 1939, p. 637; June 10, 1939, p. 766-9.
- PREVENTION of fraud (investments) act, 1939. Great Britain,
- PREVENTION of fraud (investments) bill. Accountant, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 190-5; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 697-704; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 742-4; Dec. 17, 1938, p. 855-6; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 267-9, Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1938, p. 283-90.
- PRICE discrimination act (Robinson-Patman act) with explanation. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- PRICE discrimination and cost. Thorp. Willard L.

PRICE FIXING

See Prices.

PRICE movements in 1936. Cost and management, Feb. 1937, p. 47-51.

PRICE of a simplified income tax. Tarleau, Thomas. PRICE REGULATION

See Prices.

PRICES

- PRICES See also Monthly labor review.
 ALDERSON, WROE. Effect of price controls on non-profit competition. Law and contem-porary problems, June 1937, p. 356-62.
 AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECU-TIVES. Robinson-Patman act; data compiled from public sources of information and repro-duced by the federal trade commission in con-nection with its administration of the Robinson-Patman act of June 19, 1936, amending section 2 of the Clayton act, July 25, 1936. Washing-ton, D. C., American trade association executives, 1936. 38 mimeographed pages.
 AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIA-TION. Anti-discrimination laws in force De-cember 15, 1937. (reprinted with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York, Automobile manufacturers association, cl937. 1 sheet.
- Trade association service, Summit, N. J., Ivew
 York, Automobile manufacturers association, cl937. 1 sheet.
 AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIA-TION. Resale price maintenance laws ("Fair trade acts") in force December 15, 1937. (re-printed with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York Automobile Manufacturers association, cl937. 1 sheet.
 BACKMAN, JULES. Cost of production as a basis for price fixing. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 143-53.
 BACKMAN, JULES. Enforcement of government price fixing. Harvard business review, Winter number, part 1, 1938, p. 154-67.
 BACKMAN, JULES. Government price-fixing. New York, Pitman pub. corp., cl938. 304p.
 BAIN, JOE S. Depression pricing and the de-preciation function. Quarterly journal of econom-ics, Aug. 1937, p. 705-15.
 BARNETT, FRANK E. Some observations on the Robinson-Fatman act. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1937, p. 1-12, 19.

- Nov. 1937, p. 1-12, 19.

⁻Same, c1937. -Same, c1938. -Same, c1939.

PRICES—(Continued)

- PRICES—(Continued)
 BRAND, CHARLES J. Public policy as to open price plans. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 40-6, 53.
 BROWN, A. T. Cost control as a basic problem of industry. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938, p. 7-19.)
 BURNS, ARTHUR ROBERT. Anti-trust laws and the regulation of price competition. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 301-30.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Cost features of the Robinson-Patman act; an address at a meeting of Trade association executives in New York city, held at Hotel Pennsylvania, New York city, on Sept. 29, 1936. 20 mimeographed pages.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Five factors which make sellers liable under Patman act. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 305-10.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Relation of costs to the determination of selling prices. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20 and 21, 1938, p. 118-32.) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 7-16. Cost and management Sept. 1938, p. 228-39.
 CELLER, EMANUEL. Review of the Robinson-Patman bill. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 2029-32.

- and management Sept. 1938, p. 228-39.
 CELLER, EMANUEL. Review of the Robinson-Patman bill. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 229-32.
 CIES, RALPH D. Costing problems posed by the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 350-5.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Price discrimination act (Robinson-Patman act) with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., cl936, 5p.
 COPELAND, MELVIN T. Purpose of the Robinson-Patman act. (reprinted from Boston transcript) Indianapolis, Ind. National food brokers association, (1936). 29p.
 COST accounting under the Robinson-Patman act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Oct. 26, 1936, p. 12-3.
 DEAN, JOEL. Coöperative research in cost-price relationships. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 182-4.
 DUNN, CHARLES WESLEY. Five months of the Robinson-Patman act; address delivered before Trade association executives in New York City on October 27, 1936, and revised as of November 25, 1936. The revision is directed to include additional enforcement data. New York, New York City, 1936. 27p.
 DUNN, CHARLES WESLEY. Law upon resale price protection; address delivered at the annual meeting of the Associated grocery manufacturers of America, inc., in New York City, on Decempt, 1936. New York, The author, 1936. 29p.
 FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, upplement, Oct. 1938, p. 390-8. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 1-18; 205-20.
- 1-18; 205-20.)
 FREEMAN, E. STEWART. Cost analysis a science, but pricing may be classed as an art. Controller, Jan. 1939, p. 12-19, 22-3.
 FREER, ROBERT E. Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 480-7.
 GASKILL, NELSON B. What you may and may not do under the new price discrimination law, Robinson-Patman law. Washington, D. C., Kiplinger Washington agency, inc., c1936. 63p.
- GAULT, EDGAR H. Fair trade, with especial reference to cut-rate drug prices in Michigan. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration. Bureau of Ann Arbor, Mich. School of business business research, 1939. 54p. (Michigan business studies, v. 9, no. 2.)
- GEORGE, EDWIN B. Federal trade commission decision in the Goodyear case, with supple-mentary comments on its relation to the Robin-son-Patman act. (reprinted from *Dun and Brad*-

- street monthly review, April, May and June 1936 issues) GRAS, N. S. B. Historical background of mod-ern price regulations. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern content 1028 and 42 for
- Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 43-59.) GREER, HOWARD C. Difference in cost as a basis for price differentials. Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1937, p. 255-66. GREER, HOWARD C. Further comments on Mr. Kohl's article. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, b. 179.80) 1937. (N... b. 179-80.)
- 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 170-80.)
 GRETHER, E. T. Solidarity in the distributive trades in relation to the control of price competition. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 375-91.
 GRIFFIN, C. E. Economic significance of recent price legislation. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 42-8.
 GUNNARSON, A. B. Distribution cost accounting in relation to problems of competition. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 277-87, discussion, p. 287-90.)
 HAMILTON, WALTON H. Cost as a standard for price. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 321-33.
 HARING, ALBERT. Price cutting vs. price control. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1938, p. 6-3.

- 1938, p. 6-8. HARING, ALBERT. Review of fair trade acts; how controlled pricing laws function. *Credit* and financial management, March 1939, p. 24-26,
- 44. HARRISS, C. LOWELL. Federal commodity and service taxes expressed as percentages of retail price. Bulletin of the National tax associatoin, May 1937, p. 226-31. HAVS, MORTIMER. Are price discriminations criminal? An interpretation of section 3 of the Patman-Robinson bill. Credit executive, Oct. 1936. n. 301-3.

- Patman-Robinson bill. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 301-3. HERWOOD, HERMAN. Price fixing in ancient Rome. Credit executive, June 1938, p. 173-5. HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Fundamentals of in-ventory pricing. (summary of lecture at Toledo chapter of National association of cost accoun-tants, November 16, 1937.) 4 mimeographed
- chapter of National association of cost accountants, November 16, 1937.) 4 mimeographed pages.
 INSTITUTE OF DISTRIBUTION, INC. Influence of the new Robinson-Patman act on buying and selling. New York, Institute of distribution, inc. (1936). 57p.
 JAMES, CHARLES C. Establishing cost differentials under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, Stevenson, Jordan and Harrison (1936). 12p. National accountant, April 1937, p. 8-11. JENNINGS, A. R. Layman's view of the Robinson-Patman act. New York, Stevenson, Iordan and Harrison (1936). 12p. National accountant, April 1937, p. 8-11. JENNINGS, A. R. Layman's view of the Robinson-Patman act. L.R. B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 1-6, 16.
 KASSANDER, A. R. Cost accounting under the new price discrimination law. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 1-6, 16.
 LeMASTER, EUSTACE. Accountant's provision for depreciation and its effect on prices; at meeting of Pacific coast economic association, December 27, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.
 LOWENHAUPT, ABRAHAM. Patman act difficult to apply to settled business practices. Control by law in the United States: a survey. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 273-300.
 McKAGUE, W. A. Commodity prices lag in recovery. Cost and management, April 1936, p. 120-1.

- McNAIR, MALCOLM P. Economics of price control legislation. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 4-9.)
 McNAIR, MALCOLM P. Marketing functions and costs and the Robinson-Patman act. Law and costs and the Robinson-Patman act. States June 1937, p. 334-55.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH, Market prices. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939. p. 127-73.)
 MICHIE, THOMAS, J., JR. Business will not be revolutionized by Robinson-Patman act. Controller, March 1937, p. 71-8.

PRICES-(Continued)

- MR. PATMAN carries on. (reprinted by permission from Printers' ink) L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 13, 16.
 MONTAGUE, GILBERT H. Merchandising under the Robinson-Patman act. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., c1936. 8p.
 MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. First decisions of Federal trade commission under Robinson-Patman act. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 266-8. 266-8

 - p. 266-8. MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Robinson-Patman act. (In National association of credit men. Credit manual of commercial laws. c1937. p. 1-13.) NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. International raw commodity price control, by Robert F. Martin. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., c1937. 1660.
 - National industrial conference board, inc., c1937. 166p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Practical questions and answers regard-ing effect of Robinson-Patman act on merchan-dising operation. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 5 mimeographed pages. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Special bulletin on Robinson-Patman act, July 31, 1936. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 3p. NEW importance of costs-Robinson-Patman act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10-2. Cost and management, March 1937, p. 66-8.

 - 66-8
 - NYSTROM, PAUL H. Effects of labor regulation (In Boston chamber of commerce, Retail trade board. Boston conference on distribution. p. 15-8.) 1937.
 - p. 15-8.) NYSTROM, PAUL H. Retail prices and price making. (In his *Retail store operation*. c1937. p. 133-54.) OSTLUND, H. J. Robinson-Patman act and quan-tity discounts. *Accounting review*, Dec. 1939, p. 402-9.

 - p. 402-9. PATCH, BUEL W. Experiments in price control. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 429-50.)

 - 429-50.) PATMAN, WRIGHT. Robinson-Patman act; what you can and cannot do under this law. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 408p. PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. Robinson-Patman anti-price discrimination law and the chain store. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936,
 - p. 62-75. PRICING product under the Robinson-Patman act; a round table. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fifiteth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 267-85.)
- tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 267-85.)
 RESEARCH in cost accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 138-9.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act; before the 15th annual conference of certified public accountants held in Seattle, Washington, June 18th and 19th, 1937. 9 typewritten pages.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Cost problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Manufacturer's news letter, Aug. 5, 1937.
 ROBINSON-PATMAN act; a summary and an interpretation, by the editor. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 18-9, 26, 28.
 ROBINSON-PATMAN act in action. Yale law journal, Jan. 1937, p. 447-82.
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Accounting and distribution techniques as voluntary devices to eliminate abuses in marketing. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 108-17.
 SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting as evidence in cases arising under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 12, section 1, p. 681-97.)
 SCHOLEFIELD, J. B. Robinson-Patman act and the accountant. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 16-23.

 - SILBERLING, NORMAN J. Price parities as a gauge of income. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 280-3. SMITH, BLACKWELL and McCONNELL,

JOSEPH H. Analysis of FTC action on 66 Robinson-Patman cases. Dun's review, Jan. 1938,

- JOSEPH H. Analysis of FTC action on 66 Robinson-Patman cases. Dun's review, Jan. 1938, p. 7-13; 45-8.
 STEVENS, W. H. S. Cost factors in the de-termination of price discrimination. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 689-96.) Printed with: Sawyer, Albert E. Cost accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act.
 STRAYER, PAUL J. Effect of a rise in prices upon the income tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1939, p. 165-76.
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Cost principles in minimum price regulation. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business ad-ministration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 182p. (Michigan business studies, v. 8, no. 1.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Minimum prices under the NRA. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 477p. (Michi-gan business studies, v. 7, no. 3.)
 TAGGART, HERBERT F. Standard brands case. New York, National association cost accoun-tants, Oct. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 4, section 1, p. 195-262.)
 TEXT of the Robinson-Patman price discrimina-tion law. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 14-16.
 THORP, WILLARD L. Accounting for the Rob-inson-Patman act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 6-27.)
 THORP, WILLARD L. Possible effects of the Robinson-Patman act. On business practices. Jli-nois manufacturers' cost association, monthly bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 275-9.
 THORP, WILLARD L. Price discrimination and cost. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 183-6.

- THORP, WILLARD L. Price discrimination and cost. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p.

- 1110K1, WILLARD L. 110K, March 1937, p. 183-6.
 THORP, WILLARD L. and GEORGE, EDWIN B. Check list of possible effects of the Robinson-Patman act. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1936. 222.
 THORP, WILLARD L., AND OTHERS. Some price problems. (In their Economic problems in a changing world, c1939. p. 191-365.)
 TILL, IRENE. Fiction of the quoted price. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 363-74.
 TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES IN NEW YORK, CITY. Conference proceedings on Robinson-Patman anti-discrimination act, Hotel Pennsylvania, New York, N. Y., Wednesday, July 8, 1936. 809.
 TUCKER, RUFUS S. Reasons for price rigidity. American economic review, March 1938, p. 41-54.
 U.S. law against price discrimination. Cost and management, Oct. 1936, p. 298-313.
 UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. Proposals to maintain prices at fixed levels through monetary action. Federal reserve bulletin, April 1939, p. 255-9.
 UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of Retail prices. January 1936-December 1939. (pamphets)
 UNITED STATES. Supreme court. Supreme court of the United States, nos. 636, 651, 649 and 650-October term, 1935; Carter vs. Carter coal company et al... (May 18, 1936.) various paging.
- WATTS, DAVID A. Robinson-Patman act; a paper read September 19, 1936, before the Chicago bar association. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press,
- bar association. Chicago, 111., Foundation press, inc., c1936. 9p. WEIL, FRANK L. Complaints filed under the Patman act. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Dec. 1936, p. 23-5. WEIL, FRANK L. Dissecting the Robinson-Pat-man act. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1936, p. 11-2, 38-40.
- WEIR, DAVID A. Economics of the Robinson-Patman act. Credit and financial management, Jan. 1937, p. 6-8, 31, 32-3.

PRICES—(Continued)

- PRICES-(Continued)
 WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER. Cost, prices and profits. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 165-71, discussion, p. 171-4.
 WERNE, BENJAMIN, ed. Business and the Robinson-Patman law; a symposium. New York, Oxford university press, 1938. 296p.
 WHYTE, MALCOLM K. Robinson-Patman act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference, 1936, p. 15-24.)
 ZARKER, A. B. Is fixed overhead always a cost? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (M.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 2, p. 1347-8.)
 ZORN, BURTON A. and FELDMAN, GEORGE J. Business under the new price laws; a study of the Robinson-Patman act and the various fair trade and unfair practices laws. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 463p.

Canada PRICE movements in 1936. Cost and management, Feb. 1937, p. 47-51.

Germany

MINZ, W. Principles of calculation and public price control in Germany. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938. p. 358-9.

Great Britain

- ireat Britain
 DONALD, W. COUTTS. Costing as an aid to price fixing. Cost accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 240-5, discussion, p. 246-58.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Price fixing. Corporate accountant, May 1937, p. 87-8.
 HOME, J. B. Trend of gilt-edged and equity prices with an eye to the future. Certified. accountants journal, June 1937, p. 177-83.
 HOWITT, HAROLD. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 561-72. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 99-132.) 99-132.)

- Nonfresserver, p. 1955. Band D. Inchia G, p. 99-132.)
 JONES, J. H. Fair prices. Accountant, June 6, 1936, p. 842-4.
 JONES, J. H. Price problems. Accountant, March 5, 1938, p. 314-6.
 IEADBETTER, FRANK. Will your costing system stand up to the test of rising prices? Cost accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 168-73, discussion, p. 173-84. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 121-5.
 ROBINSON, T. Prices of goods bill. Certified accountants fournal, Dec. 1939, p. 368-71.
 SAUNDERS, F. W. H. Will your costing system stand up to the test of rising prices? Cost accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 165-8, discussion, p. 173-84. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 119-21.

Netherlands

- etheriands LINDNER, J. A. M. F. and KOPPENBERG, W. E. Methods of computing costs and control of prices by public authorities. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs-kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 132.62 133-68.)
- PRICING product under the Robinson-Patman act; a round table. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 267-85.)
- PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MER-RILL
 - Principles of accounting. rev. ed. New York, Mac-millan co., 1937. 519p. Workbook for Principles of accounting.
 - 519p.

 - 519p. ——Practice set; economy stores: Part 1—Books of original entry. Part 2—Ledgers. Part 3—Statements and report forms. ——Ruled forms no. 1, for problems in text, chapters 1-16—Principles of accounting.

PRIEBE, E. P.

- Skelgas company's plan of container control. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 22, section 1, p. 1247-57.)
- **PRIMARY** accounting concepts; a speculation in the interest of clarity. Carman, Lewis A.
- **PRIMER** of bookkeeping for coöperatives. Coöperative league. Accounting bureau.

PRINCE, L. J. F. Auditor and stock valuation. Federal accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 481-5.

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Provisions of company pension plans from recent plans. Princeton, N. J., Princeton university, Department of economics and social institutions, June 1939. 45 mimeographed pages.

PRINCIPAL AND INCOME ACT See Executors and trustees-Law.

- PRINCIPAL provisions of state unemployment com-pensation laws. Controller, June 1937, p. 170-1.
- PRINCIPAL'S liability for employee's fraud. Cer. fied accountants journal, July 1939, p. 194-7. Certi-
- **PRINCIPLES** and methods of measuring office activi-ties. Lehn, F. D.
- PRINCIPLES of accountancy legislation. Towns, Charles H.
- PRINCIPLES of accounting, Johnson, Arnold W.
- PRINCIPLES of accounting. Kester, Roy B.
- PRINCIPLES of accounting. May, George O.
- PRINCIPLES of accounting. Prickett, Alva L. and Mikesell, R. Merrill.
- PRINCIPLES of accounting and appraising as applied to the fixed and inventory assets. Olson, Lyle H.
- PRINCIPLES of accounting for governmental au-thorities. Morey, Lloyd.
- PRINCIPLES of auditing. dePaula, F. R. M.
- **PRINCIPLES** of college and university business practice. American council on education. Financial advisory service.

PRINCIPLES of corporate finance. Kimball, Milo.

- **PRINCIPLES** of engineering economy. Grant, Eugene
- PRINCIPLES of engineering economy-Problems. Grant, Eugene L.
- PRINCIPLES of public-utility depreciation. Mason, Perry.
- PRINCIPLES of retail merchandising. Baker, Harold А.
- PRINCIPLES of retail merchandising. Doubman, J. Russell.
- PRINCIPLES proposed for system accounts. Railway age, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 162.

PRINCIPLES relating to earned surplus. Clader, Will-A.

PRINTING

Accounting INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; printers. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 11. UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA, INC. Standard accounting system for printers, with

PRINTING—Accounting—(Continued)

- the Standard cost finding system, tied-in and controlled; prepared by F. W. Fillmore. Wash-ington, D. C., United typothetae of America, Aug. 1938. 11 mimeographed pages.
- Budgeting MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Assuring a profit on each job. Inland printer, June 1936, p. 29-31.
 MILLER, EDWARD T. Company builds a budget. Inland printer, March 1939, p. 39-41.
 UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA, INC. Budgeting. (In its Ratios for printing manage-ment for the year, 1935. p. 25-6; 1936. p. 61-2; 1937. p. 65-6; 1938. p. 57-8.)
 UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA, INC. Operating and cost budget for the printing busi-ness, prepared by F. W. Fillmore. Washington, D. C., United typothetae of America, Dec. 26, 1935. 33p.
 ———Same, Oct. 15, 1938. 33p.

- Cost accounting CURLE, J. A. Distribution costing, with special reference to the tobacco and printing trades. *Cost accountant*, Nov. 1939, p. 132-9.
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Assuring a profit on each job. *Initand printer*, June 1936, p. 29-31.
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Plan for profitable coster in grand printing plants. (reprinted from

 - MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Plan for profitable control in small printing plants. (reprinted from July 1937 Iniland printer) 450 Seventh Ave., New York, N. Y., The author, 1938. 8p.
 MILLER, EDWARD T. How to find your costs easily. Inland printer, Feb. 1937, p. 37-9.
 STEMPEL, JOHN E. How one print shop records costs. Inland printer, Cot. 1939, p. 21-2.
 UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA, INC. Standard cost finding system, prepared by F. W. Fillmore. Washington, D. C., United typo-thetae of America, Aug. 1938. 11 mimeographed nages.
 - pages. UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA, INC. U.T.A. standard cost finding system. Washing-ton, D. C., United typothetae of America, c1938. 32p. and forms.

Costs

- osts BAKER, E. J. Charting the costs of offset. Inland printer, June 1936, p. 39-40. PICKERING, D. H. Some aspects of printers' cost. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 352-3. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 125-6.

Statistics

- Analysis of the 1936 operations of commercial printing concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 96.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of job printers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 51-77, 101, 126, 178-9. (1937 ed.-p. 52, 80, 106, 133, 194-5.) (In his Fourieren guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 32-3.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 22-4, 5.)
 MILLER, EDWARD T. Acid test of gross profit. Inland printer, Dec. 1938. Monthly labor review, March 1937, p. 688-704.
 UNION scales of wages and hours in the printing industry, May 15, 1938. Monthly labor review, March 1937, p. 688-704.
 UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA, INC. Ratios for printing management for the year 1935, developed from members' annual balance sheets, operating statements and cost reports. Washington, D. C., United typothetae of America, 1936. 66p.
 Same, 1937. 1938. 70p.
 Same, 1938. 1939. 62p.
 RINTING INK

PRINTING INK

- See Ink.
- PRIORITIES of debts; the bankruptcy act 1924-1933. Hebden, Eric S.

PRISONS

See Institutions.

PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATIONS See Professional ethics-Confidential communications.

- PRIVILEGED communications. Bulletin of the Amer-ican institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 12-3.
- PRIVILEGED communications. (Legal notes) Gree-ley, Harold Dudley. editor.

- PRIZES AND CONTESTS BYRNE, GILBERT R. To what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937,
 - p. 364-79. CONWAY, EDMUND J. Staff training. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 119-26. ESSAY contests. Certified public accountant, Aug.

 - ESSAY contests. Certifiea public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 19, ESSAY contests. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1937, p. 2. GREER, HOWARD C. To what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of accountancy, March 1938, 213 - 23

 - p. 213-23. SCHOLARSHIP prizes. Certified public accoun-tant, Sept. 1938, p. 14. WARNER, ROSS T. Medal awards to students in accountancy. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 2-3.

PROBATE accounting. Lindsay, Maurice M.

PROBATE ACCOUNTING, LAW AND PRACTICE See Executors and trustees.

PROBLEM of business failures. FitzPatrick, Paul J.

- PROBLEM of cost accounting for selling and dis-tribution-stage 2. Tyrrell, S. C.
- PROBLEM of retail site selection. Ratcliff, Richard
- PROBLEM of valuation. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 404.
- PROBLEMAS de contabilidad. Primer suplemento de Seleccion contable, Agosto, 1937.
- PROBLEMS
 - See Accounting-Problems; Auditing-Problems; Cost and factory accounting-Problems.
- **PROBLEMS** and practice sets for "Essentials of accounting". Paton, W. A., Briggs, R. P. and Laing, L. L.
- PROBLEMS and procedure in bank auditing. Hoyt, Chester.
- PROBLEMS and responsibilities of the Finance officer. American management association.
- PROBLEMS and trends in taxation. Cannon, Arthur
- **PROBLEMS** for "Essentials of accounting". Paton, William A., Briggs, R. P. and Laing, L. L.
- PROBLEMS in accounting. Hosmer, Windsor Arnold.
- **PROBLEMS** in costing airplanes. Mallet, Leonard C.
- **PROBLEMS** in income tax fundamentals. Boyd, Orton Wells and Pearce, Frederick Leon.
- PROBLEMS in retailing. McNair, Malcoln Gragg, Charles I., and Teele, Stanley F. Malcolm P.,
- PROBLEMS of depletion. Short, Frank G.
- PROBLEMS of distribution costs. Cost accountant, March 1936, p. 315-7.

400

- **PROBLEMS** of inventory taking and valuing, with particular reference to a woolen company. Nick-erson, Clarence B.
- **PROBLEMS** of present-day inventory valuation. Peloubet, Maurice E.
- **PROBLEMS** of uniform financial reports. Hurdman, Frederick H.
- **PROBLEMS** questions and discussion cases to accompany *Cost accounting, principles and methods.* Reitell, Charles and Johnston, C. E.
- **PROCEDURE** for hospital costs. United hospital fund of New York.
- PROCEDURE for patient service costs. United hos-pital fund of New York.
- **PROCEDURE** for proving of bank deposits and figuring of float. Smith, J. D.
- CEEDINGS of the first accounting clinic. Pennsylvania institute of certified public accoun-tants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American PROCEEDINGS institute of accountants.
- **PROCEEDINGS** of the first institute on accounting. Ohio state university. College of commerce and administration, Department of accounting.
- PROCEEDS from sale of treasury stock. (Account-ing questions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p: 264-6.

PROCESS COST ACCOUNTING See Cost and factory accounting-Process.

- PROCESS costs of 100 years ago. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 374.

PROCESSING TAX See Taxation, United States—Processing tax.

PROCHNOW, HERBERT V., joint author See Foulke, Roy A. and Prochnow, Herbert V.

PRODUCE

- See also Agriculture; Fruit; Grain; Wheat. Statistics
 - COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc., 1939. 616p.

PRODUCE TRADE

See also Fruit and vegetable trade.

See also Fruit and vegetable trade. Accounting BENNETT, GEORGE E. Accounting for the usual business in which the sale of feed is a major activity. (paper delivered, February 18, 1938, before the Eastern federation of feed merchants in convention assembled, Syracuse, New York) 22 typewritten pages.

Statistics

- tatistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of feed, grain and hay con-cerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. reports no. 19, 20.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of coöper-atives; feed, fertilizer and fuel and feed, grain and hay dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 20, 24, 25.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of fresh fruit and produce wholesalers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 53, 79, 103, 128, 182-3.) (1937 ed.-p. 54, 82, 108, 135, 198-9.) (In his Fourteen guides to functial stability. c1936. p. 36-7.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 38-9.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)
- **PRODUCERS** of crude cotton seed oil and refiners of cottonseed oil. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.
- **PRODUCTION** and cost control in the manufacture of cutlery. Dolliver, E. P.

- PRODUCTION CONTROL
 BARR, W. A. With never a post mortem; threeman plan provides cost and production control in 300-man job-order plant. Wastes neither time nor money on the 85 per cent of orders that go through without a hitch, shows up only the exceptions that need attention. Factory management and maintenance, May 1937, p. 45-7.
 CARTIMELL, N. M. Control of inventory investments. (In National association of cost accountants, Year book, 1938, p. 88-108.)
 DOLLIVER, E. P. Coördinating production and inventory control. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 90-100.)
 Printed with: Wibbelsman, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods.
 GUNTHER, C. F. Planning and production control in the factory. Society for the advancement of management journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 94-7.
 ROCHFORD, G. E. Production cost from the control post. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 93-5.

 - p. 93-5. TITUS, WALTER F. Production planning. Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 354-7.

PRODUCTION COSTS

See Cost and factory accounting-Production costs.

- (La) PROFESSION d'expert-comptable aux Etats-Unis. Perren, A.
- **PROFESSION** in Egypt; successful action by the Association of chartered accountants in Egypt. Accountant, July 22, 1939, p. 113-4.
- PROFESSION in England. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 8-9.
- PROFESSION in Ireland; a claim for professional fees. Accountant, Dec. 25, 1937, p. 877.
- PROFESSION of management and the function of the consulting management engineer. Associa-tion of consulting management engineers, inc.

PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS' FEES See Wages, fees, etc.—Accountants'

- PROFESSIONAL JEESSIONAL accountants' f journal, April 1938, p. 687-8. fees. Accountants'
- PROFESSIONAL charges. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 656.
- PROFESSIONAL classification of accountancy. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 323.

PROFESSIONAL ETHICS

See also Business ethics; Trial board. AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Canons of professional ethics also canons of judicial ethics. Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1933). 32p.

- Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1933). 32p.
 Same, Sept. 30, 1937. 50p.
 AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Opinions of the committee on professional ethics and griev-ances, with the canons of professional ethics annotated, and the canons of judicial ethics annotated, and the canons of judicial ethics annotated; with supplement of May 4, 1936 to July 24, 1937; numbers 155 to 174. Chicago, Ill., American bar association, 1936, 1937. 301p. supplement, p. 320-27.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. By-laws and rules of professional conduct as amended to December 1, 1936. New York, American institute of accountants, 1936. 16p.
 Same, 1937-1938. 1938. 16p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Rules of professional conduct. (In its 1935 year book, p. 352-4; 1936 year book, p. 504-6; 1937 year book, p. 544-6; 1938 year book, p. 178-80.)
 BARTON, H. M. Pitialls in the path of a professional accountant. Accountant, Oct. 16, 1937, p. 513-9.
 BELLMAN, HAROLD. Ethics of accountancy. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1938.

PROFESSIONAL ETHICS—(Continued)

p. 240-3, discussion, p. 243-7. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 603-6. CIRCULAR no. 230-Canons of legal ethics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937,

- (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 174-5.
 (COLORADO. State board of accountancy. Standards of professional conduct for certified public accountants and registered accountants of Colorado, (In its Practice of public accountancy in Colorado, Sept. 20, 1938. p. 8-9.)
 (COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE. INC. Official codes of ethics. (In its Accountancy law service. c1938. loose leaf.)
 CONNECTICUT. State board of accountancy. Causes for which a certificate may be revoked or suspended. (In its Information in regard to examinations for certificate of certified public accountant, October, 1939. p. 11.)
 COWAN-DOUGLAS, HUGH. Some thoughts on giving professional advice. Accountants' magarine, Jan. 1938, p. 16-24. Indian accountant, April 1938, p. 152-7.
 CREW, ALBERT. Characteristics and functions of a professional accountant. Accountants' magarine, Dec. 1938, p. 808-12; Feb. 1939, p. 105-9; March 1939, p. 180-4.
 CREW, ALBERT. Profession of accountancy-Professional etiquette and unprofessional conduct. Certified accountants journal, July 1939, p. 209-10; Aug. 1939, p. 240-2.
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Meaning of a professional sa an accountant sees it. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 16-7.

- p. 16-7. EDUCATIONAL meeting of the Massachusetts society (code of ethics adopted). Certified public accountant, May 1937, p. 23-4. ENFORCEMENT of professional ethics, (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p.
- 240.1
- 240-1. ETHICS in retrospect—Fruitfulness of honesty— Diminishing practice—Uselessness of professional advertising—Giving something for nothing— Ethics and common decency—Little foxes that spoil the vines—One evil which persists—Broad view. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1036 p. 313.0 1936, p. 313-9. FORUM on ethics. American engineer, June-July

- ¹⁹³⁶, p. 313-9.
 FORUM on ethics. American engineer, June-July 1938, p. 7.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Accounting education, ethics and training. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 258-62.
 HAMILTON, R. W. Income tax—a problem in ethics. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 18-22. Accountants' magasine, March 1936, p. 161-5.
 HILL, H. L. H. Professional etiquette. Queens-land accountants and secretaries' journal, Nov. 1, 1936 (December 1, 1935, issue) p. 270-1.
 HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Ethics and legal re-sponsibility. (In his Auditing, principles and procedure. 1939, p. 18-28.)
 INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN AUSTRALIA. Company pros-pectuses and certificates of estimated future profits. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 494.
 MIÇHIGAN. State board of accountancy. Rules
- profits. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 494. MICHIGAN. State board of accountancy. Rules of professional conduct. Ann Arbor, Mich., State board of accountancy, (1939). 1p. MINER, E. J. Some phases of professional ethics; discussion of address of John F. Forbes, San Exercised 2 transmitter process for the professional ethics;
- discussion of address of John F. Forbes, San Francisco, 3 typewritten pages. MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCI-ATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Code of ethics and professional conduct, adopted by MFOA in conference as-sembled, August 18, 1939. Municipal finance,
- sembled, August 18, 1939. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 95. PROFESSIONAL ethics. Bulletin of the Amer-ican institute of accountants, Dec. 15, 1936, p. 6-8. Accountant student and Accountants' jour-nal, May 1937, p. 2-3. PROFESSIONAL etiquette. Accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 226-8.
- REPORT of society committee on professional ethics. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 24-5.

- TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of the committee on rules of professional conduct; presented at the annual meeting of the Texas society held in San Antonio, Oct. 6 and 7, 1939. Texas accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 1, 3-4. "UNAUTHORIZED practice of law" controversy; a symposium edited by Paul H. Sanders. Law and contemporary problems, Winter, 1938, p. 1-174.
- 1-174
- 1-174. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Laws and regulations governing the recognition of agents, attorneys, and other persons representing claimants before the Treasury department and offices thereof. Washington, D. C., Treasury department, Office of the secretary, Sept. 15, 1936. 21p. (Department circular no. 230 (re-vised) vised).
- Supplement, section 3, as revised May 11, 1939.
- Supplement, section 3, as revised May 11, 1939. Mimeographed.
 UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT. (Editorial) Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 167-8. Jan. 1939, p. 201-2. (Correspondence) WILSON, H. A. R. J. Professional ethics. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 169-75. Indian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 100-6.
- Advertising ADVERTISING. Certified accountants journal,
- Advertising
 ADVERTISING. Certified accountants journal, Feb. 1938, p. 38-40.
 ADVERTISING accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 325-6.
 ADVERTISING in another profession. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 89.
 ATTACK on the fortunate few—Great success always is conspicuous—Method and motive must determine propriety. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Feb. 1936, p. 87-90.
 CASSON, HERBERT N. How can professional men find clients? Irish accountant and secretary, October/December 1938, p. 145.
 DIMINISHING practice—Uselessness of profes-sional advertising. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Nov. 1936, p. 314-6.
 HAMILTON, R. W. Right to specialize. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 190-4.
 HARTMAN, DAVID. Lessons from the advertis-ing dentist. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1936, p. 145-6.
 HIGHAM, CHARLES. Should a professional man advertise? Accountant, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 483-4.
 LOWEST and simplest. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 9.
 MEMBERS of reputable accountancy bodies do not advertise. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 412.

- 412 MENACE of the advertising accountant.
- nt. 1936, p. Jan. MENACE of the advertising accountant. (Edi-torial) Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 269-71. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 40-2. PEAKE, G. A. Advertising accountancy services. Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 316-7. STARTLING innovation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 4-5.

- Bidding AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 Executive committee. Competitive bidding for audit engagements. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 367-8. Reprinted. 19...
 BIDDING. (Editorial) Philippine accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 42.
 BRELSFORD, J. K. Competitive bidding. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 242-3.

 - BRELSFORD, J. K. Competitive bidding. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 242.3.
 BV-PRODUCTS of bidding. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 322.
 COATES, CHARLES F. Connecticut's rule against bidding. Certified public accountant, March 1938, p. 7-10.
 COMPETITIVE bidding. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 28; March 1938, p. 13.
 COMPETITIVE bidding. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 406-7; March 1938, p. 188-9; May 1938, p. 361-3; Sept. 1939, p. 148.
 COMPETITIVE bidding. (Editorial from Herald statesman, Yonkers, N. Y.) Certified public accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 14-5.

PROFESSIONAL ETHICS—Bidding—(Continued)

- PROFESSIONAL ETHICS—Bidding—(Continued)
 COMPETITIVE bidding. (resolution was adopted by the Central states accounting conference) Certified public accountant, July 1939, p. 17-8.
 COMPETITIVE bidding for accountaing engage-ments; a statement by the Illinois society of certified public accountants. Certified public ac-countant, Oct. 1939, p. 1-3.
 COMPETITIVE bidding for municipal audits. Certified public accountants, April 1938, p. 19-20.
 COMPETITIVE bidding in Ireland. Irish accoun-tant and secretary, May 1938, p. 76, 80.
 COMPETITIVE bidding not necessary. (Editorial) Journal of accountanty, Aug. 1936, p. 88-9.
 COMPETITIVE bids for municipal audits. Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 15-6.
 CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Full text of the committee on competitive bidding of accountants, New York, American institute of accountants, New York, American institute of accountants, New York, American institute of accountants, New 10, 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.
 EFFECTS of competitive bidding is logically unsound. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tant May 1937, p. 31.
 FRASER, EDWARD. Municipal accountant prac-tice. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant funt, May 1937, p. 31.
 FRUITS of bidding. Texas accountant, May 1937, p. 1-2.
 FRYLE, HUGH M. Competitive bidding. (Cor-

- FRUITS of bidding. *Lexus accommun.*, and *p. 12.* p. 1.2.
 FRYE, HUGH M. Competitive bidding. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 34.
 ILLINOIS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Competitive bidding for accounting engagements. Chicago, Ill., Illinois society of certified public accountants, Sept. 1939. society of certified public accountants, Sept. 1939. folde

- folder.
 LOWEST bidder again. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 8.
 MEHAN, R. I. Constitutionality of a rule against competitive bidding. Texas accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 5-7.
 ONE evil which persists. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 317-8.
 ROSSETTER, GEORGE W. Competitive bidding and solicitation; paper read before Central states accounting conference, Des Moines, Iowa, June 2, 1939. 10 typewritten pages.
 SAVINGS and loan associations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 322-4. Savings
- Al of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 322-4. Savings and loans, Feb. 1938, p. 15-6.
 WELCKER, WILLIAM H. Municipal account-ing in Pennsylvania. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 15-9.

Confidential communications

- BALDWIN, ARTHUR L. Matter of legally privileged confidence. *Report* (Colorado society of certified public accountants), April 1936, p. 3-5.

- 3-5. BETT, F. W. Accountant's duty as to secrecy. Federal accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 518-9. BILL to repeal. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 101-4. CONFIDENTIAL relationships in the professions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936,
- GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Privi-
- GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Privileged communications. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 468.
 HITT, MOUNTRIE. Should accountants yield working papers under dragnet subpoena? Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 316-9.
 HOW secret is the accountants' professional secret? (Editorial) Philippine accountants' journal. Sept. 1938, p. 328-30.
 INFORMATION returns by accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 241-3.
- 241-3. NEW YORK
- 241-3. EW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on cooperation with bankers and other credit grantors. Report of the Committee on coopera-tion with bankers and other credit grantors on results of meetings held with officials and mem-bers of the New York credit men's association. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 109-13. p. 109-13.

- PASCUAL, JOSE P. Has the Securities and exchange commission investigatory power over certified public accountants? *Philippine accountants*; *journal*, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.
 PRIVILEGED communications. *Bulletim of the American institute of accountants*; March 16.

- PRIVILÉGED communications. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March 16, 1936, p. 12-3. SECTION 340. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. (T.D. 4773) income tax—revenue act of 1937; regula-tions under title 2, relating to returns of in-formation with respect to foreign corporations. Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, Nov. 6, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages and form 959.

- Contingent fees
 ACCOUNTANT refused recovery on tax refund contract; giving opinion on interpretation of statute held practice of law. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 700.

 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Contingent-fee rule amended. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 133.

 - American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 13.
 CTTY court—trial term, by Evans, J.; Mandelbaum v. Gilbert and Barker. New York law journal, Oct. 10, 1936. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 22.
 CONTINGENT fees in Great Britain—Canadian view of the matter. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 6-7.
 GIVING something for nothing. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 316.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountants' fees in corporate reorganizations (Legal Notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 390-3; Dec. 1937, p. 464-8.
 SUCCESSFUL action for charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 376.

Estimating INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN AUSTRALIA. Company prospec-tuses and certificates of estimated future profits. *Chartered accountant in Australia*, July 1938, p. 59-66; Jan. 1939, p. 494; Sept. 1939, supplement. 3p.

Independence of accountants See also Accountants

- See also Accountants Independence of.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on professional ethics. (Amendment to rule 13 of rules of professional conduct.) (In its 1938 year book. p. 29.)
 "INDEPENDENCE" of accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 409-10.

- Soliciting ACCOUNTANT refused recovery on tax refund contract; giving opinion on interpretation of statute held practice of law. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 700.
 CITY court—trial term, by Evans, J.; Mandel-baum v. Gilbert and Barker. New York law journal, Oct. 10, 1936. Bulletin of the Ameri-can institute of accountants, Nov. 1936, p. 22.
 ROSSETTER, GEORGE W. Competitive bidding and solicitation; paper read before Central states accounting conference, Des Moines, Iowa, June 2. 1939. 10 typewritten pages.
 SOLICITATION of tax practice. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 15.
 STARTLING innovation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 4-5.

- Unauthorized practice of law See Law, Unauthorized practice of.
- PROFESSIONAL ethics. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Dec. 15, 1936, p. 6-8. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 2-3.
- PROFESSIONAL etiquette. Accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 226-8.
- PROFESSIONAL examinations. Accountant, Jan. 16, 1937, p. 74-6.

PROFESSIONAL FEES

See Wages, fees, etc.

PROFESSIONAL fees in reorganizations. notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor. (Legal

PROFESSIONAL MEN

- See also Accountants; Dentists; Lawyers; Physi-
- ROOKS, COLLIN. Professional man and the "distribution of leisure" problem. *Incorporated* accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 105-10, dis-cussion, p. 110-11. BROOKS,
- cussion, p. 110-11. CAREY, JOHN L. Address . . . delivered at 3rd annual convention N.S.P.E., New York City, October 9, 1937. American engineer, Dec. 1937,
- p. 5-6. HUGHES, HECTOR. More business links with the law. Accountant, March 19, 1938, p. 392-7. KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN, MIL-TON. Incomes from independent professional practice, 1929-1936. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 72-3, Feb. 5, 1939. PROFESSIONAL registration and practice. Cer-tified public accountant, March 1936, p. 152-4, 192
- PROFESSIONAL trust busting. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 139-40; Sept.
- ROSE, W. M. Some observations on the professions. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 406-10.

Accounting

- [CCE, SILAS P. Personal and professional ac-counting. Pathfinder service bulletin, May 1938, p. 1, 3-7, 8. RICE,
- p. 1, 5-7, 8. SHERWOOD, J. F. AND BOLING, CLEM. Accounting for a professional man. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1939. p. 99-132.)
- **PROFESSIONAL registration and practice.** Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 152-4, 192.
- PROFESSIONAL trust busting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 139-40; Sept. 1939, p. 149.

- PROFIT AND LOSS ADAMSON, A. Observed variations in form and presentation of business profit and loss accounts. Accountant, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 589-93; Nov. 6, 1937, p. 621-5.
 - 1937, p. 621-5.
 CHAMBERLAIN, HENRY T. Adjustments of fixed assets. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Papers on accounting principles and pro-cedure. 1938. p. 8-12.)
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Unusual gains and losses. (In his Accounting concepts of profit. c1939. p. 132-46.
 - 32-46.)
 - GROWING significance of the profit and loss account. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 301-3
 - 301-3. KETTLE, RUSSELL. Few remarks on balance sheets and profit and loss accounts. Accountant, April 8, 1939, p. 467-78, Canadian chartered ac-countant, June 1939, p. 410-30. TROUANT, D. L. Profit and loss. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 137-49.)

PROFIT SHARING See Wages, fees, etc.—Profit sharing.

- PROFIT-sharing and other supplementary-compensation plans covering wage earners. National in-dustrial conference board, inc.
- PROFIT sharing and pension plans. Winslow, C. Morton and Clark, K. Raymond.
- **PROFIT** sharing for industrial employees. Monthly labor review, Feb. 1938, p. 383-7.
- PROFIT sharing in two manufacturing companies. Monthly labor review, Sept. 1938, p. 588-90.
- **PROFIT** sharing is probably not the thing to do. Factory management and maintenance, May 1937, p. 51-2, 87-9.

PROFITABLE specialty shop operation. Engel, George C. and Kahn, Martin O.

PROFITEERING

See Profits.

PROFITS

- ROFITS See also Taxation, Great Britain—Profits; Taxation, United States—Undistributed profits.
 ARMAMENT profits. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 550-2; Oct. 29, 1938, p. 586-8.
 ARTHUR HENRY B. Something business can do about depressions. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 7-14.
 BYERLY, F. P. Determination of earnings and dividends under federal tax law. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 17-28.
 COOPER, W. F. Outline of profits. Accountant student and Accountants journal, July 1938, p. 92-4.
- 02.4
- 92-4. DAVIS, ALBION R. Standard profits and eco-nomic costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1220-8.) Printed with: Kohl, Clem N. What is wrong with most profit and loss statements?

- letin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1220-8.) Printed with: Kohl, Clem N. What is worng with most profit and loss statements?
 DEFENCE contracts: costs and profits. (extracts from report) Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 176-7.
 dePAULA, F. R. M. Profits available for dividend. (In his Principles of auditing. 1939, p. 201-14.)
 EAKIN, FRANZY. New methods of accounting for profits would improve national economy. Controller, June 1937, p. 160-6, 180.
 FRANK, JEROME N. Too much interest in interest; address before National association of securities commissioners, Kansas City, Mo., September 22, 1938, 11 mimeographed pages.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Accounting concepts of profit. New York, Ronald press co., c1939, 635p.
 GLASS, SPAULDING F. Excess profit on war materials under the Vinson act. Marine engineering and shipping review, Oct. 1938, p. 445.7, 476. Reprinted.
 HALLAMORE, A. S. Effect of fixed costs on profits. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 17-26.
 HOOPER, A. C. Profits. Accountant, Jan. 9, 1937, p. 57-60. Accountant's journal, Feb. 1938, p. 642-5.
 KENTER, ROY B. Profit-income and costs-and the profit and loss statement. (In his Principles of accounting end control. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., 1937, 3439.
 LEAHY, JAMES J. "70%"-distribution of profits under treasury decision 4914, section 102, internal revenue code. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1939, 699.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Business profits as a legal basis for dividends. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 51-61.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Contrasting theories of profits under treasury decision 4914, section 102, internal revenue code. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1939, 699.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Contrasting theories of profits Accounting review, March 1936, p. 10-5, comments by Walter Staub, p. 15-8.
 NEW "McLintock agreement". Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 1778.

- comments by Walter Statub, p. 13-5.
 NEW "McLintock agreement". Accountant, Aug. 5, 1939, p. 177-8.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Ascertainment of "earmings or profits" for the purpose of determining taxability of corporate distributions. Harvard law review, Nov. 1937, p. 40-75. (In his Selected studies in federal taxation. 1938. p. 149-99.)
 PERCENT profit based on selling price. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 94-7.)
 PHILLIPS, W. J. Re-armament and the prevention of excess profits. Accountant, April 25, 1936, p. 652-3.
 PROPERTY society summoned; a question of accountancy. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 454-6; April 9, 1938, p. 496-9.
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Differential cost and the effect of volume on profits. (In his Advanced cost accountain, 1939, p. 321-8.
 SLOAN, LAURENCE H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits; 1922-1933, 1934-19XX. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 428p.

404

PROFITS—(Continued)

- SMITH, H. L. Profits, business and platitudes. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, March 1938, p. 1-2, 3, 4-6. STOKES, R. R. Accountants and armaments profits. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 365-8. TEBEAU, ROBERT L. Dividend policies during the depression. Dun's review, April 1938, p. 7-12

- THESE 136 companies earn profits, good years and bad; check list of ten-year profit-makers shows names, addresses, kind of business, ad-vertising and distribution policies of 136 com-panies which have earned an annual profit for all the past ten years despite conditions. Ameri-can business, Nov. 1938, p. 21-4.
 TRUNDLE, GEORGE T., Jr. Your borrowers' profits; are they real or artificial? Rand McNally bankers monthly, Dec. 1936, p. 713-6.
 UNITED STATES. Maritime commission. Regu-lations prescribing method of determining profit in connection with contracts and subcon-tracts for the construction, reconditioning or reconstruction of ships for the United States maritime commission and information for con-tractors and subcontractors with respect to acmaritime commission and information for con-tractors and subcontractors with respect to ac-counting procedure in connection therewith, in-cluding determination of value for payment pur-poses. (Adopted May 4, 1939.) Washington, D. C., United States maritime commission, 1939. 23p. WELLINGTON, C. O. Cost, prices and profits. *Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin*, Dec. 1936, p. 165-71, discussion, p. 171-4. WOOD, JAMES. Adjustment of profits for in-come tax purposes. *Certified secretary*, July 1936, p. 115-26.

- Gross HADLEY, THOMAS D. Aspects of gross profit. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 95-101. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 444-8. PATON, W. A. "Gross profit" convention. Ac-counting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 19-20.

- Net
 CARTER, W. J. New theory of interpreting net profits; address delivered April 19, 1938, before the Atlanta chapter of the National association of cost accountants. 8p.
 KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Analysis of variation in net profit. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 429-32.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Analysis of net profit variations. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939, p. 509-25.)
- PROFITS from management. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 31-2, 74-5.
- **PROFITS** or losses on treasury stock. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p.
- PROGRAM of activities. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 14-5.
- PROGRAM of activities, 1936-1937. American institute of accountants
- PROGRAM of annual meeting. Certified public ac-countant, Sept. 1938, p. 7-9.
- PROGRAM of financial research. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 82-4.
- **PROGRAMME** of fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, September, 1938. Corporate accountant, July 1938, p. 88-9.
- **PROGRESS** toward accepted principles of municipal accounting. Morey, Lloyd.
- PROMISCUOUS auditing of public accounts. Searson, Louis A.

PROMISSORY NOTES

See Negotiable instruments; Notes receivable and payable.

PROMOTION

- DKEII, W. HAROLD. Random reflections of a company promoter. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 282-5.
 BUSINESS promotion costs. Horwath hotel ac-countant, March 1938, p. 4.
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Promotion. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 1-49.) BRETT, W. HAROLD. Random reflections of a

- PRONOUNCEMENTS on accounting procedure. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 145-7.
- PROPER treatment of delayed items. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 165-6.

PROPERTY

- ROPERTY See also Assets, Fixed; Real estate.
 BROOK, L. A. General distinctions between real and personal property. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Nov. 1937, p. 663-5.
 HORD, WARNER H. Flow of property as a basis of internal control. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 272-85.
 WINFREY, ROBLEY. Statistical analysis of in-dustrial property retirements. Ames, Iowa, Iowa state college of agriculture and mechanic arts, Dec. 1935. 176p. (Bulletin 125)

- Accounting AMERICAN
- AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION.
 Financial advisory service. Inventory of plant assets. Washington, D. C., American council on education, June 1939. 37p. (Series 5-Finan-cial advisory service, v. 3, no. 16.)
 CLADER, WILL-A. Organization tor the mainte-nance of continuing property records; address before the Third national accounting conterence, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, No-vember 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 543-4, 568.
 DEVITT, JOHN H. Accounting procedure for capital assets and depreciation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 139-60.)

 - p. 139-60.) DICK, KENNETH ANDREW. Study of institu-tional accounting for fixed assets; a thesis pre-sented in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of master of science in business of the degree of master of science in business of the University of Idaho graduate school. 1938.
- of the University of Idaho graduate school. 1938. 48 typewritten pages. GOTAAS, HAROLD B. Physical property records. Journal of the American water works associa-tion, March 1939, p. 517-25. HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Plant equipment records and procedure. (In his Accounting systems, de-sign and installation. c1936, p. 384-401.) HIMMELBLAU, DAVID. Present-day need for improved accounting for plant and equipment. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 106-16, discussion, p. 116-21.) HOSSACK, A. B. Accounting procedures for capital assets and depreciation. (In National as-sociation of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 121-39.)

- sociation of cost accountants. Year book, 1936.
 p. 121-39.)
 LAMB, CARTER H. Continued property record and its uses. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1616-22.
 LIPSCHUTZ, A. A. Coördination of the accoun-tant and the engineer in the fields of property accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 31-2.
 MARTZ, H. R. Engineer's comments on the con-trol of continuing property records; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 545-6. 545-6
- p. 545-6.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Accounting for plant and equipment. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1935. 47p.
 MITCHELL, WALTER K. Record of equipment and depreciation. Profit, Oct. 1937, p. 1, 3.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Accounting for public property. Chi-

PROPERTY-Accounting-(Continued)

- ROPERTY-Accounting-(Continued)
 cago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, May 1939. 42p. (Accounting publication no. 5.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Special problems in accounting for capital assets. Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1936, p. 185-98.
 RICHARDSON, W. S. Plant and machinery con-trol. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 177-83.
 RODEY, B. S., JR. Engineer's interest in unitized plant accounting. Edison electric institute bul-letin, May 1937, p. 173-6, 181.
 SCHWARTZ, WILLIAM J. Preparation and uses of a list of retirement units. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1623-6.
- 1623-6. TAYLOR, H. P. What the engineer and accountant can do about original cost and continuing property records. Edison electric institute bul-letim, Jan. 1939, p. 29-30, 35. WRIGHT, P. W. Accounting for fixed assets. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 10-6, 18-9.

Auditing TROUANT, D. L. Property, plant and equipment. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 73-87.)

PROPERTY INSURANCE See Insurance.

PROPERTY insurance. Huebner, S. S.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

See Real estate management.

- PROPERTY society summoned; a question of accoun-tancy. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 454-6; April 9, 1938, p. 496-9.
- PROPERTY TAXES
 - See Taxation-Property, under names of countries and states.
- **PROPOSAL** to tax undistributed corporate profits— Opposition wide-spread and insistent. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 401-3.
- **PROPOSED** amendments to the constitution and by-laws of the American bar association. American bar association.
- **PROPOSED** changes in the federal revenue law. American institute of accountants. Committee on federal taxation.
- **PROPOSED** graduated taxes on undistributed corpor-ate profits. May, George O.
- PROPOSED national defence contribution. Incorpor-ated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 344-8.
- **PROPOSED** procedural changes in federal tax prac-tice. Seidman, J. S.
- **PROPOSED** report; telephone investigation (pursuant to public resolution no. 8, 74th congress) United States. Federal communications commission.
- **PROPOSED** tax on undistributed earnings of corpora-tions. Bulletin of the American institute of ac-countants, April 1936, p. 11-3.

PROPRIETORSHIP

- GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Forms of or-GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Forms of or-ganization—individual proprietorship, partnership, joint adventure, and joint stock company. (In his *Financial organization and management of busi-*ness. 1936. p. 50-60.)
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. and AYARS, ROBERT D. Analysis of variations in pro-prietorship. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936. p. 23-9.)

Accounting SHERWOOD, J. F. AND BOLING, CLEM. Sole proprietorship. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1939. p. 323-6.)

PROSNITZ, LUDWIG B.

- ROSNITZ, LODWIG B. Accounting requirements under federal and state social security laws. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 22-7. Corporate income for 1936 should be estimated by December first; "close" corporations and the new tax on undistributed profits. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 334-5.

PROSPECTUSES

- See also Commentator; a department edited by William D. Cranstourn; Pepper pool case. APPEALS unsuccessful in Pepper pool case. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p.
- 354-8. INSTITUTE NSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUN-TANTS IN AUSTRALIA. Company prospec-tuses and certificates of estimated future profits. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1938, p. 59-60.

- 59-60. KILPATRICK, JAMES. Prospectuses of public companies—behind the scenes. Canadian char-tered accountant, April 1938, p. 237-56. McPHERSON, L. A. Prospectus. Brisbane, Ac-countants' and secretaries' educational society, inc., 1936. 16p. MAY, GEORGE O. Eating peas with your knife. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 15-22. Re-printed, 10p. PEPPER case. Incorborated accountants' journal.
- printed, 10p. PEPPER case. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 221-2; 225-8. Certified accountants journal, April 1936, p. 106-9. PEPPER case; judge's summing up. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1936, p. 199-208. PEPPER case; judgment on appeal. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 225-8. PEPPER pool case; a fraudulent prospectus con-viction. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936 p. 260.8

- PEPPER pool case; a fraudulent prospectus conviction. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1936, p. 260-8.
 PEPPER pool failure; alleged false prospectus. Accountant, Jan. 18, 1936, p. 103-4; Jan. 25, 1936, p. 135-6; Feb. 15, 1936, p. 256-9; Feb. 22, 1936, p. 286-96; Feb. 29, 1936, p. 323-37; March 7, 1936, p. 382-7; March 14, 1936, p. 418-26; March 21, 1936, p. 458-63; March 28, 1936, p. 494-501.
 TELLING half the truth—Investors beguiled by silence—Truth must be intelligible. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 433-50.
 WHITEWRIGHT, T. F. Prospectuses. Accountant, angazine, April 1939, p. 233-50.

- **PROTECTED** transactions in bankruptcy. Accountant, Feb. 4, 1939, p. 142-4.
- PROTECTION of dissenting shareholders. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 346-8.
- **PROTECTION** of the aged—Utopia is nothing novel— But let us be pragmatic—For the aid of a few —What about the constitutionality? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 1-4.

- PROVENCHER, A. J. Materials and supplies accounting system of the De-troit Edison company. Edison electric institute bulletim, Feb. 1938, p. 56-60, 71.
- **PROVINCIAL** taxation respecting corporations and individuals. Dominion association of chartered accountants.
- **PROVISION** for income tax by companies; a plea for uniformity in accounts. (reproduced from the Stock exchange gazette) Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 568.
- **PROVISIONS** of company pension plans from recent plans. Princeton university.

PROXIES

PROXIES. Certified accountants journal, March 1939, p. 66-9.

"PRUDENT INVESTMENT" See Public utilities—Valuation.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANCY See Accountancy.

PUBLIC accountancy in the United States. Webster, Norman E.

PUBLIC accountant and the budget. Boord, H. O.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS See Accountants.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS' ASSOCIATION OF ILLI-NOIS

Public accountant. (official organ) Chicago, Ill., Public accountants' association of Illinois.

- PUBLIC accountants not liable for mistakes in state-ment. (from Virginia law review, vol. 24, no. 3.) Philippine accountants' journal, April, May and June 1939, p. 79-80.
- PUBLIC ACCOUNTING See Accounting.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS See Counties—Accounting; Government—Accoun-ting; Institutions—Accounting; Municipal accoun-ting; Schools, colleges, etc.—Accounting; States -Accounting.

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION CLEARING HOUSE Directory of organizations in the field of public ad-ministration. Chicago, Ill., Public administration clearing house, 1936. 179p.

UBLIC ADMINISTRATION SERVICE PUBLICA-TIONS PUBLIC

MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Municipal finance legislation, 1937: a digest, by Irving Tenner. Chicago, Ill., Public administration service, 1938. 63p. (Public ad-ministration service publication, no. 59.)

PUBLIC DEBT See Debt, Public.

PUBLIC FINANCE See Government-Finance; Municipal finance; States - Finance.

PUBLIC finance. Buehler, Alfred G.

PUBLIC no. 740—74th congress (H.R. 12395) an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes. United States. Congress.

PUBLIC OFFICES See Government.

PUBLIC practice of accountancy. Pace, Homer St. Clair.

PUBLIC RELATIONS

- See also Accountancy—Practice. AITKEN, J. N., Jr. Future relationship of the certified public accountant and the public. (In American institute of accountants, Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 200.6.
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Plan book for public relations; prepared for the use of committees on public relations of state societies of certified public accountants and their chapters. New York, American institute of accountants (1938), not paged.
 Same, revised June 28, 1939. not paged.
 Subtract 1939, p. 13-5.
 BELISLE, EUGENE L. AND STODDARD, WILLIAM LEAVITT. Public relations com-mittees; a new management technique. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1938, p. 150-4, 160.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. Serving a public need; address at a dinner given by the American institute of. accountants and the New York state society of certified public accountants, January 30, 1939. New York, American insti-tute of accountants, 1939. 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 154-60.

- CAREY, JOHN L. Address . . . delivered at 3rd annual convention N.S.P.E., New York City, October 9, 1937. American engineer, Dec. 1937, 5-6.
- COLLINS, CLEM W. Accountancy and public affairs. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1938,
- CÓLLÍNS, CLEM W. Accountancy and public affairs. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 2-4.
 CÓLLÍNS, CLEM W. Place of accounting in the changing social order; address at the Mountain states accounting conference, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 31, 1938. 41 typewritten pages. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 89-101.)
 DAVIS, O. R. Accountants in public life; address at annual meeting, Kansas society of certified public accountants, at Wichita, Sept. 8, 1939. 10 typewritten pages.
 FERGUSON, C. E. H. Accountants should come "from behind the curtain". New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 17-9.
 GALE, FRANK A. Professional accounting has "a story to tell". Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 2-5.
 HARTWELL, JOBSON AND KIBBEE. Survey of stockholder opinion on some functions and responsibilities of the auditor. New York, Hartwell, Jobson and Kibbee, cl939. 90.
 HURDMAN, G. CHARLES. Services of public accountants to public bodies. Journal of accountancy in present day affairs; paper given at annual meeting of Montana society of certified public accountants, New York, Hartwell, JLINCOLN G. Place of professional accountancy in present day affairs; paper given at annual meeting of Montana society of certified public, MILTON, E. Profession and the public.

- written pages. LOOMIS, MILTON E. Profession and the public New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, 40-3
- p. 40-3. MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Accounting as credit aid; New Jersey C.P.A.'s have educational pro-gram. Credit and financial management, Sept.
- gram. Credit and financial management, Sept. 1939, p. 23-4. PUBLIC understanding of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 292-3. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Accounting in the public interest; address at Eastern four-states account-ing conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 7 mimeographed pages. Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1939, p. 23-8. STEWART, J. HAROLD. Publicity programs to be undertaken by state societies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 154-5.)
- p. 154-5.)

PUBLIC RELATIONS PLAN BOOK

See Plan book for public relations

PUBLIC SCHOOLS See Schools, colleges, etc.

PUBLIC service. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 6.

PUBLIC SPEAKING WITTY, RICHARD A. Public speaking. Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 458-60. Accountant, Oct. 10, 1936, p. 502-4. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 315-20.

PUBLIC understanding of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 292-3.

PUBLIC UTILITIES

- UBLIC UTILITIES See also Electric and street railroads; Electric light and power; Gas; Railroads; Telephone and telegraph; Water works; Public utilities reports. BOOTH, S. RUSSELL. Resumption of privately owned public utilities by public bodies, with particular reference to questions of goodwill, maintainable income and depreciation. (In Aus-tralaging compress on accounting Percenting) tralasian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936. p. 289-316, discussion, p. 317-35.) PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, INC. Public utilities reports (New series) containing deci-

PUBLIC UTILITIES—(Continued)

- sions of the regulatory commissions and of state and federal courts, edited by Henry C. Spurr. Washington, D. C., Public utilities re-ports, inc., 1936. no. 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, and annual.
- Same, 1937. nos. 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 and annual . Same, 1938. nos. 21, 22, 23, 24, 25 and
- annual -Same, 1939. nos. 26, 27, 28, 29, 30 and
- annual
- Connel, 1995. nos. 20, 21, 20, 29, 30 and annual.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Security issues of electric and gas utilities 1935-1936-1937; report of public utili-ties division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938, 5p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Security issues of electric and gas utilities 1935-1936-1937-1938; report of public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939, 8p.
 WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Public utility industries. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 412p.

- Accounting BACHRACH, HARRY. Importance of account-ing to a public utility commission. (In Railway accounting officers. Fifty-second annual report. 1937. p. 64-7.)
 BICKLEY, JOHN H. Original cost in utility ac-counts. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1937, p. 292-3.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Relationship of the Securities and exchange commission to the ac-countant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 23-39. 23-39.
 - BOHL, A. J. Proved economies in commercial ac-counting operations; address before the third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 14, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p.
 - Edison electric insuince onnerm, acceleration 523-6. BOWLBY, J. M. Address before Illinois society of certified public accountants, May 1, 1936. 9 typewritten pages. Bulletin of the American in-stitute of accountants, June 15, 1936, p. 13. (extracts) BRETT, FRANCIS J. Accountant is perplexed. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 533.6

 - Edison electric institute content, 2010, 1533-6.
 BRETT, FRANCIS J. Utility company accounting problems may become those of all industries. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 301-4.
 DOUGHERTY, J. JAY. Certain aspects of public accounting of interest to the public accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 17-21.
 EDISON ELECTRIC INSTITUTE. Third national accounting conference; complete program

 - countant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 17-21.
 EDISON ELECTRIC INSTITUTE. Third national accounting conference; complete program and who's who of the speakers, November 13, 14, 15, 1939, Edgewater Beach Hotel, Chicago. New York, Edison electric institute, 1939, 16p.
 GRIFFITH, F. L. Utility arithmetic and the utility accountant; address before the Third national accountant; on the speakers, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute, Builton, Nov. 1939, p. 539-42.
 HERY, E. G. Note on public utility operating property accounting tedison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1936, p. 335-6, 350.
 HORNE, HENRY A. Inconsistencies in accounting requirements of state and federal regulatory bodies. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 303-9.
 MCRNE, J. W. H. Plant account (public utility)

 - 303-9.

 - 303.9.
 JACKSON, J. W. H. Plant assets (public utility). Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 11-5.
 KELLER, E. N. Customer accounting problems in connection with statistics for federal power com-mission reports. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1939, p. 596-7.
 - KLUG, V. CHILDS. Accounting treatment of un-amortized discount and premium in utility re-

- funding operations. (reprinted from the Journal of land and public utility economics, Nov. 1936.)
 LEE, RAYMOND E. Utility accounting methods. Journal of the American water works association, March 1936, p. 389-401.
 LIPSCHUTZ, A. A. Coördination of the accountant and the engineer in the fields of property accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 31-2.
 LIVINGSTON, D. M. Accounting problems of public utilities; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 15 typewritten pages.
 LUNN, GEORGE C. Principles of public utility accounting. Cost and management, April 1939, p. 133-6.

- LUNN, GEORGE C. Frinciples of puone utility accounting. Cost and management, April 1939, p. 133-6.
 MILEY, M. J. Balance sheet accounts and the public interest. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1939, p. 598-600.
 NASH, LUTHER R. Fundamentals of utility accounting. Edison electric institute bulletik, June 1936, p. 245-51.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Committee on public utility statistics and accounts. Symposium on accounting for unamortized debt discount and call premiums on refunded debt discount and call premiums on refunded debt issues. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, 1939, 46p.
 PUBLIC utility accounting. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 6-8; ANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Reality in accounting. American gas journal, Nov. 1939, p. 38-40, 60.
 SMITH, G. MEREDITH. Some problems of accounting in a gas or electric public utility company. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 179-88.

- counting in a gas or electric public unity company. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1936, p. 179-88.
 SMITH, NELSON LEE. Accounting and property records in the regulation and management of public utilities. American gas association monthly, May 1939, p. 187-9, 199-200.
 SQUIRE, WALTER L. Organization of a property record department of a public utility company. Edison electric institute bulletin, Aug. 1938, p. 367-8, 370, 379.
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Illustrative stabilization of a public utility. (In his Stabilized accounting, 1936, p. 54-104.)
 TAYLOR, H. P. What the engineer and accountant can do about original cost and continuing property records. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 29-30, 35.
 THIRD national accounting conference. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 505-9.
 WHAT others think—the expanding role of accountancy in regulation. Public utilities fortmightly, July 6, 1939, p. 45-8.

- Uniform methods and systems ABRAMS, ERNEST R. Regulation of electric utilities by accounting. Commercial and financial chronicle, April 3, 1937, p. 2204-7. AMERICAN utilities and asset values. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 610-2. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 24-7. CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. Comments suggestions, and criticism with respect
- Comments, suggestions, and criticism with respect to the Federal power commission's tentative draft of a uniform system of accounts prescribed for of a uniform system of accounts prescribed for public utilities and licensees subject to the pro-visions of the federal power act (approved Au-gust 26, 1935). New York, Controllers institute of America, March 31, 1936. 57p. COURT decision on "original cost". (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7. COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone companies Lowreal of accountancy. Lon 1937, p.

- COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone companies. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 55-64. Accountant, May 1. 1937, p. 629-32.
 McANANLY, FRANCIS J. Characteristics of regulated accounting for the public utility indus-try. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 23-9.
- MOREHOUSE, E. W. Innovations in public utility accounting regulation. Yale law journal, April 1937, p. 955-84.
- NASH, LUTHER R. New accounting program;

PUBLIC UTILITIES—Accounting—Uniform methods and systems-(Continued)

- and systems—(Continued)
 problems arising under the electric power classification prescribed by federal and state utility commissions, with particular reference to original cost of property. Public utilities fortnightly, May 27, 1937, p. 665-74.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Report of committee on statistics and accounts of public utility companies. (In its Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention. 1936, p. 49-69.) (In its Proceedings of fiftieth annual convention. 1938, p. 55-66.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Report of the executive committee recommending adoption.
- AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Report of the executive committee recommending adop-tion of a uniform system of accounts for electric utilities. (In its Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention... 1936. p. 69-105.) NEW YORK court of appeals decision on uniform encoder of accounts. (Interview concurrent Large

- binnal control of appeals decision on uniform system of accounts. American gas journal, June 1936, p. 34, 50.
 "ORIGINAL cost" in utility accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8.
 SMITH, CHARLES W. Problems in uniform utility accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 515-65, 550.
 SMITH, CHARLES W. Uniform system of accounts of the Federal power commission. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 153-62.
 TROXEL, C. EMERY. Improvements of public utility accounting. Journal of business of the University of Chicago, Jan. 1938, p. 1-20.
 UNITED STATES. Federal power commission. Interpretation of accounts—issue no. 1 (cases 1 to 8, inclusive). Washington, D. C., Federal power commission, May 8, 1937. 3 mineographed pages. Summer issues a count of the sector of the pages. Summer issues a count of the sector. pages.

- Uniform system of accounts for public utilities and licensees, appendix 3; application of uniform system of accounts to class C and class D public utilities and licensees, effective January 1, 1939. Washington, D. C., Federal power commission, 1936. 27 mimeographed pages. UNITED STATES. Federal power commission Uniform system of accounts prescribed for class C and class D public utilities and licensees sub-ject to the provisions of the federal power act; supersedes as to class C and class D licensees the system of accounts prescribed under federal water power act; first preliminary draft August 8th, 1936. Washington, D. C., Federal water power commission, 1936. 185 mimeographed pages. pages
- UNITED STATES. Federal power commission.
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-MIED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Uniform system of accounts for mutual service companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, effective August 1, 1936. Washington. D. C., Securities and exchange com-mission, 1936. 24p.

UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-

mission. Uniform system of accounts for public utility holding companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, dated August 8, 1936, effective January 1, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 35p.

Auditing SMAILS, R. G. H. Public utility companies. (In his Auditing. 1937. p. 315-20.)

Cost accounting DAVIDSON, H. C. Cost allocations in combina-tion companies. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 493-5, 498.

Costs osts NEWTON, FRANK A. Subsidized "yardstick"; TVA electric rates shown to be higher than pri-vate company rates when the "yardstick" is applied on a fair basis, and the same privileges granted the private company that the federal project enjoys. Public utilities fortnightly, March 31, 1938, p. 408-12. "ORIGINAL cost" in utility accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8.

Depreciation

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence— Public utilities.

- Finance DAHL, LAWRENCE G. Some comments on pub-lic utility refunding operations. Journal of land and public utility economics, Aug. 1936, p. 256-63. J. Public utility financing under the

 - 256-63.
 REIS, M. J. Public utility financing under the holding company act. Public utilities fortnightly, Jan. 21, 1937, p. 89-94.
 WATERMAN, MERWIN H. Public utility financ-ing, 1930-35. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936. 622p. (Michi-gan business studies, v. 7, no. 4.)
 WATERMAN, MERWIN H. Utility financing under the holding company act; trend and scope of federal regulation as shown by SEC rules and decisions. Public utilities fortnightly, Feb. 16, 1939, p. 195-208.

Great Britain McDIARMID, FERGUS J. How th finance their public utilities. Public fortnightly, Nov. 23, 1939, p. 675-85. How the British es. Public utilities

Government competition with See Government competition with business.

Government investigations UNITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Utility corporations; summary report of the Federal trade commission to the senate of the United States pursuant to senate resolution no. 83, 70th congress, 1st session, on economic, financial, and corporate phases of holding and operating companies of electric and gas utilities. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1935. 882p. (Senate document 92, part 72-A)

- Government regulation and control ABRAMS, ERNEST R. Regulation of utilities or public ownership? *Public utilities fortnightly*, March 16, 1939, p. 334-42.
 BATY, LAURENCE E. Model state commission for utility regulation. *Public utilities fortnightly*, Aug. 13, 1936, p. 187-95; Aug. 27, 1936, p. 241-7.
 BALTER LOUN Concents of unital unit in

 - 241.7,
 BAUER, JOHN. Concepts of capital and income in the regulation of public utilities. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 22-9.
 BAUER, JOHN. Relative failure or adequacy of public utility regulation. Public utilities fort-nightly, Aug. 19, 1937, p. 217-24.
 BUSSING. IRVIN. Public utility regulation and the so-called sliding scale; a study of the sliding scale as a means of encouraging and rewarding efficiency in the management of regulated mo-nopolies. New York, Columbia university press, 1936. 174p. nopolies. New York, Columbia university press, 1936. 174p. CREMER, GEORGE S. Some dangers of over-

PUBLIC UTILITIES-Government regulation and control-(Continued)

- trol—(Continued)
 regulation. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 77-81.
 ELGEN, RILEY E. How better utility regulation can be achieved; cease sparring for legal advantage, says author, and adopt the sliding-scale method of rate adjustment. Satisfactory results of the so-called "Washington Plan" of rate control. Public utilities fortnightly, April 23, 1936, p. 531-41.
 FEDERAL regulation of holding companies: the public utility act of 1935. Yale law journal, Jan. 1936, p. 468-95.
 FORBES, JOHN F. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin Sentember. 1938; maers given in English.)
- FÖRBES, JÖHN F. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting, Ber-lin, September, 1938; papers given in English.) Accountancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 15-9. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 598-603. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 390-8. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 1-18, 205-20.)
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Aspects of the organization, functions, and financing of state public utility commissions; by C. O. Ruggles. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass. Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, April 1937. 90p. (Business re-search studies no. 18.)
 HEALY, ROBERT E. Address before the Harvard business school, Boston, Massachusetts, June 16, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 12 mimeographed pages.
 HELLEBRANDT, EDWIN T. Public utility hold-ing companies and their regulation in Ohio. Har-vard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 464-72.
 HORNE, HENRY A. Inconsistencies in accounting requirements of state and federal regulatory bodies. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 303-9.

- 303-9.
- 303.9. McANANLY, FRANCIS J. Characteristics of regulated accounting for the public utility in-dustry. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 23-9. MOREHOUSE, E. W. Federal and state regu-lations, and management attitudes. Edison elec-tric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 512-4, 451
- 551
- 551. MOREHOUSE, E. W. Innovations in public utility accounting regulation. Yale law journal, April 1937, p. 955-84. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Re-port of special committee on progress in public utility regulation. (In its Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention. 1936. p. 360-409.) PEGRUM. DUDLEY F. Regulation of public

- forty-eighth annual convention. 1936. p. 360-409.
 PEGRUM, DUDLEY F. Regulation of public utility securities in California. Public utilities fortmichty, July 7, 1938, p. 22-8.
 SIMPSON, HERBERT D. Conflict of regulatory and taxing policies in the public utility field. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 237-43.)
 SMITH, GEORGE OTIS. Public utility regulation or public competition? Public utilities fortnight-ly, May 21, 1936, p. 651-63.
 SMITH, NELSON LEE. Accounting and property records in the regulation and management of public utilities. American gas association month-ly, May 1939, p. 187-9, 199-200.
 SMITH, NELSON LEE. Regulation and ac-counting. (In American gas association month-ly, May 1939, p. 187-9, 199-200.
 SMITH, NELSON LEE. Regulation and ac-counting. (In American gas association. Pro-ceedings, 1936, p. 151-9.)
 SPURR, HENRY C. Bit of jay walking in the regulatory highway. Public utilities fortnightly, June 10, 1937, p. 742-50.
 SPURR, HENRY C. Has utility regulation been reduced to negotiation and wheedling? Public utilities fortnightly, Sept. 2, 1937, p. 259-68.
 SPURR, HENRY C. State commissions and pub-lic utility rates. Public utilities fortnightly, July 7, 1938, p. 3-15.

- STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States. (address de-livered at the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf. Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 133-59.)
 STOTZ, LOUIS AND JAMISON, ALEXANDER. Regulation of public utilities. (In their History of the gas industry. c1938, p. 412-534.)
 TROXEL, C. EMERY. Depression-hued regulation of public utilities. *Public utilities fortmightly*, June 24, 1937, p. 787-96; July 8, 1937, p. 12-20.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and explanate comparison.

- Minus, June L., 1997, p. 101-95, July G, 1987, p. 12-20.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. General rules and regulations and forms under the public utility holding company act of 1935; May 15, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 180p.
 VAN METER, KARL K. Evolution of public utility regulation. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 20-2.
 WELCH, FRANCIS X. How do the state commissioners feel about regulating public ownership? Public utilities forthightly, Nov. 10, 1938, p. 611-21.
 WHAT others think—the expanding role of ac-

- ship: Furth unmers presented in the second second
- Great Britain HOWITT, HAROLD. Methods of computing cost and control of prices by public authorities. Ac-countant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 561-72. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 00.132.
- 99-132.) OWNERSHIP without control. Accountant, Dec. 10, 1938, p. 790-1.

Netherlands LINDNER, J. A. M. F. AND KOPPENBERG, W. E. Methods of computing costs and control of prices by public authorities. (In V. inter-nationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. *Kongress-archiv*, 1938. band D. thema 8, p. 133-68.)

Law

- United States
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Public utility holding company act of 1935. (In its New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1936. p. 146-73.)
 MECK, JOHN F. AND CARY, WILLIAM LUCIUS. Regulation of corporate finance and management under the public utility holding company act of 1935. Harvard law review, Dec. 1938, p. 216-58.
 FEORGANIZATIONS under section 11 (a) of

- management under the point arms, some company act of 1935, Harvard law review, Dec. 1938, p. 216-58.
 REORGANIZATIONS under section 11 (g) of the public utility holding company act. Yale law journal, Nov. 1939, p. 65-74.
 UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce commission or related sections of certain supplementary acts, revised to October 1, 1935.
 Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1935.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. General rules and regulations and forms under the public utility holding company act of 1935; May 15, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937, 180p.
 Same, amended to and including July 1, 1938. various paging.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Official summary of security transactions and holdings reported to the Securities exchange act of 1935. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission under the securities exchange and exchange commission. (pamphlets)

PUBLIC UTILITIES—(Continued)

- Rates
 - ates BERKSON, PINCUS M. When the commissions disregard legislative rate standards. *Public utili-ties formightly*, Aug. 4, 1938, p. 143-51. BERNSTEIN, E. M. Public utility rate making and the price level. Chapel Hill, N. C., Uni-versity of North Carolina press, 1937. 142p. BINAMIRA, I. V. Fundamental legal principles in fiving utility rates. *Philipbing accountants jour*.

 - BINAMIRA, I. V. Fundamental legal principles in fixing utility rates. Philippine accountants' jour-nal, July 1938, p. 269-76.
 EBERLE, GEORGE J. Value-of-the-service factor in utility rate making. Public utilities fortmightly, March 12, 1936, p. 363-73; March 26, 1936, p. 426-34; April 9, 1936, p. 488-97.
 FAMILIAR controversy. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 401-3.
 GILMAN, EDGAR DOW. Relative cost of elec-tricity not shown by comparison of rate schedules. Public utilities fortmightly. April 9, 1936, p. 479-

 - Public utilities fortnightly, April 9, 1936, p. 479-
 - Autone utilities forminghety, Apili 9, 1930, p. 479-85.
 HARBESON, ROBERT W. Recent effort to improve rate regulation: temporay rate orders in New York. Journal of land and public utility economics, Feb. 1937, p. 78-86.
 HOWARD, STANLEY E. Rate base and the depreciation base in recent public utility cases. American economic review, June 1936, p. 258-71.
 JACKSON, IRWIN E., JR. Temporary rate making comes of age. Public utilities fortnightly, Dec. 7, 1939, p. 723-32.
 KREBS, W. S. Public-utility depreciation in its relation to the rate base. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 93-108.
 MADDEN, JOHN T. Prudent investment principle. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 8-12.

 - 8-12

 - NASH, LUTHER R. Effect of added business on rate reduction losses. Public utilities fortnightly, Dec. 22, 1938, p. 810-7.
 NEWTON, FRANK A. Subsidized "yardstick"; TVA electric rates shown to be higher than private company rates when the "yardstick" is applied on a fair basis, the same privileges granted the private company that the federal project enjoys. Public utilities fortnightly, March 31, 1938, p. 408-12.
 NICHOLS, ELLSWORTH. What is the so-called prudent investment theory? Public utilities fortnightly, April 14, 1938, p. 463-8
 POLLOCK, WALTER W. Familiar controversy. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61-4.

 - 1938, p. 61-4. RUGGLES, C. O. Some rate-making and marketing problems of public utilities. (In Harvard uni-versity, Graduate school of business administra-225 tion. Business and modern society. 1938. p. 385-411.)

 - RUGGLES, C. O. Utility rates. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 50-63. SPURR, HENRY C. State commissions and nub-lic utility rates. Public utilities fortnightly,
 - JULY TO AND A STATE COMMISSIONS and Dublic utility rates. Public utilities fortnightly, July 7, 1938, p. 3-15.
 TROXEL, C. EMERY. Depression-hued regula-tion of public utilities. Public utilities fortnightly, June 24, 1937, p. 787-96; July 8, 1937, p. 12-20.
 - June 27, 1337, p. 787-90; July 8, 1937, p. 12-20. 7ILSON. G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Principles of rate making. (In their *Public utility industries*. 1936. p. 26-50.) WILSON.

- Sliding scale CHANTLER, PHILIP. London sliding scale: in-centive and efficiency in the British gas industry. Journal of land and public utility economics, Aug. 1936, p. 228-37.
- Aug. 1936, p. 226-37. ELGEN, RILEY E. How better utility regulation can be achieved, cease sparring for legal ad-vantage, says author, and adout the sliding-scale method of rate adiustment. Satisfactory results of the so-called "Washington plan" of rate con-trol. *Public utilities fortnightly*, April 23, 1936, p. 531-41.
- ROBERTS, WILLIAM A. How the "sliding scale" reduces rates; success of the so-called Washing-ton plan of rate regulation. *Public utilities fort-nightly*, July 2, 1936, p. 11-20.

Societies

See National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.

Statistics

- tatistics BURROWS, ROBERT A. New 1939 utility chart; electric light and power, gas, transportation, water, communications, investment companies, etc., showing at a glance inter-relation and capitalization of the principal public utility hold-ing, operating and investment companies as of June 1, 1939, also service area maps of the principal public utility systems in the United States. Pittsburgh, Pa., First national bank build-ing, The author, c1939, chart. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Financial statistics for electric and gas subsidiaries of registered public-utility holding companies, year 1938; report of Public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, June 1939. 14p.

Taxation

- BRAUNSTEIN, JACQUES, AND JOHNSON, MARK H. Public utility depreciation and the income tax. Harvard law review, May 1939, p.

- income tax. Harvard law review, May 1939, p. 1077-1104.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Taxation of railroads and other public utilities. (In his Public finance, 1936, p. 466-87.)
 OAKES, E. E. Taxation or exemption of municipally owned utilities. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 243-54.)
 SIMPSON, HERBERT D. Conflict of regulatory and taxing policies in the public utility field. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 237-43.) 237-43.)
- TROXEL, C. EMERY. Relation of rate and tax values of public utilities. Taxes—the tax maga-sine, May 1939, p. 276-8, 315-6.

Valuation

- AMERICAN utilities and asset values. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 610-2. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 24-7. BARBER, EARL H. Futility of regulation by valuation. Public utilities fortnightly, March 18,
- BARBER, EARL I. Fulling of regulation by valuation. Public utilities fortmightly, March 18, 1937, p. 361-8.
 BAUER, JOHN. Prudent investment; can it be used as the future basis of public utility rate control? Public utilities fortmightly, June 23, 1938, p. 793-7.
 BEMIS, LLOYD. Going value is still with us and why not? Public utilities fortmightly, March 4, 1937, p. 284-92.
 BERNSTEIN, E. M. Public utility rate making and the price level. Chapel Hill, N. C., University of North Carolina press, 1937, 142p.
 BONBRIGHT, JAMES C. Valuation of public utility properties for tax purposes. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937, p. 212-9.)
 BOYRER, WILLIAM C. Going value? Public utilities fortnightly, May 7, 1936, p. 608-13.
 CLEARY, J. V. Original cost determination. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 487-90, 492.
 COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone

- COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone
- COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone companies. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 55-64. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 629-32.
 ELGEN, RILEY E. Utilities' valuation theory upheld; six justices reaffirm "fair value" rule of "rate-making" desired by utilities. Barron's, April 24, 1939, p. 9.
 ELY, OWEN. Utility stock fluctuation; varying sales ratios since 1928 and the present utility securities outlook. Public utilities fortnightly, Nov. 25, 1937, p. 703-8.
 ENDRES, H. W. Original cost determination. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 491-2.
- 401-2
- FAMILIAR controversy. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 401-3. GRAHAM, WILLARD I. AND KATZ, WILBER
- G. Public utility valuation and depreciation. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 226-74
- MADDEN, JOHN T. Prudent investment prin-

PUBLIC UTILITIES-Valuation-(Continued)

- ciples. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan.
- ciples. Edison electric institute outlein, Jain. 1938, p. 8-12. MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Valuation of public utilities. (In their Engineer-ing valuation. 1936. p. 455-69.) NASH, LUTHER R. Is reproduction cost becom-ing obsolete as an element in utility fair value? Public utilities fortnightly, May 26, 1938, p. 657.64 657-64.
- Public utilities fortmignity, May 20, 1950, p. 657-64.
 NASH, LUTHER R. That loss-in-value rule in depreciation accounting. Public utilities fortmightly, May 25, 1939, p. 653-63.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Report of the committee on valuation. (In its Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention . . . 1936, p. 109-19.)
 NETTLETON, TULLY. Can value be determined by a slide-rule method? Public utilities fortmightly, April 14, 1938, p. 19-26.
 NICHOLS, ELLSWORTH. What is the so-called prudent investment theory? Public utilities fortmightly, April 14, 1938, p. 463-8.
 POLLOCK, WALTER W. Familiar controversy. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61-4.

- (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61-4. POTTS, ERNEST CLIFFORD. What is a fair price to pay for a utility plant? Public utilities fortnightly, Sept. 1, 1938, p. 310-15. SIMPSON, HERBERT D. Conflict of regulatory and taxing policies in the public utility field. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 237 43) 237-43.)
- SLAFF, SAMUEL AND SLAFF, GEORGE. Place of "substitute plant" in utility valuations. Public utilities fortnightly, July 21, 1938, p. 74-
- STEINBERGER, E. A. Valuation of utility prop-erties. Gas age record and Natural gas, Oct. 24, 1936. p. 447-50, 452. TROXEL, C. EMERY. Relation of rate and tax
- TROXEL, C. EMERY. Relation of rate and tax values of public utilities. Taxes—the tax maga-zine, May 1939, p. 276-8, 315-6.
 WHEAT, CARL I. Present as compared with original cost of construction. Public utilities fort-nightly, Aug. 5, 1937, p. 131-43.

- PUBLIC UTILITIES REPORTS, INC. Public utilities reports (new series) containing de-cisions of the regulatory commissions and of state and federal courts, edited by Henry C. Spurr. Washington. D. C., Public utilities reports, inc., 1936. nos. 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, and annual.
 - annual. ... -Same, 1938. nos. 21, 22, 23, 24, 25 and
 - annual. Same, 1939. nos. 26, 27, 28, 29, 30 and
 - annual.
- PUBLIC utility. (Commentator) Cranstoun, William D., editor.
- **PUBLIC** utility accounting. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 1936, p. 6-8; Aug. 1936, p. 6-8.

- PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSIONS HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of ARVARD UNIVERSITY, Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business re-search. Aspects of the organization, functions, and financing of state public utility commis-sions; bv C. O. Ruggles, Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration, April 1937, 90p. (Busi-merce present studies no. 18.) ness research studies no. 18.)
- PUBLIC utility depreciation and the income tax. Braunstein, Jacques, and Johnson, Mark H.
- PUBLIC utility financing, 1930-35. Waterman, Merwin H.
- PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDING COMPANY ACT See Holding companies—Law—United States; Public utilities—Law—United States.
- PUBLIC utility industries. Wilson, G. Lloyd, Her-ring, James M. and Eutsler, Roland B.

,

PUBLIC utility rate making and the price level. Bernstein, E. M.

PUBLIC utility regulation and the so-called sliding scale. Bussing, Irvin.

PUBLIC WELFARE

See Social work; Unemployment relief.

PUBLIC WORKS

PAY as you go. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1936, p. 7.

Accounting CANTAMESSNER, FELIX N. P.W.A. account-ing. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 4, March 24, 1938.)

Costs

- GLAESER, MARTIN G. Those joint TVA costs. public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p.
- 259-69. RIGGS, HENRY EARLE. Waste in ill-considered federal public works projects. Public utilities
- federal public works projects. Public utilities fortnightly, March 31, 1938, p. 387-97. RIGGS, HENRY EARLE. What will the federal power program eventually cost? Public utilities fortnightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 455-63.

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION See United States. Public works administration. PUBLICATIONS

See Magazines; Newspapers; Periodicals.

PUBLICITY

See Professional ethics—Advertising; Public re-lations; Publicity of accounts.

PUBLICITY OF ACCOUNTS
 PARKINSON, HARGREAVES. Disclosure in published accounts. Cost accountant, April 1937, p. 337-43. Accountant June 19, 1937, p. 873-7; April 15, 1939, p. 502-6.
 SMITH, FRANK P. Stock exchange listing re-quirements, and publicity. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 35-42.

- PUBLISHED financial statements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 84.

PUBLISHING

See also Newspapers; Magazines; Printing.

Accounting TAX accounting vs. commercial practice. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 5.

Cost accounting SUMMARY of answers to questionnaire—Ac-counting for the cost of book plates. (1938) 1 typewritten page.

Costs WHAT is circulation expense? Circulation man-agement, Feb. 1937, p. 10-11, 34.

- Statistics
 - atistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of publishers of books and magazines. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 52, 78, 102, 127, 180-1.) (1937 ed.—p. 53, 81, 107, 134, 196-7.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 43-5.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 34-5.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 24-5.)

PUDER, A. H.

JDER, A. H. Inequities of capital gain and loss provisions of revenue act of 1936. Accounting ledger, Feb 23, 1938, p. 12-4, 28.

- PUGH, JOSEPH J.
 Coöperation between bankers and accountants. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 49-51.
 Some tax considerations in the preparation of wills and deeds. Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 335-7, 370.

PULFORD, E. A.

Recovering lazy capital; how slow accounts add to business costs. Credit and financial management, April 1939, p. 16-7.

PULIDO, REYNALDO F. Preparing for the C.P.A. examination. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 359-61.

PULPWOOD

See Lumber; Paper, cardboard, etc.

PUNCHED CARD ACCOUNTING See Mechanical devices-Tabulating and sorting.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS See Commitments.

PURCHASE DISCOUNT See Discount.

PURCHASE discounts. Barloon, Marvin J.

- PURCHASE of radio station. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 345-7.
- PURCHASE option and depreciation on leased prop-erty. (Accounting questions) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1939, p. 242-3.
- PURCHASE option and depreciation on leased prop-erty. (Correspondence) Rauh, Julius J.
- PURCHASES and sales between a company and its directors. Accountant, June 18, 1939, p. 830-2.

PURCHASING

- URCHASING
 ALFORD, H. E. Purchase orders. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1938, p. 4-5.
 BARLOON, MARVIN J. Purchase discounts; allocation of responsibility between financial control and the purchasing function. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 337-42.
 FIELDING, H. G. Buying organization and ac-counts payable. (Printed with: Hill, S. A. Retail method of merchandise accounting. June 1939, p. 14-23.)
 HAYES, F. ALBERT. Constructive purchasing policies. Cost and management, Oct. 1938, p. 25-86.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Purchasing and re-

- 275-86.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Purchasing and receiving procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation, c1936. p. 402-16.)
 INDUSTRIAL procurement. Cost and management, July 1936, p. 220-4.
 KESTER, ROY B. Stock control and accounting. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 621-35.) 621-35.
- B. 621-35., BENJAMIN S. AND SHAPIRO, HAROLD ROLAND. Collective purchasing functions of trade associations. (In their Trade associations in law and business. 1938. p. 294-320.)
- MARSH, SAM A. Co-ordinating purchasing policies for material control. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 55-65.
- NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Merchandising division. Buyer's manual. rev. ed. New York, National retail dry goods association, c1937. 372p.
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Buying. (In his Retail store operation. c1937. p. 80-132.)
 PURCHASING procedure. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 557-80.)
 REYNELL, CARLETON. Modern purchasing. Sociate for the advancement of management

- handbook. 1937. p. 557-80.) REYNELL, CARLETON. Modern purchasing. Society for the advancement of management journal, July 1937, p. 118-22. SNYDER, G. W., JR. Buying organized and costs cut, with this simple purchase order and record plan. Bankers monthly, April 1939, p. 195-7. WYLIE, HARRY L. Reducing the cost of handling purchase orders. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 68-21
- p. 68-71.
- PURPOSE of the Robinson-Patman act. Copeland, Melvin T.

- PURPOSES of accounting. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1938, p. 74-6.
- PURSES, HANDBAGS, ETC. See Leather goods.
- PUTNAM, L. L. Every good auditor earns his pay. Profit, July 1937, p. 1, 4.
 Trading certificates. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 236-40.

PUTNEY, BRYANT

Coordination of federal and state tax systems (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937. p. 245-63.) PYPER, FRED

Twelve-time turnover halves stock costs. Factory management and maintenance, May 1938, p. 78-9.

QUAIN, JOHN M.

Auditing. Australian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 468-80.

- Review of examination questions on auditing set at the October 1937, examinations. Australian ac-countant, Dec. 1937, p. 374-400.
- QUALIFICATIONS for public fiscal positions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 149.
- QUALIFICATIONS for public fiscal positions. Ameri-can institute of accountants. Special committee on governmental accounting.
- QUALIFIED statements. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

QUALITY, an element of cost. Whisler, R. F.

- QUALITY and inventory control. American management association.
- QUANTUM meruit. Accountant, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 826-7.

QUARRIES AND QUARRYING See also Cement; Lime; Sand and gravel; Stone. Cost accounting

- ost accounting HOWINGTON, KELSEY D. How much does it cost? Simple but comprehensive accounting system requires small staff. Time saving methods and extensive use of slide rule reduce work to a minimum. Rock products, Sept. 1939, p. 23-5, 38; Oct. 1939, p. 37-9; Dec. 1939, p. 45-6. STALKER, W. H. Process costs. Cost and man-agement, Feb. 1937, p. 34-46.

Cos

- SHAW, H. M. Light trucks pulling semi-trailers cut quarry hauling costs. *Rock products*, Feb. 1938, p. 47-8.
- QUASI-reorganization or corporate readjustment amplification of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. American institute of accountants. Committee on accountants counting procedure.

QUASI-REORGANIZATIONS See Reorganizations.

QUAT, JACOB, joint author See Grange, William J. and Quat, Jacob.

- QUEFFEULOU, GEORGES (Le) Bilan épanoui, selon les règles de la "Struc-ture du bilan," de E. René Delaporte. Paris, Société pratique d'editions et d'études com-merciales et industrielles, 1939. 34p.
- QUESTION and answer on bond discount. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 304-6.
- QUESTIONNAIRE on society program of activities. Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 17.

- QUESTIONNAIRE to incorporated and unincorpo-rated investment trusts and investment companies of management type. Securities and exchange commission.
- QUESTIONS and answers department. (See each issue of the Certified public accountant, to Dec. 1936.)
- **OUESTIONS** and answers; questions asked by the EDITONS and answers; questions asked by the committee for co-operation with accountants, New England chapter, R.M.A., and answers made by the Massachusetts society of certified public accountants' committee on cooperation with bankers. *Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin*, Feb. 1938, p. 249-51.
- QUESTIONS based on "Economic problems in a changing world." Thorp, Willard L., and others.

QUIN, F. A. Cash position in municipal finance. Municipal finance, Feb. 1937, p. 67-9.

RACE TRACKS

- RACE IRACS
 Accounting
 ACCOUNTANT and the totalisator. Accountants' mapazine, Nov. 1938, p. 550-4.
 GREYHOUND racing track; pro forma accounts. Accountant, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 238-9.
 REES, NORMAN G. Tote accountant's duties under the betting and lotteries act, 1934. Ac-countant, June 19, 1937, p. 878-80.
- RACHLIN, M. L. Some effects of the social security taxes. Tax magasine, March 1936, p. 157-8. Triplicate taxes; small corporations and the federal social security act. Profit, May 1936, p. 1.

RADFORD, GORDON E.

Law relating to accounts in insolvencies. Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Oct. 1936, p. 18-24, discussion, p. 24-5.

RADIO APPARATUS TRADE

See also Radio manufacturers.

Accounting PEELING, NOEL W. Accounts for the radio retailer. Accountant, Jan. 14, 1939, p. 49-57.

Cost accounting

DWERRYHOUSE, W. R. Cost accounts for wireless retailers. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1937. 39p.

Statistics

RADIO BROADCASTING STATIONS See also Telephone and telegraph.

Accounting

ccounting UNITED STATES. Federal communications com-mission. Financial report from licensees of standard broadcast stations (F.C.C. forms 705 and 706) made to Federal communications com-mission, Washington, D. C., Federal communications com-mission (1939) not paged.

Valuation

tions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 345-7.

RADIO MANUFACTURERS

Statistics DUN istics UN AND BRADSTREET, INC., and NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Radjo manu-facturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 1p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 2, June 1938)

RAFKIND, ISRAEL

Municipal finance, Feb. 1939, p. 10-3.

RAILROAD RETIREMENT ACT See Pensions and benefit plans.

RAILROADS

1938 national railway wage reduction controversy —brief on behalf of the carriers; before the presidential emergency board appointed under the terms of section 10 of the railway labor act. Washington, D. C., October 17, 1938. 167p. and exhibits.

- Uniform methods and systems ASSOCIATION OF AMERICAN RAILROADS. Accounting division. Mandatory and recom-mendatory accounting rules and forms, effective October 1, 1937, and rules of order. Wash-ington, D. C., Association of American railroads, Finance, accounting, taxation and valuation de-partment, 1937. 233p. PRINCIPLES proposed for system accounts. Rail-way age, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 162. UNITED STATES. Federal power commission. Application of classification of investment in road and equipment of steam roads prescribed by the interstate commerce commission, issue of
- road and equipment of steam roads prescribed by the interstate commerce commission, issue of 1914, in determination of cost of licensed projects. (In its Uniform system of accounts prescribed for public utilities and licensees subject to the provisions of the federal power act, approved June 16, 1936. appendix 2, p. 153.) UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce com-mission. Annual report of to the Inter-state commerce commission for the year ended December 31, 1935. Washington, D. C. Gov-ernment printing office, 1936. 534p. UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce com-mission. System consolidated reports for steam railways: discussion of tentative general prin-ciples. Washington, D. C., Interstate commerce commission, July 1, 1937. 109 mimeographed pages.

- commission, July 1, 1937. 109 mimeographicu pages. UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce com-mission. Uniform system of accounts for steam railroads; accounting classifications governing investment in road and equipment—operating revenues and operating expenses—income, profit and loss, and general balance sheet accounts— train-miles, locomotive-miles, and car-miles; prescribed by the Interstate commerce commis-sion in accordance with section 20 of the act to regulate commerce; revised to January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Association of American rail-roads, Accounting division, 1936. 236p.

RAILROADS-(Continued)

Auditing

Additing
 GORDON, WILLIAM D. AND LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH. Railroad auditing. (In their Modern accounting systems. 1937. p. 340-64.)
 GRATUITOUS attack. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 131-4.
 RAILROADS and the investing public. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 191-2.
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-toads holding companies and affiliated company.

- roads, holding companies and affiliated com-panies—Hearings before a sub-committée on inter-state commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect of provide realized and affiliates with respect of interstate railroads and aminates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and cer-tain other matters. Part 2, December 14, 15, and 16, 1936; Missouri Pacific—terminal shares contracts. Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, 1938. p. 447-1081. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigations of rail-conde helding companies and officiated companying
- JAITED STATES. Senate. Investigations of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies —Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 11, October 20 and 21, 1937; Missouri Pacific railroad company, Alle ghany acquisition of control; Price, Waterhouse audits. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 4653-5030a. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads holding companies and affiliated companyies
- UNITÉD STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies -Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 13, November 4 and 5, 1937, and February 17, 1938; Missouri Pacific system. Eric railroad company. Washington, D. C. Gov-ernment printing office, 1939, p. 5579-5943. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies
- NITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies —Preliminary report of the committee on inter-state commerce, United States senate, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) a resolution authoriz-ing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters—Fallibility of auditors' certificates; inadequacy of Price, Water-house & co.'s certificate to Missouri Pacific stockholders. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Feb. 10, 1939. 13p. (76th con-gress, 1st session—Report no. 25, Part 3.)

Consolidations

- UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-INITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies —Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth (rongress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 2, December 14, 15, and 16, 1936; Missouri Pacific—terminal shares contracts. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938, p. 447-1081.
- 1938. p. 44/-1051. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies —Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to forenoing recorrenizations mergers, and certain financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 11, October 20 and 21, 1937; Missouri Pacific railroad company, Alle-gheny acquisition of control, Price, Waterhouse audits. Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, 1938, p. 4653-5030a.
- UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies

-Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session pursuant to S. Res 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to formation concentrations. Interstate rainoads and aminates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 13, November 4, and 5, 1937, and February 17, 1938; Missouri Pacific system . . Erie railroad company. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. p. 5579-5943.

- Cost Accounting BEECH, W. Workshop costing on the railway. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 39-44.
 COST finding plan proposed; report to Eastman commended to railroads and I.C.C. for their consideration—to be used for rate making. Railway age, June 13, 1936, p. 947-50.
 KOONTZ, HAROLD D. Cost finding for rail-roads. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 284-95.
 SOMMERELELD VERNON Some notes on rail-

 - SOMMERFIELD, VERNON. Some notes on rail-way cost accounting. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 658-9; Nov. 20, 1937, p. 693-4.

Costs

SILLCOX, L. K. Savings by weight reduction and streamlining. *Railway age*, March 14, 1936, p. 425-8.

Depreciation

Government regulation RAPER, CHARLES LEE. Trend of federal and state control of transportation carriers; address at third regional chapter conference of the New York state society of certified public accountants at Skancateles, New York, June 27, 1936. 15 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 38-45.

Rates

DIVISION of joint rates and the Baltimore and Ohio case. Yale law journal, March 1937, p. 811-32.

- GRIFFITHS, PETER. Cost of rail transport-making and fixing of rates. Cost accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 91-7; Nov. 1937, p. 185-8. SOMMEFIELD, VERNON. Charging powers of British railways. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p.
- 695-7.

- British railways. Accountant, May 27, 1959, p. 695-7.
 Reorganizations
 FENNELL, WILLIAM G. Protective committees and deposit agreements in railroad reorganizations. Yale law journal, Dec. 1939, p. 22440.
 LISMAN, F. J. Railroad reorganizations and section 77. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937. p. 24-40.
 MAHAFFIE, CHARLES D. Railroad reorganization. (In National association of railroad and utilities commissioners. Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention . . 1936. p. 119-29.)
 NEW YORK, NEW HAVEN AND HARTFORD RAILROAD COMPANY. In the district court of the United States for the district of Connecticut, in the matter of the New York, New Haven and Hartford railroad company, debtor; no. 16562; plan of reorganization (filed by the debtor) June 1, 1937. 61p. and exhibits.
 SWAINE, ROBERT T. Railroad reorganizations. (In Railway accounting officers. Fifty-first annual report, 1936, p. 32-46.)
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliated companies Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 2, December 14, 15, and 16, 1936; Missouri Pacific—terminal shares contracts. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 447-1081.

RAILROADS—Reorganizations—(Continued)

- UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies —Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect
- interstate railfoads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and cer-tain other matters. Part 11, October 20 and 21, 1937; Missouri Pacific railfoad company, Alle-ghany acquisition of control, Price, Waterhouse audits, Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 4653-5030a. UNITED STATES. Senate. Investigation of rail-roads, holding companies and affiliated companies -Hearings before a sub-committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railfoads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and cerinterstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and cer-tain other matters. Part 13, November 4, and 5, 1937, and February 17, 1938; Missouri Pacific system . . Erie railroad company. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. p. 5579-5943.

- Reports
 CONSOLIDATED statements of railway companies. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7-10.
 SYSTEM consolidated reports for railways. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 244-5.

Statistics

- atistics BURROWS, ROBERT A., compiler. New 1937 railroad chart; showing at a glance, inter-rela-tion, consolidation and capitalization of the prin-cipal American railroads—as of November 1, 1937. First national bank building, Pittsburgh, Pa., Robert A. Burrows, c1937. chart. McDOUGALL, J. L. Railway passenger travel. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 127.34
- Canada in Institute accountant, Aug. 1950, p. 127-34.
 RAILROADS and railroad wages, 1938. New York, Room 5710, Grand Central terminal, Bu-reau of information of the eastern railways, 1938. 16p.

Taxation

- axation BROWN, C. C. Gross earnings method of taxing freight lines. Taxes-the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 288, 313.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Taxation of railroads and other public utilities. (In his Public finance, 1936. p. 466-87.)
 MARTIN, J. H. Alternative use as a valuation factor. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 278-83.)
 MITCHELL, GEORGE W. Use vs. ownership
- 1938. p. 278-83.) MITCHELL, GEORGE W. Use vs. ownership as a basis for taxation. (In National tax asso-ciation. Proceedings, 1938. p. 284-92.)

Valuation

- CHAPMAN, C. M. Use of railway statistics and accounts in determining taxable valuations. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1937. p.
- Yatobal tax association. Proceedings, 1997. p. 242-51.)
 FARICY, WILLIAM T. Importation of values through the use of unit rule formulae. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p.
- National tax association. Freecance, 251-68.) FORD, ROBERT S. Intra-state apportionment of railway valuations for tax purposes. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 269-80.) KEEPING, GEORGE P. International railway company v. the Niagara Parks commission. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 200-301
- Container Control of Container Conta

- MARTIN, JAMES W. Unit method of railroad assessment. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 155-6, 190.
 MITCHELL, GEORGE W. Use vs. ownership as a basis for taxation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 284-92.)
 MOTT, A. G. Weight to be given physical appraisals in determining unit value assessments for railroads. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 233-41.)
- RAILROADS and railroad wages, 1938. New York, Room 5710, Grand Central terminal, Bureau of information of the eastern railways, 1938. 16p.
- RAILROADS and the investing public. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 191-2.

- RAILWAY accounting rules. Association of Ameri-can railroads. Accounting division.
- RAINEY, CLAUDE O. Management accounting. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 264-73.)
- RAINS, NEIL J. Waybilling and accounting for motor freight car-riers. Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p.

RAINSFORD, W. BRUCE Preparation of the budget. Commonwealth journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 524-5.

RALPH, HENRY D. Uniform examinations. Burroughs clearing house, Aug. 1938, p. 7-9, 28-31.

- RALPH, R. W. Picture theatre accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 242-7.
- RAMSEY, MARY LOUISE Mortgage foreclosures and income taxes. Tax maga-zine, Oct. 1937, p. 579-82, 631.

RANCHES

See Livestock.

RANDOM recollections of an eventful half century. Ross, T. Edward.

- RANK, ROY G. Cost control in the office. Society for the advance-ment of management journal, July-Sept. 1936, p. 98-100.
- RANKIN, R. G.
 - Bank operating expenses and costs; address de-livered before the Virginia bankers' conference in Charlottesville, Virginia, August 26, 1938. 17
 - typewritten pages. Making good audits better. Banking, May 1939, p. 25.

RANSOM, WILLIAM L. Milestones of the professions. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 16-8.

RAPER, CHARLES LEE Trend of federal and state control of transporta-tion carriers; address at third regional chapter conference of the New York state society of certified public accountants at Skancateles, New York, June 27, 1936. 15 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 38.45 38-45.

RAPOPORT, M. L.

Government regulation of motor transport; does jurisdiction belong to the dominion or to the provinces? *Canadian chartered accountant*, Oct. 1936, p. 290-5.

- RAPPAPORT, L. H.
 Comparison of form 10-K with form 10 under the securities exchange act of 1934. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1936, p. 3-10.
 Recent S.E.C. developments. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1936, p. 13-7.

RASMUSSEN, C. F.

ASMOSSEN, C. F. What is the operating cost of a truck? New York, National association of cost accountants, May 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 18, section 1, p. 1028-33.) Printed with: Chambers, Robert K. Expense control for automobile fleets.

RATCHFORD, B. U. Fisher's concept of taxable income. Tax magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 646-7, 692-3.

RATCLIFF, RICHARD U. Problem of retail site selection. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business ad-ministration, 1939. 93p. (Michigan business studies, v. 9, no. 1.)

RATES

See Public utilities-Rates; names of various utilities.

FIO range tables. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 58, 71-3. RATIO

RATIONALIZATION

See Business; Industry.

RATIOS

- See also Statistics. BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Liability ratios in credit analysis. Bankers magazine, March 1938, 203-5
- p. 203-3. BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Practical credit analy-BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Practical credit analysis for bank and trade credit men, accountants, investors, business schools, merchants. ed. 3. New York, The author, c1939. 180p.
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Turnover ratios in credit analysis. Bankers magazine, June 1937, p. 467-72.

- p. 467-72. BENJAMIN, HAROLD S. Current ratio or net working capital? Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 364-5. CRANDELL, J. CHESTER. Ratios available for financial analysis. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1936. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 23, section 1, p. 1349-82.)
- St., St., F. W. Ratios as an aid to management. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Oct. 1937, p. 1-3. (Reprinted from Ratios for printing management, published by United typothetae of America.)
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Two-to-one working capital ratio. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 30-6.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Behind the scenes of business. rev. ed. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1936. 200p.
- rev. ed. No 1936. 200p.

- Same. second rev. ed. 1937. 221p.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Changeable character and relentless ratios; for 36 manufacturing industries—fourteen important financial ratios—median and interquartile range figures—for 1938. Dun's review, Dec. 1939, p. 10-6.
 FOULKE, ROY A. Financial ratios as guides to operating policies. Dun's review, Dec. 1938, p. 16-62.
- FOULKE, ROY A. Financial ratios become of age. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 203-13.
- FOULKE, ROY A. 14 financial ratios for 24 wholesale and 12 retail trades; new 1938 aver-ages. Dun's review, Nov. 1939, p. 9-12. FOULKE, ROY A. Fourteen guides to financial stability; supplement to 1936 edition of Behind the scapes of husiness New York Dure and
- stability; supplement to 1936 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1936. 43p. FOULKE, ROY A. Measures of financial health. (In American management association. Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer. c1939. p. 13-23.) FOULKE, ROY A. Signs of the times; a supple-ment to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes

- of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1938, 43p. FOULKE, ROY A. They said it with inventories; supplement number two to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet inc. c1939, 31p.
- supplement number two to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1939, 31p.
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. Credit ratio analysis. Accounting forum, Jan. 1937, p. 8-10, 14.
 HOSSACK, A. B. Exhibit showing for 10 indus-trial companies comparison of the amount in-vested in capital assets to total assets, also the depreciation charges in relation to sales and net income. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1936. p. 123.)
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Interpretation of accounting records. (In his A B C of account-ing, 1938. p. 262-70.)
 RATIO range tables. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 58, 71-3.
 RICHARDSON, C. L. Balance sheet ratios. Bal-ance sheet, Dec. 1936, p. 22-4.
 ROBINSON, LELAND REX. Corporate earnings on share and borrowed capital in ratios of gross income (1918-1935). Journal of the American statistical association, Sept. 1936, p. 481-90.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. How to evaluate financial statements. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 319p.

- 1936. 319p.
- RATIOS available for financial analysis. Crandell, J. Chester.
- RATIOS for printing management for the year 1935. United typothetae of America.
- RATIOS for printing management for the year 1936. United typothetae of America.
- **RATIOS** for printing management for the year 1937. United typothetae of America.
- RATIOS for printing management for the year 1938. United typothetae of America.

RATTRAY, WILLIAM Depreciation for electric, water, and gas utilities. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 253-60.

RAU, OTTO M. Cost of distributing power. Public utilities fort-nightly, April 15, 1937, p. 486-92.

RAUCH, H. HERMAN

Problems in the administration of unemployment compensation laws. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 55-70, discussion, p. 70-6.)

- RAUH, JULIUS J. New York state tax on unincorporated business. Taxes--the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 345-7, 377.

 - 3/1.
 Broblems of the accountant. Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 9-12.
 Purchase option and depreciation on leased property. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 55.

RAW MATERIAL See Material.

- RAWLINGS, A. LEE Accountants' report countants' reports; address delivered at annual meeting of the Virginia society of public accoun-tants held at the Cavalier Hotel, Virginia Beach, Virginia, September 8th and 9th, 1939. 13 typewritten pages.

RAWSON, ROBERT H. Judicial review of state chain store taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 396-8, 425-7.

RAYMOND, PAUL C., joint author See Decker, O. P.

REA, GEORGE

Percentage depletion—a reply. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 2, p. 780-3.)

- READ, CLARK P. Standardization of accounting instructions, forms and procedures for natural gas companies. (In American gas association. Proceedings, 1935, p. 214-7.)

READ, W. H. See Tennessee, University of.

READER

- Treasury stock. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 34-5.
- REAL ESTATE
 - See also Apartment hotels; Apartment houses; Housing; Office buildings; Real estate management.
 - ALVEA, LOUIS F. Enforcement of real estate tax liens and constitutional barriers to remedial legislation for tax delinquents in each of the United States. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers association, 1939. not paged.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. AND NORTH, NELSON L. Real estate principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938, 583p.
 GRANGE, WILLIAM J. AND QUAT, JACOB. Real estate; a practical guide to ownership, transfer, mortgaging and leasing of real property. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 541p.
 McLAUGHLIN, GEORGE V. Opportunities for the certified public accountant in the real estate field. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 234-7.

- Accounting BAIEVSKY, BORIS. Uniform system of accounts for homestead corporations. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 352-68; July 1936, p. 421-33.
 DAILEY, CLARKE G. Real estate accounting and tax problems from the viewpoint of the real estate owner. New York certified public accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 230-3.
 GESSNER, EDWARD J. Accounting for land development companies. Pittsburgh accountant, Jan. March 1936, p. 1, 4-5.
 HARRIS, MAYNARD L. Uniform system of accounts of multi-family housing. Buildings and building management, Aug. 1936, p. 41-3.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Natural resources. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937, Part 2, chapter 26.)
 REAL estate on proprietorship balance-sheet. (Account companies of the sentent of the sentence of the se

 - ter 20.7
 REAL estate on proprietorship balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 505-6.
 TORNBORGH, BERT V. Installment account procedure for sub-dividers. National real estate journal, Sept. 1938, p. 24-6.

Australia BUTT, R. F. Real estate accounts. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), May 1936. 15p.

Great Britain INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; building and estate development accounts. Incor-porated accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 89-92.

Great Britain SQUIRES, C. STEPHENSON. Law of property legislation—a retrospect. Accountant, July 1, 1939, p. 13-5; July 8, 1939, p. 45-8.

Valuation

- BONBRIGHT, JAMES C. Basing assessed value on capitalized income. Municipal finance, Feb.
- 1938, p. 12-6. COLLINS, CLEM W. Assessment of real estate for the purpose of taxation. (paper read at the fourth annual conference on business and gov-ernment in New Mexico, University of New Mexico, Albuquerque, Dec. 4, 1937.) 29 type-
- written pages. ENSLOW, H. R. State supervision of assessment in New York. *Tax magazine*, Aug. 1938, p. 458-60, 492.
- GARFIELD, FRANK R. AND HOAD, WILLIAM

- M. Construction costs and real property value. Journal of the American statistical association, Dec. 1937, p. 643-53.
 GOODWILL, real-estate appreciation and valua-tion of stocks. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 73-6.
 HAMBURG, ALEX M. Valuation of real prop-erty for taxation. Taxes-the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 139-41, 187-8.
 JACOBS, J. L. Urban property tax valuation trends. Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 263-6, 320.
 JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Theory of real property valuation. Sacramento, Calif., the author, c1938, 309p.
 LAWSON, ERIC W. Annual income as a method of valuation freal estate taxation. Tax maga-zine, April 1937, p. 209-13, 246.
 MCMICHAEL, STANLEY L. McMichael's ap-praising manual; a real estate appraising hand-book for use in field work and advanced study courses. ed. 2. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937, 652p.
 MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Valuation of land. (In their Engineering valua-tion. 1936, p. 387-401.)
 THRUN, F. M. Development of valuation stand-

Great Britain

VALUATION for rating purposes: consideration of demand by special class of tenants. Accountant, tax supplement, April 23, 1938, p. 177-9.

REAL estate a practical guide to ownership, trans-fer, mortgaging and leasing of real property. Grange, William J. and Quat, Jacob.

REAL estate accounts. Butt. R. F.

REAL ESTATE AGENCIES MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Real estate manage-ment; a manual for profitable property operation. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 218p.

Accounting MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Real estate manage-ment; a manual for profitable property opera-tion. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 218p.

- REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT See also Apartment hotels; Apartment houses; Office buildings. MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Duties of new manag-ing agent on taking over a property. Buildings and building management, April 1937, p. 54-6, of 6 86-8
 - 86-8.
 MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Real estate management; a manual for profitable property operation. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 218p.
 PROFIT from management. Buildings and build-ing management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 31-2, 74-6.

- ing management, jan. 16, 1939, p. 31-2, 74-6.
 Accounting
 BAIEVSKY, BORIS. Uniform system of accounts for homestead corporations. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 352-68; July 1936, p. 421-83.
 BENSON, PHILIP A. AND NORTH, NELSON L. Management. (In their Real estate principles and practices. 1938, p. 272-80.)
 CAMPBELL, LINN P. Modern accounting system for a realty office. National real estate journal, Jan. 1939, p. 14-8.
 GOSSELIN, HAROLD L. Record forms that increase operating efficiency. Buildings and building management, July 1937, p. 40-3.
 MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Billing and collecting apartment rents. Buildings and building management, feb. 1937, p. 40-3.
 MANDEL, H. ROBERT. Real estate management, a manual for profitable property operation. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 218p.
 MASON, A. B. Essential operating records. Buildings and building management, July 1938, p. 39-40.

 - p. 39-40.

.

REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT-Accounting-(Cont.)

- EAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT—Accounting—(Cont.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS. Uniform ac-counting system as developed by the accounting committee. Buildings and building management, Oct. 139, p. 28-30.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OWNERS AND MANAGERS and CHARLES R. HADLEY COMPANY. Uniform accounting system; submitted, June 19, 1939. Chicago, Ill., National association of building owners and man-agers, 1939. 40 mimeographed pages and forms.
 OSTERMAYER, GEORGE H. Standard account-ing methods. Buildings and building management, May 1939, p. 21-2, 61-5.
 PORTER, ROBERT. Systematic control of routine-purchases. Buildings and building management,

- PORTER, ROBERT. Systematic control of routine-purchases. Buildings and building management, April 1937, p. 36-7, 75-6.
 SIMPLIFIED standard form of owner's state-ment. Buildings and building management, Dec. 1936, p. 17-20.
 TORNBORGH, BERT V. Accounting procedure for property managers. National real estate jour-nal, May 1939, p. 24-7.
 TORNBORGH, BERT V. Constructive account-ing for the realty office. National real estate journal, July 1939, p. 26-9.
 VAN SCHAACK AND COMPANY. Departmental set-up for a management, Jan. 1938, p. 30-2, 68-71; Feb. 1938, p. 44-5, 74-7.
- Auditing CHAN, STEPHEN. Auditing income properties. Buildings and building management, Aug. 1937, p. 35-6.

- p. 53-6.
 Cost accounting EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Cost accounting for office buildings. Buildings and building manage-ment, April 1937, p. 48-50, 81.
 EGAN, THOMAS F., JR. Philadelphia managers study model operating set-up. Buildings and building management, Jan. 1938, p. 21-3.
 MASON, A. B. Control of cleaning costs. Build-ings and building management, May 1938, p. 37-9.
 POYSELL, ROBERT E. Using cost accounting records to get management business. National real estate journal, Feb. 1937, p. 26-7.
 SIMPLE cost control system leads to increased profits. National real estate journal, Nov. 1936, p. 22-3.
 TAYLOR, HARRY A. Studies of operating costs for securing management business. National real estate journal, March 1937, p. 43-5.
- Costs
- osts CUSHING, JAMES J. Systematic control re-duces alteration costs. Buildings and building management, June 1936, p. 38-9, 80-5, 1936 operating costs in Philadelphia. Buildings and building management, Nov. 1937, p. 48-9.
- REAL estate management. Mandel, H. Robert.
- REAL estate on proprietorship balance-sheet. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 505-6.
- **REAL** estate principles and practices. Benson, Philip A. and North, Nelson L.
- **REALIZATION** of appreciation. (Correspondence) Bell, William H.
- REAUGH, DANIEL M., joint author See Kaplan, Maurice C. and Reaugh, Daniel M.
- REAVELY, S. D. History and development of accounting. Cost and management, Feb. 1938, p. 41-5, 47-8, 50-61.
- REBUILDING trade by tariff bargaining. Auld, George P.
- **RECAPITULATION** of data obtained from plant equipment questionnaire no. 4-34, on depreciation

experience for laundry equipment. Laundryown-ers national association of the United States and Canada.

RECEIPTS PATON, WILLIAM A. Receipts and disburse-ments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 231-55.)

RECEIVABLES

- See also Accounts receivable; Instalments; Notes receivable and payable. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.

RECEIVERSHIPS

See Liquidations and receiverships.

- RECENT accounting developments. Loflin, W. F.
- RECENT amendments of the rules of the London stock exchange. Accountants' magazine, May 1939, p. 292-5.

- **RECENT** changes in federal income taxation. Klein, Joseph J.
- **RECENT** decisions and rulings on utility deprecia-tion. Greeley, Harold Dudley.
- RECENT developments in budgetary control. La-Rose, Edmond S.
- RECENT important stamp duty decisions in relation to companies. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 549-51.
- **RECENT** insurance management developments. American management association.
- **RECENT** opinions on dealings in treasury stock. May, George O.
- RECENT pronouncements on accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 89-92.
- RECENT S.E.C. pronouncements. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 463-4.

RECLAMATION form. Hilbert, James.

- RECOGNITION of auditor's importance—Auditor's independence clearly defined—Reliance upon auditors' report. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Feb. 1936, p. 81-4.
- RECOGNITION of decline in inventory value after closing date. (Forum section) New York, Na-tional association of cost acountants, Nov. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 5, section 2, p. 298-300.)
- **RECOGNITION** of the elements of cost in municipal accounts. Sowerbutts, Geoffrey L.
- **RECOMMENDATIONS** for amendment of federal revenue act. American institute of accountants. Committee on federal taxation.

RECONCILIATIONS

- BANK reconciliation statements. Australian ac-
- BANK reconciliation statements. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 263-8.
 BRENNAN, P. C. Bank reconciliation statements. Australian accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 312-20.
 JAMESON, E. S. Reconciliation statements. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 156-60.
- RECONSTRUCTION FINANCE CORPORATION See United States, Reconstruction finance corporation.

RECONSTRUCTIONS See Reorganizations.

- **RECONSTRUCTIONS** and amalgamations; a lecture delivered before the London students' society of the Chartered institute of secretaries. Ac-countant student and Accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 73-7.
- **RECORD** of the American institute of actuaries. American institute of actuaries.

RECORDAK SYSTEM

- See Photographic records.
- RECORDAK system of accounts receivable opera-tion. Jackson, Herbert W.
- RECORDING expenditure. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 292-4.
- **RECORDING** the costs of truck transportation. Zerbo, John D.

RECORDS

ECORDS
 See also Photographic records.
 BACK, W. J. Preparing accounts from incomplete records. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 406-13, discussion, 413-4. Accountant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 425-30.
 CENTRALISATION of accountancy records, with

- special reference to mechanical methods. Accountants' magazine, June 1938, p. 357-62.
 CORSTVET, EMMA. Adequate records as an element in business survival. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 49-63.
 CORSTVET, EMMA. Inadequate bookkeeping as a factor in business failure. Yale law journal, May 1936, p. 1201-1222.
 EXPENSE and capital determined from poorly kept records. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 225-7.
 FRICKER, R. A. Accounts from incomplete records. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 180-6.
 RODEN, F. CREWE. Loose-leaf records. Accountant, March 6, 1937, p. 341-5.
 UNSEEN burden of taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 166.
 ECOPDE DEVEEVATION OF

- of accountancy, March 1936, p. 166.
 RECORDS, PRESERVATION OF BANKERS BOX COMPANY. Manual of record storage practice—How long should records be kept? Chicago, Ill., Bankers box co., c1939. 5p.
 BUSINESS HISTORICAL SOCIETY, INC. Pre-servation of business records, prepared by Ralph M. Hower and Raloh Ellis. Boston, Mass., Busi-ness historical society, inc., Oct. 1937. (Bulletin, vol. 11, nos. 3-4.)
 CARR, M. L. Let's preserve the records! Credit and financial management, June 1936, p. 8-9.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Duty to preserve accounting records. (Legal notes) Jour-nal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 269-70.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Destruction of records. (In his Accounting systems, design and installa-tion, c1936, p. 500-3.)
 HILLHOUSE, C. H. Way to reduce record stor-age costs. Bankers monthly, March 1939, p. 154-6.
 MILWAUKEE CONFERENCE OF BANK AUDITORS AND COMPTROLLERS. Schedule for the destruction and preservation of records. National andigram, Dec. 1938, p. 19-20.
 ULBRICHT, EMIL. Preservation and destruction of records. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 27-8, 31.
 RECORDS necessary under social security laws.
- **RECORDS** necessary under social security laws. Horwath hotel accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 4-6.
- **RECORDS** to be kept under social security act. Bulletin of the American institute of accoun-tants, Jan. 1936, p. 24-5.

REDDAWAY, W. B.

- Russian financial system. London, Macmillan and co., ltd., 1935. 106p.
- **REDEEMABLE** preference shares. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 310-3.

- REDMOND, JOHN L.
 Accountants. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 38.
 Do something about taxes; N.A.C.M. begins study of tax problems affecting credit. Credit and financial management, May 1939, p. 24-5.
 Duty of the certified public accountant to the business community as distinguished from his duty to his client. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 39-42.

- REDMOND, WILFRID Spotting high costs. Laundry age, Nov. 1939, p. 24-5, 76.
- REDUNDANT accountancy institutes. Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 250-3.
- REEDER, R. R., JR. Management problems. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 203-14.

REES, NORMAN G.

Tote accountant's duties under the betting and lotteries act, 1934. Accountant, June 19, 1937, p. 878-80.

REEVE, ARCHIE F. AND CLEVELAND, HAYWARD Hospital economies; one hundred practical sug-gestions for private and community hospitals. New York, Cleveland pub. co. no date. 102p.

REEVES, CUTHBERT E.

Can obsolescence be standardized? Municipal finance, Feb. 1938, p. 36-40. Study of store rentals. National real estate jour-nal, Dec. 1938, p. 26-8.

- REEVES, FLOYD W. See United States. President's committee on administrative management.
- REFERENDUM no. 70, on the report of the special committee on federal taxes and expenditures. Chamber of commerce of the United States of America.

REFINANCING

- EFINANCING See also Corporations—Finance; Reorganizations. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-re-organization or corporate readjustment amplifaca-tion of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 27p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 3.) DAHL, LAWRENCE G. Some comments on pub-lic utility refunding operations. Journal of land and public utility economics, Aug. 1936, p. 256-63.

- 63.
 HOAGLAND, HENRY E. Corporate readjustments. (In his Corporation finance. 1938. p. 455-69.)
 MAZUR, PAUL. Financing and re-financing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 70-4, discussion, p. 74-7.)

REFRIGERATION

See Cold storage.

REFRIGERATORS

REFUNDING

See Corporations-Finance; Refinancing.

- **REFUNDS** of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (windfall) taxes. New York certified public accountant, special issue, Nov. 1936.
- **REGARDING** notice to debtors in connection with loans on accounts receivable. *Robert Morris asso-ciates monthly bulletin*, May 1939, p. 296.
- REGIONAL conferences. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1939, p. 196.

- **REGISTRATION EXPENSES** ACCOUNTING for underwriting and registration expenses. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1938, p. 506-7.
- **REGISTRATION** of accountants in South Africa; report of the accountancy profession commission (1934). Accountant, June 20, 1936, p. 928-35; June 27, 1936, p. 957-65. Queensland accoun-tants and secretaries' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 274-7.

REGISTRATION OF SECURITIES

See Investment companies—Law—United States; Securities and exchange commission; Stock ex-changes—Government regulation.

REGISTRATION STATEMENTS

See Investment companies—Law—United States; Securities and exchange commission; Stock ex-changes—Government regulation.

REGLI, WERNER E. See Coöperative league.

- REGULATION of over-the-counter dealers. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 148
- **REGULATION T**; revised effective January 1, 1938. United States. Federal reserve system, Board of governors.
- REGULATIONS covering learners, apprentices, mes-sengers and handicapped workers under fair labor standards act. American trade association executives.
- **REGULATIONS** 79 (1936 edition) relating to gift tax under the revenue act of 1932 as amended and supplemented by the revenue acts of 1934 and 1935. United States. Treasury department.
- **REGULATIONS 90** relating to the excise tax on employers under title 9 of the social security act. United States. Treasury department.
- **REGULATIONS 91** relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under title 8 of the social security act. United States. Treasury department.
- REGULATIONS 93 relating to the carriers' tax em-ployees' tax, employees' representatives' tax un-der act approved August 29, 1935 (49 stat. 974) United States. Treasury department.
- **REGULATIONS 94** relating to the income tax under the 1936 revenue act. United States. Treasury department.
- **REGULATIONS 101,** income tax; revenue act of 1938. Prentice-Hall, inc.
- **REGULATIONS 101,** income tax; revenue act of 1938. United States. Treasury department.
- **REGULATIONS** prescribing method of determining profit in connection with contracts and sub-contracts for the construction, reconditioning or reconstruction of ships. United States. Maritime commission.
- **REGULATIONS** under securities exchange act of 1934. Federal reserve bulletin, April 1936, p. 250-4.

REICH, O. D. See American management association.

REID, JOHN A.

- Valuing trust assets for book records. Trust com-panies, Oct. 1936, p. 435-6.

REID, WILLIAM F. Oil royalties in Alberta. Canadian chartered ac-countant, July 1938, p. 9-16.

REILING, HERMAN T. Procedure in federal tax litigation. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 598-603.

REIS, BERNARD J. False security; the betrayal of the American in-vestor. New York, Equinox cooperative press, inc., 1937. 362p.

REIS, M. J. Public utility financing under the holding com-pany act. Public utilities fortnightly, Jan. 21, 1937, p. 89-94.

REITELL, CHARLES

- Application of standard costs to distribution. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 170-5.)
- Applying standard costs and budgets to distribution. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 228-50.)
 Hold your prices for continued profits; complete budgetary control essential to scientific brewery management. American brewer, Dec. 1937, p. 10.21 19-21.

REITELL, CHARLES—(Continued)

- HIRL, CHARLES—(Continuea)
 How to be a good foreman. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 186p.
 Inter-play of brewery costs. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 235-40.
 Standard costs in the field of distribution. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section 1, p. 159-64.) Printed with: Taggert, Herbert F. Established cost survey.

REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSTON, C. E.

- Certell, CHARLES AND JOHNSTON, C. E. Cost accounting, principles and methods. ed. 2, revised by C. E. Johnston. Scranton, Pa., In-ternational textbook company, 1937. 425p. Problems, questions and discussion cases to ac-company Cost accounting, principles and meth-ods. ed. 2. Scranton, Pa., International textbook co., c1937. 111p.
- REITELL, CHARLES AND VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE Accounting principles for engineers. (formerly published under the title of *Cost finding for engineers*). ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 518p.
- RELATION of accountants to the federal securities act. Lasser, J. K. and Gerardi, J. A.
- **RELATION** of attorney and accountant in tax cases. Hogsett, E. L.
- RELATION of costs to the determination of selling prices. Camman, Eric A.
- **RELATION** of West Virginia statutes to accoun-tancy and books of account. Peyton, T. W.
- RELATIONS between controllers and public accoun-tants to be reviewed. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 279
- RELATIONS WITH THE AMERICAN BAR ASSO-CIATION

See Lawyers, Coöperation with.

- RELATIONS with the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 2-3.
- **RELATIONSHIP** between the lawyer and the accountant. Troub, Leonard M.
- RELATIONSHIP between the practice of law and of accounting. Byerly, F. P.
- RELATIONSHIP of credit insurance to the credit executive. Millians, Paul M.
- **RELATIONSHIP** of the Securities and exchange commission to the accountant. Blough, Carman G.

RELIEF

See Charities; Insurance, Unemployment; Relief expenditures; Social work.

- RELIEF EXPENDITURES
 EXTRAVAGANCE of relief expenditures—New Jersey shows the way—Amazing effect of economy—Example to the whole country. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 81-4.
 STAUFFER, WILLIAM H. Relief costs in the United States. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 836-44.)
 UNITED STATES. President. Report of the President of the United States to the Congress, showing the status of funds and operations under the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, and 1938, as of December 31, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Jan. 10, 1939. 543p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Report showing the financial status of funds and analysis of expenditures; emergency relief appropriation
 - of expenditures; emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, and 1937, as of June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and deposits, 1938. 451p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Report

showing the status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, 1938, and 1939, as of November 30, 1939. Washington, D. C., United States treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and de-posits, 1939. 17p.

- Accounting BARTELT, E. F. Accounting controls in the federal government. New York, American in-stitute of accountants, 1938. 249. (Supplement to the Proceedings of conference on municipal accounting and finance of the American institute of accountants, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1038)
 - ERRMAN, MORTIMER R. Relief accounting. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Ac-counting and auditing in the comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 8, April 28, 1938.) HERRMAN,

Australia

- McDIARMID, O. J. Federal subsidies to the states in Australia. Taxes—the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 271-2, 308.
- RELIEF from double income tax. (agreement made with government of Norway regarding relief from double incometax on agency profits) Ac-countant tax supplement, Dec. 16, 1939, p. 464-5.
- RELIEF from double income taxation-South Africa; relief from double income tax on agency profits (South Africa) declaration, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 25, 1939, p. 432-3.

REMAINDERMAN

See Life tenant and remainderman.

REMINGTON, PAUL E.

RENALEY, D. E. National cash register company. (In American in-stitute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 228.)

RENNER, ROBERT R.

Similar plan described. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 2, p. 1143-9.)

RENO, EDWIN S.

- Bonus problems under the revenue act of 1938. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April
- 1939, p. 240-1. Computation of federal and Pennsylvania taxes based on income. Robert Morris, Jan.-March
- Dascu on income, *Lovert Juorrs*, Jan-match 1937, p. 1, 6-7.
 Computation of federal and Pennsylvania taxes based on income, calendar year 1938. Philadel-phia, Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Aug. 15, 1938. 9 mimeo-craphed pages
- public accountants, Aug. 13, 1930. 9 minuto-graphed pages. Discussion of the report on state taxation, by John L. Costello. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chap-ter, and the American institute of accountants. Descending of the second accounting chair Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 2p.)
- Valuation of compensation stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 198.
- RENO, EDWIN S. AND BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES Computation of interdependent federal and Penn-sylvania income taxes. Land title building, Phila., Pennsylvania institute of certified public ac-countants, Nov. 14, 1939. 9 typewritten pages. RENT
- AGAIN—how much rent? Horwath hotel accoun-tant, July 1938, p. 2, 6. BURCH, T. S. Question of floor space costs. Burroughs clearing house, Feb. 1938, p. 10-2, 22, 24, 26.

422

RENT-(Continued)

- HOW much rent? Horwath hotel accountant, March 1938, p. 3. LOS ANGELES plan for pricing office space. Buildings and building management, June 1934,

Buildings and building management, June 1934, p. 27. REEVES, CUTHBERT E. Study of store rentals. National real estate journal, Dec. 1938, p. 26-8. RENT of hotel. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 427-8. WHAT percentage of gross sales can stores pay for rent under the percentage type of lease? (composite table) National real estate journal, April 20, 1936, p. 39; April 20, 1937, p. 59; April 20, 1938, p. 31; April 20, 1937, p. 54-5. Buildings and building management, June 1937, p. 30. p. 30.

RENT of hotel. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 427-8.

RENTAL LIBRARIES See Libraries.

RENTAL OF MACHINERY See Machinery-Rental.

- **RENTAL** payments on machinery. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 139-40.
- **REORGANISATION** of the accounting system of the United States government. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 217

REORGANIZATION OF GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

See Government-Reorganization.

- **REORGANIZATION of the unemployment insurance** procedure of New York state. Gretz, Harry C. and Bruce, Robert.
- REORGANIZATION plan under the Chandler act. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- **REORGANIZATION** under the revenue acts; a round table. (In American institute of accoun-tants. *Fiftieth anniversary celebration*. 1937. p. 205-29.) Reprinted. 25p.

REORGANIZATIONS

- EORGANIZATIONS
 See also Bankruptcy—Law—United States; Railroads—Reorganizations.
 ADMINISTRATIVE expenses in successive insolvency proceedings. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 262-71.
 ALLEY, JAMES B. Some corporate reorganization problems. (reprinted from the American bar association journal, Aug. 1936.) 8p.
 ALLEY, JAMES B. Work of the Reconstruction finance corporation in connection with 77B. (reprinted from April 1936 Corporate reorganizations (a monthly magazine) New York, N. Y.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-reorganization
- nons (a monthly magazine) New York, N. Y.)
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-reor-ganization or corporate readjustment amplifica-tion of institute rule no. 2. of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939.
 27D. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 3.)
 AUSTIN, MAURICE. Reorganization under the revenue acts. (In American institute of ac-countants, Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 220-9.)
 BARRY, ROBERT I. Functions of the public accountant in reorganizations under chapter X of the bankruptcy act. Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 161-5.
 BAUMANN, H. P., editor. Reorganization prob-lem. (Students' department) Journal of ac-countancy, Dec. 1936, p. 466-70.
 BONNEVILLE, JOSEPH HOWARD AND DEWEY, LLOYD ELLIS. Business failures and reorganizations. (In their Organising and financing business. 1938, p. 397-427.)
 CELLER, EMANUEL. Retention of accountants and their compensation under the Chandler bill.

New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939,

- New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 178-84.
 CLARKE, SAMUEL O. S.E.C. activities in bankruptcies; how commission operates under chapter 10. Credit and financial management, Aug. 1939, p. 11-13.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Reorganizations as affecting income. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937. p. 106-12.)
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Corporate reorganizations—sec. 77B cases. (In its United States supreme court business law decisions, 1935-1936. c1936. p. 29-37.)
 CORPORATE reorganization to avoid payment of income tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1935, p. 134-42.

- 134-42.
- DAVIS, DOROTHY S. How has 77-B actually worked? Dun's review, Aug. 1937, p. 18-21, 46. DOUGLAS, WILLIAM O. Improvement in fed-
- eral procedure for corporate reorganizations. American bar association journal, Nov. 1938, p.
- American bar association journal, Nov. 1938, p. 875-9.
 EPES, W. PERRY, JR. Corporate reorganization: the revised Chandler bill. (Legislation note) Virginia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 309-19.
 FAHEY, JAMES E. Income tax definition of "reorganization". Columbia law review, June 1939, p. 933-69.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Reorganization procedure—Reorganization plans. (in his Corporation finance. c1938, p. 478-516.)
 FINLETTER, THOMAS K. Law of bankruptcy reorganization. Charlottesville, Va., Michie co., 1939. 994p.

- reingamzation. Charlottesvinte, v.a., intene co., 1939, 994p.
 FISH, GEORGE D. AND BUTLER, FRANCIS X. Tax relief provisions of the Chandler act. *Credit and financial management*, Nov. 1938, p. 9-1
- 9-11.
 FORMULATION of a plan under section 77. Yale law journal, Dec. 1937, p. 247-61.
 FORTAS, ABE. Corporate reorganizations and the holding company act; address before a legal seminar, Hotel Astor, New York, New York, July 14, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 FORTAS, ABE. Securities act and corporate re-organizations. Law and contemporary problems. April 1937, p. 218-40

- FORTELS, JOHL, Southies and contemporary problems. April 1937, p. 218-40.
 GERDES, JOHN. Corporate reorganizations; changes effected by chapter 10 of the bankruptcy act. Harvard law review, Nov. 1938, p. 1-39.
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Reconstruction of corporations. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936, p. 750-808.)
 GOW, JAMES T. Company reorganization. Cana-dian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 290-4.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Ac-countants' fees in corporate reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 390-3; Dec. 1937, p. 464-8.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY. editor. Corpo-rate reorganization under Chandler act. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 115-6.
- 115-6

- notes) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 115-6.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Correction. (Leval notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 181.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Professional fees in corporate reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 122-3.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Professional fees in reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 122-3.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Professional fees in reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 245-6.
 GREEN, EDWARD H. Reorganization under the revenue acts. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 213-20.) countants. Fifti 1937. p. 213-20.)
- HOWLAND, JOHN. Enforcement of secured creditors' claims under 77 and 77B: a func-tional analysis. Yale law journal, May 1937, p. 1109-23.
- KAPLAN, ALFRED. Tax-exempt reorganizations; status after the Hendler case. Taxes-the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 523, 548.

REORGANIZATIONS—(Continued)

- EORGANIZATIONS—(Continued)
 KIMBALL, MILO. Corporate reorganization. (In his Principles of corporate finance. 1939. p. 261-76.)
 KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Reorganizations under the revenue acts. (remarks of the discussion leader at round table discussion, at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 5 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 206-13.)
 LAPORTE, CLOYD. Changes in corporate reorganization and procedure proposed by the Chandler and Lea bills. Harvard law review, Feb. 1938, p. 672-92.
 LISMAN, F. J. Railroad reorganizations and section 77. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 24-40.
 LOGAN, HARRY L., IR. Priorities and lien preferences accorded federal and state claims in corporate reorganizations. Tax magazine, April 1938. p. 201-6 244.8

- A. FLORE D., J.K. FUOTITIES and lien preferences accorded federal and state claims in corporate reorganizations. Tax magazine, April 1938, p. 201-6, 244-8.
 LYON, HASTINGS. Reorganization: settling the affairs of the corporate enterprise in financial difficulties. (In his Corporations and their financing. c1938, p. 611-715.)
 MAGILL, ROSWELL Effect of taxation upon corporate policies; address before Academy of political science, New York City, November 9, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 MAHAFFIE, CHARLES D. Railroad reorganiza-tion. (In National association of railroad and utilities commissioners. Proceedings of the forty-eighth annual convention . . 1936. p. 119-20.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Reorganization of
- 119-29.) MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Reorganization of capital structure. (In his Accounting for cor-porations. 1937. p. 212-24.) MATTUCK, MAXWELL S. "Good faith" clause of 77-B adjudicated. Credit executive, Sept. 1936, p. 276.

- porations, 1937. p. 212-24.)
 MATTUCK, MAXWELL S. "Good faith" clause of 77-B adjudicated. Credit executive, Sept. 1936, p. 276.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Goodyear tire and rubber reorganization of 1920 in retrospect. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936, v. 1, p. 291-316.)
 MILLER, ROBERT N. Income tax liability in reorganizations. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 131-4.
 MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Corporate reorganizations under the Chandler act. Credit executive, Sept. 1938, p. 271-3.
 MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Section 77-B of the federal bankruptcy act. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 3-11.
 MORSE, JOHN R. Reorganizing to prevent losses. Society for the advancement of management journal, Iuly 1937, p. 98-100, 117.
 MOSS, OSCAR. Role of accountants in bankruptcy and reorganization cases. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 146-9.)
 VELSON. W BERTRAM Commany reconstruction.
- institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 146-9.)
 NELSON, W. BERTRAM. Company reconstructions. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1936, p. 193-6.
 NEW YORK, NEW HAVEN AND HARTFORD RAILROAD COMPANY. In the district court of the United States for the district of Connecticut, in the matter of the New York, New Haven and Hartford railroad company, debtor; no. 16562: plan of reorenization (filed by the debtor) June 1. 1937. 61p. and exhibits.
 O'LEARY, PAUL M. Role of banking groups in corporate reorganizations. American economic review, June 1939, p. 337-44.
 REORGANIZATION under the revenue acts; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fifteth aminersary celebration. 1937. p. 205-29.) Reprinted. 25p.
 REORGANIZATIONS under section 11 (g) of the public utility holding company act. Yale law iournal, Nov. 1939, p. 65-74.
 REPORTS of receivers or trustees. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 6.

- structions. Australian accountant, April 1936, p. 176-97. ROSS.
- 1/0-97.
 ROSTOW, EUGENE V. AND CUTLER, LLOYD
 N. Competing systems of corporate reorganiza-tions; chapters 10 and 11 of the bankruptcy act. Yale law journal, June 1939, p. 1334-76.
 SANDBERG, MILTON. Income tax subsidy to "reorganizations". Columbia law review, Jan. 1028 08 102
- 1938, p. 98-126.

- 1938, p. 98-126.
 77-B cases; corporate reorganizations. Dun's review, Nov. 1937. p. 40; Dec. 1937, p. 38-9.
 SHERMAN, SAMUEL JOYCE. Assumption of debts in corporate reorganizations. Taxes—the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 691-98, 736.
 SIEGEL, BENJAMIN. Abolish use of 77B by insolvent private corporations. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 325-7.
 STANTON, HARRY L. Significance of the Chondler act. new duties and responsibilities of

- Nov. 1936, p. 325-7. STANTON, HARRY L. Significance of the Chandler act; new duties and responsibilities of indenture trustees in reorganizations. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 275-79. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Corporate reorganizations. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 127-48. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Corporate reorganizations; a review of the causes of financial reorganiza-tions and trends in procedures availed of to accomplish the result; a discussion presented at the Illinois society of certified public accoun-tants, Chicago, Ill., June 1, 1937. 31 mimeo-graphed pages.
- graphed pages. STOCK in company reorganization. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1939,

- district of New York. In the matter of McKesson and Robbins, incorporated, debtor in proceedings for the reorganization of a corporation . . . Report on the property, liabilities and financial condition of the debtor, the operation of its business and the desirability of the continuation thereof, pursuant to section 167 (5) of the hankruptcy act. Special report dated November 22, 1939: Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Roberts, attorneys for trustee. 26p. WATERS, HENRY H. Reorganization problems under the new bankruptcy act. (In American transit association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 331-42.)
- WEINSTEIN. JACOB I. Certain phases of the Chandler bill which are of particular interest to accountants. New York certified public ac-conntant, Ian. 1939, p. 185-90. WEINSTEIN, JACOB I. Corporate reorganiza-tions. (In his Bankruptcy low of 1938. c1938. p. 192-258.)
- p. 192-258.) WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Some current prob-lems in accounting; address before annual meet-ing of American accounting association at De-troit, Michigan, December 28, 1938. 10 mimeo-graphed pages. Accounting review, June. 1939, p. 117-26.

REORGANIZATIONS under section 11 (g) of the public utility holding company act. *Yale law journal*, Nov. 1939, p. 65-74.

REORGANIZATIONS under the revenue acts. Klein, Joseph J.

REPAIRS

See Maintenance and repairs.

REPAIRS, maintenance, replacements and additions in 1938. Horwath hotel accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 4-5.

- REPLACEMENT COSTS McCOWEN, GEORGE B. Replacement cost of goods sold. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 270-7.
- **REPLACEMENTS** FISKE, WYMAN P. Cash for plant replacements?
 - FISKE, WYMAN F. Cash for plain replacements Factory management and maintenance, Nov. 1936, p. 54, 78, 80, 82. GRANT, EUGENE L. Will it pay to replace a machine or structure? (In his Principles of engineering economy. c1938. p. 182-221.)
- REPORT **ORT** of Reconstruction finance corporation. United States. Reconstruction finance corporation
- REPORT of society committee on professional ethics. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 24-5.
- REPORT of special committee on depreciation. Na-tional association of railroad and utilities commissioners
- ORT of subcommittee on independent audits and audit procedure, committee on stock list. New York stock exchange. Committee on stock list. Subcommittee on independent audits and REPORT audit procedure.
- REPORT of the committee of the National tax asso-ciation on allocation of income. Mattersdorf, Leo.

REPORT of the president. Collins, Clem W.

REPORT of the president. Montgomery, Robert H.

- **REPORT** of the special committee on co-ordination of the bar. American bar association.
- REPORT on continuous audits. Fleisher, Fernald and company.
- **REPORT** on the study and investigation of the work, activities, personnel and functions of protective and reorganization committees, pur-suant to section 211 of the securities exchange act of 1934. United States. Securities and ex-change commission.
- REPORTING current income and expenditures. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- **REPORTING** upon the corporate investment. Bow-man, Archibald.
- REPORTS

2

- EPORTS
 See also Balance sheets; Certificates, Auditors'; Statements, Financial; Commentator, a department edited by William D. Cranstoun.
 ACCOUNTANTS' reports. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 289-90.
 ACCOUNTING for public information. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 284.
 ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION— Tentaive statement of accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting derlying corporate innancial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting association. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6.
 ADAMS, FERRELL H. Reporting county finances. Municipal finance, Aug. 1937, p. 5-8.
 ALDRICH, LAURENCE, W. Writing of reports to stockholders an art. Controller, March 1936, 0 525
- p. 53-5. AMERICAN
- p. 53-5. MERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION. Executive committee. Tentative statement of ac-counting principles affecting corporate reports. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 187-91. Reprinted. 18p. AMERICAN COUNCIL
- MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Statements of fund transactions in financial reports. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Nov. 1937. 18p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 11.)

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Short form of independent certified public accountant's report or opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 289.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing procedure. Extensions of auditing procedure; a report of the Special committee on auditing procedure. Extensions of auditing procedure; a report of the Special committee on auditing procedure, adopted by the Council of the American institute of accountants, May 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, Joue 1939, p. 342-9. Controller, June 1939, p. 200-4, 230-1. Camadian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 431-43; Dec. 1939, p. 417-30. Alccountant, Journe 24, 1939, p. 850-4.
 Philippine accountants journal, July, Aug., Sept. 1939, p. 130-40.
 Same; report of May 9, 1939, as modified and approved at the annual meeting, September 9, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, Journal of accountants, Journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1939, p. 130-41.
 ANDERSON HAROLD C. By their reports ye
 - 130-41

- ANDERSON, HAROLD C. By their reports ye ishall know them. (from Bulletin, District of Columbia institute of certified public accountants, Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 23-4.
 ANNUAL reports of corporations required by S.E.C. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Jan. 1936, p. 23-4.
 ARMSTRONG, K. E. Management reports—what the boss wants to know. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 20-3, discussion, p. 23-5.)
 ASHLEY, C. A. Auditor's report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 118-20.

- ASHLEY, C. A. Auditor's report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 118-20.
 AUDITOR'S report. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 916-7. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 116-3. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 1161-4. Accountant student and Accountant's journal, Sept. 1937, p. 125-3.
 AUDITOR'S report (Editorial) Journal of accountant, p. 216-4. Accountant, Sup. 1937, p. 246-8.
 AUDITOR'S report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 135-9.
 AUDITOR'S report to the shareholders; an appeal to the council of the Shareholders; an appeal to the council of the Shareholders, and chartered accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 341-47.
 AUDITOR'S report to the shareholders, memorandum regarding roundtable discussion at annual meeting in Halifax, August 1938. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 63-5.
 BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Certificates'. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting conference 1938. p. 15-20, discussion, p. 20-1.)
 BAKER, RAY PALMER, AND HOWELL, ALMONTE CHARLES. Preparation of reports. (Editorial Sciences, c. 1938. Soft, Soft, Sciences, c. 1938. Soft, 578p.
- BASIS of inventory in quarterly reports. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 405.
- BAXTER, W. T. Report writing. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 234-7.
- BENNETT, CLARENCE F. Management reports —their use and interpretation. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 1, p. 1028-43.) Printed with Cullen, J. F. Major accounting reports for management. 1.
- BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Accounting reports and their meaning to the public. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1939, p. 162-8.
- BLOUGH, CARMAN G. How companies may make statements more illuminating to stock-holders; before Controllers institute of America,

REPORTS—(Continued)

- October 4 and 5, 1937. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 282-7, 290.
 BOWMAN, ARCHIBALD. Reporting upon the corporate investment; address at Columbia university, school of business, December 14, 1937. 24p. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 2014.
- 24b. Journal of accountant's report and certificate. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, BROAD, 17-22.
- b. 17-22.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Effect of extensions of auditing procedure on the accountant's practice and reports. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 59-66.
 BUELL, S. D. Use of accountants' reports by management. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 156.)
 CAMELFORD, J. FULTON. Report writing. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 12-7

- 12-7. CHAN, STEPHEN. Supervision of accountants' reports. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 261-5. COASE, R. H. AND OTHERS. Published bal-ance sheets as an aid to economic investigation
- Sept. -some difficulties. Corporate accountant,
- 1938, p. 129. COMMENTS and descriptions in annual reports of corporations. *Canadian chartered accountant*, March 1938, p. 193-96. March 1938, p. 193-96.
- COMMENTS and descriptions in annual reports of corporations. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 193-96.
 COUCHMAN, CHARLES B. Auditors' report or certificate. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 23-8.
 CULLEN, J. F. Major accounting reports for management guidance. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1936. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 17, section 1, p. 1009-27.)
 CUMMINS, H. H. Auditor's report. (In Australian congress on accounting. Proceedings, 1936, p. 93-110, discussion, p. 111-29.)
 DISCLOSURE of bank loan on audit report. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 43-4.
 DISCUSSION of proper basis for quarterly reports. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, April 1936, p. 14-5.
 DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Round table discussion at the annual meeting—Should the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders betweened?

- the annual meeting—Should the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders be changed? A summary prepared by Kenneth W. Dalglish. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 453-61. DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Should the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders be changed? Memorandum on roundtable discussion
- changed? Memorandum on roundtable discussion, Tranged: Joenstanding of Foundation of clusterssion, 25th August, 1938, at Halifax, Nova Scotia.
 Toronto, Dominion association of chartered ac-countants, 1938, 8p.
 FEDDE, A. S. Accountants reports and the banker. December 12, 1938. 11 typewritten pages

- banker. December 12, 1938. 11 typewinten pages.
 FERGUSON, E. A. Writing of a report. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational so-ciety, Sept. 1936. 16p.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Statistical methods as ap-plied to accounting reports. Australian accoun-tant, July 1939, p. 392-9; Sept. 1939, p. 83-90; Oct. 1939, p. 158-69; Nov. 1939, p. 233-42; Dec. 1939, p. 335-6.
 FJELD, E. I. Balance-sheet form and classifica-tion in corporate reports. Accounting review, Sept. 1936, p. 211-29.
 FURTHER comments on the auditor's report to the shareholders. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 49-51.

- FURTHER references to auditors' reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 121-8.
 GILMAN, WESLEY A. Suggests making annual report a public relations document. Controller, May 1938, p. 124-8.
- GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Reports for executives. (In their Managerial

control, instruments and methods in industry.

- GLOVER, P. W. R. Basic questions of auditing procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, 92-100.
- p. 92-100. GRACEY, ROBERT D. High standard in the appearance, content and grammatical construc-tion of accountants' reports. Canadian chartered
- con or accountants reports. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 372-82. GREANEY, E. J. Elimination of cents. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, 299-300.
- HAIGHT, H. H. Tell it in the annual report.
- Factory management and maintenance, July 1936, p. 256. HENSEL, PHILIP HOWARD. Corporate finan-cial reports. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 7-12, 56.

- Inc. S.E., Filther HOW RED. Collect and the cial reports. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 7-12, 56.
 HICKIN, R. A. Progressive managerial reports. Australian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 352-8.
 HILL, RAYMOND O. Reports to management. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 274-6.)
 HOLDING, W. F. Some thoughts on tax and other government returns. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 27-33.
 HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Accounting postulates: an analysis of the tentative statements of accounting principles. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 386-401, discussion by Arthur N. Lorig and Charles T. Sweeney, p. 401-6.
 INCOME taxes in corporation reports. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 227-8.
 INGHRÅM, HOWELL A. Analysis and inter-

- INCOME taxes in corporation reports. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 227-8.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Analysis and interpretation of accounting reports. (In his Accounting cl937, p. 462-81.)
 KAHN, SIDNEY B. Monthly audit administration, working papers and reports. (address delivered before a meeting of the New York state society of certified public accountants on April 11, 1938.) 17 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 28-39.
 KAPLAN, MAURICE C. AND REAUGH, DANIEL M. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 203-36.
 KIMBALL, CHARLES C. Accountant's reports from a banker's viewpoint; address before Massachusetts society of certified public accountants, April 1937, p. 267-78. Indian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 263-71. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 21-3, 239-43.
 LARGER role for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, (Maria 239, p. 935, p. 393, p. 366.
 LINDAHL, OSCAR N. Performance facts, first requirement in reports to department heads. Controller, FED. 1939, p. 48-9.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Suggestions for the revision of the tentative statement of accounting prices. Accounting prices. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64.
- 57-64.
 LOGAN, FRED E. Management reports. Balance sheet, May 1938, p. 6-10.
 LORD, JOHN. Partial audits and qualified reports. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1938, p. 162-73.
 McCONNELL, F. H. Lessons for stockholders; managements favor greater clarity in reports, but differ on methods, Barron's, July 17, 1939, p. 8

 - p. 8. McINTOSH, A. J. Auditor's report from a banker's viewpoint. *Philippine accountants'* journal, July, Aug. and Sept. 1939, p. 141-3. MAY, GEORGE O. Eating peas with your knife. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 15-22. Re-printed. 10p.
 - MEAD CORPORATION. Annual report; a study of over five hundred financial reports of leading American business institutions showing the present style trend and important physical characteristics, compiled by W. B. Gibson. Chillicothe, Ohio, Mead corporation, Sept. 15, 1030 335 1939. 33p.
 - MILLER, A. V. Content of annual reports. (Cor-

REPORTS—(Continued)

- respondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937,

- (BPORIS-(Continuea)
 respondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 56-8.
 MISCHLER, JAMES J. Book closing and report issuing dates studied by controller. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 311-3.
 MONROE, M. M. Control of costs through daily operating reports. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 257-63.)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TURERS. Making the annual report speak for industry; compiled by James P. Selvage and Morris M. Lee. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 187p.
 NELSON, ANDREW, Auditors' reports. (In his Introduction to auditing, 1938. p. 210-28.)
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Cost accounting reports for management use. (In his Cost accounting, principles and practice. 1938. p. 540-70.)
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on auditing procedure; a report adopted by the society at the meeting of May 22, 1939. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1939. 8p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Bulletin, vol. 10, no. 8, August, 1939.—Interim financial reports. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 286-8.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Letter dated March 23, 1936, on quarterly reports of corporations. New York, New York New York state society of stock vechange, 1936. 4p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit procedure and avert 1000 900

- audits and audit procedure. Report of sub-committee on independent audits and audit pro-cedure of committee on stock list. New York, New York stock exchange, August 1939, Sp. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 236-43. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1939, p. 9-18.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Interpretive reporting. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapters 33 and 34.)
 PAUL, O. J. AND CASSEL, J. C. Responsibili-ties of the accountant to management for early reports. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 14, section 1, p. 929-36.) Printed with: Wilson, Ira S. Speeding up financial statements.
- with: WHSOH, 11a D. Springer, Statements. PETER, D. B. Accountant's report. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 282-9. Indian accoun-tant, Jan. 1937, p. 87-91. POWELL, WELDON. Accountants' report pro-cedure. Pathfinder service bulletin, Sept. 1939, p. 1, 3, 6.
- RAINEY, CLAUDE O. Management accounting.
- (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 264-73.)
 RAWLINGS, A. LEE. Accountants' reports; ad-dress delivered at annual meeting of the Vir-ginia society of public accountants held at the Cavalier Hotel, Virginia Beach, Virginia, Sep-tember 8th and 9th, 1939. 13 typewritten pages.
- REPORTS of receivers or trustees (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 6.
- REPORTS to stockholders. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 221-2.
- RICE, STUART A. Returns made by business to the federal government. (In American man-agement association. Problems and responsibili-ties of the finance officer. c1939. p. 24-32.)
- ROBINSON, DWIGHT P., JR. Accountants' reports and audited accounts from an investment analyst's viewpoint. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 77-84. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, March 1939, p. 187-99.
- ROBINSON, LELAND REX. Investor informa-tion; its economic importance; address delivered at the Institute of public affairs, Charlottesville, Va., July 11, 1936. 27 mimeographed pages. ROCKEY, CHARLES S. Suggested standards
- of practice. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1939, p. 196-7.

- SHOOK, MYRON G. Aircraft manufacturing calls for special forms of reports. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 47-8. SOME points on the annual report and accounts
- of limited companies. Corporate accountant, March
- of limited companies. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 32-5. TAYLOR, HARRY E. Audit reports and the banks. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 200-2. Indian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 53-4. TENNER, IRVING. Common errors in financial reports. Municipal finance, Feb. 1937, p. 70-1. THOMAS, RUSSELL F. Accounting and audit reports as an aid to management. National auditgram, May 1936, p. 1, 10-11. TOWNS, CHAKLES H. Accountant's reports. 8 typewritten pages. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 9-12.

- 9-12
- p. 9-12. TROUANT, D. L. Financial statements and ac-countant's report. (In his Financial audits. cl937. p. 171-83.) UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange
- NITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of the deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial statements filed under the securities act of 1933 and the securities exchange act of 1934.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed
- pages. UNIVERSITY OF NOTRE DAME. Notre Dame short-form corporate report. Notre Dame, Ind., University of Notre Dame, no date. form. ————Notre Dame short-form operating report. form
- WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Relation of accounting statements and reports to security issues; ad-dress before the Third national accounting con-
- dress before the Third national accounting con-ference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illi-nois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric insti-tute bulletin, Nov. 1959, p. 537-8, 542. WINTHROP, ALDEN. Are you a stockholder? New York, Covici, Friede, inc., c1937. 320p. ZIGNONE, G. T. Progress of business recorded in controller's reports to management. Con-troller, Feb. 1939, p. 44-6.

Consolidated

- BORDNER, H. W. Consolidated reports. (Ac-counting exchange) Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 289-91. KOHLER, E. L. Some tentative propositions un-
- KOTLER, E. L. Solid tentative propositions underlying consolidated reports. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 63-77.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Consolidated reports and working papers. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 238-344.)

- To employees BENNETT, L. W. Annual report to employees. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 308. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Accounting to employees. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 203. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Reporting to employees. (Commentator) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1938, p. 338-9. EAVIN EPANZV Business resorting to issu-

 - EAKIN, FRANZY. Business resorting to issu-ance of special reports to employees. *Controller*, July 1938, p. 184-90.
 - IRWIN, JAMES W. Periodical reports to em-ployees. Executives service bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 7-8.
 - McCARTHY, J. E. Realistic accounts and state-ments—for management—for labor; address be-fore the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, No-vember 15, 1939, Edison electric institute bul-letin, Nov. 1939, p. 535-6.
 - NATIONAL ASSO, p. 333-0. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFAC-TURERS. Annual reporting to employees. (In its Making the annual report speak for industry. 1938. p. 73-168.)
 - TELLING your story to your employes; many farsighted manufacturers are giving intimate details in annual statements. Illinois manufac-turers' costs association monthly oulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 1-2.

- **REPORTS** and recommendations regarding the per-sonal income tax, the sales tax, the chain store tax. Twentieth century fund, inc.
- **ORTS** of receivers or trustees. (Ed Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 6. (Editorial) REPORTS

REPORTS to stockholders. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 221-2.

REPOSSESSIONS

Accounting HARTMAN, DAVID. Accounting for reposses-sions and trade-ins. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 267-72.

Valuation

VALUATION of repossessed goods. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, n. 119.

REPRODUCTION COST

See Public utilities-Valuation.

REPUBLIC STEEL CORPORATION

NAY, GEORGE O. Testimony in State of Minne-sota v. Republic steel corporation. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 3-45.)

REQUIRED reinvestment of earnings. Fedde, A. S.

REQUIREMENTS for the C.P.A. and other exami-nations and the practice of public accounting. LaSalle extension university.

REQUISITIONS

See Stores systems and stock records.

RESALE price maintenance laws ("Fair trade acts") in force, December 15, 1937. Automobile manu-facturers association.

RESALE PRICES

See Prices.

RESEARCH

- See also Accounting research. APPLEYARD, C. E. Increasing efficiency through scientific research. Cost accountant, June 1937,
- scientific research. Cost accountant, June 1937, p. 22-7.
 p. 21-7.
 p. 21-7.

- SEARCH. Program of financial research; origin of the exploratory committee on financial re-search. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 64, May 1937, p. 1-22.
 PROGRAM of financial research. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 82-4.
 RESEARCH in Canada. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 369-70.

RESEARCH COSTS

See Cost and factory accounting-Research costs.

- RESEARCH department. (Correspondence) Hosmer, Windsor Arnold.
- RESEARCH department. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1939, p. 196.
- RESEARCH establishment. (Editorial) J accountancy, March 1939, p. 129-30. Journal of
- RESEARCH in Canada. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 369-70.
- RESEARCH in cost accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 138-9.

- RESERVE requirements of member banks of the federal reserve system. United States. Federal reserve board.
- RESERVES. Woodbridge, Frederick W.
- RESERVES AND SINKING FUNDS ATKINSON, STERLING K. Journal entries and financial policy. Accounting forum, April 1936, 16-9.
 - McDIARMID, FERGUS J. Plain talk on debt retirement from a utility bond buyer. Public utilities fortnightly, July 20, 1939, p. 67-78.

- Reserves AVAILABILITY of reserves for dividend. Ac-countant, June 26, 1937, p. 894-5. BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Reserves. (To their duditing bracedure. c1937. p. 299-302.)

 - BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Reserves. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 299-302.)
 BRAUER, JOSEPH. Shall or shall not the Wisconsin reserve fund for unemployment be capitalized. (1939) 5 typewritten pages.
 BROUGHTON, A. C. Investment, reserves, and sinking funds; the economic aspect. Accountant, April 11, 1936, p. 588-90.
 BRUNKHORST, R. H. Reserve accounts. Burroughs clearing house, March 1936, p. 5-7.
 CALDWELL, EUGENE. Reserves on the balance sheet. American business, May 1939, p. 26-8. Profit, July 1939, p. 1, 4.
 CARROLL, K. L. Depreciation, reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 227-32.
 - Ing runds. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 227-32.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Controlling the differ-ences between corporate accounting and tax accounting; round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 13 mimeographed pages. (In National tax asso-ciation. Proceedings, 1938, p. 147-55.) (In Na-tional tax association. Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938.)
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Relieving income. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 349.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Something about a reserve—Novel sinking fund procedure. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 348-9.
 FOSTER, L. F. Students' causerie: reserves and sinking funds. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 130-2.
 CRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER

 - p. 130-2. GRAHAM, WILLARD J. and KATZ, WILBER G. Reserves—Funds and related reserves. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 174-

 - their Accounting in law practice. 1930, p. 201-94.) HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Depreciation re-serves—Reserves for normal contingencies—Re-serves and special funds. (In his *A B C of ac-counting*. 1938. p. 147-51, 154-83.) INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Corporate surplus, divi-dends, and reserves. (In his Accounting. c1937. 395-409.) JONES, LAURENCE H. Valuation reserves in bank accounting; submitted in partial fulfilment of the requirements of the graduate school of banking of the American institute of banking. New Brunswick, N. J., The author, June 1939. 97p.

 - banking of the American institute of DARKING, New Brunswick, N. J., The author, June 1939. 97p.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Reserves and funds. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936. p. 383-401.)
 MACHINERY AND ALLIED PRODUCTS IN-STITUTE. Depreciation reserve policies; the current need for sound and adequate practices. Chicago, Ill., Machinery and allied products institute, Dec. 1936. 13p.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Reserves and their treat-ment for taxes. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 12-4, 28.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Reserves. (In their Intermediate accounting. cl939, p. 372-94.)
 OUTHWAITE, A. H. Verification of liabilities, capital and reserves. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1936, p. 331-50.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Surplus, reserves and profit-and-loss statement. (In his Audit work-ing papers. 1937. p. 148-60.)

۸

.

RESERVES AND SINKING FUNDS-Reserves-(Continued)

- RESERVES for unknowable taxes—Suggested method of accounting—Troublesome and futile tax. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 164-6. RIDDLE, JOHN H. Economic aspects of increas-

- RIDDLÉ, JOHN H. Economic aspects of increasing reserve requirements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, May 1936, p. 259-66.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. and MILLER, HERMANN C. Surplus and reserves. (In their Intermediate accounting, 1938. p. 229-44.)
 TREATMENT of reserve for contingencies. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 373-4.
 TROUANT, D. L. Reserves. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 116-22.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission, Accounting, release no. 7. (analy-
- mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-sis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Com-mission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed
- WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Some current prob-lems in accounting; address before annual meeting of American accounting association at De-troit, Michigan, December 28, 1938. 10 mimeo-graphed pages. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 117-26.
- WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Funds and
- reserves. no date. 16 typewritten pages. WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Reserves. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 105-9.

Secret

- ceret reserves
 CARROLL, K. L. Depreciation, reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 227-32; June 1939, p. 278-82.
 CARROLL, K. L. Secret reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 278-82.
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Some academic doubts about secret reserves. Canadian chartered accountant, Ing. 683-6.
- about secret reserves. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Dec. 1936, p. 479-86. Accountant, May 2, 1936, p. 683-6. LEVESTAM, H. A. Company auditor's position with regard to secret reserves. Accountants' journal, Oct. 1939, p. 124-5. MacDONALD, O. R. Secret reserves. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 69-72. SECRET reserves. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 75-6.

- tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 1999.
 Sinking funds.
 BROUGHTON, A. C. Investment, reserves, and sinking funds; the economic aspect. Accountant, April 11, 1936, p. 588-90.
 CARROLL, K. L. Depreciation, reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 227-32; June 1939, p. 278-82.
 CARROLL, K. L. Secret reserves and sinking funds. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 278-82.
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Something about a reserve—Novel sinking fund procedure. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 348-9.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Sinking funds. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting, 1936. p. 421-5.)

 - p. 421-5.) FOSTER, L. F. Students' causerie: reserves and sinking funds. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 130-2.

 - sinking funds. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 130-2. HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Reserves and special funds. (In his A B C of accounting, 1938, p. 166-83.) JOHNSTON, MALCOLM. Sinking-fund account-ing. Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 9-32. MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Reserves and funds. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936. p. 383-401.) NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Bonds and bond sinking fund. (In their Elemen-tary accounting, c1938, p. 354-71.) NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Sinking and other funds. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 222-36.) SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Sinking funds. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 470-7.)

- SINKING funds and amortization. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 72-9.) WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Funds and reserves. no date. 16 typewritten pages.
- **RESERVES** for unknowable taxes A suggested method of accounting—A troublesome and futile tax. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 164-6.

RESETTLEMENT ADMINISTRATION

See United States. Agriculture, Department of. Resettlement administration.

RESIDUARY ACCOUNTS See Executors and trustees—Accounting.

RESNICK, JOSEPH

- Accountant as an expert witness. C.C.N.Y. bar, Fall 1938, p. 3-4, 23-4.
- RESOLUTIONS adopted by staff accountants. Certi-fied public accountant, July 1939, p. 16-7.

RESORT HOTELS See Hotels.

- **RESPONSIBILITIES** of auditors and of accountants -Auditor not author of the accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 86-8.
- **RESPONSIBILITIES** of the accountant to manage-ment for early reports. Paul, O. J. and Cassel,

RESPONSIBILITY OF ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS

See Accountants-Duties and responsibilities.

- **RESTAURANT** management, principles and practice. Dahl, J. O.

- RESTAURANTS, CAFES, ETC. See also Beverages; Food; Hotels.
 DAHL, J. O. Restaurant management, principles and practice. rev. ed. New York, Harper and brothers (1936). 322p.
 HUNTINGTON, R. T. (DICK) Bar management and beverage profits. Stamford, Conn., The Dahls, c1938. 119p. c1938. 119p.

- cl938. 119p.
 Accounting
 DAHL, J. O. Restaurant costs and accounting.
 (In his Restaurant management, principles and
 practice. rev. ed. (1936). p. 136-61.)
 FOX, ARTHUR E. Accounting for night clubs.
 Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 15-8.
 FOX, ARTHUR E. Liquor control. Accounting
 forum, Jan. 1937, p. 5-7.
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. Accounting for
 employees' meals. American restaurant magasine, April 1939, p. 30-1, 89-90.
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. Accounting for
 replacement and depreciation. American restaurant magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 34, 78-9.
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. Horwath and
 Horwath answers questions this month. American restaurant magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 27, 77-8,
 80-1. 80-1

 - and restaurant magazine, Dec. 1953, p. 21, 77-5, 80-1.
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. New restaurant story. American restaurant magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 38-9, 66.
 HUNTINGTON, R. T. (DICK) Bar management and beverage profits. Stamford, Conn., The Dahls, c1938, 119p.
 MCVAY, E. A. and KEIPER, B. F. Elements of beverage control. Horwath hotel accountant, May 1936, p. 4-5, 6-7.
 MILNE, K. L. Method of accounting for cafe proprietors. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 98-103.
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Rose tree inm-Accounts of school lunch rooms. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1936, p. 118-38; 236-41.)

Cost accounting DAHL, J. O. Restaurant management. principles and practice. rev. ed. New York, Harper and brothers (1936) 322p.

- RESTAURANTS, CAFES, ETC .--- Cost accounting-(Continued)
 - WENZEL, G. L. Food cost control for the small restaurant. American restaurant magazine, July 1939, p. 36-7, 74-5.
- costs
 CHINA, glass, silver and linen. Horwath hotel accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 4-6.
 FOOD and beverage costs. (see each issue of Horvath hotel accountant.)
 HARDING, MARTIN J. How we meet our operating cost problems. American restaurant magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 43, 93-6.
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. New restaurant story. American restaurant magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 38-9, 66.
 HORWATH AND HORWATH. Questions and answers. American restaurant. Questions and answers. Jamerican restaurant.
 - HORWATH AND HORWATH magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 38; Feb. 1939, p. 46-7; March 1939, p. 40-1; May 1939, p. 42-3. HORWATH AND HORWATH. Report of nation-
 - wide survey of restaurant operating data (first six months 1938), prepared for the National restaurant association. Chicago, III., National restaurant association, c1938. 8 pages and schedules
- ules.
 ules.
 ules. American restaurant magazine, Jan.
 1936, p. 27; Feb. 1936, p. 41, 86; March 1936, p. 58, 60, 78; April 1936, p. 37-8, 82; June
 1936, p. 31-2, 56; July 1936, p. 40, 79-80; Aug.
 1936, p. 44, 73-6; Sept. 1936, p. 35-6, 50; Jan.
 1937, p. 42, 74; April 1937, p. 52, 64, 66; Aug.
 1937, p. 41-2, 71-2; Sept. 1937, p. 40, 64; Oct.
 1937, p. 41-2, 71-2; Sept. 1937, p. 40, 64; Oct.
 1937, p. 41-2, 71-2; Sept. 1937, p. 44, 102-3; Dec.
 1937, p. 33, 74-6; Feb. 1938, p. 77-8, 80-1; March
 1938, p. 63-4, 125; April 1938, p. 49-50, 106, 108-9; May 1938, p. 57-8; June 1938, p. 45-50, 106, 108-9; May 1938, p. 57-8; June 1938, p. 55-6; July 1938, p. 45, 86-7; Aug. 1939, p. 39, 60, 63; Dec. 1939, p. 37-8, 70-1.
 HUNTINGTON, R. T. (DICK) Bar management and beverage profits. Stamford, Conn., The Dahls, cl938, 119p.
 PODD, GEORGE O. Review of restaurant operating costs; address delivered at the annual convention of the National restaurant association in Chicago, October 6. Horwath hotel accounting the set of the National convention of the National restaurant association in the National restaurant association in the set of the national restaurant association in the HORWATH AND HORWATH. Restaurant oper-

- tant, Nov. 1938, p. 3-6. SIMONSON, FRED. Overhead costs can be cut! American restaurant magazine, March 1939, p. 46-7, 94, 96, 98-9.
- Statistics
- schedules
 - schedules. McCRACKEN, HUGH M. How to get a bird's-eye view of the restaurant business. American res-taurant magazine, July 1939, p. 33, 68-9, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74. RESTRICTIVE act upheld. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10. RESTRICTIVE covenant unenforceable. Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 421.

RESTRICTIVE LEGISLATION See Accountancy — Law — United States and under names of various states.

RESULTS of credit department payroll cost survey. National retail dry goods association.

- RETAIL and the cost methods of inventory. Richardson, C. L.
- **RETAIL** drug stores. Dun and Bradstreet, inc. and Natural business year council.
- RETAIL furniture business. Fertig, Arthur and company.
- RETAIL merchandise accounting. Bell, Hermon F.

RETAIL METHOD OF INVENTORY See Inventories-Retail method.

- RETAIL. method of inventory. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 402.
- **RETAIL** method of inventory. (Correspondence) Odermatt, M. R.
- RETAIL method of merchandise accounting. Hill, S. A.
- RETAIL PRICES See Prices.
- RETAIL prices. United States. Labor statistics, Bureau of.
- RETAIL sales taxation. Jacoby, Neil H.
- RETAIL store operation. Nystrom, Paul H.
- RETAIL TRADE
 - See also Department stores; Dry goods; names of
 - See also Longer various trades. BAKER, HAROLD A. Principles of retail mer-chandising. New York, McGraw-Hill book co.,

 - BAKER, HAROLD A. Principles of retail mer-chandising. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1939. 462p.
 BISHOP, J. F. Thirty-day accounts receivable. Balance sheet, May 1939, p. 11-4.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Retailing—Independent stores. (In his Essentials of distribution, 1936. p. 127-62.)
 DOUBMAN, J. RUSSELL. Principles of retail merchandising. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 213p. (American business funda-mentals)
 ENGEL, GEORGE C. and KAHN, MARTIN

 - 1937. 192p.
 - -Same, nineteenth annual convention, June 1938. 167p. Same, twentieth annual convention, June
- Same, twentieth annual convention, June 1939. 191p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Merchandising division. Buyer's manual. rev. ed. New York, National retail dry goods association, c1937. 372p.
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Retail store operation. ed. 4. rev. and enl. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 702p.
 PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. Supermarket. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1938, part 1, p. 188-200.
 RATCLIFF, RICHARD U. Problem of retail site selection. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, 1939. 93p. (Michigam business studies, v. 9, mo. 1.)
- no. 1.) REEVES, CUTHBERT E. Study of store rentals. National real estate journal, Dec. 1938, p. 26-8. SLOSSON, FRANK S. Percentage lease facts. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 41-3, 78-9.

RETAIL TRADE-(Continued)

- WHAT percentage of gross sales can stores pay for rent under the percentage type of lease? (composite table) National real estate journal, April 20, 1936, p. 39; April 20, 1937, p. 59; April 20, 1938, p. 31; April 20, 1939, p. 54-5. Buildings and building management, June 1937, 200
- Buildings and building management, June 1937, p. 30. WHAT percentage of sales can stores pay for rent? National real estate journal, April 20, 1937, p. 58-9; April 20, 1939, p. 54-5. WILLIAMS, HARRY E. Insurance problems of a retail store. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 6-10.

- Accounting BARNETT, H. D. Purchase records and accounts pavable. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 134-53.

- BARNETT, H. D. Purchase records and accounts pavable. Anstralian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 134-53.
 BELL, HERMON F. Retail merchandise accounting. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 276p.
 BROWN, BERNARD. Punched hole principle of accounting as applied to retailing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1937. p. 4-8.)
 BROWN, LAWRENCE E. Mechanics of invoice, order and purchase control in the smaller store. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1937. p. 4-8.)
 BROWN, LAWRENCE E. Mechanics of invoice, order and purchase control in the smaller store. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing, 1939, p. 211-5.
 CARSON, A. J. Application of peg-board methods to retail accounting. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1939, p. 64-74.)
 CLARK, CARLOS B. Operating statement. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1939, p. 124-30.)
 GAULT, E. H. Standardization of expense accounting as an aid to smaller store operation. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1938, p. 138-41, discussion, p. 141-2.)
 GODWIN, J. C. Practical tabulating methods as used in retail stores. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1938, p. 26-8, 49.)
 GREGORY, R. E. Retail accounting procedure; the receipt and disbursement of cash. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 426-36.
 HAGIOS, J. ANTON. Accounts receivable and sales audit procedures in N.R.D.G.A. stores. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association of credit men. Gredit manual of commercial laws. 1938, p. 6-19.)
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. Financial statements of retailers. Credit executive, June 1936, p. 165-8; July 1936, p. 210-3; Aug. 1936, p. 242-4; Sept. 1936, p
- Friedling, H. G. Duying organization and allocation of payable.
 KELLY, C. K. Classification and allocation of expenses. Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 259-70.
- KESTLER, MELVIN. Cash discounts. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 197.
- KLEINHAUS, H. I. Standard accounting pro-cedure—its value to retailing. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1936, p. 19-20, 45-6.
- p. 19-20, 43-0. KLEINHAUS, H. I. Uniform accounting pro-cedure as an aid in reducing retail operating costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 9, section 1, p. 519-33.) MCNAIR, MALCOLM P. GRAGG, CHARLES I., and TEELE, STANLEY F. Accounting, credit, and finance. (In their Problems in retail-ing. 1937. p. 524-71.) NATIONAL CAPITAL GROUP OF CONTROL
- NATIONAL CAPITAL GROUP OF CONTROL-LERS. Practical tabulating methods used in

- retail stores. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing, 1938. p. 31-48.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Balance sheet manual for retail stores; part I. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 36p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Expense manual; a manual of expense accounting for retail stores. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, 1937. 159p. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Inventory manual for department stores and departmentized spe-cialty stores. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail'dry goods association, June 1936. 65p.

- Clairy stores. Inc., National retail dry goods association, June 1936.
 65p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Small store account-ing manual. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1937. 42p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Workroom ac-counting manual for department stores and spe-cialty stores. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 8p.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTI-FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on retail accounting. Retail accounting. (partial transcript of the proceedings of open forum meeting, Walter A. Lese, chairman.) New York certified public accounting. (In their Inter-mediate accounting. c1939, p. 179-98.)
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Retail accounting and control. (In his Retail store operation. c1937, p. 522-74.)
 DITTENHOUSE. CHARLES F. and SMITH,

- NYSTROM, PAUL H. Retail accounting and control. (In his Retail store operation. c1937, p. 522-74.)
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Accounts of small shops. (In their Secretarial accounting, c1936. p. 117-38.)
 SHATTOCK, F. A. and KEOWN, K. C. Accounting for cash orders. Australian accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 60-4.
 YOUNG, STANLEY G. Accounts of a country general store. Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 67-75.

- Auditing
 HAWKINS, W. M. Internal audit—an important function of the controllers' office. Balance sheet, Dec. 1938, p. 7-10, 13-5.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Internal audit, a manual for department stores and specialty stores; prepared by the Detroit controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, c1936. 10p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Sales auditing; round table discussion. (In its Year book of retailing. 1937, p. 114-44.)
 SELBY, E. H. Audit of cash collections in retail stores. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 273-6.

- Budgeting GALBRAITH, HARRY. Merchandise planning. Profit, Aug. 1939, p. 1, 3.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Budgetary pro-cedure and control for retail stores, covering income, expenses, net profit and balance sheet; prepared by the Chicago controllers' association and the San Francisco bay cities controllers' group. New York, Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association, June 1935. 15p. and schedules.
 ORECK, MARVIN. Budgeting and controlling a small volume retail operation. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Oct. 1939, p. 25, 44.

Cost Accounting WISHART, DON. Allocation of indirect or un-classified expense. Balance sheet, Sept. 1939, p. 6-9.

RETAIL TRADE—(Continued)

no. 104.) Same, 1937. May 1938. 34p. (Bulletin

- no. 106.) HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business re-search. Operating results of department and specialty stores in 1938, by Malcolm P. McNair. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard univer-sity, Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business corrects Marc 1020 200 Bureau of business research, May 1939. 30p.

Histor

WHITLAM, A. G. Origin and growth of retail merchandising. Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 38-52.

Inventory See Inventories.

- - inc., 1936. 200p. Same. second rev. ed. 1937. 221p. FOULKE, ROY A. Fourteen financial ratios for 24 wholesale and 12 retail trades; new 1938 averages. Dun's review, Nov. 1939, p. 9-12. FOULKE, ROY A. Fourteen guides to financial stability; supplement to the 1936 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1936. 43p. FOULKE, ROY A. Signs of the times; a supple-ment to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., c1938. 43p. FOULKE, ROY A. They said it with inventories;

- no. 104.)
- -Same, 1937. May 1938. 34p. (Bulletin 106.) nn.

- -Same, 1937. c1938. 82p.
- -Same, 1938. c1939. 78p.
- SCHMALZ, CARL N. Department and specialty store results. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 149-58; discussion, p. 158-60.)
- 149-58; discussion, p. 158-60.) UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on chain variety stores registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Feb. 1939. 55p. (Report no. 3)

Stockkeeping GILBERT, J. Retail merchandise control; classifi-cation, price line and unit control. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 9-18.

Taxation

- FISH, ALBERTA E. Comparative chain and in-dependent store taxation in nine western states. Bulletin of the National tax association, June 1939, p. 275-81.
- RETAILER'S manual of taxes and regulations; a compendium of state and local laws and ordinances affecting retailers, edited by John P. Nichols. 1937 ed. New York, Institute of dis-tribution, inc., c1937. loose-leaf.

Same, 1938 ed. c1938. loose-leaf.

- WILLIAMS, R. R. Taxation and retailing. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 393-401.)
- RETAILER'S manual of taxes and regulations; a compendium of state and local laws and ordi-nances affecting retailers, edited by John P. Nichols. New York, Institute of distribution, inc., c1937. logse-leaf. -Same, 1938 ed.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

See Pensions and benefit plans.

RETIREMENT systems for public employees. Muni-cipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.

RETURN-ON-INVESTMENT See Capital; Profits; Valuation.

RETURNABLE containers. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 402-3.

RETZLAFF, HERBERT

Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act; before the 15th annual conference of certi-fied public accountants held in Seattle, Wash-ington, June 18th and 19th, 1937. 9 typewritten pages.

- pages. Cost problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Manufacturer's news letter, Aug. 5, 1937. Modernizing hospital accounting. (reprinted from Hospitals, Dec. 1938.) Unemployment insurance and old age benefits. (reprinted from the *Timberman*, Dec. 1936.) Where do we go from here? Journal of accoun-tancy, Feb. 1939, p. 85-90.

REVALUATION See Valuation.

REVENUE

See Income.

REVENUE act of 1936. United States. Congress.

- **ZENUE** act of 1936. (analysis by Victor H. Stempf) Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 15, 1936, p. 11-3. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 353-4. REVENUE
- REVENUE act of 1936-new tax provisions. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 399-404, 440-4.
- REVENUE act, 1936, with explanation. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- **REVENUE** act of 1936 with explanations and index and estate and gift taxes imposed by prior acts. Sinclair, Murray and company, inc.
- REVENUE act of 1938. McLaren, Norman Loyall.
- REVENUE act of 1938. United States. Congress.
- REVENUE act of 1938. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 275-6.
- REVENUE act of 1938, with explanation. Com-merce clearing house, inc.
- **REVENUE** act of 1938, with explanations and index and estate, gift and stamp taxes imposed by prior acts. Sinclair, Murray and company, inc.
- REVENUE bill. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 365.
- REVENUE bill, 1936 (H.R. 12395). Commerce clearing house, inc.
- (REVENUE importance of tax measures adopted in New England: table) Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1939, p. 214-5.
- REVENUES and traffic continue upward trend. Bus transportation, March 1938, p. 115-8.

- REVES, H. F. Posting efficiency increased in this mortgage de-partment. Rand McNally bankers monthly, June 1936, p. 330-1, 358.
- REVIEW of financial reviews. Accountant, May 14, 1938, p. 666-70.
- **REVIEW** of published financial statements. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Aug. 1936, p. 15-7.

- **REVIEW** questions and problems on estate account-ing. Saxe, Emanuel.
- REVISED comprehensive propositions in accounting. Pace, Homer St. Clair and Bryan, Charles T.
- **REVISION** in bank examination procedure and in the investment securities regulation of the comptroller of the currency. *Federal reserve bulletin*, July 1938, p. 563-6.
- **REVISTA** de contabilidade e comercio. Rua da Formiga, 40-A, Porto (Portugal)
- **REVISTA** generala de comert si contabilitate; pro-prietatea corpului absolventilor scolilor supe-rioare de comert. Pusa la dispozitia corpului contabililor autorizati si experti contabili. Strada Teilor no. 12, Bucharest, Redactia si administra-tio tia.
- REYNELL, CARLETON Modern purchasing. Society for the advancement of management journal, July 1937, p. 118-22.
- REYNOLDS, A. F. Treatment of bond discount. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 272.
- **REYNOLDS, D. F.** Branch accounts. Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 312-20.
- **REYNOLDS**, F. B.
 - "Onlooker sees..." Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 8-11. Pension problems of accountants individually and professionally. Certified accountants journal, May 1936, p. 155-60.
- REYNOLDS, F. B., joint author See Summerfield, W. and Reynolds, F. B.
- REYNOLDS, R. J., TOBACCO COMPANY COTTER, ARUNDEL. How tobacco firms treat inventories. Barron's, Nov. 20, 1939, p. 8, 10.
- RHAME, WILLIAM T. AND CARY, WILLIAM LUCIUS Some recent corporate solutions to the undistributed profits tax. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 486-96.

RHODE ISLAND SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Directory of members. 1937. 7p.

- RICE, G. F. D. Errors encountered in auditing. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, March 1938, p. 208-11, dis-cussion, p. 211-2. Indian accountant, May 1938, p. 175-81, discussion, p. 181-3, 185.
- RICE, GEORGE W.
 - Tax-exempt bonds—shall we remove the exemp-tions? Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. tions? Ta 69-70, 88.
- RICE, LLOYD P.
 - Financing social security by means of payroll taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 135-53.) Tax problems of the Philippines. Philippine ac-countants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 349-55.
- RICE, STUART A.

See also American management association. Returns made by business to the federal govern-ment. (In American management association. Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer. c1939. p. 24-32.)

RICH, WILEY DANIEL Civil liabilities of accountants under the securities act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 488-97. Accountants' magazine, July 1938, p. 441-9. Reprinted by American surety company with: MacMillan, William R. Sources and extent of liability of a public accountant. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 30-2. (condensed)

- RICHARDSON, A. P.
 Man to man. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 398-9.
 This blessed language. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 247-8; May 1939, p. 304-5; June 1939, p. 377-8; July 1939, p. 60-1; Aug. 1939, p. 127-8; Sept. 1939, p. 204-5; Oct. 1939, p. 277-8; Nov. 1939, p. 350-1; Dec. 1939, p. 407-8.
 This blessed language. (reprinted from the Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939.) Accountants' maga-zine, Dec. 1939, p. 622-5.

RICHARDSON, A. P. ACKNOWLEDGMENT. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 13-4.

- RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Balance sheet ratios. Balance sheet, Dec. 1936, p. 22-4.

 - Janacco and the retail and the cost methods of inventory. Balance sheet, May 1938, p. 11-3.
 Federal chain store tax bill. Balance sheet, Sept. 1939, p. 15-20.
 Internal audit; address at Controllers' congress—annual convention, Pacific coast regional group, September 16th, 1938. 14 typewritten pages.
 Retail and the cost methods of inventory; discussion at a meeting of the Retail controllers association, Los Angeles, April 14, 1938. 5 typewritten pages.
 Retail method of inventory. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 372.
 Revenue act of 1938—income tax changes affecting corporations and capital gains and losses. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 21-24.

RICHARDSON, D. D. Internal check and audit; panel discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939, p. 365-406.)

RICHARDSON, S. M.

Fare structures in urban transport. Federal ac-countant, Dec. 1939, p. 632-9.

- RICHARDSON, W. S. Constructional costing. Australian accountant, Nov.

1936, p. 330-9. Plant and machinery control. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 177-83.

RICHBERG, DONALD R.

Suggestion for revision of the anti-trust laws. (reprinted from University of Pennsylvania law review, Nov. 1936) 14p.

RICHMOND, CARL G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospective earnings insurance. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 20. no. 4, section 1, p. 209-25.)

RICKETSON, FRANK H., JR. Management of motion picture theatres. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 376p.

RIDDLE, JOHN H.

Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 109-17. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 109-17. Economic aspects of increasing reserve require-ments. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, May 1936, p. 259-66.

RIDER, FREMONT

Library cost acco 1936, p. 331-81. accounting. Library quarterly, Oct.

- RIGGLEMAN, JOHN R. Graphic methods for presenting business statistics; introduction by M. C. Rorty. New York, Mc-Graw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 259p.
- GGLEMAN, JOHN R. AND FRISBEE, IRA N. Business statistics. ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 790p. RIGGLEMAN,

RIGGS, HENRY EARLE Do municipal electric plants really pay? Public utilities fortnightly, Sept. 24, 1936, p. 363-92. Waste in ill-considered federal public works project. Public utilities fortnightly, March 31, 1938, p. 387-97.

What will the federal power program eventually cost? Public utilities fortnightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 455-63.

RIGHTOR, C. E. See also United States. Census, Bureau of. Bonded debt of 283 cities as at January 1, 1936. (reprinted from National municipal review, June 1936.) 14p.

RIGHTS on sale of goodwill. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 440-1.

RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F.

- Social security—a primer for employers and em-ployees. Boston evening transcript, Jan. 29, 1936.
- RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND SMITH,

HAROLD J. Secretarial accounting; formerly published under the title of Elements of accounts. rev. ed. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., c1936. 342p.

RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. AND COMPANY Summary report on cost of distributing milk in the Boston market; prepared for the Massa-chusets milk control board. Boston, Mass., Charles F. Rittenhouse and co., Oct. 1936, 204p.

RIVETS

See Bolts, nuts, etc.

ROADS AND HIGHWAYS

- Accounting LEAGER, MARC C. Account classification. (In his Financial management for highways, 1935. p. 145-52.)

Auditing PRESCRIBED certificates. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 1-2.

Budgeting LEAGER, MARC C. Notes on highway budgets. (In his Financial management for highways, 1935. p. 153-8.)

Cost counting

- BURCH, JAMES S. Uniform highway cost ac-counting needed for proper evaluation of high-way service. *Roads and streets*, Aug. 1937, p. 78, 80.
- 78, 80.
 CRITCHLEY, T. P. AND THORPE, N. W. Costing as it affects a municipal engineer's department. Cost accountant, May 1938, p. 378-82.
 MUSE, A. W. Uniform costing for highway departments. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 46-50.

- 40-30.
 Costs

 ALLEN, L. L. Methods and costs of road stabilization in Minnesota. Roads and streets, March 1937, p. 63-4, 66, 68.
 ANDERSON, ANDREW P. Some relations of the highway construction outfit to unit operating costs. Roads and streets, Nov. 1936, p. 21-6; Dec. 1936, p. 25-8.
 BLACK, JOHN C. Maintenance of shoulders and rights-of-way. Roads and streets, Yeb. 1938, p. 47-8, 50, 52.
 BREED, C. B., AND OTHERS. Highway costs; a study of highway costs and motor vehicle payments in the United States; submitted to Association of American railroads, January 30, 1939. Washington, D. C. Association of American railroads, January 30, 1939. BROWN, VICTOR J. Colorado prosecutes low cost bituminous road program. Roads and streets, July 1937, p. 41-6.
 HIGHWAY maintenance costs in New York state. Roads and streets, July 1936, p. 52, 54.

Finance LEAGER, MARC C. Financial management for highways. Raleigh, N. C., University of North Carolina, State college of agriculture and engi-neering, Feb. 1935. (State college record v. 34, 1996). no. 4.)

ROALFE, GEORGE D. Motor trucking costs. Rock products, April 1937, p. 55-7.

- ROBBINS, E. C. Collective bargaining under the Wagner labor act. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 393-405.
- ROBERGE, LACTANCE Tax accounting in Montreal. Municipal finance, Feb. 1939, p. 5-8.
- ROBERT D. FISHER manual of extinct or obsolete companies. Fisher, Robert D., ed.
- **BERT D. FISHER** manual of valuable worthless securities. Fisher, Robert D., ed. **ROBERT D. FISHER** and

ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES

- Committee on cooperation with public accountants, P. F. Gray, chairman. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 203-4. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, March
- of the American institute of accountants, March 1936, p. 9-10. Credit department ethics. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, April 1937, p. 291. Report of committee on co-operation with public accountants, Philip F. Gray, chairman. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 142-3.
- p. 142-3. Report on joint sessions—New Jersey society of certified public accountants' committee on co-öperation with the New Jersey bankers associa-tion and Robert Morris associates. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, June 1938, p. 17-18. Special trend study in behavior of corporate pro-portions; wholesale dry goods, 1917-1936—study no. 2. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 60-2, 64-5, 67-8.

ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. CHICAGO CHAP-TER AND ILLINOIS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. COMMITTEE ON COOPERATION WITH BANKERS.

Questions and answers . . . at joint meeting held in Chicago, November 17, 1938. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1939, p. 241-2, 251-5.

COMMITTEE ON CO-OPERATION WITH PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Report of committee on co-operation with public accountants, Philip F. Gray, chairman. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 161-2.

ROBERT MORRIS ASSOCIATES. COMMITTEE ON COOPERATION WITH THE NEW JERSEY BANKERS ASSOCIATION AND NEW JERSEY SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT-ANTS

See New Jersey bankers association. Committee on cooperation with the New Jersey society of certified public accountants and Robert Morris associates

ROBERTS, EDWARD A. Going value, et al. Bus transportation, Aug. 15, 1936, p. 338-40.

ROBERTS, F. A.

- Accounts in narrative form. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 168-9. Foreign branches and the certificate. Accountant, May 20, 1939, p. 678-9. Shareholder or member? Accountancy, Nov. 1938,

p. 49-50. Some reflections on company matters. Accountant, March 26, 1938, p. 423-5.

OBERTS, FRANCIS V. AND KAMPH, H. N. Pathfinder course in social security accounting. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., 1938. Lessons and practice assignments—294p. Laboratory material—forms. ROBERTS.

ROBERTS, FREDERICK A.

- Depreciation of fixed assets; one view. Accoun-tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 404-5. Indian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 31-3.

ROBERTS, H. G. Income tax reliefs in respect of losses. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 461-7.

ROBERTS, P. C.

Arrangements and wage earners plans under the Chandler act. (In Illinois, University of. Bu-reau of business research. Opinion and comment, May 1939, p. 18-25.)

ROBERTS, R. LLOYD Methods of industrial conciliation and arbitration in Great Britain. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 225-35.

ROBERTS, WILLIAM A. How the "sliding scale" reduces rates; success of the so-called Washington plan of rate regula-tion. Public utilities fortnightly, July 2, 1936, tion. Pui p. 11-20.

ROBERTSON, A. W. Management's responsibility to society. Cost and management, Nov. 1938, p. 304-13.

- ROBERTSON, D. CLAUDE Bankruptcy law; special points for students. Aus-tralian accountant, May 1938, p. 306-20; June

 - tratian accountant, May 1938, p. 306-20; June 1938, p. 381-90. Phases of mercantile law; agency and partnership. Australian accountant, March 1937, p. 126-46. Preference shares; rights in a winding-up. Com-monwealth journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 508-12.

Proprietary companies. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1936, p. 606-18. Share brokers and their clients. Australian accoun-tant, March 1938, p. 112-7.

ROBERTSON, H. V. Arrangement of income tax blanks. (Correspond-ence) Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 32

ROBERTSON, T. GRAHAM Accountancy in the law courts. Accountants' maga-zine, March 1936, p. 143-55.

ROBINSON, ARTHUR Mortgages and charges by companies. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 361-79.

ROBINSON, DWIGHT P., JR. Accountants' reports and audited accounts from an investment analyst's viewpoint. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 77-84. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 187-99.

ROBINSON, GOLDSBOROUGH Controlling profits and cash through the budget. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Feb. 1, 1938, (*N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 19*, *no. 11, section 1, p. 637-64.*)

ROBINSON, LELAND REX

- **OBINSON, LELAND REX** Are present forms of financial statements satis-factory? Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 426-47. Reprinted. Corporate earnings on share and borrowed capital in ratios of gross income (1918-1935). Journal of the American statistical association, Sept. 1936, p. 481-90. Investor information; its economic importance; address delivered at the Institute of public affairs, Charlottesville, Va., July 11, 1936. 27 mimeo-graphed pages. graphed pages.

ROBINSON, T. Prices of goods bill. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1939, p. 368-71.

ROBINSON-PATMAN ACT

- **COBINSON-PATMAN ACT** ACT to amend section 2 of the act entitled "An act to supplement existing laws against unlawful restraints and monopolies, and for other pur-poses," approved October 15, 1914, as amended (U.S.C. title 15, sec. 13), and for other purposes. (In George, Edwin B. Federal trade commission decision in the Goodyear case, with supplementary comments on its relation to the Robinson-Patman act. (reprinted from Dun and Bradstreet monthly review, April, May and June 1936 issues.) AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECU-TIVES. Robinson-Patman act; data compiled from public sources of information and repro-duced by the Federal trade commission in con-nection with its administration of the Robinson-
- from public sources of information and reproduced by the Federal trade commission in connection with its administration of the Robinson-Patman act of June 19, 1936, amending section 2 of the Clayton act, July 25, 1936. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, 1936. 38 mimeographed pages.
 ARONSON, A. S. Defenses under the Robinson-Patman act, with special reference to cost defenses. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 27-46.)
 BARNETT, FRANK E. Some observations on the Robinson-Patman act. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1937, p. 1-12, 19.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Cost features of the Robinson-Patman act; an address at a meeting of Trade association executives in New York City, held at Hotel Pennsylvania, New York City, held at Hotel Pennsylvania, New York City, no. Sept. 29, 1936. 20 mimeographed pages.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Five factors which make sellers liable under Patman act. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 305-10.
 CELLER, EMANUEL. Review of the Robinson-Patman bill. Credit executive, Aug. 1936, p. 229-32.

- 229-32
- CIES, RALPH D. Costing problems posed by the

- Patman Dill. Creat executive, Aug. 1350, p. 229-32.
 CIES, RALPH D. Costing problems posed by the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 350-5.
 COPELAND, MELVIN T. Problem of administering the Robinson-Patman act. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 156-73.
 COPELAND, MELVIN T. Purpose of the Robinson-Patman act. (reprinted from Boston transcript) Indianapolis, Ind., National food brokers association, (1936). 290.
 COST accounting under the Robinson-Patman act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Oct. 26, 1936, p. 12-3.
 DUNN, CHARLES WESLEY. Five months of the Robinson-Patman act; address delivered before Trade association executives in New York City on October 27, 1936, and revised as of November 25, 1936. The revision is directed to include additional enforcement data. New York, New York trade association executives in New York Kity, 1936. 27p.
 FREER, ROBERT E. Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 480-7.
 GENGRE, EDWIN B. Business and the Robinson-Patman act. Journal of accountancy problems, June 1937, p. 392-409.
 HAYS, MORTIMER. Are price discrimination law, Robinson-Patman act: He first year. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 392-409.
 HAYS, MORTIMER. Are price discriminations of the Patman-Robinson bill. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 301-3.

- Patman-Rohnson bill. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 301-3.
 INSTITUTE OF DISTRIBUTION, INC. Influence of the new Robinson-Patman act on buying and selling. New York, Institute of distribution, inc. (1936). 57p.
 JAMES, CHARLES C. Establishing cost differentials under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, Stevenson, Jordan and Harrison (1936). 12p. National accountant, April 1937, p. 8-11. JENNINGS, A. R. Layman's view of the Robinson-Patman act. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 1-6, 16.
 KASSANDER, A. R. Cost accounting under the new price discrimination law. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 7-12.

- LASHINS, IVAN R. Robinson-Patman act and quantity discounts. Credit executive, June 1937, p. 172-4. LEARNED
- p. 172-4,
 LEARNED, E. P. and ISAACS, NATHAN. Robinson-Patman law; some assumptions and expectations. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 137-55.
 LOWENHAUPT, ABRAHAM. Patman act diffi-cult to apply to settled business practices. Con-troller, Ian. 1937, p. 16-19, 28.
 MCLAUGHLIN, JAMES ANGELL. Courts and the Robinson-Patman act: possibilities of strict construction. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 410-19.
 McNAIR, MALCOLM. Marketing functions and costs and the Robinson-Patman act. Law and

- McNAIR, MALCOLM. Marketing functions and costs and the Robinson-Patman act. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 334-55.
 MICHIE, THOMAS J., JR. Business will not be revolutionized by Robinson-Patman act. Controller, March 1937, p. 71-8.
 MR. PATMAN carries on. (reprinted by permission from Printers' ink) L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 13, 16.
 MONTAGUE, GILBERT H. Merchandising under the Robinson-Patman act. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press inc., c1936. 8p.
 MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. First decisions of Federal trade commission under Robinson-Patman act. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 266-8.
- p. 266-8. MONTGOMERY, W. RANDOLPH. Robinson-Patman act. (In National association of credit men. Credit manual of commercial laws. 1937, men. Credit manual of commercial nucl. 1.1.7, p. 1-13.) NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-
- TION. Practical questions and answers re-garding effect of Robinson-Patman act on mer-chandising operation. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 5 mimeographed
- pages. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Special bulletin on Robinson-Patman act, July 31, 1936. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1936. 3p. NEW importance of costs—Robinson-Patman act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 10-2. Cost and management, March 1937,
- p. 66-8. OSTLUND, H. J. Robinson-Patman quantity discounts. Accounting revi man act and *review,* Dec. quantity disco 1939, p. 402-9. PATMAN, WI
- WRIGHT. Robinson-Patman act:
- PATMAN, WRIGHI. Robinson-Patman act; What you can and cannot do under this law. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 408p.
 PHILLIPS, CHARLES F. Robinson-Patman anti-price discrimination law and the chain store. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936,
- PRICE distinuination for Autumn number, 1936, p. 62-75.
 PRICING product under the Robinson-Patman act; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 267-85.)
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Accounting problems under the Robinson-Patman act; before the 15th annual conference of certified public accountants held in Seattle, Washington, June 18th and 19th, 1937. 9 typewritten pages.
 RETZLAFF, HERBERT. Cost problems under the Robinson-Patman act. Manufacturer's news letter, Aug. 5, 1937.
 ROBINSON-Patman act; a summary and an interpretation, by the editor. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 18-9, 26, 28.
 ROBINSON-Patman act in action. Yale law jour-

- ROBINSON-Patman act in action. Yale law jour-nal, Jan. 1937, p. 447-82.
- SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting as evidence in cases arising under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 12, section 1, p. 681-97.)
- SAWYER, ALBERT E. Cost accounting oppor-tunities under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 679-88.)

SCHOLEFIELD, J. B. Robinson-Patman act and

ROBINSON-PATMAN ACT—(Continued)

the accountant. Journal of accountancy, July

- 1937, p. 16-23. SMITH, BLACKWELL AND McCONNELL, JO-SEPH H. Analysis of FTC action on 66 Robin-son-Patman cases. Dun's review, Jan. 1938, p.
- son-Patman cases. Dans result, 7-13, 45-8. STEVENS, W. H. S. Cost factors in the de-termination of price discrimination. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, sec-tion 1, p. 689-96.) Printed with: Sawyer, Albert E. Cost accounting opportunities under the Robin-com Patman act.
- son-raiman act. TAGGART, HERBERT F. Standard brands case. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Oct. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 4, section 1, p. 195-262.) TEXT of the Robinson-Patman price discrimina-tion law. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p.
- 14-16

- 14-16. THORP, WILLARD L. Accounting for the Rob-inson-Patman act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 6-27.) THORP, WILLARD L. Efficiency and greater profits may come from Robinson-Patman act. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 275-9. THORP, WILLARD L. Note on cost under the Robinson-Patman act. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 25 47.
- THORP, WILLARD L. Price discrimination and cost. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 183-6.
- THORP, WILLARD L. AND GEORGE, EDWIN B. Check list of possible effects of the Robinson-Patman act. New York, Dun and Bradstreet,
- Patman act. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1936. 22p. TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES IN NEW YORK CITY. Conference proceedings on Robinson-Patman anti-discrimination act, Utility Descention New York N.Y., Wedness-

- NEW YORK CITY. Conference proceedings on Robinson-Patman anti-discrimination act, Hotel Pennsylvania, New York, N. Y., Wednes-day, July 8, 1936. 80p.
 WATTS, DAVID A. Robinson-Patman act; a paper read September 19, 1936, before the Chicago bar association. Chicago, Ill., Founda-tion press, inc., c1936. 9p.
 WEIL, FRANK L. Complaints filed under the Patman act. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Dec. 1936, p. 23-5.
 WEIL, FRANK L. Dissecting the Robinson-Pat-man act. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1936, p. 11-12, 38-40.
 WEIR, DAVID A. Economics of the Robinson-Pat-man act. Credit and financial management, Jan. 1937, p. 6-8, 31, 32-3.
 WERNE, BENJAMIN, ed. Business and the Robinson-Patman law; a symposium. New York, Oxford university press, 1938. 296p.
 WHYTE, MALCOLM K. Robinson-Patman act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936. p. 15-24.) 1936. p. 15-24.)
- **ROBINSON-PATMAN** act; a paper read September 19, 1936, before the Chicago bar association. Watts, David A.
- **ROBINSON-PATMAN** act; a summary and an inter-pretation, by the editor. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 18-9, 26, 28.
- **ROBINSON-PATMAN** act and the accountant. Scholefield, J. B.
- ROBINSON-PATMAN act in action. Yale law jour-nal, Jan. 1937, p. 447-82.

ROBINSON-PATMAN act; what you can and can-not do under this law. Patman, Wright.

ROBNETT, RONALD H. AND TUCKER, HER-BERT E.

Planning and controlling salesmen's costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 1, p. 873-96.)

ROBSON, T. B.

Construction of consolidated accounts; some points

to be taken into consideration. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1936. 47p. (Accountant lecture series no. 44.) Accountant, March 7, 1936, p. 364-72. Some holding company problems. Accountant, July 11, 1936, p. 57-60.

ROBSON, T. B., editor See Garnsey, Gilbert.

ROCHESTER, UNIVERSITY OF University's balance sheet. Rochester alumni review, Nov. 1936, p. 3-6.

ROCHFORD, G. E. Production cost from the control post. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 93-5.

ROCKEFELLER INSTITUTE FOR MEDICAL RE-SEARCH

Retiring allowances and group life insurance for employees. New York, Rockefeller institute for medical research, December 23, 1938. 18p.

ROCKEY, CHARLES S.

OCKEY, CHARLES S. Accountants' certificates and inventories. Spokes-man, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 3-4. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 199-201. Suggested standards of practice. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 196-7.

RODEN, F. CREWE Loose-leaf records. Accountant, March 6, 1937, p. 341-5.

RODEY, B. S., JR. Deflecting the curve of rising accounting costs. Edison electric institute bulletin, June 1938, p. 276-80.

Engineer's interest in unitized plant accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, May 1937, p. 173-6, 181.

RODGERS, FRANK G.

Corporate accounting and the trade association; address before the 17th annual convention, Texas state manufacturers association, June 16, 1937. 2 typewritten pages.

RODGERS, RALPH A. Municipal accounting, cash basis, budgets and tax limitation in Kansas. Municipal finance, May 1936, p. 30-3.

RODGERS, RAYMOND, joint author and joint editor See Bogen, Jules I. and others.

ROGERS, GEORGE

Predetermination of tax liability on proposed trans-actions. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 195-6, 224.

ROGERS, HUGO E. AND COHEN, HERMAN H. Legal tax saving methods, prepared under the direction of the Tax research institute of Ameri-ca. New York, Tax research institute of Ameri-ca, inc., c1936. loose leaf.

ROKAHR, THEODORE New York sponsors uniform analysis. Burroughs clearing house, Oct. 1939, p. 12-4, 29-32.

ROLFE, GEORGE S. Departmentalize the sales department. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 139-41. Production costs and the sales department. Accoun-tant, Jan. 29, 1938, p. 144-5.

ROLLASON, DONALD E. Profit or loss on exchange on inter-company trans-actions. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 133-6.

ROLLING MILLS See also Foundries—Iron and steel.

Accounting ccounting DENTON, ELWOOD V. Sales and statistical analysis for a metal manufacturer. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 8, section 1, p. 491-9.) Printed with: Gardner, Graham A. Improving the operation of tabu-lation mechanism installations. lating machine installations.

ROLLINSON, CHARLES E.

- Accountancy in the distributive motor trade. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 283-8
- ROLNIK, MAX Some tax problems in inventorying under the last-in, first-out method. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 140-5.

ROMANCE of the closed door. Mucklow, Walter.

ROOFING

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of roofing contractors. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 60.)

- ROOM and restaurant payrolls. Horwath hotel ac-countant, June 1938, p. 6.
- ROOMS linen. Horwath hotel accountant, June 1938, p. 3-6.

ROOS, C. M.

Operating records. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1936, p. 1001-6.

ROOT, MORRIS J. Accounting—profession or business. Certified public accountant, July, 1936, p. 391-409.

ROREM, C. RUFUS

- OREM, C. RUFUS
 Accounting theory; a critique of the tentative statement of accounting principles. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 133-8.
 Uniform hospital accounting. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 157-62. Comments by Monroe S. Carroll, p. 162-4.
 Voluntary hospital care insurance; hospital service plans help balance public and private budgets. (reprinted from State government, May 1939)

ROSANE, G. B. E. Some problems in standard cost accounting. 5 typewritten pages.

ROSBE, ROBERT L.

Corpus and income in trust accounting. Account-ing review, Dec. 1939, p. 374-81.

ROSE, JOSEPH R., Joint author See Wilson, G. Lloyd and Rose, Joseph R.

ROSE, W. M.

Some observations on the professions. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 406-10.

ROSEMAN, SYDNEY

Cost system for a laundry. Cost and management, Feb. 1939, p. 62-80.

ROSENBERG, DAVID

Retrospective rating plan for workmen's compensa-tion risks and suggested savings on other branches of insurance. *Balance sheet*, Jan. 1938, p. 17-21.

ROSENBERG, JAMES M. Chandler bill and the Securities and exchange commission. New York certified public accoun-tant, Jan. 1939, p. 191-6.

ROSENBLUM, LEO

Accountant and the fire insurance policy. Account-ing forum, April 1937, p. 7-8, 20. Chandler act. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 23-5, 55.

RÔSENHEIM, C. L.

Unit trusts-general aspects. Accountant, July 15, 1939, p. 75-9.

ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY

After commencement—what? Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 8-9. Are you getting the most out of your accounting courses? Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 4, 38.

ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY, joint author See Bacas, Paul E. and others.

ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WAL-LACE, WILLIAM CARROLL Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and prac-tice; advanced course. rev. ed. New York, Pren-tice-Hall, inc., 1938. 569p.

ROSS, A. CLUNIES

OSS, A. CLUNIES
Accountant and the economist. Australian accountant, tant, April 1938, p. 186-92.
Accountant as economist. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1938, p. 413-9.
Accountant as statistician. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 325-32; Aug. 1939, p. 64-76.
Accounts-old and new. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 780-9.
Can a tax be a good tax? Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 308-18.
Pounds and pounds. Australian accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 143-51.
Victorian companies act, 1938; innovations and companies accountant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 536-44.
Workers' shares. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 448-54.

p. 448-54.

ROSS, DOUGLAS L. Bankruptcies and liquidations. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1937, p. 305-11.

ROSS, EDWARD P.

Depletion of oil leases. Tax magazine, June 1936, p. 323-5, 383-4.

- ROSS, H. W. Factory organization and its relation to works accountancy. Corporate accountant, July 1938,

 - Mechanical accounting. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 55-61; May 1937, p. 92-4. Office organization of "to-morrow" with notes on the application of mechanical appliances. Ac-countant, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 431-4; Oct. 3, 1936, p. 467-70.

ROSS, HOWARD I. Auditor, the client and the public. Can chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 229-37. Canadian

ROSS, J. WALLACE Liquidations and reconstructions. Australian ac-countant, April 1936, p. 176-97.

ROSS, T. EDWARD
Random recollections of an eventful half century. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 7-25. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 256-78.
Record of forty years, 1898-1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1938, 40th anniversary number. 57p.

ROSS, T. EDWARD
LYBRAND, WILLIAM M. Friendly tributes. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 26.
MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Friendly tributes. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 27.
STAUB, WALTER A. Golden anniversary dinner. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 28-34.

ROSSELL, C. E. Monroe calculating machine company. (In Amer-ican institute of accountants. Papers on ac-counting principles and procedure. 1938. p.

227-8.)

ROSSETTER, GEORGE W. Competitive bidding and solicitation; paper read before Central states accounting conference, Des Moines, Iowa, June 2, 1939. 10 typewritten pages.

ROSTOW, EUGENE V. AND CUTLER, LLOYD N. Competing systems of corporate reorganization; chapters 10 and 11 of the bankruptcy act. Yale law journal, June 1939, p. 1334-76.

ROTHSCHILD, ALFRED Inclusion of insurance data in audits as a stand-ard practice. Credit executive, Feb. 1939, p. 47-8.

ROUND TABLE DISCUSSIONS

See Accounting conferences.

- ROUNTREE, GEORGE V.
 Accounting problems in the canning industry. (Lecture 3-Accounting for specific industries-Northwestern university school of commerce.) Chicago, Ill., Northwestern university school of commerce, c1938. 23 mimeographed pages.
 Revenue act of 1939; its application to corpora-tions with particular reference to surtax on im-proper accumulations of surplus. Canner, Sept. 9, 1939, p. 13-4, 20.
 Some aspects of the federal social security act and federal revenue act of 1936. Canning trade, Dec. 28, 1936.

 - Dec. 28, 1936.
- ROUSH, H. E.

Our collection procedure for hospital accounts. Credit world, April 1938, p. 12, 25.

ROUTE ACCOUNTING See Delivery service.

ROUTING system that will save money. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 19-21.

ROWE, LOUIS G. Internal control of operating disbursements. Con-troller, April 1939, p. 129-32, 150.

ROWELL, E. P. Mechanical aids to problems in distribution ac-counting. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p.

ROWLAND, CHARLES J. AND FAYLOR, HOMER о.

Accounting and finance for Pennsylvania muni-cipalities. State College, Pa., Pennsylvania state college, c1939. various paging.

ROWLAND, S. J. Taxation of the annuity fund and some practical points arising therefrom. Accountant, tax supple-ment, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 401-9.

ROWLAND, STANLEY W. Experience, research and speculation in account-ing. Accountant, April 1, 1939, p. 442-4. Limited audits. Accountancy, April 1939, p. 237-8. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 282-5.

p. 202-3. Nature and measurement of income. Accountant, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 483-5; Oct. 15, 1938, p. 519-22. Note on the consolidation of balance sheets. Ac-countants' journal (Eng.), Feb. 1936, p. 722-6.

ROWLEY, ERIC N. Mercantile law. Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 350-64.

ROYALTIES REID, WILLIAM F. Oil royalties in Alberta. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 9-16.

ROYSTON, R.

Changing of trust investments. Corporate accoun-tant, Nov. 1937, p. 170-1. Profits under case 1, and profits for N.D.C. Cor-porate accountant, May 1938, p. 76-8.

RUBBER

Statistics NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Rubber. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 92-105.)

RUBBER ESTATES

RUDDER LOTTLE Accounting BUTLER, E. D. Some aspects of rubber com-panies' and estates' accounts. Accountants' maga-sine, May 1937, p. 260-7. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 13-15.

RUBBER GOODS Accounting

ccounting HALLIGAN, C. W. Accounting for the manufac-facture of mechanical rubber products. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 4, section 1, p. 197-216.)

Statistics UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on manufacturers of tires and other rubber products, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works prog-ress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, March 1939. 63p. (Report no. 5)

RUBBER INDUSTRY Accounting

- BUTLER, E. D. Some aspects of rubber com-panies and estates' accounts. Accountants' maga-sine, May 1937, p. 260-7. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 13-15. 1937, p. 13-15. INCORPORATED accountants' research commit-
- tee. Rubber companies. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 68-9.

RUBBER TIRES See Tires.

RUCKER, RANALD G. Cost analysis by standards in the accounts. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 368-74.

RUDD, GEORGE HARVEY

- Bases for accounting research. (In American in-stitute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 245-52.)
- System of records and accounts for trust estates. Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 1, 3-8.

RUDICK, HARRY J. Section 102 and personal holding company pro-visions of the internal revenue code. Yale law journal, Dec. 1939, p. 171-223.

RUDOLPH, R. R.

Commerce clearing house. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 224.)

RUGGLES, C. O. See also Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.

Some rate-making and marketing problems of pub-Some rate making and marketing protections of pub-lic utilities. (In Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society, 1938, p. 385-411.) Utility rates. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 50-63.

RUGGLES, CATHERINE G. Relation of corporate surpluses to income and em-ployment. American economic review, Dec. 1939, p. 724-33.

RUGS

See Carpets, rugs, etc.

- RULES and regulations for federal savings and loan associations. United States. Federal home loan bank board.
- RULES governing the preservation of records of gas utilities. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- RULES governing the preservation of records of water utilities. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.

RULES of practice and procedure before the United States processing tax board of review. United States. Treasury department.

RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT See Professional ethics.

RUSHTON, R. F.

Costing as an integral part of the accounting sys-tem. Australian accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 198-217.

Vestern Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937; leases. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Dec. 1938, p. 403-11. Western

RUSS, J.

Office machinery. Cost accountant, April 1936, p. 332-40.

RUSSELL, DONALD M. Accounting aspects of the automobile industry. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniver-sary number, part 2, p. 8-11, 36.

RUSSELL, G. Presidential address. Cost accountant, Sept. 1938,

RUSSIAN financial system. Reddaway, W. B.

RUTTER, EDWARD S. Vehicle costs; an analysis of sound accounting for the control of truck delivery costs. *Power wagon*, March 1937, p. 5-8, 42-4.

RUXTON, R. G.

- Short, R. Jans for non-selling operators. Balance sheet, Dec. 1938, p. 11-2. Investigation of inventory differences. Balance sheet, Sept. 1938, p. 16-20.

RYAN, JOHN T., JR. Future of the bituminous coal industry. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 325-36.

- RYNELL, OLOV
 Further thoughts on "Cost of new products using existing facilities". (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 2, p. 1230-1.)
 Uniform cost accounting principles in Sweden. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 10, section 1, p. 590-607.) Printed with: Werntz, William W. Approach to accounting problems. problems.

- S., G. Private balance sheets under the Victorian com-panies act, 1928. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Oct. 1938, p. 255-8.
- S.E.C. and stock exchange practice. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 4-6.
- S.E.C. hearings. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 136; April 1939, p. 194-5.
- S.E.C. releases. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 106-7.
- S.E.C. releases on accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 69.
- SABIN, R. M. Standard distribution costs. New York National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 8, section 1, p. 417-26.)

SACK, ISIDOR

Widening gap between the federal income tax law and the New York state income and franchise tax laws. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 148-58.

- SADDINGTON, C. W.
 Dairy industry in Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 204-11.
 Dairy industry in Canada; butter. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 441-9.
 Dairy industry in Canada; production records for dairy plants. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 103-12.

 - 1936, p. 103-12. ary industry in
 - iry industry in Canada; romance of milk. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1936, p. Dairy 423-8.

- SAFE DEPOSIT DEPARTMENTS See Banks and banking, Safe deposit departments.
- SAFE deposit principles and practice based on a re-search study of systems in 100 vaults; 3-ac-counting records. Bankers monthly, Aug. 1938, p. 464-5.

SAFE DEPOSIT VAULTS

See Banks and banking, Safe deposit vaults.

SAGAL, LEWIS

Development of arbitration as a function of the ac-counting profession. *Connecticut C.P.A.*, Aug. 1938, p. 1-4.

SAGE, GEORGE H.

Dividend policy and business contingencies. Har-vard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 245-52.

ST. JOHN, JOHN Real property tax collection procedures. Tax maga-sine, June 1936, p. 326-30.

SALARIES

See Wages, fees, etc.

SALARY standardization and administration. Metropolitan life insurance company. Policyholders service bureau.

SALE of accounts receivable. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 188-9.

- SALES, C. A. Some apparent inconsistencies in bankruptcy law. Accountant student and Accountants' iournal.
 - Feb. 1939, p. 303-5. Valuation of goodwill. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, March 1937, p. 343-5.

SALES

- See also Selling. AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIA-TION. Law prohibiting sales below cost, in force December 15, 1937. (reprinted with permission, by Trade association service, Summit, N. J.) New York, Automobile manufacturers associa-tion, c1937. 1 sheet. COOK, FRANKLIN H. Sale as a test of income realization. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 355.67
- 355-67
- 355-67. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Sales and in-ventories analyzed; section 1 of Survey of busi-ness trends, 1935-1937. Dun's review, May 1938,
- ness trends, 1955-1957. Dun s review, may 1950, p. 10-17. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Survey of busi-ness trends—1938; sales and inventories, a pre-liminary report. Dun's review, April 1939, p. 21-8, 48-9; May 1939, p. 13-24. FORSTER, A. ASHLEY. Amendments to the bills of sale act (N.S.W.) Australian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 169-78. HICKIN, R. A. Sales budget. Australian accoun-tant, July 1939, p. 386-91; Sept. 1939, p. 120-9. NIELSEN, A. C. Continuous marketing research— a vital factor in controlling distribution costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year

- (In National association of cost accountants. Year

- (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 220-55.)
 SALES contracts and forms. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 409-53.)
 SURVEY of business trends—1938; sales and inventories. Dun's review, March 1939, p. 5-12, 56.
 TELFER, A. F. Sales analysis as a medium of managerial control. Cost and management, Nov. 1930 328-34. 1939, p. 328-34.

•

SALES—(Continued)

- Accountin
 - CCOUNTING HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Sales procedure. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 160-95.) KESTER, ROY B. Accounting for sales and consignments. (In his *Principles of accounting*. ed. 4. c1939. p. 636-55.) NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Soles and consignments (In their Elementum and

 - NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Sales and consignments. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. p. 372-85.)
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Accounting for special kinds of sales. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice. 1936. p. 439-95.)
 PATON, W. A. Sales discounts and adjustments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938. p. 333-55.)
 SALES of leased departments. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 123.4.

 - 123-4.

Auditing

- Auditing
 HARPER, R. O. Sales auditing. Balance sheet, June 1939, p. 6-9.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Sales auditing; round table discussion. (In its Year book of re-tailing. 1937. p. 114-44.)
 SALES auditing—missing check control; round table discussion. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 50-6.)
 SALES auditing procedure; round table discus-sion. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 127-36.)

- Cost accounting ROBNETT, RONALD H. AND TUCKER, HER-BERT E. Planning and controlling salesmen's costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 1, p. 873-96.)
 SCHOENFELDT, LEE. Controlling distribution costs. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1936. p. 256-76.)
 TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution. Cost accounting, Oct. 1937, p. 127-35, discussion, p. 138-47.
- SALES and statistical analysis for a metal manufac-turer. Denton, Elwood V.
- SALES auditing procedure; round table discussion. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 127-36.)

SALES BELOW COST See Costs; Sales; Competition.

- SALES commissions on annual report of investment trust. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1937, p. 456-7.
- SALFS of leased departments. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 123-4.
- SALES tax laws; the complete texts of state sales, "use" and gross income tax laws of general ap-plication, February 1, 1936. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- SALES TAXES See Taxation-Sales, under various states and countries.
- SALESMEN'S CARS See Automobiles.
- SALESMEN'S COMPENSATION See Wages, fees, etc.-Salesmen.
- SALESMEN'S EXPENSES See Selling expenses.

- SALIERS, EARL A. Accounting for investment in plant. (Summary of address at Houston, Texas) 6 mimeographed pages
 - Accounting theory. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 3-4.
- Accounting theory. Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 3.4.
 Accounting training as a preparation for the business world; paper presented before Southern business education association at New Orleans, November 26, 1937, 11 typewritten pages.
 Depreciation in financial statements. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 187-96.
 Depreciation, principles and applications. ed. 3. New York, Ronald press co., e1939. 482p.
 Financial aspects of depreciation. Texas accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 1, 4-5. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 333-6.
 How to keep accounts and prepare statements. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 461p.
 Inadequate depreciation methods. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 303-8.
 Neglected features of accounting. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 5-6.
 Trends in accountancy. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p. 41-2.

- SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Basic accounting principles. Chicago, Ill., Business publications, inc., 1937. 656p.

SALVATORE, NICHOLAS

SAMAHA, S. L.

- How we utilize cost charts to control major ex-pense items; use of efficiency charts has proved an effective means of checking cost averages on various units of our 125-truck fleet. Power wagon, Oct. 1937, p. 14-6.
- SAMPLE accounting forms for A.I.L. standard ac-counting system. American institute of laundering, inc.
- SAMPLE accounting forms for uniform system of accounting. Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada.

SAMPSON. E. T. Municipal accounting and finance. Cost and man-agement, June-July-August 1937, p. 162-80.

SAMUELSON, SAMUEL

- How we prepare and control our expense budgets. Balance sheet, April 1937, p. 20-2.
- SANDBERG, MILTON Income tax subsidy to "reorganizations". Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 98-126.

SANDELSON, DAVID I. Law affecting private limited companies. Incorpor-ated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 215-9.

SANDERS, J. T. National significance of the agricultural processing taxes. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 163-80, discussion, p. 180-1.)

SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY

ACCOUNTING ASPECTS of the securities act. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 191-217. British control of company accounts and finance. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939,

- p. 11-23.
- p. 11-25. Comments on the statement of accounting prin-ciples. (Accounting exchange) Accounting re-riew, March 1937, p. 76-9. Influence of recent federal regulation on indus-trial management and accounting. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 5-16.)

SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY-(Continued)

- Influence of the securities and exchange commis-

- Influence of the securities and exchange commission upon accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 66-74.
 Introduction to round-table discussion: Progress in accounting research. (In American institute of accounting subjects. 1939, p. 277-8.)
 Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium.) Journal of accounting. (In Harvard university, Graduate school of business administration. Business and modern society. 1938, p. 75-112.)
- 75-112.)
 Reality in accounting. American gas journal, Nov. 1939, p. 38-40, 60.
 Recent accounting developments in the United States. Accountant, April 22, 1939, p. 535-44; April 29, 1939, p. 572-9.
 Significant recent accounting literature. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1937, p. 366-88.
 Some questions of cost accounting, theory and practice. Accountant, Nov. 11, 1939, p. 515-8; discussion, p. 518-23.
- discussion, p. 518-23.
- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, AND MOORE, UNDERHILL Statement of accounting principles. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938, 138p.

SANDLER, JOSEPH Special features of monthly audits. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 21-7. Philippine accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 295-303.

SANTIAGO, P. A. Investment position of a stock. Philippine accoun-tants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 53-60.

- SAPP, WARREN H. Accountant's relation to cost control. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938.

 - association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 20-32.)
 Cost accountant's place in industrial progress. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1936. p. 1-2, 3-4.
 Cost accountant's place in industrial recovery program. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1936, p. 1-2, 3.
 What a cost accountant should be. Illinois manufacturers' costs association facturers' costs association monthly bulletin, April 1938, p. 2, 3-4.

SARDINE INDUSTRY

See Canning and preserving.

SARGENT, CHARLES WESLEY Some qualities of cost in accounting. Accounting forum, April 1937, p. 12-3, 18-9.

SARGENT, CHRISTOPHER S., joint author See Tweed, Harrison and Sargent, Christopher S.

SARGENT, DOUGLAS A.

- ARGENI, DOUGLAS A.
 Extension of services to small businesses. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 159-60.)
 Spreading the peak. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 454-9.

SARGENT, NOEL Attitude of business concerning business taxation. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 15-32.)

SATTERLEE, HUGH AND SHER, I. HERMAN Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster,

1936, 91p.

SAUNDERS, F. W. H. Will your costing system stand up to the test of rising prices? Cost accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 165-8, discussion, p. 173-84. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 119-21.

SAUNDERS, PHILIP

ADIMOBICS, PHILIP Approach to problem of finding unit costs of dis-tribution. Controller, Aug. 1938, p. 225-9, 240. Some approaches to accounting for costs of dis-tribution; address before Controllers' council of International association of milk dealers, at Dallas, Texas, October 22, 1937. 24p.

SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS

See Building and loan and savings associations.

SAVINGS and loan associations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 322-4. Savings and loans, Feb. 1938, p. 15-6.

SAVINGS BANKS

See Banks and banking-Savings banks.

SAVINGS BANKS AUDITORS AND COMPTROL-LERS FORUM OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK Manual of uniform accounting and auditing pro-cedure. New York, Savings banks association of the state of New York, c1938. loose-leaf. ______part 2, Dec. 15, 1939. loose-leaf.

SAVINGS DEPOSITS

See Deposit insurance; Deposits.

SAVINGS deposits and depositors in banks and trust companies of the United States for the years 1928, 1933, 1938, with a summary of the inter-vening years. American bankers association. Re-search council.

SAVINGS PLANS See Wages, fees, etc.—Savings plans.

SAWER, GEOFFREY

Hire purchase and cash order transactions. Federal accountant, May 1939, p. 221-4, 226.

ŚAWMILLS

See Lumber.

SAWYER, ALBERT E.

- Awyrer, Albert E. Accounting and distribution techniques as voluntary devices to eliminate abuses in marketing. Ac-counting review, June 1939, p. 108-17. Control of distribution costs. (In National associa-tion of cost accountants. Year book, 1938, p. 189-2020.
- 213.)
- 213.7 Cost accounting as evidence in cases arising under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 12, section 1, p. 681-97.)
- Cost accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 679-88.)

SAXE, EMANUEL

- Accountancy advances. Accounting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 5-7.
- Estate accounting. New York, The author, 1939. 244p.
- Cumulative supplement (through August 31, 1939.) 12p.

- 31, 1939.) 12p.
 Review questions and problems on estate accounting. New York, The author, 1939. 40p.
 Some notes on accounting for consumers' co-öperatives. Accounting forum, Jan. 1938, p. 11-17.
 State income taxation of non-residents. (In Na-tional tax association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 215-215. 21.)

- SAYRE, B. M. After incentives—what? New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 559-67.)
 - Inventory control and valuation. New York. Na-tional association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 9, section 1, p. 477-83.)
 - Material control as exercised by the controller's de-partment. (In National association of cost ac-countants. Year book, 1937. p. 64-76.)

SCAMBLER, H. McE.

Realisation of the security of a bankrupt debtor. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 11-4.

SCHAFER, CLARENCE W.

We make a budget of income, expense, and probable profit. Rand McNally bankers monthly, March 1937, p. 156-65.

SCHALK, OSCAR G.

Par, cost income, and bond premium control of the bond account. National auditgram, May 1936, p. 5-6, 16.

SCHARFF, MAURICE R.

Depreciation accounting problems. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1937, p. 496-8. Further comments on depreciation. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 531-2.

SCHERICH, EDGAR R. Commercial banking from the standpoint of agricul-ture. Washington, D. C., Farm credit administra-tion, May 1939. 62p.

SCHIETINGER, EDWARD W. Determination of taxable income to be allocated to Pennsylvania. Modern finance, Jan. 1, 1936, p. 10-1; Jan. 15, 1936 p. 34-5, 38.

SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Advanced cost accounting; being volume 2 of *Cost accounting*. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1939. 217p.

SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S.

Valuing goodwill. Accounting ledger, Dec. 20, 1937, p. 2-4.

SCHLAUCH, WILLIAM S. AND LANG, THEO-DORE

Mathematics of business and finance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 548p.

SCHLESINGER, MILTON R., joint author See Warren, William C. and Schlesinger, Milton R.

SCHMALTZ, KURT Audit of annual accounts. (English translation) (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kon-gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 3, p. 37-64.)

SCHMALZ, CARL N. See also Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research.

search.
Department and specialty store results. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing, 1936. p. 149-58, discussion, p. 158-60.)
Perils of installment selling. Credit world, June 1939, p. 12-3, 20.
Progress of cooperatives. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 116-25.
Where is installment selling headed? Harvard business are in the provided business and business are in the provided business and business are in the provided business.

ness review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 85-95.

SCHMIDT, E. B. Problems of homestead tax exemption. Tax maga-zine, April 1938, p. 211-5, 248.

SCHMIDT, E. D.

Comparative farm statements and how to get them. Rand McNally bankers monthly, March 1936, p. 142.3

SCHMIDT, EMERSON P.

Should governments ever borrow? Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 261-2, 315-6.

SCHMIDT, LEO A. Testing the tests. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 317-20.

Theory and mechanics of accounting. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 475p.

SCHMITT, JOE L.

Accounting for motors carriers which are subject to part 2 of the interstate commerce act com-monly known as the "motor carriers act, 1935". Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1937, p. 1, 3-6.

SCHNADER, WILLIAM A. Inheritance taxation. Tax magazine, May 1937, p. 256-9, 310.

SCHOENFELDT, LEE

Controlling distribution costs. (In National associa-tion of cost accountants. Year Book, 1936. p. 256-76.)

SCHOLARSHIP prizes. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 14.

SCHOLEFIELD, J. B. Robinson-Patman act and the accountant. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 16-23. Verification of inventory and accounts receivable; introductory statement preceding round table discussion at meeting of Arizona society of certified public accountants, Phoenix, Arizona, May 20, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.

SCHOOL of professional accountancy. McCrea, Ros-well C. and Kester, Roy B.

- SCHOOLS, COLLEGES, ETC. See also Education.
 ALPHA KAPPA PSI fraternity survey of general business curricula in 64 undergraduate schools of commerce and business administration, made by committee on education and research. Indianapolis, Ind., Alpha Kappa Psi fraternity, 1937. 1 sheet.
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. College and univer-
 - MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. College and univer-sity business organization. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Oct. 1938. 26p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 13.)
 - 13.)
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Principles of college and university business practice. Washington, D. C., American council on education, July 1937. 7p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 9.)
 BENTLEY SCHOOL OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE. Special bulletin. Boston, Mass. Bentley school of accounting and finance (1937). 22p.

 - GOLDEN GATE COLLEGE. Graduate school of accountancy. Annual report to the profession, June 30, 1938, by Myron M. Strain, Dean. San Francisco, Calif., 1938. 9 mimeographed
 - pages. ROCHESTER, UNIVERSITY OF. University's balance sheet. Rochester alumni review, Nov. 1936, p. 3-6.

Accounting AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Balance sheet in college and university financial reports. (re-printed from Educational business manager and buyer) Washington, D. C., American council on education, March 1936. (Financial advisory bulletin 3.) AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Endowment income

Financial advisory service. Endowment income and investments, 1926-1935. Washington, D. C., American council on education, April 1937. 21p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. <u>8.</u>)

Same, 1926-1937. Nov. 1938. 16p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 14.) AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION.

- AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Fitting the accounting system to the plan of reporting recommended by the National committee on standard reports. Washington, D. C., American council on edu-cation, April 1936. 14p: (Financial advisory bulletin 6.) AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service Ender autority
- MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Funds subject to an-nuity agreements. Washington, D. C., American

- SCHOOLS, COLLEGES, ETC.-Accounting-(Cont.)
- SCHOOLS, COLLEGES, ETC.—Accounting—(Cont.) council on education, April 1939, 32p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 3, no. 15.)
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Inventory of plant assets. Washington, D. C., American council on education, June 1939, 37p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 16.)
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Reporting current income and expenditures. Washington, D. C., American council on education, August 1937. 21p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 10.)
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Statements of fund transactions in financial reports. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Nov. 1937. 18p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 11.)
 BAEHNE, G. W., editor. Practical applications of the punched card method in colleges and universities. New York, Columbia university press, 1935, 442p.
 BROWER, J. E. Some problems of university accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 304-15.
 CLARK, NORMAN B. Accounting system for private colleges. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1938, p. 1, 3-6.
 DAINES, H. C. Control of expenditures in colleges and universities. Educational business manager and busyer, Oct. 1936, p. 7-11, 25-7, 29.
 DICK, KENNETH ANDREW. Study of institutional accounting for fixed assets; a thesis presented in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of master of science in business of the University of Idaho, graduate school. 1938. 48 typewritten pages.
 INCOME from endowments of educational institution. Journal of higher education, Fieb. 1939, p. 68-74.
 RIILLS, GAIL A. Accounting manual for colleges. Washington, D. C., American council on education, Fieb. 24-75.)
 SEASS, A. ROBERT. Accountants' services to their college and university clients. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p.

- Auditing AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION, Financial advisory service. Independent audits of colleges and universities. Washington, D. C., American council on education, March 1938. 13p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 2, no. 12.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Audit services to colleges and universities. Certified public accountant, May 1938 p. 3
 - 1938, p. 3.

Budgeting *
DAINES, H. C. Control of expenditures in colleges and universities. Educational business manager and buyer, Oct. 1936, p. 7-11, 25-7, 29.
DeYOUNG, CHRIS A. Budgeting in public schools. Garden City, N. Y., Doubleday, Doran and co., inc., c1936. 610p.

- Cost accounting
 - ost accounting NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PUBLIC SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS. Commit-tee on pupil-cost accounting research. Public school pupil-cost accounting. Trenton, N. J., National association of public school business officials, c1933. 85p.
- Costs VAN DYKE, GEORGE E. Unit costs in public Educational business manager school systems. Educational business manager and buyer, Oct. 1936 p. 14-5, 24-5.

Finance

- inance
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. College finance. (re-printed from Educational record.) Washington, D. C., American council on education, Novem-ber 1935. 16p. (Financial advisory bulletin 1.) ARNETT, TREVOR. Observations on the finan-cial condition of colleges and universities in the United States. New York, General education board, 1937.
 ARNETT, TREVOR. Trends in current receipts and expenditures and in receipts for capital nurposes of endowed universities and colleges.
- and experiments and in receipts of calpital purposes of endowed universities and colleges, and in current receipts of state institutions in the United States from 1927-28 through 1936-37. New York, General education board, 1939. 37. Nev 158p. MOREY,
- OREY, LLOYD. Philosophy of business ad-ministration. Journal of higher education, Feb. 1939, p. 68-74.

Inventories

AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Inventory of plant assets. Washington, D. C., American council on education, June 1939. 37p. (Series 3—Finan-cial advisory service, v. 3, no. 16.)

Management

MERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Training for college and university business administration. Wash-ington, D. C., American council on education, April 1937. 12p. (Series 3—Financial advisory service, v. 1, no. 7.) AMERICAN

Scotland

FRIZELL, J. B. Financial background of Scot-tish education. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1939, p. 242-7, discussion, p. 247-8.

Statistics

- tatistics
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Current investment practices of colleges and universities. Washing-ton, D. C., American council on education, May 1936, 239, *Cfinancial advisory bulletin 4.*)
 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION. Financial advisory service. Current practices of colleges and universities in obtaining profes-sional counsel and services. (reprinted from the Journal of higher education.) Washington, D. C., American council on education, May 1936. Sp. (*Financial advisory bulletin 5.*)
 ARNETT, TREVOR. Observations on the finan-cial condition of colleges and universities in the United States. New York, General education board, 1937. 25p.
 ARNETT, TREVOR. Trends in tuition fees in state and endowed colleges and universities in the United States from 1928-29 through 1936-37. New York, General education board, 1939. 113p.
- 113p.

SCHRANZ, ANDREAS

- International comparison of research into, and study of business co-operation. (English trans-lation) (In V. internationaler prütungs und treuhand kongress. Kongress.arkiv, 1938. band D. "Vorträge Schybergson und Schranz", p. 121-35.)
- Recent tendencies in German business economics. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 278-85.

SCHROEDEL, GORDON W. Job order cost system for a company manufactur-ing uniforms. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1331-45.) Printed with: Sweetser, Frank L. Standard costs sim-plified for garment manufacturers.

SCHULKIND, EDWARD B. AND WIENER, RALPH HERBERT

counting problems of mortgages foreclosed by trustee; allocation of proceeds and charges—New York cases. *Trust companies*, Feb. 1936, p. 131-6. Accounting

SCHULMAN, WALTER H. Federal and state income taxes affecting real estate. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 138-40, 180. Undistributed profits tax avoidance after the Kosh-land case. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 703-5, 2703 752.

- SCHULTZ, H. CLIFF Accountant's responsibility in connection with all insurance. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1. 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 418-9.)
- SCHUR, JOHN A. AND HASKELL, MANFORD M. Introduction to accounting procedure. 3v. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. Book 1—Practical bookkeeping. Book 2—Secretarial accounting. Book 3—Applied accounting.

- SCHWARTZ, G. L. Limited liability company. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 46-8.

SCHWARTZ, HARRY New tax law and its effect on the bus operator. Bus transportation, Oct. 15, 1936, p. 446-8.

SCHWARTZ, JACOB Water works accounting and finance practice. Journal of the American water works associa-tion, Feb. 1937, p. 251-8.

SCHWARTZ, WILLIAM J. Preparation and uses of a list of retirement units. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1623-26.

SCHWARZ, R. PH. What the 40-hour week did to France. Factory management and maintenance, May 1938, p. 68-70, 136, 138.

SCHYBERGSON, HENRIK German and American theories on accounting. (English translation) (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band D. "Vortäge Schybergson und Schranz", p. 43-63.)

SCIENCE of valuation and depreciation. Kurtz, Edwin B.

SCIENTIFIC tax reduction; federal tax law and procedure. Cochran, Howe P.

SCOTT. DR

- Accounting principles and cost accounting. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 70-6. Responsibilities of accountants in a changing economy. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 396-401.
- Tentative statement of principles. Accounting re-view, Sept. 1937, p. 296-303. Trends in the technique and tools of management. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 138-45.

SCOTT, FRANCES V., joint author See Davenport, Donald H. and Scott, Frances V.

SCOTT, H. BRUCE

Auditing advertising transactions. Australian ac-countant, Oct. 1936, p. 262-3.

SCOTT, W. M. Stock control; the physical and accounting aspects. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1938, p. 702-12.

SCOTT, WALTER

Profit and profiteering posers. Australian accoun-tant, Dec. 1939, p. 321-8.

SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Official directory of the Chartered accountants of Scotland, 1936. Edinburgh, Chartered accoun-tants of Scotland, 1936. 534p.

| 1937. | 541p. |
|-------|-------|
| | 554p. |
| 1030 | 5785 |

1939. 578p.

SCOTTISH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS' GEN-ERAL EXAMINING BOARD

- ERAL EXAMINING BOARD
 Papers set, December 1935. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 37-80.
 Papers set, May 1936. Accountants' magazine, June 1936, p. 381-424.
 Papers set, December 1936. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 35-80.
 Papers set, May 1937. Accountants' magazine, June 1937, p. 339-80.
 Papers set, December 1937. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 43-88.
 Papers set, May 1938. Accountants' magazine, June 1938, p. 381-424.
 Papers set, December 1938. Accountants' magazine, June 1938, p. 381-424.

- Papers set, December 1938. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 41-84. Papers set, May 1939. Accountants' magazine, June 1939, p. 377-420.

- 1939, p. 377-420. Solutions to papers set, December 1935. Accoun-tants' magazine, February 1936, p. 124-36; March 1937, p. 193-200; April 1936, p. 260-72; May 1936, p. 332-6. Solutions to papers set, May 1936. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 461-72; Aug. 1936, p. 514-32; Nov. 1936, p. 583-96; Dec. 1936, p. 642-8. Solutions to papers set, December 1936. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 127-36; March 1937, p. 178-92; April 1937, p. 234-48; May 1937, p. 292-6. 292-6
- 292-0. Solutions to papers set, May 1937. Accountants' magazine, July 1937, p. 431-40; Aug. 1937, p. 485-96; Nov. 1937, p. 543-56; Dec. 1937, p. 605-12. Solutions to papers set, December 1937. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 131-6; March 1938, p. 202-8; April 1938, p. 257-64; May 1938, p. 331-44.
- Solutions to papers set, May 1938. Accountants' magazine, July 1938, p. 468-80; Aug. 1938, p. 510-28; Nov. 1938, p. 571-84; Dec. 1938, p. 626-22 32
- Solutions to papers set, December 1938. Accoun-tants' magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 135-52; March 1939, p. 208-24; April 1939, p. 269-80; May 1939, p. 330-6
- Solutions to papers set, May 1939. Accountants' magazine, July 1939, p. 470-84; Aug. 1939, p. 531-40; Nov. 1939, p. 584-92; Dec. 1939, p. 636-48.
- SCOVILL, H. T.

Education for accountancy. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 18-9. Junior accountant, his problems, responsibilities and training. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 6-25.) Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 354-66.

Natural business year. Illinois bar journal, March

Natural business year. Illinois bar journal, March 1935, p. 217-8.
 Problems and responsibilities of the junior accountant. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 7-11.
 Summary of certain testimony before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related matters, June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 106-14.)
 Same, 14 typewritten pages.

-Same. 14 typewritten pages.

SCRAP METAL DEALERS See Junk dealers.

SCRAP the percentage quotation of the carrying charge. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Sept. 1937, p. 22, 51.

SCRAP, WASTE, ETC. See also Junk dealers.

Accounting

ACCOUNTANT and factory waste. Accountant, April 16, 1938, p. 518-9. CARROLL, WILLIAM J. Accounting for and the control of scrap. New York, National association

SCRAP, WASTE, ETC.-Accounting-(Continued) of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 977-83.) Printed with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an element

of cost. HILBERT, JAMES. Reclamation form. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 984-6.) Printed with: Whisler, R. F. Quality, an element of cost.

- Cost accounting MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Process cost methodshrinkage or spoilage losses. (In his Basic course in cost accounting, 1938, p. 165-8.) SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Waste, spoilage, scrap, by-products, and joint-products. (In his
 - Advanced cost accounting, 1939. p. 178-96.)

SCREW PRODUCTS INDUSTRY

VENDER, E. E. Product cost and estimating in the screw machine products industry. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 33-9.

SCRIP

See Stock.

SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W.

Accountancy as a career, New York, Funk & Wag-nalls co., 1939. 161p. Accountant's analysis of the cause of the business cycle. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 135-7, 192.

SEAMAN, A. M. Student and the examination. Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 343-51.

SEARSON, LOUIS A.

Promiscuous auditing of public accounts; address . . to the North Carolina association of certified public accountants at Charlotte, N. C., October 1936. 7 typewritten pages.

SEASONAL BUSINESSES COOPER, HOWARD E. Elimination of fixed overhead expense from inventory and produc-tion costs under the standard cost plan. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 310-9, discussion, p. 319-21.)

Accounting AVEYARD, C. H. Special points arising in the accounts of seasonal businesses. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 563-5.

SEASONAL HOTELS

See Hotels, Seasonal.

SEASONAL VARIATION See Cycles; Statistics.

SEASONAL variations in industry and trade. Kuznets, Simon.

SEASS, A. ROBERT

Accountants' services to their college and university clients. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 31-4.

SEAVEY, CLYDE L. Federal power act and kindred legislation with reference to state regulation. *Public utilities* fortnightly, Oct. 8, 1936, p. 539-47. with

SEAVEY, WARREN A.

Mr. Justice Cardozo and the law of torts. Yale law journal, Jan. 1939, p. 390-422. Harvard law review, Jan. 1939, p. 372-407.

SEAY, T. H. Interline freight accounting. Railway age, June 19, 1937, p. 1023-8.

SEBREE, J. E.

Proposed administrative court review of BTA de-cisions. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. cisions. Taxe 401-2, 423-4.

- SECOND fifty years. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1938, p. 73.
- SECOND Fortune round table; taxation and recov-ery. Fortune, May 1939, p. 67-8, 110, 113-4; 116-8, 120, 123-4, 126. Reprinted.

SECORD, DANIEL F.

Collection bookkeeping. Credit and financial man-agement, Jan. 1936, p. 4-6, 31.

SECRET RESERVES

- See Reserves and sinking funds-Secret reserves.
- SECRET reserves. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 75-6.
- SECRETARIAL accounting. Rittenhouse, Charles F. and Smith, Harold J.
- SECRETARIAL accounting. Sherwood, J. F. and Boling, Clem.

SECRETARIES

See Corporations-Secretaries.

- SECRETARY'S handbook. Taintor, Sarah Augusta and Monro, Kate M.
- SECRETARYSHIP of trade, industrial and profes-sional organisations. Heindorff, E. W.
- SECRIST, HORACE National bank failures and non-failures; an autopsy and diagnosis. Bloomington, Ind., Principia press, 1938. 309p.
- SECTION 77-B See Bankruptcy—Law—United States; Reorgani-
- SECTION 340. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3.

SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 See Investment companies-Law-United States.

- SECURITIES act of 1933 and registration statements as they relate to appraisal reports on property facts and values. American appraisal company.
- SECURITIES act service. Commerce clearing house, inc.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION See United States. Securities and exchange

- commission.
- SECURITIES and exchange commission, the accoun-tant, and the stock exchange. Haskell, John.
- SECURITIES DEALERS See Investment companies.
- SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT See Stock exchanges-Government regulation.
- SECURITIES EXCHANGES See Stock exchanges.

SECURITIES LAW

See Investment companies-Law-United States.

- SECURITIES registered exempt from registration or admitted to unlisted trading privileges under the securities exchange act. United States. Securities and exchange commission.
- SECURITIES traded on exchanges under the securi-ties exchange act. United States. Securities and exchange commission.

SECURITY DEALERS See Brokers; Investment companies.

SECURITY issues of electric and gas utilities, 1935-1936-1937. United States. Securities and exchange commission.

SECURITY markets and business progress. Gay, Charles R.

SECURITY transfers; emergency regulations. Ac-countancy, Sept. 1939, p. 471.

SEEBAUER, GEORGE

Social aspects of scientific management. Cost and management, Nov. 1939, p. 335-41.

SEEBER, CARL L.

- EEBER, CARL L.
 Cost system in a job order plant. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 20, section 1, p. 1139-51.)
 Depreciation for a plant using composite rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin v. 20, no. 11, section 1, p. 669-76.) Printed with: Towns, Charles H. Practical aspects of depreciation on a unit-of-production basis.
 Material burden and its application. (In National association of cost accountants, Year book. 1937.
- association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 155-63.)

SEED, H. E. National defence contribution. Accountant, tax supplement, June 5, 1937, p. 227-33. Incorpo-rated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 405-10, discussion, p. 410-1. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 201-7.

SEED TRADE Statistics

- UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of seed stores (bulbs and plants). (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 22.) DUN
- Analysis of the 1936 operations of seed stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 26.)

SEIDEL, C. W. Marchant calculating machine company. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on account-ing principles and procedure. 1938. p. 227.)

- SEIDEMANN, HENRY P.
 Laying the foundation for administering the federal old-age benefits program. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 14-21.
 More than one million entries to be made by social security board. Controller, Dec. 1936, p. 325-32, discussion, p. 332-5.
 Organization and some of the administrative problems of the social security board; address before the seventeenth international cost conference of the National association of cost accountants, Netherland-Plaza hotel, Cincinnati, June 23, 1936. 19p. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 33-48, discussion p. 48-55.)
 Problems in the social security act; address at fifty-first annual meeting, American institute of accountants, Cincinnati, Ohio, Sept. 28, 1938. 14 mimeographed pages.
 - 14 mimeographed pages.
 - Social security board; some relationships to the employer and his business. 21 typewritten pages. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. on accour p. 155-9.)

- SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Dividend policy under the undistributed profits tax. Commercial and financial chronicle, Nov. 21, 1936, p. 3213-6. Federal taxation
 - 1936, p. 3213-6. Federal taxation of corporations; summary and analysis of report (1) of special committee of National tax association. 12 typewritten pages. Holding companies and the new tax law. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 487-8, 507. Revenue act of 1938. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Fourteenth annual Michigan ac-counting conference. 1938, p. 22-7.)

- Social security act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public ac-countants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936. p. 6-15.) Undistributed profits tax—suggested changes in law. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 79-82, 120.

- SEIDMAN, HENRY L.
 New York C.P.A. auditing questions 1924-1933, with answers. 2v. New York C.P.A. examina-tions review, c1936. not paged.
 Same, 1934-1938. v. 3. not paged.
 New York C.P.A. questions in theory of ac-counts, 1924-1933, with answers. 2v. New York, C.P.A. examinations review, c1936. not paged.
 Same, 1934-1938. v. 3. c1939. not paged.

- SEIDMAN, J. S.
 * Board of tax appeals. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 115-6.
 Case study of employee frauds. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 99-112.) New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 28-39.
 Catching up with employee frauds. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 415-24.
 Same as: Case study of employee frauds. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 5-9; Dec. 1939, p. 6-7, 37.

 - p. 6-7, 37
 - Corporate dividend policies during the rest of 1936 under the new tax law. Annalist, Nov. 13,
 - 1936 indef the new tax law. Annulist, Nov. 13, 1936, p. 671, 677. Cost to your pocketbook of social security. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 20-2.
 - Employee frauds-their prevention or detection. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug.
 - Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Aug. 1939, p. 66-7.
 Last-in, first-out basis for tax purposes. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 23, section 2, p. 1367-8.)
 New features for 1938 income tax returns. Accounting ledger, Feb. 1939, p. 11-12.
 New provisions with respect to corporate liquidations. New York certified hubble accountant Decounter Decounter

 - tions. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 126-30. Outwitting employee frauds requires careful of
 - Outwitting employee frauds requires careful of fice controls. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1939, p. 41-3.
 Proposed procedural changes in federal tax prac-
 - roposed procedural changes in federal tax prac-tice. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p.

 - Projosed piosed relation in federal incar piak for the formal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 221-6.
 Puzzle for auditors. Banking, Dec. 1939, p. 27.
 Regarding the last-in, first-out method. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 3, section 2, p. 183.)
 Revenue act of 1937—some interpretative problems. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 571-2, 631.
 Revenue act of 1938—some interpretative problems. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 387-8, 433.
 Section 820 of the revenue act of 1938. In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 341-2, 354.
 Seidman's legislative history of federal income tax laws, 1938-1861. New York, Prentice Hall, inc., 1938, 1166p.
 Should a federal tax bar be organized? Accounting

 - 1938, 1166p. Should a federal tax bar be organized? Accounting review, June 1936, p. 179-82. Some methods for preventing frauds. Balance sheet, Nov. 1939, p. 24. Suggested changes in income tax form 1120. Certi-fed public accountant, July 1937, p. 2-7. Taxes—cost accounting's best salesman. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, p. 375-84.) Undistributed profits tax problems. Tax magazine,
- 1, p. 5/3-84.) Undistributed profits tax problems. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 453-5, 497. Whose are the financial statements? (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, ` Whose
- p. 120-1. Will the new undistributed profits tax affect credit? Credit and financial management, Aug. 1936, p. 10, 31, 33.

SEIDMAN, LAWRENCE J.
 Accounting procedure in the cigar manufacturing industry. Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 11-3.
 Present-day scope of monthly audits. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 17-20.

SEIDMAN, M. L.

Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 228-31.

- SEIDMAN, P. K. Effects of the corporation surtax. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 19-23, 54.
- SEIDMAN'S legislative history of federal income tax laws, 1938-1861. Seidman, J. S.

- SELBY, E. H. Audit of cash collections in retail stores. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 273-6. Local government accounting and finance in New South Wales. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 90-6.
- ECCIÓN contable. Estudios tecnico-contab serau, Tacuari 119, Buenos Aires, Argentina. SELECCIÓN tecnico-contables
- SELECTED studies in federal taxation. 2nd series. Paul, Randolph E. and others.
- SELECTED tables for business and financial calculainterest and other computations; organized and arranged by Theodore Lang and William S. Schlauch. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 182p.
- SELECTION of auditors. (Notes of the mon Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 107-8. month)

SELEKMAN, B. M.

Social security act. Harvard business review, Win-ter number, 1937, p. 174-88.

SELKO, DANIEL T. See also New York (state). Tax commission. Administration of federal finances. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1937. 71p.

SELLERS, COLEMAN, 3rd Application of measured day work. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 25-31.) Printed with: Gerofski, Irvin. New developments in controlling labor costs.

SELLING

- ELLING See also Sales.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Essentials of distribution. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 588p.
 HADLEY, THOMAS D. Sales forecast. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 41-7.
 HATHAWAY, KING. Applied scientific manage-ment—15; organization—the sales department. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1938, p. 171-8.
 HOPE, J. Sales manager and the cost department. Cost accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 96-9. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 303-8.
 ROLFE, GEORGE S. Departmentalize the sales department. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 139-41.
 ROLFE, GEORGE S. Production costs and the sales department. Accountant, Jan. 29, 1938, p. 144-5.
 SELLING by direct-mail. (In Business executive's

- SELLING by direct-mail. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937. p. 227-69.)
- SELLING and distribution costs. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 32-6.

SELLING EXPENSES See also Distribution costs.
 ALLEN, A. R. High cost of selling. Australian accountant, April 1937, p. 185-91.
 BLOCKER, JOHN G. Budgeting in relation to Distribution cost accounting. Lourance Kanese

distribution cost accounting. Lawrence, Kansas,

- University of Kansas, School of business, Jan. 1937. 79p. (Kansas studies in business no. 18.) BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Selling and admin-istrative costs. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 228-40.) CUTS salesmen's expenses and auto costs with new report plan. Sales management, Oct. 10, 1038
- 1038

- new report plan. Sates management, Oct. 10, 1938.
 DISTRIBUTION of selling and administrative expenses. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 2, 3-4.
 FAZAKERLEY, T. W. Measuring the efficiency cost of salesmen. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1939, p. 669-71.
 LASALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Application of selling and administrative expense to product. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937, p. 245-73.)
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Selling and distributing costs. Accountar's magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 112-8.
 1937 survey of salesmen's expense account practices. (reprinted from Sales management's "Managing salesmen in 1938," Oct. 10, 1937.

- Managing salesmen in 1938," Oct. 10, 1937.) 1p.
 ROBNETT, RONALD H. AND TUCKER, HER-BERT E. Planning and controlling salesmen's costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 1, p. 873-96.)
 SELLING and distribution costs. Cost accountant, July 1939, p. 32-6.
 SIM, A. S. M. Selling and distribution expenses. Cost accountant, April 1939, p. 332-8.
 STONE, G. C. Selling and distribution costs. Cost accountant, April 1939, p. 332-8.
 STONE, G. C. Selling and distribution costs. Cost accountant, Herbit 1938, p. 280-9. Indian accountant, March 1938, p. 134-45.
 TITUS, WALTER F. Analysis of selling and distributing costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 222-8.)
 TYRRELL, S. C. Cost accounting for distribution and selling. Cost and management, Jan. 1938, p. 16-9.
 TYRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for

- p. 16-9. TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution. *Cost accountant*, Oct. 1937, p. 127-35, discussion, p. 138-47; Oct. 1938, p. 125-30, appendices and report of discussion, p. 131-59. C. Problem of cost accounting for
- p. 131-59. TYRRELL, S. C. Problem of cost accounting for selling and distribution—state 2; paper sub-mitted at seventeenth national cost conference, Institute of cost and works accountants, Central Hotel, Glasgow, 8th-10th September, 1938. Lon-don, Institute of cost and works accountants, 1938. 23p.

SELLING PRICES See Prices.

SELLORS, JOHN

SLLORS, JOHN Costing of accounts and account analysis for a bank. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 707-12.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.

SELMAN, SAMUEL N. Going to make a profit? Profit-or-loss statements provide the answer, but always too late. Fore-casting predicts the result, gives you time to take whatever "steps" are needed. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1938, p. 92-3.

SELTZER, HAROLD G.

Taxicab accounting. Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 14-5.

SELTZER, LAWRENCE H. Undistributed profits tax. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 391-7, 438.

SELVAGE, JAMES P. See National association of manufacturers.

SEPARATE accounting basis v. apportionment. Feldmann, M. A.

SERGEANT, H. G.

- BRGEANI, H. G. Discuss the advantages and disadvantages of the various methods of dealing with income tax in annual accounts. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 218-9.
- SERVICE charge survey, 1938. American bankers association.

SERVICE CLASSIFICATION

See Accountants' office.

SERVICE establishments. United States. Census, Bureau of.

SERVICE STATIONS

- See Automobile service stations; Gasoline service stations.
- SERVICE that management can get from the cost accountant. Hobson, C. Thornton.
- "SERVICES called audits". (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 165-7.
- SERVICES of public accountants to public bodies. Hurdman, G. Charles.
- SERVING a public need. Benson, Philip A.
- SETTLEMENT of accountant's libel action. Accoun-tant, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 246.

- SETTLEMENTS M'BURNIE, JAMES G. Children's settlements as affected by the 1936 finance act. Accoun-tants' magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 628-35.
- SEVENTH international management conference. Accountant, April 30, 1938, p. 601-2.
- SEVENTH international management congress. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 13-4.
- "70%"-distribution of profits under treasury de-cision 4914, section 102, internal revenue code. Leahy, James J.

77-B

- See Bankruptcy-Law; Reorganizations.
- 77-B cases; corporate reorganizations. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 40; Dec. 1937, p. 38-9.

SEWERAGE

Cost accounting RICHARDSON, W. S. Constructional cost Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 330-9. costing.

Finance

- inance ALLTON, ROBERT A. Sewer rental method of sewerage financing; water department collection experiences. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1938, p. 128-98. Water works and sewerage, Aug. 1938, p. 758-60. KLASSEN, C. W. AND WISELY, W. H. Newer methods of sewage works financing; recent ex-periences in the state of Illinois. Water works and sewerage, March 1937, p. 88-93. TEMPEST, W. F. Sewerage financing, modern methods and experience. Water works and sew-erage, Jan. 1939, p. 37-9.

SEYBOLD, EDGAR G., joint author See Knoeppel, C. E. and Seybold, Edgar G.

- SEYBOLD, ROSCOE
 - ddress . . . at opening session of the eighth annual meeting of the Controllers institute of America, October 9, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, N. Y. New York, Controllers institute of America, 1939. 5 mimeographed Address pages.
 - Liquidity of depreciation reserves. (In American management association. Determination of de-preciation and obsolescence policy. c1939. p. 15-20; discussion, p. 21-2.) Controller, March
 - 1939, p. 84-6. Opportunity for accounting-trained young men. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 5-6. Controller, Jan. 1939, p. 34.

Progress in industrial accounting. Controller, Dec. 1939, p. 428-31, 434.

SEYD, RICHARD E.

SYD, RICHARD E. Bankruptcies in 1937; statistics of failures in the United Kingdom and Ireland during the year 1937. Accountant, Jan. 22, 1938, p. 126-8. Same, 1938. Accountant, Feb. 11, 1939, p. 189-92.

- SEYMOUR, NEVILLE C. Accounting for fire underwriting from the investors' point of view. Eastern underwriter, Jan. 7, 1938, p. 19, 22.
 Five year periods as price-earnings tests for fire insurance company stocks. Eastern underwriter, Jan. 27, 1939, p. 25-6.

- SHAIR, LEONARD A. Accounting control for the independent distillery. *Mida's criterion*, Oct. 1939, p. 5-6, 14-7; Nov. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-3; Dec. 1939, p. 7-9, 12-5.
- SHALL I pass? Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 161-2.

SHALLENBERGER, FRANK A.

HALLENBERGER, FRANK A. Accountant's responsibility to his client—to his profession—and to the public. (In Middle Atlan-tic states accounting conference. Papers on ac-counting procedure and related matters. June 16, and 17, 1939. p. 39-45.) Journal of accoun-tancy, Oct. 1939, p. 261-7.

- SHANAHAN, WILLIAM M. Frauds involving embezzlement of cash and mer-chandise. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 325-9.
- SHAPIRO. HAROLD ROLAND, joint author See Kirsh, Benjamin S. and Shapiro, Harold Roland.

SHARE-PUSHING

- See Fraud; Investment companies-Law-Great Britain.
- **RE** pushing. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1937, p. 132-7. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1937, p. 258-61. SHARE
- SHARE pushing bill. Accountant, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 174-6. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 384-5.

SHARES

See Stock.

- SHARES of no-par value. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 149-52.
- SHARING profits with employees. Metropolitan life insurance company. Policyholders service bureau.

SHARP, F. W. Election of auditors by stockholders. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939. p. 40-1.

- SHARP, N. M. How insurance taxes operate; a summary of systems in various countries. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1939, p. 28-42.

SHATTOCK, F. A. AND KEOWN, K. C. Accounting for cash orders. Australian accoun-tant, Aug. 1939, p. 60-4.

SHAUGHNESSY, E. C. Provincial sales tax. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Sept. 1938, p. 179-91.

SHAW, H. M. Light trucks pulling semi-trailers cut quarry haul-ing costs. Rock products, Feb. 1938, p. 47-8.

SHEALEY, R. PRESTON

Law of government contracts (federal contracts) ed. 3. Washington, D. C., Federal pub. co., inc., 1938. 537p. supplement, 1939. 68p.

SHEDDAN, W. E. Work-relief paving costs analyzed. American city, March 1936, p. 85.

SHEEHAN, D. M. Counting chemical costs; accounting practices of Monsanto chemical company. Chemical and metal-lurgical engineering, Feb. 1938.

SHEET METAL

SHEET METAL WORK

See Metal work.

 SHEPARD, ALFRED B.
 Municipal accounting and auditing. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1936. p. 50-64.
 Presidential address delivered at the thirty-fourth annual meeting, Toronto, 26th August 1936. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 200-23. 209-23.

SHEPHERD, W. G. Production cost control. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 14-7.

SHER, I. HERMAN

New corporation income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, c1936. 60p. Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, 1937. 128p.

SHER, I. HERMAN. joint author See Satterlee, Hugh and Sher, I. Herman.

SHERMAN, SAMUEL JOYCE Assumption of debts in corporate reorganizations. Taxes—the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 691-98, 736

SHERMAN, WILLIAM H. Retirement systems for small communities. Muni-cipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 38-42.

SHERMAN ACT See Trusts.

SHERRITT, LAWRENCE W. Accounting for corpus and income. New York. The author, 1937. 97p.

leaf.

SHERWOOD, J. F. AND BOLING, CLEM Secretarial accounting; a course of college grade developing the fundamental principles of ac-counting as applied to professional, personal service, and mercantile enterprises. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 452p.

SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Auditing, theory and procedure. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 469p.

SHERWOOD, J. F. AND PENDERY, JOHN A. Social security and pay-roll tax accounting. Cin-cinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 256p.

SHEVIT, FRANK H

HEVIT, FRANK H. Income tax simplifier and account record book, including income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social security taxes. New York, Frank H. Shevit co., c1937. 36p. Income tax simplifier and account record book, including new 1938 provisions covering income,

capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social security taxes. New York, B. C. Forbes pub. co., c1938. 13p. and forms.

SHIELD, R. J. Orchardists'

rchardists' accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 265-71.

SHIELD, W. J.

Property and the war. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 57-8.

SHIMBERG, BERNARD L., joint author See Shoup, Carl, and others.

SHIMME, SHINSHICHIRO

Japan. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 290-5.

SHIPBUILDING

HIPBUILDING NATIONAL COUNCIL OF AMERICAN SHIP-BUILDERS. Summary of treasury decisions and rulings issued by the Treasury department, bureau of internal revenue, on matters pertain-ing to the Vinson act. New York, National council of American shipbuilders, 1935. mimeo-graphed graphed.

Auditin

uditing UNITED STATES. Maritime commission. Regu-lations prescribing method of determining profit in connection with contracts and subcontracts for the construction, reconditioning or reconstruc-tion of ships for the United States maritime commission and information for contractors and subcontractors with respect to accounting pro-cedure in connection therewith, including deter-mination of value for payment purposes. (adopted May 4, 1939.) Washington, D. C., United States maritime commission, 1939. 23p.

Cost accounting UNITED STATES. Maritime commission. Regu-lations prescribing method of determining profit in connection with contracts and subcontracts for the construction, reconditioning or reconstruc-tion of ships for the United States maritime commission and information for contractors and subcontractors with respect to accounting pro-cedure in connection therewith, including deter-mination of value for payment purposes. (adopted May 4, 1939.) Washington, D. C., United States maritime commission, 1939. 23p.

Costs CONSTRUCTION cost analysis of vessels build-ing in United States yards. Eastern underwriter, Feb. 17, 1939.

SHIPPING COMPANIES See Ships and shipping.

- SHIPS AND SHIPPING
 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Shipping. Accoun-tancy, Jan. 1939, p. 149-50.
 MILLIANS, PAUL M. Management control of ship-line operation. New York, National associa-tion of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1937. (N.A. C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-18.)

- Accounting HOUSTON; SYDNEY. Steamship business from the accountant's viewpoint. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 1, section 1, p. 9-22.) Printed with: James, Charles C. Applica-tion of standard cost accounting to railroad administration.
 - (terminal facilities and marine equipment). (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting. 1938. p. 451-8.)

UNITED STATES. Maritime commission. Uniform system of accounts for operating-differention subsidy contractors, effective January 1, 1938. mimeographed.

SHIPYARDS

See Shipbuilding.

SHIRTS

See Clothing.

SHOE INDUSTRY

Accounting INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Design of accounts; boot and shoe manufacturer. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 15-7.

- Cost accounting WILLIAMSON, RUTHERFORD. Costing and
 - WILLIAMSON, RUTHERFORD. Costing and control in a shoe manufacturing business which operates its own retail outlets. Canadian char-tered accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 81-92.
 WONSON, HAROLD S. Application and uses of standard costs in the shoe industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 5, section 1, p. 255-83.)

- Statistics
 DAVIS, HORACE B. Business mortality; the shoe manufacturing industry. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 331-8.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC., AND NAT-URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Shoe
 - URAL BUSINESS YEAR COUNCIL. Shoe manufacturers; seasonal fluctuations and natural fiscal closing dates. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1938. 4p. (Natural business year bulletin, no. 6, October 1938.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of manufacturers of women's and children's shoes. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 52, 78, 102, 127, 180-1.) (1937 ed.—p. 53, 81, 107, 134, 196-7.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 345.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 34-5.) (In his They said it with inventories, c1939. p. 24-5.) (In his They and hours in shoe and allied industries, 1939. Monthly labor review, Sept. 1939, p. 587-603.
 - 587-603.
 - WALL, ALEXANDER. Case reports; specimen analysis no. 2, shoe manufacturer. (In his How to evaluate financial statements. 1936. p. 157.)

DE manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council. SHOE

SHOE REPAIR

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of leather, shoe and harness repair concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey.
 - Analysis of the 1936 operations of leather, shoe and harness repair shops. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 102.)

SHOE TRADE, RETAIL

STOE TRADE, RETAIL Cost accounting WILLIAMSON, RUTHERFORD. Costing and control in a shoe manufacturing business which operates its own retail outlets. Canadian char-tered accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 81-92.

Statistics

- tatistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of shoe stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 32, 32a, 32b.) Analysis of the 1936 operations of shoe stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 34, 34a, 34b.) FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of retailers of men's and women's shoes. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 55, 81, 105, 130, 186-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 57, 85, 111, 138, 204-5.) (In his Fourteen guides to funncial stability. e1936. p. 42-3.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 42-3.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 30-1.)

SHOE TRADE, WHOLESALE

Statistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesalers of men's, women's and

children's shoes. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 54, 80, 104, 129, 184-5.) (1937 ed.—p. 56, 84, 110, 137, 202-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 4-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 40-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 28-9.)

SHOOK, MYRON G.

Aircraft manufacturing calls for special forms of reports. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 47-8.

SHOPS

See Machine shops; Retail trade.

SHORT, FRANK G.

Accounting for the issuance of shares for assets under the decisions of the Securities and ex-change commission. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 262-73.

Problems of depletion. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 21-27.

SHORT, L. J.

- Costing motor vehicle operation. Australian accoun-tant, Aug. 1938, p. 76-80. Handling a country delivery service. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 212-4.
- SHORT form of independent certified public accoun-tant's report or opinion. American institute of accountants.

SHORT SELLING See Brokers: Stock: Stock exchanges.

- **SHOULD** the statutory form of the auditor's report to the shareholders be changed? Dominion asso-ciation of chartered accountants.
- SHOULD **DULD** we calculate depreciation accurately? Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 241-3.

- SHOUP, CARL
 Distinction between 'net' and 'gross' in income taxation. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and vealth. 1937.
 v. 1. p. 251-81, discussion, p. 282-301.)
 Experience of retailers under New York city's sales tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1936, p. 98-114.
 Taxation of undistributed profits from the theoretical point of view. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 125-34.)

SHOUP, CARL AND SHIMBERG, BERNHARD Death taxes and estate liquidation. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 327-30.

SHOUP, CARL, AND OTHERS

Alternative methods of comparing death tax due under American and British laws. Bulletin of the National tax association, Oct. 1938, p. 6-17; Nov. 1938, p. 40-7.

SHREEVE, T. L. Modern accounting for county offices. Utah C.P.A., Oct. 1939, p. 1, 3-4; Nov. 1939, p. 2-4.

SHULTIS, ARTHUR

Farm accounting and enterprise cost system. Path-finder service bulletin, Jan. 1936, p. 1, 2-8.

SHULTS, OTTO A. Natural business year; address delivered on No-vember 10, 1936, hefore Rochester association of credit men. 18 typewritten pages.

SHULTZ, BIRL E.

Stock exchange procedure. New York, New York stock exchange institute, c1936. 102p.

SHULTZ, WILLIAM J.
 Death tax exemptions. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 107-20.)
 Regulatory taxes. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 515-7, 555.
 Tax exemption of governmental securities. Taxes -the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 331-2, 359-62, 360

369.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

SHUTER, E. R.

Employers and workmen's com accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 61-5. compensation. Cost

SIDEWALKS

See Pavements and paving.

- SIDEY, R. L.
 Formation of companies (including prospectuses), under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Char-tered accountant in Australia, July 1937, p. 23-33; Aug. 1937, p. 97-113.
 Valuation of unquoted shares. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1938, p. 605-27.

SIEGEL, ALBERT

- IEGEL, ALBERT Extensions of auditing procedure affecting credit analysis. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1939, p. 41-4. Limitations of utilizing accounting information for credit purposes. Credit and financial manage-ment, July 1939, p. 12-4, 52.

SIEGEL, BENJAMIN Abolish use of 77B by insolvent private corpora-tions. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 325-7.

- tions. Creati executive, Nov. 1936, p. 325-7.
 SIEPLEIN, W. R.
 A B C of cost figuring for the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. Cleveland, Ohio, Sherwin-Williams company, October 1939, 41p.
 Cost figuring in the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 20, section 1, p. 1173-82.) Printed with: Doll, Will. Outline of cost procedure in paint manufacture.
 Cost figuring manual for the paint, varnish and lacquer industry. (Extracted and presented at the annual convention of the National paint, varnish and lacquer industry. Cleveland, Ohio, Sherwin-Williams co., 1937. 54p.
 Uniform cost accounting for paint and varnish and lacquer industry. Cleveland, Ohio, W. R. Sieplein, 1937. 6 mimeographed pages and chart.
- SIGNIFICANT changes in federal income taxation. Stempf, Victor H.
- SIGNIFICANT departures in the revenue act of 1936. Stempf, Victor H.

SIGNIFICANT federal tax decisions, rulings, etc., of the past year. Salvatore, Nicholas.

SIGNS

Cost accounting HENSHAW, FRANK O. Labor control in the sign shop. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 15, section 1, p. 981-91.)

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of sign makers. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 105.)

SIGNS of the times; a supplement to the 1937 edition of Behind the scenes of business. Foulke, Roy A.

SILBERLING, NORMAN J. Price parities as a gauge of income. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 280-3.

SILBERT, COLEMAN Board of tax appeals and finality. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 335-41, 374-5.

SILBERT, THEODORE H.

Accounts receivable financing. Bankers magazine, June 1936, p. 521-3.

SILK

NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Silk. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 106-15.)

SILK CONVERTERS Statistics

tatistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of silk piece goods converters. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 52, 78, 102, 127, 180-1.) (1937 ed.-p. 53, 81, 107, 134, 196-7.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 34-5.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 34-5.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 24-5.)

SILK JOBBERS

SLK JOBDERS Statistics BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for silk jobbers. (In his *Practical credit analysis.* c1939, p. 76, 161, 162, 163.)

SILK MILLS

Statistics BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for silk mills. (In his Practical credit analysis. c1939. p. 159, 160.

SILLCOX, L. K. Savings by weight reduction and streamlining. Railway age, March 1936, p. 425-8.

SILVER

See Mining and metallurgy, Silver; Money; Silver as money; Silverware.

SILVER AS MONEY KEMMERER, EDWIN WALTER. French and American bimetallism—Silver controversy in the United States, 1873-1900. (In his *Money*. c1935. p. 319-58; 359-93.)

SILVER MINING See Mining and metallurgy, Silver.

SILVERHERZ, JOSEPH D. See New York (state). Tax commission.

SILVERMAN, H. A. Economic notes; the new tax on profits. Certified accountants journal, May 1937, p. 140-2.

SILVERMAN, NATHANIEL

Stock redemption and taxable dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 82-4, 95-6,115.

SILVERWARE

Costs NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Limited study of silverware department workroom costs. Balance sheet, Sept. 1939, p. 10-4.

SIM, A. S. M. Selling and distribution expenses. Cost accoun-tant, April 1939, p. 332-8.

SIMMONS, R. S. Citrus crop financing. Burroughs clearing house, Nov. 1937, p. 7-9, 23-4.

SIMON, HERBERT A.

Municipal reporting. (In International city man-agers' association. *Municipal year book*, 1938. p. 47-51.)

SIMON, J. L. Machine accounting as applied to department store customers' accounts. New York certified pub-lic accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 12-20.

SIMON, PAUL

How to determine a fair rate. Horwath hotel ac-countant, March 1937, p. 3, 6. Reading a hotel statement. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, March 1936, p. 4-7.

SIMON, RICHARD W.

See American management association.

SIMONS, D. M.

Indorsements. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 21-2.

SIMONS, GUSTAVE

You and your accountant; pending reforms that recent incidents make necessary, an expert ex-plains precautions business men should take. *Christian science monitor*, weekly magazine section May 13, 1939, p. 6-12.

SIMONS, HENRY C. Personal income taxation; the definition of income as a problem of fiscal policy. Chicago, III., Uni-versity of Chicago press, c1938. 238p.

- SIMONSON, FRED Overhead costs can be cut! American restaurant magazine, March 1939, p. 56-7, 94, 96, 98-9.
- SIMPLE accounting. (In Laundry year book, 1938. p. 159-61.)
- SIMPLE cost control system leads to increased profits. National real estate journal, Nov. 1936, p. 22-3.
- SIMPLE form of receipt to employee devised by large corporation. Controller, Jan. 1937, p. 3-6.
- SIMPLIFIED accounting manual for small milk dealers. International association of milk dealers.
- SIMPLIFIED cost accounting procedure for milk deal-ers, International association of milk dealers.
- SIMPLIFIED cost system for the gray iron foundry industry, July 1936. Gray iron founders' society, inc,
- SIMPLIFIED detailed cost accounting system. Southern furniture manufacturers' association.
- SIMPLIFIED practice in hand-kept ledger. Profit, July 1939, p. 2-3.
- SIMPLIFIED sales recording system for small laundries. American institute of laundering, inc.
- SIMPLIFIED standard form of owner's statement. Buildings and building management, Dec. 1936, p. 17-20.
- SIMPLIFIED system for estimating cost. Southern furniture manufacturers' association.
- SIMPLIFIED system of accounts for small hotels, pre-pared for the American hotel association of the United States and Canada. Horwath and Horwath.
- SIMPLIFIED tax returns. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1939, p. 3.

SIMPSON, HERBERT D.

Conflict of regulatory and taxing policies in the public utility field. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 237-43.)

SIMPSON, THOMAS MARSHALL, joint author See Crenshaw, Bolling H., Simpson, T Marshall, and Pirenian, Zareh M. Thomas

SIMPSON, THOMAS MARSHALL, PIRENIAN, ZAREH M., AND CRENSHAW, BOLLING H. Mathematics of finance. ed. 2, rev. and enl. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 126p.

SIMS, GEORGE W.

Some pitfalls encountered in making physical tests of inventory quantities. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 84-6.)

SINCLAIR, L. R.

Salmon canning and branch accounting principles as applied to salmon cannery accounts. as applied to salmon cannery accounts. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 284-92.

- 128p.
- Same, 1938. 1938. 164p. Revenue act of 1937, with committee reports and index. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., inc., 1937. 48p.

SINDACATO

NDACATO INTERPROVINCIALE FASCISTA RAGIONIERI DI MILANO Elenco degli iscritti al sindacato interprovinciale fascista regionieri de Milano, Milano, Sindacato interprovinciale fascista ragionieri di Milano, 1027 780 1937. 78p.

SINK, E. H.

Faster note accounting with this record system. Rand McNally bankers monthly, Feb. 1936, p. 78-9, 103-5.

- SINKER, JULIUS Minimizing securities taxes, 1936-1937 edition. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1936. 143p.
 - Your our securities and federal taxes. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc. c1936. 112p.

SINKING-FUND accounting. Johnston, Malcolm.

SINKING FUNDS

See Reserves and sinking funds.

SISSON, H. A.

- Solv, H. A. Business control and management. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 912-5. Cost accountant, June 1937, p. 17-21. What does the balance sheet say? Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p.
- 275-6.

- SISTERSON, D. G. Processes through which income tax return passes after filing. Controller, May 1937, p. 131-4, 136, 150.
- SIX successful profit sharing plans. Factory manage-ment and maintenance, Feb. 1939, p. 43-4.
- SKELGAS company's plan of container control. Priebe, E. P.

SKELTON, WILLIAM A. Revenue act of 1938 as it relates to banks and trust companies. National auditgram, March 1939, p. 7-12, 18-20.

SKINNER, EMERY H.

Determining costs for the lamp industry. News bulletin, School of business of the University of Chicago, Nov. 4, 1938, p. 73-5.

SKUCE, W. C. Control of material as a cost element. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938. p. 114-31.)

- SLADE, J. J., JR. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 380-2.
- SLAFF, GEORGE, joint author See Slaff, Samuel and Slaff, George.
- SLAFF, SAMUEL AND SLAFF, GEORGE Place of "substitute plant" in utility valuations. Public utilities fortnightly, July 21, 1938, p. 74-83.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

SLATE

See Quarries and quarrying.

SLAUGHTERHOUSES

Accounting ATKINSON, J. B. System of accounting for abattors revenue. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1939, p. 810-25.

- SLICHTER, SUMNER H.
 Contents of collective agreements; the wisdom of hindsight. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 13-20, discussion, p. 20-1, 28.
 Must we have another boom? Atlantic monthly, Must we have another boom?
 - May 1937, p. 600-7.

SLIDE RULE

See Mechanical devices-Slide rule.

SLIDING SCALE

See Public utilities-Rates.

SLIFER, WALTER L. See United States. Commerce, Department of. Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce.

SLOAN, LAURENCE H.

Corporation statements as the basis of investment policy. Journal of the American statistical asso-ciation, March 1937, p. 8-14.

SLOAN, LAURENCE H. AND OTHERS

Two cycles of corporation profits; 1922-1933, 1934-19XX. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 428p.

SLOSSON, FRANK S. Percentage lease facts. Buildings and building management, Jan. 16, 1939, p. 41-3, 78-9.

SMAILS, R. G. H.

MAILS, R. G. H.
Auditing. Toronto, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons (Canada), ltd., 1937. 523p.
Balance sheet and the layman. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 362-7.
Differential or marginal costs. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 256-60. Cost and management, April 1939, p. 129-33.
Economic and accounting concepts. (from Canadian journal of economics and political science) Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 626-9.

SMALL BUSINESS

See Retail trade.

SMALL store accounting manual. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.

SMART, ALLEN R. Evolution of the Board of tax appeals. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 303-7.

SMELTING

. See Mining and metallurgy.

SMITH, B. G. Corporate trusteeships criticized by securities com-mission. Controller, July 1936, p. 158, 160-3.

SMITH, BARNEY AND COMPANY

Capital gain and loss provisions of the revenue act of 1938 as affecting the owners of securities. New York, Smith, Barney and co. (1938) 25p.

SMITH, BLACKWELL

MILH, DLACKWELL Industry codes of fair competition in 1939; an address delivered before Trade association execu-tives in New York City, March 8, 1939, New York, Trade association executives, 1939. 9p.

SMITH, BLACKWELL AND McCONNELL, JOSEPH H.

Analysis of FTC action on 66 Robinson-Patman cases. Dun's review, Jan. 1938, p. 7-13; 45-8.

SMITH, C. AUBREY, joint author See Newlove, George Hillis and others.

SMITH, CHARLES W.

- Accounting for returnable containers. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 18, no. 22, section 1, p. 1258-75.) Printed with: Priebe, E. P. Skelgas company's plan of container con-trol. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 17-29.
- Problems in uniform utility accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Dec. 1938, p. 515-6, 550.

Uniform system of accounts of the Federal power commission. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 153-62

SMITH, EDWARD J. Functions of audit. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 3a, March 10, 1938.)

SMITH, FRANK P.

MIH, FRANK P.
 Accounting requirements of stock exchanges, 1933. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 145-53.
 Financing the steel industry. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 331-9.
 Stock exchange listing requirements, and publicity. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 35-42.
 Surplus adjustments in the iron and steel industry. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 379-90.

SMITH, FRANK P. AND MARQUIS, RALPH W.

Capital and surplus as protection for bank de-posits. Bankers magazine, March 1937, p. 215-26.

SMITH, FREDERICK A. T.D. 4,422; has the treasury department disallowed part of the depreciation you've taken? A detailed plant register will supply the data you need. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1938, p. 86-7.

SMITH, G. MEREDITH Some problems of accounting in a gas or electric public utility company. Canadian chartered ac-countant, March 1936, p. 179-88.

SMITH, GEORGE OTIS

Public utility regulation or public competition? Public utilities fortnightly, May 21, 1936, p. 651-63.

SMITH, H. H., JR. Development of specialized types of practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 152-3.)

SMITH, H. L.

Profits, business and platitudes. Illinois manufac-turers' costs association monthly bulletin, March 1938, p. 1-2, 3, 4-6. Stock control. Certified secretary, May 1936, p. 85-93.

SMITH, HAL F. Trend of customer accounting practice. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1677-85.

SMITH, HAROLD J., joint author See Rittenhouse, Charles F. and Smith, Harold J.

SMITH, J. B. R., joint ed. See Parker, John S. and Smith, J. B. R., ed.

SMITH, J. D.

MIHA, J. D. Procedure for proving of bank deposits and figur-ing of float. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 713-20.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges.

SMITH, J. DUKE

Deductions from gross income—taxpayer on cash receipts and disbursements basis. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 79-81, 120.

SMITH, J. DUKE-(Continued)

- Federal taxation of state officers and employees. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 443-6, 499-500. Federal taxation of stock dividends when received, and their cost basis when sold; an exploration of the important decisions and rulings covering the taxability of dividends and their cost basis when disposed of. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 503.6 626
- 533-6, 626. the value of improvements made by a lessee taxable income to the lessor? Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 577-80, 616-7. Is the

SMITH, JAMES A.

Accounting for produce growing and shipping. Pathfinder service bulletin, March 1939, p. 1, 3-6, 8.

SMITH, JAMES G.

Economic significance of the undistributed profits tax. American economic review, June 1938, p. 305-10.

SMITH, KENNETH L. Capital gains and losses in accounting. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 126-39.

SMITH, L. A.

Public employee pension systems. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1937, p. 1117-22.

SMITH, M. R. M.

- MIH, M. K. M.
 Receivers and managers under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 409-12.
 Winding-up under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1939. p. 253-67; Nov. 1939, p. 318-333.

SMITH, NELSON LEE

Accounting and property records in the regulation and management of public utilities. American gas association monthly, May 1939, p. 187-9, 199-200.

SMITH. RALPH W. Coördination of tax systems. Taxes—the tax maga-zine, Nov. 1939, p. 629-32, 673-4.

SMITH, RUSSELL A. Relation of federal and state securities laws. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 241-5.

SMITH. V. R.

- of presenting life insurance statements to the public. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 442-50.
- 1937, p. 442-50. Reaction of life insurance companies to the declin-ing rate of interest. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, March 1936, p. 166-79.

- SMITH, W. EARL Market value of stocks under the New York tax law. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 212-3.
 "Physical assets" under New York tax law--what are they? Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 32, 62.

SNAITH, WILLIAM Business organization. Cost and management, June-July-Aug. 1937, p. 180-91.

SNELHAM, J. S.

Code of procedure of a large industrial for unem-ployment insurance. *Controller*, July 1936, p. 153-7.

SNIDER, JOSEPH L.

- Business cycle literature. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 369-79. Recent publications on business cycles. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1936, p. 241-7.

SNYDER, E. E.

Suggested outlines for distribution of insurance costs. Balance sheet, April 1938, p. 5, 8.

SNYDER, G. W., JR.

- NYLDER, G. W., JK. Buying organized and costs cut, with this simple purchase order and record plan. Bankers monthly, April 1939, p. 195-7. Perpetual inventory and equipment record give "fingertip control". Bankers monthly, May 1939, 2005
- p. 305-8.

SNYDER, IVAN V. Taxation of insurance companies by the states. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 335-8, 371-5.

SOAP

Cost accounting TODD, G. R. Soap manufacturing costs. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 422-4.

SOCIAL CREDIT

- OCIAL CREDIT
 BALLANTYNE, H. Social credit. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 128-9.
 DOUGLAS social credit system. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 5-7.
 GIBSON, A. L. Social credit. Accountant, Jan. 25, 1936, p. 129-32.
 M'INTYRE, A. HAMILTON. Social credit. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 5-27.
 PRATT, P. D. Social credit; realities and makebelief of the money game. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1936, p. 22-6; Feb. 1936, p. 50-8.
 THOMPSON, JAMES C. Alberta under a social credit government. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 17-23.
 THOMPSON, JAMES C. Social credit. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 115-24; March 1937, p. 247-58.
- SOCIAL interest in accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 77.
- SOCIAL legislation as a whole—Both parts of plan are undesirable—Political side of the question. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 161-4.

- p. 161-4.
 SOCIAL SECURITY
 AHRMANN, H. A. Accounting under the social security act. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1937, p. 353-73.)
 ALDRICH, WINTHROP W. Appraisal of the federal social security act; an address before the Institute of public aftairs, University of Virginia, Charlottesville, Va., July 10, 1936. New York, Chase national bank, 1936. 47p. Trust companies, July 1936, p. 61-71.
 ALTMEYER, ARTHUR J. Federal old age security program; address over a network of the National broadcasting company, Washington, D. C., November 6, 1936. 8 mimeographed pages.
 ALTMEYER, ARTHUR J. 1939 social security act amendments; effect of revisions of old age insurance law. Credit and financial management, Oct. 1939, p. 24, 26, 28, 30.
 ALTMEYER, ARTHUR J. Progress under the social security act; address before the biennial conference on social welfare, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Sept. 25, 1936. Washington, D. C., Social security board, 1936. I6 mimeographed pages.

 - ANDERSON, HAROLD C. Economic and finan-cial aspects of our social security program. 17 typewritten pages. ANDERSON, HAROLD C. Problems in the social
 - Security act; introduction to round table dis-cussion. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 135-7.)
 - Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 135-7.) APPRAISING the social security program; de-signed to set forth the work accomplished under the social security act and to furnish a back-ground for evaluation of proposed changes. An-nals of the American academy of political and social science, March 1939. 277p. AULD, GEORGE P. Federal social security act. Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 430-53. BANE, FRANK. Administration of the federal

SNYDER, RALPH W. Accounting principles. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 116.

SOCIAL SECURITY-(Continued)

- OCIAL SECURITY--(Continued)
 system of old-age benefits. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 53-6.)
 BLOMQUIST, KARL E. Social security prob-lems; address before Kiwanis club, Gloversville, N. Y., January 14, 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.
 BURNS, EVELINE M. Financial aspects of the social security act. American economic review, March 1936, p. 12-22.
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Federal social security act. (In National association of cost accountants; Year book, 1936. p. 16-30.)
 CAMMAN, ERIC A. Social security; seven billion dollars a year. Journal of accountancy, April

- CAMMAN, ERIC A. Social security; seven billion dollars a year. Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 251-82.
 CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. Federal social security act and its administration. Chicago, III., LaSalle extension university, c1935. 18p.
 COATES, W. H. American experiment. Accoun-tant, Jan. 7, 1939, p. 11-8.
 COLE, R. W. E. Accounting for social security taxes. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 143-9.)
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE. INC. Federal 1938. p. 143-9.) COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal
- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal and state unemployment insurance (payroll taxes); explanation of the law, federal social security act, federal regulations, charts and forms. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 123p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal social security act. (In its New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1935, p. 25-50.)
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New York and federal unemployment insurance (pay-

- social security act. (In its New Diskness latus, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935 to August 26, 1935, p. 25-50.)
 COMMERCE (LEARING HOUSE, INC. New York and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes), ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., June 1936, 1929.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Official regulations regarding federal old-age benefits (payroll taxes). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, 50p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Social security act, as amended 1939; with explanation and charts of new provisions. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939, 131p.
 CONTROLLERS describe procedures in compiling report forms SS-2a. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 296-8, 300-3, 305.
 CORSON, JOHN J. Old age benefits amendments analyzed. Controller, Oct. 1939, p. 344-8.
 CORSON, JOHN J. Wages and employment under the old-age insurance program. Washington, D. C., Social security act. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Federal payroll taxes. (In their Planning for tax economy. c1936, p. 344-3.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Federal payroll taxes. (In their Planning for tax economy. c1936, p. 344-3.
 DULLES, ELEANOR LANSING. Financial problems of the social security act. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 138-42.)
 EHRMANN, HERBERT A. What federal social security act now requires from employer. Controller, Security act. Scade and streets, April 1937, p. 48-5.
 ELLIS, GEORGE PRICE. Importance of records under the social security act. Roads and streets, May 1937, p. 36-7.
 FAVINGER, CALVIN E. AND WILCOX, DANIEL A. Social security taxation and treeords. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939, 64-9.
 FAVRET, JAMES R. Social security act and what it requires of you. National real estate journal, Jan. 1937, p
- FISH, GEORGE D. Social security act. Credit executive, Dec. 1936, p. 360-3. (Reprinted under

- title: Approach to taxation problems. p. 16-9.) FLANDERS, RALPH E. Balancing of incentive and security. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 330-9.

- and security. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 330-9. FOLSOM, M. B. Practical man's views concern-ing workings of social security. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 258-63. FRANCIS, BION H. AND FERGUSON, DON-ALD G. What will social security mean to you? Cambridge, Mass., American institute for economic research, c1936. 64p. GANE, ROBERT M. Social security act and its application. California certified public accoun-tant, July 1937, p. 1-2, 6. GLASSER, HERMAN. Social security legisla-tion; its effect on industry in general and the banking business in particular. Bankers maga-zine, Jan. 1936, p. 22-5. GLASSER, HERMAN. Social security plan in operation. Bankers magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 167-71. GOLDBERG, LOUIS S. Federal social security
- GOLDBERG, LOUIS S. Federal social security act. Certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 410-20, 433.
- GOLDBERG, LOUIS S. Outline and comments on the social security act. (reprint from current issues of the Daily reporter, by courtesy Credit service exchange).
- service exchange). GOODBAR, JOSEPH E. Pension reserve plan of the social security act. Bankers magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 515-19. HALL, W. VINCENT. Changes in the social security laws during 1939. New York certi-fied public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 166-71. HALL, W. VINCENT. Pay-roll taxes and their accounting treatment. Profit, March 1936, p. 1.2.4.

- Accounting Itelatient. From, March 1936, p. 1, 2, 4.
 HARRINGTON, RUSSELL A. Some accounting aspects of the social security act. Gas age-record, Jan. 25, 1936.
 HEER, CLARENCE. Probable effects of the social security act on state and local finances. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 712-5, 760-1.
 HELM, W. A. Payroll accounting and records under the federal social security act; paper presented on behalf of the Missouri society's special committee at meeting of the St. Louis division of the Associated industries of Missouri, November, 1935. 9 typewritten pages.
 HIRSHFIELD, C. F. Social security; should the engineering profession formulate its philosophy? Mechanical engineering, March 1936, p. 145-8.
 HOEHLER, FRED K. Social security in the United States. Municipal finance, Nov. 1936, p. 24-9.

- Difference of the second second
- HUTCHISON, GEORGE E. Social security act.

- HÜTCHISON, GEORGE E. Social security act. 7 typewritten pages.
 JANIN, HARRY. New provisions of the federal unemployment tax. Taxes-the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 563-65, 606-9.
 JARCHOW, CHRISTIAN E. Employer's problem. Social security analyst, Jan. 1937, p. 9-10, 28.
 JARCHOW, CHRISTIAN E. Employer's problem in social security reporting. Journal of the American statistical association, March 1937, p. 28-31, discussion, p. 32.4.
 JOHNSON, C. EDGAR. Social security act. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 6-11, 17-9.
 VirMULLER WILLIAM. Foundation guide for
- KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for
- KixMILLER, WILLIAM AND JANUS, MILTON H. Foundation guide for payroll taxes. ed. 3. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press co., inc., c1939. 224p.
- LANGSTON, JAMES T. Provisions of social security act as amended. *Controller*, Dec. 1939, p. 424-7.
- LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Social security legislation; a practical guide to payroll tax procedure and records. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1938. 70p.

SOCIAL SECURITY—(Continued)

- SOCIAL SECURITY--(Continued)
 LATIMER, MURRAY W. Social security laws. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 115-26.
 LAYMAN, WILLIAM M. Distinction between salesmen, agents and independent contractors; determination of status under the social security act. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 409-12, 439-40.
 LAYMAN, WILLIAM M. Social security pay-roll systems and procedure. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 67-71, 116.
 LINTON; M. ALBERT. Federal old age security program, and some of its consequences. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, July 1936, p. 31-42.
 LINTON, M. ALBERT. Social security, unem-ployment compensation and old age pensions; address at Hotel Sherman, Chicago, October 11, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Illinois chamber of com-merce, 1935. 8 mimeographed pages.
 McKEWEN, J. L. Social security act; talk de-livered before Kiwanis club of Pikesville, Mary-land. 7 typewritten pages.
 MACKEY, WALTER J. Problems in unemploy-ment compensation administration. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 150-4.)
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Independent contrac-tors; status under the payroll-tax laws. Taxes-the tax magasine, Aug. 1939, p. 464-6, 498-9. Reprinted. 5p.
 MARTIN, O. R. Social security act. 14 type

 - Reprinted. 5p. MARTIN, O. R. Social security act. 14 typewritten pages. MEECH, STUART P. Controllers' views as to

 - immediate steps on social security. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 5-8, discussion, p. 8-12. METHODS of charging social security taxes dis-cussed by controllers. Controller, April 1936, p.
- and the second second
- benefits) of the social security act. New York, National retail dry goods association, 1936. folder, 6p.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Social security bulletin, no. 18, November 9, 1936. 4 mimeo-graphed pages.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION. Controllers' congress. Social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; explanations and interpretations of the official regulations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under title 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security act. 14 mimeographed pages.
 OSBORN, HILARY H. Social security legisla-tion now extends to national banks. Tennessee banker, Jan. 1940, p. 12, 14-5.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. 1939 social security amendments explained. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 18p.
 PROSNITZ, LUDWIG B. Accounting require-ments under federal and state social security laws. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 22-7.
 PROTECTION of the aged—Utopia is nothing novel—But let us be pragmatic—For the aid of a few—What about the constitutionality? (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 1-4.
 RACHLIN, M. L. Some effects of the social security taxes. Tax magasine, March 1936, p. 157-8.

- 157-8.
- RACHLIN, M. L. Triplicate taxes; small cor-porations and the federal social security act. porations and the fed Profit, May 1936, p. 1.
- RECORDS to be kept under social security laws. Horwath hotel accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 4-6.
- RECORDS to be kept under social security act.

- Bulletin of the American institute of accoun-tants, Jan. 1936, p. 24-5. RICE, LLOYD P. Financing social security by means of payroll taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p.
- RICE, LEOYID F. Financing social security by means of payroll taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 135-53.)
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. Social security —a primer for employers and employees. Bos-ton evening transcript, Jan. 29, 1936.
 ROBERTS, FRANCIS V. and KAMPH, H. N. Pathfinder course in social security accounting. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., 1938. Lessons and practice assignments—294p. Labo-ratory materials—forms.
 ROUNTREE, GEORGE V. Some aspects of the federal social security act and federal revenue act of 1936. Canning trade, Dec. 28, 1936.
 SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Laying the founda-tion for administering the federal old-age benefits program. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 14-21.
 SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. More than one mil-lion entries to be made by social security board. Controller, Dec. 1936, p. 325-32, discussion, p. 332-5.

- 332-5
- 332-5. SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Organization and some of the administrative problems of the social security board; address before the seven-teenth international cost conference of the National association of cost accountants, Nether-
- National association of cost accountants, Netherland-Plaza hotel, Cincinnati, June 23, 1936. 19p.
 (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 33-48, discussion, p. 48-55.)
 SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Problems in the social security act; address at fifty-first annual meeting, American institute of accountants, Cincinnati, Ohio, Sept. 28, 1938. 14 mimcographed pages.
 SEIDEMANN, HENRY P. Social security board; some relationships to the employer and his business, 21 typewritten pages. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 155-9.)
 SEIDEMAN, FRANK E. Social security act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936. p. 615.)
- annual miting an accounting temperature reserves p. 6-15.)
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Cost to your pocketbook of social security. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 20-2.
 SELEKMAN, B. M. Social security act. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 1977, p.
- 74-88
- 174-88. SHERWOOD, J. F. Social security and payroll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1937. loose-leaf. SHERWOOD, J. F. AND PENDERY, JOHN A. Social security and pay-roll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1939. 256p.
- SOCIAL legislation as a whole—Both parts of plan are undesirable—Political side of the ques-tion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept.
- 1936, p. 161-4. SOCIAL security. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1939, p. 4. SOCIAL security forms for reporting wages paid, issued by treasury. Controller, June 1937, p. 167-9
- SOCIAL security legislation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 149-50.
- SPERRY, THOMAS C. Social security regula-tions and records. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 57-9.)
- STAUB, WALTER A. AND OTHERS. Effects of social security and undistributed earnings taxes on corporate policy trends. New York, American management association, 1937. 32p. (Financial management series no. 51.)
- UNITED STATES. Congress. Summary of provisions of the federal social security act relating to unemployment compensation. federal grants to states, old-age benefits and federal empr ment taxes. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 3p.

SOCIAL SECURITY-(Continued)

- UNITED STATES. Congress. Summary of provisions of the federal social security at relating to federal old-age benefits (public no. 271, 74th congress (H.R. 7260); approved Aug. 14, 1935). Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 1p. UNITED STATES. Social security board. Analy-

- 1937. 19.
 1937. 19.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Analysis of state unemployment compensation laws, November 15, 1936. Washington, D. C., Social security board, 1936. 12p.
 Same, January 1, 1937. 23p.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Brief explanation of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Nov. 1936. 15p. (Informational service circular no. 1.)
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Federal old-age benefits; some questions and answers concerning the old-age benefits; provisions of the social security board. Recurity board. Social security board. Federal old-age benefits; Social security board. Federal old-age benefits; Social security board. Federal security board. Dec. 1936. 18p. (Informational service circular no. 3.)
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. Federal-ion. Washington, D. C., Social security board. Social security board. Nov. 1936. 15p. (Informational service circular no. 5.)
- no. 5.) UNITED

- information. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 2p. UNITED STATES. Social security board. Regu-lations no. 2—Federal old-age benefits under title 2 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 33p. UNITED STATES. Social security board. Social security act, what it is and what it does. Wash-ington, D. C., Business information division, Information service, Social security board, March 31 1937 25n
- Information service, Social security board, March 31, 1937. 25p.
 UNITED STATES. Social security board. What you should know about unemployment compensa-tion; some questions and answers concerning the unemployment compensation provisions of the social security act and state unemployment compensation laws. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Nov. 1936. 36p. (Informational service circular no. 2.)
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-lations 90 relating to the excise tax on employers under title 9 of the social security act. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 66p.
- ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 66p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-lations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under title 8 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 54p. VANDER HORST, G. Social security. National accountant, April 1937, p. 21-31. VANDER HORST, G. Social security news and procedure. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 25-9.

- 25.9.
 VOLTZ, I. A. Survey of social security. Taxes —the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 152-4, 165-6.
 WALKER, H. J. Social security accounting. Rail-way age, July 3, 1937, p. 13-5.
 WATTERS, THOMAS, JR. Legal effect of social security legislation. (In American management association. Recent insurance management de-velopments. c1939. p. 3-7.)
 WHAT is socialism?—Outgrowth of socialistic vagary—Out economic system still lives. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 319-21.
 WILLVS A Brief summary of social security

WILLYS, A. Brief summary of social security

- regulations and records. Pathfinder service bulle-tin, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8. Profit, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8. WINANT, JOHN G. Practical progress under the social security act; address before National press club, Washington, D. C., Wednesday, September 16, 1936. 11 mimeographed pages. WITTE, EDWIN E. Financing social security: reserves versus current taxation. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 154-67.) WYATT BIRCHARD F AND WANDET WIT
- p. 154-67.) WYATT, BIRCHARD E. AND WANDEL, WIL-LIAM H. Social security act in operation; a practical guide to the federal and federal-state social security programs. Washington, D. C., Graphic arts press, inc., 1937. 382p.

Australia

DAVIDSON, H. J. National health and pensions insurance act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 233-51.

Canada

BROWN, GERALD H. Social security in Canada. Municipal finance, Nov. 1936, p. 30-40.

- Great Britain WIDOWS', orphans' and old age contributory pensions (voluntary contributors) act, 1937. Certified accountants journal, Jan. 1938, p. 36.
- SOCIAL security. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 4.

SOCIAL security act. Hutchison, George E.

SOCIAL security act. Martin, O. R.

- SOCIAL security act; a brief explanation of its provisions. United States. Social security board.
- SOCIAL security act, as amended 1939. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- SOCIAL security act in operation. Wyatt, Birchard E. and Wandel, William H.
- SOCIAL security act, what it is and what it does. United States. Social security board.
- SOCIAL security and payroll tax accounting. Sherwood, J. F.
- SOCIAL security and payroll tax accounting. Sherwood, J. F. and Pendery, John A.

SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD See United States. Social security board.

SOCIAL security board. Seidemann, Henry P.

- SOCIAL security forms for reporting wages paid, issued by treasury. Controller, June 1937, p. 167-9.
- SOCIAL security laws. Latimer, Murray W.
- SOCIAL security legislation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 149-50.
- SOCIAL security legislation. LaSalle extension university.
- SOCIAL security problems. Blomquist, Karl E.
- SOCIAL security; seven billion dollars a year. Camman, Eric A.
- SOCIAL security taxation. Councilor, James A.
- SOCIAL security taxation and records. Favinger, Calvin E. and Wilcox, Daniel A.
- SOCIAL SECURITY TAXES See Taxes, Payroll.
- SOCIAL security, unemployment compensation and old age pensions. Linton, M. A.

SOCIAL WELFARE

See Charities; relief. Social work; Unemployment

SOCIAL WORK

- See also Charities; Unemployment relief. Accounting CLAPP, RAYMOND F. Proposal for th the de-CLAFF, RAYMOND F. Proposal for the de-velopment of uniform accounting in social work. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 7-9. HOWARD, MILTON. Suggested system for a social welfare agency. Canadian chartered ac-countant, July 1937, p. 39-49.
- SOCIETE SCIENTIFIQUE DE COMPTABILITE DE GRECE
 - Revue de comptabilité; orcane officiel de la So-ciété scientifique de comptabilité de Grèce. (text in Greek)

- SOCIETIES, ASSOCIATIONS, ETC. See also Accountants' societies; Clubs; Co-opera-tive marketing associations; Co-operative stores and associations; Trade associations. AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGIATE SCHOOLS OF BUSINESS. Proceedings of the eighteenth annual meeting, held at Harvard graduate school of business administration, Sol-diers Field, Boston, Mass., April 22, 23, 24, and 25, 1936. Fayetteville, Ark., University of Arkan-sas, Charles C. Fichtner, secretary, American association of collegiate schools of business, c1936. 242p.

 - association of collegiate schools of business, c1936, 242p.
 Same, 19th annual meeting... 1937. 101p.
 Same, 20th annual meeting... 1938. 155p.
 MERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Constitution and by-laws (1938-1939) rules of procedure of the house of delegates (adopted January 5, 1937) Chicago, Ill., American bar association (1938). 63p.
 AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Proposed amendments to the constitution and by-laws of the American bar association, 1936. 30p.
 AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Report of the special committee on co-ordination of the bar. Chicago, Ill., American bar association, 1936. 11p.

 - 1936. 11p. AMERICAN
 - Financial advisory service of the American council on education; its organization and activi-ties, October 1936, 4p. AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. American management
- council on education; its organization and activities, October 1936, 4p.
 AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. American management association, the leading national association of companies in all fields of business for the exchange of information on management association (1936), 12p.
 AMERICAN SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL ENGINEERS AND INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PUBLIC WORKS OFFICIALS. Public works engineers' yearbook, 1936, proceedings of American society of municipal engineers and International association of public works officials; 1935 Public works congress held at Cincinnati, Ohio, October 14-16, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Joint secretariat, American society of municipal engineers and International association of public works officials; e1936. 336p.
 AMERICAN TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES. List of members, January 1, 1937; purposes and program. Washington, D. C., American trade association executives, 1936. 110p.
 MUSTALASIAN INSTITUTE OF SECRETARLES, INC. Year book, 1936. Melbourne, Australasian institute of secretaries, 1936. 110p.
 Same, 1939. 120p.
 BETA alpha psi. Certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 16-7.
 BONNET, LESLIE. Honorary secretary's guide. (the proper management of the meetings of debate) London, Gee & co., Itd., 1938. 40p.
 CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. 1935 year book; proceedings of the fourth annual

- 1938, p. 2-5. HEINDORFF, E. W. Secretaryship of trade, in-
- HEINDÖRFF, E. W. Secretaryship of trade, in-dustrial and professional organizations. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, Aug. 1937. 29p. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 711-4.
 INSTITUTE OF MUNICIPAL TREASURERS AND ACCOUNTANTS. Annual general meet-ing. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1938, p. 351-4.
 INVESTMENT BANKERS ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Twenty-fifth annual convention held at Augusta, Ga., December 2-6, 1936. Com-mercial and financial chronicle, Dec. 12, 1936, p. 3681-728. 3681-728.
- 3681-728. INVESTMENT COUNSEL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA. Investment counsel annual. New York, Investment counsel association of America, July 1, 1938. 154p. (v. I, no. 1.) MEYERS, ARTHUR C. Presidential address, at Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, August 15, 1938, at the 23rd annual conference of the association
- United States and Canada, August 15, 1938, at the 23rd annual conference of the association.
 12 mimeographed pages. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 5-12.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Code of ethics and professional con-duct, adopted by MFOA in conference as-sembled, August 18, 1938. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 95.
 MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Constitution. (revised September 11, 1936) Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, 1936. 7p.

- association of the United States and Canada, 1936. 7p. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BANK AUDI-TORS AND COMPTROLLERS. Fourteenth annual convention, November 14-16, 1938. National auditgram, Nov. 1938, p. 8. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BANK AUDI-TORS AND COMPTROLLERS. National as-sociation of bank auditors and comptrollers; what it is and what it is doing. Chicago, Ill., First national bank, Charles Z. Meyer, Secretary, 1938. 160.

- First national bank, Charles Z. Meyer, Secretary, 1938. 16p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BANK AUDI-TORS AND COMPTROLLERS. Report of the twelfth annual convention. National auditgram, Oct. 1936, p. 4-5, 12.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CREDIT MEN. National association of credit men; what it is, how it serves. New York, National association of credit men (1936). folder.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Proceedings of forty-eighth annual convention held at Atlantic City, N. J., November 10 to 13, 1936. New York, State law reporting co., c1937. 541p.
- -----Same, fifty-first annual convention, held at Seattle, Washington, August 22-24, 1939. 492p.
- NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE AUDI-TORS, COMPTROLLERS AND TREAS-URERS, Report of the twenty-first annual con-vention, held . . December 8, 9, and 10, 1936. Bismarck, North Dakota, State auditor's office, 1027 Here. 1937. 150p.

SOCIETIES ASSOCIATIONS, ETC.-(Continued)

- August 10, 11 and 12, 1937, 1059, 1050, 10
- PROPERTY society summoned; a question of accountancy. Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 237-9; April 2, 1938, p. 454-6; April 9, 1938, p. 496-9; May 28, 1938, p. 745-7.
 PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION CLEARING
- PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION CLEARING HOUSE. Directory of organizations in the field of public administration. Chicago, 111., Public administration clearing house, 1936, 179p.
 RITTENHOUSE, CHARLES F. and SMITH, HAROLD J. Treasurers' reports. (In their Secretarial accounting. c1936. p. 276-300.)
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Should a federal tax bar be organized? Accounting review, June 1936, p. 179-82.

Accounting

- HALLER, FREDERICK J. Suggestions for an accounting plan for a non-profit organization; the Y.W.C.A. New York, Womans press, 1936. 109p. HOWARD,
- 109p. 10WARD, MILTON. Suggested system for a social welfare agency. Canadian chartered ac-countant, July 1937, p. 39-49. IREBS, GEORGE R. Fraternity finance and accounts. St. Paul, Minn., Leland publishers, inc., c1935. 224p.
- KREBS,

Auditing

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE. Re-port of the auditor of student organizations, 1938-39, by G. T. Baird, Blackburg, Va., Vir-ginia polytechnic institute, Oct. 1939. 23p. *Brillitic va.* 32, *ap.* 12. ginia polytechnic institu (Bulletin, v. 32, no. 12.)

- Same, 1938, 1939, 22p.
 SOCIETY OF INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS
 Catalogue of the library at Incorporated accountants and auditors, 1939, 487p.
 Conference at Belfast. Incorporated accountants is and auditors, 1939, 487p.
 Conference at Belfast. Incorporated accountants is and auditors, 1939, 487p.
 Conference at Belfast. Incorporated accountants is and auditors, 1939, 487p.
 Conference at Belfast. Incorporated accountants is is a solution of the incorporated accountant sudent and Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 11-2.
 Examinations held on the 5th, 6th and 7th May 1936. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 46-8.
 Examinations held on the 4th, 5th and 6th May 1937. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 47-51.
 Fifty-first annual general meeting. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 303-12.
 Tifty-second annual general meeting. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1936, p. 4356, p.

- -Same, 1937. 1248p. -Same, 1938. 1280p. -Same, 1939. 1302p.
- Results of examinations held in May 1936 Ac-countant, July 4, 1936, p. 8-9.

- Revision of examination syllabus. Accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 33-6.
 Syllabus of examinations, October 31st, November 1st, 2nd, and 3rd, 1938, and notes in regard to qualifying as an incorporated accountant. Lon-don, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, July 1938. 24p.
 Year book, 1936; list of members and regulations. London, Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, 1936. 1220p.

SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS

Charter and by-laws, as amended to July 23, 1937. 22p. Roster of members as at October 1, 1937. 24p.

SODHBANS, P. S.

Collection of papers on accountancy, commerce and economics, edited by H. S. Balhaya. Lahore, India, Indian accountant, 1937. 103p. Development of accountancy profession in India. Indian accountant, Oct.-Nov. 1938, p. 19-27.

Matters affecting the accountancy profession. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kon-gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1,

p. 37-52.)

SOFT DRINKS

See Beverages.

SOLICITATION of tax practice. Certified public ac-countant, Sept. 1938, p. 15.

SOLICITING

See Professional ethics-Soliciting.

SOLICITOR

Filing system and office records for solicitors' offices. Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 149-50.

SOLICITORS

See Lawyers.

- SOLICITORS' accounts under the 1933 act. Back, w. J.
- SOLICITORS' and clients' money. Accountant, July 23, 1938, p. 110-2.
- SOLICITORS' audit regulations, 1938. Accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 708-9.

SOLO, HARRY B., joint author See Tunick, Stanley B. and others.

SOLOMON, V. L. Audit of mechanised accounts. Australian accoun-tant, Dec. 1938, p. 371-84.

- SOLUTIONS for advanced accounting problems. Kohler, Eric L.
- SOME approaches to accounting for costs of distribu-tion. Saunders, Philip.

SOME aspects of inventory control. Kilduff, F. W.

- SOME aspects of municipal accounting in Pennsyl-vania. Welcker, William H.
- SOME aspects of pastoral accounts and taxation. Campbell, J. M.
- SOME aspects of plant ledgers and public utility plant accounting. Boozer, Herman W.
- SOME causes of failure in examinations. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 17-8.
- SOME comments on surplus account. Broad, Samuel Л.
- SOME companies with fiscal years will benefit from tax change; reprinted from Wall Street journal, May 14, 1938.

- SOME considerations relating to federal taxation in 1935 and 1936. May, George O.
- SOME current income tax problems. Thurston, Troy
- SOME current problems in accounting. Werntz, Wil-liam W.
- SOME developments in variable budgeting. Klein, Frank.
- **SOME** essential qualities of an accountant. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 15-6.
- SOME historical and vocational notes on accountancy. McGladrey, I. B.
- SOME new hire-purchase problems. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 90-1.
- SOME notes on the rights of debenture-holders. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 16-9.
- **SOME** observations on accounting practice with special reference to inventory valuation. Harvey, John L.
- SOME old "rules" revived—Bond discount—Quasi reorganizations. (Editorial) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 453-6.
- SOME points on the annual report and accounts of limited companies. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 32-5.
- SOME points on wear and tear and obsolescence allowance. Accountant, tax supplement, April 11, 1936, p. 118-9.
- SOME problems as to parent companies. Werntz, William W.
- SOME problems in standard cost accounting. Rosane, G. B. E.
- SOME questions and answers on the surtax on un-ALL questions and answers on the surfax on un-distributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Henry B. Fernald, Edward H. Green, Leo Mattersdorf, Joseph J. Klein and Franklin C. Ellis. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 55-64.

SOMERS, PAUL, JR.

- Tax duplication between the federal and state governments. Bulletin of the National tax asso-ciation, Nov. 1938, p. 54-63; Dec. 1938, p. 74-87.
- SOMETHING business can do about depressions. Arthur, Henry B.

SOMETHING for nothing. Mack, Harold L.

SOMMERFIELD, VERNON

- Charging powers of British railways. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p. 695-7.
- Comparative study of railway accounts. Accoun-tant, June 11, 1938, p. 817-8. Some notes on railway cost accounting. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 658-9; Nov. 20, 1937, p.
- 693-4.

- SOPHIAN, THEO. Appropriation of principal and interest under money-lending transactions. Accountant, April 18, 1936, p. 613-5.
- SOUND capital structure. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1938, p. 279-83.
- SOUND thinking, a great need of modern business. Jackson, J. Hugh.
- SOURCES and extent of liability of a public ac-countant. MacMillan, William R.

- OUTH AFRICAN SOCIETIES. GENERAL EX-AMINING BOARD SOUTH
 - Membership lists, July 1937; Transvaal society of accountants—Natal society of accountants— Cape society of accountants and auditors—Society of accountants and auditors in the Orange Free State—Rhodesia society of accountants. Johannesburg, South African societies, general examining board, E. V. Buchanan, Secretary, 1937. 89p.

SOUTH CAROLINA

- Securities act. (approved October 28, 1936) Co-lumbia, S. C., Insurance commissioner and commissioner of securities, 1936. 30p.
- SOUTHERN FURNITURE MANUFACTURERS' AS-SOCIATION

- SOCIATION
 Cost estimating for furniture manufacturers. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1937, p. 1, 4-8.
 Simplified detailed cost accounting system. High Point, N. C., Cost accountants' division of the Southern furniture manufacturers' association, Dec. 1, 1936. 31p. (Manual no. 1.)
 Simplified system for estimating cost. High Point, N. C., Cost accountants' division of the Southern furniture manufacturers' association, May 1, 1937, 24p. (Manual no. 2.)

SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY

Pension department; rules and regulations effective July 1, 1937. New York, Southern pacific co. 15p.

SOWERBUTTS, GEOFFREY L.

OWERBUITIS, GEOFFREY L. Recognition of the elements of cost in municipal accounts; paper submitted at seventeenth na-tional cost conference, Institute of cost and works accountants, Central Hotel, Glasgow. 8th-10th September, 1938. D. Cost accountant, and works accountants, 1938. 6p. Cost accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 200-8, discussion, p. 209-21.

SPAHR, WALTER E.

Managed currency, or return to gold standard, two courses open. Controller, Nov. 1936, p. 296-300.

SPANNER, HARMON D. Federal estate tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. Federal estate tax. T 1939, p. 3-4, 47-50.

SPARHAWK, C. O. Mills and miles; a few observations on cost ac-counting . . . Bus transportation, Dec. 1939, p. 596-8.

SPARROW, WAYMOUTH AND COMPANY System of accounts for a law office. New York, Sparrow, Waymouth and co., Jan. 1, 1937, 10 typewritten pages and forms.

- SPECIAL examinations for C.P.A.'s. (Correspond-ence) Turner, Charles D.
- SPECIAL examinations for C.P.A.'s. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 76-7.
- SPECIAL information on trucking companies; from report of Interstate commerce commission. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 210-1.
- SPECIAL mid-year survey of inventory trends. Dun's review, Oct. 1938, p. 9-16.
- SPECIAL problems in accounting for capital assets. Peloubet, Maurice E.
- SPECIAL trend study—department stores. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Sept. 1937, p. 84-9.
- SPECIAL trend study in behavior of corporate pro-portions; wholesale hardware, 1917-1936. Study no. 4. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Oct. 1937, p. 106-12.
- SPECIALTY STORES See Clothing trade; Dry goods; Retail trade.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

SPECIFIC services required by the hospital adminis-trator from the accounting department. Munger, Claude W.

SPECIFICATIONS

WARD-BENSON, D. Manufacturing specification. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 406-8.

SPECULATION

PECULATION
 See also Business cycles; Business depression; Investments and securities; Panics.
 LYON, HASTINGS. Speculation. (In his Corporations and their financing. c1938. p. 889-902.)
 SLICHTER, SUMNER H. Must we have another boom? Atlantic monthly, May 1937, p. 600-7.

SPEEDING up financial statements. Wilson, Ira S.

SPENCER. LELAND

Milk audit report. (reprinted from American agriculturist, Feb. 26, 1938.)

SPENGLER, EDWIN H.

Exemption of public and limited dividend housing projects. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemp-tions. c1939. p. 179-87.)

SPERRY, THOMAS C.

Social security regulations and records. (In Na-tional retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 57-9.)

SPITZNAS, C. THOMAS Standard cost system for a brewery. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (*N.A.C.A. bulletin*, v. 20, no. 19, section 1, p. 1243-62.)

SPOILAGE

See Scrap, waste, etc.

SPOILAGE allowances in canning fruits and vege-tables. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, 20, no. 23, section 2, p. 1513-4.)

SPOONER, W. H.

N.S.W. companies act, 1936; new rules of importance to liquidators. *Chartered accountant in Australia*, Feb. 1939, p. 519-24.

SPORTING GOODS

SPREADING the peak. Sargent, D. A.

SPRINGER, DURAND W.

- PRINGER, DURAND W. Accountancy in Michigan. Certified public accoun-tant, Dec. 1936, p. 703-5.
 Policy amendments. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 632-4, 675-6.
 Regulatory legislation. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 522-31.
 Threescore and ten. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 470-9.

SPRY, F. W.

- Function and obligations of the professional ac-
- Function and obligations of the professional ac-countant under modern conditions. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, July 1936, p. 8-15.
 Verification of fixed assets including depreciation thereof, and basis of valuation. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 288-301.

SPURR, HENRY C.

- it of jay walking in the regulatory highway. Public utilities fortnightly, June 10, 1937, p. 742-50
- Has utility regulation been reduced to negotiation and wheedling? *Public utilities fortnightly*, Sept. 2, 1937, p. 259-68.

State commissions and public utility rates. Public utilities fortnightly, July 7, 1938, p. 3-15.

SPURR, HENRY C., editor See Public utilities reports, inc.

SQUIRE, JOHN Hall of the Institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales. London, Institute of char-tered accountants in England and Wales, 1937. not paged.

SQUIRE, WALTER L. Organization of a property record department of a public utility company. Edison electric insti-tute bulletin, Aug. 1938, p. 367-8, 370, 379.

SQUIRES, C. STEPHENSON Law of property legislation—a retrospect. Ac-countant, July 1, 1939, p. 13-5; July 8, 1939, p. 45-8.

STABILISING the exchanges. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 567.

STABILIZED accounting. Sweeney, Henry Whitcomb.

STACY, L. M.

Income and expense classification for a typical of-fice building. Buildings and building manage-ment, Feb. 1936, p. 28.

STAEBNER, R. C. Depreciation problem for income tax purposes as it relates to public utilities. Edison electric in-stitute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 13-5.

STAFF TRAINING

See Accountants' office: Education.

- STAFF training. Conway, Edmund J.
- STAFF training. Gracey, Robert D.
- STAFF training. (Editorial) Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 199-200.

- STALKER, W. H. Costing in relation to contracts on a percentage basis. Accountant, Oct. 3, 1936, p. 461-6. In-corporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 414-20, discussion, p. 420-1. Cost and manage-ment, Sept. 1936, p. 260-76. Process costs. Accountant, Jan. 16, 1937, p. 91-6. Cost and management, Feb. 1937, p. 34-46.

STAMP, JOSIAH (LORD STAMP)

- TAMP, JOSIAH (LORD STAMP)
 Accountant's future. (speech made by Lord Stamp at a dinner given in his honour, by the Society of incorporated accountants and auditors) Accountant, Nov. 12, 1938, p. 674-5 (extract).
 Controlling factors in the economic outlook. Accountant, Dec. 19, 1936, p. 843-5.
 Future of the accountant. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1939, p. 344-7.
 Impact of science upon society. Incorporated. accountants' journal, Oct. 1936, p. 73-6.
 Lord Stamp on the accountant's future: London members' dinner. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 73-6.

STAMP TAXES See Taxation, Stamp, under various states and countries.

STANDARD accounting manual for savings, building and loan associations. American savings and loan institute.

STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICES See Accounting-Standardization.

- STANDARD accounting system for printers, with the Standard cost finding system tied-in and controlled. United typothetae of America.
- STANDARD BANK CONFIRMATION FORM See Bank confirmations.

- STANDARD BRANDS, INC. TAGGART, HERBERT F. Standard brands case. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Oct. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 4, section 1, p. 195-262.)
- STANDARD classification of municipal revenues and expenditures. National committee on municipal accounting.
- STANDARD cost finding system. United typothetae of America.
- STANDARD cost problems; round table discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 119-45.)
- STANDARD cost system for a brewery. Spitznas, C. Thomas.
- STANDARD cost system for a stationery manufacturing concern. Edes, Omar K.

- STANDARD COSTS ASHLEY, R. W. Standard costs in an engineering industry. Australian accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 1 - 22
 - BLOCKER, J. G. Budgeting in relation to standard costs. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 117-24. BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Standard costs. (In
 - his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 217-27.)

 - CASTENHOLZ, WILLIAM B. Incidence of expense as related to the standard cost concept. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 6-7, 30.
 CROCKETT, HORACE G. Cost standards and budgets. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 305-17.)
 DAVIS, ALBION R. Standard profits and economic costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, p. 1220-8.)
 Printed with: Kohl, Clem N. What is vorong with most profit and loss statements?
 DURMAN, CHARLES H. Accounting for standard costs. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 5-13.

 - DURMAN, CHARLES H. Accounting for standard costs. Cost accountant, June 1938, p. 5-13.
 FANNING, W. M. General considerations of a standard cost procedure. Cost and management, May 1939, p. 160-7.
 GNAEDINGER, PAUL E. Standard costs for profit control. Factory management and maintenance, April 1936, p. 151-2, advertising page 46, 48, 50; May 1936, p. 181-2, advertising p. 50, 53; June 1936, p. 215-6, advertising p. 39-42.
 GREEN, EARL A. Objectives of standard costs and their use in measuring performance. Cost and management, Sept. 1938, p. 244-52.
 GREGORY, GERALD H. Functions of standard process cost accounting. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1937, p. 776-91.
 GREGORY, GERALD H. Ideal standards or basic standards? Australian accountant, May 1936, p. 276-80.

 - 276-80
 - GREGORY, GERALD H. Use of standard costs in business. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1936, p. 221-30. HARRIS, GOULD L. Cost standards—methods and appraisal. Accounting ledger, April 1939, p.
 - 10-20
 - and appraisal. Accounting leager, April 1959, p. 10-20.
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Standard costs and budgets. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 20-8.)
 INVENTORIES under standard cost plan. (Correspondence) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 2, p. 417-8.)
 KASSANDER, A. R. Standard costs. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1939, p. 1-16.
 KEATING, WILLIAM L. Controversial points in treatment of materials under a standard cost system. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 85-93.)

- LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Stand-LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Standard costs and their application. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 329-53.)
 LAWRENCE W. B. Standard costs. (In his Cost accounting, 1937. p. 327-80.)
 MCFARLAND, WALTER B. Basic theory of standard costs. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 151.8

- MALCOLM, J. W. Standard costs in the linen in-dustry. Cost accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 268-71.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Standard costs. (In his

- dustry. Cost accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 268-71.
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L, Standard costs. (In his Basic cowrse in cost accounting, 1938, p. 188-241.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Standard costs. (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1936, p. 175-236.)
 MATTER, J. K. Standard costs kept standard. American machinist, July 14, 1937, p. 610-1.
 MOUNCEY, A. J. Standardized costs. Cost and management, Dec. 1938, p. 339-42.
 MYERS, H. J. Are standard costs practical for a special-order business? National accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 27-33.
 MYERS, H. J. Standards for manufacturing expense. New York, National ascotation of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 6, section 1, p. 318-29.) Printed with: Crockett, Horace G. Cost standard and andgets.
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Standard costs. (In his Cost accounting principles and practice. 1938, p. 438-517.)
 OWEN, S. Standard costs. Cost accountant, April 1936, p. 343-6.
 REITELL, CHARLES. Application of standard costs to distribution. (In American institute of accountants, Papers on accounting principles and principles and

- costs to distribution. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 170-5.) REITELL CHARLES. Applying standard costs and budgets to distribution. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 228-50.) REITELL, CHARLES. Standard costs in the field of distribution. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section I, p. 159-64.) Printed with: Taggert, Herbert F. Established cost survey.
- cost survey. REITELL, CHARLES AND JOHNSTON, C. E. Standard costs and budgets. (In their Cost ac-counting, principles and methods. 1937, p. 257-377.)
- ROSANE, G. B. E. Some problems in standard cost accounting. 5 typewritten pages. RUCKER, RANALD G. Cost analysis by standards
- in the accounts. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p.

- in the accounts. Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 368-74. SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Standard costs. (In his Advanced cost accounting. 1939, p. 102-54.) SPITZNAS, C. THOMAS. Standard cost system for a brewery. New York, National association ot cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 1, p. 1243-62.) SWEETSER, FRANK L. Standard costs simplified for garment manufacturers. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1309-30.) VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Newer type of

- (N.A.C.A. builtetin, v. 18, no. 25, section 1, p. 1309-30.)
 VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Newer type of cost system. Standard marketing cost system. (In his Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures, c1938. p. 435-521, 602-26.)
 WHEELER, S. J. Is continuous costing necessary in conjunction with standard costs? Cost accountant, March 1937, p. 307-11.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting: measuring efficiency by cost standards. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 35-7.
 WIGHTT, L. A. Standard costs. Certified accountants, journal, June 1936, p. 184-90. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 364-71.
 WOOD, CLIFFORD G. Disposition of variances from standard. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. builletin, v. 20, no. 9. section 1, p. 548-55.) Printed with: Peden, Robert W. Cost accounting in the plastic molding industry.
- STANDARD costs for the electrical manufacturing industry. National electrical manufacturers association.

- STANDARD costs for the Pioneer crayon manufac-turing company. Chubbuck, Arthur C. and Nickerson, Clarence B.
- STANDARD costs in the field of distribution. Reitell. Charles.

STANDARD costs simplified for garment manufac-turers, Sweetser, Frank L.

STANDARD distribution costs. Sabin, R. M.

STANDARD federal tax service, 1936. Commerce clearing house, inc.

STANDARD OIL COMPANY (INCORPORATED IN NEW JERSEY) AND ITS DOMESTIC PARTICI-PATING SUBSIDIARIES

Employees thrift plan, effective January 1, 1936. New York, Standard oil co., Administrative committee, employees thrift plan, 1936. 39p.

STANDARD OIL COMPANY (NEW JERSEY) CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D. Accounting to employees. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1939, p. 203.

STANDARD practice in auditing. Back, W. J.

- STANDARD practice in municipal accounting and financial procedure. Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada.
- STANDARD practice manuals for hotel operation. Hitz, Ralph.
- STANDARD profits and economic costs. Davis, Albion R.
- STANDARD report form as recommended by the accounting division, United States building and loan league for adoption by the National asso-ciation of building and loan supervisors and the Federal home loan bank board. United States building and loan league.
- STANDARD SHORT FORM OF AUDITOR'S RE-PORT

See Certificates, Auditors'; Reports.

STANDARD STATISTICS COMPANY, INC. Daily dividend service. New York, Standard statistics company, inc. 1939. loose-leaf.

STANDARDIZATION

TANDARDIZATION
 See also Accounting—Standardization; Account-ing—Uniform methods and systems; Cost and factory accounting—Standardization; Cost and factory accounting—Uniform methods and sys-tems; Standard costs.
 KEOGH, D. S. Control of labor through stand-ards. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1937. p. 123-35.)
 KIRSH, BENJAMIN S. AND SHAPIRO, HAROLD ROLAND. Standardization by trade associations. (In their Trade associations in law and business. 1938. p. 135-63.)

STANDARDIZATION OF ACCOUNTING PRAC-TICES

See Accounting-Standardization.

- STANDARDIZATION of accounting principles. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 283.
- STANDARDIZATION or Werntz, William W. \mathbf{of} accounting principles.
- STANDARDS and wage incentives for office activities. Farrell, A. C.
- STANDARDS for manufacturing expense. Myers, H. J.
- STANDARDS for non-profit hospital plans. American hospital association. Commission on hospital service.

STANLEY, H. A. Accountants' fees. California certified public ac-countant, July 1936, p. 5, 8.

STANLEY, HAROLD Competitive bidding for new issues of corporate securities. New York, Morgan Stanley & co., 1939. 14p.

STANTON, HARRY L.

Significance of the Chandler act; new duties and responsibilities of indenture trustees in reor-ganizations. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 275-79.

STAPLES, RONALD Report of the income tax codification committee. Accountant, tax supplement, June 27, 1936, p. 261-5.

STARK, R. C. Accountant in his relation to factory management. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 82-5. In-dian accountant, May 1938, p. 172-4.

- STARKEY, RODNEY F.
 Discussion of "A statement of accounting principles"; chairman: Rodney F. Starkey, September 29, 1938. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure presented at the fifty-first annual meeting. 1938. p. 1-46.)
 Importance of flexibility in accounting principles and procedure. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 27-31.

STARR, ABNER J.

Accounting fees and the basis for their computa-tions. 4 typewritten pages.

STARREVELD, R. W.

Office machines research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 223-4.)

STARTLING innovation. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Jan. 1937, p. 4-5.

- countancy, Jan. 1937, p. 4-5.
 STATE BOARDS OF ACCOUNTANCY
 See also American institute of accountants.
 Year books; Bulletins of the American institute
 of accountants; Certified public accountant.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. State
 boards of accountancy. (In its Accountancy law
 service. c1938. loose leaf.)
 FLORIDA. State board of accountancy. Florida
 accountancy law, rules of the board relating to
 holding of examinations and issuance of certificates and standards of conduct and ethical
 practice; alphabetical lists of holders issued
 by this board who have registered in accordance
 with the law for 1936, as of June 30, 1936.
 Miami, Fla., Office of the secretary, State board
 of accountancy, 1936. 42p.
 KENTUCKY. State board of accountancy. Annual
 register, July 31, 1936. Louisville, Ky., Office
 of the secretary, 1936. 26p.
 Same, May 1, 1937. 30p.

 LOUISIANA. State board of certified public ac countants. By-laws, rules and regulations (ap proved May 15, 1936) containing copy of act
 136 of the legislature of the state of Louisiana
 of 1934 and a copy of act 159 of 1926. New
 Orleans, La., State board of certified public
 accountants, 1936. 9p.

 NORTH CAROLINA. State board of accountancy. Information in regard to examinations for cer tife public accountants. Raite, Ky., Contice

 - Information in regard to examinations for cer-tified public accountants. Raleigh, N. C., North Carolina state board of accountancy, Dec. 1, 1939. 19p.
- STATE-chartered savings, building, and loan asso-ciations in Illinois, 1920 to 1936. Winakor, Arthur H.

STATE DEBT See Debt, Public.

STATE INSURANCE FUND

Compensation ratemaking in New York state. New York, State insurance fund, Oct. 1939. 12p. (Public service series, bulletin no. 1.)

- STATE labor legislation, 1937. United States. Labor statistics, Bureau of.
- STATE of Tennessee; reorganizing the debt struc-ture. Taber, Norman S. and company.
- STATE street trust company case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 282.

- STATE STREET TRUST CO. V. ERNST ET AL BRADY, WILLIAM W. Accountants' liability to third parties; the Ultramares case reaffirmed. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Ac-countant's liability for negligence and fraud; comments on State street trust co., v. Ernst et al., 278, N. Y. 104, 15, N. E. (2nd) 416. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 326-30.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Com-ment on State street trust co., v. Ernst de-ferred. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 122.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. State

 - Aug. 1938, p. 122. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. State street trust co., v. Ernst, 278 N. Y. 104. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p.
 - NEW YORK COURT OF APPEALS. State street trust company, appellant, vs. Alwin C. Ernst et al., co-partners doing business under the firm name and style of Ernst & Ernst, respondents. (decided May 24, 1938.) 11 mime-
 - ographed pages. STATE street trust company case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 282.
- STATEMENT of accounting principles. Sanders, Thomas Henry, Hatfield, Henry Rand, and Moore, Underhill.
- STATEMENT of accounting principles. (Correspondence) Fedde, A. S.
- STATEMENT of accounting principles. (Correspond-ence) Paton, W. A.
- STATEMENT of accounting principles. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 190-1.
- STATEMENT of Mr. Fernald presented to the finance committee on the revenue bill, May 4, 1936. Fernald, Henry B.
- **STATEMENT** of objectives of the American ac-counting association. *Accounting review*, March 1936, p. 1-4.
- TEMENT of the public debt of the United States, March 31, 1936. United States. Treasury STATEMENT department.

STATEMENTS

- TATEMENTS
 BRAHAM, JOE J. Advisability of mailing month-ly statements. (Correspondence) New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 2, p. 779-80.)
 LAWRENCE, W. B. Preparation of analytical statements -- Comparative statements. (In his Cost accounting. 1937. p. 263-97.)
 PRACTICE problems of accountants in connection with registration statements; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth an-niversary celebration. 1937. p. 313-33.)
 REITELL, CHARLES AND VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE. Construction of accounting state-ments. (In their Accounting principles for engineers. 1936. p. 152-71.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HER-MANN C. Preparation of accounting state-ments (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 12-44.)

- p. 12-44.)

- Analysis See also Balance sheets—Analysis ADAMSON, A. General methods with statistical
 - ADAMSON, A. General methods with statistical aids, in analysis and interpretation of account-ing statements. Accountant, July 18, 1936, p. 98-102; July 25, 1936, p. 130-4.
 ANDERSEN, ARTHUR, Present-day problems af-fecting the presentation and interpretation of financial statements; address delivered at the annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, Boston, Massachusetts, October 15, 1935. New York, American institute of ac-countants, 1937. 15p. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 168-73.
 - countants, 1937. 13p. Alconniane, 1997. 1997. p. 168-73. BODDINGTON, A. LESTER. Criticism of bal-ance sheets and financial statements. (In his *Financial statements.* 1938. p. 244-96.) BOLON, DALLAS S. Analysis of statements. (In his *Introduction to accounting*, 1938. p. 458-82.) CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Statement analysis. (In his Accounting principles and practice.

 - 458.8.2)
 CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Statement analysis. (In his Accounting principles and practice. 1936. p. 218-28.)
 COTTER, ARUNDEL. Analyst looks at the ac-countant. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937. p. 279-83.
 ETTINGER, RICHARD P. AND GOLIEB, DAVID E. Construction and analysis of finan-cial statements. (In their Credits and collec-tions. 1938. p. 250-303.)
 FEDDE, A. S. Interpretation of insurance com-pany statements for investors. New York, Fedde and co., c1937. 12p.
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Analysis of state-ments. (In his Introduction to principles of ac-countian accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 321-9.
 FOULKE, ROY A. AND PROCHNOW, HER-BERT V. Importance and interpretation of financial statements. (In their Practical bank credit. 1939. p. 165-328.)
 GRAHAM, BENJAMIN AND MEREDITH, SPENCER B. Interpretation of financial state-ments. Nuther theorements. (In their Practical bank credit. 1939. p. 303-414.)
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Analysis of financial state-ments. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 27-39.

 - 27-39
 - p. 27-39. HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Accounting postulates: p. 27-39.
 p. 27-39.
 p. 27-39.
 HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Accounting postulates: an analysis of the tentative statements of ac-counting principles. Accounting renew, Dec. 1937, p. 386-401, discussion by Arthur N. Lorig and Charles T. Sweeney, p. 401-6.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Analysis and interpre-tations of accounting reports. (In his Accounting. c1937, p. 462-81.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Analysis and interpretation of reports. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939, p. 576-98.)
 LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Analysis and in-terpretation of financial statements. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938, p. 288-307.)
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Analysis and interpretation of financial statements. (In their Accounting funda-mentals. 1936, p. 469-92.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Analysis and interpretation of financial statements. (In their Accounting principles. e1939.

 - statements. (In their Accounting principles. c1939.
 - statements. (In their Accounting principles, e1959, p. 805-29.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Analysis of financial statements. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937, p. 263-89.)
 METROPOLITAN, LIFE INSURANCE COM-
 - PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Interpret-ing company financial statements for employees. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 40p.
 - YER, JOHN N. Financial statement analysis; principles and technique. New York, The author. 1939. 270p. MYER.
 - NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Analysis and interpretation of financial state-

STATEMENTS—Analysis—(Continued)

ments. (In their Elementary accounting. c1938. 513-32.)

- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS.
- p. 513-32.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Comparative statements and their ratios. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939, p. 461-79.)
 PATON, W. A. Interpretation of statements. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938, p. 780-819.)
 ROBINSON, DWIGHT P., JR. Accountants' re-ports and audited accounts from an investment analyst's viewpoint. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 77-84. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 187-99.
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Analysis of financial statements. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938, p. 172-87.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Analysis of financial statements. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 596-616.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Management uses of accoun-ting. (In his Theory and mechanics of accoun-ting. (In Ac66-3).
 SLOAN, LAURENCE H. Corporation statements as the basis of investment policy. Journal of the American statistical association, March 1937, p. 8-14.

 - 8-14
- STEINER, FEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Financial statement. (In his Mercantile credit. 1936. p.
- Statement. (In his Mercanile credit. 1936, p. 90-107.)
 SUNLEY, W. T. Seen in published financial statements. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 11-24; Feb. 1936, p. 87-93; March 1936, p. 261-74; April 1936, p. 221-9; May 1936, p. 299-308; June 1936, p. 341-8.
 SWISHER, RHAE M. Financial statements as aids to management and credit. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1937, p. 13-7.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMAN C. Principles of analysis. (In their Intermediate accounting, 1938, p. 45-71.)
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Analyzing financial statements, 2 parts. New York, American institute of banking, section American bankers association, c1938, part 1, p. 1-151; part 2, p. 153-307.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. How to evaluate financial statements. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936, 3190.

- statements. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936, 319p. WEISBERG, CHARLES. Evaluation of retailers' financial statements. *Credit 'executive*, March, 1936, p. 74-6. WEISBERG, CHARLES. What the credit man ex-pects from the accountant. *Credit executive*, April 1938, p. 106-8. WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W. Analysis of debt-paying ability. *Profit*, Sept. 1938, p. 1-4. WOODWARD, A. T. Benefits of statement analy-sis; practical application of comparative figures. *Credit and financial management*, May 1939, p. 12-5. 12-5.
- 12-5.
 WOODWARD, A. T. Practical financial statement analysis. Credit and financial management, June 1937, p. 27-30.
 YAGER, VINCENT. What banks should expect in financial statements. Credit and financial man-agement, June 1938, p. 17-20.

- Application of funds
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Statements of application of funds. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 480-508.)
 WALKER, GEORGE T. Limitations of the state-ment of funds applied and provided. no date
 - 11 typewritten pages.

Comparative NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Comparative statements and their ratios. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 461-79.)

Consolidated

onsolidated ALFORD, EDWIN D. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400-1. BAUMANN, H. P., editor. Solution to problems, "Minority interests in consolidated statements".

(Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 300-5. BENJAMIN, HAROLD S. Mutual stockholdings

- DEINJAMIN, HAROLD S. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400. CONSOLIDATED statements of railway com-panies. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7-10.

- panies. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7-10.
 DANIELS, M. B. Consolidated statements. (In his Financial statements, 1939, p. 80-108.)
 FIELD, KENNETH. Consolidated statements. (In his Corporation finance, c1938. p. 369-83.)
 KOHLER, E. L. Some debated issues on con-solidated financial statements. (In American in-stitute of accountants. Papers on accounting
- AUTILER, E. L. Some debated issues on con-solidated financial statements. (In American in-stitute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure, 1938. p. 42-6.)
 KOHLER, E. L. Some tentative propositions un-derlying consolidated reports. Accounting re-view, March 1938, p. 63-77.
 KRACKE, EDWARD A. Consolidated financial statements. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 372-89. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 135-60.)
 LINDSAY, MAURICE M. Holding companies and consolidations statements. Boston, Mass., Bentley school of accounting and finance, c1939, 199p.
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Consolidated statements. (In their Ac-counting principles. c1939. p. 661-705.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Consolidated statements. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 240-50.)
 MINORITY interests in consolidated statements;

- 240-50.) MINORITY interests in consolidated statements; problem submitted by R. D., Montreal, Canada. (Students' department) *Journal of accountancy*, Oct. 1936, p. 298-300. MOONITZ, MAURICE. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. *Journal of accountancy*, Oct. 1930, p. 227.35
- Oct. 1939, p. 227-35. NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS.

- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Consolidated statements. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 550-79.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Consolidated statements. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 35.)
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, AND MOORE, UNDERHILL. Consolidated statements. (In their Statement of accounting principles. 1938. p. 101-6.)
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Consolidated financial statements. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 358-76. Reprinted. 21p. TROUANT, D. L. Consolidated statements. (In his Financial audits. c1937. p. 159-70.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-

- mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-sis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Com-mission in connection with financial statements) Massion in connection with manchar statements)
 Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938, 8 mimeographed pages.
 ZIMERING, MAX. Notes on consolidations. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 20-4.

False See Fraud.

Financial

- See also Bankers, Coöperation with: Robert Mor-ris associates; Credit men, Coöperation with; Commentator—a department edited by William D. Cranstoun
- ACCELERATION clause on borrowers statements. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Feb. 1937, p. 207-28.
- Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, rep. 1937, p. 207-28. ACCOUNTING for public information. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 284. ACCOUNTING research association—Tentative statement of accounting principles underlying corporate financial statements, by the executive committee of the American accounting associa-tion. Accountant, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 803-6. ADAMSON, A. General methods with statistical aids, in analysis and interpretation of accounting statements. Accountant, July 18, 1936, p. 98-102;
- statements. Accountant, July 18, 1936, p. 98-102; July 25, 1936, p. 130-4. AMERICAN ACCOUNTING ASSOCIATION.

466

STATEMENTS—Financial—(Continued)

- Executive committee. Tentative statements of ac-counting principles affecting corporate reports. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 187-91. Re-
- printed. 18p. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. printed. 18p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
 Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants; a revision of the bulletin prepared by the American institute of accountants in 1929 and published by the Federal reserve board under the title "Verification of financial statements". New York, American institute of accountants, January, 1936. 41p. Controller, April 1936, p. 91-2, 94, 96. (extracts).
 ANDERSEN, ARTHUR. Present-day problems affecting the presentation and interpretation of financial statements; address delivered at the annual meeting of the American institute of accountants, (1936). 15p. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 168-73.
 ANDREWS, PETER B. B. There's drama in those bank statements. Banking, Sept. 1939, p. 68-71.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Deficiencies most frequently noted in financial statements. Controller, June 1938, p. 165-7.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. How companies may make statements more illuminating to stockholders; before Controllers, Oct. 1937, p. 282-7, 290.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Sent accountant, Journal of accountant. Journal of accountant. Journal of accountants, 1937, p. 23-39.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Some accounting prob-

- countant. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 23:39.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Some accounting problems of the Securities and exchange commission; an address before the New York state society of certified public accountants, on January 11. 1937. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountants, and the pages. New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountants, April 1937, p. 3-14.
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Some problems in presentation of financial information to investors. (In Controllers institute of America. Year book, 1937, p. 64-78.)
 BODDINGTON, A. LESTER. Financial statements; their treatment and interpretation. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, 1td., 1938. 366p.
 BORTH, DANIEL. "Examination of financial statements," *Certified public accountant*, Nov. 1936, p. 654-9.
 BOWMAN, ARCHIBALD. Reporting upon the corporate investment; address at Columbia university, school of business, December 14, 1937. 24p. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 396-416.

- 416
- BRINK, VICTOR Z. Some comments on the Inter-state hosiery case. Accounting ledger, Oct. 1939, p. 18-22, 38.
- BROAD, SAMUEL J. Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 23-6.
- BUCHANAN, ROBERT. Review of court de-cisions. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other ac-counting subjects. 1939, p. 118-23.)
- commeng snoyects, 1999, p. 118-23.) BYRNE, GILBERT R. To what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 364-79. Reprint 16p. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 243-54.)
- CHANDLER, GRANT. Problems incident to the certification of financial statements included in registration statements filed under the securities act. (In Michigan state college and the Michi-gan association of certified public accountants. *Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference*. 1937. p. 24-34, discussion, p. 34-5.)

COTTER, ARUNDEL. Analyst looks at the ac-

countant. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 279.83

- 279-83. COURTNEY, JAMES L. Value of a weekly financial report. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Jan. 1939, p. 466-7. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Reporting to employees. (Commentator) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1938, p. 338-9. DANIELS, M. B. Financial statements. Chicago, III., American accounting association, 1939. 2157

- 11., American accounting association, 1939. 215p.
 DISCUSSION of proper basis for quarterly reports. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, April 1936, p. 14-5.
 DOLGE, WILLIAM. Professional accountant's approach to corporation's annual statement. Controller, July 1937, p. 197-9.
 ETTINGER, RICHARD P. AND GOLIEB, DAVID E. Financial statement—Construction and analysis of financial statements. (In their Credits and collections. 1938. p. 230-303.)
 FINANCIAL statements. (In Business executive's handbook. 1937, p. 803-91.)
 FOOTNOTES. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 74.
 FURTHER references to auditors reports and the examination of financial statements. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 121-8.
 GILMAN, WESLEY A. Suggests making annual report a public relations document. Controller, May, 1938, p. 124-8.
 GLOVER, P.W.R. Basic questions of auditing procedure. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 92-100.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD I. AND KATZ, WILBER

- p. 92-100. GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Financial statements—construction and inter-
- G. Financial statements—construction and inter-pretation. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938, p. 333.414). GRAVES, WILLIS C. Whose is the responsibility? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 124-6.) GREANEY, E. J. Elimination of cents. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 299.300

- respondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 299-300. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Qualified statements. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Ian. 1939, p. 47. GREER, HOWARD C. Application of accounting rules and standards to financial statements. Ac-counting review, Dec. 1938, p. 333-45. GREER, HOWARD C. To what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 213-23. GREER, HOWARD C. Would published financial
- practice of accountancy of rules and standards? Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 213-23.
 GREER, HOWARD C. Would published financial statements be improved by more uniform application of accounting rules and standards? (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 133.50. discussion, p. 153.4.)
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting requirements of the S.E.C. Accounting forum, May 1939, p. 36-42.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 517p.
 HAHN, F. F. Balance-sheet is the company's. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 127-9.)
 HARTWELL, JOBSON AND KIBBEE. Survey of stockholder opinion on some functions and resonsabilities of the auditor. New York, Hartwell, Jobson and Kibbee, c1939. 9p.
 HERMANOS, MANCERA. (La) Auditoria de los estados financieros (responsabilidades y deberes del comisario en las sodiedates anonimas). Mexico, D. F., Editorial cultura, 1937. 97p.
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. Financial statements of retailers. Credit executive. June 1936, p. 242-4; Sept. 1936, p. 270-3. Reprinted. 35p.
 HURDMAN, FREDERICK H. Problems of uniform financial reports. 20 typewritten pages.

- HURDMAN, FREDERICK H. Problems of uni-form financial reports. 20 typewritten pages.
- HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Accounting postulates:

STATEMENTS—Financial—(Continued)

IA IEMEN IS—Financial—(Continued)

 an analysis of the tentative statements of accounting principles. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 386-401, discussion by Arthur N. Lorig and Charles T. Sweeney, p. 401-6.
 IMPORTANT document revised. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1936, p. 84-5.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. Texas accountant, May 1939, p. 1, 3.
 INTERSTATE hosiery case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 257-8.

 INTERSTATE hosiery case—Responsibilities of auditors and of management. (Editorials) Can-

- INTERSTATE hostery case—Responsibilities of auditors and of management. (Editorials) Can-adian chartered accountant, June 1939, p. 397-9.
 KELLOGG, PAUL. Prepare tomorrow's state-ments today. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, p. 273-83.
 KELLY, LINCOLN G. Presentation of financial statements. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 2-7.

- statements. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1957, p. 2.7.
 KOSIOL, ERICH. Annual financial statements of German corporations. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 183-91.
 KRACKE, EDWARD A. Consolidated financial statements. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 372-89. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuthand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 5, p. 135-60.)
 LARGER role for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 366.
 LENHART, NORMAN J. Principles of accounting as applied to current practice. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1936, p. 13-20, 23-4.
 LITTLETON, A. C. Suggestions for the revision of the tentative statement of accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 57-64.
 McCARTHY, J. E. Realistic accounts and statements—for management—for labor; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, Novem-

- fore the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois, November 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 535-6. McCONNELL, F. H. Lessons for stockholders; managements favor great clarity in reports, but differ on methods. Barron's, July 17, 1939, p. 8. MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Analysis and interpretation of financial statements. (In their Accounting funda-mentals. 1936, p. 469-92.) McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOWARD S. Accounting principles. (1939, p. 59-107):

- Accounting principles. c1939. p. 59-107; 5. ACC 783-805.
- MacNEAL, KENNETH. Truthful financial state-ments. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939. p. 174-99.)
- MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Financial statements. (In his Essentials of cost accounting, 1936. p. 53-60.) (In his Basic course in cost accounting,
- MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Financial statements. Main and the statements of financial statements. (In his accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 61-76, 263-89.)
- METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Inter-preting company financial statements for em-ployees. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 40p.
- ployees. New York, Mettopolitics, 1936. 40p. MORRISON, PAUL L. Interest of the investor in accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1937, p. 37-42. MYER, JOHN N. Financial statements analysis; principles and technique. New York, The
- MYER, JOHN N. Financial Source Principles and technique. New York, Inc. author, 1939. 270p. MYER, JOHN N. Toward better financial state-mete Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 15-20. Einencial statements must

- MYER, JOHN N. Toward better financial statements. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 15-20.
 NAYLOR, JOHN C. Financial statements must vary in form to serve specific purposes. Controller, Jan. 1939, p. 4-10.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Bulletin, vol. 10, no. 8, August, 1939—Interim financial reports. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 286-8.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Report of Public examining board on customer protection—to New York stock exchange. August, 1939.
- to New York stock exchange, August 31, 1939.

- New York, New York stock exchange, 1939, 40p. NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Stock ex-change encourages interim financial reports. New York stock exchange bulletin, Aug. 1939,
- New York stock exchange entry in the p. 1, 4.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS.
 Financial statements—Analysis and interpretation of financial statements. (In their Elementary accounting, c1938, p. 138-53; 513-32.)
 NICHOLAS, DOROTHY M. Current tendencies in the preparation and presentation of financial statements. Australian accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 120-43.
- In the preparation and presentation of animous statements. Australian accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 129-43.
 O'HARA, JOHN F. Accountants need a sense of humor. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 515-6, 530.
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Financial statements. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice, 1936. p. 1-137, 523-74.)
 PARKINSON, HARGREAVES. Disclosure in published accountant, April 1937, p. 337-43. Accountant, June 19, 1937, p. 873-7; April 15, 1939, p. 502-6.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Financial statements. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938, p. 740-79.)
 PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of committee on accounting terminology and review of witherd.

- FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of committee on accounting terminology and review of published financial statements for the year ending with the June 20, 1936 meeting. Pittsburgh, Pa., Pennsylvania society of certified public accountants, 1936. 7 mimeographed pages.
 PUBLISHED financial statements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 84.
 RECENT S.E.C. pronouncements. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 463.4.
 REPORTS to stockholders. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Get. 1939, p. 221-2.
 REVIEW of published financial statements. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Aug. 1936, p. 15-7.
 ROBINSON, LELAND REX. Are present forms of financial statements satisfactory? Journal of accountants, p. 265.
 POBENKAMPEE APTHUR HENRY AND

- accountancy, Dec. 1999, p. 1999, 24p. ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Financial statements and closing entries. (In their Book-keeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938, p. 136-56.) SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation in financial statements. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 187-96.
- statements. Journal of accountancy, March 1957, p. 187-96. SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Analysis of financial statements. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 596-616.) SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, and MOORE, UNDERHILL.

- HENRY RAND, and MOORE, UNDERHILL. Form and terminology of financial statements. (In their Statement of accounting principles. 1938. p. 17-22.) SEIDMAN, J. S. Whose are the financial state-ments? (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 120-1. SLOAN, LAURENCE H. Corporation statements as the basis of investment policy. Journal of the American statistical association, March 1937, p. 8.14 8-14.
- TEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD. Financial statement. (In his *Mercantile credit*. 1936. p. STEINER, 90-107.)
- **FEMPF**, VICTOR H. Consolidated financial statements. *Journal of accountancy*, Nov. 1936, p. 358-76. Reprinted. 21p. STEMPF.
- p. 358-76. Reprinted. 21p.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Introduction to round-table discussion: "Whose balance-sheet is it?" (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 115-7.)
 SUNLEY, W. T. Seen in published financial state-ments. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 11-24; Feb. 1936, p. 87-93; March 1936, p. 209-308; June 1936, p. 341-8.

STATEMENTS—Financial—(Continued)

- SWISHER, RHAE M. Financial statements as aids to management and credit. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1937, p. 13-7.
- TELLING your story to your employes; many far-

- TELLING your story to your employes; many far-sighted manufacturers are giving intimate details in annual statements. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 1-2.
 TO what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? A round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fificith anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 231-64.)
 TROUANT, D. L. Financial statements and ac-countant's report. (In his Financial audits. c1937, p. 171-83.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 4. (ad-ministrative policy on financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 25, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
- page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-sis of the deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial state-ments filed under the securities act of 1934.) Washing-ton, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages. UNIVERSITY OF NOTRE DAME. Notre Dame short-form corporate report. Notre Dame, Ind., University of Notre Dame, no date. form. --------Notre Dame short-form operating report. form.
- form, von SCHAPER, W., trans. Wie geht der ameri-kanische wirtschaftsprüfer vor? Leitsätze des American institute of accountants ("Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants") Amerikanisch-Deutsch . . in Deutsche übertragen von W. von Schaper. Ber-lin, Deutscher rechtsverlag, 1938. 103p. WALKER, GEORGE T. Goodwill on financial statements. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 174.82
- statements. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 174-82.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. Analyzing financial statements. 2 parts. New York, American institute of banking, section American bankers association, c1938, part 1, p. 1-151; part 2, p. 153-307.
 WALL, ALEXANDER. How to evaluate financial statements. New York, Harper and brothers, 1036 310.
- 1936. 319p.

- WARREN, ROBERT E. Modern requirements for financial statements. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan account-ing conference, 1936. p. 24-31.)
 WEISBERG, CHARLES. Evaluation of retailers' financial statements. Credit executive, March 1936, p. 74-6.
 WEISBERG, CHARLES. What the credit man expects from the accountant. Credit executive, April 1938, p. 106-8.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Footnotes and finan-cial statements; address before the Minnesota statistical association, and Minnesota society of certified public accountants and the University of Minnesota, in Minneapolis, Minnesota, May 3, 1939, and before the Maryland association of certified public accountants, in Baltimore, Marycertified public accountants, in Baltimore, Mary-land, on May 9, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11
- Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages.
 WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Relation of accounting statements and reports to security issues; address before the Third national accounting conference, Edison electric institute, Chicago, Illinois No-vember 15, 1939. Edison electric institute bulle-tin, Nov. 1939, p. 537-8, 542.
 WHOSE balance-sheet is it? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 5-6.
 WILSON, IRA S. Speeding up financial state-ments. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulle-tin, v. 20, no. 14, section 1, p. 911-28.)
 WOODWARD, A. T. Practical financial state-

- WOODWARD, A. T. Practical financial state-ment analysis. Credit and financial management, June 1937, p. 27-30.

- WOOLLEY, E. S. Real audits. Banking, Feb. 1939, p. 19-20. Florida accountant, April 1939, p. 1, 4.
 YAGER, VINCENT. What banks should expect in financial statements. Credit and financial management, June, 1938, p. 17-20.

- come BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Statement of income. (In their Auditing procedure, c1937. p. 368-77.) CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Balance-sheet and income-statement contrasts (Commen-tator) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 230.1 230-1
- GREER, HOWARD C. Reply by Professor Greer. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review,
- GREER, HOWARD C. Reply by Professor Greer. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, March 1937, p. 79-82.
 JANIS, MURRAY. Difficulties in preparing monthly income statements. Certified public ac-countant, April 1936, p. 211-3.
 KAPLAN, MAURICE C. AND REAUGH, DAN-IEL M. Accounting, reports to stockholders, and the S.E.C. Yale law journal, April 1939, p. 935-80. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 203-36.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Form and content of the income statement. (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 60-78.)
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Comments on the statement of accounting reinciples. (Ac

- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Comments on the statement of accounting principles. (Ac-counting exchange) Accounting review, March 1937, p. 76-9.SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, AND MOORE, UNDERHILL. Income statement. (In their Statement of ac-counting principles, 1938. p. 25-52.)
- Notre Dame form

 - O'HARA, JOHN F. Accountants need a sense of humor. Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 515-6, 530.
 UNIVERSITY OF NOTRE DAME. Notre Dame short-form corporate report. Notre Dame, Ind., University of Notre Dame, no date. form.
 form. form.

Of affairs

- t affairs
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Statement of affairs

 —liquidation of corporations. (In his Accounting for corporations, 1937, p. 225-39.)

 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANN

 C. Statement of affairs. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938, p. 483-99.)

Of funds

- TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANN C. Statement of funds—sources and application. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 72-83.)
- 72-83.)
 Profit and loss
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Preparation of statement of profit and loss. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 262-72.)
 COMPTON, WILLIAM H. Cost and profit trend charts and flexible budgets; presented at the 21st semi-annual meeting of the American gear manufacturers association, Skytop Lodge, Pennsylvania, October 10, 11, 12, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Profit and loss statement. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 313-86.)
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Statement of revenues and expense. (In his A B C of accounting. 1938. p. 34-51.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Profit and loss statement. (In his Arcounting. c1937. p. 52-63.)
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Profit and loss statement. (In his Principles of accounting. c1937. p. 480-97.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Profit—income and costs—and the profit and loss statement. (In his Statement, (In his Principles of accounting. c1937. p. 480-97.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Profit—income and costs—and the profit and loss statements? New York, National

Income

STATEMENTS-Profit and loss-(Continued)

- association of cost accountants, July 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 21, section 1, b. 1207-19.) LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Profit and loss state-ment. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938.
- 21-32.)

- Incl. (III and Fandamentals of accountang. 1980;
 p. 21-32.)
 MacDONALD, IAN W. Principles underlying profit statements and balance-sheets. Accountants' magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 539-50.
 MacDONALD, O. R. Comparative balance sheets and profit and loss statements. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 464-70.
 MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Statement of profit and loss. (In their Accounting fundamentals, 1936, p. 30-43.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOWARD S. Statement of profit and loss. (In their Accounting functional profit and loss.)
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Profit and loss statement. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939, p. 292-314.)
- Accounting principles, c1939, p. 44-58.)
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Profit and loss statement. (In his Truth in accounting, 1939, p. 292-314.)
 MYER, JOHN N, Analysis of two successive profit and loss statements. (In his Financial statement analysis, 1939, p. 70-84.)
 OWENS, RICHARD NORMAN AND KENNEDY, RALPH DALE. Profit and loss statement and the statement of capital. (In their Accounting, elementary theory and practice. 1936, p. 21-30.)
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Surplus, reserves and profit-and-loss statement. (In his Audit working papers. 1937, p. 148-60.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Profit and loss statement. (In their Principles of accounting, reserves a statements. 1938, p. 50-66.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Statement of profit and loss. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1937, p. 47-73.)
 SCHLATTER, CHARLES F. Profit and loss statement. (In their Basic accounting from market changes. (In his Adving bard. 1937, p. 457-7.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Profit and loss statement. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1939, p. 155-77.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Profit and loss statement. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937, p. 101-4.)

- 101-4.)
- SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Profit
- SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Profit and loss statement. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939. p. 315-32.)
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANN C. Consolidated statement of profit and loss. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 437-60.)
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial state-ments.) Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeo-graphed pages.

Pro-forma

See Balance sheets, Pro-forma.

Registration

See Investment companies—Law—United States; Securities and exchange commission; Stock ex-changes—Government regulation.

- Surplus NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Surplus statements. (In their Intermediate ac-counting. c1939. p. 79-113.)
- STATEMENTS of fund transactions in financial reports. American council on education. Financial advisory service.

STATES Accounting

- table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 288-310.
- ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Accounts of govern-mental authorities. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American

- institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary cele-bration. 1937. p. 296-300.)
 KILPATRICK, WYLIE. State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Munici-pal year book, 1936. p. 340-66.)
 MOREY, LLOYD. Principles of accounting for governmental authorities. (address at 50th anni-versary celebration and annual meeting of Amer-ican institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 13 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fifteith anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 289-96.)
- accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 289-96.) NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Bibliography of municipal and state accounting, Chicago, Ill., National com-mittee on municipal accounting, 1937. 30p. (Bulletin no. 7.)
- AVERY, BARTON. Uniform accounting in Kan-sas. Municipal finance, Nov. 1939, p. 45-7.

Pennsylvania ROWLAND, CHARLES J. and FAYLOR, HOMER O. Accounting and finance for Pennsyl-vania municipalities. State College, Pa., Pennsyl-vania state college, c1939. various paging.

Texas Texas MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS' ASSOCIA-TION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA. Accounting manual for Texas cities and towns. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, 1938.

Virginia VIRGINIA. Auditor of public accounts. Manual of uniform system of accounting for clerks of courts of the commonwealth of Virginia. Rich-mond, Va., Auditor of public accounts, 1937. 36p.

West Virginia PEYTON, T. W. Relation of West Virginia statutes to accountancy and books of account; address before the West Virginia society of certified public accountants at their annual meet-ing at the Hotel Prichard, Huntington, W. Va., October 30, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages.

- Auditing
 BENSON, JAMES L. Audits of departmental and institutional accounts; prepared for presenta-tion before the annual convention of the National association of state auditors, comp-trollers and treasurers, Biloxi, Miss., November 15, 16, 17 and 18, 1938. 9 typewritten pages.
 KILPATRICK, WYLIE. State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Munici-pal year book, 1936. p. 340-66.)
 SEARSON, LOUIS A. Promiscuous auditing of public accounts; address... to the North Caro-lina association of certified public accountants at Charlotte, N. C., October 1936. 7 typewritten pages. Auditing BENSON,

 - pages.

CONNECTICUT. Tax commissioner. Duties and

CONNECTICUT. Tax commissioner. Duties and powers of independent public accountants' periodic auditing of municipal accounts. Hartford, Conn., Tax commissioner, Oct. 1939. 31p.
 CONNECTICUT SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Memorandum of committee on legislation concerning a uniform system of periodic auditing and accounting of all public moneys, state, county and municipal. Connecticut C.P.A., Jan. 1939, p. 1-10.
 Same. 11p.

Kansas

AVERY, BARTON. Uniform accounting in Kan-sas. Municipal finance, Nov. 1939, p. 45-7.

470

STATES-Auditing-(Continued)

IATES-Auditing-(Continued)
 Mississippi
 MISSISSIPPI. State tax commission. Service bulletin no. 17; receipts and disbursements and change in debt position of the state of Mississippi, January 1, 1936-December 31, 1936 and comparative receipts 1936 with 1935, together with report of an audit and survey, May 1, 1935-April, 30, 1936, by Messrs. W. Q. Sharp and company, certified public accountants. Jackson, Miss., State tax commission, April 1937. 43p.

Costs BUEHLER, ALFRED G. State expenditures. (In his Public finance, 1936. p. 72-91.)

Oklahoma

OKLAHOMA. Tax commission. Cost of local government in Oklahoma for fiscal year ending June 30, 1936 (with comparison to previous years) Oklahoma City, Okla., Tax commission, 1936. 108p.

Finance
KILPATRICK, WYLIE. State administrative supervision of local financial processes. (In International city managers' association. Municipal year book, 1936. p. 340-66.)
PUBLIC SERVICE. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 6.
UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of. Financial statistics of states, 1937; summary bulletin. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 19p.

Mississippi

Mississippi MISSISSIPPI. State tax commission. Service bulletin no. 17; receipts and disbursements and change in debt position of the state of Mississippi, January 1, 1936-December 31, 1936 and com-parative receipts 1936 with 1935, together with report of an audit and survey, May 1, 1935-April 30, 1936, by Messrs. W. Q. Sharp and company, certified public accountants. Jackson, Miss., State tax commission, April 1937. 43p.

New York NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Special report of the state tax commission—no. 13; fiscal aspects of state and local relationships in New York, by Paul E. Malone. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., c1937. 433p.

Tennessee

TABER, NORMAN S. AND COMPANY. State of Tennessee: reorganizing the debt structure. New York, Norman S. Taber and co., May 15, 1937. 64p.

Law

- aw ACCOUNTS of trustees. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 93-5. NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSION-ERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS. Uniform posite reports as evidence act; Uniform judicial notice of foreign law act; Uniform judicial notice of foreign law act; Uniform official re-ports as evidence act; Uniform official re-ports as evidence act; drafted by the National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws and by it approved and recommended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936, Chicago, Ill., National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936. (5p. NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSION-ERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS. Uniform trustees' accounting act, drafted by the National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws and by it approved and recommended for enactment in all the states at its forty-sixth annual conference, Boston, Mass., August 17-22, 1936; approved by the American bar association at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936; Chicago, Ill., National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936. (Chicago, Ill., National conference of commissioners on at its meeting in Boston, Mass., August 24-28, 1936; Chicago, Ill., National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, 1936. 16p.

Taxation

See Taxation, United States-States.

STATIONERS Cost accounting

ost accounting EDES, OMAR K. Standard cost system for a stationery manufacturing concern. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 17, section 1, p. 1005-29.)

Statistics

- Austics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of office equipment and supply dealers and stationery and paper products stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 70, 90.)
- Analysis of the 1936 operations of com-mercial stationery concerns, and stationery stores. (In their 1937 retail survey, survey no. 76, 90.) NATIONAL STATIONERS ASSOCIATION.
- Cost of operation in the commercial stationery and office outfitting business, 1937 edition, show-ing comparisons with the past twelve years and the trends in expense. Washington, D. C., National stationers association. 1938. 4p.
- STATISTICAL analysis of industrial property retire-ments. Winfrey, Robley.
- STATISTICAL determination of costs, with special reference to marginal costs. Dean, Joel.

STATISTICAL methods applied to economics and busi-ness. Mills. Frederick Cecil.

STATISTICS

- See also Ratios.
 BLACKETT, OLIN W. Literature of business statistics; a bibliography. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1936.
 67p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 1.)
 BODDINGTON, A. LESTER. Treatment and interpretation of business statistics. (In his Financial statements. 1938, p. 33-63.)
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 380.
 COPELAND, MORRIS A. Aims and purposes of United States central statistical board. Controller, July 1939, p. 236-7, 255.
 CRAWFORD, ROBERT. Costs and statistics—their scope and function. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 12-22; Feb. 1939, p. 96-104.
 DAVENPORT, DONALD H. AND SCOTT, FRANCES V. Index to business indices. Chicago, III., Business publications, inc., 1937. 187p.

- 187p. DEAN, JOEL. Statistical determination of costs,
- DEAN, JOEL. Statistical determination of costs, with special reference to marginal costs. Chicago, Ill., University of Chicago press, c1936. 145p. FICK, K. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 452-3. FISHER, ARNE. Brief note on seasonal varia-tion. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 174-99.
- tion. Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1337, p. 174-99.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Statistical method as applied to accounting reports. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 392-9; Sept. 1939, p. 233-42; Dec. 1939, p. 335-6.
 HENSEL, PHILIP H. Statistical control of business activities. Cost and management, Feb. 1939, p. 50-62. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 177-87.
 HOLMES, R. L. A. Business barometers; measurement of economic activity with special reference to "The economist" index of business activity. Accountant, March 4, 1939, p. 293-9.
 HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 296-7.
 JONES, J. H. Use of index numbers. Accountant, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 612-5.

STATISTICS—(Continued)

- STATISTICS—(Continued)
 MILLS, FREDERICK CECIL. Statistical methods applied to economics and business. rev. ed. New York, Henry Holt and co., c1938. 746p.
 PELLETTER, A. J. Statistics in business. Cost and management, May 1936, p. 148-50, 152-60.
 RICE, STUART A. Returns made by business to the federal government. (In American management association. Problems and responsibilities of the finance officer. c1939, p. 24-32.)
 RIGGLEMAN, JOHN R. Graphic methods for presenting business statistics; introduction by M. C. Rorty. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 259p.
 RIGGLEMAN, JOHN R. AND FRISBEE, IRA N. Business statistics, ed. 2. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 790p.
 ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Accountant as statistician. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 325-32; Aug. 1939, p. 64-76.
 SLADE, J. J., JR. Brief note on seasonal variation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 406-3.
 SUCIAL interest in accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 406-3.
 UNITED STATES. Central statistical board, message from the President of the Central statistical board methods. The President of the Central statistical board methods. Co., Government printing office, 37p.
 STATISTICS in municipal finance and accountancy.
- STATISTICS in municipal finance and accountancy. Accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 100-2.
- STATISTICS of farmers' coöperative business or-ganizations, 1920-1935, by R. H. Elsworth. United States. Farm credit administration.
- STATISTICS of income. United States. Treasury department.
- STATUS of directors. (Notes of the month) Jour-nal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 108.

- STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS
 MARX, EMILY. Is form 872 a complete waiver of the limitation period? Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 639, 692-3.
 MILLER, JESSE I. Recoupment v. statute of limitations. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 456-7,
 - 499-500.
- STATUTORY merger and consolidation of corpora-tions. Yale law journal, Nov. 1935, p. 105-34.
- STATUTORY prescription of dividends. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 115-9.

STAUB, WALTER A.

- TAUB, WALTER A.
 Coöperation of accountants with bench and bar. Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 199-213.
 Fiftieth anniversary dinner. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1938, p. 41-7.
 General accounting policies as applied to banks. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1938, p. 1-13.
 Golden anniversary dinner. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1937, p. 28-34.
 Improvement of inventory and sales costing meth-ods. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 12-4.
 Physical tests of inventory quantities. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing brocedure and other accounting subjects. 1939.

- procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 59-62.)
- p. 59-62.)
 Some effects of federal taxes upon investment policies. (In Investment counsel association of America. Investment counsel annual, July 1938, p. 30-44, questions and answers, p. 44-6.)
 Some observations on inventory methods. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 28-32.
 Uniformity in accounting; talk given at the annual

meeting of the American institute of accoun-tants held in Cincinnati, Ohio, September 26-29, 1938, as part of a symposium on the general subject of "A statement of accounting prin-ciples". 10 typewritten pages. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 3-7.)

STAUB, WALTER A. AND OTHERS Effects of social security and undistributed earn-ings taxes on corporate policy trends. New York, American management association, 1937. 32p. (Financial management series no. 51.)

STAUB, WALTER RICHARD

Some considerations affecting the payment of dividends. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1936, p. 4-12, 21:

STAUFFER, WILLIAM H. Relief costs in the United States. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 836-44.)

STEAM Costs

BRICKENDEN, W. T. Fuel for thought. Cost and management, June 1936, p. 162-72.

STEAMSHIP business from the accountant's viewpoint. Houston, Sydney.

STEAMSHIPS

See Ships and shipping.

STEARNS, RAYMOND M.

One answer to fixed rate payroll problem. Con-troller, Feb. 1939, p. 60, 62.

STEEL

See Foundries, Iron and steel; Iron and steel; Mining and metallurgy, Iron and steel.

STEEL FOUNDERS' SOCIETY OF AMERICA

Manual of job cost finding practice for miscel-laneous jobbing steel foundries. Cleveland, Ohio, Steel founders' society of America, 1939. 27p.

STEEL TUBES See Tubes.

STEGEMERTEN, G. J., joint author See Maynard, Harold B. and Stegemerten, G. J.

STEHMAN, J. HAROLD Whotesaling's 1937 record. Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 23-5.

STEHMAN, J. HAROLD, joint author See White, Wilford L. and Stehman, J. Harold.

STEINBERGER, E. A. Valuation of utility properties. Gas age record and natural gas, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 447-50, 452.

STEINEMANN, ROBERT

- **TEINEMANN, ROBERT** Surety company's interest in municipal audits. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal ac-counting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 46-56.) Taxes, taxes, everywhere, to drive us all to drink; address delivered at the annual conference of the tax assessors and collectors association of Texas at Galveston, Texas, May 17, 1939. New York, Fidelity and casualty co., 1939. 15p.

STEINER, GEORGE A. Tax system and industrial development. Urbana, 111., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, March 18, 1938. 46p. (Business re-search bulletin no. 57.) Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1938, p. 98-110.

STEINER, WILLIAM HOWARD Mercantile credit. New York, Longmans, Green and co., 1936. 251p. (American business funda-mentals)

STEINMAN, D. B.

Do you know-pertinent facts concerning the professions; Accounting. American engineer, March 1939, p. 15.

STEMPEL, JOHN E. How one print shop records costs. Inland printer, October 1939, p. 21-2.

- STEMPF, VICTOR H. Accounting for fixed assets. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 16, section 1, p. 935-49.)

 - (N.A.C.A. bullerin, v. 19, no. 10, Section 1, p. 935-49.)
 Accounting in the public interest; address at Eastern four-states accounting conference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 7 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 23-8.
 Consolidated financial statements. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 358-76. Reprinted 21p. Coöperation between controllers and public accountants; before Controllers' institute of America, October 10, 1939. 10 typewritten pages.
 Corporate reorganizations; a review of the causes of financial reorganisations and trends in procedures availed of to accomplish the result; a discussion presented at the Illinois society of certified public accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 127-48.
 Critique of the tentative statement of accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 55-62.
 Extensions of time for filing income tax returns.

 - 55-62.
 Extensions of time for filing income tax returns. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 2-5.
 How the S.E.C. affects your pocketbook. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 2-6. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1938, p. 16-7.
 Illustration of justifiable elasticity in audit pro-cedure based upon internal control. New York certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 32-5.
 Income taxation and accountancy. 3 typewritten nages

 - pages.

 - 31p.
 - Recent state tax decisions of vital interest to the financial officer. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939. p. 44-52.)

 - policies on financial management. c1939. p. 44-52.)
 Revenue act of 1936. (analysis by Victor H. Stempf.) Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, July 15, 1936, p. 11-3. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 22, 1936, p. 353-4.
 Revenue act of 1938: the viewpoint of the public accountant. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 52-70.)
 S.E.C. and the accountant. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 12-6.
 Significant changes in federal income taxation; a discussion presented at the annual convention of the National retail dry goods association, January 30, 1937. 32 mimeographed pages. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Feb. 1937, p. 31-6. Journal of accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 437-40; Oct. 1, 1938, p. 449-54; Oct. 8, 1938, p. 440-3.
 Significant departures in the revenue act of 1936; address presented at the taxation and finance conference of the American management association.

ciation, Wednesday morning, December 2, 1936, Waldorf-Astoria, New York, N. Y. New York, American management association, 1936. 5

- Walloff-Xiolia, New York, N. 1. New York, American management association, 1936. 5 mimeographed pages.
 Statement of Victor H. Stempf, representing the committee on taxation, American institute of accountants, New York City. (In United States. Senate. Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other pur-poses. (Revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21 and 22, 1938, p. 167-77.)
 Tax accounting versus business practice; round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of Na-tional tax association, at Detroit. 10 mimeo-graphed pages. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 140-7.) (In National tax association. Round table discussion, Oct. 24, 1938.)
- 1938.)

- 1938.) Tax consciousness. 5 typewritten pages. Tax outlook; address at Central states C.P.A. conference, Des Moines, Iowa, June 1, 1939. 5 mimeographed pages. Taxes: buga-boo of corporate planning. *Credit and financial management*, Nov. 1937, p. 6-7. Your income tax return to Uncle Sam; WJZ, March 10, 1937, 7:45 P.M., under the auspices of the National association of cost accountants. 6 mimeographed pages.

- STEMPF, VICTOR H.
 ACCOUNTANTS' testimony at hearings on federal tax bill. Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 4-6.
 INTERNAL check and audit; panel discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939, p. 365-406.)
 TAX reform. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 269-70.
- STEPHEN, FRANCIS R. Some aspects of city finance. Accountant, Nov. 27, 1937, p. 737-9, discussion, p. 739-40.

STEPHENS, K. V. Partnership dissolution accounts. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, June 1938, p. 330-1.

- STEPHENSON, E. C. Internal auditing. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 24-6.)
- STEPS in the development of a constructive one year program. American institute of accountants.

STERNER, NILS A. Co-ordination of production and distribution. Cost and management, Oct. 1939, p. 295-300.

- STEVENS, W. H. S.
 Cost factors in the determination of price discrimination. New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 12, section 1, p. 689-96.)
 Printed with: Sawyer, Albert E. Cost accounting opportunities under the Robinson-Patman act.
 Stockholders' participations in assets in dissolution. Journal of business of the university of Chicago, Jan. 1937.
 Voting rights of capital stock and shareholders. (reprinted from Journal of business of the University of Chicago, Oct. 1938, p. 311-41.)

STEWART, ANDREW

IFEWART, ANDREW Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States. (address delivered at the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 133-59.)

STEWART, H. C.

Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 275-83.

STEWART, J. HAROLD Publicity programs to be undertaken by state societies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939. p. 154-5.)

STEWART, WILLIAM M. Difference between auditing and checking. National auditgram, Sept. 1938, p. 10, 14-5.

STICE. HILDA R.

Accounting theses. (Accounting exchange) Account-ing review, Sept. 1939, p. 312-5.

STILL, G. E.

Factory organisation and management. Cost accountant, March 1939, p. 304-13.

STIMSON, CLAUDE W.

Exemptions in personam. Taxes—the tax maga-sine, Aug. 1939, p. 453-4, 485-7.

STINE, O. C.

Income parity for agriculture. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 327-37, discussion, p. 338-48.)

STOCK

- IOCK BADGER, RALPH EASTMAN AND GUTH-MANN, HARRY G. Investment principles and practices. rev. ed. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936, 987p. CONVERSION of shares into stock. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Aug. 1936, p. 1976.
- 477-83
- 4/1/-03. CUMMINS, H. H. Share issues and script audits. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1937,

- CUMMINS, R. R. Share issues and script address. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1937, p. 941-8.
 DEW, E. RODERICK. Share-pushers and the law. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 559-63.
 DUNN, D. S. J. Redeemable preference shares. Accountant, Nov. 20, 1937, p. 703.
 ELY, OWEN. Utility stock fluctuation; varying sales ratios since 1928 and the present utility securities outlook. Public utilities fortnightly, Nov. 25, 1937, p. 703-8.
 LANG, P. C. Share transactions. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 260-5.
 MACAULAY, FREDERICK R. Movements of interest rates, bond yields and stock prices in the United States since 1856. New York, Na-tional bureau of economic research, 1938. 240p. and 351p. (bound in one vol.)
 REDEEMABLE preference shares. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 310-3.
- 310-3
- SANTIAGO, P. A. Investment position of a stock. *Philippine accountants' journal*, Feb. 1938, p. 53-60.
- 53-60. NITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. List of stocks registered on national securities exchanges as of January 31, 1937 (prepared for purposes of regulation U). Washington, D. C., Federal reserve board, 1937. 38p. UNITED

- Accounting STOCK in company reorganization. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 56-7.
 TREATMENT of discount on sale of stock. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 295-6.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 9. (bal-ance sheet presentation of preferred or other senior classes of capital stock having prefer-ences on involuntary liquidation in excess of the par or stated value.) Washington, D. C., Securi-ties and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938.
 1 mimeographed page.
- Bonus

STOCK issued as bonus. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 8-10.

Building and loan WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Insurance of deposit

accounts, a review; 2---Insured building and loan shares. Bankers monthly, Feb. 1939, p. 72-4, 99-100.

- Capital ALFORD, EDWIN D. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400-1.
 BENJAMIN, HAROLD S. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 400.
 CAPITAL stock issued to employees and officers. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aux. 1937, p. 142-4.

 - (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 142-4. DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Capital stock. (In their Corporate secretary's manual and guide, 1936, p. 669-761.) GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Reduction of stock—treasury stock dissolu-tion. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 160-73.)
 - p. 160-73.) GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet— Capital stock. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 269-83.) JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Corporations—par

 - Capital stock. (in nis Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. c1939. p. 269-83.)
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Corporations—par value stock—surplus. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937, p. 316-47.)
 KIMBALL, MILO. Capital stock. (In his Principles of corborate finance. 1939, p. 28-50.)
 KREBS, WILLIAM SAMUEL. Modifying the trust fund doctrine. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 26-9, 54.
 KREKSTEIN, I. H. Valuation of capital stock. (In his Corporations and their financing. c1937, p. 51-5.
 LYON, HASTINGS. Concept of capital stock. (In his Corporations and their financing. c1938, p. 99-215.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Capital and capital stock—accounting for capital stock. (In his Corporations and their financing. c1938, p. 99-215.)
 MONITZ, MAURICE. Mutual stockholdings in consolidated statements. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 227-35.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Corporate tax problems: capital stock and dividend distributions. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 123-6, 182.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Capital stock and funded debt. (In his Audit working papers. 1937, p. 140-7.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL, Capital stock. (In their Principles of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 2167.
 S.E.C. releases. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 2052.
 S.E.C. releases. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 206-7.
 S.E.C. releases. (Notes of the decisions of the Securities and exchange commission. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 262-72.
 STEVENS, W. H. S. Voting rights of capital stock and shareholders. (reprinted from Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 106-7.
 S.HORT, FRANK G. Accounting for the issuance of shares for assets under the decisions of the securities and exchange commission. Journal of accountancy, Hell S. Voting rights of capital stock and shareholders. (reprinte mission. Accounting series, release no. 5 ("treat-ment of dividends on a corporation's own capital stock held in sinking fund") Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10,
 - 1938. 1 mimeographed page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analy-sis of deficiencies commonly cited by the com-mission in connection with financial statements)
 - mission in connection with inancial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange com-mission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 9. (bal-ance sheet presentation of preferred or other senior classes of capital stock having preferences

STOCK-Capital-(Continued)

- TOCK—Capital—(Continued)

 on involuntary liquidation in excess of the par or stated value.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Release no. 2061; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Callahan zinc-lead company, securities act of 1933 sec.
 S(d) (File no. 2-1039) (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434-5.
- Common
 BOSLAND, CHELCIE C. Common stock theory of investment; its development and significance. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 154p.
 HAROLD, GILBERT. Profits in a theory. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 309-12.
 PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Fair value and wield of common stock. Accounting review, June
 - yield of common stock. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 130-40.

- Compensation KUNKEL, JOHN. Valuation of compensation stock. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 48-50.

 - 48-50.
 RENO, EDWIN S. Valuation of compensation stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 198.
 VALUATION of stock issued to corporation offi-cers as bonuses. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 457-8.

- b) accountancy, june 1937, p. 4378.
 No-par value
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Corporations: No-par
 stock—accounting for purchased par and no-par
 treasury stock from the legal standpoint. (In
 his Principles of accounting, c1937. p. 348-55.)
 KESTER, ROY B. No-par stock, bonds payable,
 treasury stock. (In his Principles of accounting,
 ed. 4. c1939. p. 432-53.)
 LEAKE, P. D. Inflated industrial share capital;
 a plea for the use of no-par value shares.
 London, Gee & co., Itd., 1936. 15p. (Accountant
 lecture series no. 43.)
 PRESTAGE, W. A. Shares of no-par value; suggested method under English law. Accountants
 journal, March 1936, p. 88-90.
 SHARES of no-par value. Accountant, Feb. 1,
 1936, p. 149-52.

Preference UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2009; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Investment corporation of North America. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 436.

- Preferred
 - (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 67-8.

Reacquired See Stock, Treasury.

Transfer of

- ransfer of
 DORIS, LILLIAN AND FRIEDMAN, EDITH J. Transfer of securities. (In their Corporate secre-tary's manual and guide, 1936. p. 765-998.)
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Share transfer audits. Aus-tralian accountant, May 1939, p. 225-30. Indian accountant, July 1939, p. 264-8.
 HUDSON, H. Fraud in share transfers; how an audit of share transfers is conducted. Indian accountant, March 1938, p. 131-3. Irish accoun-tant and secretary, Feb. 1938, p. 11, 16.
 MOORE, E. W. Marking of transfers. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 727-9.
 TOOTFLL, G. C. Share transfers: procedure for
- TOOTELL, G. C. Share transfers; procedure for registration. *Chartered accountant in Australia*, Dec. 1939, p. 384-91.

Treasury ACCOUNTING for treasury stock and payment of dividends from capital surplus. (Accounting

- questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 74-6. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. General introduction and rules formerly adopted. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 8p. (Accounting research bulletin no. 1.)
 DEINZER, HARVEY T. Treasury-stock question. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 256-69.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WILBER G. Reduction of stock—treasury stock dissolu-tion. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 160-73.)
 HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Corporate-entity fiction and accounting theory. Accounting review, Sept.

- HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Corporate-entity fiction and accounting theory. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 241-53.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Treasury stock. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 410-15.)
 KESTER, ROY B. No-par stock, bonds payable, treasury stock. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 432-53.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Treasury stock. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 125-31.)

- 31 1

- his Accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 125-31.)
 MARPLE, RAYMOND P. Treasury stock. (In his Capital surplus and corporate net worth. cl936. p. 53-76.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Dealings in treasury stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 113.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Recent opinions on dealings in treasury stock. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 17-22.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Dealings in treas-ury stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, Aug. 1938, p. 112-3. Philippine accoun-tancy, Journal, Sept. 1938, p. 342-48.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Dealings in treasury stock; we call it capital—the courts call it income. Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 466-79. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 331-42.
 PAYNE, ROBERT E. Treasury or reacquired stock; paper presented before the Chicago chap-ter of the National association of cost accoun-tants. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 98-105.
 PROCEEDS from sale of treasury stock. (Accountance) accountance, accountance)

- p. 98-105. PROCEEDS from sale of treasury stock. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 264-6. PROFITS or losses on treasury stock. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 417-8.
- p. 417-8. READER. Certified
- READER. Treasury stock. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, June 1937, p. 34-5. TAXABILITY of transactions by a corporation in its own stock. Yale law journal, Nov. 1937, p. 111-21.
- In its own stock. *I are taw pointal*, *icer*, *123*, p. 111-21.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 6. ("treatment of excess of proceeds from sale of treasury stock over the cost thereof") Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938, 1 mimeographed page.
 WATSON, ALBERT J. Principles related to treasury stock. (In American institute of accountants. *Papers on accounting principles and procedure*, 1938, p. 31-5.)
 WELLS, RAYMOND P. Dealings in treasury stock. (Correspondence) *Journal of accountancy*, Oct. 1938, p. 262.
 YORK, THOMAS. Dealings in treasury stock. (Correspondence) *Journal of accountancy*, Aug. 1938, p. 113-5.

- 1938, p. 113-5.
- Valuation
 - BOGAN, R. D. Valuation of unlisted shares. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1936, 653-70
 - p. 03370. BYWATER, JOHN A. Valuation of shares. Sec-retary in Australia and New Zealand, May 1939, p. 923-6.
 - GÖODWILL,
 - b. 923-6. GOODWILL, real-estate appreciation and valua-tion of stocks. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 73-6. KREKSTEIN, I. H. Valuation of capital stock in Pennsylvania for tax purposes. Journal of ac-countancy, July 1937, p. 51-5. KUNKEL, JOHN. Valuation of compensation

STOCK-Valuation-(Continued)

- stock. Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 48-50.
- 48-50.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Fair market value of stock. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 1, p. 337-68.)
 PETERS, HARVEY W. Fair market value of blocks of stock. Taxes-the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 17-8, 41-2, 55.
 PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Fair value and viola of computer stock decounting armicer lung

 - PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Fair value and yield of common stock. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 130-40.
 RENO, EDWIN S. Valuation of compensation stock. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 198.
 S.E.C. releases. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 106-7.
 SIDEY, R. L. Valuation of unquoted shares. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1938, p. 665-27.

 - Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1938, p. 605-27.
 SMITH, W. EARL. Market value of stocks under the New York tax law. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 212-3.
 THOMAS, K. H. Valuation of unquoted shares. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 82-6; April 1939, p. 139-44.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 9. (balance sheet presentation of preferred or other senior classes of capital stock having preferences on involuntary liquidation in excess of the par or stated value.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938.
 - 1 mimeographed page. VALUATION of shares, quoted and unquoted. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1939. p. 293-6. VALUATION of stock issued to corporation offi-
 - of accountancy, June 1937, p. 457-8. VALUING shares. Irish accountant and secretary, Nov./Dec. 1938, p. 159, 158.

Workers'

See Wages, fees, etc .- Stock distributing.

STOCK BROKERS See Brokers,

PCK brokers' accounts, theory and practice. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 64-6; Feb. 1939, p. 143-5; March 1939, p. 223-4; April 1939, p. 303-5; May 1939, p. 376-7; June 1939, p. 450-2; July 1939, p. 66-9; Aug. 1939, p. 142-4; Sept. 1939, p. 217-8; Oct. 1939, p. 302-4; Dec. 1939, p. 441-3. STOCK brokers'

STOCK CONTROL

See Inventories; Stores systems and stock records.

DCK control for the furniture department; a method which the Hecht company, Washington, D. C., believes to be fool-proof. *Balance sheet*, Jan. 1938, p. 7-9. STOCK control

STOCK DIVIDENDS See Dividends-Stock.

- **STOCK** dividends and the tax on undistributed profits. (from the Utah C.P.A.) Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 20-2.
- STOCK exchange. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, May 1938, p. 363-5.
- STOCK exchange and audits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 218-9.
- STOCK exchange gives views on accounting treat-ment of inventory losses. Controller, Feb. 1938, p. 55-6.
- **STOCK** exchange official year-book. 1936; incorporating the Stock exchange official intelligence and the Stock exchange year-book; compiled and edited by the secretary of the share & loan department of the stock exchange. London, Thomas Skinner & co., 1936. 3458p.

STOCK exchange procedure. Shultz, Birl E.

STOCK exchange regulation service. clearing house, inc. Commerce

STOCK-EXCHANGE SEATS

See Brokers; Investment companies.

- See Brokers; Investment companies.
 STOCK EXCHANGES
 ALDRICH, WINTHROP W. Stock market from the viewpoint of a commercial banker; an ad-dress at a luncheon meeting of the Rochester chamber of commerce, Rochester, New York, on Thursday, October 14, 1937. New York, Chase national bank, 1937. 32p.
 BACK, W. J. Stock exchange and other markets. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 425-9, discussion, p. 430-1.
 GAY, CHARLES R. Security markets and busi-ness progress. (address delivered at the fiftieth anniversary banquet of the American institute of accountants. New York City, October 21, 1937.) 12 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937, p. 167-76.)
 LYON, HASTINGS. Secondary market of the stock exchange. (In his Corporations and their financing, c1938, p. 803-902.)
 MEYER, CHARLES H. Law of stockbrokers and stock exchanges, in the publication of the original volume to July 1, 1936, New York, Baker, Voorhis and co., 1936. Asp.
 SMITH, FRANK P. Accounting requirements of stock exchanges, 1933. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 145-53.
 SMITH, FRANK P. Future of small securities exchanges. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1936, p. 360-9.

- Government regulation ACCOUNTANTS and the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 85. AMERICAN APPRAISAL COMPANY. Securi-ties act of 1933 and registration statements as they relate to appraisal reports on property facts and values. New York, American appraisal company (1937). 80 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin 884) BATES GEORGE E Waiting period under the

 - (Bulletin 884) BATES, GEORGE E. Waiting period under the securities act. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1937, p. 203-13. BREWER, ANDREW J. Refinancing problems under the new securities act, discussion. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1935.
 - CAVANAUGH, ANDREW J. Address at the joint spring meeting of the Virginia society and the North Carolina association of public accoun-tants, at Richmond, Virginia, May 21, 1937.
 - 7 mineographed pages. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Stock exchange regulation service; federal regulation of issue of securities. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. loose-leaf. DOUGLAS,
 - OUGLAS, WILLIAM O. Address before the Bond Club of Hartford, Hartford, Connecticut, Friday, Jan. 7, 1938. Washington, D. C., Securi-ties and exchange commission, 1938. 8 mimeo-

 - Friday, Jan. 7, 1958. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages.
 FRANK, JEROME N. Address before the Association of customers' brokers, Hotel Roosevelt, New York City, June 23, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 10 mimeographed pages.
 HANNA, JOHN. Securities act. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 256-68.
 HASKELL, JOHN. Objectives and activities of the committee on stock list of the New York stock exchange under present day conditions. (address to the Rhode Island society of certified public accountants, September 15, 1936.) 17 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 271-81.
 HASKELL, JOHN. Securities and exchange commission, the accountant, and the stock exchange.

STOCK EXCHANGES-Government Regulation-(Continued)

- (Continued)
 Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 293-302.
 HASTINGS, A. W. Refinancing problems under the new securities act. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 289-95.)
 LANDIS, JAMES M. Address before the twenty-fifth annual conference of the Investment bankers association of America, Augusta, Georgia, De-cember 4, 1936. 11 mimeographed pages.
 LANE, CHESTER T. Coöperation with the S.E.C. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 5-11.
 LASSER, J. K. AND GERARDI, J. A. Relation of accountants to the federal securities act. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 22, section 1, p. 1289-1312.)
 MARKET manipulation and the securities ex-change act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1937, p. 624-47.
- change act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1937, p. 624-47.
 MATHEWS, GEORGE C. Accounting in relation to regulation of security sales. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20 and 21, 1938. p. 102-14.)
 Same. 11 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 225-33.
 MATHEWS, GEORGE C. Address before the Milwaukee chapter, Wisconsin society of certified public accountants, Milwaukee, Wis., January 8, 1937. 15 mimeographed pages.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Regulation of securities. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 49-123.)
 NEFF, HAROLD H. Forms for registration of securities under acts of 1933 and 1934. Harvard law review, June 1938, p. 1354-72.
 NORRIS, LESTER E. Recent developments regrading regulation of the American institute of accountants in connection with registration statements; a round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration, 1937. p. 313-33.)
 RAPPAPORT, L. H. Recent S.E.C. developments.

- 3-10.
- S-10, RAPPAPORT, L. H. Recent S.E.C. developments. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1936, p. 13-7. REGULATIONS under securities exchange act of 1934. Federal reserve bulletin, April 1936, of 1934. p. 250-4.
- SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Influence of the Securities and exchange commission upon accounting principles. Accounting review, March

- Securities and exchange commission upon accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 66-74.
 S.E.C. and stock exchange practice. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 4-6.
 SMITH, FRANK P. Stock exchange listing requirements, and publicity. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 35-42.
 SMITH, RUSSELL A. Relation of federal and state securities laws. Law and contemporary problems, April 1937, p. 241-5.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. How the S.E.C. affects your pocketbook. Certified public accountant, spet. 1937, p. 2-6. Credit and financial management, Feb. 1938, p. 16-7.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. S.E.C. and the accountant. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 12-6.
 STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regulatory bodies in the United States. (address de-
- p. 12-6. STEWART, ANDREW. Accountant, April 1938, STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regu-latory bodies in the United States. (address de-livered at the celebration of the fiftieth anni-versary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Jour-nal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anni-versary celebration, 1937. p. 133-59.) THIN markets. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 1-2. THREE years of the accurity.

THREE years of the securities act. Law and con-

- temporary problems, Jan. 1937, part 1; April 1937, part 2.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Public—no 621—74th congress (S. 4023) an act to provide for the continuation of trading in unlisted securities upon national securities exchanges, for the registration of over-the-counter brokers and dealers, for the filing of current information and periodic reports by issuers, and for other purposes . . . Approved May 27, 1936. 7p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Decisions; July 2, 1934, to September 3, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office Sept. 21, 1935, (vol. 1, no. 1) 216p.
 ——Same, September 4, 1935, to June 30, 1936. (vol. 1, no. 2) p. 217-551.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Decisions; January 1, 1937 to June 30, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. (vol. 2, part 1.) 485p.
 ——Same; July 1, 1937 to December 31, 1937. (vol. 2, part 2.) 998p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Decisions; January 1, 1938 to June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. (vol. 3, part 1.) 558p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Decisions and reports; July 2, 1934, to December 31, 1937. (vol. 2, part 2.) 998p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Decisions and reports; July 2, 1934, to December 31, 1937. (vol. 2, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Decisions and reports; July 2, 1934, to December 31, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. Source and exchange commission. First annual report of the Securities and exchange commission, first annual report of the Securities and exchange commission, first annual report of the securities and exchange commission, 1935. Source and exchange commision, first annual report of the Securities and exchange comm

- and exchange commission, fiscal year ended June 30, 1935. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1935. 91p.
- exchange commission, fiscal year ended June 30, 1936. 144p.
- Third annual report of the Securities and exchange commission, fiscal year ended June 30, 1937. 184p.

- 1938. various paging. UNITED STATES.
- NITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. General rules and regulations un-der the securities act of 1933. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission Ta-

pages.

pages. Same, April 1, 1938. 66p. NITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. General rules and regulations under the securities exchange act of 1934, as amended to and including September 10, 1938. Washing-ton D. C. Sacurities and exchange commission UNITED ton, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. various paging.

-Same, amended to April 15, 1939.

- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Handbook to the registration rec-ord, securities act of 1933. Washington, D. C., Securities exchange commission, May 22, 1937. 34n.
- NITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Official summary of security trans-actions and holdings reported to the Securities and exchange commission under the securities exchange act of 1934 and the public utility hold-ing company act of 1935. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission. UNITED
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Questionnaire to incorporated and unincorporated investment trusts and investment companies of management type. Washington,

STOCK EXCHANGES-Government regulation-

(Continued)

- sion
- NITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Securities traded on exchanges un-der the securities exchange act. Washington, UNITED der the securities exchange act. Washin D. C., Securities and exchange commission.

London

- biGG, W. W. Stock exchange transactions. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 164-70.
 DEW, E. RODERICK. Share-pushers and the law. Accountant, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 559-63.
 DIVIDEND announcements. Accountancy, Jan. 1990

- DIVIDEND announcements. Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 128.
 GAIRDNER, ROBERT D. Stock exchange practice—with particular reference to points which affect the client. Accountants' magazine, May 1938, p. 279-90.
 PARKINSON, HARGREAVES. Disclosure in published accounts. Cost accountant, April 1937, p. 337-43. Accountant, June 19, 1937, p. 873-7; April 15, 1939, p. 502-6.
 PARKINSON, HARGREAVES. Stock exchange operations and international finance. Certified accountants journal, March 1939, p. 80-3.
 RECENT amendments of the rules of the London stock exchange. Accountants' magazine, May 1939, p. 292-5.

- stock exchange. Accommants magazine, May 1939, p. 292-5. STOCK exchange official year-book, 1936; incor-porating the Stock exchange official intelligence and the Stock exchange year-book; compiled and edited by the secretary of the share & loan department of the stock exchange. London, Thomas Skinner & co., 1936. 3458p.

New York

- New York
 AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 274-8.
 AUDITS of stockbrokers' accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357; Oct. 1939, p. 220-1.
 HASKELL, JOHN. Growing interdependence of the New York stock exchange and listed corporations; address to the Pittsburgh control of the Controllers' institute of America, at Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, January 25, 1937. 15p.
 HASKELL, JOHN. Objectives and activities of the committee on stock list of the New York stock exchange under present day conditions. (address to the Rhode Island society of certified public accountants, September 15, 1936, 17 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 271-81.
 HASKELL, JOHN. Securities and exchange commission, the accountant, and the stock exchange. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 293-302.
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. New York curb exchange.

- 203.302.
 HERWOOD, HERMAN. New York curb exchange. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 531-4.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Accounting procedure and the stock exchange. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 65-6.
 NEW YORK CURB EXCHANGE. Requirements for listing applications, amended to December 28, 1936. New York, New York curb exchange, 1936. 16p.
- tor Insting Jr. 28, 1936. New York, New York C. 1936. 16p. IEW YORK CURB EXCHANGE. Committee on public relations. New York curb exchange; a description of its activity. New York, New York curb exchange, Sept. 1937. 49p. IEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Directory NEW
- NEW

of members and member firms, including board of governors, committees and officials of the exchange, directors and officials of affiliated companies, and stock clearing corporation mem-bers. New York, New York stock exchange, Feb. 10, 1939. 295p. EW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. New York stock exchange, its functions and operations. New York, New York stock exchange, April 1936. 40p.

- NÊŴ

- NEW YÓRK STOCK EXCHANGE. New York stock exchange, its functions and operations. New York, New York stock exchange, April 1936. 40p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Report of Public examining board on customer protection—to New York stock exchange, August 31, 1939. New York, New York stock exchange, 1939. 40p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Report of the president, May 1935—May 1936. New York, New York stock exchange, 1939. 40p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Report of the president, May 1935—May 1936. New York, New York stock exchange, 1937. 57p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Year book, 1935. New York, New York stock exchange, 1936. 39p.
 Same, 1936. January 1937. 136p.
 Same, 1936. January 1938. 160p.
 Same, 1937. January 1938. 160p.
 Same, 1938. January 1939. 130p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Inventory losses. (letter to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange, *Accountant*, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 230.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Letter dated January 14, 1938, to presidents of corporations having securities listed on the New York stock exchange, regarding the treatment in accounting statements of inventory losses and the difference between the present prices and the cost of goods contracted for but not yet received. New York, New York stock exchange, 1938. 3p.
 NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE. Committee on stock list. Report to the subcommittee of committee on interstate commerce of the United States senate, January 25, 1937. New York, New York, New York, New York, New York, New York stock exchange institute, c1936. 102p.
 STOCK exchange and andits. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 363-5.
 STOCK exchange gives views on accounting treatment of inventory losses. Controller, Feb. 1938, p. 55-6.

- ment of inventory losses. Controller, Feb. 1938, p. 55-6. p. 55-6 STOCK
- TOCK valuations and purchase commitments. Incorporated accountants journal, March 1938, p. 198-9.

New Zealand COMPULSORY audit of stock exchange transac-tions. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 423-4.

- Philippine Islands
 PASCUAL, JOSE P. Has the Securities and exchange commission investigatory power over certified public accountants? Philippine accoun-tants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 395-400.
 PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. Securities and ex-change commission. Amendments to SEC rules A-4, A-5, A-9, A-24, A-27, A-28, A-31; B-5, B-18; C-4 (new) and C-5. Philippine accoun-tants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 439-44.
 PHILIPPINE ISLANDS. Securities and ex-change commission. Rules and regulations gov-erning securities exchanges and their members, dealers, salesmen and customers. Philippine ac-countants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 419-38.

- United States UNITED STATES. Federal reserve system, Board of governors. List of stocks registered on national securities exchanges as of January 31, 1937 (prepared for purposes of regulation U) Washington, D. C., Federal reserve board, 1937.
- STOCK in CK in company reorganization. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 56-7.

STOCK IN TRADE See Inventories

STOCK issued as bonus. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 8-10.

STOCK market from the viewpoint of a commercial banker. Aldrich, Winthrop W.

STOCK ON HAND

See Inventories.

STOCK PURCHASE PLANS

See Wages, fees, etc .-- Stock distributing.

STOCK record-china, glassware, silver and linen. Horwath hotel accountant, March 1939, p. 6.

STOCK RIGHTS

- ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Undistributed profits tax and stock dividends and stock rights. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 414-22. Reprinted.
- ^{11D.} COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Stock rights tables, 1925-1936, with data for allocating cost or other basis for income tax purposes. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937. 84p. Same 1025 38 1022 022

- PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Capital adjustments-Reorganizations-Stock rights. New York, Pren-tice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2 v. loose-leaf.
- STOCK rights tables, 1925-1936. Commerce clearing house, inc.
- STOCK rights tables, 1925-1938. Commerce clear-ing house, inc.
- STOCK valuations and purchase commitments. In-corporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 198-9.

STOCKBROKERS See Brokers.

STOCKHOLDERS

See Corporations-Stockholders.

STOCKKEEPING

See Stores systems and stock records.

STOCKS, CARL W.

- TOCKS, CARL W.
 Bus business up with a bang. Bus transportation, Sept. 1937, p. 414-9.
 Bus industry forges ahead. Bus transportation, Sept. 1939, p. 448-52.
 Bus operations continue to gain in 1938. Bus transportation, March 1939, p. 132-6.
 Bus operations March 1939, p. 132-6.
 Business continues good. Bus transportation, Nov. 15, 1936, p. 507-11.
 City operations gain in third quarter. Bus transporta-tion, June 1938, p. 587-90.
 Operating results for first quarter. Bus transporta-tion, June 1939, p. 282-5.
 Results of first quarter operations. Bus transporta-tion, June 1939, p. 287-9.

STOCKWELL, MARVEL

Co-ordination of federal, state and local taxation. Tax magazine, April 1938, p. 198-200.

STODDARD, WILLIAM LEAVITT, joint author See Belisle, Eugene L. and Stoddard, William Leavitt.

STOKERS Statistics

UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of oil burner, stove and stoker concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. DUN

STOKES, R. R.

Accountants and armaments profits. Accountant, Sept. 10, 1938, p. 365-8.

STONE, DONALD C.

Governmental accounting surveys. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 72-8.)

STONE, G. C.

Market research. Cost accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 62-7.

Selling and distribution costs. Cost accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 280-9. Indian accountant, March 1938, p. 134-45.

STONE CRUSHING

Cost accounting NATIONAL accounting ATIONAL CRUSHED STONE ASSOCIA-TION, INC. Manual, uniform cost accounting principles and procedure for the crushed stone industry. Washington, D. C., National crushed stone association, inc., July 1937. 30p.

STONE CUTTING

Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of monument and stone cut-ting concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey.

report no. 86.) ——Analysis of the 1936 operations of monu-ment and cut stone concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey, survey no. 85.)

STONIER, K. N.

Plant control including the treatment of deprecia-tion. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1938, p. 754-66.

STORAGE See Cold storage; Warehouses.

STORE FIXTURES

See Fixtures.

STORES

See Department stores; Merchandising; Retail trade; Stores systems and stock records.

- STORES SYSTEMS AND STOCK RECORDS
 BURTON, J. H. Stores accounts and stores control. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, ltd., 1937. 299p.
 BURTON, NORMAN LEE. Control of materials. (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936.

 - (In his Introduction to cost accounting. 1936. p. 86-90.)
 CASSIN, W. J. This system provides efficient stock room accounting. Rand McNally bankers monthly, Sept. 1937, p. 548-9.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Stockkeeping. (In his Essentials of distribution, 1936. p. 388-400.)
 ELLIS, CECIL A. Control and valuation of stores; a study of methods by which materials administered through stores departments may be controlled effectively and valued correctly. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 425-42.
 - 425-42. ENEY, H. E. Two simple unit control systems (women's shoes—silverware) Bulletin of the of National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1937,

 - National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1937, p. 25, 49.) HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Inventory control and material cost. (In his Accounting systems, de-sign and installation. c1936. p. 294-321.) HISLOP, C. B. Stock control; the physical and accounting aspects. Chartered accountant in Australia, April 1938, p. 712-8. HOURSTON, JOHN J. D. Stock control and budgeting. Accountants' magazine, June 1937, p. 305-18.
 - 305-18
 - 305-18.
 KESTER, ROY B. Stock control and accounting. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 621-35.)
 KEVNES, J. N. Shadow boards. Australian accountant, March 1939, p. 97-102.

STONE, J. E. Reform of hospital accounts. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 166-8.

STORES SYSTEMS AND STOCK RECORDS-(Cont.)

- TORES SYSTEMS AND STOCK RECORDS—(Cont.)
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Determination and statement of material cost. Stores valuation and records. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 11-30; 31-49.)
 McCANN, ROBERT. Storeskeeping and material control. Irish accountant and secretary, Dec. 1937, p. 216; Jan. 1938, p. 10.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Control of raw material scoks. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 22-5.
 MARSH, SAM A. Coordinating purchasing policies for material control. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 55-64.)

- tion of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 55-64.)
 NORRIS, CLINTON J. Time-savings requisition forms. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 4, section 1, p. 226-32.) Printed with: Richmond, Carl G. Accountant's responsibility in fire and prospective earnings insurance.
 OBORN, R. W. T. Stock control. Australian accountant, May 1939, p. 270-85.
 OPERATING a furniture unit control by tabulating machines. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, May 1938, p. 38-40, 70.
 PLAUT, H. C. Graphical method of ascertaining the necessary volume of stock. Accountant, April

- laing matchiles. Buttern of the National retail dry goods association, May 1938, p. 38-40, 70.
 PLAUT, H. C. Graphical method of ascertaining the necessary volume of stock. Accountant, April 2, 1938, p. 443-7.
 PROVENCHER, A. J. Materials and supplies accounting system of the Detroit Edison com-pany. Edison electric institute bulletin, Feb. 1938, p. 56-60, 71.
 PYPER, FRED. Twelve-time turnover halves stock costs. Factory management and maintenance, May 1938, p. 78-9.
 RICHARDSON, W. S. Plant and machinery con-trol. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 177-83.
 SAYRE, B. M. Material control as exercised by the controller's department. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1937, p. 64-76.)
 SCOTT, W. M. Stock control; the physical and accounting aspects. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, April 1938, p. 702-12.
 SKUCE, W. C. Control of material as a cost element. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1938, p. 114-31.)
 SMITH, H. L. Stock control. Certified secretary, May 1936, p. 85-93.
 STRATTON, L. W. Check list system for bal-anced stocks. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, April 1938, p. 26-7.
 SYSTEMATIC assortment checks yield important dividends. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, April 1939, p. 16-9, 69.
 VINCENT, J. E. Mechanised stores accounting. Cost accounting, Oct. 1939, p. 119-21.
 WALKER, D. L. System of accounting for mate-rial in a factory. Australian accounting for mate-rial in a factory. Australian accounting for mate-1939, p. 360-8.

- WALKER, D. L. System of accounting for material in a factory. Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 360-8.
 WIGHT, L. A. Stores accounting. Corporate accountant, March 1936, p. 47-50.
 ZINCK, W. C. Low inventories, because—No wrong guesses are made; time element is removed. Here's a plan for controlling material costs that works like a charm in a 200-man plant making 1,500-odd items in a highly competitive industry. Factory management and maintenance, July 1938, p. 65-6, 128, 130.

STOTZ, LOUIS AND JAMISON, ALEXANDER History of the gas industry. New York, author, c1938. 534p. The

STOUT, FRANK B.

Accounting for real estate owned. Savings and loans, Aug. 1937, p. 21-2.

STOVES Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of oil burner, stove and stoker concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey.

Analysis of the 1936 operations of stove and furnace dealers. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 68.)

- STOWE, A. F.
- Australian gold mining accounts. Australian ac-countant, Aug. 1936, p. 16-20.

STOWE, H. J.

WE, H. J. opplication of punched-card equipment in obtain-ing policy reserve and dividend calculations. (In American institute of actuaries. *Record*, 1936. v. 25. p. 223-9.) Application

STRACHAM, WILLIAM

- Control accounts in relation to costing. Incor-porated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 237-40, discussion, p. 240-1. Cost accounts, ed. 6. London, Sweet & Maxwell,
- Itd. (1937)
- Developments in accountancy training and practice. Incorporated accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 275-8.

STRADLEY LEIGHTON P. Tax effects of business life insurance; paper read at joint meeting of the Philadelphia chapter of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, on February 17, 1938. 25 typewritten pages.

- STRAIN, MYRON M. See also Golden Gate college. Graduate school
 - See also Golden Gate conlege. Graduate school of accountancy. Temporary staff organization and policy. (In American institute of accountants. *Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects.* 1939. p. 184-7.)
- STRANGE inconsistency-Yet maybe not strange! (Editorial) Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 20-2.

- STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD Avoidance of income tax in Great Britain. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 143.4, 182.
 British income tax relief for persons over 65 years of age. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 469-70.

 - b) age: 1 ages—ine tax magazine, Aug. 1953, p. 469-70.
 Capital gains and losses and the United States income tax. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 14, 1937, p. 346-9.
 Exemptions from the federal income tax in the United States. Accountant, tax supplement, July 16, 1938, p. 332-5.
 Great Britain's national defense contribution. Tax magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 648, 694.
 Income tax on wages of manual workers in Great Britain's national defense contribution. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 333-4.
 Increases in the British income tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 13-4.
 Liability of American citizens or residents to British income tax. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 517-8, 557-8.
 Liability of U. S. corporations and business firms to the British income tax. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 406-8.
 - 1937, p. 406-8.

STRATTON, L. W.

Check list system for balanced stocks. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, April 1938, p. 26-7.

- STRAYER, PAUL J. Effect of a rise in prices upon the income tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1939, p. 165-76. Possibilities of the state personal income tax. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 583-7, 618-25, 637. Taxation of small incomes; social, revenue, and administrative aspects. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 210p.

STREAMLINED maintenance puts K.C. on the gold standard. Bus transportation, Nov. 1937, p. 520-5.

STREET CLEANING

- STREET CLEARNING Cost accounting CLEREHUGH, R. Costing in a cleaning depart-ment. Cost accountant, April 1937, p. 346-51. DRURY, J. W. Advantages of sound costing as applied to public cleansing operations. Cost ac-countant, Dec. 1937, p. 228-35.

STREET RAILROADS

See Electric and street railroads.

STREETS

See Roads and highways.

STRIKE SUITS

See Court decisions; Lawsuits.

STRIKES

See Labor; Trade agreements; Trade unions.

STRONG, GEORGE J. Italian influence on accounting. New Jersey Italian-American, March 3, 1939. Percentage depletion. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 61.

STRONG, MORGAN Daily financial statement. Municipal finance, Aug. 1939, p. 27-8.

STUDEBAKER CORPORATION Schedule of depreciation and amortization adopted by the board of directors. (In its Annual report, 1936. p. 2.)

STUDENSKI, PAUL

- Federal taxation of state and municipal bonds. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 222-7.) Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 5-7, 53.
- p. 57, 55, New York's experience with a tax on unincorpo-rated business. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 86-9.) Problem of tax delinquency. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 396-8, 445-6.
- Taxation and business enterprise. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939, p. 3-16, discussion by Mark M. Jones, p. 17-9.)
- Taxation of liquor. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 8-10, 60-2.

STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS See Societies, associations, etc.

STUDENTS' DEPARTMENT See Baumann, H. P., editor.

- STUDENTS' department. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 297-9.
- STUDENTS' department. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1937, p. 167-8; Dec. 1937, p. 407-8.
- STUDENTS' department. (Correspondence) Mott, Walter K.
- STUDIES in current tax problems. Twentieth cen-tury fund, inc.
- STUDIES in federal taxation. Paul, Randolph E.
- STUDIES in income and wealth. National bureau of economic research.
- STUDY of natural fiscal closing dates. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 4-6.

SUBSCRIPTIONS

See also Publishing. DAVIDSON, MERRICK B. Accounting system for a subscription book company. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 8-20.

SUBSIDIARIES

See Branches; Holding companies.

SUBSIDY-CONTRACTORS

See Contractors; Ships and shipping.

SUBWAY SYSTEMS

See Electric and street railroads.

SUCCESSFUL action for charges. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, July 1936, p. 376.

SUCCESSFUL bookshop. Melcher, Frederic G.

- SUCCESSFUL candidates at New York state C.P.A. examinations, October 1938. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 248-56.
- SUCCESSFUL candidates at New York state C.P.A. examinations, April 1939. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 10-5.
- SUCCESSFUL claim for fees. Accountant, March 20, 1937, p. 411.

SUGAR Statistics

- NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Sugar. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 56-74.)
- SUGAR BROKERS
- See Commodity brokers.

SUGAR COÖPERATIVES Accounting

ccounting LeGARDEUR, R. J. AND COMPANY. Manual of accounts; prepared for New Orleans bank for coöperatives, for use by Glenwood coöperative, inc., Waterford sugar coöperative, inc., Helvetia sugar coöperative, inc., Magnolia sugar coöpera-tive, inc., Evan Hall sugar coöperative, inc. New Orleans, La., R. J. LeGardeur and co., 1936. 36p.

SUGAR REFINERS

Statistics

- UNITED STATES. Works progress administration. Selected information on sugar refiners, beettion. Selected information on sugar females, beet cane, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939, 72p. (*Report no. 8.*)
- SUGGESTED changes in federal revenue act. Certi-fied public accountant, March 1937, p. 18-20.
- SUGGESTED standards of practice. (Correspondence) Rockey, Charles S.
- SUGGESTION for politicians. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 406-8.
- SUGGESTIONS for an accounting plan for a non-profit organization; the Y. W. C. A. Haller, Frederick J.
- SUGGESTIONS to candidates for commercial law examinations, American institute of accountants. Board of examiners.
- SULLIVAN, JOHN F. Preparation of court accounts by a fiduciary. Ac-counting ledger, April 1938, p. 5-8, 29.

SULLIVAN, JOHN F., joint author See Dodge, Chester J. and Sullivan, John F.

- SUMMARY of answers to questionnaire—Accounting for the cost of book plates. (1938) 1 typewritten
- page.
- SUMMARY of rules re allocation of extraordinary dividends. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.
- SUMMARY of treasury decisions and rulings issued by the Treasury department, bureau of internal revenue, on matters pertaining to the Vinson act. National council of American shipbuilders.
- SUMMARY of views expressed by state societies of certified public accountants and others regarding proposed revision of federal revenue law (sub-mitted August, 1938) Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 10-1. (In American institute of accountants. Committee on federal taxation. Federal tax revision program. Sept. 18, 1939. p. 20-1.)

- SUMMARY report on cost of distributing milk in the Boston market. Rittenhouse, Charles F, and company.
- SUMMARY sheet for analysis and control of de-preciation. Kress, Arthur W.
- SUMMARY statement of condition of all state-chartered associations. Savings and loans, May 1937, p. 14-6.
- SUMMERFIELD, W. AND REYNOLDS, F. B.
 - Accountants and the law of negligence. Accountant, Oct. 28, 1939, p. 455; Nov. 11, 1939, p. 508-9; Nov. 25, 1939, p. 565-7; Dec. 9, 1939, p. 622-3; Dec. 23, 1939, p. 667-9; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 694-5.

SUNDELSON, J. WILNER See New York (state). Tax commission.

SUNLEY, W. T. Seen in published financial statements. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 11-24; Feb. 1936, p. 87-93; March 1936, p. 161-74; April 1936, p. 221-9; May 1936, p. 299-308; June 1936, p. 341-8.

SUPERMARKETS

See Markets.

SUPPLEMENT "A" to Uniform classification of ac-counts for gas utilities, issue of 1923; effective January 1, 1939. Maine. Public utilities commission.

SUPPLIES

See Stores systems and stock records.

- SUPREME court decisions on accountancy acts. Cer-tified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 20-8.
- SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES See United States. Supreme court.

SUPREME court issue. Dunn, Charles Wesley.

SURGICAL SUPPLIES

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of surgical and dental supply concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no.
 - Analysis of the 1936 operations of sur-gical and dental supply concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 92.)

- SURPLUS ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (release 1210) Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 13-4. ACCOUNTING for treasury stock and payment of dividends from capital surplus. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936,

 - of dividends from capital surplus. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 74-6.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting procedure. Quasi-reorganization or corporate readjustment amplification of institute rule no. 2 of 1934. New York, American institute of accountants, Sept. 1939. 27p. (Accounting research bulletin, no. 3.)
 BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Some accounting problems of the Securities and exchange commission; an address before the New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 3-14.
 BROAD, SAMUEL J. Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 281-4.
 CLADER, WILL-A. Principles relating to earned surplus. 4 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Pagers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 36-7.)
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Income or surplus (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 403-4.

 - surplus (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 403-4.

- S' INDEX
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Some general observations on surplus. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 68-70.
 DEPRECIATION charges from capital surplus. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 475-6.
 DOHR, JAMES L. Capital and surplus in the corporate balance sheet. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 38-42.
 ERRATA. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 343.
 FINANCIAL interpreters at variance—Forced dissipation of surplus—No business can thrive without resources. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 241-4.
 GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Surplus and dividend policies. (In his Financial organisation and management of business. 1936, p. 560-606.)
 GREER, HOWARD C. Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 290-2.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Balance sheet—surplus and footnotes. (In his Accounting requirements of the Securities and exchange commission for the preparation of financial statements. cl939, p. 284-312.)
 HOFFMAN, LEO H. AND KNOX, ROBERT W. Liability for improper accumulation of surplus. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 200-3, 247.
 HOSMER, WINDSOR ARNOLD. Effect of direct charges to surplus on the measurement of income and employment during depression. American economic review, June 1938, p. 223-34.
 HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Corporate entity fiction and accounting theory. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 31-55.
 HUMPHREY, DON D. Relation of surpluses to income and employment during depression. American economic review. June 1938, p. 223-34.
 HUSBAND, GEORGE R. Corporate entity fiction and accounting theory. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 241-53.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Corporate surplus, dividends, and reserves. (In his Accounting. c1938, p. 231-92.
 KAPLAN, MAURICE C. AND REAUGH, DANIEL M. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 23

- DANIEL M. Accounting, reports to stockholders, and the S.E.C. Yale law journal, April 1939, p. 935-80. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 203-36.
 KESTER, ROY B. Corporate surplus and dividends. (In his Principles of accounting. ed. 4. e1939. p. 454-71.)
 KIMBALL, MILO. Corporate surplus—Distribution of surplus. (In his Principles of corporate finance. 1939. p. 193-217.)
 LITTLETON, A. C. Tests for principles. Accounting review, March 1938, p. 16-24.
 MACLEAN, JOSEPH B. AND MARSHALL, EDWARD W. Distribution of surplus. New York, Actuarial society of America, 1937. 154p. (Actuarial studies no. 6.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Surplus—Dividends. (In his Accounting for corporations. 1937. p. 152-66.)
 MANNIZ, ROMENT H. Dealings in treasury stock; we call it capital—the courts call it income. Journal of accountants' journal, Sept. 1938. p. 331-42.
 MUSGRAVE, WALTER ALEXANDER. Surplus and dividends. Connecticut C.P.A. April 1939, p. 24.
- And dividends. 2-4. NATURE of surplus after payment of dividends. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 62-3.
- NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Surplus and dividends. (In their Intermediate accounting. c1939. p. 354-71.)

SURPLUS-(Continued)

NISSLEY, WARREN W. Charges against sur-plus. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure.

- Papers on accounting principles and processive. 1938. p. 38-41.)
 NORTON, PAUL T. Depreciation and corporate surpluses. Iron age, May 7, 1936, p. 30-1, 103.
 OLSON, L. H. Classification of surplus. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, 2010 (2010) OLSON,
- respondence) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1930, p. 319-20. PATON, WILLIAM A. Dividends and surplus. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, chapter 31.) (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938, p. 693-715.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Is it desirable to dis-tinguish between various kinds of surplus? (com-ments in a symposium) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 285-9. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1938, p. 289-90. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Surplus, reserves and profit-and-loss statement. (In his Audit working
- profit-and-loss statement. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p. 148-60.) RUGGLES, CATHERINE G. Relation of corpor-

- RUGGLES, CATHERINE G. Relation of corpor-ate surpluses to income and employment. Ameri-can economic review, Dec. 1939, p. 724-33.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Is it desirable to distinguish between various kinds of surplus? (comments in a symposium) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1938, p. 284-5.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Recent account-ing developments in the United States. Accoun-tant, April 22, 1939, p. 535-44; April 29, 1939, p. 572-9.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY, HATFIELD, HENRY RAND, AND MOORE, UNDERHILL, Statement of earned surplus. (In their Statement of accounting principles, 1938, p. 44.)
 SMITH, FRANK P. Surplus adjustments in the iron and steel industry. Accounting review, Dec.
- SMITH, FRANK P. Surplus adjustments in the iron and steel industry. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 379-90.
 SNYDER, RALPH W. Accounting principles. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 116.
 SURPLUS in consolidations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 243-4.
 TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HER-MANN C. Surplus and reserves. (In their In-termediate accounting. 1938, p. 229-44.)
 TERMINOLOGY department: surplus. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 62-5; Aug.

- chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 62-5; Aug.

- chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 62-5; Aug. 1937, p. 136-8. TRAYLOR, ORBA F. Taxation of economic sur-plus. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 23-6, 58. TROUANT, D. L. Surplus. (In his Financial audits. c1937, p. 129-36.) UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series release no. 1. (Charg-ing losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, April 1, 1937. 1 mimeo-graphed page. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 3. (write-
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 3. (write-ups in the consolidation of accounts) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Sept. 13, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of deficiencies commonly cited by the Commission in connection with financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 8. (creations).
- NITED STATES. Securities and exchange com-mission. Accounting series, release no. 8. (crea-tion of surplus by appraisal in balance-sheets representing the accounts of promotional com-panies) Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, May 20, 1938. 1 mimeo-graphed page.
- VAN ARSDELL, PAUL M. Problems of corporate-surplus administration. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 275-85.

WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Some current prob-

lems in accounting; address before annual meeting of American accounting association at De-troit, Michigan, December 28, 1938. 10 mimeo-graphed pages. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 117-26.

- SURPLUS ACCOUNT BROAD, SAMUEL J. Some comments on surplus account. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 215-26.
 - URPLUS accounts in a municipal balance-sheet. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1936, p. 312-5. SURPLUS
- SURPLUS accounts in a municipal balance-sheet. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 312-5.
- SURPLUS in consolidations. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 243-4.

SURREY, STANLEY S. Traynor plan-what it is. Taxes-the tax maga-zine, July 1939, p. 393-6, 441.

SURREY, STANLEY S., joint author, See Maguire, John M. and others.

SURROGATE'S court act of the state of New York and the Decedent estate law. New York (state).

SURTAX and its background. Alvord, Ellsworth C.

SURTAX on undistributed profits. Williford, J. O.

- SURVEY of business trends—1938; sales and in-ventories. Dun's review, March 1939, p. 5-12, 56; April 1939, p. 21-8, 48-9; May 1939, p. 13-24.
- SURVEY of experience in profit sharing and pos-sibilities of incentive taxation. United States. Senate.
- VEY of job evaluation as used by industry in determining base rates. Knowles, Asa S. and Means, Frederic C. SURVEY of
- SURVEY of personal loan department experience and practice. American bankers association.
- SURVEY of stockholder opinion on some functions and responsibilities of the auditor. Hartwell, Jobson and Kibbee.
- SURVEY of taxes paid by business in 1938. Dun and Bradstreet, inc.
- SURVEYS distribution costs; Twentieth century fund finds 59 cents out of consumer's dollar goes for distribution. Credit and financial manage-ment, Nov. 1939, p. 9-11, 30.

SUTHERLAND, DAVID L. Air conditioning data. Buildings and building man-agement, Nov. 1938, p. 28, 31.

SUTHERLAND, DOUGLAS

Public's interest in municipal reports. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants, Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 61-3.)

SUITON, R. A. Costing the dyeing and printing of textile fabrics. Cost accountant, May 1936, p. 367-73.

SWALLOW, F. C. Workmen's compensation legislation and its are ministration in Canada. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Dec. 1939, p. 396-405.

SWEENEY, CHARLES T.

- WEENET, CHARLES 1. Preparation of a manual of water works accounting procedure. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1937, p. 1127-36. Treatment of prepaid sales tax receipts. (Cor-respondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 453-4.
- Valuation of water utility assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 501-4.

- SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB
 1937 "tax loophole" act: accomplishment. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal, March 1938.)
 1937 "tax loophole" act: purpose. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal, Jan. 1938.)
 1937 "tax loophole" act: unfinished work. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal, May 1938.)
 1938 revenue act: corporate income-tax features. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal, Nov. 1938, p. 55-73.)
 Percentage depletion. Oilnotes. Jan. 1938. p. 7-10
 - 1938, p. 55-73.) Percentage depletion. Oilnotes, Jan. 1938, p. 7-10. Stabilized accounting. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 219p. Stabilized accounting shows real financial status and income. Controller, April 1937, p. 99-104.

SWEET, HOMER N.

Case for a "cost or market" basis. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 7, section 1, p. 400-8.) Printed with: Davis, Albion R. Case for a "stabilized" basis.

SWEETINGHAM, C. R., joint author See Ward, A. E. and Sweetingham, C. R.

SWEETSER, FRANK L.

Standard costs simplified for garment manufac-turers. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 1, p. 1309-30.)

- SWIFT, ROWLAND Depreciation allowance under the income war tax act. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 385-8.
 - Depreciation as allowed under the income war tax in relation to cost accounting. Cost and manage-ment, Feb. 1938, p. 62-4.

SWISHER, RHAE M.

Financial statements as aids to management and credit. Credit and financial management, Dec. 1937, p. 13-7.

SYLLABUS of college preparation for accountancy. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 195-8.

SYMBOLS

See Classification.

SYMPHONY SOCIETIES

See Musical enterprises.

- SYMPOSIUM on accounting for unamortized debt discount and call premiums on refunded debt issues. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners. Committee on public utility statistics and accounts.
- SYNAGOGUE accounts, control and administration. Langham, H. L.

SYNAGOGUES

STINGUGUL Accounting LANGHAM, H. L. Synagogue accounts, control and administration; including the accounts of burial societies and religion classes. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1933. 62p.

See Ledgers.

- SYSTEM consolidated reports for railways. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 244-5.
- SYSTEM consolidated reports for steam railways. United States. Interstate commerce commission.
- SYSTEM of accounts for coöperative associations. Wisconsin. Agriculture and markets, Department
- SYSTEM of accounts for interstate motor carriers. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 194-5.

- SYSTEM of labor cost and payroll accounting used by the Allen Bradley company. North, A.F.
- SYSTEMATIC assortment checks yield important dividends. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Dec. 1939, p. 16-9, 69.

SYSTEMATIZING and the office. Dawson, William A.

SYSTEMS

See Accounting—System building and installa-tion; Cost and factory accounting—System build-ing and installation; special businesses, industries and trades.

- (T. D. 4773) income tax—revenue act of 1937; regu-lations under title 2, relating to returns of in-formation with respect to foreign corporations. United States. Treasury department.
- D. 4959) . . . regulations relating to elective method of taking inventories for years beginning subsequent to December 31, 1938. United States. Treasury department. (T. D. 4959)

TABER, NORMAN S. AND COMPANY State of Tennessee; reorganizing the debt struc-ture. New York, Norman S. Taber & co., May 15, 1937. 64p.

TABLES

- ABLES FINANCIAL PUBLISHING COMPANY. Monthly payment direct reduction loan amorti-zation schedules, showing equal monthly payment necessary to amortize a loan of \$1,000; also the amount of interest and principal in each pay-ment and the balance outstanding at any time during the life of the loan. Boston, Mass., Financial pub, co., c1938. not paged. GRANT, EUGENE L. Interest tables. (In his Principles of engineering economy. c1938. p. 406-18.)
- 406-18.
- WOMICHAEL, STANLEY L. McMichael's appraising manual; a real estate appraising hand-book for use in field work and advanced study courses. ed. 2. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc.,
- contrses. eq. 2. 110 and 2007 1937. 652p. MULES, W. RUSSELL AND LAWS, OWENS. Mathematical principles of instalment financing. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936.
- New YOR, Incolan Land 300p. SELECTED tables for business and financial cal-culations designed for everyday use in making interest and other computations; organized and arranged by Theodore Lang and William S. Schlauch. New York, Ronald press co. c1937.
- UNITED STATES. Federal housing administration. Illustrative case; mortgagee's application for insurance; credit and security instruments to be submitted for insurance under title 2 of the national housing act, including tables for computation of amortization, maturity, monthly service charge, revised June 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Federal housing administration, 1936. 25p.
 WOLFE, S. HERBERT, comp. Tables. (In his Inheritance tax calculations . . . revised and brought up to date by Lee J. Wolfe and William M. Corcoran. 1937. p. 83-199.) UNITED STATES. Federal housing administra-

TABULATING AND SPORTING MACHINES See Mechanical devices.

TAFT, MERRILL

Pension systems based on insurance. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1937, p. 246-50.

TAGGART, HERBERT F.

- ACUARI, HERBERT F. See also United States. Commerce, Department of. Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce. Cost principles in minimum price regulation. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1938. 182p. (Michigan business studies, v. 8, no. 1)
- v. 8, no. 1.) Established cost survey. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N. A.

484

TAGGART, HERBERT F.-(Continued)

- C. A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, section 1, p. 145-59.) Minimum prices under the NRA. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of busi-ness administration, Bureau of business re-search, 1936. 477p. (Michigan business studies,
- Scatten, J. 7, no. 3.)
 Standard brands case. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 4, section 1, p. 195-262.)
- Treatment of prepaid sales tax receipts. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 300-1.

TAILORING

- TAILORING
 Statistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of custom tailors and tailor shops (cleaning and pressing). (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 25, 111.)
 Analysis of the 1936 operations of cus-tom tailors and tailor shops (cleaning and pressing) (In their 1937 retail survey. Survey nos. 28, 111.)
- TAINTOR, SARAH AUGUSTA AND MONRO, KATE M. Secretary's handbook; a manual of correct usage. ed. 5, rev. New York, Macmillan co., 1938.

512p.

TAIT, J. B.

Companies under the Victorian companies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1939, p. 117-33.

TALBOT, CYRIL

Libert, Grad Increasing responsibility to and closer regulation by federal bodies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 210-5.)

- TALBOT, F. HEYWORTH National defence contribution. Accountant, tax supplement, April 2, 1938, p. 145-9. Practical income tax points for practitioners; preparation for and procedure on appeal to the general and special commissioners. Ac-countant, tax supplement, March 25, 1939, p. 112.7 112-7.

- TALBOT, MINTON W. Unfair taxation of real estate. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 519-20.
- TALES usually told after office hours; it ain't all beer and skittles what we does to win our vic-tuals. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 252-60. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec., 1938, p. 401-13.

TALON, INC. See Fasteners, Slide.

TANDEM axled Diesel tractor and trailer costs. Power Wagon, May 1937, p. 34.

TANNENBAUM, DAVID Estate taxes on life insurance paid from com-munity funds. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 587-92.

Valuation of securities under the federal estate tax law. *Trusts and estates*, June 1939, p. 709-13.

TANNENBAUM, ROBERT

- Cost under the unfair practices acts. Chicago, Ill., University of Chicago press, c1939. 65p. (Studies in business administration, v. 9, no. 2.)
- TANNERS' COUNCIL OF AMERICA. TI SURVEY BUREAU. Tanners' inventory valuation methods. Ce public accountant, March 1936, p. 155-60. TRADE Certified

TANNING

TANNERS' COUNCIL OF AMERICA. Trade TANNERS' COUNCIL OF AMERICA. Trade survey bureau, Tanners' inventory valuation methods. Certified public accountant, March 1936, p. 155-60.

Statistics

atistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of leather tanners. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 51, 77, 101, 126, 178-9.) (1937 ed.-p. 51, 79, 105, 132, 192-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 30-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 30-1.) (In his They said it with in-ventories. c1939. p. 22-3.)

TANZOLA, JOSEPH J. Pensions. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York. 1938. (Lecture 7, April 14, 1938.)

TARDINESS

See Time.

TARIFF

- ANGLO-AMERICAN trade agreement. Accountant, Nov. 26, 1938, p. 726-7. AULD, GEORGE P. Rebuilding trade by tariff bargaining. New York, National foreign trade council, inc., and the National foreign trade association, c1936. 74p.

TARLEAU, THOMAS N.

- ARLEAU, THOMAS N. Agreements obtainable relating to current or fu-ture taxable year. Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 330-1, 334-7. Price of a simplified income tax; address before the Eastern four-states accounting conference (state societies of certified public accountants of New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Con-necticut) May 20, 1939. 25 mimeographed pages.
- pages.
 Revenue act of 1938; the viewpoint of the Treasury department. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938, p. 44-56.)
 Revenue revision. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 258-70.)

TASKER, J. F. Costs and capitalisation of North Auckland creameries during 1935-36. Accountants' journal, Aug. 1938, p. 43-7.

TATE, CHARLES T. Calendar reform. Certified accountants journal, June 1937, p. 175-7.

TAVERNS

See Hotels; Restaurants, cafes, etc.

TAWNEY, H. G. AND DESAULNIERS, MARCEL L. Elementary principles of insurance accounting. Toronto, Stone and Cox, ltd., c1936. 81p.

TAX ACCOUNTING See Accounting—Bases; Municipal accounting; Taxes—Accounting.

- TAX accounting and business accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 353; Jan. 1939, p. 1-2.
- TAX accounting of the city of Detroit; a complete system covering all phases of tax accounting. Detroit, Mich., Burroughs adding machine co. no date. 35p.
- TAX accounting versus business practice. Stempf, Victor H.
- TAX accounting vs. commercial practice. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 5.

:

TAX AVOIDANCE See Tax evasion and avoidance.

TAX avoidance. Accountant, tax supplement, April 2, 1938, p. 141-3. Accountancy, June 1939, p. April 327-9.

TAX avoidance. Hartman, Dennis.

- TAX "avoidance" and tax "evasion". (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 3-5. Re-printed. 3p.
- TAX avoidance through the machinery of companies. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 541-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 9-12.
- TAX changes contained in the revenue bill of 1936. Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 267-72, 318-9.

TAX COMMISSION TAX reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 5-7.

TAX COURSES

- AX COURSES LANGER, CHARLES H. AND KNAUTZ, HAR-RY A. Walton federal income tax accounting and procedure, 1935. Chicago, III, Walton pub. co., c1935. loose-leaf. McMULLEN, STEWART YARWOOD. Federal income tax accounting; a practical course for basic instruction. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. loose-leaf. DEFNICE HALL INCORPORATED. Federal
- PRENTICE-HALL, INCORPORATED. Federal tax course, 1939. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. loose-leaf. Same, 1940. c1939.

TAX DEPARTMENTS

- A DEFAUMENTS EATON, MARQUIS G. Organization for compli-ance with taxing statutes; control factors in cor-poration's cost of administering tax laws dis-cussed. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 214-7, 247.
- TAX diary and manual for 1937, 1938, 1939. Prentice-Hall, inc.
- TAX effects of business life insurance. Stradley, Leighton P.

- TAX EVASION AND AVOIDANCE
 AGNEW, ALBERT. Powers of commissioners to amend assessments; what is evasion? Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 44-7.
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Community property: avoiding avoidance by adoption in the revenue act. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 138-41, 184.
 ANGELL, MONTGOMERY B. Tax evasion and tax avoidance. Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 80-97.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Tax-avoiding and evading devices. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937. p. 292-307.)

 - p. 292-307.) COGGER, WILLIAM. Tax avoidance v. tax evasion. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 518-20, 566.

 - GOMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. 1937, 566.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. 1937 revenue act (the loophole law), with explana tion. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937, 48p.
 FISHER, IRVING. Practical schedule for an income tax, income may best be defined for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 379-90, 438. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 479-91.
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Collection and evasion of the income tax. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. cl938, p. 132-52.)
 GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY. Income tax merry-go-round. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 137-8.

 - go-round. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1937, p. 137.8. HARRISS, C./LOWELL. Estate and gift tax avoidance—a note. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1938, p. 204-5. HARTMAN, DENNIS. Tax avoidance. ed. 4. Washington, D. C., The author, c1939. 302p. MAY, GEORGE O. Some aspects of tax avoidance. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting re-sponsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 172-5.) PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Restatement of the law of tax avoidance. (In his Studies in federal taxation, 1937, p. 9-157.)

- SANDBERG, MILTON, Income tax subsidy to "reorganizations". Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 98-126.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Avoidance of in-come tax in Great Britain. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 143.4, 182.
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. 1937 "tax loophole" act; accomplishment, (reprinted from the Georgetown law journal, March 1938.)
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. 1937 "tax loophole" act; purpose. (reprinted from George-town law journal, Jan. 1938.)
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. 1937 "tax loophole" act; unfinished work. (reprinted from the Georgetown law journal, May 1938.)
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. 1937 "tax loophole" act; unfinished work. (reprinted from the Georgetown law journal, May 1938.)
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Percentage depletion. Oilnotes, Jan. 1938, p. 7-10.
 TAX avoidance. Accountant, tax subplement, April 2, 1938, p. 141.3. Accountancy, June 1939, p. 327-9.

- TAX avoidance. Accountant, tax supplement, April 2, 1938, p. 141-3. Accountancy, June 1939, p. 327-9.
 TAX "avoidance" and tax "evasion". (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 3-5.
 TAX avoidance through the machinery of companies. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 11, 1937, p. 541-3; Jan. 8, 1938, p. 9-12.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 377—75th congress) (chapter 815, 1st session) (H. R. 8234); an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation, prevent tax evasion and avoidance, and for other purposes ... "Revenue act of 1937". (approved August 26, 1937.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 20p.
 WITTY, RICHARD A. Tax avoidance and retrospective legislation. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 366-7.
- 366-7.
- YATCO, ALFREDO. Tax evasion in the Philip-pines. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 384-94.
- TAX evasion bill. Philippine accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 134-8.

TAX EXEMPTIONS See Taxation-Exemptions, under names of various countries and states.

TAX exemptions. Tax policy league, inc.

"TAX LOOPHOLE" ACT

- See Taxation, United States-Personal holding companies.
- TAX on income from foreign securities. Accountant, tax supplement, April 9, 1938, p. 157-9; April 16, 1938, p. 169-70.

TAX outlook. Stempf, Victor H.

- TAX POLICY LEAGUE, INC.
 How shall business be taxed? Symposium conducted by the Tax policy league, December 28-29, 1936, in Chicago, Illinois, New York, Tax policy league, inc., c1937. 175p.
 Tax exemptions; symposium conducted by the Tax policy league, December 28-30, 1938, in Detroit, Michigan, New York, Tax policy league, inc., c1930 237n.
 - c1939. 237p.
- TAX reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 5-7.
- TAX reform. (Notes of the month) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1939, p. 269-70.

TAX reform or what. Montgomery, Robert H.

TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION

- 1936 supplement to Tax systems of the world; year book of legislative and statistical informa-tion, including all the states of the United States, ed. 6. Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, 239.

- TAX return extensions. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 16-7.
- TAX return extensions. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1937, p. 85-6; March 1939, p. 130-1.

TAX return extensions-Tax return forms. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 185-6.

- TAX RETURNS COOPER, R. M. Collector's viewpoint. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 6-9. CORDLE, O. M. Preparation and presentation of information required in connection with federal income tax returns and related schedules. (paper presented at Mountain states accounting confer-ence of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 9 typewritten

 - Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) y typewinten pages. EXTENSIONS for capital stock tax returns. Certified public accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 15-6. GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY. Judicial tax safe-guards. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 12-4, 60-2. JAMES, ALBERT E. Virtues of simplicity with special reference to revenue acts. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 619-20, 668-70. KUHN, HAROLD A. Simplification of forms for individual income tax returns. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 410-1. MOLL, ARTHUR B. Income tax returns of fiduciaries. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7.
 - MOLL, ARTHUR B. Income tax returns of fiduciaries. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 24-7.
 MORRIS, GEORGE MAURICE. Some practical aspects of federal tax procedure. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. 12-19, discussion, p. 19-23.)
 NUISANCE returns. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 9.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Returns of income and publicity of returns. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934, v. 4. p. 533-88.)
 PIERCE, DIXWELL L. Use by state authorities of federal income taxation (1934, v. 4. p. 533-88.)
 PIERCE, Nov. 1939, p. 637-40, 666.
 RETURNS under section 340 of revenue act. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 19-20.
 ROBERTSON, H. V. Arrangement of income tax tolants. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, Jucy. 1937, p. 32.
 SEIDMAN, J. E. Suggested changes in income tax form 1120. Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 2-7.
 SIMPLIFIED tax returns. (Editorial) Journal of

 - p. 2-7.
 SIMPLIFIED tax returns. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 3.
 SISTERSON, D. G. Processes through which in-come tax return passes after filing. Controller, May 1937, p. 131-4, 136, 150.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Extensions of time for filing income tax returns Certified public ac-countant, Feb. 1939, p. 2-5.
 TAX return extensions. Certified public accountant, Ian 1939 p. 16-7.

 - Jan. 1939, p. 16-7. TAX return extensions. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1937, p. 85-6; March 1939, p. 130-1.
 - AX return extensions Tax return forms. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, TAX 185-6.

p. 185-6. TIME for filing tax returns. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 7. TURNER, CLARENCE L. Restoration of man-datory filing of consolidated federal income tax returns and the repeal of the tax on intercor-porate dividends. (In American institute of ac-countants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 120-32.)

Canada

- HOLDING, W. F. Some thoughts on tax and other government returns. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 27-33.
- TAX revision. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 321-2.

TAX revision program. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1939, p. 219-20.

TAX SERVICES

- AX SERVICES
 See also Commerce clearing house, inc.; Pren-tice-Hall, inc.; Sinclair, Murray and co., inc.
 DUNNE, HAROLD J. Alexander publishing com-pany. (In American institute of accountants.
 Papers on accounting principles and procedure.
 1938. p. 220-1.)
 RUDOLPH, R. R. Commerce clearing house. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure.
 1938. p. 224.) 224.)
- system and industrial development. Steiner, TAX George A.

TAX systems of the world. Tax research foundation.

- TAXABILITY of transactions by a corporation in its own stock. Yale law journal, Nov. 1937, p. 111-21.
- TAXABLE income. Magill, Roswell.
- TAXATION
 - See also Tax evasion and avoidance; Tax re-
- AXATION See also Tax evasion and avoidance; Tax returns; Taxes.
 COLM, GERHARD. Significant tax legislation in foreign countries. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 526-39.)
 COOPER, WALTER A. Some economic effects of taxation. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 566-8, 609-10.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Uncertainty in taxation. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 433.
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Theory and practice of modern taxation. ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 364p.
 HAMILTON, R. W. Income tax—a problem in ethics. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 118-22. Accountants' magazine, March 1936, p. 161-5.
 JACKSON, JOHN J. Major tax problems of industry. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 380-91.)
 JONES, J. H. Theories of taxation. Accountant, tax supplement, July 1, 1939, p. 249-51.
 KENDRICK, M. SLADE. Incidence and effects of taxation: some theoretical aspects. American economic review, Dec. 1937, p. 725-34.
 MAGUIRE, FRANK J. Ancient and modern trends in taxation. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 11-9.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Questions of modern taxation. Accountants' magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 26-33.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Consequences of increasing

 - 26-33.

 - MAN, GEORGE O. Consequences of increasing taxes. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 13, 1938, p. 383-5.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Growth and incidence of taxation; paper delivered before the general meeting of American iron and steel institute held in New York, May 27, 1937, 15p.
 OWEN, LYLE. Source of taxes. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 473, 507-8.
 ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Can a tax be a good tax? Australian accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 308-18.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. 1936 supplement to Tax systems of the world; year book of legislative and statistical information, including all the states of the United States. ed. 6. Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 23p.
 - ing all the states of the United States, etc. or Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 23p. TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Tax systems of the world; year book of legislative and sta-tistical information including all the states of the United States, prepared under the direction of the New York state tax commission, Mark Graves, president: John H. Merrill and John P. Hennessey, Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 415p. _______1939 supplement. 31p.

Death taxes See Taxation — Inheritance; Taxation — Estates and trusts; Taxation — Gifts, under names of various countries and states.

TAXATION—(Continued)

Double

See Taxation — International double; Taxation, Great Britain — Double. Taxation, United States - Double

Exemptions See Taxation - Exemptions, under names of various countries and states.

- History BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Public finance. New Vork, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 632p. FELLER, JOHN E. O. Twenty-five years' de-velopment of federal income taxes. 12 type
 - written pages. GRIFFITHS, PETER. Tallage of the groats. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1937, p. 273-4
 - 273-4. SEIDMAN, J. S. Seidman's legislative history of federal income tax laws, 1938-1861. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 1166p.

Incom

- See also Taxation Income, under names of
- various countries and states. ATLAS, MARTIN. Average income and its use in taxation. Accounting review, June 1938, p. 124-31
- FISHER, IRVING. Income in theory and income
- FISHER, IRVING. Income in theory and mounter taxation in practice. (reprinted from Econo-metrica, v. 5, no. 1, January 1937.) GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Incidence of the income tax. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938. p. 87-92.)

- International double AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. International double taxation. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p.

 - double taxation. Tax magazine, G... 611-2, 628. BOWER, FRANK. Double taxation. Accountant, tax supplement. Feb. 4, 1939, p. 45-9. CARROLL, MITCHELL B. Developments in in-ternational tax law in 1937 and suggestions to protect American foreign trade. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 75-8, 116-9. CARROLL, MITCHELL B. International double taxation. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 588-90, cos.10

 - taxation. 1ax magazine, Ott. 1936, p. 363-96, 608-10.
 DOUBLE taxation and the United States. Accountant, tax subplement, April 3, 1937, p. 132.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. International tax problem. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 85-8, 120-2.
 INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMUNE of the measures recommended and the progress made for its elimination or limitation. Paris, International chamber of commerce, 1939. 40p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Double taxation; In the subscription of the progress made for its elimination or limitation. Paris, International chamber of commerce, 1939. 40p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Double taxation. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936, v. 2, p. 187-200.)
 RELIEF from double income-tax. (agreement made with government of Norway regarding relief from double income-tax on agency profits) Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 16, 1939, p. 464-5.

 - 1939, p. 464-5. TODD, EDWIN S. Double taxation. Tax maga-zine, Sept. 1936, p. 528-32.

Sales

- See also Taxation-Sales, under names of vari-
- GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Sales taxes. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938. p. 156-203.)

Turnover See Taxation-Turnover, under names of coun-

TAXATION, ALBERTA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Alberta pro-vincial-and-local tax system as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 264-5.)

Corporations CANADA. Alberta, Province of. Information re-specting the registration and taxation of com-panies incorporated otherwise than by or under an act of the Province of Alberta known as foreign companies. Edmonton, Alberta, Provin-cial secretary, 1939. 19p.

Sales

SHAUGHNESSY, E. C. Provincial sales tax. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 179-91.

TAXATION, ARGENTINA CRAWFORD, H. P. Income tax law of Argen-tina. Washington, D. C., Department of com-merce, Bureau of foreign and domestic com-merce, 1936. (Comparative law series, Decem-ber 1936. p. 1-9.)

- TAXATION, AUSTRALIA AGNEW, ALBERT. Objections to assessments-and appeals. Federal accountant, April 1939, p.

 - and appeals. Federat accountant, April 1939, p. 177-9. AGNEW, ALBERT. Powers of commissioners to amend assessments; what is evasion? Federal accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 44-7. CHENOWETH, R. W. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In V. internationaler prüfungs-und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 49-71.) IRVING, H. R. Money paid under mistake of law—important high court judgment. Australian accountant, May 1938, p. 278-84. TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Common-wealth of Australia national government tax systems as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 248.) WHITE, S. McKELLAR. Uniformity in taxation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1935, p. 266-73.
 - p. 266-73.

Agriculture

FORTER, MATTHEW G. Pastoral and agricul-tural taxation returns. *Chartered accountant in* Australia, April 1938, p. 698-701.

Corporations

- COMMONWEALTH INSTITUTE OF ACCOUN-TANTS. Western Australian division. Incidence
- TANTS. Western Australian division. Incidence of income taxation as it applies to private companies incorporated in Western Australia. Australian division. The Australian accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 282-97.
 MUNRO, ALAN W. Assessment of companies gueensland income tax. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), April 1937, p. 3-12. Printed with: White, T. H. Assessment of companies federal income tax. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), April 1937, p. 13-9. Printed with: Munro, Allan W. Assessment of companies Queensland income tax. tax.

- Estates and trusts BUNCE, F. Probate, succession and federal estate duties. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secre-taries' educational society (incorporated), July
 - taries' educational society (incorporated), July 1937, 14p. TURNER, R. S. Deductibility of interest paid on money borrowed to pay federal estate duty and state succession duty. Australian accountant, June 1927 230.2 1937, p. 330-2.

Income

- BEIGHTON, T. P. D. Refunds of income tax under section 18 of commonwealth act. Au-stratian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 199-212. BOWMAN, W. J. Commonwealth income tax as-sessment act of 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Sept. 1936, p. 200-12. FEDERAL income tax assessment act of 1936, be-ing five short papers on different aspects of the
- ing five short papers on different aspects of the act read at a meeting of the society on Wednes-day, 8th July, 1936, Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), 1936. 32p.

TAXATION, AUSTRALIA-Income-(Continued)

- HALVORSEN, H. B. Western Australian state
- HALVORSEN, H. B. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937; liability and assessment of a non-trading taxpayer. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1938, p. 36-50.
 HILEY, T. A. Income taxation; the basis of assess-ment of interstate companies. Brisbane, Aus., Ac-countants' and secretaries' educational society (incorporated), March 1937, p. 3-10. Printed with: Buckle, J. H. Depreciation.
 HUGHES, J. F. Queensland income tax on inter-state trading operations. Australian accountant, June 1936, p. 382-7.
 INCOME taxes in the Australian commonwealth. Accountant, tax supplement, July 23, 1938, p.
- Accountant, tax supplement, July 23, 1938, p. 343-4; July 30, 1938, p. 355-6; Aug. 6, 1938, p. 371-2; Aug. 13, 1938, p. 380-1; Aug. 20, 1938, p. 392-5; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 403-5; Sept. 3, 1938, p. 411-2; Sept. 10, 1938, p. 420; Feb. 25, 1939, p. 70-1 70-1

- 70-1. MORGAN, R. H. Undistributed profits and fed-eral income tax. Chartered accountant in Au-stralia, Jan. 1939, p. 451-4. STRAYER, PAUL J. Taxation of small incomes in Australia. (In his Taxation of small incomes. c1939, p. 182-8.) TURNER, R. S. Averaging provisions of the fed-eral income tax assessment act; an unexpected anomaly. Australian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 48-53. 48-53.
- TURNER, R. S. Book debts outstanding at the date of a taxpayer's death, are they income sub-ject to tax? Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 443.8
- 443-8. TURNER, R. S. Effect of certain provisions of the new income tax laws. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 538-45. TURNER, R. S. Liability to income tax on in-terest on money raised by debentures. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 170-8; May 1938, p. 269-77.

Property WHITE, S. McKELLAR. Federal land tax; what is ownership of land? Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 118-21.

Sale

- ales
 IRVING, H. R. Amendments to sales tax exemptions act explained. Australian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 277-91.
 IRVING, H. R. Further suggested sales tax reforms, Federal accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 641-6.
 IRVING, H. R. How to treat had debts and "other credits" in sales tax returns. Australian accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 212-18.
 IRVING, H. R. How to treat "discounts" and "returns inward" in sales tax returns. Australian accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 109-15.
 IRVING, H. R. Limitation of retrospective taxation and refunds of sales tax. Australian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 367-73.
 IRVING, H. R. Meaning of "goods" for sales tax purposes. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 420-9.
 IRVING, H. R. Sales tax: alteration of rate and "sale value" explained. Australian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 283-8.

Turnover IRVING, H. R. Is a turnover tax desirable? Federal accountant, July 1939, p. 361-7.

TAXATION, AUSTRIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Province of Vienna provincial-and-local tax system as of January 1, 1935. (In its Tax systems of the world, c1938. p. 257.)

TAXATION, BOLIVIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Bolivia na-

tional tax system as of January 1, 1932. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 258-9.) (In

TAXATION, BRITISH COLUMBIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. British Co-lumbia provincial-and-municipal tax system as of October 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 266-70.)

TAXATION. CALIFORNIA CAMPBELL, EARL C. Separation of sources of state and local tax revenues in California. American economic review, March 1936, p. 41-52. SMITH, RALPH W. Coördination of tax systems. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 629-32, 673-4

- Income
 McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL AND FEIGEN-BAUM, B. J. Income tax management for indi-viduals under federal and California revenue acts; including an analysis of the corporate sur-tax on undistributed profits under the federal revenue act of 1936. San Francisco, Calif., Walker's manual, inc., c1936. 449p.
 WHERE a sales tax is productive. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 244.

- TAXATION, CANADA
 CANADA. Exchequer court of Canada. Legal decisions (Exchequer court of Canada) respecting income war tax act 1917 and amendments; income tax schedules; reciprocal exemptions from income tax. Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountants (1939). 49p, plus 9p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Canadian tax service. 3v. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. loose-leaf.
 DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Provincial taxation respecting corporations and individuals; a summary prepared by the Dominion association of chartered accountants, c1936, not paged.

 - amendments to and including 1939. not
 - amenuments to and anti-paged. ELLIOTT, C. FRASER. Contrasts between Ameri-can and Canadian tax policies. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 517-26.) GEORGE, H. WYBURN. Some thoughts on taxa-tioned for the property of the second second

 - association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 517-26.)
 GEORGE, H. WYBURN. Some thoughts on taxation of mining companies. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 92-101.
 HOLDING, W. F. Some thoughts on tax and other government returns. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 27-33.
 KEIRSTEAD, W. C. Taxation for school purposes; support and administration of education in the provinces of Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 129-37.
 MAPP, KRIS A. Some problems as between business and government. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1938, p. 192-200.
 NEW legislation respecting taxation, dominion and provincial. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 114-20; Aug. 1938, p. 139-42; Sept. 1938, p. 221-7; Jan. 1939, p. 42-3; July 1939, p. 43-7; Aug. 1939, p. 23-7; Sept. 1939, p. 207-11; Oct. 1939, p. 283-7; Nov. 1939, p. 357.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Dominion of Canada anational-government tax system as of labels. 1027. (Label Tora matering of the world.)
 - Canada national-government tax system as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 262-3.)

- Corporations DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Provincial taxation respect-ing corporations and individuals; a summary pre-pared by the Dominion association of chartered accountants. Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountants, c1936. not paged. ______amendments to and including 1937. not paged.
 - -amendments to and including 1939. not paged.

TAXATION, CANADA-(Continued)

- FARTION, CANADA-(Community)
 Estates and trusts
 GORDON, WALTER L. Income taxes, succession duties and other direct taxes in Canada, the United States and Great Britain, not including taxes on property. Canadian chartered accom-tant, April 1938, p. 261-89.
 GORDON, WALTER L. Personal income taxes and succession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. Canadian chartered ac-countant, May 1937, p. 397-407.

Income

- come
 CANADA. Income war tax act; chapter 97, R.S.C.; as amended by 18-19 Geo. V, ch. 12, 30 (1928); 20-21 Geo. V, ch. 24 (1930); 21-22, Geo. V, ch. 35 (1931) 22-23 Geo. V, ch. 43, 44 (1932); 23-24, Geo. V, 14, 15, 41 (1932-1933); 24-25, Geo. V, ch. 19, 55 (1934); 25-26 Geo. V, ch. 22, 40 (1935); 1 Edw. VIII, ch. 6, 38 (1936); 2
 Geo. VI, ch. 48 (1938) Ottawa, King's printer, 1938, 45p.
 CANADA 1 Edward VIII: chapter 38, an act to
- 45p. A. 1 Edward VIII; chapter 38, an act to act (assented to 23rd CANADA.

- ELLIOTT, C. FRASER. Administration of the Canadian income tax law. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Oct. 1938, p. 268-84.
 ELLIOTT, C. FRASER. Some phases of income tax law. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 272-3, 289.
 GORDON, WALTER L. Income taxes, succession duties and other direct taxes in Canada, the United States and Great Britain, not including taxes on property. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, April 1938, p. 261-89.
 GORDON, WALTER L. Personal income taxes and succession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. Canadian chartered ac-countant, May 1937, p. 397-407.
 KING, ELDON P. Income tax reciprocity with Canada. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1938, p. 511-17.)
 NEW dominion tax legislation; (a) An act to amend the income war tax act, 3 George VI, 1939 (assented to 13th September 1939) (b) the Excess profits tax act, 3 George VI, 1939 (as-sented to 13th September 1939) Canadian char-tered accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 283-7.
 Annicinal

Municipal BAKER, GEORGE R. G. Problem of municipal taxation in Canada as submitted to the Rowell commission. Cost and management, Dec. 1939, p.

Property BAKER, GEORGE R. G. Incidence of real estate taxes. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1938, p. 443-66.

TAXATION, CONNECTICUT

Corporations CONNELLY, WILLIAM F. Corporate taxation in Connecticut. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 153-6, 191-2.

TAXATION, DANZIG TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Danzig na-tional-and-local tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 284-Ś.)

TAXATION, DENMARK

TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Denmark tax system as of April 1, 1935. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 286.)

TAXATION, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Summary of the District of Columbia income tax act of 1939. Taxpayers bulletin, Oct. 5, 1939. 4p.

TAXATION, ECUADOR TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Ecuador na-tional-government tax system and the municipal tax system of the republic of Ecuador as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 287.)

TAXATION, EGYPT TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Egyptian na-tional-and-local tax system as of May 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938, p. 288.)

TAXATION, ESTONIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Estonian na-tional government tax system as of June 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 289-90.)

- TAXATION, EUROPE ALLEN, A. STUART. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In Fifth international congress on accounting. Berlin, September 1938; papers given accounting. Berlin, September 1938; papers given in English.) Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 484-7, Nov. 5, 1938, p. 497-9. Ac-countancy, supplement, Oct. 1938, p. 3-9. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand- kon-gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 1-27.) NEWCOMER, MABEL. European taxation of business. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 63-73.)

Inheritance

REEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Inheritance taxes or death duties in Europe. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938. p. 230-GREEN. 6.)

TAXATION, FINLAND TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Finland na-tional-and-local tax system as of April 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 291.)

- TAXATION, FRANCE GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. French system of taxation in comparison with that of other countries. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938, p. 269-83.) NEW French tax affecting British interests. In-corporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1937, p.

 - 460. TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. National tax system of France as of January 1, 1935. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 292-7.)

- TAXATION, GERMANY
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Taxation in Germany. (In his Theory and practice of mod-ern taxation. c1938. p. 284-90.)
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. German na-tional government tax system as of October 31, 1937, and the Bavaria and Prussia state-and-local tax systems as of July 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 298-302.)

Incom

- Come DOBRINER, HERMANN GEORG. Outline of Germany's experience in taxing persons with small incomes. Bulletin of the National tax asso-ciation, Dec. 1939, p. 66-81. STRAYER, PAUL J. Taxation of small incomes in Germany. (In his Taxation of small incomes. 21030 2102 000)
- c1939. p. 188-200.)

- TAXATION, GREAT BRITAIN ACCOUNTANTS and the budget. Accountant, Oct.
 - ACCOUNTANTS and the budget. Accountant, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 393-4.
 AIKMAN, A. H. Capital expenditure for taxation purposes. Accountant's magazine, March 1937, p. 147-61; April 1937, p. 203-16.
 AMENDMENTS to the finance bill. Accountant, tax supplement, July 22, 1939, p. 291-3.
 BACK, W. J. Finance act, 1937, p. 99-106, discussion, p. 106-7.
 CARTER, ROGER N. Taxpayer and the treasury. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 26, 1938, p.

TAXATION, GREAT BRITAIN-(Continued)

84-93. Certified accountants journal, March 1938, p. 83-91. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 49-55; May 1938, p. 62-4, 66-8. COWCHER, W. B. H. M. inspector of taxes; a sketch of district organisation Accountancy, Aug. 1930 - 415-8.

COWCHER, W. B. H. M. inspector of taxes; a sketch of district organisation Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 415-8.
EISNER, FREDERICK W. Taxation of American investments and business in Great Britain. Bankers magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 205-10.
FINANCE act, 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 8, 1936, p. 325-6; Aug. 15, 1936, p. 337-9; Aug. 22, 1936, p. 365-6; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 357-9; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 365-6; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 337-9; Sept. 5, 1936, p. 365-6; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 393-4; Sept. 10, 1936, p. 405-6; Oct. 10, 1936, p. 433-5. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 423-9.
FINANCE act, 1937. Incorporated accountants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 431-9. Certified accountants iournal, Sept. 1938, p. 146-50.
FINANCE act, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 16, 1939. p. 345-6.
FINANCE bill and national defence contribution. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 10, 319. Jac.
FINANCE bill in committee. Accountant, tax supplement July. 9, 1020. 2667.

- p. 312-3. FINANCE bill in committee. Accountant, tax sup-plement, July 8, 1939, p. 266-7. FINANCE bill, 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, May 23, 1936, p. 202-7. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, June 1936, p. 313-7. FINANCE bill, 1937. Accountant, tax supplement, June 5, 1937, p. 226-7, 235-7; June 12, 1937, p. 241-2; June 19, 1937, p. 249-50. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 208-11. In-corporated accountants' journal, June 1937, p. 332-43. FINANCE bill 1939.
- 332-43. FINANCE bill, 1938. Accountant, tax supplement, May 28, 1938, p. 242-53; June 4, 1938, p. 267-8; June 11, 1938, p. 276-7; June 18, 1938, p. 286; June 25, 1938, p. 298-301; July 2, 1938, p. 310-3. Incorporated accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 317-29. FINANCE bill, 1939. Accountants' magazine, June 1939, p. 344-50. GRAHAM-DIXON, L. C. Deeds of covenant and settlements to day Accountant ar supplement

settlements to-day. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 8, 1938, p. 459-60, GRAHAM-DIXON, L. C. Finance act, 1938. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Sept. 10, 1938, p.

- 417-20.
- GRAHAM DIXON, L. C. Finance bill, 1938. Accountant, tax supplement, May 28, 1938, p. 237-40; June 4, 1938, p. 261-4; June 11, 1938, p. 273-6; June 18, 1938, p. 281-3; June 25, 1938, p. 293-6; July 2, 1938, p. 305-8; July 9, 1938, p. 317-20. GRAHAM-DIXON, L. C. Finance bill, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, May 27, 1939, p. 201-2; June 3, 1939, p. 213-14; June 10, 1939, p. 221-3.

- 201-2; June 5, 1953, p. 2007, June 6, 1953, p. 21-3.
 GRAHAM-DIXON, L. C. Finance (No. 2) bill 1939, Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 7, 1939, p. 365-7; Oct. 14, 1939, p. 373-5.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Finance act, 1936. (Geo. 5 & Edw. 8, ch. 34.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1936. 39p.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Finance act, 1937. (1 Edw. 8, & 1 Geo. 6. Ch. 54.) London, H. M. stationary office, 1937. 92p.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Finance act, 1938. (1 & 2 Geo. 6, ch. 46.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1937. 73p.
 GREAT BRITAIN. Finance act, 1938. (1 & 2 Geo. 6, ch. 46.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1938. 73p.
- GREAT BRITAIN. Finance act, 1939. (2 & 3 Geo. 6, ch. 41) London, H. M. stationery office, 1939. 81p.
- GREAT BRITAIN. Finance bill; a bill to grant certain duties of customs and inland revenue (including excise), to alter other duties, and to amend the law relating to customs and inland revenue (including excise) and the national debt, and to make further provision in connection with finance. Ordered by the House of commons, to be printed, 27 April 1937. 99p.

GREAT BRITAIN. Finance (no. 2) act, 1939

- (2 & 3 Geo. 6. Ch. 109.) London, H. M. stationery office, 1939. 50p. GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. British system of taxation in comparison with that of the United States. (In his *Theory and practice of modern taxation.* c1938. p. 237-68.) HESFORD, DESMOND M. Finance (no. 2) act, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 9, 1939, p. 445-52. INSTRUCTIVE concept. (DW)

- p. 445-52.
 INSTRUCTIVE example. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 209-11.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Taxation in Britain. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 366-9.
 MAKIN, F. BRADSHAW. Modern taxation problems in Britain. Canadian chartered accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 89-97.
 M'BURNIE, JAMES G. Children's settlements as affected by the 1936 finance act. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 628-35.
 NESBITT, ROBERT C. Tithe settlement reviewed. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 626-32.
 O'CONNELL, M. J. F. Treatise on taxation appeals. Accountants' journal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 911-4.
 OXBORROW, HAROLD R. Auditing by and for

- p. 911.4.
 OXBORROW, HAROLD R. Auditing by and for tax authorities; a paper submitted to the fifth international congress on accounting, Berlin, 1938. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1938, p. 348-57. Indian accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 80-97. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 113.42.)
 ROWLAND, S. J. Taxation of the annuity fund and some practical points arising therefrom. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 401-9.
- 401-9.
- 401-9. TAX on income from foreign securities. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, April 9, 1938, p. 157-9; April 16, 1938, p. 169-70. TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. British na-tional-and-local tax system as of October 31, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 303.)

Building and loan associations DAVIDSON, WILLIAM L. Building societies— income tax arrangement. Accountants' magazine, July 1936, p. 437-47.

- Corporations
 BENSTED, C. C. Income tax as affecting com-panies and company secretaries. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 55-9.
 GOTEIN, H. Company taxation and the share-holder. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1936, p. 135-9.
 MILLAR, J. COCKBURN. Surtax and private companies. Accountants' magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 96-111.

 - 96-111.

Double

RELIEF from double income taxation—South Africa; relief from double income tax on agency profits (South Africa) declaration, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 25, 1939, p. 432-3.

Estates and trusts
MUNKMAN, JOHN H. Executors and income tax. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 615-8.
PATON, ALEX. D. Income tax in relation to trust and executry accounts. Accountants' maga-zine, Dec. 1937, p. 569-78.

Income

- History
 CARTER, ROGER N. Taxpayer and the treasury. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 26, 1938, p. 84-93. Certified accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 83-91. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 49-55; May 1938, p. 62-4, 66-8.
 GRIFFITHS, PETER. Tallage of the groats. Certified accountants journal, Sept. 1937, p. 273-4.

 - PARKINSON, BRADBURY B. Criterion of in-come in early British taxation. Accountant, tax supplement, April 17, 1937, p. 150-3.

BENSTED, C. C. Income tax as affecting com-

TAXATION, GREAT BRITAIN-Income-(Cont.)

- panies and company secretaries. Incorporated accountants journal, Nov. 1936, p. 55-9. BRAIN, RONALD H. Marginal age relief. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Aug. 19, 1939, p. 321-4.
- 3214.
 BRAIN, RONALD H. Some notes on dominion income tax relief. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 6, 1938, p. 365-9; Aug. 13, 1938, p. 377-80; Aug. 20, 1938, p. 389-92; Aug. 27, 1938, p. 401-3; Sept. 3, 1938, p. 409-11; Sept. 17, 1938, p. 425-7; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 409-11; Sept. 17, 1938, p. 425-7; Sept. 24, 1938, p. 433-5.
 BUCHER, F. N. Gratuitous directorships and the anomaly of income tax. Accountant, tax supple-ment, June 17, 1939, p. 229-30.
 BUCHER, F. N. Taxation of dividends. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, Sept. 23, 1939, p. 353-5.
 BUDGET resolutions relating to income tax. In corporated accountants journal, May 1937, p. 288-9.
 CAPPINCTON W. S. Income tax provisions of

- corporated accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 288-9.
 CARRINGTON, W. S. Income tax provisions of the finance act, 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, April 17, 1937, p. 145-50.
 CARTER, ROGER N. Administration of the income tax in Great Britain and Northern Ireland in regard to the determination of income tax liability. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1938, p. 466-73.
 CARTER, ROGER N. AND EDWARDS, HERBERT. Murray and Carter's guide to income tax practice. ed. 13. London, Gee & Co., Ltd., 1936. 950p. and 24p.
 Includes: Finance act, 1936; Part 2. 24p.
 Addendum to a Guide to income tax practice. (thirteenth edition) 1937, p. 951-1056.
 CAULCOTT, L. W. Income tax schedules D and E assessment and relief. Corporate accountant, March 1936, p. 56-9; May 1936, p. 86-90; July 1936, p. 94-100.
 CAULCOTT, L. W. Schedule E, income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1937, p. 251-61.
 CODIFICATION of income tax. Accountants' magarine June 1939 p. 362-8

- p. 251-61.
 CODIFICATION of income tax. Accountants' magazine, June 1939, p. 362-8.
 DARGUE, WILFRED. Income tax—some points in practice. Accountant, tax supplement, May 23, 1936, p. 197-202. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1936, p. 9-14.
 DEDUCTION of income tax, 1939-40. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 1, 1938, p. 445-7; Oct. 8, 1938, p. 457-8.

- DONOVAN, TERENCE. Beginner's approach to the study of income tax and death duties. *In-*corporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 9-13, discussion, p. 13-4.
- DUNSMORE, THOMAS. Deductions in alliving at profits for income tax. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, May 1936, p. 283-90.
- EFFECT of accountancy dates on liability to in-come tax, N.D.C. and E.P.T. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 23, 1939, p. 469-71; Dec. 30, 1939, p. 477-8.
- ELLISON, J. H. Some points as regards liability to income tax of foreign possessions. *Incorpo-rated accountants' journal*, Sept. 1937, p. 469-73, discussion, p. 473-4.
- countant, tax supplement, Aug. 26, 1939, p. 331-2. EXPENDITURE on air raid precautions.
- FINANCE bill, 1939; part 2-income tax. Ac-countant, tax supplement, May 27, 1939, p. 204-9.
- FINANCE (no. 2) bill, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 377-82.
- GOLDSTEIN, A. Some practical aspects of in-come tax. Incorporated accountants' journal Sept. 1936, p. 450-7, discussion, p. 457.
- GORDON, WALTER L. Income taxes, succession duties and other direct taxes in Canada, the United States and Great Britain not including

- taxes on property. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1938, p. 261-89.
 GORDON, WALTER L. Personal income taxes and succession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. Canadian chartered ac-countant, May 1937, p. 397-407.
 HOLME, RANDLE F. W. Income tax. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, Dec. 4, 1937, p. 530-5.
 INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' STU-DENTS' SOCIETY OF LONDON. Practice in-come tax appeal. Incorporated accountants' jour-nal, Jan. 1937, p. 129-35.
 LYNN, R. W. Appeals to the general commission-ers for income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 50-3.
 MCBAIN, A. G. Complete practical income tax. ed. 9. London, Gee & co., 1td., 1937. 336p.
 McBAIN, A. G. Income tax appeals. Accountants' magasine, Feb. 1936, p. 91-105.
 McBAIN, A. G. Income tax repayment claims. Accountant, tax supplement. July 22, 1939, p. 283-91.
 MacDONALD, E. N. Adjustment of accounts

- 285-91
- 285-91.
 MacDONALD, E. N. Adjustment of accounts under schedule D. Accountant student and Ac-countants' journal, Aug. 1936, p. 113-7. Accoun-tant, tax supplement, Sept. 26, 1936, p. 397-401.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Administration of the British income tax law. (In his Twenty-free years of ac-counting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 180-6.)
 MEMORANDUM as to the deduction of income tax for the year 1037-38. Accountant for mythologyment

- MEMORANDUM as to the deduction of income tax for the year 1937-38. Accountant, tax supplement, May 1, 1937, p. 175-6.
 MUNKMAN, JOHN H. Exemption of non-resi-dents from income tax. Accountants' magazine, April 1938, p. 244-8.
 O'CALLAGHAN, R. H. C. Income tax claims usually available to a trader. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Feb. 1936, p. 169-73.
 ROBERTS, H. G. Income tax reliefs in respect of losses. Incorporated accountants' journal. Sept.
- losses. Incorporated accountants' journal. Sept.
- 1936, p. 461-7. STAPLES, RONALD. Report of the income tax
- STAPLES, RONALD. Report of the income tax codification committee. Accountant, tax supplement, June 27, 1936, p. 261-5.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Avoidance of income tax in Great Britiain. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 143-4, 182.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. British income tax relief for persons over 65 years. of age. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 469-70.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Income tax on wages of manual workers in Great Britain. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 333-4.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Increases in the British income tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1938, p. 13-4.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Liability of Ameri-

- Jan. 1939, p. 13-4.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Liability of American citizens or residents to British income tax. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1936, p. 517-8, 557-8.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Liability of U. S. corporations and business firms to the British income tax. *Tax magazine*, July 1937, p. 406-8.
- STRAYER, PAUL J. Taxation of small incomes in Great Britain. (In his Taxation of small in-comes. c1939. p. 159-82.)
- comes. c1939. p. 139-02.) TALBOT, F. HEYWORTH. Practical income tax points for practitioners; preparation for and procedure on appeal to the general and special commissioners. Accountant, tax supplement, March 25, 1939, p. 112-7.
- TOLLEY, CHARLES H., compiler. Tolley's complete income tax, sur-tax, complete. Toney's con-plete income tax, sur-tax, etc.; chart-manual of rates, allowances and abatements for 1936-37 and previous years back to 1842-43... and (as supplement) Irish Free State taxation and relief. London, Waterlow and sons, ltd., 1936. 94p. and supplement.
- TOLLEY, CHARLES H., compiler. Tolley's com-plete income tax, sur-tax, etc.; chart-manual of rates, allowances and abatements for 1938-39 and previous years back to 1842-43 . . . and (as supplements) Irish Free State taxation and re-lief, and synopsis of "N.D.C." (revised) London,

TAXATION, GREAT BRITAIN-Income-(Cont.)

Waterlow and sons, ltd., 1938. 96p. and sup-

- TRADING profits and case 6 assessments—what is a trade? Accountant, tax supplement, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 15-6. is a trade? Accountant, tax supplement, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 15-6. WEDDERSPOON, W. M. Survey of case law on capital and revenue expenditure. Incorporated ac-

- capital and revenue expenditure. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 249-51.
 WILSON, H. A. R. J. How to read the income tax acts intelligently. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 15-6.
 WOODIFIELD, CHARLES G. Finance act, 1938 parts 3 and 4. Accountant student and Accountant, tants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 265-72. Accountant, tax supplement, March 4, 1939, p. 81-8; May 20, 1939, p. 189-96.
 YATES, C. S. Some aspects of income tax administration. Accountant, May 2, 1936, p. 159-64. Accountant student and Accountant, supplement, supplement, May 2, 1936, p. 159-64. Accountant student and Accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 205-10.
- Nov. 1936, p. 205-10.

Inheritance

See also Taxation, Great Britain-Estates and

- trusts. BEATTY, CHARLES. Finance act, 1938, so far as it concerns death duties. Accountant, tax supple-ment, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 481-3. DONOVAN, TERENCE. Beginner's approach to the study of income tax and death duties. In-corporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 9-13, discussion, p. 13-4. SHOUP, CARL, AND OTHERS. Alternative methods of comparing death tax due under American and British laws. Bulletin of the Na-tional tax association, Oct. 1938, p. 6-17; Nov. 1938, p. 40-7. 1938, p. 40-7.

Life insuranc

ROWLAND, S. J. Taxation of the annuity fund and some practical points arising therefrom. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Sept. 18, 1937, p. 401-9

Municipal

LEGH-SMITH, W. H. Local rates and alterna-tive methods of local taxation. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 24, 1936, p. 433-40.

Partnerships

BARFORD, L. Partnership in relation to income tax. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 96-8.

Pensions

WOLFF, WILLIAM. Pensions and compensation for loss of office from an income-tax aspect. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 490-2.

Profits

- ALLEN, A. STUART. A.P.D. Accountancy, July
- ALLEN, A. STUART. A.P.D. Accountancy, July 1939, p. 362-3.
 ALLEN, A. STUART. Excess profits tax. Accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 28-30.
 ALLEN, A. STUART AND NELSON, BERTRAM. National defence contribution; a commentary on the provisions of part 3 of the finance act, 1937. Supplement to Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937. 23p.
 ARMAMENT profits. Accountant, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 550-2; Oct. 29, 1938, p. 586-8.
 ARMAMENT profits duty. Accountant tax supplement, June 24, 1939, p. 237-40; July 1, 1939, p. 233-7.

- ment, June 24, 1939, p. 237-40; July 1, 1939, p. 253-7. ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE. Budget, 1937—proposed national defence contribution; report of the special com-mittee of representatives of the . . . Association of British industries, Chamber of shipping of the United Kingdom, Mining association of Great Britain, British iron and steel federation, Corporation of Llovds, The Baltic; prepared for submission to the Right Hon. Neville Chamber-lain, M.P., Chancellor of the exchequer, 11th May, 1937. London, Association of British chambers of commerce, 1937. 19p.

- BEIGHTON, T. P. D. Revised British national

- BEIGHTON, T. P. D. Revised British national defence contribution scheme. Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 397-400.
 BURR, G. B. National defence contribution. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1938, p. 387-91.
 BURR, G. B. National defence contribution and its difficulties. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 432-5.
 CHARGE of armament profits duty. Accountant, tax supplement, June 24, 1939, p. 242-3.
 CHARGE of national defence contribution. Accountant, tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 265. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. 211-2. 265. Cer 211-2

- 265. Certified accountants journal, July 1937, p. p. 211-2.
 EDWARDS, RONALD S. Control of war time profits. Accountant, May 13, 1939, p. 627-30.
 EXCESS profits tax regulations (S.R. & O., 1939, no. 1734) Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 20, 1939, p. 479.
 FINANCE (no. 2) bill, 1939. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 14, 1939, p. 377-82.
 GRAHAM-DIXON, L. C. Armament profits duty. Accountant, tax supplement, July 8, 1939, p. 261-3; July 15, 1939, p. 273-5.
 IN parliament; finance bill, new clause.—(charge of national defence contribution) Accountant, tax supplement, July 10, 1937, p. 296-300.
 IN parliament; tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 265-9.
 JONES, J. H. N.D.C. Accountant, May 1, 1937,

- Accountant, tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 265-9.
 JONES, J. H. N.D.C. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 612-4.
 JONES, J. H. Reflections upon the N.D.C. Accountant, May 22, 1937, p. 720-2.
 McBAIN, A. G. National defence contribution. (In his Complete practical income tax. 1937. p. 313-32.)
 McBURNIE, JAMES G. Tax explained. Accountant, Nay 12, 1939, p. 30-2.
 MARKS, HERBERT H. National defence contribution. Accountant, tax supplement, Jan. 15, 1938, p. 21-7; Feb. 12, 1938, p. 61-5.
 MORE views on the N.D.C. Accountant, tax supplement, May 15, 1937, p. 329-200.
 N.D.C. revised. Accountant, tax supplement, July 24, 1937, p. 333-4; Aug. 14, 1937, p. 321-2; Aug. 7, 1937, p. 333-4; Aug. 14, 1937, p. 345-6; Aug. 21, 1937, p. 353-4; Aug. 28, 1937, p. 369-70; Sept. 11, 1937, p. 385-6.
 NATIONAL defence contribution. Accountant student and Accountants journal, Sept. 1937, p. 194-5. Incorporated accountants journal, May 1937, p. 286-8; July 1937, p. 384-8; Sept. 1937, p. 354-9.
 PROPOSED national defence contribution. Incorporated accountants journal, May 1937, p. 458-9.
- p. 430-9. PROPOSED national defence contribution. Inc porated accountants' journal, June 1937, 344-8. Incor-
- ROYSTON, R. Profits under case 1, and profits for N.D.C. Corporate accountant, May 1938, p. 76-8.
- 76.8. SEED, H. E. National defence contribution. Ac-countant, tax supplement, June 5, 1937, p. 227-33. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 201-7. Incorporated accountants' Journal, Aug. 1938, p. 405-10, discussion, p. 410.1
- 410-1. SILVERMAN, H. A. Economic notes: the new tax on profits. *Certified accountants journal*, May 1937, p. 140-2. STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Great Britain's national defense contribution. *Tax magasine*, Nov. 1937, p. 648,694.
- TALBOT, F. HEYWORTH. National defence con-tribution. Accountant, tax supplement, April 2, 1938, p. 145-9.
- WILSON, H. A. R. J. National defence contribu-tion. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 461-6.
- WILSON, H. A. R. J. Specimen computations. Accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 32-5.

Property BUCHER, F. N. Tenants and the landlord's

- TAXATION, GREAT BRITAIN-Property-(Cont.)
 - property tax. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 437-9. LAWSON, ERIC W. Annual income as a method of valuation for real estate taxation. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 209-13, 246.

Stamp RECENT important stamp duty decisions in rela-tion to companies. Accountant, tax supplement, Dec. 18, 1937, p. 549-51.

TAXATION, GREECE TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Greek government tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 304-5.)

TAXATION, HUNGARY TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Hungary na-(In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 306-7.)

TAXATION, ICELAND TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Iceland tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 308.)

TAXATION, ILLINOIS DEWEY, DIX D. Reminder of some of your 1938 taxes compiled for the Elgin association of commerce, January 13, 1938. 2p.

Sales

DIBBLE, FRANK W. Over-allowances as related to the Illinois retailers' occupation (sales) tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 79-82, 110-3

TAXATION, INDIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Tax system of the government of Bombay and the National tax system of British India as of January 1, 1937. (In its *Tax systems of the world.* e1938. p. 260-1.)

Income
AIYAR, V. SANKER. Indian income-tax (amendment) act, 1939; a review. Indian accountant, May 1939, p. 205-11; June 1939, p. 230-44.
FELLS, H. J. Income tax in India. Accountant, tax supplement, Feb. 18, 1939, p. 61-3.
IYER, K. V. M. Indian income-tax. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 126-9.

- TAXATION, IOWA
 BRINDLEY, JOHN E. Iowa taxation and budget control. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1936, p. 194-201.
 BRINDLEY, JOHN E. Net income and retail sales taxes of Iowa. Bulletin of the National tax association, Dec. 1936, p. 66-73.

TAXATION, IRAN TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Iran national tax system as of March 1, 1935. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 309-10.)

- systems of the world. c1938. p. 309-10.)
 TAXATION, IRISH FREE STATE
 PINKERTON, J. Income tax in Eire. Accountant,
 tax supplement, April 23, 1938, p. 180-7.
 TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement,
 March 26, 1938, p. 139; May 27, 1939, p. 203.
 TAXATION in the Irish Free State. Accountant,
 tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937 p. 477-8.
 TOLLEY, CHARLES H., compiler. Tolley's complete income tax, sur-tax, etc.; chart-manual of
 rates, allowances and abatements for 1936-37 and
 previous years back to 1842-43... and (as
 supplement) Irish Free State taxation and relief.
 London, Waterlow and sons, Itd., 1936. 94p. and
 supplement. supplement.

-Same, 1938-1939. 96p. and supplement.

TAXATION, ITALY TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Italian na-tional-and-local tax system as of January 1, 1935. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 311-5.)

- TAXATION, KENTUCKY BAUMANN, H. P., ed. Tax problem. (Students' department) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936,
 - department) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 460-6.
 MARTIN, JAMES W. Comparison of the Kentucky income tax with the principal differing accounting provisions of the federal income tax law. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1937, p. 246-50.
 MARTIN, JAMES W. Stable tax policy and accounting control of profits, with special reference to Kentucky. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 407-9.

TAXATION, LATVIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Latvian na-tional tax system as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 316-7.)

TAXATION, LUXEMBURG TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Luxemburg national tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 318.)

TAXATION, MANITOBA DEWET, J. P. Mining taxation in Manitoba. Can-adian chartered accountant, May 1938, p. 338.40. TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Manitoba provincial-and-municipal tax system as of Sep-tember 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 271.)

TAXATION, MASSACHUSETTS KAPLAN, ALFRED. Tax disadvantages of in-dividuals and partnerships. Taxes-the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 213-4.

TAXATION, MEXICO TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Mexican fed-eral tax systems as of October 31, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 319.)

TAXATION, MINNESOTA BASHE, C. E. Fair market value of inventory property. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 71-2, 105-6. BASHE, C. E. Minnesota income tax. Tax mag-azine, March, 1936, p. 149-52, 190.

TAXATION. NETHERLANDS
de BLAEY, W. N. AND KAMMER, A. Auditing by and for tax authorities. (In V. internation-aler prüfungs- und treuhand – kongress. Kon-gress-archiv, 1938. band C. thema 6, p. 143-64.)
TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Netherlands national-government tax system as of April 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 320-1.)

TAXATION, NETHERLANDS INDIES TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Tax system of the Netherlands Indies as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 322-3.)

TAXATION, NEW BRUNSWICK TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. New Brunswick provincial-and-local tax system as of Janu-ary 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 272.)

TAXATION, NEW JERSEY MARGULIES, WILLIAM. New Jersey's fran-chise tax on foreign corporations. Tax maga-zine, July, 1938, p. 401-2, 419, 430.

- TAXATION, NEW SOUTH WALES
 EDDES, C. S. N.S.W. income tax (management) act, 1936; companies and dividends. Australian accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 136-45.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. New South Wales state-and-local tax system as of March 8, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 249-50.)
 TEBBUTT, R. E. New South Wales stamp duties (amendment) act, 1939. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 340-3.

TAXATION, NEW YORK (CITY)

- Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 355. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 105-6
- MARIK, JOHN A. Recent changes in New York taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, July 1939, 24-6.
- p. 24-6. POWELL, HENRY M. Sales, business and use taxes in New York. *Tax magazine*, Jan. 1938, p. 24-6, 56.

Sales

- BERGMAN, NATHANIEL B. Some develop-ments in federal taxation and a review of New

- ments in federal taxation and a review of New York city special taxes. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 45-60.
 BRYAN, FREDERICK vP. Legal theory of emergency taxes. New York certified public ac-countant, Nov. 1938, p. 74-86.
 CUNNINGHAM, JOSEPH M. City and the cer-tified public accountant. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 71-3.
 Same. 8 mimeographed pages.
 GOODGOLD, LOUIS. Legal phases of the New York city sales tax law. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and audit-ing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 10b, May 12, 1938.)
 ORR, SAMUEL. Administration of the emerg-ency revenue division. New York certified pub-
- ing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 10b, May 12, 1938.) ORR, SAMUEL. Administration of the emerg-ency revenue division. New York certified pub-lic accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 92-8. ORR, SAMUEL. Sales tax. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D, and others. Accounting and audit-ing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 10a, May 12, 1938.) POWELL, HENRY M. Sales, business and use taxes in New York. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 24-6 56

- p. 24-6, 56. SHOUP, CARL. Experience of retailers under New York city's sales tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1936, p. 98-114. WEISBARD, GEORGE L. Accountant's role in New York city emergency taxes. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 87-91.

- TAXATION, NEW YORK (STATE) COLE, SETH T. Function of the law bureau of the department of taxation and finance in the administration of the tax laws in New York state. New York certified public accountant, to the state of the s

 - of the department of taxation and minice in New York state. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 34-7.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New York tax cases; the full texts of the leading federal and state court cases construing the New York tax law, 1903 to 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1935. New York, constituting chapter 60 of the consolidated laws, as of November 1935. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1935. 217p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Tax law of the state of New York, with article 4, secs. 130-9, of state departments law, as of August 1939. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 317p.
 ENSLOW, H. R. State supervision of assessment in New York. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 458-60, 492.
 - 60 492.
 - 60, 492.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Taxation in 1939: important revisions and decisions of federal and New York state tax laws. Credit executive, Jan. 1939, p. 9-12.
 HARROW, BENJAMIN. Recent decisions affecting New York state taxes. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 24-30.
 MARIK, JOHN A. Recent changes in New York taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, July 1939, p. 24-6.
 MARIK, JOHN A. Some important changes in New York taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 28-9, 31.
 MATTERSDORE, LEO. Changes in New York

 - MATTERSDORF, LEO. Changes in New York state tax laws in 1938. New York certified pub-lic accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 143-7. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 19-20, 43.

- 1955.
 565p.
 (Legislaurve accument no. 11., Same, 1935.
 1936.
 367p.

 Same, 1936.
 1937.
 345p.

 Same, 1937.
 1938.
 373p.

 Same, 1938.
 1939.
 378p.

 Other annual report of the Department of taxation
 1

- Same, 1938. 1939. 378p. (Part 1 of the annual report of the Department of taxation and finance.)
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Articles 9 and 9-A as amended to date. Albany, N. Y., State tax commission, June 1936. 50p. (N.Y. state tax bulletin, v. 21, no. 2.)
 Same, June 1937. 58p. (N.Y. state tax bulletin, v. 22, no. 2.)
 Same, April 1938. 64p. (N.Y. state tax bulletin, v. 23, no. 2.)
 Same, July 1939. 64p. (N.Y. state tax bulletin, v. 24, no. 3.)
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Special report of the state tax commission. Special report of local finance in New York, by Daniel T. Selko. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co., cl936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2v. loose-leaf.
 TOBIN, CHARLES J. "Model" tax law for New York state. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 81-4, 122-3.
- 122-3.

- Corporations MATTERSDORF, LEO. Recent changes in the New York franchise and income tax laws. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 208-9, 250-1.
 O'BRIEN, WILLIAM DALE. Important amend-ments of stock corporation law and tax iaw. New York law journal, May 3, 4, 1938.
 SACK, ISIDOR. Widening gap between the fed-eral income tax law and the New York state income and franchise tax laws. New York cer-tified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 148-58.
 SMITH, W. EARL. Market value of stocks un-der the New York tax law. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 212-3.
 SMITH, W. EARL. "Physical assets" under New York tax law-what are they? Tax maga-zine, Jan. 1936, p. 32, 62.

- Estates and trusts HARRIS, HOMER I. Estate taxes. (In his Estates practice guide. 1939. p. 632-731.) HARROW, BENJAMIN. New York estate tax -some accounting problems. Taxes-the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 279-80, 317-8. HARROW, BENJAMIN. Some accounting prob-lems presented by the New York estate tax. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 159-64.
 - New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 159-64. NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Estate tax law; article 10C, in effect September 1, 1930; amendments to the end of the legislative session of 1937. 30p.

Incom

- Income
 BISCHOFF, H. E. Some important differences between New York state and federal personal income tax laws. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 13-23.
 CONNELLY, WILLIAM F. Income tax man-ual for New York state. New York, New York university, The author, c1938. 28p. and forms.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Recent changes in the New York franchise and income tax laws. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 208-9, 250-1.
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual 27-A; 1937 amendments to the personal income

TAXATION, NEW YORK (STATE)-Income-(Continued)

- AAA IION, NEW TORK (STATE)—Income (Continued)
 tax law (article 16 of the tax law) and unin-corporated businesses income tax law (article 16-A of the tax law) Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1937. 13p.
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual 35; personal income tax regulations 35; with appendix containing article 16 of tax law, corrected to December 20, 1935. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1935. 242p.
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual 36-A; 1936 amendments to the personal income tax law (article 16 of the tax law) and unin-corporated businesses income tax law (article 16-A of the tax law). Albany, N. Y., Income tax law). Albany, N. Y., Income tax law, 1936. 11p.
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual 38; personal income tax regulations 38, with appendix containing article 16, of tax law, corrected to December 1, 1938. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1939). 248p.
 Sumplement to personal income tax regulations. 248p.

Supplement to personal income tax regu-lations 38. (June 24, 1939.) 4 mimeographed

- pages. NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual
- pages.
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual 38-A; personal income tax law of New York (article 16 of the tax law) and tax on unincorporated businesses (article 16-A of the tax law) with 1938 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1938). 54p.
 NEW YORK (state) Tax commission. Manual 39-A; personal income tax law of New York (article 16 of the tax law) and tax on unincorporated businesses (article 16-A of the tax law) with 1939 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1939). 54p.
 PALMER, ROY H. Some problems of administration of the state income and unincorporated business tax. New York certified public accountant, April, 1937, p. 15-23.
 SACK, ISIDOR. Widening gap between the federal income tax law and the New York state income and franchise tax laws. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 148-58.

Insurance companies NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Special report of the state tax commission—no. 12: Taxation of insurance companies, by Philip L. Gamble. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon co. 1936. 195p.

Payrolls

See Social security; Taxes-Payroll.

- Property
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Rates of assessment of real property for the several cities, towns and villages of the state as finally fixed and determined by the state tax commission for the year 1937. Albany, N. Y., Department of taxation and finance, 1937. 17p.
 NEW YORK (state). Taxation and finance, Department of. Instructions for preparation of assessment rolls with model forms prescribed by the state tax commission under section 21 of the tax law. Albany, N. Y., State office building, Department of taxation and finance, March 1937. 13p. and forms. (New York state tax bulletin, v. 21, no. 8.)
 NEW YORK (state). Taxation and finance, Department of. Tax law as it relates to the assessment and taxation of real property, 1937. Albany, N. Y. Department of taxation and finance, 1937, 108p. (N. Y. state tax bulletin, v. 22, no. 5.)

Stock transfer NEW YORK (state). Taxation and finance, De-partment of. Stock transfer tax law and in-formation relating thereto, October 1, 1936. Al-bany, N. Y., Department of Taxation and fi-nance, 1936. 28p.

- Unincorporated businesses
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Manual 27-A; 1937 amendments to the personal income tax law (article 16 of the tax law) and unincorporated businesses income tax law (article 16-A of the tax law) Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1937. 13p.
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Manual 36-A; 1936 amendments to the personal income tax law (article 16 of the tax law) and unincorcorporated businesses income tax law (article 16-A of the tax law) Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau, 1936. 11p.
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Manual 38-A; personal income tax law of New York (article 16 of the tax law) and tax on incorporated businesses (article 16-A of the tax law) with 1938 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1938). 54p.
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Manual 39-A; personal income tax law of New York (article 16 of the tax law) and tax on unincorporated businesses (article 16-A of the tax law) with 1939 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1939). 54p.

 - Corporated businesses (article 16-A of the tax law) with 1939 amendments. Albany, N. Y., Income tax bureau (1939). 54p.
 PALMER, ROY H. Some problems of adminis-tration of the state income and unincorporated business tax. New York certified public ac-countant, April 1937, p. 15-23.
 POWELL, HENRY M. Sales, business and use taxes in New York. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 24-6, 56.
 RAUH, JULIUS J. New York state tax on un-incorporated business. Taxes-the tax maga-sine, Iune 1939, p. 345-7, 377.
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. New York's experience with a tax of unincorporated business. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 86-9.)

TAXATION, NEW ZEALAND TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. New Zea-land tax system as of March 31, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 324-5.)

Income

- come COPELAND, W. Taxation of incomes, with spec-ial reference to social security taxation. Ac-countants' journal, Aug. 1939. p. 52-6. INCOME taxes in New Zealand. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 22, 1938, p. 475-6.

Sales

IRVING, H. R. Sales tax reforms; should sales tax be increased or exemptions abolished? Fed-eral accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 425-31.

TAXATION, NORTH AUSTRALIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Territory of North Australia tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 251.)

- TAXATION, NORTHERN IRELAND McMILLAN, H. Claims under schedule A. (Northern Ireland) Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 353-4. TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Northern Ireland tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 326.)

Income

CARTER, ROGER N. ARTER, ROGER N. Administration of the in-come tax in Great Britain and Northern Ireland in regard to the determination of income tax liability. Canadian chartered accountant, June 1938, p. 466-73.

TAXATION, NORWAY TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Norway na-tional-and-local tax systems as of April 1, 1936. (in its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 327-8.)

TAXATION, NOVA SCOTIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Nova Scotia provincial-and-local tax system as of Jan-uary 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 273-4.)

TAXATION, OHIO GARDNER, EDWARD J. Delinquent taxes in Ohio, real property, general taxes and special assessments for improvements and betterments. Bulletin of the National tax association, Oct. 1939, p. 6-19.

Sales

- ales SWEENEY, CHARLES T. Treatment of pre-paid sales tax receipts. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 453.4. TAGGART, H. F. Treatment of prepaid sales tax receipts. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1937, p. 300-1. TREATMENT of prepaid sales tax receipts. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 63-4.

TAXATION, ONTARIO TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Ontario pro-vincial-and-local tax system as of October 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 275-6.)

TAXATION, OREGON OREGON STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of com-mittee on taxation on accounting treatment of Oregon real and personal property taxes. Port-land, Ore., Oregon state society of certified pub-lic accountants, Oct. 24, 1938. 7 mimeographed profes pages.

TAXATION, PANAMA CRAWFORD, HENRY P. Income tax law of Panama. Washington, D. C., Department of commerce, Bureau of foreign and domestic com-merce, 1939. (Comparative law series, April 1939, p. 161-71.)

- by p. 101-11.)
 TAXATION, PENNSYLVANIA
 COSTELLO, JOHN L. Discussion of state taxation. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 8p.)
 KREKSTEIN, I. H. Address to Philadelphia chapter, Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, January 31, 1938, and Pittsburgh chapter, National association of cost accountants, January 19, 1938. 15 typewritten pages.

 - REKSTEIN, I. H. General discussion of the Pennsylvania tax system. (In Pennsylvania insti-tute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of account hundring of the first accounting clinic, chapter, and the American institute of account-ants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic,

 - chapter, and the finite first accounting clinic, 1938. p. 31-41.)
 KREKSTEIN, I. H. Valuation of capital stock in Pennsylvania for tax purposes. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 51-5.
 RENO, EDWIN S. Discussion of the report on state taxation, by John L. Costello. (In Penn-sylvania institute of certified public accountants —Harrisburg chapter, and the American insti-tute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939, 2p.)
 YAVERBAUM, IRVING. Discussion of the re-port on state taxation, by John L. Costello. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public ac-countants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 3p.)

Corporations TURNER, CLARENCE L. Highlights of Penn-sylvania's corporate income tax; unique features of new tax, including methods for computing state income and deductions for state and federal tax-es. *Tax magazine*, April 1936, p. 204-7, 254-6.

Income

come BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES. Shorter approach to the problem of interdependent state and fed-eral income taxes. 1200 Gimbel building, Phila., The author. no date. 32p. RENO, EDWIN S. Computation of federal and

- Pennsylvania taxes based on income. Robert Morris, Jan.-March 1937, p. 1, 6-7.
 RENO, EDWIN S. Computation of federal and Pennsylvania taxes based on income, calendar year—1938. Philadelphia, Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Aug. 15, 1938. 9 mimeographed pages.
 RENO, EDWIN S. AND BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES. Computation of interdependent fed-eral and Pennsylvania income taxes. Land title building, Phila., Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Nov. 14, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
- typewritten pages. SCHIETINGER, EDWARD W. Determination
- SCHIETINGER, EDWARD W. Determination of taxable income to be allocated to Pennsyl-vania. Modern finance, Jan. 1, 15, 1936, p. 10-1; p. 34-5, 38. TURNER, CLARENCE L. Highlights of Penn-sylvania's corporate income tax; unique features of new tax, including methods for computing state income and deductions for 'state and fed-eral taxes. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 204-7, 254-6. 254-6.

TAXATION, PERSIA See Taxation, Iran.

- TAXATION, PHILIPPINE ISLANDS
 RICE, LLOYD P. Tax problems of the Philippines. Philippine accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 349-55.
 TAX evasion bill. Philippine accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 134-8.
 TAXATION department; edited by Francisco Dalupan. Philippine accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 31-3.

 - 1938, p. 31-3.

TAXATION, POLAND TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Poland tax system as of January 1, 1932. (In its Tax sys-tems of the world. c1938. p. 329-30.)

TAXATION, PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Prince Edward Island provincial-and-local tax system as of January 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 277-8.)

TAXATION, QUEBEC TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Quebec pro-vincial tax system as of January 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 279-81.)

- TAXATION, QUEENSLAND
 DOWNS, H. C. Taxation of co-operative dairy associations in Queensland. Australian accountant, Aug. 1938, p. 38-41.
 McINNES, JOHN S. Taxation of companies in Queensland. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 324-9; July 1937, p. 410-20.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Queensland state-and-local tax system as of April 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 252-3.)

Incom

GRIFFIN, E. P. Changes in the Queensland in-come tax laws as affecting interstate trading. Chartered accountant in Australia, March 1937, p. 679-84.

TAXATION, ROUMANIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Rumania na-tional, state and local tax system as of April 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 331-3.)

- p. 30100, RUSSIA
 HAENSEL, PAUL. Public finance of the Union of soviet socialist republics. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 517-20, 555-7; Oct. 1938, p. 591-4, 628; Nov. 1938, p. 659-62, 686-90; Dec. 1938, p. 724-6, 756-63.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Union of soviet socialist republics tax system as of Sep-tember 20, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 340-2.)

TAXATION, RUSSIA—(Continued)

Sales

HAENSEL, PAUL. Sales tax in Soviet Russia. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 18-22.

TAXATION, SASKATCHEWAN TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Saskatche-wan provincial-and-local tax system as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 282.)

TAXATION, SIAM TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Siamese na-tional tax system as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 334.)

TAXATION, SOUTH AFRICA
 TAXATION in the Union of South Africa. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 491-2;
 Nov. 5, 1938, p. 495-6; Nov. 12, 1938, p. 507-8;
 Nov. 19, 1938, p. 515; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 524.

TAXATION, SOUTH AUSTRALIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. South Aus-(In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 251.)

TAXATION, SWEDEN TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Sweden na-tional-and-local tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. cl938. 1936. (In p. 335-6.)

p. 335-6.) WURZEL, HAROLD. Tax agreement with Sweden. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 460-2, 495-7.

TAXATION, SWITZERLAND TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Switzerland; the confederation tax system and the cantons of Basel-statdt, Berne, Zurich and Geneva state-and-local tax systems as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 337-9.)

- TAXATION, TASMANIA HEWER, A. R. Taxation of companies and div-idends, Tasmania. Australian accountant, Aug.
 - 1936, p. 60-4. AX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. State of Tasmania state-and-local tax system as of April 1, 1936. (In its *Tax systems of the world*. c1938. p. 254.) TAX

- c1938. p. 254.)
 TAXATION, UNITED STATES
 ACCOUNTANTS and taxes. (Editorial) Journal
 of accountancy, April 1939, p. 195.
 ACCOUNTANTS' testimony at hearings on federal tax bill. Certified public accountant, May
 1938, p. 4-9.
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Introduction to federal
 taxation. New York, Commerce clearing house,
 inc., c1936. 166p.
 ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Introduction to federal
 taxation (1938 act). ed. 2. New York,
 Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 238p.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Principal changes
 in revenue act analyzed, effects described. Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 319-30.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Problems in federal
 taxation and finance. (In Proceedings of the
 sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction
 with the annual metal mining convention of the
 American mining congress. Denver, Colo., Sept.
 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 75-86.)
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Trend of taxation
 and its effect on business. New York certified
 public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 61-8.
 AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Committee

 - 692-8. AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Committee on federal taxation. A.B.A. federal tax com-mittee report. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1936, p. 524-7, 568-9. AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Committee on federal taxation. Report of the standing com-

mittee on federal taxation presented to and approved by the house of delegates of the Amer-ican bar association, at the sixtieth annual meet-ing, Kansas City, Missouri, September 27, 1937. Chicago, Ill., American bar association, 1937. 10p. AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Committee on federal taxation. Suggested changes in fed-eral taxation. Trust companies, Aug. 1938, p. 210-12.

- 210-12
- 210-12.
 AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION. Committee on federal taxation. Tax clinic of the commit-tee on federal taxation, American bar associa-tion; open forum proceedings, George M. Mor-ris, chairman. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 643-8, 675-83.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Federal tax re-vision program: submitted September 18, 1939.
- Vision program; submitted September 18, 1939. New York, American institute of accountants, 1939. 21p. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 305-23. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 305-23. p. 649-54, 661-6. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS.
- b. 649-54, 661-6.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Proposed changes in federal revenue law. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 349-63. Reprinted 15p.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Proposed changes in the federal revenue law; a memorandum submitted to the United States treasury depart-ment, September 1, 1938. New York, Amer-ican institute publishing co., inc., c1938. 32p. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 227-51.
 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Recommenda-tions for amendment of federal revenue act. Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 379-95.
 ANOTHER revenue act appears—A tax to destroy business. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1936, p. 84-6.
 ARTHUR, DONALD. Need for basic tax reform. Certified public accountant, March 1938, p. 11-2.
 ASH, ROBERT. Procedure in tax cases before the Board of tax appeals and the courts. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-29.
 ASHBAUGH, WILLIAM L. Coordinated decen-tralization. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accountants.

- ranzauon. (1n American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other account-ing subjects, 1939, p. 271-6.) BERGMAN, NATHANIEL B. Federal tax pro-cedural questions, decentralization, etc. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 146-53.
- 146-53.
 BERGMAN, NATHANIEL B. Some developments in federal taxation and a review of New York city special taxes. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 45-60.
 BILL to repeal. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 101-4.
 BISCHOFF, H. E. Tax rates and computations. L. R. B. & M. journal, July, 1939, p. 10-20.
 BISCHOFF, H. E. Tax rates and computations under the revenue act of 1938. L. R. B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 17-25, 32.
 BLAKEY, ROY G. AND BLAKEY, GLADYS C. Federal tax legislation, 1939. American Eco-nomic review, Dec. 1939., p. 695-707.
 BLAKEY, ROY G. AND BLAKEY, GLADYS C.

- BLAKEY, ROY G. AND BLAKEY, GLADYS C. Revenue act of 1936. American economic review, Sept. 1936. p. 466-82.
- BLAKEY, ROY G. AND BLAKEY, GLADYS C. Revenue act of 1937. American economic review, Dec. 1937, p. 698-704.
- BLAKEY, ROY G. AND BLAKEY, GLADYS C. Revenue act of 1938. American economic review, Sept. 1938, p. 447-58.
- BLOUGH, ROY. Flat versus graduated rates for business net income taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 74-85.)
- BOARD of tax appeals. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 276-7.
- BUCKLEY, DAVID A. Current problems of fed-eral taxation. Accounting review, June 1936, p. 183-7.
- BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Constitutional limitations

- IAXATION, UNITED STATES—(Continued) upon the taxing power. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1939, p. 176-82.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Critique of present meth-ods of business taxation in the United States. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? cl937. p. 45-62.)
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Public finance. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 632p.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Regulatory taxation. Harvard business review, Winter number, 1939, p. 138-52.
 BYERLY, F. P. Determination of earnings and dividends under federal tax law. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 17-28.
 CANADA. Regulations with respect to reciprocal tax convention between the Dominion of Can-ada and the United States of America. Ottawa, Commissioner of income tax, Feb. 1938. 11p.
 CANNON, ARTHUR M. Problems and trends in taxation; before the City club of Portland, De-cember 2, 1938. 22 typewritten pages.
 CARROLL, MITCHELL B. U. S. revenue act of 1936; what it means to Americans in Britain and Britons in America. (reproduced from the Anglo-American news) Accountant, tax supple-ment, Sept. 19, 1936, p. 384-7.
 CARTER, MILTON E. Decentralization of the Bureau of internal revenue. Taxes—the tax magasine, July 1939, p. 403-4.
 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Referendum no. 70, on the report of the special committee on fed-eral taxes and expenditures. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States, Dec. 11, 1935. 31p.
 CHAMBERS, NORMAN G. Practicable applica-tion of tax principes. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 30-41.
 CHERNE, LEO M. 1938 revenue law—opportuni-ties for tax saving. (In National retail dry goods association, Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1938. p. 65-70, discussion, p. 70-1.)
 CLADER, WILL-A. Peculiarities of our federal taxes. Journal of accountancy. May 1936, p. 332-

- CLADER, WILL-A. Peculiarities of our federal taxes. Journal of accountancy. May 1936, p. 332-

- taxes. Journal of accountancy. May 1936, p. 332-47.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Scientific tax reduction; federal tax law and procedure. New York, Funk and Wagnalls co., 1937, 757p.
 COGGER, WILLIAM. Alleged shifts in constitutional doctrines. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 573.5, 597-8.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Board of tax appeals service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, c1939, loose-leaf.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Board of tax appeals table of petitioners and docket disposition table. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, c1939.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Board of tax appeals table of petitioners and docket disposition table. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 287p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal tax service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 287p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal tax service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 287p.

- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal tax service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 4v.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Internal revenue code service—cited "1-CCH" full text of the internal revenue code, with amendments in place, related statutes, explanatory comment, find-ing lists, topical index. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. loose-leaf.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New and amended sections revenue act 1936, with ex-planation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 80p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. 1937 revenue act (the loophole law), with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937.

- 48p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Proce-dure and practice before the United States board of tax appeals, including court rules for review, rules of Board of tax appeals, specimen forms, code of evidence of District of Columbia. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937. 198p.

COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Rev-

- enue act of 1935. (In its New business laws, 74th congress, 1st session, January 3, 1935, to August 26, 1936, p. 5-24.) COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Rev-enue act, 1936, with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 124p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Rev-enue act, 1938, with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, 127p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Rev-enue act, 1939, with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, 127p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Rev-enue act, 1939, with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939, 48p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Stan-dard federal tax service, 1936. New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., c1936. 5v. loose leaf. Same, 1937. 5v. Same, 1939, 5v. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Tax control diary, 1939. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, 643p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. United States master tax guide, 1936. New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., c1938, c235p. Same, 1938, c1938, 240p. COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. United States tax cases. New York, Commerce clear-ing house, inc., c1938, c1939. v.1.—Consolidation of the full texts of controlling court decisions in cases pertaining to federal taxation reported during the period 1913 to 1929 inclusive. v. 2.—Same, 1930-1931. Same, 1930-1931. taxation reported du 1929 inclusive. v. 2--Same, 1930-1931. v. 3--Same, 1932-1933. v. 4--Same, 1934. v. 35---1935. v. 36---1936. v. 37-1027

 - v. 37-1937.
 - -1938 38_
- CONSENSUS of major recommendations submitted
- v. 38-1938.
 v. 38-1938.
 CONSENSUS of major recommendations submitted by states societies and others relative to amend-ments to the revenue act of 1936. Certified pub-lic accountant, March 1937, p. 20-1.
 CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. Committee on coöperation with Treasury depart-ment. Controllers institute's suggestions for im-provement of federal tax laws. (Memorandum by committee) Controller, Dec. 1938, p. 356-65.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Business appeasement as reflected in the 1939 prevenue act. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 80-91.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Changes in federal tax laws, and important recent rulings. Controller, Feb. 1936, p. 26-34, discussion, p. 34-8. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 135-42, 182-3.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Changes in federal tax laws and some important decisions and rul-ings of the past year. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 33-44.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Planning for tax economy. New York, Waldrep-Tilson, inc., c1936. 390p.
 DAVIDSON, W. H. Digest of the revenue act of 1937. L. R. B. & M. journal, Sept. 1937, p. 1-6.
 DAVIDSON, W. H. Revenue act of 1939.

- of 1937. L. R. B. & M. journal, Sept. 1937, p. 1-6.
 DAVIDSON, W. H. Revenue act of 1939.
 L. R. B. & M. journal, July 1939, p. 1-9, 23.
 DISNEY, WESLEY E. Depletion allowance. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 262-6, 268.
 DUNN, FRANK A. Revenue act of 1939. Accounting forum. Nov. 1939, p. 23-5.
 ELLIOTT, C. FRASER. Contrasts between American and Canadian tax policies. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 517-26.)
 EVANS, EDWIN D. Taxes under new act may be two and one half times larger than before. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 264-9.
 FEDERAL tax commission. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 136.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Practical problems under the section.
- FERNALD, HENRY B. Practical problems under the 1936 revenue act. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunction with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936, p. 48-74.)
- FERNALD, HENRY B. Present federal tax prob-

- TAXATION, UNITED STATES—(Continued)
 lems; address before convention of National metal trades association, New York city, April 23, 1936. 14 typewritten pages.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Approach to taxation problems: Planning and effecting tax economies—Income tax—Federal corporate surtax on undistributed earnings to be or not to be—incorporate surtax on undistributed earning out of the AAA. (reprint of articles appearing in Credit executive.) 23p.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation. Credit executive, Jan. 1937, p. 22-5; Feb. 1937, p. 57-9; March 1937, p. 88-90; May 1937, p. 218-9; Aug. 1937, p. 251-2; Oct. 1937, p. 218-9; Aug. 1937, p. 251-2; Oct. 1937, p. 218-9; Aug. 1937, p. 376-7; Jan. 1938, p. 24-5; April 1938, p. 122-3; Sept. 1938, p. 281-3.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation; some of the important changes under the 1939 act. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 251-2.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation; some of the important changes under the 1939 act. Credit executive, Aug. 1939, p. 251-2.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Pederal revenue laws for 1938—the proposed revision. Credit executive, Feb. 1938, p. 37-9.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Planning and effecting tax economies; some suggestions for reducing taxes under the 1936 federal revenue act.

- FISH, GEORGE D. Planning and effecting tax economies; some suggestions for reducing taxes under the 1936 federal revenue act. *Credit executive*, Nov. 1936, p. 328-33. (Re-printed under tille: Approach to taxation prob-lems. 5 p. Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 2-5.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Revenue act of 1937. Credit executive, Sept. 1937, p. 270-4.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Taxation in 1939; important revisions and decisions of federal and New York state tax laws. Credit executive, Jan. 1939, p. 9-12.
 FLEISCHMANN IULUIS. Decrease of the de-

- York state tax laws. Credit executive, Jan. 1939, p. 9-12.
 FLEISCHMANN, JULIUS. Decrease of the deficit in the federal budget by unification of existing taxes. Bulletim of the National tax association, April 1936, p. 205-10.
 FOR a broader tax base. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 324-6.
 FORD, ROBERT S. Shifting trends in revenues of federal, state and local governments. (In National association of state auditors, comptrollers and treasurers. Report of twenty-second annual convention, 1937, p. 40-7.)
 FORTUNE tax round table. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 334-5.
 FRIEDMAN, J. P. Proposed revenue act from the retail point of view. (In National retailing. 1936, p. 140-3.)
 GLUICK, LEWIS. Taxation of accounting machine manufacturers. Tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 595-7.

- 595-7.
 GORDON, WALTER L. Income taxes, succession duties and other direct taxes in Canada, the United States and Great Britain not includ-ing taxes on property. Canadian chartered ac-countant, April 1938, p. 261-89.
 GRAHAM, WILLARD J. Business taxation and financial management. New Wilmington, Penn., Westminster college, Department of economics and business administration, Dec. 3, 1937. 25p.
 GRAUE, ERWIN. Taxes: their relation to the business cycle. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 645-7, 689.

- GRAUE, EKWIN. 1axes: their relation to the business cycle. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 645-7, 689.
 GRAVES, MARK. Contribution of the accounting profession to tax administration. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 12-6. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 6-11.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY. Liberty and taxes; address at regular luncheon meeting of Kiwanis club of New York, inc., February 2, 1938, 8p.
 GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY. Federal tax calendar. Profit, Jan. 1938, p. 1, 3-4.
 GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY. Revenue act of 1938; observations and analysis. Profit, Oct. 1938, p. 1, 2-4, Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1938, p. 1, 2-4. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1938, p. 1-3. 8.
 GROVES, HAROLD M. Equity and expediency in business taxation. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? e1937. p. 3:34.)
 HAGAMAN, F. P. Attitude of courts toward gov-

HAGAMAN, F. P. Attitude of courts toward gov-

- ernment's powers to levy and collect taxes. Con-troller, March 1938, p. 64-70. [HAMEL, CHARLES D. Practice and evidence before the U. S. board of tax appeals. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938, 558p. HARRINGTON, RUSSELL C. Discussion of the revenue act of 1938; an address before the Rotary club of Providence, February 7, 1939. 14 mineographed pages
- 14 mineographed pages. HART, EDWIN WARREN. Important changes— the revenue bill of '38. Lantern, May 1938, p. 7-8
- HOOVER, HERBERT. Present taxation as affect-HOOVER, HERBERT. Present taxation as anect-ing the mining industry. (In Proceedings of the sessions on mine taxation held in conjunc-tion with the annual metal mining convention of the American mining congress, Denver, Colo., Sept. 28-Oct. 3, 1936. p. 5-10.)
 INCENTIVE taxation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 2-3.
 INFORMATION returns by accountants. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 241-3.
- (Edi-

- torial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 241-3,
 JAMES, ALBERT E. Virtues of simplicity with special reference to revenue acts. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 619-20, 668-70.
 JONES, E. ROSCOE. Revenue act of 1938—changes in the federal tax program. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 322-25, 370.
 JONES, MARK M. Taxation and business enterprise—discussion. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939, p. 17-9.)
 KELLY, LINCOLN G. Taxes; address at meeting of Intermountain association of credit men at Salt Lake City, Utah, November 17, 1937, 11 typewritten pages.
 KELLY, WILLIAM J. Taxes and American progress, a commentary upon national policies in relation to the proposed revenue act of 1938; statement before Finance committee, of the United States senate, Washington, D. C. March 18, 1938. Chicago, III., Machinery and allied products institute, 1938, 160.
 KENT, ARTHUR H. Federal revenue act of 1936–some current proliems; underlybuletin supplement, March 1937, 12p.
 KENT, ARTHUR H. Federal revenue act of 1936–some current proliems; underlybuletin supplement, March 1937, 12p.

- 1930—some current problems; underlying reasons and objectives of existent complexities in the law. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 204-8, 246.
 KENT, ARTHUR H. Federal tax program during 1935 and 1936; a review of the principal changes in federal taxes since the 1934 act. Tax maga-zine, Jan. 1937, p. 20-4, 61-2.
- zine, Jan. 1937, p. 20-4, 61-2.
 KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Present menace of taxation; address prepared for delivery before the Controllers congress of the National retail dry goods association. Chicago, June 22, 1937. New York, The author, 1937. 17 typewritten pages. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1937. p. 30-5, discussion, p. 35-6.) Tax maga-sine, Oct. 1937, p. 583-6, 626.
 KLEIN, IOSEPH I. Revenue act of 1935 Bul-
- KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Revenue act of 1935. Bul-letin of the National retail dry goods associa-tion, Sept. 1935, p. 21-3.
- KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Selected features of the revenue act of 1938. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 507-10, 540-51.
- KNAPP, C. HOWARD. Revenue act of 1938: the viewpoint of the industrial accountant. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the first institute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 71-81.)
- LEBRUN, HARVEY. Consumers' taxes v. in-come taxes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 600-2.
- LELAND, SIMEON E. Waste through multiplicity of governmental units. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1937, p. 162-8.
- McDOWELL, MAXWELL E. Analysis of changes brought about by 1938 federal revenue act. Controller, July 1938, p. 195-7, 200-2; 204, 206, 213.
- McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL. Influence of federal taxation upon accountancy. (address at

CAXATION, UNITED STATES—(Continued)
 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting, American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 19 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 120-32.)
 MCLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL. 1939 revenue act and western mining congress at Salt Lake City. Washington, D. C., American mining congress. MCLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL. Revenue act of 1938. (address before the Mountain states accounting conference of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 20 typewritten pages.
 MADDEN, JOHN T. Revenue act of 1936 and the problems it presents to executives. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 3-15.
 MAGEL, JAMES D. Taxation and capital investment. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1939. 64p.

- AGL. ment. W... 1939. R(
- ment. Washington, D. C., Brookings institu-tion, 1939, 64p.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Address before the Amer-ican institute of accountants at Cincinnati, Ohio, September 29, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Co-ordination of state and federal taxes. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 187,90, 246
- and rederat taxes. 1a, magazine, April 1937, p. 187-90, 246.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal tax administra-tion, 1939. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 296-302.

- MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal tax administration, 1939. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 296-302.
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. What the executive should know about taxes. (outline of talk at meeting of Ironbound manufacturers association, Newark athletic club, Newark, N. J., October 13, 1938.) 4 mimeographed pages.
 MARTIN, JAMES W. Stable tax policy and accounting control of profits, with special reference to Kentucky. Taxes-the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 407-9.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Growth and incidence of taxation; paper delivered before the general meeting of American iron and steel institute held in New York, May 27, 1937. 15p. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 7, 1937, p. 337-41.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Some considerations relating to federal taxation in 1935 and 1936. New York, The author, 1936. 28p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Taxation. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v.2, p. 127-301.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Taxation in 1937; expectations of returns from unsound tax legislation were proved unwarranted—the probability of substantial changes in the taxes on undistributed profits and capital gains. New York sun, Jan. 8, 1938, p. 5.
 MERCHANTS' ASSOCIATION OF NEW YORK. Recommendations of the Merchants' association of New York for revision of federal tax association of New York, 1939. New York, Merchants' association of New York for revision of federal tax laws; report of committee on taxation and public revene, approved by board of directors, October 5, 1939. New York, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.
- MILLER, JESSE I. Recoupment v. statute of limitations. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 456-7, 499-500
- MILLS, LESLIE. Review of important new de-cisions, rulings, etc. of the past year. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 136-42.
- p. 130-42. MOLEY, RAYMOND. Peace in the United States. (address at 50th anniversary celebra-tion and annual meeting of American insti-tute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 9 mimeo-graphed pages. (In American institute of ac-countants. *Fiftieth anniversary celebration*. 1037 02.8. countants. Fin 1937. p. 93-8.)
- MONARCH, J. LOUIS. Projected new rules for appeals from the Board of tax appeals and

- the Processing tax board of review. Taxes-the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 399-400, 411. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Tax reform or what: address at the annual meeting of the Cotton-textile institute, New York city, Wed-nesday, October 27, 1937. New York, Cotton-textile institute, inc., 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.
- nesday, October 27, 1937. New York, Cotom-textile institute, inc., 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. AND OTHERS. Federal tax practice; practice before the Treasury, Board of tax appeals, and federal courts. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 872p.
 MORRIS, ALEXANDER B. Specific credit— an ambiguity; an analysis of the cryptic sec-tion 14 (c) (1) of the revenue act of 1936 from the standpoint of the law and regulations. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 342-3.
 MORRIS, GEORGE MAURICE. Some practical aspects of federal tax procedure. (In Michi-gan, University of. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting confer-ence. 1937. p. 12-19, discussion, p. 19-23.)
 NATIONAL TAX ASSOCIATION. Proceedings of the twenty-eighth annual conference on taxation, October 1935. Columbia, S. C., Na-tional tax association, 1936. 390p.
 Same, twenty-ninth annual conference . . . Sept. 28-Oct. 1, 1936, 471p.
 Same, thirtieth annual conference . . . Sent. 24-8, 1938. 910p.

- Oct. 24-8, 1938. 910p. Oct. 24-8, 1938. 910p. NATIONAL TAX ASSOCIATION. Round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938. mimeographed.

- Berley, Monday, October 21, 1900. Initial graphed.
 NEED for tax reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountance, Jan. 1937, p. 1-4.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Uneconomic taxation of business is chargeable primarily to depression. Controller, Nov. 1937, p. 327, 330-2.
 NEW revenue act. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 73-4.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Memorandum addressed to Senate finance committee relative to pending revenue legislation (HR. 9682). New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, March 19, 1938. 23 mimeographed pages.

- New York state society of certified public accountants, March 19, 1938. 23 mimeographed pages.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Panel discussion on federal taxation. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 27-45.
 NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on federal taxation. Some questions and answers on federal taxation. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 197-202; Dec. 1939, p. 172-6.
 OHIO SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. New provisions, revenue act of 1938, explained. 24p.
 PARKER, LOVELL H. Taxation in the future. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 647-8, 676.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Implications in 1939 tax legislation. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939, p. 20-5.)
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Studies in federal taxation—taxation without misrepresentation, covering a restatement of the law of tax avoid ance; realistic valuation for federal tax purposes; and suggested modifications of the bad debt provision. Chicago, III., Callaghan and co., 1937. 341p.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E, AND OTHERS. Selected studies in federal tax purposes; and suggested modifications of the bad debt provision. Chicago, III., Callaghan and co., 1938, 447p.
 PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Trends in federal tax purposes (11, Callaghan and co., 1938, 447p.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. New York letter—Revenue act of 1939. (Correspondence) Char-

- PELOUBET, MAURICE E. New York letter-Revenue act of 1939. (Correspondence) Char-

- tered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1939, p. 290-2
- 290-2.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Statement of Maurice E. Peloubet, New York City, the Copper & brass mill products association. (In United States. Senate. Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxa-tion and for other purposes. (revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1938, p. 143-67.)
 PLEA for basic tax reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 4-5.
 POWERS, HUGH E. Changes in the revenue act of 1938. National auditgram, Jan. 1939, p. 1, 8-12.

- PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Federal tax course, 1939. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. loose-leaf.
- loose-leaf.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Federal tax law with explanatory digest, revenue act of 1936. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 114p.
 Same, January 1937 ed. 112p.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Federal tax service, cumulative. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936.
- 4v. loose-leaf.

- Cumulative. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936.
 4v. loose-leaf.
 Same, c1937.
 Same, c1938.
 Same, c1938.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Internal revenue code; as amended by the revenue act of 1939, also an appendix containing provisions of all other laws affecting federal taxes and a reprint of the revenue act of 19.39, with references to I.R.C. sections which it amends. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 719p.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Revenue act of 1939, with complete explanation. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 719p.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Tax diary and manual for 1937. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 350p. and diary 461p.
 Same, 1938. 404p. and diary, 478p.
 Same, 1938. 404p. and diary, 478p.
 Same, 1939. 378p. and diary, 478p.
 Same, 1939. 378b. and diary, 478p.
 Same, 1938. 404p. and diary, 478p.
 Same, 1939. 378b. and diary, 478p.
 Same, 1939. 377.8, 438-41.
 PUTNEY, BRYANT. Coordination of federal and state tax systems. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937, p. 245-63.)
 RATCHFORD, B. U. Fisher's concept of taxable income. Tax magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 646-7, 802-3.
 REDMOND, JOHN L. Do something about taxes;

- 692-3.
- REDMOND, JOHN L. Do something about taxes; N.A.C.M. begins study of tax problems affecting credit. Credit and financial management, May 1939, p. 24-5. REILING, HE
- HERMAN T. Procedure EILING, HERMAN T. Procedure in federal tax litigation. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 598-603
- Construction of the second s

- ROGERS, GEORGE. Predetermination of tax liability on proposed transactions. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 195-6, 224.
- ROGERS, HUGO E. AND COHEN, HERMAN ROGERS, HOGO E. AND COHEN, HERMAN H. Legal tax saving methods, prepared under the direction of the Tax research institute of America. New York, Tax research institute of America, inc., c1936. loose-leaf. ROLNIK, MAX. Some tax problems in inventory-ing under the last-in, first-out method. New

York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p.

- 140.5. ROUNTREE, GEORGE V. Some aspects of the federal social security act and federal revenue act of 1936. Canning trade, Dec. 28, 1936. SALVATORE, NICHOLAS. Significant federal tax decisions, rulings, etc. of the past year. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 154-65.
- SARGENT, NOEL. Attitude of business concern-ing business taxation. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 15-32.)

- Inc. 1100 shall business be laxed (1957. p. 15-32)
 SCHWARTZ, HARRY. New tax law and its effect on the bus operator. Bus transportation, Oct. 15, 1936, p. 446-8.
 SEBREE, J. E. Proposed administrative court review of BTA decisions. Taxes—the tax magasine, July 1939, p. 401-2, 423-4.
 SECOND Fortune round table; taxation and recovery. Fortune, May 1939, p. 67-8, 110, 113-4, 116-8, 120, 123-4, 126. Reprinted.
 SECTION 340. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3.
 SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Revenue act of 1938. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accounting conference, 1938, p. 22-7.)

- association of certified public accountants. Powr-teenth annual Michigan accounting conference, 1938, p. 22-7.)
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Proposed procedural changes in federal tax practice. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 221-6.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Revenue act of 1937—some in-terpretative problems. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 571-2, 631.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Revenue act of 1938—some in-terpretative problems. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 387-8, 433.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Taxes—cost accounting's best salesman. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, c. 18, no. 7, section, 1, p. 375-84.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Federal tax accounting. ed. 9. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., cl936. loose-leaf.
 SHEVIT, FRANK H. Income tax simplifier and account record book, including income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social se-curity taxes. New York, Frank H. Shevit co., cl937, 36p.
 SHEVIT, FRANK H. Income tax simplifier and account record book including income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social se-curity taxes. New York, Frank H. Shevit co., cl937, 36p.
- curity taxes. New York, Frank H. Shevit co., c1937. 36p. SHEVIT, FRANK H. Income tax simplifier and account record book, including new 1938 pro-visions covering income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social security taxes. New York, B. C. Forbes pub. co., c1938. 13p. and forms. SHULTZ, WILLIAM J. Regulatory taxes. Tax-es—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 515-7, 555. SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY, INC. Revenue act of 1936 with explanations and index and efficient, Sinclair, Murray and co., inc., c1936. 128b.
- 128p
- 128p. SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY, INC. Revenue act of 1937, with committee reports and index. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., inc., 1937. 48p. SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY, INC. Revenue act of 1938, with explanations and in-dex and estate, gift and stamp taxes imposed by prior acts. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., inc., 1938. 164p.
- STAUB, WALTER A. Some effects of federal taxes upon investment policies. (In Investment counsel association of America. Investment counsel association of America. Investment counsel annual, July 1938, p. 30-44, questions and answers, p. 44-6.)
- STEINER, GEORGE A. Tax system and indus-trial development. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, March 18, 1938. 46p. (Business research bulletin no. 57.) Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1938, p. 98-110.
- STEMPF, VICTOR H. Revenue act of 1938: the viewpoint of the public accountant. (In Ohio

- state university. Proceedings of the first insti-tute on accounting, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 57-70.)
- STEMPF, VICTOR H. Significant departures in the revenue act of 1936; address presented at the management association, Wednesday morning, December 2, 1936. New York, American management association, 1936. 5 mimeographed
- agenenic association, 1956. 5 mineographed pages. STEMPF, VICTOR H. Statement of Victor H. Stempf, representing the committee on taxation, American institute of accountants, New York city. (In United States. Senate. Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes. (Revised) March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1938. p. 167-77.) STEMPF, VICTOR H. Tax consciousness. 5 typewritten pages

- STEMPF, VICTOR H. Tax consciousness typewritten pages.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Tax outlook; address at Central states C.P.A. conference, Des Moines, Iowa, June 1, 1939. 5 mimeographed pages.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Taxes: bug-a-boo of corporate planning. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1937, p. 6-7.
 STOCKWELL, MARVEL. Co-ordination of federal. state and local taxation. Tax magazine,
- STOCK WELL, MARVEL. Co-ordination of ted-eral, state and local taxation. Tax magazine, April 1938, p. 198-200.
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. Taxation and business en-terprise. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management. c1939, p. 3-16, discus-sion by Mark M. Jones, p. 17-9.)
 SUGGESTED changes in federal revenue act. Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 18-20
- 20
- 20.
 SUMMARY of views expressed by state societies of certified public accountants and others regarding proposed revision of federal revenue law (submitted August, 1938) Certified public accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 10-1. (In American institute of accountants. Committee on federal taxation. Federal tax revision program. Sept. 18, 1939, p. 20-1.)
 SURREY, STANLEY S. Traynor plan—what it is. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 393-6, 441.

- is. Taxes—the tax magazine, 5--6, 441. TARLEAU, THOMAS N. Agreements obtainable relating to current or future taxable year. *Controller*, Nov. 1938, p. 330-1, 334-7. TARLEAU, THOMAS N. Revenue act of 1938; the viewpoint of the Treasury department. (In Ohio state university. *Proceedings of the first institute on accounting*, May 20, and 21, 1938. p. 44-56.) TARLEAU, THOMAS N. Revenue revision. (In American institute of accountants. *Papers on*

- p. 44-56.)
 TARLEAU, THOMAS N. Revenue revision. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 258-70.)
 TAX changes contained in the revenue bill of 1936. Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 267-72, 318-9.
 TAX Changes contained in the revenue bill of 1936. Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 267-72, 318-9.
 TAX CPULICY LEAGUE, INC. How shall busi-ness be taxed? Symposium conducted by the Tax policy league, December 28-29, 1936, in Chi-cago, Illinois. New York, Tax policy league, inc. c1937. 175p.
 TAX reform. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 5-7.
- July 1939, p. 5-7.
- TAX reform. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 269-70.
- TAX revision. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 321-2.
- TAX revision program. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 219-20.
- THOMPSON, GEORGE M. Relation of the pub-lic accountant to the small business and certain aspects of the tax laws affecting such business. (address before Arizona state society of certified public accountants at Phoenix, November 12, 1937.) 14 typewritten pages.
- THREE useful reference charts on the new taxes. American business combined with "System," Aug. 1936, p. 30, 32.

- TODD, EDWIN S. Field of public finance and taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 723-30,

- TODD, EDWIN S. Field of public finance and taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 723-30, 756, 758.
 TODD, EDWIN S. Ideal tax system. Tax magazine, June 1936, p. 334-40, 384.
 TRAYLOR, ORBA F. Taxation of economic surplus. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 23-6, 58.
 TRAYNOR, ROGER JOHN. Administrative and judicial procedure for federal income, estate, and gift taxes—a criticism and a proposal. Columbia law review, Dec. 1938, p. 1393-435.
 TRAYNOR, ROGER JOHN. Tax decisions of the supreme court—1937 term. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 22-51.)
 TUFEL, HERMAN A. Current revenue legislation. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 20-33.
 TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Facing the tax problem; a survey of taxation in the United States and a program for the future, prepared under the auspices of the committee on taxation of the Twentieth century fund, inc. New York, TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Studies
- New 10tk, Twenten century rand, and the 606p.
 TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Studies in current tax problems, prepared in connection with survey of taxation in the United States under the direction of the Twentieth century fund. New York, Twentieth century, inc., 1937.
- under the direction of the Twentieth century fund. New York, Twentieth century, inc., 1937. 303p. UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 377 —75th congress) (chapter 815, 1st session) (H.R. 8234); an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation, prevent tax evasion and avoidance, and for other purposes. . . "Revenue act of 1937." (Approved August 26, 1937.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 20p. UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 554 —75th congress) (chapter 289—3d session H.R. 9682); an act to provide revenue, equal-ize taxation, and for other purposes. . . "Reve-nue act of 1938." Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1938. 152p. UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 740 —74th congress) (H.R. 12395); an act to pro-vide revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes. . "Revenue act of 1936." (approved June 22, 1936.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 121p. UNITED STATES. House of representatives. Comparison of the revenue act of 1934 and 1936; prepared for the use of the committee on ways and means, House of representatives. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 290p. UNITED STATES. Senate. Hearings before the

- Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 290p.
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, sev-enty-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes—part 2, unrevised. March 18, 1938. (Revenue act of 1938), Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 111-311 311
- UNITED STATES. Senate. Hearings before the
- J11.
 UNITED STATES. Senate. Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682, an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes (revised), March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 747p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regulations 79 (1936 edition) relating to gift tax under the revenue act of 1932 as amended and 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 84p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. (T.D. 4773) income tax—revenue act of 1937; regulations under title 2, relating to returns of information with respect to foreign corporations. Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, Nov. 6, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages and form 959.
 WALD, SAMUEL. Minimizing taxes. Credit executive, Dec. 1938, p. 372-3.
- ALD, SAMUEL. Minimizing taxes. Credit executive, Dec. 1938, p. 372-3.

- WILLIAMS, R. R. Taxation and retailing. National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. (In n. 393-401.)
- WILLIAMSON, KOSSUTH M. What is business and what are business taxes? (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? (1937. p. 1-14.)
 WILLIFORD, J. O. Changes in federal taxation under the revenue act of 1938; a comparison with recommendations made by the American

- with recommendations made by the American institute of accountants' committee on federal taxation. Dun's review, Sept. 1938, p. 24-30. WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND CLARK, K. RAYMOND. Profit sharing and pension plans (their creation and tax effect). New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., c1939. 192p. WISEMAN, JOHN. Changes in federal taxes under the revenue act of 1938; address before the West Virginia society of certified public ac-countants, at Charleston, West Va., November 5, 1938. 31 typewritten pages. WURZEL, HAROLD. Tax agreement with Sweden. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939,
- 5, 1938, 51 typewitten pros-WURZEL, HAROLD. Tax agreement with Sweden. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 460-2, 495-7.

Admissions and dues MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Dues and initia-tion fees. (In his Federal income tax handbook. 1936-1937. p. 1043-7.)

- Agricultural relief
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Agricultural relief taxes. (In their Planning for tax economy. cl936. p. 493-8.)
 GETZ, JOSEPH. Refunds of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (windfall) tax. New York certified public ac-countant, special issue, Nov. 1936. 26p.
 KENDRICK, M. SLADE. Processing tax pro-visions of the AAA. Tax magazine, May 1936, p. 273-8
 - p. 273-8. SANDERS,
 - ANDERS, J. T. National significance of the agricultural processing taxes. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 163-80, discussion, p. 180-1.)

Alimony trusts

- BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Income tax aspects of alimony trusts. Taxes—the tax mag-azine, Aug. 1939, p. 455-7, 493-4. PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Five years with Douglas v. Willcuts. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939,
- v. Wille p. 1-35.

Bad debts

- BAD debts; income tax deduction-when allow-able. Reprint of general counsel's memorandum 18525. National auditgram, March 1938, p. 10-11.

- 11. CADY, T. S. Bad debt deductions by banks and taxation of recoveries on charged-off assets. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1937, p. 507-11. GRAHAM, A. J. Is cancellation of indebtedness income? *Tax magazine*, Dec. 1938, p. 707-8, 764. JENKINS, B. N. Bad debts; charge off and re-covery or sale under the federal revenue laws and related rulings and regulations. (T.D. 4633, G.C.M. 18525, I.T. 3172, G.C.M. 20854, I.T. 3256) National auditgram, Sept. 1939, p. 9-12, 22-3. 9-12, 22-3
- PAUL, AUL, RANDOLPH E. Suggested modifications of the bad debt provision. (In his Studies in federal taxation. 1937. p. 235-66.) RANDOLPH E.

Banks

See Banks and banking-Taxation.

Bonds

WENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP. Federal taxation of state and local bonds. (In National tax as-sociation. Proceedings, 1938, p. 205-11.) Tares —the tax magasine, March 1939, p. 134-6, 182.

Capital gains and losses ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Changes in the capital gain or loss provisions under the revenue act

- of 1938. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 643-6. ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Mortgagors' losses: cap-ital or ordinary? Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 387-9, 418. ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Capital gains and undistributed profits taxes. Commercial and fi-nancial chronicle, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 3071-3. (In-Investment bankers association of America. Twenty-sixth annual convention. 1937. p. 173-81; 191-215.) Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 145-50, 174-6, 183. ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Current trends in federal finances and taxation; a discussion of the undistributed profits and capital gains tax. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 315-23, 374. ATLAS, MARTIN. Capital-gains taxation. Ac-counting review, Dec. 1938, p. 346-54. -AUSTIN, MAURICE. Capital gains and losses under the revenue act of 1938. New York cer-tified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 131-3, 181-2.

- 181-2. AYARS, ROBERT D. Taxation of capital as-sets. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 16-20. COCHRAN, HOWE P. Gains and losses on sales and exchanges as affecting income. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937, p. 86-105.) COLE, SETH T. Treatment of capital gains and losses for income tax purposes. Tax magazine,
- COLE, SETH T. Treatment of capital gains and losses for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 583-5, 636.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Should capital gains be taxed? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 105-15.) (Preprinted by American institute of accountants, May 1, 1939. 11p.)
 FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation; present tax on capital gains and losses. Credit executive, March 1939, p. 87-8.
 FISHER, IRVING. Practical schedule for an income tax; how income may best be defined for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 379-90, 438. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 479-91.
 GILBY, J. H. Capital gains and losses under the 1936 revenue act. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 1-2.

- 1-2. GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Capital gams and losses. (In his Theory and practice of mod-ern taxation. c1938. p. 118-31.) HAIG, ROBERT MURRAY. Taxation of cap-ital gains. Wall Street journal, March 23, 25, 29, April 2, 8, and 13, 1937. JESSUP, R. S. Capital gains and losses since 1922. Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 333-4, 368-9. JONES, E. ROSCOE. Needed reforms in cor-

- 333-4, 368-9.
 JONES, E. ROSCOE. Needed reforms in corporate taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 709-10, 760.
 KELLER, JAMES I., JR. Address at semi-annual meeting, Florida institute of accountants, November 18, 19, 1938, Lakeland, Florida. Florida accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 8-11.
 KENT, ARTHUR H. Taxation of capital gains and losses. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 389-92, 428-30.

- 8, 1938, p. 5. MEYER, CHARLES. Net operating losses and corporate capital gains and losses under the revenue act of 1939, New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 132-9. NATIONAL TAX ASSOCIATION. Report of committee on taxation of capital gains. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 806.17 (1)
- 806-17.)

TAXATION, UNITED STATES—Capital gains and losses—(Continued)

- NELSON, GODFREY N. Capital gains and losses; an interesting exposition of a phase of income taxation which has defects worthy of legislative consideration. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 706-9. NONDEDUCTIBLE capital losses and bona fide sales under the federal income tax. Yale law iournal. Nov. 1939, p. 75-86.

- NONDED CHIPTED the federal income tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1939, p. 75-86.
 PARKER, LOVELL H. Capital gains and losses. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 604-10, 625-6.
 PATCH, BUEL W. Revisions of federal tax on capital gains. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1936. p. 437-53. (v. 2, no. 22.)
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Capital gains and losses. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 2, p. 498-540.)
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Capital adjustments—Reorganizations—Stock rights. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2 v. loose-leaf.
 PUDER, A. H. Inequities of capital gain and loss

- tice-Hall, inc., c1930, c1937, c1938, c1939, 2 v. loose-leaf.
 PUDER, A. H. Inequities of capital gain and loss provisions of revenue act of 1936. Accounting ledger, Feb. 23, 1938, p. 12-4, 28.
 RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Revenue act of 1938-income tax changes affecting corporations and capital gains and losses. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 21-4.
 SIMONS, HENRY C. Capital gains. (In his Personal income taxation. c1938, p. 148-69.)
 SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY. Capital changes service. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., c1937, c1938, c1939. loose-leaf.
 SMITH, BARNEY AND COMPANY. Capital gain and loss provisions of the revenue act of 1938 as affecting the owners of securities. New York, Smith, Barney and co. (1938) 25p.
 SMITH, KENNETH L. Capital gains and losses in accounting. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 26-39.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Capital gains and

- D. 120-39. STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Capital gains and losses and the United States income tax. Ac-countant, tax supplement, Aug. 14, 1937, p. 346-9.
- 346-9. TREMAINE, MORRIS S. Capital gains tax. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 517, 567. WILSON, JOSEPH A. Capital gains and losses under 1938 act. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Pro-ceedings of the first accounting clinic. 1938. p. 58-65.)

- Capital stock CONNIFF, EUGENE A. New capital stock tax and excess-profits tax. Modern finance, July 16,

 - CONNIFF, EUGENE A. New capital stock tax and excess-profits tax. Modern finance, July 16, 1936, p. 46.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Capital stock tax. (In their Planning for tax economy, c1936. 418-21.)
 FOX, ROBERT P. Federal capital stock tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, Feb. 1939, p. 136-42.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Effect of taxation upon corporate policies; address before Academy of political science, New York city, November 9, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Capital stock tax. (In his Federal income tax handbook. 1936-1937. p. 978-95.) (In his Federal income tax hand-book. 1938-39. p. 1048-67.)
 MAGELL, FRANK J. This is month for capital stock declaration: hints on computation. Con-troller, July 1938, p. 191-2.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Capital stock tax. (In his Federal tax accounting. c1936. p. 277-88.) (In his Federal stock act capital stock tax. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 24-5.
 WANDER HORST, G. Capital stock tax. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 24-5.
 WATERHOUSE, CARMACK. Capital stock tax on foreign corporations. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936. p. 76-8.

 - on foreign corporations. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 76-8.

Chain stores

See Chain stores-Taxation.

- Closing agreements WENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP. Treasury's new powers as to closing agreements and some thoughts concerning termination of tax exemp-tions. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 651-5, 677-8.
- Commodity transactions UNINTENTIONAL
- (Editorial) discrimination. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 5-8.

- Community property ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Community property: avoiding avoidance by adoption in the revenue act. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 138.41, 184.
 COMMUNITY property. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 245-6.
 TANNENBAUM, DAVID. Estate taxes on life insurance paid from community funds. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 587-92.

Compensating tax GETZ, JOSEPH. Refunds of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (wind-fall) tax. New York certified public accountant, special issue, Nov. 1936. 26p.

Corporations

- See also Taxation, United States—Income.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Federal finances and taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 714-8, 760.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Corporation income taxes under the revenue act of 1936. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1936, p. 1, 3-8. Profits, Nov. 1936, p. 1, 3-6.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Taxes or dividends? Charts and formulas for determining corporation and undistributed profits taxes under the revenue act of 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc. e1936. 18p. Originally published under the title "Charts and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and surtax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936."
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Business enter-
- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Business enter-
- DUN AND BKADSTREET, INC. Business enter-prise as tax collector and taxpayer. Dun's review, July 1939, p. 8-25, 49. DUNN, FRANK A. Corporations and the revenue act of 1936. Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 4-5, 13.

- act of 1930. Accounting forum, 1001. 1950, p.
 4.5, 13.
 DUNN, FRANK A. 1938 corporate income tax. Accounting forum, Jan. 1939, p. 20-3.
 ELLIS, FRANKLIN C. Deductions for accrued taxes. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 197-8.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Taxation; to be or not to be —incorporated? That is the question arising out of the revenue act of 1936. Credit executive, Oct. 1936, p. 293-6. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems. p. 12-5.) Account-ing forum, April 1937, p. 406.
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. United States tax on net profits of corporations. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938. p. 102-17.)

- 17.)
 GREENE, U. S. New provisions in federal revenue act of 1936. Controller, Sept. 1936, p. 194-7.
 GROVES, HENRY M. Form of business organi-zation; corporate v. partnership. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 581-2, 631.
 HERDRICH AND BOGGS. Charts and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and sur-tax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936. Indianapolis, Ind., Herdrich and Boggs, c1936. 18p. Also published as: Taxes or divi-dends? by Commerce clearing house, inc.
 HILLS, GEORGE S. Federal taxation vs. corpora-tion law. (from Wisconsin low review) Madison, Wis., University of Wisconsin, c1937. p. 280-312.
- 312
- S12.
 S12.
 INVENTORIES and taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 81-4.
 JANIS, MURRAY. Special taxation of corporate business. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 511-4,
- business. 1ax magazine, Serie 1.2.7, 558-64.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Federal income tax information relating to fiscal year changes of corporations. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938. 4 mimeographed pages.
 JOHNSON, MARK H. Tax-free liquidation; loophole and trap. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 3-4.

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Corporations-(Continued)

- JONES, E. ROSCOE. Needed reforms in corporate taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 709-10, 760.
- 760.
 KAISER, A. R. Taxation of intercorporate dividends; discussion. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938, p. 439-43.)
 KAPLAN, ALFRED. Tax-exempt reorganizations; status after the Hendler case. *Taxes—the tax magazine*, Sept. 1939, p. 523, 548.
 KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Liquidations under the revenue act of 1936. *Tax magazine*, Nov. 1936, p. 648-50.

- KLEIN, JUSEFT J. Lagrandian Sciences and Science
- ings, 1938. p. 430-8.) MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Accounting meth-ods must be revised to meet the increasing burden of taxation. Journal of accountancy, Aug.

- lumbia, S. C., Othce of the secretary, reational tax association, 1939. 131p.
 NATIONAL TAX ASSOCIATION. Preliminary report of the committee of the National tax association on federal taxation of corporations. (In its Proceedings, 1938, p. 574-661.)
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Corporate tax problems; capital stock and dividend distributions. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 123-6, 182.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Taxation of business. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 711-3, 754-5.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Taxation of oroporate surplus. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 15-9, 63-4.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Ascertainment of "earnings or profits" for the purpose of determining taxability of corporate distributions. Harvard law review, Nov. 1937, p. 40-75. (In his Selected studies in federal taxation. 1938, p. 149-99.)
 ROUNTREE, GEORGE V. Revenue act of 1939; its application to corporations with particular reference to surtax on improper accumulations of surplus. Canner, Sept. 9, 1939, p. 13-4, 20.
 SACK, ISIDOR. Widening gap between the federal income tax law and the New York scattine of special committee of National tax association. 12 typewritten pages.
 SEIDMAN, F. K. Effects of the corporation surtax. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 192-35, 54.
 SHER, I. HERMAN. New corporation income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, c1936, 60.

- SILVERMAN, NATHANIEL. Stock redemption and taxable dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938,

- p. 62-4, 95-6, 115. SINKER, JULIUS. Corporations. (In his Mini-mizing securities taxes, 1936-1937. p. 79-93.) STEMPF, VICTOR H. Taxes: hug-aboo of cor-porate planning. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1937, p. 6-7. SWEENEY, HENRY W. 1938 revenue act: cor-porate income-tax features. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal, Nov. 1938, p. 55-73.) TAXABLITY of transactions by a corporation in its own stock. Yale law journal, Nov. 1937, p. 111-21. TAYLOR. ROBERT T. Distribution
- 111-21. TAYLOR, ROBERT T. Distributions by cor-porations under the revenue act of 1936. Daily record (Baltimore, Md.), Dec. 22, 1936. TURNER, CLARENCE L. Report on compara-tive study of corporate taxes in fifteen industrial states; presented at twenty-first annual meeting, February 16, 1938, Pennsylvania state chamber of commerce, Harrisburg. Harrisburg, Pa., Pennsylvania state chamber of commerce, 1938. 30n.
- Jop.
 TURNER, CLARENCE L. Restoration of mandatory filing of consolidated federal income tax returns and the repeal of the tax on intercorporate dividends. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 120-32.)
 UNITED STATES revenue act, 1936. Accountant, tax supplement, Aug. 1, 1936, p. 317-9.
 WADE, HARRY H. Income-tax algebra. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 69-71.
 YOUNG, GEORGE B. Reciprocity and retaliation in insurance taxation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 480-4.)

Death taxes See Taxation, United States—Estates and trusts; Taxation, United States—Inheritance; Taxa-tion. United States—Transfer

Dividend

- Dividends
 ANDERSON, HAROLD C. Taxability of dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 74-8, 120.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Dividends as affecting net income. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937, p. 113-28.)
 KERRIGAN, HARRY D. Taxability of stock dividends under federal and state laws. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 373-87.
 MILLER, ROBERT N. Taxation of intercorporate dividends. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 150-1, 183-4.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Corporate tax. problems; capital stock and dividend distributions. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 123-6, 182.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Ascertainment of "earnings or profits" for the purpose of determining taxability of corporate distributions. Harvard law review, Nov. 1937, p. 40-75.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Capital adjustments—Reorganizations—Stock rights. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939.
 2 v. loose-leaf.
 SULVERMAN. NATHANIEL, Stock redemution
- Inose-leaf. Ioose-leaf. IRMAN, NATHANIEL. Stock redemption wable dividends. *Tax magazine*, Feb. 1938,
- 2 v. loose-leal.
 2 v. loose-leal.
 SILVERMAN, NATHANIEL. Stock redemption and taxable dividends. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 82-4, 95-6, 115.
 SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY. Capital changes service. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., c1937, c1938, c1939. loose-leaf.
 SMITH, J. DUKE. Federal taxation of stock dividends when received, and their cost basis when sold; an exploration of the important de-cisions and rulings covering the taxability of dividends and their cost basis when disposed of. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 593-6, 626.
 TRAYLOR, ORBA F. Critique of Koshland v. Helvering. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 453-4,
- Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 453-4, Helvering. 492, 504.

Double

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Double taxation. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, June 1939, p. 335-6.

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Double-(Cont.)

- FISHER, IRVING. Double taxation of savings. (reprinted from American economic review, March 1, 1939, p. 16-33.) HAMLIN, SCOVILLE. Federal taxes as a menace to state sovereignty. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 574-6.

- b. State soverciging. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 5746.
 LONG, HENRY F. State taxation faces the future. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 571-3, 604-7.
 OHLANDER, LYLE W. Double inheritance taxation. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 387-90, 448.
 SAXE, MARTIN. State income taxation of nonresidents. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 215-21.)
 SOMERS, PAUL, JR. Tax duplication between the federal and state governments. Bulletin of the National tax association. Nov. 1938, p. 54-63; Dec. 1938, p. 74-87.
 TODD, EDWIN S. Double taxation. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 528-32.
 WEHRWEIN, CARL F. Some aspects of the double-taxation problem. Journal of political economy, Aug. 1936, p. 544-53.

Double domicile

See Taxation, United States—Estates and trusts; Taxation, United States—Inheritance.

Estates and trusts

- states and trusts ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Combining the gift and estate taxes. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 259-61. ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Gift and estate taxes. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938 act). c1938. p. 201-26.) ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Integration of gift and estate taxes. Trusts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 627.30
- 627-30.
- ALTMAN, GEORGE T. New trends in taxing trust benefits; decisions of supreme court in Burnet v. Wells susceptible to strange implica-tions. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 199-203,
- builtet v. Hvus saczine, April 1936, p. 199-203, 247, 250. BARDT, H. M. Tax problems concerning a corporate fiduciary. Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 709-11, 750-4, 763. BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Income tax

- BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Income tax aspects of alimony trusts. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 455-7, 493-4.
 BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Lifetime gifts and the estate tax. Bankers monthly, Jan. 1939, p. 8-11, 47.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Estate and inheritance taxation. (In his Public finance. 1936. p. 313-32.)
 CHRYSTIE, T. LUDLOW. Death taxes and gift taxes on inter vivos transfers—their correlation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 716-8, 758.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Estate taxes. (In his Scientific tax reduction, 1937, p. 503-619.)
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Federal estate tax. (In their Planning for tax economy. c1936.).
 EPSTEIN, BERNARD. Life insurance policies

- EPSTEIN, BERNARD. Life insurance policies payable to named beneficiaries—exemption from the federal estate tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 579-82, 611-4.
- FITZGERALD, JOHN J. Taxable status of term trusts. Taxes—the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. trusts. 699-710.
- FRIEDLAND, M. N. Irrevocable trusts and life insurance policies—observations and comments. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1938, p. 515-6, 553.
 FRIEDLAND, M. N. Irrevocable trusts: observations and comments. *Tax magazine*, June 1938, p. 326-8, 366-9.
 CODDON W. J. Personal income taxes and
- GORDON, W. L. Personal income taxes and succession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. *Canadian chartered accoun-*
- succession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, May 1937, p. 397-407. GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Estate tax, deduction for charity. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 433-7; June 1938, p. 511-15.
- GREEN, VARIAN S. Trend of decisions and legislation affecting the corporate trustee. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 740-8, 761.

- GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Estate, inheritance, and gift taxes in the United States, (In his Theeory and practice of modern taxation, c1938, p. 204-29.)
 GRISWOLD, ERWIN N. Powers of appointment and the federal estate tax. Harvard law review, April 1939, p. 929-60, 967-8.
 HARRIS, HOMER I. Estate taxes. (In his Estates practice guide, 1939, p. 751-96.)
 HUGHES, JOHN E. Federal estate and gift taxes. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 446-8, 488-91.
 HUGHES, JOHN E. Validity of estate tax regulations 80. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 145-6.
 LEACH, W. BARTON. Powers of appointment and the federal estate tax—a dissent. Harvard law review, April 1939, p. 961-6, 968.
 LEVIN, ABRAHAM J. Reduction of the burden of death taxes. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 6-7.
 LOWRIMORE, CHARLES S. Trust incometex of grantor's taxability. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 521-2, 548.
 McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL AND FEIGENBAUM, B. J. Estates and trusts. (In their Income tax management for individuals under federal and California revenue acts. c1936, p. 276-309.)
- Jederal and California revenue acts. c1936. p. 276-309.)
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal regulation of family settlements. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 40-54. Reprinted. 17p. Trust companies, Jan. 1937. p. 31-8.
 MARX, EMILY. Is the income of a maintenance trust taxable to the settlor? Tax magazine, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8, 116.
 MARX, EMILY. When the settlor of a trust reserves a life estate. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 143-8, 185-7.
 MILLER, ROBERT N. 1938 revenue act; outline of the important changes affecting fiduciaries. Trust companies, June 1938, p. 659-64.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1938-39. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 511p.
 MONTGOMERY, Merr H. AND MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1936-37. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 511p.
 MONTGOMERY, Minimizing death taxes through billing the set of the se

- gilts, 1960,
- association of York county, Penna., Sept. 28, 1939. 6 typewritten pages. PARKER, LOVELL H. Time element in estate tax valuation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937, p. 219-25.) PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Five years with Douglas v. Willcuts. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939,
- v. Win n. 1-35.
- PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Life insurance and the federal estate tax. *Harvard law review*, May 1939, p. 1037-76.
- PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Estates and trusts. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 4. p. 48-226.)
- PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Taxation affecting life insurance with special reference to the federal income, gift and estate tax laws and to the inheritance and estate tax laws of the various states. New York, Prentice Hall, inc. 1935. 170p.
- SHERWOOD, J. F. Estate tax. (In his Federal tax accounting. c1936. p. 299-313.) (In his Federal tax accounting. c1938. p. 331-48.)
- SHOUP, CARL AND OTHERS. Alternative meth-ods of comparing death tax due under American and British laws. Bulletin of the National tax association, Oct. 1938, p. 6-17; Nov. 1938, p. 40-7.
- SHOUP, CARL AND SHIMBERG, BERNARD. Death taxes and estate liquidation. Tax maga-zine, June 1937, p. 327-30.
- SINCLAIR, MURAY AND COMPANY, INC. Revenue act of 1936, with explanations and in-dex and estate and gift taxes imposed by prior acts. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., inc. c1936. 128p.

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Estates and trusts-(Continued)

- (Continued)
 SINKER, JULIUS. Estate taxes. (In his Minimizing securities taxes, 1936-1937, p. 95-101.)
 SPANNER, HARMAN D. Federal estate tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 3-4, 47-50.
 TANNENBAUM, DAVID. Estate taxes on life insurance paid from community funds. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 587-92.
 TREMPER, EDWARD P., JR. Single v. multiple trusts—some observations. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 463, 499.
 UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of. Digest of state laws relating to inheritance and estate taxes. 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 147p.
 WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND MUNRO, WILLARD L. Winslow's minimizing death taxes. ed. 3, rev. and enl. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937. 144p.

- Excess profits
 CONNIFF, EUGENE A. New capital stock tax and excess-profits tax. Modern finance, July 16, 1936, p. 46.
 GRAHAM, B. L. Vinson act as it affects the excess profits tax. Controller, May 1938, p. 142, 144

 - 144. GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Excess-profits taxes. (In his *Theory and practice of modern taxation*. c1938, p. 93-101.) HARRISS, C. LOWELL. Monopoly and the ex-cess profits tax. *Tax magazine*, Dec. 1938, p. 717-20, 741-4.

 - cess profits tax. 1 ax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 717-20, 741-4.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Excess-profits tax Excess-profits levy on naval contracts. (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1936-1937. p. 995-1000; 1036-40.) (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1938-39. p. 1068-78.)
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal taxes on income and profits. L.R.B. & M. journal, NOV. 1938, 40th anniversary number, part 2, p. 5-7.
 NAGELL, FRANK J. This is month for capital stock declaration; hints on computation. Controller, July 1938, p. 191-2.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. War-profit taxes and their records. (reprinted from New York times, Sept. 10, 1939) Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 569, 614
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Excess-profits tax. (In his Federal tax accounting. c1938. p. 321-30.)

- Excise ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Excise taxes. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938 act). c1938. p. 171-200.) ALEPED G. Taxes on selected com-

 - p. 171-200.)
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Taxes on selected commodities. (In bis Public finance. 1936. p. 333-51.)
 CROW. WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Manufacturers' excise tax. (In their Planning for tax economy. c1936. p. 463-80.)
 HARRISS, C. LOWELL. Federal commodity and service taxes expressed as percentages of retail price. Bulletin on the National tax association, May 1937, p. 226-31.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Excise taxes. (In his Federal tax accounting. c1936. p. 363-90.)
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. Taxation of liquor. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 8-10, 60-2.
 TUFEL, HERMAN A. Excise taxes under the revenue act of 1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 13-6, 32.
 Excise tax on employers

Excise tax on employers See Social security; Taxes—Payroll.

Exemptions

- BENNETT, EMMETT L. Immunities from the income tax. Tax magazine, April 1938, p. 207-238-43.
- BENNETT, EMMETT L. Income tax immunities. Taxes-the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 451-2, 492-3
- BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Survey of tax exemptions. Taxes—the tax magazine, May tax exemptions. To 1939, p. 273-5, 316.

- BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Tax exemp-tions. Tax magazine, May 1937, p. 269-74, 310; July 1937, p. 398-405, 440; Aug. 1937, p. 463-75; Sept. 1937, p. 527-32, 566; Nov. 1937, p.

- July 1937, p. 398-405, 440; Aug. 1957, p. 405-75; Sept. 1937, p. 527-32, 566; Nov. 1937, p. 658-68, 692.
 BRABSON, GEORGE D. Current trend in tax exemption of state and federal employees. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 443-5, 484, 491.
 BRABSON, GEORGE D. Income tax exemptions and the loss of federal revenues. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 8-11.
 CRUMBAKER, CALVIN. President and tax exempt securities; paper presented before the sixteenth annual conference of certified public accountants of the Pacific northwest. no date. 9 typewritten pages.
- accountants of the Pacific northwest. no date. 9 typewritten pages. Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the re-location of in-dustry, discussion. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 568-73.) GROVES, HAROLD M. Effect of tax differ-entials and tax exemption upon the relocation of industry. (In National tax association. *Pro-ceedings*, 1938, p. 557-68.) HOLMES, J. HENDREN. Termination of recipro-cal tax exemption. *Taxes-the tax magazine*, April 1939, p. 195-6, 256-60; May 1939, p. 281-3, 318-24. KAPLAN, ALFRED. Tax-exempt reorganizations; status after the Hendler case. *Taxes-the tax*

- April 1939, p. 195-6, 256-60; May 1939, p. 281-3, 318-24.
 KAPLAN, ALFRED. Tax-exempt reorganizations; status after the Hendler case. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 523, 548.
 KENT, ARTHUR H. Reciprocal taxation by federal and state governments of salaries and income from securities. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 625-8, 656, 672-3.
 MACY, C. WARD. Property tax exemptions in the United States. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1936, p. 226-9.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Problem of intergovernmental tax exemption. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 699-703, 754. (In National tax association, Proceedings, 1937, p. 388-99.)
 OAKES, E. E. Taxation or exemption of municipally owned utilities. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 243-54.)
 PATCH, BUEL W. Exemptions from income taxion. Editorial research reports, v. 1, no. 23, June 17, 1937.
 SCHMIDT, E. B. Problems of homestead tax exemption. Tax magazine, April 1938, p. 211-5, 248.
 SHULTZ, WILLIAM J. Tax exemption of governmental tax

- 248.
 SHULTZ, WILLIAM J. Tax exemption of governmental securities. Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 331-2, 359-62, 369.
 SMITH, J. DUKE. Federal taxation of state officers and employees. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 443-6, 499-500.
 STIMSON, CLAUDE W. Exemptions in personam. Taxes—the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 453-4, 485-7.
 STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Exemptions from the federal income tax in the United States. Accountant, tax supplement, July 16, 1938, p. 332-5. 332-5

- Accountant, tax supplement, July 10, 1906, p. 332-5.
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. Federal taxation of state and municipal bonds. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 222-7.) Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 5-7, 53.
 TAX POLICY LEAGUE, INC. Tax excemptions; symposium conducted by the Tax policy league, December 28-30, 1938, in Detroit, Michigan. New York, Tax policy league, inc., c1939. 237p.
 TAXING government securities and salaries; reprint of a radio discussion by John W. Hanes and others . . Feb. 19, 1939. New York, Burland printing co., inc., c1939. 19p.
 TOBIN, AUSTIN J. Federal taxation of state and local bonds. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 621-4, 686-8.
 WALSH, WILLIAM C. Taxation of government
- WALSH, WILLIAM C. Taxation of government corporations engaged in business with the states. *Taxes-the tax magazine*, Oct. 1939, p. 570-2, 604.
- JOHN PHILIP. Federal-state recip-WENCHEL, rocal taxation of income from public securities. Taxes-the tax magasine, Sept. 1939, p. 507-8, 551-5.

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Exemptions-(Cont.)

- AXATION, UNITED STATES—Exemptions—(Cont.)
 WENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP. Treasury's new powers as to closing agreements and some thoughts concerning termination of tax exemptions. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 651-5, 677-8.
 WHITLOCK, BONITA MATTHEWS. State income taxes as applied to employees of the federal alphabetical agencies. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 512-4, 567.
 YOUNGQUIST, G. AARON. Elimination of intergovernmental exemptions based on federal and state sovereignty. Tax magazine, Nov. 1937, p. 649-50.

Floor stocks tax GETZ, JOSEPH. Refunds of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (wind-fall) tax. New York certified public accountant, special issue, Nov. 1936. 26p.

Franchise See Taxation, United States-States.

Gasoline

ANDREWS, T. COLEMAN. Digest of address before annual meeting of North American gaso-line tax conference, at Richmond, Va., October 7, 1936. 15 typewritten pages.

Gifts

- ifts ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Combining the gift and estate taxes. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 259-61. ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Gift and estate taxes. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938 act). c1938. p. 201-26.) ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Integration of gift and estate taxes. Trusts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 627.30

- ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Integration of gift and estate taxes. Trasts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 627-30.
 CHRYSTIE, T. LUDLOW. Death taxes and gift taxes on inter vivos transfers—their correlation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 716-8, 758.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Gift taxes. (In his Scientific tax reduction, 1937, p. 466-99.)
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. U. S. supreme court selected death tax cases, 1898 to 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., cl936, 195p.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Gift tax. (In their Planning for tax economy, cl936, p. 436-41.)
 GREEN, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Gift tax. (In their Planning for tax economy, cl938, p. 446-41.)
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Estate, inheritance, and gift taxes in the United States. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. cl938, p. 204-29.)
 HARRISS, C. LOWELL. State gift taxation—some statistical data. Bulletin of the National tax association, June 1939, p. 259-67.
 HARRISS, C. LOWELL. State taxation of gifts. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 720-39.)
 HUGHES, JOHN E. Federal estate and gift taxes. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 446-8, 488-11.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal regulation of family settlements. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 40-54. Trust companies, Jan. 1937, p. 31-8. Reprinted. 17p.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1938-39. New York, ROBMELL. Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1938-39. New York, ROSWELL. Federal taxes on estates, trusts and gifts, 1938-39. New York, ROBERT H. JOSEPH J. Some tax considerations in the preparation of wills and deeds. Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 335-7, 370.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Gift tax. (In his Federal tax accounting, c1936, p. 315-27.) (In his Federal tax accounting, c1936, p. 349-62.)
 SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY, INC. Revenue act of 1936 with explanations and index and es 128p.

SINKER, JULIUS. Gift taxes. (In his Minimis-ing securities taxes, 1936-1937, p. 103-6.) UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of. Digest

- of state laws relating to inheritance and estate taxes, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 147p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-lations 79 (1936 edition) relating to gift tax under the revenue act of 1932 as amended and under the revenue act of 1942 and and
- under the revenue act of 1932 as amended and supplemented by the revenue acts of 1934 and 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 84p. WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND MUNRO, WIL-LARD L. Winslow's minimizing death taxes. ed. 3, rev. and enl. New York, Commerce clear-ing house, inc., c1937. 144p.

- History CONRAD, MORTON S. Some suggestions for changes in the federal income tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 713-8.
 FELLER, JOHN E. O. Twenty-five years' develop-ment of federal income taxes. 12 typewritten

- Holding companies
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Effect of taxation upon corporate policies; address before Academy of political science, New York city, November 9, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Taxation of corporate holding companies. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 417-24.)
 SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Holding companies and the new tax law. *Certified public accountant*, Aug. 1936, p. 487-8, 507.

Homesteads BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Tax exemp-tions—homestead exemptions. Tax magasine, July 1937, p. 398-405, 440; Aug. 1937, p. 463-75; Sept. 1937, p. 527-32, 566.

Hotels

See Hotels-Taxation.

Income

- See also Taxation, United States—Corporations; Taxation, United States—States. ALTMAN, GEORGE T. Income tax. (In his Introduction to federal taxation (1938 act). c1938. p. 1-169.) ASH POPEPT
- Introduction to reserve insumm (1990 and 1988), 1-169.) ASH, ROBERT. How to write a tax brief, to-gether with an outline of procedure before the Bureau of internal revenue and the Board of tax appeals. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938, 36p. ATKINSON, STERLING K. Taxable income to lassoc from lesse inprovements. Accounting
- ATKINSON, STERLING K. Taxable income to lessor from lessee improvements. Accounting forum, March 1939, p. 20-4, 38.
 BERCAW, W. W. Liability of P. I. residents for U. S. income tax. Philippine accountants' jour-nal, March 1938, p. 86-9.
 BIRD, FREDERICK L. Federal taxation of state and local bonds; effect on state and local govern-ments. Un National tax accounting Reaced/una
- and local govern-ments. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 212-9.) BISCHOFF, H. E. Rates of tax under the revenue act of 1936. L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 23-30.
- p. 23-30. BISCHOFF, H. E. Some important differences between New York state and federal personal income tax laws. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 13-23.
- income tax laws. L.R.B. & M. journal, March 1937, p. 13-23.
 BOYD, ORTON WELLS AND PEARCE, FRED-ERICK LEON. Problems in income tax fundamentals. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., 1937. 107p.
 BOYE, E. C. Precautions against unnecessary income taxes; address delivered at group meeting of the Missouri bankers association, October 1936. 7p.
 BRAUNSTEIN, JACQUES AND JOHNSON, MARK H. Public utility depreciation and the income tax. Harvard law review, May 1939, p. 1077-1104.
- 1077-1104.
- 1077-1104. BUCHANAN, ROBERT. Simplification of income tax law and its administration. L.R.B. & M. journal, Jan. 1939, p. 1-7, 26. BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Federal income taxa-tion. (In his *Public finance*. 1936. p. 371-98.) BULLOCK, THOMAS M. Revised tax regulations

- regarding recoveries by banks. National audit-gram, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 15. BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES. Shorter approach to the problem of interdependent state and fed-eral income taxes. 1200 Gimbel building, Phila., The author. no date. 32p. CARTER, MILTON E. Decentralization as applied

- eral income taxes. 1200 Gimbel building, Phila., The author. no date. 32p.
 CARTER, MILTON E. Decentralization as applied to settlement procedure in income tax cases. *Tax magazine*, Nov. 1937, p. 635-6, 688.
 COCHRAN, HOWE P. Scientific tax reduction; federal tax law and procedure. New York, Funk and Wagnalls co., 1937. 757p.
 COLE, SETH T. Regulatory taxation; with special reference to the income tax. *Tax magazine*, Feb. 1938, p. 67-8.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal revenue laws, January 1936. New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., cl936. 287p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Inter-dependent taxes; formulae and tables for com-puting federal and state income taxes where mutually deductible by corporations. ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., cl939, 28p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. United States master tax guide, 1936. New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., cl930, 28p.
 CONMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. United States master tax guide, 1936. New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., cl939, 28p.
 CONMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. United States master tax guide, 1936. New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., cl936, 235p.
 Same, 1938, 255p.
 Same, 1938, 255p.
 Same, 1938, 240p.
 CONNIFF, EUGENE A. Income tax vs. tax on capital. Modern finance, Oct. 1, 1936, p. 153.
 CONRAD, MORTON S. Some suggestions for changes in the federal income tax. Taxes--the tax magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 713-8.
 COONS, EDWARD S., JR. No-man's land in depreciation deductions. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 455-7, 491.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Controlling the differences between corporate accounting and tax accounting. (In National tax association. *Round table discussion*, income tax session. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 25-7.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Planning for tax economy. New York, Waldrep.</l
- p. 255-7.) CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE,
- U.
- CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Planning for tax economy. New York, Waldrep-Tilson, inc., 1936. 390p.
 DAVIDSON, W. H. New provisions of the income tax law. L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 1-9, 31.
- 1-9, 31. DAVIDSON, W. H. Significant income tax chances. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 1-12. DAVIDSON, W. H. Suggestions regarding the federal income tax law and its administration. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1939, p. 11-7. DEINZER, HARVEY T. Are leasehold improve-ments taxable income? Accounting review, June 1939, p. 147-50.

- 1939, p. 147-50. DISPROPORTIONATE tax law. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 1-2. EICHHOLZ, ROBERT B. Should the federal in-come tax be simplified? Yale law journal, May 1939, p. 1200-220. FALKNER, ROLAND P. Income and other taxes of individuals and corporations, 1929-34. Bulletim of the National tax association, Oct. 1936, p. 24-6.
- FELLER, JOHN E. O. Twenty-five years' devel-opment of federal income taxes. 12 typewritten pages.
- pages.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Accounting records as related to income tax returns; opening presentation at round table discussion, Monday, October 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 6 mimeographed pages. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 137-40.) (In National tax association. Round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938.)
- FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation; no taxable gain on exercise of option. Credit executive, July 1939, p. 216-7.

FISH, GEORGE D. Income tax. Credit execu-

- tive, July 1936, p. 199-202. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems. p. 6-9.) FISHER, IRVING. Double taxation of savings. (Reprinted from American economic review, March 1, 1939, p. 16-33.) FISHER, IRVING. Practical schedule for an in-
- FISHER, IKVING. Practical schedule for an in-come tax; how income may best be defined for income tax purposes. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 379-90, 438. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 479-91. GINDER, WILLARD R. Principles of recoup-ment and estoppel; application with respect to the travition of the mark the super Tax.
- ment and estoppel; application with respect to the taxation of income in the wrong year. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 573-8, 619. GORDON, W. L. Personal income taxes and suc-cession duties in Canada, Great Britain and the United States. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1937, p. 397-407. GRAHAM, WILLARD J. AND KATZ, WIL-BER G. Introduction to federal income tax. (In their Accounting in law practice. 1938. p. 208-332.)
- p. 298-332.) REEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. p. 290-332.1 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. American tax on individual incomes. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. cl938, p. 49-86.) GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY. Taxation with representation. Pathfinder service bulletin, Aug. 1936 - 1.6.8

- GREENART, Internet Service bulletin, Aug. 1936, p. 1, 6-8.
 GREENSPAN, IRVING JAY. Your 1935 fed-eral income tax. Profit, Feb. 1936, p. 1-2, 4.
 GROVES, HENRY M. AND KOPPERMAN, CECLI H. Assignment of earned income. Taxes —the tax magasine, Dec. 1939, p. 719-25, 736.
 HAENSEL, PAUL. Federal "general welfare" bills; a criticism of the taxing provisions of H.R. 11 and 2. Taxes—the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 207-9, 252-5.
 HARTMAN, DENNIS. Income tax index-digest; containing all decisions of the Board of tax appeals from volume 31 B.T.A. through volume 35 B.T.A. Washington, D. C., The author (1938). 135p.
- (1938). 135p. HAYNES, J. MARVIN AND McGUIRE, C.
- HARVINES, J. MARVIN AND MCGUIRE, C. J.
 Hardships and inequities in the 1936 tax law.
 L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 15-8, 31.
 IVINS, J. E. Analysis of retrospective income taxation. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 76-8, 101-4.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Federal income tax information for the form t

- p. 76-8, 101-4.
 JOHNS, RALPH S. Federal income tax information relating to fiscal year changes of corporations. New York, American institute of accountants, 1938. 4 mimeographed pages.
 KING, ELDON P. Income tax reciprocity with Canada. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 511-17.)
 KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Changes in federal income taxation; existing problems require simplification. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 731-4.)
 KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Recent changes in federal income taxation; address delivered at forum of New York county lawyers association, Thursday, October 21, 1937. New York, N.Y. 21
 typewritten pages. New York, N.Y. 21
 typewritten pages. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 131-4, 180-3.
 KNOELLER, HERMAN M. Critique of federal income taxes. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 131-4, 180-3.

- income taxes. Tax magazine, March 1938, p. 1314, 180-3. KUNZE, HARRY L. What is taxed by an in-come tax? Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 349-52. LANGER, CHARLES H. AND KNAUTZ, HARRY A. Walton federal income tax account-ing and procedure, 1935. Chicago, Ill., Walton pub. co., c1935. loose-leaf (Walton accounting series). series).
- LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. 1038 by Milton Vogel and R. W. Bergner. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1939. 255p. - 1939 manual of federal income tax pro-
- cedure. c1939. 264p.

- LASSER, J. K. Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, 1939. 128p. LAYMAN, WILLIAM M. Some suggestions for reducing income tax liability; legitimate ways of reducing income tax hability; legitimate ways of effecting tax savings. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 575-80, 628. LeBRUN, HARVEY. Consumers' taxes v. income taxes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 600-2. LOWRIMORE, CHARLES S. Taxation of un-realized income. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan.

- realized income. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 10-2. LUTZ, HARLEY L. Privilege of personal in-come taxation. Bulletin of the National tax as-sociation, Oct. 1937, p. 11-22. McGLADREY, I. B. Iowa accountants' head tells how to minimize income taxes. American banker, Sept. 24, 1938. p. 1, 7. McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL AND FEIGEN-BAUM, B. J. Income tax management for in-dividuals under federal and California revenue acts including an analysis of the corporate sur-tax on undistributed profits under the federal
- acts including an analysis of the corporate sur-tax on undistributed profits under the federal revenue act of 1936. San Francisco, Calif., Walker's manual, inc., c1936. 449p. McMULLEN, STEWART YARWOOD. Federal income tax accounting; a practical course for basic instruction. New York, Ronald press co., c1939, loose-leaf. MADDEN, JOHN T. Address delivered . . . be-fore a joint dinner meeting of the Buffalo, Rochester and Syracuse chapters of the New York state society held at the Rochester cham-ber of commerce on November 18, 1936. New York, New York state society of certified public
- ber of commerce on November 18, 1936. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1936. 22 mimeographed pages. MAGILL, ROSWELL. Taxable income. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 437p. MAGUIRE, JOHN M. AND OTHERS. Section 820 of the revenue act of 1938. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 509-32; March 1939, p. 719-78.
- MANNING, RAYMOND E. State tax legislation --1938. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1938. p. 7-21.) MARGULIES, WILLIAM. What can we do

- animitation, RATA involution in the state term of the state of the sta
- 872p.
- MORRIS, GEORGE MAURICE. Some practical aspects of federal tax procedure. (In Michigan

state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1937. p. 12-19, discussion, p.

- 19-23.) NEUHOFF, RALPH R. Income tax reduction: a new approach. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 67-8, 118-21. NUISANCE returns. (Editorial.) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 9. O'BRYAN, W. H. Administrative provisions of
- the income tax law: address before Oklahoma City chapter, Oklahoma society of C.P.A.'s, August 1938. 22 typewritten pages. PALMER, ERNEST O. Controversial matters in taxation of income. *Controller*, Dec. 1939, p.
- 432-4.

- 432-4.
 PATCH, BUEL W. Exemptions from income taxation. (In *Editorial research reports*, v. 1, 1937. p. 453-72.)
 PATCH, BUEL W. Revision of federal tax on capital gains. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1936. p. 437-53.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB, JR. Law of federal income taxation. Chicago, Ill., Callaghan and co., 1934. 6v.
 1938 cumulative supplements (for use in 1939) v. 1-v. 6 c1938.
 PEARCE, FREDERICK LEON. Income tax fundamentals. Chicago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., 1937. 581p.

- 1937. 581p. AMSEY. MARY LOUISE. Mortgage
- 1937. 581p.
 RAMSEY, MARY LOUISE. Mortgage fore-closures and income taxes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 579-82, 631.
 RENO, EDWIN S. Computation of federal and Pennsylvania taxes based on income, calendar year—1938. Phila., Pa., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Aug. 15, 1938.
 9 mimeographed pages.
 RENO, EDWIN S. AND BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES. Computation of interdependent fed-eral and Pennsylvania institute of certi-fied public accountants, Nov. 14, 1939. 9 type-written pages.
- written pages. RICHARDSON, CHARLES L. Revenue act of 1938—income tax changes affecting corporations
- 1938—income tax changes affecting corporations and capital gains and losses. Balance sheet, Jan. 1939, p. 21-4.
 ROBERTSON, H. V. Arrangement of income tax blanks. (Correspondence) Certified public accoun-tant, Aug. 1937, p. 32.
 SACK, ISIDOR. Widening gap between the fed-eral income tax law and the New York state income and franchise tax laws. New York certi-fed public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 148-58.
 SANDBERG, MILTON. Income tax subsidy to "reorganizations". Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 98-126.

- "reorganizations". Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 98-126.
 SATTERLEE, HUGH, AND SHER, I. HER-MAN. Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, 1936. 91p.
 SCHULMAN, WALTER H. Federal and state income taxes affecting real estate. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 138-40, 180.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. New features for 1938 income tax returns. Accounting ledger, Feb. 1939, p. 11-12.
- tax returns. Accounting tager, rec. 1999, p. 11-12.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Section 820 of the revenue act of 1938. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 116-9.) Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 341-2, 354.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Seidman's legislative history of federal income tax laws, 1938-1861. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 1166p.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Suggested changes in income tax form 1120. Certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 2-7.
 SHER, I. HERMAN. Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, 1937. 128p.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Federal tax accounting, ed. 9. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., c1936. loose leaf.

-Same. ed. 10. c1938. 469p.

SHEVIT, FRANK H. Income tax simplified and account record book, including income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social se-

- curity taxes. New York, Frank Shevit co., c1937. 36p. SHEVIT, FRANK H. Income tax simplifier and account record book, including new 1938. pro-

- SHEVII, FRANK H. Income tax simplifier and account record book, including new 1938. provisions covering income, capital stock, excess profits, estate, gift and social security taxes. New York, B. C. Forbes pub. co., 1938. 13p. and forms.
 SHOUP, CARL. Distinction between "net" and "gross" in income taxation. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 251-81, discussion, p. 282-301.)
 SIMONS, HENRY C. Personal income taxation; the definition of income as a problem of fiscal policy. Chicago, Ill., University of Chicago press, cl938. 238p.
 SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY, INC. 1936 explanatory federal income tax returns, sixteenth annual edition (returns for calendar year 1935), including capital changes. New York, Sinclair, Murray and co., inc., cl936. 94p. 94p.

1937; calendar year 7936, seventeenth annual edition. c1937. 96p.

1937; calendar year 7936, seventeenti annual edition. c1937. 96p.
 1938; calendar year 1937, eighteenth an-nual edition. c1938. 96p.
 SINCLAIR, MURRAY AND COMPANY, INC. Revenue act of 1936 with explanations and index and estate and gift taxes imposed by prior acts. New York, Sinclair Murray and co., inc., c1936. 123p.
 SINKER, JULIUS. Minimizing securities taxes, 1936-1937 edition. New York, Commerce clear-ing house, inc., 1936. 143p.
 SINKER, JULIUS. Your securities and federal taxes. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 112p.
 SISTERSON, D. G. Processes through which in-come tax return passes after filing. Controller. May 1937, p. 131-4, 136, 150.
 SMITH, J. DUKE. Deductions from gross in-come-taxpayer on cash receipts and disburse-ments basis. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 79-81, 120.

- 120.

- ments basis. 1ax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 79-81, 120.
 SMITH, J. DUKE. Is the value of improvements made by a lessee taxable income to the lessor? Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 577-80, 616-7.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Income taxation and accountancy. 3 typewritten pages.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. New factors in federal income taxation. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 242-70. Reprinted. 31p.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Significant changes in federal income taxation; a discussion presented at the annual convention of the National retail dry goods association, January 30, 1937. 32 mimeographed pages. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Feb. 1937, p. 31-6. Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 23-42. Accountant, tax supplement, Sept. 24, 1938, p. 437-40; Oct. 1, 1938, p. 449-54; Oct. 8, 1938, p. 461-3.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Tax accounting versus
- b. 461-3.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Tax accounting versus business practice; round table discussion, Mon-day Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 10 mimeographed pages. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 140-7.) (In National tax association. *Round table dis-cussion*, Oct. 24, 1938.)
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Your income tax return to Uncle Sam; WJZ, March 10, 1937. 7:45 P.M., under the auspices of the National association of cost accountants. 6 mimeographed pages.
 STRANGMAN. H. ARNOLD. Exemptions from
- STRANGMAN, H. ARNOLD. Exemptions from the federal income tax in the United States. Accountant, tax supplement, July 16, 1938, p. 332-5.
- STRAYER, PAUL J. Effect of a rise in prices upon the income tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1939, p. 165-76.
- STRAYER, PAUL J. Taxation of small incomes; social, revenue, and administrative aspects. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 210p.

- STUDENSKI, PAUL. Federal taxation of state and municipal bonds. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 222-7.) Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939. p. 5-7, 53.
 TARLEAU, THOMAS. Price of a simplified income tax; address before the Eastern fourstates accounting conference (state societies of certified public accountants of New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Connecticut) May 20, 1939. 25 mimeographed pages.
 TAX accounting and business accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 1-2.
 TAX accounting the secondatory, Jan. 1939, p. 1-2.
 TAX return extensions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1939, p. 130-1.
 TAXATION—Divertissement—To compute a tax on undistributed income—Simplification by higher

- on undistributed income—Simplification by higher mathematics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy,
- mathematics. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. 323-7.
 THOMAS, ROSCOE L. Federal income taxa-tion. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 15-20.
 THOMSON, METELLUS, JR., BALL, GEORGE W. AND WRIGHT, JOHN A. Federal income taxation of rentals collected by a mortgage receiver. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 511-6, 558.0 558-9
- THURSTON, TROY G. Some current income tax problems; address before South Bend chapter, Some current income National association of cost accountants, South Bend, Indiana, October 18, 1938. 14 type-
- Bend, Inutana, writen pages. TRAYLOR, ORBA F. Taxation of economic sur-plus. Tax magasine, Jan. 1936, p. 23-6, 58. TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Reports
- TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Reports and recommendations regarding the personal income tax, the sales tax, the chain store tax, released April 5, 1937. New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. Ióp.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Bul-letin "N," income tax: nonresident aliens, for-eign corporations, withholding agents; certain provisions of the law and regulations 94 of par-ticular interest to non-resident aliens, foreign corporations, and withholding agents; revenue act of 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 75p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. In-come tax regulations 101; changes from prior
- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. In-come tax regulations 101; changes from prior regulations, revenue act of 1938. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 36p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-lations 93 relating to the carriers' tax, employees' tax, employees' representatives' tax under act approved August 29, 1935 (49 stat. 974) Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 35n.
- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regula-tions 94 relating to the income tax under the 1936 revenue act. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 269p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-
- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regulations 94 relating to the income tax under revenue act of 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 566p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regulations 94 with explanation (income tax under the revenue act of 1936). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 230p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regulations 101, income tax; revenue act of 1938. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 358p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Statistics of income for 1934, part 1, compiled from individual income tax returns, estate_tax_returns
- and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1936. 150p.
- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Sta-tistics of income for 1934, part 2, compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937 2510 1937. 251p.
- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Sta-tistics of income for 1935, part 1, compiled from individual income tax returns, estate tax returns and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1938. 170p.

- UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Sta-tistics of income for 1935, part 2, compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938.
- ington, D. C., Government primers and 138p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Sta-tistics of income for 1936, part 1, compiled from individual income tax returns, estate tax returns and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1938. 178p. UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Sta-tistics of income for 1936, part 2, compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 235p.

- 235p.
 WADE, HARRY H. Income-tax algebra. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 69-71.
 WALLACE, S. J. Accounting records as related to income tax returns. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 155-7.)
 WENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP. Federal taxation of state and local bonds. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 205-11.) Taxesthe tax magazine, March 1939, p. 134-6, 182.
 ZYSMAN, H. Constructive receipt of income. Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 715-6, 749, 767.

Inheritance

- BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Estate and inheritance taxation. (In his Public finance. 1936. p. 313-
- COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. U. S. supreme court selected death tax cases, 1898 to 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 195p. H APPLETON. Inheritance taxation

- 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 195p.
 FEDERA, H. APPLETON. Inheritance taxation after the Green case. Taxes—the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 267-8, 314.
 FEDERA, H. APPLETON. Multiple domicile in inheritance taxation. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 142-4, 185-6.
 GENTRY, W. H. H. Double domicile in inheritance taxation. Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1938, p. 135-7, 152; Oct. 1939, p. 576-8, 598-600.

- March 1933, p. 135-7, 152; Oct. 1939, p. 576-8, 598-600.
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Estate, inheritance, and gift taxes in the United States. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938. p. 204-29.)
 LEVIN, ABRAHAM J. Reduction of the burden of death taxes. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 6-7.
 MAGILL, ROSWELL. Federal regulation of family settlements. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 40-54. Reprinted. 17p. Trust companies, Jan. 1937, p. 31-8.
 NATIONAL TAX ASSOCIATION. Fourth report of the committee of the National tax association on double domicile in inheritance taxation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 741-59.)

- National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 741-59.)
 NESS, HARRY. Minimizing death taxes through life insurance; address before Life underwriters association of Vork county, Penna, Sept. 28, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.
 OHLANDER, LYLE W. Double inheritance taxation. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 387-90, 448.
 SCHNADER, WILLIAM A. Inheritance taxation. Tax magazine, May 1937, p. 256-9, 310.
 SHOUP, CARL AND SHIMBERG, BERNARD. Death taxes and estate liquidation. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 225-09, 310.
 SHOUP, CARL AND SHIMBERG, BERNARD. Death taxes and estate liquidation. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 129-37, 178.
 UNITED STATES. Census. Bureau of. Digest of state laws relating to inheritance and estate taxes, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938, 147p.
 WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND MUNRO, WILLARD L. Winslow's minimizing death taxes. ed. 3, rev. and enl. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937, 1449.
 WOLFE, S. HERBERT, comp. Inheritance tax calculations, an explanation of the underlying principles with tables and instructions for ascer-

taining the present value of dower and curtesy rights, life estates, annuities vested and contingent remainders upon the Northampton, Carlisle, actuaries, American experience, American men ultimate and other tables of mortality at various rates of interest, with a brief analysis of the inheritance tax laws of the various states and territories, originally compiled by S. Herbert Wolfe, revised and brought up to date by Lee J. Wolfe and William M. Corcoran. New York, Baker, Voorhis co., 1937. 246p.
WOOLFSON, A. PHILLIP. Inheritance taxation and maladjustment of national income. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 458-62, 498.
YOUNGQUIST, G. AARON. Relation of executors and administrators to state and federal inheritance taxes. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 15-6, 54-5.

- Instalment sales COCHRAN, HOWE P. Installment sales. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937, p. 63-85.) PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JA-COB, JR. Installment sales. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 1, p. 602-52.)

Insurance companies See Insurance—Taxation.

- See Insurance—Taxation.
 Life insurance
 See also Taxation, United States—Estates and trusts; Taxation, United States—Gifts; Taxation, United States—Inheritance.
 EPSTEIN, BERNARD. Life insurance policies pavable to named beneficiaries—exemption from the federal estate tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 579-82, 611-4.
 FRIEDLAND, M. N. Bailey case; assignment of life insurance policies under section 302 (g) of the revenue act of 1926, Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939; p. 512-4, 537-9.
 FRIEDLAND, M. N. Irrevocable trusts and life insurance policies—observations and comments. Tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 515-6, 553.
 FULTON, ARTHUR W. Tax on life insurance premiums—is it defensible? Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 283-4.
 LIFE insurance gifts under the federal estate tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1939, p. 126-32.
 NESS, HARRY. Minimizing death taxes through life insurance; address before Life underwriters association of York county, Penna., Sept. 28, 1939. 6 typewritten pages.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. Life insurance and the federal estate tax. Harvard law review, May 1939, p. 1037-76.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Taxation affecting life insurance with special reference to the federal fielence inference.

 - federal estate tax. Harvard law review, May 1939, p. 1037-76. PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Taxation affecting life insurance with special reference to the federal income, gift and estate tax laws and to the inheritance and estate tax laws of the various states. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1935. 170p.
 - STRADLEY, LEIGHTON P. Tax effects of busi-STRADLEY, LEIGHTON P. Tax effects of business life insurance; paper read at joint meeting of the Philadelphia chapter of the Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, on February 17, 1938. 25 typewritten pages.
 TANNENBAUM, DAVID. Estate taxes on life insurance paid from community funds. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 587-92.

- Liquidations JOHNSON, MARK H. Tax-free liquidation; loop-hole and trap. Tax magasine, Jan. 1937, p. 3-4. KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Liquidations under the revenue act of 1936. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 648-50. CREDMAN J. S. New provisions with respect to
 - SEIDMAN, J. S. New provisions with respect to corporate liquidations. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 126-30.

Manufacturers

See Taxation, United States-Excise.

Mining industry

See Mining and metallurgy-Taxation.

Municipal

See also Municipal finance. BERLE, A. A., JR. Taxation and municipal

- TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Municipal-(Cont.)
 - finance. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 5-11. FRYE, ARNOLD. Taxes collected by or in aid of municipalities, as part of an integrated tax system. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 633-6.
 - MOHAUPT, ROSINA. Comparative tax rates of 279 cities. (reprinted from National municipal review, Dec. 1937.)
 MOHAUPT, ROSINA. Comparative tax rates of 294 cities, 1938. (reprinted from National muni-

 - 294 cities, 1938. (reprinted from National muni-cipal review, Dec. 1938.)
 MUNICIPAL finance officers' association of the United States and Canada. Municipal finance legislation, 1937: a digest, by Irving Tenner. Chicago III., Public administration service, 1938. 63p. (Public administration service publication no. 59.)
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. Problem of tax delinquency. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 396-8, 445-6.

Oil industry See Oil industry—Taxation.

Partnerships

- EDWARDS, CHARLES M. Partnership return of income. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 52-5
- S2-5.
 McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL AND FEIGEN-BAUM, B. J. Partnerships. (In their Income tax management for individuals under federal and California revenue acts. c1936. p. 265-75.)
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JA-COB, JR. Partnerships. (In their Law of fed-eral income taxation. 1934. v. 4, p. 1-47.)

Payroll

See Taxes-Payroll.

Penalty tax

CORDNER, JOHN J. Penalty tax on corporations improperly accumulating surplus. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1939, p. 1-10.

- Personal holding companies
 BREWSTER, KINGMAN. Is the undistributed income of foreign personal holding companies taxable to United States stockholders? Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 69-71, 112-4.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. 1937 revenue act (the loophole law), with explanation. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937. 48n
 - Asp. DAVIDSON, W. H. Digest of the revenue act of 1937. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1937, p.

 - di troit Diffed Construction of the internal point of the p

 - 223.

 - 223.
 SWEENEY, HENRY W. 1937 "tax loophole" act; accomplishment. (reprinted from the Georgetown law journal, March 1938.) p. 695-718.
 SWEENEY, HENRY W. 1937 "tax loophole" act; purpose. (reprinted from Georgetown law journal, Jan. 1938.)
 SWEENEY, HENRY W. 1937 "tax loophole" act: unfinished work. (reprinted from the George-town law journal, May 1938.)
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. (T.D. 4773) income tax—revenue act of 1937; regu-lations under title 2, relating to returns of in-formation with respect to foreign corporations. Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, Nov. 6, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages and form 959. and form 959.

- Processing DUDLEY, CLAUDE W. Refunds of processing taxes under title 7 of the revenue act of 1936. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 518-20, 549-50.
 - FERGER, WIRTH F. Windfall tax and process-ing tax refund provisions of the 1936 revenue act. American economic review, March 1937, p.

 - act. American economic review, March 1937, p. 45:60.
 GETZ, JOSEPH. Refunds of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (windfall) tax. New York certified public accountant, special issue, Nov. 1936. 26p.
 HARRISS, C. LOWELL. Federal commodity and service taxes expressed as percentages of retail price. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1937, p. 226-31.
 HUGHES, JOHN E. Constitutionality of processing tax refund limitations. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 5-7, 62.

 - p. 5-7, 62. KENDRICK, M. SLADE. Processing tax pro-visions of the AAA. Tax magazine, May 1936, 273-8.

 - p. 273-8.
 MONARCH, J. LOUIS. Projected new rules for appeals from the Board of tax appeals and the Processing tax board of review. Taxes-the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 399-400, 411.
 SANDERS, J. T. National significance of the agricultural processing taxes. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 163-80, discus-sion, p. 180-1.)
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Rules of practice and procedure before the United States processing tax board of review. Washing-ton, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 31p. 31p.

Property

- See also Taxation, United States-Community
- See also Taxation, United States—Community property.
 ALYEA, LOUIS F. Enforcement of real estate tax liens and constitutional barriers to remedial legislation for tax delinquents in each of the United States. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association, 1939. not paged.
 BLOOMENTHAL, LAWRENCE R. Tax exemptions—taxable status of public property. Tax magazine, Nov, 1937, p. 658-68, 692.
 BOWEN, HOWARD R. Overall limitation of property tax rates. Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1939, p. 108-13.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. General property tax—Problems of property taxation. (In his Public finance. 1936, p. 270-312.)
 COCHRAN, M. H. Accounting for property taxes. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 656-8,

- taxes. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 656-8, 682-3
- HAMBURG, ALEX M. Valuation of real property

- ⁶⁶²⁻³.
 ⁶⁶

- 453-4, 485-7.
- STUDENSKI, PAUL. Problem of tax delin-quency. Tax magazine, July 1936, p. 396-8, 445-6
- TALBOT, MINTON W. Unfair taxation of real estate. Tax magasine, Sept. 1936, p. 519-20.
 THRUN, F. M. Development of valuation stand-ards for rural property. (In National tax asso-ciation. Proceedings, 1937. p. 203-11.)

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Property-(Cont.)

WOLFBEIN, SEYMOUR L. Burden of property taxation. Bulletin of the National tax associ-ation, April 1939, p. 194-211.

Public salaries See Taxation, United States-Exemptions.

Public utilities

See Public utilities-Taxation.

Railroads See Railroads-Taxation.

Real estate See Taxation, United States-Property.

- Reorganizations See also Reorganizations AUSTIN, MAURICE. Reorganization under the revenue acts. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 220-9.)

 - 220-9.) COCHRAN, HOWE P. Reorganizations as af-fecting income. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937. p. 106-12.) CORPORATE reorganization to avoid payment of income tax. Yale law journal, Nov. 1935, p. 134-42. FISH CEORCE D.
 - FISH, GEORGE D. AND BUTLER, FRANCIS X. Tax relief provisions of the Chandler act. Credit and financial management, Nov. 1938, p. 0.11

 - Credit and financial management, Nov. 1938, p. 9-11. GREEN, EDWARD H. Reorganization under the revenue acts. (In American institute of ac-countants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 213-20.) KLEIN, JOSEPH J. Reorganizations under the revenue acts. (remarks of the discussion leader at round table discussion, at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf-Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 5 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 206-13.) LOGAN, HARRY L., JR. Priorities and lieu preferences accorded federal and state claims in corporate reorganizations. Tax magazine, April 1938, p. 201-6, 244-8. MAGILL, ROSWELL, Effect of taxation upon corporate policies; address before Academy of pultical science, New York city, November 9, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages. MILLER, ROBERT N. Income tax liability in reorganizations. Tax magazine, March 1936, p. 1314.

 - 131-4.
 - 1314. FRENTICE-HALL, INC. Capital adjustmeut-Reorganizations-Stock rights. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936, c1937, c1938, c1939. 2 v. loose-leaf. REORGANIZATION under the revenue acts; a round table. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 205-29.) Reprinted. 25p.

- Sales
 See also Taxation, United States—Excise.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. General commodity taxes and customs duties. (In his Public finance. 1936. p. 352-70.)
 CAVERLY, HARCOURT L. Scope and problems of state sales taxes. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1935. p. 148-61, discussion, p. 161-2.)
 CHISHOLM, LESLIE L. Effect of a retail sales of the various

 - 161-2.)
 CHISHOLM, LESLIE L. Effect of a retail sales tax on the economic resources of the various states. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1937, p. 178-9.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Sales tax laws; the complete texts of state sales, "use" and gross income tax laws of general applica-tion, February 1, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1936. 297p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Sales tax laws, western states; the full texts of the sales, use and gross income tax laws of the states west of the Mississippi, as of July 1, 1937. 206p. states west 1937. 206p.

- JACOBY, NEIL H. Retail sales taxation; relation JACOBY, NEIL H. Retail sales taxation; relation to business and consumers, and administrative problems. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, 370p.
 JACOBY, NEIL H. Status of state general sales taxes as of July 1, 1938. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 468-74.
 LOCKHART, WILLIAM B. Sales tax in inter-state commerce. Harvard law review, Feb. 1939, p. 617-44.
- 617-44
- p. 617-44. TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Reports TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Reports and recommendations regarding the personal income tax, the sales tax, the chain store tax, released April 5, 1937. New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. 16p.
 WARREN, WILLIAM C. AND SCHLESINGER, MILTON R. Sales and use taxes: interstate commerce pays its way. Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 49-79.
 WHERE a sales tax is productive. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 244.

Social security

See Social security; Taxes-Payroll.

- Stamp CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Stamp taxes. (In their Planning for tax econo-my. c1936. p. 441-63.)
 SINKER, JULIUS. Stamp taxes. (In his Mini-mizing securities taxes. 1936-1937. p. 115-35.)

- States
 ALYEA, LOUIS F. Enforcement of real estate tax liens and constitutional barriers to remedial legislation for tax delinquents in each of the United States. Chicago, Ill., Municipal finance officers' association, 1939. not paged.
 ARANT, ROSCOE. Business taxation in the southern states. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 339-42, 376-9, 384; July 1938, p. 403-6, 434-7.
 ARANT, ROSCOE. Place of business taxation in the revenue systems of the states. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 69-74, 310; July 1937, p. 69-74, 310; July 1937, p. 63-75; Sept. 1937, p. 527-32, 566; Nov. 1937, p. 658-68, 692.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. State income taxes. (In his *Public fnance*. 1936. p. 399-421.)
 CAVERLY, HARCOURT L. Scope and problems of state sales taxes. (In National tax association, Proceedings, 1935, p. 148-61, discussion, p. 161-2.)

 - 161-2.)
 CHISHOLM, LESLIE L. Effect of a retail sales tax on the economic resources of the various states. Bulletin of the National tax association, March 1937, p. 178-9.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Cor-portation tax service; state and local. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937, c1938, c1939. 59v. CLEARING HOUSE, NO. 4.

 - Commerce clearing house, inc., e1937, e1938, e1939, 59v.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Inter-dependent taxes; formulae and tables for com-puting federal and state income taxes where mutually deductible by corporations. ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house inc., e1939, 28p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Sales tax laws; the complete texts of state sales, "use" and gross income tax laws of general applica-tion, February 1, 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1936. 2970.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Sales tax laws, western states; the full texts of the sales, use and gross income tax laws of the states west of the Mississippi, as of July 1, 1937. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937. 206p

 - 206p.
 COMMUNITY property. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 245-6.
 CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. State and local taxes. (In their Planning for tax economy, c1936, p. 499-537.)
 FISH, GEORGE D. Federal and state taxation. Credit executive, Jan. 1937, p. 22-5; Feb. 1937, p. 57-9; March 1937, p. 88-90; May 1937, p. 152-4; June 1937, p. 185-6; July 1937, p. 218-9;

- TAXATION. UNITED STATES-States-(Continued)
 - AXATION, UNITED STATES—States—(Continued) Aug. 1937, p. 251-2; Oct. 1937, p. 315-6; Dec. 1937, p. 376-7.
 FORD, ROBERT S. Shifting trends in revenues of federal, state and local governments. (In National association of state auditors, comp-trollers and treasurers. Report of twenty-second annual convention. 1937, p. 40-7.)
 FOX, LEONARD P. Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the relocation of in-dustry; discussion. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 568-73.)
 FRYE, ARNOLD. Taxes collected by or in aid of municipalities, as part of an integrated tax system. Taxes—the tax magasine, Nov. 1939, p. 633-6.

 - 633.6

 - 633.6. I lates the law megabane, Novi 1903, p. 633.6.
 GENTRY, W. H. H. Double domicile in inheritance taxation. Taxes—the tax megazine, March 1938, p. 135.7, 152; Oct. 1939, p. 576-8, 598-600.
 GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. State taxation in general. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938, p. 315-39.)
 GROVES, HAROLD M. Effect of tax differentials and tax exemption upon the relocation of industry. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 557-68.)
 HAMLIN, SCOVILLE. Federal taxes as a menace to state sovereignty. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 57-66.
 - 574-6.

 - act to state sovereight. Tax magazine, Oct. 1956, p. 5746.
 HARRISS, C. LOWELL. State gift taxation—some statistical data. Bulletin of the National tax association, June 1939, p. 259-67.
 HARRISS, C. LOWELL. State taxation of gifts. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 720-39.)
 HUNTER, MERLIN H. Effects of taxation on the localization of industry. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 179-86.)
 HUNTER, MERLIN H. Problems in state taxation. Taxes—the tax magazine, June 1939, p. 3434, 366-7.
 JACOBY, NEIL H. Retail sales taxation; relation to business and consumers, and administrative problems. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938_370p.
- JACOBT, MELLI H. Relat Sales taxation, relation to business and consumers, and administrative problems. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938. 370p.
 JACOBY, NEIL H. Status of state general sales taxes as of July 1, 1938. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 408-74.
 LONG, HENRY F. State taxation faces the future. Tax magazine, Oct. 1938, p. 571-3, 604-7.
 MCBRIDE, L. M. Jurisdictional aspects of state income taxation. Taxes—the tax magazine, April 1939, p. 197-9, 238-46.
 MANNING, RAYMOND E. State tax legislation in 1937. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 722-7.
 MANNING, RAYMOND E. State tax legislation --1938. Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 771-3, 735-8.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Allocation of income be-tween states. (Correspondence) Certified public accountant, May 1938, p. 19-20.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Report of the committee of the National tax association on allocation of income; presented at the thirty-first national tax conference held at Detroit, Michigan, October 24-8, 1938. (Jourbia, S. C., National tax asso-ciation, 1938. 17p.
 NEW YORK (state). Tax commission. Special re-port of the state tax commission no. 10; assess-ment of real property in the United States, by Joseph D. Silverherz. Albany, N. Y., J. B. Lyon Co., 1936. 396p.
 NEWCOMER, MABEL. State tariff walls. Taxes— the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 509-11, 532, 540.
- 540
- 540. PEPPER, MORTON. Application of state fran-chise taxes to trustees in bankruptcy. Tax maga-sine, May 1936, p. 259-60, 316. PIERCE, DIXWELL L. Use by state authorities of federal income tax returns. Taxes—the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 637-40, 666. DOWNEL MORE PED Rusings: taxation
- POWELL, THOMAS REED. Business taxation and interstate commerce. (In National tax asso-ciation. Proceedings, 1937. p. 337-59.)
- PRENTICE-HALL, INC. Tax diary and manual for 1937. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1936. 350p. and diary 461p.

- Same, 1938, 404p. and diary 478p.
 PUTNEY, BRYANT. Coordination of federal and state tax systems. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937. p. 245-63.)
 RAWSON, ROBERT H. Judicial review of state chain store taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 396-8, 425-7.
 RETAILERS manual of taxes and regulations; a compendium of state and local laws and ordinances affecting retailers (with some federal data of importance to merchants). New York, Institute of distribution, c1938. loose-leaf.
 (REVENUE importance of tax measures adopted in New England: table) Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1939, p. 214-5.
 ST. JOHN, JOHN. Real property tax collection procedures. Tax magazine, June 1936, p. 326-30.
 SCHULMAN, WALTER H. Federal and state income taxes affecting real estate. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 138-40, 180.
 SNYDER, IVAN V. Taxation of insurance companies by the states. Tax magazine, June 1938, p. 335-8, 371.
 STEINER, GEORGE A. Tax system and industrial development. Urhana, III., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research. March 18, 1938. 46p. (Business research bulletin no. 57.) Bulletin of the National tax association, Jan. 1938, p. 98-110.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Recent state tax decisions of vital interest to the financial officer. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management cl2930, p. 44-52.

- STEMFF, VICTOR H. Recent state tax decisions of vital interest to the financial officer. (In Effects of governmental policies on financial management c1939, p. 44-52.)
 STRAYER, PAUL J. Possibilities of the state personal income tax. Tax magasine, Oct. 1938, p. 583-7, 618-25, 637.
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. Problem of tax delinquency. Tax magasine, July 1936, p. 36-8, 445-6.
 STUDENSKI, PAUL. Taxation of liquor. Tax magasine, July 1936, p. 36-8, 445-6.
 TUDENSKI, PAUL. Taxation of liquor. Tax magasine, July 1936, p. 36-8, 445-6.
 TALBOT, MINTON W. Unfair taxation of real estate. Tax magasine, Sept. 1936, p. 519-20.
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Comparative tax tables of the forty-eight states, 1938. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938, p. 87-246.)
 TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. 1936 supplement to Tax systems of the world. year book of legislative and statistical information, including all the states of the United States. ed. 6. Chicago, III., Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 23p.

- ing all the states of the United States. ed. 6. Chicago, Ill., Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 23p. TODD, EDWIN S. Highway maintenance taxa-tion. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 11-7. TODD, EDWIN S. State inheritance taxes. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 129-37, 178. TURNER, CLARENCE L. Report on compara-tive study of corporate taxes in fifteen indus-trial states; presented at twenty-first annual meeting, February 16, 1938, Pennsylvania state chamber of commerce, Harrisburg, Harrisburg, Pa., Pennsylvania state chamber of commerce, 1938. 30p. TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND. INC. Studies
- Fa., Fernsylvania state chamber of connerce, 1938. 30p.
 TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC. Studies in current tax problems, prepared in connection with survey of taxation in the United States under the direction of the Twentieth century fund, 1937. 303p.
- UNITED STATES. Census, Bureau of. Digest of state laws relating to net income taxes, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1920. 1922. 1938. 133p.
- WADE, HARRY H. Income-tax algebra. (Corre-spondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 69-71.
- p. 69-71.
 WARREN, WILLIAM C. AND SCHLESINGER, MILTON R. Sales and use taxes: interstate commerce pays its way. Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 49-79.
 WHITLOCK, BONITA MATTHEWS. State in-come taxes as applied to employees of the fed-eral alphabetical agencies. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 512-4, 567.
 VOUNCUUST C. AARON Relation of exercu-tion.
- YOUNGOUIST, G. AARON. Relation of execu-tors and administrators to state and federal in-heritance taxes. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 15-6, 54-5.

See Taxation, United States-Undistributed profits.

Surtax

- LEAHY, JAMES J. "70%"-distribution of profits under treasury decision 4914, section 102, internal revenue code. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1939. 69p. ROUNTREE, GEORGE V. Revenue act of 1939; its application to corporations with particular reference to curtar on improve accurations.
- reference to surtax on improper accumulations of surplus. Canner, Sept. 9, 1939, p. 13-4, 20. SEIDMAN, P. K. Effects of the corporation sur-tax. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 19-23, 54.

Transfer

- ransfer HARRISS, C. LGWELL. Federal commodity and service taxes expressed as percentages of re-tail price. Bulletin of the National tax association, May 1937, p. 226-31. MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Tax upon trans-fers to avoid the income tax. (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1936-1937. p. 1040-3.) TWEED, IIARISON AND SARGENT, CHRISTOPHER S. Death and taxes are cer-tain—but what of domicile. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939, p. 68-96.

Treasury stock TAXABILITY of transactions by a corporation in its own stock. Yale law journal, Nov. 1937, p. 111-21

Trusts

See Taxation, United States-Estates and trusts.

- Undistributed profits ADDITIONAL views as to accounting for un-distributed earnings tax. Controller, Sept. 1936, 198-201.
 - ALEXANDER PUBLISHING COMPANY, INC. How to reduce the undistributed profits tax; compiled from the Alexander federal tax service.

 - How to reduce the undistributed profits tax; compiled from the Alexander federal tax service. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 137p.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Capital gains and undistributed profits taxes; a suggested program. (In Investment bankers association of America. Twenty-sixth annual convention. 1937. p. 3071-3.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Capital gains and undistributed profits taxes; a suggested program. (In Investment bankers association of America. Twenty-sixth annual convention. 1937. p. 173-81; 191-215.) Tax magasine, March 1938, p. 145-50, 174-6, 183.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Current trends in federal finances and taxation; a discussion of the undistributed profits and the capital gains taxes. Tax magasine, June 1937, p. 315-23, 374.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Federal revenue legislation, the undistributed profits tax; an address before the Economic club of Chicago, February 18, 1937. 23p.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Surtax and its background; address before Round table: Surtax on undistributed corporate earnings at 25th annual meeting of the Chamber of commerce of the United States of America, 1937. 16 mimeographed pages.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Taxation of undistributed profits faxes, and taxes, and taxes of america, substrate or undistributed profits taxes and taxes of america, 1937. 16 mimeographed pages.

 - the United States of America, 1937. 16 mimeo-graphed pages.
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Taxation of un-distributed profits from the business point of view. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 90-112.)
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Undistributed profits tax. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 173-9.)
 ALVORD, ELLSWORTH C. Undistributed profits tax and stock dividends and stock rights. Jour-nal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 414-22. Re-printed 11p.
 BAKER, LESLIE W. Computation of surtax on undistributed profits. Daily record (Baltimore, Md..), Dec. 22, 1936.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Some phases of the undistributed profits tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, Nov. 1936, p. 46-54.

- BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Trend in taxes on dis-tribution. (In Boston chamber of commerce. Retail trade board. Boston conference on dis-tribution. 1937, p. 15-18.) BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Undistributed profits tax. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1937, 281p.

- tax. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1937. 281p.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Undistributed profits tax. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 451-3.
 BUEHLER, ALFRED G. Undistributed profits tax in the fiscal system. Harvard business review, Autumn number 1936, p. 19-28.
 CARMAN, LEWIS A. Corporation income taxes under the revenue act of 1936. Pathfinder service bulletin, Nov. 1936, p. 1, 3-8. Profit, Nov. 1936, p. 1, 3-6.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Taxes or dividends? Charts and formulas for determining corporation and undistributed profits taxes under the revenue act of 1936. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936, 18p. Originally published under the title "Charts and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and surtax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936."
 CONNIFF, EUGENE A. Surtax on undistributed profits. Modern finance, Oct. 15, 1936, p. 173-4.
 CONNIFF, EUGENE A. Surtax on undistributed profits—income producing. Modern finance, Nov. 1036 p. 207

- convise products prante, Oct. 13, 1950, p. 113-4.
 cONNIFF, EUGENE A. Surtax on undistributed profits—income producing. Modern finance, Nov. 1, 1936, p. 207.
 CORDNER, JOHN J. Penalty tax on corporations improperly accumulating surplus. L.R.B. & M. journal, Nov. 1939, p. 1-10.
 ELLIS, FRANKLIN C. Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Franklin C. Ellis. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 64.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Constant pressure on some companies to depart from sound principles. Controller, May 1937, p. 127-8.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Effect of the undistributed profits tax on corporation policies; address at spring conference of Controllers institute of America, New York City, April 29, 1937. 6 mimeographed pages.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Fernald discusses pro-

- tute of America, New York City, April 29, 1937. 6 mimeographed pages.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Fernald discusses proposed tax. Monthly bulletin, the New York state society of certified public accountants, April 1936, p. 2, 4.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Practical difficulties resulting from the artistic address hafter Bound
- sulting from the surtax; address before Round table: Surtax on undistributed corporate earn-ings, at 25th annual meeting of the Chamber of commerce of the United States, April 26-April 29, 1937, Washington, D. C. 9 mimeographed
- 29, 1937, washington, D. C. Therman, and an-pages.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Some questions and an-swers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Henry B. Fernald. New York certi-fied public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 55-6, 61.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Statement of Mr. Fern-ald presented to the finance committee on the revenue bill, May 4, 1936. 21 mimeographed pages.
- revenue bill, May 4, 1930. 21 mimeographieu pages.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Surtax on undistributed corporate earnings; practical difficulties encoun-tered in attempting to apply the tax on undis-tributed profits. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 447-50, 498.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Tax on undistributed profits imposed by the revenue act of 1936. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 22-45.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Undistributed profits tax

- New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 22-45.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Undistributed profits tax and its effect on credits. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 118-26.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Undistributed profits tax as a practical problem of business. (paper presented at meeting of Brooklyn chapter, National association of cost accountants, November 15. 1937.) 21 mimeographed pages.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. What tax on undistributed earnings would mean to corporations. Controller, June 1936, p. 130-5, 142.
 FIELD, KENNETH. Undistributed profits tax

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Undistributed profits -(Continued)

and business fluctuations. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 127-8. FIGART, DAVID M. Tax on undistributed profits.

- 1937, p. 127-8.
 FIGART, DAVID M. Tax on undistributed profits. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1936, p. 149-56.
 FINANCIAL interpreters at variance—Forced dissipation of surplus—No business can thrive without resources. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1936, p. 241-4.
 FISH, GEORGE D. Taxation; federal corporate surtax on undistributed earnings. Credit execu-tive, Aug. 1936, p. 234-5. (Reprinted under tile: Approach to taxation problems. p. 10-11.)
 GILBERT, DONALD W. Should the undis-tributed profits tax be repealed? Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 710-1, 755-6.
 GILBERT, DONALD W. Undistributed profits and business fluctuations. Tax magazine, Feb. 1938, p. 72-4, 120.
 GRAHAM, BENJAMIN. Undistributed profits tax and the investor. Yale law journal, Nov. 1936, p. 1-18.
 GREEN, EDWARD H. Some questions and an swers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Edward H. Green. New York certi-fied public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 56-61.
 GREEN, EDWARD H. Tax on undistributed profits imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Edward H. Green. New York certi-fied public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 26-54.
 GREENE, U. S. Problems arising from undis-
- 46-54. GREENE, U. S. Problems arising from undis-tributed earnings tax not unsolvable. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 279-82. HENDRICKS, HOMER. Surtax on undistributed profits of corporations. Yale law journal, Nov. 1936, p. 19-51.
- 1936, p. 19-51. HERDRICH AND BOGGS. Charts and formulas showing corporation normal income tax and surshowing corporation normal income tax and surtax on undistributed profits under revenue act of 1936. Indianapolis, Ind., Herdrich and Boggs, c1936. 18p. Also published as: Taxes or dividends? by Commerce clearing house.
 HERRICK, ANSON. Comments upon the undistributed profits tax of 1936. San Francisco bar, Feb. 1938, p. 11.4.
 HOFFMAN, LEO H. AND KNOX, ROBERT W. Liability for improper accumulation of surplus. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 200-3, 247.
 HOW tax on undistributed earnings will appear in accounts. Controller, Aug. 1936, p. 176-81.
 HULSE, JOHN K. Effect of the undistributed profits surtax on corporate expansion. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 515-6.
 HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON. Undistributed profits tax. (Correspondence) Journal of account.

- HUNT, BISHOP CARLETON. Undistributed profits tax. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 453-4.
 HUNTER, MERLIN H. Shall we tax corporations or business? American economic review, March 1936, p. 84-7. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1936, p. 237-43.)
 INSTITUTE committee testifies on federal tax proposals. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, May 15, 1936, p. 3-17.
 JONES, E. ROSCOE. Needed reforms in corporate taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 709-10, 760.
 KENDRICK, M. SLADE. Undistributed profits tax. Washington, D. C., Brookings institution, 1937. 108p.

- on the surfax on undistributed profits of cor-porations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Dr. Joseph J. Klein. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 63-4. LOWE, J. BLAKE AND WRIGHT, JOHN D. New surfax on corporations; what to do about it. Baltimore, Md., Munsey building. The authors, 1026
- 1936. 58p.
- LUTZ, HARLEY L. Principles of the undis-tributed profits tax. Bulletin of the National tax association, April 1938, p. 200-4.

- McLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL. Management of capital distributions under the revenue act of 1936. Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, 234457
- of 1936. JOHTAUL OF CALL AND FEIGEN-p. 334-57. MCLAREN, NORMAN LOYALL AND FEIGEN-BAUM, B. J. Tax on undistributed corporate profits. (In their Income tax management for individuals under federal and California revenue acts. c1936. p. 310-45.) COMPLET. Effect of taxation upon
- individuals under federal and California revenue acts. c1936. p. 310-45.) MAGILL, ROSWELL. Effect of taxation upon corporate policies; address before Academy of political science, New York city, November 9, 1938. 13 mimeorranhed pages

- corporate policies; address before Academy of political science, New York city, November 9, 1938. 13 mimeographed pages.
 MATTERSDORF, LEO. Some questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Leo Mattersdorf. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 61-3.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Federal taxing for 1937. New York Sun, Jan. 4, 1937, p. 34. Reprinted by the author. 1937. 12p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Proposed graduated taxes on undistributed corporate profits. New York, The author, 1936. 19p. (In his Twenty-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. v. 2, p. 229-62.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Revenue act, 1936; statement . . before committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fourth congress, second session on H.R. 12395; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes, May 6, 1936. 11p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Taxation in 1937: expecta-
- Washington, D. C., Government printing omce, 1936. 11p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Taxation in 1937; expecta-tions of returns from unsound tax legislation were proved unwarranted—the probability of substantial changes in the taxes on undistributed profits and capital gains. New York Sun, Jan. 8, 1020 5
- profits and capital game, free Yerr Son, game, 1938, p. 5.
 MEYER, CHARLES. Surtaxes on undistributed income imposed by section 102 and title 1A of 1938 revenue act. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 114-25.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Surtaxes on Visit and the contrast of corporations. (In his
- undistributed profits of corporations. (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1936-37. p. 697bis 761.)

- Federal income tax handbook, 1936-37. p. 697-761.)
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Tax on undis-tributed income. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 19-28.
 MORRIS, GEORGE MAURICE. New surtax on undistributed profits; its purpose, provisions, prob-lems, constitutional status, probable effect and future. Trust companies, July 1936, p. 25-8, 90.
 MUDGE, JAMES W. Federal surtax on undis-tributed corporate profits. (In Controllers insti-tute of America. Year book, 1937. p. 91-110.)
 MUDGE, JAMES W. Subscription rights plan declared best for retaining corporate funds. Controller, Oct. 1937, p. 272-81.
 NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Experience under the undis-tributed profits tax. Conference board bulletin, Oct. 13, 1937, p. 105-15.
 NELSON, GODFREY N. Taxation of corporate surplus. Tax magazine, Jan. 1937, p. 15-9, 63-4. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1936, p. 221-33.)
 ONE defender is discovered. (Editorial) Journal of accomtancy, Oct. 1936, p. 239-40.
 PATCH, BUEL W. Taxation of undistributed corporate profits. Washington, D. C., Editorial research reports, c1936. p. 203-20. (vol. 1, no. 11.)
 PROPOSAL to tax undistributed corporate profits
- no. 11.)
- PROPOSAL to tax undistributed corporate profits —Opposition wide-spread and insistent. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 401-3.
- PROPOSED tax on undistributed earnings of corporations. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, April 1936, p. 11-3. PROSNTZ, LUDWIG B. Corporate income for 1936 should be estimated by December first; "close" corporations and the new tax on undistributed profits. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 334-5.

TAXATION, UNITED STATES-Undistributed profits -(Continued)

- CAXATION, UNITED STATES—Undistributed profits —(Continued)
 RESERVES for unknowable taxes—A suggested method of accounting—A troublesome and futile tax. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1936, p. 164-6.
 RHAME, WILLIAM T. and CARY, WILLIAM LUCIUS. Some recent corporate solutions to the undistributed profits tax. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 486-96.
 SALVATORE, NICHOLAS. Corporate surtax on undistributed profits imposed by the revenue act of 1936. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 42-52.
 SCHULMAN, WALTER H. Undistributed profits tax avoidance after the Koshland case. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 703-5, 752.
 SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Dividend policy under the undistributed profits tax. Commercial and financial chronicle, Nov. 21, 1936, p. 321-36.
 SEIDMAN, FRANK E. Undistributed profits tax—suggested changes in law. Tax magasine, Feb. 1937, p. 79-82, 120.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Will the new undistributed profits tax affect credit? Credit and financial management, Aug. 1936, p. 10, 31, 33.
 SEIDMAN, P. K. Effects of the corporation sur-tax. Tax magazine, Jau, 1938, p. 19-23, 54.

- SEIDMAN, P. K. Effects of the corporation sur-tax. Tax magazine, Jan. 1938, p. 19-23, 54.
- SELTZER, LAWRENCE H. Undistributed profits tax. Tax magazine, July 1937, p. 391-97, 438. SHER, I. HERMAN. New corporation income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, c1936. 60p.
- SHOUP, CARL. Taxation of undistributed profits from the theoretical point of view. (In Tax policy league, inc. *How shall business be taxed?* c1937, p. 125-34.)
- SIMONS, HENRY C. Undistributed corporate earnings. (In his Personal income taxation. c1938. p. 185-204.)
- SMITH, JAMES G. Economic significance of the undistributed profits tax. American economic review, June 1938, p. 305-10.
- SOME questions and answers on the surtax on undistributed profits of corporations imposed by the revenue act of 1936, answered by Henry B. Fernald, Edward H. Green, Leo Mattersdorf, Joseph J. Klein and Franklin C. Ellis. New York certified public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 55-64.
- TAUB, WALTER A. AND OTHERS. Effects of social security and undistributed earnings taxes on corporate policy trends. New York, Amer-ican management association. 1937. 32p. (Finan-cial management series no. 51.) STAUB,

- cual management series no. 51.)
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. New factors in federal income taxation. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 242.70. Reprinted. 31p.
 STOCK dividends and the tax on undistributed profits. (from Utah C.P.A.) Certified public ac-countant, Aug. 1937, p. 20-2.
 TEBEAU, ROBERT L. Book earnings vs. "ad-justed net income"; a further report on the undistributed profits tax survey. Dun's review, March 1938, p. 15-6. 45. March 1938, p. 15-6, 45.
- TEBEAU, ROBERT L. Cost of surplus profits tax to large and small corporations. Dun's review, Jan. 1938, p. 21-2, 41.
- THORP, WILLARD L. AND GEORGE, EDWIN B. Appraisal of the undistributed profits tax. Dun's review, Sept. 1937, p. 5-36.
- UNDISTRIBUTED profit tax specific credit. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 493-4.
- WERTHEIM, MAURICE. Undistributed profits tax and what to do about it. (reprinted from Harpers magazine, Feb. 1938.)
- WHITE, EDWIN H. Undistributed profits tax-effect on business life insurance. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 597-99, 631.

WHITWORTH, C. R. Undistributed profits tax

-success or failure? Commerce, July 1937, p. 19-20, 62. WILLIFORD,

ILLIFORD, J. O. Surtax on undistributed profits. 29 mineographed pages.

Unemployment See Taxes, Payroll. Unjust enrichment

See Taxation, United States-Windfall tax.

Use WARREN, WILLIAM C. AND SCHLESINGER, MILTON R. Sales and use taxes: interstate commerce pays its way. Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 49-79.

Waterworks See Waterworks-Taxation.

- Windfall tax
 DUDLEY, CLAUDE W. "Windfall" tax levy. Tax magazine, Nov. 1936, p. 651-3, 695-6.
 EVANS, JOHN F. Unjust enrichment tax (windfall tax); presented at A.M.A. taxation and finance conference, Wednesday, December 2, 1936. 9 mimeographed pages.
 FERGER, WIRTH F. Windfall tax and process-ing tax refund provisions of the 1936 revenue act. American economic review, March 1937, p. 45-60.
 - 45-60.
 - p. 45-60. FISH, GEORGE D. Taxation; the windfall tax and refunds arising out of the A.A.A. as con-tained in the revenue act of 1936. *Credit execu-tive*, Sept. 1936, p. 261-4. (Reprinted under title: *Approach to taxation problems*. p. 20-3.) GETZ, JOSEPH. Refunds of processing and floor cracke taxes and the uniust enrichment (wind-

 - GETZ, JOSEPH. Refunds of processing and floor stocks taxes and the unjust enrichment (wind-fall) tax. New York certified public accountant, special issue, Nov. 1936. 26p.
 HUTCHINSON, O. N. Discussion of the "wind-fall tax" provisions of the revenue act of 1936, at meeting of members of the North Carolina association of certified public accountants at Charlotte, on September 17, 1936; discussion led by O. N. Hutchinson. 10 mimeographed pages.
 MAGATHAN, W. C. Windfall tax and refunds of AAA taxes. L.R.B. & M. journal, June 1936, p. 10-4.

 - p. 10-4.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. Tax on unjust enrichment, or "windfall tax". (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1936-1937. p. 1000-36.) (In his Federal income tax handbook, 1938-39. p. 882-922.)
 PHELPS, MASCHEK, AND RICHARDSON. "Windfall tax"—as affecting rice millers. Port Arthur, Texas, The authors, 1936. 2 typewritten nages.
 - pages.

TAXATION, VENEZUELA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Venezuela tax system as of October 31, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 342.)

TAXATION, VICTORIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Victoria state tax system as of January 1, 1936. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 255.)

TAXATION, WESTERN AUSTRALIA TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Western Australia state-and-local tax system as of Janu-ary 1, 1936. (In its *Tax systems of the world.* c1938. p. 256.)

Income

- ncome
 HAYES, W. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1938, p. 337-50.
 KING, C. H. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 49-54.
 MALE, THOMAS. Western Australian state in-come tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, April 1939, p. 677-83.
 MEAGHER, F. W. Western Australian state in-come tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Sept. 1938, p. 189-201.
 MORRIS, E. E. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Sept. 1938, p. 189-201.
 MORRIS, E. E. Western Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 468-77.

TAXATION, WESTERN AUSTRALIA-Income-(Continued)

- (Continued) RUSHTON, R. F. Western Australian state in-come tax assessment act, 1937; leases. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1938, p. 403-11. STEWART, H. C. Western Australian state in-come tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Oct. 1938, p. 275-83. WESTERN Australian state income tax assess-ment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Feb. 1939, p. 556-66; March 1939, p. 599-610. 599-610.

- TAXATION, YUKON TAX RESEARCH FOUNDATION. Yukon terri-torial-government tax system as of July 1, 1937. (In its Tax systems of the world. c1938. p. 283.)
- TAXATION—a divertissement—To compute a tax on undistributed income—Simplification by high-er mathematics. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, May 1936, p. 323-7.
- TAXATION affecting life insurance. Prentice-Hall, inc.
- TAXATION and capital investment. Magee, James D.
- TAXATION department; edited by Francisco Dalu-pan. Philippine accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 31-3.

TAXATION in Britain. Makin, F. Bradshaw.

TAXATION in Eire. Accountant, tax supplement, March 26, 1938, p. 139; May 27, 1939, p. 203.

- TAXATION in the Irish Free State. Accountant, tax supplement, Nov. 6, 1937, p. 477-8.
- **TAXATION** in the Irish Free State—professions: wear and tear. Accountant, tax supplement, June 26, 1937, p. 274.
- **TAXATION** in the Union of South Africa. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 29, 1938, p. 491-2, Nov. 5, 1938, p. 495-6; Nov. 12, 1938, p. 507-8; Nov. 19, 1938, p. 515; Nov. 26, 1938, p. 54.

TAXATION of small incomes. Strayer, Paul J.

TAXATION of undistributed corporate profits. Patch, Buel W.

TAXES

- AXES See also Tax evasion and avoidance.
 ACCOUNTING for tax expense. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 15-6.
 ACCOUNTING PUBLISHING ASSOCIATES. Brief on tax economy. New York, Accounting publishing associates, c1939. 20p.
 ARISMAN, GEORGE M. Federal and state in-come taxes as an element of cost. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, p. 385-98.)
 BALEVSKY BORIS Accountant and taxes (Cor-

- I, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, p. 385-98.)
 BATEVSKY, BORTS. Accountant and taxes. (Cor-respondence) Certified public accountant, Sept. 1937. p. 35-6.
 BARRETT, S. J. Taxation accounting. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 33-5.
 CALDWELL, EUGENE. Twenty ways to cut taxes. American business, June 1937, p. 11-3, 60.
 COCHRAN, M. H. Accounting for property taxes. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 656-8, 682-3.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Inter-dependent taxes; formulae and tables for com-puting federal and state income taxes where mutually deductible by corporations. ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 28p.
 COOPER, WALTER A. Controlling the differences between corporate accounting and tax accounting. (In National tax association. Round table dis-cussion, Monday, October 24, 1938.) (In Na-tional tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 147-55.)

Same. 13 mimeographed pages.

- CORDLE, O. M. Preparation and presentation of information required in connection with federal income tax returns and related schedules. (paper presented at Mountain states accounting confer-ence of the American institute of accountants, at Salt Lake City, June 1, 1938.) 9 typewritten
- pages. DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Business enter-

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Business enterprise as tax collector and taxpayer. Dun's review, July 1939, p. 8-25, 49.
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Survey of taxes paid by business in 1938. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., December 1939. 40p. Dun's review, April 1938, p. 8-20.
 DUTLES of a junior taxman, by one who is. Tax magazine, Sept. 1938, p. 527-8.
 EATON, MARQUIS G. Organization for compliance with taxing statutes; control factors in corporation's cost of administering tax laws discussed. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 214-7, 247. 247

- discussed. Tax magazine, April 1937, p. 214-7, 247.
 ELLIS, FRANKLIN C. Deductions for accrued taxes. Tax magazine, April 1936, p. 197-8.
 FEDERAL taxes in interim statements. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, Nov. 16, 1936, p. 18-9.
 FERNALD, HENRY B. Accounting records as related to income tax returns; opening presentation at round table discussion, Monday, Oct. 24, 1938, of National tax association, at Detroit. 6 mimeographed pages. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938).
 FISH, GEORGE D. Planning and effecting tax economies; some suggestions for reducing taxes under the 1936 federal revenue act. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 328-33. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems. 5p.) Accounting forum, May 1937, p. 2-5.
 GREENWOOD, J. M. Do auditors pay enough attention to income tax? Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1936, p. 66-71.
 INCOME taxes in corporation reports. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1997.

- INCOME taxes in corporation reports. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1937, p. 227-8. KRACKE, EDWARD A. Inventories and taxes. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 369-76. KUNZE, HARRY L. Priority of taxes under the
- bankruptcy act. Accounting review, June 1936,

- bankruptcy act. Accounting review, June 1950, p. 125-9.
 LASSER, J. K. Your income tax. New York, Simon and Schuster, 1939. 128p.
 LAYMAN, WILLIAM M. Income tax deduction of federal and state social security taxes. Tax magazine, Dec. 1937, p. 719-21, 761.
 LEBRUN, HARVEY. Consumers' taxes v. income taxes. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 600-2.
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Receivers, trustees and taxes. (reprinted from New Jersey law journal, June 9, 1938.)
 MARGULIES, WILLIAM. What can we do about our income taxes? (Talk given November 18, 1937, before the Ironbound manufacturers association, Newark, N. J.) 2 typewritten pages, clarts and forms.
- belore the Prohobinal manufacturers association, Newark, N. J.) 2 typewritten pages, charts and forms.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY. Policyholders service bureau. Centralized control of tax work in business organizations. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. (1938) 32p.
 MORRIS, JAMES W. Tax cases from the government's point of view. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 269-71.
 POTTER, SAMUEL I. Priorities—wages and taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 399-400.
 PRENTICE-HALL, INC. 1939 social security amendments explained. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., c1939. 18p.
 PROSNITZ, LUDWIG B. Corporate income for 1936 should be estimated by December first; "close" corporations and the new tax on undistributed profits. Credit executive, Nov. 1936, p. 334-5.

- 334-3. REMINGTON, PAUL E. Incidence of taxes— visible and invisible. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 2, section 1, p. 97162. 87-105.)

TAXES-(Continued)

- RENO, EDWIN S. Bonus problems under the revenue act of 1938. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 240-1. RENO, EDWIN S. AND BUTSCHER, W. CHARLES. Computation of interdependent fed-
- KENO, ELDWIN S. AND BOUSCHER, W. CHARLES. Computation of interdependent federal and Pennsylvania income taxes. Land title building, Phila., Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Nov. 14, 1939. 9 typewritten pages.
 RETAILER'S manual of taxes and regulations; a compendium of state and local laws and ordinances affecting retailers, edited by John P. Nichols. New York, Institute of distribution, inc., c1937. loose-leaf.
 S.E.C. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 96-7.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND BOLING, CLEM. Accounting for taxes. (In their Secretarial accounting. SMART, ALLEN R. Evolution of the Board of tax appeals. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 303-7.
 SOCIAL interest in accounting. (Editorial) Jour-

- SMART, ALLEN R. Evolution of the Board of tax appeals. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 303-7.
 SOCIAL interest in accounting. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 77.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. Extensions of time for filing income tax returns. Certified public accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 2-5.
 TARLEAU, THOMAS. Agreements obtainable relating to current or future taxable year. Controller, Nov. 1938, p. 330-1, 334-7.
 TAX return extensions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 85-6.
 TOWNS, CHARLES H. Planning for tax economy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1496-510.) Printed with: McCaffrey, George D. Accounting control at the New York world's fair.
 Same. 10 mimeographed pages.
 TREATMENT of real estate taxes on non-operating timberland. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, section 2, p. 783-6.)
 TURNER, R. S. Effect of accounting methods on income tax liabilities. Chartered accountant, in Australia, July 1937, p. 37-43.
 TYSON, BUCHANAN. Bonus problems under the revenue act of 1938. Journal of accounting, p. 94-105.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charging losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 1, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNSEEN burden of taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, p. 6, 133, p. 37-43.
 WALD, SAMUEL. Minimizing taxes. Credit executive, Dec. 1936, p. 372-3.

Accounting

- BIRD, ROLAND. Standardization of tax treat-ment in accounts. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 282.3
- BJORK, E. I. Methods of accounting for taxes. American gas association monthly, June 1939, p. 227-9.

- 227.9. COCHRAN, HOWE P. Accounting. (In his Scientific tax reduction. 1937. p. 217-27.) McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOWARD S. Taxation. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 757-82.) MILLS, HARRY B. Accounting for taxes. Path-finder service bulletin, Aug. 1937, p. 6-7.
- NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST COUNTANTS. N.A.C.A. research study; AC. prac-
- COUNTANTS. N.A.C.A. research study; practice in accounting for taxes paid by manufacturing companies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 3, sec. 3, p. 179-208.)
 OREGON STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. Report of committee on taxation, on accounting treatment of Oregon real and personal property taxes. Portland, Ore., Oregon state society of certified public.

lic accountants, Oct. 24, 1938. 7 mimeographed

- pages. PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Individual working papers for income-tax returns of individuals. (In his Audit Working papers, 1937, p. 374-98.) SERGEANT, H. G. Discuss the advantages and disadvantages of the various methods of dealing with income tax in annual accounts. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 218-9.
- student and Accountants journae, 100. 100.
 p. 2189.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Accounting procedure. (In his Federal tax accounting. c1936. p. 219-50.) (In his Federal tax accounting. c1938. p. 247-75.)
 SWEENEY, CHARLES T. Treatment of prepaid sales tax receipts. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 453-4.
 TAGGART, H. F. Treatment of prepaid sales tax receipts. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 300-1.
 TREATMENT of prepaid sales-tax receipts. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July

- counting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 63-4.
- Payroll AHRMANN, H. A. Accounting under the social security act. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1937. p. 353-73.)
 BENGE, EUGENE J. How the employer can reduce unemployment taxes. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1938, 200 102 116
 - advancement of management journal, May 1938, p. 99-102, 116. COLE, R. W. E. Accounting for social security taxes. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938, p. 143-9.) COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Fed-eral and state unemployment insurance (navroll
 - COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Federal and state unemployment insurance (payroll taxes); explanation of the law, federal social security act, federal regulations, charts and forms. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 123p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. New York and federal unemployment insurance (payroll taxes). ed. 2. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., June 1936. 192p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Official regulations regarding federal old-age benefits (payroll taxes). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. Sop.
 COUNCILOR, JAMES A. Social security taxation. Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 244-52.

 - 244-52. CRAFTS, J. ANDREW. Employers' accounting under the social security act. New York certi-fied public accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 10-21. CROW, WILLIAM H. AND GREENE, U. S. Federal payroll taxes. (In their Planning for tax economy. c1936. p. 423-6.) DONOVAN, W. LEONARD. Merit-rating study. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 110-22.) Printed with: Voegele, Albin B. and Towns, Charles H. Cost accounting for federal agencies.
 - accounting for federal agencies. FAVINGER, CALVIN E. AND WILCOX, DANIEL A. Social security taxation and rec-ords. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1939. WILCOX. 1939. 649p
 - FIRST forms and instructions under New York unemployment insurance act. Controller, Jan.

 - unemployment insurance act. Controller, Jan. 1936, p. 13-5. FISH, GEORGE D. Social security act. Credit executive, Dec. 1936, p. 360-3. (Reprinted under title: Approach to taxation problems.) FORM SS-1.a makes appearance: to be filed April 30. Controller, April 1938, p. 100. GREEN, WILLIAM RAYMOND. Social security taxes in the United States. (In his Theory and practice of modern taxation. c1938, p. 340-3.) HALL, W. VINCENT. Pay-roll taxes and their accounting treatment. Profit, March 1936, p. 1.2.4.

 - JANIN, HARRY. New provisions of the federal unemployment tax. Taxes—the tax magazine, Oct. 1939, p. 563-65, 606-9. JOHNSON, C. EDGAR. Social security act. National auditgram, Oct. 1939, p. 6-11, 17-9.

TAXES-Payroll-(Continued)

- KixMILLER, WILLIAM. Foundation guide for
- Chicago, Ill., Foundation proceeding 224p. LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Social security legislation; a practical guide to payroll tax procedure and records. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, c1938, 70p. MARGULIES, WILLIAM. Independent con-tractors; status under the payroll-tax laws. Taxes-the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 464-6, 498-9. Reprinted. 5p.
- 1 area-the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 404-0, 498-9. Reprinted. 5p. MARPLE, R. P. Theory and practice with respect to payroll taxes. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2 420.

- to payroll taxes. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 178-9.)
 METHODS of charging social security taxes discussed by controllers. Controller, April 1936, p. 83-8, 99-100.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COST ACCOUNTANTS. Research and service department. Practice in accounting for payroll taxes; compiled by Research and service department. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 24, section 1, p. 1365-90.)
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIATION. Controllers' congress. Social security bulletin, no. 19, November 11, 1936; explanations and interpretations of the official regulations 91, relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under title 8 (old-age benefits) of the social security act. 14 mimeographed pages.
 ODOM, WILLIAM E. How should unemployment compensation costs be handled? New York, National association of cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PAYNE, RAYMOND. Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PAYNE, RAYMOND. Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PAYNE, RAYMOND. Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PANNE, RAYMOND. Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accounting for federal agencies.
 PANNE, RAYMOND. Payroll taxes as labor costs. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 177-8.)
 PROSNITZ, LUDWIG B. Accounting requirements under federal and state social security laws. New York certified public accountant, July 1937, p. 22-7.
 RACHLIN, M. L. Some effects of the social security taxe
- 157-8.
 RACHLIN, M. L. Triplicate taxes; small corporations and the federal social security act. *Profit*, May 1936, p. 1.
 RICE, LLOYD P. Financing social security by means of payroll taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. *How shall business be taxed1* c1937. p. 135-53.)
 ROBERTS, FRANCIS V. AND KAMPH, H. N. Pathfinder course in social security accounting
- ROBERTS, FRANCIS V. AND KAMPH, H. N. Pathfinder course in social security accounting. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., 1938. Lessons and practice assignments—2949. Laboratory material—forms.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Taxes—cost accounting's best salesman. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 7, section 1, p. 375-84.)
 SHERWOOD, J. F. Social security and payroll tax accounting. Cincinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., cl937. loose-leaf.
 SHERWOOD, J. F. AND PENDERY, JOHN A. Social security and pay-roll tax accounting. Cin-cinnati, Ohio, South-western pub. co., cl939. 235p.
 UNITED STATES. Summary of provisions of

- UNITED STATES. Summary of provisions of the federal social security act relating to un-employment compensation, federal grants to states, old-age benefits and federal employment taxes. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 3p.

UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-

lations 90 relating to the excise tax on em-ployers under title 9 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office,

- Washington, D. C., Government printing omce, 1936. 66p.
 UNITED STATES. Treasury department. Regu-lations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under tile 8 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 54p.
 WILLYS, A. Brief summary of social security regulations and records. *Profit*, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8.

TAXES. Kelly, Lincoln G.

TAXES and American progress. Kelly, William J.

- TAXES as an element of cost; round table discus-sion. (In National association of cost accoun-tants. Year book, 1939. p. 145-70.)
- TAXES - cost accounting's best salesman. Seidman, J. S.
- **XES** or dividends? Charts and formulas for determining corporation normal and undistributed profits taxes under the revenue act of 1936. Commerce clearing house. TAXES or
- TAXES. taxes, everywhere, to drive us all to drink. Steinemann, Robert.

TAXICABS

See also Motor transportation.

- Accounting SELTZER, HAROLD G. Taxicab ac Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 14-5. accounting.

 - CONNECTICUT. Public utilities commission. Uniform system of accounts for taxicab opera-tions, first issue, effective Jan. 1, 1932. Hart-ford, Conn., Public utilities commission, 1932.
 - tord, Conn., Puone utilities commission, 1952.
 27p.
 UNITED STATES. Interstate commerce commission. Uniform system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of passengers, subject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935. Issue of 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Washington, D. C., United States. Interstate commerce commission, 1937. 121 mimeographed pages.
- TAXING government securities and salaries; reprint of a radio discussion by John W. Hanes and others . . Feb. 19, 1939. New York, Burland printing co., inc., c1939. 19p.

TAYLOR, D. R. How much does it cost to make a main extension? Water works and sewerage, Nov. 1938, p. 1047-8.

TAYLOR, DON H.

Reaching the first agreement under collective bar-gaining. Society for the advancement of manage-ment journal, Sept. 1937, p. 130-3, 139.

TAYLOR, EDWY L. No hard and fast rules for depreciation reserve. Public utilities fortnightly, July 6, 1939, p. 18-26.

TAYLOR, GEORGE W. Factual approach to industrial arbitration. Arbitra-tion journal, Oct. 1938, p. 343-7.

TAYLOR, GEORGE W., joint author See Davis, Hiram S. and others.

TAYLOR, H. P. What the engineer and accountant can do about original cost and continuing property records. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 29-30, 35.

TAYLOR, HARRY Job analysis. Cost and management, May 1936, p. 140-5.

TAYLOR, HARRY A.

Studies of operating costs for securing manage-ment business. National real estate journal, March 1937, p. 43-5.

TAYLOR, HARRY E. Audit reports and the banks. Journal of accoun-tancy, Sept. 1937, p. 200-2. Indian accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 53-4.

TAYLOR, HERBERT Audit of sharebrokers' accounts. Chartered accoun-tant in Australia, Nov. 1937, p. 318-41.

TAYLOR, JACOB B.

- AYLOR, JACOB B.
 Education for the accountant. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 373-79.)
 Valuation of fixed assets and principles related to write-ups and write-ins. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 17-20.)
- TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANN C. C.P.A. problems and questions in theory and audit-ing. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., ed. 2. 1939. 701p.

Intermediate accounting. ed. 2. New York, Mc-Graw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 667p.

TAYLOR, JAMES W.

Inventory valuation of public manufacturing com-panies; a summary of the round table discussion held at the annual meeting of the association 24th August 1939, prepared by the chairman, James W. Taylor. Canadian chartered accoun-tant, Nov. 1939, p. 334-41.

TAYLOR, PAUL C.

Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of stand-ard costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulle-tin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 517-27.)

TAYLOR, ROBERT T.

Distributions by corporations under the revenue act of 1936. Daily record (Baltimore, Md.), Dec. 22, 1936.

TAYLOR, W. F. Hotel book-keeping. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 595-608.

- TAYLOR, WILLIAM J. Accounting specialists. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 150-1.)
- TAYLOR v. The institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales. Certified accountants journal, Aug. 1937, p. 250-2. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 423-5.
- TAYLOR v. The institute of chartered accountants in England and Wales, in the court of appeal --5th July 1937. Accountant, July 17, 1937, p. 75-9.

TEA

See Coffee and tea.

TEA ROOMS See Restaurants, cafes, etc.

TEACHING OF ACCOUNTING See Education.

TEAD, ORDWAY Joint management research as an aid to collective bargaining. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1939, p. 68-72, dis-cussion, p. 72-3, 84.

TEBBUTT, R. E. New South Wales stamp duties (amendment) act, 1939. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 340-3.

- TEBEAU, ROBERT L.
 Book earnings vs. "adjusted net income"; a further report on the undistributed profits tax survey. Dun's review, March 1938, p. 15-6, 45.
 Cost of surplus profits tax to large and small corporations. Dun's review, Jan. 1938, p. 21-2, 41.
 Dividend policies during the depression. Dun's review, April 1938, p. 7-12.
- TECHNICAL matters. (Legal notes) Greeley, Har-old Dudley, editor.
- TECHNICAL program of the thirteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. Michigan, Uni-versity of. School of business administration, Bureau of business research.
- TECHNIQUE of industrial control. Peden, Robert w.

TEELE, STANLEY F. See Harvard university. Graduate school of business administration, Bureau of business research.

TEELE, STANLEY F., joint author See McNair, Malcolm P., Gragg, Charles I., and Teele, Stanley F.

TEEVAN, JOHN C. C.P.A. commercial law examinations. American law school review, April 1936, p. 452-7. Account-ing review, Sept. 1936, p. 229-33.

TEITELBAUM, EDWARD

Goldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comptroller's office of the city of New York, 1938. Lecture 9, May 5, 1938.)

TELEGRAPH See Telephone and telegraph.

- TELEPHONE AND TELEGRAPH
 TELEPHONE listings. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 18-9; May 1938, p. 18.
 UNITED STATES. Federal communications com-mission. Proposed report; telephone investigation (pursuant to public resolution no. 8, 74th con-gress) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 792p.
 WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Public utility industries. 1936. p. 272-364.

Accounting

- Uniform methods and systems ALABAMA. Public service commission. General rules for electric, gas, water, telephone and telegraph utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Montgomery, Ala., Public service commission, 1036 600 1936. 69p. AMERICAN utilities and asset values.

- AMERICAN utilities and asset values. Accoun-tant, May 1, 1937, p. 610-2. Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1937, p. 24-7. BICKLEY, JOHN H. Original cost in utility accounts. (Correspondence) Journal of accoun-tancy, April 1937, p. 292-3. COURT decision on "original cost." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 7. COURT decision on uniform accounts for tele-phone companies. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 55-64. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 629-32.

TELEPHONE AND TELEGRAPH—Accounting—Uni-form methods and systems—(Continued)

- form methods and systems—(Continued) telephone utilities. Public utilities fortnightly, March 18, 1937, p. 26-31. "ORIGINAL cost" in utility accounts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 86-8. UNITED STATES. Federal communications com-mission. Telephone division. Order no. 7-D; amendments of Uniform system of accounts for telephone companies, issue of June 19, 1935, effective January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Federal communications commission, 1937. 8 minecorraphed nages.
- mimeographed pages. UNITED STATES. Federal communications com-mission. Order no. 7-E; amendment of Uniform system of accounts for telephone companies, issue of June 19, 1935, effective January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Federal communications commission, June 16, 1937. 2 mimeographed
- UNITED STATES. Federal communications commission. Order no. 31; amendment of Uniform system of accounts for telephone companies, issue of June 19, 1935, effective January 1, 1936.
 Washington, D. C. Federal communications commission, Jan. 11, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 UNITED STATES. Federal communications commission. Uniform system of accounts for class C. telephone companies, prescribed by the Federal
- mission. Uniform system of accounts for class C telephone companies, prescribed by the Federal communications commission in accordance with the provisions of the communications act of 1934, effective January 1, 1939. Washington, D. C., Federal communications commission, 1938. 96
- rederal communications commission, 1938. 96 mimeographed pages. /EST VIRGINIA. Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for telephone com-panies, effective January 1, 1937, with amend-ments and revisions as of January 17, 1938. Charleston, W. Va., Public service commission. WEST
- Charleston, W. Va., Funct service commission. 1938. 140p.
 WISCONSIN. Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for telephone utilities (class C), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1936. 62p.

Depreciation

See Depreciation, depletion and obsolescence-Telephone and telegraph.

- Government regulation and control
 BROWN, THAD H. Federal telephone regulation. Public utilities fortnightly, July 8, 1937, p. 3-11.
 WHEAT, CARL I. Regulation of interstate telephone rates. Harvard law review, March 1938, p. 846-83.
 WHEAT, CARL I. Structure and regulation of interstate telephone rates. Public utilities fort-nightly, Oct. 28, 1937, p. 583-604.
- Valuation

 - aluation
 AMERICAN utilities and asset values. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 610-2. Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 24-7.
 COURT decision on uniform accounts for telephone companies. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1937, p. 55-64. Accountant, May 1, 1937, p. 629-32.
- TELEPHONE listings. Certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 18-9; May 1938, p. 18.
- TELFER, A. F.
 - Sales analysis as a medium of managerial con-trol. Cost and management, Nov. 1939, p. 328-34.
- TELLING half the truth—Investors beguiled by silence—Truth must be intelligible. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 403-6.
- sighted manufacturers are giving intimate details in annual statements. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 1-2. TELLING your story to your employes; many far-

TEMPEST, W. F. Sewerage financing, modern methods and experi-ence. Water works and sewerage, Jan. 1939, p. 37-9.

TEN-YEAR book, 1897-1906. New York state society of certified public accountants.

TENNENT, H. C. Budgeting for small businesses. Pathfinder service bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 1, 3-8.

- TENNER, IRVING See also Municipal finance officers' association of

 - See also Municipal innance officers' association of the United States and Canada. Common errors in financial reports. Municipal finance, Feb. 1937, p. 70-1. Manual of water works accounting. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 184-6.
- TENNESSEE. STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY. Annual register, January 1, 1938. Nashville, Tenn., State board of accountancy, 1938. 36p. Directory, certified public accountants and public accountants of Tennessee, July 1, 1936, registered in accordance with the law (code of Tennessee, 1932, section 7083-7097). Nashville, Tenn., State board of accountancy, 1936. 15p.

TENNESSEE, UNIVERSITY OF Accounting manual for counties of Tennessee, by W. H. Read. Knoxville, Tenn., University of Tennessee, July 1938. 127p. (University of Tennessee record, vol. 41, no. 4.)

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS Directory of membership, 1938-1939. Roster of membership, December 31, 1935.

- TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY GLAESER, MARTIN G. Those joint TVA costs. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 31, 1939, p. 259-69.
- TENNEY, HAROLD A. Foreign department audit and procedure. National auditgram, May 1938, p. 8-9, 16.
- TENTATIVE statements of accounting principles affecting corporate reports. American accounting association. Executive committee.

TENTS

See Canvas goods.

TERESHTENKO, VALERY J. AND OSTROLENK. BERNARD

Literary development of coöperative principles and data. (Division of "Study of co-operation" pro-ject, . . U. S. Works progress administration for the city of New York.) ed. 2. New York, Co-operative project, Oct. 1938, 42p.

TERMINAL cost accounts for use by local authorities. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 277-80. Cost and management, April 1937, p. 112-9.

TERMINALS

See also Ports.

- Accounting RAYMOND WALTER. Marine division (terminal facilities and marine equipment). (In his Handbook of petroleum accounting. 1938. p. 451-8.)
- **TERMINATION** of the existence of a company. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 207-11; Jan. 1939, p. 277-9.
- TERMINATION report form adopted by Oregon unemployment commission. Controller, June 1936, p. 143-5.

TERMINOLOGY

- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Report of the committee on terminology. (In its 1935 year book, p. 326-7; 1936 year book, p. 477-8; 1937 year book, p. 494-5; 1938 year book,
- p. 124-31.) DEFINITION of "expenditure." Certified public accountant, March 1937, p. 16.

TERMINOLOGY-(Continued)

- TERMINOLOGY—(Continued)
 DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Terminology department. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1937, p. 62-5; Aug. 1937, p. 136-8; Sept. 1937, p. 221-5; Oct. 1937, p. 294-8; Nov. 1937, p. 404-7; Dec. 1937, p. 476-82; Jan. 1938, p. 57-60; March 1938, p. 208-10; April 1938, p. 309-11; May 1938, p. 409-11; July 1938, p. 75-8; Aug. 1938, 159-60; Sept. 1938, p. 235-7; Oct. 1938, p. 394-5; Dec. 1938, p. 476-8; Jan. 1939, p. 67-9; Feb. 1939, p. 145-7; March 1939, p. 225-7; April 1939, p. 306-7; May 1939, p. 69-71; Aug. 1939, p. 453-4; July 1939, p. 69-71; Aug. 1939, p. 145-8; Nov. 1939, p. 373-5; Dec. 1939, p. 444-6.
 DOMINION ASSOCIATION OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. Committee on accounting terminology. Accounting terminology for Canadian practice. (reprinted from the Canadian chartered accountant.) Toronto, Dominion association of chartered accountants, June 1938. loose-leaf.
 FITZGERALD, A. A. Accounting terminology. (In Australasian congress on accounting. Pro-ceedings, 1936. p. 133-55, discussion, p. 156-72.
 FJELD, E. I. Balance sheet classification and terminology. New York, The author, 1936. 2189, FJELD, E. I. Classification and terminology of individual balance-sheet items. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 330-45.
 GOETZE, PETER. Fachausdrucke des rechnungs-
- Terminology. New YOR, The author, 1930, 2189.
 FJELD, E. I. Classification and terminology of individual balance-sheet items. Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 30-45.
 GOETZE, PETER. Fachausdrucke des rechnungs-wesens, des prüfungs- und treuhandwesens (tech-nical forms of accounting and verification) Ber-lin, Dr. Peter Goetze (1938). various paging.
 GRAHAM, BENJAMIN AND MEREDITH, SPENCER B. Definitions of financial terms and phrases. (In their Interpretation of financial statements. 1937. p. 91-122.)
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY. Definition of current assets. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-conntancy, Oct. 1938, p. 262-3.
 INSTITUTE OF COST AND WORKS AC-COUNTANTS. Costing terminology. Cost ac-conntant, March 1937, p. 178-85.
 MOREY, LLOYD. "Fund" and "appropriation". Illinois municipal review, Jan. 1937, p. 13.
 NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTING. Municipal accounting termi-nology for state, municipal accounting state-ments, 1936. p. 131-56.) (In League of Cali-fornia municipalities. Financial reports of muni-cipalities. 1938, p. 62-92.) (In Langer, Charles H. Accounting principles, c1937, c1938. p. M103-M111.)
 NEUNER, JOHN J. W. Basic cost accounting terminology. (In his Cost accounting, train-cipalities. 1938, p. 20-34.)
 WHAT is borrowed capital? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 7-8.
 ERENCE, IRWIN
 Tatalwart Mina and Marker A.

TERRENCE, IRWIN Installment selling procedure for a medium size department store. Balance sheet, Oct. 1938, p. 19, 20-2.

TERRITORIES See States.

TESTIMONY

See Evidence.

TESTIMONY OF EXPERT WITNESSES See McKesson & Robbins, inc.

TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hear-ings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 350-63. New York certified public accountant, April 1939, p. 313-36; May 1939, p. 380-400; June 1939, p. 437-51.

TESTING

- CARMICHAEL, GEOFFREY. Objective tests in accounting. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 315-7
- SCHMIDT, LEO A. Testing the tests. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 317-20.

TETON, ALFRED B.

revised. Yale law review, Feb. Reorganization rev 1939, p. 573-609.

- TEWKSBURY, C. L. How to audit mortgage loans. Bankers monthly, Jan. 1938, p. 7-8, 50-2.
- TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS
- COUNTANIS Report of the committee on rules of professional conduct; presented at the annual meeting of the Texas society held in San Antonio, Oct. 6, and 7, 1939. Texas accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 1, 3-4. Roster of membership, 1938, with historical sketch to 1938. 35p. Year book, 1939. 54p.

- TEXT books. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 193-4.
- TEXT of commodity exchange act—measure provides regulation for trading in major commodity mar-kets similar to that exercised by SEC over securities. Commercial and financial chronicle, June 27, 1936, p. 4245-8.
- TEXT of farm credit act of 1937 as enacted into law—amends various farm credit measures. Com-mercial and financial chronicle, Aug. 28, 1937, p. 1325-8.
- TEXT of the Robinson-Patman price discrimination law. L.R.B. & M. journal, Sept. 1936, p. 14-16.
- TEXTILE costing; an aid to management. Lock-wood, Jeremiah and Maxwell, Arthur D.

TEXTILE FACTORS

See Factoring; Finance companies.

TEXTILE industries in the last half of 1935; part 1-the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. United States. Federal trade commission.

TEXTILES

- See also names of various textiles, e.g. Cotton;
- See also names of the second s
- a study of the operation of an individual enter-prise. Washington, D. C., Textile foundation, inc., 1938. 210p. DAVIS, HIRAM S. AND OTHERS. Vertical integration in the textile industries. Philadel-phia, Pa., University of Pennsylvania, Wharton school of finance and commerce, and the Tex-tile foundation, inc., 1938. 132p. KENNEDY, STEPHEN JAY. Profits and losses in textiles; cotton textile financing since the war. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 2570.
- war. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 257p. SUTTON, R. A. Costing the dyeing and printing of textile fabrics. *Cost accountant*, May 1936, p. 367-73.

Accounting INCORPORATED ACCOUNTANTS' RE-SEARCH COMMITTEE. Textile manufacturers. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 300-1.

Budgeting BALDERSTON, C. CANBY AND KARABASZ, VICTOR S. Control of the entire business through the use of a budget. (In their Manage-ment of a textile business. 1938. p. 189-99.)

- Cost accounting BLYTH, J. R. Cost control in textile manufacture. Cost accountant, Feb. 1936, p. 272-7. LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH AND MAXWELL, ARTHUR D. Textile costing; an aid to manage-ment. Washington, D. C., Textile foundation,
 - ment. Washington, D. C., lexitle roundation, inc., 1938. 282p.
 PEARSON, LISTER M. Cost problems in selling in the textile industry, from a salesman's view-point. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 4-8.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

TEXTILES-Cost accounting-(Continued)

- DRATT, HORACE L. Departmental cost records. Textile world, Jan. 1938, p. 100-1.
 WASTE in woolen textile mills. (Questions and answers) (N.A.C.A. bulletin, March 1, 1939, v. 20, no. 13, section 2, p. 871-3.)
- Costs
- osts UNITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1—the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washington, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936. 34p.
- Statistics
- BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Statistics used in fore-casting. (In his *Practical credit analysis*. c1939. p. 81.)
 - p. 81.) UNITED p. 81.) NITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1—the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washington, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936. 34p.

THEISINGER, EARL F. Capital investment that became a capital invest-ment. Bus transportation, Sept. 1937, p. 398-401.

THEISS, EDWIN L. Beginnings of business budgeting. Accounting re-view, March 1937, p. 43-55.

- THEOBALD, A. D. Operating budgets for associations. Savings and loans, May 1938, p. 9-10, 12-5.
- THEORIES and practice. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 316-21.
- THEORY and mechanics of accounting. Schmidt, Leo Α.
- THEORY and practice of modern taxation. Green, William Raymond.
- THEORY and practice with respect to payroll taxes. (Forum section) Marple, R. P.
- THEORY of hotel room rates. Meek, Howard Bagnall.
- THEORY of real property valuation. Jerrett, Her-man Daniel.
- THESE 136 companies earn profits, good years and bad; check list of ten-year profit-makers shows names, addresses, kind of business, advertising and distribution policies of 136 companies which have earned an annual profit for all the past ten years despite conditions. American businest Nov years despite conditions. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 21-4.

THESES

See Accounting theses.

THEY said it with inventories. Foulke, Roy A.

- THIBAULT, RAYMOND L. Bank service charges. New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. builletin, v. 17, no. 12, section 1, p. 691-701.)
- THIN markets. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 1-2.
- THIRD national accounting conference. Edison elec-tric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 505-9.
- THIRD quarter riding best in five years. Bus trans-portation, Dec. 1937, p. 578-82.
- THIRTEEN MONTH YEAR See Calendar.
- THIS blessed language. Richardson, A. P.

"THIS blessed language." (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, April 1939, p. 198.

THIS goodwill. (from Commerce journal, Auckland, N. Z.) Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Aug. 1939, p. 965-9.

- THIS schedule helps cut auto expenses. business combined with "System," M American March 1936, p. 33.
- THOMAS, GEORGE G. See American management association.
- THOMAS, H. J. General problems in works organization. Cost ac-countant, July 1937, p. 44-5.
- THOMAS, K. H. Valuation of unquoted shares. Federal accountant, March 1939, p. 82-6; April 1939, p. 139-44.
- THOMAS, P. S. Exchange equalization account. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, April 1936, p. 235-7.
- THOMAS, R. C. L. Organization of an accountant's office. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 431-35. Ac-countant student and Accountants' journal, Oct. 1938, p. 176-9. Accountant, Sept. 17, 1938, p. 402-5.
- THOMAS, ROSCOE L. Federal income taxation. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 15-20.
- THOMES, RUSSELL F.

Accounting and audit reports as an aid to manage-ment. National auditgram. May 1936, p. 1, 10-11.

THOMPSON, DONALD S. Trends of bank earnings and expenses. Journal of the American statistical association, June 1938, p. 327-33.

- THOMPSON, GEORGE M. Relation of the public accountant to the small busi-ness and certain aspects of the tax laws affect-ing such business. (address before Arizona state society of certified public accountants at Phoenix, November 12, 1937.) 14 typewritten pages.

THOMPSON, HOWARD S. Oil inventories accounting. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 23-36.

THOMPSON, JAMES C. Alberta under a social credit government. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 17-23. Social credit. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 115-24; March 1937, p. 247-58.

- THOMPSON, R. R. Debt of culture to commerce. Canadian chartered accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 48-60. Development of the profession of accounting in Canada; paper read at the 5th International con-gress on accounting. Berlin, September 1938. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 171.86 171-86.
 - Matters affecting the accountancy profession. (In V. internationaler prifungs- und treuhand kon-gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 53-69.)
 - Some suggested reforms to the Dominion companies act. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 188-204.

THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY

Accounting systems, their design and installation. Chicago, Ill., LaSalle extension university, 1936. 737p.

THOMSON, G. R. Arbitration in Scotland and England. (accountants journal, Sept. 1939, p. 274-8. Certified

THOMSON, HENRY M. Internal auditing for trading and manufacturing concerns. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletim, v. 17, no. 15, section 1, p. 836-45.) Printed with: Bodman, G. T. Internal auditing for a large oil company.

THOMSON, J. C. Accountancy—a career or qualification. California certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 3-4.

THOMSON,

HOMSON, METELLUS, JR., BALL, GEORGE W. AND WRIGHT, JOHN A. Federal income taxation of rentals collected by a mortgage receiver. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 511-6, 558-9.

THOMSON, W. H. What does the commercial banker expect of the independent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 27-30.)

THOMSSEN, ROHLAND H.

Practical cost-cutting methods for the operative builder. National real estate journal, July 1937, p. 32-4.

THORP, WILLARD L.

- Accounting for the Robinson-Patman act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year (In National
- book, 1937. p. 6-27.) Efficiency and greater profits may come from Robinson-Patman act. Controller, Oct. 1936, p. 275-9.

- 275-9.
 Note on cost under the Robinson-Patman act. Dun's review, Nov. 1937, p. 25, 47.
 Possible effects of the Robinson-Patman act on business practices. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 1-2.
 Price discrimination and cost. Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1937, p. 183-6.

THORP, WILLARD L. AND GEORGE, EDWIN B. Appraisal of the undistributed profits tax. Dun's review, Sept. 1937, p. 5-36. Check list of possible effects of the Robinson-Pat-man act. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1036 220 22p. 1936.

THORP, WILLARD L. AND OTHERS Economic problems in a changing world. New York, Farrar and Rinchart, inc., c1939. 820p. Questions based on *Economic problems in a chang-ing world*. New York, Farrar and Rinchart, inc., 1939. 38p.

THORPE, N. W., joint author See Critchley, T. P. and Thorpe, N. W.

THOSE very naughty accountants—A rather petulant critic—A business man should understand ac-counts. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1936, p. 235-7. Indian accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 25-6.

THOUGHTS on depreciation. Barrows, Douglass M.

THREAD Statistics

- atistics UNITED STATES. Federal trade commission. Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1—the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washington, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936. 34p.
- THREAT of inflation of the currency. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 161-2.
- 3 good bonus plans. American business combined with "System," Aug. 1936, p. 17.
- THREE methods of reporting payrolls offered New York concerns. Controller, Jan. 1937, p. 6-8.
- THREE tested methods of basing automobile allow-ances. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 35-8.

- **THREE** useful reference charts on the new taxes. American business combined with "System", Aug. 1936, p. 30, 32.
- THREE years of the securities act. Law and con-temporary problems, Jan. 1937, part 1; April 1937, part 2.

THROOP, ALLEN E. AND LANE, CHESTER T. Some problems of exemption under the securities act of 1933. Law and contemporary problems, Jan. 1937, p. 89-127.

THROWING INDUSTRY See Silk.

THRUN, F. M. Development of valuation standards for rural property. (In National tax association. Proceed-ings, 1937. p. 203-11.)

THURSTON, TROY G.

Some current income tax problems; address before South Bend chapter, National association of cost accountants, South Bend, Indiana, October 18, 1938. 14 typewritten pages.

TILE

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of tile contractors. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 61.)

TILL, IRENE

Fiction of the quoted price. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 363-74.

TIME

- See Hours of labor; Period; Time studies; Timekeeping.
- TIME for filing tax returns. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 7.

TIME-saving requisition forms. Norris, Clinton J.

- TIME STUDY BARNES, RALPH M. Motion and time study. New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1937.

 - New York, John Wiley and sons, inc., 1937. 2955. BERGENDAHL, E. C. Time studies reduce costs. Laundry age, Jan. 1939, p. 32. BLACK, J. E. Time study and economic balance. Factory management and maintenance, June 1936, p. 209-10, advertising page 36-7. CARROLL, PHIL, JR. Timestudy for cost con-trol. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 305p.

 - trol. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938, 305p.
 COURTNEY, JAMES L. Time study and the accountant. Accountant, Sept. 2, 1939, p. 307-8.
 HOLMES, WALTER G. Applied time and motion study. New York, Ronald press co., c1938, 335p.
 LOWE, GORDON. Relation of time study with cost accountancy. Cost and management, Oct. 1938, p. 272-4.
 - LOWE, GONDON. Relation of time study with cost accountancy. Cost and management, Oct. 1938, p. 272-4.
 POLLOCK, KENNETH W. Use of therblig times for rate setting. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 35-40.
 PRESGRAVE, RALPH. Effort rating. Advanced management, Fall 1939, p. 126-33.

TIMESTUDY for cost control. Carroll, Phil, Jr.

TIME to retire? Bus transportation, Feb. 1939, p. 94-6.

TIMEKEEPING

- IMEKEEPING
 TAYLOR, PAUL C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 517-27.)
 ZASTROW, L. E. Record-keeping under the social security act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 76-99, discussion n 99-101.)
- sion, p. 99-101.)

TINGLE, W. P. Simple stock card system gives you the operating facts you need to know. Furniture record, Sept. 15, 1938, p. 12-3, 47-8.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

TIPPING, J.

- municipal accounts with special reference Audit of to mechanical accountancy. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, April 1937, p. 243-8.
- TIPPING as a factor in wages. Accountant, Nov. 19, 1938, p. 687-8.

TIRES

- Statistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of battery, ignition and tire stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no.
 - stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 34, 34a, 34b.) UNITED STATES. Works progress administra-tion. Selected information on manufacturers of tires and other rubber products, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of Ameri-can listed corporations, a Works progress ad-ministration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, March 1939. 63p. (Re-port no. 5)

TITHES

NESBITT, ROBERT C. Tithe settlement re-viewed. Accountant, Nov. 7, 1936, p. 626-32.

TITUS, WALTER F.

- Analysis of selling and distributing costs. (In Na-tional association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 222-8.)
- Production planning. Cost and management, Dec. 1936, p. 354-7.
- TO what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Byrne, Gilbert R
- TO what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? Greer, Howard
- TO what extent can the practice of accounting be reduced to rules and standards? A round table. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 231-64.)
- TO what extent is the last-in, first-out plan being adopted? National association of cost accoun-tants. Research and technical service department.

TOBACCO INDUSTRY

- Cost accounting CURLE, J. A. Distribution costing, with special reference to the tobacco and printing trades. *Cost accountant*, Nov. 1939, p. 132-9. MULLEN, E. Material costing and control in process industries. *Cost accountant*, Sept. 1939, p. 20000 2000
 - p. 92-5.
- Inventories
 - COTTER, ARUNDEL. How tobacco firms treat inventories. Barron's, Nov. 20, 1939, p. 8, 10.

Statistics

- UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of cigar, cigarette and tobac-co stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report DUN

- co stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 76.)
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of cigar stores. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 73.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesalers of cigars, cigarettes, and tobacco. (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 26-7.)
 MAXWELL, LLOYD W. Tobacco, beverages and confections. (In Sloan, Laurence H. and others. Two cycles of corporation profits. 1936. p. 309-42.) 42.)

TOBIN, AUSTIN J. Federal taxation of state and local bonds. Taxes —the tax magazine, Nov. 1939, p. 621-4, 686-8.

TOBIN, CHARLES J. "Model' tax law for New York state. Tax maga-zine, Feb. 1936, p. 81-4, 122-3.

TOBLER, DAVID

Analyzing foreign bank statements. Bankers maga-zine, July 1938, p. 7-32.

TODD, EDWIN S.
Double taxation. Tax magazine, Sept. 1936, p. 528-32.
Field of public finance and taxation. Tax magazine, Dec. 1936, p. 723-30, 756, 758.
Highway maintenance taxation. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 11-7.
Ideal tax system. Tax magazine, June 1936, p. 334-40, 384.
State inheritance taxes. Tax magazine, March 1937, p. 129-37, 178.

TODD, G. R. Soap manufacturing costs. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 422-4.

TODD, GEORGE F. Evolution of the law relating to limited company accounts. Accountant, Sept. 5, 1936, p. 333-8; Sept. 12, 1936, p. 359-61.

TODMAN, FREDERICK S. Address before Association of stock exchange firms, senior margin clerks' section. New York, Asso-ciation of stock exchange firms, Nov. 25, 1938.

24p. Analysis of stock brokerage statements, prepared for Robert Morris associates, New York chapter. New York, The author, 1936. not paged.

TOLLES, N. A. AND LaFEVER, M. W. Wages, hours, employment, and annual earnings in the motor-vehicle industry, 1934. Monthly labor review, March 1936, p. 521-53.

TOLLEY, A. H. Controlling the finances of a large business. Aus-tralian accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 207-14. Figure gauges in department stores. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1937, p. 119-30.

- TOLLEY, CHARLES H., compiler
 Tolley's complete income tax, sur-tax, etc.; chart manual of rates, allowances and abatements for 1936-1937 and previous years back to 1842-43... and (as supplement) Irish Free State taxation and relief. London, Waterlow and sons, Itd., 1936. 949. and supplement.
 Tolley's complete income tax, sur-tax, etc.; chartmanual of rates, allowances and abatements for 1938-1939 and previous years back to 1842-43... and (as supplements) Irish Free State taxation and relief, and synopsis of "N.D.C." (revised) London, Waterlow and sons, Itd., 1938. 969. and supplement.

TOLLEY, W. EARLE Contingent liabilities and assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 301-2.

TOO much interest in interest. Frank, Jerome N.

TOOL MANUFACTURERS

TOOL MANUFACTURERS Cost accounting AMORTIZING cost of special tools, dies and pat-terns. (Questions and answers) New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, June 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 19, section 2-Forum section-p. 1264-5.)

Costs

GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of tool costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 360-77.)

Statistics

tatistics FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of hardware and tool manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 50, 76, 100, 125, 176-7.) (1937 ed.—p. 51, 79, 105, 132, 192-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability, c1936. p. 30-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 30-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 22-3.)

528

- TOOTELL, G. C. Company management under the Victorian com-panies act, 1938. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, May 1939, p. 747-69. Share transfers; procedure for registration. Char-tered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 204.01
 - 384-91.

TOOTHILL, PERCY Accountants and the armaments phase. Accoun-tancy, Aug. 1939, p. 412-3.

TOPEKA modernizes its accounting. Agard, R. F.

TORBET, ALBERT W. Need for unified and coördinated effort in the development of a statement of the principles underlying the practice of accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual institute on accounting... May 19, 20, 1939. p. 5-15.)

TORNBORGH, BERT V. Accounting methods for operative builders. tional real estate journal, Aug. 1938, p. 32-5. Na-

- tional real estate journal, Aug. 1938, p. 32-5. Accounting procedure for property managers. Na-tional real estate journal, May 1939, p. 24-7. Constructive accounting for the realty office. Na-tional real estate journal, July 1939, p. 26-9. Important depreciation ruling may bring big tax savings. National real estate journal, Dec. 1939, p. 14.
- p. 14. Installment account procedure for sub-dividers. National real estate journal, Sept. 1938, p. 24-6.

TORRENCE, GERALD A.

Accounting for truck operations. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1087-1106.)

TORY, WILLIAM S.

OK1, WILLIAM 5. Accounting for municipalities with respect to un-negotiated debentures and debenture principal and interest in default. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Feb. 1936, p. 104-17. Capital account section of a municipal balance other found in chartered accountart Servi 1936.

sheet. Canadian chartered accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 175-82.

TOTAL costs. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, Feb. 1938, p. 720-4.

TOTH, LOUIS

Maintenance, improvements, and profits; address delivered at the convention of the New Jersey hotel association, Atlantic City, April 26, 1939.
 Horwath hotel accountant, May 1939, p. 3-5.
 Man who starts rate-cutting. Horwath hotel accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 5-6.

TOURIST CAMPS See Camps.

TOWARD higher educational standards. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 403-5.

TOWEY BILL

- OWER BILL to repeal. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 101-4. SECTION 340. (Editorial Journal of accoun-tancy, Jan. 1938, p. 2-3.

TOWNER, J. A.
 Municipal affairs. Cost and management, March 1936, p. 66-75.
 Municipal finance. Canadian chartered accountant, March 1938, p. 170-6.

- TOWNS, CHARLES H. Accountants' reports. 8 typewritten pages. Ac-counting forum, Nov. 1939, p. 9-12

 - Accountants teamwork on inventories. Accounting ledger, Dec. 1939, p. 4-5, 36. Auditors' examinations of accounts receivable; address at Eastern four-states accounting con-ference, Atlantic City, N. J., May 19-20, 1939. 15 mimeographed pages.

- Comments on N. A. bill no. 3301. Philippine accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 169-77.
 Examination of accounts receivable. Journal of accountancy, March, 1939, p. 148-53.
 Planning for tax economy. New York, National association of cost accountants, Aug. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 23, section 1, p. 1496-510.) Printed with: McCaffrey, George D. Accounting control at the New York world's fair.
- TOWNS, CHARLES H., joint author See Voegele, Albin B. and Towns. Charles H.

TOWNSEND, CHARLES

Holding companies and their accounts. Accoun-tants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 691-4; Feb. 1936, p. 748-51.

TOY manufacturers operating ratios of thirty-one concerns, 1935. Dun & Bradstreet, inc.

TOYS AND NOVELTIES

Cost accounting CODE authority for the toy and plaything industry. Outline of cost system for the toy and playthings industry. New York, code authority for the toy and plaything industry. no date. 7p.

Statistics

- tatistics DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Toy manufac-turers operating ratios of thirty-one concerns, 1935; prepared for the annual convention of toy manufacturers of the U. S. A., inc., Decem-ber 10-11 (1936). New York, Dun & Bradstreet, inc., c1936. 22p. FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of toys and novelties manufacturers. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 52, 78, 102, 127, 180-1.) (1937 ed.-p. 53, 81, 107, 134, 196-7.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936, p. 34-5.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938, p. 34-5.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 24-5.)

TRACTORS AND TRAILERS

Cost of operation TANDEM axled Diesel tractor and trailer costs. *Power wagon*, May 1937, p. 34.

TRADE

See Commerce; Export and import trade; Mer-chandising; Retail trade; Wholesale trade.

TRADE ACCEPTANCES See Acceptances.

TRADE AGREEMENTS

- BAKER, HELEN. Industrial relations executive and collective bargaining. Society for the ad-vancement of management journal, July 1939, p. 105-7.
- FELLER, ALEXANDER AND HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to deal with organized labor. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 664p. GLBERTSON, H. S. Management and collective bargaining. Harvard business review, Summer
- bargaining. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1933, p. 385-99. GREENBERG, MORRIS. How to operate under a collective agreement. Society for the ad-vancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, 7,12 7-12. p. 7-12. GREENE,
- REENE, JAMES H. Challenge of collective bargaining to industrial training. Society for the advancement of management journal, Sept.
- HOE accounter for a management format, sept. 1937, p. 134-9.
 HOEBER, HELEN S. Collective bargaining by united electrical radio and machine workers. Monthly labor review, July 1938, p. 67-77.

TRADE AGREEMENTS—(Continued)

- NIXON, R. A. Appropriate collective bargaining units; National labor relations board decisions. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1939, p. 317-25.
 ROBBINS, E. C. Collective bargaining under

- p. 31-25.
 p. 31-25.
 ROBBINS, E. C. Collective bargaining under the Wagner labor act. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1937, p. 393-405.
 SLICHTER, SUMNER H. Contents of collective agreements; the wisdom of hindsight. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 13-20, discussion, p. 20-1, 28.
 TAYLOR, DON H. Reaching the first agreement under collective bargaining. Society for the advancement of management journal, Sept. 1937, p. 130-3, 139.
 TEAD, ORDWAY. Joint management research as an aid to collective bargaining. Society for the advancement of management journal, May 1939, p. 68-72, discussion, p. 72-3, 84.

ADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES IN NEW YORK CITY TRADE

- Conference proceedings on Robinson-Patman anti-discrimination act, Hotel Pennsylvania, New York, N. Y., Wednesday, July 8, 1936. 80p. Federal antitrust laws and related acts affecting interstate commerce. New York, Trade asso-ciation executives in New York city, January 1027 200 1937. 39p.

TRADE ASSOCIATION SERVICE See Automobile manufacturers association.

- TRADE ASSOCIATIONS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on cooperation with trade associations. Report of the special committee on cooperation with trade associations. (In its 1937 year book. p. 503-6.) CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. Classified list of trade and allied associations and publications in the city of New York. (April 15, 1937) New York, Chamber of commerce of the state of New York, 1937. 18p.

 - of commerce of the state of New York, 1937. 18p. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Financing a trade association. Washington, D. C., Chamber of Commerce of the United States, (1937). 23p. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Trade association activities; a classification and statistical survey of the activities and services of 500 associations. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of

- of the activities and services of 500 associations. Washington, D. C., Chamber of commerce of the United States. no date. 16p. COOPERATION with trade associations. Certi-fed public accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 14. HEINDORFF, E. W. Secretaryship of trade, in-dustrial and professional organizations. Bris-bane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educa-tional society (incorporated), Aug. 1937. 29p. KIRSH, BENJAMIN S. AND SHAPIRO, HAROLD ROLAND. Trade associations in law and business. New York, Central book co., 1938. 399p.
- 399p
- 3990.
 OLIPHANT, HERMAN. Trade associations and the law. Dun's review, Nov. 1938, p. 7-18.
 RODGERS, FRANK G. Corporate accounting and the trade association; address before the 17th annual convention, Texas state manufacturers association, June 16, 1937. 2 typewritten pages.
- Accounting CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Specimen classifica-tion of expense accounts. (In its *Financing a trade association*. (1937), p. 23.)

Budgeting

- udgeting CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. Budgets and budget procedure. (In its Financing a trade association (1937), p. 3-10.) CREAN, RAYMOND B. Budgets of trade asso-ciations; round table discussion on non-profit

institutions accounting. New York certified puo-lic accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 106-7.

TRADE associations in law and business. Kirsh, Benjamin S. and Shapiro, Harold Roland.

TRADE DISCOUNT

See Discount.

TRADE.INS

Accounting HARTMAN, DAVID. Accounting for reposses-sions and trade-ins. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 267-72.

TRADE MARKS

- RADE MARKS
 See also Patents, copyrights, etc.
 BUSINESS executive's handbook, edited by Stanley M. Brown. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 1281p.
 See index under Trade marks.
 GAULT, EDGAR H. Fair trade, with especial reference to cut-rate drug prices in Michigan. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1939. 54p. (Michigan business research, 1930, 54p. (Michigan business research, 1930, 54p. (Michigan business rudies, v. 9, no. 2.)
 MOORE, FRANK S. Legal protection of goodwill; trade marks—trade emblems—advertising—unfair competition. New York, Ronald press co., c1936. 218p.
- 218p.

- TRADE UNIONS FELLER, ALEXANDER AND HURWITZ, JACOB E. How to deal with organized labor. New York, Alexander pub. co., inc., c1937. 664p. TRADE unions abroad. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 284-5. VICKERS, GEOFFREY. Legal obstacles to in-dustrial integration. Accountant, Nov. 20, 1937, or 605-9.
 - p. 695-9.

Accounting

- WARD, A. E. AND SWEETINGHAM, C. R. Trade union accounting and financial administra-tion. London, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons, ltd. (1936).
- TRADE unions abroad. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Nov. 1938, p. 284-5.

TRADING BUSINESS

- See Merchandising; Retail trade; Wholesale trade.
- TRADING profits and case 6 assessments—what is a trade? Accountant, tax supplement, Jan. 2, 1937, p. 15-6.

TRAFFIC

See Transportation.

TRAILERS

See Tractors and trailers.

- TRAINING American accountants. (Correspondence) New York state society of certified public accountants.
- **TRAINING** American accountants. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 211-2.
- **TRAINING** for college and university business ad-ministration. American council on education. Financial advisory service.
- TRAINING the be McGladrey, I.B. beginner in public accounting.
- TRANSCRIPT of a radio discussion dealing with the question of cooperation between lawyers and accountants; station WICC, Bridgeport, Conn., November 11, 1937. New York, American in-stitute of accountants, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages.

TRANSFER COMPANIES

See Express companies; Trucking.

530

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

TRANSFER TAXES

- See Taxation, United States-Transfer; Taxation, United States-States.
- "TRANSLATION" of foreign currencies, Chinlund, Edwin F.

- TRANSPORTATION See also Electric and street railroads; Freight; Motor transportation; Railroads; Ships and ship-

 - Motor transportation; Raintoaus, Sups and Supping.
 GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Control of traffic department costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry. c1937. p. 428-47.)
 WHITE, ARTHUR F. Cost finding in transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin v. 20, no. 16, section 1, p. 1031-40.)

Great Britain

BURGIN, LESLIE. Transport problems. Ac-countant, Feb. 11, 1939, p. 185-8.

TRAVELING EXPENSES

- KAVELING EXPENSES
 INTERNAL audit of traveling expenses. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Feb. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 11, section 2, p. 667-70.)
 LIMITED survey of stores air travel policies and buyers' traveling allowances. Balance sheet, Oct. 1939, p. 13, 15.

TRAYLOR, ORBA F.

- Critique of Koshland v. Helvering. Tax magazine, Aug. 1938, p. 453-4, 492, 504. Taxation of economic surplus. Tax magazine, Jan. 1936, p. 23-6, 58.

TRAYLOR, ORBA F. AND DICKERSON, THOMAS M.

Allocation of stock dividends; chaotic state of trust accounting law under Pennsylvania rule. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 697-701.

- TRAYNOR, ROGER JOHN Administrative and judicial procedure for federal income, estate, and gift taxes—a criticism and a proposal. Columbia law review, Dec. 1938, p. 1393-435.
 - Declaratory rulings. Tax magazine, April 1938,
 - p. 1957. Tax decisions of the supreme court 1937 term. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 22-51.)

TRAYNOR, ROGER JOHN, joint author See Maguire, John M. and others.

TREASURERS

See Corporations-Officers.

TREASURY DEPARTMENT

See United States. Treasury department.

TREASURY department. (Notes of the mon Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 118-9. month)

TREASURY STOCK

See Stock-Treasury.

- TREATISE on bankruptcy for accountants. Banks, Charles S.
- TREATMENT of bond discount. (Correspondence) Little, Arthur S.
- TREATMENT of bond discount. (Correspondence) York, Thomas.
- TREATMENT of discount on bonds. (Correspond-ence) Carman, Lewis A.
- TREATMENT of discount on sale of stock. (Ac-counting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1937, p. 295-6.
- TREATMENT of dividends. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1937, p. 455-9.

- TREATMENT of oncost in cost a countant, Oct. 23, 1937, p. 558-61. accounts. Ac-
- TREATMENT of premium on general liability policy. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 458-9.
- TREATMENT of prepaid sales tax receipts. Sween-ey, Charles T.
- **TREATMENT** of prepaid sales-tax receipts. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 63-4.
- TREATMENT of real estate taxes on non-operating timberland. (Questions and answers.) New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 13, sec-tion 2, p. 783-6.)
- TREATMENT of reserve for contingencies. (Account-ing questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 373-4.
- TREMAINE, MORRIS S. Capital gains tax. Tax magazine, Sept. 1937, p. 517, 567.

- TREMPER, EDWARD P., JR. Defalcations in the making. Certified public ac-countant, Aug. 1936, p. 482.
 Primary and secondary responsibility. (In Amer-ican institute of accountants. Papers on audit-ing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939, p. 134-6.)
 Single v. multiple trusts—some observations. Taxes —the tax magazine Aug. 1939 p. 463, 499
- -the tax magazine, Aug. 1939, p. 463, 499.
- **TREND** of business in hotels. (see each issue of *Horwath hotel accountant.*)
- TREND of laundry costs—Annual laundry cost figures for 1937. (In Laundry year book, 1938, p. 176-7.)
- TRENDS in current receipts and expenditures and in receipts for capital purposes of endowed uni-versities and colleges, and in current receipts of state institutions in the United States from 1927-28 through 1936-37. Arnett, Trevor.
- TRENDS in retailing of furniture and house fur-nishings, first quarter, 1938. Balance sheet, June 1938, p. 21.
- TRENDS in rural retailing in Illinois, 1926 to 1938. Mitchell, Robert V.
- TRENDS in tuition fees in state and endowed colleges and universities in the United States from 1928-29 through 1936-37. Arnett, Trevor.

TREWERN, W. L. Debentures. Brisbane, Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, (incorporated), September, 1936. 16p.

- TRIAL BALANCE MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROB-ERT D. Trial balance. (In their Accounting fundamentals, 1936, p. 95-113.)
 O'REILL, C. That trial balance. Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 150-5.

 - PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Classification of trial balances for preparation of reports and state-ments. (In his Audit working papers. 1937. p.
 - Berley Construction of the second seco

 - 54-64.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Trial balance procedures. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements, 1938, p. 290-307.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Trial balance. (In their Basic accounting principles, 1937, p. 108-14.)

TRIAL BALANCE-(Continued)

- SCHMIDT, LEO A. Trial balance and errors. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. (In his Theor 1937. p. 69-74.) WEISBERG, CI
- 1937. p. 69-74.) JEISBERG, CHARLES. Trial balance; value analysis and uses. *Credit executive*, Sept. 1937, p. 261-5; Oct. 1937, p. 301-7; Nov. 1937, p. 336-41; Dec. 1937, p. 368-72; Jan. 1938, p. 17-20; Feb. 1938, p. 51-6; Sept. 1938, p. 263-8; Oct. 1938, p. 303-8; Dec. 1938, p. 369-73; Jan. 1939, p. 18-21; March 1939, p. 77-80.

TRIAL BOARD

- See also Professional ethics. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Trial board. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 448; June 1938, p. 465; Dec. 1938, p. 360.
- (LA) TRIBUNA DEL CONTADOR; organo del Co-legio de contadores profesionales de la Habana. San Joaquin, no. 14-A, Havana, Cuba., Colegio de contadores profesionales de la Habana.

TRIBUTE from England. (reprinted from Incor-corporated accountants' journal, December, 1937.) Certified public accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 7-10.

TRIGONOMETRY GLUICK, LEWIS. Trigonometry for accountants. Certified public accountant, April 1936, p. 232-3.

TRIST, H. J.

Accountant, public and non-public, his place in the realm of commerce. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 33-44.

TROLLEYS

See Electric and street railroads.

TROPER, MORRIS C. Is specialization in the practice of accountancy a desirable development? Accounting forum, Jan. 1936, p. 12-16.

Programs of activities for state societies. Certified public accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 2-11.

TROTTER, HUGH BERRY

Accounting for general contractors. Cert lic accountant, April 1936, p. 214-20. Certified pub-

TROUANT, D. L. Financial audits. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., c1937. 245p.

TROUB, LEONARD M. Relationship between the lawyer and the tantonsmp between the lawyer and the accoun-tant. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 127-31. Reprint 7p. Connecticut bar journal, April 1937, p. 219-24. Accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 645-7.

- TROXEL, C. EMERY
 Depression-hued regulation of public utilities. Public utilities fortnightly, June 24, 1937, p. 787-96; July 8, 1937, p. 12-20.
 Economic influences of obsolescence. American economic review, June 1936, p. 280-90.
 Improvements of public utility accounting. Journal of business of the University of Chicago, Jan. 1938, p. 1-20.
 Relation of rate and tax value of public utilities. Taxes—the tax magazine, May 1939, p. 276-8, 315-6.

 - 315-6.

TRUCK FLEETS See Motor trucks.

TRUCKING

See also Express companies; Haulage; Motor transportation; Motor trucks.

Costs costs CORMACK, GEORGE P. Cost estimating for a trucking company. New York, National associ-ation of cost accountants, Nov. 15, 1938. (N. A. C. A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 6, section 1, p. 315-32.) TRUCKING costs, what they are per mile-factors which affect them. Food industries, Feb. 1938, p. 90.

- Statistics
 DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of
 the 1935 operations of trucking and hauling con cerns—Transfer and storage concerns. (In their
 1936 retail survey, report no. 107, 107x.)
 ——Analysis of the 1937 operations of trans fer and storage concerns, and trucking and
 hauling concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey.
 survey nos. 112, 113.)

 SPECIAL information on trucking companies;
 from report of interstate commerce commission.
 Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan.
 1939, p. 210-1.
- TRUCKING costs, what they are per mile-factors which affect them. Food industries, Feb. 1938, p. 90.

TRUCKS See Electric trucks; Industrial trucks; Motor trucks.

TRUE. C. C

Relationship of the federal reserve bank to its member banks. National auditgram, March 1938, p. 17-20.

TRUMAN, NEVIL Petter bookkeeping. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 646-50; Feb. 1936, p. 727-31.

TRUNDLE, GEORGE T., JR. Your borrowers' profits; are they real or artificial? Rand McNally bankers monthly, Dec. 1936, p. 713-6.

Your inventory a graveyard? Factory management and maintenance, Dec. 1936, p. 45, 80-2.

ST assets and earnings decline but national bank figures show marked gains in most dis-tricts. *Trusts and estates*, Jan. 1939, p. 105-8. TRUST

TRUST COMPANIES AND DEPARTMENTS See Banks and banking, Trust companies and departments.

TRUST ESTATES

TRUST FUNDS

See Executors and trustees.

TRUST examination; an analysis. Neilan, Edwin P.

See Executors and trustees; Funds.

- See Executors and trustees; Funds.
 TRUST INDENTURES
 See also Executors and trustees.
 GOLSAN, PAGE. Protection for corporate trustees; the reliance clauses and certificates of value. Trusts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 615-20.
 Reprinted by Ford, Bacon and Davis, inc. 7p.
 POSNER, LOUIS S. Trustee and the trust indenture: a further study. Yale law journal, March 1937, p. 727-800.
 PRESCRIBED certificates. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 1-2.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. (Public—no. 253—76th congress) (chapter 411, 1st session (S. 2005); an act to provide for the regulation of the sale of certain securities in interstate and foreign commerce and through the mails, and the regulation of the trust indentures under which the same are issued, and for other purposes . . . "Trust indentures of 1939". (Approved August 3, 1939) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1930. 32p.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. General rules and regulations under thrust indenture act of 1939. (ashington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission (1939). 10 mimeographed pages and forms T-1, T-2, and T-3.
- TRUST powers of national banks, regu United States. Federal reserve board. regulation F.

TRUST RECEIPTS

- CLINTON, LEWIS. Trust receipts. Robert Mor-ris associates monthly bulletin, March 1939, p. 243-9.
- DJORUP, CHRISTIAN. Uniform trust receipt. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Jan. 1939, p. 185-203, discussion, p. 203-7.

TRUSTEE SHARES See Stock.

TRUSTEES

See Executors and trustees.

TRUSTEES' remuneration for professional services. Accountant, Feb. 26, 1938, p. 282-3. Accoun-tants' journal, July 1938, p. 10-11.

TRUSTS

- See also Executors and trustees. BOUDIN, LOUIS B. Sherman act and labor disputes. Columbia law review, Dec. 1939, p. 1283-1337.

- 1283-1337. BURNS, ARTHUR ROBERT. Anti-trust laws and the regulation of price competition. Law and contemporary problems, June 1937, p. 301-20. FIFTY years of Sherman act enforcement. Yale law journal, Dec. 1939, p. 284-302. HARRISS, C. LOWELL. Monopoly and the ex-cess profits tax. Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 717-20, 741-4. RICHBERG, DONALD R. Suggestion for re-vision of the anti-trust laws. (reprinted from University of Pennsylvania law review, Nov. 1936) 14p.
- University of removement 1936) 14p. TRADE ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES IN NEW YORK CITY. Federal antitust laws and related acts affecting interstate commerce. New York, Trade association executives in New York city, January 1937. 39p.

TRUTH in accounting. MacNeal, Kenneth.

TUBES

See also Cylinders.

- See also Cylinders.
 Cost accounting
 COSTING in the steel tube trade. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1399, p. 492-6.
 HAYS, SAMUEL. Costing in the steel tube trade. Australian accountant, July 1939, p. 400-3. Cost and management, Aug. 1939, p. 242-5.
 PEDEN, ROBERT W. Technique of industrial control. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 15, section 1, p. 851-72.)

TUCKER, ARTHUR R.

Acceptance of accountants' audit program now being sought. Controller, July 1939, p. 242-3. What are controller's duties? Business world now wants to know. Controller, April 1939, p. 124-8.

- TUCKER, CHARLES W.
 Internal audit control. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 248-59.)
 Internal check and audit; panel discussion. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 365-406.)
 What is required for internal audit control? (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 293-306, discussion, p. 306-9.)

TUCKER, GEORGE W.

Responsibility of public auditors to third parties defined by courts. Controller, April 1939, p. 148-9.

TUCKER, HERBERT E., joint author See Robnett, Ronald H. and Tucker, Herbert E.

TUCKER, RUFUS S. Reasons for price rigidity. American economic re-view, March 1938, p. 41-54.

TUFEL, HERMAN A. Current revenue legislation. New York certified public accountant, July 1936, p. 20-33.

Excise taxes under the revenue act of 1938. L.R.B. & M. journal, May 1938, p. 13-6, 32.

TUKE, WILLIAM FAVILL Functions of a bank. Accountant, Feb. 1, 1936, p. 174-7.

TULL, T. W. Cost accounting and machine bookkeeping for a citrus fruit cannery. Pathfinder service bulletin, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 3, 4-8.

TULLOCH, E. J.

Boiler and engineer shop costing. Australian ac-countant, Nov. 1938, p. 250-9.

TULLY, E. K. Law relating to receivers under the provisions of the Queensland companies act of 1931. Char-tered accountant in Australia, June 1937, p. tered 952-9.

TULPIN, ROY B.

Accounting practices to effect good management must come first. Controller, Sept. 1938, p. 254-9.

TUMMINELLO, CHARLES E. Tumminello theory of numerical roots. Boston, Mass., Christopher publishing house, c1939. 178p.

TUMMINELLO theory of numerical roots. Tumminello, Charles E.

TUNICK, STANLEY B. AND OTHERS Classified C.P.A. questions in theory of accounts. New York, Accounting review book co., c1937. loose-leaf.

TURNBURKE, H. M.

RNBURKE, H. M. ccountancy—a profession for educated men; paper presented at a meeting of a student's institute on accounting held under the direction of the College of business administration of the University of Florida at Gainesville, Florida, November 11th and 12th, 1938. 22 typewritten pages. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 250-8. Accountancy-a

TURNER, CHARLES D.

Special examinations for C.P.A.'s. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1938, p. 183-4.

- Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1900, p. 100-7. **TURNER, CLARENCE L.** Highlights of Pennsylvania's corporate income tax; unique features of new tax, including methods for computing state income and de-ductions for state and federal taxes. Tax maga-zine, April 1936, p. 204-7, 254-6. Report on comparative study of corporate taxes in fifteen industrial states; presented at twenty-first annual meeting, February 16, 1938, Penn-sylvania state chamber of commerce, Harris-burg. Harrisburg, Pa., Pennsylvania state chamber of commerce, 1938. 300. Restoration of mandatory filing of consolidated federal income tax returns and the repeal of the tax on intercorporate dividends. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants, Papers on ac
 - can institute of accountants. Papers on ac-counting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 120-32.)

TURNER, PHILIP W. Wages and quota systems of the coal mining in-dustry. Accountant, March 14, 1936, p. 415-8.

TURNER, R. S.

- Averaging provisions of the federal income tax assessment act; an unexpected anomaly. Aus-tralian accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 48-53. Basis of assessment of income derived by an executor. Australian accountant, April 1939, p. 102.7
- 192.7
- Book debts outstanding at the date of a taxpayer's
- Book debts outstanding at the date of a taxpayer's death, are they income subject to tax? Aus-tralian accountant, July 1938, p. 443-8. Deductibility of interest paid on money borrowed to pay federal estate duty and state succession duty. Australian accountant, June 1937, p. 330-2. Effect of accounting methods on income tax liabili-ties Counting accountant in Australia Lab
- ties. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1937, p. 37-43.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

TURNER, R. S.-(Continued)

- Effect of certain provisions of the new income tax laws. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 538-45.
- Liability to income tax on interest on money raised by debentures. Australian accountant, April 1938, p. 170-8; May 1938, p. 269-77.

TURNOVER

See also Inventories; Labor turnover. BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Turnover ratios in credit analysis. Bankers magazine, June 1937, p. 467-7

- 467-72.
 467-72.
 CONVERSE, PAUL D. Stock turnover. (In his Essentials of distribution. 1936. p. 373-87.)
 FARGO, G. E. Turnover. (In National retail dry goods association. Buyer's manual. c1937. p. 247-57.)
 TURNOVER of inventory. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 383-4.

TURNOVER of inventory. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 383-4.

TWEED, HARRISON AND SARGENT, CHRISTO-PHER S.

Death and taxes are certain-but what of domicile. Harvard law review, Nov. 1939, p. 68-96.

TWENTIETH CENTURY FUND, INC.

- Conclusions and recommendations of the committee on distribution of the Twentieth century fund. (reprinted from Does distribution cost too much? A review of the costs involved in current mar-keting methods and a program for improvement.) New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., c1939. New York p. 333-67.
- New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., c1959.
 p. 333-67.
 Facing the tax problem; a survey of taxation in the United States and a program for the future, prepared under the auspices of the committee on taxation of the Twentieth century fund, inc., New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. 606p.
 Findings and recommendations of the committee on debt adjustment of the Twentieth century fund. (reprinted for press use from Debts and recovery; a study of changes in the internal debt structure from 1929 to 1937 and a program for the future.) New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1938. p. 245-72.
 Reports and recommendations regarding the per-sonal income tax, the sales tax, the chain store tax, released April 5, 1937. New York, Twen-tieth century fund, inc., 1937. 16p.
 Studies in current tax problems, prepared in con-nection with a survey of taxation in the United States under the direction of the Twentieth century fund. New York, Twentieth century fund, inc., 1937. 303p.

TWENTY-five years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936. May, George O.

- TWO courts uphold accountancy acts—Illinois case. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 88-93.
- **TWO** cycles of corporation profits. Sloan, Laurence H. and others.
- TWOHY, FRANK Application of tabulating equipment in accounting procedure. Journal of the American waterworks association, Nov. 1936, p. 1704-11.
- TYCHSEN, PAUL C.
- monthly, June 1938, p. 336-7.

TYLER, ARTHUR B.

Discharging liability upon accounting; final deter-mination and adjudication of trustee accounts in Massachusetts. Trust companies, April 1937, p. 447-51.

TYLER, RALPH S., JR.

Outline of discussion of certain aspects of bank loans upon whiskey warehouse receipts. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1936, p. 211-9.

Some legal questions confronting an auditor in examining bank loans and investments. National auditgram, Feb. 1938, p. 11-3.

TYPEWRITERS Statistics

DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1936 operations of typewriter sales and service. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 88x.)

TYRRELL, S. C.

- Budgetary control and its application to small type organizations. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 375-82.

- 375-82.
 Cost accounting for distribution and selling. Cost and management, Jan. 1938, p. 16-9.
 Problem of cost accounting for selling and dis-tribution. Cost accounting for selling and dis-tribution—stage 2; paper submitted at seven-teenth national cost conference, Institute of cost and works accountants, Central Hotel, Glas-gow, 8th-10th September, 1938. London, Insti-tute of cost and works accountants, 1938, 23p. Cost accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 125-30, appendices and report of discussion, p. 131-59.

TYSON, BUCHANAN Bonus problems under the revenue act of 1938. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 94-105.

- U. AND O.-how the C.P.A. looks upon use and occupancy insurance before and after the loss. Glendening, Frank S.
- U.T.A. standard cost finding system. United typothetae of America.

ULBRICHT, EMIL

Preservation and destruction of records. Edison electric institute bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 27-8, 31.

- ULTRAMARES CORPORATION V. TOUCHE ET AL BRADY, WILLIAM W. Accountants' liability to third parties; the Ultramares case reaffirmed. Accounting review, Dec. 1938, p. 395-400. SEAVEY, WARREN A. Mr. Justice Cardozo and the law of torts. Yale low journal, Jan. 1939, p. 390-422. Harvard law review, Jan. 1939, p. 372-407 372-407.
- UNAMORTIZED debt discount, expense and pre-miums on bonds refunded. (Accounting ques-tions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 473-4. Erratum, Sept. 1936, p. 229.

UNAMORTIZED DISCOUNT See Discount.

- UNAMORTIZED discount and premium on bonds refunded. (Correspondence) Freeman, Herbert C.
- UNAMORTIZED discount and redemption premium on bonds refunded. American institute of ac-countants. Committee on accounting procedure.
- UNAUTHORIZED practice decisions. Brand, George E., editor and compiler.
- UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF LAW See Law-Unauthorized practice of.
- UNAUTHORIZED practice of law. Certified public accountant, May 1937, p. 19-21.
- "UNAUTHORIZED practice of law" controversy; a symposium edited by Paul H. Sanders. Law and contemporary problems, Winter, 1938, p. 1-174.
- "UNAUTHORIZED practice of the law". (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 3-4.
- UNCERTAINTY in taxation. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

534

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

UNDERHILL, J. L. Customers' ledger system for small gas companies. Natural gas age record, Oct. 17, 1936, p. 425-7.

UNDERTAKERS

MOYER, ORVILLE. Practical mortuary account-ing. Pathfinder service bulletin, July 1937, p. 1, 3-8.

- Statistics

UNDERWEAR

See Clothing; Knit goods.

UNDERWOOD ELLIOTT FISHER COMPANY WERNER, THOMAS C. Underwood Elliott Fisher company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 228-30.)

UNDERWRITING EXPENSES ACCOUNTING for underwriting and registration expenses. (Accounting questions) Journal of ac-countancy, June 1938, p. 506-7.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS TAX See Taxation, United States-Undistributed See 7 profits.

UNDISTRIBUTED profits tax. Kendrick, M. Slade.

DISTRIBUTED profits tax. (Correspondence) Buehler, Alfred G. UNDISTRIBUTED

UNDISTRIBUTED profits tax. (Correspondence) Hunt, Bishop Carleton.

UNDISTRIBUTED profits tax and its effect on credits. Fernald, Henry B.

UNDISTRIBUTED profits tax and stock dividends and stock rights. Alvord, Ellsworth C.

UNDISTRIBUTED profits tax as a practical problem of business. Fernald, Henry B.

UNDISTRIBUTED profits tax specific credit. Tax magazine, Aug. 1936, p. 493-4.

UNEMPLOYMENT

- NEMPLOYMENT See also Employment. BURROWS, H. R. Progress, employment and leisure. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 641-5. UNEMPLOYMENT in Great Britain and the United States. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, 2252
- 336-42
- p. 530-42. VAGUENESS of unemployment—Better a dole than a fraud. (Editorial) Journal of accoun-tancy, July 1936, p. 4-6.

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION See Insurance, Unemployment; Pensions; Social security.

- **UNEMPLOYMENT** in Great Britain and the United States. Cost and management, Nov. 1936, p. 336-42.
- UNEMPLOYMENT insurance fund. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 353-4.

UNEMPLOYMENT RELIEF

See Relief expenditures; Insurance, Unemploy-ment; Social security.

UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES See Taxes, Payroll.

UNFAIR COMPETITION

See Competition, Unfair.

UNIFORM account analysis. American bankers association.

UNIFORM ACCOUNTING

See Accounting—Uniform methods and systems; Cost and factory accounting—Uniform methods and systems; Standard costs; also specific busi-ness, industry or trade.

- UNIFORM accounting for building and loan asso-ciations. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 19.
- UNIFORM accounting procedure as an aid in re-ducing retail operating costs. Kleinhaus, H. I.
- UNIFORM accounting system for citrus associations. California fruit growers exchange.
- UNIFORM business records as evidence act; Uni-form composite reports as evidence act; Uniform judicial notice of foreign law act; Uniform offi-cial reports as evidence act. National confer-ence of commissioners on uniform state laws.
- UNIFORM classification of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1935, revised January 1, 1938. New Hampshire. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM classification of accounts for gas utilities, effective January 1, 1939. New Hampshire. Public service commission.

- UNIFORM COST ACCOUNTING See Cost and factory accounting—Uniform methods and systems.
- UNIFORM cost accounting. American institute of steel construction, inc.
- UNIFORM cost accounting for paint and varnish and lacquer industry. Sieplein, W. R.
- UNIFORM cost accounting principles in Sweden. Rynell, Olov.
- UNIFORM STATE LAWS See National conference of commissioners on uniform state laws; States-Law.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for class C telephone companies, prescribed by the Federal communi-cations commission in accordance with the pro-visions of the communications act of 1934, ef-fective January 1, 1939. United States. Federal communications commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of passengers, sub-ject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935. United States. Interstate commerce commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of property, subject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935. United States. Interstate commerce commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for electric utilities. National association of railroads and utilities commissioners.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for electric utilitien (class C); effective January 1, 1938. Wisconsin. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for electric utilities (classes A & B); effective January 1, 1938. Wisconsin. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Kentucky. Public service commission.

- UNIFORM system of accounts for electric utilities, effective January 1, 1937. West Virginia. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for electric utilities; issue of 1923 revised, effective January 1, 1939. Maine. Public utilities commission.
- **FORM** system of accounts for gas utilities. National association of railroad and utilities UNIFORM commissioners.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for gas utilities (classes A and B), effective January 1, 1938. Wisconsin. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for large scale housing projects. United States. Federal housing administration.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for municipal electric utilities, effective March 1, 1936. New York. (state). Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for municipal water utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Kentucky. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for mutual service companies and subsidiary service companies un-der the public utility holding company act of 1935, effective August 1, 1936. United States. Securities and exchange commission.
- **(FORM** system of accounts for operating-dif-ferential subsidy contractors. United States. Maritime commission. UNIFORM
- UNIFORM system of accounts for public utility holding companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, dated August 8, 1936, effective January 1, 1937. United States. Securities and exchange commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for steam railroads. United States. Interstate commerce commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for telephone com-panies, classes A and B; effective, January 1, 1936. New York (state). Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for telephone com-panies, effective January 1, 1937, with amend-ments and revisions as of January 17, 1938. West Virginia. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for telephone utilities (class C), effective January 1, 1938. Wisconsin. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for the oil industry, adopted by the board of directors of the Ameri-can petroleum institute, with revisions to June 30, 1936. American petroleum institute.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for water utilities classes A and B. National association of railroad and utilities commissioners.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for water utilities (classes A and B), effective January 1, 1938. Wisconsin. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for water utilities (classes C and D), effective January 1, 1938. Wisconsin. Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts for water utilities, issue of 1936, effective January 1, 1938. Maine. Public utilities commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for class C and class D public utilities and licensees subject to the provisions of the federal power act. United States. Federal power commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for electric corporations, classes A and B; approved May

25, 1937, effective January 1, 1938. New York (state). Public service commission.

- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for electric corporations, classes A and B; approved No-vember 10, 1937; effective January 1, 1938. New Jersey. Public utility commissioners.
- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for gas corporations, classes A and B; approved June 16, 1937, effective January 1, 1938, New York (state). Public service commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for gas utilities subject to the provisions of the public utility law, effective January 1, 1939. Penn-sylvania. Public utility commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for public utilities and licensees subject to the provisions of the federal power act, approved June 16, 1936, effective January 1, 1937; supersedes the system of accounts prescribed for licensees under the federal water power act. United States. Federal power commission.
- UNIFORM system of accounts prescribed for water-works corporations, classes A and B; approved June 22, 1937, effective January 1, 1938; as amended October 6, 1937, effective May 1, 1938. New York (state). Public service commission.
- UNIFORM trustees' accounting act. National con-ference of commissioners on uniform state laws.
- UNIFORMITY in accountancy legislation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 164-6.

UNIFORMITY in accounting. Staub, Walter A.

- UNINTENTIONAL discrimination. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 5-8.
- UNION CARBIDE AND CARBON CORPORATION CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Voluntary payments on pension plans. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 59.
- UNION scales of wages and hours in the printing industry, May 15, 1936. Monthly labor review, March 1937, p. 688-704.
- UNIT TRUSTS -
- See Investment trusts-England.

- 30p.
 - 30p. Procedure for patient service costs (final appor-tionment) approved by the Hospital accountants' committee of the New York conference on hos-pital accounting, November 17, 1936. New York, United hospital fund of New York, c1936. 21p.

UNITED STATES

- INITED STATES Copyright law of the United States of America being the act of March 4, 1909 (in force July 1, 1909) as amended by the acts of August 24, 1912, March 2, 1913, March 28, 1914, December 18, 1919, July 3, 1926, and May 23, 1928, to-gether with rules for practice and procedure under section 25 by the Supreme court of the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 66p.
 Summary of provisions of the federal social se-curity act relating to unemployment compen-

UNITED STATES-(Continued)

sation federal grants to states, old-age benefits and federal employment taxes. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 3p. Summary of state unemployment compensation laws, January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936, 1p.

AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF

- AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF Grain futures administration. Analysis of open commitments in wheat and corn futures on the Chicago board of trade, September 29, 1934, by D. B. Bagnell, Washington, D. C., Department of agriculture, Grain futures administration, May 1936, 200, (Circular no. 397.) Resettlement administration. Uniform report forms and accounting system for cooperative associ-ations. Washington, D. C., Department of agri-culture, Resettlement administration (1937) 41 mimeographed pages and forms.
- mimeographed pages and forms.

BOARD OF TAX APPEALS

- ASH, ROBERT. Procedure in tax cases before the Board of tax appeals and the courts. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-29

- York certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16:29.
 BOARD of tax appeals. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 276-7.
 CELLER bills. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 196-7.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Board of tax appeals service. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1938, c1939. loose-leaf.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Board of tax appeals table of petitioners and docket disposition table. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1939. 472p.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Procedure and practice before the United States. board of tax appeals, including court rules for review, rules of Board of tax appeals, specime forms, code of evidence of District of Columbia. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., 1937. 198p.
 HAMEL, CHARLES D. Practice and evidence before the U. S. board of tax appeals. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1938. 558p.
 HARRIS, BYRON P. Board of tax appeals. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 423-4.

- (Correspondence) Journal of accommency, and 1938, p. 423-4. HARTMAN, DENNIS. Income tax index-digest; containing all decisions of the Board of tax appeals from volume 31 B.T.A. through volume 35 B.T.A. Washington, D. C., The author, no

- 35 B.T.A. Washington, D. C., The author, no date. 135p.
 MILLS, LESLIE. Review of important new decisions, rulings, etc. of the past year. New York certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p. 136-42.
 MONARCH, J. LOUIS. Projected new rules for appeals from the Board of tax appeals and the Processing tax board of review, Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 399-400, 411.
 MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. AND OTHERS. Federal tax practice; practice before the Treasury, Board of tax appeals, and federal courts. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 872p.
- herry, Board of tax appears, and rederal courts.
 rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1939.
 872p.
 PAUL, RANDOLPH'E. AND MERTENS, JA-COB, JR. Board of tax appeals, jurisdiction, procedure and practice. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 5. p. 110-232.)
 PRACTICE before Board of tax appeals. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 7.
 PRETTYMAN, E. BARRETT. Traynor proposals —some considerations. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 397-8, 438-41.
 SEBREE, J. E. Proposed administrative court review of BTA decisions. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 401-2, 423-4.
 SEIDMAN, J. S. Board of tax appeals. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 115-6.
 SILBERT, COLEMAN. Board of tax appeals and inality. Tax magazine, June 1937, p. 335-41, 374-57.

- 374-5
- SMART, ALLEN R. Evolution of the Board of tax appeals. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 303-7.

SURREY, STANLEY S. Traynor plan-what it is. Taxes-the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 393-6, 441

- 441.
 CENSUS, BUREAU OF
 Census of business, 1935; Advertising agencies. Washington, D. C., Department of commerce, Bureau of the census, March 1937. 10p.
 Census of business, 1935; Service establishments. Washington, D. C., Department of commerce, Bureau of the census, 1937, v. 1, 67p. v. 2, 209p. v. 3, 101p.
 Digest of state laws relating to inheritance and estate taxes, 1938. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1938. 147p.
 Digest of state laws relating to net income taxes, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 133p.
 Financial statistics of cities having a population of over 100,000; 1935 summary report prepared under the supervision of C. E. Rightor, Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 21p. 21p.

- 21p. Same, 1936. 1938. 23p.
 Financial statistics of cities having a population of over 100,000—1936; prepared under the supervision of C. E. Rightor. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1938. 212p.
 Financial statistics of states, 1937; summary bulletin. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 19p.
 United States life tables; 1900 to 1931, 1920 to 1929, 1919 to 1921, 1900 to 1911, 1901 to 1910, 1900 to 1902. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1936. 57p.

CENTRAL STATISTICAL BOARD Report of the Central statistical board; message from the President of the United States trans-mitting a report of the Central statistical board on the returns made by the public to the fed-eral government—January 10, 1939. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 37p.

BUREAU OF CENSUS See United States. Census, Bureau of DEPARTMENT OF.

COMMERCE, DEPARTMENT OF. BUREAU OF FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC COM-MERCE

See United States. Foreign and domestic commerce, Bureau of

COMPTROLLER GENERAL AUL,D, GEORGE P. Government reorganization and the independent audit. Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1938, p. 224-7. FEDERAL accounting and auditing. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 187. MANSFIELD, HARVEY C. Reorganization. (In his Comptroller general. 1939, p. 247-88.) MOREY, LLOYD. Government reorganization. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 329-31.

- (contespondence) you has of accounting, yet 1938, p. 329-31.
 REORGANIZATION of the accounting system of the United States government. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1938, p. 217
- SEIDMAN, M. L. Government reorganization and the independent audit. *Journal of accountancy*, March 1938, p. 228-31.

- COMPTROLLER OF THE CUR-

- **COMPTROLLER OF THE CUR-RENCY** Federal laws affecting national banks, including provisions of U. S. revised statutes, federal re-serve act, deposit insurance law, emergency bank-ing act, bank conservation act, banking act of 1933, banking act of 1935, and other laws affect-ing, directly or indirectly, the national banking system, as of January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Comptroller of the currency, 1936. 551p. Investment securities regulation. Washington, D. C., Comptroller of the currency, June 27, 1938. 3p.

UNITED STATES-(Continued)

CONGRESS

- CONGRESS
 Bankruptcy laws of the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 145p.
 Hearing before the committee on interstate and foreign commerce, House of representatives, seventy-fifth congress, first session on H.R. 6968; to amend the securities act of 1933, as amended, by adding thereto a new title, provid-ing for the regulation of the solicitation, in in-terstate and foreign commerce, and through the mails of proxies, deposits, and assets in connec-tion with certain reorganizations, voluntary re-adjustments and debt arrangements and for other purposes, June 8-July 21, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 562p.
 Neutrality act of 1939, approved November 4, 1939 (Public resolution no. 54, 76th congress, ap-proved November 4, 1939.) New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., e1939. 14p.
 Official congressional directory for the use of the United States congress, first edition, corrected to December 21, 1935. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1935. 747p.
 Same corrected to Dec. 20, 1936. 752p. Bankruptcy laws of the United States. Washington,

| -Same, | corrected | to | Dec. | 20, | 1936. | 752p. | |
|------------|-----------|----|------|-----|-------|-------|--|
| -Same, | corrected | to | Dec. | 21, | 1937. | 767p. | |
| -Same, | corrected | to | Dec. | 20, | 1938. | 794p. | |
| -Same, | corrected | to | Dec. | 19, | 1939. | 819p. | |

- (Public-no. 253-76th congress) (chapter 411, 1st session (S. 2065); an act to provide for the regulation of the sale of certain securities in in-

- session (S. 2065); an act to provide for the regulation of the sale of certain securities in interstate and foreign commerce and through the mails, and the regulation of the trust indentures under which the same are issued, and for other purposes . . "Trust indenture act of 1939". (Approved August 3, 1939.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 32p.
 (Public—no. 377—75th congress) (chapter 815, 1st session) (H.R. 8234); an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation, prevent tax evasion and avoid ance, and for other purposes . . "Revenue act of 1937". (Approved August 26, 1937.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 20p.
 (Public—no. 554—75th congress) (chapter 289—3d session) (H.R. 9682); an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes . . "Revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes . . "Revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes . . "Revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes . . "Revenue act of 1938". Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1938. 152p.
 (Public—no. 621—74th congress) (See 4023); an act to provide for the continuation of trading in unlisted securities upon national securities exchanges, for the registration of over-the-counter brokers and dealers, for the filing of current information and periodic reports by issuers, and for other purposes. (approved May 27, 1936.)
 (Public—no. 626—75th congress) chapter 575—3d 1936
- 1936. Public—no. 696—75th congress) chapter 575—3d session (H.R. 8046); an act to amend an act entitled "An act to establish a uniform system of bankruptcy throughout the United States", approved July 1, 1898, and acts amendatory thereof and supplementary thereto; and to repeal section 76 thereof and all acts and parts of acts inconsistent therewith. (approved July 22, 1938.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 11 n. (Public-no.
- Washington, J. C., Schuller, Schultz, 1938, 11p. (Public-no. 718-75th congress) chapter 676-3d session (S2475); an act to provide for the estab-lishment of fair labor standards in employments
- lishment of fair labor standards in employments in and affecting interstate commerce, and for other purposes. (approved June 25, 1938.) Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office. 11p.
 (Public—no. 740—74th congress) (H.R. 12395); an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation, and for other purposes . . "Revenue act of 1936". (approved June 22, 1936.) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 121p.
 Summary of provisions of the federal social security act relating to federal old-age benefits (public no. 271—74th congress (H.R. 7260); (approved Aug. 14, 1935). Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, 1937. 1p.
 COURT OF CLAIMS

In the Court of claims of the United States; no. 43469 (decided November 6, 1939) James A.

Councilor & William Gordon Buchanan, partners, doing business under the firm name and style of Councilor & Buchanan v. the United States. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 10p.

- DISTRICT COURT FOR THE SOUTH-ERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK In the matter of McKesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, in proceedings for the reorganization of a corporation . . . Report and summary of the operations of the business of McKesson & Rob-bins, incorporated, debtor, and of the present con-dition thereof, William J. Wardall, trustee—first report dated January 27, 1939; Winthrop, Stim-son, Putnam & Roberts, attorneys for trustee. 15p. 15p.
- In the matter of McKesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, in proceedings for the reorganization of debtor, in proceedings for the reorganization of a corporation ... Report on the operation of the business and administration of the estate of Mc-Kesson & Robbins, incorporated, debtor, William J. Wardall, trustee—second report dated as of July 1, 1939; Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Rob-erts, attorneys for trustee. 43p. In the matter of McKesson and Robbins, incor-porated, debtor in proceedings for the reorganiza-tion of a corporation ... Report on the property.
- porated, debtor in proceedings for the reorganiza-tion of a corporation . . . Report on the property, liabilities and financial condition of the debtor, the operation of its business and the desirability of the continuation thereof, pursuant to section 167 (5) of the bankruptcy act. Special report dated November 22, 1939; Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam & Roberts, attorneys for trustee. 26p.
 - FARM CREDIT ADMINISTRATION
- Accounting principles for coöperative cotton gin associations, by Otis T. Weaver. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 92p. (Bulletin no. 2.)
- (Bulletin no. 2.)
 Accounting procedure for coöperative grain elevators, by E. B. Ballow. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Nov. 1938. 222p. (Bulletin no. 28.)
 Analysis of the business operations of coöperative cotton gins in Oklahoma, 1933-1934, by Otis T. Weaver and Omer W. Herrmann. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, April 1937. 96p. (Bulletin no. 12.)
 Early developments in coöperative cotton marketing, by O. W. Herrmann and Chastina Gardner. Washington, D. C., Farm credit administration, March 1936. 46p. (Circular no. C-101.)
- C-101.)
- Statistics of farmers' coöperative business organi-zations, 1920-1935, by R. H. Elsworth, Wash-ington, D. C., Farm credit administration, Co-operative division, May 1936. 129p. (Bulletin no. 6.)

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COM-MISSION

- FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COM-MISSION
 Financial report from licensees of standard broad-cast stations (F.C.C. forms 705 and 706) made to Federal communications commission, Wash-ington, D. C. (for the year 1938) Washington, D. C., Federal communications commission (1939). not paged.
 Order no. 7-D; amendments of Uniform system of accounts for telephone companies, issue of June 19, 1935, effective January 1, 1936. Wash-ington, D. C., Federal communications com-mission, 1937. 8 mimeographed pages.
 Order no. 7-E; amendment of Uniform system of accounts for telephone companies, issue of June 19, 1935, effective January 1, 1936. Wash-ington, D. C., Federal communications com-mission, June 16, 1937. 2 mimeographed pages.
 Order no. 31; amendment of Uniform system of accounts for telephone companies, issue of June 19, 1935, effective January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C. Federal communications commission, Jan. 11, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 Proposed report; telephone investigation (pur-suant to public resolution no. 8, 74th congress) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 792p.
 Uniform system of accounts for class C telephone companies, prescribed by the Eederal communications

- Uniform system of accounts for class C telephone companies, prescribed by the Federal communi-

UNITED STATES—FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION—(Continued)

cations commission in accordance with the pro-visions of the communications act of 1934, ef-fective January 1, 1939. Washington, D. C., Federal communications commission, 1938. 96 mimeographed pages.

 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOARD

- Accounting bulletins, no. 1 to 15, for federal savings and loan associations. Washington, D. for federal C., Federal home loan bank board, 1936. various
- Bederal availation of the second secon
- office, 1936. 33p. Manual of examining procedure; examining divi-sion of the Federal home loan bank board, ef-fective January 1, 1939. Washington, D. C., Federal home loan bank board, 1939. 109 mime-
- Pederal nome loan board board, 1977 ographed pages. Rules and regulations for federal savings and loan associations (revised edition, June 1935) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1935. 39p.

ber 1, 1936. 1936. 59p.

- FEDERAL HOUSING ADMINISTRA-

- TION TION Illustrative case; mortgagee's application for in-surance; credit and security instruments to be submitted for insurance under title 2 of the na-tional housing act, including tables for compu-tation of amortization, maturity, monthly service charge, revised June 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Federal housing administration, 1936. 25p. Monthly amortization payment computing chart. National real estate journal, April 20, 1939, p. 26
- 26.
- Uniform system of accounts for large scale hous-ing projects. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, June 15, 1936. 37p.

FEDERAL POWER COMMISSION

- to 8, inclusive). Washington, D. C., Federal power commission, May 8, 1937. 3 mimeographed pages.
- clusive). October 12, 1937. 3 mimeographed pages.
- pages. Order no. 43 (adopted December 31, 1936) amending the Uniform system of accounts pre-scribed for public utilities and licensees, by order no. 42 and adopting and adding thereto, appendix 3 applicable to class C and class D public utili-ties and licensees. Washington, D. C., Federal power commission, 1936. 10 mimeographed pages. Order no. 45 (adopted January 13, 1937) prescrib-ing a list of units of property for use in con-nection with uniform system of accounts. Wash-ington, D. C., Federal power commission, 1937. 19 mimeographed pages.

BOARD OF GOVERNORS

- BOARD OF GOVERNORS
 List of stocks registered on national securities exchanges as of January 31, 1937, (prepared for purposes of regulation U). Washington, D. C., Federal reserve board, 1937. 38p.
 Proposals to maintain prices at fixed levels through monetary action. Federal reserve bulletin, April 1939, p. 255-9.
 Reserve requirements of member banks of the form the secret.
- monetary action. Federal reserve bulletin, April 1939, p. 255-9. Reserve requirements of member banks of the federal reserve system; letter from the secre-tary of the board of governors of the federal reserve system transmitting in response to senate resolution no. 78, a report on the recent order of the board increasing the reserve re-quirements of member banks on March 1, 1937 and May 1, 1937. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1937. 7p. Revision of regulation T relating to extension and maintenance of credit by brokers, dealers, and members of national securities exchanges. (effective January 1, 1938) Federal reserve bul-letin, Dec. 1937, p. 1191-201. Trust powers of national banks; regulation F. This regulation as printed herewith is in the form as revised effective June 1, 1936. New York, Federal reserve bank of New York, 1936. <u>-</u>20.

Same, revised effective December 31, 1937. 26p.

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM, BOARD

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM, BOARD OF GOVERNORS STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regu-latory bodies in the United States. (address de livered at the celebration of the fiftieth anni-versary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 133-59.)

- celebration. 1937. p. 133-59.) FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION Textile industries in the last half of 1935; part 1 —the cotton textile industry, including thread, cordage and twine. Washington, D. C., Federal trade commission, November 20, 1936. 34p. Utility corporations; summary report of the Fed-eral trade commission to the senate of the United States pursuant to senate resolution no. 33, 70th congress, 1st session, on economic. financial, and corporate phases of holding and operating companies of electric and gas utilities. Washington, D. C., Government printing office. 1935. 882p. (Senate document 92, part 72-A).

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

- FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION COST accounting and regulation. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 189-90. COST accounting investigation. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 367. MILLER, HENRY. Federal trade commission regulation of business practice. (In Boston con-ference on distribution, 1939, p. 81-6.) STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regu-latory bodies in the United States. (address de-livered at the celebration of the fiftieth anni-versary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday. October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants, Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 133-59.)

FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC COM-

- 389-95.) iscome of independent professional practitioners. by Walter L. Slifer. (reprinted from Survey of current business, April 1938.) 5p. Income

UNITED STATES—(Continued)

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Comparison of the revenue acts of 1934 and 1936; prepared for the use of the committee on ways and means, House of representatives. Washing-ton, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 290p.

Report no. 2925, 74th congress, 2d session; regulation of lobbying, June 2, 1936. 6p.

INTERIOR DEPARTMENT, OFFICE OF

See United States. Education, Bureau of

- INTERNAL REVENUE, BUREAU OF ASHBAUGH, WILLIAM L. Coördinated decen-tralization. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on audiing procedure and other account-ing subjects. 1939, p. 271-6.) CARTER, MILTON E. Decentralization of the Bureau of internal revenue. Taxes—the tax magazine, July 1939, p. 403-4. PRETTYMAN, E. BARRETT. Practical phil-osophy of tax collection. Tax magazine, Oct. 1936, p. 593-7, 634-5. ROGERS, GEORGE. Predetermination of tax liability on proposed transactions. Tax magazine.

- Bureau of internal revenue to the bar. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 267-8.

INTERSTATE COMMERCE COM-MISSION

- Annual report of ______to the Inter-state commerce commission for the year ended December 31, 1935. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1936. 534p. ______Same, December 31, 1937. 536p. Interstate commerce act, together with text or re-
- lated sections of certain supplementary acts, re-vised to October 1, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1935. 305p.

- Government printing office, 1935. 305p. Order—in the matter of a uniform system of ac-counts to be kept by express companies. Wash-ington, D. C., Interstate commerce commission, March 1938. 13 mimeographed pages. System consolidated reports for steam railways: discussion of tentative general principles. Wash-ington, D. C., Interstate commerce commission, July 1, 1937. 109 mimeographed pages. Uniform system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of passengers, sub-ject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935; issue of 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Washington, D. C., Interstate commerce commis-sion, 1937. 121 mimeographed pages. Uniform system of accounts for class I common
- bion, 1937. 121 mimeographed pages.
 Uniform system of accounts for class I common and contract motor carriers of property, subject to the provisions of the motor carrier act, 1935; is-sue of 1937, effective January 1, 1938. Washing-ton, D. C., Interstate commerce commission, 1937. 117 mimeographed pages.
 Uniform system of accounts for steam railroads; accounting classifications governing investment in road and equipment—operating revenues and operating expenses—income, profit and loss, and general balance sheet accounts—train-miles, loco-motive-miles, and car-miles; prescribed by the Interstate commerce commission in accordance with section 20 of the act to regulate commerce; revised to January 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Association of American railroads, Accounting division, 1936. 236p.

MISSION

. .

INTERSTATE COMMERCE COM-

IISSION TEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regu-latory bodies in the United States. (address de-livered at the celebration of the fiftieth annivers-ary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebratics 1937, p. 133-59. STEWART. celebration. 1937. p. 133-59.)

- LABOR, DEPARTMENT OF Ceiling for hours, a floor for wages and a break for children; an explanation of the fair labor standards act of 1938. Washington, D. C. Gov-ernment printing office, 1938. 15p.
- Effect of minimum-wage determinations in service industries; adjustments in the dry-cleaning and power-laundry industries. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1938. 44p. (Bulletin of the Women's bureau, no. 166.)
- Interpretative bulletin no. 1; general statement as to the coverage of the fair labor standards act of 1938. Washington, D. C., Department of labor, Wage and hour division, Oct. 12, 1938. 3 mimeographed pages.
- Regulations prescribed by the secretary of labor under public act no. 846, seventy-fourth congress (series AO. (Sept. 14, 1936) Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 7p.

- LABOR STATISTICS, BUREAU OF Changes in cost of living, January 15, 1936. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936-1939. (pamphlets issued quarterly).
- Claims administration in workmen's compensation. (from Monthly labor review, June 1938.)
- Coverage limitations of workmen's compensation laws. (from Monthly labor review, June 1939.)
- Earnings and hours in shoe and allied industries, 1939. Monthly labor review, Sept. 1939, p. 587-603.
- Retail prices . . . prepared by Retail price division and Cost of living division, Bureau of labor statistics. Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, January 1936-December 1939. (pamphlets)
- State labor legislation, 1937, including workmen's compensation legislation, prepared by Labor law information service. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1938, 31p.
- Workmen's compensation legislation in the United States and Canada, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 25p. Monthly labor review, May 1936, p. 1253-74.
 - _____Same, 1936. 10p. Monthly labor review, Jan. 1937, p. 114-23.

MARITIME COMMISSION

- MARITIME COMMISSION egulations prescribing method of determining profit in connection with contracts and subcon-tracts for the construction, reconditioning or re-construction of ships for the United States mari-time commission and information for contractors and subcontractors with respect to accounting procedure in connection therewith including de-termination of value for payment purposes. (adopted May 4, 1939.) Washington, D. C., United States maritime commission, 1939. 23p. Regulations
- Uniform system of accounts for operating-differ-ential subsidy contractors, effective January 1, 1938. mimeographed-various paging.

NATIONAL EMERGENCY COUNCIL United States government manual; a simplified text-book designed to inform every citizen as to gov-ernment procedure and to make effectively avail-able all federal services. Washington, D. C., Na-tional emergency council, 1936. loose-leaf.

OFFICE OF GOVERNMENT RE-PORTS

United States government manual. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Oct. 1939. 551p.

PRESIDENT

PRESIDENT Report of the President of the United States to the Congress, showing the status of funds and oper-ations under the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, and 1938, as of De-cember 31, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Jan. 10, 1939. 543p.

UNITED STATES—(Continued)

PRESIDENT'S COMMITTEE ON AD-MINISTRATIVE MANAGEMENT

- MINISTRATIVE MANAGEMENT
 Administrative management in the government of the United States. Washington, D. C., Govern-ment printing office, 1937. 47p.
 Fiscal management in the national government.
 Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 62p. (Studies on administrative manage-ment in the government of the United States, no. 2010 2.)
- Personnel administration in the federal service, by Floyd W. Reeves and Paul T. David. Washing-ton, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 75p. (Studies on administrative management in the government of the United States, no. 1.)

PORATION RECONSTRUCTION FINANCE COR-

- PORATION ALLEY, JAMES B. Work of the Reconstruction finance corporation in connection with 77B. (re-printed from April 1936. Corporate reorganiza-tions (a monthly magazine). New York, N. Y.) GLOVER, JOHN DESMOND. Industrial loan policy of the RFC. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1939, p. 465-76.

RESETTLEMENT ADMINISTRATION See United States. Agriculture, Department of. Resettlement administration.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COM-MISSION

- Accounting series, release no. 1. (charging losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 1, 1937. 1 mimeographed
- page. Accounting series, release no. 2, (independence of accountants) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 6, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
- Accounting series, release no. 3, (write-ups in the consolidation of accounts) Washington, D. C., in Securities and exchange commission, Sept. 13, 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
- 1937. 1 mimeographed page.
 Accounting series, release no. 4. (administrative policy on financial statements) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 25, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 Accounting series, release no. 5. (treatment of dividends on a corporation's own capital stock held in sinking fund) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.
 Accounting series, release no. 6. (treatment of excess of proceeds from sale of treasury stock over the cost thereof) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.

- Securities and exchange commission, May 10, 1938. 1 mimeographed page. Accounting series, release no. 7. (analysis of de-ficiencies commonly cited by the commission in connection with financial statements) Washing-ton, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 16, 1938. 8 mimeographed pages. Accounting series, release no. 8. (creation of surplus by appraisal in balance-sheets repre-senting the accounts of promotional companies) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, May 20, 1938. 1 mimeographed page. page.
- Accounting series, release no. 10. (unamortized bond discount and expense applicable to bonds which, prior to maturity, have been retired out of the proceeds of a sale of capital.) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Dec. 23, 1938. 1 mimeographed page.Decisions and reports; July 2, 1934 to December 31, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government print-ing office, 1938. vol. 1. 1036p.

- Same; January 1, 1937 to December 31, 1937. vol. 2. 1102p. Decisions; July 2, 1934, to September 3, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, Sept. 21, 1935. (vol. 1, no. 1) 216p. Same, September 4, 1935, to June 30, 1936. (vol. 1, no. 2) p. 217-551. Same, July 1, 1936, to December 31, 1936. (vol. 1, no. 3) p. 552-975. Decisions; January 1, 1937 to June 30, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. (vol. 2, part 1.) 485p. Same; July 1, 1937 to December 31, 1937. (vol. 2, part 1.) 485p. Decisions; January 1, 1938 to June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. (vol. 3, part 1.) 558p. Financial statistics for electric and gas sub-sidiaries of registered public-utility holding com-

- 1939. (vol. 3, part 1.) 558p.
 Financial statistics for electric and gas subsidiaries of registered public-utility holding companies, year 1938; report of public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, June 1939. 149.
 Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Interstate hosiery mills, inc. common capital stock of no par value (File 1-300) Securities exchange act of 1934, release no. 2048. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 321-8.
 Findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Oklahoma hotel building company (File 2-3598). Securities exchange act of 1933, release no. 1900. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 328-32.
- (File 2-339), Burnal of accountancy, May release no. 1900. Journal of accountancy, May 1939, p. 328-32. First annual report of the Securities and exchange commission, fiscal year ended June 30, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office,

1937. <u>1</u>85p.

- Fourth annual report of the securities and exchange commission, fiscal year ended June 30, 1938. 197p.
- General rules and regulations and forms under the public utility holding company act of 1935; May 15, 1937. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 180p. ______Same amended to and including, July 1,
- 1938. various paging. General rules and regulations under the securities act of 1933. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, Jan. 21, 1936. 41 mime-ographed pages.
 - -Same, Nov. 20, 1936. 47 mimeographed pages.
- ous paging.

- ous paging. Same, amended to April 15, 1939. General rules and regulations under the trust in-denture act of 1939. Washington, D. C., Securi-ties and exchange commission (1939). 10 mime-ographed pages, and forms T-1, T-2, and T-3. Handbook to the registration record, securities act of 1933. Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, May 22, 1937. Interstate hosiery case; findings and opinions of the Securities and exchange commission—taken from release no. 2048 of the commission. New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 425-36. Investment trusts and investment companies: re-
- 425-36. Investment trusts and investment companies; re-port pursuant to section 30 of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Part 1-Origin, scope and conduct of the study, nature and classification of investment trusts and invest-ment companies; origins of the investment trust and investment companies movement in the United States. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, June 10, 1938. 40 mimeographed pages.

UNITED STATES—SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION—(Continued)

pursuant to section 30 of the public utility hold-ing company act of 1935. Part 2—Statistical sur-vey of investment trusts and investment com-panies. 6 vols. Washington,. D. C., Securities and exchange commission, January-March 1939. mimeographed.

- mimeographed. Investment trusts and investment companies; re-port pursuant to section 30 of the public utility holding company act of 1935. Part 3—Abuses and deficiencies in the organization and opera-tion of investment trusts and investment com-panies. Chapters 1-5. (April-December 1939) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. mimeographed. Official summary of security transactions and holdings reported to the securities exchange act of 1934 and the public utility holding company act of 1935. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission.
- exchange commission.
- Questionnaire to incorporated and unincorporated investment trusts and investment companies of management type. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, January 1936. 90
- management type. washington, D. C., Sectifices and exchange commission, January 1936. 90 mimeographed pages.
 Release no. 2061; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Callahan zinc-lead company, securities act of 1933—sec. 8 (D) (File no. 2-1039) (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 434-5.
 Report on the study and investigation of the work, activities, personnel and functions of protective and reorganization committees, pursuant to section 211 of the securities exchange act of 1934; part 7—management plans without aid of committees. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, May 10, 1938. 610p.
 Rules of practice as amended November 4, 1936. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1936. 10p.

- and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Investment corporation of North America. (Find-ings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec.
- ings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 436. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2024; findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of Finger Canadian lumber company, Itd. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 288.
- p. 288. Securities act of 1933, release no. 2054 findings and opinion of the commission in the matter of: Potrero sugar company. (Findings and opinions) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 435-6. Securities registered exempt from registration or admitted to unlisted trading privileges under the securities exchange act. Washington, D. C., Se-curities and exchange commission
- curities and exchange commission.
- Securities traded on exchanges under the securities exchange act. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission.
- Security issues of electric and gas utilities 1935-1936-1937; report of public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange com-mission, 1939. 5p.
- Security issues of electric and gas utilities, 1935-1936-1937-1938; report of public utilities division. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange com-mission, 1939. 8p.
- Uniform system of accounts for mutual service companies and subsidiary service companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, effective August 1, 1936. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1936. 24p.
- Uniform system of accounts for public utility hold-ing companies under the public utility holding company act of 1935, dated August 8, 1936, ef-fective January 1, 1937. Washington, D. C., Gov-ernment printing office, 1936. 35p.
- United States of America before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson & Robbins, inc.; testimony of expert witnesses.

Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 638p.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COM-

- ACCOUNTANCY and the press (S.E.C. and ac-counting practices). Certified public accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 16-7. ACCOUNTANTS and the S.E.C. (Editorial)
- Jan. 1937, p. 16-7. ACCOUNTANTS and the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1937, p. 84-6; Aug. 1937, p. 85. ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. Accounting review, Sept. 1937, p. 309-12; Dec. 1937, p. 424-7; March 1938, p. 99-103; June 1938, p. 212-3. ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 323-4; July 1939, p. 2.

- p. 2. ACCOUNTING and S.E.C. (release 1210) Certi-fied public accountant, April 1937, p. 13-4. ACCOUNTING releases of the Securities and ex-change commission. New York certified public ac-countant, Oct. 1938, p. 37-47. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Second committee on cooperation with Securities
- Special committee on coöperation with Securities and exchange commission. Coöperation with S.E.C. Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 434-43.
- AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANTS. Special committee on cooperation with Securities and exchange commission. Report of the special and exchange commission. Report of the special committee on coöperation with Securities and ex-change commission. (In its 1935 year book, p. 321-2; 1936 year book, p. 452; 1937 year book, p. 500-2; 1938 year book, p. 135-6.) ARTHUR, JOHN F. STUART. Securities and exchange commission and current accounting practice. Texas accountant, Feb. 1939, p. 1, 4-6. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Address at Mountain states accounting conference, Hotel Utah, Salt Lake City, May 31-June 1, 1938. 10 typewrit-ten pages.

- Late City, May Sight 1, 1938. To typewint-ten pages. BLOUGH, CARMAN G. Some accounting prob-lems of the securities and exchange commission; an address before the New York state society of certified public accountants, on January 11, 1937. New York, New York state society of certified public accountants, 1937. 20 mimeographed pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 3:14
- New York certified puote accommon, spin 2014, p. 3-14. BROAD, SAMUEL J. Coöperation with the Se-curities and exchange commission. Journal of ac-countancy, Aug. 1938, p. 78-89. CLARK, SAMUEL O. S.E.C. activities in bank-monotes: how commission operates under chapter
- 10. Credit and financial management, Aug. 1939, p. 11-13.
- p. 11-13. CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. S.E.C. re-lease no. 10. (Commentator) Journal of accoun-tancy, March 1939, p. 179-80. EGLY, HARRY H. Address before the Cleveland group of the Investment bankers association, at Cleveland, Ohio, December 7, 1938. Washington, D.C. Scurrities and exchange commission 1938. D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938.
- D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1938. 5 mimeographed pages.
 FINDINGS and opinions; a department. Journal of accountancy, May 1939. p. 321-32; Oct. 1939, p. 286-8; Dec. 1939, p. 434-6.
 FRANK JEROME N. Address before the Asso-ciation of customers' brokers, Hotel Roosevelt, New York City, June 23, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 10 mimeographed pages.
 GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting re-quirements of the S.E.C. Accounting forum, May 1939. p. 36-42.
- 1939, p. 36-42.
- GREIDINGER, B. BERNARD. Accounting re-quirements of the Securities and exchange com-mission for the preparation of financial state-ments. New York, Ronald press co., c1939. 517p. HASKELL, JOHN. Securities and exchange com-nission, the accountant, and the stock ex-change. Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 293-302.
- DHNSON, ADOLPH C. AND JACKSON, ANDREW. Securities and exchange commission; its organization and functions under the se-JOHNSON

UNITED STATES—SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION—(Continued)

- curities act of 1933. Law and contemporary prob-lems, Jan. 1937, p. 3-18. KAPLAN, MAURICE C. AND REAUGH, DANIEL M. Accounting, reports to stockhold-ers, and the S.E.C. Yale law journal, April 1939, 000 June 1990 Ju 935-80. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p.
- 203-36. LANE, CHESTER T. Coöperation with the S.E.C. New York certified public accountant, April 1938,
- McKESSON & ROBBINS CASE-S.E.C. investigation—Institute's position—Attorney gen-eral's meeting—Possible improvement in audit-ing—Evolution of auditing—Publicity and the future. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb.

- future. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 65-9.
 MARKET manipulation and the securities exchange act. Vale law journal, Feb. 1937, p. 624-47.
 MUNSON, G. KIBBY. Treatment of capital write-downs discussed by SEC decisions. Controller, April 1939, p. 134-6, 137.
 NEFF, HAROLD H. SEC making progress in revision of rules affecting registration. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 52-5.
 NEPOMUCENO, RICARDO. Securities and exchange commission and the public accountants. Philippine accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 15-9. 15.9

- change commission and the public accountants. Philippine accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 15-9.
 OPINION by securities commission's chief accountant may set accounting standards. Controller, May 1937, p. 130.
 PRACTICE before the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, July 1938, p. 137-8.
 PRACTICE before the S.E.C. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, July 1936, p. 17-20.
 PRACTICE performed the Securities and exchange commission. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants. Fiftheth anniversary celebration. 1937. p. 313-33.)
 RECENT S. E. C. pronouncements. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, July 1936, p. 2-3.
 ROSENBERG, JAMES M. Chandler bill and the Securities and exchange commission. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 191-6.
 S.E.C. hearings. (Editorial) Journal of accountants, July 1936, p. 69.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Influence of the Securities and exchange commission upon accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1939, p. 69.
 SANDERS, THOMAS HENRY. Influence of the Securities and exchange commission upon accounting principles. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 66-74.
 SCOVILL, H. R. Summary of certain testimony before the Securities and exchange commission in the matter of McKesson and Robbins, inc. (In Middle Atlantic states accounting conference. Papers on accounting procedure and related and 17, 1939, p. 106-14.)
 SHORT, FRANK G. Accounting for the issuance of shares for assets under the decisions of the Securities and exchange commission for the securities and exchange commission formal of accountant, May 1939, p. 202-72.
 STEMPF, VICTOR H. SEC. and the accountant, New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 12-6.

- STEMPF, VICTOR H. S.E.C. and the accoun-tant. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 12-6.
- April 1938, p. 12-6. STEWART, ANDREW. Accountancy and regu-latory bodies in the United States. (Address. de-livered at the celebration of the fiftieth anni-versary of the American institute of accountants on Thursday, October 21, 1937, at the Waldorf-Astoria Hotel.) 38 mimeographed pages. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 33-60. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 133-59.)
- TESTIMONY of expert witnesses at S.E.C. hear-ings. Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 199-220; May 1939, p. 279-97; June 1939, p. 350-63.

- 1939, p. 41.
- WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. What does the Securi-ties and exchange commission expect of the in-dependent auditor? (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 17-26.)

SENATE

- SENATE Hearings before the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third ses-sion on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes (re-vised), March 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938 7479. 1938. 747p.

- Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 747p.
 Hearings before the committee on fnance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session on H.R. 9682; an act to provide revenue, equalize taxation and for other purposes; part 2, unrevised. March 18, 1938. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 111-311.
 Investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliated companies—Hearings before a subcommittee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 2, December 14, 15, and 16, 1936; Missouri Pacific terminal shares contracts. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 447-1081.
 Investigation of railroads, holding companies, and affiliated companies—Hearings before a subcommittee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of interstate railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 11, October 20 and 21, 1937; Missouri Pacific railroad company, Alleghany acquisition of control, Price, Waterhouse audits. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. p. 4653-5030a.
 Investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliated companies—Hearings before a subcommittee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliated companies—Hearings before a subcommittee on interstate commerce, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, first session, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) authorizing an investigation of railroads, holding companies and affiliated companies—Hearings b
- filiates with respect to financing, reorganizations,
- filiates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters. Part 13, November 4, and 5, 1937, and February 17, 1938; Missouri Pacific system . . . Erie railroad com-pany. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939, p. 5579-5943. Investigation of railroads, holding companies, and affiliated companies—Preliminary report to the committee on interstate commerce, United States senate, pursuant to S. res. 71 (74th congress) a resolution authorizing an investigation of inter-state railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain state railroads and affiliates with respect to financing, reorganizations, mergers, and certain other matters—Fallibility of auditors' certificates; inadequacy of Price, Waterhouse & co.'s certificate to Missouri Pacific stockholders. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, Feb. 10, 1939. 13p. (76th congress, 1st session-Report no. 25, Part 3.)
- Survey of experiences in profit sharing and pos-

UNITED STATES-Senate-(Continued)

sibilities of incentive taxation; hearings before a subcommittee of the committee on finance, United Subcommutee or the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third ses-sion, pursuant to S. Res. 215 providing for an investigation of existing profit-sharing systems between employers and employees in the United States, November 21, to December 14, 1938. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1930 5010

Washington, D. C. Government printing once, 1939. 591p. Survey of experiences in profit sharing and pos-sibilities of incentive taxation; report of the subcommittee of the committee on finance, United States senate, pursuant to S. Res. 215 (75th congress) a resolution providing for an in-vestigation of existing profit-sharing systems be-tween employers and employees in the United States, June 19 (legislative day June 15), 1939. Washington, D. C., Government printing office 1939. 351p. 1939. 351p.

SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

- Federal-state program for unemployment compensa-tion. Washington, D. C., Social security board, Nov. 1936. 15p. (Informational service circular) no. 5)

- Nov. 1936. 15p. (Informational service circular no. 5)
 First annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1936, with supplementary data for the period July 1, 1936-December 15, 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 131p.
 Second annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1937, with supplementary data for July 1, 1937 to October 31, 1937. 205p.
 Third annual report, fiscal year ended June 30, 1938, with supplementary data for July 1, 1938 to October 31, 1938. 251p.
 Regulations no. 1-Disclosure of official records and information. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 2, p.
 Regulations no. 2--Federal old-age benefits under title 2 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 33p.
 Social security act; a brief explanation of its provisions. Washington, D. C., United States department of labor building, Social security board, Jan. 1936. 15p.
 Social security act, what it is and what it does. Washington, D. C., Business information division, Information service, Social security board, March 31, 1937. 25p.
 What you should know about unemployment compensation; some questions and answers concerning the unemployment compensation provisions of the social security act and state unemployment compensation jaseurity board, Nov. 1936. 36p. (Informational service circular no. 2)

SUPREME COURT Supreme court of the United States, nos. 636, 651, 649 and 650—October term, 1935; Carter vs. Carter coal company et al . . . (May 18, 1936.) various paging.

- SUPREME COURT CHAMBER of commerce of the state of New York. Supreme court issue. New York, Chamber of commerce of the state of New York, 1937. 15p.
- DUNN, CHARLES WESLEY. Supreme court issue; address delivered in New York city on February 17, 1937. 27p. GROETTUM, R. E. Supreme court decisions,

1936-37. (In Editorial research reports, v. 1, 1937. p. 405-26.)

- TREASURY DEPARTMENT Bulletin "N", income tax: nonresident aliens, for-eign corporations, withholding agents; certain provisions of the law and regulations 94 of particular interest to nonresident aliens, foreign corporations, and withholding agents, revenue act of 1936. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 75p. Income tax regulations 101; changes from prior regulations, revenue act of 1938. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 36p. Laws and regulations governing the recognition of agents, attorneys, and other persons repre-senting claimants before the Treasury department and offices thereof. Washington, D. C., Treasury department, Office of the secretary, Sept. 15, 1936. 21p. (Department circular no. 230 (re-vised) Supplement, section 3. as revised Mark
- -Supplement, section 3, as revised May

- Regulations 90 relating to the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 66p.
 Regulations 91 relating to the employees' tax and the employers' tax under title 8 of the social security act. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 54p.
 Regulations 93 relating to the carriers' tax, employees' tax end to the carriers' tax, employees' tax end to the carriers' tax, employees' tax end to the carriers' tax, employees' tax, employees' representatives' tax under act approved August 29, 1935 (49 stat. 674). Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 35p.
 Regulations 94 relating to the income tax under revenue act of 1936. S66p.
 Regulations (94) relating to the income tax under the 1936 revenue act. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1936. 269p.
 Regulations 101, income tax; revenue act of 1938. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1936. 230p.
 Regulations 101, income tax; revenue act of 1938. New York, Commerce of expenditures; emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, and 1937, as of June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., Treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and deposits, 1938, 451p.
 Report showing the financial status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, and 1937, as of June 30, 1938. Washington, D. C., Treasury department, Commissioner of accounts and deposits, 1938, 451p.
 Report showing the status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, 1938, and 1939, as of November 30, 1939.
 Report showing the status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, 1938, and 1939, as of November 30, 1939.
 Report showing the status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 1936, 1937, 1938, and 1939, as of November 30, 1939.
 Report showing the status of funds provided in the emergency relief appropriation acts of 1935, 193
- 17p.
- Rules of practice and procedure before the United States processing tax board of review. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 31p.
- 31p. Statistics of income for 1934, part 1; compiled from individual income tax returns, estate tax returns and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 150p. Statistics of income for 1934, part 2; compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1937. 251p. 1937. 251p.
- Statistics of income for 1935, part 1; compiled from individual income tax returns, estate tax returns and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 170p.
- Statistics of income for 1935, part 2; compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 138p.
- Statistics of income for 1936, part 1; compiled from individual income tax returns, estate tax

- UNITED STATES-Treasury department-(Continued)

 - NITED STATES—Treasury department—(Continued) returns and gift tax returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938, 178p.
 Statistics of income for 1936, part 2; compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 235p.
 (T.D. 4773) income tax—revenue act of 1937; regulations under title 2, relating to returns of information with respect to foreign corporations. Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, Nov. 6, 1937. 5 mimeographed pages and form 959.
 - revenue, Nov. 6, 1937. 5 manufacture and form 959. (T.D. 4959) title 26—internal revenue; chapter 1, subchapter A—Part 9—subpart H—subchapter E—part 465—subpart B—Income tax. Regula-tions relating to elective method of taking inventories for years beginning subsequent to De-cember 31, 1938. Approved Dec. 28, 1939. Washington, D. C., Commissioner of internal revenue, 1939. 8 mimeographed pages.

- TREASURY DEPARTMENT BARTELT, E. F. United States treasury; address before the Iowa bankers association, Des Moines, Iowa, June 6, 1939. 30 mimeographed pages. CIRCULAR no. 230—Canons of legal ethics. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 174.5
- 174 5
- MONTGOMERY, ROBERT H. AND OTHERS. Federal tax practice; practice before the Treas-ury, Board of tax appeals, and federal courts. rev. ed. New York, Ronald press co., c1938.
- rev. ed. New Ions, Reserve J.
 872p.
 PRACTICE before Treasury department. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 1-2; Aug. 1939, p. 79.
 TREASURY department. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 118-9.

– WORKS PROGRESS ADMINISTRA-

TION

See also United States. Securities and exchange commission.

- Selected information on automobile manufacturers registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Feb. 1939. 57p. (Report no. 4.)
 Selected information on cement manufacturers registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. Nay 1939. (Report no. 12.)
 Selected information on chain grocery and food

- Securities and exchange commission, May 1939. (Report no. 12.)
 Selected information on chain grocery and food stores registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project spon-sored by the Securities and exchange commis-sion. New York, Works progress administration, May 1939. 58p. (Report no. 15.)
 Selected information on chain variety stores reg-istered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Feb. 1939. 55p. (Report no. 3.)
 Selected information on cigarette manufacturers with assets over \$10,000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works prog-ress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 39p. (Report no. 7.)
 Selected information on department stores with annual sales over \$10,000,000 each, registered

- under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works prog-ress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, May 1939. 85p. (*Report no.* 13.) Selected information on mail order houses reg-istered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 41p. (*Report no.* 9.) (Report no. 9.)
- (Keport no. 9.) Selected information on manufacturers of agricul-tural machinery and implements, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works prog-ress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, March 1939. 57p. (Report no. 6.)
- (*Report no. 0.*) Selected information on manufacturers of auto-mobile parts and accessories registered under the securities exchange act of 1934 at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress admin-interview of the the Convertion and istration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works prog-ress administration, June 1939. 159p. (Report no. 18.) Selected information on manufacturers of chemi-
- no. 10.7
 Selected information on manufacturers of chemicals and fertilizers giving assets over \$10,000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, June 1939. 66p. (Report no. 16.)
 Selected information on manufacturers of containers and closures other than paper or wood, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration, New York, Works progress administration, May 1939. 57p. (Report no. 14.)
 Selected information on manufacturers of office
- (Report no. 14.) Selected information on manufacturers of office machinery and equipment registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of Ameri-can listed corporations, a Works progress ad-ministration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 57p. (Report no. 11.) no. 11.)
- Selected information on manufacturers of tires elected information on manufacturers of tires and other rubber products, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administra-tion project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works prog-ress administration, March 1939. 63p. (*Report* no. 5.) elected information on meat packers with assets
- no. 5.) Selected information on meat packers with assets over \$50,000,000 each, registered under the securities and exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations, a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securi-ties and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, Jan. 1939. 45p. (*Report* no. 2.) Selected information on motion picture producers and distributors registered under the securities
- no. 2.)
 Selected information on motion picture producers and distributors registered under the securities exchange act of 1934 at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corpora-tions; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange com-mission. New York, Works progress administra-tion, June 1939. 64p. (*Report no. 17.*)
 Selected information on oil refiners with producing facilities having assets over \$50,000,000 each, registered under the securities and exchange act

UNITED STATES-Works Progress Administration-(Continued)

of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a

- of 1934, at june 30, 1938; a parma report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 69p. (Report no. 10) Selected information on steel producers with assets over \$100,000,000 each, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration istration, Nov. 1938. 63p. (Report no. 1.) Selected information on sugar refiners, beet-cane, registered under the securities exchange act of 1934, at June 30, 1938; a partial report on the census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project sponsored by the Securities and exchange commission. New York, Works progress administration, April 1939. 72p. (Report no. 8.)

UNITED STATES BUILDING AND LOAN LEAGUE

- Building and Ioan annals, 1938. Chicago, Ill. United States building and Ioan league, c1939. 851p.
- Standard report form as recommended by account-ing division, United States building and loan league for adoption by the National association of building and loan supervisors and the Federal home loan bank board. Chicago, Ill., United States building and loan league, 1935. form.
- UNITED STATES BUILDING AND LOAN LEAGUE CROWLEY, LEO T. Excerpts from an address before the United States building and loan league, Chicago, Ill., November 17, 1938. 9 mimeo-graphed pages.

- UNITED STATES CORPORATION COMPANY New York laws affecting business corporations; an-
 - 528p. -Same, to June 20, 1939. ed. 20. 1939.
 - 545p.
- UNITED STATES EMPLOYEES' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

Workmen's compensation; report of United States employees' compensation commission, 1934-5. Monthly labor review, March 1936, p. 643-6.

NITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUARANTY COMPANY UNITED

1001 embezzlers; a study of defalcations in busi-ness. Baltimore, Md., United States fidelity and guaranty company, c1937. 38p.

UNITED STATES government manual. United States. Office of government reports.

UNITED STATES law against price discrimination. Cost and management, Oct., 1936, p. 298-313.

- UNITED STATES life tables. United States, Census, Bureau of.
- UNITED STATES master tax guide, 1936, 1937, 1938, 1939. Commerce clearing house, inc.

"UNITED STATES NEWS" TAX reform. (Notes of the month) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 269-70.

UNITED STATES revenue act, 1936. Ac tax supplement, Aug. 1, 1936, p. 317-9. Accountant,

UNITED STATES RUBBER COMPANY Retirement and savings plan. New York, United States rubber co., January 1, 1938. 15p.

"UNITED STATES treasury." Bartelt, E. F.

UNITED TYPOTHETAE OF AMERICA

- Ratios for printing management for the year 1935, developed from members' annual balance sheets, operating statements and cost reports. Wash-ington, D. C., United typothetae of America, ington, D. 1936. 66p.
- 1936. 66p.
 Same, 1936. 1937. 66p.
 Same, 1937. 1938. 70p.
 Same, 1938. 1939. 62p.
 Standard accounting system for printers, with the Standard cost finding system tied-in and controlled, prepared by F. W. Fillmore. Washington, D. C., United typothetae of America, Aug. 1938. 11 mimeographed pages.
 Standard cost finding system, prepared by F. W. Fillmore. Washington, D. C., United typothetae of America, Aug. 1938. 11 mimeographed pages.
 U.T.A. standard cost finding system. Washington, D. C., United typothetae of America, Aug. 1938. 32p. and forms.
- and forms.
- UNITY of accountancy. (Editorial) Journal of ac-countancy, Oct. 1938, p. 214.
- UNIVERSAL currency. Accountants' magazine, March 1937, p. 164-70.

UNIVERSITIES

See Schools, colleges, etc.

UNIVERSITY OF NOTRE DAME Notre Dame short-form corporate report. Notre Dame, Ind., University of Notre Dame. no date. report. Notre form.

Notre Dame short-form operating report. form.

- UNIVERSITY training for accountants. Accountant, Feb. 12, 1938, p. 218-20; Feb. 19, 1938, p. 249-51; March 5, 1938, p. 312-3.
- UNJUST ENRICHMENT TAX See Taxation, United States—Windfall tax.
- UNJUST enrichment tax (windfall tax). Evans, John F.
- UNOFFICIAL answers to the examination questions of the American institute of accountants, May, 1932, to November, 1935. Baumann, H. P. and Gordon, Spencer.
- UNOFFICIAL answers to the examination questions of the American institute of accountants, May 1936 to November 1939. Baumann, H. P. and Gordon, Spencer.
- UNPROFESSIONAL conduct. (Editorial) Accoun-tants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 167-8; Jan. 1939, p. . 201-2. (Correspondence)
- UNSEEN burden of taxes. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1938, p. 357-8.
- UNSUCCESSFUL action against accountants. Incor-porated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 242-5.
- UNWARRANTED generalization—accountants' legal responsibility for ambiguous or incorrect state-ments. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

UPHOLSTERY

Cost accounting NATIONAL UPHOLSTERY AND DRAPERY TEXTILE ASSOCIATION, INC. Uniform cost sheet for use in the upholstery fabric industry. New York, National upholstery and drapery textile association, inc. (1937). form.

Statistics

- DUN

URICH, JOHN E.

Accounting for productive materials. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 9, section 1, p. 483-96.) Printed with: Sayre, B. M. In-ventory control and valuation.

URQUHART, C. R. Practical points in receiverships. Accountant, June 24, 1939, p. 860-1.

- USE and occupancy. American management association.
- USE of material burden rate. (Questions and an-swers) New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 2, p. 990-2.)
- USE of pro forma balance-sheets. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1938, p. 96-8.
- USE of the uniform system in hotel accounting. Hogan, Thomas J.
- USE of weeks as fiscal period as compared with calendar year. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 459.
- USES of **S** of paid cheques. Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 5.
- USES of theory. Littleton, A. C.
- USING the United hospital fund report to tell the story of the hospital. Dawson, William A.
- UTAH ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS Rules of professional conduct . . . Members . . . Amendments to the by-laws, approved Dec. 7, 1938. 7p.

UTILITIES

See Public utilities.

- VAGUENESS of unemployment—Better a dole than a fraud. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, July 1936, p. 4-6.
- VALET sales and statistics. Horwath hotel accoun-tant, March 1938, p. 5.

VALUATION

- See also Depreciation; Inventories; sub-heading Valuation under various subjects, e.g. Invest-ments and securities—Valuation; Railroads— Valuation.
- Valuation. ACCOUNTING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION. Accountant, Oct. 9, 1937, p. 480-1. AMERICAN APPRAISAL COMPANY. Securi-ties act of 1933 and registration statements as they relate to appraisal reports on property facts and values. New York, American appraisal company (1937) 80 mimeographed pages. (Bul-latin \$24)

- they relate to appraisal reports on property facts and values. New York, American appraisal company (1937) 80 mimeographed pages. (Bulletin 884)
 APPRAISAL standards. Cost and management, Jan. 1937, p. 23-7.
 ASSOCIATION OF APPRAISAL EXECUTIVES. Basic standards of appraisal practice and procedure with definitions of a selected list of appraisal terms and code of ethics for independent public appraisers. Washington, D. C., Association of appraise executives, cl936. 53p.
 BASHE, C. E. Fair market value of inventory property. Taxes—the tax magazine, Feb. 1939, p. 71-2, 105-6.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Valuation. (In his Introduction to accounting, 1938, p. 434-57.)
 BONBRIGHT, JAMES C. Valuation of property; a treatise on the appraisal of property for different legal purposes. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1937, 2v.
 CHANDLER, GRANT. Problems incident to the certification of financial statements included in registration state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Technical program of the thirteenth annual Michigan

accounting conference. 1937. p. 24-34, discussion,

- accounting tonjerence error p. 34-5)
 CUTFORTH, A. E. Methods of amalgamation and the valuation of business for amalgamation and other purposes. London, G. Bell and sons, ltd., 1938. 336p.
 DANIELS, M. B. Valuation problems. (In his Financial statements. 1939. p. 159-203.)
 ELLIS, CECIL A. Control and valuation of stores. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1937, p. 425-42.
 FLLIS GEORGE BELOE. Valuations: the hypo-

- p. 425-42. ELLIS, GEORGE BELOE. Valuations: the hypo-thetical purchaser. Accountant, tax supplement, March 12, 1938, p. 109-12. FINLETTER, THOMAS K. Valuation. (In his Law of bankruptcy reorganization. 1939. p.
- FINLETTER, THOMAS K. Valuation. (In his Law of bankruptcy reorganization. 1939. p. 555-91.)
 GOLSAN, PAGE. Protection for corporate trustees; the reliance clauses and certificates of value. Trusts and estates, Dec. 1939, p. 615-20. Reprinted by Ford, Bacon and Davis, inc. 7p. HAMBURG, ALEX M. Valuation of real property for taxation. Taxes-the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 139-41, 187-8.
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Valuation of assets. (In his Accounting. c1937. p. 451-61.)
 JERRETT, HERMAN DANIEL. Theory of real property valuation. Sacramento, Calif., The author, c1938, 309p.
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Valuation. (In his Principles of accounting. c1937. p. 524-45.)
 KELLEY, ARTHUR C. In defense of the accountant. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 63-5.

- 63-5.
 KESTER, ROY B. Principles of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 540-75.
 KOSIOL, E. Bases of valuation in German corporate balance sheets. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 355-60.
 KURTZ, EDWIN B. Science of valuation and depreciation. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 2219.

- 1937, p. 355-60.
 KURTZ, EDWIN B. Science of valuation and depreciation. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 221p.
 LEAKE, P. D. Balance sheet values: the limitations of industrial accounting. London, Gee & co., ltd., 1938. 75p.
 McKESSON AND ROBBINS, INC. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 6.
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Valuation accounts. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 220-48.)
 McMICHAEL, STANLEY L. McMichael's appraising manual; a real estate appraising handbook for use in field work and advanced study courses. ed. 2. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 652p.
 MacNEAL, KENNETH. Nature of value—Valuation accounts. (In his Truth in accounting. 1939. p. 85-102, 247-70.)
 MARSHALL, H. S. Appraisal for assessment of intangible property of corporations. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 4-8.
 MARSTON, ANSON AND AGG, THOMAS R. Engineering valuation. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1936. 655p.
 MAY, GEORGE O. Influence of accounting on the development of an economy. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 11-22; Feb. 1936, v. 2, 9. 305-52.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Valuation. (In his Twentyfive years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936, v. 2, 9. 305-52.)
 MAY, GEORGE O. Valuation. (In his Twentyfive years of accounting responsibility, 1911-1936, v. 1, 9. 237-368.)
 MUNSON, G. KIBBY. Value based on earnings and other principles in recent decisions. Controller, Aug. 1939, p. 276-8, 279.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. General theories of balance sheet values—Fixed asset appreciation and devaluation and goodwill. (In their Intermediate accounting. c139. p. 114-26, 283-94.)

- (In their Intermediate accounting, c1939, p. 114-26, 283-94.) OLSON, LYLE H. Accountants, appraisers and the S.E.C. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 220-2.
- OLSON, LYLE H. Appraisals and taxation. Accounting forum, March 1938, p. 12-4, 21.
- OLSON, LYLE H. Principles of accounting and

VALUATION—(Continued)

- appraising as applied to the fixed and inventory assets; address before the District of Columbia institute of certified public accountants, October 12, 1939. New York, American appraisal co.,
- 12, 1939. New York, American appraisal co., 1939, 12p.
 OLSON, LYLE H. Valuation of intangibles. National accountant, Aug. 1937, p. 20-3.
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Valuation of plant. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1937. Part 2, Interview 25.0
- chapter 25.)
- chapter 25.) PATON, WILLIAM A. Valuation of the business enterprise. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 26-32, comments by S. J. Broad, p. 32-5. PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND MERTENS, JACOB. JR. Problems of valuation. (In their Law of federal income taxation. 1934. v. 5. p. 694-807.) PAUL PANDOLPH E. AND ZIMET BUILLE
- 807.)
 PAUL, RANDOLPH E. AND ZIMET, PHILIP. Realistic valuation for federal tax purposes. (In Paul, Randolph E. Studies in federal taxation. 1937. p. 159-234.)
 PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Valuation and amortization. Accounting review, Sept. 1937,

- amortization. Account of the p. 209-26. PREINREICH, GABRIEL A. D. Valuation and depreciation. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1938, p. 46-8. PROBLEM of valuation. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 404. REITELL, CHARLES AND VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE. Basic valuation principles. (In their Accounting principles for engineers. 1936. p. 186-224.) SALIERS. EARL A. Depreciation, principles and Van Sickle Score S
- SALIERS, EARL A. Depreciation, principles and applications. ed. 3. New York, Ronald press co.,
- c1939. 482p. SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Valuation principles—Valuation methods. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937, p. 478-504.)
- SCHMIDT, LEO A. Valuation problems. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 186-320.)
- SPRY, F. W. Verification of fixed assets including depreciation thereof, and basis of valuation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1936, p. 288-301.
- SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Stabilized accounting. New York, Harper and brothers, 1936. 219p.
- TAYLOR, JACOB B. Valuation of fixed assets and principles related to write-ups and write-ins. (In American institute of accountants. *Papers*) accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 17-20.)
- TAYLOR, JACOB B. AND MILLER, HERMANN C. Fixed assets-accounting for appraisals. (In their Intermediate accounting. 1938. p. 181-95.) (In
- THOMAS, ROSCOE L. Federal income taxation. Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 15-20.
- UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 8. commission. Accounting series, release no. 8. (creation of surplus by appraisal in balance-sheets representing the accounts of promotional com-panies) Washington, D. C., Securities and ex-change commission, May 20, 1938. 1 mimeo-graphed page.
- WALKER, ROSS G. Base-stock principles in income accounting. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 76-94.
 WILSON, JOHN A. Fixed asset appraisals and accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1927.
- accounting. Car. 1937, p. 97-110.
- WOLFF, WILLIAM. Function of realisable values in accounts. Accountant, July 23, 1938, p. 124-8; July 30, 1938, p. 156-60.

Asset revaluation ACCOUNTING and the S.E.C. (release 1210) Certified public accountant, April 1937, p. 13-4. CHAMBERLAIN, HENRY T. Adjustments of fixed assets. (In American institute of accoun-

- tants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 8-12.)
 CRANSTOUN, WILLIAM D., editor. Some general observations on surplus. (Commentator) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1938, p. 68-70.
 FABRICANT, SOLOMON. Revaluations of fixed assets. 1925-1934. National bureau of economic research bulletin 62, Dec. 7, 1936, p. 1-11.
 GILMAN, STEPHEN. Inventory revaluation—Fixed asset readjustments. (In his Accounting concepts of profit. cl939). p. 405-60, 529-49.)
 HOWARD, STANLEY EDWIN. Interpretation of accounting records. (In his A B C of accounting. 1938. p. 262-70.)
 MUND, VERNON A. Financial adjustment in the empirical law of cost. American economic review, March 1936, p. 74-80.
 MUNSON, G. KIBBY. Treatment of capital write-downs discussed by SEC decisions. Controller, April 1939, p. 134-6, 137.
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Fixed asset appreciation and devaluation. (In their Intermediate accounting standards. Controller, May 1937, p. 130.
 UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charging losses to capital surplus rather than
- May 1937, p. 130. UNITED STATES. Securities and exchange commission. Accounting series, release no. 1. (charging losses to capital surplus rather than to earned surplus) Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, April 1, 1937. 1 mimeographed page. WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. Some current prob-lems in accounting; address before annual meet-ing of American accounting association at Detroit, Michigan, December 28, 1938. 10 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 117-26.
- VALUATION and depreciation. Preinreich, Gabriel A. D. (Correspondence)
- VALUATION for rating purposes: consideration of demand by special class of tenants. Accountant, tax supplement, April 23, 1938, p. 177-9.
- VALUATION of capital stock in Pennsylvania for tax purposes. Krekstein, I. H.

ALUATION of compensation stock. Kunkel, John.

- VALUATION of compensation stock. ence) Reno, Edwin S. (Correspond-
- VALUATION of flour mill inventories. Pelej, Joseph.
- VALUATION of inventories. American institute of accountants. Special committee on inventories.
- VALUATION of inventories of metal mining companies. (Accounting questions) Journal of countancy, Feb. 1936, p. 153-5. ac-
- VALUATION of inventory. American institute of accountants. Special committee on inventories.
- VALUATION of investments in balance sheets. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 2-3.
- VALUATION of property. Bonbright, James C.
- VALUATION of repossessed goods. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 119.
- VALUATION of shares, quoted and unquoted. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Feb. 1939, p. 293-6.
- VALUATION of stock issued to corporation officers as bonuses. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 457-8.
- VALUATION of water utility assets. Sweeney, Charles T.

- VALUATION of water utility assets. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, (Accounting D. 244-7.
- VALUATION of water utility assets. (Correspond-ence) Yerger, J. Douglas.
- VALUATION reserves in bank accounting. Jones, Laurence H.
- VALUE of loose-leaf records. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, March 1936, p. 166.

VALUE of uniform accounting in the laundry industry. Laundryowners national association of the United States and Canada.

VALUING shares. LUING shares. Irish accountant and secretary. Nov./Dec. 1938, p. 159, 158.

VALVES

Cost accounting HINDE, FRANK L. Job cost system for a valve manufacturer; a thesis submitted in connection with examinations by the Canadian society of cost accountants and industrial engineers. Cost and management, Sept. 1937, p. 204-16.

VAN ARSDELL PAUL M. Problems of corporate-surplus administration. Ac-counting review, Sept. 1938, p. 275-85.

VANDER HORST, G. Social security. National accountant, April 1937, p. 21-31.

Social security news and procedure. National ac-countant, Aug. 1937, p. 25-9.

VANDOREN, W. T. Maintenance of proper records together with audit and examination of trust departments. National auditgram, Jan. 1938, p. 7-9.

VAN DROOGE, HUBERT

Orders, inventories, billings under automatic con-trol. Factory management and maintenance, June 1939, p. 56-9, 132-134.

VAN DYKE, GEORGE E. Unit costs in public school systems. Educational business manager and buyer, Oct. 1936, p. 14-5, 24-5.

VAN GELDER, E. C. Application of recordak to accounts receivable. Balance sheet, Sept. 1937, p. 6-8.

VAN METER, KARL K. Evolution of public utility regulation. New York certified public accountant, July 1938, p. 20-2.

VANNAIS, LEON E.

Accounting records where punched cards are in use. Accounting forum, Nov. 1937, p. 11-2, 22. Connecticut C.P.A., Oct. 1938, p. 1-6.

VAN POPPELEN, F. J. Waste elimination. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 51-4.

VAN SCHAACK AND COMPANY

Departmental set-up for a management agency. Buildings and building management, Jan. 1938, p. 30-2, 68-71; Feb. 1938, p. 44-5, 74-7.

VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L. Cost accounting, fundamentals and procedures. New York, Harper & brothers, c1938. 998p.

VAN SICKLE, CLARENCE L., joint author See Reitell, Charles and Van Sickle, Clarence L.

VARIETY CHAINS See Chain stores.

VARIETY STORES See Retail trade.

VASOLL. HERBERT H.

Beverage accounting; accounting for containers and deposits on containers as applied to breweries. New York certified public accountant, March 1939, p. 275-81.

VATTER, WILLIAM J. Depreciation methods of American industrial cor-porations, 1927-35. Journal of business of the University of Chicago, April 1937, p. 126-46.

VEGETABLE DEALERS See Fruit and vegetable dealers.

VEGETABLE oil industry and some of its peculiar accounting problems. Barrows, Douglass M.

VEGETABLE OILS AND OILSEED See also Cottonseed oil.

Accounting BARROWS, DOUGLASS M. Vegetable oil industry and some of its peculiar accounting prob-lems. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 8, section 1, p. 431-48.)

Statistic

COMMODITY year book, 1939. New York, Com-modity research bureau, inc., 1939. 616p.

VELIE, LESTER

Assault on electric rates. Public utilities fort-nightly, March 2, 1939, p. 278-84.

VENDER, E. E.

Products cost and estimating in the screw machine products industry. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 33-9.

VENEER

See Woodworking.

VENETIAN BLINDS

See Curtains, draperies, etc.

VENTNOR CITY (N. J.) Financial survey of the city of Ventnor City, county of Atlantic, New Jersey, with a refund-ing plan. Packard bldg., Philadelphia, Pa., M. M. Freeman & co., inc., January 15, 1935. 18p.

VENTURES

- CENTURES GERSTENBERG, CHARLES W. Forms of or-ganization—individual proprietorship, partner-ship, joint adventures, and joint stock company. (In his Financial organization and management of business. 1936. p. 50-60.) GILMAN, STEPHEN. Profit determination in trading ventures. (In his Accounting concepts of profit. c1939. p. 66-73.) PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRIEL. Joint venture, joint stock company, limited partnership association, mining partner-ship. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937 345-67.)

VERBAND SCHWEIZERISCHER BÜCHEREXPERTEN Bulletin; monatliches mitteilungsblatt über re-visionswesen. Zurich, Verband schweizerischer bücherexperten.

- (Der) bücherexperte in der Schweiz; festschrift zum 25 jährigen jubiläum des Verbandes Schweiz. bücherexperten. (l'expert-comptable en Schweiz. bücher*xperten. (l'expert-comptable en Suisse; ouvrage sublié par l'Association Suisse des experts-comptables, à l'occasion du XXVme anniversaire de sa fondation.) Zurich, Verband Schweiz. bücherexperten, 1930. 167p.
 Jaresbericht, 1936/37. Zurich, Verband schweizer-ischer bücherexperten, 1937. 14p.
 Membership list, June 30, 1936. Zurich, Verband schweizerischer bücherexperten, 1936. 13p.
 Statuten des Verbandes schweizerischer bücher-experten. Zurich, Verbandes schweizer bücher-experten. May 1936. 30p.

- experten. Zurich, Verban experten, May 1936. 30p.

VERIFICATION OF INVENTORIES See Inventories-Verification.

VERIFICATION of inventories. (Editorials) Canad-ian chartered accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 84-6.

VERIFICATION of inventory and accounts receivable. Scholefield, J. B.

- VERIFICATION of inventory quantities in grain elevators. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bul-letin, v. 18, no. 5, section 2, p. 287-9.) Printed with: Donaldson, William R. Tax advantages of the natural business year.
- VERMONT--House bill no. 211; an act to amend sections 7628, 7629 and 7635 of the public laws relating to the board of accountants and quali-fications for certified public accountants. (ap-proved, March 25, 1937.) Certified public ac-countant, April 1937, p. 20-1.
- VERMONT maple furniture company (a cost study) Bennett, Clinton W.
- VERTICAL integration in the textile industries. Davis, Hiram S. and others.

VICKERS, GEOFFREY Legal obstacles to industrial integration. Accoun-tant, Nov. 20, 1937, p. 695-9.

VICKERY, B. G. Principles and practice of bookkeeping and ac-counts. London, Gregg pub. co., Itd. (1936).

VICKERY, M. R. F. Some aspects of colliery accounts. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 525-30.

VICTORIA

Companies act, 1938 (no. 4602) with which is incorporated the Investment companies act, 1938. (no. 4621) Melbourne, Government printer, 1939. 352p.

VICTORIAN COMPANIES ACT See Corporations-Law-Victoria.

VICTORIAN companies act, 1938. Commonwealth institute of accountants. Victorian division.

VINCENT, HAL G.

Service charges approved when customers under-stand them. Rand McNally bankers monthly, July 1937, p. 394-5, 434.

VINCENT, J. E. Mechanised stores accounting. Cost accountant, Oct. 1939, p. 119-21.

VINSON ACT

- INSON ACT See also Contracts.
 ACCOUNTING treatment of sums repaid to gov-ernment under Vinson act. Controller, March 1939, p. 88-9.
 COMMERCE CLEARING HOUSE, INC. Vinson act (sec. 3) (In its Federal revenue laws, Janu-ary 1936, p. 245.)
 GLASS, SPAULDING F. Excess profit on war materials under the Vinson act. Marine engi-neering and shipping review, Oct. 1938, p. 445-7, 476. Reprinted.
- neering and smpping review, Oct. 1900, p. 1121, 476. Reprinted. GRAHAM, B. L. Vinson act as it affects the excess profits tax. Controller, May 1938, p. 142, 144. NATIONAL COUNCIL OF AMERICAN SHIP-BUILDERS. Summary of treasury decisions and rulings issued by the Treasury department, Bureau of internal revenue, on matters pertain-Bureau of internal revenue, on matters pertain-ing to the Vinson act. New York, National council of American shipbuilders, 1935. mimeographed.

- VIRGINIA. AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS Manual of uniform system of accounting for clerks of courts of the commonwealth of Virginia. Richmond, Va., Auditor of public accounts, 1937. 36p
 - Manual of uniform system of accounting for county accounts, installed in the counties of the com-monwealth of Virginia. Richmond, Va., Auditor of public accounts, 1935. 26p. Model for reports on audits of the accounts and

records of the counties of the commonwealth of Virginia, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1937. mimeographed.

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE

Report of the auditor of student organizations, 1938-39, by G. T. Baird. Blacksburg, Va., Vir-ginia polytechnic institute, Oct. 1939. 23p. (Bulletin v. 32, no. 12.)

- VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS President's message, officers and directors, com-mittees, new members, etc., as of October 31, mittees, ne 1938. 12p.
 - Rules of professional conduct, constitution, by-laws and roster, as of August 31, 1938. 29p.
- VOCABULARY building. (Correspondence) Peloubet, Maurice E.

VOCATIONS

See Accountancy-As a vocation.

VOEGELE, ALBIN B. AND TOWNS, CHARLES H. Cost accounting for federal agencies. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 2, section 1, p. 93-9.)

VOGEL, MILTON, editor See LaSalle extension university.

VOLTZ, I. A. Survey of social security. Taxes-the tax maga-zine, March 1939, p. 152-4, 165-6.

VOLUMES in the circulating library. public accountant, March 1938, p. 25-36. Certifiea

VON REISCHACH, JOHN Cost accounting and the sales manager. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1937, p. 179-81.

VON ROSEN, URBAN F.

Classified questions and problems given by the Ohio state board of accountancy, Autumn, 1931-Spring, 1936, inclusive. Cleveland, Ohio, Fenn college book store, 1936. 312p. loose-leaf.

VON SCHAPER, W., trans.

Wie geht der amerikanische wirtschaftsprüfer vor? Leitsätze des American institute of ac-countants ("Examination of financial statements by independent public accountants") Amerikanisch —Deutsch . . . in Deutsche übertragen von W. von Schaper. Berlin, Deutscher rechtsverlag, 1938. 1039.

VOTING TRUSTS See Corporations.

VOUCHERS

- OUCHERS BOLON, DALLAS S. Voucher system. (In his Introduction to accounting. 1938. p. 390-402.) FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Voucher system. (In his Introduction to principles of accounting. 1936. p. 203-20.) GRAVES, W. C. Voucher system. Profit, March 1939, p. 1, 3, 4. HADLEY, CHARLES R., COMPANY. Manual of pathfinder voucher system. Los Angeles, Calif., Charles R. Hadley co., c1939. 8p. and forms. forms

- INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Voucher system. (In his Accounting, cl937, p. 359-73.) JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Voucher system—petty cash. (In his Principles of accounting, cl937, p. 428-49.) FECTED BOY B. Voucher system (In his Brin
- p. 428-49.) KESTER, ROY B. Voucher system. (In his Prin-ciples of accounting. ed. 4. c1939. p. 472-90.) LAMBERTON, ROBERT A. Voucher system. (In his Fundamentals of accounting. 1938. p 274-87.)

VOUCHERS—(Continued)

- MacFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Voucher system. (In their Account-ing fundamentals. 1936. p. 443-68.)
 McKINSEY, JAMES O. AND NOBLE, HOW-ARD S. Voucher system. (In their Accounting principles. c1939. p. 356-75.)
 MANNIX, RAYMOND L. Voucher system. (In his Basic course in cost accounting. 1938. p. 40-8.)
- 40-8.)

- his Basic course in cost accounting. 1938. p. 40-8.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Voucher system. (In their Elementary accounting. 1938. p. 250-63.)
 PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Vouchers and the voucher register— Business forms and vouchers. (In their Principles of accounting. rev. ed. 1937. p. 207-45.)
 ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL. Voucher system. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938. p. 496-509.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. Vouchers and the voucher system. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare statements. 1938. p. 448-66.)
 SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Voucher system. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 286-304.)
 SCHMIDT, LEO A. Voucher register system. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p. 153-63.)

VRIONIS, GEORGE S.

Observations on valuing of trust assets. Trust companies, May 1936, p. 477-84.

- WADDINGTON, MELVILLE W.
 Some observations by a newcomer to the gas industry. Canadian chartered accountant, July 1938, p. 30.41.
 Trust company accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 366-73. Indian accoun-tant, Feb. 1938, p. 109-14.

WADE, C. B. Dominion companies act respecting the interpreta-tion of section 83 (1). Canadian chartered ac-countant, April 1936, p. 256-60.

WADE, HARRY H.

- Income-tax algebra. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 69-71.
- WAGE AND HOUR LAW See Fair labor standards act; Labor-Law and regulation.

WAGE-HOUR RECORDS See Payrolls.

WAGE incentive methods, their selection, instion and operation. Lytle, Charles Walter. installa-

WAGE INCENTIVES

See Wages, fees, etc.-Incentives.

WAGE SYSTEMS

See Wages, fees, etc.

WAGES and employment under the old-age insur-ance program. Corson, John J.

WAGES AND HOURS LEGISLATION See Labor-Law and regulation.

- WAGES, FEES, ETC. See also Labor-Law and regulation; Special industries and trades; Payrolls.
 BASS, A. W., JR. Job evaluation; a specific appli-cation. Mechanical engineering, Dec. 1938, p. 027-30.

 - 927-30.
 CHIEF ACCOUNTANT. Interest and salary payments. Accountant's journal (Eng.), April 1936, p. 927-30.
 COMPUTING rates and reporting time for employees operating several machines. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Oct. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletim. v. 19, no. 3, section 2, p. 181-3.)

- CONTROLLERS INSTITUTE OF AMERICA. Median, minimum and maximum monthly salary paid employees in fifteen job classifications by companies in New York, Philadelphia and Cincinnati areas, also job duties and qualifications. New York, Controllers institute of America (July 1939). mimeographed.
 DETERMINATION of prevailing minimum wages under the public contracts act. Yale law journal, Feb. 1939, p. 610-33.
 DICKINSON, Z. CLARK. Compensating industrial effort; scientific study of work and wages. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 479p.
 FEDERAL wages and hours law of 1938. Monthly labor review, July 1938, p. 107-12.
 FRANCQ, GUS. Minimum wages in relation to costs. Cost and management, April 1936, p. 98-109. Median, minimum and maximum monthly salary

- costs. 98-109.
- GLOVER, JOHN G. AND MAZE, COLEMAN L. Relation of wage systems and incentives to costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments
- costs. (In their Managerial control, instruments and methods in industry, c1937, p. 179-99.)
 HALL, GEORGE W. Evaluation of basic methods of compensation in relation to effect on selling cost. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 63-5.)
 KING, L. J. Job evaluation. Society for the ad-vancement of management journal, May 1938, p. 93-8.
- 93-8.
- p. 93-8.
 KNOWLES, ASA S. AND MEANS, FREDERIC C. Survey of job evaluation as used by industry in determining base rates. New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 7, section 1, p. 381-416.)
 LaSALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY. Wage systems. (In its Cost accounting procedure. 1937. p. 237-44.)
 DOWE CORDON Exaction of the wage office

- b) Status, p. 237-44.)
 LOWE, GORDON. Function of the wage office. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 27-30.
 McGILL, J. J. Earned hours wage system. Cost and management, March 1938, p. 85-8.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Compen-sating salaried employees during illness. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 7p.
 MILLS, EDWARD V. Definition of jobs, stand-ardization of wages, build morale. Controller, Feb. 1939, p. 64-6, 73.
 MITCHELL, JAMES M. Salary plans and ad-ministration. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 42-6.
- 42-6.

- Washington, D. C., October 17, 1938. 167p. and exhibits.
 NYSTROM, PAUL H. Salaries and wages in retail stores. (In his Retail store operation. cl937, p. 319-50.)
 POTTER, SAMUEL I. Priorities—wages and taxes. Tax magazine, July 1938, p. 399-400.
 TAYLOR, HARRY. Job analysis. Cost and man-agement, May 1936, p. 140-5.
 TIPPING as a factor in wages. Accountant, Nov. 19, 1938, p. 687-8.
 TURNER, PHILIP W. Wages and quota systems of the coal mining industry. Accountant, March 14, 1936, p. 415-8.
 UNITED STATES. Labor, Department of. Effect of minimum-wage determinations in service in dustries; adjustments in the dry-cleaning and or minimum-wage determinations in service in-dustries; adjustments in the dry-cleaning and power-laundry industries. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1938. 44p. (Bulletin of the Women's bureau, no. 166.) WALTERS, J. E. Job evaluation; an analysis of the several plans in use today. Mechanical engi-neering, Dec. 1938, p. 921-7.
- WHISLER, R. F. Should we change our wage plan? (reprinted from National association of cost accountants' bulletin.) Cost and management, March 1936, p. 76-84.
- WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; wage payment by results. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 50-3.
- WILLIAMS, R. GLYNNE. Methods of remunera-

WAGES, FEES, ETC.-(Continued)

- Kilis, Files, Fil
- Accountants' fees

- Accountants' fees
 See also Professional ethics—Contingent fees.
 ACCOUNTANT'S charges for tax investigation.
 Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 10.
 ACCOUNTANT'S claim for charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1936, p. 352.
 ACCOUNTANT'S claim for fees. Accountant, June 6, 1936, p. 849. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 121-2.
 ACCOUNTANTS' successful claim. Accountant, Dec. 26, 1936, p. 875.
 ACTION for professional charges. Incorporated accountants' journal, Dec. 1936, p. 114.
 AUDITOR'S right to recover fees. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Feb. 1936, p. 227-8.
 BERCOW, M. S. Accounting services and fees. Credit executive, May 1936, p. 146. Certified public accountant, June 1936, p. 340-1.
 CELLER, EMANUEL. Retention of accountants and their compensation under the Chandler bill. New York certified public accountant's charges; Radford v.
 Mandder Schart, June 1936, p. 284. CLAIM
- CLAIM for accountant's charges; Radford v. Mandleberg & co., limited. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 449-50. CLAIM for fees. Accountant, Dec. 5, 1936, p.

- CLAIM for rees. Accountant, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 775.
 CLAIM for professional fees. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 676.
 CLAIM for professional services. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1937, p. 160.
 FEE for company investigation; accountant's claim. Accountant, June 26, 1937, p. 920-2.
 FEE for company investigation; accountant's claim succeeds. Accountant, July 3, 1937, p. 22-3.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountant of fee is admissible in evidence. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, July 1937, p. 65-8.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Accountants' fees in corporate reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1937, p. 390-3; Dec. 1937, p. 464-8.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Fees. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 390-3; Dec. 1937, p. 464-8.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Fees. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, May 1937, p. 59-8.
- GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Profes sional fees in corporate reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p.
- 122-3.
 GREELEY, HAROLD DUDLEY, editor. Professional fees in reorganizations. (Legal notes) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1937, p. 311-4.
 INCOMES of doctors, dentists, lawyers, and accountants, 1936. Monthly labor review, Nov. 1938 p. 1113-5.
- countants, 1936. Monthly labor review, 1938, p. 1113-5. KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN.
- MIL KUZNETS, SIMON AND FRIEDMAN, MIL-TON. Incomes from independent professional practice, 1929-1936. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 72-3, Feb. 5, 1939, p. 1-32.
 PROFESSION in Ireland; a claim for profes-sional fees. Accountant, Dec. 25, 1937, p. 877.
 PROFESSIONAL accountants' fees. Accountants' journal, April 1938, p. 687-8.
 PROFESSIONAL charges. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 656

- PROFESSIONAL charges. Accountant, Nov. 13, 1937, p. 656.
 SCUDDER, LAWRENCE W. Comparative tables of net incomes of professions. (In his Accountancy as a career. 1939, p. 53-5.)
 STANLEY, H. A. Accountants' fees. California certified public accounting fees and the basis for their computations. 4 typewritten pages.
 SUCCESSFUL claim for fees. Accounting fees and the basis for their computations. 4 typewritten pages.
 SUCCESSFUL claim for fees. Accounting fractionary, 1937, p. 411.
 UNITED STATES. Commerce, Department of. Bureau of foreign and domestic commerce. Income of independent professional practitioners, by Walter L. Slifer. (reprinted from Survey of current business, April 1938.) 5p.
 UNITED STATES. Court of claims. In the Court

UNITED STATES. Court of claims. In the Court

of claims of the United States no. 43469 (de-cided November 6, 1939) James A. Councilor & William Gordon Buchanan, partners, doing business under the firm name and style of Coun-cilor & Buchanan v. the United States. Wash-ington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 10p.

WILDBRETT, ERNEST R. Fees for services to non-profit institutions by public accountants; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 108-9.

- Accountants' salaries
 BAERNCOPF, JOSEPH B. What is ahead for the junior accountant? 12 typewritten pages.
 COMPARISON of weekly salaries of office em-ployees. Management review, Aug. 1938, p. 262-3.
 KNITTEL, ROGER F. Help wanted—accountants. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 158-62.
 McGLADREY, IRA B. Some historical and voca-tional notes on accountancy. 13 typewritten pages

 - pages. McGLADREY, IRA B. Training the beginner in

Bonus

- See also Wages, fees, etc.—Incentives.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Executive salaries and bonus plans. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 274p.
 BONNAR, BENJAMIN H. Effect of compensation methods retrospective quota bonus plan on management operation and employee production. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936, p. 65-9.)
 HENZLER, A. O. Driver bonus plan cuts delivery costs for Wieholdt stores. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 72-5.
 LAUSE, M. A. Practical group bonus plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 567-78.)
 LEACH, H. B. Bonus in the shipping room adds 20% to earnings. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1937, p. 58-9.
 LEEDS, MORRIS E. Bonus plan that weathered the depression. American business, Oct. 1938, p. 17-8, SOCHA-

- LEEDS, MORRIS E. Bonus plan that weathered the depression. American business, Oct. 1938, p. 17-8, 52.
 NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA. TION. How to install a production incentive plan. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 88-94.
 OSTERMAN, J. E. John Q. Supervisor can savvy this bonus plan. Factory management and maintenance, June 1938, p. 52-3.
 OWEN, W. C. Bonus drops packing costs 10%. Factory management and maintenance, March 1939, p. 51-2.
 RENO, EDWIN S. Some problems under the revenue act of 1938. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, April 1939, p. 240-1.
 RUXTON, R. G. Bonus plans for non-selling operators. Balance sheet, Dec. 1938, p. 11-2.
 good bonus plans. American business combined with "System," Aug. 1936, p. 17.
 TYSON, BUCHANAN. Bonus problems under the revenue act of 1938. Journal of accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 94-105.
 VALUATION of stock issued to corporation officers as bonuses. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1937, p. 457-8.

Executive

- BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Compensation of BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Compensation of executive officers of steel corporations. Harvard business review, Summer, 1937, p. 473-85.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Executive com-pensation. Dun's review, Nov. 1939, p. 16-22.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Executive compen-sation compared with earnings. Harvard busi-ness review, Winter number, 1936, p. 213-24.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Executive compen-sation collings of small industrial companies 1928.

- sation policies of small industrial companies, 1928-

WAGES, FEES, ETC.-Executives-(Continued)

- WAGES, FEES, ETC.—Executives—(Continued)
 1936. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1938, p. 466-80.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Executive salaries and bonus plans. New York, McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 1938. 274p.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. How should executives be paid? Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1939, p. 94-106.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Incentive compensation plans for executives. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 44-61.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Incentive compensation plans for executives. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1937, p. 44-61.
 BAKER, JOHN CALHOUN. Operating expenses and executive compensation policies of investment companies: 1929-1935. Harvard business review, Spring number, 1937, p. 337-51.
 HARVARD UNIVERSITY. Graduate school of business administration. Bureau of business research. Compensation of executive officers of retail companies, 1928-1935, by John Calhoun Baker. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass. Harvard university, Bureau of business research. Executive compensation practices of retail companies, 1928-1937, by John Calhoun Baker. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university. Bureau of business research. Executive compensation practices of retail companies, 1928-1937, by John Calhoun Baker. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university. Bureau of business research. Executive compensation practices of retail companies, 1928-1937, by John Calhoun Baker. Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass., Harvard university. Bureau of business research, July 1939, 50p. (Business research studies no. 2.)
 WHAT is a fair salary for the head of the business, Oct. 1939, p. 13-4.

Incentives

- See also Wages, fees, etc.—Bonus. See also Wages, fees, etc.—Bonus. DICKINSON, Z. CLARK. Compensating indus-trial effort; scientific study of work and wages. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 479p. DIRKS, GEORGE L. Lubrication on incentive. Factory management and maintenance, Oct. 1938, p. 77-9.
- P. 7-9.
 p. 7-9.
 p. 7-9.
 p. 7.9.
 p. 7.1.
 p. 7.1.
 p. 7.2.
 <

- sation: a problem in incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1937,
- advancement of management journal, Jan. 1957, p. 15-22. HOWELL, WILLIAM R. Measured day work vs. wage incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 54-7. LYTLE, CHARLES WALTER. Recent develop-ments in wage incentives. Society for the ad-vancement of management journal, March 1938, p. 79-83. p. 79-83.

- p. 79-83. Same as: Chapter XXI of revised ed. (1938) of his "Wage incentive methods." LYTLE, CHARLES WALTER. Wage incentive fallacies. National accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 14-5, 29-30; April 1937, p. 42-3. LYTLE, CHARLES WALTER. Wage incentive methods, their selection, installation and opera-tion. revised printing. New York, Ronald press co. e1938 468
- methods, their selection, installation and opera-tion. revised printing. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 468p. MORROW, L. C. How 133 plants look at wage incentives. Factory management and mainte-wance, Oct. 1937, p. 75-7, 172, 176, 180, 186, 188, 189. MULLEE, WILLIAM R. Job shop inspection on bonus. Factory management and maintenance, May 1937, p. 58-9. NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA.
- NATIONAL RETAIL DRY GOODS ASSOCIA-TION, How to install a production incentive

- plan. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, June 1938, p. 88-94.
 SANKOFF, A. Wage incentive and cost control. Cost and management, May 1938, p. 142-4, 146-54.
 SAYRE, B. M. After incentives—what? New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 10, section 1, p. 559-67.)
 WHITE, B. S. Effect of compensation methods on management operation and employce produc-tion; salary plus commission compared with quota bonus. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 69-70.)
 WILLIAMS, ARCHIBALD. Measured day work or wage incentives? New York, National asso-ciation of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 12-24.) Printed with: Gerofski, Irvin. New developments in controlling labor costs.
 WINTER, FREDERICK C. Measured day work vs. wage incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 48-53.

Interior decorators LIMITED survey on compensation of interior decorators. Balance sheet, March 1938, p. 17.

Office employees

- Mice employees See also Wages, fees, etc.—Salaries. LIFE OFFICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIA-TION. Job evaluation for the establishment of salary standards; report no. 1—clerical salary study committee. New York, Life office man-agement association, Sept. 1, 1938. 54p. and appendix, 35p. LIFE OFFICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIA-TION. Life office salary administration; report no. 2—clerical salary study committee. New York, Life office management association, Sept. 1, 1939. 137p. MacDONALD, JOHN H. Payment of office em-ployees. (In his Office management. 1937. p. 564-82.) METROPOLITAN_LIFE INSURANCE COM-

- METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Salary standardization and administration. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. no date. 41p. and appendix, 8p.

OFFICERS' salaries in construction of new plant. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, June 1936, p. 474-5.

Piecework

- WHISLER, R. F. Operating the piecework plan. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 135-47.)
- Profit sharing
 BALDERSTON, C. CANBY. Profit sharing for wage earners. New York, Industrial relations counselors, inc., 1937. 156p.
 BUTTON, HOWARD. Service and its reward. Accountant, Feb. 27, 1937, p. 301-5.
 DETAILS of profit sharing plan for employees of mining company. Controller, Jan. 1937, p. 13-15.
 DICKINSON, Z. CLARK. Compensating industrial effort; scientific study of work and wages. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 479p.
 EVANS, M. J. Profit-sharing retirement fund. Iron age, July 8, 1937, p. 28-31.
 FOOTE, GEORGE W. Partnership within a corporation. Cost and management, June-July 1939, p. 193-5.

 - 193-5. p. 193-5. LYTLE, CHARLES WALTER. Wage incentive

 - LÝTLE, CHARLES WALTER. Wage incentive methods, their selection, installation and opera-tion. revised printing. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 468p.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Sharing profits with employees. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co., 1936. 28p.
 NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Profit-sharing and other supple-mentary-compensation plans covering wage earn-
 - mentary-compensation plans covering wage earn-

- WAGES, FEES, ETC .-- Profit sharing-(Continued) ers. New York, National industrial conference board, inc., Dec. 1937. 22p. (Studies in per-sonnel policy no. 2.) NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. What profit sharing record shows. Factory management and maintenance,

 - NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. What profit sharing record shows. Factory management and maintenance, Feb. 1939, p. 40.OLIVER, E. L. Better than a bonus is Idaho Maryland mines corporation's method of sharing profits, which provides additional compensation in proportion to dividends paid to stockholders. Factory management and maintenance, Feb. 1937, p. 40 p. 49. PROFIT

PROFIT sharing for industrial employees. Monthly labor review, Feb. 1938, p. 383-7. PROFIT sharing in two manufacturing companies. Monthly labor review, Sept. 1938, p. 588-90. PROFIT sharing is probably not the thing to do.

- Monthly labor review, Sept. 1938, p. 588-90. PROFIT sharing is probably not the thing to do. Factory management and maintenance, May 1937, p. 51-2, 87-9. SIX successful profit sharing plans. Factory man-agement and maintenance, Feb. 1939, p. 43-4. UNITED STATES. Senate. Survey of experi-ences in profit-sharing and possibilities of incen-tive taxation; hearings before a subcommittee of the committee on finance, United States senate, seventy-fifth congress, third session, pursuant to S. Res. 215 providing for an investigation of existing profit-sharing and possibilities of incen-tive taxation; hearing systems between employers and employees in the United States, November 21 to becember 14, 1938. Washington, D. C. Government printing office, 1939. 591p. UNITED STATES. Senate. Survey of experiences in profit sharing and possibilities of incentive taxation; report of the subcommittee of the com-mittee on finance, United States, senate pursuant to S. Res. 215 (75th congress) a resolution pro-viding for an investigation of existing profit-sharing systems between employers and em-ployees in the United States, June 19 (legisla-tive day June 15), 1939. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1939. 351p. WINSI.OW. C. MORTON AND CLARK, K. RAYMOND. Profit sharing and pension plans (their creation and tax effect). New York, Com-merce clearing house, inc., c1939. 192p.
- Salaries
- alaries
 See also Wages, fees, etc.—Office employees;
 Wages, fees, etc.—Salesmen.
 LIFE OFFICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIA-TION. Job evaluation for the establishment of salary standards; report no. 1—clerical salary study committee. New York, Life office manage-ment association, Sept. 1, 1938. 54p. and ap-pendix. 35p.
 LIFE OFFICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIA-TION. Life office salary administration; report no. 2—clerical salary study committee. New York, Life office management association, Sept. 1, 1939. 137p.
 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COM-PANY. Policyholders service bureau. Salary standardization and administration. New York, Metropolitan life insurance co. no date. 41p. and appendix, 8p.
- Salesmen
 ROBNETT, RONALD H. AND TUCKER, HERBERT E. Planning and controlling salesmen's costs. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 15, section 1, p. 873-96.)
 WILSON, WALTER. Commission—satisfactory records—satisfied salesmen from the jewelry store standpoint. Balance sheet, Oct. 1938, p. 13.5
 - 13.5
 - YOUR salesman's pay check; Dartnell salary survey—part 6. American business, June 1939, p. 19-21, 43.

Stock distributing ROSS, A. CLUNIES. Workers' shares. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 448-54.

Systems BAUM, WILLIAM. Problem of labor costs. Rayon and melliand textile monthly, June 1936, p. 360-2.

- Rayon and melliand textile monthly, June 1936, p. 360-2.
 BEDELL, L. V. Measured day work—a wage plan. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 9, section 1, p. 533.9.) Printed with: Taylor, Paul C. Accurate timekeeping is essential to use of standard costs.
 OSBORNE, HARLOW. Suggestions for a new system of wage payment. Society for the advancement of management journal, Nov. 1936, p. 1669, discussion, p. 169-72.
 SELLERS, COLEMAN, 3rd. Application of measured day work. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 25-31.) Printed with: Gerofski, Irvin. New developments in controlling labor costs.
 WIGHT, L. A. Cost accounting; wage payment by results. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 50-3.

- 50-3.
- Trust fees
 AMERICAN BANKERS ASSOCIATION. Trust division. Guide to trust fees, with recommended cost accounting system; schedule of 1932, revised in 1936. New York, American bankers association, 1936, 52p.
 DRISCOLL, JOHN J., Jr. Profitable fee basis for trust services; developing rate structures based on local costs analysis. Trust companies, Nov. 1936, p. 591-7.
 LAIRD, WALTER J. Living trust fees on income and principle; bringing fee schedules into line with cost of trust service. Trust companies, Sept. 1938, p. 280-4.

WAGNER, EDWIN H.

- Problems of the profession in the United States. Canadian chartered accountant, Nov. 1937, p. 320-30.
- United profession and its current problems. Certi-fied public accountant, June 1937, p. 15-20.

WAGNER LABOR ACT

See Labor-Law and regulation.

WAITE, FREDERICK A.

WALD, SAMUEL

- WALDOW, OTTMAR A.
 Cost control of bank operations. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 13, section 1, p. 721-8.) Printed with: Thibault, Raymond L. Bank service charges. National auditgram, March 1936, p. 4-5.
 Duties and responsibilities of a bank auditor.
 - March 1936, p. 4-5. Duties and responsibilities of a bank auditor. New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, May 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 17, section 1, p. 1105-20.) Values and purposes of item costs. National audit-gram, April 1938, p. 9-11.
- WALKER, C. E. Company legislation; conservation of the capital fund in the interests of the shareholders and creditors of the company—statutory provisions and excerpts from court cases thereon. *Canadian chartered accountant*, Aug. 1937, p. 100-9. Company legislation in regard to the acquiring of initial capital—excerpts from some court cases thereon. *Canadian chartered accountant*, July 1937, p. 31-9.

WALKER, D. L. System of accounting for material in a fac Australian accountant, June 1939, p. 360-8. factory.

WALKER, FRANK R.

Practical accounting and cost keeping for contrac-tors; illustrating and describing in easy, under-standable language, bookkeeping and accounting

Electrographic system of trust accounting; outline of basic set-up and provisions. Trust companies, Aug. 1936, p. 187-94; Oct. 1936, p. 439-43.

Minimizing taxes. Credit executive, Dec. 1936, p. 372-3.

WALKER, FRANK R.-(Continued)

systems for contractors, giving complete instruc-tions and examples of the proper methods of keeping time and compiling costs on all classes of construction work. Chicago, Ill., Frank R. Walker co., 1938. ed. 3. 169p.

- WALKER, GEORGE T. Goodwill on financial statements. Accounting re-view, June 1938, p. 174-82. Limitations of the statement of funds applied and provided, no date. 11 typewritten pages. Nonpurchased goodwill. Accounting review, Sept. 1938, p. 253-9.

WALKER, H. J.

Social security accounting. Railway age, July 3, 1937, p. 13-5.

WALKER, PERCY H.

- ALKER, PERCI H. Debentures and the powers of receivers appointed by debenture holders. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1937, p. 207-12. Establishment charges their components and methods of allocation. Accountant, Nov. 25, 1939, 5 (2017)
- p. 571-6.

WALKER. ROSS G.

- Base-stock principle in income accounting. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1936, p. 76-94.

- p. 76-94,
 Income accounting and the base-stock inventory. Credit and financial management, May 1938, p. 14-7; June 1938, p. 14-6.
 Some financial questions in inventory valuation. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936, p. 212-6.)
 Some recent experiments in the control of manufacturing costs. (In Harvard university. Grad-uate school of business administration. Business and modern society, 1938, p. 153-90.)

WALKER, W.

ALKER, W. Presidential address, Institute of cost and works accountants, sixteenth national cost conference . . . 30th September, 1937. London, Institute of cost and works accountants (Itd.), 1937. 10p. Cost accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 119-22.

WALL, ALEXANDER

- Analyzing financial statements. 2 parts. New York, American institute of banking, section American bankers association, c1938. part 1, p. 1-151; part 2, p. 153-307. How to evaluate financial statements. New York,

- Harper and brothers, 1936, 319p. Is December 31 a natural? Credit and financial management, April 1936, p. 6, 34-5. Natural business year. Domestic commerce, Jan. 10, 1936, p. 5-6. Reprinted. 2p.

WALLACE, S. J.

- Accounting records as related to income tax re-turns. (In National tax association. *Proceedings*, 1938. p. 155-7.)
- WALLACE, WILLIAM CARROLL, joint author See Rosenkampff, Arthur Henry and Wallace, See Rosenkampr William Carroll.

WALLICK, EDGAR U.

Accounting for machines on loan. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Sept. 1, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 2, p. 33.)

WALLOND, H. C. Municipal budgets. Cost accountant, June 1936, p. 19-25.

WALLPAPER

Statistics

- DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of paint, wallpaper and glass stores. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 53.)
 - -Analysis of the 1936 operations of paint, wallpaper and glass stores, and wallpaper stores, (In their 1937 retail survey. survey nos. 66, 69.)

WALSH, WILLIAM C.

Taxation of government corporations engaged in business with the states. Taxes—the tax maga-sine, Oct. 1939, p. 570-2, 604.

WALTER, CEDRIC N.

- ALTER, CEDRIC N.
 Depreciation of fixed assets; another view. Accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 405-7. Indian accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 33-5.
 Training of the practicing accountant. Incorporated accountants' journal, Feb. 1938, p. 174-8, discussion, p. 178-9.

WALTERS, J. E.

Job evaluation; an analysis of the several plans in use today. Mechanical engineering, Dec. 1938, p. 921-7.

WALTON, S. J.

Proprietary companies under the New South Wales companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1936, p. 362-79.

WALTON, WALTER W. Expense budgeting. National auditgram, Dec. 1938, p. 12-7.

- WALTON ACCOUNTING SERIES Langer, Charles H. and Knautz, Harry A.— Walton federal income tax accounting and pro-cedure, 1935. Langer, Charles H.—Accounting principles and
 - cedure, 1935. Langer, Charles H.—Accounting principles and procedure; municipal accounting lectures. Langer, Charles H.—Solutions to practical account-ing problems; municipal accounting. Langer, Charles H.—Accounting principles and procedure; cost accounting. c1939. Langer, Charles H.—Answers to questions and solutions to problems. c1939. Langer, Charles H.—Practice set c1938.

Langer, Charles H .-- Practice set. c1938.

WALTON federal income tax accounting and pro-cedure, 1935. Langer, Charles H. and Knautz, Harry A.

WANDEL, WILLIAM H., joint author See Wyatt, Birchard E. and Wandel, William H.

- WANDMACHER, F. CORNELIUS Audits for churches. (from the Lutheran, Sept. 1939.) 6 typewritten pages.
- WANSLEY, RAYMOND M. AND ELDRED, WIL-FRED
 - How will dividends affect principal stockholders? Profit, Dec. 1936, p. 3.

WANTZ, RAY E.

Government competition with private business. Public utilities fortnightly, Feb. 27, 1936, p. 287-94.

- vant unines formying, Fed. 27, 1936, p. 287-94.
 WAR
 BRITAIN'S war finance. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 70-3.
 COMPANY law; companies and the war. Certified accountants journal, Oct. 1939, p. 301-3; Nov. 1939, p. 331-4; Dec. 1939, p. 363-6.
 EDWARDS, ERNEST E. War compensation. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 55-7.
 EMERGENCY acts and orders. Accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 37-41; Dec. 1939, p. 65-6.
 EMERGENCY finance. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1939, p. 322-4.
 EMERGENCY legislation; Courts (Emergency powers) act, 1939. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 18, 1939, p. 554-7.
 HOLGATE, H. C. F. Keynes on forced saving. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 505-9.
 HOLMAN, WALTER. Accountancy in war-time. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 54-5.
 MEETING the cost of the war. Accountants' magazine, Dec. 1939, p. 54-5.
 MEESNER, C. L. Wartime regulation of finance and commerce. Chartered accountant in Australia, Nov. 1939, p. 351-71.

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

WAR-(Continued)

- MORTGAGES under the new legislation. Accoun-tant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 591-2; Dec. 9, 1939, p. 618-9.
- PARKINSON, HARGREAVES. Britain's war finance. Accountant, Dec. 2, 1939, p. 599-605. PLAUT, T. Germany's war potentials 1914 and 1939 compared. Accountant, Dec. 2, 1939, p.
- 592-4
- StHELD, W. J. Property and the war. Accountancy, Dec. 1939, p. 57-8.
 UNITED STATES. Congress. Neutrality act of 1939, approved November 4, 1939 (Public resolution no. 54, 76th congress, approved November 4, 1939.) New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 14p.
 WAR. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 217-8.
 WISEMAN M. D. War, logicity of the second s
- WIAK. (Editorial) Fournal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 217-8.
 WISEMAN, H. D. War legislation. Federal ac-countant, Dec. 1939, p. 612-15.
- WAR. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Oct. 1939, p. 217-8.
- WARBURTON, CLARK
 - Accounting methodology in the measurement of national income. (In National bureau of economic research. Studies in income and wealth. 1937. v. 1. p. 67-110.)
- WARD,
- ARD, A. E. AND SWEETINGHAM, C. R. Trade union accounting and financial administra-tion. London, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons, ltd. (1936)

- WARD-BENSON, D. Manufacturing specification. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1939, p. 406-8.
- WARE, CAROLINE F. AND MEANS, GARDINER C. Modern economy in action. New York, Harcourt, Brace and co., c1936. 244p.

WARE, WILLIAM Work of the C.P.A.; an interview with William Ware. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1938, p.

- WAREHOUSE RECEIPTS ALBEDI, LOUIS M. Field warehousing. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, Oct. 1938, of the An p. 514-22.

 - b) the American institute of banking, Oct. 1950, p. 514-22.
 BEAN, IVAN R. How to increase loan volume on field warehouse receipts. Bankers monthly, Nov. 1938, p. 655-7.
 BEATY, JOHN Y. More states recognize field warehouse receipts as good collateral. Bankers monthly, Oct. 1939, p. 595-7.
 CUDNEY, J. R. Warehouse receipts provide a source of new loans. Rand McNally bankers monthly, June 1937, p. 343-5.
 TYLER, RALPH S. Outline of discussion of certain aspects of bank loans upon whiskey warehouse receipts. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, March 1939, p. 211-9.

WAREHOUSES

- ALBEDI, LOUIS M. Field warehousing. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, Oct. 1938, p. 514-22.

Accounting HEISMAN, M. J. Accounting for coöperative warehouse associations. Pathfinder service bulle-tin, Oct. 1937, p. 1, 3-5.

- Statistics DUN UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of transfer and storage con-cerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 107...) 107x.)
 - Analysis of the 1937 operations of trans-fer and storage concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 112.)

WARFEL, CHARLES R. Simplified accounting for collection agencies. Path-finder service bulletin, Sept. 1938, p. 1, 3, 6-8.

- WARNER, JOHN Design and use of appraisal forms. Municipal finance, Feb. 1937, p. 7-20.

WARNER, ROSS T.

Medal awards to students in accountancy. Certified public accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 2-3.

WARREN, A. O. Can auditors act as registrars? Accountant, March

27, 1937, p. 451. Liquidator's liability for breach of duty for non-provision for contingent liabilities. Accountant, May 23, 1936, p. 795-6.

WARREN, CHARLES Bankruptcy in United States history. Cambridge, Mass., Harvard univ. press, 1935. 195p.

WARREN, ROBERT E.

Modern requirements for financial statements. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936. p. 24-31.)

WARREN, WILLIAM C. AND SCHLESINGER, MIL-TON R.

Sales and use taxes: interstate commerce pays its way. Columbia law review, Jan. 1938, p. 49-79.

- WARTIME problems for accountants. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1939, p. 293-4.
- "WASHINGTON PLAN" OF RATE CONTROL See Public utilities-Rates-Sliding scale.

WASHINGTON SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Articles of incorporation and by-laws; revised May 1, 1939. 20p. Directory of members, January 1938. 15p.

WASTE

See Scrap, waste, etc.; Waste in industry.

- WASTE IN INDUSTRY BENNETTS, K. J. Wastage in material. Australian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 369-70. Cost and management, March 1937, p. 68-78.
 LARAMEE, FREDERICK G. Clerical and ac-counting waste in industry. Journal of accoun-tancy, Dec. 1936, p. 448-53.
 LEE, E. Elimination of factory waste. Certified secretary, May 1936, p. 94-101.
 Van POPPELEN, F. J. Waste elimination. Society for the advancement of management journal, March 1937, p. 51-4.
- WASTE in woolen textile mills. (Questions and an-swers) (N.A.C.A. bulletin, March 1, 1939, v. 20, no. 13, section 2, p. 871-3.)
- WASTING intangible assets. (Legal notes) Greeley, Harold Dudley, editor.

WATANABE, YOSHIWO Accountancy profession in Japan. (Accounting ex-change) Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 430-2.

WATCHES

See Clocks, watches, etc.

WATERHOUSE, CARMACK Capital stock tax on foreign corporations. Tax magazine, Feb. 1936, p. 76-8.

- WATERHOUSE, NICHOLAS E. Matters affecting the accountancy profession. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand kon-gress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B. thema 1, p. 155-74.)
 Matters affecting the profession in Great Britain and Ireland. Accountant, Oct. 15, 1938, p. 529-35. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1938, p. 379-86
 - p. 379-86.

- WATERMAN, MERWIN H.
 Public utility financing, 1930-35. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business ad-ministration, Bureau of business research, 1936.
 622p. (Michigan business studies v. 7, no. 4.)
 Utility financing under the holding company act; trend and scope of federal regulation as shown by SEC rules and decisions. Public utilities fortnightly, Feb. 16, 1939, p. 195-208.

WATERS, HENRY H.

Reorganization problems under the new bank-ruptcy act. (In American transit association. Proceedings, 1935. p. 331-42.)

WATERWAYS

Great Britain MUCKLOW, WALTER. Romance of the closed door. Journal of accountancy, March 1937, p. 205-19.

WATERWORKS WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Water-supply utilities. (In their Public utility industries. 1936. p. 129-55.)

- Accounting BRUSH, WILLIAM W. Obsolescence in water works equipment and operating methods. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1936, p. 207-13.
 GOTAAS, HAROLD B. Physical property records. Journal of the American water works association, March 1939, p. 517-25.
 HOFFMAN, M. F. Consumers accounting and collecting. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1939, p. 1769-74.
 HOUSTON, J. C. Meter reading, billing and col-lecting simplified. American city, March 1936, p. 55-9.
 LAMB, CARTER H, Continued property record

 - American water works association, Aug. 1936, p. 1001-6.
 SCHWARTZ, JACOB. Water works accounting and finance practice. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1937, p. 251-8.
 SCHWARTZ, WILLIAM J. Preparation and uses of a list of retirement units. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1623-26 1623-26.

 - Internet water works association, out error, p. 1623-26.
 SMITH, HAL F. Trend of customer accounting practice. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1677-85.
 TENNER, IRVING. Manual of water works accounting. (Accounting exchange) Accounting review, June 1939, p. 184-6.
 TWOHY, FRANK. Application of tabulating equipment in accounting procedure. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1704-11.
 ZERMAN, SAMUEL WILLIAM. Attorney systems as a modern method of collecting water accounts. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1609-76.

Uniform methods and systems

- Diform methods and systems ADAMS, A. L. New uniform systems of accounts. Journal of the American water works association, Dec. 1938, p. 1978-85. ALABAMA. Public service commission. General rules for electric, gas, water, telephone and telegraph utilities, effective January 1, 1936. Montgomery, Ala., Public service commission, 1936 600.
- Montgomery, Ata., I usue vertice communication of the manual of water works accounting. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1937, p. 1123-6.
 KENTUCKY. Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for municipal water utilities,

- S' INDEX 557
 effective January 1, 1936. Frankfort, Ky., Public service commission, 1935. 89.
 MAINE, Public utilities, commission. Uniform system of accounts for water utilities, issue of 1936, effective January 1, 1938. Augusta, Me., Public utilities commission, 1938. 1039.
 MOREHOUSE, E. W. Changes in water utility accounting. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1938, p. 1605-12.
 MUNICIPAL, FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA AND THE AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION, Manual of water works accounting. Chicago, III., Municipal finance officers association of the United States and Canada and the American water works association, c1938, 483p.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Interpretations of uniform system of accounts for water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, August 15, 1939. 14 mineographed pages. (Bulletin no. W-2)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. 1939 interpretations of uniform system of accounts for water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, August 15, 1939. 14 mineographed pages. (Bulletin no. W-2)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Rules governing the preservation of records of water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, August 15, 1939. 14 mineographed pages. (Bulletin no. W-2)
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Rules governing the preservation of records of water utilities. Washington, D. C., National association of railroad and utilities commissioners, August 15, 1939. 20 mimeographed pages.
 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RAILROAD AND UTILITIES COMMISSIONERS. Uniform system of accounts for water utilities commissioners, August 15, 1939. 20 mimeographed pages.

- SwEENEY, CHARLES T. Preparation of a manual of water works accounting procedure. Journal of the American water works associa-tion, Aug. 1937, p. 1127-36.
 WISCONSIN, Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for water utilities (classes A and B), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for water utilities (classes C and D), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission. Uniform system of accounts for water utilities (classes C and D), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 73p.

Budgeting BANKS, T. G. Water department budgets. Journal of the American water works association, June, 1936. p. 741-7.

Costs

- CAPEN, CHARLES H. Wholesale cost of water. Journal of the American water works association, July 1939, p. 1096-109.
 PETERSON, A. Reducing the cost of operating centrifugal water works pumps. Journal of the American water works association, July 1936, p. 868-76, discussion, p. 877-81.
 TAYLOR, D. R. How much does it cost to make a main extension? Water works and sewerage, Nov. 1938, p. 1047-8.

- Finance JACKSON, L. A. Financing water main exten-sions. Journal of the American water works as-sociation, Jan. 1938, p. 1-9, LUDWIG, C. C. Water works-financing and

WATERWORKS-Finance-(Continued)

- rates. Journal of the American water works as-sociation, May 1937, p. 617-36. SCHWARTZ, JACOB. Water works accounting and finance practice. Journal of the American water works association, Feb. 1937, p. 251-8.
- Rates
 - BLACK, E. B. Rates, valuation and water ordi-nances. Journal of the American water works association, March 1938, p. 472-83.
- Valuation
- Valuation
 BLACK, E. B. Rates, valuation and water ordinances. Journal of the American water works association, March 1938, p. 472-83.
 KEITH, J. CLARK. Valuation of water works systems in Canada. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1939, p. 1361-78.
 SWEENEY, CHARLES T. Valuation of water utility assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, June 1938, p. 501-4.
 VALUATION of water utility assets. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, March 1938, p. 244-7.
 WENTWORTH. IOHN P. Water works values.
 - p. 244-7. WENTWORTH, JOHN P. Water works valu-ation for rate making in U. S. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1939,
 - YERGER, J. DOUGLAS. Valuation of water utility assets. (Correspondence) Journal of ac-countancy, May 1938, p. 422-3.

WATKINS, LEONARD L. Commercial banking reform in the United States. Ann Arbor, Mich., University of Michigan, School of business administration, Bureau of business research, 1938, 133p. (Michigan business studies, vol. 8, no. 5.)

WATSON, A. E. Gold standard and foreign rates of exchange. Aus-tralian accountant, April 1937, p. 205-14.

WATSON, ALBERT J.

Principles related to treasury stock. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 31-5.)

WATSON, D. S., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

WATSON, DENEEN A.

Obstacles in connection with municipal accounting and finance. (In American institute of accoun-tants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal accounting and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 57-60.)

WATSON, J. DONALD Annuities illustrated by diagrams. (Accounting ex-change) Accounting review, June 1936, p. 192-5.
 Explaining annuity formulas. (Accounting ex-change) Accounting review, Dec. 1936, p. 388-9.

WATTERS, THOMAS, JR. See American management association.

. WATTS, DAVID A. Robinson-Patman act; a paper read September 19, 1936, before the Chicago bar association. Chi-cago, Ill., Foundation press, inc., c1936. 9p.

WAYBILLING and accounting for motor freight carriers. Rains, Neil J.

WAYMIRE, J. O. Distribution costs. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 317-333.) of

- WEALTH CRANDELL, WILLIAM T. Financial statements of national wealth and national income. Account-ing review, Sept. 1936, p. 271-90.
- WEAR and tear allowances. Incorporated accoun-tants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 107; May 1938, p. 282.

WEAR and tear allowances (official schedule of agreed rates of depreciation for the purpose of computing liability to United Kingdom in-come tax.) Incorporated accountants' journal, Oct. 1937, p. 18-22. Accountant, Sept. 4, 1937, p. 374-9; April 29, 1939, p. 156-61. Accountancy, May 1939, p. 305-11.

WEAR and tear of plant and machinery in rela-tion to N.D.C. Incorporated accountants' journal, March 1938, p. 197-8.

WEARING APPAREL See Clothing.

- WEAVER, F. E. L. Factory costing. Cost accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 244-50.

WEAVER, OTIS T. See United States. Farm credit administration.

WEAVER, ROY E. Natural business year. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accountants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936. p. 3-6.)

WEBB, F. K.

Joint stock company—development in Great Britain. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Dec. 1938, p. 245-8.

WEBER, ABRAHAM S.

Governmental budgeting and accounting. Account-ing forum, Nov. 1939, p. 17-20, 31.

WEBSTER, E. E.

Credit executive, his work and philosophy. Cost and management, March 1939, p. 102-12.

WEBSTER, NORMAN E.

- Examiner's point of view. Accounting review, June 1937, p. 111-3, First certified public accountant law in history. New York certified public accountant, April 1936,
- p. 6-8.

- Pickle costs.
 Public accountancy in the United States. (address at 50th anniversary celebration and annual meeting of American institute of accountants, Waldorf.Astoria Hotel, New York, October 18-22, 1937.) 27 mimeographed pages. (In American institute of accountants. Fiftieth anniversary celebration. 1937, p. 101-19.) Incorporated accountants' journal, Nov. 1937, p. 68-74.
 Shall I become a public accountant? Accounting review, Dec. 1939, p. 409-15.
 Three orphans—neglected accounting societies. New York certified public accountant, June 1939, p. 423-4.

WEBSTER, S. S., JR. "Last-in, first-out" method. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 89-95.)

WEDDERSPOON, W. M. Survey of case law on capital and revenue ex-penditure. Incorporated accountants' journal, April 1936, p. 249-51.

WEDGE, P. J. Let's see the record—what's the accounts receivable picture? Credit and financial management, May 1939, p. 30.

WEEDMAN, T. J. Mark-up method of stock estimating. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1935, p. 277-89.

WEEKS. BERTHA M.

How to file and index. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 261p.

WEHRWEIN, CARL F.

Some aspects of the double-taxation problem. Journal of political economy, Aug. 1936, p. 544-53.

- WEIGH, WILLIAM J. Cost analysis of trust departments; a practical cost system. Trust companies, Feb. 1938, p. 184-6.
 - Facing the cost facts; profitable and capable per-sonal trust service depends on coöperation in cost analyses. Trust companies, Dec. 1937, p. 710-3.
 - Trust department income and expenses; advan-tages of a cost system. *Trust companies*, Jan. 1938, p. 45-7.

WEIGHTS AND MEASURES DECIMALISATION. Certified accountants jour-nal, April 1937, p. 98-100.

WEIL, FRANK L.

- Complaints filed under the Patman act. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Dec. 1936, p. 23-5. Complaints ince of the National retail dry your Dec. 1936, p. 23-5. Dissecting the Robinson-Patman act. Bulletin of the National retail dry goods association, Nov. 1936, p. 11-12, 38-40.

WEIN. CHARLES

- American druggist's complete short course in drug store bookkeeping. New York, American drug-gist, no date. 12p. Drug store bookkeeping. (reprinted from American druggist) New York, The author (1936). 12p.

WEINBERG, A. A. Administration of a public employes' retirement system. Municipal finance, Aug. 1938, p. 29-33.

WEINER, ABRAHAM B. Charles Waldo Haskins. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 3-5.

- WEINSTEIN, JACOB I.
 Bankruptcy law of 1938 (Chandler act); a comparative analysis prepared for the National association of credit men. New York, National association of credit men, c1938, 497p.
 Certain phases of the Chandler bill which are of particular interest to accountants. New York certified public accountant, Jan. 1939, p. 185-90.

WEIR, ARTHUR A.

Modern business and the industrial chemist. Fed-eral accountant, July 1939, p. 352-9; Sept. 1939, p. 465-70.

WEIR, DAVID A. Economics of the Robinson-Patman act. Credit and financial management, Jan. 1937, p. 6-8, 31, 32-3.

WEISBARD, GEORGE L. Accountant's role in New York city emergency taxes. New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 87-91.

WEISBERG, CHARLES

- Accountant and credit work. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 13-4. valuation of reta
- Oct. 1938, p. 13-4. Evaluation of retailers' financial statements. *Credit executive*, March 1936, p. 74-6. Trial balance; value, analysis and uses. *Credit executive*, Sept. 1937, p. 261-5; Oct. 1937, p. 301-7; Nov. 1937, p. 336-41; Dec. 1937, p. 368-72; Jan. 1938, p. 27-20; Feb. 1938, p. 51-6; Sept. 1938, p. 263-8; Oct. 1938, p. 303-8; Dec. 1938, p. 369-73; Jan. 1939, p. 18-21; March 1939, p. 77-80. What the credit man expects from the accountant. *Credit executive*, April 1938, p. 106-8.

WEISS, JULIAN D.

Installment selling; a critical view. Harvard business review, Autumn number, 1938, p. 96-104.

WELCH, FRANCIS X. How do the state commissioners feel about regu-lating public ownership? *Public utilities fort-*nightly, Nov. 10, 1938, p. 611-21.

WELCH, RONALD B.

Exemption of intangibles from property taxes. (In Tax policy league, inc. Tax exemptions. c1939. p. 155-76.)

- WELCKER, WILLIAM H.
 Essentials of a municipal audit. Municipal finance, May 1936, p. 11-4.
 Municipal accounting in Pennsylvania. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 15-9.
 Some aspects of municipal accounting in Penn-sylvania; address delivered at meeting of Muni-cipal finance officers of Pennsylvania, State col-lege, Pa., November 21, 1936. 10 typewritten nages pagés.

WELDING Statistics

atistics DUN ANL *he 1935 istics UN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of welding concerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no. 108.) —Analysis of the 1936 operations of ma-chinery repair and welding concerns. (In their 1937 retail survey. survey no. 103.)

WELFARE

See Charities; Home relief; Social work.

WELFARE ORGANIZATIONS See Charities; Institutions; Social work.

- WELLINGTON, C. OLIVER Cost, prices and profits. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Dec. 1936, p. 165-71, discussion p. 171-4.

 - p. 171-4.
 Discussion of engineering audits, at luncheon meeting of American institute of consulting engineers, April 5, 1939. 14 mimeographed pages.
 Fallacy of selling below cost. (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 457-9.)
 Fallacy of selling below cost; address delivered at the fifteenth annual convention of the American
 - the fifteenth annual convention of the American institute of steel construction . . . Oct. 29, 1937. 16p. "Mechanics"
 - ¹⁹³⁷, 16p. "Mechanics" of confirmation of inventories. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting sub-jects. 1939. p. 63-70.) New York certified public accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 81-9. Meeting the problem of the business cycle. Credit and financial management, July 1938, p. 18-21, 30
 - 30.
 - Where are the profits? Profit, Aug. 1938, p. 1, 3-4.

WELLS, RALPH G. Cost control from the standpoint of the operating executive. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 14, section 1, p. 731.49.)

WELLS, RAYMOND P.

Dealings in treasury stock. (Correspondence) Jour-nal of accountancy, Oct. 1938, p. 262.

WENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP

- VENCHEL, JOHN PHILIP
 Federal-state reciprocal taxation of income from public securities. Taxes—the tax magazine, Sept. 1939, p. 507-8, 551-55.
 Federal taxation of state and local bonds. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938, p. 205-11.) Taxes—the tax magazine, March 1939, p. 134-6, 182.
 Relation of the Bureau of internal revenue to the bar. Tax magazine, May 1938, p. 267-8.
 Treasury's new powers as to closing agreements and some thoughts concerning termination of tax exemptions. Tax magazine, Nov. 1938, p. 651-5, 677-8.
- 651-5, 677-8.

- WENTWORTH, JOHN P. Water works valuation for rate making in U. S. Journal of the American water works association, Aug. 1939, p. 1379-86.
- WENZEL, G. L.
- VENZEL, G. L.
 Controlling your food costs. American restaurant magazine, March 1939, p. 32-3, 108-10.
 Does 40% food cost mean loss in quality? Ameri-can restaurant magazine, April 1938, p. 44-6.
 Food cost control for the small restaurant. Ameri-can restaurant magazine, July 1939, p. 36-7, 74-5.
 Keep your food cost under 40%. American restau-rant magazine, March 1938, p. 54-6.
 Nine fundamental factors in checking food cost. American rost
- American restaurant magazine, June 1938, p.
- American restaurant magazine, 43, 97-9. Ten controls for reducing food costs for the smaller business. American restaurant magazine, June 1939, p. 39, 78, 80, 82, 85.

WERMUTH. CHARLES E.

Borrowed capital; a study in finance. New Orleans, La., Charles E. Wermuth and co., Jan 25, 1936. 4 mimeographed pages.

WERNE, BENJAMIN, ed. Business and the Robinson-Patman law; a sym-posium. New York, Oxford university press, 1938. 296p.

WERNER, THOMAS C. Underwood Elliott Fisher company. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accou principles and procedure. 1938. p. 228-30.) accounting

- WERNTZ, WILLIAM W. See also American institute of consulting engineers.
 - gineers. Accounting problems and the S.E.C.; paper pre-sented at a meeting of the Illinois society of certified public accountants, December 16, 1938, at Chicago. 10 mimeographed pages. Same as "Approach to accounting problems" presented before Indianapolis chapter of N.A.C.A. Approach to accounting problems. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 10, section 1, p. 575-89.)

 - 1, b. 375-89.)
 "Effective criticism". (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 41.
 Footnotes and financial statements; address before the Minnesota statistical association, the Minnesota statistical association, the Minnesota statistical association, the Minnesota, May 3, 1939 and before the Maryland association of certified public accountants, in Baltimore, Maryland, on May 9, 1939. Washington, D. C., Securities and exchange commission, 1939. 11 mimeographed pages.
 Relation of accounting statements and reports to security issues; address before the Third national accounting, Nov. 1939, Edison electric institute bulletin, Nov. 1939, p. 537-8, 542.

 - 537-8, 542.
 Some current problems in accounting; address before annual meeting of American accounting association at Detroit, Michigan, December 28, 1938. 10 mimeographed pages. Accounting review, June 1939, p. 117-26.
 Some problems as to parent companies. Journal of accountancy, June 1939, p. 337-41.
 Standardization of accounting principles; address before the Controllers institute of America, Waldorf-Astoria hotel, New York, N. Y., September 27, 1938. 12 mimeographed pages. (In Controllers institute of America. Year book, 1938, p. 138-51.) 138-51.)
 - Subjects for accounting research. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure, and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 234-41.)
 - What does the Securities and exchange commission expect of the independent auditor? (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 17-26.)

WERTHEIM, MAURICE

- Undistributed profits tax and what to do about it. (reprinted from *Harpers magazine*, Feb. 1938.)
- WEST VIRGINIA. BOARD OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Rules and regulations. Huntington, W. Va., Secre-tary of state board, May 13, 1936. Folder.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

- PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities, classes A and B, appendix, classes C and D, effective January 1, 1937. Charleston, W. Va., Public service commission, 1937. 213p. Uniform system of accounts for telephone com-panies, effective January 1, 1937, with amend-ments and revisions as of January 17, 1938. Charleston, W. Va., Public service commission, 1938. 140p.

WEST VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Year book and directory of members, 1937. 7p.

WESTBY-NUNN, E.

- MSTBY-NUNN, E.
 Hire purchase act problem. Accountant, May 27, 1939, p. 708.
 Prevention of fraud (investments) act, 1939. Accountant student, June 1939, p. 43; July 1939, p. 57-8; Aug. 1939, p. 92-3.
 Trusts and trustees. Incorporated accountants' journal, Jan. 1936, p. 119-21.

WESTCHESTER COUNTRY CLUB Annual report, fiscal year ending December 31, 1936. 31p.

WESTERFIELD, RAY B. Analysis of F.H.L.B. lending policies. Bankers monthly, July 1939, p. 387-90, 409, 415-6, 418. Insurance of deposit accounts; a review. Bankers monthly, Jan. 1939, p. 3-5, 64; Feb. 1939, p. 72-4, 99-100; March 1939, p. 166-70. Money, credit and banking. New York, Ronald press co., c1938. 1172p.

WESTERN Australian state income tax assessment act, 1937. Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1939, p. 556-66; March 1939, p. 599-610.

- WESTERN ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. Plan for employees' pensions disability benefits and death benefits; with amendments to and including September 1, 1938. New York, West-ern electric co., inc. 22p.
- WHAT are "accepted" accounting principles, at-torney asks. Controller, March 1937, p. 80, 82, 91.
- WHAT did we earn last month? Harris, Jonathan
- WHAT have we done, and how? Montgomery, Robert H.
- WHAT is a certified public accountant? Kentucky society of certified public accountants.
- WHAT is a fair salary for the head of the busi-ness?—A Dartnell survey. American business, Oct. 1939, p. 13-4.
- WHAT is ahead for the junior accountant? Baerncopf, Joseph B.
- WHAT is being done to put trust business on a paying basis; cost analysis basis for annual charges. Trust companies, Feb. 1937, p. 188-90.
- WHAT is borrowed capital? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1936, p. 7-8.
- WHAT is circulation expense? Circulation manage-ment, Feb. 1937, p. 10-11, 34.
- WHAT is (AT is socialism? — Outgrowth of socialistic vagary—Our economic system still lives. (Edi-torial) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1936, p. 319-21.

WHAT is the operating cost of a truck? Rasmussen, C. F.

- WHAT is wrong with most profit and loss state-ments? Kohl, Clem N.
- (AT others think—the expanding role of ac-countancy in regulation. *Public utilities fort-*nightly, July 6, 1939, p. 45-8. WHAT
- WHAT percentage of gross sales can stores pay for rent under the percentage type of lease? (composite table) National real estate journal, April 20, 1936, p. 39; April 20, 1937, p. 59; April 20, 1938, p. 31; April 20, 1939, p. 54-5. Buildings and building management, June 1937, or 30 p. 30
- AT percentage of sales can stores pay for rent? National real estate journal, April 20, 1939, p. 54-5. WHAT
- WHAT the executive should know about taxes. Margulies, William.
- WHAT the hotel guest drinks. Horwath hotel ac-countant, April 1937, p. 5.
- WHAT the hotel guest eats. Horwath hotel ac-countant, April 1937, p. 4.
- WHAT will social security mean to you? Francis, Bion H. and Ferguson, Donald G.
- WHAT you may and may not do under the new price discrimination law; Robinson-Patman law. Gaskill, Nelson B.

- WHEAT, CARL I. Present as compared with original cost of con-struction. Public utilities fortnightly, Aug. 5, 1937, p. 131-43.

 - Asymptotic problem in the state of the state

WHEAT

See also Grain. Costs

GARDNER, R. W. Wheat production costs. Cana-dian chartered accountant, March 1939, p. 165-70.

Statistics

MATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CONFERENCE BOARD, INC. Wheat. (In its International raw commodity price control. c1937. p. 34-55.)

- WHEELER, BLEECKER, L. Introduction. (In American management associa-tion. Determination of depreciation. c1939. p. 3-4.)
 - ome aspects of depreciation and obsolescence. (In American management association. *Practical* aspects of depreciation and obsolescence. c1938. p. 10-20.) Some

- WHEELER, S. J. Costing in the motor industry. Cost accountant, July 1937, p. 32-8. Is continuous costing necessary in conjunction with standard costs? Cost accountant, March 1037 n. 307-11.
 - 1937, p. 307-11. Practical costing in industry. Cost accountant, March 1938, p. 312-6.
- WHEN is selling at a loss a profitable business policy? McFarland, Walter B.
- WHEN should equipment be replaced? American business, Jan. 1937, p. 17, 45.
- WHERE a sales tax is productive. (Editorial) Jour-nal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 244.

WHERE do we go from here? Retzlaff, Herbert.

WHERE from here. Adams, Orval W.

WHIPP, W. E. Profits from replacing obsolete equipment. Execu-tives service bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 5-6.

WHISKEY Beverages; Bottling; Distilleries; Liquor See trade; Warehouse receipts.

- WHISLER, R. F. Operating the piecework plan. (In National asso-ciation of cost accountants. Year book, 1937. p. 135-47.)
 - Quality, an element of cost. New York, National association of cost accountants, May 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 17, section 1, p. 969-76.)
 - Should we change our wage plan? (reprinted from National association of cost accountants' bulletin.) Cost and management, March 1936, p. 76-84

WHITAKER, C. L.

Credit information sources; direct and indirect methods of checking on accounts. Credit and financial management, March 1939, p. 18-20.

WHITE, ALEX. S.

Notes on ranking of partnership claims collaterally secured over partners' estates and ranking of partners inter se. Accountants' magazine, April 1936, p. 206-8.

WHITE, ARTHUR F.

Cost finding in transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 16, section 1, p. 1031-40.)

WHITE, B. S.

Effect of compensation methods on management comperation and employee production; salary plus commission compared with quota bonus. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 69-70.)

WHITE, EDWIN H.

Undistributed profits tax—effect on business life insurance. Tax magazine, Oct. 1937, p. 597-99, 631.

- WHITE, J. C. Estimating as a science. New York, National association of cost accountants, March 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 14, section 1, p. 820-8.) Printed with: Lause, M. A. and Boett-ger, F. A. Presentation and use of cost control data.
- WHITE, JOHN ARCH, joint author See Newlove, George Hillis and others.

WHITE, ROBERT A. Admission of a partner by investment. (Account-ing exchange) Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 427-9.

WHITE, RODNEY D.

Introduction to round-table discussion: Internal conduct of an accounting practice. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing pro-cedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 171-2.)

WHITE, S. McKELLAR

- VIIIE, S. MONDLARK
 Federal land tax; what is ownership of land? Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 118-21.
 Uniformity in taxation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1935, p. 266-73.

WHITE, T. H.

AllE, I. H. Brisbane, Aus., Accountants' and secretaries' educational society, (incorporated) April 1937. p. 13-9. Printed with: Munro, Alan W. Assess-ment of companies Queensland income tax.

WHITE. WILFORD L. AND STEHMAN, J. HAROLD Bad debt loss survey. Credit and financial manage-ment, June 1939, p. 16-20; July 1939, p. 15-8; Aug. 1939, p. 14-5, 40-1.

- WHITEWRIGHT, T. F. Prospectuses. Accountants' magazine, April 1939, p. 233-50.
- WHITHER cost accounting? Accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 126-8.

WHITLAM, A. G. Origin and growth of retail merchandising. Aus-tralian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 38-52.

WHITLOCK, BONITA MATTHEWS

State income taxes as applied to employees of the federal alphabetical agencies. *Tax magazine*, Sept. 1937, p. 512-4, 567.

WHITMORE, EUGENE

WHITNEY, W. H. Accounting for investments in life insurance. Ac-counting review, Dec. 1939, p. 381-91.

WHITTAKER, EDMUND

Economic considerations of obsolescence. Accounting review, Dec. 1937, p. 337-44.

WHITWORTH, C. R. Undistributed profits tax—success or failure? Com-merce, July 1937, p. 19-20, 62.

WHOLESALE egg and poultry business. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Sept. 1939, p. 200-1.

WHOLESALE TRADE See also Names of various trades, e.g., Shoe trade.

CONVERSE, PAUL D. Wholesalers. (In his Essentials of distribution. 1936. p. 103-26.)

Accounting

CCOUNTING THOMPSON, WILLIAM RODNEY. System for a wholesale house. (In his Accounting systems, their design and installation. 1936. p. 431-91.)

95.)

Statistics

- BRISTOL, GEORGE T. New operating yardsticks for five wholesale trades. *Dun's review*, Nov. 1937, p. 20-4. FOULKE, ROY A. Behind the scenes of business. rev. ed. New York, Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 1936 2000
- rev. ed. Ne 1936. 200p.

- and Bradstreet, inc., c1939. 31p. STEHMAN, J. HAROLD. Wholesaling's 1937 record. Credit and financial management, March 1938, p. 23-5.

- **OSE** are the financial s respondence) Seidman, J. S. WHOSE statements? (Cor-
- WHOSE balance-sheet is it? (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Jan. 1939, p. 5-6.
- WHY must accountants study law? Accountant stu-dent and Accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 129-30.

WHYTE, MALCOLM K.

Robinson-Patman act. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public ac-countants. Twelfth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1936. p. 15-24.)

- WIBBELSMAN, C. J. Accounting for control of finished goods. New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 15, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 2, section 1, p. 77-89.)
- WIDOWS' orphans' and old age contributory pensions (voluntary contributors) act, 1937. Certified ac-countants journal, Jan. 1938, p. 36.

WIENER, RALPH HERBERT, joint author See Schulkind, Edward B. and Wiener, Ralph Herbert.

- WIGHT, L. A.

 - JIGHT, L. A.
 Cost accounting; boiler house costs. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 20-2.
 Cost accounting; cost control. Corporate accountant, Sept. 1936, p. 131-2.
 Cost accounting; depreciation. Corporate accountant, May 1936, p. 79-82.
 Cost accounting; installing a system. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 23-5.
 Cost accounting: measuring efficiency by cost standards. Corporate accountant, March 1938, p. 35-7. 35-7.

 - 35-7.
 Cost accounting; problem of idle capacity. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1938, p. 165-7.
 Cost accounting; problem of the small business.
 Corporate accountant, Sept. 1937, p. 146-9.
 Cost accounting; process costs. Corporate accountant, July 1937, p. 113-5.
 Cost accounting; projecting results under changed conditions. Corporate accountant, July 1938, p. 94-5. 94-5.
 - 94-5. Cost accounting; review of examination questions. Corporate accountant, Nov. 1936, p. 159-62; May 1937, p. 88-90, 92; May 1938, p. 73-4, 76; Sept. 1938, p. 122-5. Cost accounting; some major problems on policy. Corporate accountant, March 1939, p. 11-17. Cost accounting; some technical problems relating to steam and electric power costs. Corporate ac-countant, July 1936, p. 110-2. Cost accounting; typical examination questions. Corporate accountant, Int. 1936, p. 23-5.

 - cost accounting; typical examination questions. Corporate accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 23-5.
 Cost accounting; wage payment by results. Corporate accountant, March 1937, p. 50-3.
 Economic recovery of factory overheads. Accountant, Nov. 21, 1936, p. 701-3.
 Mechanised accounting; the "Hollerith" punched card method. Accountants' magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 462-73. p. 462-73.
 - p. 402-73. Standard costs. Certified accountants journal, June 1936, p. 184-90. Cost accountant, May 1937, p. 364-71.
 - Stores accounting. Corporate accountant, March 1936, p. 47-50.

WILCOX, DANIEL A., joint author See Favinger, Calvin E. and Wilcox, Daniel A. WILCOX, EDWARD B.

Accounting in the public interest. Journal of ac-countancy, Sept. 1939, p. 151-4. Advisory council and the institute. Certified public

accountant, Sept. 1939, p. 2.

WILDBRETT, ERNEST R.

REDBART A BARLES to non-profit institutions by public accountants; round table discussion on non-profit institutions accounting. New York certified pub-lic accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 108-9.

WILDE, EDWARD A.

Last-in, first-out method of taking inventory. (November 1939) 4 typewritten pages.

WILKS, PAUL A.

Flexible budget system at Strathmore paper com-pany. New York, National association of cost ac-countants, June 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 17, no. 19, section 1, p. 1143-55.)

"WILL we ever learn?" Heimann, Henry H.

WILLCOX, FRANK

- Accounting system for gold mining companies prior to production. Canadian chartered accountant, May 1936, p. 316-33.
- Mine accounting. Cost and management, March 1939, p. 87-100.

WILLETT, FREDERICK S. Importance of internal auditing of bank opera-tions; address delivered at Northern Indiana con-Reference of bank auditors and comptrollers, South Bend, November 20, 1936. 7 typewritten pages. National auditgram, March 1938, p. 12-3.

WILLIAMS, A. P.

Taking the inventory and meeting inventory prob-lems. (In National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 28-31.)

WILLIAMS, ARCHIBALD Measured day work or wage incentives? New York, National association of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1938, (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 1, section 1, p. 12-24.) Printed with: Gerofski, Irvin. New developments in controlling labor costs.

WILLIAMS, F. J. Accountancy in hospitals. Accountant, March 12, 1938, p. 348-50; March 19, 1938, p. 382-5.

WILLIAMS, FRANK M.

Accountant and the security dealer; address at the meeting of the Bond club of Cleveland on Friday evening, April 2, 1937. 24 typewritten pages.

WILLIAMS, GEORGE L. Technique of estimating. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1939. p. 60-73.)

WILLIAMS, HARRY E.

Insurance problems of a retail store. Balance sheet, Feb. 1939, p. 6-10.

WILLIAMS, JOHN H. AND BRIGHAM, L. H.

Office expense control. New York, American man-agement association, c1936. 28p. (Office manage-ment series number 77.)

WILLIAMS, PAUL D.

Comptroller's job. National auditgram, Sept. 1936, p. 9-10.

Internal audit and control. Journal of the American water works association, Oct. 1937, p. 1566-79. Internal audit procedure and control. National auditgram, Feb. 1936, p. 1, 4-5.

WILLIAMS, R. GLYNNE Equitable apportionments—1; Howe v. Earl of Dartmouth. Accountants' journal (Eng.), March 1936, p. 825-32.
Methods of remuneration. Accountants' journal (Eng.), Jan. 1936, p. 661-5; Feb. 1936, p. 771-4.
Modern problems in accountancy. Incorporated ac-countants' journal, Feb. 1936, p. 163-5.

WILLIAMS, R. R. Taxation and retailing. (In National tax associa-tion. Proceedings, 1938. p. 393-401.)

WILLIAMS, T. DWIGHT

- Extension of accounting services by state societies. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accountants. rapers jects. 1939, p. 141-3.) Federal income tax problems in the oil producing industry. Texas accountant, Nov. 1939, p. 5-9.

WILLIAMS, THOMAS A.

Examinations of building and loan associations by federal agencies and independent accountants. (In American institute of accountants. Papers on accounting principles and procedure. 1938. p. 189-94.)

WILLIAMSON, KOSSUTH M.

Reciprocity and retaliation in insurance taxation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 462-79.) What is business and what are business taxes? (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 1-14.)

WILLIAMSON, PAUL S.

Costs and returns from farm enterprises from 82 cost-account farms, 1937. Ithaca, N. Y., Cornell university, Oct. 1938. 35p. (Cornell extension bulletin, no. 395.)

WILLIAMSON, RUTHERFORD

Costing and control in a shoe manufacturing busi-ness which operates its own retail outlets. Cana-dian chartered accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 81-92.

WILLIFORD, J. O. Changes in federal taxation under the revenue act of 1938; a comparison with recommendations made by the American institute of accountants' committee on federal taxation. Dun's review, Sept. 1938, p. 24-30. Surtax on undistributed profits. 29 mimeographed

pages.

WILLINGTON, D. W. Accountant's interpretation of department store auditing procedure. Balance sheet, June 1937, p. 5-8.

WILLIS, H. PARKER Gold superstition. Commercial and financial chroni-cle, May 1937, p. 3399-401.

WILLIS, R. W.

Documents to be filed under the N.S.W. companies act, 1936. Chartered accountant in Australia, May 1937, p. 825-49.

WILLIS, S. W. Punched card method of cost accounting. Cost and management, Nov. 1939, p. 324-8.

WILLMAN, F. A. Scientific study. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 243-4; Jan. 1938, p. 264-6; Feb. 1938, p. 304-7.

WILLS, E. P. Some problems arising from the administration of trust estates in farm lands. Accountants' journal, Dec. 1937, p. 567-72.

WILLS

- See also Executors and trustees. BLAMEY, FRANK. Some observations concern-ing wills. Federal accountant, April 1939, p. 150-5.
- DILLON, W. ROY. Wills and executorships in the province of Quebec. Canadian chartered ac-countant, Aug. 1937, p. 86-94.

WILLSMORE, A. W. Business budgets and budgetary control. ed. 2. London, Sir Isaac Pitman & sons, ltd., 1936. 241p.

WILLVONSEDER, ERNEST Pooling of endowment fund assets by quasi-public corporations. New York certified public accoun-tant, Feb. 1939, p. 238-40.

WILLYS, A.

Brief summary of social security regulations and records. Pathfinder service bulletin, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8. Profit, Jan. 1937, p. 1, 2, 6-8.

WILMOT, HAROLD

- Cost accountant's place in management. Cost ac-countant, Oct. 1936, p. 132-7, discussion, p. 139-51. Certified accountants journal, Nov. 1936, p. 345-50, discussion, p. 350-5.
- WILSON, A. J. H. Hints for examinees. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Jan. 1937, p. 566-8. Philippine accoun-tants' journal, Sept. 1938, p. 356-58.
- WILSON, C. N.
 - Insolv, C. N. Creamery and cheese factory accounting simpli-fied. National butter and cheese journal, Nov. 10, 1937, p. 18-20; Nov. 25, 1937, p. 10, 12-13; Dec. 10, 1937, p. 10-2.
- WILSON, D. A.
 Notes on the formation of private companies. Accountants' journal, May 1938, p. 735-7.
 Rights and duties of receivers and liquidators. Accountants' journal, June 1938, p. 775-8.
- WILSON, G. LLOYD AND ROSE, JOSEPH R. Recent trends in public utility regulation. An can economic review, Dec. 1939, p. 746-59. Ameri-
- WILSON, G. LLOYD, HERRING, JAMES M. AND EUTSLER, ROLAND B. Public utility industries. New York, McGraw-Hill

book co., inc., 1936. 412p.

- WILSON, GEORGE A. Author replies. (Forum section) New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, Dec. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section
 - 1033. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 7, section 2, p. 461-8.) Further consideration of the last-in, first-out basis of inventory valuation. New York, National as-sociation of cost accountants, Sept. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 1, section 1, p. 1-26.)

- WILSON, H. A. R. J. Accountability. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 271-9; Feb. 1938, p. 296-304; April 1938, p. 105-9; Oct. 1938, p. 174-6; Nov. 1938, p. 212-15.
 Company accounting. London, Sir Isaac Pitman and sons, ltd. (1936)
 How to read the income tax acts intelligently. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, May 1937, p. 15-6.
 Management of working capital. Accountant, Aug. 15, 1936, p. 225-8.
 National defence contribution. Accountant, tax supplement, Oct. 30, 1937, p. 461-6.
 Professional ethics. Accountant student and Accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 109-75. Indian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 100-6.
- WILSON, IRA S.
 - Speeding up financial statements. New York, Na-tional association of cost accountants, March 15, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 14, section 1, p. 911-28.)

- WILSON, JAMES A., JR. Hotel accounting. New York, National association of cost accountants, July 15, 1039. (N.A.C.A. bulletin v. 20, no. 22, section 1, p. 1424-50.) Printed with: Hogan, Thomas J. Use of the uni-form system in hotel accounting.

WILSON, JOHN A. Fixed asset appraisals and accounting. Canadian chartered accountant, Feb. 1937, p. 97-110.

WILSON, JOSEPH A. Capital gains and losses under 1938 act. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accoun-tants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceedings of the first accounting clinic, 1938. p. 58-65.)

WILSON, K. C. Finance for industry. Australian accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 431-8.

WILSON, THOMAS A. Investment course. Burroughs clearing house, March 1939, p. 7-9, 26, 28.

WILSON, WALTER

Commission—satisfactory records—satisfied sales-men from the jewelry store standpoint. Balance sheet, Oct. 1938, p. 13-5.

- WILTSHIRE, PERCY E.
 Preparation of legal documents. Australian accountant, July 1938, p. 420-1.
 Small contractors' accounts and costs. Australian accountant, Oct. 1936, p. 232-45. Indian accountant, Jan. 1937, p. 97-107.

- WINAKOR, ARTHUR H.
 Banking turnover and facilities in Illinois. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1937. 60p. (Bulletin no. 55.)
 Can a firm's size affect its debt payment? Credit and financial management, Jan. 1938, p. 6-8.
 Capacity to pay current debts. Urbana, Ill., University of Illinois, Bureau of business research, 1936, 54p. (Bulletin, v. 34, no. 11.)
 Limitations on assets. Accounting review, March 1936, p. 42-8.
 State-chartered savings, building, and Ioan asso-ciations in Illinois, Bureau of business re-search, August 1939. 45p. (Bulletin no. 98.)

WINAKOR, ARTHUR H., joint author See Huegy, Harvey W. and Winakor, Arthur H.

WINANT, JOHN G. Practical progress under the social security act; address before National press club, Washington, D. C., Wednesday, September 16, 1936. 11 mimeo-graphed pages.

WINCOTT, H. E.

Consolidated accounts-one view. Accountancy, Feb. 1939, p. 162-3.

WINDES, W. N. Accounting system for residential builders. F finder service bulletin, June 1938, p. 1, 3-8. Path-

"WINDFALL tax"--as affecting rice millers. Phelps, Mascher and Richardson.

WINDING-UP

See Liquidations and receiverships.

WINDLE, A. E.

We budget maintenance and control it. Factory management and maintenance, Jan. 1936, p. 24-5, 68.

WINDOW DISPLAY

See Advertising; Retail trade.

"WINDOW DRESSING"

See Statements, Financial.

WINE

See Beverages; Liquor trade; Wineries.

WINE MERCHANTS

See Liquor trade.

WINERIES

- Accounting YOUNG, N. S. Winery accounts. Chartered ac-countant in Australia, Feb. 1938, p. 541-51.
- Cost accounting

BLANDI, THOMAS. Cost accounting for wineries. Pathfinder service bulletin, June 1937, p. 1, 3-5, 7-10.

WINFREY, ROBLEY Statistical analysis of industrial property retire-ments. Ames, Iowa, Iowa state college of agricul-ture and mechanic arts, Dec. 1935, 176p. (Builetin 125.)

564

WINN, W. R.

- Discussion of paper "To what extent may usual auditing procedures be relied upon for the detec-tion of fraud?" by Norman J. Lenhart. (In Pennsylvania institute of certified public accoun-tants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American in-stitute of accountants. Proceedings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 2p.)
- WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND CLARK, K. RAY-MOND

Profit sharing and pension plans (their creation and tax effect). New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1939. 192p.

WINSLOW, C. MORTON AND MUNRO, WIL-LARD L.

Winslow's minimizing death taxes. ed. 3, rev. and enl. New York, Commerce clearing house, inc., c1937. 144p.

WINSLOW, R. S., joint author See Thorp, Willard L., and others.

WINTER, C. G.

Why the accounting profession? Accounting forum, Nov. 1936, p. 10, 17.

- WINTER, FREDERICK C. Measured day work vs. wage incentives. Society for the advancement of management journal, Jan. 1938, p. 48-53.

WINTER, GEORGE C.

President's address. Canadian chartered accountant, Oct. 1937, p. 247-55.

WINTER, SIDNEY G.

Need for uniform and coordinated effort in the development of a statement of the principles underlying the practice of accounting. (In Ohio state university. Proceedings of the second annual in-stitute on accounting... May 19, 20, 1939. p. 16-23, discussion, p. 23-6.)

WINTHROP, ALDEN Are you a stockholder? New York, Covici, Friede, inc., c1937. 320p.

(Der) WIRTSCHAFTSTREUHÄNDER: zeitschrift für deutsches prufunds und treuhandwesen. Leipzig, G. A. Gloeckner.

VISCONSIN. AGRICULTURE AND MARKETS, DEPARTMENT OF WISCONSIN.

System of accounts for cooperative associations. Madison, Wis., Department of agriculture and markets, Oct. 1936. 59p. (Bulletin 174)

Edwin L. Wangerin, George Heiser, Jr., Ray M. Nosseck, William Sidney Schmidt, plaintiffs, vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy, et al., defendants; before Hon. A. G. Zimmerman, judge-ruling on demurrer... dated April 6, 1936. 5 typewritten pages.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities (classes A and B); effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 174p.

- Uniform system of accounts for electric utilities (class C); effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 56p.
- Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities (classes
- Uniform system of accounts for gas utilities (classes A and B), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 162p.
 Uniform system of accounts for telephone utilities (class C), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1936. 62p.
 Uniform system of accounts for water utilities (classes A and B), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 156p.

Uniform system of accounts for water utilities

(classes C and D), effective January 1, 1938. Madison, Wis., Public service commission, 1937. 73p.

SUPREME COURT

- SUPREME COURT No. 103, August term—1936—State of Wisconsin: in Supreme court; Edwin L. Wangerin et al ap-pellants vs. Wisconsin state board of accountancy et al. respondents. 5 mimeographed pages. State of Wisconsin: in supreme court; no. 103— August term—1936. Edwin L. Wangerin et al., appellants, v. Wisconsin state board of accoun-tancy et al., respondents. Certified public accoun-ternt Lan 1937, p. 20.4 tant, Jan. 1937, p. 20-4.
- WISCONSIN accountancy law held constitutional. Philippine accountants' journal, Jan. 1938, p. 24-9
- WISCONSIN court upholds state accountancy act. Bulletin of the American institute of accountants, June 1936, p. 23-5.
- WISCONSIN litigation. Certified public accountant, May 1936, p. 273-90.
- WISCONSIN regulatory law constitutional. Certified public accountant, Dec. 1936, p. 720-3.
- WISCONSIN SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC-COUNTANTS
 - Directory of members, May 31, 1938. 47p.
- WISELY, W. H., joint author See Klassen, C. W. and Wisely, W. H.

WISEMAN, H. D. War legislation. Federal accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 612-15.

- WISEMAN, JOHN Changes in federal taxes under the revenue act of 1938; address delivered, November 5, 1938, be-fore the West Virginia society of certified public accountants, at the Kanawha country club, Charleston, West Virginia. 31 mimeographed pages.

WISHART, DON

Allocation of indirect or unclassified expense. Bal-ance sheet, Sept. 1939, p. 6-9.

WITNESS

See Evidence.

WITNEY, D.

Comparative study of farm accounts and costs. Ac-countants' magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 448-59.

WITTE, EDWIN E.

Financing social security: reserves versus current taxation. (In Tax policy league, inc. How shall business be taxed? c1937. p. 154-67.)

WITTER, JEAN C. Accountants and investment bankers. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 293-5.)

WITTY, RICHARD A.

Audit of annual accounts. (In V. internationaler prüfungs- und treuhand Kongress. Kongress-archiv, 1938. band B, thema 3, p. 123-47.) Laundry finance. Accountant, July 25, 1936, p. 125-

- 30.
 Management congress at Washington. Accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 50-1.
 Public speaking. Incorporated accountants' journal, Sept. 1936, p. 458-60. Accountant, Oct. 10, 1936, p. 502-4. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Oct. 1936, p. 315-20.
 Tax avoidance and retrospective legislation. Ac-countancy, July 1939, p. 366-7.
 Unification of the accountancy profession. Ac-countant, Feb. 5, 1938, p. 177-8.

WOLF, GEORGE O. AND BLACK, ERCIL L. Bank loans on the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, Oct. 1936, p. 102-5.

WOLFBEIN, SEYMOUR L. Burden of property taxation. Bulletin of the Na-tional tax association, April 1939, p. 194-211.

WOLFE, LEE J., comp. See also Wolfe, S. Herbert, comp. Testimony before the Mortgage commission of the state of New York in the matter of the allocation by the Mortgage commission of the tester of New York commission of the allocation by the Mortgage commission of the state of New York pursuant to the provisions of section 24 of chapter 19 of the laws of 1935 as amended, of its expenses and the expenses of its subsidiaries incident to the exercise of its or their powers, and such expenses as shall have been advanced by the superintendent of insurance or the superintendent of banks allo-catable and chargeable to all properties, bonds, or mortgages or groups thereof, that came un-der its jurisdiction; volume 2, testimony, report, exhibits and findings. New York, S. H. and Lee J. Wolfe, March 30, 1937. 168p.

WOLFE, S. HERBERT, comp. Inheritance tax calculations, an explanation of the underlying principles with tables and instructions for ascertaining the present value of dower and curtesy rights, life estates, annuities vested and contingent remainders upon the Northampton, Carlisle, actuaries, American experience, Ameri-can men ultimate and other tables of mortality at various rates of interest, with a brief analysis of the inheritance tax laws of the various states and territories, originally comvarious states and territories, originally com-piled by S. Herbert Wolfe, revised and brought up to date by Lee J. Wolfe and William M. Corroran. New York, Baker, Voorhis & co., 1937. 246p.

WOLFF, JULIUS Fund accounting. (In McGoldrick, Joseph D. and others. Accounting and auditing in the Comp-troller's office of the city of New York. 1938. Lecture 5a, March 31, 1938.)

WOLFF, REINHOLD P.

Chains adjust themselves to state taxation. Dun's review, Oct. 1939, p. 22-8, 46-7.

WOLFF, WILLIAM Function of realisable values in accounts. Ac-countant, July 23, 1938, p. 124-8; July 30, 1938, p. 156-60.

p. 130-00. Pensions and compensation for loss of office from an income-tax aspect. Accountant, tax supple-ment, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 490-2.

WOLMAN, LEO

Recovery in wages and employment. National bureau of economic research bulletin, no. 63, Dec. 21, 1936, p. 1-12.

WOMAN C.P.A.; bi-monthly bulletin of the Ameri-can woman's society of certified public accoun-tants. Chicago, Ill., American woman's society of certified public accountants.

WOMEN IN ACCOUNTANCY See also Woman C.P.A.; bi-monthly bulletin of the American woman's society of certified public accountants.

accountants. EASTMAN, ELLEN L. Women in accountancy. Accounting forum, May 1938, p. 35-7, 48. WOMEN in accountancy practice. Pace student, March-April 1938, p. 13-4.

WOMEN'S CLOTHING

See Clothing.

WOMEN'S coat and suit manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

WOMEN'S SPECIALTY SHOPS

See Clothing trade, Retail; Retail trade.

WOMEN'S trimmed hat manufacturers. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., and Natural business year council.

WONSON, HAROLD S.

Application and uses of standard costs in the shoe industry. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1936. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 5, section 1, p. 255-83.)

WOOD, CLIFFORD G. Disposition of variances from standard. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 20, no. 9, section 1, p. 548-55.) Printed with: Peden, Robert W. Cost accounting in the plastic molding industry.

WOOD, JAMES

Adjustment of profits for income tax purposes. Certified secretary, July 1936, p. 115-26.

WOOD, RICHARD T.

Accountants' liability insurance. Spectator, Nov. 5, 1936, p. 14-5.

WOOD, W. CECIL Company accounts. ed. 5. London, Sir Isaac Pit-man & sons, ltd. no date. 408p.

WOOD PRESERVING Accounting

MUCKLOW, WALTER. Wood preserving. (In his Lumber accounts. 1936. p. 301-6.)

WOOD PULP See Lumber; Paper, cardboard, etc.

WOODBRIDGE, FREDERICK W.

Accountant-an expert in business requirements. Accounting forum, May 1936, p. 3-4. Analysis of debt-paying ability. Profit, Sept. 1938,

1-4. p. 1-4. Funds and reserves. no date. 16 typewritten

- Make it visual. New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 1, p. 315-27.)
 Reserves. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 1000
- 105-9.
- Time ime as a factor in determining debt-paying ability. Accounting review, Sept. 1939, p. 236-50.

WOODFIELD, CHARLES G.

Science act, 1938—parts 3 and 4. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Jan. 1939, p. 265-72. Accountant, tax supplement, March 4, 1939, p. 81-8; May 20, 1939, p. 189-96.

WOODRUFF, ARCHIBALD M., JR.

Mortgages as life insurance company investments. Harvard business review, Summer number, 1939, p. 453-64.

WOODS, JAMES

Insurance of employment. Cost and management, April 1938, p. 116-23.

WOODWARD, A. T.

Benefits of statement analysis; practical application of comparative figures. Credit and financial man-agement, May 1939, p. 12-5. Practical financial statement analysis. Credit and

financial management, June 1937, p. 27-30.

WOODWARD, V. FLOYD Reducing the heating costs in apartment buildings. Buildings and building management, Aug. 1936, p. 39-40, 70-11

WOODWORKING

Accounting MUCKLOW, WALTER. Veneer works, crate fac-tories and minor operations. (In his Lumber accounts, 1936. p. 307-22.)

566

WOODWORKING-(Continued)

Cost accounting
 ECKARDT, H. W. Accounting for cost of lumber used in manufacture. American lumberman, Dec. 5, 1936, p. 27.
 YEAGER, L. C. J. Essential factors in a dimen-sion costing system. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 25-32.

Statistice DUN AND BRADSTREET, INC. Analysis of the 1935 operations of lumber and millwork con-cerns. (In their 1936 retail survey. report no.

WOOL AND WORSTED

- WOOL AND WORSTED
 Accounting
 POWELL, M. J. Stock, wool and produce agents' accounts. Chartered accountant in Australia, July 1939, p. 13-25.
 SWEENEY, HENRY WHITCOMB. Illustrative stabilization of a woolen mill. (In his Stabilized accounting, 1936. p. 105-27.)
- Cost accounting LOCKWOOD, JEREMIAH AND MAXWELL, ARTHUR D. Textile costing; an aid to man-agement. Washington, D. C., Textile foundation,
 - agement. Washington, D. C., Textue foundation, inc., 1938. 282p. WASTE in woolen textile mills. (Questions and answers) N.A.C.A. bulletin, March 1, 1939, v. 20, no. 13, section 2, p. 871-3.)
- Inventories
 - NICKERSON, CLARENCE B. Problems of inventory taking and valuing, with particular reference to a woolen company. New York, National association of cost accountants, April 15, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 16, section 1, p. 895-921.)
- Statistics
- itatistics
 BENJAMIN, EUGENE S. Operating ratios for woolen mills. (In his Practical credit analysis. c1939. p. 150.)
 FOULKE, ROY A. Balance sheet and operating ratios of wholesalers of woolen and worsted piece goods. (In his Behind the scenes of business. 1936. p. 54, 80, 104, 129, 184.5.) (1937 ed.-p. 56, 84, 110, 137, 202-3.) (In his Fourteen guides to financial stability. c1936. p. 40-1.) (In his Signs of the times. c1938. p. 40-1.) (In his They said it with inventories. c1939. p. 28-9.)

WOOL BROKERS

See Commodity brokers.

WOOLEN MILLS

See Wool and worsted.

WOOLFSON, A. PHILLIP Inheritance taxation and maladjustment of national income. Tax magazine, Aug. 1937, p. 458-62, 498.

WOOLHISER, H. L. Importance of planning in municipal administration. (In American institute of accountants. Addresses presented at the conference on municipal account-ing and finance, Chicago, March 28 and 29, 1938. p. 31-6.)

- WOOLLEY, E. S. Ask Banking; a department. (see each issue of Banking beginning October 1939.) Duties of an accounting system. (reprinted from

 - Banking, Sept. 1935.) Hodge-podge of cost analysis. Banking, March 1938, p. 24-5. How to obtain bank costs. New York, Bankers pub. co., 1936. 132p. Bankers magazine, Jan. 1936, p. co., 19 27-36.
 - 27-30.
 Keeping in step with the bond market. (reprinted from Banking, July 1936.)
 One way to make loans bankable. Banking, Jan. 1939, p. 28-9.
 Out of the maze of cost finding. Banking, May 1938,

 - p. 30-1.

- Real audits. Banking, Feb. 1939, p. 19-20. Florida accountant, April 1939, p. 1, 4. Tax saving bond ledger. Banking, Sept. 1938, p. 26-7.
- Three ways to manage a bank. Banking, April 1937,
- p. 24-5.

WOOLLEY, FRED

Structure of limited liability companies. Accoun-tant, July 24, 1937, p. 127-31, discussion, p. 131-2. Incorporated accountants' journal, July 1937, p. 373-8, discussion, p. 378-9.

WOOLPERT, ELTON D.

- Financial statistics of cities over 100,000: 1935. (In International city managers' association. Muni-cipal year book, 1937. p. 347-71.)
- WORK of committee on governmental accounting. (Correspondence) Morey, Lloyd.

WORK of the credit executive. Pace, Homer St. Clair.

WORK RELIEF

See Relief expenditures.

- See Relief expenditures.
 WORK SHEET See also Working papers.
 BOLON, DALLAS S. Work sheet. (In his Intro-duction to accounting, 1938, p. 244-51.)
 INGHRAM, HOWELL A. Work sheet. (In his Accounting, c1937, p. 152-67.)
 JOHNSON, ARNOLD W. Work sheet. (In his Principles of accounting, c1937, p. 236-53.)
 KESTER, ROY B. Work sheet and summary state-ments-completing the ledger record. (In his Principles of accounting, ed. 4. c1939, p. 289-312.)
 NEWLOVE, GEORGE HILLIS AND OTHERS. Analytical and interim work sheets. (In their In-termediate accounting. c1939, p. 21-38.)
 PATON, WILLIAM A. Work sheet and state-ments. (In his Essentials of accounting. 1938, p. 548-66.)

 - 548-66.) PRICKETT.

 - 548-66.) PRICKETT, ALVA L. AND MIKESELL, R. MERRILL. Working sheet, (In their Principles of accounting, rev. ed. 1937. p. 150-64.) ROSENKAMPFF, ARTHUR HENRY AND WALLACE, WILLIAM. Working sheet. (In their Bookkeeping and accounting, principles and practice; advanced course. 1938. p. 165-71.) SALIERS, EARL A. Work sheet and statements. (In his How to keep accounts and prepare state-ments. 1938. p. 308-28.) SALIERS, EARL A. AND HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Work sheet. (In their Basic accounting principles. 1937. p. 190-207.)

WORKERS' SHARES

See Wages, fees, etc .- Stock distributing.

WORKING CAPITAL See Capital.

WORKING PAPERS

- ORKING PAPERS ACCOUNTANT'S right to retain documents. Ac-countancy, Dec. 1938, p. 89-90.
 ACCOUNTANTS' working papers not subject to will. Accountants' journal (N.Z.), Aug. 1936, p.
- BACAS, PAUL E. AND OTHERS. Working papers—equipment—utensils. (In their Auditing procedure. c1937, p. 42-58.) BALLANTYNE, J. R. Audit programmes and audit working papers. Australian accountant, June 1939, 22512
- 351-9
- CHAN, STEPHEN. Supervision of accountants' re-ports. Canadian chartered accountant, April 1939, 261-5
- p. 261-5. CONFIDENTIAL relationships in the professions. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, May 1936, p. *3*28.
- EXTRACT from an opinion delivered by Surrogate Delehanty in the case of Estate of William H. Dennis. New York law journal, Feb. 15, 1936, p. 827,

WORKING PAPERS-(Continued)

- WORKING PAPERS—(Continued)
 FINNEY, HARRY ANSON. Working papers— closing the books. (In his Introduction to prin-ciples of accounting. 1936. p. 21-30.)
 HECKERT, J. BROOKS. Illustration of working papers. (In his Accounting systems, design and installation. c1936. p. 41-72.)
 HITT, MOUNTRIE. Should accountants yield working papers under dragnet subpoena? Con-troller, Nov. 1938, p. 316-9.
 HOLMES, ARTHUR W. Working papers. (In his Auditing, principles and procedure. 1939. p. 58-74.)
- 74.)
 KAHN, SIDNEY B. Monthly audit administration, working papers and reports. (address delivered before a meeting of the New York state society of certified public accountants on April 11, 1938.) 17 typewritten pages. New York certified public accountant, April 1938, p. 28-39.
 MACFARLAND, GEORGE A. AND AYARS, ROBERT D. Work sheet—its construction and use. (In their Accounting fundamentals. 1936, p. 137-48.)
 OWNERSHUP of accountants' correspondence and
- p. 13/-48.) OWNERSHIP of accountants' correspondence and working papers. Accountant, Nov. 19, 1938, p. 686-7. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan.
- OSD-7. Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1939, p. 490-1.
 OWNERSHIP of working papers. Certified accountants journal, July 1936. p. 202-4.
 PELOUBET, MAURICE E. Audit working papers, their function, preparation and content. New York, American institute pub. co., inc., 1937. 412o
- 4120. SARGENT, DOUGLAS A. Spreading the peak. Journal of accountancy, Dec. 1936, p. 454-9. SCHMIDT, LEO A. Working sheet. (In his Theory and mechanics of accounting. 1937. p.

- Theory and mechanics of accounting. 105-16.) SHERWOOD, J. F. AND CULEY, ROY T. Audit working papers. (In their Auditing, theory and procedure. c1939, p. 55-82.) TROUANT, D. L. Working papers. (In his *Financial audits.* c1937. p. 150-8.) WEEKS, BERTHA M. Filing in an accountant's office. (In ther How to file and index. c1937. p. 223-4.) WORKING papers. Certified accountants journal,
- 223.4.)
 WORKING papers. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1938, p. 366-8.
 WORKING papers not subject to will—Decision by New York surrogate—Ipswich mills case not in conflict—Decision in harmony with professional opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 246-50.
- WORKING papers. Certified accountants journal, Dec. 1938, p. 366-8.
- WORKING papers not subject to will—Decision by New York surrogate—Ipswich mills case not in conflict—Decision in harmony with professional opinion. (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, April 1936, p. 246-50.

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION

Amstralia

PARKES, A. E. Workers' compensation acts. Australian accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 81-2.

Canada

- Canada
 SWALLOW, F. C. Workmen's compensation legislation and its administration in Canada. Canadian chartered accountant, Dec. 1939, p. 396-405.
 UNITED STATES. Labor statistics, Bureau of. Workmen's compensation legislation in the United States and Canada, 1935. Washington, D. C., Government printing office, 1936. 25p. Monthly labor review, May 1936, 10p. Monthly labor review, Jan. 1937, p. 114-23.

Great Britain

SHUTER, E. R. Employers and workmen's com-pensation. Cost accountant, Aug. 1939, p. 61-5.

New York NEW YORK (state). Workmen's compensation law of the state of New York, as amended, and

with supplementary laws, to August 1937. New York, F. Robertson Jones, c1937. 156p. STATE insurance fund. Compensation ratemaking in New York state. New York, State insurance fund, Oct. 1939. 12p. (Public service series, bul-letin no. 1.)

- OHIO. Industrial commission. Ohio state workmen's rules and rates effective July 1, 1938; financial statement, December 31, 1937. Columbus, Ohio, Industrial commission, 1938. 158p. no. 26. Same, premium rules and rates effective July 1, 1939; financial statement, December 31,
- July 1, 1939; fina 1938. 160p. no. 27.

- United States DAWSON, MARSHALL. Methods of financing workmen's compensation administrations and funds. Monthly labor review, March 1936, p. 592-605.

 - Initias. Biotechical for the series of the series

- WORKMEN'S compensation insurance. (In Busi-ness executive's handbook. 1937. p. 636-9.)
- WORKROOM accounting manual for department stores and specialty stores. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.

WORKS PROGRESS ADMINISTRATION See United States. Works progress administration.

- WORKS PROGRESS ADMINISTRATION REPORTS See Census of American listed corporations; a Works progress administration project.

WORTHINGTON, W. Commercial arbitration. Accountant student Accountants' journal, Feb. 1937, p. 307-14. Accountant student and

WOTHERSPOON, W. N.

Auditing garage accounts. Federal accountant, June 1939, p. 290-4.

"WOULD seem." (Editorial) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1937, p. 86.

WRECKING COMPANIES

Inventories INVENTORIES of auto and truck wreckers. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, Nov. 1938, p. 323.

WREN, JAMES H.

Accountants' certificates, modern requirements as interpreted by representative accounting firms; a selection of 1936 certificates with content coded and indexed for quick reference. New York, Ronald press co., c1937. 181p.

WRENSHALL, C. M. Municipal administration and accounting. Toronto, Sir Isac Pitman & sons (Canada), ltd., 1937. 281p.

Municipal balance sheet defects. Municipal finance, May 1937, p. 42-6.

WRIGHT, ALEXANDER

Our managed money. Accountants' magazine, April 1938, p. 229-43.

WRIGHT, BEN S

Installment selling—policies and practices. (In National retail dry goods association. Year book of retailing. 1936. p. 120-6.)

WRIGHT, JOHN A., joint author See Thomson, Metellus, Jr., Ball, George W. and Wright, John A.

WRIGHT, P. W. Accounting for fixed assets. Cost and management, Jan. 1939, p. 10-6, 18-9.

WRIGHT, THEODORE P. Factors affecting the cost of airplanes. United States air services, March 1936, p. 23-5.

WRITE-DOWNS AND WRITE-UPS See Valuation-Asset revaluation.

WRITE-OFF of appreciation. (Accounting questions) Journal of accountancy, April 1938, p. 334-5.

WRITING of a report. Ferguson, E. A.

WURZEL, HAROLD

Tax agreement with Sweden. Taxes—the tax maga-zine, Aug. 1939, p. 460-2, 495-7.

WYATT, BIRCHARD E. AND WANDEL, WILLIAM H.

Social security act in operation; a practical guide to the federal and federal-state social security programs. Washington, D. C., Graphic arts press, inc., 1937. 382p.

WYER, SAMUEL S.

Living together in a power age. New York, Asso-ciation press, 1936. 231p.

WYLIE, HARRY L.

Adapting office procedures and facilities to administrative requirements. Cost and management, Oct. 1938, p. 263-71.
 Can we cut the cost of handling small orders? American business, Sept. 1938, p. 28-30, 52.
 Control of administrative expenses. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1938.

180-6.)

p. 180-6.)
Making the budget work. American business, April 1933, p. 26-8, 51-2.
Reducing the cost of handling purchase orders. American business, Nov. 1938, p. 68-71.
Systems to simplify inventory accounting. American business, March 1939, p. 26-7, 49-50.

WYLIE

YLIE, HARRY L., GAMBER, MERLE P. AND BRECHT, ROBERT P. Practical office management; the correlation of men, methods and machines. New York, Pren-tice-Hall, inc., 1937. 300p.

WYLLIE, JAMES

Farm cost accounting. Accountant, July 4, 1936, p. 18-22, discussion, p. 22-3. Cost accountant, Aug. 1936, p. 60-6, discussion, p. 66-9.

WYNES, W. ANSTEY

Expiration of the mortgagors relief acts (South Australia) Australian accountant, July 1937, p. 439-41.

WYNGARDEN, H. J.

Contrasting economic trends of the twenties and thirties. (In Michigan state college and the Michigan association of certified public accoun-tants. Fourteenth annual Michigan accounting conference. 1938. p. 8-14.)

WYNN, J. O., joint author See Montgomery, Robert H. and others.

WYNNE, J. L.

Budgetary controls. Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, Nov. 1938, p. 2-6. Practical system of budgetary controls that plant officials like and use. Executives service bulletin, May 1938, p. 7-8.

WYNNE, WILLIAM H. Burden of obsolescence. Canadian chartered ac-countant, April 1937, p. 312-26.

PYOMING. STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY Chapter 45, session laws of 1911 and Chapter 2, Wyoming compiled statutes, 1931. (approved Oct. 28, 1938.) 16p. WYOMING.

Y, S. G.

Accounts of co-operative companies manufacturing butter or cheese. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 436-43.

YAGER, VINCENT What banks should expect in financial statements. Credit and financial management, June 1938, p. 17-20.

YALE UNIVERSITY, SCHOOL OF ENGINEERING Steam versus Diesel-electrics. Mechanical engineer-ing, June 1939, p. 469-70.

YARNS

KING See also Rayon. ACCOUNTING for moisture loss on cotton yarn. (Questions and answers) New York, National association of cost accountants, Nov. 1, 1939. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 21, no. 5, section 2, p. 344-6.)

YATCO, ALFREDO

Tax evasion in Philippines. Philippine accountants' journal, Oct., Nov., Dec. 1938, p. 384-94.

YATES, C. S.

Some aspects of income tax administration. Ac-countant, May 2, 1936, p. 159-64. Accountant student and Accountants' journal, Nov. 1936, p. 205-10.

YAVERBAUM, IRVING Discussion of the report on state taxation, by John L. Costello. (In Pennsylvania institute of certi-fied public accountants—Harrisburg chapter, and the American institute of accountants. Proceed-ings of the second accounting clinic, October 20-21, 1939. 3p.)

YEABSLEY, R. E. Modern company flotation. Accountant, April 24, 1937, p. 581-9. Accountant student and Accoun-tants' journal, Aug. 1937, p. 108-16.

YEAGER, L. C. J. Essential factors in a dimension costing system. Certified public accountant, Jan. 1936, p. 25-32.

YEAR

See Period.

- YEAR book of retailing. National retail dry goods association. Controllers' congress.
- YEAR in review, 1938-1939. American institute of accountants.
- YEAR'S work of the American institute of accoun-tants, 1936-1937. American institute of accountants.

YEATMAN, MILLARD S. Director's examinations. National auditgram, Nov. 1936, p. 8-10, 13-14.

YERGER, J. DOUGLAS

Valuation of water utility assets. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, May 1938, p. 422-3.

YORK, THOMAS

Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 113-5. Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1938, p. 113-5. Treatment of bond discount, (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, Aug. 1939, p. 121.

YORSTON, R. KEITH

Partnership accounts. Australian accountant, Jan. 1938, p. 450-64; Feb. 1938, p. 75-80.

YOUNG, BENJAMIN E. Determining per item costs. Bankers magazine, March 1938, p. 213-7. Bulletin of the American institute of banking, April 1938, p. 201-7. Research in costs and methods of operation. Bank-ers magazine, March 1937, p. 211-3.

YOUNG. GEORGE B.

Reciprocity and retaliation in insurance taxation. (In National tax association. Proceedings, 1938. p. 480-4.)

- YOUNG, N. S. Administration of deceased estates in bankruptcy. Australian accountant, Oct. 1938, p. 232-40. Audit of solicitors' trust accounts (South Aus-tralia). Chartered accountant in Australia, Feb. 1037 6310
 - Inana, Charterea accountant in Australia, Feb. 1937, p. 631-9.
 Bankrupicy examinations in South Australia. Char-tered accountant in Australia, March 1937, p. 667-74.

- 667-74. Doctrine of relation back. Chartered accountant in Australia, Dec. 1937, p. 400-5. "Fixtures". Chartered accountant in Australia, Jan. 1937, p. 554-61. Hire purchase agreements. Chartered accountant in Australia, Oct. 1937, p. 296-302. Payment of arrears of dividends on preference shares after liquidation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 105-13. Dichto duting end responsibilities of trustees in
- suares arter liquidation. Chartered accountant in Australia, Aug. 1936, p. 105-13. Rights, duties and responsibilities of trustees in bankruptcy and the organisation of a trustee's office. Chartered accountant in Australia, June 1938, p. 840-7. Winery accounts. Chartered
- Winery accounts. Chartered accountant in Aus-tralia, Feb. 1938, p. 541-51.
- YOUNG, R. A. AND BERNSTEIN, BLANCHE Statistical pattern of instalment debt. National bureau of economic research bulletin, 76-7, Oct. 15, 1939, p. 1-22. National

YOUNG, S. V. Good housekeeping in San Francisco. (In Ameri-can institute of accountants. Papers on auditing procedure and other accounting subjects. 1939. p. 211-2.)

YOUNG, STANLEY G. Accounts of a country general store. Australian accountant, Feb. 1938, p. 67-75.

- YOUNGQUIST, G. AARON Elimination of intergovernmental exemptions based on federal and state sovereignty. *Tax magasine*, Nov. 1937, p. 649-50. Relation of executors and administrators to state
 - and federal inheritance taxes. Taxes—the tax magazine, Jan. 1939, p. 15-6, 54-5.

YOUR income tax. Lasser, J. K.

YOUR income tax. Satterlee, Hugh and Sher, I. Herman.

YOUR income tax. Sher, I. Herman.

- YOUR income tax return to Uncle Sam. Stempf, Victor H.
- YOUR salesman's pay check; Dartnell salary survey —part 6. American business, June 1939, p. 19-21, 43.

YOUR securities and federal taxes. Sinker, Julius. YU-LIN HSI

Accountants in China. (Correspondence) Journal of accountancy, July 1939, p. 54-5.

ZALETEL, ALBERT W. Some phases of stock brokerage auditing. Account-ing ledger, April 1939, p. 47-9.

ZARKER, A. B. Is fixed overhead always a cost? (Forum section) New York, National association of cost accoun-tants, Aug. 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 23, section 2, p. 1347-8.)

ZASTROW, L. E.

- ASIROW, L. E.
 Record-keeping under the social security act. (In National association of cost accountants. Year book, 1936. p. 76-99, discussion, p. 99-101.)
 Stabilization under state unemployment compensa-tion laws. Illinois manufacturers' costs associa-tion monthly bulletin, Jan. 1938, p. 1-2, 4-6.

ZEIGLER, N. B.

EIGLER, N. D. Accounts receivable records and methods. New York, National association of cost accountants, Jan. 15, 1938. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 19, no. 10, section 1, p. 581-94.) Printed with: Luenstroth, Harold W. Customer's accounts.

ZELLICK, ROY R.

HLLICK, KOY K. Minimizing costs of safekeeping; standards for profitable operation of custody accounts. Trust companies, Nov. 1938, p. 594-5. Should trust departments operate common trust funds? Accounting procedure. Trust companies, Oct. 1936, p. 448-50.

ZERBO, JOHN D. Recording the costs of truck transportation. New York, National association of cost accountants, June 1, 1937. (N.A.C.A. bulletin, v. 18, no. 19, section 1, p. 1107-1119.) Printed with: Tor-rence, Gerald A. Accounting for truck opera-tion. tions

ZERMAN, SAMUEL WILLIAM

- Attorney system as a modern method of collecting water accounts. Journal of the American water works association, Nov. 1936, p. 1669-76.

ZIGNONE, G. T. Progress of business recorded in controller's reports to management. *Controller*, Feb. 1939, p. 44-6.

ZIMERING, MAX Notes on consolidations. Accounting forum, Oct. 1938, p. 20-4.

ZIMET, PHILIP, joint author See Paul, Randolph E. and Zimet, Philip.

ZIMMERMAN, F. K. Small plant adapts big-plant cost method; describ-ing an efficient payroll and cost system fashioned on automatic sort-card lines, but which sticks to hand sorting. Factory management and mainte-nance, Oct. 1938, p. 54-5.

ZIMMERMAN, R. C.

Accounting for returnable containers. Brewery age, Feb. 1936, p. 35-40.

ZINCK, W. C. Low inventories, because—no wrong guesses are made; time element is removed. Here's a plan for controlling material costs that works like a charm in a 200-man plant making 1,500-odd items in a highly competitive industry. Factory management and maintenance, July 1938, p. management and maintenance, July 1938, p. 65-6, 128, 130. Low labor costs. Factory management and mainte-nance, Dec. 1938, p. 53-4.

ZIPPERS

See Fasteners, Slide.

ZIZMOR, JULIUS

Trust receipt tested in bankruptcy. Credit execu-tive, May 1937, p. 137-8.

ZORN, BURTON A. AND FELDMAN, GEORGE J. Business under the new price laws; a study of the economic and legal problems arising out of the Robinson-Patman act and the various fair trade and unfair practices laws. New York, Prentice-Hall, inc., 1937. 463p.

ZWINGLI, CONRAD

Discussion of bank costs. National auditgram, Feb. 1938, p. 8-11.

ZYSMAN, H.

Constructive receipt of income. Tax magazine, Dec. 1938, p. 715-6, 749, 767.

DIRECTORY

See also Directory in Accountants' index, 1920 and Supplements, 1921-23, 1923-27, 1928-31, 1932-35.

<text><code-block><text></code>

, लंद्

Association of national advertisers, inc., 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Association of stock exchange firms, 42 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Association press, 347 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Atlantic monthly, 8 Arlington St., Boston, Mass. Australasian institute of secretaries, 11 Bank Place, Melbourne, C. 1, Victoria, Australia. Australian accountant (Accountants publishing co. ltd.), 440 Little Collins St., Melbourne, Australia. Automobile manufacturers association, 366 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Ayer, N. W., & son, inc., Washington Square, Philalelphia, Pa. Automobile manufacturers association, 366 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
Ayer, N. W., & son, inc., Washington Square, Philalelphia, Pa.
Baker, Voorhis & co., 119 Fulton St., New York, N. Y.
Balance sheet (Controllers' congress, National retail dry goods association), 101 W. 31 St., New York, N. Y.
Bankers mental settlements, Basle, Switzerland.
Bankers monthly, (Rand McNally & co.), 111 8 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers monthly, (Rand McNally & co.), 111 8 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers monthly, (Rand McNally & co.), 111 8 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers monthly, (Rand McNally & co.), 111 8 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers monthly, (Rand McNally & co.), 111 8 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers monthly, (Rand McNally & co.), 111 8 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers (Barron's, Go, 185 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
Bankers (Barron's, Batron's, Charlow, C., Cleyeland, Ohio.
Bankers (Barron's, Claron, See Banks-Baldwin law publishing co.
Barron's, (Barron's, Claron, New York, N. Y.
Benley school of accounting and finance, 921 Boylston St., Boston, Mass.
Benziger bros, 12-14 W. 149 St., New York, N. Y.
Buter ribbon books, 14 W. 149 St., New York, N. Y.
Boston chamber of commerce, 80 Federal St., Boston, Mass.
Bowker, R. R. co. 62 W. 45 St., New York, N. Y.
Brookings institution, 722 Jackson Place, N.W., Washington, D. C.
Buildings and building management, 139 N. Clark St., Chicago, III.
British library of information, 50 Rockeller Plaza, New York, N. Y.
Builetin of Americai institute of accountants, American institute publishing co., inc., 13 E. 41 St., New York, N. Y.
Builetin of Americai institute of accountants, Americai institute publishing co., inc., 13 E. 41 St., New York, N. Y.
Builetin of the American institute of banking, 22 E. 40 St., New York, N. Y.
Builetin of the American institute of Business fext-book publishers, inc. 225 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Butscher, W. Charles, 1200 Gimbel bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
C.P.A. examinations review, 115 W. 45 St., New York, N. Y.
California certified public accountant, 900 C. C. Chapman bldg., Los Angeles, Calif.
California fruit growers exchange, Box 5030 Metropolitan station, Los Angeles, Calif.
California society of C.P.A.'s, 620 Market St., San Francisco, Calif.
California nde co., 401 E. Ohio St., Chicago, III.
Canner, 140 N. Dearborn St., Chicago, III.
Canning trade, 20 S. Gay St., Baltimore, Md.
Carmel press, inc., Carmelby-the-sea, Calif.
Central book eo., 245 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Certified accountants journal, 50 Bedford Square, W.C. 1, London, England.
Certified scoretary, 30 Fitzroy Square, London, W. 1, England.
Charterd accountant in Australia, 65-67 York St., Sydney, Australia.
Chemical and metallurgical engineering, 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Christon association, 19 S. LaSalle St., Chicago, III.
Chicago bar association, 19 S. LaSalle St., Chicago, III.
Chicago association and St., New York, N. Y.
Curstana science monitor, Christian science publishing society, 1 Norway St., Boston, Mass.
Circulation mangement, 431 S. Dearborn St., Chicago, III.
City record office, 221 Municipal bldg., New York, N. Y.
Civarke Marrison, inc., Packard bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
Celeveland publishing co., 90 Broad St., New York, N. Y.
College of the city of New York, 17 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.
College of the city of New York, 17 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.
College of the city of New York, 17 Quency St., Mellopring, Ave., New York, N. Y.
Colmomowealth institute of accountants, 37 Queen St., Melbourne, Australia.
Commercial and financial chronicle (William R. Dana co.), William, cor. Spruce Sts.; N

572

ACCOUNTANTS' INDEX

Coöperative project, U. S. Works progress administration, 1780 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Cornell university, Ithaca, N. Y. Corporate accountant, 137 W. George St., Glasgow, Scotland. Corporation trust co., 120 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Cost accountant (Institute of cost & works accountants), 23 Queen Square, London, W.C. 1, England. Cost and management, 50 Harbour St., Toronto, Canada. Cotton-textile institute, inc., 320 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Credit and financial management (National association of credit men), 1 Park Ave., New York, N. Y. Credit and financial management (National association), 354 Fourth Ave., New York, N. Y. Credit union national association, Raiffeisen House, Madison, Wisc. Credit world (National retail credit association), 1218 Olive St., St. Louis, Mo. Crédit world (National retait crédit association), 1218 Olive St., St. Louis, Mo. Dahls (The), Haviland Road, Stamford, Conn. Daily record, 15 E. Saratoga St., Baltimore, Md. Delachaux & Niestle, S.A., 4 Rue de l'Hopital, Neuchatel also 26 Rue St.-Dominique, Paris. Delaware society of C.P.A.'s, 10024 duPont bldg., Wilmington, Dela. Detroit bar association, 577 Penobscot bldg., Detroit, Mich. District of Columbia institute of C.P.A.'s, 528 Woodward bldg., Washington, D. C. Dittrict of Columbia institute of C.P.A.'s, 528 Woodward bldg., Washington, D. C. Dittrict of Columbia institute of C.P.A.'s, 528 Woodward bldg., Washington, D. C. Ditto, Inc., Harrison, at Oakley Blvd., Chicago, Ill. Dolphin press, 1722 Arch St., Philadelphia, Pa. Domestic commerce, U. S. Dept. of commerce, Bureau of foreign & domestic commerce, Washington, D. C. Doubleday, Doran & co., inc., 75 Franklin Ave., Garden City, N. Y. Duke endowment, Hospital section, Charlotte, N. C. Dut unversity, Duke station, Durham, N. C. Dun and Bradstreet, inc., 290 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Dun's review (Dun and Bradstreet, inc.), 290 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Eastern underwriter, 94 Fulton St., New York, N. Y. Econometrica (Econometric society), Colorado Springs, Colo. Edison electric institute bulletin, 420 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y. Editorial research reports, 1013 Thirteenth St., N.W., Washington, D. C. Educational business manager & buyer (The educational buyers), 6306 Cottage Grove Ave., Chicago, Ill. Edgin association of commerce, Elgin, Ill. Engineering news-record, 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Equinox coöperative press, inc., 444 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Exchange (New York stock exchange), 11 Wall St., New York, N. Y. Excentives service bulletin (Metropolitan life insurance co.), 1 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Factory management & maintenance (McGraw-Hill pub. co.), 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Farrar and Rinehart, 232 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Fedde & co., 107 William St., New York, N. Y. Federal accountant, 472 Bourke St., Melbourne, C. 1, Australia. Federal reserve bulletin, U. S. government printing office, Washington, D. C. Federation notes (Journal of the national commercial teachers federation), Northern high school, Detroit, Mich. Fent college book store, Cleveland, Ohio. Fertig, Arthur and co., 1441 Broadway, New York, N. Y. Fidelity & casualty co. of New York, 80 Maiden Lane, New York, N. Y. Financial publishing co., 9 Newbury St., Boston, Mass. Financial world, 21 West St., New York, N. Y. Fisher, Robert D. & co., 461-8 St., New York, N. Y. Fisher, Robert D. & co., 461-8 St., New York, N. Y. Field, E. I., College of the city of New York, 17 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y. Fleisher, Fernald & co., 1737 Chestnut St., Philadelphia, Pa. Florida accountant, Box 257, Ft. Lauderdale, Fla. Florida institute of accountants, Sweet bldg., Ft. Lauderdale, Fla. Florida municipal record (Municipal record publishing co.), 22-30 W. Bay St., Jacksonville, Fla. Folding paper box association of America, 205 W. Wacker Drive, Chicago, Ill. Folding paper box association of America, 205 W. Wacker Drive, Chicago, Ill. Foldit publishing co., 1255 S. Wabash Ave., Chicago, Ill. Food industries (McGraw-Hill pub. co., inc.), 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Forders, B. C., publishing co., 120 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y. Ford motor co., Dearborn, Mich. Mich. Food industries (McGraw-Hill pub. co., inc.), 330 W. 42 St., New S Forbes, B. C., publishing co., 120 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y. Ford motor co., Dearborn, Mich. Fortune, Time & Life bldg., Rockefeller Center, New York, N. Y. Foundation press, inc., 11 S. LaSalle St., Chicago, Ill. Foundry, 110 E. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Freeman, M. M. & co., Packard bldg., Philadelphia, Pa. Funk and Wagnalls co., 354 Fourth Ave., New York, N. Y. Furniture record and journal, 200 Division St., Grand Rapids, Mich. Furniture record and journal, 200 Division St., Grand Rapids, Mich.
Gas age record and natural gas (Robbins pub. co., inc.), 9 E. 38 St., New York, N. Y.
Gee and co., ltd., 6 Kirby St., E.C. 1, London, England.
General education board, 49 W. 49 St., New York, N. Y.
Georgetown law journal, Georgetown law school, 506 E St., N.W., Washington, D. C.
Georgia society of C.P.A.'s, 208 Fishburne, Emory univ., Ga.
Gilman, Stephen, International accountants society, inc., 3411 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, III.
Government printing office, Washington, D. C.
Graphic arts press, inc., Washington, D. C.
Graphic arts press, inc., Washington, D. C.
Graphie, J. Stepher, I., 1010 Public Square bldg., Cleveland, Ohio.
Greenberg, publisher, inc., 67 W. 44 St., New York, N. Y.
Greidinger, B. Bernard, 11 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Grosby press, inc., 30 Ferry St., New York, N. Y. Hadley, Charles R., co., 330 N. Los Angeles St., Los Angeles, Calif. also 342 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Harcourt, Brace & co., 383 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.

Harper and brothers, 49 E. 33 St., New York, N. Y. Harper magazine (Harper & bros.), 49 E. 33 St., New York, N. Y. Harris, Kerr, Forster & co., 18 E. 48 St., New York, N. Y. Hartman, Dennis, 501 Landfair Ave., W. Los Angeles, Calif. Hartwell, Jobson and Kibbee, 9 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, N. Y. Harvard business review, (McGraw-Hill book co., inc.), 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Harvard university, Bureau of business research, Soldiers field. Boston, Mass. Harvard university, Bureau of business research, Soldiers field. Boston, Mass. Harvard university, Bureau of business research, Soldiers field. Boston, Mass. Harvard university, St., Stagenwald bldg., Honolulu, T. H. Heat treating and forging (Steel publications, inc.), 108 Smithfield St., Pittsburgh, Pa. Heath, D. C., and co., 285 Columbus Ave., Boston, Mass, also 180 Varick St., New York, N. Y. Heating, piping and air conditioning, 6 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, III. Heaton publishing co., 431 King St., W. Toronto, Canada. Herdrich & Boggs, 803 Electric bldg., Indianpolis, Ind. Hertwood and Herwood, 521 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y. Holt, Henry & co., 257-4 Ave., New York, N. Y. Horwath hotel accountant, 551 5 Ave., New York, N. Y. Holt, Henry & co., 257-4 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Horwath hotel accountant, 551 5 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Ice and refrigeration, 435 N. Waller Ave., Chicago, III.
Ice cream review (Olsen publishing co.), 505 W. Cherry St., Milwaukee, Wisc.
Ice cream trade journal, 30 E. 45 St., New York, N. Y.
Idaho society of C.P.A.'s (G. B. Middleton & co.), Sonna bldg., Boise, Idaho.
Illinois manufacturers' costs association monthly bulletin, 120 S. LaSalle St., Chicago, III.
Illinois municipal review (Illinois municipal league), Urbana, III.
Illinois contants' journal Se Accountancy.
Incorporated accountants' journal See Accountancy.
Independent pertoleum association of merica, 702 Thompson bldg., Tulsa, Okla.
Indian accountant, 7-A Nisbet Road, Lahore, India.
Indiana association of C.P.A.'s, Guaranty bldg., Indianapolis, Ind.
Indiana association of C.P.A.'s, Guaranty bldg., Indianapolis, Ind.
Indiana association of America, 702 Thompson bldg., Tulsa, Okla.
Indiana association of America, 702 Thompson bldg., New York, N. Y.
Inadian decountants and actuaries in Glasgow, 218-220 St. Vincent St., Glasgow, C. 2, Scotland.
Institute of carpet manufacturers of America, 10c, 350 5 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Institute of chartered accountants in Largland and Wales, Moorgate Place, London, E.C. 2, England.
Institute of cost and works accountants, 23 Queen Square, London, W.C. 1, England.
Institute of cost and works accountants, 23 Queen Square, London, W.C. 1, England.
Institute of public administration, Palace chambers, Bridge St., Westminster, London, S.W. 1, England.
Institute of public administration, Palace chambers, Bridge St., Westminster, London, S.W. 1, England.
Institute of public administration, Palace chambers, Bridge St., Westminster, London, S.W. 1, England.
Institute of public administration, Palace chamber International accountants society, inc. (division of Alexander Hamilton institute), 3411 S. Micr Chicago, III. International association of ice cream manufacturers, 1105 Barr bldg., Washington, D. C. International association of milk dealers, 309 W. Jackson Blvd., Chicago, III. International association of milk dealers, 319 W. Jackson Blvd., Chicago, III. International etxt book co., 1001 Wyoming Ave., Scranton, Pa. Investment banking (Investment bankers association of America), 33 S. Clark St., Chicago, III. Investment counsel association of America, 90 Broad St., New York, N. Y. Iowa society of C.P.A.'s, 918 Des Moines bldg., Des Moines, Iowa. Irish accountant and secretary (Morris & co.), 16 S. Frederick St., Dublin, Ireland. Iron age, 239 W. 39 St., New York, N. Y. Jackson, son & co., Itd., 73 W. George St., Glasgow, C. 2, Scotland. Jerrett, Herman Daniel, 2941 Highland Ave., Sacramento, Calif. Johns Hopkins press, Homewood, Baltimore, Md. Journal of accountancy, 13 E. 41 St., New York, N. Y. Journal of business of the university of Chicago, University of Chicago press, 5750 Ellis Ave., Chicago, Ill. Journal of calendar reform (World calendar assoc., inc.), 630 5 Ave., New York, N. Y. Journal of commerce, 63 Park Row, New York, N. Y. Journal of calendar reform (World calendar assoc., inc.), 630 5 Ave., New York, N. Y. Journal of higher education, Ohio state university, Columbus, Ohio. Journal of land & public utility economics, Northwestern university press, 337 E. Chicago Ave., Chicago, Ill. Journal of political economy, University of Chicago press, 5750 Ellis Ave., Chicago, Ave., Chicago, Ill. Journal of the American statistical association, 722 Woodward bldg., Washington, D. C. Journal of the American water works association, 22 E. 40 St., New York, N. Y. Junior accountant, 142 Porter St., East Boston, Mass. Kansas municipalities (League of Kansas municipalities), Lawrence, Kansas. Kansas society of C.P.A.'s, Brown bldg., Abilene, Kansas. Kentucky society of C.P.A.'s, 201 Columbia bldg., Louisville, Ky. Kiwanis magazine, 520 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, Ill. L.R.B. & M. journal (Lybrand, Ross bros. and Montgomery), 90 Broad St., New York, N. Y. Lamberton, Robert A., Box 92, New Brunswick, N. J. Lantern, Bryn Mawr college, Bryn Mawr, Pa. LaSalle extension university press, 4101 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, III. Laundry age publishing co., 9 E. 38 St., New York, N. Y. Laundry owners national association of the United States and Canada, Joliet, III. Law and contemporary problems, Duke university law school, Box C, Duke station, Durham, N. C. Lawyer, American law book co., 272 Flatbush Ave., Brooklyn, N. Y.

League of California municipalities, 448 S. Hill St., Los Angeles, Calif.
Legal intelligencer, Land title bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
LeGardeur, R. J. & co., 1002 Barronne bldg., New Orleans, La.
Leland publishers, inc., 2642 University Ave., St. Paul, Minn.
Library quarterly, University of Chicago press, 5750 Ellis Ave., Chicago, III.
Life office management association, 110 E. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Librarphers national association, inc., 295 Madison ave., New York, N. Y.
Liongmans, Green and company, 114 5th Ave., New York, N. Y., also 39 Paternoster Row, London, E.C. 4, England.
Louisiana commerce teacher Southeastern Louisiana college Hammond La. Louisiana commerce teacher, Southeastern Louisiana college, Hammond, La. Louisiana society of C.P.A.'s, 2012 American bank bldg., New Orleans, La. Lyon, J. B., company, N. Broadway, Albany, N. Y. Louisrana society of C.P.A.'s, 2012 American bank bldg., New Orleans, La. Lyon, J. B., company, N. Broadway, Albany, N. Y.
M.P.T. publishing co., Philadelphia, Pa.
McGraw-Hill book co., inc., 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Machinery and allied products institute, 221 N. LaSalle St., Chicago, Ill.
Macmillan company, 60 Sth Ave., New York, N. Y.
Maine society of C.P.A.'s, 119 Exchange St., Portland, Maine.
Manargement review (American management association), 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Manine, Soylston st., Boston, Mass.
Manuria, Raymond L., 525 Boylston st., Boston, Mass.
Manufacturers' news (Glen and company), 120 S. LaSalle St., Chicago, Ill.
Marder, Louis, 165 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Marine engineering and shipping review, 30 Church St., New York, N. Y.
Marine dassociation of C.P.A.'s, Calvert bldg., Baltimore, Md.
May, George O., (Price, Waterhouse & co.), 56 Pine St., New York, N. Y.
Merrill Lynch & co., inc., 40 Wall St., New York, N. Y.
Merrill Lynch & co., inc., 40 Wall St., New York, N. Y.
Metrill Lynch & co., inc., 40 Wall St., New York, N. Y.
Michie company, Charlottesville, Va.
Michie company, Stall Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Michie company, Stall Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Michie company, Charlottesville, Va.
Michie company, Stall Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Michie company, Stall Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Michig an association of C.P.A.'s, 820 David Stott bldg., Detroit, Mich.
Midway Stall Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Michie company, Stall Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Mining journal, 520-528 Title and trust bldg., Phoenix, Arizona.
Mining journal, 520-528 Title and trust bldg., Floenix, Arizona.
Mining courdit, 55, 508 Essex bldg., Minneapolis, Minn.
Missouri society of C.P.A.'s, 612 Millsaps bldg., Jackson, Miss.
Minisouri socie Muncipal finance officers' association of the United States and Canada, 1313 E. 60 St., Chicago, Ill. Myer, John N., 435 Riverside Drive, New York, N. Y.
N. A. C. A. bulletin (National association of cost accountants), 385 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
National accountant, 1206 S. Maple Ave., Los Angeles, Calif, (out of print)
National association of broadessters, Normandy bldg, Washington, D. C.
National association of broadessters, Normandy bldg, Washington, D. C.
National association of broadessters, Normandy bldg, Washington, D. C.
National association of during owners and managers, 134 S. LaSalle St., Chicago, Ill.
National association of credit men. 1 Park Ave., New York, N. Y.
National association of insurance agents, 200 Maiden, Lee, New York, N. Y.
National association of insurance agents, 80 Maiden, Lee, New York, N. Y.
National association of public school business officials, 341 S. Bellefield Ave., Pittsburgh, Pa.
National association of sales finance commissioners, 7413 New post office bldg., Washington, D. C.
National association of sales finance commissioners, 7413 New York, N. Y.
National canners' association, 1739 H St., New, Washington, D. C.
National canners' association, 1739 H St., New, Washington, D. C.
National committee to uphold constitutional government, 205 E. (42 St., New York, N. Y.
National container association, 1739 H St., 21 West St., New York, N. Y.
National container association, 1739 H St., 21 West St., New York, N. Y.
National container association, 1735 Fourteenth St., N.W., Washington, D. C.
National container association, 1735 Fourteenth St., New York, N. Y.
National container association, 1735 Fourteenth St., New York, N. Y.
National container association, 165 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
National container association, 162 Carnegie ave., Cleveland, Ohio.
Nation

- National upholstery and drapery textile association, inc., 185 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
 National vocational guidance association, 425 W. 123 St., New York, N. Y.
 National wholesale hardware association, 505 Arch St., Philadelphia, Pa.
 National youth administration, Colored division, Atlanta, Ga.
 Nations (U. S. chamber of commerce), 1615 H St., N.W. Washington, D. C.
 Natural business (O. S. chamber of commerce), 1615 H St., N.W. Washington, D. C.
 Natural business (O. S. chamber of commerce), 1615 H St., N.W. Washington, D. C.
 Natural business (O. C. P.A.'s, 525 Stuart bldg., Lincoln, Nebr.
 New Hampshire society of C.P.A.'s, 629 Auburn St., Manchester, N. H.
 New Jersey society of C.P.A.'s, 629 Auburn St., Manchester, N. H.
 New Mexico society of C.P.A.'s, Herodo St., Newark, N. J.
 New York certified public accountant, New York state society of certified public accountants, 15 E. 41 St., New York state society of certified public accountant, 17 Murray St., New York, N. Y.
 New York stock exchange, 11 Wall St., New York, N. Y.
 New York stock exchange, 11 Wall St., New York, N. Y.
 New York suck 280 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
 New York university accounting ledger, See Accounting ledger.
 New York university press book store, 81 Washington Square, E., New York, N. Y.
 North Carolina association of C.P.A.'s, 303 Security blak, Graensboro, N. C.
 North Dakota society of C.P.A.'s, 303 Security blag, Graensboro, N. C.
 Norton, W. W. & co, inc., 70 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y.
 Occupations (National vocational guidance association), 425 W. 123 St., New York, N. Y.

- Occupations (National vocational guidance association), 425 W. 123 St., New York, N. Y. Office machines research, inc., 630 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y. Ohio society of C.P.A.'s, 3815 Carew Tower, Cincinnati, Ohio. Ohio state university, Columbus, Ohio. Oilnotes (National oil marketers association), National press bldg., Washington, D. C. Oklahoma society of C.P.A.'s, 834 Kennedy bldg., Tulsa, Okla. Oregon state society of C.P.A.'s, 1045 Pacific bldg., Portland, Ore. Outline publicity company, See (The) Chief, 2 Lafayette st., New York, N. Y. Oxford university press, 114 Fifth Ave.. New York, N. Y.

- Outline publicity company, Dec Vacy Cate, Cate, Very, Very, N.Y.
 Pace, Homer S., 225 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
 Pace student, 225 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
 Paper trade journal, 15 W. 47 St., New York, N. Y.
 Park employes' annuity & benefit fund, 127 N. Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill.
 Pathifnder service bulletin (Charles R. Hadley company), 330 N. Los Angeles St., Los Angeles, Calif.
 Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, 619 Land title bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
 Pennsylvania institute of certified public accountants, Harrisburg chapter, Harrisburg, Pa.
 Pennsylvania statict of C.P.A.'s, 304.307 Cu Unjieng bldg., Escolta, Manila, P. I.
 Philippine accountants' journal (Philippine institute of C.P.A.'s), 217 Crystal arcade, Escolta, Manila, P. I.
 Philippine institute of C.P.A.'s, 304.307 Cu Unjieng bldg., Escolta, Manila, P. I.
 Philippine institute of C.P.A.'s, 304.307 Cu Unjieng bldg., Escolta, Manila, P. I.
 Philippine institute of C.P.A.'s, 304.307 Cu Unjieng bldg., Escolta, Manila, P. I.
 Philippine accountants', Surger St., New York, N. Y.
 Pit-box, San Francisco club of printing house craftsmen, San Francisco, Calif.
 Pittman publishing corporation, 2 W. 45 St., New York, N. Y.
 Prince-Hall, inc., 70 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y.
 Princeton university press, Princeton, N. J.
 Principia press, inc., Bloomington, Ind.
 Professional public actions, inc., 22 E. 40 St., New York, N. Y.
 Profit, Charles R. Hadley company, 330 N. Los Angeles St., Los Angeles, Calif.
 Public administration clearing house, 1313 E. 60 St., Chicago, Ill.
 Public administration clearing house, 1313 E. 60 St., Chicago, Ill.
 Public utilities fortnightly, Munsey bldg., Washington, D. C.
 Public works (Public works journal corp., inc.), 310 E. 45 St., New York, N. Y.
 Puetro Rico institute of accountants, P. O. Box 2

- Quarterly journal of economics, Harvard university press, Randall Hall, Cambridge, Mass.

- Rand McNally bankers' monthly (Rand McNally & co.), See Bankers monthly.
 Rayon and melliand textile monthly, See Rayon textile monthly.
 Rayon and melliand textile monthly, See Rayon textile monthly.
 Rayon textile monthly (Rayon publishing co.), 303 5 Ave., New York, N. Y.
 Reynal & Hitchcock, inc., 386 Fourth Ave., New York, N. Y.
 Reynolds & Reynolds co., Dayton, Ohio.
 Rhode Island society of C.P.A.'s, 49 Westminster St., Providence, R. I.
 Rittenhouse, Charles F. & co., 1 Federal St., Boston, Mass.
 Roads and streets (Gillette publishing company), 330 S. Wells St., Chicago, Ill.
 Robert Morris associates monthly bulletin, 1503 Philadelphia national bank bldg., Philadelphia, Pa.
 Rochester alumni review, University of Rochester, Rochester, N. Y.
 Rock products (Tradepress publishing corporation), 205 W. Wacker Drive, Chicago, Ill.
 Ronald press company, 15 E. 26 St., New York, N. Y.

- St. Louis chamber of commerce news, 511 Locust St., St. Louis, Mo. Sales management, 420 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y. San Francisco bar (Bar association of San Francisco), 2200 Mills Tower, San Francisco, Calif. Savings and loans (America nsavings and loan institute), 333 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, Ill. Savings banks association of the state of New York, 110 E. 42 St., New York, N. Y. Saxe, Emanuel, 347 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y. Scudder, Marvyn & co., See Fisher, Robert D. & co. Secretary in Australia and New Zealand, 11 Bank Place, Melbourne, C. 1, Victoria, Australia. Securities and exchange commission, 1778 Pennsylvania Ave., N. W. Washington, D. C. Sherrett, Lawrence W., 17 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y. Sherwin-Williams co., 101 Prospect Ave., N.W., Cleveland, Ohio.

Ą

Shevit, Frank H., 42 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Sieplein, W. R. (Sherwin-Williams co.), 101 Prospect Ave., N.W., Cleveland, Ohio.
Simon and Schuster, 386 4 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Sinclair, Murray & co., inc., 44 Whitehall St., New York, N. Y.
Skinner, Thomas, 300 Gresham House, Old Broad St., London, E.C. 2, England.
Smith, Barney & co., 14 Wall St., New York, N. Y.
Society of incorporated accountants and auditors, Incorporated accountants' hall, Victoria embankment, London, W.C. 2, England.
South Carolina society of C.P.A.'s, 203 Magel bldg., Columbia, S. C.
South Dakota society of C.P.A.'s, P.O. Box 393, Watertown, S. D.
South Dakota society of C.P.A.'s, P.O. Box 393, Watertown, S. D.
South management management in the point, N. C.
Sparrow, Waymouth & co., 17 John St., New York, N. Y.
Spectator, 239 W. 39 St., New York, N. Y.
Spencer, Dee, 222 W. Adams St., Chicago, III.
State insurance fund, 625 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
State insurance fund, 625 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
State insurance fund, 625 Madison Ave., New York, N. Y.
Steel (Penton publishing co.), 1213 W. Third St., Cleveland, Ohio.
Stevenson, Jordan and Harrison, 19 W. 44 St., New York, N. Y.
Stone and Cox, 1td., 80 George St., Toronto, Canada.
Sweet & Maxwell, 1td., 2-3 Chancery Lane, London, W.C. 2, England.
Taber, Norman S. C., co., 30 Broad St., New York, N. Y. Stone and Cox, Hd., 80 George St., 107000, Canada.
Sweet & Maxwell, Hd., 2.3 Chancery Lane, London, W.C. 2, England.
Taber, Norman S. C., co., 30 Broad St., New York, N. Y.
Taliman, Robbins & co., 314-24 W. Superior St., Chicago, Ill.
Tax magazine, See Taxes—the tax magazine.
Tax policy league, inc., 907 Broadway, New York, N. Y.
Tax research foundation, See Commerce clearing house, inc.
Taxes—the tax magazine, 214 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, Ill.
Taxpayers bulletin (Washington taxpayers association) 1508 H. St., N.W., Washington, D. C.
Tennessee society of C.P.A's, Nashville Tennessean bldg., Nashville, Tenn.
Texas accountant, F. E. Box 267, College station, Texas.
Texas accountant, F. E. Box 267, College station, Texas.
Texas industry (Texas state manufacturers' association), Bedell bldg., San Antonio, Texas.
Texas manufacturer, See Texas industry.
Textile foundation, inc., Dept. of commerce bldg., 14 St., between Constitution ave., and E St., N.W., Washington, D. C.
Trade association executives in New York eity, 60 E. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Timberman, 623 S.W. Oak St., Portland, Ore.
Trade association transcript co.), 324 Washington St., Boston, Mass.
Trust companies magazine, See Trusts and estates.
Trust and estates, 50 E. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
Twentieth century fund, inc., 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y.
United Hospital fund, 370 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.
United Hospital fund, 370 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.
United Hospital fund, 370 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y. Twentieth century fund, inc., 330 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. United Hospital fund, 370 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y. United States air services (Air service publishing co., inc.), Transportation bldg., Washington, D. C. United States building and loan league, 333 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, III. United States corporation company, 150 Broadway, New York, N. Y. United States fieldity and guaranty co., Calvert & Redwood, Baltimore, Md. University of Chicago press, 5750 Ellis Ave., Chicago, III. University of Chicago press, 5750 Ellis Ave., Chicago, III. University of Kansas, Lawrence, Kan. University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich. University of Neraska, Lincoln, Nebr. University of New Mexico, Albuquerque, N. M. University of North Carolina press, Chapel Hill, N. C. University of North Carolina press, Chapel Hill, N. C. University of Pennsylvania press, 3622 Locust st., Philadelphia, Pa. University publishing co., 239 Fourth Ave., New York, N. Y. Utah C.P.A. (S. Bertell Bunker), Tax commission, State capitol, Salt Lake City, Utah. Utah association of C.P.A's, 1127 Windsor St., Salt Lake City, Utah. Van Nostrand D., co., inc., 250 4 Ave., New York, N. Y. Olah C.F.A. (3). Derlen Bunker), Tax commission, State Caplot, Salt Lake City, Utah.
Van Nostrand D., co., inc., 250 4 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Vermont society of C.P.A's, 135 College St., Burlington, Vt.
Virginia law review (Virginia law review association), P.O. Box 1355, University station, Charlottes-ville, Va.
Virginia society of public accountants, 713 Citizens bank bldg., Norfolk, Va.
Waldrep-Tilson, inc., 565 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y.
Walker's manual, inc., 507 Montgomery St., Sant Francisco, Calif.
Walker's manual, inc., 507 Montgomery St., San Francisco, Calif.
Walton school of commerce, 332 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, Ill.
Wathor society of C.P.A's, 300 Insurance bldg., Seattle, Wash.
Waterworks and sewerage (Gillette publishing company), 330 S. Wells St., Chicago, Ill.
Weekly underwriter, 80 Maiden Lane, New York, N. Y.
Weekly underwriter, 80 Maiden Lane, New York, N. Y.
Weekly underwriter, 80 Maiden Lane, New York, N. Y.
Wein, Charles and co., 119 W. 57 St., New York, N. Y.
Wein Scharles of commerce, University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pa.
Wiley, John & sons, inc., 440-4 Ave., New York, N. Y.
Wisconsin society of C.P.A's, 735 N. Water St., Milwaukee, Wis.
Womans C. P. A., 38 S. Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill.
Womans press (The national board, Y.W.C.A.), 600 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.
Wyoming society of C.P.A's, 400 Consolidated royalty bldg., Casper, Wyo.
Yale national board, Y.W.C.A.), 600 Lexington Ave., New York, N. Y.
Walton straid to C.P. A's, 400 Consolidated royalty bldg., Casper, Wyo.
Yale haw journal (Yale law journal company, inc.), Yale station, New Haven, Conn. Yale law journal (Yale law journal company, inc.), Yale station, New Haven, Conn. Yale university press, 143 Elm St., New Haven, Conn.